
CD____________ JOB ADDRESS_____________________________________ 

BOARD FILE #_____________________________________ 

DATE TO BE HEARD________________________________

AGENDA INFORMATION FORM 
RECOMMENDATION APPEALED BY: THE OWNER 

THE PETITIONER 


DATE OWNER/PETITIONER WAS NOTIFIED OF BBSC HEARING___________________

IS NEIGHBOR OBJECTING TO RECOMMENDATION?  YES NO 

OWNER/PETITIONER NOTIFIED OF OBJECTION ON _______ by __________________
              (Date)           (Staff Member)

(Code below is by default unless otherwise checked by staff.)


FAL APPEAL STATEMENT 
“10-CALENDAR DAYS”   	 	 

“SECTION 12.26 K”   	 	
“ACTION NOT A PRECEDENT” 	  	 	

FOOTNOTE STATEMENTS:
“18-MONTH TIME LIMIT” 	 

*(for Haul Routes and requests approved 
by BBSC other than extensions of time)	

Cc: Sr. Inspector_____________________
201 N. Figueroa St	
Floor 3, Room 300	
(213) 482-0396

(Check One)

 Action By The BBSC Is Not Appealable

 Action By The BBSC Is Appealable To The Director Of Planning Within 15 Days
Pursuant To Sec. 12.26 K

 Action By The BBSC Is Appealable To The City Council Within 10 Days
Pursuant To Sec. 91.7006.7.4

13 4629-4651 W. Maubert Avenue

210003

May 25, 2021

✔

✔ ✔

Patrick Mischlich



 
BOARD OF 

BUILDING AND SAFETY 
COMMISSIONERS 

____ 
 

VAN AMBATIELOS 
PRESIDENT 

 

 JAVIER NUNEZ 
VICE PRESIDENT 

 

JOSELYN GEAGA-ROSENTHAL 
GEORGE HOVAGUIMIAN 

ELVIN W. MOON 
 

____ 

CITY OF LOS ANGELES 
CALIFORNIA 

 

 
 

ERIC GARCETTI 
MAYOR 

  
 

DEPARTMENT OF 
BUILDING AND SAFETY 
201 NORTH FIGUEROA STREET 

LOS ANGELES, CA 90012 

____ 
 
 

OSAMA YOUNAN, P.E. 
GENERAL MANAGER 

SUPERINTENDENT OF BUILDING 
 
 

JOHN WEIGHT 
EXECUTIVE OFFICER 

 
 

____ 

 

LADBS  G-5 (Rev.7/21/2020)                          AN EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY - AFFIRMATIVE ACTION EMPLOYER 
 

 
May 19, 2021                           BOARD FILE NO. 210003 

        C.D.: 13 (Councilmember M. O’Farrell) 
 
Board of Building and Safety Commissioners 
Room 1030, 201 North Figueroa Street 
 
 
APPLICATION TO EXPORT 5,835 CUBIC YARDS OF EARTH 
 
PROJECT LOCATION: 4629-4651 WEST MAUBERT AVENUE 
        
TRACT: TR 2646 
 
BLOCK: NONE 
 
LOT:  24 (ARB 2), 25 (ARB 1, ARB 2), 26 (ARB 1, ARB 2) 
 
OWNER: 
 
Maubert LA VI LLC 
c/o Cox Castle, Nicholson LLP and Corin M Koreanaga 
1000 Sansome Street, 1st floor 
San Franciso, CA 94111 
 
APPLICANT: 
 
Haas Consulting Group 
4645 ½ Maubert Avenue 
Los Angeles, CA 90027 
 
 
The Department of Transportation (DOT) and the Department of Public Works (DPW) have 
reviewed the subject haul route application and have forwarded the following recommendations 
to be considered by the Board of Building and Safety Commissioners (Board) in order to protect 
the public health, safety and welfare. 
 
  



Page 2 
Job Address:     4629-4651 WEST MAUBERT AVENUE 
Board File: 210003 
 

CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 
 
Additions or modifications to the following conditions may be made on-site at the discretion of 
the Grading Inspector, if deemed necessary to protect the health, safety, and welfare of the general 
public along the haul route. 
 
Failure to comply with any conditions specified in this report may void the Board's action.  If the 
hauling operations are not in accordance with the Board's approval, The Department of Building 
and Safety (DBS) shall list the specific conditions in violation and shall notify the applicant that 
immediate compliance is required.  If the violations are not corrected or if a second notice is issued 
by DBS for violations of any of the conditions upon which the approval was granted, said approval 
shall be void.  Inasmuch as Board approval of the import-export operations is a condition precedent 
to issuing a grading permit in a "hillside" designated area, violation of this condition may result in 
the revocation of the grading permit issued in reliance of this approval. 
 
Violation of haul route conditions shall be reported to the appropriate Department.  The 
Department responsible for enforcement is indicated by an acronym at the end of each haul route 
condition.  Refer to the table below for agency name and contact information.   
 
Acronym Agency Name contact 
BSS Bureau of Street Services myLA311 

Website: www.myla311.lacity.org 
Phone: Dial 311 or (213) 473-3231 

LAPD Los Angeles Police Department Special 
Enforcement Unit 

Email: Trafficgroup@lapd.online 
Phone: (877) 275-5273 

DOT Department of Transportation  Phone: (818) 374-4823 
DBS  Department of Building and Safety 

 
Los Angeles District Office: 
Sr. Insp. Patrick Mischlich 
(213) 482-0396 
Van Nuys District Office: 
Sr. Insp. Barton Holmes 
(818) 374-4355 
West Los Angeles District Office: 
Sr. Insp. Kirk Linklater 
(310) 914-3934 

  
 
A. PERMITS AND BONDS REQUIRED BY THE DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC 

WORKS: 
 

PERMIT FEE MUST BE PAID BEFORE THE DEPARTMENT OF BUILDING AND 
SAFETY WILL ISSUE A GRADING PERMIT. 

 
1. Under the provisions of Section 62.201 of the Los Angeles Municipal Code, the 

following permit fee shall be required: 
 

a) A total of 5,835 cubic yards of material moved 0.13 miles within the hillside 
area at a rate of $0.29 per cubic yard per mile results in a fee of $219.98. 
 



Page 3 
Job Address:     4629-4651 WEST MAUBERT AVENUE 
Board File: 210003 
 

2. The required permit fee shall be paid at the Street Services Investigation and 
Enforcement Division office, 1149 South Broadway, Suite 350, Los Angeles, 
California, 90015, telephone (213) 847-6000. 

 
3. Under the provisions of Section 62.202 of the Los Angeles Municipal Code, a cash 

bond or surety bond in the amount of $147,000.00 shall be required from the 
property owner to cover any road damage and any street cleaning costs resulting 
from the hauling activity. 

 
4. Forms for the bond will be issued by Bond Control, Bureau of Engineering Valley 

District Office, 6262 Van Nuys Boulevard, Suite 251, Van Nuys, CA 91401; 
telephone (818) 374-5082. 

 
 
B. GENERAL CONDITIONS: 
 

1. The owner or contractor shall keep the construction area sufficiently dampened to 
control dust caused by grading and hauling, and at all times shall provide reasonable 
control of dust caused by wind, at the sole discretion of the grading inspector. 
(DBS) 
 

2. Hauling and grading equipment shall be kept in good operating condition and 
muffled as required by law. (LAPD) 

 
3. Loads shall be secured by trimming and watering or may be covered to prevent the 

spilling or blowing of the earth material. If the load, where it contacts the sides, 
front, and back of the truck cargo container area, remains six inches from the upper 
edge of the container area, and if the load does not extend, at its peak, above any 
part of the upper edge of the cargo container area, the load is not required to be 
covered, pursuant to California Vehicle Code Section 23114 (e) (4). (LAPD) 

 
4. Trucks and loads are to be watered at the export site to prevent blowing dirt and are 

to be cleaned of loose earth at the export site to prevent spilling. (DBS) 
 
5. Streets shall be cleaned of spilled materials during grading and hauling, and at the 

termination of each workday. (BSS) 
 
6. The owner/contractor shall be in conformance with the State of California, 

Department of Transportation policy regarding movements of reducible loads. 
(DOT) 

 
7. The owner/contractor shall comply with all regulations set forth by the State of 

California Department of Motor Vehicles pertaining to the hauling of earth. 
(LAPD) 

 
8. A copy of the approval letter from the City, the approved haul route and the 

approved grading plans shall be available on the job site at all times. (DBS) 
 
 



Page 4 
Job Address:     4629-4651 WEST MAUBERT AVENUE 
Board File: 210003 
 

9. The owner/contractor shall notify the Street Services Investigation and 
Enforcement Division, (213) 847-6000 and LAPD traffic group, at least 72 hours 
prior to the beginning of hauling operations and shall also notify the Division 
immediately upon completion of hauling operations.  Any change to the prescribed 
routes, staging and/or hours of operation must be approved by the concerned 
governmental agencies. Contact the Street Services Investigation and Enforcement 
Division prior to effecting any change. (BSS & LAPD) 

 
10. No person shall perform any grading within areas designated "hillside" unless a 

copy of the permit is in the possession of a responsible person and available at the 
site for display upon request. (DBS) 

 
11. A copy of this report, the approval letter from the Board and the approved grading 

plans shall be available on the job site at all times. A request to modify or change 
the approved routes must be approved by the Board of Building and Safety 
Commissioners before the change takes place. (DBS) 

 
12. The grading permit for the project shall be obtained within twelve months from the 

date of action of the Board.  If the grading permit is not obtained within the 
specified time, re-application for a public hearing through the Commission Office 
will be required. (DBS) 

 
13.  Hauling must commence within eighteen months after Board action approval.  

Failure to haul within that time will result in additional fees and a bond 
reassessment by the Bureau of Engineering. (DBS) 

 
14. A log noting the dates of hauling and the number of trips (i.e. trucks) per day shall 

be available on the job site at all times. (DBS) 
 
15. Hauling vehicles shall not stage on any streets adjacent to the project, unless 

specifically approved as a special condition in this report. (DOT) 
 
16. Hauling vehicles shall be spaced so as to discourage a convoy affect. (LAPD) 
 

 17. Grading and hauling activities shall be discontinued during periods of high winds  
  and Red Flag days as determined by the Los Angeles Fire Department. (DBS) 

 
18. This approval pertains only to the City of Los Angeles streets.  Those segments of 

the haul route outside the jurisdiction of the City of Los Angeles may be subject to 
permit requirements and to the approval of other municipal or governmental 
agencies and appropriate clearances or permits is the responsibility of the 
contractor. 

  
19. A copy of the first page of this approval and all Conditions and/or any 

subsequent appeal of this approval and its resultant Conditions and/or letters 
of clarification shall be printed on the building plans submitted to the City’s 
Development Services Center and the Department of Building and Safety for 
purposes of having a building permit issued. 

 



Page 5 
Job Address:     4629-4651 WEST MAUBERT AVENUE 
Board File: 210003 
 

20. INDEMNIFICATION AND REIMBURSEMENT OF LITIGATION COSTS.  
 

Owner shall do all of the following: 
 

(i) Defend, indemnify and hold harmless the City from any and all actions 
against the City relating to or arising out of the City’s processing and 
approval of this entitlement, including but not limited to, an action to 
attack, challenge, set aside, void, or otherwise modify or annul the 
approval of the entitlement, the environmental review of the 
entitlement, or the approval of subsequent permit decisions, or to claim 
personal property damage, including from inverse condemnation or 
any other constitutional claim. 

 
(ii) Reimburse the City for any and all costs incurred in defense of an 

action related to or arising out of the City’s processing and approval of 
the entitlement, including but not limited to payment of all court costs 
and attorney’s fees, costs of any judgments or awards against the City 
(including an award of attorney’s fees), damages, and/or settlement 
costs. 

 
(iii) Submit an initial deposit for the City’s litigation costs to the City within 

10 days’ notice of the City tendering defense to the owner and 
requesting a deposit. The initial deposit shall be in an amount set by the 
City Attorney’s Office, in its sole discretion, based on the nature and 
scope of action, but in no event shall the initial deposit be less than 
$25,000. The City’s failure to notice or collect the deposit does not 
relieve the owner from responsibility to reimburse the City pursuant to 
the requirement in paragraph (iii). 

 
(iv) Submit supplemental deposits upon notice by the City. Supplemental 

deposits may be required in an increased amount from the initial 
deposit if found necessary by the City to protect the City’s interests. 
The City’s failure to notice or collect the deposit does not relieve the 
owner from responsibility to reimburse the City pursuant to the 
requirement in paragraph (ii). 

 
(v) If the City determines it necessary to protect the City’s interest, execute 

an indemnity and reimbursement agreement with the City under terms 
consistent with the requirements of this condition. 

 
The City shall notify the owner within a reasonable period of time of its receipt 
of any action and the City shall cooperate in the defense.  If the City fails to 
notify the owner of any claim, action, or proceeding in a reasonable time, or if 
the City fails to reasonably cooperate in the defense, the owner shall not 
thereafter be responsible to defend, indemnify or hold harmless the City.  

 
The City shall have the sole right to choose its counsel, including the City 
Attorney’s office or outside counsel. At its sole discretion, the City may 
participate at its own expense in the defense of any action, but such 



Page 6 
Job Address:     4629-4651 WEST MAUBERT AVENUE 
Board File: 210003 
 

participation shall not relieve the owner of any obligation imposed by this 
condition. In the event the owner fails to comply with this condition, in whole 
or in part, the City may withdraw its defense of the action, void its approval 
of the entitlement, or take any other action. The City retains the right to make 
all decisions with respect to its representations in any legal proceeding, 
including its inherent right to abandon or settle litigation.  
 
For purposes of this condition, the following definitions apply: 

 
“City” shall be defined to include the City, its agents, officers, boards, 
commissions, committees, employees, and volunteers.  

 
“Action” shall be defined to include suits, proceedings (including those 
held under alternative dispute resolution procedures), claims, or 
lawsuits. Actions includes actions, as defined herein, alleging failure to 
comply with any federal, state or local law. 
 

Nothing in the definitions included in this paragraph are intended to limit the 
rights of the City or the obligations of the owner otherwise created by this 
condition. 

 
 
C. SPECIFIC CONDITIONS 
 

An authorized Public Officer may make additions to, or modifications of, the following 
conditions if necessary to protect the health, safety, and welfare of the general public.  
 
1. The hauling operations are restricted to the hours between 9:00 a.m. and 3:00 p.m. 

on Mondays through Fridays and from 8:00 a.m. to 4:00 p.m. on Saturdays. No 
hauling is permitted on Sundays or City holidays. Haul vehicles may not arrive at 
the site before the designated start time.  (DBS) 

 
2. Hauling of earth shall be completed within the maximum time limit of 49 hauling 

days. (DBS) 
 
3. Staging is allowed on-site only. Staging shall not interfere with traffic nor access 

to neighboring driveways. (DOT) 
 
4. The approved haul vehicles are bottom dump trucks. (BSS) 
 
5. Total amount of dirt to be hauled shall not exceed 5,835 cubic yards. (DBS) 
   
6. "Truck Crossing" warning signs shall be placed 300 feet in advance of the exit in 

each direction. (BSS) 
 

7. A minimum of two flag attendants, each with two-way radios, will be required 
during hauling hours to assist with staging and getting trucks in and out of the 
project area.  One flag attendant will be placed at the following locations: 

   



Page 7 
Job Address:     4629-4651 WEST MAUBERT AVENUE 
Board File: 210003 
 

A. The entrance of the project site. 
B. The intersection of Maubert Avenue and Rodney Drive. 

 
Additional flag attendants may be required by the LADBS Inspector, LADOT, or 
BSS to mitigate a hazardous situation (e.g. blind curves, uncontrolled intersections, 
narrow portions of roads or where obstacles are present). Flag attendants and 
warning signs shall be in compliance with Part II of the latest Edition of "Work 
Area Traffic Control Handbook." (BSS) 

 
8. The City of Los Angeles, Department of Transportation, telephone (213) 485-2298, 

shall be notified 72 hours prior to beginning operations in order to have temporary 
“No Parking” signs posted along streets of the haul route, if necessary. (DOT) 

 
9. Contractor shall contact LADOT at (213) 485-2298 at least four business days prior 

to hauling to post “Temporary Tow Away No Stopping” signs along Maubert 
Avenue, adjacent to the project site if needed during hauling. (DOT) 

 
 10. The approved route by DOT and BSS is as follows: 
 

LOADED TRUCKS:  
 
From the project site, travel westbound on Maubert Avenue, turn left (south) on 
Vermont Avenue, left (east) on Oakwood Avenue, enter southbound US-101 
Freeway, transition eastbound on I-10 Freeway and continue to the disposal site 
located outside the city limits. 
 
EMPTY TRUCKS: 

 
From the disposal site, travel westbound on I-10 Freeway, transition northbound on 
US-101 Freeway, exit northbound on Vermont Avenue, turn right (east) on 
Hollywood Boulevard, right (south) on Rodney Drive, right (west) on Maubert 
Avenue and continue to the project site. (BSS) 
 

11.  Only one hauling truck, associated with this project address, shall be allowed on 
Maubert Avenue and Rodney Drive at any time. (BSS) 
 

12. Prior to hauling, the applicant shall provide the following information to  
Los Angeles Fire Department Station #35 located at 1601 North Hillhurst Avenue, 
Los Angeles, CA 90027; telephone (213) 485-6235: 

 
  A.  Contact information for the construction superintendent or contractor. 
  B.  A copy of this approved staff report. 
  C.  A map clearly illustrating the approved hauling route and involved 

      street names. 
   D.  The approved hauling hours. 
   E.  The estimated completion date of hauling.  

 
 



Page 8 
Job Address:     4629-4651 WEST MAUBERT AVENUE 
Board File: 210003 
 

13. The applicant shall provide a staked sign at the site containing the contact 
information for the Senior Street Services Investigator (Department of Public 
Works), the Senior Grading Inspector (LADBS) and the hauling or general 
contractor.  The letters shall be a minimum of 3 inches in height. (DBS) 

 
14. A Registered Deputy Grading Inspector shall notify the LADBS haul route 

monitoring inspector at least 48 hours prior to the beginning of hauling operations, 
and whose sole responsibility shall be to continuously inspect and accurately log 
the dates and hours of hauling, the number of daily truck trips, the material in each 
loaded truck (i.e. soil or demolition material), and the approved haul route. (DBS) 

 
15. Should the sidewalk need to be closed during hauling, a permit and approval from 

the Department of Public Works, Bureau of Street Services is required, and the 
proper sidewalk detour shall be implemented per CA MUTCD TA-28 or page 48 
of the WATCH Manual. For questions, contact Jedah Mosqueda at (323) 957-6823. 
(DOT) 

 
 
D. ENVIRONMENTAL CONDITIONS 
 
 The Department of City Planning has analyzed this project and determined that it qualifies 

for a Sustainable Communities Project Exemption pursuant to Section 21155.1 of the 
Public Resource Code (Case No. ENV-2019-3761-SCPE). If you concur with the 
Department of City Planning’s exemption analysis, you can comply with your obligations 
under CEQA by determining that the project is exempt for the reasons outlined in the 
Notice of Exemption prepared by City Planning. 

 
 
E. MANDATORY FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDED ACTIONS 
 

1. Determine that based on the whole of the administrative record the project is statutorily 
exempt from CEQA pursuant to the Public Resource Code, Section 21155.1.  

 
 
 
CODE: 
 
SEC. 91.7006. CONDITIONS PRECEDENT TO ISSUING A GRADING PERMIT. 
Section 91.7006.7. Limitation of Export and Import 
 
5. At the public hearing, the Board of Building and Safety Commissioners shall consider the 

views of the applicant and all other affected persons. The board shall then grant or 
conditionally grant approval of export and import operations or, in the event it determines 
that the grading activity, including the hauling operation, will endanger the public health, 
safety and welfare, it shall deny the request. Where conditions of the permit are 
recommended by the Department of Public Works, including the condition that a bond be  

 
 
 



Page 9 
Job Address:     4629-4651 WEST MAUBERT AVENUE 
Board File: 210003 
 

posted pursuant to Section 62.202 of the Los Angeles Municipal Code, such conditions  
shall be made a part of any permit which may be issued. The decision of the board shall 
not be effective until 10 calendar days have elapsed from the date of the board's decision. 
 

6. Any affected person, including the applicant, who is dissatisfied with the decision of the 
board, may appeal the board decision within 10 days to the City Council by filing an appeal 
with the city clerk on forms which the city clerk provides. The City Council shall hear and 
make its determination on the appeal not later than the 30th day after the appeal has been 
filed. The decision of the City Council on the matter shall be final. If the City Council fails 
to act on any appeal within the time limit specified in this section, the action of the board 
on the matter shall be final. 

 
 
OSAMA YOUNAN, P.E. 
General Manager 
Superintendent of Building 

 
_______________________ 
Veronica Lopez 
Staff Engineer, Commission Office 
 
 
 
 
 





CITY OF LOS ANGELES 
INTER-DEPARTMENTAL MEMORANDUM

Date:  February 8, 2021     13 – Hwd/Wlsh #147416 
        Maubert Ave, 4629-4651 W

To:  Dina Elkinawy, Board Secretary 
 Building and Safety Commission Office 
 201 North Figueroa Street, Room 1030, Stop 115 
 (213) 482-0466; (213) 482-6753 (FAX) 
  

From: Bhuvan Bajaj, Transportation Engineer 
 Department of Transportation  

Subject:  IMPORT/EXPORT OF EARTH – HILLSIDE AREAS - 4629 - 4651 WEST MAUBERT AVENUE 
             

The Department of Transportation has reviewed the requested haul route. Our recommendations are as 
follows: 

1. RECOMMENDED HAUL ROUTE:

Loaded Truck: - Exit jobsite onto Maubert Ave (Westbound); Left onto Vermont Ave   
(Southbound); Left onto Oakwood/S/B Hollywood Fwy On-Ramp (US-101) 
(Eastbound); Merge onto S/B Hollywood Fwy (US-101); Merge onto E/B San 
Bernardino Fwy (I-10); Continue to disposal site outside City Limits  

Empty Truck:  - Enter W/B San Bernardino Fwy (I-10); Merge onto N/B Hollywood Fwy (US-101);  
 Exit towards Vermont Ave (Northbound); Continue straight onto Vermont Ave  
 (Northbound); Right onto Hollywood Blvd (Eastbound); Right onto Rodney Dr  
 (Southbound); Continue straight onto Maubert Ave (Eastbound) towards job site:  
 4629 – 4651 W Maubert Ave 

2. DAYS AND HOURS OF HAULING OPERATION 

Hauling shall be from 9AM to 3PM weekdays, and 8AM to 4PM on Saturdays. NO HAULING SHALL BE 
PERFORMED ON SUNDAYS AND HOLIDAYS. 

3. STAGING AREA 

All trucks should be staged on jobsite. No more than one haul truck shall be staged on Maubert Ave in 
front of jobsite.  NO INTERFERENCE TO TRAFFIC, ACCESS TO DRIVEWAYS MUST BE MAINTAINED AT ALL 
TIMES. 

4. ADDITIONAL COMMENTS AND/OR REQUIREMENTS 

Contractor shall contact LADOT at (213) 485-2298 at least four business days prior to hauling to post 
“Temporary Tow Away No Stopping” signs along Maubert Ave, adjacent to jobsite if needed for hauling. 



Flagger control should be provided during the hauling operations to assist with ingress/egress of truck 
traffic and pedestrian traffic on Maubert Ave. Should the sidewalk need to be closed during hauling, a 
permit and approval from the Department of Public Works, Bureau of Street Services is required, and 
the proper sidewalk detour shall be implemented per CA MUTCD TA-28 or page 48 of the WATCH 
Manual. If you have any questions, please call Jedah Mosqueda at (323) 957-6823. 
 
JM: 4629-4651 Maubert Ave.haul route 













CITY OF LOS ANGELES 
DEPARTMENT OF BUILDING AND SAFETY 

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW QUESTIONNAIRE 

JOB ADDRESS: ______________________________________________________________________ 

Briefly describe the complete project and include the proposed amount of Import/Export of soil for hauling and the 
number of residential units, if applicable: 

DEPARTMENT  OF  CITY  PLANNING  OR  PUBLIC  WORKS  USE ONLY: 

   The Department of City Planning has analyzed this project, which includes the import/export of soil and hauling, and pursuant to 
   State and City Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) Guidelines, has determined it qualifies for a 
   Categorical Exemption (CE) per the attached Notice of Exemption.  (Case No. ________________________________________)

   The Notice of Exemption references the following amount of import/export of soil to be hauled:    cubic yards 

   The Department of City Planning or Public Works has analyzed this project, which includes the import/export of soil and hauling, 
   and pursuant to State and City Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) Guidelines, has prepared or has had another agency prepare  
   the ATTACHED Mitigated Negative Declaration (MND).  (Case No. _______________________________________________) 

   The circulation end date for the above mentioned MND is: ______________________________________________________ 

   The MND references the following amount of import/export of soil to be hauled:    cubic yards 

   Mitigated measures for hauling are found on the following MND pages : ___________________________________________ 

   Check one of the following boxes: 

   No Comments were received during the circulation period.

 Yes, Comments were received during the circulation period. These comments and written responses from the agency that 
  prepared the MND are ATTACHED with the MND referenced above. 

   The Department of City Planning or Public Works has analyzed this project, which includes the import/export of soil and hauling, 
   and pursuant to State and City Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) Guidelines, has prepared or has had another agency prepare  
   the ATTACHED Environmental Impact Report (EIR). (Case No. ___________________________________________________) 

   The circulation end date for the above mentioned  EIR:__________________________________________________________ 

   The EIR references the following amount of import/export of soil to be hauled:    cubic yards 

   Mitigated measures for hauling are found on the following EIR pages: _____________________________________________ 

   Check one of the following boxes: 

   No Comments were received during the circulation period.

 Yes, Comments were received during the circulation period. These comments and written responses from the agency that 
  prepared the EIR are ATTACHED with the EIR referenced above. 

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Print:  Name of Planning/Public Works staff       Signature       Date   Telephone Number 

ATTACHMENT 2

4629 Maubert

NEW 8 STORY 153 UNITS APARTMENT (5 STORY TYPE IIIA OVER 3 STORY TYPE IA )

WITH PARKING GARAGE ON ON FIRST & SECOND STORY, EXPORT OF 5,835 CUBIC YARDS





Maubert Project
Environmental Case Number: ENV-2019-3761-SCPE

Project Location: 4629-4651 Maubert Avenue, Los Angeles, CA 90027
Community Plan Area:  Hollywood Community Plan Area
Council District: 13 – Mitch O-Farrell
Project Description: The Project Site is currently developed with three buildings containing 14 multi-family residential 
units in approximately 12,478 square feet. The Project includes the demolition and removal of three existing multi-family 
residential buildings and the development of the Project Site with an approximately 143,785-square-foot residential building, 
with 153 dwelling units. Of the 153 dwelling units, 11 percent (17 units) would be restricted affordable units for Extremely Low 
Income Households. The Project is comprised of a podium-style building with eight stories and a maximum height of 108 
feet. The proposed building would provide residential amenity space and lobby leasing area on the ground floor, an additional 
amenity space on the second level, a podium level pool deck on the third level, and a sky deck on the eighth level. Dwelling 
units would be located beginning on the second level as liner units, and the third through eighth levels of the building. Open 
space would be provided in accordance with Code requirements. The Tier 4 TOC Guidelines would not require parking for 
the Project. However, up to 95 parking spaces would be provided on two above-grade levels within the building, which would 
be screened from view. Approximately 77 bicycle parking stalls would be provided pursuant to the Vermont/Western Station 
Neighborhood Area Plan (SNAP) Specific Plan Subarea C (Community Center) Section 9.E.2. Vehicular access to the Project 
Site would be provided from an ingress/egress driveway on Maubert Avenue and a second ingress/egress driveway from the 
alley abutting the north side of the Project Site. Pedestrian access is provided from Maubert Avenue into the Project’s amenity 
space and residential lobby on the ground floor. Pedestrian access is also provided from the alley along the north side of the
Project Site.

PREPARED FOR:
City of Los Angeles 

Department of City Planning

PREPARED BY:
CAJA Environmental Services

15350 Sherman Way, Suite 
315

Van Nuys, CA 91406

APPLICANT:
Maubert LA VI, LLC

429 Santa Monica Boulevard, 
Suite 700

Santa Monica, CA 90401

November 2019

      Sustainable Communities Project Exemption 



 

 
Maubert Project  City of Los Angeles 
Sustainable Communities Project Exemption  November 2019 

Page -i 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

Page 

1. PROJECT DESCRIPTION ....................................................................................... 1-1 

2. SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITIES STRATEGY CRITERIA ........................................ 2-1 

 

 

 
APPENDICES 

 

Appendix A-1 – Existing Land Use Maps 

Appendix A-2 – Project Consistency with SCAG’s 2016-2040 RTP/SCS 

Appendix A-3 – Mitigation Measures from Prior EIRs  

Appendix B-1 – Transportation Impact Study 

Appendix B-2 – LADOT Assessment Letter 

Appendix C – Water and Wastewater Utility Infrastructure Report 

Appendix D – Tree Letter 

Appendix E – Phase I Environmental Site Assessment 

Appendix F – Historic Report 

Appendix G – Geotechnical Report 

Appendix H – Energy and Water Efficiency Compliance Report 

Appendix I – Air Quality Technical Report 

Appendix J – Noise Technical Report 



Maubert Project City of Los Angeles
Sustainable Communities Project Exemption November 2019

Page 1-1

1. PROJECT DESCRIPTION

The Project Site is located at 4629-4651 Maubert Avenue, in the Hollywood community of the 
City of Los Angeles. The Project Site is a relatively flat, irregularly shaped parcel, comprised of 
five lots that, when combined, are approximately 0.76 acres (approximately 32,277 square feet). 
The Project Site is located within the Hollywood Community Plan Area, is designated for 
Community Commercial land uses, and is located within the R4-1 zone. The Project Site is also 
located in the northeast portion of the Vermont/Western Station Neighborhood Area Plan 
(SNAP), designated as Subarea C. Based on the Project Site’s location approximately 400 feet 
north of the Vermont/Sunset Metro Red Line Station, making it an eligible project under TOC 
Tier 4. Table 1-1, below, provides a summary of the development that is allowed for the Project 
Site per the SNAP and per the Tier 4 TOC Guidelines, and also what is proposed as part of the 
Project.

The Project Site is currently developed with three buildings containing 14 multi-family residential 
units in approximately 12,478 square feet. The Project includes the demolition and removal of 
the three existing multi-family residential buildings and the development of the Project Site with 
an approximately 143,785-square-foot residential building, with 153 dwelling units. Of the 153 
dwelling units, 11 percent (17 units) would be restricted affordable units for Extremely Low 
Income Households. Approximately 76 units would have less than three habitable rooms, 
approximately 64 units would have three habitable rooms, and approximately 13 dwelling units 
would have more than three habitable rooms.

The Project is comprised of a podium-style building with eight stories and a maximum height of 
108 feet. The proposed building would provide residential amenity space and lobby leasing area 
on the ground floor, an additional amenity space on the second level, a podium level pool deck 
on the third level, and a sky deck on the eighth level. Dwelling units would be located beginning 
on the second level as liner units, and the third through eighth levels of the building. Open 
space would be provided in accordance with Code requirements.

The Tier 4 TOC Guidelines would not require parking for the Project. However, up to 95 parking
spaces would be provided on two above-grade levels within the building, which would be 
screened from view. Approximately 77 bicycle parking stalls would be provided pursuant to the 
Vermont/Western SNAP Specific Plan Subarea C (Community Center) Section 9.E.2.

Vehicular access to the Project Site would be provided from an ingress/egress driveway on
Maubert Avenue and a second ingress/egress driveway from the alley abutting the north side of 
the Project Site. Pedestrian access is provided from Maubert Avenue into the Project’s amenity 
space and residential lobby on the ground floor. Pedestrian access is also provided from the 
alley along the north side of the Project Site.



1. Project Description

Maubert Project City of Los Angeles
Sustainable Communities Project Exemption November 2019

Page 1-2

Table 1-1
Project Data

Allowed/Permitted
SNAP (Per R4 
Regulations of 

LAMC)
Allowed/Permitted

TOC Proposed

Density 85 Dwelling Units 
(33,9471 SF/400 SF)

153 Dwelling Units 
(85 DU x 1.80)

153 Dwelling 
Units

Floor Area 99,162 SF 
(33,054 SF Buildable Area x 3)

143,785 SF 
(99,162 SF x 1.45)

143,785 SF

Floor Area Ratio 3:1 4.35:1 4.35:1
Height 75 Feet 

(w/ 15-foot stepback along 
Maubert Avenue)

108 Feet
(75 Feet + 33-foot increase)

108 Feet

Parking Minimum Maximum Not Required 95 Spaces
159

spaces
159

spaces
Bicycle Parking 77 Spaces N/A 77 Spaces

Open Space 18,025 SF 13,519 SF 
(w/ 25% reduction)

13,853 SF

Yards/Setbacks Not Required N/A Not provided per 
SNAP

1 LAMC Section 12.22 C.16 allows for ½ of the width of the alley to be assumed to be a portion of the lot when calculating the lot 
area for properties abutting an alley.  The Subject Property has a lot area of 33,054 SF; ½ the width of the alley is 893 SF,
therefore the combined Lot Area for density purposes is 33,947 SF.



 
Maubert Project      City of Los Angeles 
Sustainable Communities Project Exemption  November 2019 

Page 2-1 

2. SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITIES STRATEGY CRITERA 

Table 2-1 
Sustainable Communities Strategy Criteria 

PRC § 21155(a). Consistency with the general use designation, density, 
building intensity, and applicable policies specified for the project area in a 
sustainable communities strategy. 

Consistent 

Yes No 
The Project would develop an eight-story residential-use building on an 
approximately 0.76-acre infill Project Site located in a highly urbanized part of the 
Hollywood Community Plan Area of the City of Los Angeles. The Project Site’s 
southern boundary has an approximately 166-foot frontage along Maubert Avenue, 
and the 91-foot northern boundary is along a public alley. 

The Project Site is currently developed with 14 multi-family residential units in 
three separate buildings, totaling approximately 12,478 square feet. The Project 
consists of the demolition of all existing on-site land uses and development of the 
Project Site with a residential building with a total floor area of 143,785 square feet 
that will consist of 153 residential units and ground floor leasing/amenity space. Of 
the 153 residential units, 11% (or 17 units) would be restricted affordable units for 
Extremely Low Income Households. The building would be built to a maximum 
height of up to 108 feet. 

The Project Site is accessible by regional and local transit, and the Project would 
provide bicycle and vehicle parking on-site.  

The Project is consistent with the general land use designation, density, and 
building intensity in the Southern California Association of Government’s (SCAG) 
2016–2040 Regional Transportation Plan/Sustainable Communities Strategy (2016 
RTP/SCS). 

Based on Exhibit 13 and Exhibit 14 of SCAG’s SCS Background Documentation, 
the Project Site and surrounding area are within the “Urban” Land Development 
Category (SCAG, 2016 RTP/SCS Appendix: SCS Background Documentation, 
pages 20-21). The 2016 RTP/SCS provides the following definition for the “Urban” 
Land Development Category: 

These areas are often found within and directly adjacent to moderate and 
high density urban centers. Nearly all urban growth in these areas would be 
considered infill or redevelopment. The majority of housing is multi-family 
and attached single-family (townhome), which tend to consume less water 
and energy than the larger types found in greater proportion in less urban 
locations. These areas are supported by high levels of regional and local 
transit service. They have well-connected street networks, and the mix and 
intensity of uses result in a highly walkable environment. These areas offer 
enhanced access and connectivity for people who choose not to drive or do 

X 

 



 2. Sustainable Communities Strategy Criteria 

 
Maubert Project  City of Los Angeles 
Sustainable Communities Project Exemption  November 2019 

Page 2-2 

not have access to a vehicle. (SCAG, 2016 RTP/SCS, page 20.)  

Within the “Urban” Land Development Category, there are various urban footprint 
place types, including mixed use, residential, commercial, office, research and 
development, industrial, civic and open space (SCAG, 2016 RTP/SCS Appendix: 
SCS Background Documentation, page 90, “Place Types Categorized into Land 
Development Categories (LDCs)”; SCAG 2016 RTP/SCS Appendix: SCS 
Background Documentation, page 90, “Urban Footprint—Place Types Summary,” 
pages 1–2).  

The Project most closely aligns with the City Residential place types within the 
“Urban” Land Development Category, which is described below.  

 A dense residential-focused type, City Residential is dominated by mid- and 
high-rise residential towers, with some ground-floor retail space. Parking is 
usually structured, below or above ground. Residents are well served by 
transit, and can walk or bicycle for many of their daily needs. Typical buildings 
are 5-40 stories tall, with the average building having 7 stories. The typical land 
use mix for this place type is approximately 65 percent residential, 4 percent 
employment, 11 percent mixed use, and 20 percent open space/civic. The 
residential mix is 3 percent townhome and 97 percent multi-family. The 
average total net Floor Area Ratio (FAR) is 2.9 and the gross density ranges 
from 35-75+ households per acre (SCAG, 2016 RTP/SCS Appendix: SCS 
Background Documentation, p. 90, “Urban Footprint—Place Types Summary.” 
p. 2).  

The Project is 100 percent residential and the residential mix is 100 percent multi-
family. The maximum FAR is 4.35:1 with an average density of 201 household 
units per acre.  

In addition, as described in further detail below, the Project would be at least 15 
percent more energy efficient than the 2016 Title 24 standards. The Project 
building and landscaping are also designed to achieve approximately 79 percent 
less water usage than the average household in the region. Thus, the Project is 
consistent with the SCAG “Urban” Land Use Designation, as well as the 
associated density and building intensity assumptions in the SCAG’s 2016 
RTP/SCS. Furthermore, the Project is consistent with the applicable goals and 
policies in the 2016 RTP/SCS, as outlined in Appendix A-2 of this document. As 
such, the Project is consistent with this criterion. 
PRC §21155(b). To be considered a Transit Priority Project (TPP) as defined 
by §21155(b), the project must meet all of the following criteria. A TPP shall: 

Consistent 

Yes No 

(1) Contain at least 50 percent residential use, based on total building square 
footage and, if the project contains between 26 percent and 50 percent 

X  



 2. Sustainable Communities Strategy Criteria 

 
Maubert Project  City of Los Angeles 
Sustainable Communities Project Exemption  November 2019 

Page 2-3 

nonresidential uses, a floor area ratio of not less than 0.75;  

The Project would construct a residential building with a total floor area of 143,785 
square feet that will consist of 153 residential units and ground floor 
leasing/amenity space. Therefore, the Project contains 100 percent residential 
uses. As such, the Project is consistent with this criterion. 

(2) Provide a minimum net density of at least 20 dwelling units per acre; and  

The Project would develop an approximately 0.76-acre site with a residential 
building that includes 153 residential units. The net density for this Project is 
therefore approximately 201 dwelling units per acre (153 units/0.76 acre), which is 
more than the required minimum of 20 units per acre. As such, the Project is 
consistent with this criterion.  

X 

 

(3) Be within one-half mile of a major transit stop or high-quality transit 
corridor included in a regional transportation plan. A major transit stop is as 
defined in Section 21064.3, except that, for purposes of this section, it also 
includes major transit stops that are included in the applicable regional 
transportation plan. For purposes of this section, a high-quality transit 
corridor means a corridor with fixed route bus service with service intervals 
no longer than 15 minutes during peak commute hours. A project shall be 
considered to be within one-half mile of a major transit stop or high-quality 
transit corridor if all parcels within the project have no more than 25 percent 
of their area further than one-half mile from the stop or corridor and if not 
more than 10 percent of the residential units or 100 units, whichever is less, 
in the project are farther than one-half mile from the stop or corridor. 

PRC Section 21064.3 defines a major transit stop as “a site containing an existing 
rail transit station, a ferry terminal served by either a bus or rail transit service, or 
the intersection of two or more major bus routes with a frequency of service 
interval of 15 minutes or less during the morning and afternoon peak commute 
periods.” 

The nearest major transit stop is the Vermont/Sunset Metro Red Line Station. All 
parcels within the Project Site are located approximately 400 feet (0.08 miles) 
north of the Vermont/Sunset Metro Red Line Station, making it within one-half mile 
of an existing major transit stop. Therefore, the Project Site satisfies the CEQA 
exemption transit proximity requirement by being within a ½ mile of a light rail 
station and is not required to further demonstrate proximity to intersecting bus 
routes or high quality transit corridors that provide bus service intervals of 15 
minutes or less. 

Nevertheless, the Project is located in proximity to multiple bus stops with high 

X 

 



 2. Sustainable Communities Strategy Criteria 

 
Maubert Project  City of Los Angeles 
Sustainable Communities Project Exemption  November 2019 

Page 2-4 

frequency transit service. The Project Site is served by the following bus lines: 

 Metro line 2, which serves the areas between Downtown Los Angeles and 
Pacific Palisades, via Sunset Boulevard. This line operates 24 hours per day. 

 Metro line 175, which serves the areas between Silver Lake and Hollywood, 
via Hyperion and Fountain Avenues. This line operates from 6:30 AM to 12:00 
AM. 

 Metro line 180, which serves Hollywood, Glendale, and Pasadena, via Los 
Feliz Boulevard and Colorado Boulevard. This line operates 24 hours per day. 

 Metro line 181, which serves Hollywood, Glendale, and Pasadena, via Los 
Feliz Boulevard and Colorado Boulevard. This line operates 24 hours per day. 

 Metro line 204, which serves the areas between Hollywood and Athens, via 
Vermont Avenue. This line operates 24 hours per day. 

 Metro line 206, which serves the areas between Hollywood and Athens, via 
Normandie Avenue. This line operates from 5:00 AM to 12:45 PM. 

 Metro line 217, which serves the areas between Vermont & Sunset and the 
Culver City Transit Center, via Hollywood Boulevard, Fairfax Avenue, and La 
Cienega Boulevard. This line operates from 10:00 PM to 3:30 AM. 

 Metro line 302, which serves the areas between Downtown Los Angeles and 
Pacific Palisades, via Sunset Boulevard. This line operates from 6:30 AM to 
8:45 AM, and 4:30 PM to 7:00 PM. 

 Metro line 754, which serves the areas between Hollywood and Athens, via 
Vermont Avenue. This line operates from 5:15 AM to 9:30 PM. 

 Metro line 780, which serves the areas between Washington & Fairfax and 
Pasadena, via Fairfax Avenue, Hollywood Boulevard, and Colorado Boulevard. 
This line operates from 6:00 AM to 8:00 PM. 

The Project area is also served by LADOT DASH Hollywood, Los Feliz, and 
Observatory bus lines. 

Furthermore, the Project Site is in an area identified a High Quality Transit Area by 
SCAG (SCAG 2016-2040 RTP/SCS Exhibit 5.1, High Quality Transit Areas in the 
SCAG Region for 2040 Plan). As such, the Project is consistent with this criterion. 

 



 2. Sustainable Communities Strategy Criteria 

 
Maubert Project  City of Los Angeles 
Sustainable Communities Project Exemption  November 2019 

Page 2-5 

PRC §21155.1(a). The Transit Priority Project complies with all of the 
following environmental criteria: 

Consistent 

Yes No 

(1) The Transit Priority Project and other projects approved prior to the 
approval of the Transit Priority Project but not yet built can be adequately 
served by existing utilities, and the Transit Priority Project applicant has 
paid, or has committed to pay, all applicable in-lieu or development fees.  

The Project Site is currently served by existing utilities, including water mains, 
sewer lines, and public storm drain lines maintained by the Los Angeles 
Department of Water and Power (LADWP) and the City’s Department of Public 
Works (Bureau of Sanitation). The Project would connect to the existing utility 
structures, as explained in detail below.  

Water: 

Based on the Wastewater and Water Utility Infrastructure Technical Report 
prepared by ICF in May 2019 (attached as Appendix C), the water facilities 
required to serve the Project Site include the large water distribution system 
operated by the LADWP as well local infrastructure to meet the needs of the 
Project Site. According to the City of Los Angeles UWMP 2015, the most recent 
plan available, LADWP has sufficient supply to meet a total water demand of 
675,700 acre-feet per year (afy) by the year 2040. LADWP has programs to 
reduce the demand to 565,600 afy by 2040, a difference of 110,100 afy. As such, 
LADWP can provide the needed water from its existing system pursuant of the 
provisions in the City of Los Angeles Urban Water Management Plan (UWMP) 
2015. Therefore, LADWP would not require added facilities to meet the demand 
from the Project.  

Regarding the local infrastructure, based on the results provided by LADWP within 
the Service Advisory Request (SAR) dated May 17, 2019 (included as Appendix A 
to the Wastewater and Water Utility Infrastructure Technical Report, which is 
attached as Appendix C), the existing 6-inch water main line in Maubert Avenue 
would have sufficient capacity to serve the Project’s 24.49 afy demand. As shown 
by the SAR and through compliance with LAFD and LADWP requirements, the 
Project’s fire flow impacts to water infrastructure would be less than significant. 
Therefore, there would be adequate capacity available to accommodate the 
required fire flows and domestic water demand generated by the Project and the 
Project would not require the relocation or construction of new or expanded water 
facilities, and impacts would be less than significant. 

 

X 

 



 2. Sustainable Communities Strategy Criteria 

 
Maubert Project  City of Los Angeles 
Sustainable Communities Project Exemption  November 2019 

Page 2-6 

Wastewater: 

The Project would connect to the existing wastewater system by connection to the 
existing main line along Maubert Avenue adjacent to the Project Site, which 
includes an 8-inch vitrified clay pipe (VCP) running west towards Vermont Avenue. 
According to the Wastewater and Water Utility Infrastructure Technical Report, 
given the current remaining capacity of the Hyperion Water Reclamation Plan 
(HWRP), the HWRP would have ample capacity to treat the Project’s wastewater 
generation of 0.2 million gallons per day (mgd), which would account for less than 
one percent increase in demand at the HWRP. Further, the results of the Sewer 
Capacity Availability Request (SCAR) obtained from the City’s Bureau of 
Sanitation confirm that there is sufficient capacity to service the Project (included 
as Appendix A to the Wastewater and Water Utility Infrastructure Technical Report, 
which is attached as Appendix C). Therefore, the Project would not require the 
relocation or construction of new or expanded wastewater facilities, and impacts 
would be less than significant. 

Stormwater: 

Construction activities would not increase the amount of runoff and exposed soils 
may retain some runoff. Implementation of erosion and sediment control Best 
Management Practices (BMPs) would prevent soil erosion and sedimentation from 
exposed soils. Project construction activities would be performed in accordance 
with Los Angeles County Low Impact Development (LID) Standards. Due to the 
nominal contribution of the Project’s construction to the overall Citywide 
wastewater flows, the Project would not require the construction of new off-site 
stormwater drainage facilities or expansion of existing facilities, and impacts would 
be less than significant. 

During operation, the Project would be designed to comply with the City’s LID 
design standards. To facilitate this, the proposed stormwater BMP that is 
considered is bio-infiltration flow-through planters. The entirety of the building’s 
roof drains will be diverted to the bio-infiltration flow-through planters and the 
overflow discharge will be discharged to Maubert Avenue via a curb drain or 
parkway drain, similar to existing conditions. Post-dedication, the total site area is 
approximately 0.76 acres in size. Based on an approximate impervious area 
percentage of 99%, the volume mitigated is 2,450 cubic feet. The proposed 
stormwater treatment system will be designed to both accommodate the required 
volume mitigated as well as limit the post-construction discharge to avoid on-site or 
off-site flooding and to not exceed the capacity of the existing adjacent public 
street and downstream stormwater facilities. As such, the Project would not require 
the construction of new off-site stormwater drainage facilities or expansion of 
existing facilities, and impacts would be less than significant. 



 2. Sustainable Communities Strategy Criteria 

 
Maubert Project  City of Los Angeles 
Sustainable Communities Project Exemption  November 2019 

Page 2-7 

The Project would pay all applicable in-lieu or development fees pursuant to code 
requirements and conditions of Project approval. As such, the Project is consistent 
with this criterion. 

(2)  The site of the Transit Priority Project does not contain wetlands or 
riparian areas and does not have significant value as a wildlife habitat, 
and the Transit Priority Project does not harm any species protected 
by the federal Endangered Species Act of 1973 (16 U.S.C. Sec. 1531 et 
seq.), the Native Plant Protection Act (Chapter 10 (commencing with 
Section 1900) of Division 2 of the Fish and Game Code), or the 
California Endangered Species Act (Chapter 1.5 (commencing with 
Section 2050) of Division 3 of the Fish and Game Code), and the 
project does not cause the destruction or removal of any species 
protected by a local ordinance in effect at the time the application for 
the project was deemed complete. 

The Project Site is fully developed and is located in a heavily urbanized area of the 
Hollywood Community Plan Area of the City of Los Angeles.  Review of the 
National Wetlands Inventory identified no protected wetlands in the vicinity of the 
Project Site and the Project Site is not located within a riparian area (U.S. Fish and 
Wildlife Service, National Wetlands Inventory, Wetlands Mapper, 
www.fws.gov/wetlands/Data/Mapper.html, accessed May 2019).  

Further, as the Project Site is fully developed and there are no open spaces with 
water courses such as streams or lakes on the Project Site, the Project Site does 
not support any riparian or wetland habitat, as defined by Section 404 of the Clean 
Water Act. Therefore, the Project would not have a substantial adverse effect on 
wetlands, riparian habitat, or other sensitive natural communities identified in 
federal, state, or local plans, policies, and regulations.  

Additionally, there are no known locally designated natural communities at the 
Project Site or in the immediate vicinity, nor is the Project Site located immediately 
adjacent to undeveloped natural open space or a natural water source that may 
otherwise serve as habitat for state- or federally listed species.  

According to the Tree Letter prepared by Ground Level Landscape Architecture on 
April 16, 2019 (attached as Appendix D), there are no protected trees pursuant to 
LAMC Section 12.21.A.12 located on or adjacent to the Project Site. Any existing 
ornamental trees that would be removed from the Project Site, or street trees that 
would be removed, would be replaced according to City replacement 
requirements, in consultation with the Department of Public Works’ Urban Forestry 
Division. Any existing ornamental trees could contain nests for migratory birds, 
which are protected under the Federal Migratory Bird Treaty Act (MBTA) (Title 33, 
United States Code, Section 703 et seq., see also Title 50, Code of Federal 

X 

 



 2. Sustainable Communities Strategy Criteria 

 
Maubert Project  City of Los Angeles 
Sustainable Communities Project Exemption  November 2019 

Page 2-8 

Regulation, Part 10) and Section 3503 of the California Department of Fish and 
Game (CDFG) Code. The MBTA prohibits the take of all birds and their active 
nests, including raptors and other migratory nongame birds. The Project is 
required to adhere to the MBTA and applicable federal and state laws, including 
the California Fish and Game Code. Therefore, to the extent existing trees are 
removed during the nesting season, a biological monitor would be present during 
the removal activities to ensure that no active nests would be impacted. If any 
active nests are detected, the area would be flagged with a buffer (ranging 
between 50 and 300 feet, as determined by the monitoring biologist), and the area 
would be avoided until the nesting cycle has been completed or the monitoring 
biologist has determined that the nest has failed. With compliance with this existing 
regulatory requirement, impacts to nesting and migratory birds would be less than 
significant. 

Thus, the Project would not harm any species protected by the Federal 
Endangered Species Act of 1973 (16 U.S.C. Sec. 1531 et seq.), the Native Plant 
Protection Act (Chapter 10 (commencing with Section 1900) of Division 2 of the 
Fish and Game Code), or the California Endangered Species Act (Chapter 1.5 
(commencing with Section 2050) of Division 3 of the Fish and Game Code). As 
such, the Project is consistent with this criterion. 

(3) The site of the Transit Priority Project is not included on any list of 
facilities and sites compiled pursuant to Section 65962.5 of the Government 
Code.  

Government Code Section 65962.5, amended in 1992, requires the California 
Environmental Protection Agency (CalEPA) to develop and update annually the 
Cortese List, which is a list of hazardous waste sites and other contaminated sites. 
While Government Code Section 65962.5 makes reference to the preparation of a 
list, many changes have occurred related to web-based information access since 
1992, and information regarding the Cortese List is now compiled on the websites 
of different agencies. The California Department of Toxic Substances Control 
(DTSC) maintains a database (EnviroStor) that provides access to detailed 
information on hazardous waste permitted sites and corrective action, facilities, as 
well as existing site cleanup information. The Regional Water Quality Control 
Board (RWQCB) maintains a similar database (Geotracker). EnviroStor and 
Geotracker also provide information on investigation, cleanup, permitting, and/or 
corrective actions that are permitting, planned, being conducted, or have been 
completed under DTSC’s and the RWQCB’s respective oversight. 

A Phase I Environmental Site Assessment (ESA) was prepared by Partner 
Engineering and Science, Inc., on October 23, 2018 (attached as Appendix E). As 
part of the Phase I ESA, a records search including information from standard 
federal, state, county, and city environmental record sources was provided by 

X 

 



 2. Sustainable Communities Strategy Criteria 

 
Maubert Project  City of Los Angeles 
Sustainable Communities Project Exemption  November 2019 

Page 2-9 

Environmental Data Resources, Inc., (EDR). The results of the database review 
are included in the Phase I ESA (attached as Appendix E, pages 20-21). Based on 
this review, the Project Site is not listed on these databases.   

Furthermore, the Phase I ESA did not identify any recognized environmental 
conditions, historical recognized environmental conditions, or controlled 
recognized environmental conditions on the Project Site.  

Accordingly, the Project Site is not located on any list of hazardous waste sites 
compiled pursuant to Section 65962.5 of the Government Code. As such, the 
Project meets this criterion. 
(4) The site of the Transit Priority Project is subject to a preliminary 
endangerment assessment prepared by a registered environmental assessor 
to determine the existence of any release of a hazardous substance on the 
site and to determine the potential for exposure of future occupants to 
significant health hazards from any nearby property or activity. 

(a) If a release of a hazardous substance is found to exist on the site, the 
release shall be removed or any significant effects of the release shall 
be mitigated to a level of insignificance in compliance with state and 
federal requirements.  

(b) If a potential for exposure to significant hazards from surrounding 
properties or activities is found to exist, the effects of the potential 
exposure shall be mitigated to a level of insignificance in compliance 
with state and federal requirements. 

As part of the Phase I ESA prepared by Partner Engineering and Science, Inc., on 
October 23, 2018 (attached as Appendix E), the previous uses of the Project Site 
and nearby properties were evaluated to identify any historically recognized 
environmental conditions. As detailed in the Phase I ESA, no historical recognized 
environmental conditions have been identified for the Project Site or surrounding 
area. 

Site Reconnaissance  

The Project Site has been occupied by residential tenants since 1920. Surrounding 
properties have been occupied by numerous commercial and multi-family 
residents.  

The Phase I ESA reported no evidence of existing aboveground or underground 
storage tanks, clarifiers, or sumps on the Project Site during the site 
reconnaissance. In addition, no evidence of transformers or equipment containing 
toxic polychlorinated biphenyls (PCBs) or evidence of spills or stains was observed 
on-site. Furthermore, no strong, pungent, or noxious odors were evident during the 

X 

 



 2. Sustainable Communities Strategy Criteria 

 
Maubert Project  City of Los Angeles 
Sustainable Communities Project Exemption  November 2019 

Page 2-10 

site reconnaissance and no other indications of release of hazardous substances 
or other conditions of environmental concern were observed (Phase I ESA, 
attached as Appendix E, pages 26-27). 

Methane Zone 

The Project Site is not located within a Methane Zone or Methane Buffer Zone 
identified by the City (City of Los Angeles Department of City Planning, ZIMAS 
Parcel Profile Report). In addition, there are no oil wells or oil fields on the Project 
Site or proximate to the Project Site. Further, the Phase I ESA (attached as 
Appendix E, page 28) determined that based on the Project Site’s location in 
Radon Zone 2, radon is not considered to be a significant environmental concern 
at the Project Site.  

Asbestos Containing Materials/Lead Based Paint 

The Project includes the demolition of the existing buildings on the Project Site in 
order to construct the proposed 8-story residential building. The Phase I ESA 
concluded that based on the age of the existing buildings, it is likely that asbestos 
containing materials (ACMs) and/or lead-based paint (LBP) would be present in 
the demolition debris. In the event that ACMs and/or LBP are discovered during 
construction, all ACMs and LBP would be removed in accordance with all 
applicable regulatory requirements. Specifically, in accordance with SCAQMD 
Rule 1403 (Asbestos Emissions from Demolition/Renovation Activities), prior to 
demolition activities associated with the Project, the Applicant would conduct a 
survey of the existing areas where construction would occur to verify the presence 
or absence of any of these materials and conduct remediation or abatement before 
any disturbance occurs. Furthermore, the California Division of Occupational 
Safety and Health (Cal-OSHA) has established limits of exposure to lead 
contained in dusts and fumes through California Code of Regulations, Title 8, 
Section 1532.1, which provides for exposure limits, exposure monitoring, and 
respiratory protection, and mandates good working practices by workers exposed 
to lead, since demolition workers are at greatest risk of adverse health exposure. 
Lead-contaminated debris and other wastes must also be managed and disposed 
of in accordance with applicable provisions of the California Health and Safety 
Code. Mandatory compliance with these regulatory requirements would reduce 
any potential risks associated with ACMs and LBP to acceptable levels. 

Listed Hazardous Materials Sites 

Further, the Project Site is not located on any list of hazardous waste sites 
compiled pursuant to Section 65962.5 of the Government Code. The adjacent 
property to the south (at 4661 South Sunset Boulevard) was identified in the EDR 
database search conducted as part of the Phase I ESA. According to EDR, this 



 2. Sustainable Communities Strategy Criteria 

 
Maubert Project  City of Los Angeles 
Sustainable Communities Project Exemption  November 2019 

Page 2-11 

property contained a gasoline station in 1942, although no releases were reported. 
Based on the inferred direction of groundwater and lack of a documented release, 
this site is not expected to represent a significant environmental concern. 
Currently, Children’s Hospital Los Angeles is located at 4661 South Sunset 
Boulevard. The site is permitted by the Los Angeles Fire Department for an 
underground storage tank. No releases are reported, and based on the inferred 
direction of groundwater, this site is not expected to represent a significant 
environmental concern. Based on these findings, the Phase I ESA concluded that 
vapor migration is not expected to represent a significant environmental concern at 
the Project Site (Phase I ESA, attached as Appendix E, page 21). 

In addition, a gas station located at 1630 N. Vermont Avenue is listed as a leaking 
underground storage tank case for a gasoline release that has impacted an aquifer 
used for drinking water. As of June 2017, the status of the case is listed as Open – 
Verification Monitoring. Semi-annual groundwater monitoring reports have been 
submitted to the lead agency, the Los Angeles Regional Water Quality Control 
Board. Based on the direction of groundwater, and continued monitoring with 
regulatory oversight, this site is not expected to represent a significant 
environmental concern. Based on these findings, the Phase I ESA concluded that 
vapor migration is not expected to represent a significant environmental concern at 
the Project Site (Phase I ESA, attached as Appendix E, page 21). 

The Phase I ESA did not identify any other recognized environmental conditions, 
historical recognized environmental conditions, or controlled recognized 
environmental conditions on the Project Site. As such, the Project meets this 
criterion. 

(5) The Transit Priority Project does not have a significant effect on historical 
resources pursuant to Section 21084.1. 

A Historical Resource Evaluation Report was prepared for the Project Site by GPA 
Consulting in March 2019 (attached as Appendix F). None of the existing buildings 
are currently listed under national, state, or local landmark or historic district 
programs. The existing buildings were not identified in any historic resources 
surveys of the area, including SurveyLA, the Citywide historic resources survey of 
Los Angeles. GPA evaluated all buildings on the Project Site as individual potential 
historic resources subject to CEQA and concluded that none of the buildings or 
properties appear to eligible for listing in the National Register of Historic Places or 
California Register of Historical Resources, or for designation as a Los Angeles 
Historic-Cultural Monument due to a lack of significance, architectural distinction, 
and in the case of 4645 ½ - 4651 Maubert Avenue, a lack of integrity. Furthermore, 
the properties do not contribute to a potential historic district. Therefore, the Project 
would not involve the demolition, relocation, or alteration of any historical 
resources, and the Project would have no direct impacts on any historical 

X 

 



 2. Sustainable Communities Strategy Criteria 

 
Maubert Project  City of Los Angeles 
Sustainable Communities Project Exemption  November 2019 

Page 2-12 

resources. As such, the Project meets this criterion. 

(6) The Transit Priority Project site is not subject to any of the following: 

(a) A wildland fire hazard, as determined by the Department of 
Forestry and Fire Protection, unless the applicable general plan or 
zoning ordinance contains provisions to mitigate the risk of a 
wildland fire hazard. 

As described above and recognized in the 2016 RTP/SCS, the Project Site is 
located in a highly urbanized area and is fully developed with three residential 
buildings. The Project Site is not located within a City-designated Very High Fire 
Hazard Severity Zone (City of Los Angeles Department of City Planning, ZIMAS 
Parcel Profile Report) or designated Fire Buffer Zone or Mountain Fire District in 
the 1996 City of Los Angeles Safety Element. Therefore, the Project Site is not 
subject to a wildland fire hazard. As such, the Project meets this criterion. 

(b) An unusually high risk of fire or explosion from materials stored or 
used on nearby properties. 

The Phase I ESA prepared by Partner Engineering and Science, Inc., on October 
23, 2018 (attached as Appendix E, pages 20-21) prepared for the Project found 
that the Project Site is not included in any federal, state, or local environmental list 
that identifies the use, generation, storage, treatment, or disposal of hazardous 
materials and chemicals, or release incidents of such materials that may impact 
the Project Site. The Project Site is not subject to an unusually high risk of fire or 
explosion from materials stored or used on nearby properties. As such, the Project 
meets this criterion. 

(c) Risk of a public health exposure at a level that would exceed the 
standards established by any state or federal agency. 

The Project Site is not located on any list of hazardous waste sites compiled 
pursuant to Section 65962.25 of the Government Code (Cortese List). Further, as 
discussed above, the Project Site is not located within a Methane Zone or Methane 
Buffer Zone, identified by the City.  

There are no oil wells or oil fields on the Project Site or proximate to the Project 
Site. 

In addition, the Phase I ESA prepared by Partner Engineering and Science, Inc., 
on October 23, 2018 (attached as Appendix E, page 28) determined that based on 
the Project Site’s location in Radon Zone 2, radon is not considered to be a 
significant environmental concern at the Project Site.  

X 

 



 2. Sustainable Communities Strategy Criteria 

 
Maubert Project  City of Los Angeles 
Sustainable Communities Project Exemption  November 2019 

Page 2-13 

The Project includes the demolition of the existing buildings on the Project Site in 
order to construct the proposed 8-story residential building. The Phase I ESA 
concluded that based on the age of the existing buildings, it is likely that asbestos 
containing materials (ACMs) and/or lead-based paint (LBP) would be present in 
the demolition debris. In the event that ACMs and/or LBP are discovered during 
construction, all ACMs and LBP would be removed in accordance with all 
applicable regulatory requirements. Specifically, in accordance with SCAQMD 
Rule 1403 (Asbestos Emissions from Demolition/Renovation Activities), prior to 
demolition activities associated with the Project, the Applicant would conduct a 
survey of the existing areas where construction would occur to verify the presence 
or absence of any of these materials and conduct remediation or abatement before 
any disturbance occurs. Furthermore, the California Division of Occupational 
Safety and Health (Cal-OSHA) has established limits of exposure to lead 
contained in dusts and fumes through California Code of Regulations, Title 8, 
Section 1532.1, which provides for exposure limits, exposure monitoring, and 
respiratory protection, and mandates good working practices by workers exposed 
to lead, since demolition workers are at greatest risk of adverse health exposure. 
Lead-contaminated debris and other wastes must also be managed and disposed 
of in accordance with applicable provisions of the California Health and Safety 
Code. Mandatory compliance with these regulatory requirements would reduce 
any potential risks associated with ACMs and LBP to acceptable levels. 

As discussed above, a gas station located at 1630 N. Vermont Avenue is listed as 
a leaking underground storage tank case for a gasoline release that has impacted 
an aquifer used for drinking water. As of June 2017, the status of the case is listed 
as Open – Verification Monitoring. Semi-annual groundwater monitoring reports 
have been submitted to the lead agency, the Los Angeles Regional Water Quality 
Control Board. Based on the direction of groundwater, and continued monitoring 
with regulatory oversight, this leaking underground storage tank would not result in 
a public health exposure at a level that would exceed the standards established by 
a state or federal agency. 

The Phase I ESA (attached as Appendix E, pages 30-31) did not identify any other 
recognized environmental conditions, historical recognized environmental 
conditions, or controlled recognized environmental conditions on the Project Site.  

In addition, while not legally required under Public Resources Code Section 
21155.1, an Air Quality Technical Report and Noise Technical Report were 
prepared for the Project by DKA Planning in May 2019, and are attached as 
Appendix I and Appendix J, respectively, for informational purposes only. These 
reports demonstrate that the Project would not exceed the air quality or noise 
standards established by any state or federal agency.  

Therefore, the Project would not result in public health exposure, either to the 



 2. Sustainable Communities Strategy Criteria 

 
Maubert Project  City of Los Angeles 
Sustainable Communities Project Exemption  November 2019 

Page 2-14 

public or to future tenants of the Project, at a level that would exceed the standards 
established by any state or federal agency. As such, the Project meets this 
criterion.  

(d) Seismic risk as a result of being within a delineated earthquake 
fault zone, as determined pursuant to Section 2622, or a seismic 
hazard zone, as determined pursuant to Section 2696, unless the 
applicable general plan or zoning ordinance contains provisions 
to mitigate the risk of an earthquake fault or seismic hazard zone.  

As discussed in the Geotechnical Report prepared by GeoPentech on February 
26, 2019 (attached as Appendix G), according to the Safety Element of the 
General Plan and the California Geological Survey (CGS) Seismic Hazard Zones 
Map of the Hollywood and Los Angeles Quadrangle, the Project Site is not located 
within an area of required liquefaction investigation. Based on information obtained 
from borings drilled for preparation of the Geotechnical Report, and the Project 
Site’s location outside of a zone of required investigation for liquefaction hazard, 
the potential for liquefaction to occur at the Project Site is considered low. 

According to the Earthquake Fault Zone Map, the Project Site is not within the 
Alquist-Priolo Earthquake Fault Zone. Further, according to the Geotechnical 
Report (attached as Appendix G), the closest Alquist-Priolo Zones are along the 
Hollywood Fault, approximately 1.0 km to the north. No known active faults cross 
or project toward the Project Site, nor is the Project Site located in a currently 
established Alquist-Priolo Special Studies Zone of Required Fault Investigation.  

As with any new project development, building design and construction are 
required to conform to the current seismic design provisions of the City’s Building 
Code, which incorporates relevant provisions of the 2016 California Building Code 
(CBC). The 2016 CBC, as amended by the City’s Building Code, incorporates the 
latest seismic design standards for structural loads and materials to provide for the 
latest in earthquake safety. Conformance with the 2016 CBC requirements would 
reduce the potential for structures on the Project Site to sustain damage during an 
earthquake event, and would ensure that the Project would not expose people or 
structures to substantial adverse effects associated with seismic ground shaking to 
any greater extent than other properties in the Southern California region.  

As such, the Project would not result in seismic risk as a result of being within a 
delineated earthquake fault zone or a seismic hazard zone. As such, the Project 
meets this criterion.  

(e) Landslide hazard, flood plain, flood way, or restriction zone, 
unless the applicable general plan or zoning ordinance contains 
provisions to mitigate the risk of a landslide or flood. 



 2. Sustainable Communities Strategy Criteria 

 
Maubert Project  City of Los Angeles 
Sustainable Communities Project Exemption  November 2019 

Page 2-15 

The Project Site and surrounding area are fully developed and generally 
characterized by flat topography. The Project Site is not located in a landslide area 
as mapped by the City of Los Angeles. Further, according to the Geotechnical 
Report (attached as Appendix G, pages 4-5), the Project Site is not located in a 
designated earthquake-induced landslide hazard zone as mapped by the CGS. 
Therefore, the Geotechnical Report concluded that the potential for landslide is 
considered negligible. 

The Project Site is not located within a designated 100-year flood plain area or 
flood way boundary as mapped by the Federal Emergency Management Agency 
(FEMA) or by the City (Federal Emergency Management Agency, Flood Insurance 
Rate Map, Map Number X, September 26, 2008; City of Los Angeles, Los Angeles 
General Plan Safety Element, November 1996, Exhibit F, 100-Year & 500-Year 
Flood Plain, p. 57). Therefore, the Project would not result in landslide hazard, 
flood plain, flood way, or restriction zone. As such, the Project meets this criterion. 

(7) The Transit Priority Project site is not located on developed open space.  

(A) For the purposes of this paragraph, “developed open space” means 
land that meets all of the following criteria:  

(i) Is publicly owned, or financed in whole or in part by public funds.  

(ii) Is generally open to, and available for use by, the public.  

(iii) Is predominantly lacking in structural development other than 
structures associated with open spaces, including, but not limited 
to, playgrounds, swimming pools, ballfields, enclosed child play 
areas, and picnic facilities.  

The Project Site is privately owned, has not been designated for acquisition by a 
public agency for use as open space, and is located in a highly urbanized area that 
includes a mixture of commercial, institutional, and residential uses. The Project 
Site is currently developed with three residential buildings, contains no active or 
passive recreational facilities, and has not been used by the public for recreational 
purposes. Therefore, the Project is not located on developed open space. As such, 
the Project meets this criterion. 

X 

 

(8) The buildings in the Transit Priority Project are 15 percent more energy 
efficient than required by Chapter 6 of Title 24 of the California Code of 
Regulations and the buildings and landscaping are designed to achieve 25 
percent less water usage than the average household use in the region. 

Based on the Energy and Water Efficiency Compliance Report prepared by US-
Eco Logic, dated June 7, 2019 (attached as Appendix H), the Project would be 

X 

 



 2. Sustainable Communities Strategy Criteria 

 
Maubert Project  City of Los Angeles 
Sustainable Communities Project Exemption  November 2019 

Page 2-16 

designed to be 15 percent more energy efficient than the standards contained in 
Title 24 of the California Code of Regulations (2016) and would be designed to 
achieve at least 79 percent less water than the average household in the region.  

The Project would achieve its energy and water efficiency through the 
implementation of multiple measures, which are detailed in the Energy and Water 
Efficiency Compliance Report (attached as Appendix H).  

According to the Energy and Water Efficiency Compliance Report (attached as 
Appendix H), the average household water use in the region is 391.5 gallons per 
day. The Project would use approximately 12,785 gallons of water per day, or 
approximately 83.57 gallons of water per household, per day. Therefore, the 
Project would use approximately 79 percent less water than the average 
household in the region.  

The energy efficiency calculations contained in the Energy and Water Efficiency 
Compliance Report (attached as Appendix H) are based on the “performance 
method,” which uses energy modeling software approved by the California Energy 
Commission to demonstrate that a project meets the required level of energy 
performance by analyzing energy trade-offs. Table 2 of the Energy and Water 
Efficiency Compliance Report (attached as Appendix H) provides detailed 
information of what is estimated for the Project design as compared to the baseline 
design values (contained in Title 24 (2016)). The Energy Use Intensity (EUI) was 
then calculated for the Project as designed, and was compared to the Title 24 
baseline model. The results show that the Project has a targeted savings of at 
least 15 percent over the Title 24 baseline (see Table 3 of the Energy and Water 
Efficiency Compliance Report). 

Therefore, the Project is designed to be 15 percent more energy-efficient than 
required by Chapter 6 of Title 24 of the California Code of Regulations, and is 
designed to achieve 79 percent less water usage than the average household in 
the region. As such, the Project meets this criterion. 

PRC § 21155.1(b). The Transit Priority Project meets all of the following land 
use criteria: 

Consistent 

Yes No 

(1) The site of the Transit Priority Project is not more than eight acres in total 
area. 

The Project Site is approximately 0.76 acres (approximately 32,277 square feet). 
Therefore, the Project Site is less than eight acres. As such, the Project meets his 
criterion. 

 

X 

 



 2. Sustainable Communities Strategy Criteria 

 
Maubert Project  City of Los Angeles 
Sustainable Communities Project Exemption  November 2019 

Page 2-17 

(2) The Transit Priority Project does not contain more than 200 residential 
units.  

The Project proposes 153 residential units. Therefore, the Project will not include 
more than 200 residential units. As such, the Project meets this criterion. 

X 

 

(3) The Transit Priority Project does not result in any net loss in the number 
of affordable housing units within the project area. 

The Project Site is currently developed with 14 multi-family residential units in 
three separate buildings. However, none of the existing residential units are 
designated as affordable housing units.  

As part of the Project, 11 percent of the Project units (17 units) would be reserved 
for Extremely Low Income households. Thus, the Project would increase the 
number of affordable housing units at the Project Site and within the Project 
vicinity. As such, the Project meets this criterion. 

X 

 

(4) The Transit Priority Project does not include any single level building that 
exceeds 75,000 square feet. 

The Project would construct an eight-story building with approximately 143,785 
square feet of residential development. Therefore, the Project does not include any 
single level building that exceeds 75,000 square feet. As such, the Project meets 
this criterion. 

X 

 

(5) Any applicable mitigation measures or performance standards or criteria 
set forth in the prior environmental impact reports, and adopted in findings, 
have been or will be incorporated into the Transit Priority Project.  

The City has identified two prior environmental impact reports (EIRs) with 
mitigation measures that apply to the Project Site: (1) SCAG 2016-2040 RTP/SCS 
Final Program EIR (2016); and (2) Hollywood Community Plan Revision Final EIR 
(1988).   

A Negative Declaration was prepared for the Vermont/Western Station 
Neighborhood Area Plan (SNAP) in 2000. Therefore, there are no applicable 
mitigation measures from the Negative Declaration prepared for the SNAP that can 
be incorporated into the Project. 

The 2016 SCAG RTP/SCS Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program (SCAG 
MMRP) does not include project level mitigation measures that would be required 
of the Project. The SCAG MMRP provides a list of mitigation measures that SCAG 
determined a lead agency can and should consider, as applicable and feasible, 
where the agency has identified that a project has the potential for significant 

X 

 



 2. Sustainable Communities Strategy Criteria 

 
Maubert Project  City of Los Angeles 
Sustainable Communities Project Exemption  November 2019 

Page 2-18 

effects.1  

Appendix A-3 contains a full discussion of the Project’s consistency with SCAG’s 
MMRP and with the mitigation measures contained in the Hollywood Community 
Plan Revision Final EIR. As such, the Project meets this criterion. 

(6) The Transit Priority Project is determined not to conflict with nearby 
operating industrial uses. 

The nearest site zoned for industrial uses is located at the southwest corner of 
Sunset Drive and Hoover Street, approximately 0.3 miles from the Project. The site 
is zoned “M1-1,” which is a limited industrial zone and allows for light 
manufacturing uses by the City (City of Los Angeles Department of City Planning, 
ZIMAS, http://zimas.lacity.org/). However, this site is currently developed with 
buildings that house the “Scientology Media Productions” headquarters, and the 
buildings cover parcels in both the M1-1 and [Q}C2-1 zones. In addition, this site is 
surrounded completely by sites zoned for commercial and multi-family residential 
uses. Therefore, due to distance from the Project as well as the buffering provided 
by existing development located between the Project and the nearest industrial 
zoned site, the Project would not conflict with nearby operating industrial uses. As 
such, the Project meets this criterion. 

X 

 

(7) The Transit Priority Project is located within one-half mile of a rail transit 
station or a ferry terminal included in a regional transportation plan or within 
one-quarter mile of a high quality transit corridor included in a regional 
transportation plan. 

All parcels within the Project Site are located approximately 400 feet (0.08 miles) 
north of the Vermont/Sunset Metro Red Line Station, making it within one-half mile 
of a rail transit station. Further, the Project Site is in an area identified a High 
Quality Transit Area by SCAG (SCAG 2016-2040 RTP/SCS Exhibit 5.1, High 
Quality Transit Areas in the SCAG Region for 2040 Plan). As such, the Project 
meets this criterion. 

X 

 

PRC 21155.1(c). The Transit Priority Project meets at least one of the 
following threecriteria: 

Consistent 

Yes No 

(1) The Transit Priority Project meets both of the following: 

(a) At least 20 percent of the housing will be sold to families of moderate 

X 
 

                                                   

1  SCAG, 2016-2040 RTP/SCS PEIR, Exhibit B Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program, available at: 
http://scagrtpscs.net/Documents/2016/peir/final/2016fPEIR_ExhibitB_MMRP.pdf, 2016. 



 2. Sustainable Communities Strategy Criteria 

 
Maubert Project  City of Los Angeles 
Sustainable Communities Project Exemption  November 2019 

Page 2-19 

income, or not less than 10 percent of the housing will be rented to 
families of low income, or not less than 5 percent of the housing is 
rented to families of very low income. 

(b) The Transit Priority Project developer provides sufficient legal 
commitments to the appropriate local agency to ensure the continued 
availability and use of the housing units for very low, low-, and 
moderate-income households at monthly housing costs with an 
affordable housing cost or affordable rent, as defined in Section 
50052.5 or 50053 of the Health and Safety Code, respectively, for the 
period required by the applicable financing. Rental units shall be 
affordable for at least 55 years. Ownership units shall be subject to 
resale restrictions or equity sharing requirements for at least 30 years. 

Of the 153 proposed residential units, 11 percent (17 units) shall be reserved for 
Extremely Low Income households for at least 55 years. Therefore, not less than 
five percent of the housing shall be rented to Extremely Low Income Households. 
The Project operator will enter into a housing regulatory agreement memorializing 
these requirements and making them binding on any successors or assigns for the 
regulatory period. The Project meets this criterion  

(2) The Transit Priority Project developer has paid or will pay in-lieu fees 
pursuant to a local ordinance in an amount sufficient to result in the 
development of an equivalent number of units that would otherwise be 
required pursuant to paragraph (1). 

The Project meets part (1) of this criterion, above. Therefore, the Project meets the 
requirements of PRC 21155.1(c). 

  

(3) The Transit Priority Project provides public open space equal to or 
greater than five acres per 1,000 residents of the project. 

The Project meets part (1) of this criterion, above. Therefore, the Project meets the 
requirements of PRC 21155.1(c). 

  

 

 



 

Appendix A-1 

Existing Land Use Maps 

  



Fo
re

ca
st

ed
 R

eg
io

na
l D

ev
el

op
m

en
t T

yp
es

by
 L

an
d 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t C
at

eg
or

ie
s 

(2
01

2)
 - 

Lo
s 

A
ng

el
es

 C
ity

 S
ub

re
gi

on
S

ou
rc

e:
 S

C
A

G
, 2

01
5.

57

22

60

11
8

12
6

17
0

55

91

23

10
1

10
1

40
5

5

10

21
0

40
5

60
5

71
0

11
0

10
5

5

5

10

 
17

0

10

11
0

Pr
oj

ec
t S

ite



57

22

60

11
8

12
6

17
0

55

23

10
1

10
1

40
5

5

10

21
0

40
5

60
5

71
0

11
0

10
5

5

5

10

 

Fo
re

ca
st

ed
 R

eg
io

na
l D

ev
el

op
m

en
t T

yp
es

by
 L

an
d 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t C
at

eg
or

ie
s 

(2
04

0)
 - 

Lo
s 

A
ng

el
es

 C
ity

 S
ub

re
gi

on
S

ou
rc

e:
 S

C
A

G
, 2

01
5.

17
0

10

11
0

Pr
oj

ec
t S

ite



U
rb

an
 F

oo
tp

rin
t P

la
ce

 T
yp

e



EX
H

IB
IT

 5
.1

 T
IT

LE

R
iv

er
si

de
Co

un
ty

Sa
n 

B
er

na
rd

in
o

Co
un

ty

O
ra

ng
e

Co
un

ty

Lo
s 

A
ng

el
es

Co
un

ty

Ve
nt

ur
a

Co
un

ty

Sa
n 

B
er

na
rd

in
o

Co
un

ty

R
iv

er
si

de
Co

un
ty

Im
pe

ria
l

Co
un

ty

 
H

IG
H

 Q
U

A
LI

TY
 T

RA
N

SI
T 

A
RE

A
S 

IN
 T

H
E 

SC
A

G
 R

EG
IO

N
 

FO
R 

20
40

 P
LA

N

H
ig

h 
Q

ua
lit

y 
Tr

an
si

t A
re

as
S

ou
rc

e:
 S

C
A

G
, 2

01
5.

S
ca

le
 (M

ile
s)

0
10

20

Pr
oj

ec
t S

ite
s



A
rc

G
IS

 - 
G

en
er

al
 P

la
n 

La
nd

 U
se

 - 
Lo

s 
A

ng
el

es

ht
tp

s:
//w

w
w

.a
rc

gi
s.

co
m

/h
om

e/
w

eb
m

ap
/p

rin
t.h

tm
l

C
ou

nt
y 

of
 L

os
 A

ng
el

es
, 

B
ur

ea
u 

of
 L

an
d 

M
an

ag
em

en
t,

 E
sr

i, 
H

ER
E,

 G
ar

m
in

, 
IN

C
R
EM

EN
T 

P,
 U

S
G

S
, 

M
ET

I/
N

A
S
A
, 

EP
A
, 

U
S
D

A

G
en

er
al

 P
la

n 
La

nd
 U

se
 -

 L
os

 A
ng

el
es

To
 a

id
 in

 f
or

ec
as

tin
g 

la
nd

 s
up

pl
y 

an
d 

de
m

an
d 

fo
r 

th
e 

S
C
A
G

 r
eg

io
n 

an
d 

to
 b

e 
us

ed
 a

s 
a 

pl
an

ni
ng

 t
oo

l. 
To

 p
ro

vi
de

 G
IS

 u
se

rs
w

ith
 c

ou
nt

yw
id

e 
ge

ne
ra

l p
la

n 
pa

rc
el

 c
ov

er
ag

e 
(v

er
si

on
 2

.0
).

G
en

er
al

 P
la

n
 L

an
d

 U
se

 -
Lo

s 
A

n
g

el
es

S
in

gl
e 

Fa
m

ily
R
es

id
en

tia
l

M
ul

ti-
Fa

m
ily

R
es

id
en

tia
l

M
ob

ile
 H

om
es

 a
nd

Tr
ai

le
r 

Pa
rk

s

M
ix

ed
 R

es
id

en
tia

l

R
ur

al
 R

es
id

en
tia

l

G
en

er
al

 O
ff
ic

e

C
om

m
er

ci
al

 a
nd

S
er

vi
ce

s

Fa
ci

lit
ie

s

Ed
uc

at
io

n

M
ili

ta
ry

 I
ns

ta
lla

tio
ns

In
du

st
ri
al

Tr
an

sp
or

ta
tio

n,
C
om

m
un

ic
at

io
ns

,
an

d 
U

til
iti

es
M

ix
ed

 C
om

m
er

ci
al

an
d 

In
du

st
ri
al

M
ix

ed
 R

es
id

en
tia

l
an

d 
C
om

m
er

ci
al

O
pe

n 
S
pa

ce
 a

nd
R
ec

re
at

io
n

A
gr

ic
ul

tu
re

Pr
oj

ec
t S

ite

20
12

 S
C

A
G

 G
en

er
al

 P
la

n 
La

nd
 U

se
 M

ap
S

ou
rc

e:
 S

C
A

G
, 2

01
2.

0
.5

m
i

0



 

Appendix A-2 

Project Consistency with SCAG’s 2016-2040 RTP/SCS 

  



 
Maubert Project      City of Los Angeles 
Sustainable Communities Project Exemption  November 2019 

Page A2-1 

APPENDIX A-2 

PROJECT CONSISTENCY WITH SCAG’S 2016-2040 RTP/SCS

The following table demonstrates the Project’s consistency with the applicable goals and policies 
contained in SCAG’s 2016-2040 RTP/SCS. 

Table A2-1 
Consistency with SCAG’s 2016-2040 RTP/SCS 

Goals and Policies Consistency Assessment 
2016-2040 RTP/SCS Goal 1 Align the plan 
investments and policies with improving 
regional economic development and 
competitiveness. 

Not Applicable. This Goal is directed towards 
SCAG and the City of Los Angeles (City) and 
not does apply to the Project.  

2016-2040 RTP/SCS Goal 2 Maximize mobility 
and accessibility for all people and goods in the 
region. 

Consistent. The Project Site is located in a 
highly urbanized area in the City. The Project 
would develop 153 residential dwelling units 
(including 11 percent restricted affordable units 
for Extremely Low Income Households) within 
an HQTA, as defined by SCAG, and a transit 
priority area as defined by SB 743. The Project 
Site is served by numerous existing bus lines, 
including DASH Hollywood, DASH Los Feliz, 
DASH Observatory, and Metro lines 2, 175, 180, 
181, 204, 206, 217, 302, 754, and 780. Also, the 
Project Site is located approximately 400 feet 
north of the Vermont/Sunset Metro Red Line 
Station. 

2016-2040 RTP/SCS Goal 3 Ensure travel 
safety and reliability for all people and goods in 
the region. 

Consistent. The Project would provide 77 bike 
parking stalls. Also, the Project would include 
street lighting and lighting of all pedestrian 
pathways adjacent to the Project Site to allow 
for safe travel. Furthermore, the Project would 
be subject to the site plan review requirements 
of the City and would be required to coordinate 
with the Department of Building and Safety and 
the Los Angeles Fire Department to ensure that 
all access roads, driveways and parking areas 
would not create a design hazard to local 
roadways.  

2016-2040 RTP/SCS Goal 4 Preserve and 
ensure a sustainable regional transportation 
system. 

Not Applicable. This Goal is directed towards 
SCAG transportation projects and does not 
apply to the Project.  

2016-2040 RTP/SCS Goal 5 Maximize the 
productivity of our transportation system. 

Consistent. The Project includes 153 
residential dwelling units (including 11 percent 
restricted affordable units for Extremely Low 
Income Households). Given the Project Site’s 
location close to transit, the Project would 
encourage the utilization of transit as a mode of 
transportation to and from the Project area. 
Thus, the Project would contribute to the 
productivity and use of the regional 



 Project Consistency with SCAG’s 2016-2040 RTP/SCS 

 
Maubert Project  City of Los Angeles 
Sustainable Communities Project Exemption  November 2019 

Page A2-2 

Table A2-1 
Consistency with SCAG’s 2016-2040 RTP/SCS 

Goals and Policies Consistency Assessment 
transportation system by providing housing near 
transit. Moreover, as discussed in the Project’s 
Transportation Impact Study (located in 
Appendix B), the Project would not create a 
significant impact at any of the study 
intersections.  

2016-2040 RTP/SCS Goal 6 Protect the 
environment and health of our residents by 
improving air quality and encouraging active 
transportation (e.g., bicycling and walking). 

Consistent. The Project’s location and design 
features would encourage active transportation 
within the Project Site and surrounding area, 
which would help to protect the environment and 
health of residents. The Project would provide 
landscaping along the public rights-of-way and 
ground-floor uses, which promotes and supports 
pedestrian activity in the area. The Project 
would also provide 77 bike parking stalls, which 
would support bicycling as a means of 
transportation. In addition, the Project Site is 
located in close proximity to a variety of public 
transit options, including multiple bus lines and 
the Sunset/Vermont Metro Red Line Station. 
Finally, the Project would provide outdoor open 
space in accordance with Code requirements. 

2016-2040 RTP/SCS Goal 7 Actively 
encourage and create incentives for energy 
efficiency, where possible. 

Not Applicable. This Goal is directed towards 
SCAG and the City to create incentives for 
energy efficiency.  

2016-2040 RTP/SCS Goal 8 Encourage land 
use and growth patterns that facilitate transit 
and active transportation. 

Consistent. The Project Site is located in a 
highly urbanized area in the City within a HQTA 
and a Transit Priority Area (TPA). The Project 
would develop 153 residential dwelling units 
(including 11 percent restricted affordable units 
for Extremely Low Income Households) within 
an HQTA, as defined by SCAG, and a transit 
priority area as defined by SB 743. The Project 
Site is served by numerous existing bus lines, 
including DASH Hollywood, DASH Los Feliz, 
DASH Observatory, and Metro lines 2, 175, 180, 
181, 204, 206, 217, 302, 754, and 780. Also, the 
Project Site is located approximately 400 feet 
north of the Vermont/Sunset Metro Red Line 
Station. Moreover, the location of the Project 
Site promotes the use of a variety of 
transportation options and access, which 
includes walking and the use of public 
transportation. 

2016-2040 RTP/SCS Goal 9 Maximize the 
security of the regional transportation system 
through improved system monitoring, rapid 
recovery planning, and coordination with other 

Not Applicable. This Goal is directed towards 
SCAG to ensure the safety and security of the 
regional transportation system. No further 
discussion is required. 



 Project Consistency with SCAG’s 2016-2040 RTP/SCS 

 
Maubert Project  City of Los Angeles 
Sustainable Communities Project Exemption  November 2019 

Page A2-3 

Table A2-1 
Consistency with SCAG’s 2016-2040 RTP/SCS 

Goals and Policies Consistency Assessment 
security agencies. 
2016-2040 RTP/SCS Guiding Policy 1 
Transportation investments shall be based on 
SCAG’s adopted regional Performance 
Indicators. 

Not Applicable. This policy is directed towards 
SCAG in allocating transportation investments.  

2016-2040 RTP/SCS Guiding Policy 2 
Ensuring safety, adequate maintenance and 
efficiency of operations on the existing 
multimodal transportation system should be the 
highest RTP/SCS priorities for any incremental 
funding in the region.  

Not Applicable. This policy is directed towards 
SCAG in allocating transportation system 
funding.  

2016-2040 RTP/SCS Guiding Policy 3 
RTP/SCS land use and growth strategies in the 
RTP/SCS will respect local input and advance 
smart growth initiatives. 

Not Applicable. This Goal is directed towards 
SCAG and the City and not does apply to the 
Project.  

2016-2040 RTP/SCS Guiding Policy 4 
Transportation demand management (TDM) 
and active transportation will be focus areas, 
subject to Policy 1. 

Not Applicable. This policy is directed towards 
transportation investment by SCAG.  

2016-2040 RTP/SCS Guiding Policy 5 HOV 
gap closures that significantly increase transit 
and rideshare usage will be supported and 
encouraged, subject to Policy 1. 

Not Applicable. This policy is directed towards 
transportation investment by SCAG to support 
high occupancy vehicles (HOV), transit and 
rideshare.  

2016-2040 RTP/SCS Guiding Policy 6 The 
RTP/SCS will support investments and 
strategies to reduce non-recurrent congestion 
and demand for single occupancy vehicle use, 
by leveraging advanced technologies. 

Not Applicable. This Guiding Policy relates to 
SCAG goals in supporting investments and 
strategies to reduce congestion and the use of 
single occupancy vehicles.  

2016-2040 RTP/SCS Guiding Policy 7 The 
RTP/SCS will encourage transportation 
investments that result in cleaner air, a better 
environment, a more efficient transportation 
system and sustainable outcomes in the long 
run. 

Not Applicable. This policy is directed towards 
SCAG transportation projects to encourage and 
support transportation investments. 

2016-2040 RTP/SCS Guiding Policy 8 
Monitoring progress on all aspects of the Plan, 
including the timely implementation of projects, 
programs, and strategies, will be an important 
and integral component of the Plan. 

Not Applicable. This policy is directed towards 
SCAG and governmental agencies to encourage 
and support transportation investments, and 
does not apply to the Project. 

2016-2040 RTP/SCS Land Use Policy 1 
Identify regional strategic areas for infill and 
investment. 

Not Applicable. This policy is directed towards 
SCAG to identify regional strategic areas.  
 
 



 Project Consistency with SCAG’s 2016-2040 RTP/SCS 

 
Maubert Project  City of Los Angeles 
Sustainable Communities Project Exemption  November 2019 

Page A2-4 

Table A2-1 
Consistency with SCAG’s 2016-2040 RTP/SCS 

Goals and Policies Consistency Assessment 
2016-2040 RTP/SCS Land Use Policy 2 
Structure the plan on a three-tiered system of 
centers development.1 

Not Applicable. This Land Use Policy is 
directed towards SCAG and not does apply to 
the Project.  

2016-2040 RTP/SCS Land Use Policy 3 
Develop “Complete Communities.” 

Consistent. SCAG describes the development 
of “complete communities” to provide areas that 
encourage households to be developed with a 
range of mobility options to complete short trips. 
The 2016-2040 RTP/SCS supports the creation 
of these districts through a concentration of 
activities with housing, employment, and a mix 
of retail and services, located in proximity to 
each other, where most daily needs can be met 
within a short distance of home, providing 
residents with the opportunity to patronize their 
local area and run daily errands by walking or 
cycling rather than traveling by automobile. 
 
As stated above, the Project would place 
residential uses in a transit-rich area. The 
Project Site’s location near mass transit and in 
proximity to services, retail stores, and 
employment opportunities promotes the use of a 
variety of transportation options, which includes 
walking, biking, and the use of public 
transportation. Thus, the Project would be 
consistent with this land use policy to reduce 
vehicles-per-miles traveled.  

2016-2040 RTP/SCS Land Use Policy 4 
Develop nodes on a corridor. 

Not Applicable. The 2016-2040 RTP/SCS 
describes nodes as mixed-use development 
centers at key locations that meet most of 
residents’ daily needs and that support livable 
corridors. This policy is directed towards SCAG 
and City goals to identify and develop locations 
that promote nodes.  

2016-2040 RTP/SCS Land Use Policy 5 Plan 
for additional housing and jobs near transit. 

Consistent. The Project Site is located in a 
highly urbanized area in the City. The Project 
would develop 153 residential dwelling units 
(including 11 percent restricted affordable units 
for Extremely Low Income Households) within 
an HQTA, as defined by SCAG, and a transit 
priority area as defined by SB 743. The Project 
Site is in proximity to existing bus lines, 
including DASH Hollywood, DASH Los Feliz, 
DASH Observatory, and Metro lines 2, 175, 180, 

                                                   

 



 Project Consistency with SCAG’s 2016-2040 RTP/SCS 

 
Maubert Project  City of Los Angeles 
Sustainable Communities Project Exemption  November 2019 

Page A2-5 

Table A2-1 
Consistency with SCAG’s 2016-2040 RTP/SCS 

Goals and Policies Consistency Assessment 
181, 204, 206, 217, 302, 754, and 780. Also, the 
Project Site is located approximately 400 feet 
north of the Vermont/Sunset Metro Red Line 
Station.  

2016-2040 RTP/SCS Land Use Policy 6 Plan 
for changing demand in types of housing. 

Consistent. Of the 153 residential dwelling units 
that would be developed, 11 percent (17 units) 
would be restricted affordable units for 
Extremely Low Income Households. 

2016-2040 RTP/SCS Land Use Policy 7 
Continue to protect stable, existing single-
family areas. 

Consistent. The Project Site is currently 
developed with three buildings containing 14 
multi-family residential units. The Project Site is 
not located on or near, and would not displace, 
any existing single-family residential 
neighborhoods. The Project would provide 
additional housing (including units restricted for 
Extremely Low Income Households) on an infill 
lot within the City.  

2016-2040 RTP/SCS Land Use Policy 8 
Ensure adequate access to open space and 
preservation of habitat. 

Consistent. The Project Site is located within 
an urbanized area of the City. Development of 
the Project would not remove any existing open 
space areas or habitat, since the Project Site is 
fully developed. The Project would provide open 
space in accordance with Code requirements. 

2016-2040 RTP/SCS Land Use Policy 9 
Incorporate local input and feedback on future 
growth. 

Not Applicable/Consistent. This Land Use 
Policy is directed towards SCAG and does not 
necessarily apply to the Project.  

2016-2040 RTP/SCS Benefit 1: The RTP/SCS 
will promote the development of better places 
to live and work through measures that 
encourage more compact development in 
certain areas of the region, varied housing 
options, bicycle and pedestrian improvements, 
and efficient transportation infrastructure. 

Consistent. The Project Site is located in a 
highly urbanized area in the City. The Project 
would develop 153 residential dwelling units 
(including 11 percent restricted affordable units 
for Extremely Low Income Households) within 
an HQTA, as defined by SCAG, and a transit 
priority area as defined by SB 743. The Project 
Site is served by numerous existing bus lines, 
including DASH Hollywood, DASH Los Feliz, 
DASH Observatory, and Metro lines 2, 175, 180, 
181, 204, 206, 217, 302, 754, and 780. Also, the 
Project Site is located approximately 400 feet 
north of the Vermont/Sunset Metro Red Line 
Station. Additionally, the Project includes 77 
bike parking stalls.  

2016 RTP/SCS Benefit 2: The RTP/SCS will 
encourage strategic transportation investments 
that add appropriate capacity and improve 
critical road conditions in the region, increase 
transit capacity and expand mobility options. 
Meanwhile, the Plan outlines strategies for 
developing land in coming decades that will 

Not Applicable. Benefit 2 is directed towards 
SCAG and not does apply to the Project.  



 Project Consistency with SCAG’s 2016-2040 RTP/SCS 

 
Maubert Project  City of Los Angeles 
Sustainable Communities Project Exemption  November 2019 

Page A2-6 

Table A2-1 
Consistency with SCAG’s 2016-2040 RTP/SCS 

Goals and Policies Consistency Assessment 
place destinations closer together, thereby 
decreasing the time and cost of traveling 
between them. 
2016 RTP/SCS Benefit 3: The RTP/SCS is 
expected to result in less energy and water 
consumption across the region, as well as 
lower transportation costs for households. 

Consistent. As discussed in the Energy and 
Water Efficiency Compliance Report (included 
as Appendix H), the Project would be designed 
to be 15 more energy efficient than the Title 24 
standards and would be designed to achieve 
approximately 79 percent less water usage than 
the average household in the region. (Refer to 
the Energy and Water Efficiency Compliance 
Report contained in Appendix H for a complete 
list of energy and water efficiency measures that 
would be incorporated into the Project.) 
Additionally, the Project includes 77 bike parking 
stalls. The Project’s incorporation of bicycle-and 
pedestrian-friendly elements and location near 
various bus lines and the Vermont/Sunset Metro 
Red Line Station would provide future residents 
with various affordable transportation options.  

2016 RTP/SCS Benefit 4: Improved 
placemaking and strategic transportation 
investments will help improve air quality; 
improve health as people have more 
opportunities to bicycle, walk and pursue other 
active alternatives to driving; and better protect 
natural lands as new growth is concentrated in 
existing urban and suburban areas. 

Consistent. The Project’s location and design 
features would encourage active transportation 
within the Project Site and surrounding area, 
which would help to protect the health of 
residents. The Project would provide 
landscaping along the public rights-of-way and 
ground-floor uses, which promotes and supports 
pedestrian activity in the area. The Project 
would also provide 77 bike parking stalls, which 
would support bicycling as a means of 
transportation. In addition, the Project Site is 
located in close proximity to a variety of public 
transit options, including multiple bus lines and 
the Sunset/Vermont Metro Red Line Station. 
Finally, the Project would provide outdoor open 
space in accordance with Code requirements. 

Source: Southern California Association of Governments, 2016-2040 RTP/SCS, April 2016. 

 



 

Appendix A-3 

Mitigation Measures from Prior EIRs   



 
Maubert Project  City of Los Angeles 
Sustainable Communities Project Exemption  November 2019 

Page A3-1 

APPENDIX A-3 

MITIGATION MEASURES FROM PRIOR EIRS 

Incorporation of Applicable Mitigation Measures from Prior EIRs 

Public Resources Code (PRC) Section 21151.2 requires that a Transit Priority Project (TPP) 
also incorporate all feasible mitigation measures, performance standards, or criteria from prior 
applicable EIRs. Prior applicable EIRs include SCAG’s 2016-2040 RTP/SCS Program EIR and 
the Hollywood Community Plan Revision Final EIR (1998). 

The Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program for the 2016-2040 RTP/SCS Program EIR 
(SCAG MMRP) does not include project-level mitigation measures that are required of the 
Project. The SCAG MMRP does provide a list of mitigation measures that SCAG determined a 
lead agency can and should consider, as applicable and feasible, where the lead agency has 
identified that a project has the potential for significant effects.  

To comply with PRC Section 21151.2, the City has reviewed all mitigation measures contained 
in the SCAG MMRP (shown on Table A3-1) and the Hollywood Community Plan Revision Final 
EIR (shown on Table A3-2) and determined their applicability to the Project. For each such 
mitigation measure, the City considered whether to use the mitigation measure from the prior 
EIR or an equally effective City mitigation measure or federal, state, regional, or City regulation. 
The City’s applicability determination is found on Table A3-1 and Table A3-2.   



 
M

iti
ga

tio
n 

M
ea

su
re

s 
fro

m
 P

rio
r E

IR
s 

 M
au

be
rt 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

 
 

C
ity

 o
f L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 

Su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

C
om

m
un

iti
es

 P
ro

je
ct

 E
xe

m
pt

io
n 

 
 

N
ov

em
be

r 2
01

9 
Pa

ge
 A

3-
2 

Ta
bl

e 
A3

-1
 

M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
s 

fro
m

 P
rio

r E
IR

 (S
CA

G
’s

 2
01

6-
20

40
 R

TP
/S

CS
) 

 
Im

pa
ct

 
SC

AG
 2

01
6-

20
40

 R
TP

/S
CS

 M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
s 

(im
pl

em
en

te
d 

by
 le

ad
 a

ge
nc

y)
 

 
Ap

pl
ic

ab
ili

ty
 to

 th
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

Ae
st

he
tic

s 
(A

ES
) 

S
ce

ni
c 

V
is

ta
 

M
M

-A
ES

-1
: 

C
on

si
st

en
t 

w
ith

 
th

e 
pr

ov
is

io
ns

 
of

 
Se

ct
io

n 
15

09
1 

of
 

th
e 

St
at

e 
C

EQ
A 

G
ui

de
lin

es
, 

SC
AG

 h
as

 id
en

tif
ie

d 
m

iti
ga

tio
n 

m
ea

su
re

s 
ca

pa
bl

e 
of

 a
vo

id
in

g 
or

 r
ed

uc
in

g 
th

e 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 e
ffe

ct
s 

of
 

vi
su

al
 

in
tru

si
on

s 
on

 
sc

en
ic

 
vi

st
as

, 
or

 
N

at
io

na
l 

Sc
en

ic
 B

yw
ay

s 
th

at
 a

re
 i

n 
th

e 
ju

ris
di

ct
io

n 
an

d 
re

sp
on

si
bi

lit
y 

of
 C

al
tra

ns
, 

ot
he

r 
pu

bl
ic

 a
ge

nc
ie

s,
 

an
d/

or
 L

ea
d 

Ag
en

ci
es

. 
W

he
re

 t
he

 L
ea

d 
Ag

en
cy

 
ha

s 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

th
at

 a
 p

ro
je

ct
 h

as
 t

he
 p

ot
en

tia
l 

fo
r 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 

ef
fe

ct
s,

 
th

e 
Le

ad
 

Ag
en

cy
 

ca
n 

an
d 

sh
ou

ld
 

co
ns

id
er

 
m

iti
ga

tio
n 

m
ea

su
re

s 
to

 
en

su
re

 
co

m
pl

ia
nc

e 
w

ith
 r

eg
ul

at
io

ns
 f

or
 C

al
tra

ns
 s

ce
ni

c 
vi

st
as

 a
nd

 g
oa

ls
 a

nd
 p

ol
ic

ie
s 

w
ith

in
 c

ou
nt

y 
an

d 
ci

ty
 

ge
ne

ra
l 

pl
an

s,
 a

s 
ap

pl
ic

ab
le

 a
nd

 f
ea

si
bl

e.
 S

uc
h 

m
ea

su
re

s 
m

ay
 

in
cl

ud
e 

th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g,
 

or
 

ot
he

r 
co

m
pa

ra
bl

e 
m

ea
su

re
s 

id
en

tif
ie

d 
by

 
th

e 
Le

ad
 

Ag
en

cy
: 

  
U

se
 

a 
pa

le
tte

 
of

 
co

lo
rs

, 
te

xt
ur

es
, 

bu
ild

in
g 

m
at

er
ia

ls
 th

at
 a

re
 g

ra
ffi

ti-
re

si
st

an
t, 

an
d/

or
 p

la
nt

 
m

at
er

ia
ls

 
th

at
 

co
m

pl
em

en
t 

th
e 

su
rro

un
di

ng
 

la
nd

sc
ap

e 
an

d 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t. 
 

U
se

 
co

nt
ou

r 
gr

ad
in

g 
to

 
be

tte
r 

m
at

ch
 

su
rro

un
di

ng
 t

er
ra

in
. 

C
on

to
ur

 e
dg

es
 o

f 
m

aj
or

 
cu

t-a
nd

-fi
ll 

to
 p

ro
vi

de
 a

 m
or

e 
na

tu
ra

l 
lo

ok
in

g 
fin

is
he

d 
pr

of
ile

. 
 

U
se

 a
lte

rn
at

in
g 

fa
ca

de
s 

to
 “

br
ea

k 
up

” 
la

rg
e 

fa
ca

de
s 

an
d 

pr
ov

id
e 

vi
su

al
 in

te
re

st
. 

 
D

es
ig

n 
ne

w
 c

or
rid

or
 l

an
ds

ca
pi

ng
 t

o 
re

sp
ec

t 
ex

is
tin

g 
na

tu
ra

l a
nd

 m
an

-m
ad

e 
fe

at
ur

es
 a

nd
 to

 
co

m
pl

em
en

t 
th

e 
do

m
in

an
t 

la
nd

sc
ap

in
g 

of
 t

he
 

su
rro

un
di

ng
 a

re
as

. 
 

R
ep

la
ce

 
an

d 
re

ne
w

 
la

nd
sc

ap
in

g 
al

on
g 

co
rri

do
rs

 
w

ith
 

ro
ad

 
w

id
en

in
gs

, 
in

te
rc

ha
ng

e 
pr

oj
ec

ts
, a

nd
 re

la
te

d 
im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
. 

N
o 

m
iti

ga
tio

n 
ap

pl
ie

s.
 P

R
C

 S
ec

tio
n 

21
09

9,
 e

na
ct

ed
 b

y 
Se

na
te

 B
ill 

74
3,

 p
ro

vi
de

s 
th

at
 “

ae
st

he
tic

 a
nd

 p
ar

ki
ng

 
im

pa
ct

s 
of

 
a 

re
si

de
nt

ia
l, 

m
ix

ed
-u

se
 

re
si

de
nt

ia
l, 

or
 

em
pl

oy
m

en
t c

en
te

r p
ro

je
ct

 o
n 

an
 in

fil
l s

ite
 w

ith
in

 a
 tr

an
si

t 
pr

io
rit

y 
ar

ea
 s

ha
ll 

no
t 

be
 c

on
si

de
re

d 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 im
pa

ct
s 

on
 th

e 
en

vi
ro

nm
en

t.”
  

 C
on

si
st

en
t 

w
ith

 S
B 

74
3,

 C
ity

 o
f 

Lo
s 

An
ge

le
s 

Zo
ni

ng
 

In
fo

rm
at

io
n 

Fi
le

 
ZI

 
N

o.
 

24
52

 
in

di
ca

te
s 

th
at

 
vi

su
al

 
re

so
ur

ce
s,

 a
es

th
et

ic
 c

ha
ra

ct
er

, 
sh

ad
e 

an
d 

sh
ad

ow
, 

lig
ht

 
an

d 
gl

ar
e,

 a
nd

 s
ce

ni
c 

vi
st

as
 o

r a
ny

 o
th

er
 a

es
th

et
ic

 im
pa

ct
 

sh
al

l 
no

t 
be

 c
on

si
de

re
d 

a 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 i
m

pa
ct

 f
or

 i
nf

ill 
pr

oj
ec

ts
 w

ith
in

 T
ra

ns
it 

Pr
io

rit
y 

Ar
ea

s 
(T

PA
s)

 p
ur

su
an

t 
to

 
C

EQ
A.

 
 Th

e 
Pr

oj
ec

t 
is

 a
 r

es
id

en
tia

l 
pr

oj
ec

t 
co

ns
is

tin
g 

of
 t

he
 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

of
 1

53
 r

es
id

en
tia

l 
un

its
 w

ith
in

 a
 T

PA
. 

As
 

su
ch

, 
th

e 
Pr

oj
ec

t’s
 

ae
st

he
tic

 
im

pa
ct

s 
sh

al
l 

no
t 

be
 

co
ns

id
er

ed
 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 

im
pa

ct
s 

on
 

th
e 

en
vi

ro
nm

en
t 

pu
rs

ua
nt

 to
 P

R
C

 S
ec

tio
n 

21
09

9.
 



 
M

iti
ga

tio
n 

M
ea

su
re

s 
fro

m
 P

rio
r E

IR
s 

 M
au

be
rt 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

 
 

C
ity

 o
f L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 

Su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

C
om

m
un

iti
es

 P
ro

je
ct

 E
xe

m
pt

io
n 

 
 

N
ov

em
be

r 2
01

9 
Pa

ge
 A

3-
3 

Ta
bl

e 
A3

-1
 

M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
s 

fro
m

 P
rio

r E
IR

 (S
CA

G
’s

 2
01

6-
20

40
 R

TP
/S

CS
) 

 
Im

pa
ct

 
SC

AG
 2

01
6-

20
40

 R
TP

/S
CS

 M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
s 

(im
pl

em
en

te
d 

by
 le

ad
 a

ge
nc

y)
 

 
Ap

pl
ic

ab
ili

ty
 to

 th
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

 
R

et
ai

n 
or

 re
pl

ac
e 

tre
es

 b
or

de
rin

g 
hi

gh
w

ay
s,

 s
o 

th
at

 c
le

ar
-c

ut
tin

g 
is

 n
ot

 e
vi

de
nt

. 
 

Pr
ov

id
e 

ne
w

 c
or

rid
or

 la
nd

sc
ap

in
g 

th
at

 re
sp

ec
ts

 
an

d 
pr

ov
id

es
 a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
 t

ra
ns

iti
on

 t
o 

ex
is

tin
g 

na
tu

ra
l 

an
d 

m
an

-m
ad

e 
fe

at
ur

es
 

an
d 

is
 

co
m

pl
em

en
ta

ry
 to

 th
e 

do
m

in
an

t l
an

ds
ca

pi
ng

 o
r 

na
tiv

e 
ha

bi
ta

ts
 o

f s
ur

ro
un

di
ng

 a
re

as
. 

 
Im

pl
em

en
t 

de
si

gn
 

gu
id

el
in

es
, 

lo
ca

l 
po

lic
ie

s,
 

an
d 

pr
og

ra
m

s 
ai

m
ed

 a
t 

pr
ot

ec
tin

g 
vi

ew
s 

of
 

sc
en

ic
 c

or
rid

or
s 

an
d 

av
oi

di
ng

 v
is

ua
l i

nt
ru

si
on

s 
in

 d
es

ig
n 

of
 p

ro
je

ct
s 

to
 m

in
im

iz
e 

co
nt

ra
st

s 
in

 
sc

al
e 

an
d 

m
as

si
ng

 b
et

w
ee

n 
th

e 
pr

oj
ec

t 
an

d 
su

rro
un

di
ng

 n
at

ur
al

 f
or

m
s 

an
d 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
ts

. 
Av

oi
d,

 if
 p

os
si

bl
e,

 la
rg

e 
cu

ts
 a

nd
 fi

lls
 w

he
n 

th
e 

vi
su

al
 e

nv
iro

nm
en

t (
na

tu
ra

l o
r u

rb
an

) w
ou

ld
 b

e 
su

bs
ta

nt
ia

lly
 

di
sr

up
te

d.
 

Si
te

 
or

 
de

si
gn

 
of

 
pr

oj
ec

ts
 s

ho
ul

d 
m

in
im

iz
e 

th
ei

r 
in

tru
si

on
 i

nt
o 

im
po

rta
nt

 v
ie

w
sh

ed
s 

an
d 

us
e 

co
nt

ou
r 

gr
ad

in
g 

to
 b

et
te

r m
at

ch
 s

ur
ro

un
di

ng
 te

rra
in

. 
V

is
ua

l C
ha

ra
ct

er
/Q

ua
lit

y 
M

M
-A

ES
-3

: 
C

on
si

st
en

t 
w

ith
 

th
e 

pr
ov

is
io

ns
 

of
 

Se
ct

io
n 

15
09

1 
of

 
th

e 
St

at
e 

C
EQ

A 
G

ui
de

lin
es

, 
SC

AG
 h

as
 id

en
tif

ie
d 

m
iti

ga
tio

n 
m

ea
su

re
s 

ca
pa

bl
e 

of
 a

vo
id

in
g 

or
 r

ed
uc

in
g 

th
e 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 e

ffe
ct

s 
of

 
de

gr
ad

in
g 

th
e 

ex
is

tin
g 

pu
bl

ic
 v

ie
w

po
in

ts
, 

vi
su

al
 

ch
ar

ac
te

r, 
or

 q
ua

lit
y 

of
 t

he
 s

ite
 t

ha
t 

ar
e 

in
 t

he
 

ju
ris

di
ct

io
n 

an
d 

re
sp

on
si

bi
lit

y 
of

 l
oc

al
 j

ur
is

di
ct

io
ns

 
an

d/
or

 L
ea

d 
Ag

en
ci

es
. 

W
he

re
 t

he
 L

ea
d 

Ag
en

cy
 

ha
s 

id
en

tif
ie

d 
th

at
 a

 p
ro

je
ct

 h
as

 t
he

 p
ot

en
tia

l 
fo

r 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 
ef

fe
ct

s,
 

th
e 

Le
ad

 
Ag

en
cy

 
ca

n 
an

d 
sh

ou
ld

 
co

ns
id

er
 

m
iti

ga
tio

n 
m

ea
su

re
s 

to
 

en
su

re
 

co
m

pl
ia

nc
e 

w
ith

 
th

e 
go

al
s 

an
d 

po
lic

ie
s 

w
ith

in
 

co
un

ty
 a

nd
 c

ity
 g

en
er

al
 p

la
ns

, 
as

 a
pp

lic
ab

le
 a

nd
 

fe
as

ib
le

. S
uc

h 
m

ea
su

re
s 

m
ay

 in
cl

ud
e 

th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g,
 

or
 o

th
er

 c
om

pa
ra

bl
e 

m
ea

su
re

s 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

by
 t

he
 

Le
ad

 A
ge

nc
y:

 
 

M
in

im
iz

e 
co

nt
ra

st
s 

in
 

sc
al

e 
an

d 
m

as
si

ng
 

N
o 

m
iti

ga
tio

n 
ap

pl
ie

s.
 P

R
C

 S
ec

tio
n 

21
09

9,
 e

na
ct

ed
 b

y 
Se

na
te

 B
ill 

74
3,

 p
ro

vi
de

s 
th

at
 “

ae
st

he
tic

 a
nd

 p
ar

ki
ng

 
im

pa
ct

s 
of

 
a 

re
si

de
nt

ia
l, 

m
ix

ed
-u

se
 

re
si

de
nt

ia
l, 

or
 

em
pl

oy
m

en
t c

en
te

r p
ro

je
ct

 o
n 

an
 in

fil
l s

ite
 w

ith
in

 a
 tr

an
si

t 
pr

io
rit

y 
ar

ea
 s

ha
ll 

no
t 

be
 c

on
si

de
re

d 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 im
pa

ct
s 

on
 th

e 
en

vi
ro

nm
en

t.”
  



 
M

iti
ga

tio
n 

M
ea

su
re

s 
fro

m
 P

rio
r E

IR
s 

 M
au

be
rt 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

 
 

C
ity

 o
f L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 

Su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

C
om

m
un

iti
es

 P
ro

je
ct

 E
xe

m
pt

io
n 

 
 

N
ov

em
be

r 2
01

9 
Pa

ge
 A

3-
4 

Ta
bl

e 
A3

-1
 

M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
s 

fro
m

 P
rio

r E
IR

 (S
CA

G
’s

 2
01

6-
20

40
 R

TP
/S

CS
) 

 
Im

pa
ct

 
SC

AG
 2

01
6-

20
40

 R
TP

/S
CS

 M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
s 

(im
pl

em
en

te
d 

by
 le

ad
 a

ge
nc

y)
 

 
Ap

pl
ic

ab
ili

ty
 to

 th
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

be
tw

ee
n 

th
e 

pr
oj

ec
ts

 a
nd

 s
ur

ro
un

di
ng

 n
at

ur
al

 
fo

rm
s 

an
d 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t, 

m
in

im
iz

e 
th

ei
r 

in
tru

si
on

 i
nt

o 
im

po
rta

nt
 v

ie
w

sh
ed

s,
 a

nd
 u

se
 

co
nt

ou
r 

gr
ad

in
g 

to
 b

et
te

r 
m

at
ch

 s
ur

ro
un

di
ng

 
te

rra
in

 
in

 
ac

co
rd

an
ce

 
w

ith
 

co
un

ty
 

an
d 

ci
ty

 
hi

lls
id

e 
or

di
na

nc
es

, w
he

re
 a

pp
lic

ab
le

. 
 

D
es

ig
n 

la
nd

sc
ap

in
g 

al
on

g 
hi

gh
w

ay
 c

or
rid

or
s 

to
 

ad
d 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 

na
tu

ra
l 

el
em

en
ts

 
an

d 
vi

su
al

 
in

te
re

st
 

to
 

so
fte

n 
th

e 
ha

rd
-e

dg
ed

, 
lin

ea
r 

tra
ns

po
rta

tio
n 

co
rri

do
rs

. 
 

R
eq

ui
re

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
of

 d
es

ig
n 

gu
id

el
in

es
 f

or
 

pr
oj

ec
ts

 
th

at
 

m
ak

e 
el

em
en

ts
 

of
 

pr
op

os
ed

 
bu

ild
in

gs
/fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

vi
su

al
ly

 
co

m
pa

tib
le

, 
or

 
m

in
im

iz
e 

vi
si

bi
lit

y 
of

 c
ha

ng
es

 i
n 

vi
su

al
 q

ua
lit

y 
or

 c
ha

ra
ct

er
 t

hr
ou

gh
 u

se
 o

f 
ha

rd
sc

ap
e 

an
d 

so
fts

ca
pe

 s
ol

ut
io

ns
. 

Sp
ec

ifi
c 

m
ea

su
re

s 
to

 b
e 

ad
dr

es
se

d 
in

cl
ud

e 
se

tb
ac

k 
bu

ffe
rs

, 
la

nd
sc

ap
in

g,
 

co
lo

r, 
te

xt
ur

e,
 

si
gn

ag
e,

 
an

d 
lig

ht
in

g 
cr

ite
ria

. 
 

D
es

ig
n 

pr
oj

ec
ts

 
co

ns
is

te
nt

 
w

ith
 

de
si

gn
 

gu
id

el
in

es
 o

f a
pp

lic
ab

le
 g

en
er

al
 p

la
ns

. 
 

Ap
pl

y 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t 
st

an
da

rd
s 

an
d 

gu
id

el
in

es
 

to
 

m
ai

nt
ai

n 
co

m
pa

tib
ilit

y 
w

ith
 

su
rro

un
di

ng
 

na
tu

ra
l a

re
as

, i
nc

lu
di

ng
 s

ite
 c

ov
er

ag
e,

 b
ui

ld
in

g 
he

ig
ht

 
an

d 
m

as
si

ng
, 

bu
ild

in
g 

m
at

er
ia

ls
 

an
d 

co
lo

r, 
la

nd
sc

ap
in

g,
 s

ite
 g

ra
di

ng
, a

nd
 s

o 
fo

rth
 in

 
ac

co
rd

an
ce

 w
ith

 g
en

er
al

 p
la

ns
 a

nd
 a

do
pt

ed
 

de
si

gn
 g

ui
de

lin
es

, w
he

re
 a

pp
lic

ab
le

. 
 

R
eq

ui
re

 th
at

 s
ite

s 
ar

e 
ke

pt
 in

 a
 b

lig
ht

/n
ui

sa
nc

e-
fre

e 
co

nd
iti

on
. R

em
ov

e 
bl

ig
ht

 o
r n

ui
sa

nc
es

 th
at

 
co

m
pr

om
is

e 
vi

su
al

 c
ha

ra
ct

er
 o

r 
vi

su
al

 q
ua

lit
y 

of
 p

ro
je

ct
 a

re
as

 i
nc

lu
di

ng
 g

ra
ffi

ti 
ab

at
em

en
t, 

tra
sh

 
re

m
ov

al
, 

la
nd

sc
ap

e 
m

an
ag

em
en

t, 
m

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 o

f s
ig

na
ge

 a
nd

 b
ill

bo
ar

ds
 in

 g
oo

d 
co

nd
iti

on
, 

an
d 

re
pl

ac
e 

co
m

pr
om

is
ed

 
na

tiv
e 

ve
ge

ta
tio

n 
an

d 
la

nd
sc

ap
e.

 



 
M

iti
ga

tio
n 

M
ea

su
re

s 
fro

m
 P

rio
r E

IR
s 

 M
au

be
rt 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

 
 

C
ity

 o
f L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 

Su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

C
om

m
un

iti
es

 P
ro

je
ct

 E
xe

m
pt

io
n 

 
 

N
ov

em
be

r 2
01

9 
Pa

ge
 A

3-
5 

Ta
bl

e 
A3

-1
 

M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
s 

fro
m

 P
rio

r E
IR

 (S
CA

G
’s

 2
01

6-
20

40
 R

TP
/S

CS
) 

 
Im

pa
ct

 
SC

AG
 2

01
6-

20
40

 R
TP

/S
CS

 M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
s 

(im
pl

em
en

te
d 

by
 le

ad
 a

ge
nc

y)
 

 
Ap

pl
ic

ab
ili

ty
 to

 th
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

Li
gh

t/G
la

re
/S

ha
de

 
M

M
-A

ES
-4

: 
C

on
si

st
en

t 
w

ith
 

th
e 

pr
ov

is
io

ns
 

of
 

Se
ct

io
n 

15
09

1 
of

 
th

e 
St

at
e 

C
EQ

A 
G

ui
de

lin
es

, 
SC

AG
 h

as
 id

en
tif

ie
d 

m
iti

ga
tio

n 
m

ea
su

re
s 

ca
pa

bl
e 

of
 a

vo
id

in
g 

or
 m

in
im

iz
in

g 
th

e 
ef

fe
ct

s 
of

 l
ig

ht
 a

nd
 

gl
ar

e 
on

 r
ou

te
s 

of
 tr

av
el

 fo
r m

ot
or

is
ts

, c
yc

lis
ts

, a
nd

 
pe

de
st

ria
ns

, 
or

 o
n 

ad
ja

ce
nt

 p
ro

pe
rti

es
, 

an
d 

lim
it 

ex
pa

nd
ed

 a
re

as
 o

f 
sh

ad
e 

an
d 

sh
ad

ow
 t

o 
ar

ea
s 

th
at

 w
ou

ld
 n

ot
 a

dv
er

se
ly

 a
ffe

ct
 o

pe
n 

sp
ac

e 
or

 
ou

td
oo

r 
re

cr
ea

tio
n 

ar
ea

s 
th

at
 a

re
 in

 th
e 

ju
ris

di
ct

io
n 

an
d 

re
sp

on
si

bi
lit

y 
of

 lo
ca

l j
ur

is
di

ct
io

ns
 a

nd
/o

r 
Le

ad
 

Ag
en

ci
es

. 
W

he
re

 t
he

 L
ea

d 
Ag

en
cy

 h
as

 i
de

nt
ifi

ed
 

th
at

 
a 

pr
oj

ec
t 

ha
s 

th
e 

po
te

nt
ia

l 
fo

r 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 
ef

fe
ct

s,
 th

e 
Le

ad
 A

ge
nc

y 
ca

n 
an

d 
sh

ou
ld

 c
on

si
de

r 
m

iti
ga

tio
n 

m
ea

su
re

s 
to

 e
ns

ur
e 

co
m

pl
ia

nc
e 

w
ith

 th
e 

go
al

s 
an

d 
po

lic
ie

s 
w

ith
in

 c
ou

nt
y 

an
d 

ci
ty

 g
en

er
al

 
pl

an
s,

 a
s 

ap
pl

ic
ab

le
 a

nd
 f

ea
si

bl
e.

 S
uc

h 
m

ea
su

re
s 

m
ay

 i
nc

lu
de

 t
he

 f
ol

lo
w

in
g,

 o
r 

ot
he

r 
co

m
pa

ra
bl

e 
m

ea
su

re
s 

id
en

tif
ie

d 
by

 th
e 

Le
ad

 A
ge

nc
y:

 
  

U
se

 
lig

ht
in

g 
fix

tu
re

s 
th

at
 

ar
e 

ad
eq

ua
te

ly
 

sh
ie

ld
ed

 t
o 

a 
po

in
t 

be
lo

w
 t

he
 l

ig
ht

 b
ul

b 
an

d 
re

fle
ct

or
 a

nd
 t

ha
t 

pr
ev

en
t 

un
ne

ce
ss

ar
y 

gl
ar

e 
on

to
 a

dj
ac

en
t p

ro
pe

rti
es

. 
 

R
es

tri
ct

 t
he

 o
pe

ra
tio

n 
of

 o
ut

do
or

 l
ig

ht
in

g 
fo

r 
co

ns
tru

ct
io

n 
an

d 
op

er
at

io
n 

ac
tiv

iti
es

 
in

 
ac

co
rd

an
ce

 w
ith

 lo
ca

l r
eg

ul
at

io
ns

. 
 

U
se

 
hi

gh
 

pr
es

su
re

 
so

di
um

 
an

d/
or

 
cu

t-o
ff 

fix
tu

re
s 

in
st

ea
d 

of
 

ty
pi

ca
l 

m
er

cu
ry

-v
ap

or
 

fix
tu

re
s 

fo
r o

ut
do

or
 li

gh
tin

g.
 

 
U

se
 

un
id

ire
ct

io
na

l 
lig

ht
in

g 
to

 
av

oi
d 

lig
ht

 
tre

sp
as

s 
on

to
 a

dj
ac

en
t p

ro
pe

rti
es

. 
 

D
es

ig
n 

ex
te

rio
r 

lig
ht

in
g 

to
 c

on
fin

e 
ill

um
in

at
io

n 
to

 th
e 

pr
oj

ec
t s

ite
, a

nd
/o

r t
o 

ar
ea

s 
w

hi
ch

 d
o 

no
t 

in
cl

ud
e 

lig
ht

-s
en

si
tiv

e 
us

es
. 

 
Pr

ov
id

e 
st

ru
ct

ur
al

 a
nd

/o
r 

ve
ge

ta
tiv

e 
sc

re
en

in
g 

fro
m

 li
gh

t-s
en

si
tiv

e 
us

es
. 

N
o 

m
iti

ga
tio

n 
ap

pl
ie

s.
 P

R
C

 S
ec

tio
n 

21
09

9,
 e

na
ct

ed
 b

y 
Se

na
te

 B
ill 

74
3,

 p
ro

vi
de

s 
th

at
 “

ae
st

he
tic

 a
nd

 p
ar

ki
ng

 
im

pa
ct

s 
of

 
a 

re
si

de
nt

ia
l, 

m
ix

ed
-u

se
 

re
si

de
nt

ia
l, 

or
 

em
pl

oy
m

en
t c

en
te

r p
ro

je
ct

 o
n 

an
 in

fil
l s

ite
 w

ith
in

 a
 tr

an
si

t 
pr

io
rit

y 
ar

ea
 s

ha
ll 

no
t 

be
 c

on
si

de
re

d 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 im
pa

ct
s 

on
 th

e 
en

vi
ro

nm
en

t.”
  



 
M

iti
ga

tio
n 

M
ea

su
re

s 
fro

m
 P

rio
r E

IR
s 

 M
au

be
rt 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

 
 

C
ity

 o
f L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 

Su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

C
om

m
un

iti
es

 P
ro

je
ct

 E
xe

m
pt

io
n 

 
 

N
ov

em
be

r 2
01

9 
Pa

ge
 A

3-
6 

Ta
bl

e 
A3

-1
 

M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
s 

fro
m

 P
rio

r E
IR

 (S
CA

G
’s

 2
01

6-
20

40
 R

TP
/S

CS
) 

 
Im

pa
ct

 
SC

AG
 2

01
6-

20
40

 R
TP

/S
CS

 M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
s 

(im
pl

em
en

te
d 

by
 le

ad
 a

ge
nc

y)
 

 
Ap

pl
ic

ab
ili

ty
 to

 th
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

 
Sh

ie
ld

 a
nd

 d
ire

ct
 a

ll 
ne

w
 s

tre
et

 a
nd

 p
ed

es
tri

an
 

lig
ht

in
g 

aw
ay

 fr
om

 li
gh

t-s
en

si
tiv

e 
of

f-s
ite

 u
se

s.
 

 
U

se
 n

on
-re

fle
ct

iv
e 

gl
as

s 
or

 g
la

ss
 tr

ea
te

d 
w

ith
 a

 
no

n-
re

fle
ct

iv
e 

co
at

in
g 

fo
r 

al
l 

ex
te

rio
r 

w
in

do
w

s 
an

d 
gl

as
s 

us
ed

 o
n 

bu
ild

in
g 

su
rfa

ce
s.

 
 

Ar
ch

ite
ct

ur
al

 li
gh

tin
g 

sh
al

l b
e 

di
re

ct
ed

 o
nt

o 
th

e 
bu

ild
in

g 
su

rfa
ce

s 
an

d 
ha

ve
 l

ow
 r

ef
le

ct
iv

ity
 t

o 
m

in
im

iz
e 

gl
ar

e 
an

d 
lim

it 
lig

ht
 o

nt
o 

ad
ja

ce
nt

 
pr

op
er

tie
s.

 
Ag

ric
ul

tu
re

 a
nd

 F
or

es
try

 (A
F)

 
C

on
ve

rs
io

n 
of

 
Fa

rm
la

nd
 

to
 

N
on

-A
g 

U
se

, 
C

on
ve

rs
io

n 
of

 
Fo

re
st

 L
an

d  

M
M

-A
F-

1:
 

C
on

si
st

en
t 

w
ith

 
th

e 
pr

ov
is

io
ns

 
of

 
Se

ct
io

n 
15

09
1 

of
 

th
e 

St
at

e 
C

EQ
A 

G
ui

de
lin

es
, 

SC
AG

 h
as

 id
en

tif
ie

d 
m

iti
ga

tio
n 

m
ea

su
re

s 
ca

pa
bl

e 
of

 a
vo

id
in

g 
or

 r
ed

uc
in

g 
th

e 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 e
ffe

ct
s 

fro
m

 
th

e 
co

nv
er

si
on

 
of

 
Pr

im
e 

Fa
rm

la
nd

, 
U

ni
qu

e 
Fa

rm
la

nd
, o

r F
ar

m
la

nd
 o

f S
ta

te
w

id
e 

Im
po

rta
nc

e 
to

 
no

n-
ag

ric
ul

tu
ra

l u
se

s 
th

at
 a

re
 w

ith
in

 th
e 

ju
ris

di
ct

io
n 

an
d 

re
sp

on
si

bi
lit

y 
of

 
th

e 
N

at
ur

al
 

R
es

ou
rc

es
 

C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
Se

rv
ic

e,
 

th
e 

C
al

ifo
rn

ia
 

R
es

ou
rc

es
 

Ag
en

cy
, 

ot
he

r 
pu

bl
ic

 
ag

en
ci

es
, 

an
d/

or
 

Le
ad

 
Ag

en
ci

es
. 

W
he

re
 t

he
 L

ea
d 

Ag
en

cy
 h

as
 i

de
nt

ifi
ed

 
th

at
 

a 
pr

oj
ec

t 
ha

s 
th

e 
po

te
nt

ia
l 

fo
r 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 

ef
fe

ct
s,

 th
e 

Le
ad

 A
ge

nc
y 

ca
n 

an
d 

sh
ou

ld
 c

on
si

de
r 

m
iti

ga
tio

n 
m

ea
su

re
s 

to
 e

ns
ur

e 
co

m
pl

ia
nc

e 
w

ith
 th

e 
Fa

rm
la

nd
 

Pr
ot

ec
tio

n 
Ac

t 
an

d 
im

pl
em

en
tin

g 
re

gu
la

tio
ns

, a
nd

 th
e 

go
al

s 
an

d 
po

lic
ie

s 
es

ta
bl

is
he

d 
w

ith
in

 
th

e 
ap

pl
ic

ab
le

 
ad

op
te

d 
co

un
ty

 
an

d 
ci

ty
 

ge
ne

ra
l 

pl
an

s 
to

 
pr

ot
ec

t 
ag

ric
ul

tu
ra

l 
re

so
ur

ce
s 

co
ns

is
te

nt
 

w
ith

 
th

e 
Fa

rm
la

nd
 

M
ap

pi
ng

 
an

d 
M

on
ito

rin
g 

Pr
og

ra
m

 o
f 

th
e 

C
al

ifo
rn

ia
 R

es
ou

rc
es

 
Ag

en
cy

. S
uc

h 
m

ea
su

re
s 

m
ay

 in
cl

ud
e 

th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g,
 

or
 o

th
er

 c
om

pa
ra

bl
e 

m
ea

su
re

s 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

by
 t

he
 

Le
ad

 A
ge

nc
y 

ta
ki

ng
 in

to
 a

cc
ou

nt
 p

ro
je

ct
 a

nd
 s

ite
-

sp
ec

ifi
c 

co
ns

id
er

at
io

ns
 a

s 
ap

pl
ic

ab
le

 a
nd

 fe
as

ib
le

: 
  

Fo
r p

ro
je

ct
s 

th
at

 re
qu

ire
 a

pp
ro

va
l o

r f
un

di
ng

 b
y 

N
o 

m
iti

ga
tio

n 
ap

pl
ie

s.
 N

o 
fa

rm
la

nd
 o

r 
ag

ric
ul

tu
ra

l a
ct

iv
ity

 
ex

is
ts

 o
n 

or
 i

n 
th

e 
vi

ci
ni

ty
 o

f 
th

e 
Pr

oj
ec

t 
Si

te
 a

nd
 n

o 
im

pa
ct

s 
re

la
te

d 
to

 th
i s

 is
su

e 
w

ou
ld

 o
cc

ur
. 



 
M

iti
ga

tio
n 

M
ea

su
re

s 
fro

m
 P

rio
r E

IR
s 

 M
au

be
rt 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

 
 

C
ity

 o
f L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 

Su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

C
om

m
un

iti
es

 P
ro

je
ct

 E
xe

m
pt

io
n 

 
 

N
ov

em
be

r 2
01

9 
Pa

ge
 A

3-
7 

Ta
bl

e 
A3

-1
 

M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
s 

fro
m

 P
rio

r E
IR

 (S
CA

G
’s

 2
01

6-
20

40
 R

TP
/S

CS
) 

 
Im

pa
ct

 
SC

AG
 2

01
6-

20
40

 R
TP

/S
CS

 M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
s 

(im
pl

em
en

te
d 

by
 le

ad
 a

ge
nc

y)
 

 
Ap

pl
ic

ab
ili

ty
 to

 th
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

th
e 

U
SD

O
T,

 
co

m
pl

y 
w

ith
 S

ec
tio

n 
4(

f) 
U

.S
. 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

of
 

Tr
an

sp
or

ta
tio

n 
Ac

t 
of

 
19

66
 

(U
SD

O
T 

Ac
t).

 
 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

re
lo

ca
tio

n 
or

 c
or

rid
or

 r
ea

lig
nm

en
t 

to
 

av
oi

d 
Pr

im
e 

Fa
rm

la
nd

, 
U

ni
qu

e 
Fa

rm
la

nd
, 

or
 

Fa
rm

la
nd

 o
f L

oc
al

 o
r S

ta
te

w
id

e 
Im

po
rta

nc
e.

 
 

M
ai

nt
ai

n 
an

d 
ex

pa
nd

 
ag

ric
ul

tu
ra

l 
la

nd
 

pr
ot

ec
tio

ns
 s

uc
h 

as
 u

rb
an

 g
ro

w
th

 b
ou

nd
ar

ie
s.

 
 Su

pp
or

t 
th

e 
ac

qu
is

iti
on

 o
r 

vo
lu

nt
ar

y 
de

di
ca

tio
n 

of
 

ag
ric

ul
tu

re
 

co
ns

er
va

tio
n 

ea
se

m
en

ts
 

an
d 

ot
he

r 
pr

og
ra

m
s 

th
at

 p
re

se
rv

e 
ag

ric
ul

tu
ra

l l
an

ds
, i

nc
lu

di
ng

 
th

e 
cr

ea
tio

n 
of

 f
ar

m
la

nd
 m

iti
ga

tio
n 

ba
nk

s.
 L

oc
al

 
go

ve
rn

m
en

ts
 w

ou
ld

 b
e 

re
sp

on
si

bl
e 

fo
r e

nc
ou

ra
gi

ng
 

th
e 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

of
 

ag
ric

ul
tu

re
 

co
ns

er
va

tio
n 

ea
se

m
en

ts
 

or
 

fa
rm

la
nd

 
m

iti
ga

tio
n 

ba
nk

s,
 

pu
rc

ha
si

ng
 c

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

ag
re

em
en

ts
 o

r 
fa

rm
la

nd
 

fo
r 

m
iti

ga
tio

n,
 a

nd
 e

ns
ur

in
g 

th
at

 t
he

 t
er

m
s 

of
 t

he
 

co
ns

er
va

tio
n 

ea
se

m
en

t 
ag

re
em

en
ts

 
ar

e 
up

he
ld

. 
Th

e 
C

al
ifo

rn
ia

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

of
 F

is
h 

an
d 

W
ild

lif
e 

pr
ov

id
es

 a
 d

ef
in

iti
on

 f
or

 c
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
or

 m
iti

ga
tio

n 
ba

nk
s 

on
 

th
ei

r 
w

eb
si

te
 

(p
le

as
e 

se
e 

ht
tp

s:
//w

w
w

.w
ild

lif
e.

ca
.g

ov
/C

on
se

rv
at

io
n/

Pl
an

ni
ng

/
Ba

nk
in

g)
 

 “A
 c

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

or
 m

iti
ga

tio
n 

ba
nk

 i
s 

pr
iv

at
el

y 
or

 
pu

bl
ic

ly
 

ow
ne

d 
la

nd
 

m
an

ag
ed

 
fo

r 
its

 
na

tu
ra

l 
re

so
ur

ce
 

va
lu

es
. 

In
 

ex
ch

an
ge

 
fo

r 
pe

rm
an

en
tly

 
pr

ot
ec

tin
g,

 m
an

ag
in

g,
 a

nd
 m

on
ito

rin
g 

th
e 

la
nd

, t
he

 
ba

nk
 s

po
ns

or
 is

 a
llo

w
ed

 t
o 

se
ll 

or
 t

ra
ns

fe
r 

ha
bi

ta
t 

cr
ed

its
 

to
 

pe
rm

ite
es

 
w

ho
 

ne
ed

 
to

 
sa

tis
fy

 l
eg

al
 

re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

 
an

d 
co

m
pe

ns
at

e 
fo

r 
th

e 
en

vi
ro

nm
en

ta
l i

m
pa

ct
s 

of
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
ta

l p
ro

je
ct

s.
 

 A 
pr

iv
at

el
y 

ow
ne

d 
co

ns
er

va
tio

n 
or

 m
iti

ga
tio

n 
ba

nk
 

is
 a

 fr
ee

-m
ar

ke
t e

nt
er

pr
is

e 
th

at
: 



 
M

iti
ga

tio
n 

M
ea

su
re

s 
fro

m
 P

rio
r E

IR
s 

 M
au

be
rt 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

 
 

C
ity

 o
f L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 

Su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

C
om

m
un

iti
es

 P
ro

je
ct

 E
xe

m
pt

io
n 

 
 

N
ov

em
be

r 2
01

9 
Pa

ge
 A

3-
8 

Ta
bl

e 
A3

-1
 

M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
s 

fro
m

 P
rio

r E
IR

 (S
CA

G
’s

 2
01

6-
20

40
 R

TP
/S

CS
) 

 
Im

pa
ct

 
SC

AG
 2

01
6-

20
40

 R
TP

/S
CS

 M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
s 

(im
pl

em
en

te
d 

by
 le

ad
 a

ge
nc

y)
 

 
Ap

pl
ic

ab
ili

ty
 to

 th
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

  
O

ffe
rs

 
la

nd
ow

ne
rs

 
ec

on
om

ic
 

in
ce

nt
iv

es
 

to
 

pr
ot

ec
t n

at
ur

al
 re

so
ur

ce
s;

 
 

Sa
ve

s 
pe

rm
ite

es
 ti

m
e 

an
d 

m
on

ey
 b

y 
pr

ov
id

in
g 

th
em

 
w

ith
 

th
e 

ce
rta

in
ty

 
of

 
pr

e-
ap

pr
ov

ed
 

co
m

pe
ns

at
io

n 
la

nd
s;

 
 

C
on

so
lid

at
es

 
sm

al
l, 

fra
gm

en
te

d 
w

et
la

nd
 

m
iti

ga
tio

n 
pr

oj
ec

ts
 i

nt
o 

la
rg

e 
co

nt
ig

uo
us

 s
ite

s 
th

at
 h

av
e 

m
uc

h 
hi

gh
er

 w
ild

lif
e 

ha
bi

ta
t v

al
ue

s;
 

 
Pr

ov
id

es
 

fo
r 

lo
ng

-te
rm

 
pr

ot
ec

tio
n 

an
d 

m
an

ag
em

en
t o

f h
ab

ita
t. 

 A 
pu

bl
ic

ly
 o

w
ne

d 
co

ns
er

va
tio

n 
or

 m
iti

ga
tio

n 
ba

nk
: 

  
O

ffe
rs

 t
he

 s
po

ns
or

in
g 

pu
bl

ic
 a

ge
nc

y 
ad

va
nc

e 
m

iti
ga

tio
n 

fo
r l

ar
ge

 p
ro

je
ct

s 
or

 m
ul

tip
le

 y
ea

rs
 o

f 
op

er
at

io
ns

 a
nd

 m
ai

nt
en

an
ce

.” 
 In

 2
01

3,
 t

he
 U

ni
ve

rs
ity

 o
f 

C
al

ifo
rn

ia
 p

ub
lis

he
d 

an
 

ar
tic

le
 e

nt
itl

ed
 “

R
ef

or
m

s 
co

ul
d 

bo
os

t 
co

ns
er

va
tio

n 
ba

nk
in

g 
by

 la
nd

ow
ne

rs
” 

th
at

 s
pe

ak
s 

sp
ec

ifi
ca

lly
 to

 
th

e 
us

e 
of

 a
gr

ic
ul

tu
ra

l l
an

ds
 fo

r 
in

 c
on

ju
nc

tio
n 

w
ith

 
co

ns
er

va
tio

n 
ba

nk
in

g 
pr

og
ra

m
s.

 
  

Pr
ov

id
e 

fo
r 

m
iti

ga
tio

n 
fe

es
 

to
 

su
pp

or
t 

a 
m

iti
ga

tio
n 

ba
nk

 
th

at
 

in
ve

st
s 

in
 

fa
rm

er
 

ed
uc

at
io

n,
 

ag
ric

ul
tu

ra
l 

in
fra

st
ru

ct
ur

e,
 

w
at

er
 

su
pp

ly
, 

m
ar

ke
tin

g,
 

et
c.

, 
th

at
 

en
ha

nc
e 

th
e 

co
m

m
er

ci
al

 
vi

ab
ilit

y 
of

 
re

ta
in

ed
 

ag
ric

ul
tu

ra
l 

la
nd

s.
 

 
In

cl
ud

e 
un

de
rp

as
se

s 
an

d 
ov

er
pa

ss
es

 
at

 
re

as
on

ab
le

 
in

te
rv

al
s 

to
 

m
ai

nt
ai

n 
pr

op
er

ty
 

ac
ce

ss
. 

 
U

se
 

be
rm

s,
 

bu
ffe

r 
zo

ne
s,

 
se

tb
ac

ks
, 

an
d 

fe
nc

in
g 

to
 

re
du

ce
 

co
nf

lic
ts

 
be

tw
ee

n 
ne

w
 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t a

nd
 fa

rm
in

g 
us

es
 a

nd
 p

ro
te

ct
 th

e 



 
M

iti
ga

tio
n 

M
ea

su
re

s 
fro

m
 P

rio
r E

IR
s 

 M
au

be
rt 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

 
 

C
ity

 o
f L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 

Su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

C
om

m
un

iti
es

 P
ro

je
ct

 E
xe

m
pt

io
n 

 
 

N
ov

em
be

r 2
01

9 
Pa

ge
 A

3-
9 

Ta
bl

e 
A3

-1
 

M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
s 

fro
m

 P
rio

r E
IR

 (S
CA

G
’s

 2
01

6-
20

40
 R

TP
/S

CS
) 

 
Im

pa
ct

 
SC

AG
 2

01
6-

20
40

 R
TP

/S
CS

 M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
s 

(im
pl

em
en

te
d 

by
 le

ad
 a

ge
nc

y)
 

 
Ap

pl
ic

ab
ili

ty
 to

 th
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

fu
nc

tio
ns

 o
f f

ar
m

la
nd

. 
 

En
su

re
 i

nd
iv

id
ua

l 
pr

oj
ec

ts
 a

re
 c

on
si

st
en

t 
w

ith
 

fe
de

ra
l, 

st
at

e,
 a

nd
 lo

ca
l p

ol
ic

ie
s 

th
at

 p
re

se
rv

e 
ag

ric
ul

tu
ra

l 
la

nd
s 

an
d 

su
pp

or
t 

th
e 

ec
on

om
ic

 
vi

ab
ilit

y 
of

 a
gr

ic
ul

tu
ra

l 
ac

tiv
iti

es
, 

as
 w

el
l 

as
 

po
lic

ie
s 

th
at

 p
ro

vi
de

 c
om

pe
ns

at
io

n 
fo

r p
ro

pe
rty

 
ow

ne
rs

 if
 p

re
se

rv
at

io
n 

is
 n

ot
 fe

as
ib

le
. 

 
C

on
ta

ct
 

th
e 

C
al

ifo
rn

ia
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

of
 

C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
an

d 
ea

ch
 c

ou
nt

y’
s 

Ag
ric

ul
tu

ra
l 

C
om

m
is

si
on

er
’s

 o
ffi

ce
 to

 id
en

tif
y 

th
e 

lo
ca

tio
n 

of
 

pr
im

e 
fa

rm
la

nd
s 

an
d 

la
nd

s 
th

at
 s

up
po

rt 
cr

op
s 

co
ns

id
er

ed
 v

al
ua

bl
e 

to
 t

he
 l

oc
al

 o
r 

re
gi

on
al

 
ec

on
om

y 
an

d 
ev

al
ua

te
 

po
te

nt
ia

l 
im

pa
ct

s 
to

 
su

ch
 la

nd
s 

us
in

g 
th

e 
la

nd
 e

va
lu

at
io

n 
an

d 
si

te
 

as
se

ss
m

en
t 

(L
ES

A)
 a

na
ly

si
s 

m
et

ho
d 

(C
EQ

A 
G

ui
de

lin
es

 
§2

10
95

), 
as

 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

. 
U

se
 

co
ns

er
va

tio
n 

ea
se

m
en

ts
 o

r 
th

e 
pa

ym
en

t o
f 

in
-

lie
u 

fe
es

 to
 o

ffs
et

 im
pa

ct
s.

 
Zo

ni
ng

 fo
r A

g 
U

se
, 

W
illi

am
so

n 
A

ct
 C

on
tra

ct
 

M
M

-A
F-

2:
 

C
on

si
st

en
t 

w
ith

 
th

e 
pr

ov
is

io
ns

 
of

 
Se

ct
io

n 
15

09
1 

of
 

th
e 

St
at

e 
C

EQ
A 

G
ui

de
lin

es
, 

SC
AG

 h
as

 id
en

tif
ie

d 
m

iti
ga

tio
n 

m
ea

su
re

s 
ca

pa
bl

e 
of

 a
vo

id
in

g 
or

 r
ed

uc
in

g 
th

e 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 e
ffe

ct
s 

fro
m

 
co

nf
lic

t w
ith

 e
xi

st
in

g 
zo

ni
ng

 fo
r a

gr
ic

ul
tu

ra
l u

se
 o

r a
 

W
illi

am
so

n 
Ac

t 
co

nt
ra

ct
 

th
at

 
ar

e 
w

ith
in

 
th

e 
ju

ris
di

ct
io

n 
an

d 
re

sp
on

si
bi

lit
y 

of
 

th
e 

C
al

ifo
rn

ia
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

of
 

C
on

se
rv

at
io

n,
 

ot
he

r 
pu

bl
ic

 
ag

en
ci

es
, 

an
d 

Le
ad

 A
ge

nc
ie

s.
 W

he
re

 t
he

 L
ea

d 
Ag

en
cy

 h
as

 i
de

nt
ifi

ed
 t

ha
t 

a 
pr

oj
ec

t 
ha

s 
po

te
nt

ia
l 

fo
r 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 e

ffe
ct

s,
 t

he
 L

ea
d 

Ag
en

cy
 c

an
 a

nd
 

sh
ou

ld
 c

on
si

de
r 

m
iti

ga
tio

n 
m

ea
su

re
s 

to
 m

iti
ga

te
 

th
e 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 e

ffe
ct

s 
of

 a
gr

ic
ul

tu
re

 a
nd

 f
or

es
try

 
re

so
ur

ce
s 

to
 e

ns
ur

e 
co

m
pl

ia
nc

e 
w

ith
 th

e 
go

al
s 

an
d 

po
lic

ie
s 

es
ta

bl
is

he
d 

w
ith

in
 t

he
 a

pp
lic

ab
le

 a
do

pt
ed

 
co

un
ty

 a
nd

 c
ity

 g
en

er
al

 p
la

ns
 to

 p
ro

te
ct

 a
gr

ic
ul

tu
ra

l 
re

so
ur

ce
s 

co
ns

is
te

nt
 

w
ith

 
th

e 
C

al
ifo

rn
ia

 
La

nd
 

C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
Ac

t 
of

 1
96

5,
 t

he
 F

ar
m

la
nd

 S
ec

ur
ity

 

N
o 

m
iti

ga
tio

n 
ap

pl
ie

s.
 T

he
 P

ro
je

ct
 S

ite
 i

s 
no

t 
zo

ne
d 

fo
r 

ag
ric

ul
tu

ra
l p

ro
du

ct
io

n,
 th

er
e 

is
 n

o 
fa

rm
la

nd
 a

t t
he

 P
ro

je
ct

 
Si

te
, a

nd
 th

er
e 

ar
e 

no
 W

illi
am

so
n 

Ac
t C

on
tra

ct
s 

in
 e

ffe
ct

 
fo

r 
th

e 
Pr

oj
ec

t S
ite

 (
or

 fo
r 

an
y 

si
te

s 
w

ith
in

 th
e 

C
ity

), 
an

d 
no

 im
pa

ct
s 

re
la

te
d 

to
 th

is
 is

su
e 

w
ou

ld
 o

cc
ur

. 



 
M

iti
ga

tio
n 

M
ea

su
re

s 
fro

m
 P

rio
r E

IR
s 

 M
au

be
rt 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

 
 

C
ity

 o
f L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 

Su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

C
om

m
un

iti
es

 P
ro

je
ct

 E
xe

m
pt

io
n 

 
 

N
ov

em
be

r 2
01

9 
Pa

ge
 A

3-
10

 

Ta
bl

e 
A3

-1
 

M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
s 

fro
m

 P
rio

r E
IR

 (S
CA

G
’s

 2
01

6-
20

40
 R

TP
/S

CS
) 

 
Im

pa
ct

 
SC

AG
 2

01
6-

20
40

 R
TP

/S
CS

 M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
s 

(im
pl

em
en

te
d 

by
 le

ad
 a

ge
nc

y)
 

 
Ap

pl
ic

ab
ili

ty
 to

 th
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

Zo
ne

 A
ct

, 
an

d 
co

un
ty

 a
nd

 c
ity

 z
on

in
g 

co
de

s,
 a

s 
ap

pl
ic

ab
le

 
an

d 
fe

as
ib

le
. 

Su
ch

 
m

ea
su

re
s 

m
ay

 
in

cl
ud

e 
th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g,

 
or

 
ot

he
r 

co
m

pa
ra

bl
e 

m
ea

su
re

s 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

by
 t

he
 L

ea
d 

Ag
en

cy
, 

ta
ki

ng
 

in
to

 
ac

co
un

t 
pr

oj
ec

t 
an

d 
si

te
-s

pe
ci

fic
 

co
ns

id
er

at
io

ns
 a

s 
ap

pl
ic

ab
le

 a
nd

 fe
as

ib
le

:  
 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

re
lo

ca
tio

n 
or

 c
or

rid
or

 r
ea

lig
nm

en
t 

to
 

av
oi

d 
la

nd
s 

in
 W

illi
am

so
n 

Ac
t c

on
tra

ct
s.

 
 

Es
ta

bl
is

h 
co

ns
er

va
tio

n 
ea

se
m

en
ts

 c
on

si
st

en
t 

w
ith

 t
he

 r
ec

om
m

en
da

tio
ns

 o
f 

th
e 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

of
 C

on
se

rv
at

io
n,

 o
r 

20
-y

ea
r 

Fa
rm

la
nd

 S
ec

ur
ity

 
Zo

ne
 

co
nt

ra
ct

s 
(G

ov
er

nm
en

t 
C

od
e 

Se
ct

io
n 

51
29

6 
et

 
se

q.
), 

10
-y

ea
r 

W
illi

am
so

n 
Ac

t 
co

nt
ra

ct
s 

(G
ov

er
nm

en
t C

od
e 

Se
ct

io
n 

51
20

0 
et

 
se

q.
), 

or
 

us
e 

of
 

ot
he

r 
co

ns
er

va
tio

n 
to

ol
s 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
fro

m
 t

he
 C

al
ifo

rn
ia

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

of
 

C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
D

iv
is

io
n 

of
 

La
nd

 
R

es
ou

rc
e 

Pr
ot

ec
tio

n.
 

 
Pr

io
r 

to
 

fin
al

 
ap

pr
ov

al
 

of
 

ea
ch

 
pr

oj
ec

t, 
en

co
ur

ag
e 

en
ro

llm
en

ts
 o

f a
gr

ic
ul

tu
ra

l l
an

ds
 fo

r 
co

un
tie

s 
th

at
 h

av
e 

W
illi

am
so

n 
Ac

t 
pr

og
ra

m
s,

 
w

he
re

 a
pp

lic
ab

le
. 

Ai
r Q

ua
lit

y 
(A

IR
) 

P
ot

en
tia

l t
o 

V
io

la
te

 A
Q

 
S

ta
nd

ar
d 

 
M

M
-A

IR
-2

: 
C

on
si

st
en

t 
w

ith
 

th
e 

pr
ov

is
io

ns
 

of
 

Se
ct

io
n 

15
09

1 
of

 
th

e 
St

at
e 

C
EQ

A 
G

ui
de

lin
es

, 
SC

AG
 h

as
 id

en
tif

ie
d 

m
iti

ga
tio

n 
m

ea
su

re
s 

th
at

 a
re

 
w

ith
in

 t
he

 j
ur

is
di

ct
io

n 
an

d 
au

th
or

ity
 o

f 
th

e 
C

AR
B,

 
ai

r 
qu

al
ity

 
m

an
ag

em
en

t 
di

st
ric

ts
, 

an
d 

ot
he

r 
re

gu
la

to
ry

 a
ge

nc
ie

s.
 W

he
re

 t
he

 L
ea

d 
Ag

en
cy

 h
as

 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

th
at

 a
 p

ro
je

ct
 h

as
 th

e 
po

te
nt

ia
l t

o 
vi

ol
at

e 
an

 a
ir 

qu
al

ity
 s

ta
nd

ar
d 

or
 c

on
tri

bu
te

 s
ub

st
an

tia
lly

 to
 

an
 e

xi
st

in
g 

ai
r 

qu
al

ity
 v

io
la

tio
n,

 t
he

 L
ea

d 
Ag

en
cy

 
ca

n 
an

d 
sh

ou
ld

 c
on

si
de

r 
th

e 
m

ea
su

re
s 

th
at

 h
av

e 
be

en
 i

de
nt

ifi
ed

 b
y 

C
AR

B 
an

d 
ai

r 
di

st
ric

t(s
) 

an
d 

ot
he

r 
ag

en
ci

es
 

as
 

se
t 

fo
rth

 
be

lo
w

, 
or

 
ot

he
r 

co
m

pa
ra

bl
e 

m
ea

su
re

s,
 

to
 

fa
ci

lit
at

e 
co

ns
is

te
nc

y 

N
o 

m
iti

ga
tio

n 
ap

pl
ie

s 
be

ca
us

e 
th

e 
C

ity
 h

as
 d

et
er

m
in

ed
 

th
at

 th
e 

ex
is

tin
g 

re
gu

la
to

ry
 m

ea
su

re
s 

lis
te

d 
be

lo
w

 w
ou

ld
 

ap
pl

y 
to

 t
he

 P
ro

je
ct

 a
nd

 a
re

 e
qu

al
 t

o 
or

 m
or

e 
ef

fe
ct

iv
e 

th
an

 
SC

AG
 

R
TP

/S
C

S 
Pr

og
ra

m
 

EI
R

 
M

M
-A

IR
-2

. 
In

 
ad

di
tio

n,
 

w
hi

le
 

no
t 

le
ga

lly
 

re
qu

ire
d,

 
an

 
Ai

r 
Q

ua
lit

y 
Te

ch
ni

ca
l 

R
ep

or
t 

ha
s 

be
en

 p
re

pa
re

d,
 f

or
 i

nf
or

m
at

io
na

l 
pu

rp
os

es
 o

nl
y 

(a
tta

ch
ed

 a
s 

Ap
pe

nd
ix

 I)
. A

s 
di

sc
us

se
d 

in
 

th
is

 re
po

rt,
 th

e 
Pr

oj
ec

t’s
 im

pa
ct

s 
w

ith
 re

sp
ec

t t
o 

ai
r q

ua
lit

y 
w

ou
ld

 
be

 
le

ss
 

th
an

 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 
an

d 
no

 
m

iti
ga

tio
n 

m
ea

su
re

s 
ar

e 
re

qu
ire

d.
 

 Th
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

w
ou

ld
 c

om
pl

y 
w

ith
 t

he
 f

ol
lo

w
in

g 
R

eg
ul

at
or

y 
C

om
pl

ia
nc

e 
M

ea
su

re
s:

  



 
M

iti
ga

tio
n 

M
ea

su
re

s 
fro

m
 P

rio
r E

IR
s 

 M
au

be
rt 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

 
 

C
ity

 o
f L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 

Su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

C
om

m
un

iti
es

 P
ro

je
ct

 E
xe

m
pt

io
n 

 
 

N
ov

em
be

r 2
01

9 
Pa

ge
 A

3-
11

 

Ta
bl

e 
A3

-1
 

M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
s 

fro
m

 P
rio

r E
IR

 (S
CA

G
’s

 2
01

6-
20

40
 R

TP
/S

CS
) 

 
Im

pa
ct

 
SC

AG
 2

01
6-

20
40

 R
TP

/S
CS

 M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
s 

(im
pl

em
en

te
d 

by
 le

ad
 a

ge
nc

y)
 

 
Ap

pl
ic

ab
ili

ty
 to

 th
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

w
ith

 
pl

an
s 

fo
r 

at
ta

in
m

en
t 

of
 

th
e 

N
AA

Q
S 

an
d 

C
AA

Q
S,

 a
s 

ap
pl

ic
ab

le
 a

nd
 fe

as
ib

le
. 

 C
AR

B,
 

So
ut

h 
C

oa
st

 
AQ

M
D

, 
An

te
lo

pe
 

Va
lle

y 
AQ

M
D

, 
Im

pe
ria

l 
C

ou
nt

y 
AP

C
D

, 
M

oj
av

e 
D

es
er

t 
AQ

M
D

, V
en

tu
ra

 C
ou

nt
y 

AP
C

D
, a

nd
 C

al
tra

ns
 h

av
e 

id
en

tif
ie

d 
pr

oj
ec

t-l
ev

el
 fe

as
ib

le
 m

ea
su

re
s 

to
 re

du
ce

 
co

ns
tru

ct
io

n 
em

is
si

on
s:

 
 

M
in

im
iz

e 
la

nd
 d

is
tu

rb
an

ce
. 

 
U

se
 w

at
er

in
g 

tru
ck

s 
to

 m
in

im
iz

e 
du

st
; w

at
er

in
g 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
su

ffi
ci

en
t 

to
 c

on
fin

e 
du

st
 p

lu
m

es
 t

o 
th

e 
pr

oj
ec

t w
or

k 
ar

ea
s.

 
 

Su
sp

en
d 

gr
ad

in
g 

an
d 

ea
rth

 m
ov

in
g 

w
he

n 
w

in
d 

gu
st

s 
ex

ce
ed

 2
5 

m
ile

s 
pe

r h
ou

r u
nl

es
s 

th
e 

so
il 

is
 w

et
 e

no
ug

h 
to

 p
re

ve
nt

 d
us

t p
lu

m
es

. 
 

C
ov

er
 tr

uc
ks

 w
he

n 
ha

ul
in

g 
di

rt.
 

 
St

ab
iliz

e 
th

e 
su

rfa
ce

 o
f d

irt
 p

ile
s 

if 
no

t r
em

ov
ed

 
im

m
ed

ia
te

ly
. 

 
Li

m
it 

ve
hi

cu
la

r p
at

hs
 o

n 
un

pa
ve

d 
su

rfa
ce

s 
an

d 
st

ab
ili

ze
 a

ny
 te

m
po

ra
ry

 ro
ad

s.
 

 
M

in
im

iz
e 

un
ne

ce
ss

ar
y 

ve
hi

cu
la

r 
an

d 
m

ac
hi

ne
ry

 a
ct

iv
iti

es
. 

 
R

ev
eg

et
at

e 
di

st
ur

be
d 

la
nd

, 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

ve
hi

cu
la

r 
pa

th
s 

cr
ea

te
d 

du
rin

g 
co

ns
tru

ct
io

n 
to

 
av

oi
d 

fu
tu

re
 o

ff-
ro

ad
 v

eh
ic

ul
ar

 a
ct

iv
iti

es
. 

 
O

n 
C

al
tra

ns
 

pr
oj

ec
ts

, 
C

al
tra

ns
 

St
an

da
rd

 
Sp

ec
ifi

ca
tio

ns
 

10
-D

us
t 

C
on

tro
l, 

17
-W

at
er

in
g,

 
an

d 
18

-D
us

t 
Pa

lli
at

iv
e 

sh
al

l 
be

 i
nc

or
po

ra
te

d 
in

to
 p

ro
je

ct
 s

pe
ci

fic
at

io
ns

. 
 

R
eq

ui
re

 
co

nt
ra

ct
or

s 
to

 
as

se
m

bl
e 

a 
co

m
pr

eh
en

si
ve

 
in

ve
nt

or
y 

lis
t 

(i.
e.

, 
m

ak
e,

 
m

od
el

, 
en

gi
ne

 
ye

ar
, 

ho
rs

ep
ow

er
, 

em
is

si
on

 
ra

te
s)

 o
f 

al
l 

he
av

y-
du

ty
 o

ff-
ro

ad
 (

po
rta

bl
e 

an
d 

m
ob

ile
) 

eq
ui

pm
en

t 
(5

0 
ho

rs
ep

ow
er

 
an

d 
gr

ea
te

r) 
th

at
 c

ou
ld

 b
e 

us
ed

 a
n 

ag
gr

eg
at

e 
of

 4
0 

 RC
M

-A
Q

-1
: 

Th
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

sh
al

l 
co

m
pl

y 
w

ith
 S

C
AQ

M
D

 
R

ul
e 

40
1,

 w
hi

ch
 g

ov
er

ns
 v

is
ib

le
 e

m
is

si
on

s.
 

 RC
M

-A
Q

-2
: 

Th
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

sh
al

l 
co

m
pl

y 
w

ith
 S

C
AQ

M
D

 
R

ul
e 

40
2,

 w
hi

ch
 s

ta
te

s 
th

at
 a

 p
er

so
n 

sh
al

l n
ot

 d
is

ch
ar

ge
 

fro
m

 
an

y 
so

ur
ce

 
w

ha
ts

oe
ve

r 
su

ch
 

qu
an

tit
ie

s 
of

 
ai

r 
co

nt
am

in
an

ts
 

or
 

ot
he

r 
m

at
er

ia
ls

 
w

hi
ch

 
ca

us
e 

in
ju

ry
, 

de
tri

m
en

t, 
nu

is
an

ce
, 

or
 a

nn
oy

an
ce

 t
o 

an
y 

co
ns

id
er

ab
le

 
nu

m
be

r 
of

 p
er

so
ns

 o
r 

to
 t

he
 p

ub
lic

, 
or

 w
hi

ch
 e

nd
an

ge
r 

th
e 

co
m

fo
rt,

 
re

po
se

, 
he

al
th

, 
or

 
sa

fe
ty

 
or

 
an

y 
su

ch
 

pe
rs

on
s 

to
 th

e 
pu

bl
ic

, o
r 

w
hi

ch
 c

au
se

, o
r 

ha
ve

 a
 n

at
ur

al
 

te
nd

en
cy

 t
o 

ca
us

e,
 i

nj
ur

y 
or

 d
am

ag
e 

to
 b

us
in

es
s 

or
 

pr
op

er
ty

. 
 RC

M
-A

Q
-3

: 
Th

e 
Pr

oj
ec

t 
sh

al
l 

co
m

pl
y 

w
ith

 S
C

AQ
M

D
 

R
ul

e 
40

3,
 w

hi
ch

 in
cl

ud
es

 th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
pr

ov
is

io
ns

: 
o 

Al
l 

un
pa

ve
d 

de
m

ol
iti

on
 

an
d 

co
ns

tru
ct

io
n 

ar
ea

s 
sh

al
l 

be
 w

et
te

d 
at

 l
ea

st
 t

w
ic

e 
da

ily
 

du
rin

g 
ex

ca
va

tio
n 

an
d 

co
ns

tru
ct

io
n,

 
an

d 
te

m
po

ra
ry

 
du

st
 

co
ve

rs
 

sh
al

l 
be

 
us

ed
 

to
 

re
du

ce
 d

us
t 

em
is

si
on

s 
an

d 
m

ee
t 

SC
AQ

M
D

 
D

is
tri

ct
 

R
ul

e 
40

3.
 

W
et

tin
g 

co
ul

d 
re

du
ce

 
fu

gi
tiv

e 
du

st
 b

y 
as

 m
uc

h 
as

 5
0 

pe
rc

en
t. 

o 
Th

e 
co

ns
tru

ct
io

n 
ar

ea
 

sh
al

l 
be

 
ke

pt
 

su
ffi

ci
en

tly
 d

am
pe

ne
d 

to
 c

on
tro

l d
us

t c
au

se
d 

by
 g

ra
di

ng
 a

nd
 h

au
lin

g,
 a

nd
 a

t 
al

l 
tim

es
 

pr
ov

id
e 

re
as

on
ab

le
 c

on
tro

l o
f d

us
t c

au
se

d 
by

 
w

in
d.

 
o 

Al
l 

cl
ea

rin
g,

 
ea

rth
 

m
ov

in
g,

 
or

 
ex

ca
va

tio
n 

ac
tiv

iti
es

 s
ha

ll 
be

 d
is

co
nt

in
ue

d 
du

rin
g 

pe
rio

ds
 

of
 h

ig
h 

w
in

ds
 (

i.e
., 

gr
ea

te
r 

th
an

 1
5 

m
ph

), 
so

 
as

 to
 p

re
ve

nt
 e

xc
es

si
ve

 a
m

ou
nt

s 
of

 d
us

t. 
o 

Al
l 

di
rt/

so
il 

lo
ad

s 
sh

al
l 

be
 

se
cu

re
d 

by
 

tri
m

m
in

g,
 

w
at

er
in

g 
or

 
ot

he
r 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
 

m
ea

ns
 to

 p
re

ve
nt

 s
pi

lla
ge

 a
nd

 d
us

t. 



 
M

iti
ga

tio
n 

M
ea

su
re

s 
fro

m
 P

rio
r E

IR
s 

 M
au

be
rt 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

 
 

C
ity

 o
f L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 

Su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

C
om

m
un

iti
es

 P
ro

je
ct

 E
xe

m
pt

io
n 

 
 

N
ov

em
be

r 2
01

9 
Pa

ge
 A

3-
12

 

Ta
bl

e 
A3

-1
 

M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
s 

fro
m

 P
rio

r E
IR

 (S
CA

G
’s

 2
01

6-
20

40
 R

TP
/S

CS
) 

 
Im

pa
ct

 
SC

AG
 2

01
6-

20
40

 R
TP

/S
CS

 M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
s 

(im
pl

em
en

te
d 

by
 le

ad
 a

ge
nc

y)
 

 
Ap

pl
ic

ab
ili

ty
 to

 th
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

or
 m

or
e 

ho
ur

s 
fo

r 
th

e 
co

ns
tru

ct
io

n 
pr

oj
ec

t. 
Pr

ep
ar

e 
a 

pl
an

 f
or

 a
pp

ro
va

l b
y 

th
e 

ap
pl

ic
ab

le
 

ai
r 

di
st

ric
t 

de
m

on
st

ra
tin

g 
ac

hi
ev

em
en

t 
of

 t
he

 
ap

pl
ic

ab
le

 
pe

rc
en

t 
re

du
ct

io
n 

fo
r 

a 
C

AR
B-

ap
pr

ov
ed

 fl
ee

t. 
 

En
su

re
 

th
at

 
al

l 
co

ns
tru

ct
io

n 
eq

ui
pm

en
t 

is
 

pr
op

er
ly

 tu
ne

d 
an

d 
m

ai
nt

ai
ne

d.
 

 
Pr

ov
id

e 
an

 o
pe

ra
tio

na
l w

at
er

 tr
uc

k 
on

-s
ite

 a
t a

ll 
tim

es
. 

U
se

 w
at

er
in

g 
tru

ck
s 

to
 m

in
im

iz
e 

du
st

; 
w

at
er

in
g 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
su

ffi
ci

en
t 

to
 c

on
fin

e 
du

st
 

pl
um

es
 

to
 

th
e 

pr
oj

ec
t 

w
or

k 
ar

ea
s.

 
Sw

ee
p 

pa
ve

d 
st

re
et

s 
at

 l
ea

st
 o

nc
e 

pe
r 

da
y 

w
he

re
 

th
er

e 
is

 e
vi

de
nc

e 
of

 d
irt

 t
ha

t h
as

 b
ee

n 
ca

rri
ed

 
on

 to
 th

e 
ro

ad
w

ay
. 

 
Pr

oj
ec

t 
sp

on
so

rs
 s

ho
ul

d 
en

su
re

 t
o 

th
e 

ex
te

nt
 

po
ss

ib
le

 th
at

 c
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
ac

tiv
iti

es
 u

til
iz

e 
gr

id
-

ba
se

d 
el

ec
tri

ci
ty

 
an

d/
or

 
on

si
te

 
re

ne
w

ab
le

 
el

ec
tri

ci
ty

 g
en

er
at

io
n 

ra
th

er
 t

ha
n 

di
es

el
 a

nd
/o

r 
ga

so
lin

e 
po

w
er

ed
 g

en
er

at
or

s.
 

 
D

ev
el

op
 a

 t
ra

ffi
c 

pl
an

 t
o 

m
in

im
iz

e 
tra

ffi
c 

flo
w

 
in

te
rfe

re
nc

e 
fro

m
 c

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

ac
tiv

iti
es

. 
Th

e 
pl

an
 m

ay
 i

nc
lu

de
 

ad
va

nc
e 

pu
bl

ic
 

no
tic

e 
of

 
ro

ut
in

g,
 

us
e 

of
 

pu
bl

ic
 

tra
ns

po
rta

tio
n,

 
an

d 
sa

te
lli

te
 p

ar
ki

ng
 a

re
as

 w
ith

 a
 s

hu
ttl

e 
se

rv
ic

e.
 

Sc
he

du
le

 o
pe

ra
tio

ns
 a

ffe
ct

in
g 

tra
ffi

c 
fo

r 
of

f-
pe

ak
 h

ou
rs

. 
M

in
im

iz
e 

ob
st

ru
ct

io
n 

of
 t

hr
ou

gh
- 

tra
ffi

c 
la

ne
s.

 P
ro

vi
de

 a
 f

la
g 

pe
rs

on
 t

o 
gu

id
e 

tra
ffi

c 
pr

op
er

ly
 

an
d 

en
su

re
 

sa
fe

ty
 

at
 

co
ns

tru
ct

io
n 

si
te

s.
 

 
As

 a
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

, 
re

qu
ire

 t
ha

t 
po

rta
bl

e 
en

gi
ne

s 
an

d 
po

rta
bl

e 
en

gi
ne

-d
riv

en
 

eq
ui

pm
en

t 
un

its
 

us
ed

 
at

 
th

e 
pr

oj
ec

t 
w

or
k 

si
te

, 
w

ith
 

th
e 

ex
ce

pt
io

n 
of

 
on

-ro
ad

 
an

d 
of

f-r
oa

d 
m

ot
or

 
ve

hi
cl

es
, 

ob
ta

in
 

C
AR

B 
Po

rta
bl

e 
Eq

ui
pm

en
t 

R
eg

is
tra

tio
n 

w
ith

 t
he

 s
ta

te
 o

r 
a 

lo
ca

l 
di

st
ric

t 
pe

rm
it.

 A
rra

ng
e 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
 c

on
su

lta
tio

ns
 w

ith
 

o 
Al

l d
irt

/s
oi

l m
at

er
ia

ls
 tr

an
sp

or
te

d 
of

f-s
ite

 s
ha

ll 
be

 
ei

th
er

 
su

ffi
ci

en
tly

 
w

at
er

ed
 

or
 

se
cu

re
ly

 
co

ve
re

d 
to

 p
re

ve
nt

 e
xc

es
si

ve
 a

m
ou

nt
 o

f d
us

t. 
o 

G
en

er
al

 
co

nt
ra

ct
or

s 
sh

al
l 

m
ai

nt
ai

n 
an

d 
op

er
at

e 
co

ns
tru

ct
io

n 
eq

ui
pm

en
t 

so
 

as
 

to
 

m
in

im
iz

e 
ex

ha
us

t e
m

is
si

on
s.

 
o 

Tr
uc

ks
 

ha
vi

ng
 

no
 

cu
rre

nt
 

ha
ul

in
g 

ac
tiv

ity
 

sh
al

l n
ot

 id
le

 b
ut

 b
e 

tu
rn

ed
 o

ff.
 

 
RC

M
-A

Q
-4

: 
Th

e 
Pr

oj
ec

t 
sh

al
l 

co
m

pl
y 

w
ith

 S
ou

th
 C

oa
st

 
Ai

r 
Q

ua
lit

y 
M

an
ag

em
en

t 
D

is
tri

ct
 R

ul
e 

14
03

 –
 A

sb
es

to
s 

Em
is

si
on

s 
fro

m
 D

em
ol

iti
on

/R
en

ov
at

io
n 

Ac
tiv

iti
es

, 
w

hi
ch

 
sp

ec
ify

 
w

or
k 

pr
ac

tic
e 

re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

 
to

 
lim

it 
as

be
st

os
 

em
is

si
on

s 
fro

m
 

bu
ild

in
g 

de
m

ol
iti

on
 

an
d 

re
no

va
tio

n 
ac

tiv
iti

es
, 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
th

e 
re

m
ov

al
 

an
d 

as
so

ci
at

ed
 

di
st

ur
ba

nc
e 

of
 a

sb
es

to
s-

co
nt

ai
ni

ng
 m

at
er

ia
ls

 (A
C

M
). 

 In
 a

dd
iti

on
, 

th
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

w
ou

ld
 i

nc
lu

de
 a

 C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
Tr

af
fic

 M
an

ag
em

en
t 

Pl
an

, 
pr

ov
id

ed
 b

el
ow

 a
s 

PD
F-

TR
A-

1.
  

   



 
M

iti
ga

tio
n 

M
ea

su
re

s 
fro

m
 P

rio
r E

IR
s 

 M
au

be
rt 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

 
 

C
ity

 o
f L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 

Su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

C
om

m
un

iti
es

 P
ro

je
ct

 E
xe

m
pt

io
n 

 
 

N
ov

em
be

r 2
01

9 
Pa

ge
 A

3-
13

 

Ta
bl

e 
A3

-1
 

M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
s 

fro
m

 P
rio

r E
IR

 (S
CA

G
’s

 2
01

6-
20

40
 R

TP
/S

CS
) 

 
Im

pa
ct

 
SC

AG
 2

01
6-

20
40

 R
TP

/S
CS

 M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
s 

(im
pl

em
en

te
d 

by
 le

ad
 a

ge
nc

y)
 

 
Ap

pl
ic

ab
ili

ty
 to

 th
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

th
e 

C
AR

B 
or

 
th

e 
D

is
tri

ct
 

to
 

de
te

rm
in

e 
re

gi
st

ra
tio

n 
an

d 
pe

rm
itt

in
g 

re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

 p
rio

r 
to

 e
qu

ip
m

en
t o

pe
ra

tio
n 

at
 th

e 
si

te
. 

 
Im

pl
em

en
t 

EP
A’

s 
N

at
io

na
l 

C
le

an
 

D
ie

se
l 

Pr
og

ra
m

. 
 

D
ie

se
l- 

or
 g

as
ol

in
e-

po
w

er
ed

 e
qu

ip
m

en
t 

sh
al

l 
be

 r
ep

la
ce

d 
by

 l
ow

es
t 

em
itt

in
g 

fe
as

ib
le

 f
or

 
ea

ch
 p

ie
ce

 o
f 

eq
ui

pm
en

t 
fro

m
 a

m
on

g 
th

es
e 

op
tio

ns
: 

el
ec

tri
c 

eq
ui

pm
en

t w
he

ne
ve

r 
fe

as
ib

le
, 

ga
so

lin
e-

po
w

er
ed

 
eq

ui
pm

en
t 

if 
el

ec
tri

c 
in

fe
as

ib
le

. 
 

O
n-

si
te

 
el

ec
tri

ci
ty

 
sh

al
l 

be
 

us
ed

 
in

 
al

l 
co

ns
tru

ct
io

n 
ar

ea
s 

th
at

 a
re

 d
em

on
st

ra
te

d 
to

 b
e 

se
rv

ed
 b

y 
el

ec
tri

ci
ty

. 
 

If 
cr

an
es

 a
re

 r
eq

ui
re

d 
fo

r 
co

ns
tru

ct
io

n,
 t

he
y 

sh
al

l 
be

 r
at

ed
 a

t 
20

0 
hp

 o
r 

gr
ea

te
r 

eq
ui

pp
ed

 
w

ith
 T

ie
r 4

 o
r e

qu
iv

al
en

t e
ng

in
es

. 
 

U
se

 a
lte

rn
at

iv
e 

di
es

el
 f

ue
ls

, 
su

ch
 a

s 
C

le
an

 
Fu

el
s 

Te
ch

no
lo

gy
 (w

at
er

 e
m

ul
si

fie
d 

di
es

el
 fu

el
) 

or
 O

2 
di

es
el

 e
th

an
ol

-d
ie

se
l f

ue
l (

O
2 

D
ie

se
l) 

in
 

ex
is

tin
g 

en
gi

ne
s 

 
C

on
ve

rt 
pa

rt 
of

 t
he

 c
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
tru

ck
 f

le
et

 t
o 

na
tu

ra
l g

as
. 

 
In

cl
ud

e 
“c

le
an

 c
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
eq

ui
pm

en
t 

fle
et

”, 
de

fin
ed

 a
s 

a 
fle

et
 m

ix
 c

le
an

er
 t

ha
n 

th
e 

st
at

e 
av

er
ag

e,
 in

 a
ll 

co
ns

tru
ct

io
n 

co
nt

ra
ct

s 
 

Fu
el

 a
ll 

of
f-r

oa
d 

an
d 

po
rta

bl
e 

di
es

el
 p

ow
er

ed
 

eq
ui

pm
en

t 
w

ith
 

AR
B-

ce
rti

fie
d 

m
ot

or
 

ve
hi

cl
e 

di
es

el
 f

ue
l (

no
n-

ta
xe

d 
ve

rs
io

n 
su

ita
bl

e 
fo

r 
us

e 
of

f-r
oa

d)
 

 
U

se
 e

le
ct

ric
 fl

ee
t o

r 
al

te
rn

at
iv

e 
fu

el
ed

 v
eh

ic
le

s 
w

he
re

 f
ea

si
bl

e 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

m
et

ha
no

l, 
pr

op
an

e,
 

an
d 

co
m

pr
es

se
d 

na
tu

ra
l g

as
 

 
U

se
 

di
es

el
 

co
ns

tru
ct

io
n 

eq
ui

pm
en

t 
m

ee
tin

g 
AR

B’
s 

Ti
er

 
4 

ce
rti

fie
d 

en
gi

ne
s 

or
 

cl
ea

ne
r 



 
M

iti
ga

tio
n 

M
ea

su
re

s 
fro

m
 P

rio
r E

IR
s 

 M
au

be
rt 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

 
 

C
ity

 o
f L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 

Su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

C
om

m
un

iti
es

 P
ro

je
ct

 E
xe

m
pt

io
n 

 
 

N
ov

em
be

r 2
01

9 
Pa

ge
 A

3-
14

 

Ta
bl

e 
A3

-1
 

M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
s 

fro
m

 P
rio

r E
IR

 (S
CA

G
’s

 2
01

6-
20

40
 R

TP
/S

CS
) 

 
Im

pa
ct

 
SC

AG
 2

01
6-

20
40

 R
TP

/S
CS

 M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
s 

(im
pl

em
en

te
d 

by
 le

ad
 a

ge
nc

y)
 

 
Ap

pl
ic

ab
ili

ty
 to

 th
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

of
fro

ad
 h

ea
vy

-d
ut

y 
di

es
el

 e
ng

in
es

 a
nd

 c
om

pl
y 

w
ith

 S
ta

te
 o

ff-
ro

ad
 re

gu
la

tio
n 

 
U

se
 o

n-
ro

ad
, 

he
av

y-
du

ty
 t

ru
ck

s 
th

at
 m

ee
t 

th
e 

AR
B’

s 
20

07
 o

r c
le

an
er

 c
er

tif
ic

at
io

n 
st

an
da

rd
 fo

r 
on

-ro
ad

 d
ie

se
l 

en
gi

ne
s,

 a
nd

 c
om

pl
y 

w
ith

 t
he

 
St

at
e 

on
-ro

ad
 re

gu
la

tio
n 

 
U

se
 i

dl
e 

re
du

ct
io

n 
te

ch
no

lo
gy

, 
de

fin
ed

 a
s 

a 
de

vi
ce

 t
ha

t 
is

 i
ns

ta
lle

d 
on

 
th

e 
ve

hi
cl

e 
th

at
 

au
to

m
at

ic
al

ly
 

re
du

ce
s 

m
ai

n 
en

gi
ne

 
id

lin
g 

an
d/

or
 i

s 
de

si
gn

ed
 t

o 
pr

ov
id

e 
se

rv
ic

es
, 

e.
g.

, 
he

at
, 

ai
r 

co
nd

iti
on

in
g,

 a
nd

/o
r 

el
ec

tri
ci

ty
 t

o 
th

e 
ve

hi
cl

e 
or

 
eq

ui
pm

en
t 

th
at

 
w

ou
ld

 
ot

he
rw

is
e 

re
qu

ire
 t

he
 o

pe
ra

tio
n 

of
 t

he
 m

ai
n 

dr
iv

e 
en

gi
ne

 
w

hi
le

 t
he

 v
eh

ic
le

 o
r 

eq
ui

pm
en

t 
is

 t
em

po
ra

ril
y 

pa
rk

ed
 o

r i
s 

st
at

io
na

ry
 

 
M

in
im

iz
e 

id
lin

g 
tim

e 
ei

th
er

 
by

 
sh

ut
tin

g 
of

f 
eq

ui
pm

en
t w

he
n 

no
t 

in
 u

se
 o

r 
lim

it 
id

lin
g 

tim
e 

to
 3

 m
in

ut
es

 S
ig

ns
 s

ha
ll 

be
 p

os
te

d 
in

 t
he

 
de

si
gn

at
ed

 q
ue

ui
ng

 a
re

as
 a

nd
/o

r 
jo

b 
si

te
s 

to
 

re
m

in
d 

dr
iv

er
s 

an
d 

op
er

at
or

s 
of

 t
he

 3
 m

in
ut

e 
id

lin
g 

lim
it.

 T
he

 c
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
co

nt
ra

ct
or

 s
ha

ll 
m

ai
nt

ai
n 

a 
w

rit
te

n 
id

lin
g 

po
lic

y 
an

d 
di

st
rib

ut
e 

it 
to

 a
ll 

em
pl

oy
ee

s 
an

d 
su

bc
on

tra
ct

or
s.

 T
he

 o
n-

si
te

 c
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
m

an
ag

er
 s

ha
ll 

en
fo

rc
e 

th
is

 
lim

it.
 

 
Pr

oh
ib

it 
di

es
el

 
id

lin
g 

w
ith

in
 

1,
00

0 
fe

et
 

of
 

se
ns

iti
ve

 re
ce

pt
or

s.
 

 
St

ag
in

g 
an

d 
qu

eu
in

g 
ar

ea
s 

sh
al

l n
ot

 b
e 

lo
ca

te
d 

w
ith

in
 1

,0
00

 fe
et

 o
f s

en
si

tiv
e 

re
ce

pt
or

s.
 

 
Th

e 
nu

m
be

r 
of

 
co

ns
tru

ct
io

n 
eq

ui
pm

en
t 

op
er

at
in

g 
si

m
ul

ta
ne

ou
sl

y 
sh

al
l 

be
 m

in
im

iz
ed

 
th

ro
ug

h 
ef

fic
ie

nt
 

m
an

ag
em

en
t 

pr
ac

tic
es

 
to

 
en

su
re

 t
ha

t 
th

e 
sm

al
le

st
 p

ra
ct

ic
al

 n
um

be
r 

is
 

op
er

at
in

g 
at

 a
ny

 o
ne

 ti
m

e.
 

 
Th

e 
en

gi
ne

 
si

ze
 

of
 

co
ns

tru
ct

io
n 

eq
ui

pm
en

t 
sh

al
l b

e 
th

e 
m

in
im

um
 p

ra
ct

ic
al

 s
iz

e.
 



 
M

iti
ga

tio
n 

M
ea

su
re

s 
fro

m
 P

rio
r E

IR
s 

 M
au

be
rt 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

 
 

C
ity

 o
f L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 

Su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

C
om

m
un

iti
es

 P
ro

je
ct

 E
xe

m
pt

io
n 

 
 

N
ov

em
be

r 2
01

9 
Pa

ge
 A

3-
15

 

Ta
bl

e 
A3

-1
 

M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
s 

fro
m

 P
rio

r E
IR

 (S
CA

G
’s

 2
01

6-
20

40
 R

TP
/S

CS
) 

 
Im

pa
ct

 
SC

AG
 2

01
6-

20
40

 R
TP

/S
CS

 M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
s 

(im
pl

em
en

te
d 

by
 le

ad
 a

ge
nc

y)
 

 
Ap

pl
ic

ab
ili

ty
 to

 th
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

 
C

at
al

yt
ic

 
co

nv
er

te
rs

 
sh

al
l 

be
 

in
st

al
le

d 
on

 
ga

so
lin

e-
po

w
er

ed
 e

qu
ip

m
en

t. 
 

Si
gn

s 
sh

al
l 

be
 p

os
te

d 
in

 d
es

ig
na

te
d 

qu
eu

in
g 

ar
ea

s 
an

d 
jo

b 
si

te
s 

to
 

re
m

in
d 

dr
iv

er
s 

an
d 

op
er

at
or

s 
of

 th
e 

id
lin

g 
lim

it.
 

 
C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

w
or

ke
r t

rip
s 

sh
al

l b
e 

m
in

im
iz

ed
 b

y 
pr

ov
id

in
g 

op
tio

ns
 

fo
r 

ca
rp

oo
lin

g 
an

d 
by

 
pr

ov
id

in
g 

fo
r l

un
ch

 o
ns

ite
. 

 
U

se
 n

ew
 o

r r
eb

ui
lt 

eq
ui

pm
en

t. 
 

M
ai

nt
ai

n 
al

l 
co

ns
tru

ct
io

n 
eq

ui
pm

en
t 

in
 p

ro
pe

r 
w

or
ki

ng
 

or
de

r, 
ac

co
rd

in
g 

to
 

m
an

uf
ac

tu
re

r’s
 

sp
ec

ifi
ca

tio
ns

. 
Th

e 
eq

ui
pm

en
t 

m
us

t 
be

 c
he

ck
 

by
 a

n 
AS

E-
ce

rti
fie

d 
m

ec
ha

ni
c 

an
d 

de
te

rm
in

ed
 

to
 b

e 
ru

nn
in

g 
in

 p
ro

pe
r 

co
nd

iti
on

 b
ef

or
e 

it 
is

 
op

er
at

ed
. 

 
U

se
 l

ow
 r

ol
lin

g 
re

si
st

an
ce

 t
ire

s 
on

 l
on

g 
ha

ul
 

cl
as

s 
8 

tra
ct

or
-tr

ai
le

rs
. 

 
Su

sp
en

d 
al

l 
co

ns
tru

ct
io

n 
ac

tiv
iti

es
 

th
at

 
ge

ne
ra

te
 

ai
r 

po
llu

ta
nt

 
em

is
si

on
s 

du
rin

g 
ai

r 
al

er
ts

. 
 

In
st

al
l 

a 
C

AR
B-

ve
rif

ie
d,

 
Le

ve
l 

3 
em

is
si

on
 

co
nt

ro
l d

ev
ic

e,
 e

.g
., 

di
es

el
 p

ar
tic

ul
at

e 
fil

te
rs

, o
n 

al
l d

ie
se

l e
ng

in
es

. 
E

xp
os

e 
S

en
si

tiv
e 

R
ec

ep
to

rs
 

to
 P

ol
lu

ta
nt

s 
M

M
-A

IR
-4

: 
C

on
si

st
en

t 
w

ith
 

th
e 

pr
ov

is
io

ns
 

of
 

Se
ct

io
n 

15
09

1 
of

 
th

e 
St

at
e 

C
EQ

A 
G

ui
de

lin
es

, 
SC

AG
 h

as
 id

en
tif

ie
d 

m
iti

ga
tio

n 
m

ea
su

re
s 

th
at

 a
re

 
w

ith
in

 th
e 

ju
ris

di
ct

io
n 

an
d 

au
th

or
ity

 o
f t

he
 a

ir 
qu

al
ity

 
m

an
ag

em
en

t 
di

st
ric

t(s
) 

w
he

re
 

pr
op

os
ed

 
20

16
 

R
TP

/S
C

S 
tra

ns
po

rta
tio

n 
pr

oj
ec

ts
 w

ou
ld

 b
e 

lo
ca

te
d.

 
W

he
re

 
th

e 
Le

ad
 

Ag
en

cy
 

ha
s 

id
en

tif
ie

d 
th

at
 

a 
pr

oj
ec

t 
ha

s 
th

e 
po

te
nt

ia
l 

to
 

ex
po

se
 

se
ns

iti
ve

 
re

ce
pt

or
s 

to
 

su
bs

ta
nt

ia
l 

po
llu

ta
nt

 c
on

ce
nt

ra
tio

ns
 

an
d 

ha
rm

 p
ub

lic
 h

ea
lth

 o
ut

co
m

es
 s

ub
st

an
tia

lly
, t

he
 

Le
ad

 
Ag

en
cy

 
ca

n 
an

d 
sh

ou
ld

 
co

ns
id

er
 

th
e 

m
ea

su
re

s 
th

at
 h

av
e 

be
en

 id
en

tif
ie

d 
by

 C
AR

B 
an

d 

N
o 

m
iti

ga
tio

n 
ap

pl
ie

s.
 T

he
 P

ro
je

ct
 d

oe
s 

no
t 

in
vo

lv
e 

a 
20

16
-2

04
0 

R
TP

/S
C

S 
tra

ns
po

rta
tio

n 
pr

oj
ec

t. 
As

 
a 

re
si

de
nt

ia
l d

ev
el

op
m

en
t, 

th
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t c

an
no

t e
st

ab
lis

h 
ne

w
 

re
gu

la
to

ry
 s

ta
nd

ar
ds

 o
r 

re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

, 
su

ch
 a

s 
se

tti
ng

 
ne

w
 

en
gi

ne
 

st
an

da
rd

s 
or

 
m

ak
in

g 
im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 

an
d 

en
ha

nc
em

en
ts

 to
 C

al
ifo

rn
ia

’s
 S

m
og

 C
he

ck
 P

ro
gr

am
.  



 
M

iti
ga

tio
n 

M
ea

su
re

s 
fro

m
 P

rio
r E

IR
s 

 M
au

be
rt 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

 
 

C
ity

 o
f L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 

Su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

C
om

m
un

iti
es

 P
ro

je
ct

 E
xe

m
pt

io
n 

 
 

N
ov

em
be

r 2
01

9 
Pa

ge
 A

3-
16

 

Ta
bl

e 
A3

-1
 

M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
s 

fro
m

 P
rio

r E
IR

 (S
CA

G
’s

 2
01

6-
20

40
 R

TP
/S

CS
) 

 
Im

pa
ct

 
SC

AG
 2

01
6-

20
40

 R
TP

/S
CS

 M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
s 

(im
pl

em
en

te
d 

by
 le

ad
 a

ge
nc

y)
 

 
Ap

pl
ic

ab
ili

ty
 to

 th
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

ai
r 

di
st

ric
t(s

), 
or

 o
th

er
 c

om
pa

ra
bl

e 
m

ea
su

re
s,

 t
o 

re
du

ce
 c

an
ce

r 
ris

k 
pu

rs
ua

nt
 to

 th
e 

Ai
r 

To
xi

cs
 “

H
ot

 
Sp

ot
s”

 A
ct

 o
f 

19
87

 (
AB

25
88

), 
as

 a
pp

lic
ab

le
 a

nd
 

fe
as

ib
le

. S
uc

h 
m

ea
su

re
s 

in
cl

ud
e 

th
os

e 
ad

op
te

d 
by

 
C

AR
B 

de
si

gn
ed

 
to

 
re

du
ce

 
su

bs
ta

nt
ia

l 
po

llu
ta

nt
 

co
nc

en
tra

tio
ns

, 
sp

ec
ifi

ca
lly

 
di

es
el

, 
fro

m
 

m
ob

ile
 

so
ur

ce
s 

an
d 

eq
ui

pm
en

t. 
C

AR
B’

s 
st

ra
te

gy
 in

cl
ud

es
 

th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
el

em
en

ts
: 

  
Se

t t
ec

hn
ol

og
y 

fo
rc

in
g 

ne
w

 e
ng

in
e 

st
an

da
rd

s.
 

 
R

ed
uc

e 
em

is
si

on
s 

fro
m

 th
e 

in
-u

se
 fl

ee
t. 

 
R

eq
ui

re
 

cl
ea

n 
fu

el
s,

 
an

d 
re

du
ce

 
pe

tro
le

um
 

de
pe

nd
en

cy
. 

 
W

or
k 

w
ith

 U
S 

EP
A 

to
 r

ed
uc

e 
em

is
si

on
s 

fro
m

 
fe

de
ra

l a
nd

 s
ta

te
 s

ou
rc

es
. 

 
Pu

rs
ue

 
lo

ng
-te

rm
 

ad
va

nc
ed

 
te

ch
no

lo
gy

 
m

ea
su

re
s 

 Pr
op

os
ed

 n
ew

 tr
an

sp
or

ta
tio

n-
re

la
te

d 
SI

P 
m

ea
su

re
s 

in
cl

ud
e:

 
 O

n-
R

oa
d 

So
ur

ce
s 

  
Im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 

an
d 

En
ha

nc
em

en
ts

 
to

 
C

al
ifo

rn
ia

’s
 S

m
og

 C
he

ck
 P

ro
gr

am
 

 
Ex

pa
nd

ed
 P

as
se

ng
er

 V
eh

ic
le

 R
et

ire
m

en
t 

 
M

od
ifi

ca
tio

ns
 

to
 

R
ef

or
m

ul
at

ed
 

G
as

ol
in

e 
Pr

og
ra

m
 

 
C

le
an

er
 In

-U
se

 H
ea

vy
-D

ut
y 

Tr
uc

ks
 

 
Sh

ip
 A

ux
ilia

ry
 E

ng
in

e 
C

ol
d 

Iro
ni

ng
 a

nd
 O

th
er

 
C

le
an

 T
ec

hn
ol

og
y 

C
le

an
er

 S
hi

p 
M

ai
n 

En
gi

ne
s 

an
d 

Fu
el

 
 

Po
rt 

Tr
uc

k 
M

od
er

ni
za

tio
n 

 
Ac

ce
le

ra
te

d 
In

tro
du

ct
io

n 
of

 C
le

an
er

 L
in

e-
H

au
l 

Lo
co

m
ot

iv
es

 



 
M

iti
ga

tio
n 

M
ea

su
re

s 
fro

m
 P

rio
r E

IR
s 

 M
au

be
rt 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

 
 

C
ity

 o
f L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 

Su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

C
om

m
un

iti
es

 P
ro

je
ct

 E
xe

m
pt

io
n 

 
 

N
ov

em
be

r 2
01

9 
Pa

ge
 A

3-
17

 

Ta
bl

e 
A3

-1
 

M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
s 

fro
m

 P
rio

r E
IR

 (S
CA

G
’s

 2
01

6-
20

40
 R

TP
/S

CS
) 

 
Im

pa
ct

 
SC

AG
 2

01
6-

20
40

 R
TP

/S
CS

 M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
s 

(im
pl

em
en

te
d 

by
 le

ad
 a

ge
nc

y)
 

 
Ap

pl
ic

ab
ili

ty
 to

 th
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

 
C

le
an

 U
p 

Ex
is

tin
g 

C
om

m
er

ci
al

 H
ar

bo
r C

ra
ft 

 
Li

m
ite

d 
id

lin
g 

of
 d

ie
se

l-p
ow

er
ed

 tr
uc

ks
 

 
C

on
so

lid
at

ed
 t

ru
ck

 t
rip

s 
an

d 
im

pr
ov

e 
tra

ffi
c 

flo
w

 
 

La
te

 
m

od
el

 
en

gi
ne

s,
 

Lo
w

 
em

is
si

on
 

di
es

el
 

pr
od

uc
ts

, e
ng

in
e 

re
tro

fit
 te

ch
no

lo
gy

 
 

Al
te

rn
at

iv
e 

fu
el

s 
fo

r o
n-

ro
ad

 v
eh

ic
le

s 
 O

ff-
R

oa
d 

So
ur

ce
s 

  
C

le
an

er
 C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

an
d 

O
th

er
 E

qu
ip

m
en

t 
 

C
le

an
er

 In
-U

se
 O

ff-
R

oa
d 

Eq
ui

pm
en

t 
 

Ag
ric

ul
tu

ra
l E

qu
ip

m
en

t F
le

et
 M

od
er

ni
za

tio
n 

 
N

ew
 

Em
is

si
on

 
St

an
da

rd
s 

fo
r 

R
ec

re
at

io
na

l 
Bo

at
s 

 
O

ff-
R

oa
d 

R
ec

re
at

io
na

l 
Ve

hi
cl

e 
Ex

pa
nd

ed
 

Em
is

si
on

 S
ta

nd
ar

ds
 

Bi
ol

og
ic

al
 R

es
ou

rc
es

 (B
IO

) 
A

dv
er

se
 E

ffe
ct

 o
n 

C
an

di
da

te
, 

S
en

si
tiv

e,
 

or
 

S
pe

ci
al

 
S

ta
tu

s 
S

pe
ci

es
, 

A
dv

er
se

 
Ef

fe
ct

 
on

 
R

ip
ar

ia
n 

H
ab

ita
t 

or
 

O
th

er
 

S
en

si
tiv

e 
N

at
ur

al
 C

om
m

un
ity

, 
A

dv
er

se
 E

ffe
ct

 o
n 

W
et

la
nd

s,
 

In
te

rfe
re

 w
ith

 t
he

 M
ov

em
en

t 
of

 S
pe

ci
es

, C
on

fli
ct

 w
ith

 L
oc

al
 

P
ol

ic
ie

s 
or

 
O

rd
in

an
ce

s 
P

ro
te

ct
in

g 
B

io
 

R
es

ou
rc

es
, 

C
on

fli
ct

 
w

ith
 

H
ab

ita
t 

C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
P

la
n,

 
N

at
ur

al
 

C
om

m
un

ity
 

C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
P

la
n,

 o
r 

O
th

er
 C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

P
la

n 

M
M

-B
IO

-1
: 

C
on

si
st

en
t 

w
ith

 
th

e 
pr

ov
is

io
ns

 
of

 
Se

ct
io

n 
15

09
1 

of
 

th
e 

St
at

e 
C

EQ
A 

G
ui

de
lin

es
, 

SC
AG

 h
as

 id
en

tif
ie

d 
m

iti
ga

tio
n 

m
ea

su
re

s 
ca

pa
bl

e 
of

 a
vo

id
in

g 
or

 r
ed

uc
in

g 
th

e 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 e
ffe

ct
s 

on
 

th
re

at
en

ed
 

an
d 

en
da

ng
er

ed
 

sp
ec

ie
s 

an
d 

ot
he

r 
sp

ec
ia

l 
st

at
us

 s
pe

ci
es

 t
ha

t 
ar

e 
in

 t
he

 j
ur

is
di

ct
io

n 
an

d 
re

sp
on

si
bi

lit
y 

of
 U

.S
. F

is
h 

an
d 

W
ild

lif
e 

Se
rv

ic
e 

(U
SF

W
S)

, 
N

at
io

na
l 

M
ar

in
e 

Fi
sh

er
ie

s 
Se

rv
ic

e 
(N

M
FS

), 
C

al
ifo

rn
ia

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t o

f F
is

h 
an

d 
W

ild
lif

e 
(C

D
FW

), 
ot

he
r 

pu
bl

ic
 

ag
en

ci
es

, 
an

d/
or

 
Le

ad
 

Ag
en

ci
es

. 
W

he
re

 t
he

 L
ea

d 
Ag

en
cy

 h
as

 i
de

nt
ifi

ed
 

th
at

 
a 

pr
oj

ec
t 

ha
s 

th
e 

po
te

nt
ia

l 
fo

r 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 
ef

fe
ct

s,
 th

e 
Le

ad
 A

ge
nc

y 
ca

n 
an

d 
sh

ou
ld

 c
on

si
de

r 
m

iti
ga

tio
n 

m
ea

su
re

s 
to

 
en

su
re

 
co

m
pl

ia
nc

e 
w

ith
 

Se
ct

io
ns

 7
, 9

, a
nd

 1
0(

a)
 o

f t
he

 fe
de

ra
l E

nd
an

ge
re

d 
Sp

ec
ie

s 
Ac

t; 
th

e 
C

al
ifo

rn
ia

 E
nd

an
ge

re
d 

Sp
ec

ie
s 

Ac
t; 

th
e 

N
at

iv
e 

Pl
an

t P
ro

te
ct

io
n 

Ac
t; 

th
e 

St
at

e 
Fi

sh
 

N
o 

m
iti

ga
tio

n 
ap

pl
ie

s.
 

Th
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

is
 

lo
ca

te
d 

in
 

a 
de

ve
lo

pe
d,

 u
rb

an
 a

re
a 

an
d 

w
ou

ld
 b

e 
re

pl
ac

in
g 

ex
is

tin
g 

la
nd

 u
se

s.
 T

he
 P

ro
je

ct
 w

ou
ld

 n
ot

 b
e 

de
ve

lo
pe

d 
on

 o
pe

n 
sp

ac
e.

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
of

 t
he

 P
ro

je
ct

 w
ou

ld
 n

ot
 r

es
ul

t 
in

 
ad

ve
rs

e 
ef

fe
ct

s 
to

 a
ny

 s
pe

ci
es

 id
en

tif
ie

d 
as

 a
 c

an
di

da
te

, 
se

ns
iti

ve
, 

or
 s

pe
ci

al
 s

ta
tu

s 
sp

ec
ie

s 
in

 l
oc

al
 o

r 
re

gi
on

al
 

pl
an

s,
 

po
lic

ie
s,

 
or

 
re

gu
la

tio
ns

, 
or

 
by

 
th

e 
C

al
ifo

rn
ia

 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t o
f F

is
h 

an
d 

W
ild

lif
e 

or
 U

.S
. F

is
h 

an
d 

W
ild

lif
e 

Se
rv

ic
e,

 o
r 

th
e 

C
al

ifo
rn

ia
 N

at
iv

e 
Pl

an
t 

So
ci

et
y.

 I
t 

w
ou

ld
 

al
so

 n
ot

 r
es

ul
t 

in
 a

ny
 a

dv
er

se
 e

ffe
ct

s 
to

 a
ny

 o
cc

up
ie

d 
ha

bi
ta

t, 
po

te
nt

ia
lly

 s
ui

ta
bl

e 
ha

bi
ta

t, 
or

 d
es

ig
na

te
d 

cr
iti

ca
l 

ha
bi

ta
t. 

Th
er

ef
or

e,
 

th
is

 
m

iti
ga

tio
n 

m
ea

su
re

 
do

es
 

no
t 

ap
pl

y.
 

 



 
M

iti
ga

tio
n 

M
ea

su
re

s 
fro

m
 P

rio
r E

IR
s 

 M
au

be
rt 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

 
 

C
ity

 o
f L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 

Su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

C
om

m
un

iti
es

 P
ro

je
ct

 E
xe

m
pt

io
n 

 
 

N
ov

em
be

r 2
01

9 
Pa

ge
 A

3-
18

 

Ta
bl

e 
A3

-1
 

M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
s 

fro
m

 P
rio

r E
IR

 (S
CA

G
’s

 2
01

6-
20

40
 R

TP
/S

CS
) 

 
Im

pa
ct

 
SC

AG
 2

01
6-

20
40

 R
TP

/S
CS

 M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
s 

(im
pl

em
en

te
d 

by
 le

ad
 a

ge
nc

y)
 

 
Ap

pl
ic

ab
ili

ty
 to

 th
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

an
d 

G
am

e 
C

od
e;

 a
nd

 th
e 

D
es

er
t N

at
iv

e 
Pl

an
t A

ct
; 

an
d 

re
la

te
d 

ap
pl

ic
ab

le
 i

m
pl

em
en

tin
g 

re
gu

la
tio

ns
, 

as
 a

pp
lic

ab
le

 a
nd

 f
ea

si
bl

e.
 A

dd
iti

on
al

 c
om

pl
ia

nc
e 

sh
ou

ld
 

ad
he

re
 

to
 

ap
pl

ic
ab

le
 

im
pl

em
en

tin
g 

re
gu

la
tio

ns
 fr

om
 th

e 
U

.S
. F

is
h 

an
d 

W
ild

lif
e 

Se
rv

ic
e,

 
th

e 
N

at
io

na
l 

M
ar

in
e 

Fi
sh

er
ie

s 
Se

rv
ic

e,
 a

nd
/o

r 
th

e 
C

al
ifo

rn
ia

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

of
 F

is
h 

an
d 

W
ild

lif
e.

 S
uc

h 
m

ea
su

re
s 

m
ay

 
in

cl
ud

e 
th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g,

 
or

 
ot

he
r 

co
m

pa
ra

bl
e 

m
ea

su
re

s 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

by
 

th
e 

Le
ad

 
Ag

en
cy

: 
  

R
eq

ui
re

 
pr

oj
ec

t 
de

si
gn

 
to

 
av

oi
d 

oc
cu

pi
ed

 
ha

bi
ta

t, 
po

te
nt

ia
lly

 
su

ita
bl

e 
ha

bi
ta

t, 
an

d 
de

si
gn

at
ed

 
cr

iti
ca

l 
ha

bi
ta

t, 
w

he
re

ve
r 

pr
ac

tic
ab

le
 a

nd
 fe

as
ib

le
. 

 
W

he
re

 
av

oi
da

nc
e 

is
 

de
te

rm
in

ed
 

to
 

be
 

in
fe

as
ib

le
, 

pr
ov

id
e 

co
ns

er
va

tio
n 

m
ea

su
re

s 
to

 
fu

lfi
ll 

th
e 

re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

 
of

 
th

e 
ap

pl
ic

ab
le

 
au

th
or

iz
at

io
n 

fo
r 

in
ci

de
nt

al
 t

ak
e 

pu
rs

ua
nt

 t
o 

Se
ct

io
n 

7 
or

 1
0(

a)
 o

f 
th

e 
fe

de
ra

l E
nd

an
ge

re
d 

Sp
ec

ie
s 

Ac
t 

or
 S

ec
tio

n 
20

81
 o

f 
th

e 
C

al
ifo

rn
ia

 
En

da
ng

er
ed

 S
pe

ci
es

 A
ct

 t
o 

su
pp

or
t 

is
su

an
ce

 
of

 a
n 

In
ci

de
nt

al
 t

ak
e 

pe
rm

it.
 A

 w
id

e 
va

rie
ty

 o
f 

co
ns

er
va

tio
n 

st
ra

te
gi

es
 h

av
e 

be
en

 s
uc

ce
ss

fu
lly

 
us

ed
 in

 th
e 

SC
AG

 re
gi

on
 to

 p
ro

te
ct

 th
e 

su
rv

iv
al

 
an

d 
re

co
ve

ry
 in

 th
e 

w
ild

 o
f f

ed
er

al
ly

 a
nd

 s
ta

te
-

lis
te

d 
en

da
ng

er
ed

 s
pe

ci
es

 i
nc

lu
di

ng
 t

he
 b

al
d 

ea
gl

e:
 

o 
Av

oi
da

nc
e 

st
ra

te
gi

es
 

o 
C

on
tri

bu
tio

n 
of

 in
-li

eu
 fe

es
 

o 
U

se
 o

f m
iti

ga
tio

n 
ba

nk
 c

re
di

ts
 

o 
Fu

nd
in

g 
of

 r
es

ea
rc

h 
an

d 
re

co
ve

ry
 

ef
fo

rts
 

o 
H

ab
ita

t r
es

to
ra

tio
n 

o 
C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

ea
se

m
en

ts
 

o 
Pe

rm
an

en
t d

ed
ic

at
io

n 
of

 h
ab

ita
t 



 
M

iti
ga

tio
n 

M
ea

su
re

s 
fro

m
 P

rio
r E

IR
s 

 M
au

be
rt 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

 
 

C
ity

 o
f L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 

Su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

C
om

m
un

iti
es

 P
ro

je
ct

 E
xe

m
pt

io
n 

 
 

N
ov

em
be

r 2
01

9 
Pa

ge
 A

3-
19

 

Ta
bl

e 
A3

-1
 

M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
s 

fro
m

 P
rio

r E
IR

 (S
CA

G
’s

 2
01

6-
20

40
 R

TP
/S

CS
) 

 
Im

pa
ct

 
SC

AG
 2

01
6-

20
40

 R
TP

/S
CS

 M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
s 

(im
pl

em
en

te
d 

by
 le

ad
 a

ge
nc

y)
 

 
Ap

pl
ic

ab
ili

ty
 to

 th
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

o 
O

th
er

 c
om

pa
ra

bl
e 

m
ea

su
re

s 
 

D
es

ig
n 

pr
oj

ec
ts

 t
o 

av
oi

d 
de

se
rt 

na
tiv

e 
pl

an
ts

, 
sa

lv
ag

e 
an

d 
re

lo
ca

te
 

de
se

rt 
na

tiv
e 

pl
an

ts
, 

an
d/

or
 p

ay
 in

 li
eu

 fe
es

 to
 s

up
po

rt 
of

f-s
ite

 lo
ng

-
te

rm
 c

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

st
ra

te
gi

es
. 

 
D

ev
el

op
 a

nd
 im

pl
em

en
t 

a 
W

or
ke

r 
Aw

ar
en

es
s 

Pr
og

ra
m

 (
en

vi
ro

nm
en

ta
l 

ed
uc

at
io

n)
 t

o 
in

fo
rm

 
pr

oj
ec

t 
w

or
ke

rs
 

of
 

th
ei

r 
re

sp
on

si
bi

lit
ie

s 
in

 
re

ga
rd

s 
to

 a
vo

id
in

g 
an

d 
m

in
im

iz
in

g 
im

pa
ct

s 
on

 
se

ns
iti

ve
 b

io
lo

gi
ca

l r
es

ou
rc

es
. 

 
Ap

po
in

t a
n 

En
vi

ro
nm

en
ta

l I
ns

pe
ct

or
 to

 m
on

ito
r 

im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
of

 m
iti

ga
tio

n 
m

ea
su

re
s.

 
 

Sc
he

du
le

 
co

ns
tru

ct
io

n 
ac

tiv
iti

es
 

to
 

av
oi

d 
se

ns
iti

ve
 t

im
es

 f
or

 b
io

lo
gi

ca
l 

re
so

ur
ce

s 
(e

.g
., 

st
ee

lh
ea

d 
sp

aw
ni

ng
 p

er
io

ds
 d

ur
in

g 
th

e 
w

in
te

r 
an

d 
sp

rin
g,

 n
es

tin
g 

bi
rd

 s
ea

so
n)

 a
nd

 t
o 

av
oi

d 
th

e 
ra

in
y 

se
as

on
 w

he
n 

er
os

io
n 

an
d 

se
di

m
en

t 
tra

ns
po

rt 
is

 in
cr

ea
se

d.
 

 
C

on
du

ct
 

pr
e-

co
ns

tru
ct

io
n 

m
on

ito
rin

g 
to

 
de

lin
ea

te
 o

cc
up

ie
d 

se
ns

iti
ve

 s
pe

ci
es

’ h
ab

ita
t t

o 
fa

ci
lit

at
e 

av
oi

da
nc

e.
 

 
W

he
re

 p
ro

je
ct

s 
ar

e 
de

te
rm

in
ed

 t
o 

be
 w

ith
in

 
su

ita
bl

e 
ha

bi
ta

t 
of

 l
is

te
d 

or
 s

en
si

tiv
e 

sp
ec

ie
s 

th
at

 
ha

ve
 

sp
ec

ifi
c 

fie
ld

 
su

rv
ey

 
pr

ot
oc

ol
s 

or
 

gu
id

el
in

es
 o

ut
lin

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
U

SF
W

S,
 C

D
FW

, 
or

 
ot

he
r 

lo
ca

l 
ag

en
cy

, 
co

nd
uc

t 
pr

ec
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
su

rv
ey

s 
th

at
 f

ol
lo

w
 a

pp
lic

ab
le

 p
ro

to
co

ls
 a

nd
 

gu
id

el
in

es
 

an
d 

ar
e 

co
nd

uc
te

d 
by

 
qu

al
ifi

ed
 

an
d/

or
 c

er
tif

ie
d 

pe
rs

on
ne

l. 
A

dv
er

se
 

Ef
fe

ct
 

on
 

R
ip

ar
ia

n 
H

ab
ita

t 
or

 
O

th
er

 
S

en
si

tiv
e 

N
at

ur
al

 C
om

m
un

ity
, 

A
dv

er
se

 
E

ffe
ct

 o
n 

W
et

la
nd

s,
 I

nt
er

fe
re

 
w

ith
 

th
e 

M
ov

em
en

t 
of

 
S

pe
ci

es
, 

C
on

fli
ct

 
w

ith
 

Lo
ca

l 
P

ol
ic

ie
s 

or
 

O
rd

in
an

ce
s 

M
M

-B
IO

-2
: 

C
on

si
st

en
t 

w
ith

 
th

e 
pr

ov
is

io
ns

 
of

 
Se

ct
io

n 
15

09
1 

of
 

th
e 

St
at

e 
C

EQ
A 

G
ui

de
lin

es
, 

SC
AG

 h
as

 id
en

tif
ie

d 
m

iti
ga

tio
n 

m
ea

su
re

s 
ca

pa
bl

e 
of

 a
vo

id
in

g 
or

 r
ed

uc
in

g 
th

e 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 im
pa

ct
s 

on
 

st
at

e-
de

si
gn

at
ed

 
se

ns
iti

ve
 

ha
bi

ta
ts

, 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

rip
ar

ia
n 

ha
bi

ta
ts

, 
th

at
 a

re
 i

n 
th

e 
ju

ris
di

ct
io

n 
an

d 
re

sp
on

si
bi

lit
y 

of
 U

.S
. F

is
h 

an
d 

W
ild

lif
e 

Se
rv

ic
e,

 th
e 

N
o 

m
iti

ga
tio

n 
ap

pl
ie

s.
 

Th
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

is
 

lo
ca

te
d 

in
 

a 
de

ve
lo

pe
d,

 u
rb

an
 a

re
a 

an
d 

w
ou

ld
 b

e 
re

pl
ac

in
g 

ex
is

tin
g 

m
ul

ti-
fa

m
ily

 r
es

id
en

tia
l l

an
d 

us
es

. 
Th

e 
Pr

oj
ec

t 
w

ou
ld

 n
ot

 
be

 
de

ve
lo

pe
d 

on
 

ex
is

tin
g 

op
en

 
sp

ac
e.

 
Th

er
ef

or
e,

 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t 
of

 t
he

 P
ro

je
ct

 w
ou

ld
 n

ot
 r

es
ul

t 
in

 a
dv

er
se

 
ef

fe
ct

s 
to

 a
ny

 ri
pa

ria
n 

ha
bi

ta
t o

r o
th

er
 s

en
si

tiv
e 

ha
bi

ta
t o

r 
su

pp
or

t 
an

y 
sp

ec
ie

s 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

or
 

de
si

gn
at

ed
 

as
 

a 



 
M

iti
ga

tio
n 

M
ea

su
re

s 
fro

m
 P

rio
r E

IR
s 

 M
au

be
rt 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

 
 

C
ity

 o
f L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 

Su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

C
om

m
un

iti
es

 P
ro

je
ct

 E
xe

m
pt

io
n 

 
 

N
ov

em
be

r 2
01

9 
Pa

ge
 A

3-
20

 

Ta
bl

e 
A3

-1
 

M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
s 

fro
m

 P
rio

r E
IR

 (S
CA

G
’s

 2
01

6-
20

40
 R

TP
/S

CS
) 

 
Im

pa
ct

 
SC

AG
 2

01
6-

20
40

 R
TP

/S
CS

 M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
s 

(im
pl

em
en

te
d 

by
 le

ad
 a

ge
nc

y)
 

 
Ap

pl
ic

ab
ili

ty
 to

 th
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

P
ro

te
ct

in
g 

B
io

 
R

es
ou

rc
es

, 
C

on
fli

ct
 

w
ith

 
H

ab
ita

t 
C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

P
la

n,
 

N
at

ur
al

 
C

om
m

un
ity

 
C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

P
la

n,
 o

r 
O

th
er

 C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
P

la
n 

N
at

io
na

l 
M

ar
in

e 
Fi

sh
er

ie
s 

Se
rv

ic
e,

 t
he

 C
al

ifo
rn

ia
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

of
 F

is
h 

an
d 

W
ild

lif
e;

 a
nd

 o
th

er
 p

ub
lic

 
ag

en
ci

es
, 

an
d/

or
 L

ea
d 

Ag
en

ci
es

. W
he

re
 t

he
 L

ea
d 

Ag
en

cy
 

ha
s 

id
en

tif
ie

d 
th

at
 

a 
pr

oj
ec

t 
ha

s 
th

e 
po

te
nt

ia
l 

fo
r 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 e

ffe
ct

s,
 t

he
 L

ea
d 

Ag
en

cy
 

ca
n 

an
d 

sh
ou

ld
 c

on
si

de
r 

m
iti

ga
tio

n 
m

ea
su

re
s 

to
 

en
su

re
 c

om
pl

ia
nc

e 
w

ith
 S

ec
tio

n 
16

00
 o

f 
th

e 
St

at
e 

Fi
sh

 a
nd

 G
am

e 
C

od
e,

 U
SF

S 
La

nd
 M

an
ag

em
en

t 
Pl

an
 f

or
 t

he
 f

ou
r 

na
tio

na
l f

or
es

ts
 in

 t
he

 s
ix

-c
ou

nt
y 

ar
ea

: 
An

ge
le

s,
 C

le
ve

la
nd

, 
Lo

s 
Pa

dr
es

, 
an

d 
Sa

n 
Be

rn
ar

di
no

, 
im

pl
em

en
tin

g 
re

gu
la

tio
ns

 f
or

 t
he

 U
.S

. 
Fi

sh
 

an
d 

W
ild

lif
e 

Se
rv

ic
e,

 
th

e 
N

at
io

na
l 

M
ar

in
e 

Fi
sh

er
ie

s 
Se

rv
ic

e,
 t

he
 

C
al

ifo
rn

ia
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

of
 

Fi
sh

 a
nd

 W
ild

lif
e;

 a
nd

 o
th

er
 r

el
at

ed
 f

ed
er

al
, 

st
at

e,
 

an
d 

lo
ca

l 
re

gu
la

tio
ns

, 
as

 a
pp

lic
ab

le
 a

nd
 f

ea
si

bl
e.

 
Su

ch
 m

ea
su

re
s 

m
ay

 in
cl

ud
e 

th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g,
 o

r o
th

er
 

co
m

pa
ra

bl
e 

m
ea

su
re

s 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

by
 

th
e 

Le
ad

 
Ag

en
cy

: 
  

C
on

su
lt 

w
ith

 t
he

 U
SF

W
S 

an
d 

N
M

FS
 w

he
re

 
su

ch
 

st
at

e-
de

si
gn

at
ed

 
se

ns
iti

ve
 

or
 

rip
ar

ia
n 

ha
bi

ta
ts

 p
ro

vi
de

 p
ot

en
tia

l 
or

 o
cc

up
ie

d 
ha

bi
ta

t 
fo

r 
fe

de
ra

lly
 

lis
te

d 
ra

re
, 

th
re

at
en

ed
, 

an
d 

en
da

ng
er

ed
 

sp
ec

ie
s 

af
fo

rd
ed

 
pr

ot
ec

tio
n 

pu
rs

ua
nt

 t
o 

th
e 

fe
de

ra
l 

En
da

ng
er

ed
 S

pe
ci

es
 

Ac
t. 

 
C

on
su

lt 
w

ith
 

th
e 

U
SF

S 
w

he
re

 
su

ch
 

st
at

e-
de

si
gn

at
ed

 
se

ns
iti

ve
 

or
 

rip
ar

ia
n 

ha
bi

ta
ts

 
pr

ov
id

e 
po

te
nt

ia
l 

or
 

oc
cu

pi
ed

 
ha

bi
ta

t 
fo

r 
fe

de
ra

lly
 

lis
te

d 
ra

re
, 

th
re

at
en

ed
, 

an
d 

en
da

ng
er

ed
 

sp
ec

ie
s 

af
fo

rd
ed

 
pr

ot
ec

tio
n 

pu
rs

ua
nt

 t
o 

th
e 

fe
de

ra
l 

En
da

ng
er

ed
 S

pe
ci

es
 

Ac
t 

an
d 

an
y 

ad
di

tio
na

l 
sp

ec
ie

s 
af

fo
rd

ed
 

pr
ot

ec
tio

n 
by

 
an

 
ad

op
te

d 
Fo

re
st

 
La

nd
 

M
an

ag
em

en
t 

Pl
an

 o
r 

R
es

ou
rc

e 
M

an
ag

em
en

t 
Pl

an
 f

or
 t

he
 f

ou
r 

na
tio

na
l 

fo
re

st
s 

in
 t

he
 s

ix
-

ca
nd

id
at

e,
 s

en
si

tiv
e,

 o
r 

sp
ec

ia
l s

ta
tu

s 
sp

ec
ie

s 
in

 lo
ca

l o
r 

re
gi

on
al

 
pl

an
s,

 
po

lic
ie

s,
 

or
 

re
gu

la
tio

ns
, 

or
 

by
 

th
e 

C
al

ifo
rn

ia
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
of

 F
is

h 
an

d 
W

ild
lif

e 
or

 t
he

 U
.S

. 
Fi

sh
 a

nd
 W

ild
lif

e 
Se

rv
ic

e.
 T

he
re

fo
re

, 
th

es
e 

m
iti

ga
tio

n 
m

ea
su

re
s 

do
 n

ot
 a

pp
ly

. 



 
M

iti
ga

tio
n 

M
ea

su
re

s 
fro

m
 P

rio
r E

IR
s 

 M
au

be
rt 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

 
 

C
ity

 o
f L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 

Su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

C
om

m
un

iti
es

 P
ro

je
ct

 E
xe

m
pt

io
n 

 
 

N
ov

em
be

r 2
01

9 
Pa

ge
 A

3-
21

 

Ta
bl

e 
A3

-1
 

M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
s 

fro
m

 P
rio

r E
IR

 (S
CA

G
’s

 2
01

6-
20

40
 R

TP
/S

CS
) 

 
Im

pa
ct

 
SC

AG
 2

01
6-

20
40

 R
TP

/S
CS

 M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
s 

(im
pl

em
en

te
d 

by
 le

ad
 a

ge
nc

y)
 

 
Ap

pl
ic

ab
ili

ty
 to

 th
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

co
un

ty
 a

re
a:

 A
ng

el
es

, 
C

le
ve

la
nd

, 
Lo

s 
Pa

dr
es

, 
an

d 
Sa

n 
Be

rn
ar

di
no

. 
 

C
on

su
lt 

w
ith

 
th

e 
C

D
FW

 
w

he
re

 
su

ch
 

st
at

e-
de

si
gn

at
ed

 
se

ns
iti

ve
 

or
 

rip
ar

ia
n 

ha
bi

ta
ts

 
pr

ov
id

e 
po

te
nt

ia
l o

r 
oc

cu
pi

ed
 h

ab
ita

t f
or

 s
ta

te
-

lis
te

d 
ra

re
, 

th
re

at
en

ed
, 

an
d 

en
da

ng
er

ed
 

sp
ec

ie
s 

af
fo

rd
ed

 
pr

ot
ec

tio
n 

pu
rs

ua
nt

 
to

 t
he

 
C

al
ifo

rn
ia

 E
nd

an
ge

re
d 

Sp
ec

ie
s 

Ac
t, 

or
 F

ul
ly

-
Pr

ot
ec

te
d 

Sp
ec

ie
s 

af
fo

rd
ed

 p
ro

te
ct

io
n 

pu
rs

ua
nt

 
to

 th
e 

St
at

e 
Fi

sh
 a

nd
 G

am
e 

C
od

e.
 

 
C

on
su

lt 
w

ith
 

th
e 

C
D

FW
 

pu
rs

ua
nt

 
to

 
th

e 
pr

ov
is

io
ns

 o
f 

Se
ct

io
n 

16
00

 o
f 

th
e 

St
at

e 
Fi

sh
 

an
d 

G
am

e 
C

od
e 

as
 t

he
y 

re
la

te
 t

o 
la

ke
s 

an
d 

st
re

am
be

ds
. 

 
C

on
su

lt 
w

ith
 t

he
 U

SF
W

S,
 U

SF
S,

 C
D

FW
, 

an
d 

co
un

tie
s 

an
d 

ci
tie

s 
in

 th
e 

SC
AG

 r
eg

io
n,

 w
he

re
 

st
at

e-
de

si
gn

at
ed

 s
en

si
tiv

e 
or

 r
ip

ar
ia

n 
ha

bi
ta

ts
 

ar
e 

oc
cu

pi
ed

 
by

 
bi

rd
s 

af
fo

rd
ed

 
pr

ot
ec

tio
n 

pu
rs

ua
nt

 
to

 
th

e 
M

ig
ra

to
ry

 
Bi

rd
 

Tr
ea

ty
 

Ac
t 

du
rin

g 
th

e 
br

ee
di

ng
 s

ea
so

n.
 

 
C

on
su

lt 
w

ith
 t

he
 C

D
FW

 f
or

 s
ta

te
-d

es
ig

na
te

d 
se

ns
iti

ve
 o

r 
rip

ar
ia

n 
ha

bi
ta

ts
 w

he
re

 fu
r-

be
ar

in
g 

m
am

m
al

s,
 a

ffo
rd

ed
 p

ro
te

ct
io

n 
pu

rs
ua

nt
 t

o 
th

e 
pr

ov
is

io
ns

 o
f 

th
e 

St
at

e 
Fi

sh
 a

nd
 G

am
e 

C
od

e 
fo

r 
fu

r-b
ea

m
in

g 
m

am
m

al
s,

 a
re

 a
ct

iv
el

y 
us

in
g 

th
e 

ar
ea

s 
in

 
co

nj
un

ct
io

n 
w

ith
 

br
ee

di
ng

 
ac

tiv
iti

es
. 

 
U

til
iz

e 
ap

pl
ic

ab
le

 a
nd

 C
D

FW
 a

pp
ro

ve
d 

pl
an

t 
co

m
m

un
ity

 
cl

as
si

fic
at

io
n 

re
so

ur
ce

s 
du

rin
g 

de
lin

ea
tio

n 
of

 
se

ns
iti

ve
 

co
m

m
un

iti
es

 
an

d 
in

va
si

ve
 p

la
nt

s 
in

cl
ud

in
g,

 b
ut

 n
ot

 li
m

ite
d 

to
, t

he
 

M
an

ua
l o

f 
C

al
ifo

rn
ia

 V
eg

et
at

io
n,

 t
he

 C
al

ifo
rn

ia
 

In
va

si
ve

 P
la

nt
 I

nv
en

to
ry

 D
at

ab
as

e,
 a

nd
 t

he
 

O
ra

ng
e 

C
ou

nt
y 

C
al

ifo
rn

ia
 N

at
iv

e 
Pl

an
t S

oc
ie

ty
 

(O
C

C
N

PS
) 

Em
er

ge
nt

 
In

va
si

ve
 

Pl
an

t 
M

an
ag

em
en

t P
ro

gr
am

, w
he

re
 a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
. 



 
M

iti
ga

tio
n 

M
ea

su
re

s 
fro

m
 P

rio
r E

IR
s 

 M
au

be
rt 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

 
 

C
ity

 o
f L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 

Su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

C
om

m
un

iti
es

 P
ro

je
ct

 E
xe

m
pt

io
n 

 
 

N
ov

em
be

r 2
01

9 
Pa

ge
 A

3-
22

 

Ta
bl

e 
A3

-1
 

M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
s 

fro
m

 P
rio

r E
IR

 (S
CA

G
’s

 2
01

6-
20

40
 R

TP
/S

CS
) 

 
Im

pa
ct

 
SC

AG
 2

01
6-

20
40

 R
TP

/S
CS

 M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
s 

(im
pl

em
en

te
d 

by
 le

ad
 a

ge
nc

y)
 

 
Ap

pl
ic

ab
ili

ty
 to

 th
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

 
En

co
ur

ag
e 

pr
oj

ec
t 

de
si

gn
 t

o 
av

oi
d 

se
ns

iti
ve

 
na

tu
ra

l 
co

m
m

un
iti

es
 

an
d 

rip
ar

ia
n 

ha
bi

ta
ts

, 
w

he
re

ve
r p

ra
ct

ic
ab

le
 a

nd
 fe

as
ib

le
. 

 
W

he
re

 
av

oi
da

nc
e 

is
 

de
te

rm
in

ed
 

to
 

be
 

in
fe

as
ib

le
, 

de
ve

lo
p 

su
ffi

ci
en

t 
co

ns
er

va
tio

n 
m

ea
su

re
s 

th
ro

ug
h 

co
or

di
na

tio
n 

w
ith

 
lo

ca
l 

ag
en

ci
es

 
an

d 
th

e 
re

gu
la

to
ry

 
ag

en
cy

 
(i.

e.
, 

U
SF

W
S 

or
 C

D
FW

) 
to

 p
ro

te
ct

 s
en

si
tiv

e 
na

tu
ra

l 
co

m
m

un
iti

es
 a

nd
 ri

pa
ria

n 
ha

bi
ta

ts
. 

 
In

st
al

l f
en

ci
ng

 a
nd

/o
r 

m
ar

k 
se

ns
iti

ve
 h

ab
ita

t t
o 

be
 a

vo
id

ed
 d

ur
in

g 
co

ns
tru

ct
io

n 
ac

tiv
iti

es
. 

 
Sa

lv
ag

e 
an

d 
st

oc
kp

ile
 

to
ps

oi
l 

(th
e 

su
rfa

ce
 

m
at

er
ia

l 
fro

m
 

6 
to

 
12

 
in

ch
es

 
de

ep
) 

an
d 

pe
re

nn
ia

l 
pl

an
ts

 f
or

 
us

e 
in

 
re

st
or

in
g 

na
tiv

e 
ve

ge
ta

tio
n 

to
 

al
l 

ar
ea

s 
of

 
te

m
po

ra
ry

 
di

st
ur

ba
nc

e 
w

ith
in

 th
e 

pr
oj

ec
t a

re
a.

 
 

R
ev

eg
et

at
e 

w
ith

 a
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

 n
at

iv
e 

ve
ge

ta
tio

n 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

th
e 

co
m

pl
et

io
n 

of
 

co
ns

tru
ct

io
n 

ac
tiv

iti
es

. 
 

C
om

pl
et

e 
ha

bi
ta

t 
en

ha
nc

em
en

t 
(e

.g
., 

th
ro

ug
h 

re
m

ov
al

 o
f n

on
-n

at
iv

e 
in

va
si

ve
 w

et
la

nd
 s

pe
ci

es
 

an
d 

re
pl

ac
em

en
t 

w
ith

 
m

or
e 

ec
ol

og
ic

al
ly

 
va

lu
ab

le
 n

at
iv

e 
sp

ec
ie

s)
. 

 
U

se
 B

es
t 

M
an

ag
em

en
t 

Pr
ac

tic
es

 (
BM

Ps
) 

at
 

co
ns

tru
ct

io
n 

si
te

s 
to

 
m

in
im

iz
e 

er
os

io
n 

an
d 

se
di

m
en

t 
tra

ns
po

rt 
fro

m
 

th
e 

ar
ea

. 
BM

Ps
 

in
cl

ud
e 

en
co

ur
ag

in
g 

gr
ow

th
 o

f 
ve

ge
ta

tio
n 

in
 

di
st

ur
be

d 
ar

ea
s,

 u
si

ng
 s

tra
w

 b
al

es
 o

r o
th

er
 s

ilt
-

ca
tc

hi
ng

 d
ev

ic
es

, 
an

d 
us

in
g 

se
ttl

in
g 

ba
si

ns
 t

o 
m

in
im

iz
e 

so
il 

tra
ns

po
rt.

 
A

dv
er

se
 E

ffe
ct

 o
n 

W
et

la
nd

s,
 

In
te

rfe
re

 w
ith

 t
he

 M
ov

em
en

t 
of

 S
pe

ci
es

, C
on

fli
ct

 w
ith

 L
oc

al
 

P
ol

ic
ie

s 
or

 
O

rd
in

an
ce

s 
P

ro
te

ct
in

g 
B

io
 

R
es

ou
rc

es
, 

C
on

fli
ct

 
w

ith
 

H
ab

ita
t 

M
M

-B
IO

-3
: 

C
on

si
st

en
t 

w
ith

 
th

e 
pr

ov
is

io
ns

 
of

 
Se

ct
io

n 
15

09
1 

of
 

th
e 

St
at

e 
C

EQ
A 

G
ui

de
lin

es
, 

SC
AG

 h
as

 id
en

tif
ie

d 
m

iti
ga

tio
n 

m
ea

su
re

s 
ca

pa
bl

e 
of

 a
vo

id
in

g 
or

 r
ed

uc
in

g 
th

e 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 im
pa

ct
s 

on
 

pr
ot

ec
te

d 
w

et
la

nd
s 

th
at

 a
re

 in
 t

he
 ju

ris
di

ct
io

n 
an

d 
re

sp
on

si
bi

lit
y 

of
 th

e 
U

.S
. A

rm
y 

C
or

ps
 o

f E
ng

in
ee

rs
, 

N
o 

m
iti

ga
tio

n 
ap

pl
ie

s.
 T

he
 P

ro
je

ct
 S

ite
 is

 n
ot

 lo
ca

te
d 

on
 

pr
ot

ec
te

d 
w

et
la

nd
s 

or
 w

at
er

 f
ea

tu
re

s 
th

at
 a

re
 i

n 
th

e 
ju

ris
di

ct
io

n 
an

d 
re

sp
on

si
bi

lit
y 

of
 t

he
 U

.S
. 

Ar
m

y 
C

or
ps

 o
f 

En
gi

ne
er

s 
or

 a
ny

 o
th

er
 p

ub
lic

 a
ge

nc
ie

s 
an

d/
or

 L
ea

d 
Ag

en
ci

es
. 



 
M

iti
ga

tio
n 

M
ea

su
re

s 
fro

m
 P

rio
r E

IR
s 

 M
au

be
rt 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

 
 

C
ity

 o
f L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 

Su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

C
om

m
un

iti
es

 P
ro

je
ct

 E
xe

m
pt

io
n 

 
 

N
ov

em
be

r 2
01

9 
Pa

ge
 A

3-
23

 

Ta
bl

e 
A3

-1
 

M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
s 

fro
m

 P
rio

r E
IR

 (S
CA

G
’s

 2
01

6-
20

40
 R

TP
/S

CS
) 

 
Im

pa
ct

 
SC

AG
 2

01
6-

20
40

 R
TP

/S
CS

 M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
s 

(im
pl

em
en

te
d 

by
 le

ad
 a

ge
nc

y)
 

 
Ap

pl
ic

ab
ili

ty
 to

 th
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
P

la
n,

 
N

at
ur

al
 

C
om

m
un

ity
 

C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
P

la
n,

 o
r 

O
th

er
 C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

P
la

n 

pu
bl

ic
 a

ge
nc

ie
s 

an
d/

or
 L

ea
d 

Ag
en

ci
es

. W
he

re
 th

e 
Le

ad
 A

ge
nc

y 
ha

s 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

th
at

 a
 p

ro
je

ct
 h

as
 t

he
 

po
te

nt
ia

l 
fo

r 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 e
ffe

ct
s,

 t
he

 L
ea

d 
Ag

en
cy

 
ca

n 
an

d 
sh

ou
ld

 c
on

si
de

r 
m

iti
ga

tio
n 

m
ea

su
re

s 
to

 
en

su
re

 c
om

pl
ia

nc
e 

w
ith

 S
ec

tio
n 

40
4 

of
 t

he
 C

le
an

 
W

at
er

 A
ct

 a
nd

 r
eg

ul
at

io
ns

 o
f t

he
 U

.S
. A

rm
y 

C
or

ps
 

of
 

En
gi

ne
er

s 
(U

SA
C

O
E)

, 
an

d 
ot

he
r 

ap
pl

ic
ab

le
 

fe
de

ra
l, 

st
at

e 
an

d 
lo

ca
l 

re
gu

la
tio

ns
, 

as
 a

pp
lic

ab
le

 
an

d 
fe

as
ib

le
. 

Su
ch

 
m

ea
su

re
s 

m
ay

 
in

cl
ud

e 
th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g,

 o
r 

ot
he

r 
co

m
pa

ra
bl

e 
m

ea
su

re
s 

id
en

tif
ie

d 
by

 th
e 

Le
ad

 A
ge

nc
y:

 
  

R
eq

ui
re

 
pr

oj
ec

t 
de

si
gn

 
to

 
av

oi
d 

fe
de

ra
lly

 
pr

ot
ec

te
d 

w
et

la
nd

s 
co

ns
is

te
nt

 
w

ith
 

th
e 

pr
ov

is
io

ns
 o

f 
Se

ct
io

n 
40

4 
of

 t
he

 C
le

an
 W

at
er

 
Ac

t, 
w

he
re

ve
r p

ra
ct

ic
ab

le
 a

nd
 fe

as
ib

le
. 

 
W

he
re

 t
he

 L
ea

d 
Ag

en
cy

 h
as

 i
de

nt
ifi

ed
 t

ha
t 

a 
pr

oj
ec

t, 
or

 o
th

er
 r

eg
io

na
lly

 s
ig

ni
fic

an
t 

pr
oj

ec
t, 

ha
s 

th
e 

po
te

nt
ia

l 
to

 im
pa

ct
 o

th
er

 w
et

la
nd

s 
or

 
w

at
er

s 
no

t p
ro

te
ct

ed
 u

nd
er

 S
ec

tio
n 

40
4 

of
 th

e 
C

le
an

 W
at

er
 A

ct
, 

se
ek

 c
om

pa
ra

bl
e 

co
ve

ra
ge

 
fo

r 
th

es
e 

w
et

la
nd

s 
an

d 
w

at
er

s 
in

 c
on

su
lta

tio
n 

w
ith

 
th

e 
U

SA
C

O
E 

an
d 

ap
pl

ic
ab

le
 

R
eg

io
na

l 
W

at
er

 
Q

ua
lit

y 
C

on
tro

l 
Bo

ar
ds

 
(R

W
Q

C
B)

. 
W

he
re

 
av

oi
da

nc
e 

is
 

de
te

rm
in

ed
 

to
 

be
 

in
fe

as
ib

le
, 

de
ve

lo
p 

su
ffi

ci
en

t 
co

ns
er

va
tio

n 
m

ea
su

re
s 

to
 

fu
lfi

ll 
th

e 
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
 

of
 

th
e 

ap
pl

ic
ab

le
 a

ut
ho

riz
at

io
n 

fo
r i

m
pa

ct
s 

to
 fe

de
ra

lly
 

pr
ot

ec
te

d 
w

et
la

nd
s 

to
 s

up
po

rt 
is

su
an

ce
 o

f 
a 

pe
rm

it 
un

de
r 

Se
ct

io
n 

40
4 

of
 t

he
 C

le
an

 W
at

er
 

Ac
t a

s 
ad

m
in

is
te

re
d 

by
 th

e 
U

SA
C

O
E.

 T
he

 u
se

 
of

 a
n 

au
th

or
iz

ed
 N

at
io

nw
id

e 
Pe

rm
it 

or
 is

su
an

ce
 

of
 

an
 i

nd
iv

id
ua

l 
pe

rm
it 

re
qu

ire
s 

th
e 

pr
oj

ec
t 

ap
pl

ic
an

t 
to

 d
em

on
st

ra
te

 c
om

pl
ia

nc
e 

w
ith

 t
he

 
U

SA
C

O
E’

s 
Fi

na
l 

C
om

pe
ns

at
or

y 
M

iti
ga

tio
n 

R
ul

e.
 T

he
 U

SA
C

O
E 

re
vi

ew
s 

pr
oj

ec
ts

 to
 e

ns
ur

e 



 
M

iti
ga

tio
n 

M
ea

su
re

s 
fro

m
 P

rio
r E

IR
s 

 M
au

be
rt 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

 
 

C
ity

 o
f L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 

Su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

C
om

m
un

iti
es

 P
ro

je
ct

 E
xe

m
pt

io
n 

 
 

N
ov

em
be

r 2
01

9 
Pa

ge
 A

3-
24

 

Ta
bl

e 
A3

-1
 

M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
s 

fro
m

 P
rio

r E
IR

 (S
CA

G
’s

 2
01

6-
20

40
 R

TP
/S

CS
) 

 
Im

pa
ct

 
SC

AG
 2

01
6-

20
40

 R
TP

/S
CS

 M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
s 

(im
pl

em
en

te
d 

by
 le

ad
 a

ge
nc

y)
 

 
Ap

pl
ic

ab
ili

ty
 to

 th
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

en
vi

ro
nm

en
ta

l 
im

pa
ct

s 
to

 
aq

ua
tic

 
re

so
ur

ce
s 

ar
e 

av
oi

de
d 

or
 m

in
im

iz
ed

 a
s 

m
uc

h 
as

 p
os

si
bl

e.
 

C
on

si
st

en
t 

w
ith

 
th

e 
ad

m
in

is
tra

tio
n’

s 
pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

 
st

an
da

rd
 

of
 

“n
o 

ne
t 

lo
ss

 
of

 
w

et
la

nd
s”

 a
 U

SA
C

O
E 

pe
rm

it 
m

ay
 r

eq
ui

re
 a

 
pr

oj
ec

t 
pr

op
on

en
t 

to
 

re
st

or
e,

 
es

ta
bl

is
h,

 
en

ha
nc

e 
or

 p
re

se
rv

e 
ot

he
r a

qu
at

ic
 re

so
ur

ce
s 

in
 

or
de

r 
to

 r
ep

la
ce

 th
os

e 
af

fe
ct

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
Pr

oj
ec

t. 
Th

is
 c

om
pe

ns
at

or
y 

m
iti

ga
tio

n 
pr

oc
es

s 
se

ek
s 

to
 

re
pl

ac
e 

th
e 

lo
ss

 o
f 

ex
is

tin
g 

aq
ua

tic
 r

es
ou

rc
e 

fu
nc

tio
ns

 
an

d 
ar

ea
. 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

pr
op

on
en

ts
 

re
qu

ire
d 

to
 c

om
pl

et
e 

m
iti

ga
tio

n 
ar

e 
en

co
ur

ag
ed

 
to

 u
se

 a
 w

at
er

sh
ed

 a
pp

ro
ac

h 
an

d 
w

at
er

sh
ed

 
pl

an
ni

ng
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n.
 T

he
 n

ew
 r

ul
e 

es
ta

bl
is

he
s 

pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
 

st
an

da
rd

s,
 

se
ts

 
tim

ef
ra

m
es

 f
or

 
de

ci
si

on
 m

ak
in

g,
 a

nd
 t

o 
th

e 
ex

te
nt

 p
os

si
bl

e,
 

es
ta

bl
is

he
s 

eq
ui

va
le

nt
 

re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

 
an

d 
st

an
da

rd
s 

fo
r 

th
e 

th
re

e 
so

ur
ce

s 
of

 
co

m
pe

ns
at

or
y 

m
iti

ga
tio

n:
 

o 
Pe

rm
ite

e-
re

sp
on

si
bl

e 
m

iti
ga

tio
n 

o 
C

on
tri

bu
tio

n 
of

 in
-li

eu
 fe

es
 

o 
U

se
 o

f m
iti

ga
tio

n 
ba

nk
 c

re
di

ts
 

 
R

eq
ui

re
 r

ev
ie

w
 o

f 
co

ns
tru

ct
io

n 
dr

aw
in

gs
 b

y 
a 

ce
rti

fie
d 

w
et

la
nd

 d
el

in
ea

to
r 

as
 p

ar
t 

of
 e

ac
h 

pr
oj

ec
t-s

pe
ci

fic
 

en
vi

ro
nm

en
ta

l 
an

al
ys

is
 

to
 

de
te

rm
in

e 
w

he
th

er
 w

et
la

nd
s 

w
ill

 b
e 

af
fe

ct
ed

 
an

d,
 i

f 
ne

ce
ss

ar
y,

 p
er

fo
rm

 a
 f

or
m

al
 w

et
la

nd
 

de
lin

ea
tio

n.
 

In
te

rfe
re

 w
ith

 t
he

 M
ov

em
en

t 
of

 S
pe

ci
es

, C
on

fli
ct

 w
ith

 L
oc

al
 

P
ol

ic
ie

s 
or

 
O

rd
in

an
ce

s 
P

ro
te

ct
in

g 
B

io
 

R
es

ou
rc

es
, 

C
on

fli
ct

 
w

ith
 

H
ab

ita
t 

C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
P

la
n,

 
N

at
ur

al
 

C
om

m
un

ity
 

C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
P

la
n,

 o
r 

O
th

er
 C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

M
M

-B
IO

-4
: 

C
on

si
st

en
t 

w
ith

 
th

e 
pr

ov
is

io
ns

 
of

 
Se

ct
io

n 
15

09
1 

of
 

th
e 

St
at

e 
C

EQ
A 

G
ui

de
lin

es
, 

SC
AG

 h
as

 id
en

tif
ie

d 
m

iti
ga

tio
n 

m
ea

su
re

s 
ca

pa
bl

e 
of

 a
vo

id
in

g 
or

 r
ed

uc
in

g 
th

e 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 im
pa

ct
s 

on
 

m
ig

ra
to

ry
 

fis
h 

or
 

w
ild

lif
e 

sp
ec

ie
s 

or
 

w
ith

in
 

es
ta

bl
is

he
d 

na
tiv

e 
re

si
de

nt
 a

nd
/o

r m
ig

ra
to

ry
 w

ild
lif

e 
co

rri
do

rs
, 

an
d 

na
tiv

e 
w

ild
lif

e 
nu

rs
er

y 
si

te
s 

th
at

 a
re

 
in

 t
he

 j
ur

is
di

ct
io

n 
an

d 
re

sp
on

si
bi

lit
y 

of
 U

.S
. 

Fi
sh

 

Th
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

al
re

ad
y 

su
bs

ta
nt

ia
lly

 
co

nf
or

m
s 

to
 

th
is

 
m

iti
ga

tio
n 

m
ea

su
re

. 
Th

e 
Pr

oj
ec

t 
is

 
lo

ca
te

d 
in

 
a 

de
ve

lo
pe

d,
 u

rb
an

 a
re

a 
an

d 
w

ou
ld

 b
e 

re
pl

ac
in

g 
ex

is
tin

g 
m

ul
ti-

fa
m

ily
 r

es
id

en
tia

l 
us

es
. 

Th
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

w
ou

ld
 n

ot
 b

e 
de

ve
lo

pe
d 

on
 

ex
is

tin
g 

op
en

 
sp

ac
e.

 
In

 
ad

di
tio

n,
 

th
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t w

ou
ld

 c
om

pl
y 

w
ith

 R
C

M
-B

IO
-1

: 
 RC

M
-B

IO
-1

: 
Th

e 
Pr

oj
ec

t 
w

ou
ld

 b
e 

re
qu

ire
d 

to
 c

om
pl

y 



 
M

iti
ga

tio
n 

M
ea

su
re

s 
fro

m
 P

rio
r E

IR
s 

 M
au

be
rt 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

 
 

C
ity

 o
f L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 

Su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

C
om

m
un

iti
es

 P
ro

je
ct

 E
xe

m
pt

io
n 

 
 

N
ov

em
be

r 2
01

9 
Pa

ge
 A

3-
25

 

Ta
bl

e 
A3

-1
 

M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
s 

fro
m

 P
rio

r E
IR

 (S
CA

G
’s

 2
01

6-
20

40
 R

TP
/S

CS
) 

 
Im

pa
ct

 
SC

AG
 2

01
6-

20
40

 R
TP

/S
CS

 M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
s 

(im
pl

em
en

te
d 

by
 le

ad
 a

ge
nc

y)
 

 
Ap

pl
ic

ab
ili

ty
 to

 th
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

P
la

n 
an

d 
W

ild
lif

e 
Se

rv
ic

e 
an

d 
th

e 
C

al
ifo

rn
ia

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

of
 F

is
h 

an
d 

W
ild

lif
e,

 U
.S

. 
Fo

re
st

 S
er

vi
ce

, 
pu

bl
ic

 
ag

en
ci

es
 a

nd
/o

r 
Le

ad
 A

ge
nc

ie
s,

 a
s 

ap
pl

ic
ab

le
 a

nd
 

fe
as

ib
le

. 
W

he
re

 t
he

 L
ea

d 
Ag

en
cy

 h
as

 i
de

nt
ifi

ed
 

th
at

 
a 

pr
oj

ec
t 

ha
s 

th
e 

po
te

nt
ia

l 
fo

r 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 
ef

fe
ct

s,
 th

e 
Le

ad
 A

ge
nc

y 
ca

n 
an

d 
sh

ou
ld

 c
on

si
de

r 
m

iti
ga

tio
n 

m
ea

su
re

s 
to

 
en

su
re

 
co

m
pl

ia
nc

e 
w

ith
 

re
gu

la
tio

ns
 o

f 
th

e 
U

SF
W

S,
 U

SF
S,

 C
D

FW
, 

an
d 

re
la

te
d 

re
gu

la
tio

ns
, 

go
al

s 
an

d 
po

lic
es

 o
f 

co
un

tie
s 

an
d 

ci
tie

s,
 

as
 

ap
pl

ic
ab

le
 

an
d 

fe
as

ib
le

. 
Su

ch
 

m
ea

su
re

s 
m

ay
 

in
cl

ud
e 

th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g,
 

or
 

ot
he

r 
co

m
pa

ra
bl

e 
m

ea
su

re
s 

id
en

tif
ie

d 
by

 
th

e 
Le

ad
 

Ag
en

cy
: 

  
C

on
su

lt 
w

ith
 t

he
 U

SF
W

S,
 U

SF
S,

 C
D

FW
, 

an
d 

co
un

tie
s 

an
d 

ci
tie

s 
in

 th
e 

SC
AG

 r
eg

io
n,

 w
he

re
 

im
pa

ct
s 

to
 b

ird
s 

af
fo

rd
ed

 p
ro

te
ct

io
n 

pu
rs

ua
nt

 to
 

th
e 

M
ig

ra
to

ry
 

Bi
rd

 
Tr

ea
ty

 
Ac

t 
du

rin
g 

th
e 

br
ee

di
ng

 s
ea

so
n 

m
ay

 o
cc

ur
. 

 
C

on
su

lt 
w

ith
 

th
e 

U
SF

S 
w

he
re

 
im

pa
ct

s 
to

 
m

ig
ra

to
ry

 w
ild

lif
e 

co
rri

do
rs

 m
ay

 o
cc

ur
 i

n 
an

 
ar

ea
 a

ffo
rd

ed
 p

ro
te

ct
io

n 
by

 a
n 

ad
op

te
d 

Fo
re

st
 

La
nd

 
M

an
ag

em
en

t 
Pl

an
 

or
 

R
es

ou
rc

e 
M

an
ag

em
en

t P
la

n 
fo

r 
th

e 
fo

ur
 n

at
io

na
l f

or
es

ts
 

in
 t

he
 s

ix
-C

ou
nt

y 
ar

ea
: 

An
ge

le
s,

 C
le

ve
la

nd
, 

Lo
s 

Pa
dr

es
, a

nd
 S

an
 B

er
na

rd
in

o.
 

 
C

on
su

lt 
w

ith
 c

ou
nt

ie
s,

 c
iti

es
, 

an
d 

ot
he

r 
lo

ca
l 

or
ga

ni
za

tio
ns

 w
he

n 
im

pa
ct

s 
m

ay
 o

cc
ur

 to
 o

pe
n 

sp
ac

e 
ar

ea
s 

th
at

 h
av

e 
be

en
 d

es
ig

na
te

d 
as

 
im

po
rta

nt
 fo

r w
ild

lif
e 

m
ov

em
en

t. 
 

Pr
oh

ib
it 

co
ns

tru
ct

io
n 

ac
tiv

iti
es

 w
ith

in
 5

00
 f

ee
t 

of
 o

cc
up

ie
d 

br
ee

di
ng

 a
re

as
 fo

r w
ild

lif
e 

af
fo

rd
ed

 
pr

ot
ec

tio
n 

pu
rs

ua
nt

 t
o 

Ti
tle

 1
4 

§ 
46

0 
of

 t
he

 
C

al
ifo

rn
ia

 C
od

e 
of

 R
eg

ul
at

io
ns

 p
ro

te
ct

in
g 

fu
r-

be
ar

in
g 

m
am

m
al

s,
 d

ur
in

g 
th

e 
br

ee
di

ng
 s

ea
so

n.
 

 
Pr

oh
ib

it 
cl

ea
rin

g 
of

 v
eg

et
at

io
n 

an
d 

co
ns

tru
ct

io
n 

w
ith

 t
he

 M
ig

ra
to

ry
 B

ird
 T

re
at

y 
Ac

t 
(M

BT
A)

 (
Ti

tle
 3

3,
 

U
ni

te
d 

St
at

es
 C

od
e,

 S
ec

tio
n 

70
3 

et
 s

eq
., 

se
e 

al
so

 T
itl

e 
50

, 
C

od
e 

of
 F

ed
er

al
 R

eg
ul

at
io

ns
, 

Pa
rt 

10
) 

an
d 

Se
ct

io
n 

35
03

 o
f 

th
e 

C
al

ifo
rn

ia
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
of

 F
is

h 
an

d 
W

ild
lif

e 
C

od
e,

 w
hi

ch
 r

eg
ul

at
es

 v
eg

et
at

io
n 

re
m

ov
al

 d
ur

in
g 

th
e 

ne
st

in
g 

se
as

on
 (F

eb
ru

ar
y 

15
 to

 A
ug

us
t 1

5)
 to

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 im
pa

ct
s 

to
 m

ig
ra

to
ry

 b
ird

s 
w

ou
ld

 n
ot

 o
cc

ur
. T

o 
th

e 
ex

te
nt

 t
ha

t 
ex

is
tin

g 
tre

es
 a

re
 r

em
ov

ed
 d

ur
in

g 
th

e 
ne

st
in

g 
se

as
on

, 
a 

bi
ol

og
ic

al
 m

on
ito

r 
w

ou
ld

 b
e 

pr
es

en
t 

du
rin

g 
th

e 
re

m
ov

al
 a

ct
iv

iti
es

 t
o 

en
su

re
 t

ha
t 

no
 a

ct
iv

e 
ne

st
s 

w
ou

ld
 

be
 

im
pa

ct
ed

. 
If 

an
y 

ac
tiv

e 
ne

st
s 

ar
e 

de
te

ct
ed

, 
th

e 
ar

ea
 

w
ou

ld
 

be
 

fla
gg

ed
 

w
ith

 
a 

bu
ffe

r 
(ra

ng
in

g 
be

tw
ee

n 
50

 a
nd

 3
00

 fe
et

, a
s 

de
te

rm
in

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
m

on
ito

rin
g 

bi
ol

og
is

t),
 a

nd
 th

e 
ar

ea
 w

ou
ld

 b
e 

av
oi

de
d 

un
til

 
th

e 
ne

st
in

g 
cy

cl
e 

ha
s 

be
en

 c
om

pl
et

ed
 o

r 
th

e 
m

on
ito

rin
g 

bi
ol

og
is

t h
as

 d
et

er
m

in
ed

 th
at

 th
e 

ne
st

 h
as

 fa
ile

d.
 

 C
om

pl
ia

nc
e 

w
ith

 th
es

e 
ex

is
tin

g 
re

gu
la

tio
ns

 w
ou

ld
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

at
 a

ny
 p

ot
en

tia
l i

m
pa

ct
s 

w
ou

ld
 b

e 
le

ss
 th

an
 s

ig
ni

fic
an

t. 
   



 
M

iti
ga

tio
n 

M
ea

su
re

s 
fro

m
 P

rio
r E

IR
s 

 M
au

be
rt 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

 
 

C
ity

 o
f L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 

Su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

C
om

m
un

iti
es

 P
ro

je
ct

 E
xe

m
pt

io
n 

 
 

N
ov

em
be

r 2
01

9 
Pa

ge
 A

3-
26

 

Ta
bl

e 
A3

-1
 

M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
s 

fro
m

 P
rio

r E
IR

 (S
CA

G
’s

 2
01

6-
20

40
 R

TP
/S

CS
) 

 
Im

pa
ct

 
SC

AG
 2

01
6-

20
40

 R
TP

/S
CS

 M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
s 

(im
pl

em
en

te
d 

by
 le

ad
 a

ge
nc

y)
 

 
Ap

pl
ic

ab
ili

ty
 to

 th
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

w
ith

in
 

th
e 

pe
ak

 
av

ia
n 

br
ee

di
ng

 
se

as
on

 
(F

eb
ru

ar
y 

1s
t 

th
ro

ug
h 

Se
pt

em
be

r 
1s

t),
 w

he
re

 
fe

as
ib

le
. 

 
C

on
du

ct
 

w
ee

kl
y 

su
rv

ey
s 

to
 

id
en

tif
y 

ac
tiv

e 
ra

pt
or

 a
nd

 o
th

er
 m

ig
ra

to
ry

 n
on

ga
m

e 
bi

rd
 n

es
ts

 
by

 
a 

qu
al

ifi
ed

 
bi

ol
og

is
t 

w
ith

 
ex

pe
rie

nc
e 

in
 

co
nd

uc
tin

g 
br

ee
di

ng
 b

ird
 s

ur
ve

ys
 w

ith
in

 t
hr

ee
 

da
ys

 
pr

io
r 

to
 

th
e 

w
or

k 
in

 
th

e 
ar

ea
 

fro
m

 
Fe

br
ua

ry
 1

 th
ro

ug
h 

Au
gu

st
 3

1.
 

 
Pr

oh
ib

it 
co

ns
tru

ct
io

n 
ac

tiv
iti

es
 w

ith
 3

00
 f

ee
t 

(5
00

 fe
et

 fo
r r

ap
to

rs
) o

f o
cc

up
ie

d 
ne

st
s 

of
 b

ird
s 

af
fo

rd
ed

 p
ro

te
ct

io
n 

pu
rs

ua
nt

 t
o 

th
e 

M
ig

ra
to

ry
 

Bi
rd

 T
re

at
y 

Ac
t, 

du
rin

g 
th

e 
br

ee
di

ng
 s

ea
so

n.
 

D
el

in
ea

te
 

th
e 

no
n-

di
st

ur
ba

nc
e 

bu
ffe

r 
by

 
te

m
po

ra
ry

 fe
nc

in
g 

an
d 

ke
ep

 th
e 

bu
ffe

r i
n 

pl
ac

e 
un

til
 c

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

is
 c

om
pl

et
e 

or
 th

e 
ne

st
 is

 n
o 

lo
ng

er
 

ac
tiv

e.
 

N
o 

co
ns

tru
ct

io
n 

sh
al

l 
oc

cu
r 

w
ith

in
 t

he
 f

en
ce

d 
ne

st
 z

on
e 

un
til

 t
he

 y
ou

ng
 

ha
ve

 f
le

dg
ed

, 
ar

e 
no

 l
on

ge
r 

be
in

g 
fe

d 
by

 t
he

 
pa

re
nt

s,
 h

av
e 

le
ft 

th
e 

ne
st

, 
an

d 
w

ill 
no

 lo
ng

er
 

be
 

im
pa

ct
ed

 
by

 
th

e 
pr

oj
ec

t. 
R

ed
uc

tio
ns

 
or

 
ex

pa
ns

io
ns

 in
 th

e 
ne

st
 b

uf
fe

r 
di

st
an

ce
 m

ay
 b

e 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

 d
ep

en
di

ng
 o

n 
th

e 
av

ia
n 

sp
ec

ie
s 

in
vo

lv
ed

, 
am

bi
en

t 
le

ve
ls

 
of

 
hu

m
an

 
ac

tiv
ity

, 
sc

re
en

in
g 

ve
ge

ta
tio

n,
 o

r p
os

si
bl

y 
ot

he
r f

ac
to

rs
. 

 
En

su
re

 th
at

 s
ui

ta
bl

e 
ne

st
in

g 
si

te
s 

fo
r m

ig
ra

to
ry

 
no

ng
am

e 
na

tiv
e 

bi
rd

 s
pe

ci
es

 p
ro

te
ct

ed
 u

nd
er

 
th

e 
M

ig
ra

to
ry

 B
ird

 T
re

at
y 

Ac
t a

nd
/o

r t
re

es
 w

ith
 

un
oc

cu
pi

ed
 

ra
pt

or
 

ne
st

s 
sh

ou
ld

 
on

ly
 

be
 

re
m

ov
ed

 p
rio

r 
to

 F
eb

ru
ar

y 
1,

 o
r 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
th

e 
ne

st
in

g 
se

as
on

. 
 

C
on

du
ct

 s
ite

-s
pe

ci
fic

 a
na

ly
se

s 
of

 o
pp

or
tu

ni
tie

s 
to

 p
re

se
rv

e 
or

 i
m

pr
ov

e 
ha

bi
ta

t 
lin

ka
ge

s 
w

ith
 

ar
ea

s 
on

- 
an

d 
of

f-s
ite

. 
An

al
yz

e 
ha

bi
ta

t 
lin

ka
ge

s/
w

ild
lif

e 
m

ov
em

en
t 

co
rri

do
rs

 
on

 
a 

br
oa

de
r 

an
d 

cu
m

ul
at

iv
e 

im
pa

ct
 a

na
ly

si
s 

sc
al

e 



 
M

iti
ga

tio
n 

M
ea

su
re

s 
fro

m
 P

rio
r E

IR
s 

 M
au

be
rt 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

 
 

C
ity

 o
f L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 

Su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

C
om

m
un

iti
es

 P
ro

je
ct

 E
xe

m
pt

io
n 

 
 

N
ov

em
be

r 2
01

9 
Pa

ge
 A

3-
27

 

Ta
bl

e 
A3

-1
 

M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
s 

fro
m

 P
rio

r E
IR

 (S
CA

G
’s

 2
01

6-
20

40
 R

TP
/S

CS
) 

 
Im

pa
ct

 
SC

AG
 2

01
6-

20
40

 R
TP

/S
CS

 M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
s 

(im
pl

em
en

te
d 

by
 le

ad
 a

ge
nc

y)
 

 
Ap

pl
ic

ab
ili

ty
 to

 th
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

to
 a

vo
id

 a
dv

er
se

 i
m

pa
ct

s 
fro

m
 l

in
ea

r 
pr

oj
ec

ts
 

th
at

 h
av

e 
po

te
nt

ia
l 

fo
r 

im
pa

ct
s 

on
 a

 b
ro

ad
er

 
sc

al
e 

or
 c

rit
ic

al
 n

ar
ro

w
 c

ho
ke

 p
oi

nt
s 

th
at

 c
ou

ld
 

re
du

ce
 

fu
nc

tio
n 

of
 

re
co

gn
iz

ed
 

m
ov

em
en

t 
co

rri
do

rs
 o

n 
a 

la
rg

er
 s

ca
le

. 
R

eq
ui

re
 r

ev
ie

w
 o

f 
co

ns
tru

ct
io

n 
dr

aw
in

gs
 a

nd
 h

ab
ita

t 
co

nn
ec

tiv
ity

 
m

ap
pi

ng
 p

ro
vi

de
d 

by
 th

e 
C

D
FW

 o
r C

N
D

D
B 

by
 

a 
qu

al
ifi

ed
 b

io
lo

gi
st

 t
o 

de
te

rm
in

e 
th

e 
ris

k 
of

 
ha

bi
ta

t f
ra

gm
en

ta
tio

n.
 

 
Pu

rs
ue

 m
iti

ga
tio

n 
ba

nk
in

g 
to

 p
re

se
rv

e 
ha

bi
ta

t 
lin

ka
ge

s 
an

d 
co

rri
do

rs
 

(o
pp

or
tu

ni
tie

s 
to

 
pu

rc
ha

se
, 

m
ai

nt
ai

n,
 

an
d/

or
 

re
st

or
e 

of
fs

ite
 

ha
bi

ta
t).

 
 

D
em

on
st

ra
te

 th
at

 P
ro

je
ct

s 
w

ou
ld

 n
ot

 a
dv

er
se

ly
 

af
fe

ct
 

m
ov

em
en

t 
of

 
an

y 
na

tiv
e 

re
si

de
nt

 
or

 
m

ig
ra

to
ry

 
fis

h 
or

 
w

ild
lif

e 
sp

ec
ie

s,
 

w
ild

lif
e 

m
ov

em
en

t 
co

rri
do

rs
, 

or
 w

ild
lif

e 
nu

rs
er

y 
si

te
s 

th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

in
co

rp
or

at
io

n 
of

 
av

oi
da

nc
e 

st
ra

te
gi

es
 

in
to

 
pr

oj
ec

t 
de

si
gn

, 
w

he
re

ve
r 

pr
ac

tic
ab

le
 a

nd
 fe

as
ib

le
. 

 
Ev

al
ua

te
 

th
e 

po
te

nt
ia

l 
fo

r 
ov

er
pa

ss
es

, 
un

de
rp

as
se

s,
 a

nd
 c

ul
ve

rts
 i

n 
ca

se
s 

w
he

re
 a

 
ro

ad
w

ay
 o

r 
ot

he
r 

tra
ns

po
rta

tio
n 

pr
oj

ec
t 

m
ay

 
in

te
rru

pt
 

th
e 

flo
w

 
of

 
sp

ec
ie

s 
th

ro
ug

h 
th

ei
r 

ha
bi

ta
t. 

Pr
ov

id
e 

w
ild

lif
e 

cr
os

si
ng

s 
in

 
ac

co
rd

an
ce

 w
ith

 p
ro

ve
n 

st
an

da
rd

s,
 s

uc
h 

as
 

FH
W

A’
s 

C
rit

te
r 

C
ro

ss
in

gs
 o

r 
Ve

nt
ur

a 
C

ou
nt

y 
M

iti
ga

tio
n 

G
ui

de
lin

es
 a

nd
 i

n 
co

ns
ul

ta
tio

n 
w

ith
 

w
ild

lif
e 

co
rri

do
r 

au
th

or
iti

es
 

w
ith

 
su

ffi
ci

en
t 

kn
ow

le
dg

e 
of

 b
ot

h 
re

gi
on

al
 a

nd
 l

oc
al

 w
ild

lif
e 

co
rri

do
rs

, 
an

d 
at

 
lo

ca
tio

ns
 

us
ef

ul
 

an
d 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
 fo

r t
he

 s
pe

ci
es

 o
f c

on
ce

rn
. 

 
In

st
al

l 
w

ild
lif

e 
fe

nc
in

g 
w

he
re

 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

 
to

 
m

in
im

iz
e 

th
e 

pr
ob

ab
ilit

y 
of

 w
ild

lif
e 

in
ju

ry
 d

ue
 to

 
di

re
ct

 in
te

ra
ct

io
n 

be
tw

ee
n 

w
ild

lif
e 

an
d 

ro
ad

s 
or

 
co

ns
tru

ct
io

n.
 



 
M

iti
ga

tio
n 

M
ea

su
re

s 
fro

m
 P

rio
r E

IR
s 

 M
au

be
rt 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

 
 

C
ity

 o
f L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 

Su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

C
om

m
un

iti
es

 P
ro

je
ct

 E
xe

m
pt

io
n 

 
 

N
ov

em
be

r 2
01

9 
Pa

ge
 A

3-
28

 

Ta
bl

e 
A3

-1
 

M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
s 

fro
m

 P
rio

r E
IR

 (S
CA

G
’s

 2
01

6-
20

40
 R

TP
/S

CS
) 

 
Im

pa
ct

 
SC

AG
 2

01
6-

20
40

 R
TP

/S
CS

 M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
s 

(im
pl

em
en

te
d 

by
 le

ad
 a

ge
nc

y)
 

 
Ap

pl
ic

ab
ili

ty
 to

 th
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

 
Es

ta
bl

is
h 

na
tiv

e 
ve

ge
ta

tio
n 

an
d 

fa
ci

lit
at

e 
th

e 
en

ha
nc

em
en

t 
an

d 
m

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 o

f 
bi

ol
og

ic
al

 
di

ve
rs

ity
 

w
ith

in
 

ex
is

tin
g 

ha
bi

ta
t 

po
ck

et
s 

in
 

ur
ba

n 
en

vi
ro

nm
en

ts
 th

at
 p

ro
vi

de
 c

on
ne

ct
iv

ity
 to

 
la

rg
e-

sc
al

e 
ha

bi
ta

t a
re

as
. 

 
W

he
re

 
av

oi
da

nc
e 

is
 

de
te

rm
in

ed
 

to
 

be
 

in
fe

as
ib

le
, 

de
si

gn
 

su
ffi

ci
en

t 
co

ns
er

va
tio

n 
m

ea
su

re
s 

th
ro

ug
h 

co
or

di
na

tio
n 

w
ith

 
lo

ca
l 

ag
en

ci
es

 
an

d 
th

e 
re

gu
la

to
ry

 
ag

en
cy

 
(i.

e.
, 

U
SF

W
S 

or
 C

D
FW

) a
nd

 in
 a

cc
or

da
nc

e 
w

ith
 th

e 
re

sp
ec

tiv
e 

co
un

tie
s 

an
d 

ci
tie

s 
ge

ne
ra

l p
la

ns
 to

 
es

ta
bl

is
h 

pl
an

s 
to

 m
iti

ga
te

 f
or

 t
he

 lo
ss

 o
f 

fis
h 

an
d 

w
ild

lif
e 

m
ov

em
en

t c
or

rid
or

s 
an

d/
or

 w
ild

lif
e 

nu
rs

er
y 

si
te

s.
 

Th
e 

co
ns

id
er

at
io

n 
of

 
co

ns
er

va
tio

n 
m

ea
su

re
s 

m
ay

 
in

cl
ud

e 
th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

m
ea

su
re

s,
 

in
 

ad
di

tio
n 

to
 

th
e 

m
ea

su
re

s 
ou

tli
ne

d 
in

 
M

M
-B

IO
-1

(b
), 

w
he

re
 

ap
pl

ic
ab

le
: 

o 
W

ild
lif

e 
m

ov
em

en
t b

uf
fe

r z
on

es
 

o 
C

or
rid

or
 re

al
ig

nm
en

t 
o 

Ap
pr

op
ria

te
ly

 s
pa

ce
d 

br
ea

ks
 in

 c
en

te
r 

ba
rri

er
s 

o 
St

re
am

 re
ro

ut
in

g 
o 

C
ul

ve
rts

 
o 

C
re

at
io

n 
of

 
ar

tif
ic

ia
l 

m
ov

em
en

t 
co

rri
do

rs
 s

uc
h 

as
 f

re
ew

ay
 u

nd
er

- 
or

 
ov

er
pa

ss
es

 
o 

O
th

er
 c

om
pa

ra
bl

e 
m

ea
su

re
s 

 
W

he
re

 t
he

 L
ea

d 
Ag

en
cy

 h
as

 i
de

nt
ifi

ed
 t

ha
t 

a 
R

TP
/S

C
S 

pr
oj

ec
t, 

or
 o

th
er

 re
gi

on
al

ly
 s

ig
ni

fic
an

t 
pr

oj
ec

t, 
ha

s 
th

e 
po

te
nt

ia
l t

o 
im

pa
ct

 o
th

er
 o

pe
n 

sp
ac

e 
or

 n
ur

se
ry

 s
ite

 a
re

as
, 

se
ek

 c
om

pa
ra

bl
e 

co
ve

ra
ge

 f
or

 t
he

se
 a

re
as

 i
n 

co
ns

ul
ta

tio
n 

w
ith

 
th

e 
U

SF
W

S,
 

C
D

FW
, 

N
M

FS
, 

or
 

ot
he

r 
lo

ca
l 

ju
ris

di
ct

io
ns

. 
 

Pr
oj

ec
t s

po
ns

or
s 

sh
ou

ld
 e

m
ph

as
iz

e 
th

at
 u

rb
an

 



 
M

iti
ga

tio
n 

M
ea

su
re

s 
fro

m
 P

rio
r E

IR
s 

 M
au

be
rt 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

 
 

C
ity

 o
f L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 

Su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

C
om

m
un

iti
es

 P
ro

je
ct

 E
xe

m
pt

io
n 

 
 

N
ov

em
be

r 2
01

9 
Pa

ge
 A

3-
29

 

Ta
bl

e 
A3

-1
 

M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
s 

fro
m

 P
rio

r E
IR

 (S
CA

G
’s

 2
01

6-
20

40
 R

TP
/S

CS
) 

 
Im

pa
ct

 
SC

AG
 2

01
6-

20
40

 R
TP

/S
CS

 M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
s 

(im
pl

em
en

te
d 

by
 le

ad
 a

ge
nc

y)
 

 
Ap

pl
ic

ab
ili

ty
 to

 th
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

ha
bi

ta
ts

 a
nd

 th
e 

pl
an

t a
nd

 w
ild

lif
e 

sp
ec

ie
s 

th
ey

 
su

pp
or

t 
ar

e 
in

de
ed

 v
al

ua
bl

e,
 d

es
pi

te
 t

he
 f

ac
t 

th
ey

 
ar

e 
lo

ca
te

d 
in

 
ur

ba
ni

ze
d 

(p
re

vi
ou

sl
y 

di
st

ur
be

d)
 

ar
ea

s.
 

Es
ta

bl
is

he
d 

ha
bi

ta
t 

co
nn

ec
tiv

ity
 

an
d 

w
ild

lif
e 

co
rri

do
rs

 
in

 
th

es
e 

ur
ba

n 
ec

os
ys

te
m

s 
w

ill
 li

ke
ly

 b
e 

im
pa

ct
ed

 w
ith

 
fu

rth
er

 
ur

ba
ni

za
tio

n,
 

as
 

pr
op

os
ed

 
in

 
th

e 
Pr

oj
ec

t. 
Ap

pr
op

ria
te

 
m

iti
ga

tio
n 

m
ea

su
re

s 
sh

ou
ld

 
be

 
pr

op
os

ed
, 

de
ve

lo
pe

d,
 

an
d 

im
pl

em
en

te
d 

in
 

th
es

e 
se

ns
iti

ve
 

ur
ba

n 
m

ic
ro

ha
bi

ta
ts

 t
o 

su
pp

or
t 

or
 e

nh
an

ce
 t

he
 r

ic
h 

di
ve

rs
ity

 o
f u

rb
an

 p
la

nt
 a

nd
 w

ild
lif

e 
sp

ec
ie

s.
 

 
Es

ta
bl

is
h 

na
tiv

e 
ve

ge
ta

tio
n 

w
ith

in
 

ha
bi

ta
t 

po
ck

et
s 

or
 t

he
 “

w
ild

lin
g 

of
 u

rb
an

iz
ed

 h
ab

ita
ts

” 
th

at
 

fa
ci

lit
at

e 
th

e 
en

ha
nc

em
en

t 
an

d 
m

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 o

f 
bi

ol
og

ic
al

 d
iv

er
si

ty
 i

n 
th

es
e 

ar
ea

s.
 T

he
se

 h
ab

ita
t p

oc
ke

ts
, a

s 
th

e 
ho

ps
co

tc
h 

ac
ro

ss
 

an
 

ur
ba

n 
en

vi
ro

nm
en

t, 
pr

ov
id

e 
co

nn
ec

tiv
ity

 to
 la

rg
e-

sc
al

e 
ha

bi
ta

t a
re

as
. 

C
on

fli
ct

 w
ith

 L
oc

al
 P

ol
ic

ie
s 

or
 

O
rd

in
an

ce
s 

P
ro

te
ct

in
g 

B
io

 
R

es
ou

rc
es

, 
C

on
fli

ct
 

w
ith

 
H

ab
ita

t 
C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

P
la

n,
 

N
at

ur
al

 
C

om
m

un
ity

 
C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

P
la

n,
 o

r 
O

th
er

 
C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

P
la

n 

M
M

-B
IO

-5
: 

C
on

si
st

en
t 

w
ith

 
th

e 
pr

ov
is

io
ns

 
of

 
Se

ct
io

n 
15

09
1 

of
 

th
e 

St
at

e 
C

EQ
A 

G
ui

de
lin

es
, 

SC
AG

 h
as

 id
en

tif
ie

d 
m

iti
ga

tio
n 

m
ea

su
re

s 
ca

pa
bl

e 
of

 
av

oi
di

ng
 

or
 

re
du

ci
ng

 
th

e 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 
im

pa
ct

s 
re

la
te

d 
to

 
co

nf
lic

ts
 

w
ith

 
an

y 
lo

ca
l 

po
lic

ie
s 

or
 

or
di

na
nc

es
 p

ro
te

ct
in

g 
bi

ol
og

ic
al

 re
so

ur
ce

s,
 s

uc
h 

as
 

a 
tre

e 
pr

es
er

va
tio

n 
po

lic
y 

or
 o

rd
in

an
ce

, t
ha

t a
re

 in
 

th
e 

ju
ris

di
ct

io
n 

an
d 

re
sp

on
si

bi
lit

y 
of

 
lo

ca
l 

ju
ris

di
ct

io
ns

 
an

d/
or

 
Le

ad
 

Ag
en

ci
es

. 
W

he
re

 
th

e 
Le

ad
 A

ge
nc

y 
ha

s 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

th
at

 a
 p

ro
je

ct
 h

as
 t

he
 

po
te

nt
ia

l 
fo

r 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 e
ffe

ct
s,

 t
he

 L
ea

d 
Ag

en
cy

 
ca

n 
an

d 
sh

ou
ld

 c
on

si
de

r 
m

iti
ga

tio
n 

m
ea

su
re

s 
to

 
co

m
pl

y 
w

ith
 

co
un

ty
, 

ci
ty

 
an

d 
lo

ca
l 

po
lic

ie
s 

or
 

or
di

na
nc

es
, 

pr
ot

ec
tin

g 
bi

ol
og

ic
al

 r
es

ou
rc

es
, 

su
ch

 
as

 t
re

e 
pr

es
er

va
tio

n 
po

lic
ie

s 
or

 o
rd

in
an

ce
s,

 a
s 

ap
pl

ic
ab

le
 

an
d 

fe
as

ib
le

. 
Su

ch
 

m
ea

su
re

s 
m

ay
 

in
cl

ud
e 

th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g,
 

or
 

ot
he

r 
co

m
pa

ra
bl

e 

Th
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

al
re

ad
y 

su
bs

ta
nt

ia
lly

 
co

nf
or

m
s 

to
 

th
is

 
m

iti
ga

tio
n 

m
ea

su
re

. 
Th

e 
Pr

oj
ec

t 
is

 
lo

ca
te

d 
in

 
a 

de
ve

lo
pe

d,
 u

rb
an

 a
re

a 
an

d 
w

ou
ld

 b
e 

re
pl

ac
in

g 
ex

is
tin

g 
m

ul
ti-

fa
m

ily
 r

es
id

en
tia

l 
us

es
. 

Th
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

w
ou

ld
 n

ot
 b

e 
de

ve
lo

pe
d 

on
 e

xi
st

in
g 

op
en

 s
pa

ce
. T

he
 P

ro
je

ct
 S

ite
 d

oe
s 

no
t 

co
nt

ai
n 

an
y 

pr
ot

ec
te

d 
tre

es
. 

In
 a

dd
iti

on
, 

th
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

w
ou

ld
 c

om
pl

y 
w

ith
 R

C
M

-B
IO

-2
, 

pr
ov

id
ed

 b
el

ow
. 

Th
us

, 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t 
of

 t
he

 P
ro

je
ct

 w
ou

ld
 n

ot
 c

on
fli

ct
 w

ith
 a

ny
 

lo
ca

l 
po

lic
ie

s 
or

 
or

di
na

nc
es

 
pr

ot
ec

tin
g 

bi
ol

og
ic

al
 

re
so

ur
ce

s 
an

d 
th

es
e 

m
iti

ga
tio

n 
m

ea
su

re
s 

do
 n

ot
 a

pp
ly

. 
 RC

M
-B

IO
-2

: 
Th

e 
Pr

oj
ec

t 
w

ou
ld

 c
om

pl
y 

w
ith

 t
he

 C
ity

 o
f 

Lo
s 

An
ge

le
s 

O
rd

in
an

ce
 N

o.
 1

77
,4

04
 (t

he
 C

ity
’s

 P
ro

te
ct

ed
 

Tr
ee

 O
rd

in
an

ce
). 



 
M

iti
ga

tio
n 

M
ea

su
re

s 
fro

m
 P

rio
r E

IR
s 

 M
au

be
rt 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

 
 

C
ity

 o
f L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 

Su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

C
om

m
un

iti
es

 P
ro

je
ct

 E
xe

m
pt

io
n 

 
 

N
ov

em
be

r 2
01

9 
Pa

ge
 A

3-
30

 

Ta
bl

e 
A3

-1
 

M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
s 

fro
m

 P
rio

r E
IR

 (S
CA

G
’s

 2
01

6-
20

40
 R

TP
/S

CS
) 

 
Im

pa
ct

 
SC

AG
 2

01
6-

20
40

 R
TP

/S
CS

 M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
s 

(im
pl

em
en

te
d 

by
 le

ad
 a

ge
nc

y)
 

 
Ap

pl
ic

ab
ili

ty
 to

 th
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

m
ea

su
re

s 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

by
 th

e 
Le

ad
 A

ge
nc

y:
 

 
C

on
su

lt 
w

ith
 

th
e 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
 

lo
ca

l 
ag

en
cy

 
re

sp
on

si
bl

e 
fo

r 
th

e 
ad

m
in

is
tra

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
po

lic
y 

or
 o

rd
in

an
ce

 p
ro

te
ct

in
g 

bi
ol

og
ic

al
 re

so
ur

ce
s.

 
 

Pr
io

rit
iz

e 
re

te
nt

io
n 

of
 t

re
es

 o
n-

si
te

 c
on

si
st

en
t 

w
ith

 
lo

ca
l 

re
gu

la
tio

ns
. 

Pr
ov

id
e 

ad
eq

ua
te

 
pr

ot
ec

tio
n 

du
rin

g 
th

e 
co

ns
tru

ct
io

n 
pe

rio
d 

fo
r 

an
y 

tre
es

 
th

at
 

ar
e 

to
 

re
m

ai
n 

st
an

di
ng

, 
as

 
re

co
m

m
en

de
d 

by
 a

 c
er

tif
ie

d 
ar

bo
ris

t. 
 

If 
sp

ec
ifi

c 
pr

oj
ec

t a
re

a 
tre

es
 a

re
 d

es
ig

na
te

d 
as

 
“P

ro
te

ct
ed

 
Tr

ee
s,

” 
“L

an
dm

ar
k 

Tr
ee

s,
” 

or
 

“H
er

ita
ge

 
Tr

ee
s,

” 
ob

ta
in

 
ap

pr
ov

al
 

fo
r 

en
cr

oa
ch

m
en

t 
or

 
re

m
ov

al
s 

th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
 

en
tit

y,
 

an
d 

de
ve

lo
p 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
 

m
iti

ga
tio

n 
m

ea
su

re
s 

at
 th

at
 ti

m
e,

 to
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

at
 

th
e 

tre
es

 a
re

 re
pl

ac
ed

. M
iti

ga
tio

n 
tre

es
 s

ha
ll 

be
 

lo
ca

lly
 c

ol
le

ct
ed

 n
at

iv
e 

sp
ec

ie
s.

 
 

Be
fo

re
 t

he
 s

ta
rt 

of
 a

ny
 c

le
ar

in
g,

 e
xc

av
at

io
n,

 
co

ns
tru

ct
io

n 
or

 o
th

er
 w

or
k 

on
 th

e 
si

te
, s

ec
ur

el
y 

fe
nc

e 
of

f 
ev

er
y 

pr
ot

ec
te

d 
tre

e 
de

em
ed

 t
o 

be
 

po
te

nt
ia

lly
 e

nd
an

ge
re

d 
by

 s
ai

d 
si

te
 w

or
k.

 K
ee

p 
su

ch
 f

en
ce

s 
in

 p
la

ce
 f

or
 d

ur
at

io
n 

of
 a

ll 
su

ch
 

w
or

k.
 C

le
ar

ly
 m

ar
k 

al
l 

tre
es

 t
o 

be
 r

em
ov

ed
. 

Es
ta

bl
is

h 
a 

sc
he

m
e 

fo
r 

th
e 

re
m

ov
al

 
an

d 
di

sp
os

al
 o

f l
og

s,
 b

ru
sh

, e
ar

th
 a

nd
 o

th
er

 d
eb

ris
 

th
at

 w
ill 

av
oi

d 
in

ju
ry

 to
 a

ny
 p

ro
te

ct
ed

 tr
ee

. 
 

W
he

re
 

pr
op

os
ed

 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t 
or

 
ot

he
r 

si
te

 
w

or
k 

co
ul

d 
en

cr
oa

ch
 

up
on

 
th

e 
pr

ot
ec

te
d 

pe
rim

et
er

 o
f 

an
y 

pr
ot

ec
te

d 
tre

e,
 i

nc
or

po
ra

te
 

sp
ec

ia
l m

ea
su

re
s 

to
 a

llo
w

 th
e 

ro
ot

s 
to

 b
re

at
he

 
an

d 
ob

ta
in

 w
at

er
 a

nd
 n

ut
rie

nt
s.

 M
in

im
iz

e 
an

y 
ex

ca
va

tio
n,

 c
ut

tin
g,

 fi
lin

g,
 o

r c
om

pa
ct

io
n 

of
 th

e 
ex

is
tin

g 
gr

ou
nd

 s
ur

fa
ce

 w
ith

in
 t

he
 p

ro
te

ct
ed

 
pe

rim
et

er
. 

R
eq

ui
re

 t
ha

t 
no

 c
ha

ng
e 

in
 e

xi
st

in
g 

gr
ou

nd
 

le
ve

l 
oc

cu
r 

fro
m

 
th

e 
ba

se
 

of
 

an
y 

pr
ot

ec
te

d 
tre

e 
at

 a
ny

 t
im

e.
 R

eq
ui

re
 t

ha
t 

no
 



 
M

iti
ga

tio
n 

M
ea

su
re

s 
fro

m
 P

rio
r E

IR
s 

 M
au

be
rt 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

 
 

C
ity

 o
f L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 

Su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

C
om

m
un

iti
es

 P
ro

je
ct

 E
xe

m
pt

io
n 

 
 

N
ov

em
be

r 2
01

9 
Pa

ge
 A

3-
31

 

Ta
bl

e 
A3

-1
 

M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
s 

fro
m

 P
rio

r E
IR

 (S
CA

G
’s

 2
01

6-
20

40
 R

TP
/S

CS
) 

 
Im

pa
ct

 
SC

AG
 2

01
6-

20
40

 R
TP

/S
CS

 M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
s 

(im
pl

em
en

te
d 

by
 le

ad
 a

ge
nc

y)
 

 
Ap

pl
ic

ab
ili

ty
 to

 th
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

bu
rn

in
g 

or
 u

se
 o

f 
eq

ui
pm

en
t 

w
ith

 a
n 

op
en

 
fla

m
e 

oc
cu

r 
ne

ar
 

or
 

w
ith

in
 

th
e 

pr
ot

ec
te

d 
pe

rim
et

er
 o

f a
ny

 p
ro

te
ct

ed
 tr

ee
. 

 
R

eq
ui

re
 th

at
 n

o 
st

or
ag

e 
or

 d
um

pi
ng

 o
f o

il,
 g

as
, 

ch
em

ic
al

s,
 o

r 
ot

he
r 

su
bs

ta
nc

es
 t

ha
t 

m
ay

 b
e 

ha
rm

fu
l 

to
 t

re
es

 o
cc

ur
 f

ro
m

 t
he

 b
as

e 
of

 a
ny

 
pr

ot
ec

te
d 

tre
es

, 
or

 a
ny

 o
th

er
 l

oc
at

io
n 

on
 t

he
 

si
te

 f
ro

m
 w

hi
ch

 s
uc

h 
su

bs
ta

nc
es

 m
ig

ht
 e

nt
er

 
th

e 
pr

ot
ec

te
d 

pe
rim

et
er

. R
eq

ui
re

 th
at

 n
o 

he
av

y 
co

ns
tru

ct
io

n 
eq

ui
pm

en
t 

or
 

co
ns

tru
ct

io
n 

m
at

er
ia

ls
 

be
 

op
er

at
ed

 
or

 
st

or
ed

 
w

ith
in

 
a 

di
st

an
ce

 fr
om

 th
e 

ba
se

 o
f a

ny
 p

ro
te

ct
ed

 tr
ee

s.
 

R
eq

ui
re

 th
at

 w
ire

s,
 r

op
es

, o
r 

ot
he

r 
de

vi
ce

s 
no

t 
be

 a
tta

ch
ed

 t
o 

an
y 

pr
ot

ec
te

d 
tre

e,
 e

xc
ep

t 
as

 
ne

ed
ed

 fo
r s

up
po

rt 
of

 th
e 

tre
e.

 R
eq

ui
re

 th
at

 n
o 

si
gn

, 
ot

he
r 

th
an

 a
 t

ag
 s

ho
w

in
g 

th
e 

bo
ta

ni
ca

l 
cl

as
si

fic
at

io
n,

 
be

 
at

ta
ch

ed
 

to
 

an
y 

pr
ot

ec
te

d 
tre

e.
 

 
Th

or
ou

gh
ly

 s
pr

ay
 th

e 
le

av
es

 o
f p

ro
te

ct
ed

 tr
ee

s 
w

ith
 w

at
er

 p
er

io
di

ca
lly

 d
ur

in
g 

co
ns

tru
ct

io
n 

to
 

pr
ev

en
t b

ui
ld

up
 o

f d
us

t a
nd

 o
th

er
 p

ol
lu

tio
n 

th
at

 
w

ou
ld

 in
hi

bi
t l

ea
f t

ra
ns

pi
ra

tio
n.

 
 

If 
an

y 
da

m
ag

e 
to

 a
 p

ro
te

ct
ed

 tr
ee

 s
ho

ul
d 

oc
cu

r 
du

rin
g 

or
 a

s 
a 

re
su

lt 
of

 w
or

k 
on

 t
he

 s
ite

, 
th

e 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

 l
oc

al
 a

ge
nc

y 
w

ill 
be

 i
m

m
ed

ia
te

ly
 

no
tif

ie
d 

of
 s

uc
h 

da
m

ag
e.

 I
f, 

su
ch

 t
re

e 
ca

nn
ot

 
be

 
pr

es
er

ve
d 

in
 

a 
he

al
th

y 
st

at
e,

 
re

qu
ire

 
re

pl
ac

em
en

t o
f a

ny
 tr

ee
 r

em
ov

ed
 w

ith
 a

no
th

er
 

tre
e 

or
 

tre
es

 
on

 
th

e 
sa

m
e 

si
te

 
de

em
ed

 
ad

eq
ua

te
 b

y 
th

e 
lo

ca
l 

ag
en

cy
 t

o 
co

m
pe

ns
at

e 
fo

r t
he

 lo
ss

 o
f t

he
 tr

ee
 th

at
 is

 re
m

ov
ed

. 
 

R
em

ov
e 

al
l 

de
br

is
 c

re
at

ed
 a

s 
a 

re
su

lt 
of

 a
ny

 
tre

e 
re

m
ov

al
 w

or
k 

fro
m

 th
e 

pr
op

er
ty

 w
ith

in
 tw

o 
w

ee
ks

 o
f d

eb
ris

 c
re

at
io

n,
 a

nd
 s

uc
h 

de
br

is
 s

ha
ll 

be
 p

ro
pe

rly
 d

is
po

se
d 

of
 in

 a
cc

or
da

nc
e 

w
ith

 a
ll 

ap
pl

ic
ab

le
 la

w
s,

 o
rd

in
an

ce
s,

 a
nd

 re
gu

la
tio

ns
. 



 
M

iti
ga

tio
n 

M
ea

su
re

s 
fro

m
 P

rio
r E

IR
s 

 M
au

be
rt 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

 
 

C
ity

 o
f L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 

Su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

C
om

m
un

iti
es

 P
ro

je
ct

 E
xe

m
pt

io
n 

 
 

N
ov

em
be

r 2
01

9 
Pa

ge
 A

3-
32

 

Ta
bl

e 
A3

-1
 

M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
s 

fro
m

 P
rio

r E
IR

 (S
CA

G
’s

 2
01

6-
20

40
 R

TP
/S

CS
) 

 
Im

pa
ct

 
SC

AG
 2

01
6-

20
40

 R
TP

/S
CS

 M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
s 

(im
pl

em
en

te
d 

by
 le

ad
 a

ge
nc

y)
 

 
Ap

pl
ic

ab
ili

ty
 to

 th
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

 
D

es
ig

n 
pr

oj
ec

ts
 t

o 
av

oi
d 

co
nf

lic
ts

 w
ith

 l
oc

al
 

po
lic

ie
s 

an
d 

or
di

na
nc

es
 p

ro
te

ct
in

g 
bi

ol
og

ic
al

 
re

so
ur

ce
s.

 
 

W
he

re
 

av
oi

da
nc

e 
is

 
de

te
rm

in
ed

 
to

 
be

 
in

fe
as

ib
le

, 
su

ffi
ci

en
t 

co
ns

er
va

tio
n 

m
ea

su
re

s 
to

 
fu

lfi
ll 

th
e 

re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

 o
f 

th
e 

ap
pl

ic
ab

le
 p

ol
ic

y 
or

 o
rd

in
an

ce
 s

ha
ll 

be
 d

ev
el

op
ed

, 
su

ch
 a

s 
to

 
su

pp
or

t i
ss

ua
nc

e 
of

 a
 tr

ee
 re

m
ov

al
 p

er
m

it.
 T

he
 

co
ns

id
er

at
io

n 
of

 c
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
m

ea
su

re
s 

m
ay

 
in

cl
ud

e:
 

o 
Av

oi
da

nc
e 

st
ra

te
gi

es
 

o 
C

on
tri

bu
tio

n 
of

 in
-li

eu
 fe

es
 

o 
Pl

an
tin

g 
of

 
re

pl
ac

em
en

t 
tre

es
 

at
 

a 
m

in
im

um
 ra

tio
 o

f 2
:1

 
o 

R
e-

la
nd

sc
ap

in
g 

ar
ea

s 
w

ith
 

na
tiv

e 
ve

ge
ta

tio
n 

po
st

-c
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
o 

O
th

er
 c

om
pa

ra
bl

e 
m

ea
su

re
s 

C
on

fli
ct

 
w

ith
 

H
ab

ita
t 

C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
P

la
n,

 
N

at
ur

al
 

C
om

m
un

ity
 

C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
P

la
n,

 o
r 

O
th

er
 C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

P
la

n 

M
M

-B
IO

-6
: 

C
on

si
st

en
t 

w
ith

 
th

e 
pr

ov
is

io
ns

 
of

 
Se

ct
io

n 
15

09
1 

of
 

th
e 

St
at

e 
C

EQ
A 

G
ui

de
lin

es
, 

SC
AG

 h
as

 id
en

tif
ie

d 
m

iti
ga

tio
n 

m
ea

su
re

s 
ca

pa
bl

e 
of

 a
vo

id
in

g 
or

 r
ed

uc
in

g 
th

e 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 im
pa

ct
s 

on
 

H
C

P 
an

d 
N

C
C

Ps
 t

ha
t 

ar
e 

in
 t

he
 j

ur
is

di
ct

io
n 

an
d 

re
sp

on
si

bi
lit

y 
of

 
pu

bl
ic

 
ag

en
ci

es
 

an
d/

or
 

Le
ad

 
Ag

en
ci

es
. 

W
he

re
 t

he
 L

ea
d 

Ag
en

cy
 h

as
 i

de
nt

ifi
ed

 
th

at
 

a 
pr

oj
ec

t 
ha

s 
th

e 
po

te
nt

ia
l 

fo
r 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 

ef
fe

ct
s,

 th
e 

Le
ad

 A
ge

nc
y 

ca
n 

an
d 

sh
ou

ld
 c

on
si

de
r 

m
iti

ga
tio

n 
m

ea
su

re
s 

to
 

en
su

re
 

co
m

pl
ia

nc
e 

w
ith

 
Se

ct
io

n 
7 

or
 

10
(a

) 
of

 
th

e 
fe

de
ra

l 
En

da
ng

er
ed

 
Sp

ec
ie

s 
Ac

t 
or

 
Se

ct
io

n 
20

81
 

of
 t

he
 

C
al

ifo
rn

ia
 

En
da

ng
er

ed
 

Sp
ec

ie
s 

Ac
t; 

an
d 

im
pl

em
en

tin
g 

re
gu

la
tio

ns
, 

as
 

ap
pl

ic
ab

le
 

an
d 

fe
as

ib
le

. 
Su

ch
 

m
ea

su
re

s 
m

ay
 

in
cl

ud
e 

th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g,
 

or
 

ot
he

r 
co

m
pa

ra
bl

e 
m

ea
su

re
s 

id
en

tif
ie

d 
by

 
th

e 
Le

ad
 

Ag
en

cy
: 

 
C

on
su

lt 
w

ith
 

th
e 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
 

fe
de

ra
l, 

st
at

e,
 

an
d/

or
 

lo
ca

l 
ag

en
cy

 
re

sp
on

si
bl

e 
fo

r 
th

e 

N
o 

m
iti

ga
tio

n 
ap

pl
ie

s.
 T

he
 P

ro
je

ct
 S

ite
 is

 n
ot

 s
ub

je
ct

 t
o 

an
y 

pr
ov

is
io

ns
 o

f a
ny

 H
ab

ita
t C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

Pl
an

, N
at

ur
al

 
C

om
m

un
ity

 C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
Pl

an
, 

or
 o

th
er

 a
pp

ro
ve

d 
lo

ca
l, 

re
gi

on
al

, o
r s

ta
te

 h
ab

ita
t c

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

pl
an

. F
ur

th
er

m
or

e,
 

th
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

Si
te

 i
s 

no
t 

w
ith

in
 o

r 
ad

ja
ce

nt
 t

o 
an

 e
xi

st
in

g 
Si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 E
co

lo
gi

ca
l 

Ar
ea

. 
Th

er
ef

or
e,

 t
he

se
 m

iti
ga

tio
n 

m
ea

su
re

s 
do

 n
ot

 a
pp

ly
. 

   



 
M

iti
ga

tio
n 

M
ea

su
re

s 
fro

m
 P

rio
r E

IR
s 

 M
au

be
rt 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

 
 

C
ity

 o
f L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 

Su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

C
om

m
un

iti
es

 P
ro

je
ct

 E
xe

m
pt

io
n 

 
 

N
ov

em
be

r 2
01

9 
Pa

ge
 A

3-
33

 

Ta
bl

e 
A3

-1
 

M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
s 

fro
m

 P
rio

r E
IR

 (S
CA

G
’s

 2
01

6-
20

40
 R

TP
/S

CS
) 

 
Im

pa
ct

 
SC

AG
 2

01
6-

20
40

 R
TP

/S
CS

 M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
s 

(im
pl

em
en

te
d 

by
 le

ad
 a

ge
nc

y)
 

 
Ap

pl
ic

ab
ili

ty
 to

 th
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

ad
m

in
is

tra
tio

n 
of

 
H

C
Ps

, 
N

C
C

Ps
 

or
 

ot
he

r 
co

ns
er

va
tio

n 
pr

og
ra

m
s.

 
 

W
he

re
ve

r 
pr

ac
tic

ab
le

 a
nd

 f
ea

si
bl

e,
 th

e 
pr

oj
ec

t 
sh

al
l 

be
 

de
si

gn
ed

 
to

 
av

oi
d 

th
ro

ug
h 

pr
oj

ec
t 

de
si

gn
 la

nd
s 

pr
es

er
ve

d 
un

de
r t

he
 c

on
di

tio
ns

 o
f 

an
 

H
C

P,
 

N
C

C
P,

 
or

 
ot

he
r 

co
ns

er
va

tio
n 

pr
og

ra
m

. 
 

W
he

re
 

av
oi

da
nc

e 
is

 
de

te
rm

in
ed

 
to

 
be

 
in

fe
as

ib
le

, 
su

ffi
ci

en
t 

co
ns

er
va

tio
n 

m
ea

su
re

s 
to

 
fu

lfi
ll 

th
e 

re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

 
of

 
th

e 
H

C
P 

an
d/

or
 

N
C

C
P 

or
 o

th
er

 c
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
pr

og
ra

m
, 

w
hi

ch
 

w
ou

ld
 i

nc
lu

de
 b

ut
 n

ot
 b

e 
lim

ite
d 

to
 a

pp
lic

ab
le

 
au

th
or

iz
at

io
n 

fo
r 

in
ci

de
nt

al
 t

ak
e 

pu
rs

ua
nt

 t
o 

Se
ct

io
n 

7 
or

 1
0(

a)
 o

f 
th

e 
fe

de
ra

l E
nd

an
ge

re
d 

Sp
ec

ie
s 

Ac
t 

or
 S

ec
tio

n 
20

81
 o

f 
th

e 
C

al
ifo

rn
ia

 
En

da
ng

er
ed

 S
pe

ci
es

 A
ct

, 
sh

al
l 

be
 d

ev
el

op
ed

 
to

 s
up

po
rt 

is
su

an
ce

 o
f a

n 
In

ci
de

nt
al

 ta
ke

 p
er

m
it 

or
 

an
y 

ot
he

r 
pe

rm
is

si
on

s 
re

qu
ire

d 
fo

r 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t 
w

ith
in

 
th

e 
H

C
P/

N
C

C
P 

bo
un

da
rie

s.
 

Th
e 

co
ns

id
er

at
io

n 
of

 
ad

di
tio

na
l 

co
ns

er
va

tio
n 

m
ea

su
re

s 
w

ou
ld

 
in

cl
ud

e 
th

e 
m

ea
su

re
s 

ou
tli

ne
d 

in
 

M
M

-B
IO

-1
(b

), 
w

he
re

 
ap

pl
ic

ab
le

. 
C

ul
tu

ra
l R

es
ou

rc
es

 (C
U

L)
 

P
ot

en
tia

l 
to

 
D

es
tro

y 
U

ni
qu

e 
P

al
eo

 
R

es
ou

rc
es

 
or

 
U

ni
qu

e 
G

eo
lo

gi
ca

l F
ea

tu
re

s 

M
M

-C
UL

-1
: 

C
on

si
st

en
t 

w
ith

 
th

e 
pr

ov
is

io
ns

 
of

 
Se

ct
io

n 
15

09
1 

of
 

th
e 

St
at

e 
C

EQ
A 

G
ui

de
lin

es
, 

SC
AG

 h
as

 id
en

tif
ie

d 
m

iti
ga

tio
n 

m
ea

su
re

s 
ca

pa
bl

e 
of

 a
vo

id
in

g 
or

 r
ed

uc
in

g 
th

e 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 e
ffe

ct
s 

on
 

un
iq

ue
 

pa
le

on
to

lo
gi

ca
l 

re
so

ur
ce

s 
or

 
si

te
s 

an
d 

un
iq

ue
 

ge
ol

og
ic

 
fe

at
ur

es
 

th
at

 
ar

e 
w

ith
in

 
th

e 
ju

ris
di

ct
io

n 
an

d 
re

sp
on

si
bi

lit
y 

of
 

N
at

io
na

l 
Pa

rk
 

Se
rv

ic
e,

 O
ffi

ce
 o

f H
is

to
ric

 P
re

se
rv

at
io

n,
 a

nd
 N

at
iv

e 
Am

er
ic

an
 

H
er

ita
ge

 
C

om
m

is
si

on
, 

ot
he

r 
pu

bl
ic

 
ag

en
ci

es
, 

an
d/

or
 L

ea
d 

Ag
en

ci
es

. W
he

re
 t

he
 L

ea
d 

Ag
en

cy
 

ha
s 

id
en

tif
ie

d 
th

at
 

a 
pr

oj
ec

t 
ha

s 
th

e 
po

te
nt

ia
l 

fo
r 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 e

ffe
ct

s,
 t

he
 L

ea
d 

Ag
en

cy
 

PR
C

 S
ec

tio
n 

21
15

5.
1 

do
es

 n
ot

 a
dd

re
ss

 p
al

eo
nt

ol
og

ic
al

 
re

so
ur

ce
s,

 a
nd

 t
he

re
fo

re
, 

un
de

r 
PR

C
 S

ec
tio

n 
21

15
5.

1,
 

tra
ns

it 
pr

io
rit

y 
pr

oj
ec

ts
 a

re
 n

ot
 re

qu
ire

d 
to

 e
va

lu
at

e 
ef

fe
ct

s 
to

 
pa

le
on

to
lo

gi
ca

l 
re

so
ur

ce
s.

 
H

ow
ev

er
, 

th
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

co
nf

or
m

s 
to

 th
is

 m
iti

ga
tio

n 
m

ea
su

re
, a

s 
th

e 
Pr

oj
ec

t w
ou

ld
 

be
 r

eq
ui

re
d 

to
 c

om
pl

y 
w

ith
 e

xi
st

in
g 

re
gu

la
tio

ns
 r

el
at

ed
 to

 
th

e 
di

sc
ov

er
y 

of
 

un
kn

ow
n 

pa
le

on
to

lo
gi

ca
l 

re
so

ur
ce

s,
 

sh
ou

ld
 t

he
y 

be
 e

nc
ou

nt
er

ed
 d

ur
in

g 
gr

ou
nd

 d
is

tu
rb

in
g 

ac
tiv

iti
es

 a
s 

ou
tli

ne
d 

in
 S

C
AG

 M
M

-C
U

L-
1.

 
 



 
M

iti
ga

tio
n 

M
ea

su
re

s 
fro

m
 P

rio
r E

IR
s 

 M
au

be
rt 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

 
 

C
ity

 o
f L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 

Su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

C
om

m
un

iti
es

 P
ro

je
ct

 E
xe

m
pt

io
n 

 
 

N
ov

em
be

r 2
01

9 
Pa

ge
 A

3-
34

 

Ta
bl

e 
A3

-1
 

M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
s 

fro
m

 P
rio

r E
IR

 (S
CA

G
’s

 2
01

6-
20

40
 R

TP
/S

CS
) 

 
Im

pa
ct

 
SC

AG
 2

01
6-

20
40

 R
TP

/S
CS

 M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
s 

(im
pl

em
en

te
d 

by
 le

ad
 a

ge
nc

y)
 

 
Ap

pl
ic

ab
ili

ty
 to

 th
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

ca
n 

an
d 

sh
ou

ld
 

co
ns

id
er

 
m

iti
ga

tio
n 

m
ea

su
re

s 
co

ns
is

te
nt

 w
ith

 S
ec

tio
n 

15
06

4.
5 

of
 th

e 
St

at
e 

C
EQ

A 
G

ui
de

lin
es

 
ca

pa
bl

e 
of

 
av

oi
di

ng
 

or
 

re
du

ci
ng

 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 
im

pa
ct

s 
on

 
un

iq
ue

 
pa

le
on

to
lo

gi
ca

l 
re

so
ur

ce
s 

or
 s

ite
s 

or
 u

ni
qu

e 
ge

ol
og

ic
 f

ea
tu

re
s.

 
En

su
re

 
co

m
pl

ia
nc

e 
w

ith
 

th
e 

N
at

io
na

l 
H

is
to

ric
 

Pr
es

er
va

tio
n 

Ac
t, 

Se
ct

io
n 

50
97

.5
 

of
 t

he
 

Pu
bl

ic
 

R
es

ou
rc

es
 C

od
e 

(P
R

C
), 

st
at

e 
pr

og
ra

m
s 

pu
rs

ua
nt

 
to

 S
ec

tio
ns

 5
02

4 
an

d 
50

24
.5

 o
f t

he
 P

R
C

, a
do

pt
ed

 
co

un
ty

 a
nd

 c
ity

 g
en

er
al

 p
la

ns
, 

an
d 

ot
he

r 
fe

de
ra

l, 
st

at
e 

an
d 

lo
ca

l 
re

gu
la

tio
ns

, 
as

 
ap

pl
ic

ab
le

 
an

d 
fe

as
ib

le
. S

uc
h 

m
ea

su
re

s 
m

ay
 in

cl
ud

e 
th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g,

 
or

 o
th

er
 c

om
pa

ra
bl

e 
m

ea
su

re
s 

id
en

tif
ie

d 
by

 t
he

 
Le

ad
 A

ge
nc

y:
 

  
O

bt
ai

n 
re

vi
ew

 
by

 
a 

qu
al

ifi
ed

 
ge

ol
og

is
t 

or
 

pa
le

on
to

lo
gi

st
 t

o 
de

te
rm

in
e 

if 
th

e 
pr

oj
ec

t 
ha

s 
th

e 
po

te
nt

ia
l 

to
 r

eq
ui

re
 e

xc
av

at
io

n 
or

 b
la

st
in

g 
of

 p
ar

en
t 

m
at

er
ia

l 
w

ith
 a

 m
od

er
at

e 
to

 h
ig

h 
po

te
nt

ia
l 

to
 c

on
ta

in
 u

ni
qu

e 
pa

le
on

to
lo

gi
ca

l 
or

 
re

so
ur

ce
s,

 
or

 
to

 
re

qu
ire

 
th

e 
su

bs
ta

nt
ia

l 
al

te
ra

tio
n 

of
 a

 u
ni

qu
e 

ge
ol

og
ic

 fe
at

ur
e.

 
 

Av
oi

d 
ex

po
su

re
 

or
 

di
sp

la
ce

m
en

t 
of

 
pa

re
nt

 
m

at
er

ia
l 

w
ith

 a
 m

od
er

at
e 

to
 h

ig
h 

po
te

nt
ia

l 
to

 
yi

el
d 

un
iq

ue
 p

al
eo

nt
ol

og
ic

al
 re

so
ur

ce
s.

 
 

W
he

re
 a

vo
id

an
ce

 o
f 

pa
re

nt
 m

at
er

ia
l 

w
ith

 a
 

m
od

er
at

e 
to

 
hi

gh
 

po
te

nt
ia

l 
to

 
yi

el
d 

un
iq

ue
 

pa
le

on
to

lo
gi

ca
l r

es
ou

rc
es

 is
 n

ot
 fe

as
ib

le
: 

o 
Al

l 
on

-s
ite

 c
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
pe

rs
on

ne
l 

re
ce

iv
e 

W
or

ke
r 

Ed
uc

at
io

n 
an

d 
Aw

ar
en

es
s 

Pr
og

ra
m

 
(W

EA
P)

 
tra

in
in

g 
to

 
un

de
rs

ta
nd

 
th

e 
re

gu
la

to
ry

 fr
am

ew
or

k 
th

at
 p

ro
vi

de
s 

fo
r 

pr
ot

ec
tio

n 
of

 
pa

le
on

to
lo

gi
ca

l 
re

so
ur

ce
s 

an
d 

be
co

m
e 

fa
m

ili
ar

 
w

ith
 

di
ag

no
st

ic
 

ch
ar

ac
te

ris
tic

s 
of

 



 
M

iti
ga

tio
n 

M
ea

su
re

s 
fro

m
 P

rio
r E

IR
s 

 M
au

be
rt 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

 
 

C
ity

 o
f L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 

Su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

C
om

m
un

iti
es

 P
ro

je
ct

 E
xe

m
pt

io
n 

 
 

N
ov

em
be

r 2
01

9 
Pa

ge
 A

3-
35

 

Ta
bl

e 
A3

-1
 

M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
s 

fro
m

 P
rio

r E
IR

 (S
CA

G
’s

 2
01

6-
20

40
 R

TP
/S

CS
) 

 
Im

pa
ct

 
SC

AG
 2

01
6-

20
40

 R
TP

/S
CS

 M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
s 

(im
pl

em
en

te
d 

by
 le

ad
 a

ge
nc

y)
 

 
Ap

pl
ic

ab
ili

ty
 to

 th
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

th
e 

m
at

er
ia

ls
 w

ith
 t

he
 p

ot
en

tia
l 

to
 

be
 e

nc
ou

nt
er

ed
. 

o 
Pr

ep
ar

e 
a 

Pa
le

on
to

lo
gi

ca
l 

R
es

ou
rc

e 
M

an
ag

em
en

t 
Pl

an
 

(P
R

M
P)

 
to

 
gu

id
e 

th
e 

sa
lv

ag
e,

 
do

cu
m

en
ta

tio
n 

an
d 

re
po

si
to

ry
 

of
 

re
pr

es
en

ta
tiv

e 
sa

m
pl

es
 o

f 
un

iq
ue

 
pa

le
on

to
lo

gi
ca

l 
re

so
ur

ce
s 

en
co

un
te

re
d 

du
rin

g 
co

ns
tru

ct
io

n.
 If

 
un

iq
ue

 
pa

le
on

to
lo

gi
ca

l 
re

so
ur

ce
s 

ar
e 

en
co

un
te

re
d 

du
rin

g 
ex

ca
va

tio
n 

or
 

bl
as

tin
g,

 
us

e 
a 

qu
al

ifi
ed

 
pa

le
on

to
lo

gi
st

 
to

 
ov

er
se

e 
th

e 
im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
PR

M
P.

 
o 

M
on

ito
r 

bl
as

tin
g 

an
d 

ea
rth

-m
ov

in
g 

ac
tiv

iti
es

 in
 p

ar
en

t m
at

er
ia

l, 
w

ith
 a

 
m

od
er

at
e 

to
 h

ig
h 

po
te

nt
ia

l t
o 

yi
el

d 
un

iq
ue

 
pa

le
on

to
lo

gi
ca

l 
re

so
ur

ce
s 

us
in

g 
a 

qu
al

ifi
ed

 p
al

eo
nt

ol
og

is
t 

or
 

ar
ch

eo
lo

gi
st

s 
cr

os
s-

tra
in

ed
 

in
 

pa
le

on
to

lo
gy

 to
 d

et
er

m
in

e 
if 

un
iq

ue
 

pa
le

on
to

lo
gi

ca
l 

re
so

ur
ce

s 
ar

e 
en

co
un

te
re

d 
du

rin
g 

su
ch

 a
ct

iv
iti

es
, 

co
ns

is
te

nt
 

w
ith

 
th

e 
sp

ec
ifi

ed
 

or
 

co
m

pa
ra

bl
e 

pr
ot

oc
ol

s.
 

o 
Id

en
tif

y 
w

he
re

 
ex

ca
va

tio
n 

an
d 

ea
rth

m
ov

in
g 

ac
tiv

ity
 is

 p
ro

po
se

d 
in

 
a 

ge
ol

og
ic

 u
ni

t h
av

in
g 

a 
m

od
er

at
e 

or
 

hi
gh

 
po

te
nt

ia
l 

fo
r 

co
nt

ai
ni

ng
 

fo
ss

ils
 a

nd
 s

pe
ci

fy
 t

he
 n

ee
d 

fo
r 

a 
pa

le
on

to
lo

gi
ca

l 
or

 
ar

ch
eo

lo
gi

ca
l 

(c
ro

ss
-tr

ai
ne

d 
in

 p
al

eo
nt

ol
og

y)
 t

o 
be

 
pr

es
en

t 
du

rin
g 

ea
rth

-m
ov

in
g 

ac
tiv

iti
es

 o
r b

la
st

in
g 

in
 th

es
e 

ar
ea

s.
 

 
Av

oi
d 

ro
ut

es
 a

nd
 p

ro
je

ct
 d

es
ig

ns
 t

ha
t 

w
ou

ld
 

pe
rm

an
en

tly
 

al
te

r 
un

iq
ue

 
fe

at
ur

es
 

w
ith

 



 
M

iti
ga

tio
n 

M
ea

su
re

s 
fro

m
 P

rio
r E

IR
s 

 M
au

be
rt 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

 
 

C
ity

 o
f L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 

Su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

C
om

m
un

iti
es

 P
ro

je
ct

 E
xe

m
pt

io
n 

 
 

N
ov

em
be

r 2
01

9 
Pa

ge
 A

3-
36

 

Ta
bl

e 
A3

-1
 

M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
s 

fro
m

 P
rio

r E
IR

 (S
CA

G
’s

 2
01

6-
20

40
 R

TP
/S

CS
) 

 
Im

pa
ct

 
SC

AG
 2

01
6-

20
40

 R
TP

/S
CS

 M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
s 

(im
pl

em
en

te
d 

by
 le

ad
 a

ge
nc

y)
 

 
Ap

pl
ic

ab
ili

ty
 to

 th
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

ar
ch

ae
ol

og
ic

al
 

an
d/

or
 

pa
le

on
to

lo
gi

ca
l 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nc
e.

 
 

Sa
lv

ag
e 

an
d 

do
cu

m
en

t 
ad

ve
rs

el
y 

af
fe

ct
ed

 
re

so
ur

ce
s 

su
ffi

ci
en

t 
to

 
su

pp
or

t 
on

go
in

g 
sc

ie
nt

ifi
c 

re
se

ar
ch

 a
nd

 e
du

ca
tio

n.
 

S
ub

st
an

tia
l 

A
dv

er
se

 C
ha

ng
e 

in
 S

ig
ni

fic
an

ce
 o

f 
a 

H
is

to
ric

al
 

R
es

ou
rc

e,
 

S
ub

st
an

tia
l 

A
dv

er
se

 
C

ha
ng

e 
in

 
th

e 
S

ig
ni

fic
an

ce
 

of
 

an
 

A
rc

ha
eo

lo
gi

ca
l R

es
ou

rc
e 

M
M

-C
UL

-2
: 

C
on

si
st

en
t 

w
ith

 
th

e 
pr

ov
is

io
ns

 
of

 
Se

ct
io

n 
15

09
1 

of
 

th
e 

St
at

e 
C

EQ
A 

G
ui

de
lin

es
, 

SC
AG

 h
as

 id
en

tif
ie

d 
m

iti
ga

tio
n 

m
ea

su
re

s 
ca

pa
bl

e 
of

 a
vo

id
in

g 
or

 r
ed

uc
in

g 
th

e 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 e
ffe

ct
s 

of
 o

n 
hi

st
or

ic
al

 
re

so
ur

ce
s 

w
ith

in
 

th
e 

ju
ris

di
ct

io
n 

an
d 

re
sp

on
si

bi
lit

y 
of

 
th

e 
O

ffi
ce

 
of

 
H

is
to

ric
al

 
Pr

es
er

va
tio

n,
 

N
at

iv
e 

Am
er

ic
an

 
H

er
ita

ge
 

C
om

m
is

si
on

, 
ot

he
r 

pu
bl

ic
 a

ge
nc

ie
s,

 a
nd

/o
r 

Lo
ca

l 
Ag

en
ci

es
. 

W
he

re
 t

he
 L

ea
d 

Ag
en

cy
 h

as
 i

de
nt

ifi
ed

 
th

at
 

a 
pr

oj
ec

t 
ha

s 
th

e 
po

te
nt

ia
l 

fo
r 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 

ef
fe

ct
s,

 th
e 

Le
ad

 A
ge

nc
y 

ca
n 

an
d 

sh
ou

ld
 c

on
si

de
r 

m
iti

ga
tio

n 
m

ea
su

re
s 

co
ns

is
te

nt
 

w
ith

 
Se

ct
io

n 
15

06
4.

5 
of

 th
e 

St
at

e 
C

EQ
A 

G
ui

de
lin

es
 c

ap
ab

le
 o

f 
av

oi
di

ng
 

or
 

re
du

ci
ng

 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 
im

pa
ct

s 
on

 
hi

st
or

ic
al

 re
so

ur
ce

s,
 to

 e
ns

ur
e 

co
m

pl
ia

nc
e 

w
ith

 th
e 

N
at

io
na

l H
is

to
ric

 P
re

se
rv

at
io

n 
Ac

t, 
Se

ct
io

n 
50

97
.5

 
of

 
th

e 
Pu

bl
ic

 
R

es
ou

rc
es

 
C

od
e 

(P
R

C
), 

st
at

e 
pr

og
ra

m
s 

pu
rs

ua
nt

 to
 S

ec
tio

ns
 5

02
4 

an
d 

50
24

.5
 o

f 
th

e 
PR

C
, 

ad
op

te
d 

co
un

ty
 a

nd
 c

ity
 g

en
er

al
 p

la
ns

 
an

d 
ot

he
r 

fe
de

ra
l, 

st
at

e 
an

d 
lo

ca
l 

re
gu

la
tio

ns
, 

as
 

ap
pl

ic
ab

le
 

an
d 

fe
as

ib
le

. 
Su

ch
 

m
ea

su
re

s 
m

ay
 

in
cl

ud
e 

th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g,
 

or
 

ot
he

r 
co

m
pa

ra
bl

e 
m

ea
su

re
s 

id
en

tif
ie

d 
by

 th
e 

Le
ad

 A
ge

nc
y:

 
  

Pu
rs

ua
nt

 
to

 
C

EQ
A 

G
ui

de
lin

es
 

Se
ct

io
n 

15
06

4.
5,

 
co

nd
uc

t 
a 

re
co

rd
 

se
ar

ch
 

at
 

th
e 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
 I

nf
or

m
at

io
n 

C
en

te
r 

to
 d

et
er

m
in

e 
w

he
th

er
 t

he
 p

ro
je

ct
 a

re
a 

ha
s 

be
en

 p
re

vi
ou

sl
y 

su
rv

ey
ed

 a
nd

 w
he

th
er

 h
is

to
ric

 r
es

ou
rc

es
 w

er
e 

id
en

tif
ie

d.
 

 
O

bt
ai

n 
a 

qu
al

ifi
ed

 
ar

ch
ite

ct
ur

al
 

hi
st

or
ia

n 
to

 

N
o 

m
iti

ga
tio

n 
ap

pl
ie

s.
 A

 H
is

to
ric

al
 R

es
ou

rc
e 

Ev
al

ua
tio

n 
R

ep
or

t 
w

as
 p

re
pa

re
d 

fo
r 

th
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

Si
te

 (
at

ta
ch

ed
 a

s 
Ap

pe
nd

ix
 F

), 
w

hi
ch

 s
at

is
fie

s 
th

e 
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
 s

et
 fo

rth
 in

 
M

M
-C

U
L-

2.
 T

he
 h

is
to

ric
 r

ep
or

t i
nc

lu
de

d 
an

 e
va

lu
at

io
n 

of
 

al
l 

bu
ild

in
gs

 o
n 

th
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

Si
te

 a
s 

in
di

vi
du

al
 p

ot
en

tia
l 

hi
st

or
ic

 r
es

ou
rc

es
 s

ub
je

ct
 t

o 
C

EQ
A 

an
d 

co
nc

lu
de

d 
th

at
 

no
ne

 o
f 

th
e 

bu
ild

in
gs

 o
r 

pr
op

er
tie

s 
ap

pe
ar

 t
o 

el
ig

ib
le

 f
or

 
lis

tin
g 

in
 t

he
 N

at
io

na
l 

R
eg

is
te

r 
of

 H
is

to
ric

 P
la

ce
s 

or
 

C
al

ifo
rn

ia
 

R
eg

is
te

r 
of

 
H

is
to

ric
al

 
R

es
ou

rc
es

, 
or

 
fo

r 
de

si
gn

at
io

n 
as

 
a 

Lo
s 

An
ge

le
s 

H
is

to
ric

-C
ul

tu
ra

l 
M

on
um

en
t. 

Th
er

ef
or

e,
 t

he
 P

ro
je

ct
 w

ou
ld

 n
ot

 in
vo

lv
e 

th
e 

de
m

ol
iti

on
, 

re
lo

ca
tio

n,
 

or
 

al
te

ra
tio

n 
of

 
an

y 
hi

st
or

ic
al

 
re

so
ur

ce
s,

 a
nd

 th
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t w

ou
ld

 h
av

e 
no

 d
ire

ct
 im

pa
ct

s 
on

 a
ny

 h
is

to
ric

al
 r

es
ou

rc
es

, 
an

d 
no

 m
iti

ga
tio

n 
m

ea
su

re
s 

w
ou

ld
 b

e 
re

qu
ire

d.
 

 R
eg

ar
di

ng
 a

rc
ha

eo
lo

gi
ca

l 
re

so
ur

ce
s,

 t
he

 P
ro

je
ct

 w
ou

ld
 

be
 re

qu
ire

d 
to

 c
om

pl
y 

w
ith

 R
C

M
-C

U
L-

1:
 

 RC
M

-C
UL

-1
: 

R
eg

ar
di

ng
 a

rc
ha

eo
lo

gi
ca

l 
re

so
ur

ce
s,

 t
he

 
Pr

oj
ec

t 
sh

al
l c

om
pl

y 
w

ith
 t

he
 r

eq
ui

re
m

en
ts

 o
f 

C
al

ifo
rn

ia
 

Pu
bl

ic
 R

es
ou

rc
es

 C
od

e 
Se

ct
io

n 
21

08
3.

2.
 I

n 
th

e 
ev

en
t 

ar
ch

ae
ol

og
ic

al
 

re
so

ur
ce

s 
ar

e 
ex

po
se

d 
du

rin
g 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

co
ns

tru
ct

io
n,

 w
or

k 
w

ith
in

 5
0 

fe
et

 o
f t

he
 fi

nd
 s

ha
ll 

st
op

 u
nt

il 
a 

pr
of

es
si

on
al

 a
rc

ha
eo

lo
gi

st
, 

m
ee

tin
g 

th
e 

st
an

da
rd

s 
of

 
th

e 
Se

cr
et

ar
y 

of
 th

e 
In

te
rio

r, 
ca

n 
id

en
tif

y 
an

d 
ev

al
ua

te
 th

e 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nc

e 
of

 
th

e 
di

sc
ov

er
y 

an
d 

de
ve

lo
p 

re
co

m
m

en
da

tio
ns

 
fo

r 
tre

at
m

en
t 

in
 

co
nf

or
m

an
ce

 
w

ith
 

C
al

ifo
rn

ia
 

Pu
bl

ic
 

R
es

ou
rc

es
 

C
od

e 
Se

ct
io

n 
21

08
3.

2.
 

H
ow

ev
er

, 
co

ns
tru

ct
io

n 
ac

tiv
iti

es
 c

ou
ld

 c
on

tin
ue

 i
n 

ot
he

r 
ar

ea
s 

of
 th

e 
Pr

oj
ec

t S
ite

.  



 
M

iti
ga

tio
n 

M
ea

su
re

s 
fro

m
 P

rio
r E

IR
s 

 M
au

be
rt 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

 
 

C
ity

 o
f L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 

Su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

C
om

m
un

iti
es

 P
ro

je
ct

 E
xe

m
pt

io
n 

 
 

N
ov

em
be

r 2
01

9 
Pa

ge
 A

3-
37

 

Ta
bl

e 
A3

-1
 

M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
s 

fro
m

 P
rio

r E
IR

 (S
CA

G
’s

 2
01

6-
20

40
 R

TP
/S

CS
) 

 
Im

pa
ct

 
SC

AG
 2

01
6-

20
40

 R
TP

/S
CS

 M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
s 

(im
pl

em
en

te
d 

by
 le

ad
 a

ge
nc

y)
 

 
Ap

pl
ic

ab
ili

ty
 to

 th
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

co
nd

uc
t 

hi
st

or
ic

 
ar

ch
ite

ct
ur

al
 

su
rv

ey
s 

as
 

re
co

m
m

en
de

d 
by

 t
he

 I
nf

or
m

at
io

n 
C

en
te

r. 
In

 
th

e 
ev

en
t t

he
 r

ec
or

ds
 in

di
ca

te
 th

at
 n

o 
pr

ev
io

us
 

su
rv

ey
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

co
nd

uc
te

d,
 t

he
 I

nf
or

m
at

io
n 

C
en

te
r 

w
ill

 
m

ak
e 

a 
re

co
m

m
en

da
tio

n 
on

 
w

he
th

er
 a

 s
ur

ve
y 

is
 w

ar
ra

nt
ed

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
th

e 
se

ns
iti

vi
ty

 
of

 
th

e 
pr

oj
ec

t 
ar

ea
 

fo
r 

hi
st

or
ic

al
 

re
so

ur
ce

s 
w

ith
in

 1
,0

00
 fe

et
 o

f t
he

 p
ro

je
ct

. 
 

C
om

pl
y 

w
ith

 
Se

ct
io

n 
10

6 
of

 
th

e 
N

at
io

na
l 

H
is

to
ric

 
Pr

es
er

va
tio

n 
Ac

t 
in

cl
ud

in
g,

 
bu

t 
no

t 
lim

ite
d 

to
, p

ro
je

ct
s 

fo
r 

w
hi

ch
 fe

de
ra

l f
un

di
ng

 o
r 

ap
pr

ov
al

 is
 r

eq
ui

re
d 

fo
r 

th
e 

in
di

vi
du

al
 p

ro
je

ct
. 

Th
is

 la
w

 r
eq

ui
re

s 
fe

de
ra

l a
ge

nc
ie

s 
to

 e
va

lu
at

e 
th

e 
im

pa
ct

 
of

 
th

ei
r 

ac
tio

ns
 

on
 

re
so

ur
ce

s 
in

cl
ud

ed
 in

 o
r 

el
ig

ib
le

 fo
r 

lis
tin

g 
in

 th
e 

N
at

io
na

l 
R

eg
is

te
r. 

Fe
de

ra
l 

ag
en

ci
es

 m
us

t 
co

or
di

na
te

 
w

ith
 t

he
 S

ta
te

 H
is

to
ric

 P
re

se
rv

at
io

n 
O

ffi
ce

r 
in

 
ev

al
ua

tin
g 

im
pa

ct
s 

an
d 

de
ve

lo
pi

ng
 m

iti
ga

tio
n.

 
Th

es
e 

m
iti

ga
tio

n 
m

ea
su

re
s 

m
ay

 i
nc

lu
de

, 
bu

t 
ar

e 
no

t l
im

ite
d 

to
 th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g:

 
o 

Em
pl

oy
 

de
si

gn
 

m
ea

su
re

s 
to

 
av

oi
d 

hi
st

or
ic

al
 

re
so

ur
ce

s 
an

d 
un

de
rta

ke
 

ad
ap

tiv
e 

re
us

e 
w

he
re

 a
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

 a
nd

 
fe

as
ib

le
. 

If 
re

so
ur

ce
s 

ar
e 

to
 

be
 

pr
es

er
ve

d,
 a

s 
fe

as
ib

le
, 

ca
rry

 o
ut

 t
he

 
m

ai
nt

en
an

ce
, 

re
pa

ir,
 

st
ab

ili
za

tio
n,

 
re

ha
bi

lit
at

io
n,

 re
st

or
at

io
n,

 p
re

se
rv

at
io

n,
 

co
ns

er
va

tio
n 

or
 

re
co

ns
tru

ct
io

n 
in

 
a 

m
an

ne
r 

co
ns

is
te

nt
 w

ith
 t

he
 S

ec
re

ta
ry

 
of

 
th

e 
In

te
rio

r’s
 

G
ui

de
lin

es
 

fo
r 

Pr
es

er
vi

ng
, 

R
eh

ab
ilit

at
in

g,
 

R
es

to
rin

g,
 

an
d 

R
ec

on
st

ru
ct

in
g 

H
is

to
ric

 B
ui

ld
in

gs
. 

If 
re

so
ur

ce
s 

w
ou

ld
 

be
 

im
pa

ct
ed

, 
im

pa
ct

s 
sh

ou
ld

 b
e 

m
in

im
iz

ed
 t

o 
th

e 
ex

te
nt

 fe
as

ib
le

. 
o 

W
he

re
 

fe
as

ib
le

, 
no

is
e 

bu
ffe

rs
/w

al
ls

 

 C
om

pl
ia

nc
e 

w
ith

 t
he

se
 r

eq
ui

re
m

en
ts

 w
ou

ld
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

at
 

im
pa

ct
s 

to
 

ar
ch

ae
ol

og
ic

al
 

re
so

ur
ce

s 
ar

e 
le

ss
 

th
an

 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

. 
  



 
M

iti
ga

tio
n 

M
ea

su
re

s 
fro

m
 P

rio
r E

IR
s 

 M
au

be
rt 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

 
 

C
ity

 o
f L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 

Su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

C
om

m
un

iti
es

 P
ro

je
ct

 E
xe

m
pt

io
n 

 
 

N
ov

em
be

r 2
01

9 
Pa

ge
 A

3-
38

 

Ta
bl

e 
A3

-1
 

M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
s 

fro
m

 P
rio

r E
IR

 (S
CA

G
’s

 2
01

6-
20

40
 R

TP
/S

CS
) 

 
Im

pa
ct

 
SC

AG
 2

01
6-

20
40

 R
TP

/S
CS

 M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
s 

(im
pl

em
en

te
d 

by
 le

ad
 a

ge
nc

y)
 

 
Ap

pl
ic

ab
ili

ty
 to

 th
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

an
d/

or
 

vi
su

al
 

bu
ffe

rs
/la

nd
sc

ap
in

g 
sh

ou
ld

 b
e 

co
ns

tru
ct

ed
 t

o 
pr

es
er

ve
 th

e 
co

nt
ex

tu
al

 
se

tti
ng

 
of

 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 
bu

ilt
 

re
so

ur
ce

s.
 

 
Se

cu
re

 
a 

qu
al

ifi
ed

 
en

vi
ro

nm
en

ta
l 

ag
en

cy
 

an
d/

or
 a

rc
hi

te
ct

ur
al

 h
is

to
ria

n,
 o

r 
ot

he
r 

su
ch

 
qu

al
ifi

ed
 p

er
so

n 
to

 d
oc

um
en

t 
an

y 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 
hi

st
or

ic
al

 
re

so
ur

ce
(s

), 
by

 
w

ay
 

of
 

hi
st

or
ic

 
na

rra
tiv

e,
 

ph
ot

og
ra

ph
s,

 
an

d 
ar

ch
ite

ct
ur

al
 

dr
aw

in
gs

, 
as

 
m

iti
ga

tio
n 

fo
r 

th
e 

ef
fe

ct
s 

of
 

de
m

ol
iti

on
 o

f a
 re

so
ur

ce
. 

 
C

on
su

lt 
w

ith
 

th
e 

N
at

iv
e 

Am
er

ic
an

 
H

er
ita

ge
 

C
om

m
is

si
on

 
to

 
de

te
rm

in
e 

w
he

th
er

 
kn

ow
n 

sa
cr

ed
 

si
te

s 
ar

e 
in

 
th

e 
pr

oj
ec

t 
ar

ea
, 

an
d 

id
en

tif
y 

th
e 

N
at

iv
e 

Am
er

ic
an

(s
) 

to
 c

on
ta

ct
 t

o 
ob

ta
in

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

ab
ou

t t
he

 p
ro

je
ct

 s
ite

. 
 

Pr
io

r 
to

 
co

ns
tru

ct
io

n 
ac

tiv
iti

es
, 

ob
ta

in
 

a 
qu

al
ifi

ed
 

ar
ch

ae
ol

og
is

t 
to

 
co

nd
uc

t 
a 

re
co

rd
 

se
ar

ch
 a

t t
he

 a
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

 In
fo

rm
at

io
n 

C
en

te
r o

f 
th

e 
C

al
ifo

rn
ia

 
Ar

ch
ae

ol
og

ic
al

 
In

ve
nt

or
y 

to
 

de
te

rm
in

e 
w

he
th

er
 t

he
 p

ro
je

ct
 a

re
a 

ha
s 

be
en

 
pr

ev
io

us
ly

 
su

rv
ey

ed
 

an
d 

w
he

th
er

 
re

so
ur

ce
s 

w
er

e 
id

en
tif

ie
d.

 
 

Pr
io

r 
to

 
co

ns
tru

ct
io

n 
ac

tiv
iti

es
, 

ob
ta

in
 

a 
qu

al
ifi

ed
 a

rc
ha

eo
lo

gi
st

 o
r a

rc
hi

te
ct

ur
al

 h
is

to
ria

n 
(d

ep
en

di
ng

 
on

 
ap

pl
ic

ab
ilit

y)
 

to
 

co
nd

uc
t 

ar
ch

ae
ol

og
ic

al
 

an
d/

or
 

hi
st

or
ic

 
ar

ch
ite

ct
ur

al
 

su
rv

ey
s 

as
 r

ec
om

m
en

de
d 

by
 t

he
 I

nf
or

m
at

io
n 

C
en

te
r. 

In
 t

he
 e

ve
nt

 t
he

 r
ec

or
ds

 i
nd

ic
at

e 
th

at
 

no
 p

re
vi

ou
s 

su
rv

ey
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

co
nd

uc
te

d,
 t

he
 

In
fo

rm
at

io
n 

C
en

te
r 

w
ill 

m
ak

e 
a 

re
co

m
m

en
da

tio
n 

on
 

w
he

th
er

 
a 

su
rv

ey
 

is
 

w
ar

ra
nt

ed
 

ba
se

d 
on

 
th

e 
se

ns
iti

vi
ty

 
of

 
th

e 
pr

oj
ec

t a
re

a 
fo

r a
rc

ha
eo

lo
gi

ca
l r

es
ou

rc
es

. 
 

If 
a 

re
co

rd
 s

ea
rc

h 
in

di
ca

te
s 

th
at

 t
he

 p
ro

je
ct

 is
 

lo
ca

te
d 

in
 a

n 
ar

ea
 r

ic
h 

w
ith

 c
ul

tu
ra

l m
at

er
ia

ls
, 



 
M

iti
ga

tio
n 

M
ea

su
re

s 
fro

m
 P

rio
r E

IR
s 

 M
au

be
rt 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

 
 

C
ity

 o
f L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 

Su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

C
om

m
un

iti
es

 P
ro

je
ct

 E
xe

m
pt

io
n 

 
 

N
ov

em
be

r 2
01

9 
Pa

ge
 A

3-
39

 

Ta
bl

e 
A3

-1
 

M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
s 

fro
m

 P
rio

r E
IR

 (S
CA

G
’s

 2
01

6-
20

40
 R

TP
/S

CS
) 

 
Im

pa
ct

 
SC

AG
 2

01
6-

20
40

 R
TP

/S
CS

 M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
s 

(im
pl

em
en

te
d 

by
 le

ad
 a

ge
nc

y)
 

 
Ap

pl
ic

ab
ili

ty
 to

 th
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

re
ta

in
 a

 q
ua

lif
ie

d 
ar

ch
ae

ol
og

is
t 

to
 m

on
ito

r 
an

y 
su

bs
ur

fa
ce

 o
pe

ra
tio

ns
, i

nc
lu

di
ng

 b
ut

 n
ot

 li
m

ite
d 

to
 g

ra
di

ng
, e

xc
av

at
io

n,
 tr

en
ch

in
g,

 o
r r

em
ov

al
 o

f 
ex

is
tin

g 
fe

at
ur

es
 o

f t
he

 s
ub

je
ct

 p
ro

pe
rty

. 
 

C
on

du
ct

 c
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
ac

tiv
iti

es
 a

nd
 e

xc
av

at
io

n 
to

 
av

oi
d 

cu
ltu

ra
l 

re
so

ur
ce

s 
(if

 i
de

nt
ifi

ed
). 

If 
av

oi
da

nc
e 

is
 n

ot
 fe

as
ib

le
, f

ur
th

er
 w

or
k 

m
ay

 b
e 

ne
ed

ed
 

to
 

de
te

rm
in

e 
th

e 
im

po
rta

nc
e 

of
 

a 
re

so
ur

ce
. 

R
et

ai
n 

a 
qu

al
ifi

ed
 

ar
ch

ae
ol

og
is

t 
fa

m
ilia

r 
w

ith
 t

he
 l

oc
al

 a
rc

ha
eo

lo
gy

, 
an

d/
or

 a
s 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
, 

an
 

ar
ch

ite
ct

ur
al

 
hi

st
or

ia
n 

w
ho

 
sh

ou
ld

 m
ak

e 
re

co
m

m
en

da
tio

ns
 r

eg
ar

di
ng

 t
he

 
w

or
k 

ne
ce

ss
ar

y 
to

 d
et

er
m

in
e 

im
po

rta
nc

e.
 If

 th
e 

cu
ltu

ra
l r

es
ou

rc
e 

is
 d

et
er

m
in

ed
 to

 b
e 

im
po

rta
nt

 
un

de
r 

st
at

e 
or

 f
ed

er
al

 g
ui

de
lin

es
, 

im
pa

ct
s 

on
 

th
e 

cu
ltu

ra
l r

es
ou

rc
e 

w
ill

 n
ee

d 
to

 b
e 

m
iti

ga
te

d.
 

 
St

op
 c

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

ac
tiv

iti
es

 a
nd

 e
xc

av
at

io
n 

in
 

th
e 

ar
ea

 w
he

re
 c

ul
tu

ra
l 

re
so

ur
ce

s 
ar

e 
fo

un
d 

un
til

 a
 q

ua
lif

ie
d 

ar
ch

ae
ol

og
is

t 
ca

n 
de

te
rm

in
e 

th
e 

im
po

rta
nc

e 
of

 th
es

e 
re

so
ur

ce
s.

 
D

is
tu

rb
 H

um
an

 R
em

ai
ns

 
M

M
-C

UL
-4

: 
C

on
si

st
en

t 
w

ith
 

th
e 

pr
ov

is
io

ns
 

of
 

Se
ct

io
n 

15
09

1 
of

 
th

e 
St

at
e 

C
EQ

A 
G

ui
de

lin
es

, 
SC

AG
 h

as
 id

en
tif

ie
d 

m
iti

ga
tio

n 
m

ea
su

re
s 

ca
pa

bl
e 

of
 a

vo
id

in
g 

or
 r

ed
uc

in
g 

th
e 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 e

ffe
ct

s 
to

 
hu

m
an

 r
em

ai
ns

 th
at

 a
re

 w
ith

in
 t

he
 ju

ris
di

ct
io

n 
an

d 
re

sp
on

si
bi

lit
y 

of
 

th
e 

N
at

iv
e 

Am
er

ic
an

 
H

er
ita

ge
 

C
om

m
is

si
on

, 
ot

he
r 

pu
bl

ic
 a

ge
nc

ie
s,

 a
nd

/o
r 

Lo
ca

l 
Ag

en
ci

es
. 

W
he

re
 t

he
 L

ea
d 

Ag
en

cy
 h

as
 i

de
nt

ifi
ed

 
th

at
 

a 
pr

oj
ec

t 
ha

s 
th

e 
po

te
nt

ia
l 

fo
r 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 

ef
fe

ct
s,

 
th

e 
Le

ad
 

Ag
en

cy
 

sh
ou

ld
 

co
ns

id
er

 
m

iti
ga

tio
n 

m
ea

su
re

s 
ca

pa
bl

e 
of

 
av

oi
di

ng
 

or
 

re
du

ci
ng

 s
ig

ni
fic

an
t i

m
pa

ct
s 

on
 h

um
an

 r
em

ai
ns

, t
o 

en
su

re
 c

om
pl

ia
nc

e 
w

ith
 t

he
 C

al
ifo

rn
ia

 H
ea

lth
 a

nd
 

Sa
fe

ty
 C

od
e,

 S
ec

tio
n 

70
60

 a
nd

 S
ec

tio
n 

18
95

0-
18

96
1 

an
d 

N
at

iv
e 

Am
er

ic
an

 H
er

ita
ge

 C
om

m
is

si
on

, 
as

 a
pp

lic
ab

le
 a

nd
 f

ea
si

bl
e.

 S
uc

h 
m

ea
su

re
s 

m
ay

 

Th
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

al
re

ad
y 

su
bs

ta
nt

ia
lly

 
co

nf
or

m
s 

to
 

th
is

 
m

iti
ga

tio
n 

m
ea

su
re

. 
Th

e 
C

ity
 h

as
 d

et
er

m
in

ed
 t

ha
t 

th
e 

ex
is

tin
g 

re
gu

la
to

ry
 r

eq
ui

re
m

en
ts

 l
is

te
d 

be
lo

w
 (

fo
rm

al
ly

 
pr

ov
id

ed
 a

s 
R

C
M

-C
U

L-
2)

 r
eg

ar
di

ng
 d

is
co

ve
ry

 o
f 

hu
m

an
 

re
m

ai
ns

 w
ou

ld
 a

pp
ly

 t
o 

th
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

an
d 

ar
e 

eq
ua

l t
o 

or
 

m
or

e 
ef

fe
ct

iv
e 

th
an

 t
he

 S
C

AG
 R

TP
/S

C
S 

Pr
og

ra
m

 E
IR

 
M

M
-C

U
L-

4.
 

 R
eg

ar
di

ng
 h

um
an

 re
m

ai
ns

, t
he

 P
ro

je
ct

 w
ou

ld
 b

e 
re

qu
ire

d 
to

 c
om

pl
y 

w
ith

 R
C

M
-C

U
L-

2:
 

 RC
M

-C
UL

-2
: 

In
 a

cc
or

da
nc

e 
w

ith
 t

he
 S

ta
te

’s
 H

ea
lth

 a
nd

 
Sa

fe
ty

 C
od

e 
Se

ct
io

n 
70

50
.5

, i
n 

th
e 

ev
en

t o
f d

is
co

ve
ry

 o
r 

re
co

gn
iti

on
 o

f a
ny

 h
um

an
 r

em
ai

ns
 a

t t
he

 P
ro

je
ct

 S
ite

, n
o 

fu
rth

er
 

ex
ca

va
tio

n 
or

 
di

st
ur

ba
nc

e 
of

 
th

e 
si

te
 

or
 

an
y 

ne
ar

by
 a

re
a 

re
as

on
ab

ly
 s

us
pe

ct
ed

 t
o 

ov
er

lie
 a

dj
ac

en
t 



 
M

iti
ga

tio
n 

M
ea

su
re

s 
fro

m
 P

rio
r E

IR
s 

 M
au

be
rt 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

 
 

C
ity

 o
f L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 

Su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

C
om

m
un

iti
es

 P
ro

je
ct

 E
xe

m
pt

io
n 

 
 

N
ov

em
be

r 2
01

9 
Pa

ge
 A

3-
40

 

Ta
bl

e 
A3

-1
 

M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
s 

fro
m

 P
rio

r E
IR

 (S
CA

G
’s

 2
01

6-
20

40
 R

TP
/S

CS
) 

 
Im

pa
ct

 
SC

AG
 2

01
6-

20
40

 R
TP

/S
CS

 M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
s 

(im
pl

em
en

te
d 

by
 le

ad
 a

ge
nc

y)
 

 
Ap

pl
ic

ab
ili

ty
 to

 th
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

in
cl

ud
e 

th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g,
 

or
 

ot
he

r 
co

m
pa

ra
bl

e 
m

ea
su

re
s 

id
en

tif
ie

d 
by

 th
e 

Le
ad

 A
ge

nc
y:

 
  

In
 th

e 
ev

en
t o

f d
is

co
ve

ry
 o

r 
re

co
gn

iti
on

 o
f a

ny
 

hu
m

an
 

re
m

ai
ns

 
du

rin
g 

co
ns

tru
ct

io
n 

or
 

ex
ca

va
tio

n 
ac

tiv
iti

es
 

as
so

ci
at

ed
 

w
ith

 
th

e 
pr

oj
ec

t, 
in

 a
ny

 lo
ca

tio
n 

ot
he

r 
th

an
 a

 d
ed

ic
at

ed
 

ce
m

et
er

y,
 

ce
as

e 
fu

rth
er

 
ex

ca
va

tio
n 

or
 

di
st

ur
ba

nc
e 

of
 t

he
 s

ite
 o

r 
an

y 
ne

ar
by

 a
re

a 
re

as
on

ab
ly

 
su

sp
ec

te
d 

to
 

ov
er

lie
 

ad
ja

ce
nt

 
hu

m
an

 r
em

ai
ns

 u
nt

il 
th

e 
co

ro
ne

r 
of

 th
e 

co
un

ty
 

in
 w

hi
ch

 th
e 

re
m

ai
ns

 a
re

 d
is

co
ve

re
d 

ha
s 

be
en

 
in

fo
rm

ed
 

an
d 

ha
s 

de
te

rm
in

ed
 

th
at

 
no

 
in

ve
st

ig
at

io
n 

of
 th

e 
ca

us
e 

of
 d

ea
th

 is
 re

qu
ire

d.
 

 
If 

an
y 

di
sc

ov
er

ed
 

re
m

ai
ns

 
ar

e 
of

 
N

at
iv

e 
Am

er
ic

an
 o

rig
in

: 
o 

C
on

ta
ct

 
th

e 
C

ou
nt

y 
C

or
on

er
 

to
 

co
nt

ac
t 

th
e 

N
at

iv
e 

Am
er

ic
an

 
H

er
ita

ge
 C

om
m

is
si

on
 t

o 
as

ce
rta

in
 

th
e 

pr
op

er
 d

es
ce

nd
an

ts
 f

ro
m

 t
he

 
de

ce
as

ed
 i

nd
iv

id
ua

l. 
Th

e 
co

ro
ne

r 
sh

ou
ld

 m
ak

e 
a 

re
co

m
m

en
da

tio
n 

to
 

th
e 

la
nd

ow
ne

r 
or

 
th

e 
pe

rs
on

 
re

sp
on

si
bl

e 
fo

r 
th

e 
ex

ca
va

tio
n 

w
or

k,
 

fo
r 

m
ea

ns
 

of
 

tre
at

in
g 

or
 

di
sp

os
in

g 
of

, 
w

ith
 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
 

di
gn

ity
, 

th
e 

hu
m

an
 r

em
ai

ns
 

an
d 

an
y 

as
so

ci
at

ed
 g

ra
ve

 g
oo

ds
. 

Th
is

 
m

ay
 i

nc
lu

de
 o

bt
ai

ni
ng

 a
 q

ua
lif

ie
d 

ar
ch

ae
ol

og
is

t 
or

 
te

am
 

of
 

ar
ch

ae
ol

og
is

ts
 

to
 

pr
op

er
ly

 
ex

ca
va

te
 th

e 
hu

m
an

 re
m

ai
ns

. 
o 

If 
th

e 
N

at
iv

e 
Am

er
ic

an
 

H
er

ita
ge

 
C

om
m

is
si

on
 is

 u
na

bl
e 

to
 id

en
tif

y 
a 

de
sc

en
da

nt
, 

or
 

th
e 

de
sc

en
da

nt
 

fa
ile

d 
to

 m
ak

e 
a 

re
co

m
m

en
da

tio
n 

re
m

ai
ns

 s
ha

ll 
oc

cu
r u

nt
il 

th
e 

Lo
s 

An
ge

le
s 

C
ou

nt
y 

C
or

on
er

 
ha

s 
de

te
rm

in
ed

, 
in

 
ac

co
rd

an
ce

 
w

ith
 

C
ha

pt
er

 
10

 
(c

om
m

en
ci

ng
 w

ith
 S

ec
tio

n 
27

46
0)

 o
f P

ar
t 3

 o
f D

iv
is

io
n 

2 
of

 T
itl

e 
3 

of
 th

e 
G

ov
er

nm
en

t C
od

e,
 th

at
 th

e 
re

m
ai

ns
 a

re
 

no
t 

su
bj

ec
t 

to
 t

he
 p

ro
vi

si
on

s 
of

 S
ec

tio
n 

27
49

1 
of

 t
he

 
G

ov
er

nm
en

t C
od

e 
or

 a
ny

 o
th

er
 r

el
at

ed
 p

ro
vi

si
on

s 
of

 la
w

 
co

nc
er

ni
ng

 i
nv

es
tig

at
io

n 
of

 t
he

 c
irc

um
st

an
ce

s,
 m

an
ne

r, 
an

d 
ca

us
e 

of
 

an
y 

de
at

h,
 

an
d 

th
e 

re
co

m
m

en
da

tio
ns

 
co

nc
er

ni
ng

 t
he

 t
re

at
m

en
t 

an
d 

di
sp

os
iti

on
 o

f 
th

e 
hu

m
an

 
re

m
ai

ns
 h

av
e 

be
en

 m
ad

e 
to

 t
he

 p
er

so
n 

re
sp

on
si

bl
e 

fo
r 

th
e 

ex
ca

va
tio

n,
 o

r t
o 

hi
s 

or
 h

er
 a

ut
ho

riz
ed

 re
pr

es
en

ta
tiv

e,
 

in
 th

e 
m

an
ne

r 
pr

ov
id

ed
 in

 S
ec

tio
n 

50
97

.9
8 

of
 th

e 
Pu

bl
ic

 
R

es
ou

rc
es

 C
od

e.
 T

he
 c

or
on

er
 s

ha
ll 

m
ak

e 
hi

s 
or

 h
er

 
de

te
rm

in
at

io
n 

w
ith

in
 t

w
o 

w
or

ki
ng

 d
ay

s 
fro

m
 t

he
 ti

m
e 

th
e 

pe
rs

on
 r

es
po

ns
ib

le
 f

or
 t

he
 e

xc
av

at
io

n,
 o

r 
hi

s 
or

 h
er

 
au

th
or

iz
ed

 
re

pr
es

en
ta

tiv
e,

 
no

tif
ie

s 
th

e 
co

ro
ne

r 
of

 
th

e 
di

sc
ov

er
y 

or
 r

ec
og

ni
tio

n 
of

 t
he

 h
um

an
 r

em
ai

ns
. 

If 
th

e 
co

ro
ne

r 
de

te
rm

in
es

 t
ha

t 
th

e 
re

m
ai

ns
 a

re
 n

ot
 s

ub
je

ct
 t

o 
hi

s 
or

 h
er

 a
ut

ho
rit

y 
an

d 
if 

th
e 

co
ro

ne
r 

re
co

gn
iz

es
 t

he
 

hu
m

an
 re

m
ai

ns
 to

 b
e 

th
os

e 
of

 a
 N

at
iv

e 
Am

er
ic

an
, o

r h
as

 
re

as
on

 
to

 
be

lie
ve

 
th

at
 

th
ey

 
ar

e 
th

os
e 

of
 

a 
N

at
iv

e 
Am

er
ic

an
, h

e 
or

 s
he

 s
ha

ll 
co

nt
ac

t, 
by

 te
le

ph
on

e 
w

ith
in

 2
4 

ho
ur

s,
 th

e 
N

at
iv

e 
Am

er
ic

an
 H

er
ita

ge
 C

om
m

is
si

on
.  

 Th
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t w

ou
ld

 a
ls

o 
be

 s
ub

je
ct

 to
 th

e 
C

ity
’s

 s
ta

nd
ar

d 
co

nd
iti

on
 o

f a
pp

ro
va

l r
eg

ar
di

ng
 th

e 
in

ad
ve

rte
nt

 d
is

co
ve

ry
 

of
 tr

ib
al

 c
ul

tu
ra

l r
es

ou
rc

es
. 

 Th
ro

ug
h 

co
m

pl
ia

nc
e 

w
ith

 t
hi

s 
re

gu
la

tio
n  

(R
C

M
-C

U
l-2

) 
an

d 
th

e 
C

ity
’s

 s
ta

nd
ar

d 
co

nd
iti

on
 o

f 
ap

pr
ov

al
 r

eg
ar

di
ng

 
th

e 
in

ad
ve

rte
nt

 
di

sc
ov

er
y 

of
 t

rib
al

 
cu

ltu
ra

l 
re

so
ur

ce
s,

 
po

te
nt

ia
l P

ro
je

ct
 im

pa
ct

s 
to

 h
um

an
 re

m
ai

ns
 w

ou
ld

 b
e 

le
ss

 
th

an
 s

ig
ni

fic
an

t. 



 
M

iti
ga

tio
n 

M
ea

su
re

s 
fro

m
 P

rio
r E

IR
s 

 M
au

be
rt 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

 
 

C
ity

 o
f L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 

Su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

C
om

m
un

iti
es

 P
ro

je
ct

 E
xe

m
pt

io
n 

 
 

N
ov

em
be

r 2
01

9 
Pa

ge
 A

3-
41

 

Ta
bl

e 
A3

-1
 

M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
s 

fro
m

 P
rio

r E
IR

 (S
CA

G
’s

 2
01

6-
20

40
 R

TP
/S

CS
) 

 
Im

pa
ct

 
SC

AG
 2

01
6-

20
40

 R
TP

/S
CS

 M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
s 

(im
pl

em
en

te
d 

by
 le

ad
 a

ge
nc

y)
 

 
Ap

pl
ic

ab
ili

ty
 to

 th
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

w
ith

in
 2

4 
ho

ur
s 

af
te

r b
ei

ng
 n

ot
ifi

ed
 

by
 th

e 
co

m
m

is
si

on
, o

bt
ai

n 
a 

N
at

iv
e 

Am
er

ic
an

 
m

on
ito

r, 
an

d 
an

 
ar

ch
ae

ol
og

is
t, 

if 
re

co
m

m
en

de
d 

by
 

th
e 

N
at

iv
e 

Am
er

ic
an

 m
on

ito
r, 

an
d 

re
bu

ry
 th

e 
N

at
iv

e 
Am

er
ic

an
 h

um
an

 
re

m
ai

ns
 a

nd
 a

ny
 a

ss
oc

ia
te

d 
gr

av
e 

go
od

s,
 w

ith
 a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
 d

ig
ni

ty
, o

n 
th

e 
pr

op
er

ty
 a

nd
 in

 a
 lo

ca
tio

n 
th

at
 

is
 n

ot
 s

ub
je

ct
 to

 fu
rth

er
 s

ub
su

rfa
ce

 
di

st
ur

ba
nc

e 
w

he
re

 
th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

co
nd

iti
on

s 
oc

cu
r: 

 
Th

e 
N

at
iv

e 
Am

er
ic

an
 

H
er

ita
ge

 
C

om
m

is
si

on
 

is
 

un
ab

le
 

to
 

id
en

tif
y 

a 
de

sc
en

de
nt

; 
 

Th
e 

de
sc

en
da

nt
 i

de
nt

ifi
ed

 
fa

ils
 

to
 

m
ak

e 
a 

re
co

m
m

en
da

tio
n;

 o
r 

 
Th

e 
la

nd
ow

ne
r 

or
 

th
ei

r 
au

th
or

iz
ed

 
re

pr
es

en
ta

tiv
e 

re
je

ct
s 

th
e 

re
co

m
m

en
da

tio
n 

of
 

th
e 

de
sc

en
da

nt
, 

an
d 

th
e 

m
ed

ia
tio

n 
by

 
th

e 
N

AH
C

 
fa

ils
 t

o 
pr

ov
id

e 
m

ea
su

re
s 

ac
ce

pt
ab

le
 

to
 

th
e 

la
nd

ow
ne

r. 
En

er
gy

 (E
N

) 
In

cr
ea

se
 

R
es

id
en

tia
l 

E
ne

rg
y 

U
se

, 
In

cr
ea

se
 

B
ui

ld
in

g 
E

ne
rg

y 
U

se
 

M
M

-E
N-

2:
 

C
on

si
st

en
t 

w
ith

 
th

e 
pr

ov
is

io
ns

 
of

 
Se

ct
io

n 
15

09
1 

of
 

th
e 

St
at

e 
C

EQ
A 

G
ui

de
lin

es
, 

SC
AG

 h
as

 id
en

tif
ie

d 
m

iti
ga

tio
n 

m
ea

su
re

s 
ca

pa
bl

e 
of

 a
vo

id
in

g 
or

 r
ed

uc
in

g 
th

e 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 e
ffe

ct
s 

of
 

in
cr

ea
se

d 
re

si
de

nt
ia

l e
ne

rg
y 

co
ns

um
pt

io
n 

th
at

 a
re

 
in

 
th

e 
ju

ris
di

ct
io

n 
an

d 
re

sp
on

si
bi

lit
y 

of
 

pu
bl

ic
 

ag
en

ci
es

 a
nd

/o
r 

Le
ad

 A
ge

nc
ie

s.
 W

he
re

 t
he

 L
ea

d 

Th
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

al
re

ad
y 

su
bs

ta
nt

ia
lly

 
co

nf
or

m
s 

to
 

th
is

 
m

iti
ga

tio
n 

m
ea

su
re

, 
as

 i
t 

w
ou

ld
 b

e 
re

qu
ire

d 
to

 c
om

pl
y 

w
ith

 C
al

ifo
rn

ia
 B

ui
ld

in
g 

C
od

e 
Ti

tle
 2

4 
an

d 
w

ou
ld

 a
ls

o 
in

cl
ud

e 
PD

F-
EN

-1
, 

pr
ov

id
ed

 b
el

ow
. 

To
 d

et
er

m
in

e 
th

e 
Pr

oj
ec

t’s
 s

pe
ci

fic
 e

ne
rg

y 
an

d 
w

at
er

 u
se

, 
an

 E
ne

rg
y 

an
d 

W
at

er
 

Ef
fic

ie
nc

y 
C

om
pl

ia
nc

e 
R

ep
or

t 
(in

cl
ud

ed
 

in
 

Ap
pe

nd
ix

 H
) w

as
 p

re
pa

re
d.

 A
s 

sh
ow

n 
th

er
ei

n,
 th

e 
Pr

oj
ec

t 



 
M

iti
ga

tio
n 

M
ea

su
re

s 
fro

m
 P

rio
r E

IR
s 

 M
au

be
rt 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

 
 

C
ity

 o
f L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 

Su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

C
om

m
un

iti
es

 P
ro

je
ct

 E
xe

m
pt

io
n 

 
 

N
ov

em
be

r 2
01

9 
Pa

ge
 A

3-
42

 

Ta
bl

e 
A3

-1
 

M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
s 

fro
m

 P
rio

r E
IR

 (S
CA

G
’s

 2
01

6-
20

40
 R

TP
/S

CS
) 

 
Im

pa
ct

 
SC

AG
 2

01
6-

20
40

 R
TP

/S
CS

 M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
s 

(im
pl

em
en

te
d 

by
 le

ad
 a

ge
nc

y)
 

 
Ap

pl
ic

ab
ili

ty
 to

 th
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

Ag
en

cy
 

ha
s 

id
en

tif
ie

d 
th

at
 

a 
pr

oj
ec

t 
ha

s 
th

e 
po

te
nt

ia
l 

fo
r 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 e

ffe
ct

s,
 t

he
 L

ea
d 

Ag
en

cy
 

ca
n 

an
d 

sh
ou

ld
 c

on
si

de
r 

m
iti

ga
tio

n 
m

ea
su

re
s 

to
 

en
su

re
 c

om
pl

ia
nc

e 
w

ith
 C

AL
G

re
en

, 
lo

ca
l 

bu
ild

in
g 

co
de

s,
 a

nd
 o

th
er

 a
pp

lic
ab

le
 l

aw
s 

an
d 

re
gu

la
tio

ns
 

go
ve

rn
in

g 
re

si
de

nt
ia

l 
bu

ild
in

g 
st

an
da

rd
s,

 
as

 
ap

pl
ic

ab
le

 
an

d 
fe

as
ib

le
. 

Su
ch

 
m

ea
su

re
s 

m
ay

 
in

cl
ud

e 
th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g,

 
or

 
ot

he
r 

co
m

pa
ra

bl
e 

m
ea

su
re

s 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

by
 th

e 
Le

ad
 A

ge
nc

y:
 

 
 

In
te

gr
at

e 
gr

ee
n 

bu
ild

in
g 

m
ea

su
re

s 
co

ns
is

te
nt

 
w

ith
 

C
AL

G
re

en
 

(C
al

ifo
rn

ia
 

Bu
ild

in
g 

C
od

e 
Ti

tle
 2

4)
 in

to
 p

ro
je

ct
 d

es
ig

n 
in

cl
ud

in
g:

 
o 

U
se

 e
ne

rg
y 

ef
fic

ie
nt

 m
at

er
ia

ls
 i

n 
bu

ild
in

g 
de

si
gn

, 
co

ns
tru

ct
io

n,
 

re
ha

bi
lit

at
io

n,
 a

nd
 re

tro
fit

. 
o 

In
st

al
l 

en
er

gy
-e

ffi
ci

en
t 

lig
ht

in
g,

 
he

at
in

g,
 

an
d 

co
ol

in
g 

sy
st

em
s 

(c
og

en
er

at
io

n)
; 

w
at

er
 

he
at

er
s;

 
ap

pl
ia

nc
es

; e
qu

ip
m

en
t; 

an
d 

co
nt

ro
l 

sy
st

em
s.

 
o 

R
ed

uc
e 

lig
ht

in
g,

 
he

at
in

g,
 

an
d 

co
ol

in
g 

ne
ed

s 
by

 ta
ki

ng
 a

dv
an

ta
ge

 
of

 
lig

ht
 

co
lo

re
d 

ro
of

s,
 

tre
es

 
fo

r 
sh

ad
e,

 a
nd

 s
un

lig
ht

. 
o 

In
co

rp
or

at
e 

pa
ss

iv
e 

en
vi

ro
nm

en
ta

l 
co

nt
ro

l 
sy

st
em

s 
th

at
 a

cc
ou

nt
 f

or
 

th
e 

ch
ar

ac
te

ris
tic

s 
of

 t
he

 n
at

ur
al

 
en

vi
ro

nm
en

t. 
o 

U
se

 
hi

gh
-e

ffi
ci

en
cy

 
lig

ht
in

g 
an

d 
co

ok
in

g 
de

vi
ce

s.
 

o 
In

co
rp

or
at

e 
pa

ss
iv

e 
so

la
r d

es
ig

n.
 

o 
U

se
 

hi
gh

-re
fle

ct
iv

ity
 

bu
ild

in
g 

m
at

er
ia

ls
 a

nd
 m

ul
tip

le
 g

la
zi

ng
. 

o 
Pr

oh
ib

it 
ga

s-
po

w
er

ed
 

la
nd

sc
ap

e 

w
ou

ld
 b

e 
de

si
gn

ed
 to

 b
e 

at
 le

as
t 1

5 
pe

rc
en

t m
or

e 
en

er
gy

 
ef

fic
ie

nt
 t

ha
n 

th
e 

ap
pl

ic
ab

le
 T

itl
e 

24
 o

f 
th

e 
C

al
ifo

rn
ia

 
C

od
e 

of
 

R
eg

ul
at

io
ns

 
(C

C
R

) 
st

an
da

rd
s 

an
d 

to
 

be
 

de
si

gn
ed

 to
 a

ch
ie

ve
 a

pp
ro

xi
m

at
el

y 
79

 p
er

ce
nt

 le
ss

 w
at

er
 

us
ag

e 
th

an
 th

e 
av

er
ag

e 
ho

us
eh

ol
d 

us
e 

in
 th

e 
re

gi
on

.  
 Th

e 
Pr

oj
ec

t 
w

ou
ld

 i
nc

lu
de

 t
he

 f
ol

lo
w

in
g 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

D
es

ig
n 

Fe
at

ur
e:

 
 PD

F -
EN

-1
: T

he
 P

ro
je

ct
 w

ou
ld

 in
cl

ud
e 

en
er

gy
 a

nd
 w

at
er

 
ef

fic
ie

nc
y 

m
ea

su
re

s,
 s

uc
h 

as
 th

os
e 

pr
ov

id
ed

 b
el

ow
: 

 Bu
ild

in
g 

En
ve

lo
pe

 
 

H
ig

h 
pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

 in
su

la
tio

n.
 

 
H

ig
h 

pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
 w

in
do

w
 s

ys
te

m
s.

 
 Li

gh
tin

g 
 

H
ig

h 
ef

fic
ac

y,
 L

ED
 l

am
ps

 u
til

iz
ed

 f
or

 a
m

en
iti

es
, 

of
fic

es
, g

ar
ag

e,
 a

nd
 o

th
er

 c
om

m
on

 a
re

as
. 

 
D

ay
lig

ht
in

g 
co

nt
ro

ls
 f

or
 a

m
en

iti
es

, 
of

fic
es

, 
an

d 
ot

he
r c

om
m

on
 a

re
a 

lig
ht

in
g 

ad
ja

ce
nt

 to
 w

in
do

w
s.

 
 

O
cc

up
an

cy
 c

on
tro

ls
 w

ith
 d

im
m

in
g 

fo
r 

am
en

ity
, 

le
as

in
g/

lo
bb

y,
 a

nd
 o

th
er

 c
om

m
on

 s
pa

ce
s.

 
 

D
im

m
in

g 
co

nt
ro

ls
 

fo
r 

al
l 

lig
ht

in
g 

in
 

of
fic

es
, 

co
m

m
un

ity
 ro

om
s,

 a
nd

 c
om

m
on

 a
re

as
. 

 H
VA

C
  

H
ig

h-
ef

fic
ie

nc
y 

sp
lit

 
sy

st
em

 
ai

r 
so

ur
ce

 
he

at
 

pu
m

ps
 ra

ng
in

g 
fo

r 1
5.

25
 to

 1
6 

SE
ER

 a
nd

 8
.5

 to
 

9 
H

SP
F 

fo
r 

he
at

in
g,

 
ve

nt
ila

tio
n,

 
an

d 
ai

r 
co

nd
iti

on
in

g 
(H

VA
C

). 
 D

om
es

tic
 W

at
er

 H
ea

tin
g 

 
C

en
tra

liz
ed

 h
ot

 w
at

er
 s

ys
te

m
. 

 
H

ig
h 

ef
fic

ie
nc

y 
w

at
er

 fi
xt

ur
es

. 



 
M

iti
ga

tio
n 

M
ea

su
re

s 
fro

m
 P

rio
r E

IR
s 

 M
au

be
rt 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

 
 

C
ity

 o
f L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 

Su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

C
om

m
un

iti
es

 P
ro

je
ct

 E
xe

m
pt

io
n 

 
 

N
ov

em
be

r 2
01

9 
Pa

ge
 A

3-
43

 

Ta
bl

e 
A3

-1
 

M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
s 

fro
m

 P
rio

r E
IR

 (S
CA

G
’s

 2
01

6-
20

40
 R

TP
/S

CS
) 

 
Im

pa
ct

 
SC

AG
 2

01
6-

20
40

 R
TP

/S
CS

 M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
s 

(im
pl

em
en

te
d 

by
 le

ad
 a

ge
nc

y)
 

 
Ap

pl
ic

ab
ili

ty
 to

 th
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

m
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 e
qu

ip
m

en
t. 

o 
In

st
al

l 
el

ec
tri

c 
ve

hi
cl

e 
ch

ar
gi

ng
 

st
at

io
ns

. 
o 

R
ed

uc
e 

w
oo

d 
bu

rn
in

g 
st

ov
es

 o
r 

fir
ep

la
ce

s.
 

o 
Pr

ov
id

e 
bi

ke
 

la
ne

s 
ac

ce
ss

ib
ili

ty
 

an
d 

pa
rk

in
g 

at
 

re
si

de
nt

ia
l 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
ts

. 

 Th
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

w
ou

ld
 

in
co

rp
or

at
e 

th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
w

at
er

 
ef

fic
ie

nt
 fe

at
ur

es
: 

 
H

ig
h 

ef
fic

ie
nc

y 
to

ile
ts

 w
ith

 a
 fl

us
h 

vo
lu

m
e 

of
 1

.2
8 

ga
llo

ns
 o

f w
at

er
 p

er
 fl

us
h 

or
 le

ss
. 

 
Sh

ow
er

he
ad

s 
w

ith
 a

 fl
ow

 r
at

e 
of

 1
.8

 g
al

lo
ns

 p
er

 
m

in
ut

e 
or

 le
ss

. 
 

R
es

id
en

tia
l 

la
va

to
ry

 f
au

ce
ts

 w
ith

 a
 f

lo
w

 r
at

e 
of

 
1.

5 
ga

llo
ns

 p
er

 m
in

ut
e 

or
 le

ss
. 

 
Am

en
ity

 s
pa

ce
 la

va
to

ry
 fa

uc
et

s 
w

ith
 a

 fl
ow

 ra
te

 o
f 

0.
5 

ga
llo

ns
 p

er
 m

in
ut

e 
or

 le
ss

. 
 

Ki
tc

he
n 

fa
uc

et
s 

w
ith

 a
 fl

ow
 ra

te
 o

f 1
.5

 g
al

lo
ns

 p
er

 
m

in
ut

e 
or

 le
ss

. 
 

H
ig

h 
ef

fic
ie

nc
y 

cl
ot

he
s 

w
as

he
rs

 
th

at
 

ar
e 

EN
ER

G
YS

TA
R

 ra
te

d.
 

 
H

ig
h 

ef
fic

ie
nc

y 
di

sh
w

as
he

rs
 

th
at

 
ar

e 
EN

ER
G

YS
TA

R
 ra

te
d.

 
 

H
ig

h 
ef

fic
ie

nc
y 

ur
in

al
s 

w
ith

 0
.1

25
 g

al
lo

ns
 o

f w
at

er
 

pe
r f

lu
sh

 o
r l

es
s.

 
 

H
ig

h 
ef

fic
ie

nc
y 

do
m

es
tic

 
ho

t 
w

at
er

 
he

at
in

g 
sy

st
em

 w
ith

 9
7%

 b
oi

le
rs

. 
 

W
at

er
-s

av
in

g 
po

ol
 fi

lte
r. 

 
Po

ol
 re

ci
rc

ul
at

in
g 

fil
tra

tio
n 

eq
ui

pm
en

t. 
 

Po
ol

 s
pl

as
h 

tro
ug

hs
 a

ro
un

d 
pe

rim
et

er
 t

ha
t 

dr
ai

n 
ba

ck
 in

to
 th

e 
po

ol
. 

 
M

et
er

 o
n 

th
e 

po
ol

 m
ak

e-
up

 l
in

e 
le

ak
 d

et
ec

tio
n 

sy
st

em
 fo

r s
w

im
m

in
g 

po
ol

s 
an

d 
sp

as
. 

 
D

rip
/s

ub
su

rfa
ce

 ir
rig

at
io

n 
(n

o 
ae

ro
so

l s
pr

ay
). 

 
Pr

op
er

 h
yd

ro
- z

on
in

g 
(g

ro
up

in
g 

of
 p

la
nt

in
gs

 w
ith

 
si

m
ila

r w
at

er
in

g 
ne

ed
s)

. 
 

Zo
ne

d 
irr

ig
at

io
n.

 
 

D
ro

ug
ht

 to
le

ra
nt

 p
la

nt
s.

 
 

St
or

m
w

at
er

 
to

 
be

 
ca

pt
ur

ed
 

in
 

un
de

rg
ro

un
d 

ci
st

er
n 

to
 b

e 
re

us
ed

 fo
r i

rri
ga

tio
n.

 
 

Fu
tu

re
 

al
te

rn
at

iv
e 

w
as

te
 

pi
pi

ng
 

fo
r 

cl
ot

he
s 



 
M

iti
ga

tio
n 

M
ea

su
re

s 
fro

m
 P

rio
r E

IR
s 

 M
au

be
rt 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

 
 

C
ity

 o
f L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 

Su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

C
om

m
un

iti
es

 P
ro

je
ct

 E
xe

m
pt

io
n 

 
 

N
ov

em
be

r 2
01

9 
Pa

ge
 A

3-
44

 

Ta
bl

e 
A3

-1
 

M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
s 

fro
m

 P
rio

r E
IR

 (S
CA

G
’s

 2
01

6-
20

40
 R

TP
/S

CS
) 

 
Im

pa
ct

 
SC

AG
 2

01
6-

20
40

 R
TP

/S
CS

 M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
s 

(im
pl

em
en

te
d 

by
 le

ad
 a

ge
nc

y)
 

 
Ap

pl
ic

ab
ili

ty
 to

 th
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

w
as

he
rs

, 
ba

th
tu

bs
, 

sh
ow

er
s,

 
an

d 
ba

th
ro

om
/re

st
ro

om
 s

in
ks

 g
re

y 
w

at
er

 d
iv

er
si

on
 to

 
ci

st
er

n 
fo

r r
eu

se
 in

 ir
rig

at
io

n.
 

G
eo

lo
gy

 a
nd

 S
oi

ls
 (G

EO
) 

A
dv

er
se

 
E

ffe
ct

s 
du

e 
to

 
E

ar
th

qu
ak

e 
or

 O
th

er
 S

ei
sm

ic
 

A
ct

iv
ity

, 
U

ns
ta

bl
e 

G
eo

lo
gi

c 
U

ni
t o

r S
oi

l, 
E

xp
an

si
ve

 S
oi

l 
 

M
M

-G
EO

-1
: 

C
on

si
st

en
t 

w
ith

 
th

e 
pr

ov
is

io
ns

 
of

 
Se

ct
io

n 
15

09
1 

of
 

th
e 

St
at

e 
C

EQ
A 

G
ui

de
lin

es
, 

SC
AG

 h
as

 id
en

tif
ie

d 
m

iti
ga

tio
n 

m
ea

su
re

s 
ca

pa
bl

e 
of

 a
vo

id
in

g 
or

 r
ed

uc
in

g 
th

e 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 e
ffe

ct
s 

on
 

th
e 

po
te

nt
ia

l f
or

 p
ro

je
ct

s 
to

 re
su

lt 
in

 th
e 

ex
po

su
re

 o
f 

pe
op

le
 

an
d 

in
fra

st
ru

ct
ur

e 
to

 
th

e 
ef

fe
ct

s 
of

 
ea

rth
qu

ak
es

, 
se

is
m

ic
 

re
la

te
d 

gr
ou

nd
-fa

ilu
re

, 
liq

ue
fa

ct
io

n,
 

an
d 

se
is

m
ic

al
ly

 i
nd

uc
ed

 l
an

ds
lid

es
, 

th
at

 a
re

 i
n 

th
e 

ju
ris

di
ct

io
n 

an
d 

re
sp

on
si

bi
lit

y 
of

 
pu

bl
ic

 a
ge

nc
ie

s,
 r

eg
ul

at
or

y 
ag

en
ci

es
, 

an
d/

or
 L

ea
d 

Ag
en

ci
es

. 
W

he
re

 t
he

 L
ea

d 
Ag

en
cy

 h
as

 i
de

nt
ifi

ed
 

th
at

 
a 

pr
oj

ec
t 

ha
s 

th
e 

po
te

nt
ia

l 
fo

r 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 
ef

fe
ct

s,
 th

e 
Le

ad
 A

ge
nc

y 
ca

n 
an

d 
sh

ou
ld

 c
on

si
de

r 
m

iti
ga

tio
n 

m
ea

su
re

s 
to

 
en

su
re

 
co

m
pl

ia
nc

e 
w

ith
 

C
ou

nt
y 

an
d 

C
ity

 P
ub

lic
 W

or
ks

 a
nd

 B
ui

ld
in

g 
an

d 
Sa

fe
ty

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
nd

ar
ds

, t
he

 U
ni

fo
rm

 B
ui

ld
in

g 
C

od
e 

(U
BC

) 
an

d 
th

e 
C

al
ifo

rn
ia

 
Bu

ild
in

g 
C

od
e 

(C
BC

), 
an

d 
ot

he
r 

ap
pl

ic
ab

le
 l

aw
s 

an
d 

re
gu

la
tio

ns
 

go
ve

rn
in

g 
bu

ild
in

g 
st

an
da

rd
s,

 a
s 

ap
pl

ic
ab

le
 a

nd
 

fe
as

ib
le

. S
uc

h 
m

ea
su

re
s 

m
ay

 in
cl

ud
e 

th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g,
 

or
 o

th
er

 c
om

pa
ra

bl
e 

m
ea

su
re

s 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

by
 t

he
 

Le
ad

 A
ge

nc
y:

 
 

 
C

on
si

st
en

t 
w

ith
 

Se
ct

io
n 

4.
7.

2 
of

 
th

e 
Al

qu
is

t-P
rio

lo
 E

ar
th

qu
ak

e 
Fa

ul
t Z

on
in

g 
Ac

t, 
co

nd
uc

t 
a 

ge
ol

og
ic

 
in

ve
st

ig
at

io
n 

to
 

de
m

on
st

ra
te

 th
at

 p
ro

po
se

d 
bu

ild
in

gs
 w

ou
ld

 
no

t b
e 

co
ns

tru
ct

ed
 a

cr
os

s 
ac

tiv
e 

fa
ul

ts
. A

n 
ev

al
ua

tio
n 

an
d 

w
rit

te
n 

re
po

rt 
of

 a
 s

pe
ci

fic
 

si
te

 c
an

 a
nd

 s
ho

ul
d 

be
 p

re
pa

re
d 

by
 a

 
lic

en
se

d 
ge

ol
og

is
t. 

If 
an

 
ac

tiv
e 

fa
ul

t 
is

 
fo

un
d 

an
d 

un
fit

 fo
r 

hu
m

an
 o

cc
up

an
cy

 o
ve

r 

Th
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

al
re

ad
y 

su
bs

ta
nt

ia
lly

 
co

nf
or

m
s 

to
 

th
is

 
m

iti
ga

tio
n 

m
ea

su
re

, 
be

ca
us

e 
th

e 
Pr

oj
ec

t 
w

ou
ld

 
be

 
re

qu
ire

d 
to

 c
om

pl
y 

w
ith

 t
he

 e
xi

st
in

g 
bu

ild
in

g 
re

gu
la

tio
ns

 
as

so
ci

at
ed

 w
ith

 t
he

 C
ity

 o
f 

Lo
s 

An
ge

le
s 

Bu
ild

in
g 

C
od

e,
 

w
hi

ch
 in

co
rp

or
at

es
 th

e 
U

ni
fo

rm
 B

ui
ld

in
g 

C
od

e 
(U

BC
) a

nd
 

C
al

ifo
rn

ia
 B

ui
ld

in
g 

C
od

e 
(C

BC
), 

fo
rm

al
ly

 p
ro

vi
de

d 
be

lo
w

 
as

 R
C

M
-G

EO
-1

.  
 RC

M
-G

EO
-1

: 
Th

e 
Pr

oj
ec

t 
sh

al
l c

om
pl

y 
w

ith
 t

he
 e

xi
st

in
g 

bu
ild

in
g 

re
gu

la
tio

ns
 c

on
ta

in
ed

 in
 th

e 
C

ity
 o

f L
os

 A
ng

el
es

 
Bu

ild
in

g 
C

od
e,

 w
hi

ch
 i

nc
or

po
ra

te
s 

th
e 

U
ni

fo
rm

 B
ui

ld
in

g 
C

od
e 

an
d 

th
e 

C
al

ifo
rn

ia
 B

ui
ld

in
g 

C
od

e.
 

 In
 a

dd
iti

on
, a

 G
eo

te
ch

ni
ca

l R
ep

or
t w

as
 c

on
du

ct
ed

 fo
r t

he
 

Pr
oj

ec
t S

ite
 (a

tta
ch

ed
 a

s 
Ap

pe
nd

ix
 G

). 
As

 in
di

ca
te

d 
in

 th
e 

G
eo

te
ch

ni
ca

l 
R

ep
or

t, 
no

 k
no

w
n 

ac
tiv

e 
fa

ul
ts

 c
ro

ss
 t

he
 

Pr
oj

ec
t S

ite
 a

nd
 th

e 
Pr

oj
ec

t S
ite

 is
 n

ot
 w

ith
in

 a
 c

ur
re

nt
ly

 
de

si
gn

at
ed

 
Al

qu
is

t-P
rio

lo
 

Ea
rth

qu
ak

e 
Fa

ul
t 

Zo
ne

. 
Fu

rth
er

, t
he

 P
ro

je
ct

 S
ite

 is
 n

ot
 lo

ca
te

d 
w

ith
in

 a
n 

ar
ea

 o
f 

re
qu

ire
d 

liq
ue

fa
ct

io
n 

in
ve

st
ig

at
io

n.
 T

he
 P

ro
je

ct
 S

ite
 i

s 
lo

ca
te

d 
in

 
th

e 
se

is
m

ic
al

ly
 

ac
tiv

e 
re

gi
on

 
of

 
So

ut
he

rn
 

C
al

ifo
rn

ia
, a

nd
 is

 s
us

ce
pt

ib
le

 to
 g

ro
un

d 
sh

ak
in

g 
du

rin
g 

a 
se

is
m

ic
 e

ve
nt

. 
 As

 w
ith

 a
ny

 n
ew

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t i
n 

th
e 

St
at

e 
of

 C
al

ifo
rn

ia
, 

bu
ild

in
g 

de
si

gn
 a

nd
 c

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

ar
e 

re
qu

ire
d 

to
 c

on
fo

rm
 

to
 t

he
 c

ur
re

nt
 s

ei
sm

ic
 d

es
ig

n 
pr

ov
is

io
ns

 o
f 

th
e 

C
ity

’s
 

Bu
ild

in
g 

C
od

e,
 w

hi
ch

 in
co

rp
or

at
es

 r
el

ev
an

t p
ro

vi
si

on
s 

of
 

th
e 

20
16

 C
BC

. T
he

 2
01

6 
C

BC
, a

s 
am

en
de

d 
by

 th
e 

C
ity

’s
 

Bu
ild

in
g 

C
od

e,
 i

nc
or

po
ra

te
s 

th
e 

la
te

st
 s

ei
sm

ic
 d

es
ig

n 
st

an
da

rd
s 

fo
r s

tru
ct

ur
al

 lo
ad

s 
an

d 
m

at
er

ia
ls

 to
 p

ro
vi

de
 fo

r 
th

e 
la

te
st

 i
n 

ea
rth

qu
ak

e 
sa

fe
ty

. 
C

on
fo

rm
an

ce
 w

ith
 t

he
 



 
M

iti
ga

tio
n 

M
ea

su
re

s 
fro

m
 P

rio
r E

IR
s 

 M
au

be
rt 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

 
 

C
ity

 o
f L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 

Su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

C
om

m
un

iti
es

 P
ro

je
ct

 E
xe

m
pt

io
n 

 
 

N
ov

em
be

r 2
01

9 
Pa

ge
 A

3-
45

 

Ta
bl

e 
A3

-1
 

M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
s 

fro
m

 P
rio

r E
IR

 (S
CA

G
’s

 2
01

6-
20

40
 R

TP
/S

CS
) 

 
Im

pa
ct

 
SC

AG
 2

01
6-

20
40

 R
TP

/S
CS

 M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
s 

(im
pl

em
en

te
d 

by
 le

ad
 a

ge
nc

y)
 

 
Ap

pl
ic

ab
ili

ty
 to

 th
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

th
e 

fa
ul

t, 
pl

ac
e 

a 
se

tb
ac

k 
of

 5
0 

fe
et

 f
ro

m
 

th
e 

fa
ul

t. 
 

U
se

 
si

te
- s

pe
ci

fic
 

fa
ul

t 
id

en
tif

ic
at

io
n 

in
ve

st
ig

at
io

ns
 

co
nd

uc
te

d 
by

 
lic

en
se

d 
ge

ot
ec

hn
ic

al
 p

ro
fe

ss
io

na
ls

 i
n 

ac
co

rd
an

ce
 

w
ith

 t
he

 r
eq

ui
re

m
en

ts
 o

f 
th

e 
Al

qu
is

t-P
rio

lo
 

Ac
t, 

as
 w

el
l 

as
 a

ny
 a

pp
lic

ab
le

 C
al

tra
ns

 
re

gu
la

tio
ns

 
th

at
 

ex
ce

ed
 

or
 

re
as

on
ab

ly
 

re
pl

ac
e 

th
e 

re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

 
of

 
th

e 
Ac

t 
to

 
ei

th
er

 d
et

er
m

in
e 

th
at

 th
e 

an
tic

ip
at

ed
 ri

sk
 to

 
pe

op
le

 
an

d 
pr

op
er

ty
 

is
 

at
 

or
 

be
lo

w
 

ac
ce

pt
ab

le
 le

ve
ls

 o
r s

ite
-s

pe
ci

fic
 m

ea
su

re
s 

ha
ve

 b
ee

n 
in

co
rp

or
at

ed
 i

nt
o 

th
e 

pr
oj

ec
t 

de
si

gn
, c

on
si

st
en

t w
ith

 th
e 

C
BC

 a
nd

 U
BC

. 
 

En
su

re
 

th
at

 
pr

oj
ec

ts
 

lo
ca

te
d 

w
ith

in
 

or
 

ac
ro

ss
 A

lq
ui

st
-P

rio
lo

 Z
on

es
 c

om
pl

y 
w

ith
 

de
si

gn
 r

eq
ui

re
m

en
ts

 p
ro

vi
de

d 
in

 S
pe

ci
al

 
Pu

bl
ic

at
io

n 
11

7,
 

pu
bl

is
he

d 
by

 
th

e 
C

al
ifo

rn
ia

 G
eo

lo
gi

ca
l 

Su
rv

ey
, 

as
 w

el
l 

as
 

re
le

va
nt

 lo
ca

l, 
re

gi
on

al
, 

st
at

e,
 a

nd
 f

ed
er

al
 

de
si

gn
 c

rit
er

ia
 f

or
 c

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

in
 s

ei
sm

ic
 

ar
ea

s.
 

 
C

on
si

st
en

t 
w

ith
 

th
e 

C
BC

 
an

d 
lo

ca
l 

re
gu

la
to

ry
 

ag
en

ci
es

 
w

ith
 

ov
er

si
gh

t 
of

 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t 
as

so
ci

at
ed

 
w

ith
 

th
e 

Pl
an

, 
en

su
re

 
th

at
 

pr
oj

ec
ts

 
ar

e 
de

si
gn

ed
 

in
 

ac
co

rd
an

ce
 

w
ith

 
co

un
ty

 
an

d 
ci

ty
 

co
de

 
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
 f

or
 s

ei
sm

ic
 g

ro
un

d 
sh

ak
in

g.
 

W
ith

 r
es

pe
ct

 to
 d

es
ig

n,
 c

on
si

de
r 

se
is

m
ic

ity
 

of
 t

he
 s

ite
, 

so
il 

re
sp

on
se

 a
t 

th
e 

si
te

, 
an

d 
dy

na
m

ic
 c

ha
ra

ct
er

is
tic

s 
of

 th
e 

st
ru

ct
ur

e,
 in

 
co

m
pl

ia
nc

e 
w

ith
 t

he
 a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
 C

al
ifo

rn
ia

 
Bu

ild
in

g 
C

od
e 

an
d 

St
at

e 
of

 
C

al
ifo

rn
ia

 
de

si
gn

 
st

an
da

rd
s 

fo
r 

co
ns

tru
ct

io
n 

in
 

or
 

ne
ar

 f
au

lt 
zo

ne
s,

 a
s 

w
el

l 
as

 a
ll 

st
an

da
rd

 
de

si
gn

, g
ra

di
ng

, a
nd

 c
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
pr

ac
tic

es
 

20
16

 C
BC

 r
eq

ui
re

m
en

ts
 w

ou
ld

 r
ed

uc
e 

th
e 

po
te

nt
ia

l 
fo

r 
st

ru
ct

ur
es

 o
n 

th
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

Si
te

 t
o 

su
st

ai
n 

da
m

ag
e 

du
rin

g 
an

 e
ar

th
qu

ak
e 

ev
en

t, 
an

d 
w

ou
ld

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 t
he

 P
ro

je
ct

 
w

ou
ld

 n
ot

 e
xp

os
e 

pe
op

le
 o

r 
st

ru
ct

ur
es

 t
o 

su
bs

ta
nt

ia
l 

ad
ve

rs
e 

ef
fe

ct
s 

as
so

ci
at

ed
 w

ith
 s

ei
sm

ic
 g

ro
un

d 
sh

ak
in

g 
to

 
an

y 
gr

ea
te

r 
ex

te
nt

 
th

an
 

ot
he

r 
pr

op
er

tie
s 

in
 

th
e 

So
ut

he
rn

 C
al

ifo
rn

ia
 re

gi
on

. 
    



 
M

iti
ga

tio
n 

M
ea

su
re

s 
fro

m
 P

rio
r E

IR
s 

 M
au

be
rt 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

 
 

C
ity

 o
f L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 

Su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

C
om

m
un

iti
es

 P
ro

je
ct

 E
xe

m
pt

io
n 

 
 

N
ov

em
be

r 2
01

9 
Pa

ge
 A

3-
46

 

Ta
bl

e 
A3

-1
 

M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
s 

fro
m

 P
rio

r E
IR

 (S
CA

G
’s

 2
01

6-
20

40
 R

TP
/S

CS
) 

 
Im

pa
ct

 
SC

AG
 2

01
6-

20
40

 R
TP

/S
CS

 M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
s 

(im
pl

em
en

te
d 

by
 le

ad
 a

ge
nc

y)
 

 
Ap

pl
ic

ab
ili

ty
 to

 th
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

in
 

or
de

r 
to

 
av

oi
d 

or
 

re
du

ce
 

ge
ol

og
ic

 
ha

za
rd

s.
 

 
C

on
si

st
en

t 
w

ith
 

th
e 

C
BC

 
an

d 
lo

ca
l 

re
gu

la
to

ry
 

ag
en

ci
es

 
w

ith
 

ov
er

si
gh

t 
of

 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t 
as

so
ci

at
ed

 
w

ith
 

th
e 

Pl
an

, 
en

su
re

 
th

at
 

si
te

-s
pe

ci
fic

 
ge

ot
ec

hn
ic

al
 

in
ve

st
ig

at
io

ns
 

co
nd

uc
te

d 
by

 
a 

qu
al

ifi
ed

 
ge

ot
ec

hn
ic

al
 e

xp
er

t 
be

 r
eq

ui
re

d 
pr

io
r 

to
 

pr
ep

ar
at

io
n 

of
 

pr
oj

ec
t 

de
si

gn
s.

 
Th

es
e 

in
ve

st
ig

at
io

ns
 

sh
al

l 
id

en
tif

y 
ar

ea
s 

of
 

po
te

nt
ia

l 
ex

pa
ns

iv
e 

so
ils

 a
nd

 r
ec

om
m

en
d 

re
m

ed
ia

l 
ge

ot
ec

hn
ic

al
 

m
ea

su
re

s 
to

 
el

im
in

at
e 

an
y 

pr
ob

le
m

s.
 

R
ec

om
m

en
de

d 
co

rre
ct

iv
e 

m
ea

su
re

s,
 

su
ch

 
as

 
st

ru
ct

ur
al

 
re

in
fo

rc
em

en
t 

an
d 

re
pl

ac
in

g 
so

il 
w

ith
 

en
gi

ne
er

ed
 f

ill,
 s

ha
ll 

be
 i

m
pl

em
en

te
d 

in
 

pr
oj

ec
t 

de
si

gn
s.

 
G

eo
te

ch
ni

ca
l 

in
ve

st
ig

at
io

ns
 

id
en

tif
y 

ar
ea

s 
of

 
po

te
nt

ia
l 

fa
ilu

re
 

an
d 

re
co

m
m

en
d 

re
m

ed
ia

l 
ge

ot
ec

hn
ic

al
 m

ea
su

re
s 

to
 

el
im

in
at

e 
an

y 
pr

ob
le

m
s.

  
 

Ad
he

re
 t

o 
de

si
gn

 s
ta

nd
ar

ds
 d

es
cr

ib
ed

 i
n 

th
e 

C
BC

 
an

d 
al

l 
st

an
da

rd
 

ge
ot

ec
hn

ic
al

 
in

ve
st

ig
at

io
n,

 
de

si
gn

, 
gr

ad
in

g,
 

an
d 

co
ns

tru
ct

io
n 

pr
ac

tic
es

 t
o 

av
oi

d 
or

 r
ed

uc
e 

im
pa

ct
s 

fro
m

 
ea

rth
qu

ak
es

, 
gr

ou
nd

 
sh

ak
in

g,
 g

ro
un

d 
fa

ilu
re

, a
nd

 la
nd

sl
id

es
. 

 
C

on
si

st
en

t 
w

ith
 

th
e 

C
BC

 
an

d 
lo

ca
l 

re
gu

la
to

ry
 

ag
en

ci
es

 
w

ith
 

ov
er

si
gh

t 
of

 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t 
as

so
ci

at
ed

 
w

ith
 

th
e 

Pl
an

, 
de

si
gn

 p
ro

je
ct

s 
to

 a
vo

id
 g

eo
lo

gi
c 

un
its

 o
r 

so
ils

 th
at

 a
re

 u
ns

ta
bl

e,
 e

xp
an

si
ve

 s
oi

ls
 a

nd
 

so
ils

 
pr

on
e 

to
 

la
te

ra
l 

sp
re

ad
in

g,
 

su
bs

id
en

ce
, 

liq
ue

fa
ct

io
n,

 
or

 
co

lla
ps

e 
w

he
re

ve
r f

ea
si

bl
e.

 
 



 
M

iti
ga

tio
n 

M
ea

su
re

s 
fro

m
 P

rio
r E

IR
s 

 M
au

be
rt 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

 
 

C
ity

 o
f L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 

Su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

C
om

m
un

iti
es

 P
ro

je
ct

 E
xe

m
pt

io
n 

 
 

N
ov

em
be

r 2
01

9 
Pa

ge
 A

3-
47

 

Ta
bl

e 
A3

-1
 

M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
s 

fro
m

 P
rio

r E
IR

 (S
CA

G
’s

 2
01

6-
20

40
 R

TP
/S

CS
) 

 
Im

pa
ct

 
SC

AG
 2

01
6-

20
40

 R
TP

/S
CS

 M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
s 

(im
pl

em
en

te
d 

by
 le

ad
 a

ge
nc

y)
 

 
Ap

pl
ic

ab
ili

ty
 to

 th
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

S
oi

l E
ro

si
on

 o
r L

os
s 

of
 

To
ps

oi
l 

M
M

-G
EO

-2
: 

C
on

si
st

en
t 

w
ith

 
th

e 
pr

ov
is

io
ns

 
of

 
Se

ct
io

n 
15

09
1 

of
 

th
e 

St
at

e 
C

EQ
A 

G
ui

de
lin

es
, 

SC
AG

 h
as

 id
en

tif
ie

d 
m

iti
ga

tio
n 

m
ea

su
re

s 
ca

pa
bl

e 
of

 a
vo

id
in

g 
or

 r
ed

uc
in

g 
th

e 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 e
ffe

ct
s 

on
 

th
e 

po
te

nt
ia

l f
or

 p
ro

je
ct

s 
to

 re
su

lt 
in

 s
ub

st
an

tia
l s

oi
l 

er
os

io
n 

or
 

th
e 

lo
ss

 
of

 t
op

so
il,

 
th

at
 

ar
e 

in
 t

he
 

ju
ris

di
ct

io
n 

an
d 

re
sp

on
si

bi
lit

y 
of

 p
ub

lic
 a

ge
nc

ie
s,

 
re

gu
la

to
ry

 a
ge

nc
ie

s,
 a

nd
/o

r L
ea

d 
Ag

en
ci

es
. W

he
re

 
th

e 
Le

ad
 A

ge
nc

y 
ha

s 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

th
at

 a
 p

ro
je

ct
 h

as
 

th
e 

po
te

nt
ia

l 
fo

r 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 
ef

fe
ct

s,
 

th
e 

Le
ad

 
Ag

en
cy

 
ca

n 
an

d 
sh

ou
ld

 
co

ns
id

er
 

m
iti

ga
tio

n 
m

ea
su

re
s 

to
 e

ns
ur

e 
co

m
pl

ia
nc

e 
w

ith
 C

ou
nt

y 
an

d 
C

ity
 

Pu
bl

ic
 

W
or

ks
 

an
d 

Bu
ild

in
g 

an
d 

Sa
fe

ty
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ta
nd

ar
ds

, t
he

 U
ni

fo
rm

 B
ui

ld
in

g 
C

od
e 

(U
BC

) a
nd

 th
e 

C
al

ifo
rn

ia
 B

ui
ld

in
g 

C
od

e 
(C

BC
), 

an
d 

ot
he

r 
ap

pl
ic

ab
le

 l
aw

s 
an

d 
re

gu
la

tio
ns

 g
ov

er
ni

ng
 

bu
ild

in
g 

st
an

da
rd

s,
 

as
 

ap
pl

ic
ab

le
 

an
d 

fe
as

ib
le

. 
Su

ch
 m

ea
su

re
s 

m
ay

 in
cl

ud
e 

th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g,
 o

r o
th

er
 

co
m

pa
ra

bl
e 

m
ea

su
re

s 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

by
 

th
e 

Le
ad

 
Ag

en
cy

: 
  

C
on

si
st

en
t 

w
ith

 t
he

 C
BC

 a
nd

 l
oc

al
 r

eg
ul

at
or

y 
ag

en
ci

es
 

w
ith

 
ov

er
si

gh
t 

of
 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

as
so

ci
at

ed
 

w
ith

 
th

e 
Pl

an
, 

en
su

re
 

th
at

 
si

te
-

sp
ec

ifi
c 

ge
ot

ec
hn

ic
al

 in
ve

st
ig

at
io

ns
 c

on
du

ct
ed

 
by

 
a 

qu
al

ifi
ed

 
ge

ot
ec

hn
ic

al
 

ex
pe

rt 
ar

e 
co

nd
uc

te
d 

to
 

as
ce

rta
in

 
so

il 
ty

pe
s 

pr
io

r 
to

 
pr

ep
ar

at
io

n 
of

 
pr

oj
ec

t 
de

si
gn

s.
 

Th
es

e 
in

ve
st

ig
at

io
ns

 c
an

 a
nd

 s
ho

ul
d 

id
en

tif
y 

ar
ea

s 
of

 
po

te
nt

ia
l 

fa
ilu

re
 

an
d 

re
co

m
m

en
d 

re
m

ed
ia

l 
ge

ot
ec

hn
ic

al
 

m
ea

su
re

s 
to

 
el

im
in

at
e 

an
y 

pr
ob

le
m

s.
 

 
C

on
si

st
en

t 
w

ith
 t

he
 r

eq
ui

re
m

en
ts

 o
f 

th
e 

St
at

e 
W

at
er

 R
es

ou
rc

es
 C

on
tro

l B
oa

rd
 (

SW
R

C
B)

 f
or

 
pr

oj
ec

ts
 o

ve
r o

ne
 a

cr
e 

in
 s

iz
e,

 o
bt

ai
n 

co
ve

ra
ge

 
un

de
r 

th
e 

G
en

er
al

 C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
Ac

tiv
ity

 S
to

rm
 

Th
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

al
re

ad
y 

su
bs

ta
nt

ia
lly

 
co

nf
or

m
s 

to
 

th
is

 
m

iti
ga

tio
n 

m
ea

su
re

, 
be

ca
us

e 
th

e 
Pr

oj
ec

t 
w

ou
ld

 
be

 
de

si
gn

ed
 to

 c
om

pl
y 

w
ith

 th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g:
  

 RC
M

-G
EO

-2
: 

Th
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

w
ou

ld
 

co
m

pl
y 

w
ith

 
th

e 
C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

G
en

er
al

 P
er

m
it 

W
at

er
 Q

ua
lit

y 
O

rd
er

 2
00

9-
00

09
-D

W
Q

 a
s 

am
en

de
d 

by
 O

rd
er

 N
o.

 2
01

0-
00

14
-D

W
Q

 
to

 p
re

ve
nt

 s
ho

rt-
te

rm
 c

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

w
at

er
 q

ua
lit

y 
(in

cl
ud

in
g 

er
os

io
n 

an
d 

se
di

m
en

ta
tio

n 
is

su
es

) 
im

pa
ct

s.
 

Th
es

e 
m

an
da

to
ry

 re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

 w
ou

ld
 m

in
im

iz
e 

so
il 

er
os

io
n 

an
d 

th
e 

tra
ns

m
is

si
on

 o
f 

se
di

m
en

t 
in

to
 t

he
 C

ity
’s

 s
ep

ar
at

e 
st

or
m

 w
at

er
 s

ew
er

 s
ys

te
m

. 
 St

or
m

 W
at

er
 P

ol
lu

tio
n 

Pr
ev

en
tio

n 
Pl

an
s 

(S
W

PP
Ps

) 
ar

e 
co

m
m

on
ly

 
as

so
ci

at
ed

 
w

ith
 

co
ns

tru
ct

io
n 

st
or

m
w

at
er

 
pe

rm
its

, w
hi

ch
 a

re
 is

su
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

R
eg

io
na

l W
at

er
 Q

ua
lit

y 
C

on
tro

l B
oa

rd
. A

s 
th

e 
Pr

oj
ec

t S
ite

 is
 le

ss
 th

an
 o

ne
 a

cr
e,

 it
 

do
es

 
no

t 
re

qu
ire

 
a 

SW
PP

P.
 

H
ow

ev
er

, 
th

e 
Pr

oj
ec

t’s
 

co
ns

tru
ct

io
n 

ac
tiv

iti
es

 w
ou

ld
 r

eq
ui

re
 g

ra
di

ng
, e

xc
av

at
io

n,
 

an
d 

fo
un

da
tio

n 
pe

rm
its

 o
r 

ap
pr

ov
al

s 
fro

m
 th

e 
C

ity
 o

f L
os

 
An

ge
le

s,
 

w
hi

ch
 

w
ou

ld
 

in
cl

ud
e 

re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

 
an

d 
st

an
da

rd
s 

de
si

gn
ed

 t
o 

lim
it 

po
te

nt
ia

l i
m

pa
ct

s 
as

so
ci

at
ed

 
w

ith
 e

ro
si

on
 t

o 
pe

rm
itt

ed
 le

ve
ls

. 
Th

e 
Pr

oj
ec

t 
w

ou
ld

 a
ls

o 
co

m
pl

y 
w

ith
 

th
e 

C
ity

 
of

 
Lo

s 
An

ge
le

s’
 

Lo
w

 
Im

pa
ct

 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t (

LI
D

) O
rd

in
an

ce
, p

ro
vi

de
d 

fo
rm

al
ly

 b
el

ow
 a

t 
R

C
M

-H
YD

-1
.  

 



 
M

iti
ga

tio
n 

M
ea

su
re

s 
fro

m
 P

rio
r E

IR
s 

 M
au

be
rt 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

 
 

C
ity

 o
f L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 

Su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

C
om

m
un

iti
es

 P
ro

je
ct

 E
xe

m
pt

io
n 

 
 

N
ov

em
be

r 2
01

9 
Pa

ge
 A

3-
48

 

Ta
bl

e 
A3

-1
 

M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
s 

fro
m

 P
rio

r E
IR

 (S
CA

G
’s

 2
01

6-
20

40
 R

TP
/S

CS
) 

 
Im

pa
ct

 
SC

AG
 2

01
6-

20
40

 R
TP

/S
CS

 M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
s 

(im
pl

em
en

te
d 

by
 le

ad
 a

ge
nc

y)
 

 
Ap

pl
ic

ab
ili

ty
 to

 th
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

W
at

er
 P

er
m

it 
(G

en
er

al
 C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

Pe
rm

it)
 

is
su

ed
 

by
 

th
e 

SW
R

C
B 

an
d 

co
nd

uc
t 

th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g:
 o 

Fi
le

 a
 N

ot
ic

e 
of

 I
nt

en
t 

(N
O

I) 
w

ith
 

th
e 

SW
R

C
B.

 
o 

Pr
ep

ar
e 

a 
st

or
m

w
at

er
 

po
llu

tio
n 

pr
ev

en
tio

n 
pl

an
 

(S
W

PP
P)

 
an

d 
su

bm
it 

th
e 

pl
an

 
fo

r 
re

vi
ew

 
an

d 
ap

pr
ov

al
 b

y 
th

e 
R

eg
io

na
l 

W
at

er
 

Q
ua

lit
y 

C
on

tro
l 

Bo
ar

d 
(R

W
Q

C
B)

. 
At

 a
 m

in
im

um
, t

he
 S

W
PP

P 
sh

ou
ld

 
in

cl
ud

e 
a 

de
sc

rip
tio

n 
of

 
co

ns
tru

ct
io

n 
m

at
er

ia
ls

, 
pr

ac
tic

es
, 

an
d 

eq
ui

pm
en

t 
st

or
ag

e 
an

d 
m

ai
nt

en
an

ce
; 

a 
lis

t 
of

 p
ol

lu
ta

nt
s 

lik
el

y 
to

 c
on

ta
ct

 s
to

rm
w

at
er

; 
si

te
-

sp
ec

ifi
c 

er
os

io
n 

an
d 

se
di

m
en

ta
tio

n 
co

nt
ro

l 
pr

ac
tic

es
; 

a 
lis

t 
of

 
pr

ov
is

io
ns

 t
o 

el
im

in
at

e 
or

 r
ed

uc
e 

di
sc

ha
rg

e 
of

 
m

at
er

ia
ls

 
to

 
st

or
m

w
at

er
; 

be
st

 
m

an
ag

em
en

t 
pr

ac
tic

es
 

(B
M

Ps
); 

an
d 

an
 

in
sp

ec
tio

n 
an

d 
m

on
ito

rin
g 

pr
og

ra
m

. 
o 

Su
bm

it 
to

 t
he

 R
W

Q
C

B 
a 

co
py

 o
f 

th
e 

SW
PP

P 
an

d 
ev

id
en

ce
 

of
 

su
bm

itt
al

 
of

 
th

e 
N

O
I 

to
 

th
e 

SW
R

C
B.

 
Im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

of
 

th
e 

SW
PP

P 
sh

ou
ld

 
st

ar
t 

w
ith

 
th

e 
co

m
m

en
ce

m
en

t 
of

 
co

ns
tru

ct
io

n 
an

d 
co

nt
in

ue
 

th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

co
m

pl
et

io
n 

of
 th

e 
pr

oj
ec

t. 
o 

Af
te

r 
co

ns
tru

ct
io

n 
is

 
co

m
pl

et
ed

, 
th

e 
pr

oj
ec

t s
po

ns
or

 c
an

 a
nd

 s
ho

ul
d 

su
bm

it 
a 

no
tic

e 
of

 t
er

m
in

at
io

n 
to

 
th

e 
SW

R
C

B.
 



 
M

iti
ga

tio
n 

M
ea

su
re

s 
fro

m
 P

rio
r E

IR
s 

 M
au

be
rt 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

 
 

C
ity

 o
f L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 

Su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

C
om

m
un

iti
es

 P
ro

je
ct

 E
xe

m
pt

io
n 

 
 

N
ov

em
be

r 2
01

9 
Pa

ge
 A

3-
49

 

Ta
bl

e 
A3

-1
 

M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
s 

fro
m

 P
rio

r E
IR

 (S
CA

G
’s

 2
01

6-
20

40
 R

TP
/S

CS
) 

 
Im

pa
ct

 
SC

AG
 2

01
6-

20
40

 R
TP

/S
CS

 M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
s 

(im
pl

em
en

te
d 

by
 le

ad
 a

ge
nc

y)
 

 
Ap

pl
ic

ab
ili

ty
 to

 th
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

 
C

on
si

st
en

t 
w

ith
 

th
e 

re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

 
of

 
th

e 
SW

R
C

B 
an

d 
lo

ca
l 

re
gu

la
to

ry
 a

ge
nc

ie
s 

w
ith

 
ov

er
si

gh
t 

of
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

as
so

ci
at

ed
 w

ith
 t

he
 

Pl
an

, 
en

su
re

 
th

at
 

pr
oj

ec
t 

de
si

gn
s 

pr
ov

id
e 

ad
eq

ua
te

 
sl

op
e 

dr
ai

na
ge

 
an

d 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

 
la

nd
sc

ap
in

g 
to

 
m

in
im

iz
e 

th
e 

oc
cu

rre
nc

e 
of

 
sl

op
e 

in
st

ab
ili

ty
 a

nd
 e

ro
si

on
. 

D
es

ig
n 

fe
at

ur
es

 
sh

ou
ld

 i
nc

lu
de

 m
ea

su
re

s 
to

 r
ed

uc
e 

er
os

io
n 

ca
us

ed
 b

y 
st

or
m

 w
at

er
. 

R
oa

d 
cu

ts
 s

ho
ul

d 
be

 
de

si
gn

ed
 

to
 

m
ax

im
iz

e 
th

e 
po

te
nt

ia
l 

fo
r 

re
ve

ge
ta

tio
n.

 
 

C
on

si
st

en
t 

w
ith

 t
he

 C
BC

 a
nd

 l
oc

al
 r

eg
ul

at
or

y 
ag

en
ci

es
 

w
ith

 
ov

er
si

gh
t 

of
 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

as
so

ci
at

ed
 w

ith
 t

he
 P

la
n,

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
at

, 
pr

io
r 

to
 

pr
ep

ar
in

g 
pr

oj
ec

t d
es

ig
ns

, n
ew

 a
nd

 a
ba

nd
on

ed
 

w
el

ls
 a

re
 id

en
tif

ie
d 

w
ith

in
 c

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

ar
ea

s 
to

 
en

su
re

 th
e 

st
ab

ili
ty

 o
f n

ea
rb

y 
so

ils
. 

G
re

en
ho

us
e 

G
as

es
 (G

H
G

) 
C

um
ul

at
iv

e 
Im

pa
ct

s 
M

M
-G

HG
-3

: 
C

on
si

st
en

t 
w

ith
 

th
e 

pr
ov

is
io

ns
 

of
 

Se
ct

io
n 

15
09

1 
of

 
th

e 
St

at
e 

C
EQ

A 
G

ui
de

lin
es

, 
SC

AG
 h

as
 id

en
tif

ie
d 

m
iti

ga
tio

n 
m

ea
su

re
s 

ca
pa

bl
e 

of
 a

vo
id

in
g 

or
 re

du
ci

ng
 th

e 
po

te
nt

ia
l t

o 
co

nf
lic

t w
ith

 
an

 a
pp

lic
ab

le
 p

la
n,

 p
ol

ic
y,

 o
r r

eg
ul

at
io

n 
ad

op
te

d 
fo

r 
th

e 
pu

rp
os

e 
of

 
re

du
ci

ng
 

th
e 

em
is

si
on

 
of

 
gr

ee
nh

ou
se

 g
as

es
 t

ha
t 

ar
e 

w
ith

in
 t

he
 j

ur
is

di
ct

io
n 

an
d 

au
th

or
ity

 o
f 

C
al

ifo
rn

ia
 A

ir 
R

es
ou

rc
es

 B
oa

rd
, 

lo
ca

l a
ir 

di
st

ric
ts

, a
nd

/o
r L

ea
d 

Ag
en

ci
es

. W
he

re
 th

e 
Le

ad
 A

ge
nc

y 
ha

s 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

th
at

 a
 p

ro
je

ct
 h

as
 t

he
 

po
te

nt
ia

l t
o 

co
nf

lic
t 

w
ith

 a
n 

ap
pl

ic
ab

le
 p

la
n,

 p
ol

ic
y 

or
 r

eg
ul

at
io

n 
ad

op
te

d 
fo

r 
th

e 
pu

rp
os

e 
of

 r
ed

uc
in

g 
th

e 
em

is
si

on
 

of
 

gr
ee

nh
ou

se
 

ga
se

s,
 

th
e 

Le
ad

 
Ag

en
cy

 
ca

n 
an

d 
sh

ou
ld

 
co

ns
id

er
 

m
iti

ga
tio

n 
m

ea
su

re
s 

to
 

m
iti

ga
te

 
th

e 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 
ef

fe
ct

s 
of

 
gr

ee
nh

ou
se

 g
as

 im
pa

ct
s 

to
 e

ns
ur

e 
co

m
pl

ia
nc

e 
w

ith
 

al
l 

ap
pl

ic
ab

le
 l

aw
s,

 r
eg

ul
at

io
ns

, 
go

ve
rn

in
g 

C
AP

s,
 

ge
ne

ra
l p

la
ns

, 
ad

op
te

d 
po

lic
ie

s 
an

d 
pl

an
s 

of
 lo

ca
l 

N
o 

m
iti

ga
tio

n 
ap

pl
ie

s.
 T

he
 P

ro
je

ct
’s

 g
en

er
at

io
n 

of
 G

H
G

 
em

is
si

on
s 

w
ou

ld
 

no
t 

be
 

co
ns

id
er

ed
 

cu
m

ul
at

iv
el

y 
co

ns
id

er
ab

le
, 

as
 t

he
 P

ro
je

ct
 w

ou
ld

 n
ot

 c
on

fli
ct

 w
ith

 a
n 

ap
pl

ic
ab

le
 p

la
n,

 p
ol

ic
y,

 o
r 

re
gu

la
tio

n 
ad

op
te

d 
fo

r 
th

e 
pu

rp
os

es
 

of
 

re
du

ci
ng

 
th

e 
em

is
si

on
s 

of
 

G
H

G
s.

 
Se

e 
Ap

pe
nd

ix
 A

-2
 o

f 
th

is
 S

us
ta

in
ab

le
 C

om
m

un
iti

es
 P

ro
je

ct
 

C
EQ

A 
Ex

em
pt

io
n 

(S
C

PE
) 

fo
r 

a 
di

sc
us

si
on

 
of

 
th

e 
Pr

oj
ec

t’s
 

co
ns

is
te

nc
y 

w
ith

 
th

e 
go

al
s 

an
d 

be
ne

fit
s 

co
nt

ai
ne

d 
in

 S
C

AG
’s

 2
01

6-
20

40
 R

TP
/S

C
S.

 A
s 

di
sc

us
se

d 
th

er
ei

n,
 

th
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

w
ou

ld
 

be
 

co
ns

is
te

nt
 

w
ith

 
th

e 
ap

pl
ic

ab
le

 
go

al
s 

an
d 

be
ne

fit
s,

 
an

d 
th

er
ef

or
e,

 
th

is
 

m
iti

ga
tio

n 
m

ea
su

re
 d

oe
s 

no
t a

pp
ly

. 
 In

 a
dd

iti
on

, 
th

e 
Pr

oj
ec

t 
w

ou
ld

 b
e 

in
 c

om
pl

ia
nc

e 
w

ith
 th

e 
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
 f

or
 a

 T
ra

ns
it 

Pr
io

rit
y 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

(T
PP

) 
as

 it
 is

 
lo

ca
te

d 
ap

pr
ox

im
at

el
y 

40
0 

fe
et

 n
or

th
 o

f 
a 

m
aj

or
 t

ra
ns

it 
st

op
 (

th
e 

Ve
rm

on
t/S

un
se

t 
M

et
ro

 R
ed

 L
in

e 
St

at
io

n)
 a

nd
 

m
ul

tip
le

 b
us

 s
to

ps
 w

ith
 h

ig
h 

fre
qu

en
cy

 t
ra

ns
it 

se
rv

ic
e,

 



 
M

iti
ga

tio
n 

M
ea

su
re

s 
fro

m
 P

rio
r E

IR
s 

 M
au

be
rt 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

 
 

C
ity

 o
f L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 

Su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

C
om

m
un

iti
es

 P
ro

je
ct

 E
xe

m
pt

io
n 

 
 

N
ov

em
be

r 2
01

9 
Pa

ge
 A

3-
50

 

Ta
bl

e 
A3

-1
 

M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
s 

fro
m

 P
rio

r E
IR

 (S
CA

G
’s

 2
01

6-
20

40
 R

TP
/S

CS
) 

 
Im

pa
ct

 
SC

AG
 2

01
6-

20
40

 R
TP

/S
CS

 M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
s 

(im
pl

em
en

te
d 

by
 le

ad
 a

ge
nc

y)
 

 
Ap

pl
ic

ab
ili

ty
 to

 th
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

ag
en

ci
es

, 
an

d 
st

an
da

rd
s 

se
t 

fo
rth

 b
y 

re
sp

on
si

bl
e 

pu
bl

ic
 

ag
en

ci
es

 
fo

r 
th

e 
pu

rp
os

e 
of

 
re

du
ci

ng
 

em
is

si
on

s 
of

 g
re

en
ho

us
e 

ga
se

s,
 a

s 
ap

pl
ic

ab
le

 a
nd

 
fe

as
ib

le
. C

on
si

st
en

t w
ith

 S
ec

tio
n 

15
12

6.
4(

c)
 o

f t
he

 
St

at
e 

C
EQ

A 
G

ui
de

lin
es

, 
co

m
pl

ia
nc

e 
ca

n 
be

 
ac

hi
ev

ed
 

th
ro

ug
h 

ad
op

tin
g 

gr
ee

nh
ou

se
 

ga
s 

m
iti

ga
tio

n 
m

ea
su

re
s 

th
at

 
ha

ve
 

be
en

 
us

ed
 

fo
r 

pr
oj

ec
ts

 in
 th

e 
SC

AG
 r

eg
io

n 
as

 s
et

 fo
rth

 b
el

ow
, o

r 
th

ro
ug

h 
co

m
pa

ra
bl

e 
m

ea
su

re
s 

id
en

tif
ie

d 
by

 L
ea

d 
Ag

en
cy

: 
  

M
ea

su
re

s 
in

 a
n 

ad
op

te
d 

pl
an

 o
r 

m
iti

ga
tio

n 
pr

og
ra

m
 fo

r t
he

 re
du

ct
io

n 
of

 e
m

is
si

on
s 

th
at

 a
re

 
re

qu
ire

d 
as

 p
ar

t o
f t

he
 L

ea
d 

Ag
en

cy
’s

 d
ec

is
io

n.
 

 
R

ed
uc

tio
n 

in
 e

m
is

si
on

s 
re

su
lti

ng
 fr

om
 a

 p
ro

je
ct

 
th

ro
ug

h 
im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

of
 

pr
oj

ec
t 

fe
at

ur
es

, 
pr

oj
ec

t 
de

si
gn

, 
or

 o
th

er
 m

ea
su

re
s,

 s
uc

h 
as

 
th

os
e 

de
sc

rib
ed

 i
n 

Ap
pe

nd
ix

 F
 o

f 
th

e 
St

at
e 

C
EQ

A 
G

ui
de

lin
es

. 
 

O
ff-

si
te

 
m

ea
su

re
s 

to
 

m
iti

ga
te

 
a 

pr
oj

ec
t’s

 
em

is
si

on
s.

 
 

M
ea

su
re

s 
th

at
 c

on
si

de
r 

in
co

rp
or

at
io

n 
of

 B
es

t 
Av

ai
la

bl
e 

C
on

tro
l 

Te
ch

no
lo

gy
 (

BA
C

T)
 d

ur
in

g 
de

si
gn

, 
co

ns
tru

ct
io

n 
an

d 
op

er
at

io
n 

of
 p

ro
je

ct
s 

to
 m

in
im

iz
e 

G
H

G
 e

m
is

si
on

s,
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

bu
t 

no
t 

lim
ite

d 
to

: o 
U

se
 

en
er

gy
 

an
d 

fu
el

 
ef

fic
ie

nt
 

ve
hi

cl
es

 
an

d 
eq

ui
pm

en
t. 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

pr
op

on
en

ts
 

ar
e 

en
co

ur
ag

ed
 

to
 

m
ee

t 
an

d 
ex

ce
ed

 
al

l 
EP

A/
N

H
TS

A/
C

AR
B 

st
an

da
rd

s 
re

la
tin

g 
to

 
fu

el
 

ef
fic

ie
nc

y 
an

d 
em

is
si

on
 re

du
ct

io
n;

 
o 

U
se

 
al

te
rn

at
iv

e 
(n

on
-p

et
ro

le
um

 
ba

se
d)

 fu
el

s;
 

o 
D

ep
lo

ym
en

t 
of

 z
er

o-
 a

nd
/o

r 
ne

ar
 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
D

AS
H

 
H

ol
ly

w
oo

d,
 

D
AS

H
 

Lo
s 

Fe
liz

, 
D

AS
H

 
O

bs
er

va
to

ry
, a

nd
 M

et
ro

 li
ne

s 
2,

 1
75

, 1
80

, 1
81

, 2
04

, 2
06

, 
21

7,
 3

02
, 

75
4,

 a
nd

 7
80

. 
Th

e 
Pr

oj
ec

t 
w

ou
ld

 a
ls

o 
in

cl
ud

e 
77

 b
ik

e 
pa

rk
in

g 
st

al
ls

, w
hi

ch
 w

ou
ld

 s
up

po
rt 

bi
cy

cl
in

g 
as

 a
 

m
ea

ns
 o

f t
ra

ns
po

rta
tio

n.
 

 Th
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

w
ou

ld
 i

nc
lu

de
 P

D
F-

EN
-1

, 
w

hi
ch

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
pr

ov
id

ed
 a

bo
ve

. 
As

 d
is

cu
ss

ed
 in

 t
he

 E
ne

rg
y 

an
d 

W
at

er
 

Ef
fic

ie
nc

y 
C

om
pl

ia
nc

e 
R

ep
or

t (
in

cl
ud

ed
 a

s 
Ap

pe
nd

ix
 H

), 
th

e 
Pr

oj
ec

t’s
 in

cl
us

io
n 

of
 th

e 
m

ea
su

re
s 

pr
ov

id
ed

 in
 P

D
F-

EN
-1

 w
ou

ld
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

at
 t

he
 P

ro
je

ct
 is

 1
5 

pe
rc

en
t 

m
or

e 
en

er
gy

 e
ffi

ci
en

t 
th

an
 t

he
 T

itl
e 

24
 s

ta
nd

ar
ds

 a
nd

 w
ou

ld
 

ac
hi

ev
e 

ap
pr

ox
im

at
el

y 
79

 p
er

ce
nt

 le
ss

 w
at

er
 u

sa
ge

 th
an

 
th

e 
av

er
ag

e 
ho

us
eh

ol
d 

in
 th

e 
re

gi
on

.  
   



 
M

iti
ga

tio
n 

M
ea

su
re

s 
fro

m
 P

rio
r E

IR
s 

 M
au

be
rt 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

 
 

C
ity

 o
f L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 

Su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

C
om

m
un

iti
es

 P
ro

je
ct

 E
xe

m
pt

io
n 

 
 

N
ov

em
be

r 2
01

9 
Pa

ge
 A

3-
51

 

Ta
bl

e 
A3

-1
 

M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
s 

fro
m

 P
rio

r E
IR

 (S
CA

G
’s

 2
01

6-
20

40
 R

TP
/S

CS
) 

 
Im

pa
ct

 
SC

AG
 2

01
6-

20
40

 R
TP

/S
CS

 M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
s 

(im
pl

em
en

te
d 

by
 le

ad
 a

ge
nc

y)
 

 
Ap

pl
ic

ab
ili

ty
 to

 th
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

ze
ro

 
em

is
si

on
 

te
ch

no
lo

gi
es

 
as

 
de

fin
ed

 b
y 

C
AR

B;
 

o 
U

se
 

lig
ht

in
g 

sy
st

em
s 

th
at

 
ar

e 
en

er
gy

 
ef

fic
ie

nt
, 

su
ch

 
as

 
LE

D
 

te
ch

no
lo

gy
; 

o 
U

se
 t

he
 m

in
im

um
 f

ea
si

bl
e 

am
ou

nt
 

of
 

G
H

G
-e

m
itt

in
g 

co
ns

tru
ct

io
n 

m
at

er
ia

ls
 th

at
 is

 fe
as

ib
le

; 
o 

U
se

 
ce

m
en

t 
bl

en
de

d 
w

ith
 

th
e 

m
ax

im
um

 f
ea

si
bl

e 
am

ou
nt

 o
f 

fly
 

as
h 

or
 o

th
er

 m
at

er
ia

ls
 t

ha
t r

ed
uc

e 
G

H
G

 
em

is
si

on
s 

fro
m

 
ce

m
en

t 
pr

od
uc

tio
n;

 
o 

In
co

rp
or

at
e 

de
si

gn
 

m
ea

su
re

s 
to

 
re

du
ce

 G
H

G
 e

m
is

si
on

s 
fro

m
 s

ol
id

 
w

as
te

 
m

an
ag

em
en

t 
th

ro
ug

h 
en

co
ur

ag
in

g 
so

lid
 w

as
te

 re
du

ct
io

n,
 

re
cy

cl
in

g,
 a

nd
 re

us
e;

 
o 

In
co

rp
or

at
e 

pa
ss

iv
e 

so
la

r 
an

d 
ot

he
r 

de
si

gn
 m

ea
su

re
s 

to
 r

ed
uc

e 
en

er
gy

 c
on

su
m

pt
io

n 
an

d 
in

cr
ea

se
 

pr
od

uc
tio

n 
an

d 
us

e 
of

 r
en

ew
ab

le
 

en
er

gy
; 

o 
In

co
rp

or
at

e 
de

si
gn

 m
ea

su
re

s 
lik

e 
W

at
er

Se
ns

e 
fix

tu
re

s 
an

d 
w

at
er

 
ca

pt
ur

e 
to

 
re

du
ce

 
w

at
er

 
co

ns
um

pt
io

n;
 

o 
U

se
 

lig
ht

er
-c

ol
or

ed
 

pa
ve

m
en

t 
w

he
re

 fe
as

ib
le

; 
o 

R
ec

yc
le

 
co

ns
tru

ct
io

n 
de

br
is

 
to

 
m

ax
im

um
 e

xt
en

t f
ea

si
bl

e;
 

o 
Pr

ot
ec

t a
nd

 p
la

nt
 s

ha
de

 tr
ee

s 
in

 o
r 

ne
ar

 c
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
pr

oj
ec

ts
 w

he
re

 
fe

as
ib

le
; a

nd
 

o 
So

lic
it 

bi
ds

 t
ha

t 
in

cl
ud

e 
co

nc
ep

ts
 

lis
te

d 
ab

ov
e.

 



 
M

iti
ga

tio
n 

M
ea

su
re

s 
fro

m
 P

rio
r E

IR
s 

 M
au

be
rt 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

 
 

C
ity

 o
f L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 

Su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

C
om

m
un

iti
es

 P
ro

je
ct

 E
xe

m
pt

io
n 

 
 

N
ov

em
be

r 2
01

9 
Pa

ge
 A

3-
52

 

Ta
bl

e 
A3

-1
 

M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
s 

fro
m

 P
rio

r E
IR

 (S
CA

G
’s

 2
01

6-
20

40
 R

TP
/S

CS
) 

 
Im

pa
ct

 
SC

AG
 2

01
6-

20
40

 R
TP

/S
CS

 M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
s 

(im
pl

em
en

te
d 

by
 le

ad
 a

ge
nc

y)
 

 
Ap

pl
ic

ab
ili

ty
 to

 th
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

  
M

ea
su

re
s 

th
at

 
en

co
ur

ag
e 

tra
ns

it 
us

e,
 

ca
rp

oo
lin

g,
 

bi
ke

-s
ha

re
 

an
d 

ca
r-s

ha
re

 
pr

og
ra

m
s,

 a
ct

iv
e 

tra
ns

po
rta

tio
n,

 a
nd

 p
ar

ki
ng

 
st

ra
te

gi
es

, i
nc

lu
di

ng
, b

ut
 n

ot
 li

m
ite

d 
to

, t
ra

ns
it-

ac
tiv

e 
tra

ns
po

rta
tio

n 
co

or
di

na
te

d 
st

ra
te

gi
es

, 
in

cr
ea

se
d 

bi
cy

cl
e 

ca
rry

in
g 

ca
pa

ci
ty

 o
n 

tra
ns

it 
an

d 
ra

il 
ve

hi
cl

es
. 

 
In

co
rp

or
at

in
g 

bi
cy

cl
e 

an
d 

pe
de

st
ria

n 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

in
to

 
pr

oj
ec

t 
de

si
gn

s,
 

m
ai

nt
ai

ni
ng

 
th

es
e 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s,
 a

nd
 p

ro
vi

di
ng

 a
m

en
iti

es
 in

ce
nt

iv
iz

in
g 

th
ei

r 
us

e;
 p

ro
vi

di
ng

 a
de

qu
at

e 
bi

cy
cl

e 
pa

rk
in

g 
an

d 
pl

an
ni

ng
 f

or
 

an
d 

bu
ild

in
g 

lo
ca

l 
bi

cy
cl

e 
pr

oj
ec

ts
 th

at
 c

on
ne

ct
 w

ith
 th

e 
re

gi
on

al
 n

et
w

or
k.

 
 

Im
pr

ov
in

g 
tra

ns
it 

ac
ce

ss
 to

 r
ai

l a
nd

 b
us

 r
ou

te
s 

by
 in

ce
nt

iv
es

 fo
r c

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

of
 tr

an
si

t f
ac

ilit
ie

s 
w

ith
in

 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

ts
, 

an
d/

or
 

pr
ov

id
in

g 
de

di
ca

te
d 

sh
ut

tle
 s

er
vi

ce
 to

 tr
an

si
t s

ta
tio

ns
. 

 
Ad

op
tin

g 
em

pl
oy

er
 t

rip
 r

ed
uc

tio
n 

m
ea

su
re

s 
to

 
re

du
ce

 e
m

pl
oy

ee
 t

rip
s 

su
ch

 a
s 

va
np

oo
l 

an
d 

ca
rp

oo
l 

pr
og

ra
m

s,
 

pr
ov

id
in

g 
en

d-
of

-tr
ip

 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s,

 a
nd

 te
le

co
m

m
ut

in
g 

pr
og

ra
m

s.
 

 
D

es
ig

na
te

 a
 p

er
ce

nt
ag

e 
of

 p
ar

ki
ng

 s
pa

ce
s 

fo
r 

rid
e-

sh
ar

in
g 

ve
hi

cl
es

 
or

 
hi

gh
-o

cc
up

an
cy

 
ve

hi
cl

es
, 

an
d 

pr
ov

id
e 

ad
eq

ua
te

 
pa

ss
en

ge
r 

lo
ad

in
g 

an
d 

un
lo

ad
in

g 
fo

r t
ho

se
 v

eh
ic

le
s.

 
 

La
nd

 
us

e 
si

tin
g 

an
d 

de
si

gn
 m

ea
su

re
s 

th
at

 
re

du
ce

 G
H

G
 e

m
is

si
on

s,
 in

cl
ud

in
g:

 
o 

D
ev

el
op

in
g 

on
 in

fil
l a

nd
 b

ro
w

nf
ie

ld
s 

si
te

s;
 

o 
Bu

ild
in

g 
hi

gh
 

de
ns

ity
 

an
d 

m
ix

ed
 

us
e 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
ts

 n
ea

r t
ra

ns
it;

 
o 

R
et

ai
ni

ng
 

on
-s

ite
 

m
at

ur
e 

tre
es

 
an

d 
ve

ge
ta

tio
n,

 a
nd

 p
la

nt
in

g 
ne

w
 c

an
op

y 
tre

es
; 

o 
M

ea
su

re
s 

th
at

 i
nc

re
as

e 
ve

hi
cl

e 
ef

fic
ie

nc
y,

 
en

co
ur

ag
e 

us
e 

of
 z

er
o 

an
d 

lo
w

 e
m

is
si

on
s 

ve
hi

cl
es

, 
or

 r
ed

uc
e 

th
e 

ca
rb

on
 c

on
te

nt
 o

f 



 
M

iti
ga

tio
n 

M
ea

su
re

s 
fro

m
 P

rio
r E

IR
s 

 M
au

be
rt 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

 
 

C
ity

 o
f L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 

Su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

C
om

m
un

iti
es

 P
ro

je
ct

 E
xe

m
pt

io
n 

 
 

N
ov

em
be

r 2
01

9 
Pa

ge
 A

3-
53

 

Ta
bl

e 
A3

-1
 

M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
s 

fro
m

 P
rio

r E
IR

 (S
CA

G
’s

 2
01

6-
20

40
 R

TP
/S

CS
) 

 
Im

pa
ct

 
SC

AG
 2

01
6-

20
40

 R
TP

/S
CS

 M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
s 

(im
pl

em
en

te
d 

by
 le

ad
 a

ge
nc

y)
 

 
Ap

pl
ic

ab
ili

ty
 to

 th
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

fu
el

s,
 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
co

ns
tru

ct
in

g 
or

 
en

co
ur

ag
in

g 
co

ns
tru

ct
io

n 
of

 e
le

ct
ric

 v
eh

ic
le

 
ch

ar
gi

ng
 s

ta
tio

ns
 o

r 
ne

ig
hb

or
ho

od
 e

le
ct

ric
 

ve
hi

cl
e 

ne
tw

or
ks

, 
or

 c
ha

rg
in

g 
fo

r 
el

ec
tri

c 
bi

cy
cl

es
; a

nd
 

o 
M

ea
su

re
s 

to
 r

ed
uc

e 
G

H
G

 e
m

is
si

on
s 

fro
m

 
so

lid
 

w
as

te
 

m
an

ag
em

en
t 

th
ro

ug
h 

en
co

ur
ag

in
g 

so
lid

 
w

as
te

 
re

cy
cl

in
g 

an
d 

re
us

e.
 

H
az

ar
ds

 a
nd

 H
az

ar
do

us
 M

at
er

ia
ls

 (H
AZ

) 
S

ig
ni

fic
an

t 
H

az
ar

d 
du

e 
to

 
R

ou
tin

e 
Tr

an
sp

or
t, 

U
se

, 
or

 
D

is
po

sa
l 

of
 

H
az

ar
do

us
 

M
at

er
ia

ls
, 

R
ea

so
na

bl
y 

Fo
re

se
ea

bl
e 

U
ps

et
 

an
d 

A
cc

id
en

t 
C

on
di

tio
ns

, 
H

az
ar

do
us

 
E

m
is

si
on

s 
or

 
M

at
er

ia
ls

 N
ea

r S
ch

oo
l 

M
M

-H
AZ

-1
: 

C
on

si
st

en
t 

w
ith

 
th

e 
pr

ov
is

io
ns

 
of

 
Se

ct
io

n 
15

09
1 

of
 

th
e 

St
at

e 
C

EQ
A 

G
ui

de
lin

es
, 

SC
AG

 h
as

 id
en

tif
ie

d 
m

iti
ga

tio
n 

m
ea

su
re

s 
ca

pa
bl

e 
of

 
av

oi
di

ng
 

or
 

re
du

ci
ng

 
th

e 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 
ef

fe
ct

s 
re

la
te

d 
to

 t
he

 r
ou

tin
e 

tra
ns

po
rt,

 u
se

 o
r 

di
sp

os
al

 o
f 

ha
za

rd
ou

s 
m

at
er

ia
ls

 th
at

 a
re

 in
 th

e 
ju

ris
di

ct
io

n 
an

d 
re

sp
on

si
bi

lit
y 

of
 

pu
bl

ic
 

ag
en

ci
es

 
an

d/
or

 
Le

ad
 

Ag
en

ci
es

. 
W

he
re

 t
he

 L
ea

d 
Ag

en
cy

 h
as

 i
de

nt
ifi

ed
 

th
at

 
a 

pr
oj

ec
t 

ha
s 

th
e 

po
te

nt
ia

l 
fo

r 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 
ef

fe
ct

s,
 th

e 
Le

ad
 A

ge
nc

y 
ca

n 
an

d 
sh

ou
ld

 c
on

si
de

r 
m

iti
ga

tio
n 

m
ea

su
re

s 
to

 e
ns

ur
e 

co
m

pl
ia

nc
e 

w
ith

 th
e 

pr
ov

is
io

ns
 o

f t
he

 H
az

ar
do

us
 W

as
te

 C
on

tro
l A

ct
, t

he
 

U
ni

fie
d 

H
az

ar
do

us
 W

as
te

 a
nd

 H
az

ar
do

us
 M

at
er

ia
ls

 
M

an
ag

em
en

t 
R

eg
ul

at
or

y 
Pr

og
ra

m
, 

th
e 

H
az

ar
do

us
 

W
as

te
 S

ou
rc

e 
R

ed
uc

tio
n 

an
d 

M
an

ag
em

en
t R

ev
ie

w
 

Ac
t o

f 1
98

9,
 th

e 
C

al
ifo

rn
ia

 V
eh

ic
le

 C
od

e,
 a

nd
 o

th
er

 
ap

pl
ic

ab
le

 la
w

s 
an

d 
re

gu
la

tio
ns

, a
s 

ap
pl

ic
ab

le
 a

nd
 

fe
as

ib
le

. S
uc

h 
m

ea
su

re
s 

m
ay

 in
cl

ud
e 

th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g,
 

or
 o

th
er

 c
om

pa
ra

bl
e 

m
ea

su
re

s 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

by
 t

he
 

Le
ad

 A
ge

nc
y:

 
 

W
he

re
 th

e 
co

ns
tru

ct
io

n 
or

 o
pe

ra
tio

n 
of

 p
ro

je
ct

s 
in

vo
lv

es
 t

he
 t

ra
ns

po
rt 

of
 h

az
ar

do
us

 m
at

er
ia

l, 
pr

ov
id

e 
a 

w
rit

te
n 

pl
an

 o
f 

pr
op

os
ed

 r
ou

te
s 

of
 

tra
ve

l 
de

m
on

st
ra

tin
g 

us
e 

of
 

ro
ad

w
ay

s 
de

si
gn

at
ed

 fo
r t

he
 tr

an
sp

or
t o

f s
uc

h 
m

at
er

ia
ls

. 
 

W
he

re
 th

e 
co

ns
tru

ct
io

n 
or

 o
pe

ra
tio

n 
of

 p
ro

je
ct

s 

Th
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

al
re

ad
y 

su
bs

ta
nt

ia
lly

 
co

nf
or

m
s 

to
 

th
is

 
m

iti
ga

tio
n 

m
ea

su
re

. T
he

 ty
pe

s 
an

d 
am

ou
nt

 o
f h

az
ar

do
us

 
m

at
er

ia
ls

 t
ha

t 
w

ou
ld

 b
e 

us
ed

 i
n 

co
nn

ec
tio

n 
w

ith
 t

he
 

Pr
oj

ec
t w

ou
ld

 b
e 

ty
pi

ca
l o

f t
ho

se
 u

se
d 

in
 o

th
er

 re
si

de
nt

ia
l 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
ts

 (
su

ch
 a

s 
cl

ea
ni

ng
 s

ol
ve

nt
s,

 p
es

tic
id

es
 f

or
 

la
nd

sc
ap

in
g,

 a
nd

 p
ai

nt
in

g 
su

pp
lie

s)
. 

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
of

 t
he

 
Pr

oj
ec

t 
w

ou
ld

 
al

so
 

in
vo

lv
e 

th
e 

te
m

po
ra

ry
 

us
e 

of
 

po
te

nt
ia

lly
 h

az
ar

do
us

 m
at

er
ia

ls
, 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
ve

hi
cl

e 
fu

el
s,

 
pa

in
ts

, 
an

d 
oi

ls
. 

H
ow

ev
er

, 
al

l 
po

te
nt

ia
lly

 
ha

za
rd

ou
s 

m
at

er
ia

ls
 

w
ou

ld
 

be
 

co
nt

ai
ne

d,
 

st
or

ed
, 

an
d 

us
ed

 
in

 
ac

co
rd

an
ce

 w
ith

 m
an

uf
ac

tu
re

rs
’ i

ns
tru

ct
io

ns
 a

nd
 h

an
dl

ed
 

in
 c

om
pl

ia
nc

e 
w

ith
 a

pp
lic

ab
le

 f
ed

er
al

, 
St

at
e,

 a
nd

 l
oc

al
 

la
w

s,
 a

s 
fo

rm
al

ly
 p

ro
vi

de
d 

in
 R

C
M

-H
AZ

-1
, 

be
lo

w
. 

An
y 

as
so

ci
at

ed
 r

is
k 

w
ou

ld
 b

e 
re

du
ce

d 
th

ro
ug

h 
co

m
pl

ia
nc

e 
w

ith
 e

xi
st

in
g 

re
gu

la
tio

ns
. T

he
re

fo
re

, t
he

 P
ro

je
ct

 w
ou

ld
 n

ot
 

cr
ea

te
 

a 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 
ha

za
rd

 
to

 
th

e 
pu

bl
ic

 
or

 
th

e 
en

vi
ro

nm
en

t 
th

ro
ug

h 
th

e 
ro

ut
in

e 
tra

ns
po

rt,
 

us
e,

 
or

 
di

sp
os

al
 

of
 

ha
za

rd
ou

s 
m

at
er

ia
ls

 
an

d 
no

 
m

iti
ga

tio
n 

m
ea

su
re

s 
ar

e 
re

qu
ire

d.
 

 Th
e 

Ph
as

e 
I 

ES
A 

(a
tta

ch
ed

 a
s 

Ap
pe

nd
ix

 E
) 

co
nc

lu
de

d 
th

at
 b

as
ed

 o
n 

th
e 

ag
e 

of
 th

e 
ex

is
tin

g 
bu

ild
in

gs
, i

t i
s 

lik
el

y 
th

at
 a

sb
es

to
s 

co
nt

ai
ni

ng
 m

at
er

ia
ls

 (
AC

M
s)

 a
nd

/o
r 

le
ad

-
ba

se
d 

pa
in

t 
(L

BP
) 

w
ou

ld
 b

e 
pr

es
en

t 
in

 t
he

 d
em

ol
iti

on
 

de
br

is
. 

In
 

th
e 

ev
en

t 
th

at
 

AC
M

s 
an

d/
or

 
LB

P 
ar

e 
di

sc
ov

er
ed

 d
ur

in
g 

co
ns

tru
ct

io
n,

 a
ll 

AC
M

s 
an

d 
LB

P 
w

ou
ld

 



 
M

iti
ga

tio
n 

M
ea

su
re

s 
fro

m
 P

rio
r E

IR
s 

 M
au

be
rt 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

 
 

C
ity

 o
f L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 

Su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

C
om

m
un

iti
es

 P
ro

je
ct

 E
xe

m
pt

io
n 

 
 

N
ov

em
be

r 2
01

9 
Pa

ge
 A

3-
54

 

Ta
bl

e 
A3

-1
 

M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
s 

fro
m

 P
rio

r E
IR

 (S
CA

G
’s

 2
01

6-
20

40
 R

TP
/S

CS
) 

 
Im

pa
ct

 
SC

AG
 2

01
6-

20
40

 R
TP

/S
CS

 M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
s 

(im
pl

em
en

te
d 

by
 le

ad
 a

ge
nc

y)
 

 
Ap

pl
ic

ab
ili

ty
 to

 th
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

in
vo

lv
es

 t
he

 t
ra

ns
po

rt 
of

 h
az

ar
do

us
 m

at
er

ia
ls

, 
av

oi
d 

tra
ns

po
rt 

of
 s

uc
h 

m
at

er
ia

ls
 w

ith
in

 o
ne

-
qu

ar
te

r 
m

ile
 o

f 
sc

ho
ol

s,
 w

he
n 

sc
ho

ol
 i

s 
in

 
se

ss
io

n,
 w

he
re

ve
r f

ea
si

bl
e.

 
 

W
he

re
 i

t 
is

 n
ot

 f
ea

si
bl

e 
to

 a
vo

id
 t

ra
ns

po
rt 

of
 

ha
za

rd
ou

s 
m

at
er

ia
ls

, w
ith

in
 o

ne
-q

ua
rte

r m
ile

 o
f 

sc
ho

ol
s 

on
 lo

ca
l s

tre
et

s,
 p

ro
vi

de
 n

ot
ifi

ca
tio

n 
of

 
th

e 
an

tic
ip

at
ed

 s
ch

ed
ul

e 
of

 t
ra

ns
po

rt 
of

 s
uc

h 
m

at
er

ia
ls

. 
 

Sp
ec

ify
 

th
e 

ne
ed

 
fo

r 
in

te
rim

 
st

or
ag

e 
an

d 
di

sp
os

al
 

of
 

ha
za

rd
ou

s 
m

at
er

ia
ls

 
to

 
be

 
un

de
rta

ke
n 

co
ns

is
te

nt
 w

ith
 a

pp
lic

ab
le

 f
ed

er
al

, 
st

at
e,

 a
nd

 lo
ca

l s
ta

tu
te

s 
an

d 
re

gu
la

tio
ns

 in
 th

e 
pl

an
s 

an
d 

sp
ec

ifi
ca

tio
ns

 o
f 

th
e 

tra
ns

po
rta

tio
n 

im
pr

ov
em

en
t p

ro
je

ct
. 

 
Su

bm
it 

a 
H

az
ar

do
us

 
M

at
er

ia
ls

 
Bu

si
ne

ss
/O

pe
ra

tio
ns

 
Pl

an
 

fo
r 

re
vi

ew
 

an
d 

ap
pr

ov
al

 b
y 

th
e 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
 lo

ca
l a

ge
nc

y.
 O

nc
e 

ap
pr

ov
ed

, 
ke

ep
 t

he
 p

la
n 

on
 f

ile
 w

ith
 t

he
 L

ea
d 

Ag
en

cy
 

(o
r 

ot
he

r 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

 
go

ve
rn

m
en

t 
ag

en
cy

) 
an

d 
up

da
te

, 
as

 
ap

pl
ic

ab
le

. 
Th

e 
pu

rp
os

e 
of

 
th

e 
H

az
ar

do
us

 
M

at
er

ia
ls

 
Bu

si
ne

ss
/O

pe
ra

tio
ns

 
Pl

an
 

is
 

to
 

en
su

re
 

th
at

 
em

pl
oy

ee
s 

ar
e 

ad
eq

ua
te

ly
 t

ra
in

ed
 t

o 
ha

nd
le

 
th

e 
m

at
er

ia
ls

 a
nd

 p
ro

vi
de

s 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
to

 t
he

 
lo

ca
l f

ire
 p

ro
te

ct
io

n 
ag

en
cy

 s
ho

ul
d 

em
er

ge
nc

y 
re

sp
on

se
 

be
 

re
qu

ire
d.

 
Th

e 
H

az
ar

do
us

 
M

at
er

ia
ls

 
Bu

si
ne

ss
/O

pe
ra

tio
ns

 
Pl

an
 

sh
ou

ld
 

in
cl

ud
e 

th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g:
 

o 
Th

e 
ty

pe
s 

of
 h

az
ar

do
us

 m
at

er
ia

ls
 

or
 c

he
m

ic
al

s 
st

or
ed

 a
nd

/o
r 

us
ed

 
on

-s
ite

, 
su

ch
 

as
 

pe
tro

le
um

 
fu

el
 

pr
od

uc
ts

, 
lu

br
ic

an
ts

, 
so

lv
en

ts
, 

an
d 

cl
ea

ni
ng

 fl
ui

ds
. 

o 
Th

e 
lo

ca
tio

n 
of

 
su

ch
 

ha
za

rd
ou

s 
m

at
er

ia
ls

. 

be
 r

em
ov

ed
 in

 a
cc

or
da

nc
e 

w
ith

 a
ll 

ap
pl

ic
ab

le
 r

eg
ul

at
or

y 
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
, 

w
hi

ch
 a

re
 f

or
m

al
ly

 p
ro

vi
de

d 
in

 R
C

M
-H

AZ
-

2,
 b

el
ow

. 
M

an
da

to
ry

 c
om

pl
ia

nc
e 

w
ith

 t
he

se
 r

eg
ul

at
or

y 
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
 (

pr
ov

id
ed

 i
n 

R
C

M
-H

AZ
-2

) 
w

ou
ld

 r
ed

uc
e 

an
y 

po
te

nt
ia

l 
ris

ks
 a

ss
oc

ia
te

d 
w

ith
 A

C
M

s 
an

d 
LB

P
 t

o 
ac

ce
pt

ab
le

 le
ve

ls
. 

 Th
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

w
ou

ld
 c

om
pl

y 
w

ith
 t

he
 f

ol
lo

w
in

g 
R

eg
ul

at
or

y 
C

om
pl

ia
nc

e 
M

ea
su

re
s:

 
 RC

M
-H

AZ
-1

: 
Al

l 
po

te
nt

ia
lly

 h
az

ar
do

us
 m

at
er

ia
ls

 w
ou

ld
 

be
 

co
nt

ai
ne

d,
 

st
or

ed
, 

an
d 

us
ed

 
in

 
ac

co
rd

an
ce

 
w

ith
 

m
an

uf
ac

tu
re

rs
’ 

in
st

ru
ct

io
ns

 a
nd

 h
an

dl
ed

 i
n 

co
m

pl
ia

nc
e 

w
ith

 a
pp

lic
ab

le
 fe

de
ra

l, 
St

at
e,

 a
nd

 lo
ca

l l
aw

s,
 

 RC
M

-H
AZ

-2
: 

In
 a

cc
or

da
nc

e 
w

ith
 S

C
AQ

M
D

 R
ul

e 
14

03
 

(A
sb

es
to

s 
Em

is
si

on
s 

fro
m

 
D

em
ol

iti
on

/R
en

ov
at

io
n 

Ac
tiv

iti
es

), 
pr

io
r 

to
 d

em
ol

iti
on

 a
ct

iv
iti

es
 a

ss
oc

ia
te

d 
w

ith
 

th
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t, 

th
e 

Ap
pl

ic
an

t w
ou

ld
 c

on
du

ct
 a

 s
ur

ve
y 

of
 th

e 
ex

is
tin

g 
ar

ea
s 

w
he

re
 c

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

w
ou

ld
 o

cc
ur

 t
o 

ve
rif

y 
th

e 
pr

es
en

ce
 o

r 
ab

se
nc

e 
of

 a
ny

 o
f 

th
es

e 
m

at
er

ia
ls

 a
nd

 
co

nd
uc

t 
re

m
ed

ia
tio

n 
or

 
ab

at
em

en
t 

be
fo

re
 

an
y 

di
st

ur
ba

nc
e 

oc
cu

rs
. 

Fu
rth

er
m

or
e,

 t
he

 C
al

ifo
rn

ia
 D

iv
is

io
n 

of
 

O
cc

up
at

io
na

l 
Sa

fe
ty

 
an

d 
H

ea
lth

 
(C

al
-O

SH
A)

 
ha

s 
es

ta
bl

is
he

d 
lim

its
 o

f e
xp

os
ur

e 
to

 le
ad

 c
on

ta
in

ed
 in

 d
us

ts
 

an
d 

fu
m

es
 t

hr
ou

gh
 C

al
ifo

rn
ia

 C
od

e 
of

 R
eg

ul
at

io
ns

, 
Ti

tle
 

8,
 S

ec
tio

n 
15

32
.1

, 
w

hi
ch

 p
ro

vi
de

s 
fo

r 
ex

po
su

re
 l

im
its

, 
ex

po
su

re
 

m
on

ito
rin

g,
 

an
d 

re
sp

ira
to

ry
 

pr
ot

ec
tio

n,
 

an
d 

m
an

da
te

s 
go

od
 w

or
ki

ng
 p

ra
ct

ic
es

 b
y 

w
or

ke
rs

 e
xp

os
ed

 to
 

le
ad

, 
si

nc
e 

de
m

ol
iti

on
 w

or
ke

rs
 a

re
 a

t 
gr

ea
te

st
 r

is
k 

of
 

ad
ve

rs
e 

he
al

th
 e

xp
os

ur
e.

 L
ea

d-
co

nt
am

in
at

ed
 d

eb
ris

 a
nd

 
ot

he
r 

w
as

te
s 

m
us

t 
al

so
 b

e 
m

an
ag

ed
 a

nd
 d

is
po

se
d 

of
 in

 
ac

co
rd

an
ce

 w
ith

 a
pp

lic
ab

le
 p

ro
vi

si
on

s 
of

 t
he

 C
al

ifo
rn

ia
 

H
ea

lth
 a

nd
 S

af
et

y 
C

od
e.

 
  



 
M

iti
ga

tio
n 

M
ea

su
re

s 
fro

m
 P

rio
r E

IR
s 

 M
au

be
rt 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

 
 

C
ity

 o
f L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 

Su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

C
om

m
un

iti
es

 P
ro

je
ct

 E
xe

m
pt

io
n 

 
 

N
ov

em
be

r 2
01

9 
Pa

ge
 A

3-
55

 

Ta
bl

e 
A3

-1
 

M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
s 

fro
m

 P
rio

r E
IR

 (S
CA

G
’s

 2
01

6-
20

40
 R

TP
/S

CS
) 

 
Im

pa
ct

 
SC

AG
 2

01
6-

20
40

 R
TP

/S
CS

 M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
s 

(im
pl

em
en

te
d 

by
 le

ad
 a

ge
nc

y)
 

 
Ap

pl
ic

ab
ili

ty
 to

 th
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

o 
An

 
em

er
ge

nc
y 

re
sp

on
se

 
pl

an
 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
em

pl
oy

ee
 

tra
in

in
g 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n.

 
o 

A 
pl

an
 t

ha
t 

de
sc

rib
es

 t
he

 m
an

ne
r 

in
 

w
hi

ch
 

th
es

e 
m

at
er

ia
ls

 
ar

e 
ha

nd
le

d,
 

tra
ns

po
rte

d 
an

d 
di

sp
os

ed
. 

 
Sp

ec
ify

 t
he

 a
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

 p
ro

ce
du

re
s 

fo
r 

in
te

rim
 

st
or

ag
e 

an
d 

di
sp

os
al

 o
f 

ha
za

rd
ou

s 
m

at
er

ia
ls

, 
an

tic
ip

at
ed

 
to

 
be

 
re

qu
ire

d 
in

 
su

pp
or

t 
of

 
op

er
at

io
ns

 
an

d 
m

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 

ac
tiv

iti
es

, 
in

 
co

nf
or

m
an

ce
 w

ith
 a

pp
lic

ab
le

 fe
de

ra
l, 

st
at

e,
 a

nd
 

lo
ca

l 
st

at
ut

es
 

an
d 

re
gu

la
tio

ns
, 

in
 

th
e 

O
pe

ra
tio

ns
 M

an
ua

l f
or

 p
ro

je
ct

s.
 

 
Fo

llo
w

 
m

an
uf

ac
tu

re
r’s

 
re

co
m

m
en

da
tio

ns
 

on
 

us
e,

 
st

or
ag

e,
 

an
d 

di
sp

os
al

 
of

 
ch

em
ic

al
 

pr
od

uc
ts

 u
se

d 
in

 c
on

st
ru

ct
io

n.
 

 
Av

oi
d 

ov
er

to
pp

in
g 

co
ns

tru
ct

io
n 

eq
ui

pm
en

t f
ue

l 
ga

s 
ta

nk
s.

 
 

D
ur

in
g 

ro
ut

in
e 

m
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 
of

 
co

ns
tru

ct
io

n 
eq

ui
pm

en
t, 

pr
op

er
ly

 
co

nt
ai

n 
an

d 
re

m
ov

e 
gr

ea
se

 a
nd

 o
ils

. 
 

Pr
op

er
ly

 d
is

po
se

 o
f 

di
sc

ar
de

d 
co

nt
ai

ne
rs

 o
f 

fu
el

s 
an

d 
ot

he
r c

he
m

ic
al

s.
 

  

Lo
ca

te
d 

on
 

a 
H

az
ar

do
us

 
M

at
er

ia
ls

 
S

ite
 

S
ec

tio
n 

65
96

2.
5 

 
 

M
M

-H
AZ

-4
: 

C
on

si
st

en
t 

w
ith

 
th

e 
pr

ov
is

io
ns

 
of

 
Se

ct
io

n 
15

09
1 

of
 

th
e 

St
at

e 
C

EQ
A 

G
ui

de
lin

es
, 

SC
AG

 h
as

 id
en

tif
ie

d 
m

iti
ga

tio
n 

m
ea

su
re

s 
ca

pa
bl

e 
of

 
av

oi
di

ng
 

or
 

re
du

ci
ng

 
th

e 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 
ef

fe
ct

s 
re

la
te

d 
to

 
a 

pr
oj

ec
t 

pl
ac

ed
 

on
 

a 
ha

za
rd

ou
s 

m
at

er
ia

ls
 

si
te

, 
th

at
 

ar
e 

in
 

th
e 

ju
ris

di
ct

io
n 

an
d 

re
sp

on
si

bi
lit

y 
of

 r
eg

ul
at

or
y 

ag
en

ci
es

, 
ot

he
r 

pu
bl

ic
 

ag
en

ci
es

 a
nd

/o
r 

Le
ad

 A
ge

nc
ie

s.
 W

he
re

 t
he

 L
ea

d 
Ag

en
cy

 
ha

s 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

th
at

 
a 

pr
oj

ec
t 

ha
s 

th
e 

po
te

nt
ia

l 
fo

r 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 e
ffe

ct
s,

 t
he

 L
ea

d 
Ag

en
cy

 
ca

n 
an

d 
sh

ou
ld

 c
on

si
de

r 
m

iti
ga

tio
n 

m
ea

su
re

s 
to

 
en

su
re

 
co

m
pl

ia
nc

e 
w

ith
 

th
e 

pr
ov

is
io

ns
 

of
 

th
e 

N
o 

m
iti

ga
tio

n 
ap

pl
ie

s.
 

As
 

pa
rt 

of
 

th
e 

Ph
as

e 
I 

ES
A 

(a
tta

ch
ed

 a
s 

Ap
pe

nd
ix

 E
), 

re
gu

la
to

ry
 d

at
ab

as
es

, s
uc

h 
as

 
th

os
e 

re
qu

ire
d 

by
 C

al
ifo

rn
ia

 G
ov

er
nm

en
t 

C
od

e 
Se

ct
io

n 
65

96
2.

5 
w

er
e 

re
vi

ew
ed

 fo
r t

he
 P

ro
je

ct
 S

ite
 a

nd
 p

ro
pe

rti
es

 
in

 th
e 

vi
ci

ni
ty

. T
he

 d
at

ab
as

es
 s

ea
rc

he
d 

ar
e 

kn
ow

n 
as

 th
e 

“C
or

te
se

 L
is

t” 
an

d 
in

cl
ud

e 
En

vi
ro

St
or

, 
G

eo
Tr

ac
ke

r, 
an

d 
ot

he
r 

lis
ts

 
co

m
pi

le
d 

by
 

th
e 

C
al

ifo
rn

ia
 

En
vi

ro
nm

en
ta

l 
Pr

ot
ec

tio
n 

Ag
en

cy
. 

N
o 

ha
za

rd
ou

s 
m

at
er

ia
ls

 t
ha

t 
m

ay
 

po
se

 a
 r

is
k 

at
 o

r 
to

 t
he

 P
ro

je
ct

 S
ite

 w
er

e 
lis

te
d 

in
 t

he
 

da
ta

ba
se

s.
 T

he
re

fo
re

, 
co

ns
tru

ct
io

n 
an

d 
op

er
at

io
n 

of
 t

he
 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

w
ou

ld
 

no
t 

po
se

 
an

 
en

vi
ro

nm
en

ta
l 

ha
za

rd
 

to
 

su
rro

un
di

ng
 s

en
si

tiv
e 

us
es

, 
or

 t
o 

th
e 

en
vi

ro
nm

en
t, 

an
d 



 
M

iti
ga

tio
n 

M
ea

su
re

s 
fro

m
 P

rio
r E

IR
s 

 M
au

be
rt 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

 
 

C
ity

 o
f L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 

Su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

C
om

m
un

iti
es

 P
ro

je
ct

 E
xe

m
pt

io
n 

 
 

N
ov

em
be

r 2
01

9 
Pa

ge
 A

3-
56

 

Ta
bl

e 
A3

-1
 

M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
s 

fro
m

 P
rio

r E
IR

 (S
CA

G
’s

 2
01

6-
20

40
 R

TP
/S

CS
) 

 
Im

pa
ct

 
SC

AG
 2

01
6-

20
40

 R
TP

/S
CS

 M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
s 

(im
pl

em
en

te
d 

by
 le

ad
 a

ge
nc

y)
 

 
Ap

pl
ic

ab
ili

ty
 to

 th
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

G
ov

er
nm

en
t 

C
od

e 
Se

ct
io

n 
65

96
2.

5,
 O

cc
up

at
io

na
l 

Sa
fe

ty
 a

nd
 H

ea
lth

 C
od

e 
of

 1
97

; 
th

e 
R

es
po

ns
e 

C
on

se
rv

at
io

n,
 

an
d 

R
ec

ov
er

y 
Ac

t; 
th

e 
C

om
pr

eh
en

si
ve

 
En

vi
ro

nm
en

ta
l 

R
es

po
ns

e,
 

C
om

pe
ns

at
io

n,
 a

nd
 L

ia
bi

lit
y 

Ac
t; 

th
e 

H
az

ar
do

us
 

M
at

er
ia

ls
 

R
el

ea
se

 
an

d 
C

le
an

-u
p 

Ac
t, 

an
d 

th
e 

U
ni

fo
rm

 
Bu

ild
in

g 
C

od
e,

 
an

d 
C

ou
nt

y 
an

d 
C

ity
 

bu
ild

in
g 

st
an

da
rd

s,
 a

nd
 a

ll 
ap

pl
ic

ab
le

 fe
de

ra
l, 

st
at

e,
 

an
d 

lo
ca

l 
la

w
s 

an
d 

re
gu

la
tio

ns
 

go
ve

rn
in

g 
ha

za
rd

ou
s 

w
as

te
 s

ite
s,

 a
s 

ap
pl

ic
ab

le
 a

nd
 fe

as
ib

le
. 

Su
ch

 m
ea

su
re

s 
m

ay
 in

cl
ud

e 
th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g,

 o
r o

th
er

 
co

m
pa

ra
bl

e 
m

ea
su

re
s 

id
en

tif
ie

d 
by

 
th

e 
Le

ad
 

Ag
en

cy
: 

  
C

om
pl

et
e 

a 
Ph

as
e 

I 
En

vi
ro

nm
en

ta
l 

Si
te

 
As

se
ss

m
en

t, 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

a 
re

vi
ew

 
an

d 
co

ns
id

er
at

io
n 

of
 d

at
a 

fro
m

 a
ll 

kn
ow

n 
da

ta
ba

se
s 

of
 c

on
ta

m
in

at
ed

 s
ite

s,
 d

ur
in

g 
th

e 
pr

oc
es

s 
of

 
pl

an
ni

ng
, 

en
vi

ro
nm

en
ta

l 
cl

ea
ra

nc
e,

 
an

d 
co

ns
tru

ct
io

n 
fo

r p
ro

je
ct

s.
 

 
W

he
re

 w
ar

ra
nt

ed
 d

ue
 t

o 
th

e 
kn

ow
n 

pr
es

en
ce

 
of

 
co

nt
am

in
at

ed
 

m
at

er
ia

ls
, 

su
bm

it 
to

 
th

e 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

 a
ge

nc
y 

re
sp

on
si

bl
e 

fo
r 

ha
za

rd
ou

s 
m

at
er

ia
ls

/w
as

te
s 

ov
er

si
gh

t 
a 

Ph
as

e 
II 

En
vi

ro
nm

en
ta

l 
Si

te
 

As
se

ss
m

en
t 

re
po

rt 
if 

w
ar

ra
nt

ed
 b

y 
a 

Ph
as

e 
I 

re
po

rt 
fo

r 
th

e 
pr

oj
ec

t 
si

te
. 

Th
e 

re
po

rts
 

sh
ou

ld
 

m
ak

e 
re

co
m

m
en

da
tio

ns
 

fo
r 

re
m

ed
ia

l 
ac

tio
n,

 
if 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
, 

an
d 

be
 s

ig
ne

d 
by

 a
 R

eg
is

te
re

d 
En

vi
ro

nm
en

ta
l 

As
se

ss
or

, 
Pr

of
es

si
on

al
 

G
eo

lo
gi

st
, o

r P
ro

fe
ss

io
na

l E
ng

in
ee

r. 
 

Im
pl

em
en

t 
th

e 
re

co
m

m
en

da
tio

ns
 p

ro
vi

de
d 

in
 

th
e 

Ph
as

e 
II 

En
vi

ro
nm

en
ta

l 
Si

te
 A

ss
es

sm
en

t 
re

po
rt,

 w
he

re
 s

uc
h 

a 
re

po
rt 

w
as

 d
et

er
m

in
ed

 to
 

be
 n

ec
es

sa
ry

 f
or

 th
e 

co
ns

tru
ct

io
n 

or
 o

pe
ra

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
pr

oj
ec

t, 
fo

r r
em

ed
ia

l a
ct

io
n.

 

th
er

ef
or

e,
 th

is
 m

iti
ga

tio
n 

m
ea

su
re

 d
oe

s 
no

t a
pp

ly
. 

 Fu
rth

er
, 

as
 

de
sc

rib
ed

 
ab

ov
e 

un
de

r 
M

M
-H

AZ
-1

, 
th

e 
Pr

oj
ec

t 
w

ou
ld

 
co

m
pl

y 
w

ith
 

re
gu

la
to

ry
 

re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

 
re

la
te

d 
to

 A
C

M
 a

nd
 L

BP
 (

w
hi

ch
 a

re
 fo

rm
al

ly
 p

ro
vi

de
d 

in
 

R
C

M
-H

AZ
-2

, 
ab

ov
e)

, 
w

hi
ch

 w
ou

ld
 r

ed
uc

e 
an

y 
po

te
nt

ia
l 

ris
ks

 a
ss

oc
ia

te
d 

w
ith

 A
C

M
 a

nd
 L

BP
 to

 a
cc

ep
ta

bl
e 

le
ve

ls
. 



 
M

iti
ga

tio
n 

M
ea

su
re

s 
fro

m
 P

rio
r E

IR
s 

 M
au

be
rt 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

 
 

C
ity

 o
f L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 

Su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

C
om

m
un

iti
es

 P
ro

je
ct

 E
xe

m
pt

io
n 

 
 

N
ov

em
be

r 2
01

9 
Pa

ge
 A

3-
57

 

Ta
bl

e 
A3

-1
 

M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
s 

fro
m

 P
rio

r E
IR

 (S
CA

G
’s

 2
01

6-
20

40
 R

TP
/S

CS
) 

 
Im

pa
ct

 
SC

AG
 2

01
6-

20
40

 R
TP

/S
CS

 M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
s 

(im
pl

em
en

te
d 

by
 le

ad
 a

ge
nc

y)
 

 
Ap

pl
ic

ab
ili

ty
 to

 th
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

 
Su

bm
it 

a 
co

py
 o

f 
al

l a
pp

lic
ab

le
 d

oc
um

en
ta

tio
n 

re
qu

ire
d 

by
 

lo
ca

l, 
st

at
e,

 
an

d 
fe

de
ra

l 
en

vi
ro

nm
en

ta
l 

re
gu

la
to

ry
 a

ge
nc

ie
s,

 i
nc

lu
di

ng
 

bu
t 

no
t l

im
ite

d 
to

: 
pe

rm
it 

ap
pl

ic
at

io
ns

, P
ha

se
 I

 
an

d 
II 

En
vi

ro
nm

en
ta

l 
Si

te
 

As
se

ss
m

en
ts

, 
hu

m
an

 h
ea

lth
 a

nd
 e

co
lo

gi
ca

l r
is

k 
as

se
ss

m
en

ts
, 

re
m

ed
ia

l a
ct

io
n 

pl
an

s,
 r

is
k 

m
an

ag
em

en
t p

la
ns

, 
so

il 
m

an
ag

em
en

t 
pl

an
s,

 
an

d 
gr

ou
nd

w
at

er
 

m
an

ag
em

en
t p

la
ns

. 
 

C
on

du
ct

 s
oi

l s
am

pl
in

g 
an

d 
ch

em
ic

al
 a

na
ly

se
s 

of
 

sa
m

pl
es

, 
co

ns
is

te
nt

 
w

ith
 

th
e 

pr
ot

oc
ol

s 
es

ta
bl

is
he

d 
by

 t
he

 U
.S

. 
EP

A 
to

 d
et

er
m

in
e 

th
e 

ex
te

nt
 o

f 
po

te
nt

ia
l 

co
nt

am
in

at
io

n 
be

ne
at

h 
al

l 
un

de
rg

ro
un

d 
st

or
ag

e 
ta

nk
s 

(U
ST

s)
, 

el
ev

at
or

 
sh

af
ts

, 
cl

ar
ifi

er
s,

 a
nd

 s
ub

su
rfa

ce
 h

yd
ra

ul
ic

 li
fts

 
w

he
n 

on
-s

ite
 

de
m

ol
iti

on
 

or
 

co
ns

tru
ct

io
n 

ac
tiv

iti
es

 w
ou

ld
 p

ot
en

tia
lly

 a
ffe

ct
 a

 p
ar

tic
ul

ar
 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t o

r b
ui

ld
in

g.
  

 
C

on
su

lt 
w

ith
 t

he
 a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
 l

oc
al

, 
st

at
e,

 a
nd

 
fe

de
ra

l 
en

vi
ro

nm
en

ta
l 

re
gu

la
to

ry
 a

ge
nc

ie
s 

to
 

en
su

re
 s

uf
fic

ie
nt

 m
in

im
iz

at
io

n 
of

 ri
sk

 to
 h

um
an

 
he

al
th

 
an

d 
en

vi
ro

nm
en

ta
l 

re
so

ur
ce

s,
 

bo
th

 
du

rin
g 

an
d 

af
te

r 
co

ns
tru

ct
io

n,
 p

os
ed

 b
y 

so
il 

co
nt

am
in

at
io

n,
 g

ro
un

dw
at

er
 c

on
ta

m
in

at
io

n,
 o

r 
ot

he
r s

ur
fa

ce
 h

az
ar

ds
 in

cl
ud

in
g,

 b
ut

 n
ot

 li
m

ite
d 

to
, u

nd
er

gr
ou

nd
 s

to
ra

ge
 ta

nk
s,

 fu
el

 d
is

tri
bu

tio
n 

lin
es

, w
as

te
 p

its
 a

nd
 s

um
ps

. 
 

O
bt

ai
n 

an
d 

su
bm

it 
w

rit
te

n 
ev

id
en

ce
 o

f a
pp

ro
va

l 
fo

r 
an

y 
re

m
ed

ia
l a

ct
io

n 
if 

re
qu

ire
d 

by
 a

 l
oc

al
, 

st
at

e,
 

or
 

fe
de

ra
l 

en
vi

ro
nm

en
ta

l 
re

gu
la

to
ry

 
ag

en
cy

. 
 

C
ea

se
 

w
or

k 
if 

so
il,

 
gr

ou
nd

w
at

er
, 

or
 

ot
he

r 
en

vi
ro

nm
en

ta
l 

m
ed

iu
m

 
w

ith
 

su
sp

ec
te

d 
co

nt
am

in
at

io
n 

is
 

en
co

un
te

re
d 

un
ex

pe
ct

ed
ly

 
du

rin
g 

co
ns

tru
ct

io
n 

ac
tiv

iti
es

 (e
.g

., 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

by
 

od
or

 o
r 

vi
su

al
 s

ta
in

in
g,

 o
r 

if 
an

y 
un

de
rg

ro
un

d 



 
M

iti
ga

tio
n 

M
ea

su
re

s 
fro

m
 P

rio
r E

IR
s 

 M
au

be
rt 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

 
 

C
ity

 o
f L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 

Su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

C
om

m
un

iti
es

 P
ro

je
ct

 E
xe

m
pt

io
n 

 
 

N
ov

em
be

r 2
01

9 
Pa

ge
 A

3-
58

 

Ta
bl

e 
A3

-1
 

M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
s 

fro
m

 P
rio

r E
IR

 (S
CA

G
’s

 2
01

6-
20

40
 R

TP
/S

CS
) 

 
Im

pa
ct

 
SC

AG
 2

01
6-

20
40

 R
TP

/S
CS

 M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
s 

(im
pl

em
en

te
d 

by
 le

ad
 a

ge
nc

y)
 

 
Ap

pl
ic

ab
ili

ty
 to

 th
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

st
or

ag
e 

ta
nk

s,
 

ab
an

do
ne

d 
dr

um
s,

 
or

 
ot

he
r 

ha
za

rd
ou

s 
m

at
er

ia
ls

 
or

 
w

as
te

s 
ar

e 
en

co
un

te
re

d)
, 

in
 t

he
 v

ic
in

ity
 o

f 
th

e 
su

sp
ec

t 
m

at
er

ia
l. 

Se
cu

re
 t

he
 a

re
a 

as
 n

ec
es

sa
ry

 a
nd

 
ta

ke
 a

ll 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

 m
ea

su
re

s 
to

 p
ro

te
ct

 h
um

an
 

he
al

th
 a

nd
 t

he
 e

nv
iro

nm
en

t, 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

bu
t 

no
t 

lim
ite

d 
to

: 
no

tif
ic

at
io

n 
of

 r
eg

ul
at

or
y 

ag
en

ci
es

 
an

d 
id

en
tif

ic
at

io
n 

of
 t

he
 n

at
ur

e 
an

d 
ex

te
nt

 o
f 

co
nt

am
in

at
io

n.
 S

to
p 

w
or

k 
in

 th
e 

ar
ea

s 
af

fe
ct

ed
 

un
til

 t
he

 m
ea

su
re

s 
ha

ve
 b

ee
n 

im
pl

em
en

te
d 

co
ns

is
te

nt
 w

ith
 th

e 
gu

id
an

ce
 o

f t
he

 a
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

 
re

gu
la

to
ry

 o
ve

rs
ig

ht
 a

ut
ho

rit
y.

 
 

U
se

 
be

st
 

m
an

ag
em

en
t 

pr
ac

tic
es

 
(B

M
Ps

) 
re

ga
rd

in
g 

po
te

nt
ia

l 
so

il 
an

d 
gr

ou
nd

w
at

er
 

ha
za

rd
s.

  
 

So
il 

ge
ne

ra
te

d 
by

 c
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
ac

tiv
iti

es
 s

ho
ul

d 
be

 s
to

ck
pi

le
d 

on
-s

ite
 i

n 
a 

se
cu

re
 a

nd
 s

af
e 

m
an

ne
r. 

Al
l 

co
nt

am
in

at
ed

 s
oi

ls
 d

et
er

m
in

ed
 t

o 
be

 h
az

ar
do

us
 o

r n
on

-h
az

ar
do

us
 w

as
te

 m
us

t b
e 

ad
eq

ua
te

ly
 

pr
of

ile
d 

(s
am

pl
ed

) 
pr

io
r 

to
 

ac
ce

pt
ab

le
 r

eu
se

 o
r 

di
sp

os
al

 a
t a

n 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

 
of

f-s
ite

 
fa

ci
lit

y.
 

C
om

pl
et

e 
sa

m
pl

in
g 

an
d 

ha
nd

lin
g 

an
d 

tra
ns

po
rt 

pr
oc

ed
ur

es
 fo

r r
eu

se
 o

r 
di

sp
os

al
, 

in
 a

cc
or

da
nc

e 
w

ith
 a

pp
lic

ab
le

 l
oc

al
, 

st
at

e 
an

d 
fe

de
ra

l l
aw

s 
an

d 
po

lic
ie

s.
 

 
G

ro
un

dw
at

er
 

pu
m

pe
d 

fro
m

 
th

e 
su

bs
ur

fa
ce

 
sh

ou
ld

 b
e 

co
nt

ai
ne

d 
on

-s
ite

 i
n 

a 
se

cu
re

 a
nd

 
sa

fe
 m

an
ne

r, 
pr

io
r 

to
 t

re
at

m
en

t 
an

d 
di

sp
os

al
, 

to
 e

ns
ur

e 
en

vi
ro

nm
en

ta
l a

nd
 h

ea
lth

 is
su

es
 a

re
 

re
so

lv
ed

 
pu

rs
ua

nt
 

to
 

ap
pl

ic
ab

le
 

la
w

s 
an

d 
po

lic
ie

s.
 

U
til

iz
e 

en
gi

ne
er

in
g 

co
nt

ro
ls

, 
w

hi
ch

 
in

cl
ud

e 
im

pe
rm

ea
bl

e 
ba

rri
er

s 
to

 
pr

oh
ib

it 
gr

ou
nd

w
at

er
 

an
d 

va
po

r 
in

tru
si

on
 

in
to

 
th

e 
bu

ild
in

g.
 

 
Pr

io
r t

o 
is

su
an

ce
 o

f a
ny

 d
em

ol
iti

on
, g

ra
di

ng
, o

r 
bu

ild
in

g 
pe

rm
it,

 s
ub

m
it 

fo
r r

ev
ie

w
 a

nd
 a

pp
ro

va
l 



 
M

iti
ga

tio
n 

M
ea

su
re

s 
fro

m
 P

rio
r E

IR
s 

 M
au

be
rt 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

 
 

C
ity

 o
f L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 

Su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

C
om

m
un

iti
es

 P
ro

je
ct

 E
xe

m
pt

io
n 

 
 

N
ov

em
be

r 2
01

9 
Pa

ge
 A

3-
59

 

Ta
bl

e 
A3

-1
 

M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
s 

fro
m

 P
rio

r E
IR

 (S
CA

G
’s

 2
01

6-
20

40
 R

TP
/S

CS
) 

 
Im

pa
ct

 
SC

AG
 2

01
6-

20
40

 R
TP

/S
CS

 M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
s 

(im
pl

em
en

te
d 

by
 le

ad
 a

ge
nc

y)
 

 
Ap

pl
ic

ab
ili

ty
 to

 th
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

by
 

th
e 

Le
ad

 
Ag

en
cy

 
(o

r 
ot

he
r 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
 

go
ve

rn
m

en
t 

ag
en

cy
) 

w
rit

te
n 

ve
rif

ic
at

io
n 

th
at

 
th

e 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

 
fe

de
ra

l, 
st

at
e 

an
d/

or
 

lo
ca

l 
ov

er
si

gh
t 

au
th

or
iti

es
, 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
bu

t 
no

t 
lim

ite
d 

to
 t

he
 R

eg
io

na
l 

W
at

er
 Q

ua
lit

y 
C

on
tro

l 
Bo

ar
d 

(R
W

Q
C

B)
, 

ha
ve

 
gr

an
te

d 
al

l 
re

qu
ire

d 
cl

ea
ra

nc
es

 
an

d 
co

nf
irm

ed
 

th
at

 
th

e 
al

l 
ap

pl
ic

ab
le

 
st

an
da

rd
s,

 
re

gu
la

tio
ns

, 
an

d 
co

nd
iti

on
s 

ha
ve

 
be

en
 

m
et

 
fo

r 
pr

ev
io

us
 

co
nt

am
in

at
io

n 
at

 th
e 

si
te

. 
 

D
ev

el
op

, 
tra

in
, 

an
d 

im
pl

em
en

t 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

 
w

or
ke

r 
aw

ar
en

es
s 

an
d 

pr
ot

ec
tiv

e 
m

ea
su

re
s 

to
 

as
su

re
 

th
at

 
w

or
ke

r 
an

d 
pu

bl
ic

 
ex

po
su

re
 

is
 

m
in

im
iz

ed
 

to
 

an
 

ac
ce

pt
ab

le
 

le
ve

l 
an

d 
to

 
pr

ev
en

t 
an

y 
fu

rth
er

 
en

vi
ro

nm
en

ta
l 

co
nt

am
in

at
io

n 
as

 a
 re

su
lt 

of
 c

on
st

ru
ct

io
n.

 
 

If 
as

be
st

os
-c

on
ta

in
in

g 
m

at
er

ia
ls

 
(A

C
M

) 
ar

e 
fo

un
d 

to
 b

e 
pr

es
en

t i
n 

bu
ild

in
g 

m
at

er
ia

ls
 to

 b
e 

re
m

ov
ed

, 
su

bm
it 

sp
ec

ifi
ca

tio
ns

 s
ig

ne
d 

by
 a

 
ce

rti
fie

d 
as

be
st

os
 c

on
su

lta
nt

 f
or

 t
he

 r
em

ov
al

, 
en

ca
ps

ul
at

io
n,

 o
r 

en
cl

os
ur

e 
of

 t
he

 i
de

nt
ifi

ed
 

AC
M

 i
n 

ac
co

rd
an

ce
 w

ith
 a

ll 
ap

pl
ic

ab
le

 l
aw

s 
an

d 
re

gu
la

tio
ns

, 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

bu
t 

no
t 

ne
ce

ss
ar

ily
 

lim
ite

d 
to

: C
al

ifo
rn

ia
 C

od
e 

of
 R

eg
ul

at
io

ns
, T

itl
e 

8;
 B

us
in

es
s 

an
d 

Pr
of

es
si

on
s 

C
od

e;
 D

iv
is

io
n 

3;
 

C
al

ifo
rn

ia
 

H
ea

lth
 

an
d 

Sa
fe

ty
 

C
od

e 
Se

ct
io

n 
25

91
5-

 2
59

19
.7

; a
nd

 o
th

er
 lo

ca
l r

eg
ul

at
io

ns
. 

 
W

he
re

 
pr

oj
ec

ts
 

in
cl

ud
e 

th
e 

de
m

ol
iti

on
s 

or
 

m
od

ifi
ca

tio
n 

of
 b

ui
ld

in
gs

 c
on

st
ru

ct
ed

 p
rio

r 
to

 
19

68
, 

co
m

pl
et

e 
an

 
as

se
ss

m
en

t 
fo

r 
th

e 
po

te
nt

ia
l 

pr
es

en
ce

 o
r 

la
ck

 t
he

re
of

 o
f 

AC
M

, 
le

ad
-b

as
ed

 
pa

in
t, 

an
d 

an
y 

ot
he

r 
bu

ild
in

g 
m

at
er

ia
ls

 
or

 
st

or
ed

 
m

at
er

ia
ls

 
cl

as
si

fie
d 

as
 

ha
za

rd
ou

s 
w

as
te

 b
y 

st
at

e 
or

 fe
de

ra
l l

aw
. 

 
W

he
re

 th
e 

re
m

ed
ia

tio
n 

of
 le

ad
-b

as
ed

 p
ai

nt
 h

as
 

be
en

 
de

te
rm

in
ed

 
to

 
be

 
re

qu
ire

d,
 

pr
ov

id
e 



 
M

iti
ga

tio
n 

M
ea

su
re

s 
fro

m
 P

rio
r E

IR
s 

 M
au

be
rt 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

 
 

C
ity

 o
f L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 

Su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

C
om

m
un

iti
es

 P
ro

je
ct

 E
xe

m
pt

io
n 

 
 

N
ov

em
be

r 2
01

9 
Pa

ge
 A

3-
60

 

Ta
bl

e 
A3

-1
 

M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
s 

fro
m

 P
rio

r E
IR

 (S
CA

G
’s

 2
01

6-
20

40
 R

TP
/S

CS
) 

 
Im

pa
ct

 
SC

AG
 2

01
6-

20
40

 R
TP

/S
CS

 M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
s 

(im
pl

em
en

te
d 

by
 le

ad
 a

ge
nc

y)
 

 
Ap

pl
ic

ab
ili

ty
 to

 th
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

sp
ec

ifi
ca

tio
ns

 
to

 
th

e 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

 
ag

en
cy

, 
si

gn
ed

 b
y 

a 
ce

rti
fie

d 
Le

ad
 S

up
er

vi
so

r, 
Pr

oj
ec

t 
M

on
ito

r, 
or

 
Pr

oj
ec

t 
D

es
ig

ne
r 

fo
r 

th
e 

st
ab

ili
za

tio
n 

an
d/

or
 r

em
ov

al
 o

f 
th

e 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

le
ad

 p
ai

nt
 i

n 
ac

co
rd

an
ce

 w
ith

 a
ll 

ap
pl

ic
ab

le
 

la
w

s 
an

d 
re

gu
la

tio
ns

, 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

bu
t 

no
t 

ne
ce

ss
ar

ily
 l

im
ite

d 
to

: 
C

al
ifo

rn
ia

 O
cc

up
at

io
na

l 
Sa

fe
ty

 
an

d 
H

ea
lth

 
Ad

m
in

is
tra

tio
n’

s 
(C

al
 

O
SH

A’
s)

 C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
Le

ad
 S

ta
nd

ar
d,

 T
itl

e 
8 

C
al

ifo
rn

ia
 C

od
e 

of
 R

eg
ul

at
io

ns
 (

C
C

R
) 

Se
ct

io
n 

15
32

.1
 

an
d 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

of
 

H
ea

lth
 

Se
rv

ic
es

 
(D

H
S)

 R
eg

ul
at

io
n 

17
 C

C
R

 S
ec

tio
ns

 3
50

01
–

36
10

0,
 a

s 
m

ay
 b

e 
am

en
de

d.
 If

 o
th

er
 m

at
er

ia
ls

 
cl

as
si

fie
d 

as
 

ha
za

rd
ou

s 
w

as
te

 
by

 
st

at
e 

or
 

fe
de

ra
l 

la
w

 a
re

 p
re

se
nt

, 
th

e 
pr

oj
ec

t 
sp

on
so

r 
sh

ou
ld

 
su

bm
it 

w
rit

te
n 

co
nf

irm
at

io
n 

to
 

th
e 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
 

lo
ca

l 
ag

en
cy

 t
ha

t 
al

l 
st

at
e 

an
d 

fe
de

ra
l 

la
w

s 
an

d 
re

gu
la

tio
ns

 
sh

ou
ld

 
be

 
fo

llo
w

ed
 

w
he

n 
pr

of
ilin

g,
 

ha
nd

lin
g,

 
tre

at
in

g,
 

tra
ns

po
rti

ng
, 

an
d/

or
 

di
sp

os
in

g 
of

 
su

ch
 

m
at

er
ia

ls
. 

 
W

he
re

 a
 p

ro
je

ct
 s

ite
 is

 d
et

er
m

in
ed

 t
o 

co
nt

ai
n 

m
at

er
ia

ls
 

cl
as

si
fie

d 
as

 
ha

za
rd

ou
s 

w
as

te
 

by
 

st
at

e 
or

 fe
de

ra
l l

aw
 a

re
 p

re
se

nt
, s

ub
m

it 
w

rit
te

n 
co

nf
irm

at
io

n 
to

 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

 
ag

en
cy

 
th

at
 

al
l 

st
at

e 
an

d 
fe

de
ra

l l
aw

s 
an

d 
re

gu
la

tio
ns

 s
ho

ul
d 

be
 f

ol
lo

w
ed

 w
he

n 
pr

of
ili

ng
, 

ha
nd

lin
g,

 t
re

at
in

g,
 

tra
ns

po
rti

ng
, 

an
d/

or
 

di
sp

os
in

g 
of

 
su

ch
 

m
at

er
ia

ls
. 

W
ild

la
nd

 F
ire

 R
is

k 
M

M
-H

AZ
-8

: 
C

on
si

st
en

t 
w

ith
 

th
e 

pr
ov

is
io

ns
 

of
 

Se
ct

io
n 

15
09

1 
of

 
th

e 
St

at
e 

C
EQ

A 
G

ui
de

lin
es

, 
SC

AG
 h

as
 id

en
tif

ie
d 

m
iti

ga
tio

n 
m

ea
su

re
s 

ca
pa

bl
e 

of
 a

vo
id

in
g 

or
 r

ed
uc

in
g 

th
e 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 e

ffe
ct

s 
fro

m
 

th
e 

po
te

nt
ia

l e
xp

os
ur

e 
of

 p
eo

pl
e 

or
 s

tru
ct

ur
es

 to
 a

 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 r
is

k 
of

 l
os

s,
 i

nj
ur

y 
or

 d
ea

th
 i

nv
ol

vi
ng

 
w

ild
la

nd
 

fir
es

, 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

w
he

re
 

w
ild

la
nd

s 
ar

e 

N
o 

m
iti

ga
tio

n 
ap

pl
ie

s.
 T

he
 P

ro
je

ct
 S

ite
 is

 lo
ca

te
d 

in
 a

 fu
lly

 
ur

ba
ni

ze
d 

ar
ea

 a
nd

 th
er

e 
ar

e 
no

 w
ild

la
nd

s 
in

 th
e 

vi
ci

ni
ty

. 
Fu

rth
er

m
or

e,
 th

e 
Pr

oj
ec

t i
s 

su
bj

ec
t t

o 
ex

is
tin

g 
re

gu
la

to
ry

 
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
, 

su
ch

 
as

 
ad

he
re

nc
e 

to
 

Fi
re

 
C

od
e 

re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

. 
Th

us
, 

no
 im

pa
ct

s 
re

la
te

d 
to

 t
he

se
 i

ss
ue

s 
w

ou
ld

 o
cc

ur
. 



 
M

iti
ga

tio
n 

M
ea

su
re

s 
fro

m
 P

rio
r E

IR
s 

 M
au

be
rt 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

 
 

C
ity

 o
f L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 

Su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

C
om

m
un

iti
es

 P
ro

je
ct

 E
xe

m
pt

io
n 

 
 

N
ov

em
be

r 2
01

9 
Pa

ge
 A

3-
61

 

Ta
bl

e 
A3

-1
 

M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
s 

fro
m

 P
rio

r E
IR

 (S
CA

G
’s

 2
01

6-
20

40
 R

TP
/S

CS
) 

 
Im

pa
ct

 
SC

AG
 2

01
6-

20
40

 R
TP

/S
CS

 M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
s 

(im
pl

em
en

te
d 

by
 le

ad
 a

ge
nc

y)
 

 
Ap

pl
ic

ab
ili

ty
 to

 th
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

ad
ja

ce
nt

 t
o 

ur
ba

ni
ze

d 
ar

ea
s 

or
 w

he
re

 r
es

id
en

ce
s 

ar
e 

in
te

rm
ix

ed
 

w
ith

 
w

ild
la

nd
s;

 
th

at
 

ar
e 

in
 

th
e 

ju
ris

di
ct

io
n 

an
d 

re
sp

on
si

bi
lit

y 
of

 p
ub

lic
 a

ge
nc

ie
s 

an
d/

or
 L

ea
d 

Ag
en

ci
es

. 
W

he
re

 t
he

 L
ea

d 
Ag

en
cy

 
ha

s 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

th
at

 a
 p

ro
je

ct
 h

as
 t

he
 p

ot
en

tia
l 

fo
r 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 

ef
fe

ct
s,

 
th

e 
Le

ad
 

Ag
en

cy
 

ca
n 

an
d 

sh
ou

ld
 

co
ns

id
er

 
m

iti
ga

tio
n 

m
ea

su
re

s 
to

 
en

su
re

 
co

m
pl

ia
nc

e 
w

ith
 lo

ca
l g

en
er

al
 p

la
ns

, s
pe

ci
fic

 p
la

ns
, 

an
d 

re
gu

la
tio

ns
 p

ro
vi

de
d 

by
 C

ou
nt

y 
an

d 
C

ity
 f

ire
 

de
pa

rtm
en

ts
, 

as
 

ap
pl

ic
ab

le
 

an
d 

fe
as

ib
le

. 
Su

ch
 

m
ea

su
re

s 
m

ay
 

in
cl

ud
e 

th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g,
 

or
 

ot
he

r 
co

m
pa

ra
bl

e 
m

ea
su

re
s 

id
en

tif
ie

d 
by

 
th

e 
Le

ad
 

Ag
en

cy
: 

  
Ad

he
re

 t
o 

fir
e 

co
de

 r
eq

ui
re

m
en

ts
, 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
ig

ni
tio

n-
re

si
st

an
t 

co
ns

tru
ct

io
n 

w
ith

 
ex

te
rio

r 
w

al
ls

 o
f 

no
nc

om
bu

st
ib

le
 o

r 
ig

ni
tio

n 
re

si
st

an
t 

m
at

er
ia

l f
ro

m
 th

e 
su

rfa
ce

 o
f 

th
e 

gr
ou

nd
 t

o 
th

e 
ro

of
 

sy
st

em
. 

O
th

er
 

fir
e-

re
si

st
an

t 
m

ea
su

re
s 

w
ou

ld
 b

e 
ap

pl
ie

d 
to

 e
av

es
, 

ve
nt

s,
 w

in
do

w
s,

 
an

d 
do

or
s 

to
 a

vo
id

 a
ny

 g
ap

s 
th

at
 w

ou
ld

 a
llo

w
 

in
tru

si
on

 b
y 

fla
m

e 
or

 e
m

be
rs

. 
 

Ad
he

re
 

to
 

th
e 

M
ul

ti-
Ju

ris
di

ct
io

na
l 

H
az

ar
ds

 
M

iti
ga

tio
n 

Pl
an

, a
s 

w
el

l a
s 

lo
ca

l g
en

er
al

 p
la

ns
, 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
po

lic
ie

s 
an

d 
pr

og
ra

m
s 

ai
m

ed
 

at
 

re
du

ci
ng

 th
e 

ris
k 

of
 w

ild
la

nd
 fi

re
s 

th
ro

ug
h 

la
nd

 
us

e 
co

m
pa

tib
ilit

y,
 

tra
in

in
g,

 
su

st
ai

na
bl

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t, 
br

us
h 

m
an

ag
em

en
t, 

an
d 

pu
bl

ic
 

ou
tre

ac
h.

 
 

En
co

ur
ag

e 
th

e 
us

e 
of

 f
ire

-re
si

st
an

t 
ve

ge
ta

tio
n 

na
tiv

e 
to

 S
ou

th
er

n 
C

al
ifo

rn
ia

 a
nd

/o
r t

o 
th

e 
lo

ca
l 

m
ic

ro
cl

im
at

e 
(e

.g
., 

ve
ge

ta
tio

n 
th

at
 h

as
 h

ig
h 

m
oi

st
ur

e 
co

nt
en

t, 
lo

w
 g

ro
w

th
 h

ab
its

, 
ig

ni
tio

n-
re

si
st

an
t 

fo
lia

ge
, 

or
 

ev
er

gr
ee

n 
gr

ow
th

), 
el

im
in

at
e 

br
us

h 
an

d 
ch

ap
ar

ra
l, 

an
d 

di
sc

ou
ra

ge
 

th
e 

us
e 

of
 f

ire
-p

ro
m

ot
in

g 
sp

ec
ie

s 
es

pe
ci

al
ly

 



 
M

iti
ga

tio
n 

M
ea

su
re

s 
fro

m
 P

rio
r E

IR
s 

 M
au

be
rt 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

 
 

C
ity

 o
f L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 

Su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

C
om

m
un

iti
es

 P
ro

je
ct

 E
xe

m
pt

io
n 

 
 

N
ov

em
be

r 2
01

9 
Pa

ge
 A

3-
62

 

Ta
bl

e 
A3

-1
 

M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
s 

fro
m

 P
rio

r E
IR

 (S
CA

G
’s

 2
01

6-
20

40
 R

TP
/S

CS
) 

 
Im

pa
ct

 
SC

AG
 2

01
6-

20
40

 R
TP

/S
CS

 M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
s 

(im
pl

em
en

te
d 

by
 le

ad
 a

ge
nc

y)
 

 
Ap

pl
ic

ab
ili

ty
 to

 th
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

no
n-

na
tiv

e,
 

in
va

si
ve

 
sp

ec
ie

s 
(e

.g
., 

pa
m

pa
s 

gr
as

s,
 fe

nn
el

, m
us

ta
rd

, o
r t

he
 g

ia
nt

 re
ed

) i
n 

th
e 

im
m

ed
ia

te
 v

ic
in

ity
 o

f d
ev

el
op

m
en

t i
n 

ar
ea

s 
w

ith
 

hi
gh

 fi
re

 th
re

at
. 

 
En

co
ur

ag
e 

na
tu

ra
l r

ev
eg

et
at

io
n 

or
 s

ee
di

ng
 w

ith
 

lo
ca

l, 
na

tiv
e 

sp
ec

ie
s 

af
te

r a
 fi

re
 a

nd
 d

is
co

ur
ag

e 
re

se
ed

in
g 

of
 n

on
-n

at
iv

e,
 i

nv
as

iv
e 

sp
ec

ie
s 

to
 

pr
om

ot
e 

he
al

th
y,

 n
at

ur
al

 e
co

sy
st

em
 r

eg
ro

w
th

. 
N

at
iv

e 
ve

ge
ta

tio
n 

is
 m

or
e 

lik
el

y 
to

 h
av

e 
de

ep
 

ro
ot

 s
ys

te
m

s 
th

at
 p

re
ve

nt
 s

lo
pe

 f
ai

lu
re

 a
nd

 
er

os
io

n 
of

 b
ur

ne
d 

ar
ea

s 
th

an
 s

ha
llo

w
-ro

ot
ed

 
no

n-
na

tiv
es

. 
 

Su
bm

it 
a 

fir
e 

sa
fe

ty
 p

la
n 

(in
cl

ud
in

g 
ph

as
in

g)
 to

 
th

e 
Le

ad
 A

ge
nc

y 
an

d 
lo

ca
l f

ire
 a

ge
nc

y 
fo

r t
he

ir 
re

vi
ew

 a
nd

 a
pp

ro
va

l. 
Th

e 
fir

e 
sa

fe
ty

 p
la

n 
sh

al
l 

in
cl

ud
e 

al
l 

of
 

th
e 

fir
e 

sa
fe

ty
 

fe
at

ur
es

 
in

co
rp

or
at

ed
 in

to
 t

he
 p

ro
je

ct
 a

nd
 th

e 
sc

he
du

le
 

fo
r 

im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
of

 t
he

 f
ea

tu
re

s.
 T

he
 l

oc
al

 
fir

e 
pr

ot
ec

tio
n 

ag
en

cy
 m

ay
 r

eq
ui

re
 c

ha
ng

es
 t

o 
th

e 
pl

an
 o

r 
m

ay
 r

ej
ec

t 
th

e 
pl

an
 if

 i
t 

do
es

 n
ot

 
ad

eq
ua

te
ly

 
ad

dr
es

s 
fir

e 
ha

za
rd

s 
as

so
ci

at
ed

 
w

ith
 t

he
 p

ro
je

ct
 a

s 
a 

w
ho

le
 o

r 
th

e 
in

di
vi

du
al

 
ph

as
e.

 
 

U
til

iz
e 

Fi
re

-w
is

e 
La

nd
 

M
an

ag
em

en
t 

by
 

en
co

ur
ag

in
g 

th
e 

us
e 

of
 fi

re
-re

si
st

an
t v

eg
et

at
io

n 
an

d 
th

e 
el

im
in

at
io

n 
of

 b
ru

sh
 a

nd
 c

ha
pa

rra
l 

in
 

th
e 

im
m

ed
ia

te
 v

ic
in

ity
 o

f d
ev

el
op

m
en

t i
n 

ar
ea

s 
w

ith
 h

ig
h 

fir
e 

th
re

at
. 

 
Pr

om
ot

e 
Fi

re
 M

an
ag

em
en

t P
la

nn
in

g 
th

at
 w

ou
ld

 
he

lp
 re

du
ce

 fi
re

 th
re

at
s 

in
 th

e 
re

gi
on

 a
s 

pa
rt 

of
 

th
e 

C
om

pa
ss

 
Bl

ue
pr

in
t 

pr
oc

es
s 

an
d 

ot
he

r 
on

go
in

g 
re

gi
on

al
 p

la
nn

in
g 

ef
fo

rts
. 

 
En

co
ur

ag
e 

th
e 

us
e 

of
 f

ire
-re

si
st

an
t 

m
at

er
ia

ls
 

w
he

n 
co

ns
tru

ct
in

g 
pr

oj
ec

ts
 i

n 
ar

ea
s 

w
ith

 h
ig

h 
fir

e 
th

re
at

. 
 



 
M

iti
ga

tio
n 

M
ea

su
re

s 
fro

m
 P

rio
r E

IR
s 

 M
au

be
rt 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

 
 

C
ity

 o
f L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 

Su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

C
om

m
un

iti
es

 P
ro

je
ct

 E
xe

m
pt

io
n 

 
 

N
ov

em
be

r 2
01

9 
Pa

ge
 A

3-
63

 

Ta
bl

e 
A3

-1
 

M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
s 

fro
m

 P
rio

r E
IR

 (S
CA

G
’s

 2
01

6-
20

40
 R

TP
/S

CS
) 

 
Im

pa
ct

 
SC

AG
 2

01
6-

20
40

 R
TP

/S
CS

 M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
s 

(im
pl

em
en

te
d 

by
 le

ad
 a

ge
nc

y)
 

 
Ap

pl
ic

ab
ili

ty
 to

 th
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

H
yd

ro
lo

gy
 a

nd
 W

at
er

 Q
ua

lit
y 

(H
YD

) 
V

io
la

te
 

W
at

er
 

Q
ua

lit
y 

S
ta

nd
ar

ds
 

or
 

W
as

te
 

D
is

ch
ar

ge
 

R
eq

ui
re

m
en

ts
, 

A
lte

ra
tio

n 
of

 
S

ite
 

D
ra

in
ag

e 
P

at
te

rn
, 

R
un

of
f 

Ex
ce

ed
in

g 
S

to
rm

w
at

er
 D

ra
in

ag
e 

S
ys

te
m

 
C

ap
ac

ity
, 

O
th

er
w

is
e 

D
eg

ra
de

 
W

at
er

 Q
ua

lit
y 

M
M

-H
YD

-1
: 

C
on

si
st

en
t 

w
ith

 
th

e 
pr

ov
is

io
ns

 
of

 
Se

ct
io

n 
15

09
1 

of
 

th
e 

St
at

e 
C

EQ
A 

G
ui

de
lin

es
, 

SC
AG

 h
as

 id
en

tif
ie

d 
m

iti
ga

tio
n 

m
ea

su
re

s 
ca

pa
bl

e 
of

 a
vo

id
in

g 
or

 r
ed

uc
in

g 
th

e 
po

te
nt

ia
l 

im
pa

ct
s 

on
 

w
at

er
 

qu
al

ity
 

on
 

re
la

te
d 

w
as

te
 

di
sc

ha
rg

e 
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
 t

ha
t 

ar
e 

w
ith

in
 t

he
 j

ur
is

di
ct

io
n 

an
d 

au
th

or
ity

 o
f 

th
e 

R
eg

io
na

l 
W

at
er

 Q
ua

lit
y 

C
on

tro
l 

Bo
ar

ds
 a

nd
 o

th
er

 r
eg

ul
at

or
y 

ag
en

ci
es

. 
W

he
re

 t
he

 
Le

ad
 A

ge
nc

y 
ha

s 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

th
at

 a
 p

ro
je

ct
 h

as
 t

he
 

po
te

nt
ia

l 
fo

r 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 e
ffe

ct
s,

 t
he

 L
ea

d 
Ag

en
cy

 
ca

n 
an

d 
sh

ou
ld

 c
on

si
de

r 
m

iti
ga

tio
n 

m
ea

su
re

s 
to

 
en

su
re

 
co

m
pl

ia
nc

e 
w

ith
 

al
l 

ap
pl

ic
ab

le
 

la
w

s,
 

re
gu

la
tio

ns
, 

an
d 

he
al

th
 a

nd
 s

af
et

y 
st

an
da

rd
s 

se
t 

fo
rth

 
by

 
re

gu
la

to
ry

 
ag

en
ci

es
 

re
sp

on
si

bl
e 

fo
r 

re
gu

la
tin

g 
an

d 
en

fo
rc

in
g 

w
at

er
 q

ua
lit

y 
an

d 
w

as
te

 
di

sc
ha

rg
e 

re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

 in
 a

 m
an

ne
r 

th
at

 c
on

fo
rm

s 
to

 a
pp

lic
ab

le
 w

at
er

 q
ua

lit
y 

st
an

da
rd

s 
an

d/
or

 w
as

te
 

di
sc

ha
rg

e 
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
, 

as
 

ap
pl

ic
ab

le
 

an
d 

fe
as

ib
le

. S
uc

h 
m

ea
su

re
s 

m
ay

 in
cl

ud
e 

th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g,
 

or
 o

th
er

 c
om

pa
ra

bl
e 

m
ea

su
re

s 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

by
 t

he
 

Le
ad

 A
ge

nc
y:

 
  

C
om

pl
et

e,
 a

nd
 h

av
e 

ap
pr

ov
ed

, 
a 

St
or

m
w

at
er

 
Po

llu
tio

n 
Pr

ev
en

tio
n 

Pl
an

 (
SW

PP
P)

 p
rio

r 
to

 
in

iti
at

io
n 

of
 c

on
st

ru
ct

io
n.

 
 

Im
pl

em
en

t 
Be

st
 

M
an

ag
em

en
t 

Pr
ac

tic
es

 
to

 
re

du
ce

 t
he

 p
ea

k 
st

or
m

w
at

er
 r

un
of

f 
fro

m
 t

he
 

pr
oj

ec
t s

ite
 to

 th
e 

m
ax

im
um

 e
xt

en
t p

ra
ct

ic
ab

le
. 

 
C

om
pl

y 
w

ith
 

th
e 

C
al

tra
ns

 
st

or
m

 
w

at
er

 
di

sc
ha

rg
e 

pe
rm

it 
as

 a
pp

lic
ab

le
; 

an
d 

id
en

tif
y 

an
d 

im
pl

em
en

t B
es

t M
an

ag
em

en
t P

ra
ct

ic
es

 to
 

m
an

ag
e 

si
te

 e
ro

si
on

, 
w

as
h 

w
at

er
 r

un
of

f, 
an

d 
sp

ill
 c

on
tro

l. 
 

C
om

pl
et

e,
 

an
d 

ha
ve

 
ap

pr
ov

ed
, 

a 
St

an
da

rd
 

U
rb

an
 S

to
rm

w
at

er
 M

an
ag

em
en

t 
Pl

an
, 

pr
io

r 
to

 

Th
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

su
bs

ta
nt

ia
lly

 
co

nf
or

m
s 

to
 

th
is

 
m

iti
ga

tio
n 

m
ea

su
re

. 
Th

e 
Pr

oj
ec

t 
w

ou
ld

 c
om

pl
y 

w
ith

 L
os

 A
ng

el
es

 
M

un
ic

ip
al

 C
od

e 
(L

AM
C

) 
C

ha
pt

er
 I

X,
 D

iv
is

io
n 

70
, 

w
hi

ch
 

ad
dr

es
se

s 
er

os
io

n 
co

nt
ro

l 
du

rin
g 

gr
ad

in
g,

 e
xc

av
at

io
ns

, 
an

d 
fil

ls
. A

s 
th

e 
Pr

oj
ec

t S
ite

 is
 le

ss
 th

an
 o

ne
 a

cr
e,

 it
 d

oe
s 

no
t 

re
qu

ire
 

a 
SW

PP
P.

 
H

ow
ev

er
, 

th
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t’s

 
co

ns
tru

ct
io

n 
ac

tiv
iti

es
 w

ou
ld

 r
eq

ui
re

 g
ra

di
ng

, e
xc

av
at

io
n,

 
an

d 
fo

un
da

tio
n 

pe
rm

its
 o

r 
ap

pr
ov

al
s 

fro
m

 th
e 

C
ity

 o
f L

os
 

An
ge

le
s,

 
w

hi
ch

 
w

ou
ld

 
in

cl
ud

e 
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
 

an
d 

st
an

da
rd

s 
de

si
gn

ed
 t

o 
lim

it 
po

te
nt

ia
l i

m
pa

ct
s 

as
so

ci
at

ed
 

w
ith

 e
ro

si
on

 t
o 

pe
rm

itt
ed

 le
ve

ls
. 

Th
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

w
ou

ld
 a

ls
o 

co
m

pl
y 

w
ith

 
th

e 
C

ity
 

of
 

Lo
s 

An
ge

le
s’

 
Lo

w
 

Im
pa

ct
 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t (
LI

D
) O

rd
in

an
ce

, w
hi

ch
 is

 fo
rm

al
ly

 p
ro

vi
de

d 
as

 R
C

M
-H

YD
-1

, b
el

ow
.  

 Pr
io

r 
to

 t
he

 i
ss

ua
nc

e 
of

 g
ra

di
ng

 p
er

m
its

, 
th

e 
Ap

pl
ic

an
t 

w
ou

ld
 

su
bm

it 
a 

LI
D

 
Pl

an
 

to
 

th
e 

C
ity

’s
 

Bu
re

au
 

of
 

Sa
ni

ta
tio

n 
W

at
er

sh
ed

 P
ro

te
ct

io
n 

D
iv

is
io

n 
fo

r 
re

vi
ew

 a
nd

 
ap

pr
ov

al
. T

he
 L

ID
 P

la
n 

sh
al

l b
e 

pr
ep

ar
ed

 c
on

si
st

en
t w

ith
 

th
e 

re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

 o
f 

th
e 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t B
es

t 
M

an
ag

em
en

t 
Pr

ac
tic

es
 H

an
db

oo
k.

 I
t 

is
 a

nt
ic

ip
at

ed
 t

ha
t 

th
e 

pr
op

os
ed

 
st

or
m

w
at

er
 B

M
P 

th
at

 is
 c

on
si

de
re

d 
is

 b
io

-in
fil

tra
tio

n 
flo

w
-

th
ro

ug
h 

pl
an

te
rs

. T
he

 e
nt

ire
ty

 o
f t

he
 b

ui
ld

in
g’

s 
ro

of
 d

ra
in

s 
w

ill
 b

e 
di

ve
rte

d 
to

 th
e 

bi
o-

in
fil

tra
tio

n 
flo

w
-th

ro
ug

h 
pl

an
te

rs
 

an
d 

th
e 

ov
er

flo
w

 d
is

ch
ar

ge
 w

ill 
be

 d
is

ch
ar

ge
d 

to
 M

au
be

rt 
Av

en
ue

 v
ia

 a
 c

ur
b 

dr
ai

n 
or

 p
ar

kw
ay

 d
ra

in
, 

si
m

ila
r 

to
 

ex
is

tin
g 

co
nd

iti
on

s.
 P

os
t-d

ed
ic

at
io

n,
 th

e 
to

ta
l s

ite
 a

re
a 

is
 

ap
pr

ox
im

at
el

y 
0.

76
 

ac
re

s 
in

 
si

ze
. 

Ba
se

d 
on

 
an

 
ap

pr
ox

im
at

e 
im

pe
rv

io
us

 a
re

a 
pe

rc
en

ta
ge

 o
f 

99
%

, 
th

e 
vo

lu
m

e 
m

iti
ga

te
d 

is
 

2,
45

0 
cu

bi
c 

fe
et

. 
Th

e 
pr

op
os

ed
 

st
or

m
w

at
er

 t
re

at
m

en
t 

sy
st

em
 w

ill 
be

 d
es

ig
ne

d 
to

 b
ot

h 
ac

co
m

m
od

at
e 

th
e 

re
qu

ire
d 

vo
lu

m
e 

m
iti

ga
te

d 
as

 w
el

l a
s 

lim
it 

th
e 

po
st

-c
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
di

sc
ha

rg
e 

to
 a

vo
id

 o
n-

si
te

 o
r 

of
f -s

ite
 f

lo
od

in
g 

an
d 

to
 n

ot
 e

xc
ee

d 
th

e 
ca

pa
ci

ty
 o

f 
th

e 
ex

is
tin

g 
ad

ja
ce

nt
 

pu
bl

ic
 

st
re

et
 

an
d 

do
w

ns
tre

am
 



 
M

iti
ga

tio
n 

M
ea

su
re

s 
fro

m
 P

rio
r E

IR
s 

 M
au

be
rt 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

 
 

C
ity

 o
f L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 

Su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

C
om

m
un

iti
es

 P
ro

je
ct

 E
xe

m
pt

io
n 

 
 

N
ov

em
be

r 2
01

9 
Pa

ge
 A

3-
64

 

Ta
bl

e 
A3

-1
 

M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
s 

fro
m

 P
rio

r E
IR

 (S
CA

G
’s

 2
01

6-
20

40
 R

TP
/S

CS
) 

 
Im

pa
ct

 
SC

AG
 2

01
6-

20
40

 R
TP

/S
CS

 M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
s 

(im
pl

em
en

te
d 

by
 le

ad
 a

ge
nc

y)
 

 
Ap

pl
ic

ab
ili

ty
 to

 th
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

oc
cu

pa
nc

y 
of

 
re

si
de

nt
ia

l 
or

 
co

m
m

er
ci

al
 

st
ru

ct
ur

es
. 

 
En

su
re

 a
de

qu
at

e 
ca

pa
ci

ty
 o

f 
th

e 
su

rro
un

di
ng

 
st

or
m

w
at

er
 

sy
st

em
 

to
 

su
pp

or
t 

st
or

m
w

at
er

 
ru

no
ff 

fro
m

 n
ew

 o
r 

re
ha

bi
lit

at
ed

 s
tru

ct
ur

es
 o

r 
bu

ild
in

gs
. 

 
Pr

io
r 

to
 c

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

w
ith

in
 a

n 
ar

ea
 s

ub
je

ct
 t

o 
Se

ct
io

n 
40

4 
of

 th
e 

C
le

an
 W

at
er

 A
ct

, o
bt

ai
n 

al
l 

re
qu

ire
d 

pe
rm

it 
ap

pr
ov

al
s 

an
d 

ce
rti

fic
at

io
ns

 fo
r 

co
ns

tru
ct

io
n 

w
ith

in
 

th
e 

vi
ci

ni
ty

 
of

 
a 

w
at

er
co

ur
se

: 
o 

U
.S

. A
rm

y 
C

or
ps

 o
f E

ng
in

ee
rs

 (C
or

ps
): 

Se
ct

io
n 

40
4.

 P
er

m
it 

ap
pr

ov
al

 fr
om

 th
e 

C
or

ps
 

sh
ou

ld
 

be
 

ob
ta

in
ed

 
fo

r 
th

e 
pl

ac
em

en
t 

of
 d

re
dg

e 
or

 f
ill 

m
at

er
ia

l i
n 

W
at

er
s 

of
 t

he
 U

.S
., 

if 
an

y,
 w

ith
in

 t
he

 
in

te
rio

r 
of

 t
he

 p
ro

je
ct

 s
ite

, 
pu

rs
ua

nt
 t

o 
Se

ct
io

n 
40

4 
of

 th
e 

fe
de

ra
l C

le
an

 W
at

er
 

Ac
t. 

o 
R

eg
io

na
l W

al
te

r 
Q

ua
lit

y 
C

on
tro

l B
oa

rd
 

(R
W

Q
C

B)
: 

Se
ct

io
n 

40
1 

W
at

er
 Q

ua
lit

y 
C

er
tif

ic
at

io
n.

 
C

er
tif

ic
at

io
n 

th
at

 
th

e 
pr

oj
ec

t 
w

ill
 

no
t 

vi
ol

at
e 

st
at

e 
w

at
er

 
qu

al
ity

 s
ta

nd
ar

ds
 is

 re
qu

ire
d 

be
fo

re
 th

e 
C

or
ps

 c
an

 is
su

e 
a 

40
4 

pe
rm

it,
 a

bo
ve

. 
o 

C
al

ifo
rn

ia
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

of
 

Fi
sh

 
an

d 
W

ild
lif

e 
(C

D
FW

): 
Se

ct
io

n 
16

02
 L

ak
e 

an
d 

St
re

am
be

d 
Al

te
ra

tio
n 

Ag
re

em
en

t. 
W

or
k 

th
at

 w
ill

 a
lte

r t
he

 b
ed

 o
r b

an
k 

of
 a

 
st

re
am

 
re

qu
ire

s 
au

th
or

iz
at

io
n 

fro
m

 
C

D
FW

. 
 

W
he

re
 

fe
as

ib
le

, 
re

st
or

e 
or

 
ex

pa
nd

 
rip

ar
ia

n 
ar

ea
s 

su
ch

 
th

at
 

th
er

e 
is

 
no

 
ne

t 
lo

ss
 

of
 

im
pe

rv
io

us
 s

ur
fa

ce
 a

s 
a 

re
su

lt 
of

 th
e 

pr
oj

ec
t. 

 
In

st
al

l s
tru

ct
ur

al
 w

at
er

 q
ua

lit
y 

co
nt

ro
l f

ea
tu

re
s,

 
su

ch
 a

s 
dr

ai
na

ge
 c

ha
nn

el
s,

 d
et

en
tio

n 
ba

si
ns

, 

st
or

m
w

at
er

 fa
ci

lit
ie

s.
  

 Th
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t w

ou
ld

 b
e 

re
qu

ire
d 

to
 c

om
pl

y 
w

ith
 R

C
M

-H
YD

-
1:

 
 RC

M
-H

YD
-1

: 
Th

e 
Pr

oj
ec

t 
w

ou
ld

 c
om

pl
y 

w
ith

 t
he

 C
ity

 o
f 

Lo
s 

An
ge

le
s’

 L
ow

 Im
pa

ct
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t (

LI
D

) O
rd

in
an

ce
. 

    



 
M

iti
ga

tio
n 

M
ea

su
re

s 
fro

m
 P

rio
r E

IR
s 

 M
au

be
rt 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

 
 

C
ity

 o
f L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 

Su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

C
om

m
un

iti
es

 P
ro

je
ct

 E
xe

m
pt

io
n 

 
 

N
ov

em
be

r 2
01

9 
Pa

ge
 A

3-
65

 

Ta
bl

e 
A3

-1
 

M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
s 

fro
m

 P
rio

r E
IR

 (S
CA

G
’s

 2
01

6-
20

40
 R

TP
/S

CS
) 

 
Im

pa
ct

 
SC

AG
 2

01
6-

20
40

 R
TP

/S
CS

 M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
s 

(im
pl

em
en

te
d 

by
 le

ad
 a

ge
nc

y)
 

 
Ap

pl
ic

ab
ili

ty
 to

 th
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

oi
l 

an
d 

gr
ea

se
 

tra
ps

, 
fil

te
r 

sy
st

em
s,

 
an

d 
ve

ge
ta

te
d 

bu
ffe

rs
 

to
 

pr
ev

en
t 

po
llu

tio
n 

of
 

ad
ja

ce
nt

 w
at

er
 r

es
ou

rc
es

 b
y 

po
llu

te
d 

ru
no

ff 
w

he
re

 
re

qu
ire

d 
by

 
ap

pl
ic

ab
le

 
ur

ba
n 

st
or

m
 

w
at

er
 

ru
no

ff 
di

sc
ha

rg
e 

pe
rm

its
, 

on
 

ne
w

 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s.

 
 

Pr
ov

id
e 

st
ru

ct
ur

al
 s

to
rm

 w
at

er
 r

un
of

f t
re

at
m

en
t 

co
ns

is
te

nt
 

w
ith

 
th

e 
ap

pl
ic

ab
le

 
ur

ba
n 

st
or

m
 

w
at

er
 

ru
no

ff 
pe

rm
it.

 W
he

re
 

C
al

tra
ns

 
is

 
th

e 
op

er
at

or
, t

he
 s

ta
te

w
id

e 
pe

rm
it 

ap
pl

ie
s.

 
 

Pr
ov

id
e 

op
er

at
io

na
l 

be
st

 
m

an
ag

em
en

t 
pr

ac
tic

es
 f

or
 s

tre
et

 c
le

an
in

g,
 li

tte
r 

co
nt

ro
l, 

an
d 

ca
tc

h 
ba

si
n 

cl
ea

ni
ng

 
ar

e 
im

pl
em

en
te

d 
to

 
pr

ev
en

t 
w

at
er

 
qu

al
ity

 
de

gr
ad

at
io

n 
in

 
co

m
pl

ia
nc

e 
w

ith
 a

pp
lic

ab
le

 s
to

rm
 w

at
er

 r
un

of
f 

di
sc

ha
rg

e 
pe

rm
its

; 
an

d 
en

su
re

 
tre

at
m

en
t 

co
nt

ro
ls

 a
re

 in
 p

la
ce

 a
s 

ea
rly

 a
s 

po
ss

ib
le

, s
uc

h 
as

 d
ur

in
g 

th
e 

ac
qu

is
iti

on
 p

ro
ce

ss
 f

or
 r

ig
ht

s-
of

-
w

ay
, 

no
t 

ju
st

 l
at

er
 d

ur
in

g 
th

e 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

de
si

gn
 

an
d 

co
ns

tru
ct

io
n 

ph
as

e.
 

 
C

om
pl

y 
w

ith
 

ap
pl

ic
ab

le
 

m
un

ic
ip

al
 

se
pa

ra
te

 
st

or
m

 s
ew

er
 s

ys
te

m
 d

is
ch

ar
ge

 p
er

m
its

 a
s 

w
el

l 
as

 
C

al
tra

ns
’ 

st
or

m
 

w
at

er
 

di
sc

ha
rg

e 
pe

rm
it 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
lo

ng
-te

rm
 

se
di

m
en

t 
co

nt
ro

l 
an

d 
dr

ai
na

ge
 o

f r
oa

dw
ay

 ru
no

ff.
 

 
In

co
rp

or
at

e 
as

 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

 
tre

at
m

en
t 

an
d 

co
nt

ro
l 

fe
at

ur
es

 
su

ch
 

as
 

de
te

nt
io

n 
ba

si
ns

, 
in

fil
tra

tio
n 

st
rip

s,
 

an
d 

po
ro

us
 

pa
vi

ng
, 

ot
he

r 
fe

at
ur

es
 t

o 
co

nt
ro

l s
ur

fa
ce

 r
un

of
f 

an
d 

fa
ci

lit
at

e 
gr

ou
nd

w
at

er
 r

ec
ha

rg
e 

in
to

 t
he

 d
es

ig
n 

of
 n

ew
 

tra
ns

po
rta

tio
n 

pr
oj

ec
ts

 e
ar

ly
 o

n 
in

 t
he

 p
ro

ce
ss

 
to

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 a
de

qu
at

e 
ac

re
ag

e 
an

d 
el

ev
at

io
n 

co
nt

ou
rs

 a
re

 p
ro

vi
de

d 
du

rin
g 

th
e 

rig
ht

-o
f-w

ay
 

ac
qu

is
iti

on
 p

ro
ce

ss
. 

 
D

es
ig

n 
pr

oj
ec

ts
 t

o 
m

ai
nt

ai
n 

vo
lu

m
e 

of
 r

un
of

f, 
w

he
re

 a
ny

 d
ow

ns
tre

am
 r

ec
ei

vi
ng

 w
at

er
 b

od
y 



 
M

iti
ga

tio
n 

M
ea

su
re

s 
fro

m
 P

rio
r E

IR
s 

 M
au

be
rt 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

 
 

C
ity

 o
f L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 

Su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

C
om

m
un

iti
es

 P
ro

je
ct

 E
xe

m
pt

io
n 

 
 

N
ov

em
be

r 2
01

9 
Pa

ge
 A

3-
66

 

Ta
bl

e 
A3

-1
 

M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
s 

fro
m

 P
rio

r E
IR

 (S
CA

G
’s

 2
01

6-
20

40
 R

TP
/S

CS
) 

 
Im

pa
ct

 
SC

AG
 2

01
6-

20
40

 R
TP

/S
CS

 M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
s 

(im
pl

em
en

te
d 

by
 le

ad
 a

ge
nc

y)
 

 
Ap

pl
ic

ab
ili

ty
 to

 th
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

ha
s 

no
t 

be
en

 
de

si
gn

ed
 

an
d 

m
ai

nt
ai

ne
d 

to
 

ac
co

m
m

od
at

e 
th

e 
in

cr
ea

se
 i

n 
flo

w
 v

el
oc

ity
, 

ra
te

, a
nd

 v
ol

um
e 

w
ith

ou
t i

m
pa

ct
in

g 
th

e 
w

at
er

's
 

be
ne

fic
ia

l 
us

es
. 

Pr
e-

pr
oj

ec
t 

flo
w

 
ve

lo
ci

tie
s,

 
ra

te
s,

 a
nd

 v
ol

um
es

 m
us

t 
no

t 
be

 e
xc

ee
de

d.
 

Th
is

 a
pp

lie
s 

no
t 

on
ly

 t
o 

in
cr

ea
se

s 
in

 s
to

rm
 

w
at

er
 r

un
of

f 
fro

m
 t

he
 p

ro
je

ct
 s

ite
, 

bu
t 

al
so

 t
o 

hy
dr

ol
og

ic
 

ch
an

ge
s 

in
du

ce
d 

by
 

flo
od

 
pl

ai
n 

en
cr

oa
ch

m
en

t. 
Pr

oj
ec

ts
 s

ho
ul

d 
no

t 
ca

us
e 

or
 

co
nt

rib
ut

e 
to

 
co

nd
iti

on
s 

th
at

 
de

gr
ad

e 
th

e 
ph

ys
ic

al
 in

te
gr

ity
 o

r 
ec

ol
og

ic
al

 f
un

ct
io

n 
of

 a
ny

 
do

w
ns

tre
am

 re
ce

iv
in

g 
w

at
er

s.
 

 
Pr

ov
id

e 
cu

lv
er

ts
 

an
d 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
th

at
 

do
 

no
t 

in
cr

ea
se

 
th

e 
flo

w
 

ve
lo

ci
ty

, 
ra

te
, 

or
 

vo
lu

m
e 

an
d/

or
 

ac
qu

iri
ng

 
su

ffi
ci

en
t 

st
or

m
 

dr
ai

n 
ea

se
m

en
ts

 th
at

 a
cc

om
m

od
at

e 
an

 a
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

ly
 

ve
ge

ta
te

d 
ea

rth
en

 d
ra

in
ag

e 
ch

an
ne

l. 
 

U
pg

ra
de

 
st

or
m

w
at

er
 

dr
ai

na
ge

 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

to
 

ac
co

m
m

od
at

e 
an

y 
in

cr
ea

se
d 

ru
no

ff 
vo

lu
m

es
. 

Th
es

e 
up

gr
ad

es
 m

ay
 in

cl
ud

e 
th

e 
co

ns
tru

ct
io

n 
of

 d
et

en
tio

n 
ba

si
ns

 o
r 

st
ru

ct
ur

es
 th

at
 w

ill 
de

la
y 

pe
ak

 fl
ow

s 
an

d 
re

du
ce

 fl
ow

 v
el

oc
iti

es
, i

nc
lu

di
ng

 
ex

pa
ns

io
n 

an
d 

re
st

or
at

io
n 

of
 

w
et

la
nd

s 
an

d 
rip

ar
ia

n 
bu

ffe
r 

ar
ea

s.
 S

ys
te

m
 d

es
ig

ns
 s

ha
ll 

be
 

co
m

pl
et

ed
 t

o 
el

im
in

at
e 

in
cr

ea
se

s 
in

 p
ea

k 
flo

w
 

ra
te

s 
fro

m
 c

ur
re

nt
 le

ve
ls

. 
 

En
co

ur
ag

e 
Lo

w
 Im

pa
ct

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t (
LI

D
) a

nd
 

in
co

rp
or

at
io

n 
of

 n
at

ur
al

 s
pa

ce
s 

th
at

 r
ed

uc
e,

 
tre

at
, 

in
fil

tra
te

 a
nd

 m
an

ag
e 

st
or

m
w

at
er

 r
un

of
f 

flo
w

s 
in

 a
ll 

ne
w

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

ts
, w

he
re

 p
ra

ct
ic

al
 

an
d 

fe
as

ib
le

. 
 

If 
a 

Pr
oj

ec
t h

as
 th

e 
po

te
nt

ia
l t

o 
cr

ea
te

 a
 m

aj
or

 
ne

w
 s

to
rm

w
at

er
 d

is
ch

ar
ge

 to
 a

 w
at

er
 b

od
y 

w
ith

 
an

 
es

ta
bl

is
he

d 
To

ta
l 

M
ax

im
um

 
D

ai
ly

 
Lo

ad
 

(T
M

D
L)

, 
a 

qu
an

tit
at

iv
e 

an
al

ys
is

 
of

 
th

e 
an

tic
ip

at
ed

 p
ol

lu
ta

nt
 l

oa
ds

 i
n 

th
e 

st
or

m
w

at
er

 



 
M

iti
ga

tio
n 

M
ea

su
re

s 
fro

m
 P

rio
r E

IR
s 

 M
au

be
rt 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

 
 

C
ity

 o
f L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 

Su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

C
om

m
un

iti
es

 P
ro

je
ct

 E
xe

m
pt

io
n 

 
 

N
ov

em
be

r 2
01

9 
Pa

ge
 A

3-
67

 

Ta
bl

e 
A3

-1
 

M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
s 

fro
m

 P
rio

r E
IR

 (S
CA

G
’s

 2
01

6-
20

40
 R

TP
/S

CS
) 

 
Im

pa
ct

 
SC

AG
 2

01
6-

20
40

 R
TP

/S
CS

 M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
s 

(im
pl

em
en

te
d 

by
 le

ad
 a

ge
nc

y)
 

 
Ap

pl
ic

ab
ili

ty
 to

 th
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

di
sc

ha
rg

es
 t

o 
th

e 
re

ce
iv

in
g 

w
at

er
s 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
ca

rri
ed

 o
ut

. 
D

ep
le

te
 G

ro
un

dw
at

er
 S

up
pl

y 
or

 I
nt

er
fe

re
 w

ith
 G

ro
un

dw
at

er
 

R
ec

ha
rg

e 

M
M

-H
YD

-2
: 

C
on

si
st

en
t 

w
ith

 t
he

 p
ro

vi
si

on
s 

of
 t

he
 

Se
ct

io
n 

15
09

1 
of

 
th

e 
St

at
e 

C
EQ

A 
G

ui
de

lin
es

, 
SC

AG
 h

as
 id

en
tif

ie
d 

m
iti

ga
tio

n 
m

ea
su

re
s 

ca
pa

bl
e 

of
 a

vo
id

in
g 

or
 r

ed
uc

in
g 

th
e 

po
te

nt
ia

l 
im

pa
ct

s 
to

 
gr

ou
nd

w
at

er
 

re
so

ur
ce

s 
th

at
 

ar
e 

w
ith

in
 

th
e 

ju
ris

di
ct

io
n 

an
d 

au
th

or
ity

 
of

 
th

e 
St

at
e 

W
at

er
 

R
es

ou
rc

es
 C

on
tro

l B
oa

rd
, 

R
eg

io
na

l W
at

er
 Q

ua
lit

y 
C

on
tro

l 
Bo

ar
ds

, 
W

at
er

 
D

is
tri

ct
s,

 
an

d 
ot

he
r 

gr
ou

nd
w

at
er

 
m

an
ag

em
en

t 
ag

en
ci

es
. 

W
he

re
 t

he
 

Le
ad

 A
ge

nc
y 

ha
s 

id
en

tif
ie

d 
th

at
 a

 p
ro

je
ct

 h
as

 t
he

 
po

te
nt

ia
l 

fo
r 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 e

ffe
ct

s,
 t

he
 L

ea
d 

Ag
en

cy
 

ca
n 

an
d 

sh
ou

ld
 c

on
si

de
r 

m
iti

ga
tio

n 
m

ea
su

re
s 

to
 

en
su

re
 

co
m

pl
ia

nc
e 

w
ith

 
ap

pl
ic

ab
le

 
la

w
s,

 
re

gu
la

tio
ns

, 
an

d 
he

al
th

 a
nd

 s
af

et
y 

st
an

da
rd

s 
se

t 
fo

rth
 

by
 

fe
de

ra
l, 

st
at

e,
 

re
gi

on
al

, 
an

d 
lo

ca
l 

au
th

or
iti

es
 th

at
 re

gu
la

te
 g

ro
un

dw
at

er
 m

an
ag

em
en

t, 
co

ns
is

te
nt

 w
ith

 t
he

 p
ro

vi
si

on
s 

of
 t

he
 G

ro
un

dw
at

er
 

M
an

ag
em

en
t 

Ac
t 

an
d 

im
pl

em
en

tin
g 

re
gu

la
tio

ns
, 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
re

ch
ar

ge
 i

n 
a 

m
an

ne
r 

th
at

 c
on

fo
rm

s 
to

 
fe

de
ra

l, 
st

at
e,

 r
eg

io
na

l, 
an

d 
lo

ca
l 

st
an

da
rd

s 
fo

r 
su

st
ai

na
bl

e 
m

an
ag

em
en

t 
of

 g
ro

un
dw

at
er

 b
as

in
s,

 
as

 a
pp

lic
ab

le
 a

nd
 f

ea
si

bl
e.

 S
uc

h 
m

ea
su

re
s 

m
ay

 
in

cl
ud

e 
th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g,

 
or

 
ot

he
r 

co
m

pa
ra

bl
e 

m
ea

su
re

s 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

by
 th

e 
Le

ad
 A

ge
nc

y:
 

  
Fo

r 
pr

oj
ec

ts
 

re
qu

iri
ng

 
co

nt
in

ua
l 

de
w

at
er

in
g 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s,
 i

m
pl

em
en

t 
m

on
ito

rin
g 

sy
st

em
s 

an
d 

lo
ng

-te
rm

 a
dm

in
is

tra
tiv

e 
pr

oc
ed

ur
es

 t
o 

en
su

re
 

pr
op

er
 

w
at

er
 

m
an

ag
em

en
t 

th
at

 
pr

ev
en

ts
 

de
gr

ad
in

g 
of

 s
ur

fa
ce

 w
at

er
 a

nd
 m

in
im

iz
es

, 
to

 
th

e 
gr

ea
te

st
 e

xt
en

t 
po

ss
ib

le
, 

ad
ve

rs
e 

im
pa

ct
s 

on
 

gr
ou

nd
w

at
er

 
fo

r 
th

e 
lif

e 
of

 
th

e 
pr

oj
ec

t, 
C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

de
si

gn
s 

sh
al

l 
co

m
pl

y 
w

ith
 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
 

bu
ild

in
g 

co
de

s 
an

d 
st

an
da

rd
 

N
o 

m
iti

ga
tio

n 
ap

pl
ie

s.
 T

he
 P

ro
je

ct
 S

ite
 a

re
a 

is
 n

ot
 a

 
so

ur
ce

 o
f 

gr
ou

nd
w

at
er

 r
ec

ha
rg

e.
 T

he
 P

ro
je

ct
 S

ite
 i

s 
al

re
ad

y 
co

m
pl

et
el

y 
im

pe
rv

io
us

 a
nd

 w
ou

ld
 c

on
tin

ue
 in

 th
is

 
co

nd
iti

on
 a

fte
r 

th
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

is
 d

ev
el

op
ed

. 
As

 p
ar

t 
of

 t
he

 
bo

rin
gs

 a
dv

an
ce

d 
as

 p
ar

t 
of

 t
he

 G
eo

te
ch

ni
ca

l 
R

ep
or

t, 
gr

ou
nd

w
at

er
 w

as
 e

nc
ou

nt
er

ed
 a

t 
a 

de
pt

h 
of

 4
7.

1 
fe

et
. 

Ac
co

rd
in

g 
to

 t
he

 G
eo

te
ch

ni
ca

l R
ep

or
t, 

it 
is

 u
nl

ik
el

y 
th

at
 

th
e 

gr
ou

nd
w

at
er

 l
ev

el
 w

ou
ld

 e
xt

en
d 

in
to

 t
he

 p
ro

po
se

d 
ex

ca
va

tio
n 

le
ve

ls
 o

f 
ap

pr
ox

im
at

el
y 

15
 t

o 
30

 f
ee

t 
be

lo
w

 
ex

is
tin

g 
gr

ad
e.

 
Th

er
ef

or
e,

 
no

 
de

w
at

er
in

g 
(e

ith
er

 
te

m
po

ra
ry

 o
r 

pe
rm

an
en

t) 
is

 c
on

te
m

pl
at

ed
 a

s 
pa

rt 
of

 th
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t, 

an
d 

no
 im

pa
ct

 w
ou

ld
 o

cc
ur

.  
 



 
M

iti
ga

tio
n 

M
ea

su
re

s 
fro

m
 P

rio
r E

IR
s 

 M
au

be
rt 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

 
 

C
ity

 o
f L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 

Su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

C
om

m
un

iti
es

 P
ro

je
ct

 E
xe

m
pt

io
n 

 
 

N
ov

em
be

r 2
01

9 
Pa

ge
 A

3-
68

 

Ta
bl

e 
A3

-1
 

M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
s 

fro
m

 P
rio

r E
IR

 (S
CA

G
’s

 2
01

6-
20

40
 R

TP
/S

CS
) 

 
Im

pa
ct

 
SC

AG
 2

01
6-

20
40

 R
TP

/S
CS

 M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
s 

(im
pl

em
en

te
d 

by
 le

ad
 a

ge
nc

y)
 

 
Ap

pl
ic

ab
ili

ty
 to

 th
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

pr
ac

tic
es

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
th

e 
U

ni
fo

rm
 B

ui
ld

in
g 

C
od

e.
 

 
M

ax
im

iz
e,

 
w

he
re

 
pr

ac
tic

al
 

an
d 

fe
as

ib
le

, 
pe

rm
ea

bl
e 

su
rfa

ce
 a

re
a 

in
 e

xi
st

in
g 

ur
ba

ni
ze

d 
ar

ea
s 

to
 p

ro
te

ct
 w

at
er

 q
ua

lit
y,

 r
ed

uc
e 

flo
od

in
g,

 
al

lo
w

 f
or

 g
ro

un
dw

at
er

 r
ec

ha
rg

e,
 a

nd
 p

re
se

rv
e 

w
ild

lif
e 

ha
bi

ta
t. 

M
in

im
iz

e 
to

 th
e 

gr
ea

te
st

 e
xt

en
t 

po
ss

ib
le

, 
ne

w
 i

m
pe

rv
io

us
 s

ur
fa

ce
s,

 i
nc

lu
di

ng
 

th
e 

us
e 

of
 in

-li
eu

 fe
es

 a
nd

 o
ff-

si
te

 m
iti

ga
tio

n.
 

 
Av

oi
d 

de
si

gn
s 

th
at

 
re

qu
ire

 
co

nt
in

ua
l 

de
w

at
er

in
g 

w
he

re
 fe

as
ib

le
. 

 
Av

oi
d 

co
ns

tru
ct

io
n 

an
d 

si
tin

g 
on

 g
ro

un
dw

at
er

 
re

ch
ar

ge
 a

re
as

, t
o 

pr
ev

en
t c

on
ve

rs
io

n 
of

 th
os

e 
ar

ea
s 

to
 im

pe
rv

io
us

 s
ur

fa
ce

. 
 

R
ed

uc
e 

ha
rd

sc
ap

e 
to

 t
he

 e
xt

en
t 

fe
as

ib
le

 t
o 

fa
ci

lit
at

e 
gr

ou
nd

w
at

er
 re

ch
ar

ge
 a

s 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

. 
S

tru
ct

ur
es

 w
ith

in
 a

 1
00

-Y
ea

r 
Fl

oo
dp

la
in

 H
az

ar
d 

A
re

a,
 R

is
k 

du
e 

to
 L

ev
ee

 o
r 

D
am

 F
ai

lu
re

, 
R

is
ks

 
du

e 
to

 
Se

ic
he

, 
Ts

un
am

i, 
or

 M
ud

flo
w

 

M
M

-H
YD

-8
: 

C
on

si
st

en
t 

w
ith

 
th

e 
pr

ov
is

io
ns

 
of

 
Se

ct
io

n 
15

09
1 

of
 

th
e 

St
at

e 
C

EQ
A 

G
ui

de
lin

es
, 

SC
AG

 h
as

 id
en

tif
ie

d 
m

iti
ga

tio
n 

m
ea

su
re

s 
ca

pa
bl

e 
of

 a
vo

id
in

g 
or

 r
ed

uc
in

g 
th

e 
po

te
nt

ia
l 

im
pa

ct
s 

of
 

lo
ca

tin
g 

st
ru

ct
ur

es
 t

ha
t 

w
ou

ld
 i

m
pe

de
 o

r 
re

di
re

ct
 

flo
od

 fl
ow

s 
in

 a
 1

00
-y

ea
r f

lo
od

 h
az

ar
d 

ar
ea

 th
at

 a
re

 
w

ith
in

 t
he

 j
ur

is
di

ct
io

n 
an

d 
au

th
or

ity
 o

f 
th

e 
Fl

oo
d 

C
on

tro
l D

is
tri

ct
, C

ou
nt

y 
Pu

bl
ic

 W
or

ks
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

ts
, 

lo
ca

l 
ag

en
ci

es
, 

re
gu

la
to

ry
 a

ge
nc

ie
s,

 a
nd

/o
r 

Le
ad

 
Ag

en
ci

es
. 

W
he

re
 t

he
 L

ea
d 

Ag
en

cy
 h

as
 i

de
nt

ifi
ed

 
th

at
 

a 
pr

oj
ec

t 
ha

s 
th

e 
po

te
nt

ia
l 

fo
r 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 

ef
fe

ct
s,

 th
e 

Le
ad

 A
ge

nc
y 

ca
n 

an
d 

sh
ou

ld
 c

on
si

de
r 

m
iti

ga
tio

n 
m

ea
su

re
s 

to
 e

ns
ur

e 
co

m
pl

ia
nc

e 
w

ith
 a

ll 
fe

de
ra

l, 
st

at
e,

 
an

d 
lo

ca
l 

flo
od

pl
ai

n 
re

gu
la

tio
ns

, 
co

ns
is

te
nt

 w
ith

 th
e 

pr
ov

is
io

ns
 o

f t
he

 N
at

io
na

l F
lo

od
 

In
su

ra
nc

e 
Pr

og
ra

m
, 

as
 a

pp
lic

ab
le

 a
nd

 f
ea

si
bl

e.
 

Su
ch

 m
ea

su
re

s 
m

ay
 in

cl
ud

e 
th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g,

 o
r o

th
er

 
co

m
pa

ra
bl

e 
m

ea
su

re
s 

id
en

tif
ie

d 
by

 
th

e 
Le

ad
 

Ag
en

cy
: 

  
C

om
pl

y 
w

ith
 

Ex
ec

ut
iv

e 
O

rd
er

 
11

98
8 

on
 

Th
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

al
re

ad
y 

su
bs

ta
nt

ia
lly

 
co

nf
or

m
s 

to
 

th
is

 
m

iti
ga

tio
n 

m
ea

su
re

. 
FE

M
A’

s 
Fl

oo
d 

In
su

ra
nc

e 
R

at
e 

M
ap

 
sh

ow
s 

th
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

Si
te

 i
s 

no
t 

w
ith

in
 a

 1
00

-y
ea

r 
flo

od
 

ha
za

rd
 a

re
a.

 T
he

re
fo

re
, n

o 
im

pa
ct

 w
ou

ld
 o

cc
ur

. 
 



 
M

iti
ga

tio
n 

M
ea

su
re

s 
fro

m
 P

rio
r E

IR
s 

 M
au

be
rt 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

 
 

C
ity

 o
f L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 

Su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

C
om

m
un

iti
es

 P
ro

je
ct

 E
xe

m
pt

io
n 

 
 

N
ov

em
be

r 2
01

9 
Pa

ge
 A

3-
69

 

Ta
bl

e 
A3

-1
 

M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
s 

fro
m

 P
rio

r E
IR

 (S
CA

G
’s

 2
01

6-
20

40
 R

TP
/S

CS
) 

 
Im

pa
ct

 
SC

AG
 2

01
6-

20
40

 R
TP

/S
CS

 M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
s 

(im
pl

em
en

te
d 

by
 le

ad
 a

ge
nc

y)
 

 
Ap

pl
ic

ab
ili

ty
 to

 th
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

Fl
oo

dp
la

in
 

M
an

ag
em

en
t, 

w
hi

ch
 

re
qu

ire
s 

av
oi

da
nc

e 
of

 
in

co
m

pa
tib

le
 

flo
od

pl
ai

n 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t, 
re

st
or

at
io

n 
an

d 
pr

es
er

va
tio

n 
of

 
th

e 
na

tu
ra

l 
an

d 
be

ne
fic

ia
l 

flo
od

pl
ai

n 
va

lu
es

, 
an

d 
m

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 

of
 

co
ns

is
te

nc
y 

w
ith

 
th

e 
st

an
da

rd
s 

an
d 

cr
ite

ria
 o

f 
th

e 
N

at
io

na
l 

Fl
oo

d 
In

su
ra

nc
e 

Pr
og

ra
m

. 
 

En
su

re
 th

at
 a

ll 
ro

ad
be

ds
 f

or
 n

ew
 h

ig
hw

ay
 a

nd
 

ra
il 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
be

 
el

ev
at

ed
 

at
 

le
as

t 
on

e 
fo

ot
 

ab
ov

e 
th

e 
10

0-
ye

ar
 b

as
e 

flo
od

 e
le

va
tio

n.
 S

in
ce

 
al

lu
vi

al
 f

an
 f

lo
od

in
g 

is
 n

ot
 o

fte
n 

id
en

tif
ie

d 
on

 
FE

M
A 

flo
od

 
m

ap
s,

 
th

e 
ris

k 
of

 
al

lu
vi

al
 

fa
n 

flo
od

in
g 

sh
ou

ld
 

be
 

ev
al

ua
te

d 
an

d 
pr

oj
ec

ts
 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
si

te
d 

to
 a

vo
id

 a
llu

vi
al

 f
an

 f
lo

od
in

g.
 

D
el

in
ea

tio
n 

of
 

flo
od

pl
ai

ns
 

an
d 

al
lu

vi
al

 
fa

n 
bo

un
da

rie
s 

sh
ou

ld
 a

tte
m

pt
 to

 a
cc

ou
nt

 fo
r f

ut
ur

e 
hy

dr
ol

og
ic

 c
ha

ng
es

 c
au

se
d 

by
 g

lo
ba

l 
cl

im
at

e 
ch

an
ge

. 
La

nd
 U

se
 a

nd
 P

la
nn

in
g 

(L
U

) 
C

on
fli

ct
 w

ith
 A

pp
lic

ab
le

 L
an

d 
U

se
 

P
la

n,
 

P
ol

ic
y,

 
or

 
R

eg
ul

at
io

n 

M
M

-L
U-

1:
 C

on
si

st
en

t w
ith

 th
e 

pr
ov

is
io

ns
 o

f S
ec

tio
n 

15
09

1 
of

 t
he

 S
ta

te
 C

EQ
A 

G
ui

de
lin

es
, 

SC
AG

 h
as

 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

m
iti

ga
tio

n 
m

ea
su

re
s 

ca
pa

bl
e 

of
 a

vo
id

in
g 

or
 r

ed
uc

in
g 

th
e 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 e

ffe
ct

s 
re

ga
rd

in
g 

th
e 

po
te

nt
ia

l 
to

 c
on

fli
ct

 w
ith

 a
ny

 a
pp

lic
ab

le
 l

an
d 

us
e 

pl
an

, 
po

lic
y,

 
or

 
re

gu
la

tio
n 

of
 

an
 

ag
en

cy
 

w
ith

 
ju

ris
di

ct
io

n 
ov

er
 t

he
 p

ro
je

ct
 t

ha
t 

ar
e 

w
ith

in
 t

he
 

ju
ris

di
ct

io
n 

an
d 

re
sp

on
si

bi
lit

y 
of

 l
oc

al
 j

ur
is

di
ct

io
ns

 
an

d 
Le

ad
 A

ge
nc

ie
s.

 W
he

re
 t

he
 L

ea
d 

Ag
en

cy
 h

as
 

id
en

tif
ie

d 
th

at
 

a 
pr

oj
ec

t 
ha

s 
th

e 
po

te
nt

ia
l 

fo
r 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 

ef
fe

ct
s,

 
th

e 
Le

ad
 

Ag
en

cy
 

ca
n 

an
d 

sh
ou

ld
 

co
ns

id
er

 
m

iti
ga

tio
n 

m
ea

su
re

s 
to

 
en

su
re

 
co

m
pl

ia
nc

e 
w

ith
 th

e 
go

al
s 

an
d 

po
lic

ie
s 

es
ta

bl
is

he
d 

w
ith

in
 

th
e 

ap
pl

ic
ab

le
 

ad
op

te
d 

co
un

ty
 

an
d 

ci
ty

 
ge

ne
ra

l 
pl

an
s 

w
ith

in
 t

he
 S

C
AG

 r
eg

io
n 

to
 a

vo
id

 
co

nf
lic

ts
 w

ith
 z

on
in

g 
an

d 
or

di
na

nc
e 

co
de

s,
 g

en
er

al
 

pl
an

s,
 l

an
d 

us
e 

pl
an

, 
po

lic
y,

 o
r 

re
gu

la
tio

n 
of

 a
n 

N
o 

m
iti

ga
tio

n 
ap

pl
ie

s.
 T

he
 P

ro
je

ct
 S

ite
 h

as
 a

 G
en

er
al

 
Pl

an
 la

nd
 u

se
 d

es
ig

na
tio

n 
of

 C
om

m
un

ity
 C

om
m

er
ci

al
 a

nd
 

th
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

Si
te

 i
s 

zo
ne

d 
R

4-
1.

 T
he

 P
ro

je
ct

 w
ou

ld
 n

ot
 

in
vo

lv
e 

a 
G

en
er

al
 P

la
n 

Am
en

dm
en

t 
or

 z
on

e 
ch

an
ge

. 
In

 
ad

di
tio

n,
 

th
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

is
 

co
ns

is
te

nt
 

w
ith

 
th

e 
ex

is
tin

g 
G

en
er

al
 P

la
n 

la
nd

 u
se

 d
es

ig
na

tio
n 

an
d 

zo
ni

ng
, 

as
 i

t 
pr

op
os

es
 m

ul
ti-

fa
m

ily
 re

si
de

nt
ia

l u
se

s 
on

 a
 s

ite
 z

on
ed

 fo
r 

su
ch

 u
se

s.
 T

he
 P

ro
je

ct
 w

ou
ld

 p
ro

vi
de

 m
uc

h 
ne

ed
ed

 
ho

us
in

g 
(in

cl
ud

in
g 

un
its

 
re

st
ric

te
d 

fo
r 

Ex
tre

m
el

y 
Lo

w
 

In
co

m
e 

H
ou

se
ho

ld
s)

 i
n 

cl
os

e 
pr

ox
im

ity
 t

o 
m

an
y 

pu
bl

ic
 

tra
ns

it 
op

po
rtu

ni
tie

s.
 

 Th
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t w

ou
ld

 a
ls

o 
be

 c
on

si
st

en
t w

ith
 th

e 
ap

pl
ic

ab
le

 
ob

je
ct

iv
es

 a
nd

 p
ol

ic
ie

s 
se

t 
fo

rth
 in

 t
he

 C
ity

’s
 p

la
ns

 a
nd

 
zo

ni
ng

, 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

th
e 

G
en

er
al

 P
la

n,
 C

om
m

un
ity

 P
la

n,
 

Pl
an

ni
ng

 a
nd

 Z
on

in
g 

C
od

e,
 a

nd
 t

he
 L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 G

re
en

 
Bu

ild
in

g 
C

od
e.

 T
he

re
fo

re
, t

he
 P

ro
je

ct
 w

ou
ld

 n
ot

 r
es

ul
t i

n 



 
M

iti
ga

tio
n 

M
ea

su
re

s 
fro

m
 P

rio
r E

IR
s 

 M
au

be
rt 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

 
 

C
ity

 o
f L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 

Su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

C
om

m
un

iti
es

 P
ro

je
ct

 E
xe

m
pt

io
n 

 
 

N
ov

em
be

r 2
01

9 
Pa

ge
 A

3-
70

 

Ta
bl

e 
A3

-1
 

M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
s 

fro
m

 P
rio

r E
IR

 (S
CA

G
’s

 2
01

6-
20

40
 R

TP
/S

CS
) 

 
Im

pa
ct

 
SC

AG
 2

01
6-

20
40

 R
TP

/S
CS

 M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
s 

(im
pl

em
en

te
d 

by
 le

ad
 a

ge
nc

y)
 

 
Ap

pl
ic

ab
ili

ty
 to

 th
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

ag
en

cy
 

w
ith

 
ju

ris
di

ct
io

n 
ov

er
 

th
e 

pr
oj

ec
t, 

as
 

ap
pl

ic
ab

le
 

an
d 

fe
as

ib
le

. 
Su

ch
 

m
ea

su
re

s 
m

ay
 

in
cl

ud
e 

th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g,
 

an
d/

or
 

ot
he

r 
co

m
pa

ra
bl

e 
m

ea
su

re
s 

id
en

tif
ie

d 
by

 th
e 

Le
ad

 A
ge

nc
y:

 
  

W
he

re
 

an
 

in
co

ns
is

te
nc

y 
w

ith
 

th
e 

ad
op

te
d 

ge
ne

ra
l p

la
n 

is
 id

en
tif

ie
d 

at
 th

e 
Pr

oj
ec

t l
oc

at
io

n,
 

de
te

rm
in

e 
if 

th
e 

en
vi

ro
nm

en
ta

l, 
so

ci
al

, 
ec

on
om

ic
, 

an
d 

en
gi

ne
er

in
g 

be
ne

fit
s 

of
 

th
e 

pr
oj

ec
t w

ar
ra

nt
 a

 v
ar

ia
nc

e 
fro

m
 a

do
pt

ed
 z

on
in

g 
or

 a
n 

am
en

dm
en

t t
o 

th
e 

ge
ne

ra
l p

la
n.

 

a 
co

nf
lic

t 
w

ith
 a

ny
 a

pp
lic

ab
le

 l
an

d 
us

e 
pl

an
, 

po
lic

y,
 o

r 
re

gu
la

tio
n 

of
 a

n 
ag

en
cy

 w
ith

 ju
ris

di
ct

io
n 

ov
er

 th
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t. 

Th
er

ef
or

e,
 S

C
AG

 M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
 L

U
-1

 w
ou

ld
 n

ot
 

ap
pl

y.
 

 

P
hy

si
ca

lly
 D

iv
id

e 
a 

C
om

m
un

ity
 

M
M

-L
U-

2:
 

C
on

si
st

en
t 

w
ith

 
th

e 
pr

ov
is

io
ns

 
of

 
Se

ct
io

n 
15

09
1 

of
 

th
e 

St
at

e 
C

EQ
A 

G
ui

de
lin

es
, 

SC
AG

 h
as

 id
en

tif
ie

d 
m

iti
ga

tio
n 

m
ea

su
re

s 
ca

pa
bl

e 
of

 
av

oi
di

ng
 

or
 

re
du

ci
ng

 
th

e 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 
ef

fe
ct

s 
re

la
te

d 
to

 t
he

 p
hy

si
ca

l 
di

vi
si

on
 o

f 
an

 e
st

ab
lis

he
d 

co
m

m
un

ity
 in

 a
 p

ro
je

ct
 a

re
a 

w
ith

in
 t

he
 ju

ris
di

ct
io

n 
an

d 
re

sp
on

si
bi

lit
y 

of
 l

oc
al

 j
ur

is
di

ct
io

ns
 a

nd
 L

ea
d 

Ag
en

ci
es

. 
W

he
re

 t
he

 L
ea

d 
Ag

en
cy

 h
as

 i
de

nt
ifi

ed
 

th
at

 
a 

pr
oj

ec
t 

ha
s 

th
e 

po
te

nt
ia

l 
fo

r 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 
ef

fe
ct

s,
 th

e 
Le

ad
 A

ge
nc

y 
ca

n 
an

d 
sh

ou
ld

 c
on

si
de

r 
m

iti
ga

tio
n 

m
ea

su
re

s 
to

 e
ns

ur
e 

co
m

pl
ia

nc
e 

w
ith

 th
e 

go
al

s 
an

d 
po

lic
ie

s 
es

ta
bl

is
he

d 
w

ith
in

 th
e 

ap
pl

ic
ab

le
 

ad
op

te
d 

co
un

ty
 a

nd
 c

ity
 g

en
er

al
 p

la
ns

 w
ith

in
 t

he
 

SC
AG

 r
eg

io
n 

to
 a

vo
id

 th
e 

cr
ea

tio
n 

of
 b

ar
rie

rs
 t

ha
t 

ph
ys

ic
al

ly
 d

iv
id

e 
su

ch
 c

om
m

un
iti

es
, 

as
 a

pp
lic

ab
le

 
an

d 
fe

as
ib

le
. 

Su
ch

 
m

ea
su

re
s 

m
ay

 
in

cl
ud

e 
th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g,

 o
r 

ot
he

r 
co

m
pa

ra
bl

e 
m

ea
su

re
s 

id
en

tif
ie

d 
by

 th
e 

Le
ad

 A
ge

nc
y:

 
  

C
on

si
de

r 
al

ig
nm

en
ts

 
w

ith
in

 
or

 
ad

ja
ce

nt
 

to
 

ex
is

tin
g 

pu
bl

ic
 ri

gh
ts

-o
f-w

ay
. 

 
C

on
si

de
r d

es
ig

ns
 to

 in
cl

ud
e 

se
ct

io
ns

 a
bo

ve
- o

r 
be

lo
w

-g
ra

de
 

to
 

m
ai

nt
ai

n 
vi

ab
le

 
ve

hi
cu

la
r, 

cy
cl

in
g,

 a
nd

 p
ed

es
tri

an
 c

on
ne

ct
io

ns
 b

et
w

ee
n 

po
rti

on
s 

of
 

co
m

m
un

iti
es

 
w

he
re

 
ex

is
tin

g 

N
o 

m
iti

ga
tio

n 
ap

pl
ie

s.
 T

he
 P

ro
je

ct
 d

oe
s 

no
t 

in
cl

ud
e 

th
e 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

of
 n

ew
 r

oa
dw

ay
 f

ac
ilit

ie
s 

an
d 

w
ou

ld
 n

ot
 

ot
he

rw
is

e 
ph

ys
ic

al
ly

 d
iv

id
e 

a 
co

m
m

un
ity

. 
 T

he
re

 a
re

 n
o 

im
pa

ct
s 

re
la

te
d 

to
 th

is
 is

su
e.

  



 
M

iti
ga

tio
n 

M
ea

su
re

s 
fro

m
 P

rio
r E

IR
s 

 M
au

be
rt 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

 
 

C
ity

 o
f L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 

Su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

C
om

m
un

iti
es

 P
ro

je
ct

 E
xe

m
pt

io
n 

 
 

N
ov

em
be

r 2
01

9 
Pa

ge
 A

3-
71

 

Ta
bl

e 
A3

-1
 

M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
s 

fro
m

 P
rio

r E
IR

 (S
CA

G
’s

 2
01

6-
20

40
 R

TP
/S

CS
) 

 
Im

pa
ct

 
SC

AG
 2

01
6-

20
40

 R
TP

/S
CS

 M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
s 

(im
pl

em
en

te
d 

by
 le

ad
 a

ge
nc

y)
 

 
Ap

pl
ic

ab
ili

ty
 to

 th
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

co
nn

ec
tio

ns
 a

re
 d

is
ru

pt
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

tra
ns

po
rta

tio
n 

pr
oj

ec
t. 

 
W

he
re

ve
r f

ea
si

bl
e 

in
co

rp
or

at
e 

di
re

ct
 c

ro
ss

in
gs

, 
ov

er
cr

os
si

ng
s,

 
or

 
un

de
rc

ro
ss

in
gs

 
at

 
re

gu
la

r 
in

te
rv

al
s 

fo
r 

m
ul

tip
le

 m
od

es
 

of
 t

ra
ve

l 
(e

.g
., 

pe
de

st
ria

ns
, b

ic
yc

lis
ts

, v
eh

ic
le

s)
. 

 
C

on
si

de
r 

re
al

ig
ni

ng
 

ro
ad

w
ay

 
or

 
in

te
rc

ha
ng

e 
im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 t

o 
av

oi
d 

th
e 

af
fe

ct
ed

 a
re

a 
of

 
re

si
de

nt
ia

l 
co

m
m

un
iti

es
 

or
 

co
he

si
ve

 
ne

ig
hb

or
ho

od
s.

 
 

W
he

re
 

it 
ha

s 
be

en
 

de
te

rm
in

ed
 

th
at

 
it 

is
 

in
fe

as
ib

le
 t

o 
av

oi
d 

cr
ea

tin
g 

a 
ba

rri
er

 i
n 

an
 

es
ta

bl
is

he
d 

co
m

m
un

ity
, 

co
ns

id
er

 
ot

he
r 

m
ea

su
re

s 
to

 r
ed

uc
e 

im
pa

ct
s,

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
bu

t n
ot

 
lim

ite
d 

to
: o 

Al
ig

nm
en

t 
sh

ift
s 

to
 m

in
im

iz
e 

th
e 

ar
ea

 a
ffe

ct
ed

. 
o 

R
ed

uc
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

pr
op

os
ed

 ri
gh

t-o
f-

w
ay

 t
ak

e 
to

 m
in

im
iz

e 
th

e 
ov

er
al

l 
ar

ea
 o

f i
m

pa
ct

. 
o 

Pr
ov

is
io

ns
 f

or
 b

ic
yc

le
, 

pe
de

st
ria

n,
 

an
d 

ve
hi

cl
e 

ac
ce

ss
 

ac
ro

ss
 

im
pr

ov
ed

 ro
ad

w
ay

s.
 

 
D

es
ig

n 
ne

w
 

tra
ns

po
rta

tio
n 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
th

at
 

co
ns

id
er

 
ac

ce
ss

 
to

 
ex

is
tin

g 
co

m
m

un
ity

 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s.

 
Id

en
tif

y 
an

d 
co

ns
id

er
 

du
rin

g 
th

e 
de

si
gn

 
ph

as
e 

of
 

th
e 

pr
oj

ec
t, 

co
m

m
un

ity
 

am
en

iti
es

 a
nd

 f
ac

ilit
ie

s 
in

 t
he

 d
es

ig
n 

of
 t

he
 

pr
oj

ec
t. 

 
D

es
ig

n 
ro

ad
w

ay
 i

m
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 t
ha

t 
m

in
im

iz
e 

ba
rri

er
s 

to
 

pe
de

st
ria

ns
 

an
d 

bi
cy

cl
is

ts
. 

D
et

er
m

in
e 

du
rin

g 
th

e 
de

si
gn

 p
ha

se
, p

ed
es

tri
an

 
an

d 
bi

cy
cl

e 
ro

ut
es

 t
ha

t 
pe

rm
it 

co
nn

ec
tio

ns
 t

o 
ne

ar
by

 c
om

m
un

ity
 fa

ci
lit

ie
s.

 
  



 
M

iti
ga

tio
n 

M
ea

su
re

s 
fro

m
 P

rio
r E

IR
s 

 M
au

be
rt 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

 
 

C
ity

 o
f L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 

Su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

C
om

m
un

iti
es

 P
ro

je
ct

 E
xe

m
pt

io
n 

 
 

N
ov

em
be

r 2
01

9 
Pa

ge
 A

3-
72

 

Ta
bl

e 
A3

-1
 

M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
s 

fro
m

 P
rio

r E
IR

 (S
CA

G
’s

 2
01

6-
20

40
 R

TP
/S

CS
) 

 
Im

pa
ct

 
SC

AG
 2

01
6-

20
40

 R
TP

/S
CS

 M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
s 

(im
pl

em
en

te
d 

by
 le

ad
 a

ge
nc

y)
 

 
Ap

pl
ic

ab
ili

ty
 to

 th
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

M
in

er
al

 R
es

ou
rc

es
 (M

IN
) 

Lo
ss

 
of

 
A

va
ila

bi
lit

y 
of

 
a 

K
no

w
n 

M
in

er
al

 R
es

ou
rc

e 
M

M
-M

IN
-1

: 
C

on
si

st
en

t 
w

ith
 

th
e 

pr
ov

is
io

ns
 

of
 

Se
ct

io
n 

15
09

1 
of

 
th

e 
St

at
e 

C
EQ

A 
G

ui
de

lin
es

, 
SC

AG
 h

as
 id

en
tif

ie
d 

m
iti

ga
tio

n 
m

ea
su

re
s 

ca
pa

bl
e 

of
 a

vo
id

in
g 

or
 r

ed
uc

in
g 

th
e 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 e

ffe
ct

s 
on

 
th

e 
lo

ss
 o

f a
va

ila
bi

lit
y 

of
 a

 k
no

w
n 

m
in

er
al

 re
so

ur
ce

 
th

at
 

w
ou

ld
 

be
 

of
 v

al
ue

 
to

 t
he

 
re

gi
on

 
an

d 
th

e 
re

si
de

nt
s 

of
 th

e 
st

at
e 

or
 a

 lo
ca

lly
 im

po
rta

nt
 m

in
er

al
 

re
so

ur
ce

 
re

co
ve

ry
 

si
te

 
de

lin
ea

te
d 

on
 

a 
lo

ca
l 

ge
ne

ra
l 

pl
an

, 
sp

ec
ifi

c 
pl

an
 o

r 
ot

he
r 

la
nd

 u
se

 p
la

n 
th

at
 a

re
 w

ith
in

 t
he

 ju
ris

di
ct

io
n 

an
d 

re
sp

on
si

bi
lit

y 
of

 
th

e 
C

al
ifo

rn
ia

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

of
 C

on
se

rv
at

io
n,

 a
nd

/o
r 

Le
ad

 A
ge

nc
ie

s.
 

 W
he

re
 

th
e 

Le
ad

 
Ag

en
cy

 
ha

s 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

th
at

 
a 

pr
oj

ec
t h

as
 t

he
 p

ot
en

tia
l f

or
 s

ig
ni

fic
an

t e
ffe

ct
s,

 th
e 

Le
ad

 A
ge

nc
y 

ca
n 

an
d 

sh
ou

ld
 c

on
si

de
r 

m
iti

ga
tio

n 
m

ea
su

re
s 

to
 

en
su

re
 

co
m

pl
ia

nc
e 

w
ith

 
SM

AR
A,

 
C

al
ifo

rn
ia

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t o

f C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
re

gu
la

tio
ns

, 
lo

ca
l g

en
er

al
 p

la
ns

, 
sp

ec
ifi

c 
pl

an
s,

 a
nd

 o
th

er
 la

w
s 

an
d 

re
gu

la
tio

n 
go

ve
rn

in
g 

m
in

er
al

 
or

 
ag

gr
eg

at
e 

re
so

ur
ce

s,
 

as
 

ap
pl

ic
ab

le
 

an
d 

fe
as

ib
le

. 
Su

ch
 

m
ea

su
re

s 
m

ay
 

in
cl

ud
e 

th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g,
 

ot
he

r 
co

m
pa

ra
bl

e 
m

ea
su

re
s 

id
en

tif
ie

d 
by

 
th

e 
Le

ad
 

Ag
en

cy
: 

  
Pr

ov
id

e 
fo

r 
th

e 
ef

fic
ie

nt
 

us
e 

of
 

kn
ow

n 
ag

gr
eg

at
e 

an
d 

m
in

er
al

 
re

so
ur

ce
s 

or
 

lo
ca

lly
 

im
po

rta
nt

 m
in

er
al

 r
es

ou
rc

e 
re

co
ve

ry
 s

ite
s,

 b
y 

en
su

rin
g 

th
at

 
th

e 
co

ns
um

pt
iv

e 
us

e 
of

 
ag

gr
eg

at
e 

re
so

ur
ce

s 
is

 
m

in
im

iz
ed

 
an

d 
th

at
 

ac
ce

ss
 to

 r
ec

ov
er

ab
le

 s
ou

rc
es

 o
f a

gg
re

ga
te

 is
 

no
t 

pr
ec

lu
de

d,
 

as
 

a 
re

su
lt 

of
 

co
ns

tru
ct

io
n,

 
op

er
at

io
n 

an
d 

m
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 o
f p

ro
je

ct
s.

 
 

W
he

re
 

av
oi

da
nc

e 
is

 
in

fe
as

ib
le

, 
m

in
im

iz
e 

im
pa

ct
s 

to
 t

he
 e

ffi
ci

en
t 

an
d 

ef
fe

ct
iv

e 
us

e 
of

 

N
o 

m
iti

ga
tio

n 
ap

pl
ie

s.
 T

he
 P

ro
je

ct
 S

ite
s 

ar
e 

no
t 

lo
ca

te
d 

w
ith

in
 t

he
 L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 D

ow
nt

ow
n 

O
il 

Fi
el

d,
 a

 M
in

er
al

 
R

es
ou

rc
e 

Zo
ne

 2
 (

M
R

Z-
2)

 A
re

a,
 a

n 
O

il 
D

ril
lin

g/
Su

rfa
ce

 
M

in
in

g 
Su

pp
le

m
en

ta
l U

se
 D

is
tri

ct
, o

r 
an

 O
il 

Fi
el

d/
D

ril
lin

g 
Ar

ea
. N

on
e 

of
 th

e 
su

gg
es

te
d 

m
ea

su
re

s 
ar

e 
ap

pl
ic

ab
le

 a
s 

th
er

e 
ar

e 
no

 k
no

w
n 

ag
gr

eg
at

e 
an

d 
m

in
er

al
 s

ou
rc

es
 o

r 
lo

ca
lly

 i
m

po
rta

nt
 m

in
er

al
 r

es
ou

rc
e 

re
co

ve
ry

 s
ite

s 
on

 o
r 

ad
ja

ce
nt

 t
o 

th
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

Si
te

s.
 T

he
re

fo
re

, 
th

er
e 

ar
e 

no
 

im
pa

ct
s 

re
la

te
d 

to
 th

es
e 

is
su

es
. 



 
M

iti
ga

tio
n 

M
ea

su
re

s 
fro

m
 P

rio
r E

IR
s 

 M
au

be
rt 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

 
 

C
ity

 o
f L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 

Su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

C
om

m
un

iti
es

 P
ro

je
ct

 E
xe

m
pt

io
n 

 
 

N
ov

em
be

r 2
01

9 
Pa

ge
 A

3-
73

 

Ta
bl

e 
A3

-1
 

M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
s 

fro
m

 P
rio

r E
IR

 (S
CA

G
’s

 2
01

6-
20

40
 R

TP
/S

CS
) 

 
Im

pa
ct

 
SC

AG
 2

01
6-

20
40

 R
TP

/S
CS

 M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
s 

(im
pl

em
en

te
d 

by
 le

ad
 a

ge
nc

y)
 

 
Ap

pl
ic

ab
ili

ty
 to

 th
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

re
co

ve
ra

bl
e 

so
ur

ce
s 

of
 

ag
gr

eg
at

e 
th

ro
ug

h 
m

ea
su

re
s 

th
at

 h
av

e 
be

en
 i

de
nt

ifi
ed

 i
n 

co
un

ty
 

an
d 

ci
ty

 g
en

er
al

 p
la

ns
, 

or
 o

th
er

 c
om

pa
ra

bl
e 

m
ea

su
re

s:
 

o 
R

ec
yc

le
 

an
d 

re
us

e 
bu

ild
in

g 
m

at
er

ia
ls

 re
su

lti
ng

 fr
om

 d
em

ol
iti

on
, 

pa
rti

cu
la

rly
 

ag
gr

eg
at

e 
re

so
ur

ce
s,

 
to

 th
e 

m
ax

im
um

 e
xt

en
t p

ra
ct

ic
ab

le
. 

o 
Id

en
tif

y 
an

d 
us

e 
bu

ild
in

g 
m

at
er

ia
ls

, 
pa

rti
cu

la
rly

 
ag

gr
eg

at
e 

m
at

er
ia

ls
, 

re
su

lti
ng

 f
ro

m
 d

em
ol

iti
on

 a
t 

ot
he

r 
co

ns
tru

ct
io

n 
si

te
s 

in
 

th
e 

SC
AG

 
re

gi
on

, 
or

 
w

ith
in

 
a 

re
as

on
ab

le
 

ha
ul

in
g 

di
st

an
ce

 o
f t

he
 p

ro
je

ct
 s

ite
. 

o 
D

es
ig

n 
tra

ns
po

rta
tio

n 
ne

tw
or

k 
im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 i

n 
a 

m
an

ne
r 

(s
uc

h 
as

 
bu

ffe
r 

zo
ne

s 
or

 
th

e 
us

e 
of

 
sc

re
en

in
g)

 t
ha

t 
do

es
 n

ot
 p

re
cl

ud
e 

ad
ja

ce
nt

 o
r 

ne
ar

by
 e

xt
ra

ct
io

n 
of

 
kn

ow
n 

m
in

er
al

 
an

d 
ag

gr
eg

at
e 

re
so

ur
ce

s 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

co
m

pl
et

io
n 

of
 

th
e 

im
pr

ov
em

en
t 

an
d 

du
rin

g 
lo

ng
-

te
rm

 o
pe

ra
tio

ns
. 

o 
Av

oi
d 

or
 re

du
ce

 im
pa

ct
s 

on
 k

no
w

n 
ag

gr
eg

at
e 

an
d 

m
in

er
al

 r
es

ou
rc

es
 

an
d 

m
in

er
al

 
re

so
ur

ce
 

re
co

ve
ry

 
si

te
s 

th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

ev
al

ua
tio

n 
an

d 
se

le
ct

io
n 

of
 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

Si
te

s 
an

d 
de

si
gn

 f
ea

tu
re

s 
(e

.g
., 

bu
ffe

rs
) 

th
at

 
m

in
im

iz
e 

im
pa

ct
s 

on
 la

nd
 s

ui
ta

bl
e 

fo
r 

ag
gr

eg
at

e 
an

d 
m

in
er

al
 

re
so

ur
ce

 e
xt

ra
ct

io
n 

by
 m

ai
nt

ai
ni

ng
 

po
rti

on
s 

of
 M

R
Z-

2 
ar

ea
s 

in
 o

pe
n 

sp
ac

e 
or

 o
th

er
 g

en
er

al
 p

la
n 

la
nd

 
us

e 
ca

te
go

rie
s 

an
d 

zo
ni

ng
 

th
at

 
al

lo
w

 
fo

r 
m

in
in

g 
of

 
m

in
er

al
 



 
M

iti
ga

tio
n 

M
ea

su
re

s 
fro

m
 P

rio
r E

IR
s 

 M
au

be
rt 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

 
 

C
ity

 o
f L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 

Su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

C
om

m
un

iti
es

 P
ro

je
ct

 E
xe

m
pt

io
n 

 
 

N
ov

em
be

r 2
01

9 
Pa

ge
 A

3-
74

 

Ta
bl

e 
A3

-1
 

M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
s 

fro
m

 P
rio

r E
IR

 (S
CA

G
’s

 2
01

6-
20

40
 R

TP
/S

CS
) 

 
Im

pa
ct

 
SC

AG
 2

01
6-

20
40

 R
TP

/S
CS

 M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
s 

(im
pl

em
en

te
d 

by
 le

ad
 a

ge
nc

y)
 

 
Ap

pl
ic

ab
ili

ty
 to

 th
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

re
so

ur
ce

s.
 

N
O

IS
E 

E
xp

os
ur

e 
of

 P
er

so
ns

 to
 N

oi
se

 
in

 E
xc

es
s 

of
 L

oc
al

 S
ta

nd
ar

ds
, 

E
xc

es
si

ve
 

G
ro

un
db

or
ne

 
V

ib
ra

tio
n 

or
 

N
oi

se
 

Le
ve

ls
, 

S
ub

st
an

tia
l 

P
er

m
an

en
t 

In
cr

ea
se

 
in

 
N

oi
se

 
Le

ve
l, 

S
ub

st
an

tia
l 

Te
m

po
ra

ry
 

In
cr

ea
se

 in
 N

oi
se

 L
ev

el
s 

M
M

-N
O

IS
E-

1:
 C

on
si

st
en

t 
w

ith
 t

he
 p

ro
vi

si
on

s 
of

 
Se

ct
io

n 
15

09
1 

of
 

th
e 

St
at

e 
C

EQ
A 

G
ui

de
lin

es
, 

SC
AG

 h
as

 id
en

tif
ie

d 
m

iti
ga

tio
n 

m
ea

su
re

s 
ca

pa
bl

e 
of

 a
vo

id
in

g 
or

 r
ed

uc
in

g 
th

e 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 e
ffe

ct
s 

of
 

no
is

e 
im

pa
ct

s 
th

at
 

ar
e 

in
 

th
e 

ju
ris

di
ct

io
n 

an
d 

re
sp

on
si

bi
lit

y 
of

 
pu

bl
ic

 
ag

en
ci

es
 

an
d/

or
 

Le
ad

 
Ag

en
ci

es
. 

W
he

re
 t

he
 L

ea
d 

Ag
en

cy
 h

as
 i

de
nt

ifi
ed

 
th

at
 

a 
pr

oj
ec

t 
ha

s 
th

e 
po

te
nt

ia
l 

fo
r 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 

ef
fe

ct
s,

 th
e 

Le
ad

 A
ge

nc
y 

ca
n 

an
d 

sh
ou

ld
 c

on
si

de
r 

m
iti

ga
tio

n 
m

ea
su

re
s 

to
 e

ns
ur

e 
co

ns
is

te
nc

y 
w

ith
 th

e 
Fe

de
ra

l N
oi

se
 C

on
tro

l A
ct

, 
C

al
ifo

rn
ia

 G
ov

er
nm

en
t 

C
od

e 
Se

ct
io

n 
65

30
2,

 
th

e 
G

ov
er

no
r’s

 
O

ffi
ce

 
of

 
Pl

an
ni

ng
 a

nd
 R

es
ea

rc
h 

N
oi

se
 E

le
m

en
t G

ui
de

lin
es

, 
an

d 
th

e 
no

is
e 

or
di

na
nc

es
 a

nd
 g

en
er

al
 p

la
n 

no
is

e 
el

em
en

ts
 f

or
 t

he
 c

ou
nt

ie
s 

or
 c

iti
es

 w
he

re
 p

ro
je

ct
s 

ar
e 

un
de

rta
ke

n,
 F

ed
er

al
 H

ig
hw

ay
 A

dm
in

is
tra

tio
n 

an
d 

C
al

tra
ns

 g
ui

da
nc

e 
do

cu
m

en
ts

 a
nd

 o
th

er
 h

ea
lth

 
an

d 
sa

fe
ty

 s
ta

nd
ar

ds
 s

et
 f

or
th

 b
y 

fe
de

ra
l, 

st
at

e,
 

an
d 

lo
ca

l a
ut

ho
rit

ie
s 

th
at

 r
eg

ul
at

e 
no

is
e 

le
ve

ls
, 

as
 

ap
pl

ic
ab

le
 

an
d 

fe
as

ib
le

. 
Su

ch
 

m
ea

su
re

s 
m

ay
 

in
cl

ud
e 

th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
or

 
ot

he
r 

co
m

pa
ra

bl
e 

m
ea

su
re

s 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

by
 th

e 
Le

ad
 A

ge
nc

y:
 

  
In

st
al

l 
te

m
po

ra
ry

 
no

is
e 

ba
rri

er
s 

du
rin

g 
co

ns
tru

ct
io

n.
 

 
In

cl
ud

e 
pe

rm
an

en
t 

no
is

e 
ba

rri
er

s 
an

d 
so

un
d-

at
te

nu
at

in
g 

fe
at

ur
es

 
as

 
pa

rt 
of

 
th

e 
pr

oj
ec

t 
de

si
gn

. 
 

Sc
he

du
le

 c
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
ac

tiv
iti

es
 c

on
si

st
en

t w
ith

 
th

e 
al

lo
w

ab
le

 
ho

ur
s 

pu
rs

ua
nt

 
to

 
ap

pl
ic

ab
le

 
ge

ne
ra

l p
la

n 
no

is
e 

el
em

en
t o

r n
oi

se
 o

rd
in

an
ce

 
W

he
re

 c
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
ac

tiv
iti

es
 a

re
 a

ut
ho

riz
ed

 
ou

ts
id

e 
th

e 
lim

its
 

es
ta

bl
is

he
d 

by
 

th
e 

no
is

e 
el

em
en

t o
f t

he
 g

en
er

al
 p

la
n 

or
 n

oi
se

 o
rd

in
an

ce
, 

N
o 

m
iti

ga
tio

n 
ap

pl
ie

s.
 P

R
C

 S
ec

tio
n 

21
15

5.
1 

do
es

 n
ot

 
ad

dr
es

s 
no

is
e,

 
an

d 
th

er
ef

or
e,

 
un

de
r 

PR
C

 
Se

ct
io

n 
21

15
5.

1,
 

tra
ns

it 
pr

io
rit

y 
pr

oj
ec

ts
 

ar
e 

no
t 

re
qu

ire
d 

to
 

ev
al

ua
te

 th
e 

ef
fe

ct
s 

of
 n

oi
se

. H
ow

ev
er

, a
 N

oi
se

 T
ec

hn
ic

al
 

R
ep

or
t 

w
as

 p
re

pa
re

d 
fo

r 
th

e 
Pr

oj
ec

t, 
fo

r 
in

fo
rm

at
io

na
l 

pu
rp

os
es

 o
nl

y 
(a

tta
ch

ed
 a

s 
Ap

pe
nd

ix
 J

). 
As

 s
ta

te
d 

in
 th

e 
N

oi
se

 T
ec

hn
ic

al
 R

ep
or

t, 
th

e 
Pr

oj
ec

t 
w

ou
ld

 c
om

pl
y 

w
ith

 
th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

R
eg

ul
at

or
y 

C
om

pl
ia

nc
e 

M
ea

su
re

s,
 w

hi
ch

 
w

ou
ld

 
en

su
re

 
th

at
 

al
l 

im
pa

ct
s 

re
la

te
d 

to
 

no
is

e 
an

d 
vi

br
at

io
n 

ar
e 

le
ss

 th
an

 s
ig

ni
fic

an
t: 

 RC
M

-N
O

I-1
: 

Th
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

sh
al

l 
co

m
pl

y 
w

ith
 C

ity
 o

f 
Lo

s 
An

ge
le

s 
M

un
ic

ip
al

 
C

od
e 

Se
ct

io
n 

11
2.

05
(a

), 
w

hi
ch

 
in

st
itu

te
s 

a 
m

ax
im

um
 

no
is

e 
lim

it 
fro

m
 

po
w

er
ed

 
co

ns
tru

ct
io

n 
eq

ui
pm

en
t o

f 7
5 

dB
A 

at
 5

0 
fe

et
 o

f d
is

ta
nc

e.
 

 RC
M

-N
O

I-2
: 

Th
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

sh
al

l 
pr

oh
ib

it 
Pr

oj
ec

t 
co

ns
tru

ct
io

n 
ac

tiv
iti

es
 b

et
w

ee
n 

th
e 

ho
ur

s 
of

 9
:0

0 
PM

 a
nd

 
7:

00
 A

M
, M

on
da

y 
th

ro
ug

h 
Fr

id
ay

; b
ef

or
e 

8:
00

 A
M

 o
r a

fte
r 

6:
00

 P
M

 o
n 

an
y 

Sa
tu

rd
ay

; a
nd

 o
n 

an
y 

Su
nd

ay
 o

r n
at

io
na

l 
ho

lid
ay

, p
ur

su
an

t t
o 

C
ity

 o
f L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 M

un
ic

ip
al

 C
od

e 
Se

ct
io

n 
41

.4
0(

a)
. 

 RC
M

-N
O

I-3
: 

Th
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

sh
al

l 
pr

oh
ib

it 
an

y 
am

pl
ifi

ed
 

no
is

es
, 

es
pe

ci
al

ly
 

th
os

e 
fro

m
 

ou
td

oo
r 

so
ur

ce
s,

 
fro

m
 

ex
ce

ed
in

g 
th

e 
am

bi
en

t n
oi

se
 le

ve
ls

 o
f a

dj
ac

en
t p

ro
pe

rti
es

 
by

 m
or

e 
th

an
 5

 d
BA

, 
pu

rs
ua

nt
 t

o 
C

ity
 o

f 
Lo

s 
An

ge
le

s 
M

un
ic

ip
al

 C
od

e 
Se

ct
io

n 
11

2.
01

. 
An

y 
am

pl
ifi

ed
 n

oi
se

s 
w

ou
ld

 
al

so
 

be
 

pr
oh

ib
ite

d 
fro

m
 

be
in

g 
au

di
bl

e 
at

 
an

y 
di

st
an

ce
 g

re
at

er
 th

an
 1

50
 fe

et
 fr

om
 th

e 
Pr

oj
ec

t’s
 p

ro
pe

rty
 

lin
e,

 a
s 

th
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t i

s 
lo

ca
te

d 
w

ith
in

 5
00

 fe
et

 o
f r

es
id

en
tia

l 
zo

ne
s.

 
 RC

M
-N

O
I-4

: 
Th

e 
Pr

oj
ec

t 
sh

al
l 

pr
ev

en
t 

H
VA

C
 s

ys
te

m
s 



 
M

iti
ga

tio
n 

M
ea

su
re

s 
fro

m
 P

rio
r E

IR
s 

 M
au

be
rt 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

 
 

C
ity

 o
f L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 

Su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

C
om

m
un

iti
es

 P
ro

je
ct

 E
xe

m
pt

io
n 

 
 

N
ov

em
be

r 2
01

9 
Pa

ge
 A

3-
75

 

Ta
bl

e 
A3

-1
 

M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
s 

fro
m

 P
rio

r E
IR

 (S
CA

G
’s

 2
01

6-
20

40
 R

TP
/S

CS
) 

 
Im

pa
ct

 
SC

AG
 2

01
6-

20
40

 R
TP

/S
CS

 M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
s 

(im
pl

em
en

te
d 

by
 le

ad
 a

ge
nc

y)
 

 
Ap

pl
ic

ab
ili

ty
 to

 th
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

no
tif

y 
af

fe
ct

ed
 s

en
si

tiv
e 

no
is

e 
re

ce
pt

or
s 

an
d 

al
l 

pa
rti

es
 

w
ho

 
w

ill
 

ex
pe

rie
nc

e 
no

is
e 

le
ve

ls
 i

n 
ex

ce
ss

 o
f 

th
e 

al
lo

w
ab

le
 li

m
its

 fo
r 

th
e 

sp
ec

ifi
ed

 
la

nd
 

us
e,

 
of

 
th

e 
le

ve
l 

of
 

ex
ce

ed
an

ce
 

an
d 

du
ra

tio
n 

of
 e

xc
ee

da
nc

e;
 a

nd
 p

ro
vi

de
 a

 l
is

t 
of

 
pr

ot
ec

tiv
e 

m
ea

su
re

s 
th

at
 c

an
 b

e 
un

de
rta

ke
n 

by
 

th
e 

in
di

vi
du

al
, i

nc
lu

di
ng

 te
m

po
ra

ry
 re

lo
ca

tio
n 

or
 

us
e 

of
 h

ea
rin

g 
pr

ot
ec

tiv
e 

de
vi

ce
s.

 
 

Li
m

it 
sp

ee
d 

an
d/

or
 h

ou
rs

 o
f 

op
er

at
io

n 
of

 r
ai

l 
an

d 
tra

ns
it 

sy
st

em
s 

du
rin

g 
th

e 
se

le
ct

ed
 p

er
io

ds
 

of
 t

im
e 

to
 r

ed
uc

e 
du

ra
tio

n 
an

d 
fre

qu
en

cy
 o

f 
co

nf
lic

t w
ith

 a
do

pt
ed

 li
m

its
 o

n 
no

is
e 

le
ve

ls
. 

 
Po

st
 p

ro
ce

du
re

s 
an

d 
ph

on
e 

nu
m

be
rs

 a
t 

th
e 

co
ns

tru
ct

io
n 

si
te

 fo
r 

no
tif

yi
ng

 th
e 

Le
ad

 A
ge

nc
y 

st
af

f, 
lo

ca
l P

ol
ic

e 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t, 
an

d 
co

ns
tru

ct
io

n 
co

nt
ra

ct
or

 (
du

rin
g 

re
gu

la
r 

co
ns

tru
ct

io
n 

ho
ur

s 
an

d 
of

f-h
ou

rs
), 

al
on

g 
w

ith
 

pe
rm

itt
ed

 
co

ns
tru

ct
io

n 
da

ys
 

an
d 

ho
ur

s,
 

co
m

pl
ai

nt
 

pr
oc

ed
ur

es
, a

nd
 w

ho
 to

 n
ot

ify
 in

 th
e 

ev
en

t o
f a

 
pr

ob
le

m
. 

 
N

ot
ify

 n
ei

gh
bo

rs
 a

nd
 o

cc
up

an
ts

 w
ith

in
 3

00
 fe

et
 

of
 t

he
 p

ro
je

ct
 c

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

ar
ea

 a
t 

le
as

t 
30

 
da

ys
 i

n 
ad

va
nc

e 
of

 a
nt

ic
ip

at
ed

 t
im

es
 w

he
n 

no
is

e 
le

ve
ls

 
ar

e 
ex

pe
ct

ed
 

to
 

ex
ce

ed
 

lim
its

 
es

ta
bl

is
he

d 
in

 th
e 

no
is

e 
el

em
en

t o
f t

he
 g

en
er

al
 

pl
an

 o
r n

oi
se

 o
rd

in
an

ce
. 

 
H

ol
d 

a 
pr

ec
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
m

ee
tin

g 
w

ith
 t

he
 j

ob
 

in
sp

ec
to

rs
 a

nd
 t

he
 g

en
er

al
 c

on
tra

ct
or

/o
n-

si
te

 
pr

oj
ec

t 
m

an
ag

er
 

to
 

co
nf

irm
 

th
at

 
no

is
e 

m
ea

su
re

s 
an

d 
pr

ac
tic

es
 (i

nc
lu

di
ng

 c
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
ho

ur
s,

 n
ei

gh
bo

rh
oo

d 
no

tif
ic

at
io

n,
 p

os
te

d 
si

gn
s,

 
et

c.
) a

re
 c

om
pl

et
ed

. 
 

D
es

ig
na

te
 a

n 
on

-s
ite

 c
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
co

m
pl

ai
nt

 
an

d 
en

fo
rc

em
en

t m
an

ag
er

 fo
r t

he
 p

ro
je

ct
. 

 
En

su
re

 
th

at
 

co
ns

tru
ct

io
n 

eq
ui

pm
en

t 
ar

e 
pr

op
er

ly
 

m
ai

nt
ai

ne
d 

pe
r 

m
an

uf
ac

tu
re

rs
’ 

an
d 

ot
he

r 
m

ec
ha

ni
ca

l e
qu

ip
m

en
t f

ro
m

 e
le

va
tin

g 
am

bi
en

t 
no

is
e 

le
ve

ls
 a

t 
ne

ig
hb

or
in

g 
re

si
de

nc
es

 b
y 

m
or

e 
th

an
 5

 
dB

A,
 p

ur
su

an
t 

to
 C

ity
 o

f 
Lo

s 
An

ge
le

s 
M

un
ic

ip
al

 C
od

e 
Se

ct
io

n 
11

2.
02

(a
). 

    



 
M

iti
ga

tio
n 

M
ea

su
re

s 
fro

m
 P

rio
r E

IR
s 

 M
au

be
rt 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

 
 

C
ity

 o
f L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 

Su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

C
om

m
un

iti
es

 P
ro

je
ct

 E
xe

m
pt

io
n 

 
 

N
ov

em
be

r 2
01

9 
Pa

ge
 A

3-
76

 

Ta
bl

e 
A3

-1
 

M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
s 

fro
m

 P
rio

r E
IR

 (S
CA

G
’s

 2
01

6-
20

40
 R

TP
/S

CS
) 

 
Im

pa
ct

 
SC

AG
 2

01
6-

20
40

 R
TP

/S
CS

 M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
s 

(im
pl

em
en

te
d 

by
 le

ad
 a

ge
nc

y)
 

 
Ap

pl
ic

ab
ili

ty
 to

 th
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

sp
ec

ifi
ca

tio
ns

 a
nd

 fi
tte

d 
w

ith
 th

e 
be

st
 a

va
ila

bl
e 

no
is

e 
su

pp
re

ss
io

n 
de

vi
ce

s 
(e

.g
., 

m
uf

fle
rs

, 
si

le
nc

er
s,

 w
ra

ps
). 

Al
l i

nt
ak

e 
an

d 
ex

ha
us

t 
po

rts
 

on
 

po
w

er
 

eq
ui

pm
en

t 
sh

al
l 

be
 

m
uf

fle
d 

or
 

sh
ie

ld
ed

. 
 

En
su

re
 t

ha
t 

im
pa

ct
 t

oo
ls

 (
e.

g.
, 

ja
ck

 h
am

m
er

s,
 

pa
ve

m
en

t 
br

ea
ke

rs
, 

an
d 

ro
ck

 d
ril

ls
) 

us
ed

 f
or

 
pr

oj
ec

t 
co

ns
tru

ct
io

n 
ar

e 
hy

dr
au

lic
al

ly
 

or
 

el
ec

tri
ca

lly
 p

ow
er

ed
 t

o 
av

oi
d 

no
is

e 
as

so
ci

at
ed

 
w

ith
 

co
m

pr
es

se
d 

ai
r 

ex
ha

us
t 

fro
m

 
pn

eu
m

at
ic

al
ly

 p
ow

er
ed

 t
oo

ls
. 

H
ow

ev
er

, 
w

he
re

 
us

e 
of

 
pn

eu
m

at
ic

 
to

ol
s 

is
 

un
av

oi
da

bl
e,

 
an

 
ex

ha
us

t m
uf

fle
r o

n 
th

e 
co

m
pr

es
se

d 
ai

r e
xh

au
st

 
ca

n 
an

d 
sh

ou
ld

 b
e 

us
ed

. 
Ex

te
rn

al
 j

ac
ke

ts
 o

n 
th

e 
to

ol
s 

th
em

se
lv

es
 c

an
 a

nd
 s

ho
ul

d 
be

 u
se

d,
 

if 
su

ch
 ja

ck
et

s 
ar

e 
co

m
m

er
ci

al
ly

 a
va

ila
bl

e 
an

d 
th

is
 

co
ul

d 
ac

hi
ev

e 
a 

re
du

ct
io

n 
of

 
5 

dB
A.

 
Q

ui
et

er
 p

ro
ce

du
re

s 
ca

n 
an

d 
sh

ou
ld

 b
e 

us
ed

, 
su

ch
 a

s 
dr

ill
s 

ra
th

er
 t

ha
n 

im
pa

ct
 e

qu
ip

m
en

t, 
w

he
ne

ve
r 

su
ch

 p
ro

ce
du

re
s 

ar
e 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
an

d 
co

ns
is

te
nt

 w
ith

 c
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
pr

oc
ed

ur
es

. 
 

En
su

re
 t

ha
t 

co
ns

tru
ct

io
n 

eq
ui

pm
en

t 
do

es
 n

ot
 

id
le

 f
or

 a
n 

ex
te

nd
ed

 t
im

e 
in

 t
he

 v
ic

in
ity

 o
f 

no
is

e-
se

ns
iti

ve
 re

ce
pt

or
s.

 
 

Lo
ca

te
 

fix
ed

/s
ta

tio
na

ry
 

eq
ui

pm
en

t 
(s

uc
h 

as
 

ge
ne

ra
to

rs
, 

co
m

pr
es

so
rs

, 
ro

ck
 c

ru
sh

er
s,

 a
nd

 
ce

m
en

t m
ix

er
s)

 a
s 

fa
r 

as
 p

os
si

bl
e 

fro
m

 n
oi

se
-

se
ns

iti
ve

 re
ce

pt
or

s.
 

 
Lo

ca
te

 
ne

w
 

ro
ad

w
ay

 
la

ne
s,

 
ro

ad
w

ay
s,

 
ra

il 
lin

es
, 

tra
ns

it-
re

la
te

d 
pa

ss
en

ge
r 

st
at

io
n 

an
d 

re
la

te
d 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s,
 p

ar
k-

an
d-

rid
e 

lo
ts

, 
an

d 
ot

he
r 

ne
w

 
no

is
e-

ge
ne

ra
tin

g 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

aw
ay

 
fro

m
 

se
ns

iti
ve

 
re

ce
pt

or
s 

to
 

th
e 

m
ax

im
um

 
ex

te
nt

 
fe

as
ib

le
. 

 
W

he
re

 
fe

as
ib

le
, 

el
im

in
at

e 
no

is
e-

se
ns

iti
ve

 
re

ce
pt

or
s 

by
 a

cq
ui

rin
g 

fre
ew

ay
 a

nd
 r

ai
l r

ig
ht

s-



 
M

iti
ga

tio
n 

M
ea

su
re

s 
fro

m
 P

rio
r E

IR
s 

 M
au

be
rt 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

 
 

C
ity

 o
f L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 

Su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

C
om

m
un

iti
es

 P
ro

je
ct

 E
xe

m
pt

io
n 

 
 

N
ov

em
be

r 2
01

9 
Pa

ge
 A

3-
77

 

Ta
bl

e 
A3

-1
 

M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
s 

fro
m

 P
rio

r E
IR

 (S
CA

G
’s

 2
01

6-
20

40
 R

TP
/S

CS
) 

 
Im

pa
ct

 
SC

AG
 2

01
6-

20
40

 R
TP

/S
CS

 M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
s 

(im
pl

em
en

te
d 

by
 le

ad
 a

ge
nc

y)
 

 
Ap

pl
ic

ab
ili

ty
 to

 th
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

of
-w

ay
. 

 
U

se
 

no
is

e 
ba

rri
er

s 
to

 
pr

ot
ec

t 
se

ns
iti

ve
 

re
ce

pt
or

s 
fro

m
 e

xc
es

si
ve

 n
oi

se
 l

ev
el

s 
du

rin
g 

co
ns

tru
ct

io
n.

 
 

C
on

st
ru

ct
 

so
un

d-
re

du
ci

ng
 

ba
rri

er
s 

be
tw

ee
n 

no
is

e 
so

ur
ce

s 
an

d 
no

is
e-

se
ns

iti
ve

 r
ec

ep
to

rs
 to

 
m

in
im

iz
e 

ex
po

su
re

 t
o 

ex
ce

ss
iv

e 
no

is
e 

du
rin

g 
op

er
at

io
n 

of
 

tra
ns

po
rta

tio
n 

im
pr

ov
em

en
t 

pr
oj

ec
ts

, 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

bu
t 

no
t 

lim
ite

d 
to

 
ea

rth
-

be
rm

s 
or

 s
ou

nd
 w

al
ls

. 
 

W
he

re
 f

ea
si

bl
e,

 d
es

ig
n 

pr
oj

ec
ts

 s
o 

th
at

 t
he

y 
ar

e 
de

pr
es

se
d 

be
lo

w
 th

e 
gr

ad
e 

of
 th

e 
ex

is
tin

g 
no

is
e-

se
ns

iti
ve

 r
ec

ep
to

r, 
cr

ea
tin

g 
an

 e
ffe

ct
iv

e 
ba

rri
er

 
be

tw
ee

n 
th

e 
ro

ad
w

ay
 

an
d 

se
ns

iti
ve

 
re

ce
pt

or
s.

 
 

W
he

re
 

fe
as

ib
le

, 
im

pr
ov

e 
th

e 
ac

ou
st

ic
al

 
in

su
la

tio
n 

of
 d

w
el

lin
g 

un
its

 w
he

re
 s

et
ba

ck
s 

an
d 

so
un

d 
ba

rri
er

s 
do

 n
ot

 p
ro

vi
de

 s
uf

fic
ie

nt
 n

oi
se

 
re

du
ct

io
n.

 
 

M
on

ito
r 

th
e 

ef
fe

ct
iv

en
es

s 
of

 n
oi

se
 r

ed
uc

tio
n 

m
ea

su
re

s 
by

 t
ak

in
g 

no
is

e 
m

ea
su

re
m

en
ts

 a
nd

 
in

st
al

lin
g 

ad
ap

tiv
e 

m
iti

ga
tio

n 
m

ea
su

re
s 

to
 

ac
hi

ev
e 

th
e 

st
an

da
rd

s 
fo

r 
am

bi
en

t n
oi

se
 le

ve
ls

 
es

ta
bl

is
he

d 
by

 th
e 

no
is

e 
el

em
en

t o
f t

he
 g

en
er

al
 

pl
an

 o
r n

oi
se

 o
rd

in
an

ce
. 

E
xp

os
ur

e 
of

 
P

er
so

ns
 

to
 

E
xc

es
si

ve
 

G
ro

un
db

or
ne

 
V

ib
ra

tio
n 

or
 N

oi
se

 L
ev

el
s 

M
M

-N
O

IS
E-

2:
 C

on
si

st
en

t 
w

ith
 t

he
 p

ro
vi

si
on

s 
of

 
Se

ct
io

n 
15

09
1 

of
 

th
e 

St
at

e 
C

EQ
A 

G
ui

de
lin

es
, 

SC
AG

 h
as

 id
en

tif
ie

d 
m

iti
ga

tio
n 

m
ea

su
re

s 
ca

pa
bl

e 
of

 a
vo

id
in

g 
or

 r
ed

uc
in

g 
th

e 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 e
ffe

ct
s 

of
 

vi
br

at
io

n 
im

pa
ct

s 
th

at
 a

re
 i

n 
th

e 
ju

ris
di

ct
io

n 
an

d 
re

sp
on

si
bi

lit
y 

of
 

pu
bl

ic
 

ag
en

ci
es

 
an

d/
or

 
Le

ad
 

Ag
en

ci
es

. 
W

he
re

 t
he

 L
ea

d 
Ag

en
cy

 h
as

 i
de

nt
ifi

ed
 

th
at

 
a 

pr
oj

ec
t 

ha
s 

th
e 

po
te

nt
ia

l 
fo

r 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 
ef

fe
ct

s,
 th

e 
Le

ad
 A

ge
nc

y 
ca

n 
an

d 
sh

ou
ld

 c
on

si
de

r 
m

iti
ga

tio
n 

m
ea

su
re

s 
to

 e
ns

ur
e 

co
m

pl
ia

nc
e 

w
ith

 th
e 

Fe
de

ra
l 

Tr
an

sp
or

ta
tio

n 
Au

th
or

ity
 

an
d 

C
al

tra
ns

 

N
o 

m
iti

ga
tio

n 
ap

pl
ie

s.
 P

R
C

 S
ec

tio
n 

21
15

5.
1 

do
es

 n
ot

 
ad

dr
es

s 
vi

br
at

io
n,

 a
nd

 t
he

re
fo

re
, 

un
de

r 
PR

C
 S

ec
tio

n 
21

15
5.

1,
 

tra
ns

it 
pr

io
rit

y 
pr

oj
ec

ts
 

ar
e 

no
t 

re
qu

ire
d 

to
 

ev
al

ua
te

 th
e 

ef
fe

ct
s 

of
 v

ib
ra

tio
n.

 N
ev

er
th

el
es

s,
 a

s 
st

at
ed

 
in

 t
he

 N
oi

se
 T

ec
hn

ic
al

 R
ep

or
t 

(a
tta

ch
ed

 a
s 

Ap
pe

nd
ix

 J
, 

fo
r 

in
fo

rm
at

io
na

l 
pu

rp
os

es
 

on
ly

), 
ba

se
d 

on
 

st
an

da
rd

 
co

ns
tru

ct
io

n 
pr

ac
tic

es
, 

th
e 

m
ax

im
um

 v
ib

ra
tio

n 
le

ve
ls

 o
f 

co
ns

tru
ct

io
n 

eq
ui

pm
en

t 
w

ou
ld

 n
ot

 b
e 

ge
ne

ra
te

d 
at

 t
he

 
pr

op
er

ty
 l

in
es

 o
f 

th
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

Si
te

. 
R

at
he

r, 
sm

al
le

r 
an

d 
m

or
e 

m
an

eu
ve

ra
bl

e 
an

d 
pr

ec
is

e 
eq

ui
pm

en
t 

w
ou

ld
 b

e 
us

ed
 

at
 

th
e 

pr
op

er
ty

 
lin

es
. 

Th
is

 
eq

ui
pm

en
t 

w
ou

ld
 



 
M

iti
ga

tio
n 

M
ea

su
re

s 
fro

m
 P

rio
r E

IR
s 

 M
au

be
rt 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

 
 

C
ity

 o
f L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 

Su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

C
om

m
un

iti
es

 P
ro

je
ct

 E
xe

m
pt

io
n 

 
 

N
ov

em
be

r 2
01

9 
Pa

ge
 A

3-
78

 

Ta
bl

e 
A3

-1
 

M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
s 

fro
m

 P
rio

r E
IR

 (S
CA

G
’s

 2
01

6-
20

40
 R

TP
/S

CS
) 

 
Im

pa
ct

 
SC

AG
 2

01
6-

20
40

 R
TP

/S
CS

 M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
s 

(im
pl

em
en

te
d 

by
 le

ad
 a

ge
nc

y)
 

 
Ap

pl
ic

ab
ili

ty
 to

 th
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

gu
id

an
ce

 d
oc

um
en

ts
, 

co
un

ty
 o

r 
ci

ty
 t

ra
ns

po
rta

tio
n 

co
m

m
is

si
on

, 
no

is
e 

an
d 

vi
br

at
io

n 
or

di
na

nc
es

 a
nd

 
ge

ne
ra

l 
pl

an
 n

oi
se

 e
le

m
en

ts
 f

or
 t

he
 c

ou
nt

ie
s 

an
d 

ci
tie

s 
w

he
re

 p
ro

je
ct

s 
ar

e 
un

de
rta

ke
n 

an
d 

ot
he

r 
he

al
th

 a
nd

 s
af

et
y 

re
gu

la
tio

ns
 s

et
 f

or
th

 b
y 

fe
de

ra
l 

st
at

e,
 a

nd
 l

oc
al

 a
ut

ho
rit

ie
s 

th
at

 r
eg

ul
at

e 
vi

br
at

io
n 

le
ve

ls
, a

s 
ap

pl
ic

ab
le

 a
nd

 fe
as

ib
le

. S
uc

h 
m

ea
su

re
s 

m
ay

 i
nc

lu
de

 t
he

 f
ol

lo
w

in
g 

or
 o

th
er

 c
om

pa
ra

bl
e 

m
ea

su
re

s 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

by
 th

e 
Le

ad
 A

ge
nc

y:
 

  
Fo

r 
pr

oj
ec

ts
 t

ha
t 

re
qu

ire
 p

ile
 d

riv
in

g 
or

 o
th

er
 

co
ns

tru
ct

io
n 

te
ch

ni
qu

es
 th

at
 re

su
lt 

in
 e

xc
es

si
ve

 
vi

br
at

io
n,

 
su

ch
 

as
 

bl
as

tin
g,

 
de

te
rm

in
e 

th
e 

po
te

nt
ia

l 
vi

br
at

io
n 

im
pa

ct
s 

to
 

th
e 

st
ru

ct
ur

al
 

in
te

gr
ity

 o
f t

he
 a

dj
ac

en
t b

ui
ld

in
gs

 w
ith

in
 5

0 
fe

et
 

of
 p

ile
 d

riv
in

g 
lo

ca
tio

ns
. 

 
Fo

r 
pr

oj
ec

ts
 t

ha
t 

re
qu

ire
 p

ile
 d

riv
in

g 
or

 o
th

er
 

co
ns

tru
ct

io
n 

te
ch

ni
qu

es
 th

at
 re

su
lt 

in
 e

xc
es

si
ve

 
vi

br
at

io
n,

 
su

ch
 

as
 

bl
as

tin
g,

 
de

te
rm

in
e 

th
e 

th
re

sh
ol

d 
le

ve
ls

 o
f 

vi
br

at
io

n 
an

d 
cr

ac
ki

ng
 t

ha
t 

co
ul

d 
da

m
ag

e 
ad

ja
ce

nt
 

hi
st

or
ic

 
or

 
ot

he
r 

st
ru

ct
ur

e,
 a

nd
 d

es
ig

n 
m

ea
ns

 a
nd

 c
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
m

et
ho

ds
 to

 n
ot

 e
xc

ee
d 

th
e 

th
re

sh
ol

ds
. 

 
Fo

r 
pr

oj
ec

ts
 

w
he

re
 

pi
le

 
dr

iv
in

g 
w

ou
ld

 
be

 
ne

ce
ss

ar
y 

fo
r 

co
ns

tru
ct

io
n 

du
e 

to
 g

eo
lo

gi
ca

l 
co

nd
iti

on
s,

 u
til

iz
e 

qu
ie

t 
pi

le
 d

riv
in

g 
te

ch
ni

qu
es

 
su

ch
 a

s 
pr

ed
ril

lin
g 

th
e 

pi
le

s 
to

 t
he

 m
ax

im
um

 
fe

as
ib

le
 d

ep
th

, 
w

he
re

 f
ea

si
bl

e.
 P

re
dr

illi
ng

 p
ile

 
ho

le
s 

w
ill

 re
du

ce
 th

e 
nu

m
be

r o
f b

lo
w

s 
re

qu
ire

d 
to

 c
om

pl
et

el
y 

se
at

 th
e 

pi
le

 a
nd

 w
ill 

co
nc

en
tra

te
 

th
e 

pi
le

 d
riv

in
g 

ac
tiv

ity
 c

lo
se

r 
to

 t
he

 g
ro

un
d 

w
he

re
 p

ile
 d

riv
in

g 
no

is
e 

ca
n 

be
 s

hi
el

de
d 

m
or

e 
ef

fe
ct

iv
el

y 
by

 a
 n

oi
se

 b
ar

rie
r/c

ur
ta

in
. 

 
Fo

r 
pr

oj
ec

ts
 

w
he

re
 

pi
le

 
dr

iv
in

g 
w

ou
ld

 
be

 
ne

ce
ss

ar
y 

fo
r 

co
ns

tru
ct

io
n 

du
e 

to
 g

eo
lo

gi
ca

l 
co

nd
iti

on
s,

 u
til

iz
e 

qu
ie

t 
pi

le
 d

riv
in

g 
te

ch
ni

qu
es

 

ge
ne

ra
te

 v
ib

ra
tio

n 
le

ve
ls

 th
at

 d
o 

no
t e

xc
ee

d 
th

e 
bu

ild
in

g 
da

m
ag

e 
th

re
sh

ol
ds

 
at

 
ad

ja
ce

nt
 

re
ce

pt
or

s,
 

as
 

de
m

on
st

ra
te

d 
in

 th
e 

N
oi

se
 T

ec
hn

ic
al

 R
ep

or
t (

at
ta

ch
ed

 a
s 

Ap
pe

nd
ix

 J
, f

or
 in

fo
rm

at
io

na
l p

ur
po

se
s 

on
ly

). 
Th

er
ef

or
e,

 
im

pa
ct

s 
w

ou
ld

 b
e 

le
ss

 t
ha

n 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 a
nd

 n
o 

m
iti

ga
tio

n 
m

ea
su

re
s 

w
ou

ld
 b

e 
re

qu
ire

d.
 

 G
ro

un
db

or
ne

 v
ib

ra
tio

ns
 a

t t
he

 P
ro

je
ct

 S
ite

 a
nd

 im
m

ed
ia

te
 

vi
ci

ni
ty

 c
ur

re
nt

ly
 r

es
ul

t 
fro

m
 h

ea
vy

-d
ut

y 
ve

hi
cu

la
r 

tra
ve

l 
(s

uc
h 

as
 re

fu
se

 tr
uc

ks
 a

nd
 tr

an
si

t b
us

es
) o

n 
ne

ar
by

 lo
ca

l 
ro

ad
w

ay
s.

 T
he

 P
ro

je
ct

 w
ou

ld
 n

ot
 r

es
ul

t 
in

 a
 s

ub
st

an
tia

l 
in

cr
ea

se
 o

f 
th

es
e 

he
av

y-
du

ty
 v

eh
ic

le
s 

on
 t

he
 a

dj
ac

en
t 

ro
ad

w
ay

s,
 a

s 
so

lid
 w

as
te

 i
s 

cu
rre

nt
ly

 c
ol

le
ct

ed
 a

t 
th

e 
Pr

oj
ec

t S
ite

 a
nd

 w
ou

ld
 b

e 
co

lle
ct

ed
 in

 th
e 

sa
m

e 
m

an
ne

r 
fo

r t
he

 p
ro

po
se

d 
re

si
de

nt
ia

l u
se

s.
 A

s 
su

ch
, i

m
pa

ct
s 

w
ou

ld
 

be
 

le
ss

 
th

an
 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 

an
d 

no
 m

iti
ga

tio
n 

m
ea

su
re

s 
w

ou
ld

 b
e 

re
qu

ire
d.

 



 
M

iti
ga

tio
n 

M
ea

su
re

s 
fro

m
 P

rio
r E

IR
s 

 M
au

be
rt 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

 
 

C
ity

 o
f L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 

Su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

C
om

m
un

iti
es

 P
ro

je
ct

 E
xe

m
pt

io
n 

 
 

N
ov

em
be

r 2
01

9 
Pa

ge
 A

3-
79

 

Ta
bl

e 
A3

-1
 

M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
s 

fro
m

 P
rio

r E
IR

 (S
CA

G
’s

 2
01

6-
20

40
 R

TP
/S

CS
) 

 
Im

pa
ct

 
SC

AG
 2

01
6-

20
40

 R
TP

/S
CS

 M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
s 

(im
pl

em
en

te
d 

by
 le

ad
 a

ge
nc

y)
 

 
Ap

pl
ic

ab
ili

ty
 to

 th
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

su
ch

 a
s 

th
e 

us
e 

of
 m

or
e 

th
an

 o
ne

 p
ile

 d
riv

er
 to

 
sh

or
te

n 
th

e 
to

ta
l p

ile
 d

riv
in

g 
du

ra
tio

n.
 

Po
pu

la
tio

n 
an

d 
H

ou
si

ng
 (P

H
E)

 
D

is
pl

ac
em

en
t 

of
 

H
ou

si
ng

, 
R

eq
ui

rin
g 

R
ep

la
ce

m
en

t 
H

ou
si

ng
 E

ls
ew

he
re

 

M
M

-P
HE

-2
: 

C
on

si
st

en
t 

w
ith

 
th

e 
pr

ov
is

io
ns

 
of

 
Se

ct
io

n 
15

09
1 

of
 

th
e 

St
at

e 
C

EQ
A 

G
ui

de
lin

es
, 

SC
AG

 h
as

 id
en

tif
ie

d 
m

iti
ga

tio
n 

m
ea

su
re

s 
ca

pa
bl

e 
of

 
av

oi
di

ng
 

or
 

re
du

ci
ng

 
th

e 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 
ef

fe
ct

s 
re

la
te

d 
to

 
di

sp
la

ce
m

en
t 

th
at

 
ar

e 
w

ith
in

 
th

e 
ju

ris
di

ct
io

n 
an

d 
re

sp
on

si
bi

lit
y 

of
 L

ea
d 

Ag
en

ci
es

. 
W

he
re

 
th

e 
Le

ad
 

Ag
en

cy
 

ha
s 

id
en

tif
ie

d 
th

at
 

a 
pr

oj
ec

t h
as

 t
he

 p
ot

en
tia

l f
or

 s
ig

ni
fic

an
t e

ffe
ct

s,
 th

e 
Le

ad
 A

ge
nc

y 
ca

n 
an

d 
sh

ou
ld

 c
on

si
de

r 
m

iti
ga

tio
n 

m
ea

su
re

s 
to

 m
in

im
iz

e 
th

e 
di

sp
la

ce
m

en
t o

f e
xi

st
in

g 
ho

us
in

g 
an

d 
pe

op
le

 a
nd

 to
 e

ns
ur

e 
co

m
pl

ia
nc

e 
w

ith
 

lo
ca

l 
ju

ris
di

ct
io

n’
s 

ho
us

in
g 

el
em

en
ts

 
of

 
th

ei
r 

ge
ne

ra
l 

pl
an

s,
 a

s 
ap

pl
ic

ab
le

 a
nd

 f
ea

si
bl

e.
 S

uc
h 

m
ea

su
re

s 
m

ay
 

in
cl

ud
e 

th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g,
 

or
 

ot
he

r 
co

m
pa

ra
bl

e 
m

ea
su

re
s 

id
en

tif
ie

d 
by

 
th

e 
Le

ad
 

Ag
en

cy
: 

  
Ev

al
ua

te
 a

lte
rn

at
e 

ro
ut

e 
al

ig
nm

en
ts

 a
nd

 
tra

ns
po

rta
tio

n 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

th
at

 
m

in
im

iz
e 

th
e 

di
sp

la
ce

m
en

t 
of

 h
om

es
 a

nd
 b

us
in

es
se

s.
 U

se
 a

n 
ite

ra
tiv

e 
de

si
gn

 a
nd

 im
pa

ct
 a

na
ly

si
s 

w
he

re
 im

pa
ct

s 
to

 h
om

es
 o

r 
bu

si
ne

ss
es

 a
re

 i
nv

ol
ve

d 
to

 m
in

im
iz

e 
th

e 
po

te
nt

ia
l 

of
 

im
pa

ct
s 

on
 

ho
us

in
g 

an
d 

di
sp

la
ce

m
en

t o
f p

eo
pl

e.
 

 
Pr

io
rit

iz
e 

th
e 

us
e 

ex
is

tin
g 

R
O

W
s,

 w
he

re
ve

r 
fe

as
ib

le
. 

 
D

ev
el

op
 

a 
co

ns
tru

ct
io

n 
sc

he
du

le
 

th
at

 
m

in
im

iz
es

 
po

te
nt

ia
l 

ne
ig

hb
or

ho
od

 
de

te
rio

ra
tio

n 
fro

m
 p

ro
tra

ct
ed

 w
ai

tin
g 

pe
rio

ds
 b

et
w

ee
n 

rig
ht

-o
f-

w
ay

 a
cq

ui
si

tio
n 

an
d 

co
ns

tru
ct

io
n.

 
   

N
o 

m
iti

ga
tio

n 
ap

pl
ie

s.
 W

hi
le

 t
he

 P
ro

je
ct

 S
ite

 c
ur

re
nt

ly
 

co
nt

ai
ns

 
14

 
m

ul
ti-

fa
m

ily
 

re
si

de
nt

ia
l 

un
its

, 
th

e 
Pr

oj
ec

t 
in

cl
ud

es
 t

he
 c

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

of
 1

53
 m

ul
ti-

fa
m

ily
 r

es
id

en
tia

l 
un

its
 o

n 
th

e 
Pr

oj
ec

t 
Si

te
 (

in
cl

ud
in

g 
11

 p
er

ce
nt

 o
f 

un
its

 
re

st
ric

te
d 

fo
r E

xt
re

m
el

y 
Lo

w
 In

co
m

e 
H

ou
se

ho
ld

s)
.  

  



 
M

iti
ga

tio
n 

M
ea

su
re

s 
fro

m
 P

rio
r E

IR
s 

 M
au

be
rt 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

 
 

C
ity

 o
f L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 

Su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

C
om

m
un

iti
es

 P
ro

je
ct

 E
xe

m
pt

io
n 

 
 

N
ov

em
be

r 2
01

9 
Pa

ge
 A

3-
80

 

Ta
bl

e 
A3

-1
 

M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
s 

fro
m

 P
rio

r E
IR

 (S
CA

G
’s

 2
01

6-
20

40
 R

TP
/S

CS
) 

 
Im

pa
ct

 
SC

AG
 2

01
6-

20
40

 R
TP

/S
CS

 M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
s 

(im
pl

em
en

te
d 

by
 le

ad
 a

ge
nc

y)
 

 
Ap

pl
ic

ab
ili

ty
 to

 th
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

Pu
bl

ic
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

(P
S)

 
A

dv
er

se
 

Im
pa

ct
s 

A
ss

oc
ia

te
d 

w
ith

 
N

ew
 

or
 

P
hy

si
ca

lly
 

A
lte

re
d 

G
ov

er
nm

en
ta

l 
Fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

fo
r 

P
ub

lic
 P

ro
te

ct
iv

e 
Fi

re
 a

nd
 E

m
er

ge
nc

y 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

M
M

-P
S-

1:
 

C
on

si
st

en
t 

w
ith

 
th

e 
pr

ov
is

io
ns

 
of

 
Se

ct
io

n 
15

09
1 

of
 

th
e 

St
at

e 
C

EQ
A 

G
ui

de
lin

es
, 

SC
AG

 h
as

 id
en

tif
ie

d 
m

iti
ga

tio
n 

m
ea

su
re

s 
ca

pa
bl

e 
of

 a
vo

id
in

g 
or

 r
ed

uc
in

g 
th

e 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 e
ffe

ct
s 

fro
m

 
th

e 
ne

ed
 

fo
r 

ne
w

 
or

 
ph

ys
ic

al
ly

 
al

te
re

d 
go

ve
rn

m
en

ta
l 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
in

 
or

de
r 

to
 

m
ai

nt
ai

n 
ac

ce
pt

ab
le

 r
es

po
ns

e 
tim

es
 f

or
 f

ire
 p

ro
te

ct
io

n 
an

d 
em

er
ge

nc
y 

re
sp

on
se

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
th

at
 a

re
 w

ith
in

 t
he

 
ju

ris
di

ct
io

n 
an

d 
re

sp
on

si
bi

lit
y 

of
 f

ire
 d

ep
ar

tm
en

ts
, 

la
w

 e
nf

or
ce

m
en

t 
ag

en
ci

es
, 

an
d 

lo
ca

l j
ur

is
di

ct
io

ns
. 

W
he

re
 

th
e 

Le
ad

 
Ag

en
cy

 
ha

s 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

th
at

 
a 

pr
oj

ec
t h

as
 t

he
 p

ot
en

tia
l f

or
 s

ig
ni

fic
an

t e
ffe

ct
s,

 th
e 

Le
ad

 A
ge

nc
y 

ca
n 

an
d 

sh
ou

ld
 c

on
si

de
r 

m
iti

ga
tio

n 
m

ea
su

re
s 

co
ns

is
te

nt
 w

ith
 th

e 
C

om
m

un
ity

 F
ac

ilit
ie

s 
Ac

t 
of

 1
98

2,
 t

he
 g

oa
ls

 a
nd

 p
ol

ic
ie

s 
es

ta
bl

is
he

d 
w

ith
in

 
th

e 
ap

pl
ic

ab
le

 
ad

op
te

d 
co

un
ty

 
an

d 
ci

ty
 

ge
ne

ra
l 

pl
an

s 
an

d 
th

e 
pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

 
ob

je
ct

iv
es

 
es

ta
bl

is
he

d 
in

 th
e 

ad
op

te
d 

co
un

ty
 a

nd
 c

ity
 g

en
er

al
 

pl
an

s,
 to

 p
ro

vi
de

 s
uf

fic
ie

nt
 s

tru
ct

ur
es

 a
nd

 b
ui

ld
in

gs
 

to
 a

cc
om

m
od

at
e 

fir
e 

an
d 

em
er

ge
nc

y 
re

sp
on

se
, a

s 
ap

pl
ic

ab
le

 
an

d 
fe

as
ib

le
. 

Su
ch

 
m

ea
su

re
s 

m
ay

 
in

cl
ud

e 
th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g,

 
or

 
ot

he
r 

co
m

pa
ra

bl
e 

m
ea

su
re

s 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

by
 t

he
 L

ea
d 

Ag
en

cy
, 

ta
ki

ng
 

in
to

 
ac

co
un

t 
pr

oj
ec

t 
an

d 
si

te
-s

pe
ci

fic
 

co
ns

id
er

at
io

ns
 a

s 
ap

pl
ic

ab
le

 a
nd

 fe
as

ib
le

: 
  

W
he

re
 th

e 
pr

oj
ec

t h
as

 th
e 

po
te

nt
ia

l t
o 

ge
ne

ra
te

 
th

e 
ne

ed
 f

or
 e

xp
an

de
d 

em
er

ge
nc

y 
re

sp
on

se
 

se
rv

ic
es

 w
hi

ch
 e

xc
ee

d 
th

e 
ca

pa
ci

ty
 o

f e
xi

st
in

g 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s,

 p
ro

vi
de

 f
or

 t
he

 c
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
of

 n
ew

 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

di
re

ct
ly

 a
s 

an
 e

le
m

en
t o

f t
he

 p
ro

je
ct

 o
r 

th
ro

ug
h 

de
di

ca
te

d 
fa

ir 
sh

ar
e 

co
nt

rib
ut

io
ns

 
to

w
ar

d 
in

fra
st

ru
ct

ur
e 

im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

. 
 

D
ur

in
g 

pr
oj

ec
t-l

ev
el

 
re

vi
ew

 
of

 
go

ve
rn

m
en

t 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

pr
oj

ec
ts

, 
re

qu
ire

 
im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

of
 

Th
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

al
re

ad
y 

su
bs

ta
nt

ia
lly

 
co

nf
or

m
s 

to
 

th
is

 
m

iti
ga

tio
n 

m
ea

su
re

. T
he

 P
ro

je
ct

 w
ou

ld
 a

ls
o 

be
 s

ub
je

ct
 to

 
co

m
pl

ia
nc

e 
w

ith
 

fir
e 

pr
ot

ec
tio

n 
de

si
gn

 
st

an
da

rd
s,

 
as

 
ne

ce
ss

ar
y,

 p
er

 t
he

 C
al

ifo
rn

ia
 B

ui
ld

in
g 

C
od

e,
 C

al
ifo

rn
ia

 
Fi

re
 C

od
e,

 L
AM

C
, a

nd
 th

e 
Lo

s 
An

ge
le

s 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
(L

AF
D

), 
to

 
en

su
re

 
ad

eq
ua

te
 

fir
e 

pr
ot

ec
tio

n,
 

fo
rm

al
ly

 
pr

ov
id

ed
 a

s 
R

C
M

-P
S-

1,
 b

el
ow

.  
 RC

M
-P

S-
1:

 
Ke

y 
co

m
po

ne
nt

s 
of

 
th

e 
re

gu
la

to
ry

 
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
 

(fr
om

 
th

e 
C

al
ifo

rn
ia

 
Bu

ild
in

g 
C

od
e,

 
C

al
ifo

rn
ia

 
Fi

re
 

C
od

e,
 

an
d 

LA
M

C
) 

th
at

 
w

ou
ld

 
be

 
im

pl
em

en
te

d 
as

 p
ar

t 
of

 t
he

 P
ro

je
ct

 p
ur

su
an

t 
to

 L
AF

D
 

re
vi

ew
 a

nd
 g

ui
da

nc
e 

in
cl

ud
e 

th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g:
 

 
Bu

ild
in

g 
D

es
ig

n:
 

Fi
re

 
re

si
st

an
t 

do
or

s 
an

d 
m

at
er

ia
ls

, 
as

 w
el

l 
as

 w
al

kw
ay

s,
 s

ta
irw

el
l 

an
d 

el
ev

at
or

 s
ys

te
m

s 
(in

cl
ud

in
g 

em
er

ge
nc

y 
an

d 
fir

e 
co

nt
ro

l e
le

va
to

rs
) t

ha
t m

ee
t C

od
e 

re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

. 
 

Fi
re

 S
af

et
y 

Fe
at

ur
es

: 
In

st
al

la
tio

n 
of

 a
ut

om
at

ic
 

sp
rin

kl
er

 
sy

st
em

s,
 

sm
ok

e 
de

te
ct

or
s,

 
an

d 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

 s
ig

na
ge

 a
nd

 i
nt

er
na

l 
ex

it 
ro

ut
es

 t
o 

fa
ci

lit
at

e 
a 

bu
ild

in
g 

ev
ac

ua
tio

n 
if 

ne
ce

ss
ar

y.
 

In
st

al
la

tio
n 

of
 

a 
fir

e 
al

ar
m

 
sy

st
em

, 
bu

ild
in

g 
em

er
ge

nc
y 

co
m

m
un

ic
at

io
n 

sy
st

em
, 

an
d 

sm
ok

e 
co

nt
ro

l s
ys

te
m

. 
 

Em
er

ge
nc

y 
Sa

fe
ty

 P
ro

vi
si

on
s:

 Im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
of

 
an

 E
m

er
ge

nc
y 

Pl
an

 i
n 

ac
co

rd
an

ce
 w

ith
 L

AM
C

 
Se

ct
io

n 
57

.3
3.

19
. 

Th
e 

Em
er

ge
nc

y 
Pl

an
 w

ou
ld

 
es

ta
bl

is
h 

de
di

ca
te

d 
pe

rs
on

ne
l 

an
d 

em
er

ge
nc

y 
pr

oc
ed

ur
es

 
to

 
as

si
st

 
th

e 
LA

FD
 

du
rin

g 
an

 
em

er
ge

nc
y 

in
ci

de
nt

. 
 

LA
FD

 A
cc

es
s:

 A
cc

es
s 

fo
r 

LA
FD

 a
pp

ar
at

us
 a

nd
 

pe
rs

on
ne

l w
ou

ld
 b

e 
pr

ov
id

ed
 to

 th
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t S

ite
 

in
 a

cc
or

da
nc

e 
w

ith
 L

AF
D

 re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

, i
nc

lu
si

ve
 

of
 

st
an

da
rd

s 
re

ga
rd

in
g 

fir
e 

la
ne

 
w

id
th

s 
an

d 
w

ei
gh

t c
ap

ac
iti

es
 n

ee
de

d 
to

 s
up

po
rt 

fir
e 

fig
ht

in
g 



 
M

iti
ga

tio
n 

M
ea

su
re

s 
fro

m
 P

rio
r E

IR
s 

 M
au

be
rt 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

 
 

C
ity

 o
f L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 

Su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

C
om

m
un

iti
es

 P
ro

je
ct

 E
xe

m
pt

io
n 

 
 

N
ov

em
be

r 2
01

9 
Pa

ge
 A

3-
81

 

Ta
bl

e 
A3

-1
 

M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
s 

fro
m

 P
rio

r E
IR

 (S
CA

G
’s

 2
01

6-
20

40
 R

TP
/S

CS
) 

 
Im

pa
ct

 
SC

AG
 2

01
6-

20
40

 R
TP

/S
CS

 M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
s 

(im
pl

em
en

te
d 

by
 le

ad
 a

ge
nc

y)
 

 
Ap

pl
ic

ab
ili

ty
 to

 th
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
s 

M
M

-A
ES

-1
(b

), 
M

M
-A

ES
-

3(
b)

, 
M

M
-A

ES
-4

(b
), 

M
M

-A
F-

1(
b)

, 
M

M
-A

F-
2(

b)
, 

M
M

-B
IO

-1
(b

), 
M

M
-B

IO
-2

(b
), 

M
M

-B
IO

-
3(

b)
, 

M
M

-C
UL

-1
(b

), 
M

M
-C

UL
-2

(b
), 

M
M

-C
UL

-
3(

b)
, M

M
-C

UL
-4

(b
), 

M
M

-G
EO

-1
(b

), 
M

M
-G

EO
-

1(
b)

, 
M

M
-H

YD
-1

(b
), 

M
M

-U
SS

-3
(b

), 
M

M
-U

SS
-

4(
b)

, 
an

d 
M

M
-U

SS
-6

(b
) 

to
 a

vo
id

 o
r 

re
du

ce
 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 e

nv
iro

nm
en

ta
l 

im
pa

ct
s 

as
so

ci
at

ed
 

w
ith

 t
he

 c
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
or

 e
xp

an
si

on
 o

f 
su

ch
 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s,
 t

hr
ou

gh
 t

he
 i

m
po

si
tio

n 
of

 c
on

di
tio

ns
 

re
qu

ire
d 

to
 b

e 
fo

llo
w

ed
 t

o 
av

oi
d 

or
 r

ed
uc

e 
im

pa
ct

s 
as

so
ci

at
ed

 
w

ith
 

ai
r 

qu
al

ity
, 

no
is

e,
 

tra
ffi

c,
 b

io
lo

gi
ca

l 
re

so
ur

ce
s,

 g
re

en
ho

us
e 

ga
s 

em
is

si
on

s,
 h

yd
ro

lo
gy

 a
nd

 w
at

er
 q

ua
lit

y,
 a

nd
 

ot
he

rs
 t

ha
t 

ap
pl

y 
to

 s
pe

ci
fic

 c
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
or

 
ex

pa
ns

io
n 

of
 n

ew
 o

r 
ex

pa
nd

ed
 p

ub
lic

 s
er

vi
ce

 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s.

 

ve
hi

cl
es

. 
 In

 
ad

di
tio

n,
 t

he
 

C
ity

 
re

qu
ire

s 
th

at
 

pl
an

s 
fo

r 
bu

ild
in

g 
co

ns
tru

ct
io

n,
 

fir
e 

flo
w

 
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
, 

fir
e 

pr
ot

ec
tio

n 
de

vi
ce

s 
(e

.g
. 

sp
rin

kl
er

s 
an

d 
al

ar
m

s)
, 

fir
e 

hy
dr

an
ts

 a
nd

 
sp

ac
in

g,
 

an
d 

fir
e 

ac
ce

ss
 

(in
cl

ud
in

g 
in

gr
es

s/
eg

re
ss

), 
tu

rn
in

g 
ra

di
i, 

dr
iv

ew
ay

 
w

id
th

, 
an

d 
gr

ad
in

g 
w

ou
ld

 
be

 
pr

ep
ar

ed
 f

or
 r

ev
ie

w
 a

nd
 a

pp
ro

va
l 

by
 t

he
 L

AF
D

. 
Th

e 
Pr

oj
ec

t i
s 

no
t e

xp
ec

te
d 

to
 r

es
ul

t i
n 

a 
su

bs
ta

nt
ia

l i
nc

re
as

e 
in

 d
em

an
d 

fo
r 

ad
di

tio
na

l 
fir

e 
pr

ot
ec

tio
n 

se
rv

ic
es

 t
ha

t 
w

ou
ld

 e
xc

ee
d 

th
e 

ca
pa

bi
lit

y 
of

 t
he

 L
AF

D
, 

su
ch

 t
ha

t 
it 

w
ou

ld
 r

eq
ui

re
 t

he
 c

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

of
 a

 n
ew

 f
ire

 s
ta

tio
n.

 
Fu

rth
er

, e
ve

n 
if 

a 
ne

w
 fi

re
 s

ta
tio

n,
 o

r t
he

 e
xp

an
si

on
 o

f a
n 

ex
is

tin
g 

st
at

io
n,

 w
as

 d
et

er
m

in
ed

 t
o 

be
 w

ar
ra

nt
ed

 b
y 

LA
FD

, t
he

 P
ro

je
ct

 a
re

a 
is

 h
ig

hl
y 

de
ve

lo
pe

d,
 a

nd
 th

e 
si

te
 

of
 a

 n
ew

 f
ire

 s
ta

tio
n 

or
 e

xp
an

si
on

 o
f 

an
 e

xi
st

in
g 

st
at

io
n 

w
ou

ld
 l

ik
el

y 
be

 o
n 

an
 i

nf
ill 

lo
t 

th
at

 w
ou

ld
 l

ik
el

y 
be

 l
es

s 
th

an
 o

ne
 a

cr
e 

in
 s

iz
e.

 
A

dv
er

se
 

Im
pa

ct
s 

A
ss

oc
ia

te
d 

w
ith

 
N

ew
 

or
 

P
hy

si
ca

lly
 

A
lte

re
d 

G
ov

er
nm

en
ta

l 
Fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

fo
r 

P
ub

lic
 P

ro
te

ct
iv

e 
S

ec
ur

ity
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

M
M

-P
S-

2:
 

C
on

si
st

en
t 

w
ith

 
th

e 
pr

ov
is

io
ns

 
of

 
Se

ct
io

n 
15

09
1 

of
 

th
e 

St
at

e 
C

EQ
A 

G
ui

de
lin

es
, 

SC
AG

 h
as

 id
en

tif
ie

d 
m

iti
ga

tio
n 

m
ea

su
re

s 
ca

pa
bl

e 
of

 a
vo

id
in

g 
or

 r
ed

uc
in

g 
th

e 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 e
ffe

ct
s 

fro
m

 
th

e 
ne

ed
 

fo
r 

ne
w

 
or

 
ph

ys
ic

al
ly

 
al

te
re

d 
go

ve
rn

m
en

ta
l 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
in

 
or

de
r 

to
 

m
ai

nt
ai

n 
ac

ce
pt

ab
le

 
se

rv
ic

e 
ra

tio
s 

fo
r 

po
lic

e 
pr

ot
ec

tio
n 

se
rv

ic
es

 
th

at
 

ar
e 

w
ith

in
 

th
e 

ju
ris

di
ct

io
n 

an
d 

re
sp

on
si

bi
lit

y 
of

 l
aw

 
en

fo
rc

em
en

t 
ag

en
ci

es
 

an
d 

lo
ca

l 
ju

ris
di

ct
io

ns
. 

W
he

re
 t

he
 L

ea
d 

Ag
en

cy
 h

as
 

id
en

tif
ie

d 
th

at
 

a 
pr

oj
ec

t 
ha

s 
th

e 
po

te
nt

ia
l 

fo
r 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 

ef
fe

ct
s,

 
th

e 
Le

ad
 

Ag
en

cy
 

ca
n 

an
d 

sh
ou

ld
 

co
ns

id
er

 
m

iti
ga

tio
n 

m
ea

su
re

s 
co

ns
is

te
nt

 
w

ith
 t

he
 C

om
m

un
ity

 F
ac

ili
tie

s 
Ac

t 
of

 1
98

2,
 t

he
 

go
al

s 
an

d 
po

lic
ie

s 
es

ta
bl

is
he

d 
w

ith
in

 th
e 

ap
pl

ic
ab

le
 

ad
op

te
d 

co
un

ty
 a

nd
 c

ity
 g

en
er

al
 p

la
ns

 a
nd

 t
he

 
st

an
da

rd
s 

es
ta

bl
is

he
d 

in
 t

he
 s

af
et

y 
el

em
en

ts
 o

f 
co

un
ty

 a
nd

 c
ity

 g
en

er
al

 p
la

ns
 t

o 
m

ai
nt

ai
n 

po
lic

e 

Th
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

al
re

ad
y 

su
bs

ta
nt

ia
lly

 
co

nf
or

m
s 

to
 

th
is

 
m

iti
ga

tio
n 

m
ea

su
re

. 
Th

e 
Pr

oj
ec

t 
w

ou
ld

 
im

pl
em

en
t 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
 

te
m

po
ra

ry
 

se
cu

rit
y 

fe
at

ur
es

 
du

rin
g 

co
ns

tru
ct

io
n 

(s
uc

h 
as

 c
ha

in
 l

in
k 

fe
nc

in
g 

an
d 

se
cu

rit
y 

lig
ht

in
g)

. 
Fu

rth
er

, 
du

rin
g 

op
er

at
io

n,
 t

he
 P

ro
je

ct
 w

ou
ld

 
pr

ov
id

e 
pe

rim
et

er
 l

ig
ht

in
g 

to
 p

ro
vi

de
 i

nc
re

as
ed

 v
is

ib
ili

ty
 

an
d 

se
cu

rit
y,

 p
ar

ki
ng

 a
cc

es
s 

co
nt

ro
l, 

an
d 

re
si

de
nt

ia
l u

ni
ts

 
ac

ce
ss

 c
on

tro
l. 

Th
es

e 
m

ea
su

re
s 

(fo
rm

al
ly

 p
ro

vi
de

d 
in

 
PD

F-
PS

-1
, 

be
lo

w
) 

w
ou

ld
 

pr
ov

id
e 

de
fe

ns
ib

le
 

sp
ac

es
 

de
si

gn
ed

 t
o 

re
du

ce
 o

pp
or

tu
ni

ty
 c

rim
e 

an
d 

en
su

re
 s

af
et

y 
an

d 
se

cu
rit

y.
 T

he
re

fo
re

, 
th

e 
Pr

oj
ec

t i
s 

no
t 

an
tic

ip
at

ed
 t

o 
ge

ne
ra

te
 

a 
de

m
an

d 
fo

r 
ad

di
tio

na
l 

po
lic

e 
pr

ot
ec

tio
n 

se
rv

ic
es

 th
at

 c
ou

ld
 e

xc
ee

d 
LA

PD
’s

 c
ap

ab
ili

ty
 to

 s
er

ve
 th

e 
Pr

oj
ec

t 
Si

te
. 

As
 s

uc
h,

 t
he

 P
ro

je
ct

 w
ou

ld
 n

ot
 r

eq
ui

re
 t

he
 

ad
di

tio
n 

of
 

a 
ne

w
 

po
lic

e 
fa

ci
lit

y 
or

 
th

e 
ex

pa
ns

io
n,

 
co

ns
ol

id
at

io
n,

 o
r r

el
oc

at
io

n 
of

 a
n 

ex
is

tin
g 

po
lic

e 
st

at
io

n 
to

 
m

ai
nt

ai
n 

se
rv

ic
e 

ra
tio

s.
  

 



 
M

iti
ga

tio
n 

M
ea

su
re

s 
fro

m
 P

rio
r E

IR
s 

 M
au

be
rt 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

 
 

C
ity

 o
f L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 

Su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

C
om

m
un

iti
es

 P
ro

je
ct

 E
xe

m
pt

io
n 

 
 

N
ov

em
be

r 2
01

9 
Pa

ge
 A

3-
82

 

Ta
bl

e 
A3

-1
 

M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
s 

fro
m

 P
rio

r E
IR

 (S
CA

G
’s

 2
01

6-
20

40
 R

TP
/S

CS
) 

 
Im

pa
ct

 
SC

AG
 2

01
6-

20
40

 R
TP

/S
CS

 M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
s 

(im
pl

em
en

te
d 

by
 le

ad
 a

ge
nc

y)
 

 
Ap

pl
ic

ab
ili

ty
 to

 th
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

re
sp

on
se

 
pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

 
ob

je
ct

iv
es

, 
as

 
ap

pl
ic

ab
le

 
an

d 
fe

as
ib

le
. 

Su
ch

 
m

ea
su

re
s 

m
ay

 
in

cl
ud

e 
th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g,

 o
r 

ot
he

r 
co

m
pa

ra
bl

e 
m

ea
su

re
s 

id
en

tif
ie

d 
by

 t
he

 L
ea

d 
Ag

en
cy

, 
ta

ki
ng

 i
n 

to
 a

cc
ou

nt
 p

ro
je

ct
 

an
d 

si
te

-s
pe

ci
fic

 c
on

si
de

ra
tio

ns
 a

s 
ap

pl
ic

ab
le

 a
nd

 
fe

as
ib

le
, i

nc
lu

di
ng

:  
  

C
oo

rd
in

at
e 

w
ith

 
pu

bl
ic

 
se

cu
rit

y 
ag

en
ci

es
 t

o 
en

su
re

 t
ha

t 
th

er
e 

ar
e 

ad
eq

ua
te

 g
ov

er
nm

en
ta

l 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

to
 m

ai
nt

ai
n 

ac
ce

pt
ab

le
 s

er
vi

ce
 r

at
io

s,
 

re
sp

on
se

 
tim

es
, 

or
 

ot
he

r 
pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

 
ob

je
ct

iv
es

 
fo

r 
pu

bl
ic

 
pr

ot
ec

tiv
e 

se
cu

rit
y 

se
rv

ic
es

 
an

d 
th

at
 

an
y 

re
qu

ire
d 

ad
di

tio
na

l 
co

ns
tru

ct
io

n 
of

 b
ui

ld
in

gs
 i

s 
in

co
rp

or
at

ed
 i

nt
o 

th
e 

pr
oj

ec
t d

es
cr

ip
tio

n.
 

 
W

he
re

 c
ur

re
nt

 le
ve

ls
 o

f s
er

vi
ce

s 
at

 th
e 

pr
oj

ec
t 

si
te

 a
re

 f
ou

nd
 t

o 
be

 i
na

de
qu

at
e,

 p
ro

vi
de

 f
ai

r 
sh

ar
e 

co
nt

rib
ut

io
ns

 
to

w
ar

ds
 

in
fra

st
ru

ct
ur

e 
im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 a

nd
/o

r p
er

so
nn

el
. 

 
D

ur
in

g 
pr

oj
ec

t-l
ev

el
 

re
vi

ew
 

of
 

go
ve

rn
m

en
t 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
pr

oj
ec

ts
, 

re
qu

ire
 

im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
of

 
M

iti
ga

tio
n 

M
ea

su
re

s 
M

M
-A

ES
-1

(b
), 

M
M

-A
ES

-
3(

b)
, 

M
M

-A
ES

-4
(b

), 
M

M
-A

F-
1(

b)
, 

M
M

-A
F-

2(
b)

, 
M

M
-B

IO
-1

(b
), 

M
M

-B
IO

-2
(b

), 
M

M
-B

IO
-

3(
b)

, 
M

M
-C

UL
-1

(b
), 

M
M

-C
UL

-2
(b

), 
M

M
-C

UL
-

3(
b)

, M
M

-C
UL

-4
(b

), 
M

M
-G

EO
-1

(b
), 

M
M

-G
EO

-
1(

b)
, 

M
M

-H
YD

-1
(b

), 
M

M
-U

SS
-3

(b
), 

M
M

-U
SS

-
4(

b)
, 

an
d 

M
M

-U
SS

-6
(b

) 
to

 a
vo

id
 o

r 
re

du
ce

 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 e
nv

iro
nm

en
ta

l 
im

pa
ct

s 
as

so
ci

at
ed

 
w

ith
 t

he
 c

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

or
 e

xp
an

si
on

 o
f 

su
ch

 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s,

 t
hr

ou
gh

 t
he

 i
m

po
si

tio
n 

of
 c

on
di

tio
ns

 
re

qu
ire

d 
to

 b
e 

fo
llo

w
ed

 t
o 

av
oi

d 
or

 r
ed

uc
e 

im
pa

ct
s 

as
so

ci
at

ed
 

w
ith

 
ai

r 
qu

al
ity

, 
no

is
e,

 
tra

ffi
c,

 b
io

lo
gi

ca
l 

re
so

ur
ce

s,
 g

re
en

ho
us

e 
ga

s 
em

is
si

on
s,

 h
yd

ro
lo

gy
 a

nd
 w

at
er

 q
ua

lit
y,

 a
nd

 
ot

he
rs

 t
ha

t 
ap

pl
y 

to
 s

pe
ci

fic
 c

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

or
 

Th
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

w
ou

ld
 i

nc
lu

de
 t

he
 f

ol
lo

w
in

g 
Pr

oj
ec

t 
D

es
ig

n 
Fe

at
ur

e:
 

 PD
F -

PS
-1

: 
Th

e 
Pr

oj
ec

t 
w

ou
ld

 
im

pl
em

en
t 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
 

te
m

po
ra

ry
 s

ec
ur

ity
 fe

at
ur

es
 d

ur
in

g 
co

ns
tru

ct
io

n 
(s

uc
h 

as
 

ch
ai

n 
lin

k 
fe

nc
in

g 
an

d 
se

cu
rit

y 
lig

ht
in

g)
. 

Fu
rth

er
, 

du
rin

g 
op

er
at

io
n,

 th
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t w

ou
ld

 p
ro

vi
de

 p
er

im
et

er
 li

gh
tin

g 
to

 
pr

ov
id

e 
in

cr
ea

se
d 

vi
si

bi
lit

y 
an

d 
se

cu
rit

y,
 p

ar
ki

ng
 a

cc
es

s 
co

nt
ro

l, 
an

d 
re

si
de

nt
ia

l u
ni

ts
 a

cc
es

s 
co

nt
ro

l. 



 
M

iti
ga

tio
n 

M
ea

su
re

s 
fro

m
 P

rio
r E

IR
s 

 M
au

be
rt 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

 
 

C
ity

 o
f L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 

Su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

C
om

m
un

iti
es

 P
ro

je
ct

 E
xe

m
pt

io
n 

 
 

N
ov

em
be

r 2
01

9 
Pa

ge
 A

3-
83

 

Ta
bl

e 
A3

-1
 

M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
s 

fro
m

 P
rio

r E
IR

 (S
CA

G
’s

 2
01

6-
20

40
 R

TP
/S

CS
) 

 
Im

pa
ct

 
SC

AG
 2

01
6-

20
40

 R
TP

/S
CS

 M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
s 

(im
pl

em
en

te
d 

by
 le

ad
 a

ge
nc

y)
 

 
Ap

pl
ic

ab
ili

ty
 to

 th
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

ex
pa

ns
io

n 
of

 n
ew

 o
r 

ex
pa

nd
ed

 p
ub

lic
 s

er
vi

ce
 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s.
 

A
dv

er
se

 
Im

pa
ct

s 
A

ss
oc

ia
te

d 
w

ith
 

N
ew

 
or

 
P

hy
si

ca
lly

 
A

lte
re

d 
G

ov
er

nm
en

ta
l 

Fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
fo

r S
ch

oo
l S

er
vi

ce
s 

M
M

-P
S-

3:
 

C
on

si
st

en
t 

w
ith

 
th

e 
pr

ov
is

io
ns

 
of

 
Se

ct
io

n 
15

09
1 

of
 

th
e 

St
at

e 
C

EQ
A 

G
ui

de
lin

es
, 

SC
AG

 h
as

 id
en

tif
ie

d 
m

iti
ga

tio
n 

m
ea

su
re

s 
ca

pa
bl

e 
of

 a
vo

id
in

g 
or

 r
ed

uc
in

g 
th

e 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 e
ffe

ct
s 

fro
m

 
th

e 
ne

ed
 

fo
r 

ne
w

 
or

 
ph

ys
ic

al
ly

 
al

te
re

d 
go

ve
rn

m
en

ta
l 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s,
 t

he
 c

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

of
 w

hi
ch

 
co

ul
d 

ca
us

e 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 e
nv

iro
nm

en
ta

l 
im

pa
ct

s,
 i

n 
or

de
r 

to
 

m
ai

nt
ai

n 
ac

ce
pt

ab
le

 
se

rv
ic

e 
ra

tio
s,

 
re

sp
on

se
 t

im
es

 o
r 

ot
he

r 
pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

 o
bj

ec
tiv

es
 

th
at

 a
re

 w
ith

in
 t

he
 ju

ris
di

ct
io

n 
an

d 
re

sp
on

si
bi

lit
y 

of
 

sc
ho

ol
 d

is
tri

ct
s 

an
d 

lo
ca

l 
ju

ris
di

ct
io

ns
. 

W
he

re
 t

he
 

Le
ad

 A
ge

nc
y 

ha
s 

id
en

tif
ie

d 
th

at
 a

 p
ro

je
ct

 h
as

 t
he

 
po

te
nt

ia
l 

fo
r 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 e

ffe
ct

s,
 t

he
 L

ea
d 

Ag
en

cy
 

ca
n 

an
d 

sh
ou

ld
 

co
ns

id
er

 
m

iti
ga

tio
n 

m
ea

su
re

s 
co

ns
is

te
nt

 w
ith

 C
om

m
un

ity
 F

ac
ilit

ie
s 

Ac
t 

of
 1

98
2,

 
th

e 
C

al
ifo

rn
ia

 E
du

ca
tio

n 
C

od
e,

 a
nd

 t
he

 g
oa

ls
 a

nd
 

po
lic

ie
s 

es
ta

bl
is

he
d 

w
ith

in
 t

he
 a

pp
lic

ab
le

 a
do

pt
ed

 
co

un
ty

 a
nd

 c
ity

 g
en

er
al

 p
la

ns
 t

o 
en

su
re

 t
ha

t 
th

e 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

 
sc

ho
ol

 
di

st
ric

t 
fe

es
 

ar
e 

pa
id

 
in

 
ac

co
rd

an
ce

 
w

ith
 

st
at

e 
la

w
, 

as
 

ap
pl

ic
ab

le
 

an
d 

fe
as

ib
le

. S
uc

h 
m

ea
su

re
s 

m
ay

 in
cl

ud
e 

th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g,
 

or
 o

th
er

 c
om

pa
ra

bl
e 

m
ea

su
re

s 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

by
 t

he
 

Le
ad

 A
ge

nc
y,

 ta
ki

ng
 in

 to
 a

cc
ou

nt
 p

ro
je

ct
 a

nd
 s

ite
-

sp
ec

ifi
c 

co
ns

id
er

at
io

ns
 a

s 
ap

pl
ic

ab
le

 a
nd

 fe
as

ib
le

: 
 

W
he

re
 c

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

or
 

ex
pa

ns
io

n 
of

 
sc

ho
ol

 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

is
 

re
qu

ire
d 

to
 

m
ee

t 
pu

bl
ic

 
sc

ho
ol

 
se

rv
ic

e 
ra

tio
s,

 r
eq

ui
re

 s
ch

oo
l 

di
st

ric
t 

fe
es

, 
as

 
ap

pl
ic

ab
le

. 
 

D
ur

in
g 

pr
oj

ec
t-l

ev
el

 
re

vi
ew

 
of

 
go

ve
rn

m
en

t 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

pr
oj

ec
ts

, 
re

qu
ire

 
im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

of
 

M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
s 

M
M

-A
ES

-1
(b

), 
M

M
-A

ES
-

3(
b)

, 
M

M
-A

ES
-4

(b
), 

M
M

-A
F-

1(
b)

, 
M

M
-A

F-
2(

b)
, 

M
M

-B
IO

-1
(b

), 
M

M
-B

IO
-2

(b
), 

M
M

-B
IO

-
3(

b)
, 

M
M

-C
UL

-1
(b

), 
M

M
-C

UL
-2

(b
), 

M
M

-C
UL

-

N
o 

m
iti

ga
tio

n 
ap

pl
ie

s.
 P

ay
m

en
t o

f s
ch

oo
l f

ee
s 

to
 L

AU
SD

 
is

 
re

qu
ire

d 
by

 
C

al
ifo

rn
ia

 
G

ov
er

nm
en

t 
C

od
e 

Se
ct

io
n 

65
99

5,
 a

nd
 i

s 
co

ns
id

er
ed

 f
ul

l 
an

d 
co

m
pl

et
e 

m
iti

ga
tio

n.
 

Th
er

ef
or

e,
 im

pa
ct

s 
w

ou
ld

 b
e 

le
ss

 th
an

 s
ig

ni
fic

an
t a

nd
 n

o 
m

iti
ga

tio
n 

m
ea

su
re

s 
w

ou
ld

 b
e 

re
qu

ire
d.

 



 
M

iti
ga

tio
n 

M
ea

su
re

s 
fro

m
 P

rio
r E

IR
s 

 M
au

be
rt 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

 
 

C
ity

 o
f L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 

Su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

C
om

m
un

iti
es

 P
ro

je
ct

 E
xe

m
pt

io
n 

 
 

N
ov

em
be

r 2
01

9 
Pa

ge
 A

3-
84

 

Ta
bl

e 
A3

-1
 

M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
s 

fro
m

 P
rio

r E
IR

 (S
CA

G
’s

 2
01

6-
20

40
 R

TP
/S

CS
) 

 
Im

pa
ct

 
SC

AG
 2

01
6-

20
40

 R
TP

/S
CS

 M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
s 

(im
pl

em
en

te
d 

by
 le

ad
 a

ge
nc

y)
 

 
Ap

pl
ic

ab
ili

ty
 to

 th
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

3(
b)

, M
M

-C
UL

-4
(b

), 
M

M
-G

EO
-1

(b
), 

M
M

-G
EO

-
1(

b)
, 

M
M

-H
YD

-1
(b

), 
M

M
-U

SS
-3

(b
), 

M
M

-U
SS

-
4(

b)
, 

an
d 

M
M

-U
SS

-6
(b

) 
to

 a
vo

id
 o

r 
re

du
ce

 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 e
nv

iro
nm

en
ta

l 
im

pa
ct

s 
as

so
ci

at
ed

 
w

ith
 t

he
 c

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

or
 e

xp
an

si
on

 o
f 

su
ch

 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s,

 t
hr

ou
gh

 t
he

 i
m

po
si

tio
n 

of
 c

on
di

tio
ns

 
re

qu
ire

d 
to

 b
e 

fo
llo

w
ed

 t
o 

av
oi

d 
or

 r
ed

uc
e 

im
pa

ct
s 

as
so

ci
at

ed
 

w
ith

 
ai

r 
qu

al
ity

, 
no

is
e,

 
tra

ffi
c,

 b
io

lo
gi

ca
l 

re
so

ur
ce

s,
 g

re
en

ho
us

e 
ga

s 
em

is
si

on
s,

 h
yd

ro
lo

gy
 a

nd
 w

at
er

 q
ua

lit
y,

 a
nd

 
ot

he
rs

 t
ha

t 
ap

pl
y 

to
 s

pe
ci

fic
 c

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

or
 

ex
pa

ns
io

n 
of

 n
ew

 o
r 

ex
pa

nd
ed

 p
ub

lic
 s

er
vi

ce
 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s.
 

R
ec

re
at

io
n 

(R
EC

) 
In

cr
ea

se
d 

U
se

 
or

 
P

hy
si

ca
l 

D
et

er
io

ra
tio

n 
of

 R
ec

re
at

io
na

l 
Fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

 

M
M

-R
EC

-1
: 

C
on

si
st

en
t 

w
ith

 
th

e 
pr

ov
is

io
ns

 
of

 
Se

ct
io

n 
15

09
1 

of
 

th
e 

St
at

e 
C

EQ
A 

G
ui

de
lin

es
, 

SC
AG

 h
as

 id
en

tif
ie

d 
m

iti
ga

tio
n 

m
ea

su
re

s 
ca

pa
bl

e 
of

 a
vo

id
in

g 
or

 r
ed

uc
in

g 
th

e 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 e
ffe

ct
s 

on
 

th
e 

in
te

gr
ity

 
of

 
re

cr
ea

tio
n 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s,
 

pa
rti

cu
la

rly
 

ne
ig

hb
or

ho
od

 p
ar

ks
 i

n 
th

e 
vi

ci
ni

ty
 o

f 
H

Q
TA

s 
an

d 
ot

he
r 

ap
pl

ic
ab

le
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

pr
oj

ec
ts

, 
th

at
 a

re
 

w
ith

in
 t

he
 j

ur
is

di
ct

io
n 

an
d 

re
sp

on
si

bi
lit

y 
of

 o
th

er
 

pu
bl

ic
 a

ge
nc

ie
s 

an
d/

or
 L

ea
d 

Ag
en

ci
es

. W
he

re
 th

e 
Le

ad
 A

ge
nc

y 
ha

s 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

th
at

 a
 p

ro
je

ct
 h

as
 t

he
 

po
te

nt
ia

l 
fo

r 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 e
ffe

ct
s,

 t
he

 L
ea

d 
Ag

en
cy

 
ca

n 
an

d 
sh

ou
ld

 
co

ns
id

er
 

m
iti

ga
tio

n 
m

ea
su

re
s 

ca
pa

bl
e 

of
 a

vo
id

in
g 

or
 r

ed
uc

in
g 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 im

pa
ct

s 
on

 t
he

 u
se

 o
f 

ex
is

tin
g 

ne
ig

hb
or

ho
od

 a
nd

 r
eg

io
na

l 
pa

rk
s 

or
 

ot
he

r 
re

cr
ea

tio
na

l 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

to
 

en
su

re
 

co
m

pl
ia

nc
e 

w
ith

 c
ou

nt
y 

an
d 

ci
ty

 g
en

er
al

 p
la

ns
 a

nd
 

th
e 

Q
ui

m
by

 A
ct

, 
as

 a
pp

lic
ab

le
 a

nd
 f

ea
si

bl
e.

 S
uc

h 
m

ea
su

re
s 

m
ay

 
in

cl
ud

e 
th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g,

 
or

 
ot

he
r 

co
m

pa
ra

bl
e 

m
ea

su
re

s 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

by
 

th
e 

Le
ad

 
Ag

en
cy

: 
  

Pr
io

r t
o 

th
e 

is
su

an
ce

 o
f p

er
m

its
, w

he
re

 p
ro

je
ct

s 

Th
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

al
re

ad
y 

su
bs

ta
nt

ia
lly

 
co

nf
or

m
s 

to
 

th
is

 
m

iti
ga

tio
n 

m
ea

su
re

 t
hr

ou
gh

 c
om

pl
ia

nc
e 

w
ith

 R
C

M
-R

EC
-

1,
 p

ro
vi

de
d 

be
lo

w
:  

 RC
M

-R
EC

-1
: T

he
 P

ro
je

ct
 w

ou
ld

 p
ro

vi
de

 o
pe

n 
sp

ac
e 

an
d 

re
cr

ea
tio

na
l 

am
en

iti
es

 
in

 
ac

co
rd

an
ce

 
w

ith
 

th
e 

re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

 
of

 
th

e 
Ve

rm
on

t/W
es

te
rn

 
St

at
io

n 
N

ei
gh

bo
rh

oo
d 

Ar
ea

 
Pl

an
 

(S
N

AP
) 

an
d 

th
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

Ap
pl

ic
an

t 
w

ou
ld

 a
ls

o 
be

 r
es

po
ns

ib
le

 f
or

 m
ee

tin
g 

an
y 

pa
rk

la
nd

 d
ed

ic
at

io
n 

or
 f

ee
 r

eq
ui

re
m

en
ts

 p
ur

su
an

t 
to

 t
he

 
ap

pl
ic

ab
le

 
Q

ui
m

by
 

Ac
t 

or
 

LA
M

C
 

re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

, 
as

 
ne

ce
ss

ar
y.

 



 
M

iti
ga

tio
n 

M
ea

su
re

s 
fro

m
 P

rio
r E

IR
s 

 M
au

be
rt 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

 
 

C
ity

 o
f L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 

Su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

C
om

m
un

iti
es

 P
ro

je
ct

 E
xe

m
pt

io
n 

 
 

N
ov

em
be

r 2
01

9 
Pa

ge
 A

3-
85

 

Ta
bl

e 
A3

-1
 

M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
s 

fro
m

 P
rio

r E
IR

 (S
CA

G
’s

 2
01

6-
20

40
 R

TP
/S

CS
) 

 
Im

pa
ct

 
SC

AG
 2

01
6-

20
40

 R
TP

/S
CS

 M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
s 

(im
pl

em
en

te
d 

by
 le

ad
 a

ge
nc

y)
 

 
Ap

pl
ic

ab
ili

ty
 to

 th
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

re
qu

ire
 

th
e 

co
ns

tru
ct

io
n 

or
 

ex
pa

ns
io

n 
of

 
re

cr
ea

tio
na

l 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

or
 

th
e 

pa
ym

en
t 

of
 

eq
ui

va
le

nt
 Q

ui
m

by
 f

ee
s,

 c
on

si
de

r 
in

cr
ea

si
ng

 
th

e 
ac

ce
ss

ib
ili

ty
 to

 n
at

ur
al

 a
re

as
 a

nd
 la

nd
s 

fo
r 

ou
td

oo
r 

re
cr

ea
tio

n 
fro

m
 t

he
 P

ro
je

ct
 a

re
a,

 i
n 

co
or

di
na

tio
n 

w
ith

 
lo

ca
l 

an
d 

re
gi

on
al

 
op

en
 

sp
ac

e 
pl

an
ni

ng
 

an
d/

or
 

re
sp

on
si

bl
e 

m
an

ag
em

en
t a

ge
nc

ie
s.

 
 

Pr
io

r t
o 

th
e 

is
su

an
ce

 o
f p

er
m

its
, w

he
re

 p
ro

je
ct

s 
re

qu
ire

 
th

e 
co

ns
tru

ct
io

n 
or

 
ex

pa
ns

io
n 

of
 

re
cr

ea
tio

na
l 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
or

 
th

e 
pa

ym
en

t 
of

 
eq

ui
va

le
nt

 Q
ui

m
by

 fe
es

, e
nc

ou
ra

ge
 p

at
te

rn
s 

of
 

ur
ba

n 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t a
nd

 la
nd

 u
se

 w
hi

ch
 re

du
ce

 
co

st
s 

on
 in

fra
st

ru
ct

ur
e 

an
d 

m
ak

e 
be

tte
r 

us
e 

of
 

ex
is

tin
g 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s,
 u

si
ng

 s
tra

te
gi

es
 s

uc
h 

as
: 

o 
In

cr
ea

si
ng

 
th

e 
ac

ce
ss

ib
ili

ty
 

to
 

na
tu

ra
l 

ar
ea

s 
fo

r 
ou

td
oo

r 
re

cr
ea

tio
n.

 
o 

Pr
om

ot
in

g 
in

fil
l 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

an
d 

re
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t 
to

 
re

vi
ta

liz
e 

ex
is

tin
g 

co
m

m
un

iti
es

. 
o 

U
til

iz
in

g 
“g

re
en

” 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t 
te

ch
ni

qu
es

. 
o 

Pr
om

ot
in

g 
w

at
er

-e
ffi

ci
en

t 
la

nd
 u

se
 

an
d 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t. 

o 
En

co
ur

ag
in

g 
m

ul
tip

le
 u

se
s.

 
o 

In
cl

ud
in

g 
tra

il 
sy

st
em

s 
an

d 
tra

il 
se

gm
en

ts
 

in
 

G
en

er
al

 
Pl

an
 

re
cr

ea
tio

n 
st

an
da

rd
s.

 
 

Pr
io

r 
to

 
th

e 
is

su
an

ce
 

of
 

pe
rm

its
, 

w
he

re
 

co
ns

tru
ct

io
n 

an
d 

op
er

at
io

n 
of

 p
ro

je
ct

s 
w

ou
ld

 
re

qu
ire

 
th

e 
ac

qu
is

iti
on

 
or

 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t 
of

 
pr

ot
ec

te
d 

op
en

 
sp

ac
e 

or
 

re
cr

ea
tio

n 
la

nd
s,

 
de

m
on

st
ra

te
 t

ha
t 

ex
is

tin
g 

ne
ig

hb
or

ho
od

 p
ar

ks
 

ca
n 

be
 e

xp
an

de
d 

or
 n

ew
 n

ei
gh

bo
rh

oo
d 

pa
rk

s 
de

ve
lo

pe
d 

su
ch

 t
ha

t 
th

er
e 

is
 n

o 
ne

t 
de

cr
ea

se
 



 
M

iti
ga

tio
n 

M
ea

su
re

s 
fro

m
 P

rio
r E

IR
s 

 M
au

be
rt 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

 
 

C
ity

 o
f L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 

Su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

C
om

m
un

iti
es

 P
ro

je
ct

 E
xe

m
pt

io
n 

 
 

N
ov

em
be

r 2
01

9 
Pa

ge
 A

3-
86

 

Ta
bl

e 
A3

-1
 

M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
s 

fro
m

 P
rio

r E
IR

 (S
CA

G
’s

 2
01

6-
20

40
 R

TP
/S

CS
) 

 
Im

pa
ct

 
SC

AG
 2

01
6-

20
40

 R
TP

/S
CS

 M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
s 

(im
pl

em
en

te
d 

by
 le

ad
 a

ge
nc

y)
 

 
Ap

pl
ic

ab
ili

ty
 to

 th
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

in
 a

cr
es

 o
f 

ne
ig

hb
or

ho
od

 p
ar

k 
ar

ea
 a

va
ila

bl
e 

pe
r c

ap
ita

 in
 th

e 
H

Q
TA

. 
 

W
he

re
 

co
ns

tru
ct

io
n 

or
 

ex
pa

ns
io

n 
of

 
re

cr
ea

tio
na

l f
ac

ilit
ie

s 
is

 in
cl

ud
ed

 in
 t

he
 p

ro
je

ct
 

or
 r

eq
ui

re
d 

to
 m

ee
t 

pu
bl

ic
 p

ar
k 

se
rv

ic
e 

ra
tio

s,
 

re
qu

ire
 im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

of
 M

iti
ga

tio
n 

M
ea

su
re

s 
M

M
-A

ES
-1

(b
), 

M
M

-A
ES

-3
(b

), 
M

M
-A

ES
-4

(b
), 

M
M

-A
F-

1(
b)

, M
M

-A
F-

2(
b)

, M
M

-B
IO

-1
(b

), 
M

M
-

BI
O

-2
(b

), 
M

M
-B

IO
-3

(b
), 

M
M

-C
UL

-1
(b

), 
M

M
-

CU
L-

2(
b)

, 
M

M
-C

UL
-3

(b
), 

M
M

-C
UL

-4
(b

), 
M

M
-

G
EO

-1
(b

), 
M

M
-G

EO
-1

(b
), 

M
M

-H
YD

-1
(b

), 
M

M
-

US
S-

3(
b)

, M
M

-U
SS

-4
(b

), 
an

d 
M

M
-U

SS
-6

(b
) t

o 
av

oi
d 

or
 

re
du

ce
 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 

en
vi

ro
nm

en
ta

l 
im

pa
ct

s 
as

so
ci

at
ed

 w
ith

 t
he

 c
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
or

 
ex

pa
ns

io
n 

of
 

su
ch

 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s,

 
th

ro
ug

h 
th

e 
im

po
si

tio
n 

of
 c

on
di

tio
ns

 re
qu

ire
d 

to
 b

e 
fo

llo
w

ed
 

to
 a

vo
id

 o
r 

re
du

ce
 im

pa
ct

s 
as

so
ci

at
ed

 w
ith

 a
ir 

qu
al

ity
, 

no
is

e,
 

tra
ffi

c,
 

bi
ol

og
ic

al
 

re
so

ur
ce

s,
 

gr
ee

nh
ou

se
 

ga
s 

em
is

si
on

s,
 

hy
dr

ol
og

y 
an

d 
w

at
er

 q
ua

lit
y,

 a
nd

 o
th

er
s 

th
at

 a
pp

ly
 to

 s
pe

ci
fic

 
co

ns
tru

ct
io

n 
or

 e
xp

an
si

on
 o

f n
ew

 o
r 

ex
pa

nd
ed

 
pu

bl
ic

 s
er

vi
ce

 fa
ci

lit
ie

s.
 

Tr
an

sp
or

ta
tio

n/
Tr

af
fic

 (T
R

A)
 

C
on

fli
ct

 
w

ith
 

M
ea

su
re

s 
of

 
E

ffe
ct

iv
en

es
s 

Fo
r 

P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 
of

 
th

e 
C

irc
ul

at
io

n 
S

ys
te

m
 

M
M

-T
RA

-1
: 

C
on

si
st

en
t 

w
ith

 
th

e 
pr

ov
is

io
ns

 
of

 
Se

ct
io

n 
15

09
1 

of
 

th
e 

St
at

e 
C

EQ
A 

G
ui

de
lin

es
, 

SC
AG

 h
as

 id
en

tif
ie

d 
m

iti
ga

tio
n 

m
ea

su
re

s 
ca

pa
bl

e 
of

 a
vo

id
in

g 
or

 r
ed

uc
in

g 
th

e 
po

te
nt

ia
l 

fo
r 

co
nf

lic
ts

 
w

ith
 th

e 
es

ta
bl

is
he

d 
m

ea
su

re
s 

of
 e

ffe
ct

iv
en

es
s 

fo
r 

th
e 

pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
 o

f t
he

 c
irc

ul
at

io
n 

sy
st

em
 t

ha
t a

re
 

w
ith

in
 t

he
 j

ur
is

di
ct

io
n 

an
d 

re
sp

on
si

bi
lit

y 
of

 L
ea

d 
Ag

en
ci

es
. 

Th
is

 m
ea

su
re

 n
ee

d 
on

ly
 b

e 
co

ns
id

er
ed

 
w

he
re

 
it 

is
 

fo
un

d 
by

 
th

e 
Le

ad
 

Ag
en

cy
 

to
 

be
 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
 a

nd
 c

on
si

st
en

t w
ith

 lo
ca

l t
ra

ns
po

rta
tio

n 
pr

io
rit

ie
s.

 W
he

re
 t

he
 L

ea
d 

Ag
en

cy
 h

as
 i

de
nt

ifi
ed

 
th

at
 

a 
pr

oj
ec

t 
ha

s 
th

e 
po

te
nt

ia
l 

fo
r 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 

ef
fe

ct
s,

 th
e 

Le
ad

 A
ge

nc
y 

ca
n 

an
d 

sh
ou

ld
 c

on
si

de
r 

Th
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

al
re

ad
y 

su
bs

ta
nt

ia
lly

 
co

nf
or

m
s 

to
 

th
is

 
m

iti
ga

tio
n 

m
ea

su
re

. 
Ba

se
d 

on
 t

he
 T

ra
ffi

c 
Im

pa
ct

 S
tu

dy
 

pr
ep

ar
ed

 f
or

 t
he

 P
ro

je
ct

 (
at

ta
ch

ed
 a

s 
Ap

pe
nd

ix
 B

), 
th

e 
Pr

oj
ec

t w
ou

ld
 h

av
e 

a 
le

ss
 th

an
 s

ig
ni

fic
an

t i
m

pa
ct

 o
n 

th
e 

st
re

et
 s

ys
te

m
 in

 th
e 

vi
ci

ni
ty

 o
f t

he
 P

ro
je

ct
. I

n 
ad

di
tio

n,
 th

e 
Pr

oj
ec

t w
ou

ld
 in

cl
ud

e 
a 

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
Tr

af
fic

 M
an

ag
em

en
t 

Pl
an

 
(C

TM
P)

, 
pr

ov
id

ed
 

be
lo

w
 

as
 

PD
F-

TR
A-

1,
 

w
hi

ch
 

w
ou

ld
 fo

rm
al

iz
e 

ho
w

 c
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
w

ou
ld

 b
e 

ca
rri

ed
 o

ut
 o

n 
th

e 
Pr

oj
ec

t 
Si

te
, 

an
d 

w
ou

ld
 in

cl
ud

e 
m

ea
su

re
s 

re
la

te
d 

to
 

st
re

et
 c

lo
su

re
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n,
 d

et
ou

r 
pl

an
s,

 h
au

l r
ou

te
s,

 a
nd

 
st

ag
in

g 
pl

an
s.

 
Th

e 
C

TM
P 

w
ou

ld
 

be
 

pr
ep

ar
ed

 
an

d 
su

bm
itt

ed
 t

o 
th

e 
C

ity
, 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
LA

D
O

T,
 f

or
 r

ev
ie

w
 a

nd
 

ap
pr

ov
al

. T
he

re
fo

re
, t

he
 P

ro
je

ct
 w

ou
ld

 a
ls

o 
re

su
lt 

in
 le

ss
 



 
M

iti
ga

tio
n 

M
ea

su
re

s 
fro

m
 P

rio
r E

IR
s 

 M
au

be
rt 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

 
 

C
ity

 o
f L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 

Su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

C
om

m
un

iti
es

 P
ro

je
ct

 E
xe

m
pt

io
n 

 
 

N
ov

em
be

r 2
01

9 
Pa

ge
 A

3-
87

 

Ta
bl

e 
A3

-1
 

M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
s 

fro
m

 P
rio

r E
IR

 (S
CA

G
’s

 2
01

6-
20

40
 R

TP
/S

CS
) 

 
Im

pa
ct

 
SC

AG
 2

01
6-

20
40

 R
TP

/S
CS

 M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
s 

(im
pl

em
en

te
d 

by
 le

ad
 a

ge
nc

y)
 

 
Ap

pl
ic

ab
ili

ty
 to

 th
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

m
iti

ga
tio

n 
m

ea
su

re
s 

to
 e

ns
ur

e 
co

m
pl

ia
nc

e 
w

ith
 th

e 
ad

op
te

d 
C

on
ge

st
io

n 
M

an
ag

em
en

t 
Pl

an
, 

an
d 

ot
he

r 
ad

op
te

d 
lo

ca
l p

la
ns

 a
nd

 p
ol

ic
ie

s,
 a

s 
ap

pl
ic

ab
le

 a
nd

 
fe

as
ib

le
. 

C
om

pl
ia

nc
e 

ca
n 

be
 

ac
hi

ev
ed

 
th

ro
ug

h 
ad

op
tin

g 
tra

ns
po

rta
tio

n 
m

iti
ga

tio
n 

m
ea

su
re

s 
as

 s
et

 
fo

rth
 b

el
ow

, o
r t

hr
ou

gh
 o

th
er

 c
om

pa
ra

bl
e 

m
ea

su
re

s 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

by
 th

e 
Le

ad
 A

ge
nc

y:
 

  
In

st
itu

te
 t

el
ec

on
fe

re
nc

in
g,

 t
el

ec
om

m
ut

e 
an

d/
or

 
fle

xi
bl

e 
w

or
k 

ho
ur

 
pr

og
ra

m
s 

to
 

re
du

ce
 

un
ne

ce
ss

ar
y 

em
pl

oy
ee

 tr
an

sp
or

ta
tio

n.
 

 
C

re
at

e 
a 

rid
e-

sh
ar

in
g 

pr
og

ra
m

 b
y 

de
si

gn
at

in
g 

a 
ce

rta
in

 p
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 p

ar
ki

ng
 s

pa
ce

s 
fo

r 
rid

e 
sh

ar
in

g 
ve

hi
cl

es
, 

de
si

gn
at

in
g 

ad
eq

ua
te

 
pa

ss
en

ge
r 

lo
ad

in
g 

an
d 

un
lo

ad
in

g 
fo

r 
rid

e 
sh

ar
in

g 
ve

hi
cl

es
, 

an
d 

pr
ov

id
in

g 
a 

w
eb

 s
ite

 o
r 

m
es

sa
ge

 b
oa

rd
 fo

r c
oo

rd
in

at
in

g 
rid

es
. 

 
Pr

ov
id

e 
a 

va
np

oo
l f

or
 e

m
pl

oy
ee

s.
 

 
Fu

nd
 

ca
pi

ta
l 

im
pr

ov
em

en
t 

pr
oj

ec
ts

 
to

 
ac

co
m

m
od

at
e 

fu
tu

re
 

tra
ffi

c 
de

m
an

d 
in

 
th

e 
ar

ea
. 

 
Pr

ov
id

e 
a 

Tr
an

sp
or

ta
tio

n 
D

em
an

d 
M

an
ag

em
en

t (
TD

M
) 

pl
an

 c
on

ta
in

in
g 

st
ra

te
gi

es
 

to
 r

ed
uc

e 
on

-s
ite

 p
ar

ki
ng

 d
em

an
d 

an
d 

si
ng

le
 

oc
cu

pa
nc

y 
ve

hi
cl

e 
tra

ve
l. 

Th
e 

TD
M

 
sh

al
l 

in
cl

ud
e 

st
ra

te
gi

es
 

to
 

in
cr

ea
se

 
bi

cy
cl

e,
 

pe
de

st
ria

n,
 t

ra
ns

it,
 a

nd
 c

ar
po

ol
s/

va
np

oo
l 

us
e,

 
in

cl
ud

in
g:

 
o 

In
cl

us
io

n 
of

 a
dd

iti
on

al
 b

ic
yc

le
 p

ar
ki

ng
, 

sh
ow

er
, 

an
d 

lo
ck

er
 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
th

at
 

ex
ce

ed
 th

e 
re

qu
ire

m
en

t 
o 

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
of

 
bi

ke
 

la
ne

s 
pe

r 
th

e 
pr

ev
ai

lin
g 

Bi
cy

cl
e 

M
as

te
r 

Pl
an

 
(o

r 
ot

he
r s

im
ila

r d
oc

um
en

t) 
o 

Si
gn

ag
e 

an
d 

st
rip

in
g 

on
si

te
 

to
 

en
co

ur
ag

e 
bi

ke
 s

af
et

y 

th
an

 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 
im

pa
ct

s 
du

rin
g 

co
ns

tru
ct

io
n 

an
d 

no
 

m
iti

ga
tio

n 
m

ea
su

re
s 

w
ou

ld
 b

e 
re

qu
ire

d.
  

 Th
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

w
ou

ld
 i

nc
lu

de
 t

he
 f

ol
lo

w
in

g 
Pr

oj
ec

t 
D

es
ig

n 
Fe

at
ur

e:
 

 PD
F -

TR
A-

1:
 A

 d
et

ai
le

d 
C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

M
an

ag
em

en
t P

la
n,

 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

st
re

et
 c

lo
su

re
 i

nf
or

m
at

io
n,

 d
et

ou
r 

pl
an

s,
 h

au
l 

ro
ut

es
, 

an
d 

st
ag

in
g 

pl
an

s 
w

ou
ld

 
be

 
pr

ep
ar

ed
 

an
d 

su
bm

itt
ed

 
to

 
th

e 
C

ity
, 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
th

e 
Lo

s 
An

ge
le

s 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
of

 T
ra

ns
po

rta
tio

n,
 f

or
 r

ev
ie

w
 a

nd
 a

pp
ro

va
l. 

Th
e 

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
M

an
ag

em
en

t P
la

n 
w

ou
ld

 fo
rm

al
iz

e 
ho

w
 

co
ns

tru
ct

io
n 

w
ou

ld
 b

e 
ca

rri
ed

 o
ut

 a
nd

 i
de

nt
ify

 s
pe

ci
fic

 
ac

tio
ns

 t
ha

t 
w

ou
ld

 b
e 

re
qu

ire
d 

to
 r

ed
uc

e 
ef

fe
ct

s 
on

 t
he

 
su

rro
un

di
ng

 c
om

m
un

ity
. 

Th
e 

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
M

an
ag

em
en

t 
Pl

an
 s

ha
ll 

be
 b

as
ed

 o
n 

th
e 

na
tu

re
 a

nd
 t

im
in

g 
of

 t
he

 
sp

ec
ifi

c 
co

ns
tru

ct
io

n 
ac

tiv
iti

es
 a

nd
 o

th
er

 p
ro

je
ct

s 
in

 t
he

 
vi

ci
ni

ty
 

of
 

th
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

Si
te

, 
an

d 
sh

ou
ld

 
in

cl
ud

e 
th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

el
em

en
ts

 a
s 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
: 

 
Pr

oh
ib

iti
on

 o
f 

co
ns

tru
ct

io
n 

w
or

ke
r 

pa
rk

in
g 

on
 

ad
ja

ce
nt

 re
si

de
nt

ia
l s

tre
et

s.
 

 
Pr

ov
is

io
ns

 t
o 

pr
oh

ib
it 

co
ns

tru
ct

io
n 

eq
ui

pm
en

t o
r 

m
at

er
ia

l d
el

iv
er

ie
s 

w
ith

in
 th

e 
pu

bl
ic

 ri
gh

t-o
f-w

ay
. 

 
Pr

ov
is

io
ns

 fo
r t

em
po

ra
ry

 tr
af

fic
 c

on
tro

l d
ur

in
g 

al
l 

co
ns

tru
ct

io
n 

ac
tiv

iti
es

 a
dj

ac
en

t 
to

 p
ub

lic
 r

ig
ht

s-
of

-w
ay

 to
 im

pr
ov

e 
tra

ffi
c 

flo
w

 o
n 

pu
bl

ic
 ro

ad
w

ay
s 

(e
.g

., 
fla

g 
m

en
). 

 
Sc

he
du

lin
g 

of
 c

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

ac
tiv

iti
es

 t
o 

re
du

ce
 

th
e 

ef
fe

ct
 o

n 
tra

ffi
c 

flo
w

 o
n 

su
rro

un
di

ng
 a

rte
ria

l 
st

re
et

s.
 

 
R

er
ou

tin
g 

co
ns

tru
ct

io
n 

tru
ck

s 
to

 re
du

ce
 tr

av
el

 o
n 

co
ng

es
te

d 
st

re
et

s 
to

 th
e 

ex
te

nt
 fe

as
ib

le
. 

 
C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n-

re
la

te
d 

ve
hi

cl
es

 s
ha

ll 
no

t 
pa

rk
 o

n 
su

rro
un

di
ng

 p
ub

lic
 s

tre
et

s.
 

 
Pr

ov
is

io
ns

 o
f 

sa
fe

ty
 p

re
ca

ut
io

ns
 f

or
 p

ed
es

tri
an

s 
an

d 
bi

cy
cl

is
ts

 
th

ro
ug

h 
su

ch
 

m
ea

su
re

s 
as

 



 
M

iti
ga

tio
n 

M
ea

su
re

s 
fro

m
 P

rio
r E

IR
s 

 M
au

be
rt 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

 
 

C
ity

 o
f L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 

Su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

C
om

m
un

iti
es

 P
ro

je
ct

 E
xe

m
pt

io
n 

 
 

N
ov

em
be

r 2
01

9 
Pa

ge
 A

3-
88

 

Ta
bl

e 
A3

-1
 

M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
s 

fro
m

 P
rio

r E
IR

 (S
CA

G
’s

 2
01

6-
20

40
 R

TP
/S

CS
) 

 
Im

pa
ct

 
SC

AG
 2

01
6-

20
40

 R
TP

/S
CS

 M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
s 

(im
pl

em
en

te
d 

by
 le

ad
 a

ge
nc

y)
 

 
Ap

pl
ic

ab
ili

ty
 to

 th
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

o 
In

st
al

la
tio

n 
of

 
pe

de
st

ria
n 

sa
fe

ty
 

el
em

en
ts

 (
su

ch
 a

s 
cr

os
s 

w
al

k 
st

rip
in

g,
 

cu
rb

 r
am

ps
, 

co
un

td
ow

n 
si

gn
al

s,
 b

ul
b 

ou
ts

, 
et

c.
) 

to
 

en
co

ur
ag

e 
co

nv
en

ie
nt

 
cr

os
si

ng
 a

t a
rte

ria
ls

 
o 

In
st

al
la

tio
n 

of
 

am
en

iti
es

 
su

ch
 

as
 

lig
ht

in
g,

 
st

re
et

 t
re

es
, 

tra
sh

 
an

d 
an

y 
ap

pl
ic

ab
le

 s
tre

et
sc

ap
e 

pl
an

. 
o 

D
ire

ct
 

tra
ns

it 
sa

le
s 

or
 

su
bs

id
iz

ed
 

tra
ns

it 
pa

ss
es

 
o 

G
ua

ra
nt

ee
d 

rid
e 

ho
m

e 
pr

og
ra

m
 

o 
Pr

e-
ta

x 
co

m
m

ut
er

 b
en

ef
its

 (c
he

ck
s)

 
o 

O
n-

si
te

 c
ar

-s
ha

rin
g 

pr
og

ra
m

 (
su

ch
 a

s 
C

ity
 C

ar
 S

ha
re

, Z
ip

 C
ar

, e
tc

.) 
o 

O
n-

si
te

 c
ar

po
ol

in
g 

pr
og

ra
m

 
o 

D
is

tri
bu

tio
n 

of
 i

nf
or

m
at

io
n 

co
nc

er
ni

ng
 

al
te

rn
at

iv
e 

tra
ns

po
rta

tio
n 

op
tio

ns
 

o 
Pa

rk
in

g 
sp

ac
es

 s
ol

d/
le

as
ed

 s
ep

ar
at

el
y 

o 
Pa

rk
in

g 
m

an
ag

em
en

t 
st

ra
te

gi
es

; 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

at
te

nd
an

t/v
al

et
 p

ar
ki

ng
 a

nd
 

sh
ar

ed
 p

ar
ki

ng
 s

pa
ce

s.
 

  
Pr

om
ot

e 
rid

e 
sh

ar
in

g 
pr

og
ra

m
s 

e.
g.

, 
by

 
de

si
gn

at
in

g 
a 

ce
rta

in
 p

er
ce

nt
ag

e 
of

 p
ar

ki
ng

 
sp

ac
es

 f
or

 h
ig

h-
oc

cu
pa

nc
y 

ve
hi

cl
es

, 
pr

ov
id

in
g 

la
rg

er
 p

ar
ki

ng
 s

pa
ce

s 
to

 a
cc

om
m

od
at

e 
va

ns
 

us
ed

 
fo

r 
rid

e-
sh

ar
in

g,
 

an
d 

de
si

gn
at

in
g 

ad
eq

ua
te

 
pa

ss
en

ge
r 

lo
ad

in
g 

an
d 

un
lo

ad
in

g 
an

d 
w

ai
tin

g 
ar

ea
s.

 
 

En
co

ur
ag

e 
bi

cy
cl

in
g 

to
 

tra
ns

it 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

by
 

pr
ov

id
in

g 
ad

di
tio

na
l 

bi
cy

cl
e 

pa
rk

in
g,

 
lo

ck
er

 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s,

 
an

d 
bi

ke
 

la
ne

 
ac

ce
ss

 
to

 
tra

ns
it 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
w

he
n 

fe
as

ib
le

. 
 

En
co

ur
ag

e 
th

e 
us

e 
of

 p
ub

lic
 tr

an
si

t s
ys

te
m

s 
by

 
en

ha
nc

in
g 

sa
fe

ty
 a

nd
 c

le
an

lin
es

s 
on

 v
eh

ic
le

s 
an

d 
in

 a
nd

 a
ro

un
d 

st
at

io
ns

, 
pr

ov
id

in
g 

sh
ut

tle
 

al
te

rn
at

e 
ro

ut
in

g 
an

d 
pr

ot
ec

tio
n 

ba
rri

er
s.

 
 

Sc
he

du
lin

g 
of

 c
on

st
ru

ct
io

n-
re

la
te

d 
de

liv
er

ie
s 

to
 

re
du

ce
 tr

av
el

 d
ur

in
g 

co
m

m
ut

er
 p

ea
k 

ho
ur

s.
 

 
O

bt
ai

ni
ng

 t
he

 r
eq

ui
re

d 
pe

rm
its

 f
or

 t
ru

ck
 h

au
l 

ro
ut

es
 fr

om
 th

e 
C

ity
 p

rio
r 

to
 th

e 
is

su
an

ce
 o

f a
ny

 
pe

rm
it 

fo
r t

he
 P

ro
je

ct
. 



 
M

iti
ga

tio
n 

M
ea

su
re

s 
fro

m
 P

rio
r E

IR
s 

 M
au

be
rt 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

 
 

C
ity

 o
f L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 

Su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

C
om

m
un

iti
es

 P
ro

je
ct

 E
xe

m
pt

io
n 

 
 

N
ov

em
be

r 2
01

9 
Pa

ge
 A

3-
89

 

Ta
bl

e 
A3

-1
 

M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
s 

fro
m

 P
rio

r E
IR

 (S
CA

G
’s

 2
01

6-
20

40
 R

TP
/S

CS
) 

 
Im

pa
ct

 
SC

AG
 2

01
6-

20
40

 R
TP

/S
CS

 M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
s 

(im
pl

em
en

te
d 

by
 le

ad
 a

ge
nc

y)
 

 
Ap

pl
ic

ab
ili

ty
 to

 th
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

se
rv

ic
e 

to
 p

ub
lic

 t
ra

ns
it,

 o
ffe

rin
g 

pu
bl

ic
 t

ra
ns

it 
in

ce
nt

iv
es

 a
nd

 p
ro

vi
di

ng
 p

ub
lic

 e
du

ca
tio

n 
an

d 
pu

bl
ic

ity
 a

bo
ut

 p
ub

lic
 tr

an
sp

or
ta

tio
n 

se
rv

ic
es

. 
 

En
co

ur
ag

e 
bi

cy
cl

in
g 

an
d 

w
al

ki
ng

 
by

 
in

co
rp

or
at

in
g 

bi
cy

cl
e 

la
ne

s 
in

to
 s

tre
et

 s
ys

te
m

s 
in

 
re

gi
on

al
 

tra
ns

po
rta

tio
n 

pl
an

s,
 

ne
w

 
su

bd
iv

is
io

ns
, a

nd
 la

rg
e 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
ts

, c
re

at
in

g 
bi

cy
cl

e 
la

ne
s 

an
d 

w
al

ki
ng

 p
at

hs
 d

ire
ct

ed
 to

 th
e 

lo
ca

tio
n 

of
 s

ch
oo

ls
 a

nd
 o

th
er

 lo
gi

ca
l p

oi
nt

s 
of

 
de

st
in

at
io

n 
an

d 
pr

ov
id

e 
ad

eq
ua

te
 

bi
cy

cl
e 

pa
rk

in
g,

 a
nd

 e
nc

ou
ra

gi
ng

 c
om

m
er

ci
al

 p
ro

je
ct

s 
to

 
in

cl
ud

e 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

on
-s

ite
 

to
 

en
co

ur
ag

e 
em

pl
oy

ee
s 

to
 b

ic
yc

le
 o

r w
al

k 
to

 w
or

k.
 

 
Bu

ild
 o

r f
un

d 
a 

m
aj

or
 tr

an
si

t s
to

p 
w

ith
in

 o
r n

ea
r 

tra
ns

it 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t 
up

on
 

co
ns

ul
ta

tio
n 

w
ith

 
ap

pl
ic

ab
le

 C
TC

s.
 

 
W

or
k 

w
ith

 
th

e 
sc

ho
ol

 
di

st
ric

ts
 

to
 

im
pr

ov
e 

pe
de

st
ria

n 
an

d 
bi

ke
 a

cc
es

s 
to

 s
ch

oo
ls

 a
nd

 t
o 

re
st

or
e 

or
 e

xp
an

d 
sc

ho
ol

 b
us

 s
er

vi
ce

 u
si

ng
 

lo
w

er
-e

m
itt

in
g 

ve
hi

cl
es

. 
 

Pr
ov

id
e 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

on
 

al
te

rn
at

iv
e 

tra
ns

po
rta

tio
n 

op
tio

ns
 

fo
r 

co
ns

um
er

s,
 

re
si

de
nt

s,
 t

en
an

ts
 a

nd
 e

m
pl

oy
ee

s 
to

 r
ed

uc
e 

tra
ns

po
rta

tio
n-

re
la

te
d 

em
is

si
on

s.
 

 
Ed

uc
at

e 
co

ns
um

er
s,

 re
si

de
nt

s,
 te

na
nt

s 
an

d 
th

e 
pu

bl
ic

 
ab

ou
t 

op
tio

ns
 

fo
r 

re
du

ci
ng

 
m

ot
or

 
ve

hi
cl

e-
re

la
te

d 
gr

ee
nh

ou
se

 
ga

s 
em

is
si

on
s.

 
In

cl
ud

e 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
on

 
tri

p 
re

du
ct

io
n;

 
tri

p 
lin

ki
ng

; 
ve

hi
cl

e 
pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

 
an

d 
ef

fic
ie

nc
y 

(e
.g

., 
ke

ep
in

g 
tir

es
 i

nf
la

te
d)

; 
an

d 
lo

w
 o

r 
ze

ro
-

em
is

si
on

 v
eh

ic
le

s.
 

 
Pu

rc
ha

se
, 

or
 c

re
at

e 
in

ce
nt

iv
es

 f
or

 p
ur

ch
as

in
g,

 
lo

w
 o

r z
er

o-
em

is
si

on
 v

eh
ic

le
s.

 
 

C
re

at
e 

lo
ca

l 
“li

gh
t 

ve
hi

cl
e”

 n
et

w
or

ks
, 

su
ch

 a
s 

ne
ig

hb
or

ho
od

 e
le

ct
ric

 v
eh

ic
le

 s
ys

te
m

s.
 

 
En

fo
rc

e 
an

d 
fo

llo
w

 
lim

its
 

id
lin

g 
tim

e 
fo

r 



 
M

iti
ga

tio
n 

M
ea

su
re

s 
fro

m
 P

rio
r E

IR
s 

 M
au

be
rt 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

 
 

C
ity

 o
f L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 

Su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

C
om

m
un

iti
es

 P
ro

je
ct

 E
xe

m
pt

io
n 

 
 

N
ov

em
be

r 2
01

9 
Pa

ge
 A

3-
90

 

Ta
bl

e 
A3

-1
 

M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
s 

fro
m

 P
rio

r E
IR

 (S
CA

G
’s

 2
01

6-
20

40
 R

TP
/S

CS
) 

 
Im

pa
ct

 
SC

AG
 2

01
6-

20
40

 R
TP

/S
CS

 M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
s 

(im
pl

em
en

te
d 

by
 le

ad
 a

ge
nc

y)
 

 
Ap

pl
ic

ab
ili

ty
 to

 th
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

co
m

m
er

ci
al

 
ve

hi
cl

es
, 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
de

liv
er

y 
an

d 
co

ns
tru

ct
io

n 
ve

hi
cl

es
. 

 
Pr

ov
id

e 
th

e 
ne

ce
ss

ar
y 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
an

d 
in

fra
st

ru
ct

ur
e 

to
 e

nc
ou

ra
ge

 t
he

 u
se

 o
f 

lo
w

 o
r 

ze
ro

-e
m

is
si

on
 v

eh
ic

le
s.

 
 

R
ed

uc
e 

VM
T-

re
la

te
d 

em
is

si
on

s 
by

 
en

co
ur

ag
in

g 
th

e 
us

e 
of

 p
ub

lic
 t

ra
ns

it 
th

ro
ug

h 
ad

op
tio

n 
of

 n
ew

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
st

an
da

rd
s 

th
at

 
w

ou
ld

 
re

qu
ire

 
im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 

to
 

th
e 

tra
ns

it 
sy

st
em

 a
nd

 in
fra

st
ru

ct
ur

e,
 in

cr
ea

se
 s

af
et

y 
an

d 
ac

ce
ss

ib
ilit

y,
 a

nd
 p

ro
vi

de
 o

th
er

 in
ce

nt
iv

es
. 

 
Pr

oj
ec

t S
el

ec
tio

n:
 

o 
G

iv
e 

pr
io

rit
y 

to
 t

ra
ns

po
rta

tio
n 

pr
oj

ec
ts

 
th

at
 w

ou
ld

 c
on

tri
bu

te
 to

 a
 r

ed
uc

tio
n 

in
 

ve
hi

cl
e 

m
ile

s 
tra

ve
le

d 
pe

r 
ca

pi
ta

, w
hi

le
 

m
ai

nt
ai

ni
ng

 
ec

on
om

ic
 

vi
ta

lit
y 

an
d 

su
st

ai
na

bi
lit

y.
 

o 
Se

pa
ra

te
 

si
de

w
al

ks
 

w
he

ne
ve

r 
po

ss
ib

le
, 

on
 

bo
th

 
si

de
s 

of
 

al
l 

ne
w

 
st

re
et

 
im

pr
ov

em
en

t 
pr

oj
ec

ts
, 

ex
ce

pt
 

w
he

re
 th

er
e 

ar
e 

se
ve

re
 to

po
gr

ap
hi

c 
or

 
na

tu
ra

l r
es

ou
rc

e 
co

ns
tra

in
ts

. 
o 

Pu
bl

ic
 In

vo
lv

em
en

t: 
o 

C
ar

ry
 

ou
t 

a 
co

m
pr

eh
en

si
ve

 
pu

bl
ic

 
in

vo
lv

em
en

t 
an

d 
in

pu
t 

pr
oc

es
s 

th
at

 
pr

ov
id

es
 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

ab
ou

t 
tra

ns
po

rta
tio

n 
is

su
es

, 
pr

oj
ec

ts
, 

an
d 

pr
oc

es
se

s 
to

 c
om

m
un

ity
 m

em
be

rs
 a

nd
 

ot
he

r 
st

ak
eh

ol
de

rs
, e

sp
ec

ia
lly

 to
 th

os
e 

tra
di

tio
na

lly
 

un
de

rs
er

ve
d 

by
 

tra
ns

po
rta

tio
n 

se
rv

ic
es

. 
o 

Tr
an

si
t a

nd
 M

ul
tim

od
al

 Im
pa

ct
 F

ee
s:

 
o 

As
se

ss
 t

ra
ns

it 
an

d 
m

ul
tim

od
al

 i
m

pa
ct

 
fe

es
 f

or
 

ne
w

 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

ts
 

to
 f

un
d 

pu
bl

ic
 

tra
ns

po
rta

tio
n 

in
fra

st
ru

ct
ur

e,
 

bi
cy

cl
e 

in
fra

st
ru

ct
ur

e,
 

pe
de

st
ria

n 



 
M

iti
ga

tio
n 

M
ea

su
re

s 
fro

m
 P

rio
r E

IR
s 

 M
au

be
rt 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

 
 

C
ity

 o
f L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 

Su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

C
om

m
un

iti
es

 P
ro

je
ct

 E
xe

m
pt

io
n 

 
 

N
ov

em
be

r 2
01

9 
Pa

ge
 A

3-
91

 

Ta
bl

e 
A3

-1
 

M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
s 

fro
m

 P
rio

r E
IR

 (S
CA

G
’s

 2
01

6-
20

40
 R

TP
/S

CS
) 

 
Im

pa
ct

 
SC

AG
 2

01
6-

20
40

 R
TP

/S
CS

 M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
s 

(im
pl

em
en

te
d 

by
 le

ad
 a

ge
nc

y)
 

 
Ap

pl
ic

ab
ili

ty
 to

 th
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

in
fra

st
ru

ct
ur

e 
an

d 
ot

he
r 

m
ul

tim
od

al
 

ac
co

m
m

od
at

io
ns

. 
o 

Im
pl

em
en

t 
tra

ffi
c 

an
d 

ro
ad

w
ay

 
m

an
ag

em
en

t 
st

ra
te

gi
es

 
to

 
im

pr
ov

e 
m

ob
ilit

y 
an

d 
ef

fic
ie

nc
y,

 
an

d 
re

du
ce

 
as

so
ci

at
ed

 e
m

is
si

on
s.

 
 

Sy
st

em
 M

on
ito

rin
g:

 
o 

M
on

ito
r 

tra
ffi

c 
an

d 
co

ng
es

tio
n 

to
 

de
te

rm
in

e 
w

he
n 

an
d 

w
he

re
 

ne
w

 
tra

ns
po

rta
tio

n 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

ar
e 

ne
ed

ed
 i

n 
or

de
r 

to
 

in
cr

ea
se

 
ac

ce
ss

 
an

d 
ef

fic
ie

nc
y.

 
 

Ar
te

ria
l T

ra
ffi

c 
M

an
ag

em
en

t: 
o 

M
od

ify
 a

rte
ria

l r
oa

dw
ay

s 
to

 a
llo

w
 m

or
e 

ef
fic

ie
nt

 b
us

 o
pe

ra
tio

n,
 i

nc
lu

di
ng

 b
us

 
la

ne
s 

an
d 

si
gn

al
 

pr
io

rit
y/

pr
ee

m
pt

io
n 

w
he

re
 n

ec
es

sa
ry

. 
 

Si
gn

al
 S

yn
ch

ro
ni

za
tio

n:
 

o 
Ex

pa
nd

 s
ig

na
l t

im
in

g 
pr

og
ra

m
s 

w
he

re
 

em
is

si
on

s 
re

du
ct

io
n 

be
ne

fit
s 

ca
n 

be
 

de
m

on
st

ra
te

d,
 i

nc
lu

di
ng

 m
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 
of

 th
e 

sy
nc

hr
on

iz
at

io
n 

sy
st

em
, a

nd
 w

ill 
co

or
di

na
te

 w
ith

 a
dj

oi
ni

ng
 j

ur
is

di
ct

io
ns

 
as

 n
ee

de
d 

to
 o

pt
im

iz
e 

tra
ns

it 
op

er
at

io
n 

w
hi

le
 m

ai
nt

ai
ni

ng
 a

 fr
ee

 fl
ow

 o
f t

ra
ffi

c.
 

 
H

O
V 

La
ne

s:
 

o 
En

co
ur

ag
e 

th
e 

co
ns

tru
ct

io
n 

of
 h

ig
h-

oc
cu

pa
nc

y 
ve

hi
cl

e 
(H

O
V)

 
la

ne
s 

or
 

si
m

ila
r 

m
ec

ha
ni

sm
s 

w
he

ne
ve

r 
ne

ce
ss

ar
y 

to
 r

el
ie

ve
 c

on
ge

st
io

n 
an

d 
re

du
ce

 e
m

is
si

on
s.

 
 

D
el

iv
er

y 
Sc

he
du

le
s:

 
o 

Es
ta

bl
is

h 
or

di
na

nc
es

 
or

 
la

nd
 

us
e 

pe
rm

it 
co

nd
iti

on
s 

lim
iti

ng
 

th
e 

ho
ur

s 
w

he
n 

de
liv

er
ie

s 
ca

n 
be

 m
ad

e 
to

 o
ff-

pe
ak

 h
ou

rs
 in

 h
ig

h 
tra

ffi
c 

ar
ea

s.
 



 
M

iti
ga

tio
n 

M
ea

su
re

s 
fro

m
 P

rio
r E

IR
s 

 M
au

be
rt 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

 
 

C
ity

 o
f L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 

Su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

C
om

m
un

iti
es

 P
ro

je
ct

 E
xe

m
pt

io
n 

 
 

N
ov

em
be

r 2
01

9 
Pa

ge
 A

3-
92

 

Ta
bl

e 
A3

-1
 

M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
s 

fro
m

 P
rio

r E
IR

 (S
CA

G
’s

 2
01

6-
20

40
 R

TP
/S

CS
) 

 
Im

pa
ct

 
SC

AG
 2

01
6-

20
40

 R
TP

/S
CS

 M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
s 

(im
pl

em
en

te
d 

by
 le

ad
 a

ge
nc

y)
 

 
Ap

pl
ic

ab
ili

ty
 to

 th
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

o 
Im

pl
em

en
t 

an
d 

su
pp

or
tin

g 
tri

p 
re

du
ct

io
n 

pr
og

ra
m

s.
 

o 
Su

pp
or

t 
bi

cy
cl

e 
us

e 
as

 
a 

m
od

e 
of

 
tra

ns
po

rta
tio

n 
by

 
en

ha
nc

in
g 

in
fra

st
ru

ct
ur

e 
to

 a
cc

om
m

od
at

e 
bi

cy
cl

es
 

an
d 

rid
er

s,
 a

nd
 p

ro
vi

di
ng

 in
ce

nt
iv

es
. 

 
Es

ta
bl

is
h 

st
an

da
rd

s 
fo

r 
ne

w
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

an
d 

re
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t p
ro

je
ct

s 
to

 s
up

po
rt 

bi
cy

cl
e 

us
e,

 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

am
en

di
ng

 t
he

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
C

od
e 

to
 

in
cl

ud
e 

st
an

da
rd

s 
fo

r 
sa

fe
 

pe
de

st
ria

n 
an

d 
bi

cy
cl

is
t 

ac
co

m
m

od
at

io
ns

, 
an

d 
re

qu
ire

 
ne

w
 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

an
d 

re
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t 
pr

oj
ec

ts
 t

o 
in

cl
ud

e 
bi

cy
cl

e 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s.

  
 

Bi
cy

cl
e 

an
d 

Pe
de

st
ria

n 
Tr

ai
ls

: 
o 

Es
ta

bl
is

h 
a 

ne
tw

or
k 

of
 m

ul
ti-

us
e 

tra
ils

 
to

 f
ac

ilit
at

e 
sa

fe
 a

nd
 d

ire
ct

 o
ff-

st
re

et
 

bi
cy

cl
e 

an
d 

pe
de

st
ria

n 
tra

ve
l, 

an
d 

w
ill 

pr
ov

id
e 

bi
ke

 r
ac

ks
 a

lo
ng

 th
es

e 
tra

ils
 a

t 
se

cu
re

, l
ig

ht
ed

 lo
ca

tio
ns

. 
 

Bi
cy

cl
e 

Sa
fe

ty
 P

ro
gr

am
: 

o 
D

ev
el

op
 

an
d 

im
pl

em
en

t 
a 

bi
cy

cl
e 

sa
fe

ty
 e

du
ca

tio
na

l 
pr

og
ra

m
 t

o 
te

ac
h 

dr
iv

er
s 

an
d 

rid
er

s 
th

e 
la

w
s,

 
rid

in
g 

pr
ot

oc
ol

s,
 

ro
ut

es
, 

sa
fe

ty
 

tip
s,

 
an

d 
em

er
ge

nc
y 

m
an

eu
ve

rs
. 

 
Bi

cy
cl

e 
an

d 
Pe

de
st

ria
n 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

Fu
nd

in
g:

 
Pu

rs
ue

 
an

d 
pr

ov
id

e 
en

ha
nc

ed
 

fu
nd

in
g 

fo
r 

bi
cy

cl
e 

an
d 

pe
de

st
ria

n 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

an
d 

ac
ce

ss
 

pr
oj

ec
ts

. 
 

Bi
cy

cl
e 

Pa
rk

in
g:

 
o 

Ad
op

t 
bi

cy
cl

e 
pa

rk
in

g 
st

an
da

rd
s 

th
at

 
en

su
re

 
bi

cy
cl

e 
pa

rk
in

g 
su

ffi
ci

en
t 

to
 

ac
co

m
m

od
at

e 
5 

to
 

10
 

pe
rc

en
t 

of
 

pr
oj

ec
te

d 
us

e 
at

 
al

l 
pu

bl
ic

 
an

d 
co

m
m

er
ci

al
 fa

ci
lit

ie
s,

 a
nd

 a
t a

 ra
te

 o
f a

t 
le

as
t 

on
e 

pe
r 

re
si

de
nt

ia
l 

un
it 

in
 



 
M

iti
ga

tio
n 

M
ea

su
re

s 
fro

m
 P

rio
r E

IR
s 

 M
au

be
rt 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

 
 

C
ity

 o
f L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 

Su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

C
om

m
un

iti
es

 P
ro

je
ct

 E
xe

m
pt

io
n 

 
 

N
ov

em
be

r 2
01

9 
Pa

ge
 A

3-
93

 

Ta
bl

e 
A3

-1
 

M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
s 

fro
m

 P
rio

r E
IR

 (S
CA

G
’s

 2
01

6-
20

40
 R

TP
/S

CS
) 

 
Im

pa
ct

 
SC

AG
 2

01
6-

20
40

 R
TP

/S
CS

 M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
s 

(im
pl

em
en

te
d 

by
 le

ad
 a

ge
nc

y)
 

 
Ap

pl
ic

ab
ili

ty
 to

 th
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

m
ul

tip
le

-fa
m

ily
 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
ts

 
(s

ug
ge

st
io

n:
 

ch
ec

k 
la

ng
ua

ge
 

w
ith

 
Le

ag
ue

 o
f A

m
er

ic
an

 B
ic

yc
lis

ts
). 

 
Ad

op
t 

a 
co

m
pr

eh
en

si
ve

 
pa

rk
in

g 
po

lic
y 

to
 

di
sc

ou
ra

ge
 p

riv
at

e 
ve

hi
cl

e 
us

e 
an

d 
en

co
ur

ag
e 

th
e 

us
e 

of
 

al
te

rn
at

iv
e 

tra
ns

po
rta

tio
n 

by
 

in
co

rp
or

at
in

g 
th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g:

 
o 

R
ed

uc
e 

th
e 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
pa

rk
in

g 
sp

ac
es

 
fo

r 
pr

iv
at

e 
ve

hi
cl

es
 

w
hi

le
 

in
cr

ea
si

ng
 

pa
rk

in
g 

sp
ac

es
 

fo
r 

sh
ar

ed
 

ve
hi

cl
es

, 
bi

cy
cl

es
, 

an
d 

ot
he

r 
al

te
rn

at
iv

e 
m

od
es

 
of

 tr
an

sp
or

ta
tio

n;
 

o 
El

im
in

at
e 

or
 r

ed
uc

e 
m

in
im

um
 p

ar
ki

ng
 

re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

 fo
r n

ew
 b

ui
ld

in
gs

; 
o 

“U
nb

un
dl

e”
 

pa
rk

in
g 

(re
qu

ire
 

th
at

 
pa

rk
in

g 
is

 p
ai

d 
fo

r 
se

pa
ra

te
ly

 a
nd

 i
s 

no
t 

in
cl

ud
ed

 
in

 
th

e 
ba

se
 

re
nt

 
fo

r 
re

si
de

nt
ia

l a
nd

 c
om

m
er

ci
al

 s
pa

ce
); 

o 
U

se
 

pa
rk

in
g 

pr
ic

in
g 

to
 

di
sc

ou
ra

ge
 

pr
iv

at
e 

ve
hi

cl
e 

us
e,

 e
sp

ec
ia

lly
 a

t p
ea

k 
tim

es
; 

o 
C

re
at

e 
pa

rk
in

g 
be

ne
fit

 d
is

tri
ct

s,
 w

hi
ch

 
in

ve
st

 m
et

er
 r

ev
en

ue
s 

in
 p

ed
es

tri
an

 
in

fra
st

ru
ct

ur
e 

an
d 

ot
he

r 
pu

bl
ic

 
am

en
iti

es
; 

o 
Es

ta
bl

is
h 

pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
 p

ric
in

g 
of

 s
tre

et
 

pa
rk

in
g,

 s
o 

th
at

 it
 is

 e
xp

en
si

ve
 e

no
ug

h 
to

 p
ro

m
ot

e 
fre

qu
en

t t
ur

no
ve

r a
nd

 k
ee

p 
15

 
pe

rc
en

t 
of

 
sp

ac
es

 
em

pt
y 

at
 

al
l 

tim
es

; 
o 

En
co

ur
ag

e 
sh

ar
ed

 p
ar

ki
ng

 p
ro

gr
am

s 
in

 
m

ix
ed

-u
se

 
an

d 
tra

ns
it-

or
ie

nt
ed

 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t a
re

as
. 

 
Es

ta
bl

is
h 

po
lic

ie
s 

an
d 

pr
og

ra
m

s 
to

 
re

du
ce

 
on

si
te

 
pa

rk
in

g 
de

m
an

d 
an

d 
pr

om
ot

e 
rid

e-
sh

ar
in

g 
an

d 
pu

bl
ic

 
tra

ns
it 

at
 

la
rg

e 
ev

en
ts

, 



 
M

iti
ga

tio
n 

M
ea

su
re

s 
fro

m
 P

rio
r E

IR
s 

 M
au

be
rt 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

 
 

C
ity

 o
f L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 

Su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

C
om

m
un

iti
es

 P
ro

je
ct

 E
xe

m
pt

io
n 

 
 

N
ov

em
be

r 2
01

9 
Pa

ge
 A

3-
94

 

Ta
bl

e 
A3

-1
 

M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
s 

fro
m

 P
rio

r E
IR

 (S
CA

G
’s

 2
01

6-
20

40
 R

TP
/S

CS
) 

 
Im

pa
ct

 
SC

AG
 2

01
6-

20
40

 R
TP

/S
CS

 M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
s 

(im
pl

em
en

te
d 

by
 le

ad
 a

ge
nc

y)
 

 
Ap

pl
ic

ab
ili

ty
 to

 th
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

in
cl

ud
in

g:
 

o 
Pr

om
ot

e 
th

e 
us

e 
of

 p
er

ip
he

ra
l p

ar
ki

ng
 

by
 in

cr
ea

si
ng

 o
n-

si
te

 p
ar

ki
ng

 ra
te

s 
an

d 
of

fe
rin

g 
re

du
ce

d 
ra

te
s 

fo
r 

pe
rip

he
ra

l 
pa

rk
in

g;
 

o 
En

co
ur

ag
e 

sp
ec

ia
l 

ev
en

t 
ce

nt
er

 
op

er
at

or
s 

to
 

ad
ve

rti
se

 
an

d 
of

fe
r 

di
sc

ou
nt

ed
 t

ra
ns

it 
pa

ss
es

 w
ith

 e
ve

nt
 

tic
ke

ts
; 

o 
En

co
ur

ag
e 

sp
ec

ia
l 

ev
en

t 
ce

nt
er

 
op

er
at

or
s 

to
 

ad
ve

rti
se

 
an

d 
of

fe
r 

di
sc

ou
nt

 
pa

rk
in

g 
in

ce
nt

iv
es

 
to

 
ca

rp
oo

lin
g 

pa
tro

ns
, 

w
ith

 f
ou

r 
or

 m
or

e 
pe

rs
on

s 
pe

r v
eh

ic
le

 fo
r o

n-
si

te
 p

ar
ki

ng
 

o 
Pr

om
ot

e 
th

e 
us

e 
of

 
bi

cy
cl

es
 

by
 

pr
ov

id
in

g 
sp

ac
e 

fo
r 

th
e 

op
er

at
io

n 
of

 
va

le
t b

ic
yc

le
 p

ar
ki

ng
 s

er
vi

ce
. 

 
Pa

rk
in

g 
“C

as
h-

ou
t” 

Pr
og

ra
m

: 
o 

R
eq

ui
re

 n
ew

 o
ffi

ce
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
ts

 w
ith

 
m

or
e 

th
an

 5
0 

em
pl

oy
ee

s 
to

 o
ffe

r 
a 

Pa
rk

in
g 

“C
as

h-
ou

t” 
Pr

og
ra

m
 

to
 

di
sc

ou
ra

ge
 p

riv
at

e 
ve

hi
cl

e 
us

e.
 

 
Pe

de
st

ria
n 

an
d 

Bi
cy

cl
e 

Pr
om

ot
io

n:
 

o 
W

or
k 

w
ith

 lo
ca

l c
om

m
un

ity
 g

ro
up

s 
an

d 
do

w
nt

ow
n 

bu
si

ne
ss

 
as

so
ci

at
io

ns
 

to
 

or
ga

ni
ze

 a
nd

 p
ub

lic
iz

e 
w

al
ki

ng
 t

ou
rs

 
an

d 
bi

cy
cl

e 
ev

en
ts

, 
an

d 
to

 e
nc

ou
ra

ge
 

pe
de

st
ria

n 
an

d 
bi

cy
cl

e 
m

od
es

 
of

 
tra

ns
po

rta
tio

n.
 

 
Fl

ee
t R

ep
la

ce
m

en
t: 

o 
Es

ta
bl

is
h 

a 
re

pl
ac

em
en

t 
po

lic
y 

an
d 

sc
he

du
le

 t
o 

re
pl

ac
e 

fle
et

 v
eh

ic
le

s 
an

d 
eq

ui
pm

en
t 

w
ith

 t
he

 m
os

t 
fu

el
 e

ffi
ci

en
t 

ve
hi

cl
es

 
pr

ac
tic

al
, 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
ga

so
lin

e 
hy

br
id

 a
nd

 a
lte

rn
at

iv
e 

fu
el

 o
r 

el
ec

tri
c 

m
od

el
s.

 



 
M

iti
ga

tio
n 

M
ea

su
re

s 
fro

m
 P

rio
r E

IR
s 

 M
au

be
rt 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

 
 

C
ity

 o
f L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 

Su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

C
om

m
un

iti
es

 P
ro

je
ct

 E
xe

m
pt

io
n 

 
 

N
ov

em
be

r 2
01

9 
Pa

ge
 A

3-
95

 

Ta
bl

e 
A3

-1
 

M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
s 

fro
m

 P
rio

r E
IR

 (S
CA

G
’s

 2
01

6-
20

40
 R

TP
/S

CS
) 

 
Im

pa
ct

 
SC

AG
 2

01
6-

20
40

 R
TP

/S
CS

 M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
s 

(im
pl

em
en

te
d 

by
 le

ad
 a

ge
nc

y)
 

 
Ap

pl
ic

ab
ili

ty
 to

 th
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

C
on

fli
ct

 
w

ith
 

A
pp

lic
ab

le
 

C
on

ge
st

io
n 

M
an

ag
em

en
t 

P
ro

gr
am

 

M
M

-T
RA

-2
: 

C
on

si
st

en
t 

w
ith

 
th

e 
pr

ov
is

io
ns

 
of

 
Se

ct
io

n 
15

09
1 

of
 

th
e 

St
at

e 
C

EQ
A 

G
ui

de
lin

es
, 

SC
AG

 h
as

 id
en

tif
ie

d 
m

iti
ga

tio
n 

m
ea

su
re

s 
ca

pa
bl

e 
of

 a
vo

id
in

g 
co

nf
lic

t 
w

ith
 a

n 
ap

pl
ic

ab
le

 c
on

ge
st

io
n 

m
an

ag
em

en
t 

pr
og

ra
m

 
th

at
 

ar
e 

w
ith

in
 

th
e 

ju
ris

di
ct

io
ns

 o
f t

he
 le

ad
 a

ge
nc

ie
s,

 in
cl

ud
in

g,
 b

ut
 n

ot
 

lim
ite

d 
to

, 
VM

T,
 

VH
D

 
an

d 
tra

ve
l 

de
m

an
d 

m
ea

su
re

s,
 o

r 
ot

he
r 

st
an

da
rd

s 
es

ta
bl

is
he

d 
by

 t
he

 
co

un
ty

 
co

ng
es

tio
n 

m
an

ag
em

en
t 

ag
en

cy
 

fo
r 

de
si

gn
at

ed
 r

oa
ds

 o
r 

hi
gh

w
ay

s.
 T

hi
s 

m
ea

su
re

 n
ee

d 
on

ly
 b

e 
co

ns
id

er
ed

 w
he

re
 it

 is
 f

ou
nd

 b
y 

th
e 

Le
ad

 
Ag

en
cy

 to
 b

e 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

 a
nd

 c
on

si
st

en
t w

ith
 lo

ca
l 

tra
ns

po
rta

tio
n 

pr
io

rit
ie

s.
 W

he
re

 t
he

 L
ea

d 
Ag

en
cy

 
ha

s 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

th
at

 a
 p

ro
je

ct
 h

as
 t

he
 p

ot
en

tia
l 

fo
r 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 

ef
fe

ct
s,

 
th

e 
Le

ad
 

Ag
en

cy
 

ca
n 

an
d 

sh
ou

ld
 

co
ns

id
er

 
m

iti
ga

tio
n 

m
ea

su
re

s 
to

 
en

su
re

 
co

m
pl

ia
nc

e 
w

ith
 

th
e 

ad
op

te
d 

C
on

ge
st

io
n 

M
an

ag
em

en
t 

Pl
an

, 
an

d 
ot

he
r 

ad
op

te
d 

lo
ca

l p
la

ns
 

an
d 

po
lic

ie
s,

 
as

 
ap

pl
ic

ab
le

 
an

d 
fe

as
ib

le
. 

C
om

pl
ia

nc
e 

ca
n 

be
 

ac
hi

ev
ed

 
th

ro
ug

h 
ad

op
tin

g 
tra

ns
po

rta
tio

n 
m

iti
ga

tio
n 

m
ea

su
re

s 
su

ch
 a

s 
th

os
e 

se
t 

fo
rth

 
be

lo
w

, 
or

 t
hr

ou
gh

 
ot

he
r 

re
le

va
nt

 
an

d 
fe

as
ib

le
 c

om
pa

ra
bl

e 
m

ea
su

re
s 

id
en

tif
ie

d 
by

 t
he

 
Le

ad
 A

ge
nc

y.
 N

ot
 a

ll 
m

ea
su

re
s 

an
d/

or
 o

pt
io

ns
 

w
ith

in
 e

ac
h 

m
ea

su
re

 m
ay

 a
pp

ly
 to

 a
ll 

ju
ris

di
ct

io
ns

: 
  

En
co

ur
ag

e 
a 

co
m

pr
eh

en
si

ve
 

pa
rk

in
g 

po
lic

y 
th

at
 p

rio
rit

iz
es

 s
ys

te
m

 m
an

ag
em

en
t, 

in
cr

ea
se

 
rid

es
ha

re
, 

an
d 

te
le

co
m

m
ut

e 
op

po
rtu

ni
tie

s,
 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
in

ve
st

m
en

t 
in

 
no

n-
m

ot
or

iz
ed

 
tra

ns
po

rta
tio

n 
an

d 
di

sc
ou

ra
ge

m
en

t 
ag

ai
ns

t 
pr

iv
at

e 
ve

hi
cl

e 
us

e,
 

an
d 

en
co

ur
ag

em
en

t 
to

 
m

ax
im

iz
e 

th
e 

us
e 

of
 a

lte
rn

at
iv

e 
tra

ns
po

rta
tio

n:
 

o 
Ad

vo
ca

te
 fo

r 
a 

re
gi

on
al

, m
ar

ke
t-b

as
ed

 
sy

st
em

 to
 p

ric
e 

or
 c

ha
rg

e 
fo

r a
ut

o 
tri

ps
 

du
rin

g 
pe

ak
 h

ou
rs

. 

N
o 

m
iti

ga
tio

n 
ap

pl
ie

s.
 

As
 

of
 

Au
gu

st
 

28
, 

20
19

, 
th

e 
pr

ov
is

io
ns

 o
f 

th
e 

C
M

P 
no

 l
on

ge
r 

ap
pl

y 
to

 a
ny

 o
f 

th
e 

ju
ris

di
ct

io
ns

 in
 L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 C

ou
nt

y,
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

th
e 

C
ity

 o
f 

Lo
s 

An
ge

le
s.

 
 



 
M

iti
ga

tio
n 

M
ea

su
re

s 
fro

m
 P

rio
r E

IR
s 

 M
au

be
rt 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

 
 

C
ity

 o
f L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 

Su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

C
om

m
un

iti
es

 P
ro

je
ct

 E
xe

m
pt

io
n 

 
 

N
ov

em
be

r 2
01

9 
Pa

ge
 A

3-
96

 

Ta
bl

e 
A3

-1
 

M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
s 

fro
m

 P
rio

r E
IR

 (S
CA

G
’s

 2
01

6-
20

40
 R

TP
/S

CS
) 

 
Im

pa
ct

 
SC

AG
 2

01
6-

20
40

 R
TP

/S
CS

 M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
s 

(im
pl

em
en

te
d 

by
 le

ad
 a

ge
nc

y)
 

 
Ap

pl
ic

ab
ili

ty
 to

 th
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

o 
En

su
re

 
th

at
 

ne
w

 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

ts
 

in
co

rp
or

at
e 

bo
th

 
lo

ca
l 

an
d 

re
gi

on
al

 
tra

ns
it 

m
ea

su
re

s 
in

to
 

th
e 

pr
oj

ec
t 

de
si

gn
 

th
at

 
pr

om
ot

e 
th

e 
us

e 
of

 
al

te
rn

at
iv

e 
m

od
es

 o
f t

ra
ns

po
rta

tio
n.

 
o 

C
oo

rd
in

at
e 

co
nt

ro
lle

d 
in

te
rs

ec
tio

ns
 s

o 
th

at
 

tra
ffi

c 
pa

ss
es

 
m

or
e 

ef
fic

ie
nt

ly
 

th
ro

ug
h 

co
ng

es
te

d 
ar

ea
s.

 W
he

re
 tr

af
fic

 
si

gn
al

s 
or

 
st

re
et

lig
ht

s 
ar

e 
in

st
al

le
d,

 
re

qu
ire

 th
e 

us
e 

of
 L

ig
ht

 E
m

itt
in

g 
D

io
de

 
(L

ED
) 

te
ch

no
lo

gy
 

or
 

si
m

ila
r 

te
ch

no
lo

gy
. 

o 
En

co
ur

ag
e 

th
e 

us
e 

of
 

ca
r-s

ha
rin

g 
pr

og
ra

m
s.

 A
cc

om
m

od
at

io
ns

 f
or

 s
uc

h 
pr

og
ra

m
s 

in
cl

ud
e 

pr
ov

id
in

g 
pa

rk
in

g 
sp

ac
es

 f
or

 t
he

 c
ar

-s
ha

re
 v

eh
ic

le
s 

at
 

co
nv

en
ie

nt
 

lo
ca

tio
ns

 
ac

ce
ss

ib
le

 
by

 
pu

bl
ic

 tr
an

sp
or

ta
tio

n.
 

o 
R

ed
uc

e 
VH

D
s,

 e
sp

ec
ia

lly
 d

ai
ly

 h
ea

vy
-

du
ty

 
tru

ck
 

ve
hi

cl
e 

ho
ur

s 
of

 
de

la
y,

 
th

ro
ug

h 
go

od
s 

m
ov

em
en

t 
ca

pa
ci

ty
 

en
ha

nc
em

en
ts

, 
sy

st
em

 m
an

ag
em

en
t, 

in
cr

ea
si

ng
 ri

de
sh

ar
e 

an
d 

w
or

k-
at

-h
om

e 
op

po
rtu

ni
tie

s 
to

 re
du

ce
 d

em
an

d 
on

 th
e 

tra
ns

po
rta

tio
n 

sy
st

em
, 

in
ve

st
m

en
ts

 i
n 

no
n-

m
ot

or
iz

ed
 

tra
ns

po
rta

tio
n,

 
m

ax
im

iz
in

g 
th

e 
be

ne
fit

s 
of

 t
he

 l
an

d 
us

e-
tra

ns
po

rta
tio

n 
co

nn
ec

tio
n 

an
d 

ke
y 

tra
ns

po
rta

tio
n 

in
ve

st
m

en
ts

 t
ar

ge
te

d 
to

 
re

du
ce

 h
ea

vy
-d

ut
y 

tru
ck

 d
el

ay
. 

 
D

et
er

m
in

e 
tra

ffi
c 

m
an

ag
em

en
t 

st
ra

te
gi

es
 

to
 

re
du

ce
, t

o 
th

e 
m

ax
im

um
 e

xt
en

t f
ea

si
bl

e,
 tr

af
fic

 
co

ng
es

tio
n 

an
d 

th
e 

ef
fe

ct
s 

of
 p

ar
ki

ng
 d

em
an

d 
by

 c
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
w

or
ke

rs
 d

ur
in

g 
co

ns
tru

ct
io

n 
of

 
th

is
 

pr
oj

ec
t 

an
d 

ot
he

r 
ne

ar
by

 
pr

oj
ec

ts
 

th
at

 
co

ul
d 

be
 s

im
ul

ta
ne

ou
sl

y 
un

de
r 

co
ns

tru
ct

io
n.

 



 
M

iti
ga

tio
n 

M
ea

su
re

s 
fro

m
 P

rio
r E

IR
s 

 M
au

be
rt 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

 
 

C
ity

 o
f L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 

Su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

C
om

m
un

iti
es

 P
ro

je
ct

 E
xe

m
pt

io
n 

 
 

N
ov

em
be

r 2
01

9 
Pa

ge
 A

3-
97

 

Ta
bl

e 
A3

-1
 

M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
s 

fro
m

 P
rio

r E
IR

 (S
CA

G
’s

 2
01

6-
20

40
 R

TP
/S

CS
) 

 
Im

pa
ct

 
SC

AG
 2

01
6-

20
40

 R
TP

/S
CS

 M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
s 

(im
pl

em
en

te
d 

by
 le

ad
 a

ge
nc

y)
 

 
Ap

pl
ic

ab
ili

ty
 to

 th
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

D
ev

el
op

 a
 c

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

m
an

ag
em

en
t p

la
n 

th
at

 
in

cl
ud

e 
th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

ite
m

s 
an

d 
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
, i

f 
de

te
rm

in
ed

 fe
as

ib
le

 a
nd

 a
pp

lic
ab

le
 b

y 
th

e 
Le

ad
 

Ag
en

cy
: 

o 
A 

se
t 

of
 c

om
pr

eh
en

si
ve

 t
ra

ffi
c 

co
nt

ro
l 

m
ea

su
re

s,
 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
sc

he
du

lin
g 

of
 

m
aj

or
 tr

uc
k 

tri
ps

 a
nd

 d
el

iv
er

ie
s 

to
 a

vo
id

 
pe

ak
 

tra
ffi

c 
ho

ur
s,

 
de

to
ur

 
si

gn
s 

if 
re

qu
ire

d,
 

la
ne

 
cl

os
ur

e 
pr

oc
ed

ur
es

, 
si

gn
s,

 
co

ne
s 

fo
r 

dr
iv

er
s,

 
an

d 
de

si
gn

at
ed

 c
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
ac

ce
ss

 ro
ut

es
. 

o 
N

ot
ifi

ca
tio

n 
pr

oc
ed

ur
es

 
fo

r 
ad

ja
ce

nt
 

pr
op

er
ty

 
ow

ne
rs

 
an

d 
pu

bl
ic

 
sa

fe
ty

 
pe

rs
on

ne
l 

re
ga

rd
in

g 
w

he
n 

m
aj

or
 

de
liv

er
ie

s,
 d

et
ou

rs
, 

an
d 

la
ne

 c
lo

su
re

s 
w

ill
 o

cc
ur

. 
o 

Lo
ca

tio
n 

of
 c

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

st
ag

in
g 

ar
ea

s 
fo

r 
m

at
er

ia
ls

, 
eq

ui
pm

en
t, 

an
d 

ve
hi

cl
es

 
at

 a
n 

ap
pr

ov
ed

 lo
ca

tio
n.

 
o 

A 
pr

oc
es

s 
fo

r 
re

sp
on

di
ng

 
to

, 
an

d 
tra

ck
in

g,
 

co
m

pl
ai

nt
s 

pe
rta

in
in

g 
to

 
co

ns
tru

ct
io

n 
ac

tiv
ity

, 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

id
en

tif
ic

at
io

n 
of

 
an

 
on

si
te

 
co

m
pl

ai
nt

 
m

an
ag

er
. 

Th
e 

m
an

ag
er

 
sh

al
l 

de
te

rm
in

e 
th

e 
ca

us
e 

of
 th

e 
co

m
pl

ai
nt

s 
an

d 
sh

al
l t

ak
e 

pr
om

pt
 a

ct
io

n 
to

 c
or

re
ct

 
th

e 
pr

ob
le

m
. 

Th
e 

Le
ad

 A
ge

nc
y 

sh
al

l 
be

 in
fo

rm
ed

 w
ho

 t
he

 M
an

ag
er

 is
 p

rio
r 

to
 th

e 
is

su
an

ce
 o

f t
he

 fi
rs

t p
er

m
it.

 
o 

Pr
ov

is
io

n 
fo

r 
ac

co
m

m
od

at
io

n 
of

 
pe

de
st

ria
n 

flo
w

. 
o 

As
 

ne
ce

ss
ar

y,
 

pr
ov

is
io

n 
fo

r 
pa

rk
in

g 
m

an
ag

em
en

t 
an

d 
sp

ac
es

 
fo

r 
al

l 
co

ns
tru

ct
io

n 
w

or
ke

rs
 

to
 

en
su

re
 

th
at

 
co

ns
tru

ct
io

n 
w

or
ke

rs
 d

o 
no

t p
ar

k 
in

 o
n 

st
re

et
 s

pa
ce

s.
 



 
M

iti
ga

tio
n 

M
ea

su
re

s 
fro

m
 P

rio
r E

IR
s 

 M
au

be
rt 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

 
 

C
ity

 o
f L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 

Su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

C
om

m
un

iti
es

 P
ro

je
ct

 E
xe

m
pt

io
n 

 
 

N
ov

em
be

r 2
01

9 
Pa

ge
 A

3-
98

 

Ta
bl

e 
A3

-1
 

M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
s 

fro
m

 P
rio

r E
IR

 (S
CA

G
’s

 2
01

6-
20

40
 R

TP
/S

CS
) 

 
Im

pa
ct

 
SC

AG
 2

01
6-

20
40

 R
TP

/S
CS

 M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
s 

(im
pl

em
en

te
d 

by
 le

ad
 a

ge
nc

y)
 

 
Ap

pl
ic

ab
ili

ty
 to

 th
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

o 
An

y 
da

m
ag

e 
to

 t
he

 s
tre

et
 c

au
se

d 
by

 
he

av
y 

eq
ui

pm
en

t, 
or

 a
s 

a 
re

su
lt 

of
 th

is
 

co
ns

tru
ct

io
n,

 s
ha

ll 
be

 r
ep

ai
re

d,
 a

t 
th

e 
pr

oj
ec

t s
po

ns
or

's 
ex

pe
ns

e.
, 

w
ith

in
 o

ne
 

w
ee

k 
of

 th
e 

oc
cu

rre
nc

e 
of

 th
e 

da
m

ag
e 

(o
r 

ex
ce

ss
iv

e 
w

ea
r),

 
un

le
ss

 
fu

rth
er

 
da

m
ag

e/
ex

ce
ss

iv
e 

w
ea

r m
ay

 c
on

tin
ue

; 
in

 s
uc

h 
ca

se
, r

 R
ep

ai
r s

ha
ll 

oc
cu

r p
rio

r 
to

 is
su

an
ce

 o
f 

a 
fin

al
 in

sp
ec

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
bu

ild
in

g 
pe

rm
it.

 A
ll 

da
m

ag
e 

th
at

 i
s 

a 
th

re
at

 t
o 

pu
bl

ic
 h

ea
lth

 o
r 

sa
fe

ty
 s

ha
ll 

be
 

re
pa

ire
d 

im
m

ed
ia

te
ly

. 
Th

e 
st

re
et

 
sh

al
l 

be
 r

es
to

re
d 

to
 it

s 
co

nd
iti

on
 p

rio
r 

to
 th

e 
ne

w
 c

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

as
 e

st
ab

lis
he

d 
by

 
th

e 
Le

ad
 

Ag
en

cy
 

(o
r 

ot
he

r 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

 
go

ve
rn

m
en

t 
ag

en
cy

) 
an

d/
or

 
ph

ot
o 

do
cu

m
en

ta
tio

n,
 

at
 

th
e 

sp
on

so
r's

 
ex

pe
ns

e,
 

be
fo

re
 

th
e 

is
su

an
ce

 o
f a

 C
er

tif
ic

at
e 

of
 O

cc
up

an
cy

. 
o 

An
y 

he
av

y 
eq

ui
pm

en
t 

br
ou

gh
t 

to
 t

he
 

co
ns

tru
ct

io
n 

si
te

 s
ha

ll 
be

 t
ra

ns
po

rte
d 

by
 tr

uc
k,

 w
he

re
 fe

as
ib

le
. 

o 
N

o 
m

at
er

ia
ls

 o
r 

eq
ui

pm
en

t 
sh

al
l 

be
 

st
or

ed
 o

n 
th

e 
tra

ve
le

d 
ro

ad
w

ay
 a

t a
ny

 
tim

e.
 

o 
Pr

io
r 

to
 c

on
st

ru
ct

io
n,

 a
 p

or
ta

bl
e 

to
ile

t 
fa

ci
lit

y 
an

d 
a 

de
br

is
 

bo
x 

sh
al

l 
be

 
in

st
al

le
d 

on
 

th
e 

si
te

, 
an

d 
pr

op
er

ly
 

m
ai

nt
ai

ne
d 

th
ro

ug
h 

pr
oj

ec
t c

om
pl

et
io

n.
 

o 
Al

l 
eq

ui
pm

en
t 

sh
al

l 
be

 e
qu

ip
pe

d 
w

ith
 

m
uf

fle
rs

. 
o 

Pr
io

r 
to

 
th

e 
en

d 
of

 
ea

ch
 

w
or

k-
da

y 
du

rin
g 

co
ns

tru
ct

io
n,

 t
he

 c
on

tra
ct

or
 o

r 
co

nt
ra

ct
or

s 
sh

al
l p

ic
k 

up
 a

nd
 p

ro
pe

rly
 

di
sp

os
e 

of
 a

ll 
lit

te
r 

re
su

lti
ng

 f
ro

m
 o

r 
re

la
te

d 
to

 th
e 

pr
oj

ec
t, 

w
he

th
er

 lo
ca

te
d 



 
M

iti
ga

tio
n 

M
ea

su
re

s 
fro

m
 P

rio
r E

IR
s 

 M
au

be
rt 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

 
 

C
ity

 o
f L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 

Su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

C
om

m
un

iti
es

 P
ro

je
ct

 E
xe

m
pt

io
n 

 
 

N
ov

em
be

r 2
01

9 
Pa

ge
 A

3-
99

 

Ta
bl

e 
A3

-1
 

M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
s 

fro
m

 P
rio

r E
IR

 (S
CA

G
’s

 2
01

6-
20

40
 R

TP
/S

CS
) 

 
Im

pa
ct

 
SC

AG
 2

01
6-

20
40

 R
TP

/S
CS

 M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
s 

(im
pl

em
en

te
d 

by
 le

ad
 a

ge
nc

y)
 

 
Ap

pl
ic

ab
ili

ty
 to

 th
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

on
 

th
e 

pr
op

er
ty

, 
w

ith
in

 
th

e 
pu

bl
ic

 
rig

ht
s-

of
-w

ay
, o

r 
pr

op
er

tie
s 

of
 a

dj
ac

en
t 

or
 n

ea
rb

y 
ne

ig
hb

or
s.

 
o 

Pr
om

ot
e 

“le
as

t 
po

llu
tin

g”
 

w
ay

s 
to

 
co

nn
ec

t 
pe

op
le

 
an

d 
go

od
s 

to
 

th
ei

r 
de

st
in

at
io

ns
. 

 
C

re
at

e 
an

 
in

te
rc

on
ne

ct
ed

 
tra

ns
po

rta
tio

n 
sy

st
em

 th
at

 a
llo

w
s 

a 
sh

ift
 in

 tr
av

el
 fr

om
 p

riv
at

e 
pa

ss
en

ge
r 

ve
hi

cl
es

 
to

 
al

te
rn

at
iv

e 
m

od
es

, 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

pu
bl

ic
 

tra
ns

it,
 

rid
e 

sh
ar

in
g,

 
ca

r 
sh

ar
in

g,
 b

ic
yc

lin
g 

an
d 

w
al

ki
ng

, b
y 

in
co

rp
or

at
in

g 
th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g,

 
if 

de
te

rm
in

ed
 

fe
as

ib
le

 
an

d 
ap

pl
ic

ab
le

 b
y 

th
e 

Le
ad

 A
ge

nc
y:

 
o 

En
su

re
 

tra
ns

po
rta

tio
n 

ce
nt

er
s 

ar
e 

m
ul

ti-
m

od
al

 
to

 
al

lo
w

 
tra

ns
po

rta
tio

n 
m

od
es

 to
 in

te
rs

ec
t. 

o 
Pr

ov
id

e 
ad

eq
ua

te
 

an
d 

af
fo

rd
ab

le
 

pu
bl

ic
 tr

an
sp

or
ta

tio
n 

ch
oi

ce
s,

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
ex

pa
nd

ed
 b

us
 r

ou
te

s 
an

d 
se

rv
ic

e,
 a

s 
w

el
l 

as
 o

th
er

 t
ra

ns
it 

ch
oi

ce
s 

su
ch

 a
s 

sh
ut

tle
s,

 li
gh

t r
ai

l, 
an

d 
ra

il.
 

o 
To

 t
he

 e
xt

en
t 

fe
as

ib
le

, 
ex

te
nd

 s
er

vi
ce

 
an

d 
ho

ur
s 

of
 o

pe
ra

tio
n 

to
 u

nd
er

se
rv

ed
 

ar
te

ria
ls

 
an

d 
po

pu
la

tio
n 

ce
nt

er
s 

or
 

de
st

in
at

io
ns

 s
uc

h 
as

 c
ol

le
ge

s.
 

o 
Fo

cu
s 

tra
ns

it 
re

so
ur

ce
s 

on
 

hi
gh

-
vo

lu
m

e 
co

rri
do

rs
 

an
d 

hi
gh

-b
oa

rd
in

g 
de

st
in

at
io

ns
 

su
ch

 
as

 
co

lle
ge

s,
 

em
pl

oy
m

en
t 

ce
nt

er
s 

an
d 

re
gi

on
al

 
de

st
in

at
io

ns
. 

o 
C

oo
rd

in
at

e 
sc

he
du

le
s 

an
d 

ro
ut

es
 

ac
ro

ss
 s

er
vi

ce
 l

in
es

 w
ith

 n
ei

gh
bo

rin
g 

tra
ns

it 
au

th
or

iti
es

. 
o 

Su
pp

or
t 

pr
og

ra
m

s 
to

 p
ro

vi
de

 “
st

at
io

n 
ca

rs
” 

fo
r 

sh
or

t t
rip

s 
to

 a
nd

 fr
om

 tr
an

si
t 

no
de

s 
(e

.g
., 

ne
ig

hb
or

ho
od

 
el

ec
tri

c 



 
M

iti
ga

tio
n 

M
ea

su
re

s 
fro

m
 P

rio
r E

IR
s 

 M
au

be
rt 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

 
 

C
ity

 o
f L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 

Su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

C
om

m
un

iti
es

 P
ro

je
ct

 E
xe

m
pt

io
n 

 
 

N
ov

em
be

r 2
01

9 
Pa

ge
 A

3-
10

0 

Ta
bl

e 
A3

-1
 

M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
s 

fro
m

 P
rio

r E
IR

 (S
CA

G
’s

 2
01

6-
20

40
 R

TP
/S

CS
) 

 
Im

pa
ct

 
SC

AG
 2

01
6-

20
40

 R
TP

/S
CS

 M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
s 

(im
pl

em
en

te
d 

by
 le

ad
 a

ge
nc

y)
 

 
Ap

pl
ic

ab
ili

ty
 to

 th
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

ve
hi

cl
es

). 
o 

St
ud

y 
th

e 
fe

as
ib

ilit
y 

of
 p

ro
vi

di
ng

 f
re

e 
tra

ns
it 

to
 

ar
ea

s 
w

ith
 

re
si

de
nt

ia
l 

de
ns

iti
es

 o
f 

15
 d

w
el

lin
g 

un
its

 p
er

 a
cr

e 
or

 
m

or
e,

 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

op
tio

ns
 

su
ch

 
as

 
re

m
ov

in
g 

se
rv

ic
e 

fro
m

 
le

ss
 

de
ns

e,
 

un
de

ru
til

iz
ed

 a
re

as
 to

 d
o 

so
. 

o 
Em

pl
oy

 t
ra

ns
it-

pr
ef

er
en

tia
l 

m
ea

su
re

s,
 

su
ch

 
as

 
si

gn
al

 
pr

io
rit

y 
an

d 
by

pa
ss

 
la

ne
s.

 W
he

re
 c

om
pa

tib
le

 w
ith

 a
dj

ac
en

t 
la

nd
 

us
e 

de
si

gn
at

io
ns

, 
rig

ht
-o

f-w
ay

 
ac

qu
is

iti
on

 
or

 
pa

rk
in

g 
re

m
ov

al
 

m
ay

 
oc

cu
r 

to
 

ac
co

m
m

od
at

e 
tra

ns
it-

pr
ef

er
en

tia
l 

m
ea

su
re

s 
or

 
im

pr
ov

e 
ac

ce
ss

 t
o 

tra
ns

it.
 T

he
 u

se
 o

f 
ac

ce
ss

 
m

an
ag

em
en

t 
sh

al
l 

be
 

co
ns

id
er

ed
 

w
he

re
 

ne
ed

ed
 

to
 

re
du

ce
 

co
nf

lic
ts

 
be

tw
ee

n 
tra

ns
it 

ve
hi

cl
es

 
an

d 
ot

he
r 

ve
hi

cl
es

. 
o 

Pr
ov

id
e 

sa
fe

 a
nd

 c
on

ve
ni

en
t 

ac
ce

ss
 

fo
r 

pe
de

st
ria

ns
 

an
d 

bi
cy

cl
is

ts
 

to
, 

ac
ro

ss
, a

nd
 a

lo
ng

 m
aj

or
 tr

an
si

t p
rio

rit
y 

st
re

et
s.

 
o 

U
se

 p
ar

k-
an

d-
rid

e 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

to
 a

cc
es

s 
tra

ns
it 

st
at

io
ns

 o
nl

y 
at

 e
nd

s 
of

 re
gi

on
al

 
tra

ns
it 

w
ay

s 
or

 w
he

re
 a

de
qu

at
e 

fe
ed

er
 

bu
s 

se
rv

ic
e 

is
 n

ot
 fe

as
ib

le
. 

 
U

pg
ra

de
 

an
d 

m
ai

nt
ai

n 
tra

ns
it 

sy
st

em
 

in
fra

st
ru

ct
ur

e 
to

 
en

ha
nc

e 
pu

bl
ic

 
us

e,
 

if 
de

te
rm

in
ed

 fe
as

ib
le

 a
nd

 a
pp

lic
ab

le
 b

y 
th

e 
Le

ad
 

Ag
en

cy
, i

nc
lu

di
ng

: 
o 

En
su

re
 tr

an
si

t s
to

ps
 a

nd
 b

us
 la

ne
s 

ar
e 

sa
fe

, c
on

ve
ni

en
t, 

cl
ea

n 
an

d 
ef

fic
ie

nt
. 

o 
En

su
re

 
tra

ns
it 

st
op

s 
ha

ve
 

cl
ea

rly
 

m
ar

ke
d 

st
re

et
-le

ve
l 

de
si

gn
at

io
n,

 
an

d 
ar

e 
ac

ce
ss

ib
le

. 



 
M

iti
ga

tio
n 

M
ea

su
re

s 
fro

m
 P

rio
r E

IR
s 

 M
au

be
rt 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

 
 

C
ity

 o
f L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 

Su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

C
om

m
un

iti
es

 P
ro

je
ct

 E
xe

m
pt

io
n 

 
 

N
ov

em
be

r 2
01

9 
Pa

ge
 A

3-
10

1 

Ta
bl

e 
A3

-1
 

M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
s 

fro
m

 P
rio

r E
IR

 (S
CA

G
’s

 2
01

6-
20

40
 R

TP
/S

CS
) 

 
Im

pa
ct

 
SC

AG
 2

01
6-

20
40

 R
TP

/S
CS

 M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
s 

(im
pl

em
en

te
d 

by
 le

ad
 a

ge
nc

y)
 

 
Ap

pl
ic

ab
ili

ty
 to

 th
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

o 
En

su
re

 
tra

ns
it 

st
op

s 
ar

e 
sa

fe
, 

sh
el

te
re

d,
 

be
nc

he
s 

ar
e 

cl
ea

n,
 

an
d 

lig
ht

in
g 

is
 a

de
qu

at
e.

 
o 

Pl
ac

e 
tra

ns
it 

st
at

io
ns

 
al

on
g 

tra
ns

it 
co

rri
do

rs
 w

ith
in

 m
ix

ed
-u

se
 o

r 
tra

ns
it-

or
ie

nt
ed

 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t 
ar

ea
s 

at
 

in
te

rv
al

s 
of

 t
hr

ee
 t

o 
fo

ur
 b

lo
ck

s,
 o

r 
no

 
le

ss
 th

an
 o

ne
-h

al
f m

ile
. 

 
En

ha
nc

e 
cu

st
om

er
 s

er
vi

ce
 a

nd
 s

ys
te

m
 e

as
e-

of
-u

se
, i

f d
et

er
m

in
ed

 fe
as

ib
le

 a
nd

 a
pp

lic
ab

le
 b

y 
th

e 
Le

ad
 A

ge
nc

y,
 in

cl
ud

in
g:

 
o 

D
ev

el
op

 a
 R

eg
io

na
l 

Pa
ss

 s
ys

te
m

 t
o 

re
du

ce
 th

e 
nu

m
be

r 
of

 d
iff

er
en

t p
as

se
s 

an
d 

tic
ke

ts
 re

qu
ire

d 
of

 s
ys

te
m

 u
se

rs
. 

o 
Im

pl
em

en
t 

“S
m

ar
t 

Bu
s”

 
te

ch
no

lo
gy

, 
us

in
g 

G
PS

 a
nd

 e
le

ct
ro

ni
c 

di
sp

la
ys

 a
t 

tra
ns

it 
st

op
s 

to
 p

ro
vi

de
 c

us
to

m
er

s 
w

ith
 

“re
al

-ti
m

e”
 a

rri
va

l 
an

d 
de

pa
rtu

re
 t

im
e 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

(a
nd

 t
o 

al
lo

w
 t

he
 s

ys
te

m
 

op
er

at
or

 t
o 

re
sp

on
d 

m
or

e 
qu

ic
kl

y 
an

d 
ef

fe
ct

iv
el

y 
to

 d
is

ru
pt

io
ns

 in
 s

er
vi

ce
). 

o 
In

ve
st

ig
at

e 
th

e 
fe

as
ib

ilit
y 

of
 a

n 
on

-li
ne

 
tri

p-
pl

an
ni

ng
 p

ro
gr

am
. 

 
Pr

io
rit

iz
e 

tra
ns

po
rta

tio
n 

fu
nd

in
g 

to
 s

up
po

rt 
a 

sh
ift

 fr
om

 p
riv

at
e 

pa
ss

en
ge

r 
ve

hi
cl

es
 to

 tr
an

si
t 

an
d 

ot
he

r 
m

od
es

 
of

 
tra

ns
po

rta
tio

n,
 

if 
de

te
rm

in
ed

 fe
as

ib
le

 a
nd

 a
pp

lic
ab

le
 b

y 
th

e 
Le

ad
 

Ag
en

cy
, i

nc
lu

di
ng

: 
o 

G
iv

e 
fu

nd
in

g 
pr

ef
er

en
ce

 
to

 
im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 

in
 

pu
bl

ic
 

tra
ns

it 
ov

er
 

ot
he

r 
ne

w
 

in
fra

st
ru

ct
ur

e 
fo

r 
pr

iv
at

e 
au

to
m

ob
ile

 tr
af

fic
. 

o 
Be

fo
re

 
fu

nd
in

g 
tra

ns
po

rta
tio

n 
im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 t

ha
t 

in
cr

ea
se

 r
oa

dw
ay

 
ca

pa
ci

ty
 

an
d 

VM
T,

 
ev

al
ua

te
 

th
e 

fe
as

ib
ili

ty
 a

nd
 e

ffe
ct

iv
en

es
s 

of
 f

un
di

ng
 



 
M

iti
ga

tio
n 

M
ea

su
re

s 
fro

m
 P

rio
r E

IR
s 

 M
au

be
rt 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

 
 

C
ity

 o
f L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 

Su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

C
om

m
un

iti
es

 P
ro

je
ct

 E
xe

m
pt

io
n 

 
 

N
ov

em
be

r 2
01

9 
Pa

ge
 A

3-
10

2 

Ta
bl

e 
A3

-1
 

M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
s 

fro
m

 P
rio

r E
IR

 (S
CA

G
’s

 2
01

6-
20

40
 R

TP
/S

CS
) 

 
Im

pa
ct

 
SC

AG
 2

01
6-

20
40

 R
TP

/S
CS

 M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
s 

(im
pl

em
en

te
d 

by
 le

ad
 a

ge
nc

y)
 

 
Ap

pl
ic

ab
ili

ty
 to

 th
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

pr
oj

ec
ts

 th
at

 s
up

po
rt 

al
te

rn
at

iv
e 

m
od

es
 

of
 

tra
ns

po
rta

tio
n 

an
d 

re
du

ce
 

VM
T,

 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

tra
ns

it,
 

an
d 

bi
cy

cl
e 

an
d 

pe
de

st
ria

n 
ac

ce
ss

. 
 

Pr
om

ot
e 

rid
e 

sh
ar

in
g 

pr
og

ra
m

s,
 if

 d
et

er
m

in
ed

 
fe

as
ib

le
 a

nd
 a

pp
lic

ab
le

 b
y 

th
e 

Le
ad

 A
ge

nc
y,

 
in

cl
ud

in
g:

 
o 

D
es

ig
na

te
 

a 
ce

rta
in

 
pe

rc
en

ta
ge

 
of

 
pa

rk
in

g 
sp

ac
es

 
fo

r 
rid

e-
sh

ar
in

g 
ve

hi
cl

es
. 

o 
D

es
ig

na
te

 
ad

eq
ua

te
 

pa
ss

en
ge

r 
lo

ad
in

g,
 u

nl
oa

di
ng

, 
an

d 
w

ai
tin

g 
ar

ea
s 

fo
r r

id
e-

sh
ar

in
g 

ve
hi

cl
es

. 
o 

Pr
ov

id
e 

a 
w

eb
 s

ite
 o

r 
m

es
sa

ge
 b

oa
rd

 
fo

r c
oo

rd
in

at
in

g 
sh

ar
ed

 ri
de

s.
 

o 
En

co
ur

ag
e 

pr
iv

at
e,

 
fo

r-p
ro

fit
 

co
m

m
un

ity
 

ca
r-s

ha
rin

g,
 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
pa

rk
in

g 
sp

ac
es

 f
or

 c
ar

 s
ha

re
 v

eh
ic

le
s 

at
 c

on
ve

ni
en

t 
lo

ca
tio

ns
 a

cc
es

si
bl

e 
by

 
pu

bl
ic

 tr
an

si
t. 

o 
H

ire
 

or
 

de
si

gn
at

e 
a 

rid
es

ha
re

 
co

or
di

na
to

r 
to

 d
ev

el
op

 a
nd

 im
pl

em
en

t 
rid

es
ha

rin
g 

pr
og

ra
m

s.
 

 
Su

pp
or

t 
vo

lu
nt

ar
y,

 
em

pl
oy

er
-b

as
ed

 
tri

p 
re

du
ct

io
n 

pr
og

ra
m

s,
 if

 d
et

er
m

in
ed

 fe
as

ib
le

 a
nd

 
ap

pl
ic

ab
le

 b
y 

th
e 

Le
ad

 A
ge

nc
y,

 in
cl

ud
in

g:
 

o 
Pr

ov
id

e 
as

si
st

an
ce

 
to

 
re

gi
on

al
 

an
d 

lo
ca

l r
id

es
ha

rin
g 

or
ga

ni
za

tio
ns

. 
o 

Ad
vo

ca
te

 
fo

r 
le

gi
sl

at
io

n 
to

 
m

ai
nt

ai
n 

an
d 

ex
pa

nd
 i

nc
en

tiv
es

 f
or

 e
m

pl
oy

er
 

rid
es

ha
rin

g 
pr

og
ra

m
s.

 
o 

R
eq

ui
re

 
th

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t 
of

 
Tr

an
sp

or
ta

tio
n 

M
an

ag
em

en
t 

As
so

ci
at

io
ns

 f
or

 l
ar

ge
 e

m
pl

oy
er

s 
an

d 
co

m
m

er
ci

al
/ i

nd
us

tri
al

 c
om

pl
ex

es
. 

o 
Pr

ov
id

e 
pu

bl
ic

 r
ec

og
ni

tio
n 

of
 e

ffe
ct

iv
e 



 
M

iti
ga

tio
n 

M
ea

su
re

s 
fro

m
 P

rio
r E

IR
s 

 M
au

be
rt 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

 
 

C
ity

 o
f L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 

Su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

C
om

m
un

iti
es

 P
ro

je
ct

 E
xe

m
pt

io
n 

 
 

N
ov

em
be

r 2
01

9 
Pa

ge
 A

3-
10

3 

Ta
bl

e 
A3

-1
 

M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
s 

fro
m

 P
rio

r E
IR

 (S
CA

G
’s

 2
01

6-
20

40
 R

TP
/S

CS
) 

 
Im

pa
ct

 
SC

AG
 2

01
6-

20
40

 R
TP

/S
CS

 M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
s 

(im
pl

em
en

te
d 

by
 le

ad
 a

ge
nc

y)
 

 
Ap

pl
ic

ab
ili

ty
 to

 th
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

pr
og

ra
m

s 
th

ro
ug

h 
aw

ar
ds

, t
op

 te
n 

lis
ts

, 
an

d 
ot

he
r m

ec
ha

ni
sm

s.
 

 
Im

pl
em

en
t 

a 
“g

ua
ra

nt
ee

d 
rid

e 
ho

m
e”

 p
ro

gr
am

 
fo

r 
th

os
e 

w
ho

 c
om

m
ut

e 
by

 p
ub

lic
 tr

an
si

t, 
rid

e-
sh

ar
in

g,
 o

r 
ot

he
r 

m
od

es
 o

f 
tra

ns
po

rta
tio

n,
 a

nd
 

en
co

ur
ag

e 
em

pl
oy

er
s 

to
 

su
bs

cr
ib

e 
to

 
or

 
su

pp
or

t t
he

 p
ro

gr
am

. 
 

En
co

ur
ag

e 
an

d 
ut

ili
ze

 
sh

ut
tle

s 
to

 
se

rv
e 

ne
ig

hb
or

ho
od

s,
 e

m
pl

oy
m

en
t c

en
te

rs
 a

nd
 m

aj
or

 
de

st
in

at
io

ns
. 

 
C

re
at

e 
a 

fre
e 

or
 l

ow
-c

os
t 

lo
ca

l 
ar

ea
 s

hu
ttl

e 
sy

st
em

 t
ha

t 
in

cl
ud

es
 a

 f
ix

ed
 r

ou
te

 t
o 

po
pu

la
r 

to
ur

is
t 

de
st

in
at

io
ns

 o
r 

sh
op

pi
ng

 a
nd

 b
us

in
es

s 
ce

nt
er

s.
 

 
W

or
k 

w
ith

 e
xi

st
in

g 
sh

ut
tle

 s
er

vi
ce

 p
ro

vi
de

rs
 t

o 
co

or
di

na
te

 th
ei

r s
er

vi
ce

s.
 

 
Fa

ci
lit

at
e 

em
pl

oy
m

en
t 

op
po

rtu
ni

tie
s 

th
at

 
m

in
im

iz
e 

th
e 

ne
ed

 f
or

 p
riv

at
e 

ve
hi

cl
e 

tri
ps

, 
in

cl
ud

in
g:

 
o 

Am
en

d 
zo

ni
ng

 
or

di
na

nc
es

 
an

d 
th

e 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t C

od
e 

to
 in

cl
ud

e 
liv

e/
w

or
k 

si
te

s 
an

d 
sa

te
lli

te
 

w
or

k 
ce

nt
er

s 
in

 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

 lo
ca

tio
ns

. 
o 

En
co

ur
ag

e 
te

le
co

m
m

ut
in

g 
op

tio
ns

 w
ith

 
ne

w
 a

nd
 e

xi
st

in
g 

em
pl

oy
er

s,
 t

hr
ou

gh
 

pr
oj

ec
t 

re
vi

ew
 

an
d 

in
ce

nt
iv

es
, 

as
 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
. 

 
En

fo
rc

e 
st

at
e 

id
lin

g 
la

w
s 

fo
r 

co
m

m
er

ci
al

 
ve

hi
cl

es
, 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
de

liv
er

y 
an

d 
co

ns
tru

ct
io

n 
ve

hi
cl

es
. 

 
O

rg
an

iz
e 

ev
en

ts
 a

nd
 w

or
ks

ho
ps

 t
o 

pr
om

ot
e 

G
H

G
-re

du
ci

ng
 a

ct
iv

iti
es

. 
 

Im
pl

em
en

t a
 P

ar
ki

ng
 M

an
ag

em
en

t P
ro

gr
am

 to
 

di
sc

ou
ra

ge
 p

riv
at

e 
ve

hi
cl

e 
us

e,
 in

cl
ud

in
g:

 
o 

En
co

ur
ag

in
g 

ca
rp

oo
ls

 
an

d 
va

np
oo

ls
 

w
ith

 p
re

fe
re

nt
ia

l p
ar

ki
ng

 a
nd

 a
 re

du
ce

d 



 
M

iti
ga

tio
n 

M
ea

su
re

s 
fro

m
 P

rio
r E

IR
s 

 M
au

be
rt 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

 
 

C
ity

 o
f L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 

Su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

C
om

m
un

iti
es

 P
ro

je
ct

 E
xe

m
pt

io
n 

 
 

N
ov

em
be

r 2
01

9 
Pa

ge
 A

3-
10

4 

Ta
bl

e 
A3

-1
 

M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
s 

fro
m

 P
rio

r E
IR

 (S
CA

G
’s

 2
01

6-
20

40
 R

TP
/S

CS
) 

 
Im

pa
ct

 
SC

AG
 2

01
6-

20
40

 R
TP

/S
CS

 M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
s 

(im
pl

em
en

te
d 

by
 le

ad
 a

ge
nc

y)
 

 
Ap

pl
ic

ab
ili

ty
 to

 th
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

pa
rk

in
g 

fe
e.

 
o 

In
st

itu
te

 a
 p

ar
ki

ng
 c

as
h-

ou
t p

ro
gr

am
. 

o 
R

en
eg

ot
ia

te
 

em
pl

oy
ee

 
co

nt
ra

ct
s,

 
w

he
re

 p
os

si
bl

e,
 t

o 
el

im
in

at
e 

pa
rk

in
g 

su
bs

id
ie

s.
 

o 
In

st
al

l 
on

- s
tre

et
 

pa
rk

in
g 

m
et

er
s 

w
ith

 
fe

e 
st

ru
ct

ur
es

 d
es

ig
ne

d 
to

 d
is

co
ur

ag
e 

pr
iv

at
e 

ve
hi

cl
e 

us
e.

 
o 

Es
ta

bl
is

h 
a 

pa
rk

in
g 

fe
e 

fo
r 

al
l 

si
ng

le
-

oc
cu

pa
nt

 v
eh

ic
le

s.
 

 
W

or
k 

w
ith

 
sc

ho
ol

 
di

st
ric

ts
 

to
 

im
pr

ov
e 

pe
de

st
ria

n 
an

d 
bi

cy
cl

e 
to

 s
ch

oo
ls

 a
nd

 r
es

to
re

 
sc

ho
ol

 b
us

 s
er

vi
ce

 
 

En
co

ur
ag

e 
th

e 
us

e 
of

 
bi

cy
cl

es
 

to
 

tra
ns

it 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

by
 p

ro
vi

di
ng

 b
ic

yc
le

 p
ar

ki
ng

 l
oc

ke
rs

 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

an
d 

bi
ke

 
la

nd
 

ac
ce

ss
 

to
 

tra
ns

it 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s.

 
 

M
on

ito
r 

tra
ffi

c 
co

ng
es

tio
n 

to
 d

et
er

m
in

e 
w

he
re

 
an

d 
w

he
n 

ne
w

 
tra

ns
po

rta
tio

n 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

ar
e 

ne
ed

ed
 to

 in
cr

ea
se

 a
cc

es
s 

an
d 

ef
fic

ie
nc

y.
 

 
D

ev
el

op
 

an
d 

im
pl

em
en

t 
a 

bi
cy

cl
e 

an
d 

pe
de

st
ria

n 
sa

fe
ty

 e
du

ca
tio

na
l p

ro
gr

am
 to

 te
ac

h 
dr

iv
er

s 
an

d 
rid

er
s 

th
e 

la
w

s,
 r

id
in

g 
pr

ot
oc

ol
s,

 
sa

fe
ty

 ti
ps

, a
nd

 e
m

er
ge

nc
y 

m
an

eu
ve

rs
. 

 
Sy

nc
hr

on
iz

e 
tra

ffi
c 

si
gn

al
s 

to
 

re
du

ce
 

co
ng

es
tio

n 
an

d 
ai

r q
ua

lit
y.

 
 

W
or

k 
w

ith
 c

om
m

un
ity

 g
ro

up
s 

an
d 

bu
si

ne
ss

 
as

so
ci

at
io

ns
 to

 o
rg

an
iz

e 
an

d 
pu

bl
ic

iz
e 

w
al

ki
ng

 
to

ur
s 

an
d 

bi
cy

cl
e 

ev
en

s.
 

 
Su

pp
or

t 
le

gi
sl

at
iv

e 
ef

fo
rts

 t
o 

in
cr

ea
se

 f
un

di
ng

 
fo

r l
oc

al
 s

tre
et

 re
pa

ir.
 

In
ad

eq
ua

te
 

E
m

er
ge

nc
y 

A
cc

es
s 

 Im
pa

ir 
or

 
In

te
rfe

re
 

w
ith

 
E

m
er

ge
nc

y 
R

es
po

ns
e 

or
 

M
M

-T
RA

-5
: 

C
on

si
st

en
t 

w
ith

 
th

e 
pr

ov
is

io
ns

 
of

 
Se

ct
io

n 
15

09
1 

of
 

th
e 

St
at

e 
C

EQ
A 

G
ui

de
lin

es
, 

SC
AG

 h
as

 id
en

tif
ie

d 
m

iti
ga

tio
n 

m
ea

su
re

s 
ca

pa
bl

e 
of

 
av

oi
di

ng
 

or
 

re
du

ci
ng

 
im

pa
ct

s 
to

 
em

er
ge

nc
y 

ac
ce

ss
 th

at
 a

re
 in

 th
e 

ju
ris

di
ct

io
n 

an
d 

re
sp

on
si

bi
lit

y 

Th
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

al
re

ad
y 

su
bs

ta
nt

ia
lly

 
co

nf
or

m
s 

to
 

th
is

 
m

iti
ga

tio
n 

m
ea

su
re

. 
Em

er
ge

nc
y 

ac
ce

ss
 

w
ou

ld
 

be
 

pr
ov

id
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

ex
is

tin
g 

st
re

et
 s

ys
te

m
, 

an
d 

th
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

w
ou

ld
 b

e 
su

bj
ec

t 
to

 t
he

 C
ity

’s
 e

xi
st

in
g 

re
gu

la
tio

ns
 t

ha
t 

re
qu

ire
 t

he
 P

ro
je

ct
 t

o 
co

m
pl

y 
w

ith
 t

he
 F

ire
 C

od
e 

an
d 



 
M

iti
ga

tio
n 

M
ea

su
re

s 
fro

m
 P

rio
r E

IR
s 

 M
au

be
rt 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

 
 

C
ity

 o
f L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 

Su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

C
om

m
un

iti
es

 P
ro

je
ct

 E
xe

m
pt

io
n 

 
 

N
ov

em
be

r 2
01

9 
Pa

ge
 A

3-
10

5 

Ta
bl

e 
A3

-1
 

M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
s 

fro
m

 P
rio

r E
IR

 (S
CA

G
’s

 2
01

6-
20

40
 R

TP
/S

CS
) 

 
Im

pa
ct

 
SC

AG
 2

01
6-

20
40

 R
TP

/S
CS

 M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
s 

(im
pl

em
en

te
d 

by
 le

ad
 a

ge
nc

y)
 

 
Ap

pl
ic

ab
ili

ty
 to

 th
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

E
va

cu
at

io
n 

P
la

n 
of

 f
ire

 d
ep

ar
tm

en
ts

, 
lo

ca
l 

en
fo

rc
em

en
t 

ag
en

ci
es

, 
an

d/
or

 L
ea

d 
Ag

en
ci

es
. 

W
he

re
 t

he
 L

ea
d 

Ag
en

cy
 

ha
s 

id
en

tif
ie

d 
th

at
 a

 p
ro

je
ct

 h
as

 t
he

 p
ot

en
tia

l 
fo

r 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 
ef

fe
ct

s,
 

th
e 

Le
ad

 
Ag

en
cy

 
ca

n 
an

d 
sh

ou
ld

 c
on

si
de

r 
im

pr
ov

in
g 

em
er

ge
nc

y 
ac

ce
ss

 a
nd

 
en

su
rin

g 
co

m
pl

ia
nc

e 
w

ith
 t

he
 p

ro
vi

si
on

s 
of

 t
he

 
co

un
ty

 
an

d 
ci

ty
 

ge
ne

ra
l 

pl
an

, 
Em

er
ge

nc
y 

Ev
ac

ua
tio

n 
Pl

an
, 

an
d 

ot
he

r 
re

gi
on

al
 

an
d 

lo
ca

l 
pl

an
s 

es
ta

bl
is

hi
ng

 a
cc

es
s 

du
rin

g 
em

er
ge

nc
ie

s,
 a

s 
ap

pl
ic

ab
le

 
an

d 
fe

as
ib

le
. 

C
om

pl
ia

nc
e 

ca
n 

be
 

ac
hi

ev
ed

 th
ro

ug
h 

ad
op

tin
g 

tra
ns

po
rta

tio
n 

m
iti

ga
tio

n 
m

ea
su

re
s 

as
 s

et
 f

or
th

 b
el

ow
, 

or
 t

hr
ou

gh
 o

th
er

 
co

m
pa

ra
bl

e 
m

ea
su

re
s 

id
en

tif
ie

d 
by

 
th

e 
Le

ad
 

Ag
en

cy
: 

  
Pr

io
r 

to
 c

on
st

ru
ct

io
n,

 p
ro

je
ct

 i
m

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

ag
en

ci
es

 
ca

n 
an

d 
sh

ou
ld

 
en

su
re

 
th

at
 

al
l 

ne
ce

ss
ar

y 
lo

ca
l 

an
d 

st
at

e 
ro

ad
 a

nd
 r

ai
lro

ad
 

en
cr

oa
ch

m
en

t 
pe

rm
its

 
ar

e 
ob

ta
in

ed
. 

Th
e 

pr
oj

ec
t i

m
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
ag

en
cy

 c
an

 a
nd

 s
ho

ul
d 

al
so

 c
om

pl
y 

w
ith

 a
ll 

ap
pl

ic
ab

le
 c

on
di

tio
ns

 o
f 

ap
pr

ov
al

. 
As

 
de

em
ed

 
ne

ce
ss

ar
y 

by
 

th
e 

go
ve

rn
in

g 
ju

ris
di

ct
io

n,
 t

he
 r

oa
d 

en
cr

oa
ch

m
en

t 
pe

rm
its

 m
ay

 re
qu

ire
 th

e 
co

nt
ra

ct
or

 to
 p

re
pa

re
 a

 
tra

ffi
c 

co
nt

ro
l 

pl
an

 
in

 
ac

co
rd

an
ce

 
w

ith
 

pr
of

es
si

on
al

 
en

gi
ne

er
in

g 
st

an
da

rd
s 

pr
io

r 
to

 
co

ns
tru

ct
io

n.
 

Tr
af

fic
 

co
nt

ro
l 

pl
an

s 
ca

n 
an

d 
sh

ou
ld

 in
cl

ud
e 

th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
: 

o 
Id

en
tif

ic
at

io
n 

of
 a

ll 
ro

ad
w

ay
 l

oc
at

io
ns

 
w

he
re

 s
pe

ci
al

 c
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
te

ch
ni

qu
es

 
(e

.g
., 

di
re

ct
io

na
l 

dr
illi

ng
 

or
 

ni
gh

t 
co

ns
tru

ct
io

n)
 

w
ou

ld
 

be
 

us
ed

 
to

 
m

in
im

iz
e 

im
pa

ct
s 

to
 tr

af
fic

 fl
ow

. 
o 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
of

 c
irc

ul
at

io
n 

an
d 

de
to

ur
 

pl
an

s 
to

 
m

in
im

iz
e 

im
pa

ct
s 

to
 

lo
ca

l 
st

re
et

 c
irc

ul
at

io
n.

 T
hi

s 
m

ay
 in

cl
ud

e 
th

e 

LA
M

C
 e

m
er

ge
nc

y 
ac

ce
ss

 r
eq

ui
re

m
en

ts
. A

dd
iti

on
al

ly
, t

he
 

LA
FD

 w
ou

ld
 r

eq
ui

re
 t

he
 P

ro
je

ct
 A

pp
lic

an
t 

to
 p

re
pa

re
 a

n 
em

er
ge

nc
y 

re
sp

on
se

 
pl

an
 

th
at

 
w

ou
ld

 
ad

dr
es

s 
th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g:

 m
ap

pi
ng

 o
f e

m
er

ge
nc

y 
ex

its
, e

va
cu

at
io

n 
ro

ut
es

 
fo

r 
ve

hi
cl

es
 a

nd
 p

ed
es

tri
an

s,
 a

nd
 l

oc
at

io
ns

 o
f 

ne
ar

es
t 

ho
sp

ita
ls

 a
nd

 f
ire

 d
ep

ar
tm

en
ts

. 
Th

er
ef

or
e,

 n
o 

m
iti

ga
tio

n 
m

ea
su

re
s 

ar
e 

re
qu

ire
d.

 



 
M

iti
ga

tio
n 

M
ea

su
re

s 
fro

m
 P

rio
r E

IR
s 

 M
au

be
rt 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

 
 

C
ity

 o
f L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 

Su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

C
om

m
un

iti
es

 P
ro

je
ct

 E
xe

m
pt

io
n 

 
 

N
ov

em
be

r 2
01

9 
Pa

ge
 A

3-
10

6 

Ta
bl

e 
A3

-1
 

M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
s 

fro
m

 P
rio

r E
IR

 (S
CA

G
’s

 2
01

6-
20

40
 R

TP
/S

CS
) 

 
Im

pa
ct

 
SC

AG
 2

01
6-

20
40

 R
TP

/S
CS

 M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
s 

(im
pl

em
en

te
d 

by
 le

ad
 a

ge
nc

y)
 

 
Ap

pl
ic

ab
ili

ty
 to

 th
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

us
e 

of
 s

ig
ni

ng
 a

nd
 f

la
gg

in
g 

to
 g

ui
de

 
ve

hi
cl

es
 

th
ro

ug
h 

an
d/

or
 

ar
ou

nd
 

th
e 

co
ns

tru
ct

io
n 

zo
ne

. 
o 

Sc
he

du
lin

g 
of

 t
ru

ck
 

tri
ps

 
ou

ts
id

e 
of

 
pe

ak
 m

or
ni

ng
 a

nd
 e

ve
ni

ng
 c

om
m

ut
e 

ho
ur

s.
 

o 
Li

m
iti

ng
 o

f 
la

ne
 c

lo
su

re
s 

du
rin

g 
pe

ak
 

ho
ur

s 
to

 th
e 

ex
te

nt
 p

os
si

bl
e.

 
o 

U
sa

ge
 o

f 
ha

ul
 r

ou
te

s 
m

in
im

iz
in

g 
tru

ck
 

tra
ffi

c 
on

 lo
ca

l r
oa

dw
ay

s 
to

 t
he

 e
xt

en
t 

po
ss

ib
le

. 
o 

In
cl

us
io

n 
of

 d
et

ou
rs

 f
or

 b
ic

yc
le

s 
an

d 
pe

de
st

ria
ns

 
in

 
al

l 
ar

ea
s 

po
te

nt
ia

lly
 

af
fe

ct
ed

 b
y 

pr
oj

ec
t c

on
st

ru
ct

io
n.

 
o 

In
st

al
la

tio
n 

of
 tr

af
fic

 c
on

tro
l d

ev
ic

es
 a

s 
sp

ec
ifi

ed
 in

 t
he

 C
al

ifo
rn

ia
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
of

 
Tr

an
sp

or
ta

tio
n 

M
an

ua
l 

of
 

Tr
af

fic
 

C
on

tro
ls

 
fo

r 
C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

an
d 

M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 W
or

k 
Zo

ne
s.

 
o 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
an

d 
im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

of
 

ac
ce

ss
 p

la
ns

 f
or

 h
ig

hl
y 

se
ns

iti
ve

 l
an

d 
us

es
 s

uc
h 

as
 p

ol
ic

e 
an

d 
fir

e 
st

at
io

ns
, 

tra
ns

it 
st

at
io

ns
, h

os
pi

ta
ls

, a
nd

 s
ch

oo
ls

. 
Th

e 
ac

ce
ss

 p
la

ns
 w

ou
ld

 b
e 

de
ve

lo
pe

d 
w

ith
 th

e 
fa

ci
lit

y 
ow

ne
r 

or
 a

dm
in

is
tra

to
r. 

To
 m

in
im

iz
e 

di
sr

up
tio

n 
of

 e
m

er
ge

nc
y 

ve
hi

cl
e 

ac
ce

ss
, 

af
fe

ct
ed

 j
ur

is
di

ct
io

ns
 

ca
n 

an
d 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
as

ke
d 

to
 i

de
nt

ify
 

de
to

ur
s 

fo
r 

em
er

ge
nc

y 
ve

hi
cl

es
, w

hi
ch

 
w

ill
 t

he
n 

be
 p

os
te

d 
by

 t
he

 c
on

tra
ct

or
. 

N
ot

ify
 in

 a
dv

an
ce

 t
he

 f
ac

ilit
y 

ow
ne

r 
or

 
op

er
at

or
 o

f 
th

e 
tim

in
g,

 l
oc

at
io

n,
 a

nd
 

du
ra

tio
n 

of
 c

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

ac
tiv

iti
es

 a
nd

 
th

e 
lo

ca
tio

ns
 

of
 

de
to

ur
s 

an
d 

la
ne

 
cl

os
ur

es
. 

o 
St

or
ag

e 
of

 c
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
m

at
er

ia
ls

 o
nl

y 



 
M

iti
ga

tio
n 

M
ea

su
re

s 
fro

m
 P

rio
r E

IR
s 

 M
au

be
rt 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

 
 

C
ity

 o
f L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 

Su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

C
om

m
un

iti
es

 P
ro

je
ct

 E
xe

m
pt

io
n 

 
 

N
ov

em
be

r 2
01

9 
Pa

ge
 A

3-
10

7 

Ta
bl

e 
A3

-1
 

M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
s 

fro
m

 P
rio

r E
IR

 (S
CA

G
’s

 2
01

6-
20

40
 R

TP
/S

CS
) 

 
Im

pa
ct

 
SC

AG
 2

01
6-

20
40

 R
TP

/S
CS

 M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
s 

(im
pl

em
en

te
d 

by
 le

ad
 a

ge
nc

y)
 

 
Ap

pl
ic

ab
ili

ty
 to

 th
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

in
 d

es
ig

na
te

d 
ar

ea
s.

 
 

C
oo

rd
in

at
io

n 
w

ith
 

lo
ca

l 
tra

ns
it 

ag
en

ci
es

 
fo

r 
te

m
po

ra
ry

 r
el

oc
at

io
n 

of
 r

ou
te

s 
or

 b
us

 s
to

ps
 in

 
w

or
k 

zo
ne

s,
 a

s 
ne

ce
ss

ar
y.

 E
ns

ur
e 

th
e 

ra
pi

d 
re

pa
ir 

of
 t

ra
ns

po
rta

tio
n 

in
fra

st
ru

ct
ur

e 
in

 t
he

 
ev

en
t 

of
 a

n 
em

er
ge

nc
y 

th
ro

ug
h 

co
op

er
at

io
n 

am
on

g 
pu

bl
ic

 
ag

en
ci

es
 

an
d 

by
 

id
en

tif
yi

ng
 

cr
iti

ca
l 

in
fra

st
ru

ct
ur

e 
ne

ed
s 

ne
ce

ss
ar

y 
fo

r: 
a)

 
em

er
ge

nc
y 

re
sp

on
de

rs
 t

o 
en

te
r 

th
e 

re
gi

on
, 

b)
 

ev
ac

ua
tio

n 
of

 
af

fe
ct

ed
 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s,
 

an
d 

c)
 

re
st

or
at

io
n 

of
 u

til
iti

es
. 

 
En

ha
nc

e 
em

er
ge

nc
y 

pr
ep

ar
ed

ne
ss

 a
w

ar
en

es
s 

am
on

g 
pu

bl
ic

 a
ge

nc
ie

s 
an

d 
w

ith
 t

he
 p

ub
lic

 a
t 

la
rg

e.
 

 
Pr

ov
is

io
n 

fo
r 

co
lla

bo
ra

tio
n 

in
 

pl
an

ni
ng

, 
co

m
m

un
ic

at
io

n,
 

an
d 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

sh
ar

in
g 

be
fo

re
, 

du
rin

g,
 o

r 
af

te
r 

a 
re

gi
on

al
 e

m
er

ge
nc

y 
th

ro
ug

h 
th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g:

 
o 

In
co

rp
or

at
e 

st
ra

te
gi

es
 

an
d 

ac
tio

ns
 

pe
rta

in
in

g 
to

 r
es

po
ns

e 
an

d 
pr

ev
en

tio
n 

of
 s

ec
ur

ity
 in

ci
de

nt
s 

an
d 

ev
en

ts
 a

s 
pa

rt 
of

 
th

e 
on

-g
oi

ng
 

re
gi

on
al

 
pl

an
ni

ng
 

ac
tiv

iti
es

. 
o 

Pr
ov

id
e 

a 
re

gi
on

al
 r

ep
os

ito
ry

 o
f 

G
IS

 
da

ta
 

fo
r 

us
e 

by
 

lo
ca

l 
ag

en
ci

es
 

in
 

em
er

ge
nc

y 
pl

an
ni

ng
, a

nd
 r

es
po

ns
e,

 in
 

a 
st

an
da

rd
iz

ed
 fo

rm
at

. 
o 

En
te

r 
in

to
 m

ut
ua

l a
id

 a
gr

ee
m

en
ts

 w
ith

 
ot

he
r l

oc
al

 ju
ris

di
ct

io
ns

, i
n 

co
or

di
na

tio
n 

w
ith

 t
he

 C
al

ifo
rn

ia
 O

ES
, 

in
 t

he
 e

ve
nt

 
th

at
 a

n 
ev

en
t d

is
ru

pt
s 

th
e 

ju
ris

di
ct

io
n’

s 
ab

ili
ty

 to
 fu

nc
tio

n.
 

U
til

iti
es

 a
nd

 S
er

vi
ce

 S
ys

te
m

s 
(U

SS
) 

R
eq

ui
re

 
N

ew
 

W
at

er
 

or
 

W
as

te
w

at
er

 
Tr

ea
tm

en
t 

Fa
ci

lit
ie

s 

M
M

-U
SS

-3
: 

C
on

si
st

en
t 

w
ith

 
th

e 
pr

ov
is

io
ns

 
of

 
Se

ct
io

n 
15

09
1 

of
 

th
e 

St
at

e 
C

EQ
A 

G
ui

de
lin

es
, 

SC
AG

 h
as

 id
en

tif
ie

d 
m

iti
ga

tio
n 

m
ea

su
re

s 
ca

pa
bl

e 

Th
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

al
re

ad
y 

su
bs

ta
nt

ia
lly

 
co

nf
or

m
s 

to
 

th
is

 
m

iti
ga

tio
n 

m
ea

su
re

. A
s 

di
sc

us
se

d 
in

 th
e 

W
as

te
w

at
er

 a
nd

 
W

at
er

 U
til

ity
 In

fra
st

ru
ct

ur
e 

Te
ch

ni
ca

l R
ep

or
t (

at
ta

ch
ed

 a
s 



 
M

iti
ga

tio
n 

M
ea

su
re

s 
fro

m
 P

rio
r E

IR
s 

 M
au

be
rt 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

 
 

C
ity

 o
f L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 

Su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

C
om

m
un

iti
es

 P
ro

je
ct

 E
xe

m
pt

io
n 

 
 

N
ov

em
be

r 2
01

9 
Pa

ge
 A

3-
10

8 

Ta
bl

e 
A3

-1
 

M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
s 

fro
m

 P
rio

r E
IR

 (S
CA

G
’s

 2
01

6-
20

40
 R

TP
/S

CS
) 

 
Im

pa
ct

 
SC

AG
 2

01
6-

20
40

 R
TP

/S
CS

 M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
s 

(im
pl

em
en

te
d 

by
 le

ad
 a

ge
nc

y)
 

 
Ap

pl
ic

ab
ili

ty
 to

 th
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

of
 a

vo
id

in
g 

or
 r

ed
uc

in
g 

th
e 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 e

ffe
ct

s 
on

 
ut

ilit
ie

s 
an

d 
se

rv
ic

e 
sy

st
em

s,
 

pa
rti

cu
la

rly
 

fo
r 

co
ns

tru
ct

io
n 

of
 

st
or

m
 

w
at

er
 

dr
ai

na
ge

 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
ne

w
 tr

an
sp

or
ta

tio
n 

an
d 

la
nd

 u
se

 p
ro

je
ct

s 
th

at
 

ar
e 

w
ith

in
 

th
e 

re
sp

on
si

bi
lit

y 
of

 
lo

ca
l 

ju
ris

di
ct

io
ns

 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

th
e 

R
iv

er
si

de
, 

Sa
n 

Be
rn

ar
di

no
, 

Lo
s 

An
ge

le
s,

 V
en

tu
ra

, 
an

d 
O

ra
ng

e 
C

ou
nt

ie
s 

Fl
oo

d 
C

on
tro

l 
D

is
tri

ct
, 

an
d 

C
ou

nt
y 

of
 

Im
pe

ria
l. 

W
he

re
 t

he
 L

ea
d 

Ag
en

cy
 h

as
 i

de
nt

ifi
ed

 
th

at
 

a 
pr

oj
ec

t 
ha

s 
th

e 
po

te
nt

ia
l 

fo
r 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 

ef
fe

ct
s,

 th
e 

Le
ad

 A
ge

nc
y 

ca
n 

an
d 

sh
ou

ld
 c

on
si

de
r 

m
iti

ga
tio

n 
m

ea
su

re
s,

 a
s 

ap
pl

ic
ab

le
 a

nd
 f

ea
si

bl
e.

 
Th

es
e 

m
iti

ga
tio

n 
m

ea
su

re
s 

ar
e 

w
ith

in
 

th
e 

re
sp

on
si

bi
lit

y 
of

 t
he

 L
ea

d 
Ag

en
ci

es
 a

nd
 R

eg
io

na
l 

W
at

er
 Q

ua
lit

y 
C

on
tro

l B
oa

rd
s 

of
 (

R
eg

io
ns

 4
, 

6,
 8

, 
an

d 
9)

 p
ur

su
an

t 
to

 t
he

 p
ro

vi
si

on
s 

of
 t

he
 N

at
io

na
l 

Fl
oo

d 
In

su
ra

nc
e 

Ac
t, 

st
or

m
w

at
er

 
pe

rm
itt

in
g 

re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

 f
or

 s
to

rm
w

at
er

 d
is

ch
ar

ge
s 

fo
r 

ne
w

 
co

ns
tru

ct
io

ns
, 

th
e 

flo
od

 c
on

tro
l 

ac
t, 

an
d 

U
rb

an
 

W
as

te
 M

an
ag

em
en

t P
la

n.
 

 Su
ch

 m
iti

ga
tio

n 
m

ea
su

re
s,

 o
r 

ot
he

r 
co

m
pa

ra
bl

e 
m

ea
su

re
s,

 
ca

pa
bl

e 
of

 
av

oi
di

ng
 

or
 

re
du

ci
ng

 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 i
m

pa
ct

s 
on

 t
he

 u
se

 o
f 

ex
is

tin
g 

st
or

m
 

w
at

er
 d

ra
in

ag
e 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
an

d 
ca

n 
an

d 
sh

ou
ld

 b
e 

ad
op

te
d 

w
he

re
 L

ea
d 

Ag
en

ci
es

 i
de

nt
ify

 s
ig

ni
fic

an
t 

im
pa

ct
s 

on
 n

ew
 s

to
rm

 w
at

er
 d

ra
in

ag
e 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s.
 

 

Ap
pe

nd
ix

 C
), 

th
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t w

ou
ld

 c
om

pl
y 

w
ith

 th
e 

C
ity

’s
 L

ID
 

de
si

gn
 s

ta
nd

ar
ds

 (f
or

m
al

ly
 p

ro
vi

de
d 

ab
ov

e 
as

 R
C

M
-H

YD
-

1.
 T

o 
fa

ci
lit

at
e 

th
is

, t
he

 p
ro

po
se

d 
st

or
m

w
at

er
 B

M
P 

th
at

 is
 

co
ns

id
er

ed
 i

s 
bi

o-
in

fil
tra

tio
n 

flo
w

-th
ro

ug
h 

pl
an

te
rs

. 
Th

e 
en

tir
et

y 
of

 th
e 

bu
ild

in
g’

s 
ro

of
 d

ra
in

s 
w

ill
 b

e 
di

ve
rte

d 
to

 th
e 

bi
o-

in
fil

tra
tio

n 
flo

w
-th

ro
ug

h 
pl

an
te

rs
 

an
d 

th
e 

ov
er

flo
w

 
di

sc
ha

rg
e 

w
ill

 b
e 

di
sc

ha
rg

ed
 t

o 
M

au
be

rt 
Av

en
ue

 v
ia

 a
 

cu
rb

 d
ra

in
 o

r p
ar

kw
ay

 d
ra

in
, s

im
ila

r t
o 

ex
is

tin
g 

co
nd

iti
on

s.
 

Po
st

-d
ed

ic
at

io
n,

 th
e 

to
ta

l s
ite

 a
re

a 
is

 a
pp

ro
xi

m
at

el
y 

0.
76

 
ac

re
s 

in
 s

iz
e.

 B
as

ed
 o

n 
an

 a
pp

ro
xi

m
at

e 
im

pe
rv

io
us

 a
re

a 
pe

rc
en

ta
ge

 o
f 

99
%

, t
he

 v
ol

um
e 

m
iti

ga
te

d 
is

 2
,4

50
 c

ub
ic

 
fe

et
. T

he
 p

ro
po

se
d 

st
or

m
w

at
er

 t
re

at
m

en
t 

sy
st

em
 w

ill
 b

e 
de

si
gn

ed
 

to
 

bo
th

 
ac

co
m

m
od

at
e 

th
e 

re
qu

ire
d 

vo
lu

m
e 

m
iti

ga
te

d 
as

 w
el

l a
s 

lim
it 

th
e 

po
st

-c
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
di

sc
ha

rg
e 

to
 a

vo
id

 o
n-

si
te

 o
r o

ff-
si

te
 fl

oo
di

ng
 a

nd
 to

 n
ot

 e
xc

ee
d 

th
e 

ca
pa

ci
ty

 
of

 
th

e 
ex

is
tin

g 
ad

ja
ce

nt
 

pu
bl

ic
 

st
re

et
 

an
d 

do
w

ns
tre

am
 s

to
rm

w
at

er
 f

ac
ilit

ie
s.

 A
s 

su
ch

, 
th

e 
Pr

oj
ec

t 
w

ou
ld

 
no

t 
re

qu
ire

 
th

e 
co

ns
tru

ct
io

n 
of

 
ne

w
 

of
f-s

ite
 

st
or

m
w

at
er

 d
ra

in
ag

e 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

or
 e

xp
an

si
on

 o
f 

ex
is

tin
g 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s,
 a

nd
 im

pa
ct

s 
w

ou
ld

 b
e 

le
ss

 th
an

 s
ig

ni
fic

an
t. 

  

R
eq

ui
re

 
N

ew
 

or
 

Ex
pa

nd
ed

 
E

nt
itl

em
en

ts
 fo

r W
at

er
 S

up
pl

y 
M

M
-U

SS
-4

: 
C

on
si

st
en

t 
w

ith
 

th
e 

pr
ov

is
io

ns
 

of
 

Se
ct

io
n 

15
09

1 
of

 
th

e 
St

at
e 

C
EQ

A 
G

ui
de

lin
es

, 
SC

AG
 h

as
 id

en
tif

ie
d 

m
iti

ga
tio

n 
m

ea
su

re
s 

ca
pa

bl
e 

of
 a

vo
id

in
g 

or
 r

ed
uc

in
g 

th
e 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 e

ffe
ct

s 
on

 
w

at
er

 s
up

pl
ie

s 
fro

m
 e

xi
st

in
g 

en
tit

le
m

en
ts

 r
eq

ui
rin

g 
ne

w
 o

r 
ex

pa
nd

ed
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

in
 th

e 
vi

ci
ni

ty
 o

f H
Q

TA
s 

th
at

 a
re

 i
n 

th
e 

ju
ris

di
ct

io
n 

an
d 

re
sp

on
si

bi
lit

y 
of

 
pu

bl
ic

 a
ge

nc
ie

s 
an

d/
or

 L
ea

d 
Ag

en
ci

es
. W

he
re

 th
e 

Th
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

al
re

ad
y 

su
bs

ta
nt

ia
lly

 
co

nf
or

m
s 

to
 

th
is

 
m

iti
ga

tio
n 

m
ea

su
re

. 
To

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 t
he

 P
ro

je
ct

 r
ed

uc
es

 
its

 p
ro

je
ct

ed
 w

at
er

 d
em

an
d 

to
 t

he
 e

xt
en

t 
fe

as
ib

le
, 

th
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t w

ou
ld

 b
e 

re
qu

ire
d 

to
 c

om
pl

y 
w

ith
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 N
o.

 
17

0,
97

8 
(L

an
ds

ca
pe

 
O

rd
in

an
ce

), 
w

hi
ch

 
im

po
se

s 
nu

m
er

ou
s 

w
at

er
 c

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

m
ea

su
re

s 
in

 l
an

ds
ca

pi
ng

, 
in

st
al

la
tio

n,
 a

nd
 m

ai
nt

en
an

ce
. 

 



 
M

iti
ga

tio
n 

M
ea

su
re

s 
fro

m
 P

rio
r E

IR
s 

 M
au

be
rt 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

 
 

C
ity

 o
f L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 

Su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

C
om

m
un

iti
es

 P
ro

je
ct

 E
xe

m
pt

io
n 

 
 

N
ov

em
be

r 2
01

9 
Pa

ge
 A

3-
10

9 

Ta
bl

e 
A3

-1
 

M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
s 

fro
m

 P
rio

r E
IR

 (S
CA

G
’s

 2
01

6-
20

40
 R

TP
/S

CS
) 

 
Im

pa
ct

 
SC

AG
 2

01
6-

20
40

 R
TP

/S
CS

 M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
s 

(im
pl

em
en

te
d 

by
 le

ad
 a

ge
nc

y)
 

 
Ap

pl
ic

ab
ili

ty
 to

 th
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

Le
ad

 A
ge

nc
y 

ha
s 

id
en

tif
ie

d 
th

at
 a

 p
ro

je
ct

 h
as

 t
he

 
po

te
nt

ia
l 

fo
r 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 e

ffe
ct

s,
 t

he
 L

ea
d 

Ag
en

cy
 

ca
n 

an
d 

sh
ou

ld
 c

on
si

de
r 

m
iti

ga
tio

n 
m

ea
su

re
s 

to
 

en
su

re
 c

om
pl

ia
nc

e 
w

ith
 E

O
 B

-2
9-

15
, p

ro
vi

si
on

s 
of

 
th

e 
Po

rte
r 

–C
ol

og
ne

 W
at

er
 Q

ua
lit

y 
C

on
tro

l 
Ac

t, 
C

al
ifo

rn
ia

 
D

om
es

tic
 

W
at

er
 

Su
pp

ly
 

Pe
rm

it 
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
, a

nd
 a

pp
lic

ab
le

 C
ou

nt
y,

 C
ity

 o
r 

ot
he

r 
Lo

ca
l p

ro
vi

si
on

s.
 S

uc
h 

m
ea

su
re

s 
m

ay
 in

cl
ud

e 
th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

or
 o

th
er

 c
om

pa
ra

bl
e 

m
ea

su
re

s 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

by
 th

e 
Le

ad
 A

ge
nc

y:
 

  
R

ed
uc

e 
ex

te
rio

r 
co

ns
um

pt
iv

e 
us

es
 o

f 
w

at
er

 in
 

pu
bl

ic
 a

re
as

, a
nd

 s
ho

ul
d 

pr
om

ot
e 

re
du

ct
io

ns
 in

 
pr

iv
at

e 
ho

m
es

 a
nd

 b
us

in
es

se
s,

 b
y 

sh
ift

in
g 

to
 

dr
ou

gh
t-t

ol
er

an
t 

na
tiv

e 
la

nd
sc

ap
e 

pl
an

tin
gs

 
(x

er
is

ca
pi

ng
), 

us
in

g 
w

ea
th

er
-b

as
ed

 
irr

ig
at

io
n 

sy
st

em
s,

 
ed

uc
at

in
g 

ot
he

r 
pu

bl
ic

 
ag

en
ci

es
 

ab
ou

t 
w

at
er

 u
se

, 
an

d 
in

st
al

lin
g 

re
la

te
d 

w
at

er
 

pr
ic

in
g 

in
ce

nt
iv

es
. 

 
Pr

om
ot

e 
th

e 
av

ai
la

bi
lit

y 
of

 
dr

ou
gh

t-r
es

is
ta

nt
 

la
nd

sc
ap

in
g 

op
tio

ns
 a

nd
 p

ro
vi

de
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
on

 
w

he
re

 
th

es
e 

ca
n 

be
 

pu
rc

ha
se

d.
 

U
se

 
of

 
re

cl
ai

m
ed

 
w

at
er

 
es

pe
ci

al
ly

 
in

 
m

ed
ia

n 
la

nd
sc

ap
in

g 
an

d 
hi

lls
id

e 
la

nd
sc

ap
in

g 
ca

n 
an

d 
sh

ou
ld

 b
e 

im
pl

em
en

te
d 

w
he

re
 fe

as
ib

le
. 

 
Im

pl
em

en
t 

w
at

er
 c

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

be
st

 p
ra

ct
ic

es
 

su
ch

 a
s 

lo
w

-fl
ow

 to
ile

ts
, w

at
er

-e
ffi

ci
en

t c
lo

th
es

 
w

as
he

rs
, 

w
at

er
 

sy
st

em
 

au
di

ts
, 

an
d 

le
ak

 
de

te
ct

io
n 

an
d 

re
pa

ir.
 

 
En

su
re

 
th

at
 

pr
oj

ec
ts

 
re

qu
iri

ng
 

co
nt

in
ua

l 
de

w
at

er
in

g 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

im
pl

em
en

t 
m

on
ito

rin
g 

sy
st

em
s 

an
d 

lo
ng

-te
rm

 
ad

m
in

is
tra

tiv
e 

pr
oc

ed
ur

es
 

to
 

en
su

re
 

pr
op

er
 

w
at

er
 

m
an

ag
em

en
t 

th
at

 
pr

ev
en

ts
 

de
gr

ad
in

g 
of

 
su

rfa
ce

 w
at

er
 a

nd
 m

in
im

iz
es

, 
to

 t
he

 g
re

at
es

t 
ex

te
nt

 
po

ss
ib

le
, 

ad
ve

rs
e 

im
pa

ct
s 

on
 

In
 a

dd
iti

on
, 

th
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

w
ou

ld
 b

e 
re

qu
ire

d 
to

 d
es

ig
n 

its
 

bu
ild

in
g 

an
d 

la
nd

sc
ap

in
g 

to
 a

ch
ie

ve
 2

5 
pe

rc
en

t 
le

ss
 

w
at

er
 u

sa
ge

 th
an

 th
e 

av
er

ag
e 

ho
us

eh
ol

d 
in

 th
e 

re
gi

on
 a

s 
pa

rt 
of

 th
e 

C
EQ

A 
ex

em
pt

io
n 

pr
oc

es
s.

 T
he

 P
ro

je
ct

 w
ou

ld
 

in
cl

ud
e 

PD
F-

EN
-1

, 
w

hi
ch

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
pr

ov
id

ed
 a

bo
ve

. 
As

 
di

sc
us

se
d 

in
 

th
e 

En
er

gy
 

an
d 

W
at

er
 

Ef
fic

ie
nc

y 
C

om
pl

ia
nc

e 
R

ep
or

t 
(in

cl
ud

ed
 

as
 

Ap
pe

nd
ix

 
H

), 
th

e 
Pr

oj
ec

t’s
 in

cl
us

io
n 

of
 th

e 
m

ea
su

re
s 

pr
ov

id
ed

 in
 P

D
F-

EN
-1

 
w

ou
ld

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 th
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t i

s 
15

 p
er

ce
nt

 m
or

e 
en

er
gy

 
ef

fic
ie

nt
 t

ha
n 

th
e 

Ti
tle

 2
4 

st
an

da
rd

s 
an

d 
w

ou
ld

 a
ch

ie
ve

 
ap

pr
ox

im
at

el
y 

79
 p

er
ce

nt
 l

es
s 

w
at

er
 u

sa
ge

 t
ha

n 
th

e 
av

er
ag

e 
ho

us
eh

ol
d 

in
 th

e 
re

gi
on

.  



 
M

iti
ga

tio
n 

M
ea

su
re

s 
fro

m
 P

rio
r E

IR
s 

 M
au

be
rt 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

 
 

C
ity

 o
f L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 

Su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

C
om

m
un

iti
es

 P
ro

je
ct

 E
xe

m
pt

io
n 

 
 

N
ov

em
be

r 2
01

9 
Pa

ge
 A

3-
11

0 

Ta
bl

e 
A3

-1
 

M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
s 

fro
m

 P
rio

r E
IR

 (S
CA

G
’s

 2
01

6-
20

40
 R

TP
/S

CS
) 

 
Im

pa
ct

 
SC

AG
 2

01
6-

20
40

 R
TP

/S
CS

 M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
s 

(im
pl

em
en

te
d 

by
 le

ad
 a

ge
nc

y)
 

 
Ap

pl
ic

ab
ili

ty
 to

 th
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

gr
ou

nd
w

at
er

 f
or

 th
e 

lif
e 

of
 th

e 
pr

oj
ec

t. 
C

om
pl

y 
w

ith
 a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
 b

ui
ld

in
g 

co
de

s 
an

d 
st

an
da

rd
 

pr
ac

tic
es

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
th

e 
U

ni
fo

rm
 B

ui
ld

in
g 

C
od

e.
 

 
M

ax
im

iz
e,

 
w

he
re

 
pr

ac
tic

al
 

an
d 

fe
as

ib
le

, 
pe

rm
ea

bl
e 

su
rfa

ce
 a

re
a 

in
 e

xi
st

in
g 

ur
ba

ni
ze

d 
ar

ea
s 

to
 p

ro
te

ct
 w

at
er

 q
ua

lit
y,

 r
ed

uc
e 

flo
od

in
g,

 
al

lo
w

 f
or

 g
ro

un
dw

at
er

 r
ec

ha
rg

e,
 a

nd
 p

re
se

rv
e 

w
ild

lif
e 

ha
bi

ta
t. 

M
in

im
iz

ed
 

ne
w

 
im

pe
rv

io
us

 
su

rfa
ce

s 
to

 
th

e 
gr

ea
te

st
 

ex
te

nt
 

po
ss

ib
le

, 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

th
e 

us
e 

of
 i

n-
lie

u 
fe

es
 a

nd
 o

ff-
si

te
 

m
iti

ga
tio

n.
 

 
Av

oi
d 

de
si

gn
s 

th
at

 
re

qu
ire

 
co

nt
in

ua
l 

de
w

at
er

in
g 

w
he

re
 f

ea
si

bl
e.

 W
he

re
 fe

as
ib

le
, d

o 
no

t 
si

te
 t

ra
ns

po
rta

tio
n 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
in

 g
ro

un
dw

at
er

 
re

ch
ar

ge
 a

re
as

, t
o 

pr
ev

en
t c

on
ve

rs
io

n 
of

 th
os

e 
ar

ea
s 

to
 im

pe
rv

io
us

 s
ur

fa
ce

. 
La

nd
fil

l 
w

ith
 

S
uf

fic
ie

nt
 

C
ap

ac
ity

 
M

M
-U

SS
-6

: 
C

on
si

st
en

t 
w

ith
 

th
e 

pr
ov

is
io

ns
 

of
 

Se
ct

io
n 

15
09

1 
of

 
th

e 
St

at
e 

C
EQ

A 
G

ui
de

lin
es

, 
SC

AG
 h

as
 id

en
tif

ie
d 

m
iti

ga
tio

n 
m

ea
su

re
s 

ca
pa

bl
e 

of
 a

vo
id

in
g 

or
 r

ed
uc

in
g 

th
e 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 e

ffe
ct

s 
to

 
se

rv
e 

la
nd

fil
ls

 w
ith

 s
uf

fic
ie

nt
 p

er
m

itt
ed

 c
ap

ac
ity

 t
o 

ac
co

m
m

od
at

e 
so

lid
 w

as
te

 d
is

po
sa

l n
ee

ds
, i

n 
w

hi
ch

 
75

 p
er

ce
nt

 o
f 

th
e 

w
as

te
 s

tre
am

 b
e 

re
cy

cl
ed

 a
nd

 
w

as
te

 r
ed

uc
tio

n 
go

al
 b

y 
50

 p
er

ce
nt

 th
at

 a
re

 w
ith

in
 

th
e 

re
sp

on
si

bi
lit

y 
of

 p
ub

lic
 a

ge
nc

ie
s 

an
d/

or
 L

ea
d 

Ag
en

ci
es

. 
W

he
re

 t
he

 L
ea

d 
Ag

en
cy

 h
as

 i
de

nt
ifi

ed
 

th
at

 a
 p

ro
je

ct
 t

ha
t 

ha
s 

th
e 

po
te

nt
ia

l f
or

 s
ig

ni
fic

an
t 

ef
fe

ct
s,

 th
e 

Le
ad

 A
ge

nc
y 

ca
n 

an
d 

sh
ou

ld
 c

on
si

de
r 

m
iti

ga
tio

n 
m

ea
su

re
s 

to
 

en
su

re
 

co
m

pl
ia

nc
e 

pu
rs

ua
nt

 
to

 
th

e 
pr

ov
is

io
ns

 
of

 
th

e 
So

lid
 W

as
te

 
D

iv
er

si
on

 
G

oa
ls

 
an

d 
In

te
gr

at
ed

 
W

as
te

 
M

an
ag

em
en

t 
Pl

an
, 

as
 

ap
pl

ic
ab

le
 

an
d 

fe
as

ib
le

. 
Su

ch
 m

ea
su

re
s 

m
ay

 in
cl

ud
e 

th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
or

 o
th

er
 

co
m

pa
ra

bl
e 

m
ea

su
re

s 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

by
 

th
e 

Le
ad

 
Ag

en
cy

: 
 

Th
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

al
re

ad
y 

su
bs

ta
nt

ia
lly

 
co

nf
or

m
s 

to
 

th
is

 
m

iti
ga

tio
n 

m
ea

su
re

. 
Th

e 
Pr

oj
ec

t 
w

ou
ld

 c
om

pl
y 

w
ith

 t
he

 
C

ity
 o

f L
os

 A
ng

el
es

 G
re

en
 B

ui
ld

in
g 

C
od

e,
 w

hi
ch

 re
qu

ire
s 

th
e 

re
cy

cl
in

g 
an

d/
or

 s
al

va
gi

ng
 o

f 
65

 p
er

ce
nt

 o
f 

no
n-

ha
za

rd
ou

s 
co

ns
tru

ct
io

n 
an

d 
de

m
ol

iti
on

 w
as

te
. 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

co
ns

tru
ct

io
n 

w
as

te
 w

ou
ld

 b
e 

ha
ul

ed
 b

y 
pe

rm
itt

ed
 h

au
le

rs
 

an
d 

ta
ke

n 
on

ly
 

to
 

C
ity

-c
er

tif
ie

d 
co

ns
tru

ct
io

n 
an

d 
de

m
ol

iti
on

 (
C

&D
) 

pr
oc

es
si

ng
 fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

th
at

 a
re

 m
on

ito
re

d 
fo

r 
co

m
pl

ia
nc

e 
w

ith
 

ex
is

tin
g 

re
gu

la
tio

ns
 

(fo
rm

al
ly

 
pr

ov
id

ed
 

as
 

R
C

M
-U

SS
-1

, 
fu

rth
er

 
be

lo
w

). 
Pr

oj
ec

t-
ge

ne
ra

te
d 

C
&D

 w
as

te
 

w
ou

ld
 r

ep
re

se
nt

 a
 v

er
y 

sm
al

l 
po

rti
on

 o
f 

th
e 

w
as

te
 d

is
po

sa
l 

ca
pa

ci
ty

 i
n 

th
e 

re
gi

on
. 

In
 

ad
di

tio
n,

 
w

as
te

 
ge

ne
ra

te
d 

by
 

th
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

w
ou

ld
 

be
 

su
bj

ec
t 

to
 S

ta
te

 a
nd

 lo
ca

l r
ec

yc
lin

g 
an

d 
w

as
te

 d
iv

er
si

on
 

st
ra

te
gi

es
 a

nd
 p

ol
ic

ie
s 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
th

e 
C

ity
’s

 Z
er

o 
W

as
te

 
Pl

an
 g

oa
l o

f a
ch

ie
vi

ng
 a

 9
0 

pe
rc

en
t s

ol
id

 w
as

te
 d

iv
er

si
on

 
ra

te
 b

y 
20

25
. 

  



 
M

iti
ga

tio
n 

M
ea

su
re

s 
fro

m
 P

rio
r E

IR
s 

 M
au

be
rt 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

 
 

C
ity

 o
f L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 

Su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

C
om

m
un

iti
es

 P
ro

je
ct

 E
xe

m
pt

io
n 

 
 

N
ov

em
be

r 2
01

9 
Pa

ge
 A

3-
11

1 

Ta
bl

e 
A3

-1
 

M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
s 

fro
m

 P
rio

r E
IR

 (S
CA

G
’s

 2
01

6-
20

40
 R

TP
/S

CS
) 

 
Im

pa
ct

 
SC

AG
 2

01
6-

20
40

 R
TP

/S
CS

 M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
s 

(im
pl

em
en

te
d 

by
 le

ad
 a

ge
nc

y)
 

 
Ap

pl
ic

ab
ili

ty
 to

 th
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

 
In

te
gr

at
e 

gr
ee

n 
bu

ild
in

g 
m

ea
su

re
s 

co
ns

is
te

nt
 

w
ith

 C
AL

G
re

en
 (

C
al

ifo
rn

ia
 B

ui
ld

in
g 

C
od

e 
Ti

tle
 

24
) i

nt
o 

pr
oj

ec
t d

es
ig

n 
in

cl
ud

in
g,

 b
ut

 n
ot

 li
m

ite
d 

to
 th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g:

 
o 

R
eu

se
 

an
d 

m
in

im
iz

at
io

n 
of

 
co

ns
tru

ct
io

n 
an

d 
de

m
ol

iti
on

 
(C

&D
) 

de
br

is
 

an
d 

di
ve

rs
io

n 
of

 
C

&D
 

w
as

te
 

fro
m

 la
nd

fil
ls

 to
 re

cy
cl

in
g 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s.
 

o 
In

cl
us

io
n 

of
 a

 w
as

te
 m

an
ag

em
en

t p
la

n 
th

at
 

pr
om

ot
es

 
m

ax
im

um
 

C
&D

 
di

ve
rs

io
n.

 
o 

So
ur

ce
 r

ed
uc

tio
n 

th
ro

ug
h 

(1
) 

us
e 

of
 

m
at

er
ia

ls
 t

ha
t 

ar
e 

m
or

e 
du

ra
bl

e 
an

d 
ea

si
er

 
to

 
re

pa
ir 

an
d 

m
ai

nt
ai

n,
 

(2
) 

de
si

gn
 to

 g
en

er
at

e 
le

ss
 s

cr
ap

 m
at

er
ia

l 
th

ro
ug

h 
di

m
en

si
on

al
 

pl
an

ni
ng

, 
(3

) 
in

cr
ea

se
d 

re
cy

cl
ed

 c
on

te
nt

, 
(4

) 
us

e 
of

 
re

cl
ai

m
ed

 m
at

er
ia

ls
, 

an
d 

(5
) 

us
e 

of
 

st
ru

ct
ur

al
 m

at
er

ia
ls

 i
n 

a 
du

al
 r

ol
e 

as
 

fin
is

h 
m

at
er

ia
l 

(e
.g

., 
st

ai
ne

d 
co

nc
re

te
 

flo
or

in
g,

 u
nf

in
is

he
d 

ce
ili

ng
s,

 e
tc

.).
 

o 
R

eu
se

 o
f e

xi
st

in
g 

st
ru

ct
ur

e 
an

d 
sh

el
l i

n 
re

no
va

tio
n 

pr
oj

ec
ts

. 
o 

D
es

ig
n 

fo
r 

de
co

ns
tru

ct
io

n 
w

ith
ou

t 
co

m
pr

om
is

in
g 

sa
fe

ty
. 

o 
D

es
ig

n 
fo

r f
le

xi
bi

lit
y 

th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

us
e 

of
 

m
ov

ea
bl

e 
w

al
ls

, r
ai

se
d 

flo
or

s,
 m

od
ul

ar
 

fu
rn

itu
re

, 
m

ov
ea

bl
e 

ta
sk

 l
ig

ht
in

g 
an

d 
ot

he
r r

eu
sa

bl
e 

bu
ild

in
g 

co
m

po
ne

nt
s.

 
o 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
of

 
in

do
or

 
re

cy
cl

in
g 

pr
og

ra
m

 a
nd

 s
pa

ce
. 

o 
D

is
co

ur
ag

e 
th

e 
si

tin
g 

of
 n

ew
 l

an
df

ill
s 

un
le

ss
 a

ll 
ot

he
r 

w
as

te
 r

ed
uc

tio
n 

an
d 

pr
ev

en
tio

n 
ac

tio
ns

 
ha

ve
 

be
en

 
fu

lly
 

ex
pl

or
ed

. 
If 

la
nd

fil
l s

iti
ng

 o
r 

ex
pa

ns
io

n 
is

 
ne

ce
ss

ar
y,

 
si

te
 

la
nd

fil
ls

 
w

ith
 

an
 



 
M

iti
ga

tio
n 

M
ea

su
re

s 
fro

m
 P

rio
r E

IR
s 

 M
au

be
rt 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

 
 

C
ity

 o
f L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 

Su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

C
om

m
un

iti
es

 P
ro

je
ct

 E
xe

m
pt

io
n 

 
 

N
ov

em
be

r 2
01

9 
Pa

ge
 A

3-
11

2 

Ta
bl

e 
A3

-1
 

M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
s 

fro
m

 P
rio

r E
IR

 (S
CA

G
’s

 2
01

6-
20

40
 R

TP
/S

CS
) 

 
Im

pa
ct

 
SC

AG
 2

01
6-

20
40

 R
TP

/S
CS

 M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
s 

(im
pl

em
en

te
d 

by
 le

ad
 a

ge
nc

y)
 

 
Ap

pl
ic

ab
ili

ty
 to

 th
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

ad
eq

ua
te

 l
an

df
ill-

ow
ne

d,
 u

nd
ev

el
op

ed
 

la
nd

 b
uf

fe
r 

to
 m

in
im

iz
e 

th
e 

po
te

nt
ia

l 
ad

ve
rs

e 
im

pa
ct

s 
of

 
th

e 
la

nd
fil

l 
in

 
ne

ig
hb

or
in

g 
co

m
m

un
iti

es
. 

o 
Lo

ca
lly

 
ge

ne
ra

te
d 

w
as

te
 

sh
ou

ld
 

be
 

di
sp

os
ed

 
of

 
re

gi
on

al
ly

, 
co

ns
id

er
in

g 
di

st
an

ce
 t

o 
di

sp
os

al
 s

ite
. 

En
co

ur
ag

e 
di

sp
os

al
 

ne
ar

 
w

he
re

 
th

e 
w

as
te

 
or

ig
in

at
es

 
as

 
m

uc
h 

as
 

po
ss

ib
le

. 
Pr

om
ot

e 
gr

ee
n 

te
ch

no
lo

gi
es

 f
or

 l
on

g-
di

st
an

ce
 tr

an
sp

or
t o

f w
as

te
 (e

.g
., 

cl
ea

n 
en

gi
ne

s 
an

d 
cl

ea
n 

lo
co

m
ot

iv
es

 
or

 
el

ec
tri

c 
ra

il 
fo

r 
w

as
te

-b
y-

ra
il 

di
sp

os
al

 
sy

st
em

s)
 

an
d 

co
ns

is
te

nc
y 

w
ith

 
SC

AQ
M

D
 a

nd
 2

01
6 

R
TP

/S
C

S 
po

lic
ie

s 
ca

n 
an

d 
sh

ou
ld

 b
e 

re
qu

ire
d.

 
o 

En
co

ur
ag

e 
w

as
te

 r
ed

uc
tio

n 
go

al
s 

an
d 

pr
ac

tic
es

 a
nd

 lo
ok

 fo
r 

op
po

rtu
ni

tie
s 

fo
r 

vo
lu

nt
ar

y 
ac

tio
ns

 
to

 
ex

ce
ed

 
th

e 
50

 
pe

rc
en

t w
as

te
 d

iv
er

si
on

 ta
rg

et
. 

o 
En

co
ur

ag
e 

th
e 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

of
 l

oc
al

 
m

ar
ke

ts
 

fo
r 

w
as

te
 

pr
ev

en
tio

n,
 

re
du

ct
io

n,
 a

nd
 r

ec
yc

lin
g 

pr
ac

tic
es

 b
y 

su
pp

or
tin

g 
re

cy
cl

ed
 c

on
te

nt
 a

nd
 g

re
en

 
pr

oc
ur

em
en

t 
po

lic
ie

s,
 a

s 
w

el
l a

s 
ot

he
r 

w
as

te
 

pr
ev

en
tio

n,
 

re
du

ct
io

n 
an

d 
re

cy
cl

in
g 

pr
ac

tic
es

. 
o 

D
ev

el
op

 
or

di
na

nc
es

 
th

at
 

pr
om

ot
e 

w
as

te
 

pr
ev

en
tio

n 
an

d 
re

cy
cl

in
g 

ac
tiv

iti
es

 
su

ch
 

as
: 

re
qu

iri
ng

 
w

as
te

 
pr

ev
en

tio
n 

an
d 

re
cy

cl
in

g 
ef

fo
rts

 a
t 

al
l 

la
rg

e 
ev

en
ts

 
an

d 
ve

nu
es

; 
im

pl
em

en
tin

g 
re

cy
cl

ed
 

co
nt

en
t 

pr
oc

ur
em

en
t 

pr
og

ra
m

s;
 

an
d 

de
ve

lo
pi

ng
 o

pp
or

tu
ni

tie
s 

to
 d

iv
er

t f
oo

d 
w

as
te

 a
w

ay
 f

ro
m

 l
an

df
ill

s 
an

d 
to

w
ar

d 



 
M

iti
ga

tio
n 

M
ea

su
re

s 
fro

m
 P

rio
r E

IR
s 

 M
au

be
rt 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

 
 

C
ity

 o
f L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 

Su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

C
om

m
un

iti
es

 P
ro

je
ct

 E
xe

m
pt

io
n 

 
 

N
ov

em
be

r 2
01

9 
Pa

ge
 A

3-
11

3 

Ta
bl

e 
A3

-1
 

M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
s 

fro
m

 P
rio

r E
IR

 (S
CA

G
’s

 2
01

6-
20

40
 R

TP
/S

CS
) 

 
Im

pa
ct

 
SC

AG
 2

01
6-

20
40

 R
TP

/S
CS

 M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
s 

(im
pl

em
en

te
d 

by
 le

ad
 a

ge
nc

y)
 

 
Ap

pl
ic

ab
ili

ty
 to

 th
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

fo
od

 b
an

ks
 a

nd
 c

om
po

st
in

g 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s.

 
o 

D
ev

el
op

 
al

te
rn

at
iv

e 
w

as
te

 
m

an
ag

em
en

t 
st

ra
te

gi
es

 
su

ch
 

as
 

co
m

po
st

in
g,

 r
ec

yc
lin

g,
 a

nd
 c

on
ve

rs
io

n 
te

ch
no

lo
gi

es
. 

o 
D

ev
el

op
 

an
d 

si
te

 
co

m
po

st
in

g,
 

re
cy

cl
in

g,
 a

nd
 c

on
ve

rs
io

n 
te

ch
no

lo
gy

 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

th
at

 
ha

ve
 

m
in

im
um

 
en

vi
ro

nm
en

ta
l a

nd
 h

ea
lth

 im
pa

ct
s.

 
o 

R
eq

ui
re

 
th

e 
re

us
e 

an
d 

re
cy

cl
e 

co
ns

tru
ct

io
n 

an
d 

de
m

ol
iti

on
 

w
as

te
 

(in
cl

ud
in

g,
 

bu
t 

no
t 

lim
ite

d 
to

, 
so

il,
 

ve
ge

ta
tio

n,
 

co
nc

re
te

, 
lu

m
be

r, 
m

et
al

, 
an

d 
ca

rd
bo

ar
d)

. 
o 

In
te

gr
at

e 
re

us
e 

an
d 

re
cy

cl
in

g 
in

to
 

re
si

de
nt

ia
l 

in
du

st
ria

l, 
in

st
itu

tio
na

l 
an

d 
co

m
m

er
ci

al
 p

ro
je

ct
s.

 
o 

Pr
ov

id
e 

re
cy

cl
in

g 
op

po
rtu

ni
tie

s 
fo

r 
re

si
de

nt
s,

 
th

e 
pu

bl
ic

, 
an

d 
te

na
nt

 
bu

si
ne

ss
es

. 
o 

Pr
ov

id
e 

ed
uc

at
io

n 
an

d 
pu

bl
ic

ity
 a

bo
ut

 
re

du
ci

ng
 w

as
te

 a
nd

 a
va

ila
bl

e 
re

cy
cl

in
g 

se
rv

ic
es

. 
o 

C
on

tin
ue

 to
 a

do
pt

 p
ro

gr
am

s 
to

 c
om

pl
y 

w
ith

 s
ta

te
 s

ol
id

 w
as

te
 d

iv
er

si
on

 r
at

e 
m

an
da

te
s 

an
d,

 
w

he
re

 
po

ss
ib

le
, 

en
co

ur
ag

e 
fu

rth
er

 r
ec

yc
lin

g 
to

 e
xc

ee
d 

th
es

e 
ra

te
s.

 
o 

Im
pl

em
en

t 
or

 e
xp

an
d 

ci
ty

 o
r 

co
un

ty
-

w
id

e 
re

cy
cl

in
g 

an
d 

co
m

po
st

in
g 

pr
og

ra
m

s 
fo

r 
re

si
de

nt
s 

an
d 

bu
si

ne
ss

es
. 

Th
is

 
co

ul
d 

in
cl

ud
e 

ex
te

nd
in

g 
th

e 
ty

pe
s 

of
 

re
cy

cl
in

g 
se

rv
ic

es
 o

ffe
re

d 
(e

.g
., 

to
 i

nc
lu

de
 f

oo
d 

an
d 

gr
ee

n 
w

as
te

 
re

cy
cl

in
g)

 
an

d 
pr

ov
id

in
g 

pu
bl

ic
 

ed
uc

at
io

n 
an

d 



 
M

iti
ga

tio
n 

M
ea

su
re

s 
fro

m
 P

rio
r E

IR
s 

 M
au

be
rt 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

 
 

C
ity

 o
f L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 

Su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

C
om

m
un

iti
es

 P
ro

je
ct

 E
xe

m
pt

io
n 

 
 

N
ov

em
be

r 2
01

9 
Pa

ge
 A

3-
11

4 

Ta
bl

e 
A3

-1
 

M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
s 

fro
m

 P
rio

r E
IR

 (S
CA

G
’s

 2
01

6-
20

40
 R

TP
/S

CS
) 

 
Im

pa
ct

 
SC

AG
 2

01
6-

20
40

 R
TP

/S
CS

 M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
s 

(im
pl

em
en

te
d 

by
 le

ad
 a

ge
nc

y)
 

 
Ap

pl
ic

ab
ili

ty
 to

 th
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

pu
bl

ic
ity

 a
bo

ut
 re

cy
cl

in
g 

se
rv

ic
es

. 
S

ou
rc

e:
 S

ou
th

er
n 

C
al

ifo
rn

ia
 A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n 
of

 G
ov

er
nm

en
ts

, 
Fi

na
l 2

01
6 

20
16

-2
04

0 
R

TP
/S

C
S

 P
ro

gr
am

 E
nv

iro
nm

en
ta

l I
m

pa
ct

 R
ep

or
t, 

M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

on
ito

rin
g 

an
d 

R
ep

or
tin

g 
P

ro
gr

am
, A

pr
il 

20
16

. 

   

Ta
bl

e 
A3

--2
 

M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
s 

fro
m

 P
rio

r E
IR

 (H
ol

ly
w

oo
d 

Co
m

m
un

ity
 P

la
n 

Re
vi

si
on

 F
in

al
 E

IR
 (J

ul
y 

19
88

)) 
Im

pa
ct

 
Ho

lly
w

oo
d 

Co
m

m
un

ity
 P

la
n 

Re
vi

si
on

 F
in

al
 E

IR
 

(J
ul

y 
19

88
) M

iti
ga

tio
n 

M
ea

su
re

s 
 

Ap
pl

ic
ab

ili
ty

 to
 th

e 
Pr

oj
ec

t 
Ae

st
he

tic
s 

an
d 

Ur
ba

n 
De

si
gn

 
Ae

st
he

tic
s 

Pr
es

er
va

tio
n 

of
 

hi
st

or
ic

al
ly

 
an

d 
ar

ch
ite

ct
ur

al
ly

 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 n
ei

gh
bo

rh
oo

ds
 t

hr
ou

gh
 S

pe
ci

fic
 P

la
ns

 
or

 th
e 

H
is

to
ric

 P
re

se
rv

at
io

n 
O

ve
rla

y 
Zo

ne
 (H

PO
Z)

. 

N
o 

m
iti

ga
tio

n 
ap

pl
ie

s.
 P

R
C

 S
ec

tio
n 

21
09

9,
 e

na
ct

ed
 b

y 
Se

na
te

 B
ill 

74
3,

 p
ro

vi
de

s 
th

at
 “

ae
st

he
tic

 a
nd

 p
ar

ki
ng

 
im

pa
ct

s 
of

 
a 

re
si

de
nt

ia
l, 

m
ix

ed
-u

se
 

re
si

de
nt

ia
l, 

or
 

em
pl

oy
m

en
t c

en
te

r p
ro

je
ct

 o
n 

an
 in

fil
l s

ite
 w

ith
in

 a
 tr

an
si

t 
pr

io
rit

y 
ar

ea
 s

ha
ll 

no
t 

be
 c

on
si

de
re

d 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 im
pa

ct
s 

on
 th

e 
en

vi
ro

nm
en

t.”
 

Ae
st

he
tic

s 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

St
an

da
rd

s 
fo

r 
al

l 
la

nd
 

us
es

 
ad

dr
es

si
ng

 s
tre

et
 tr

ee
s.

 
N

o 
m

iti
ga

tio
n 

ap
pl

ie
s.

 P
R

C
 S

ec
tio

n 
21

09
9,

 e
na

ct
ed

 b
y 

Se
na

te
 B

ill 
74

3,
 p

ro
vi

de
s 

th
at

 “
ae

st
he

tic
 a

nd
 p

ar
ki

ng
 

im
pa

ct
s 

of
 

a 
re

si
de

nt
ia

l, 
m

ix
ed

-u
se

 
re

si
de

nt
ia

l, 
or

 
em

pl
oy

m
en

t c
en

te
r p

ro
je

ct
 o

n 
an

 in
fil

l s
ite

 w
ith

in
 a

 tr
an

si
t 

pr
io

rit
y 

ar
ea

 s
ha

ll 
no

t 
be

 c
on

si
de

re
d 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 im

pa
ct

s 
on

 th
e 

en
vi

ro
nm

en
t.”

 
Ae

st
he

tic
s 

C
om

m
er

ci
al

 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

St
an

da
rd

s 
(p

ar
ki

ng
, 

sc
re

en
in

g,
 la

nd
sc

ap
in

g,
 a

cc
es

s,
 e

tc
.).

 
N

o 
m

iti
ga

tio
n 

ap
pl

ie
s.

 P
R

C
 S

ec
tio

n 
21

09
9,

 e
na

ct
ed

 b
y 

Se
na

te
 B

ill 
74

3,
 p

ro
vi

de
s 

th
at

 “
ae

st
he

tic
 a

nd
 p

ar
ki

ng
 

im
pa

ct
s 

of
 

a 
re

si
de

nt
ia

l, 
m

ix
ed

-u
se

 
re

si
de

nt
ia

l, 
or

 
em

pl
oy

m
en

t c
en

te
r p

ro
je

ct
 o

n 
an

 in
fil

l s
ite

 w
ith

in
 a

 tr
an

si
t 

pr
io

rit
y 

ar
ea

 s
ha

ll 
no

t 
be

 c
on

si
de

re
d 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 im

pa
ct

s 
on

 th
e 

en
vi

ro
nm

en
t.”

 
Ae

st
he

tic
s 

R
es

id
en

tia
l 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
St

an
da

rd
s,

 a
dd

re
ss

in
g 

hi
lls

id
e 

ar
ea

s 
an

d 
m

ul
ti-

fa
m

ily
 h

ou
si

ng
 (

se
tb

ac
ks

, 
N

o 
m

iti
ga

tio
n 

ap
pl

ie
s.

 P
R

C
 S

ec
tio

n 
21

09
9,

 e
na

ct
ed

 b
y 

Se
na

te
 B

ill 
74

3,
 p

ro
vi

de
s 

th
at

 “
ae

st
he

tic
 a

nd
 p

ar
ki

ng
 



 
M

iti
ga

tio
n 

M
ea

su
re

s 
fro

m
 P

rio
r E

IR
s 

 M
au

be
rt 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

 
 

C
ity

 o
f L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 

Su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

C
om

m
un

iti
es

 P
ro

je
ct

 E
xe

m
pt

io
n 

 
 

N
ov

em
be

r 2
01

9 
Pa

ge
 A

3-
11

5 

Ta
bl

e 
A3

--2
 

M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
s 

fro
m

 P
rio

r E
IR

 (H
ol

ly
w

oo
d 

Co
m

m
un

ity
 P

la
n 

Re
vi

si
on

 F
in

al
 E

IR
 (J

ul
y 

19
88

)) 
Im

pa
ct

 
Ho

lly
w

oo
d 

Co
m

m
un

ity
 P

la
n 

Re
vi

si
on

 F
in

al
 E

IR
 

(J
ul

y 
19

88
) M

iti
ga

tio
n 

M
ea

su
re

s 
 

Ap
pl

ic
ab

ili
ty

 to
 th

e 
Pr

oj
ec

t 
lo

t c
ov

er
ag

e,
 d

ed
ic

at
io

ns
, o

pe
n 

sp
ac

e,
 e

tc
.).

 
im

pa
ct

s 
of

 
a 

re
si

de
nt

ia
l, 

m
ix

ed
-u

se
 

re
si

de
nt

ia
l, 

or
 

em
pl

oy
m

en
t c

en
te

r p
ro

je
ct

 o
n 

an
 in

fil
l s

ite
 w

ith
in

 a
 tr

an
si

t 
pr

io
rit

y 
ar

ea
 s

ha
ll 

no
t 

be
 c

on
si

de
re

d 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 im
pa

ct
s 

on
 th

e 
en

vi
ro

nm
en

t.”
 

Ae
st

he
tic

s 
N

ei
gh

bo
rh

oo
d 

Pl
an

s 
an

d 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

t 
D

is
tri

ct
s.

 
Th

e 
Pr

op
os

ed
 

Pl
an

 
sh

ou
ld

 
al

lo
w

 
fo

r 
sp

ec
ifi

c 
st

an
da

rd
s 

on
 

a 
ne

ig
hb

or
ho

od
 

ba
si

s 
fo

r 
bo

th
 

co
m

m
er

ci
al

 a
nd

 re
si

de
nt

ia
l a

re
as

. 

N
o 

m
iti

ga
tio

n 
ap

pl
ie

s.
 P

R
C

 S
ec

tio
n 

21
09

9,
 e

na
ct

ed
 b

y 
Se

na
te

 B
ill 

74
3,

 p
ro

vi
de

s 
th

at
 “

ae
st

he
tic

 a
nd

 p
ar

ki
ng

 
im

pa
ct

s 
of

 
a 

re
si

de
nt

ia
l, 

m
ix

ed
-u

se
 

re
si

de
nt

ia
l, 

or
 

em
pl

oy
m

en
t c

en
te

r p
ro

je
ct

 o
n 

an
 in

fil
l s

ite
 w

ith
in

 a
 tr

an
si

t 
pr

io
rit

y 
ar

ea
 s

ha
ll 

no
t 

be
 c

on
si

de
re

d 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 im
pa

ct
s 

on
 th

e 
en

vi
ro

nm
en

t.”
 

Ai
r Q

ua
lit

y 
Ai

r Q
ua

lit
y 

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n-
re

la
te

d 
em

is
si

on
s 

to
 

be
 

re
du

ce
d 

th
ro

ug
h 

im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
of

 d
us

t 
co

nt
ro

l m
ea

su
re

s 
su

ch
 a

s 
w

et
tin

g.
 

N
o 

m
iti

ga
tio

n 
ap

pl
ie

s.
 T

he
 C

ity
 h

as
 d

et
er

m
in

ed
 t

ha
t 

th
e 

ex
is

tin
g 

re
gu

la
to

ry
 m

ea
su

re
, 

pr
ov

id
ed

 a
bo

ve
 a

s 
R

C
M

-
AQ

-3
, w

ou
ld

 a
pp

ly
 to

 th
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t a

nd
 is

 e
qu

al
 to

 o
r m

or
e 

ef
fe

ct
iv

e 
th

an
 th

is
 m

ea
su

re
. 

Ai
r Q

ua
lit

y 
Im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

of
 T

ra
ns

po
rta

tio
n 

Sp
ec

ifi
c 

Pl
an

. 
N

o 
m

iti
ga

tio
n 

ap
pl

ie
s.

 T
hi

s 
m

ea
su

re
 is

 d
ire

ct
ed

 t
ow

ar
ds

 
th

e 
C

ity
 a

nd
 d

oe
s 

no
t 

ap
pl

y 
to

 i
nd

iv
id

ua
l 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

pr
oj

ec
ts

. 
Dr

ai
na

ge
 

D
ra

in
ag

e 
O

n 
a 

pr
oj

ec
t b

as
is

, 
co

m
pl

ia
nc

e 
w

ith
 p

ro
vi

si
on

s 
of

 
th

e 
Fl

oo
d 

H
az

ar
d 

M
an

ag
em

en
t S

pe
ci

fic
 P

la
n 

an
d 

an
y 

ad
di

tio
na

l 
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
 

id
en

tif
ie

d 
by

 
th

e 
Bu

re
au

 o
f E

ng
in

ee
rin

g.
 

N
o 

m
iti

ga
tio

n 
ap

pl
ie

s.
 T

he
 P

ro
je

ct
 i

s 
no

t 
lo

ca
te

d 
w

ith
in

 
th

e 
bo

un
da

rie
s 

of
 

th
e 

Fl
oo

d 
H

az
ar

d 
M

an
ag

em
en

t 
Sp

ec
ifi

c 
Pl

an
, 

an
d 

th
er

ef
or

e 
th

is
 

m
iti

ga
tio

n 
m

ea
su

re
 

w
ou

ld
 n

ot
 b

e 
ap

pl
ic

ab
le

 to
 th

e 
Pr

oj
ec

t. 
Ea

rth
 

Ea
rth

 
C

om
pl

ia
nc

e 
w

ith
 th

e 
Se

is
m

ic
 S

af
et

y 
El

em
en

t a
nd

 
ot

he
r 

C
ity

 B
ui

ld
in

g 
C

od
e 

re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

 r
eg

ar
di

ng
 

ea
rth

 m
ov

in
g 

an
d 

gr
ad

in
g.

 

Th
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

al
re

ad
y 

su
bs

ta
nt

ia
lly

 
co

nf
or

m
s 

to
 

th
is

 
m

iti
ga

tio
n 

m
ea

su
re

, 
be

ca
us

e 
th

e 
Pr

oj
ec

t 
w

ou
ld

 
be

 
re

qu
ire

d 
to

 c
om

pl
y 

w
ith

 t
he

 e
xi

st
in

g 
bu

ild
in

g 
re

gu
la

tio
ns

 
as

so
ci

at
ed

 w
ith

 t
he

 C
ity

 o
f 

Lo
s 

An
ge

le
s 

Bu
ild

in
g 

C
od

e,
 

w
hi

ch
 in

co
rp

or
at

es
 th

e 
U

ni
fo

rm
 B

ui
ld

in
g 

C
od

e 
(U

BC
) a

nd
 

C
al

ifo
rn

ia
 B

ui
ld

in
g 

C
od

e 
(C

BC
), 

fo
rm

al
ly

 p
ro

vi
de

d 
as

 
R

C
M

-G
EO

-1
, 

pr
ov

id
ed

 a
bo

ve
. 

A 
G

eo
te

ch
ni

ca
l 

R
ep

or
t 

w
as

 c
on

du
ct

ed
 fo

r t
he

 P
ro

je
ct

 S
ite

 (a
tta

ch
ed

 a
s 

Ap
pe

nd
ix

 
G

). 
As

 
w

ith
 

an
y 

ne
w

 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t 
in

 
th

e 
St

at
e 

of
 

C
al

ifo
rn

ia
, 

bu
ild

in
g 

de
si

gn
 a

nd
 c

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

ar
e 

re
qu

ire
d 

to
 c

on
fo

rm
 to

 th
e 

cu
rre

nt
 s

ei
sm

ic
 d

es
ig

n 
pr

ov
is

io
ns

 o
f t

he
 

C
ity

’s
 

Bu
ild

in
g 

C
od

e,
 

w
hi

ch
 

in
co

rp
or

at
es

 
re

le
va

nt
 



 
M

iti
ga

tio
n 

M
ea

su
re

s 
fro

m
 P

rio
r E

IR
s 

 M
au

be
rt 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

 
 

C
ity

 o
f L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 

Su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

C
om

m
un

iti
es

 P
ro

je
ct

 E
xe

m
pt

io
n 

 
 

N
ov

em
be

r 2
01

9 
Pa

ge
 A

3-
11

6 

Ta
bl

e 
A3

--2
 

M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
s 

fro
m

 P
rio

r E
IR

 (H
ol

ly
w

oo
d 

Co
m

m
un

ity
 P

la
n 

Re
vi

si
on

 F
in

al
 E

IR
 (J

ul
y 

19
88

)) 
Im

pa
ct

 
Ho

lly
w

oo
d 

Co
m

m
un

ity
 P

la
n 

Re
vi

si
on

 F
in

al
 E

IR
 

(J
ul

y 
19

88
) M

iti
ga

tio
n 

M
ea

su
re

s 
 

Ap
pl

ic
ab

ili
ty

 to
 th

e 
Pr

oj
ec

t 
pr

ov
is

io
ns

 o
f t

he
 2

01
6 

C
BC

. T
he

 2
01

6 
C

BC
, a

s 
am

en
de

d 
by

 
th

e 
C

ity
’s

 
Bu

ild
in

g 
C

od
e,

 
in

co
rp

or
at

es
 

th
e 

la
te

st
 

se
is

m
ic

 
de

si
gn

 
st

an
da

rd
s 

fo
r 

st
ru

ct
ur

al
 

lo
ad

s 
an

d 
m

at
er

ia
ls

 t
o 

pr
ov

id
e 

fo
r 

th
e 

la
te

st
 i

n 
ea

rth
qu

ak
e 

sa
fe

ty
. 

C
on

fo
rm

an
ce

 w
ith

 t
he

 2
01

6 
C

BC
 r

eq
ui

re
m

en
ts

 w
ou

ld
 

re
du

ce
 t

he
 p

ot
en

tia
l f

or
 s

tru
ct

ur
es

 o
n 

th
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t S

ite
 t

o 
su

st
ai

n 
da

m
ag

e 
du

rin
g 

an
 e

ar
th

qu
ak

e 
ev

en
t, 

an
d 

w
ou

ld
 

en
su

re
 t

ha
t 

th
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

w
ou

ld
 n

ot
 e

xp
os

e 
pe

op
le

 o
r 

st
ru

ct
ur

es
 t

o 
su

bs
ta

nt
ia

l a
dv

er
se

 e
ffe

ct
s 

as
so

ci
at

ed
 w

ith
 

se
is

m
ic

 g
ro

un
d 

sh
ak

in
g 

to
 a

ny
 g

re
at

er
 e

xt
en

t t
ha

n 
ot

he
r 

pr
op

er
tie

s 
in

 th
e 

So
ut

he
rn

 C
al

ifo
rn

ia
 r

eg
io

n.
 F

ur
th

er
, t

he
 

Pr
oj

ec
t’s

 c
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
ac

tiv
iti

es
 w

ou
ld

 r
eq

ui
re

 g
ra

di
ng

, 
ex

ca
va

tio
n,

 a
nd

 fo
un

da
tio

n 
pe

rm
its

 o
r a

pp
ro

va
ls

 fr
om

 th
e 

C
ity

 o
f 

Lo
s 

An
ge

le
s,

 w
hi

ch
 w

ou
ld

 i
nc

lu
de

 r
eq

ui
re

m
en

ts
 

an
d 

st
an

da
rd

s 
de

si
gn

ed
 

to
 

lim
it 

po
te

nt
ia

l 
im

pa
ct

s 
as

so
ci

at
ed

 w
ith

 e
ro

si
on

 to
 p

er
m

itt
ed

 le
ve

ls
. 

Ea
rth

 
R

eq
ui

re
 

th
at

 
al

l 
pr

oj
ec

ts
 

us
e 

th
e 

pr
ac

tic
es

 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

in
 t

he
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
of

 C
ity

 P
la

nn
in

g’
s 

“P
la

nn
in

g 
G

ui
de

lin
es

 G
ra

di
ng

 M
an

ua
l.”

 

Th
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

al
re

ad
y 

su
bs

ta
nt

ia
lly

 
co

nf
or

m
s 

to
 

th
is

 
m

iti
ga

tio
n 

m
ea

su
re

, 
be

ca
us

e 
th

e 
Pr

oj
ec

t 
w

ou
ld

 
be

 
re

qu
ire

d 
to

 c
om

pl
y 

w
ith

 t
he

 e
xi

st
in

g 
bu

ild
in

g 
re

gu
la

tio
ns

 
as

so
ci

at
ed

 w
ith

 t
he

 C
ity

 o
f 

Lo
s 

An
ge

le
s 

Bu
ild

in
g 

C
od

e,
 

w
hi

ch
 in

co
rp

or
at

es
 th

e 
U

ni
fo

rm
 B

ui
ld

in
g 

C
od

e 
(U

BC
) a

nd
 

C
al

ifo
rn

ia
 B

ui
ld

in
g 

C
od

e 
(C

BC
), 

fo
rm

al
ly

 p
ro

vi
de

d 
as

 
R

C
M

-G
EO

-1
, 

ab
ov

e.
 F

ur
th

er
, 

th
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t’s

 c
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
ac

tiv
iti

es
 

w
ou

ld
 

re
qu

ire
 

gr
ad

in
g,

 
ex

ca
va

tio
n,

 
an

d 
fo

un
da

tio
n 

pe
rm

its
 o

r 
ap

pr
ov

al
s 

fro
m

 t
he

 C
ity

 o
f 

Lo
s 

An
ge

le
s,

 
w

hi
ch

 
w

ou
ld

 
in

cl
ud

e 
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
 

an
d 

st
an

da
rd

s 
de

si
gn

ed
 t

o 
lim

it 
po

te
nt

ia
l i

m
pa

ct
s 

as
so

ci
at

ed
 

w
ith

 e
ro

si
on

 to
 p

er
m

itt
ed

 le
ve

ls
. 

En
er

gy
 a

nd
 U

til
iti

es
 

En
er

gy
 

C
om

pl
ia

nc
e 

w
ith

 
co

ns
er

va
tio

n 
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
 

co
nt

ai
ne

d 
in

 t
he

 C
al

ifo
rn

ia
 A

dm
in

is
tra

tiv
e 

C
od

e,
 

Ti
tle

 2
4,

 B
ui

ld
in

g 
St

an
da

rd
s.

 

Th
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

al
re

ad
y 

su
bs

ta
nt

ia
lly

 
co

nf
or

m
s 

to
 

th
is

 
m

iti
ga

tio
n 

m
ea

su
re

, 
as

 t
he

 P
ro

je
ct

 w
ou

ld
 i

nc
lu

de
 P

D
F-

EN
-1

, 
w

hi
ch

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
pr

ov
id

ed
 a

bo
ve

. 
As

 d
is

cu
ss

ed
 in

 
th

e 
En

er
gy

 
an

d 
W

at
er

 E
ffi

ci
en

cy
 

C
om

pl
ia

nc
e 

R
ep

or
t 

(in
cl

ud
ed

 a
s 

Ap
pe

nd
ix

 H
), 

th
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t’s

 i
nc

lu
si

on
 o

f 
th

e 
m

ea
su

re
s 

pr
ov

id
ed

 i
n 

PD
F -

EN
-1

 w
ou

ld
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

at
 t

he
 

Pr
oj

ec
t i

s 
15

 p
er

ce
nt

 m
or

e 
en

er
gy

 e
ffi

ci
en

t t
ha

n 
th

e 
Ti

tle
 



 
M

iti
ga

tio
n 

M
ea

su
re

s 
fro

m
 P

rio
r E

IR
s 

 M
au

be
rt 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

 
 

C
ity

 o
f L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 

Su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

C
om

m
un

iti
es

 P
ro

je
ct

 E
xe

m
pt

io
n 

 
 

N
ov

em
be

r 2
01

9 
Pa

ge
 A

3-
11

7 

Ta
bl

e 
A3

--2
 

M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
s 

fro
m

 P
rio

r E
IR

 (H
ol

ly
w

oo
d 

Co
m

m
un

ity
 P

la
n 

Re
vi

si
on

 F
in

al
 E

IR
 (J

ul
y 

19
88

)) 
Im

pa
ct

 
Ho

lly
w

oo
d 

Co
m

m
un

ity
 P

la
n 

Re
vi

si
on

 F
in

al
 E

IR
 

(J
ul

y 
19

88
) M

iti
ga

tio
n 

M
ea

su
re

s 
 

Ap
pl

ic
ab

ili
ty

 to
 th

e 
Pr

oj
ec

t 
24

 
st

an
da

rd
s 

an
d 

w
ou

ld
 

ac
hi

ev
e 

ap
pr

ox
im

at
el

y 
79

 
pe

rc
en

t l
es

s 
w

at
er

 u
sa

ge
 th

an
 th

e 
av

er
ag

e 
ho

us
eh

ol
d 

in
 

th
e 

re
gi

on
.  

U
til

iti
es

 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
pe

rm
itt

ed
 w

he
n 

ph
as

ed
 

w
ith

 im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 in
 t

he
 lo

ca
l s

ew
er

 s
ys

te
m

, 
as

 
w

el
l 

as
 

pr
og

ra
m

m
ed

 
im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 

at
 

th
e 

H
yp

er
io

n 
Tr

ea
tm

en
t 

Pl
an

t. 
Ph

as
in

g 
of

 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t 
sh

ou
ld

 
be

 
un

de
rta

ke
n 

fo
r 

al
l 

co
m

m
un

iti
es

 
w

ith
in

 t
he

 
H

yp
er

io
n 

se
rv

ic
e 

ar
ea

. 
Si

m
ila

r 
to

 t
he

 P
ro

po
se

d 
Pl

an
, 

po
pu

la
tio

n 
ho

ld
in

g 
ca

pa
ci

tie
s 

in
 e

ac
h 

ar
ea

 s
ho

ul
d 

be
 c

on
si

st
en

t w
ith

 
SC

AG
 g

ro
w

th
 fo

re
ca

st
 

N
o 

m
iti

ga
tio

n 
ap

pl
ie

s.
 T

hi
s 

m
ea

su
re

 is
 d

ire
ct

ed
 t

ow
ar

ds
 

th
e 

C
ity

 a
nd

 d
oe

s 
no

t 
ap

pl
y 

to
 i

nd
iv

id
ua

l 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t 
pr

oj
ec

ts
. 

U
til

iti
es

 
Th

e 
Pr

op
os

ed
 P

la
n 

sh
ou

ld
 e

nc
ou

ra
ge

 a
 v

ar
ie

ty
 o

f 
w

as
te

 
re

du
ct

io
n 

te
ch

ni
qu

es
. 

Th
es

e,
 

as
 

a 
m

in
im

um
, 

w
ill 

in
cl

ud
e 

se
pa

ra
tio

n,
 r

ec
yc

lin
g 

an
d 

co
m

po
st

in
g.

 G
ro

w
th

 in
 th

e 
Pl

an
 a

re
a 

m
us

t a
ls

o 
be

 
tie

d 
di

re
ct

ly
 t

o 
C

ity
w

id
e 

an
d 

C
ou

nt
yw

id
e 

So
lid

 
W

as
te

 M
an

ag
em

en
t 

Pl
an

s,
 w

he
re

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
w

ill
 n

ee
d 

to
 b

e 
ke

pt
 i

n 
ba

la
nc

e 
w

ith
 a

va
ila

bl
e 

la
nd

fil
l 

ca
pa

ci
ty

 i
n 

co
m

bi
na

tio
n 

w
ith

 o
th

er
 s

ol
id

 
w

as
te

 
di

sp
os

al
 

te
ch

no
lo

gi
es

. 
Ac

co
rd

in
g 

to
 

th
e 

m
os

t 
re

ce
nt

 a
ss

es
sm

en
t 

of
 s

ol
id

 w
as

te
 n

ee
ds

 b
y 

th
e 

Bu
re

au
 

of
 

Sa
ni

ta
tio

n 
an

d 
th

e 
C

ou
nt

y 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
of

 
Pu

bl
ic

 
W

or
ks

 
(1

/8
8)

, 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

la
nd

fil
l c

ap
ac

ity
 in

 th
e 

C
ity

 o
f 

Lo
s 

An
ge

le
s 

w
ill

 b
e 

ex
ha

us
te

d 
in

 1
99

7 
an

d 
co

un
ty

w
id

e 
th

er
e 

w
ill

 b
e 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 s

ho
rtf

al
ls

 b
y 

19
92

. 
Th

us
, 

m
iti

ga
tio

n 
of

 
pl

an
 a

re
a 

so
lid

 w
as

te
 im

pa
ct

s 
m

us
t 

ad
dr

es
s 

ne
w

 
la

nd
fil

ls
 o

r a
lte

rn
at

iv
es

 

Th
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

al
re

ad
y 

su
bs

ta
nt

ia
lly

 
co

nf
or

m
s 

to
 

th
is

 
m

iti
ga

tio
n 

m
ea

su
re

, 
as

 t
he

 P
ro

je
ct

 w
ou

ld
 c

om
pl

y 
w

ith
 

R
C

M
-U

SS
-1

, p
ro

vi
de

d 
be

lo
w

: 
 Th

e 
Pr

oj
ec

t 
w

ou
ld

 c
om

pl
y 

w
ith

 t
he

 f
ol

lo
w

in
g 

R
eg

ul
at

or
y 

C
om

pl
ia

nc
e 

M
ea

su
re

: 
 RC

M
-U

SS
-1

: 
Th

e 
Pr

oj
ec

t 
w

ou
ld

 c
om

pl
y 

w
ith

 t
he

 C
ity

 o
f 

Lo
s 

An
ge

le
s 

G
re

en
 B

ui
ld

in
g 

C
od

e,
 w

hi
ch

 r
eq

ui
re

s 
th

e 
re

cy
cl

in
g 

an
d/

or
 

sa
lv

ag
in

g 
of

 
65

 
pe

rc
en

t 
of

 
no

n-
ha

za
rd

ou
s 

co
ns

tru
ct

io
n 

an
d 

de
m

ol
iti

on
 w

as
te

. 
Pr

oj
ec

t 
co

ns
tru

ct
io

n 
w

as
te

 w
ou

ld
 b

e 
ha

ul
ed

 b
y 

pe
rm

itt
ed

 h
au

le
rs

 
an

d 
ta

ke
n 

on
ly

 
to

 
C

ity
-c

er
tif

ie
d 

co
ns

tru
ct

io
n 

an
d 

de
m

ol
iti

on
 (

C
&D

) 
pr

oc
es

si
ng

 fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
th

at
 a

re
 m

on
ito

re
d 

fo
r 

co
m

pl
ia

nc
e 

w
ith

 
ex

is
tin

g 
re

gu
la

tio
ns

. 
Pr

oj
ec

t-
ge

ne
ra

te
d 

C
&D

 w
as

te
 

w
ou

ld
 r

ep
re

se
nt

 a
 v

er
y 

sm
al

l 
po

rti
on

 o
f 

th
e 

w
as

te
 d

is
po

sa
l 

ca
pa

ci
ty

 i
n 

th
e 

re
gi

on
. 

In
 

ad
di

tio
n,

 
w

as
te

 
ge

ne
ra

te
d 

by
 

th
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

w
ou

ld
 

be
 

su
bj

ec
t 

to
 S

ta
te

 a
nd

 lo
ca

l r
ec

yc
lin

g 
an

d 
w

as
te

 d
iv

er
si

on
 

st
ra

te
gi

es
 a

nd
 p

ol
ic

ie
s 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
th

e 
C

ity
’s

 Z
er

o 
W

as
te

 
Pl

an
 g

oa
l o

f a
ch

ie
vi

ng
 a

 9
0 

pe
rc

en
t s

ol
id

 w
as

te
 d

iv
er

si
on

 
ra

te
 b

y 
20

25
. 

  



 
M

iti
ga

tio
n 

M
ea

su
re

s 
fro

m
 P

rio
r E

IR
s 

 M
au

be
rt 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

 
 

C
ity

 o
f L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 

Su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

C
om

m
un

iti
es

 P
ro

je
ct

 E
xe

m
pt

io
n 

 
 

N
ov

em
be

r 2
01

9 
Pa

ge
 A

3-
11

8 

Ta
bl

e 
A3

--2
 

M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
s 

fro
m

 P
rio

r E
IR

 (H
ol

ly
w

oo
d 

Co
m

m
un

ity
 P

la
n 

Re
vi

si
on

 F
in

al
 E

IR
 (J

ul
y 

19
88

)) 
Im

pa
ct

 
Ho

lly
w

oo
d 

Co
m

m
un

ity
 P

la
n 

Re
vi

si
on

 F
in

al
 E

IR
 

(J
ul

y 
19

88
) M

iti
ga

tio
n 

M
ea

su
re

s 
 

Ap
pl

ic
ab

ili
ty

 to
 th

e 
Pr

oj
ec

t 
U

til
iti

es
 

Th
e 

Pr
op

os
ed

 P
la

n 
sh

ou
ld

 e
nc

ou
ra

ge
 t

he
 u

se
 o

f 
w

at
er

 c
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
m

ea
su

re
s 

co
ns

is
te

nt
 w

ith
 t

he
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

of
 W

at
er

 a
nd

 P
ow

er
’s

 U
rb

an
 W

at
er

 
M

an
ag

em
en

t P
la

n.
 

Th
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

al
re

ad
y 

su
bs

ta
nt

ia
lly

 
co

nf
or

m
s 

to
 

th
is

 
m

iti
ga

tio
n 

m
ea

su
re

. 
To

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 t
he

 P
ro

je
ct

 r
ed

uc
es

 
its

 p
ro

je
ct

ed
 w

at
er

 d
em

an
d 

to
 t

he
 e

xt
en

t 
fe

as
ib

le
, 

th
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t w

ou
ld

 b
e 

re
qu

ire
d 

to
 c

om
pl

y 
w

ith
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 N
o.

 
17

0,
97

8 
(L

an
ds

ca
pe

 
O

rd
in

an
ce

), 
w

hi
ch

 
im

po
se

s 
nu

m
er

ou
s 

w
at

er
 c

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

m
ea

su
re

s 
in

 l
an

ds
ca

pi
ng

, 
in

st
al

la
tio

n,
 a

nd
 m

ai
nt

en
an

ce
. 

 In
 a

dd
iti

on
, 

th
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

w
ou

ld
 i

nc
lu

de
 P

D
F-

EN
-1

, 
w

hi
ch

 
ha

s 
be

en
 p

ro
vi

de
d 

ab
ov

e.
 A

s 
di

sc
us

se
d 

in
 t

he
 E

ne
rg

y 
an

d 
W

at
er

 E
ffi

ci
en

cy
 C

om
pl

ia
nc

e 
R

ep
or

t 
(in

cl
ud

ed
 a

s 
Ap

pe
nd

ix
 H

), 
th

e 
Pr

oj
ec

t’s
 i

nc
lu

si
on

 o
f 

th
e 

m
ea

su
re

s 
pr

ov
id

ed
 in

 P
D

F-
EN

-1
 w

ou
ld

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 th
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t i

s 
15

 
pe

rc
en

t m
or

e 
en

er
gy

 e
ffi

ci
en

t t
ha

n 
th

e 
Ti

tle
 2

4 
st

an
da

rd
s 

an
d 

w
ou

ld
 a

ch
ie

ve
 a

pp
ro

xi
m

at
el

y 
79

 p
er

ce
nt

 le
ss

 w
at

er
 

us
ag

e 
th

an
 th

e 
av

er
ag

e 
ho

us
eh

ol
d 

in
 th

e 
re

gi
on

.  
Hi

st
or

ic
 a

nd
 C

ul
tu

ra
l R

es
ou

rc
es

 
H

is
to

ric
 a

nd
 C

ul
tu

ra
l R

es
ou

rc
es

 
An

 h
is

to
ric

 a
nd

 a
rc

hi
te

ct
ur

al
 s

ur
ve

y 
of

 t
he

 P
la

n 
re

vi
si

on
 a

re
a 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
pr

ep
ar

ed
. 

Ba
se

d 
on

 t
he

 
fin

di
ng

s 
of

 
th

e 
su

rv
ey

, 
sp

ec
ifi

c 
pl

an
s 

an
d/

or
 

H
is

to
ric

 P
re

se
rv

at
io

n 
O

ve
rla

y 
Zo

ne
s 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
ad

op
te

d.
 

Al
so

, 
th

e 
de

si
gn

at
io

n 
of

 
in

di
vi

du
al

 
st

ru
ct

ur
es

 a
s 

C
ul

tu
ra

l-H
is

to
ric

 M
on

um
en

ts
 th

ro
ug

h 
th

e 
C

ul
tu

ra
l 

H
er

ita
ge

 
C

om
m

is
si

on
 

sh
ou

ld
 

[s
ic

] 
so

ug
ht

. 

N
o 

m
iti

ga
tio

n 
ap

pl
ie

s.
 T

hi
s 

m
ea

su
re

 is
 p

ar
tia

lly
 d

ire
ct

ed
 

to
w

ar
ds

 
th

e 
C

ity
 

an
d 

do
es

 
no

t 
ap

pl
y 

to
 

in
di

vi
du

al
 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

pr
oj

ec
ts

. 
In

 a
dd

iti
on

, 
a 

H
is

to
ric

al
 R

es
ou

rc
e 

Ev
al

ua
tio

n 
R

ep
or

t 
w

as
 p

re
pa

re
d 

fo
r 

th
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

Si
te

 
(a

tta
ch

ed
 

as
 

Ap
pe

nd
ix

 
F)

, 
w

hi
ch

 
sa

tis
fie

s 
th

e 
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
 s

et
 f

or
th

 in
 M

M
-C

U
L-

2.
 T

he
 h

is
to

ric
 r

ep
or

t 
in

cl
ud

ed
 a

n 
ev

al
ua

tio
n 

of
 a

ll 
bu

ild
in

gs
 o

n 
th

e 
Pr

oj
ec

t S
ite

 
as

 in
di

vi
du

al
 p

ot
en

tia
l h

is
to

ric
 re

so
ur

ce
s 

su
bj

ec
t t

o 
C

EQ
A 

an
d 

co
nc

lu
de

d 
th

at
 n

on
e 

of
 t

he
 b

ui
ld

in
gs

 o
r 

pr
op

er
tie

s 
ap

pe
ar

 t
o 

el
ig

ib
le

 f
or

 l
is

tin
g 

in
 t

he
 N

at
io

na
l 

R
eg

is
te

r 
of

 
H

is
to

ric
 

Pl
ac

es
 

or
 

C
al

ifo
rn

ia
 

R
eg

is
te

r 
of

 
H

is
to

ric
al

 
R

es
ou

rc
es

, o
r f

or
 d

es
ig

na
tio

n 
as

 a
 L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 H

is
to

ric
-

C
ul

tu
ra

l 
M

on
um

en
t. 

Th
er

ef
or

e,
 t

he
 P

ro
je

ct
 w

ou
ld

 n
ot

 
in

vo
lv

e 
th

e 
de

m
ol

iti
on

, 
re

lo
ca

tio
n,

 o
r 

al
te

ra
tio

n 
of

 a
ny

 
hi

st
or

ic
al

 re
so

ur
ce

s,
 a

nd
 th

e 
Pr

oj
ec

t w
ou

ld
 h

av
e 

no
 d

ire
ct

 
im

pa
ct

s 
on

 a
ny

 h
is

to
ric

al
 r

es
ou

rc
es

, 
an

d 
no

 m
iti

ga
tio

n 
m

ea
su

re
s 

w
ou

ld
 b

e 
re

qu
ire

d.
 

  



 
M

iti
ga

tio
n 

M
ea

su
re

s 
fro

m
 P

rio
r E

IR
s 

 M
au

be
rt 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

 
 

C
ity

 o
f L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 

Su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

C
om

m
un

iti
es

 P
ro

je
ct

 E
xe

m
pt

io
n 

 
 

N
ov

em
be

r 2
01

9 
Pa

ge
 A

3-
11

9 

Ta
bl

e 
A3

--2
 

M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
s 

fro
m

 P
rio

r E
IR

 (H
ol

ly
w

oo
d 

Co
m

m
un

ity
 P

la
n 

Re
vi

si
on

 F
in

al
 E

IR
 (J

ul
y 

19
88

)) 
Im

pa
ct

 
Ho

lly
w

oo
d 

Co
m

m
un

ity
 P

la
n 

Re
vi

si
on

 F
in

al
 E

IR
 

(J
ul

y 
19

88
) M

iti
ga

tio
n 

M
ea

su
re

s 
 

Ap
pl

ic
ab

ili
ty

 to
 th

e 
Pr

oj
ec

t 
La

nd
 U

se
 

La
nd

 U
se

 
Im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

or
 a

 T
ra

ns
po

rta
tio

n 
Sp

ec
ifi

c 
Pl

an
, 

tra
ns

po
rta

tio
n 

an
d 

ci
rc

ul
at

io
n 

im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

, 
as

 
w

el
l a

s 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t s
ta

nd
ar

ds
 to

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 la
nd

 
us

e 
ca

pa
ci

ty
 a

nd
 t

ra
ns

po
rta

tio
n 

se
rv

ic
e 

ar
e 

in
 

ba
la

nc
e 

an
d 

th
at

 
la

nd
 

us
e 

co
nf

lic
ts

 
an

d 
in

co
m

pa
tib

ilit
ie

s 
ar

e 
m

in
im

iz
ed

. 

N
o 

m
iti

ga
tio

n 
ap

pl
ie

s.
 T

hi
s 

m
ea

su
re

 is
 d

ire
ct

ed
 t

ow
ar

ds
 

th
e 

C
ity

 a
nd

 d
oe

s 
no

t 
ap

pl
y 

to
 i

nd
iv

id
ua

l 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t 
pr

oj
ec

ts
. 

No
is

e 
N

oi
se

 
O

n 
a 

pr
oj

ec
t 

ba
si

s,
 c

on
st

ru
ct

io
n-

re
la

te
d 

ac
tiv

iti
es

 
sh

ou
ld

 
be

 
lim

ite
d 

to
 

da
yt

im
e 

ho
ur

s.
 

Th
es

e 
ac

tiv
iti

es
 s

ho
ul

d 
co

m
pl

y 
w

ith
 th

e 
pr

ov
is

io
ns

 o
f C

ity
 

O
rd

in
an

ce
 N

o.
 1

44
,3

31
. 

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
eq

ui
pm

en
t 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
pr

op
er

ly
 f

itt
ed

 w
ith

 n
oi

se
 a

tte
nu

at
io

n 
de

vi
ce

s.
 

N
o 

m
iti

ga
tio

n 
ap

pl
ie

s.
 P

R
C

 S
ec

tio
n 

21
15

5.
1 

do
es

 n
ot

 
ad

dr
es

s 
no

is
e,

 
an

d 
th

er
ef

or
e,

 
un

de
r 

PR
C

 
Se

ct
io

n 
21

15
5.

1,
 

tra
ns

it 
pr

io
rit

y 
pr

oj
ec

ts
 

ar
e 

no
t 

re
qu

ire
d 

to
 

ev
al

ua
te

 th
e 

ef
fe

ct
s 

of
 n

oi
se

. H
ow

ev
er

, a
 N

oi
se

 T
ec

hn
ic

al
 

R
ep

or
t 

w
as

 p
re

pa
re

d 
fo

r 
th

e 
Pr

oj
ec

t, 
fo

r 
in

fo
rm

at
io

na
l 

pu
rp

os
es

 o
nl

y 
(a

tta
ch

ed
 a

s 
Ap

pe
nd

ix
 J

). 
As

 s
ta

te
d 

in
 th

e 
N

oi
se

 T
ec

hn
ic

al
 R

ep
or

t, 
th

e 
Pr

oj
ec

t 
w

ou
ld

 c
om

pl
y 

w
ith

 
R

C
M

-N
O

I-1
 

an
d 

R
C

M
-N

O
I-2

, 
pr

ov
id

ed
 

ab
ov

e,
 

w
hi

ch
 

w
ou

ld
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

at
 c

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

no
is

e 
im

pa
ct

s 
ar

e 
le

ss
 

th
an

 s
ig

ni
fic

an
t: 

  
N

oi
se

 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

st
an

da
rd

s 
fo

r 
re

si
de

nt
ia

l 
sh

ou
ld

 
ad

dr
es

s 
si

te
 

pl
an

s 
an

d 
bu

ild
in

g 
la

yo
ut

s 
to

 
m

in
im

iz
e 

no
is

e 
im

pa
ct

s.
 

N
o 

m
iti

ga
tio

n 
ap

pl
ie

s.
 T

hi
s 

m
ea

su
re

 is
 d

ire
ct

ed
 t

ow
ar

ds
 

th
e 

C
ity

 a
nd

 d
oe

s 
no

t 
ap

pl
y 

to
 i

nd
iv

id
ua

l 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t 
pr

oj
ec

ts
. 

Pl
an

t a
nd

 A
ni

m
al

 L
ife

 
Pl

an
t a

nd
 A

ni
m

al
 L

ife
 

C
om

pl
ia

nc
e 

w
ith

 g
ra

di
ng

 r
eg

ul
at

io
ns

 a
nd

 u
se

 o
f 

“u
ni

tiz
ed

” 
gr

ad
in

g 
pr

oc
ed

ur
es

 t
o 

re
du

ce
 i

m
pa

ct
s 

on
 re

m
ai

ni
ng

 n
at

ur
al

 a
re

as
. 

Th
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

is
 l

oc
at

ed
 i

n 
a 

de
ve

lo
pe

d,
 u

rb
an

 a
re

a 
an

d 
w

ou
ld

 b
e 

re
pl

ac
in

g 
ex

is
tin

g 
la

nd
 u

se
s.

 T
he

 P
ro

je
ct

 w
ou

ld
 

no
t b

e 
de

ve
lo

pe
d 

on
 o

pe
n 

sp
ac

e 
or

 o
th

er
 n

at
ur

al
 a

re
a.

 In
 

ad
di

tio
n,

 th
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t w

ou
ld

 c
om

pl
y 

w
ith

 R
C

M
-G

EO
-1

 a
nd

 
R

C
M

-G
EO

-2
, 

pr
ov

id
ed

 
ab

ov
e,

 
w

hi
ch

 
w

ou
ld

 
in

cl
ud

e 
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
 a

nd
 s

ta
nd

ar
ds

 d
es

ig
ne

d 
to

 l
im

it 
po

te
nt

ia
l 

im
pa

ct
s 

as
so

ci
at

ed
 w

ith
 e

ro
si

on
 to

 p
er

m
itt

ed
 le

ve
ls

. 
Po

pu
la

tio
n 

an
d 

Ho
us

in
g 

Po
pu

la
tio

n 
an

d 
H

ou
si

ng
 

N
on

-re
si

de
nt

ia
l 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

le
ve

ls
 i

n 
ei

th
er

 t
he

 
re

vi
si

on
 a

re
a 

or
 th

e 
re

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t a

re
a 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
re

du
ce

d 
to

 
ac

hi
ev

e 
a 

be
tte

r 
a 

jo
bs

-h
ou

si
ng

 
ba

la
nc

e 
in

 th
e 

C
om

m
un

ity
 P

la
n 

ar
ea

. 

N
o 

m
iti

ga
tio

n 
ap

pl
ie

s.
 T

hi
s 

m
ea

su
re

 is
 d

ire
ct

ed
 t

ow
ar

ds
 

th
e 

C
ity

 a
nd

 d
oe

s 
no

t 
ap

pl
y 

to
 i

nd
iv

id
ua

l 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t 
pr

oj
ec

ts
. 

Pu
bl

ic
 S

er
vi

ce
s 



 
M

iti
ga

tio
n 

M
ea

su
re

s 
fro

m
 P

rio
r E

IR
s 

 M
au

be
rt 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

 
 

C
ity

 o
f L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 

Su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

C
om

m
un

iti
es

 P
ro

je
ct

 E
xe

m
pt

io
n 

 
 

N
ov

em
be

r 2
01

9 
Pa

ge
 A

3-
12

0 

Ta
bl

e 
A3

--2
 

M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
s 

fro
m

 P
rio

r E
IR

 (H
ol

ly
w

oo
d 

Co
m

m
un

ity
 P

la
n 

Re
vi

si
on

 F
in

al
 E

IR
 (J

ul
y 

19
88

)) 
Im

pa
ct

 
Ho

lly
w

oo
d 

Co
m

m
un

ity
 P

la
n 

Re
vi

si
on

 F
in

al
 E

IR
 

(J
ul

y 
19

88
) M

iti
ga

tio
n 

M
ea

su
re

s 
 

Ap
pl

ic
ab

ili
ty

 to
 th

e 
Pr

oj
ec

t 
Fi

re
 P

ro
te

ct
io

n 
C

om
pl

ia
nc

e 
w

ith
 a

ll 
ap

pl
ic

ab
le

 S
ta

te
 a

nd
 l

oc
al

 
co

de
s 

an
d 

or
di

na
nc

es
, a

nd
 th

e 
gu

id
el

in
es

 fo
un

d 
in

 
th

e 
Fi

re
 P

ro
te

ct
io

n 
an

d 
Fi

re
 P

re
ve

nt
io

n 
Pl

an
 

Th
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

al
re

ad
y 

su
bs

ta
nt

ia
lly

 
co

nf
or

m
s 

to
 

th
is

 
m

iti
ga

tio
n 

m
ea

su
re

 th
ro

ug
h 

its
 c

om
pl

ia
nc

e 
w

ith
 R

C
M

-P
S-

1,
 p

ro
vi

de
d 

ab
ov

e.
  

 In
 

ad
di

tio
n,

 t
he

 
C

ity
 

re
qu

ire
s 

th
at

 
pl

an
s 

fo
r 

bu
ild

in
g 

co
ns

tru
ct

io
n,

 
fir

e 
flo

w
 

re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

, 
fir

e 
pr

ot
ec

tio
n 

de
vi

ce
s 

(e
.g

. 
sp

rin
kl

er
s 

an
d 

al
ar

m
s)

, 
fir

e 
hy

dr
an

ts
 a

nd
 

sp
ac

in
g,

 
an

d 
fir

e 
ac

ce
ss

 
(in

cl
ud

in
g 

in
gr

es
s/

eg
re

ss
), 

tu
rn

in
g 

ra
di

i, 
dr

iv
ew

ay
 

w
id

th
, 

an
d 

gr
ad

in
g 

w
ou

ld
 

be
 

pr
ep

ar
ed

 f
or

 r
ev

ie
w

 a
nd

 a
pp

ro
va

l 
by

 t
he

 L
AF

D
. 

Th
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t i

s 
no

t e
xp

ec
te

d 
to

 r
es

ul
t i

n 
a 

su
bs

ta
nt

ia
l i

nc
re

as
e 

in
 d

em
an

d 
fo

r 
ad

di
tio

na
l 

fir
e 

pr
ot

ec
tio

n 
se

rv
ic

es
 t

ha
t 

w
ou

ld
 e

xc
ee

d 
th

e 
ca

pa
bi

lit
y 

of
 t

he
 L

AF
D

, 
su

ch
 t

ha
t 

it 
w

ou
ld

 r
eq

ui
re

 t
he

 c
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
of

 a
 n

ew
 f

ire
 s

ta
tio

n.
 

Fu
rth

er
, e

ve
n 

if 
a 

ne
w

 fi
re

 s
ta

tio
n,

 o
r t

he
 e

xp
an

si
on

 o
f a

n 
ex

is
tin

g 
st

at
io

n,
 w

as
 d

et
er

m
in

ed
 t

o 
be

 w
ar

ra
nt

ed
 b

y 
LA

FD
, t

he
 P

ro
je

ct
 a

re
a 

is
 h

ig
hl

y 
de

ve
lo

pe
d,

 a
nd

 th
e 

si
te

 
of

 a
 n

ew
 f

ire
 s

ta
tio

n 
or

 e
xp

an
si

on
 o

f 
an

 e
xi

st
in

g 
st

at
io

n 
w

ou
ld

 l
ik

el
y 

be
 o

n 
an

 i
nf

ill 
lo

t 
th

at
 w

ou
ld

 l
ik

el
y 

be
 l

es
s 

th
an

 o
ne

 a
cr

e 
in

 s
iz

e.
 

Sc
ho

ol
s 

Ex
pa

nd
 fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

on
 c

ur
re

nt
 s

ite
s.

 A
llo

w
 re

si
de

nt
ia

l 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t 
on

ly
 

in
 

ar
ea

s 
w

he
re

 
th

er
e 

is
 

re
m

ai
ni

ng
 e

nr
ol

lm
en

t c
ap

ac
ity

. 

N
o 

m
iti

ga
tio

n 
ap

pl
ie

s.
 T

hi
s 

m
ea

su
re

 is
 d

ire
ct

ed
 t

ow
ar

ds
 

th
e 

C
ity

 a
nd

 d
oe

s 
no

t 
ap

pl
y 

to
 i

nd
iv

id
ua

l 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t 
pr

oj
ec

ts
. 

Pa
rk

s 
Pr

ov
id

e 
ne

ig
hb

or
ho

od
-o

rie
nt

ed
 

re
cr

ea
tio

n 
at

 
G

rif
fit

h 
Pa

rk
. 

U
se

 s
ch

oo
l 

ya
rd

s.
 D

ev
el

op
 p

oc
ke

t 
pa

rk
s.

 R
eq

ui
re

 d
ed

ic
at

io
n 

of
 u

sa
bl

e 
op

en
 s

pa
ce

 
as

 p
ar

t o
f n

ew
 re

si
de

nt
ia

l d
ev

el
op

m
en

ts
. 

N
o 

m
iti

ga
tio

n 
ap

pl
ie

s.
 T

hi
s 

m
ea

su
re

 is
 d

ire
ct

ed
 t

ow
ar

ds
 

th
e 

C
ity

 a
nd

 d
oe

s 
no

t 
ap

pl
y 

to
 i

nd
iv

id
ua

l 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t 
pr

oj
ec

ts
. 

Po
lic

e 
Se

rv
ic

es
 

O
ve

r 
th

e 
lif

e 
of

 
th

e 
pl

an
, 

as
si

gn
 

ad
di

tio
na

l 
pe

rs
on

ne
l 

co
ns

is
te

nt
 

w
ith

 
Po

lic
e 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

po
lic

y 
an

d 
bu

dg
et

ar
y 

co
ns

tra
in

ts
. 

N
o 

m
iti

ga
tio

n 
ap

pl
ie

s.
 T

hi
s 

m
ea

su
re

 is
 d

ire
ct

ed
 t

ow
ar

ds
 

th
e 

C
ity

 a
nd

 d
oe

s 
no

t 
ap

pl
y 

to
 i

nd
iv

id
ua

l 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t 
pr

oj
ec

ts
. 

Tr
an

sp
or

ta
tio

n 
an

d 
Ci

rc
ul

at
io

n 
Tr

an
sp

or
ta

tio
n 

an
d 

C
irc

ul
at

io
n 

 
Pr

ep
ar

e 
a 

Tr
an

sp
or

ta
tio

n 
Sp

ec
ifi

c 
Pl

an
 

to
 

im
pl

em
en

t o
pe

ra
tio

na
l a

nd
 p

hy
si

ca
l i

m
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 
in

 t
he

 P
la

n 
ar

ea
, 

in
cl

ud
in

g:
 A

TS
AC

. 
pe

ak
 p

er
io

d 
pa

rk
in

g 
re

st
ric

tio
ns

, 
on

e-
w

ay
 c

ou
pl

et
s.

 r
ev

er
si

bl
e 

la
ne

 o
pe

ra
tio

ns
, s

tre
et

 w
id

en
in

g,
 jo

g 
el

im
in

at
io

ns
, 

N
o 

m
iti

ga
tio

n 
ap

pl
ie

s.
 T

hi
s 

m
ea

su
re

 is
 d

ire
ct

ed
 t

ow
ar

ds
 

th
e 

C
ity

 a
nd

 d
oe

s 
no

t 
ap

pl
y 

to
 i

nd
iv

id
ua

l 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t 
pr

oj
ec

ts
. 



 
M

iti
ga

tio
n 

M
ea

su
re

s 
fro

m
 P

rio
r E

IR
s 

 M
au

be
rt 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

 
 

C
ity

 o
f L

os
 A

ng
el

es
 

Su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

C
om

m
un

iti
es

 P
ro

je
ct

 E
xe

m
pt

io
n 

 
 

N
ov

em
be

r 2
01

9 
Pa

ge
 A

3-
12

1 

Ta
bl

e 
A3

--2
 

M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
s 

fro
m

 P
rio

r E
IR

 (H
ol

ly
w

oo
d 

Co
m

m
un

ity
 P

la
n 

Re
vi

si
on

 F
in

al
 E

IR
 (J

ul
y 

19
88

)) 
Im

pa
ct

 
Ho

lly
w

oo
d 

Co
m

m
un

ity
 P

la
n 

Re
vi

si
on

 F
in

al
 E

IR
 

(J
ul

y 
19

88
) M

iti
ga

tio
n 

M
ea

su
re

s 
 

Ap
pl

ic
ab

ili
ty

 to
 th

e 
Pr

oj
ec

t 
an

d 
lo

ca
liz

ed
 in

te
rs

ec
tio

n 
im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
. 

Tr
an

sp
or

ta
tio

n 
an

d 
C

irc
ul

at
io

n 
 

Tr
an

sp
or

ta
tio

n 
Sy

st
em

s 
M

an
ag

em
en

t 
an

d 
Tr

an
sp

or
ta

tio
n 

D
em

an
d 

M
an

ag
em

en
t 

pl
an

s 
sh

ou
ld

 b
e 

de
ve

lo
pe

d 
an

d 
im

pl
em

en
te

d 
fo

r 
la

rg
e 

sc
al

e 
co

m
m

er
ci

al
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
ts

 a
nd

 e
m

pl
oy

er
s 

in
 

th
e 

C
om

m
un

ity
 P

la
n 

ar
ea

. 

N
o 

m
iti

ga
tio

n 
ap

pl
ie

s.
 T

hi
s 

m
ea

su
re

 is
 d

ire
ct

ed
 t

ow
ar

ds
 

th
e 

C
ity

 a
nd

 d
oe

s 
no

t 
ap

pl
y 

to
 i

nd
iv

id
ua

l 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t 
pr

oj
ec

ts
. 

Tr
an

sp
or

ta
tio

n 
an

d 
C

irc
ul

at
io

n 
 

Fu
tu

re
 o

ffi
ce

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
in

 t
he

 R
ed

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

Ar
ea

 s
ho

ul
d 

be
 l

im
ite

d 
to

 a
 l

ev
el

 s
im

ila
r 

to
 t

ha
t 

co
nt

ai
ne

d 
in

 th
e 

re
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t P
ro

je
ct

 E
IR

’s
 2

0-
ye

ar
 m

ar
ke

t-b
as

ed
 f

or
ec

as
ts

, 
at

 l
ea

st
 u

nt
il 

st
ep

s 
ar

e 
ta

ke
n 

to
 

im
pl

em
en

t 
m

aj
or

 
st

re
et

 
sy

st
em

 
im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 in

 e
xc

es
s 

of
 im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 fe

as
ib

le
 

w
ith

in
 e

xi
st

in
g 

rig
ht

s-
of

-w
ay

. 

N
o 

m
iti

ga
tio

n 
ap

pl
ie

s.
 T

hi
s 

m
ea

su
re

 is
 d

ire
ct

ed
 t

ow
ar

ds
 

th
e 

C
ity

 a
nd

 d
oe

s 
no

t 
ap

pl
y 

to
 i

nd
iv

id
ua

l 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t 
pr

oj
ec

ts
. 

S
ou

rc
e:

 H
ol

ly
w

oo
d 

C
om

m
un

ity
 P

la
n 

R
ev

is
io

n 
Fi

na
l E

IR
, J

ul
y 

19
98

. 

 



 

Appendix B-1 

Transportation Impact Study 

  



TRANSPORTATION IMPACT STUDY
FOR  THE

MAUBERT RESIDENTIAL PROJECT

HOLLYWOOD,  CALIFORNIA

MAY 2019

PREPARED FOR

MAUBERT LA VI, LLC

PREPARED BY



  



Table of Contents 



Table of Contents, cont. 

References 



List of Figures 

 
 
 

List of Tables 



Chapter 1 
Introduction 

Vermont/Western Transit Oriented District Specific Plan

Hollywood Community Plan

1



Transportation Impact Study Guidelines

2



Transportation Research Circular No. 212, Interim Materials on Highway Capacity

Transportation Impact 

Study Guidelines

3



Transportation Impact Study Guidelines

4



Source: City of Los Angeles. 

State of California Senate Bill 743

Local Development – 

Intergovernmental Review Program Interim Guide

5



 

2010 Los Angeles County Congestion 

Management Program

6



Caltrans Strategic Management Plan 2015-

2020 California Transportation Plan 2040  

Guide for the Preparation of Traffic 

Impact Studies 

 

 

7



8



9



10



11



Transportation Research Circular No. 212, Interim Materials on Highway Capacity (Transportation 
Research Board, 1980).

12



Chapter 2 
Existing Conditions 

13



Mobility Plan 2035, An 

Element of the General Plan 

.

14



o

o

o

o

15



16



17



2010 Bicycle Plan, A Component of the City of Los Angeles Transportation Element 

 

 

. 

18



Vision Zero: Eliminating Traffic Deaths in Los Angeles by 2025

19



20



21



22



23



24



25



M
et

ro
 B

us
 S

er
vi

ce
 

LA
D

O
T 

D
A

SH
 B

us
 S

er
vi

ce
 

M
et

ro
 R

ai
l S

er
vi

ce
 

26



M
et

ro
 B

us
 S

er
vi

ce
 

LA
D

O
T 

D
A

SH
 B

us
 S

er
vi

ce
 

M
et

ro
 R

ai
l S

er
vi

ce
 

27



28



Chapter 3 
Future without Project Conditions 

 
 

California Environmental Quality Act  Statute & Guidelines, Chapter 

3, Title 14, Article 9, Contents of Environmental Impact Reports 

Guidelines

29



  

 

Guidelines

30



Hollywood 

Community Plan, 

Hollywood Community Plan

Hollywood Community Plan

Hollywood Community Plan 

Hollywood Community Plan

Hollywood Community 

Plan 

 

31



Trip 

Generation, 10th Edition 

32



 

33



34



 

35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



 
 Chapter 4 

Project Traffic 

Trip Generation, 

10th Edition .

Trip Generation, 10th Edition  

43



Transportation Impact Study Guidelines  

Trip Generation, 10th Edition

44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



Le
ss

 W
al

k-
In

/T
ra

ns
it 

R
ed

uc
tio

n 
- 1

5%
 

(1
25

)
(2

)
(6

)
(8

)
(6

)
(4

)
(1

0)

Le
ss

 W
al

k-
In

/T
ra

ns
it 

R
ed

uc
tio

n 
- 1

5%
 

(1
5)

0
(1

)
(1

)
(1

)
0

(1
)

Tr
ip

 G
en

er
at

io
n,

 1
0t

h 
E

di
tio

n
Tr

an
sp

or
ta

tio
n 

Im
pa

ct
 S

tu
dy

 G
ui

de
lin

es
, 

52



 
Chapter 5 

Existing with Project Conditions 
 

53



54



55



56



57



Chapter 6 
Future with Project Conditions 

 

58



59



60



61



62



Chapter 7 
Congestion Management Program Analysis 

63



64



65



2009 Long Range Transportation Plan

2014 Short Range Transportation Plan 

66



 
Chapter 8 

Site Access and Internal Circulation 

Los Angeles Municipal Code 

67



Chapter 9  
Summary and Conclusions 

68



 
References 

 
2009 Long Range Transportation Plan

 
2010 Bicycle Plan, A Component of the City of Los Angeles Transportation Element, 

2010 Los Angeles County Congestion Management Program, 

2014 Short Range Transportation Plan, 

California Environmental Quality Act  Statute & Guidelines, Chapter 3, Title 14, Article 9, 
Contents of Environmental Impact Reports  

California Transportation Plan 2040  

Caltrans Strategic Management Plan 2015-2020, 

Hollywood Community Plan, 

Local Development – Intergovernmental Review Program Interim Guide

Los Angeles Municipal Code, 

Mobility Plan 2035, An Element of the General, 

 
Transportation Impact Study Guidelines, 

Transportation Research Circular No. 212, Interim Materials on Highway Capacity

Trip Generation, 10th Edition, 



 
 

References, cont.  
 
 
 
Vermont/Western Transit Oriented District Specific Plan

Vision Zero: Eliminating Traffic Deaths in Los Angeles by 2025

 
 



 
 
 
 

Appendix A 
 

Memorandum of Understanding 



December 2016 | Page 1 of 2

Transportation Impact Study Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) 
This MOU acknowledges that the Transportation Impact Study for the following Project will be prepared in 
accordance with the latest version of LADOT’s Transportation Impact Study Guidelines: 

I . PROJECT INFORMATION

Project Name:

Project Address:

Project Description:

LADOT Project Case Number:    Project Site Plan attached? (Required)  Yes   No 

I I . TRIP GENERATION

Geographic Distribution:  N           %    S           %    E           %    W % 

Illustration of Project trip distribution percentages at Study intersections attached? (Required)   Yes   No

Trip Generation Adjustments (Exact amount of credit subject to approval by LADOT) 

Yes No

Transit Usage   

Transportation Demand Management   

Existing Active Land Use   

Previous Land Use   

Internal Trip   

Pass-By Trip   

Trip Generation Rate(s)

Trip generation table including a description of the proposed land uses, ITE rates, estimated morning and 
afternoon peak hour volumes (ins/outs/totals), proposed trip credits, etc. attached? (Required)   Yes   No 

IN OUT  TOTAL
AM Trips 
PM Trips 

I I I . STUDY AREA AND ASSUMPTIONS

Project Buildout Year:                       Ambient or CMP Growth Rate: % Per Yr. 

Related Projects List, researched by the consultant and approved by LADOT, attached? (Required)   Yes   No 

Map of Study Intersections attached? (May be subject to LADOT revision after initial impact analysis) Yes   No

Is this Project located on a street within the High Injury Network?   Yes   No

■

■

■

■

■

■

■

■

■

■

■

■

■



City of Los Angeles Transportation Impact Study MOU

                         Page 2 of 2 

IV. CONTACT INFORMATION
        CONSULTANT               DEVELOPER 

Name:                                                                                             

Address:                                                                                           

Phone Number:                                                                                     

E-Mail:                                                                                            

Approved by:  x                                    x                                          
 Consultant's Representative          Date              LADOT Representative               Date 
                 
Consultant's Representatiiiive

  x                        
LADOT Representative

 x                    









Le
ss

 W
al

k-
In

/T
ra

ns
it 

R
ed

uc
tio

n 
- 1

5%
 

(1
25

)
(2

)
(6

)
(8

)
(6

)
(4

)
(1

0)

Le
ss

 W
al

k-
In

/T
ra

ns
it 

R
ed

uc
tio

n 
- 1

5%
 

(1
5)

0
(1

)
(1

)
(1

)
0

(1
)

Tr
ip

 G
en

er
at

io
n,

 1
0t

h 
E

di
tio

n
Tr

an
sp

or
ta

tio
n 

Im
pa

ct
 S

tu
dy

 G
ui

de
lin

es
, 



















 
 
 
 

Appendix B 
 

Intersection Lane Configurations 







 
 
 
 

Appendix C 
 

Traffic Counts 
 



























































 
 
 
 

Appendix D 
 

Level of Service Worksheets 
 



N
B

--
SB

--
N

B
--

N
B

--
SB

--
N

B
--

SB
--

N
B

--
SB

--
EB

--
W

B
--

EB
--

EB
--

W
B

--
EB

--
W

B
--

EB
--

W
B

--

N
or

th
-S

ou
th

:
Ea

st
-W

es
t:

SU
M

:
SU

M
:

SU
M

:
SU

M
:

SU
M

:

SB
--

W
B

--

N
or

th
-S

ou
th

:
N

or
th

-S
ou

th
:

N
or

th
-S

ou
th

:
N

or
th

-S
ou

th
:

Ea
st

-W
es

t:
Ea

st
-W

es
t:

Ea
st

-W
es

t:
Ea

st
-W

es
t:

(V
/C

)

V/
C

v/
c

v/
c

R
EM

A
R

K
S:



N
B

--
SB

--
N

B
--

N
B

--
SB

--
N

B
--

SB
--

N
B

--
SB

--
EB

--
W

B
--

EB
--

EB
--

W
B

--
EB

--
W

B
--

EB
--

W
B

--

N
or

th
-S

ou
th

:
Ea

st
-W

es
t:

SU
M

:
SU

M
:

SU
M

:
SU

M
:

SU
M

:

SB
--

W
B

--

N
or

th
-S

ou
th

:
N

or
th

-S
ou

th
:

N
or

th
-S

ou
th

:
N

or
th

-S
ou

th
:

Ea
st

-W
es

t:
Ea

st
-W

es
t:

Ea
st

-W
es

t:
Ea

st
-W

es
t:

(V
/C

)

V/
C

v/
c

v/
c

R
EM

A
R

K
S:



N
B

--
SB

--
N

B
--

N
B

--
SB

--
N

B
--

SB
--

N
B

--
SB

--
EB

--
W

B
--

EB
--

EB
--

W
B

--
EB

--
W

B
--

EB
--

W
B

--

N
or

th
-S

ou
th

:
Ea

st
-W

es
t:

SU
M

:
SU

M
:

SU
M

:
SU

M
:

SU
M

:

SB
--

W
B

--

N
or

th
-S

ou
th

:
N

or
th

-S
ou

th
:

N
or

th
-S

ou
th

:
N

or
th

-S
ou

th
:

Ea
st

-W
es

t:
Ea

st
-W

es
t:

Ea
st

-W
es

t:
Ea

st
-W

es
t:

(V
/C

)

V/
C

v/
c

v/
c

R
EM

A
R

K
S:



N
B

--
SB

--
N

B
--

N
B

--
SB

--
N

B
--

SB
--

N
B

--
SB

--
EB

--
W

B
--

EB
--

EB
--

W
B

--
EB

--
W

B
--

EB
--

W
B

--

N
or

th
-S

ou
th

:
Ea

st
-W

es
t:

SU
M

:
SU

M
:

SU
M

:
SU

M
:

SU
M

:

SB
--

W
B

--

N
or

th
-S

ou
th

:
N

or
th

-S
ou

th
:

N
or

th
-S

ou
th

:
N

or
th

-S
ou

th
:

Ea
st

-W
es

t:
Ea

st
-W

es
t:

Ea
st

-W
es

t:
Ea

st
-W

es
t:

(V
/C

)

V/
C

v/
c

v/
c

R
EM

A
R

K
S:



N
B

--
SB

--
N

B
--

N
B

--
SB

--
N

B
--

SB
--

N
B

--
SB

--
EB

--
W

B
--

EB
--

EB
--

W
B

--
EB

--
W

B
--

EB
--

W
B

--

N
or

th
-S

ou
th

:
Ea

st
-W

es
t:

SU
M

:
SU

M
:

SU
M

:
SU

M
:

SU
M

:

SB
--

W
B

--

N
or

th
-S

ou
th

:
N

or
th

-S
ou

th
:

N
or

th
-S

ou
th

:
N

or
th

-S
ou

th
:

Ea
st

-W
es

t:
Ea

st
-W

es
t:

Ea
st

-W
es

t:
Ea

st
-W

es
t:

(V
/C

)

V/
C

v/
c

v/
c

R
EM

A
R

K
S:



N
B

--
SB

--
N

B
--

N
B

--
SB

--
N

B
--

SB
--

N
B

--
SB

--
EB

--
W

B
--

EB
--

EB
--

W
B

--
EB

--
W

B
--

EB
--

W
B

--

N
or

th
-S

ou
th

:
Ea

st
-W

es
t:

SU
M

:
SU

M
:

SU
M

:
SU

M
:

SU
M

:

v/
c

v/
c

R
EM

A
R

K
S:

(V
/C

)

V/
C

N
or

th
-S

ou
th

:
Ea

st
-W

es
t:

Ea
st

-W
es

t:
Ea

st
-W

es
t:

Ea
st

-W
es

t:
N

or
th

-S
ou

th
:

N
or

th
-S

ou
th

:
N

or
th

-S
ou

th
:

SB
--

W
B

--



N
B

--
SB

--
N

B
--

N
B

--
SB

--
N

B
--

SB
--

N
B

--
SB

--
EB

--
W

B
--

EB
--

EB
--

W
B

--
EB

--
W

B
--

EB
--

W
B

--

N
or

th
-S

ou
th

:
Ea

st
-W

es
t:

SU
M

:
SU

M
:

SU
M

:
SU

M
:

SU
M

:

SB
--

W
B

--

N
or

th
-S

ou
th

:
N

or
th

-S
ou

th
:

N
or

th
-S

ou
th

:
N

or
th

-S
ou

th
:

Ea
st

-W
es

t:
Ea

st
-W

es
t:

Ea
st

-W
es

t:
Ea

st
-W

es
t:

(V
/C

)

V/
C

v/
c

v/
c

R
EM

A
R

K
S:



N
B

--
SB

--
N

B
--

N
B

--
SB

--
N

B
--

SB
--

N
B

--
SB

--
EB

--
W

B
--

EB
--

EB
--

W
B

--
EB

--
W

B
--

EB
--

W
B

--

N
or

th
-S

ou
th

:
Ea

st
-W

es
t:

SU
M

:
SU

M
:

SU
M

:
SU

M
:

SU
M

:

SB
--

W
B

--

N
or

th
-S

ou
th

:
N

or
th

-S
ou

th
:

N
or

th
-S

ou
th

:
N

or
th

-S
ou

th
:

Ea
st

-W
es

t:
Ea

st
-W

es
t:

Ea
st

-W
es

t:
Ea

st
-W

es
t:

(V
/C

)

V/
C

v/
c

v/
c

R
EM

A
R

K
S:



Hollywood Boulevard / Sunset Boulevard

Southeast Lefts Northwest Through and Rights
or

Northwest Left* Southeast Through and Rights

* Penality for Dual Left-Turns

Sunset Boulevard / Sunset Drive

Eastbound Lefts Westbound Lefts Through and Rights
7 = or

Westbound Lefts Eastbound Lefts and Through
or

Reduced Sunset Boulevard Eastbound Right-Turn due to Overlap
Eastbound Rights ** Northwest Left**

** Penality for Dual Right-Turns and Dual Left-Turns

Hillhurst Avenue / Virgil Avenue

Southbound Lefts Northbound Through and Rights
or

Northbound Lefts Southbound Through and Rights



Hollywood Boulevard / Sunset Boulevard

Southeast Lefts Northwest Through and Rights
or

Northwest Left* Southeast Through and Rights

* Penality for Dual Left-Turns

Sunset Boulevard / Sunset Drive

Eastbound Lefts Westbound Lefts Through and Rights
7 = or

Westbound Lefts Eastbound Lefts and Through
or

Reduced Sunset Boulevard Eastbound Right-Turn due to Overlap
Eastbound Rights ** Northwest Left**

** Penality for Dual Right-Turns and Dual Left-Turns

Hillhurst Avenue / Virgil Avenue

Southbound Lefts Northbound Through and Rights
or

Northbound Lefts Southbound Through and Rights



Hollywood Boulevard / Sunset Boulevard

Southeast Lefts Northwest Through and Rights
or

Northwest Left* Southeast Through and Rights

* Penality for Dual Left-Turns

Sunset Boulevard / Sunset Drive

Eastbound Lefts Westbound Lefts Through and Rights
7 = or

Westbound Lefts Eastbound Lefts and Through
or

Reduced Sunset Boulevard Eastbound Right-Turn due to Overlap
Eastbound Rights ** Northwest Left**

** Penality for Dual Right-Turns and Dual Left-Turns

Hillhurst Avenue / Virgil Avenue

Southbound Lefts Northbound Through and Rights
or

Northbound Lefts Southbound Through and Rights



Hollywood Boulevard / Sunset Boulevard

Southeast Lefts Northwest Through and Rights
or

Northwest Left* Southeast Through and Rights

* Penality for Dual Left-Turns

Sunset Boulevard / Sunset Drive

Eastbound Lefts Westbound Lefts Through and Rights
7 = or

Westbound Lefts Eastbound Lefts and Through
or

Reduced Sunset Boulevard Eastbound Right-Turn due to Overlap
Eastbound Rights ** Northwest Left**

** Penality for Dual Right-Turns and Dual Left-Turns

Hillhurst Avenue / Virgil Avenue

Southbound Lefts Northbound Through and Rights
or

Northbound Lefts Southbound Through and Rights



N
B

--
SB

--
N

B
--

N
B

--
SB

--
N

B
--

SB
--

N
B

--
SB

--
EB

--
W

B
--

EB
--

EB
--

W
B

--
EB

--
W

B
--

EB
--

W
B

--

N
or

th
-S

ou
th

:
Ea

st
-W

es
t:

SU
M

:
SU

M
:

SU
M

:
SU

M
:

SU
M

:

SB
--

W
B

--

N
or

th
-S

ou
th

:
N

or
th

-S
ou

th
:

N
or

th
-S

ou
th

:
N

or
th

-S
ou

th
:

Ea
st

-W
es

t:
Ea

st
-W

es
t:

Ea
st

-W
es

t:
Ea

st
-W

es
t:

(V
/C

)

V/
C

v/
c

v/
c

R
EM

A
R

K
S:



N
B

--
SB

--
N

B
--

N
B

--
SB

--
N

B
--

SB
--

N
B

--
SB

--
EB

--
W

B
--

EB
--

EB
--

W
B

--
EB

--
W

B
--

EB
--

W
B

--

N
or

th
-S

ou
th

:
Ea

st
-W

es
t:

SU
M

:
SU

M
:

SU
M

:
SU

M
:

SU
M

:

SB
--

W
B

--

N
or

th
-S

ou
th

:
N

or
th

-S
ou

th
:

N
or

th
-S

ou
th

:
N

or
th

-S
ou

th
:

Ea
st

-W
es

t:
Ea

st
-W

es
t:

Ea
st

-W
es

t:
Ea

st
-W

es
t:

(V
/C

)

V/
C

v/
c

v/
c

R
EM

A
R

K
S:



N
B

--
SB

--
N

B
--

N
B

--
SB

--
N

B
--

SB
--

N
B

--
SB

--
EB

--
W

B
--

EB
--

EB
--

W
B

--
EB

--
W

B
--

EB
--

W
B

--

N
or

th
-S

ou
th

:
Ea

st
-W

es
t:

SU
M

:
SU

M
:

SU
M

:
SU

M
:

SU
M

:

SB
--

W
B

--

N
or

th
-S

ou
th

:
N

or
th

-S
ou

th
:

N
or

th
-S

ou
th

:
N

or
th

-S
ou

th
:

Ea
st

-W
es

t:
Ea

st
-W

es
t:

Ea
st

-W
es

t:
Ea

st
-W

es
t:

(V
/C

)

V/
C

v/
c

v/
c

R
EM

A
R

K
S:



N
B

--
SB

--
N

B
--

N
B

--
SB

--
N

B
--

SB
--

N
B

--
SB

--
EB

--
W

B
--

EB
--

EB
--

W
B

--
EB

--
W

B
--

EB
--

W
B

--

N
or

th
-S

ou
th

:
Ea

st
-W

es
t:

SU
M

:
SU

M
:

SU
M

:
SU

M
:

SU
M

:

SB
--

W
B

--

N
or

th
-S

ou
th

:
N

or
th

-S
ou

th
:

N
or

th
-S

ou
th

:
N

or
th

-S
ou

th
:

Ea
st

-W
es

t:
Ea

st
-W

es
t:

Ea
st

-W
es

t:
Ea

st
-W

es
t:

(V
/C

)

V/
C

v/
c

v/
c

R
EM

A
R

K
S:



N
B

--
SB

--
N

B
--

N
B

--
SB

--
N

B
--

SB
--

N
B

--
SB

--
EB

--
W

B
--

EB
--

EB
--

W
B

--
EB

--
W

B
--

EB
--

W
B

--

N
or

th
-S

ou
th

:
Ea

st
-W

es
t:

SU
M

:
SU

M
:

SU
M

:
SU

M
:

SU
M

:

SB
--

W
B

--

N
or

th
-S

ou
th

:
N

or
th

-S
ou

th
:

N
or

th
-S

ou
th

:
N

or
th

-S
ou

th
:

Ea
st

-W
es

t:
Ea

st
-W

es
t:

Ea
st

-W
es

t:
Ea

st
-W

es
t:

(V
/C

)

V/
C

v/
c

v/
c

R
EM

A
R

K
S:



N
B

--
SB

--
N

B
--

N
B

--
SB

--
N

B
--

SB
--

N
B

--
SB

--
EB

--
W

B
--

EB
--

EB
--

W
B

--
EB

--
W

B
--

EB
--

W
B

--

N
or

th
-S

ou
th

:
Ea

st
-W

es
t:

SU
M

:
SU

M
:

SU
M

:
SU

M
:

SU
M

:

SB
--

W
B

--

N
or

th
-S

ou
th

:
N

or
th

-S
ou

th
:

N
or

th
-S

ou
th

:
N

or
th

-S
ou

th
:

Ea
st

-W
es

t:
Ea

st
-W

es
t:

Ea
st

-W
es

t:
Ea

st
-W

es
t:

(V
/C

)

V/
C

v/
c

v/
c

R
EM

A
R

K
S:



N
B

--
SB

--
N

B
--

N
B

--
SB

--
N

B
--

SB
--

N
B

--
SB

--
EB

--
W

B
--

EB
--

EB
--

W
B

--
EB

--
W

B
--

EB
--

W
B

--

N
or

th
-S

ou
th

:
Ea

st
-W

es
t:

SU
M

:
SU

M
:

SU
M

:
SU

M
:

SU
M

:

v/
c

v/
c

R
EM

A
R

K
S:

(V
/C

)

V/
C

N
or

th
-S

ou
th

:
Ea

st
-W

es
t:

Ea
st

-W
es

t:
Ea

st
-W

es
t:

Ea
st

-W
es

t:
N

or
th

-S
ou

th
:

N
or

th
-S

ou
th

:
N

or
th

-S
ou

th
:

SB
--

W
B

--



N
B

--
SB

--
N

B
--

N
B

--
SB

--
N

B
--

SB
--

N
B

--
SB

--
EB

--
W

B
--

EB
--

EB
--

W
B

--
EB

--
W

B
--

EB
--

W
B

--

N
or

th
-S

ou
th

:
Ea

st
-W

es
t:

SU
M

:
SU

M
:

SU
M

:
SU

M
:

SU
M

:

SB
--

W
B

--

N
or

th
-S

ou
th

:
N

or
th

-S
ou

th
:

N
or

th
-S

ou
th

:
N

or
th

-S
ou

th
:

Ea
st

-W
es

t:
Ea

st
-W

es
t:

Ea
st

-W
es

t:
Ea

st
-W

es
t:

(V
/C

)

V/
C

v/
c

v/
c

R
EM

A
R

K
S:



N
B

--
SB

--
N

B
--

N
B

--
SB

--
N

B
--

SB
--

N
B

--
SB

--
EB

--
W

B
--

EB
--

EB
--

W
B

--
EB

--
W

B
--

EB
--

W
B

--

N
or

th
-S

ou
th

:
Ea

st
-W

es
t:

SU
M

:
SU

M
:

SU
M

:
SU

M
:

SU
M

:

SB
--

W
B

--

N
or

th
-S

ou
th

:
N

or
th

-S
ou

th
:

N
or

th
-S

ou
th

:
N

or
th

-S
ou

th
:

Ea
st

-W
es

t:
Ea

st
-W

es
t:

Ea
st

-W
es

t:
Ea

st
-W

es
t:

(V
/C

)

V/
C

v/
c

v/
c

R
EM

A
R

K
S:



Hollywood Boulevard / Sunset Boulevard

Southeast Lefts Northwest Through and Rights
or

Northwest Left* Southeast Through and Rights

* Penality for Dual Left-Turns

Sunset Boulevard / Sunset Drive

Eastbound Lefts Westbound Lefts Through and Rights
10 = or

Westbound Lefts Eastbound Lefts and Through
or

Reduced Sunset Boulevard Eastbound Right-Turn due to Overlap
Eastbound Rights ** Northwest Left**

** Penality for Dual Right-Turns and Dual Left-Turns

Hillhurst Avenue / Virgil Avenue

Southbound Lefts Northbound Through and Rights
or

Northbound Lefts Southbound Through and Rights



Hollywood Boulevard / Sunset Boulevard

Southeast Lefts Northwest Through and Rights
or

Northwest Left* Southeast Through and Rights

* Penality for Dual Left-Turns

Sunset Boulevard / Sunset Drive

Eastbound Lefts Westbound Lefts Through and Rights
10 = or

Westbound Lefts Eastbound Lefts and Through
or

Reduced Sunset Boulevard Eastbound Right-Turn due to Overlap
Eastbound Rights ** Northwest Left**

** Penality for Dual Right-Turns and Dual Left-Turns

Hillhurst Avenue / Virgil Avenue

Southbound Lefts Northbound Through and Rights
or

Northbound Lefts Southbound Through and Rights



Hollywood Boulevard / Sunset Boulevard

Southeast Lefts Northwest Through and Rights
or

Northwest Left* Southeast Through and Rights

* Penality for Dual Left-Turns

Sunset Boulevard / Sunset Drive

Eastbound Lefts Westbound Lefts Through and Rights
10 = or

Westbound Lefts Eastbound Lefts and Through
or

Reduced Sunset Boulevard Eastbound Right-Turn due to Overlap
Eastbound Rights ** Northwest Left**

** Penality for Dual Right-Turns and Dual Left-Turns

Hillhurst Avenue / Virgil Avenue

Southbound Lefts Northbound Through and Rights
or

Northbound Lefts Southbound Through and Rights



Hollywood Boulevard / Sunset Boulevard

Southeast Lefts Northwest Through and Rights
or

Northwest Left* Southeast Through and Rights

* Penality for Dual Left-Turns

Sunset Boulevard / Sunset Drive

Eastbound Lefts Westbound Lefts Through and Rights
10 = or

Westbound Lefts Eastbound Lefts and Through
or

Reduced Sunset Boulevard Eastbound Right-Turn due to Overlap
Eastbound Rights ** Northwest Left**

** Penality for Dual Right-Turns and Dual Left-Turns

Hillhurst Avenue / Virgil Avenue

Southbound Lefts Northbound Through and Rights
or

Northbound Lefts Southbound Through and Rights



N
B

--
SB

--
N

B
--

N
B

--
SB

--
N

B
--

SB
--

N
B

--
SB

--
EB

--
W

B
--

EB
--

EB
--

W
B

--
EB

--
W

B
--

EB
--

W
B

--

N
or

th
-S

ou
th

:
Ea

st
-W

es
t:

SU
M

:
SU

M
:

SU
M

:
SU

M
:

SU
M

:

SB
--

W
B

--

N
or

th
-S

ou
th

:
N

or
th

-S
ou

th
:

N
or

th
-S

ou
th

:
N

or
th

-S
ou

th
:

Ea
st

-W
es

t:
Ea

st
-W

es
t:

Ea
st

-W
es

t:
Ea

st
-W

es
t:

(V
/C

)

V/
C

v/
c

v/
c

R
EM

A
R

K
S:



 

Appendix B-2 

LADOT Assessment Letter   



 FORM GEN. 160A (Rev. 1/82) CITY OF LOS ANGELES 
INTER-DEPARTMENTAL CORRESPONDENCE 

 
4629-4651 W Maubert Av 

DOT Case No. CEN18-47836 
 
Date:   August 13, 2019 
 
To:  Heather Bleemers, Senior City Planner 

Department of City Planning 
 
 
From:  Wes Pringle, Transportation Engineer 

Department of Transportation 
 
Subject: TRANSPORTATION IMPACT ANALYSIS FOR THE PROPOSED RESIDENTIAL PROJECT AT 

4629-4651 WEST MAUBERT AVENUE (ENV-2019-1620-EAF/PAR-2019-1620-TOC/VTT-
82654) 

 
The Department of Transportation (DOT) has reviewed the transportation analysis prepared by Gibson 
Transportation Consulting, Inc., dated May 2019, for the proposed Maubert residential project located 
at 4629-4651 West Maubert Avenue.  In order to evaluate the effects of the project’s traffic on the 
available transportation infrastructure, the significance of the project’s traffic impacts is measured in 
terms of change to the volume-to-capacity (V/C) ratio between the “future no project” and the “future 
with project” scenarios.  This change in the V/C ratio is compared to established threshold standards to 
assess the project-related traffic impacts.  The transportation study included the analysis of ten 
signalized intersections.  Based on DOT’s traffic impact criteria1 at the time the Transportation Impact 
Study Memorandum of Understanding was agreed upon, none of the study intersections would be 
significantly impacted by project-related traffic as summarized in Attachment 1.  The results of the 
transportation analysis, which accounted for other known development projects in estimating potential 
cumulative impacts, adequately evaluated the project’s transportation impacts on the surrounding 
community.  
 
DISCUSSION AND FINDINGS 
 
A. Project Description 

The project proposes to remove three existing multi-family buildings with a total of 14 dwelling 
units and construct an eight-story multi-family building with up to 153 dwelling units and 
residential amenities on the north side of Maubert Avenue east of Vermont Avenue within the 
Vermont/Western Transit Oriented District (TOD) Specific Plan.  The project will provide parking 
on-site for vehicles and bicycles.  The on-site parking garage would be accessed via a full-access 
driveway along Maubert Avenue and a left-turn in/left-turn out driveway along the adjacent 
one-way alley as illustrated in Attachment 2.  The project is expected to be completed by 2022. 

 
B. Trip Generation 

The project is estimated to generate an approximate net increase of 620 daily trips, a net 
increase of 42 trips during the a.m. peak hour and a net increase of 50 trips during the p.m. peak 
hour.  The trip generation estimates are based on formulas published by the Institute of 
Transportation Engineers (ITE) Trip Generation, 10th Edition, 2017.  A copy of the project trip 
generation table can be found in Attachment 3. 

                     
1 Per DOT’s December 2016 Traffic Study Policies and Procedures, a significant impact is identified as an increase in the Critical 

Movement Analysis (CMA) value, due to project related traffic, of 0.01 or more when the final (“with project”) Level of Service (LOS) is LOS E or 
F; an increase of 0.020 or more when the final LOS is LOS D; or an increase of 0.040 or more when the final LOS is LOS C.  



Heather Bleemers -2- August 13, 2019 
 
 
C. Freeway Analysis 

The traffic study included a freeway impact analysis that was prepared in accordance with the 
State-mandated Congestion Management Program (CMP) administered by the Los Angeles 
County Metropolitan Transportation Authority (MTA).  According to this analysis, the project 
would not result in significant traffic impacts on any of the evaluated freeway mainline 
segments.  To comply with the Freeway Impact Analysis Agreement executed between Caltrans 
and DOT in October 2013, the study also included a screening analysis to determine if additional 
evaluation of freeway mainline and ramp segments was necessary beyond the CMP 
requirements.  The project did not meet or exceed any of the four thresholds defined in the 
latest agreement, updated in December 2015.  Exceeding one of the four screening criteria 
would require the applicant to work directly with Caltrans to prepare more detailed freeway 
analyses.  No additional freeway analysis was required. 
 

PROJECT REQUIREMENTS 
 
Non-CEQA-Related Requirements and Considerations 
To comply with transportation and mobility goals and provisions of adopted City plans and ordinances, 
the applicant should be required to implement the following: 
 
A. Parking Requirements 
 Parking for vehicles and bicycles will be provided onsite.  The applicant should check with the 

Departments of Building and Safety and City Planning on the number of parking spaces required 
for this project with the Vermont/Western TOD Specific Plan.  

 
B. Highway Dedication and Street Widening Requirements 

On January 20, 2016, the City Council adopted the Mobility Plan 2035 which represents the new 
Mobility Element of the General Plan.  A key feature of the updated plan is to revise street 
standards in an effort to provide a more enhanced balance between traffic flow and other 
important street functions including transit routes and stops, pedestrian environments, bicycle 
routes, building design and site access, etc.  Per the new Mobility Element, Maubert Avenue, a 
Local Street, would require an 18-foot half-width roadway within a 30-foot half-width right-of-
way.  The applicant should check with BOE’s Land Development Group to determine if other 
applicable highway dedication, street widening and/or sidewalk requirements for this project. 
 

C. Project Access and Circulation 
The conceptual site plan for the project (see Attachment 2) is acceptable to DOT.  However, the 
review of this study does not constitute approval of the dimensions for any new proposed 
driveway.  This requires separate review and approval and should be coordinated with DOT’s 
Citywide Planning Coordination Section (201 North Figueroa Street, 5th Floor, Room 550, at 213-
482-7024).  In order to minimize and prevent last minute building design changes, the applicant 
should contact DOT for driveway width and internal circulation requirements prior to the 
commencement of building or parking layout design. 
 

D. Worksite Traffic Control Requirements 
DOT recommends that a construction work site traffic control plan be submitted to DOT’s 
Citywide Temporary Traffic Control Section or Permit Plan Review Section for review and 
approval prior to the start of any construction work.  Refer to http://ladot.lacity.org/what-we-
do/plan-review to determine which section to coordinate review of the work site traffic control 
plan.  The plan should show the location of any roadway or sidewalk closures, traffic detours, 
haul routes, hours of operation, protective devices, warning signs and access to abutting 



Heather Bleemers -3- August 13, 2019 
 
 

properties.  DOT also recommends that all construction related truck traffic be restricted to off-
peak hours to the extent feasible. 
 

E. Development Review Fees 
An ordinance adding Section 19.15 to the Los Angeles Municipal Code relative to application 
fees paid to DOT for permit issuance activities was adopted by the Los Angeles City Council in 
2009 and updated in 2014.  Ordinance No. 183270 identifies specific fees for traffic study 
review, condition clearance, and permit issuance.  The applicant shall comply with any 
applicable fees per this ordinance. 
 

If you have any questions, please contact Eileen Hunt of my staff at (213) 972-8481. 
 
Attachments 
 
K:\Letters\2019\CEN19-47836_4629-4651 Maubert Res_ts_ltr.docx 
 
c: Craig Bullock, Council District 13 
 Matthew Masuda, Central District, BOE  
 Bhuvan Bajaj, Hollywood-Wilshire District, DOT 
 Taimour Tanavoli, Case Management, DOT 
 Emily Wong, GTC, Inc. 







Le
ss

 W
al

k-
In

/T
ra

ns
it 

R
ed

uc
tio

n 
- 1

5%
 

(1
25

)
(2

)
(6

)
(8

)
(6

)
(4

)
(1

0)

Le
ss

 W
al

k-
In

/T
ra

ns
it 

R
ed

uc
tio

n 
- 1

5%
 

(1
5)

0
(1

)
(1

)
(1

)
0

(1
)

Tr
ip

 G
en

er
at

io
n,

 1
0t

h 
E

di
tio

n
Tr

an
sp

or
ta

tio
n 

Im
pa

ct
 S

tu
dy

 G
ui

de
lin

es
, 



 

Appendix C 

Water and Wastewater Utility Infrastructure Report  



MAUBERT PROJECT 

WASTEWATER AND WATER UTILITY
INFRASTRUCTURE TECHNICAL REPORT 

P R E P A R E D  F O R :

Carmel Partners 
429 Santa Monica Boulevard, Suite 700 
Santa Monica, CA 90401 

P R E P A R E D  B Y :

ICF  
555 West 5th Street 
Los Angeles, CA 90013 
Contact: Jessie Barkley 

May 2019 



Maubert Project Wastewater and Water Utility 
Infrastructure Technical Report i May 2019 

ICF 00284.19 

Contents 

List of Tables ............................................................................................................................................ i 

Section 1 Introduction....................................................................................................................... 1-1 
1.1 Project Description .......................................................................................................... 1-1 
1.2 Scope of Work .................................................................................................................. 1-1 

Section 2 Regulatory Framework ...................................................................................................... 2-1 
2.1 Water ............................................................................................................................... 2-1 

2.1.1 State ................................................................................................................................. 2-1 
2.1.2 Regional ........................................................................................................................... 2-3 
2.1.3 Local ................................................................................................................................. 2-4 

2.2 Wastewater ...................................................................................................................... 2-7 
2.2.1 City of Los Angeles ........................................................................................................... 2-7 

2.3 Stormwater .................................................................................................................... 2-10 
2.3.1 State ............................................................................................................................... 2-10 
2.3.2 Regional ......................................................................................................................... 2-10 

Section 3 Existing Conditions ........................................................................................................... 3-12 
3.1 Domestic Water ............................................................................................................. 3-12 
3.2 Sewer ............................................................................................................................. 3-12 
3.3 Stormdrain ..................................................................................................................... 3-13 

Section 4 Significant Thresholds ........................................................................................................ 4-1 

Section 5 Impacts Analysis ................................................................................................................ 5-1 
5.1 Water ............................................................................................................................... 5-1 

5.1.1 Construction..................................................................................................................... 5-1 
5.1.2 Operations ....................................................................................................................... 5-1 

5.2 Wastewater ...................................................................................................................... 5-3 
5.2.1 Construction..................................................................................................................... 5-3 
5.2.2 Operations ....................................................................................................................... 5-3 
5.2.3 Stormwater ...................................................................................................................... 5-5 

Appendix A LADWP Water Service Advisory Request (SAR) 

City of Los Angeles Sewer Capacity Availability Request (SCAR) 



[Click and type client name] Contents 

Maubert Project Wastewater and Water Utility 
Infrastructure Technical Report ii May 2019 

ICF 00284.19 

Tables 

Table 3-1. Estimated Existing Water Consumption ................................................................................. 3-12 
Table 3-2. Estimated Existing Water Consumption ................................................................................. 3-13 
Table 5-1. Estimated Water Generation .................................................................................................... 5-2 
Table 5-2. Estimated Wastewater Generation .......................................................................................... 5-4 



Maubert Project Wastewater and Water Utility 
Infrastructure Technical Report 1-1 May 2019 

ICF 00284.19 

Section 1 
Introduction 

1.1 Project Description 
The Project Site is located at 4629-4651 Maubert Avenue, in the Hollywood community of the City of 
Los Angeles. The Project Site is a relatively flat, irregularly shaped parcel, comprised of five lots that, 
when combined, are approximately 0.76 acres (approximately 32,277 square feet).  

The Project Site is currently developed with three buildings containing 14 multi-family residential 
units in approximately 12,478 square feet. The Project includes the demolition and removal of all 
existing structures and the development of the Project Site with an approximately 143,785-square-
foot residential building, with 153 dwelling units. The 153 units would include 93 one-bedroom, 53 
two-bedroom, and 7 three-bedroom units.  Vehicular access to the Project Site would be provided 
from an ingress/egress driveway on Maubert Avenue and a second ingress/egress driveway from 
the alley abutting the north side of the Project Site. Pedestrian access is provided from Maubert 
Avenue into the Project’s amenity space and residential lobby on the ground floor. Pedestrian access 
is also provided from the alley along the north side of the Project Site. 

1.2 Scope of Work 
The purpose of this report is to analyze the potential impact of the Project to the existing water and 
wastewater infrastructure systems. 



Maubert Project Wastewater and Water Utility 
Infrastructure Technical Report 2-1 May 2019 

ICF 00284.19 

Section 2 
Regulatory Framework 

2.1 Water 
2.1.1 State 

(a) California Urban Water Management Plan Act (California Water Code Sections 10610-
10656)

The California Urban Water Management Planning Act (California Water Code [CWC] Division 6, 
Part 2.6, Sections 10610-10656) addresses several state policies regarding water conservation and 
the development of water management plans to ensure the efficient use of available supplies. The 
California Urban Water Management Planning Act also requires Urban Water Suppliers to develop 
Urban Water Management Plans (UWMPs) every five years to identify short-term and long-term 
demand management measures to meet growing water demands during normal, dry, and multiple-
dry years. Urban Water Suppliers are defined as water suppliers that either serve more than 3,000 
customers or provide more than 3,000 acre feet per year (af/y) of water to customers. 

(b) Senate Bill 610 (California Water Code Section 10910 et seq.); Senate Bill 221 (California
Water Code Sections 11010, 65867.5, 66455.3 and 66473.7); and Senate Bill 7 (California
Water Code Section 10608

Senate Bill 610 and Senate Bill 221, approved on October 9, 2001, require land use agencies to 
perform a detailed analysis of available water supply when approving large developments. 
Historically, public water suppliers (PWS) simply provided a "will serve" letter to developers. SB 
610, Public Resources Code (PRC) and Section 10910-10915 of the State Water Code requires lead 
agencies to request a Water Supply Assessment (WSA) from the local water purveyor prior to 
project approval. If the projected water demand associated with a proposed development is 
included in the most recent UWMP, the development is considered to have sufficient water supply 
per California Water Code Section 10910, and a WSA is not required. All projects that meet any of 
the following criteria require a WSA: 

1. A proposed residential development of more than 500 dwelling units.

2. A proposed shopping center or business establishment of more than 500,000 square feet of floor
space or employing more than 1,000 persons

3. A proposed commercial office building of more than 250,000 square feet of floor space or
employing more than 1,000 persons

4. A proposed hotel or motel of more than 500 rooms

5. A proposed industrial, manufacturing, or processing plant or industrial park of more than 40
acres of land, more than 650,000 square feet of floor area, or employing more than 1,000
persons



 
  

Regulatory Framework 
 

 
Maubert Project Wastewater and Water Utility 
Infrastructure Technical Report 2-2 May 2019 

ICF 00284.19 
 

6. A mixed use project that falls in one or more of the above-identified categories 

7. A project not falling in one of the above-identified categories but that would demand water 
equal or greater than the amount required by a 500-dwelling unit project. 

As this Project does not trigger any of the above thresholds, a WSA is not required for this project. 

(c) California Code of Regulations 

(i) Title 20  

Title 20, Section 1605.3 (h) and 1505(i) of the California Code of Regulations (CCR) establishes 
applicable State efficiency standards (i.e., maximum flow rates) for plumbing fittings and fixtures, 
including fixtures such as showerheads, lavatory faucets and water closets (toilets). Among the 
standards, the maximum flow rate for showerheads manufactured between July 1, 2016 and prior to 
July 1, 2018 is 2.0 gpm at 80 psi, and manufactured on or after July 1, 2018 1.8 gpm at 80 psi; and 
lavatory faucets manufactured after July 1, 2016 is 1.2 gpm at 60 psi. The standard for toilets sold or 
offered for sale on or after January 1, 2016 is 1.28 gallons per flush.  

(ii) Title 24, Part 11 

Part 11 of Title 24, the title that regulates the design and construction of buildings, establishes the 
California Green Building Standards (CALGreen) Code. The purpose of the CALGreen Code is to 
improve public health, safety and general welfare by enhancing the design and construction of 
buildings through the use of building concepts having a reduced negative impact or a positive 
environmental impact and encouraging sustainable construction practices in the following 
categories: planning and design, energy efficiency, water efficiency and conservation, material 
conservation and resource efficiency, and environmental quality. The CALGreen Code includes both 
mandatory measures as well as voluntary measures. The mandatory measures establish minimum 
baselines that must be met in order for a building to be approved. The voluntary measures can be 
adopted by local jurisdictions for greater efficiency. 

(iii) Title 24, Part, 5 

Title 24, Part 5 of the California Code of Regulations, establishes the California Plumbing Code. The 
California Plumbing Code sets forth efficiency standards (i.e., maximum flow rates) for all new 
federally-regulated plumbing fittings and fixtures, including showerheads and lavatory faucets. The 
2016 California Plumbing Code, which is based on the 2015 Uniform Plumbing Code, has been 
published by the California Building Standards Commission and went into effect on January 1, 2017. 

(iv) Emergency Declaration and Executive Orders B-29-15, B-36-15, B-37-16, and B-40-17 

In response to California’s drought conditions, on January 17, 2014, Governor Brown declared a 
State of Drought Emergency and directed state officials to take necessary actions to reduce the 
impacts of the ongoing drought conditions that had been occurring in California since approximately 
2009. The declaration lists numerous actions, including calling upon local Urban Water Suppliers 
and municipalities to implement their local water shortage contingency plans immediately in order 
to avoid or forestall outright restrictions that could become necessary later in the drought season; 
and to update their legally required urban and agricultural water management plans to correspond 
with state water conservation measures to help plan for extended drought conditions.  



 
  

Regulatory Framework 
 

 
Maubert Project Wastewater and Water Utility 
Infrastructure Technical Report 2-3 May 2019 

ICF 00284.19 
 

(v) California Water Plan  

Required by the Water Code Section 10005(a), the California Water Plan is the state's strategic plan 
for managing and developing water resources statewide for current and future generations.  It 
provides a collaborative planning framework for elected officials, agencies, tribes, water and 
resource managers, businesses, academia, stakeholders, and the public to develop findings and 
recommendations and make informed decisions for California's water future. 

The plan, updated every five years, presents the status and trends of California's water-dependent 
natural resources; water supplies; and agricultural, urban, and environmental water demands for a 
range of plausible future scenarios. The Water Plan also evaluates different combinations of regional 
and statewide resource management strategies to reduce water demand, increase water supply, 
reduce flood risk, improve water quality, and enhance environmental and resource stewardship. 
The evaluations and assessments performed for the plan help identify effective actions and policies 
for meeting California's resource management objectives in the near term and for several decades to 
come.  

(vi) California Water Action Plan 

The California Water Action Plan is a roadmap for the State’s journey towards sustainable water 
management. The first California Water Action plan was released in January 2014 under Governor 
Jerry Brown’s administration.  The California Water Action plan discusses the challenges to water in 
California: uncertain water supplies, water scarcity/drought, declining groundwater supplies, poor 
water quality, declining native fish species and loss of wildlife habitat, floods, supply disruptions, 
and population growth and climate change further increasing the severity of these risks.   

2.1.2 Regional 
(a) Metropolitan Water District’s (MWD) 2015 Regional Urban Water Management Plan 

The Metropolitan Water District’s (MWD) 2015 Regional Urban Water Management Plan (UWMP) 
addresses the future of MWD's water supplies and demand through the year 2040. Evaluations are 
prepared for average year conditions, single-dry-year conditions, and multiple-dry-year conditions. 
The analysis for multiple-dry-year conditions (i.e., under the most challenging weather conditions 
such as drought and service interruptions caused by natural disasters) is presented in Table 2-4 of 
the 2015 UWMP. The analysis in the 2015 RUWMP concluded that reliable water resources would 
be available to continuously meet demand through 2040. In the 2015 RUWMP, the projected 2040 
demand water is 2,201,000 afy, whereas the expected and projected 2040 supply is 2,941,000 afy 
based on current programs, and an additional 398,000 afy is expected to become available under 
programs under development for a potential surplus in 2040 of 1,138,000 afy. 

(b) MWD’s 2015 Integrated Resources Plan 

The MWD prepares an Integrated Water Resources Plan (IRP) that provides a water management 
framework with plans and programs for meeting future water needs. It addresses issues that can 
affect future water supply such as water quality, climate change, and regulatory and operational 
changes. The most recent IRP (2015 IRP) was adopted in January 2016.  It establishes a water 
supply reliability mission of providing its service area with an adequate and reliable supply of high-
quality water to meet present and future needs in an environmentally and economically responsible 



 
  

Regulatory Framework 
 

 
Maubert Project Wastewater and Water Utility 
Infrastructure Technical Report 2-4 May 2019 

ICF 00284.19 
 

way. Among other topics, the 2015 IRP discusses water conservation, local and imported water 
supplies, storage and transfers, water demand, and adaptation to drought conditions. 

(c) MWD’s Water Surplus and Drought Management Plan 

In 1999, MWD incorporated the water storage contingency analysis that is required as part of any 
UWMP into a separate, more detailed plan, called the Water Surplus and Drought Management Plan 
(WSDM Plan).  The overall objective of the WSDM Plan is to ensure that shortage allocation of 
MWD’s imported water supplies is not required.  The WSDM Plan provides policy guidance to 
manage MWD’s supplies and achieve the goals laid out in the agency’s IRP.   

(d) MWD’s Water Supply Allocation Plan 

While the WSDM Plan included a set of general actions and considerations for MWD staff to address 
during shortage conditions, it did not include a detailed water supply allocation plan or 
implementation approach. Therefore, in February 2008, MWD adopted a water supply plan called 
the Water Supply Allocation Plan (WSAP), which has since been implemented three times, most 
recently in April 2015. The WSAP includes a formula for determining equitable, needs-based 
reductions of water deliveries, with the potential application of a surcharge, to member agencies 
during extreme water shortages in MWD's service area conditions (i.e., drought conditions or 
unforeseen interruptions in water supplies).  

The WSAP allows member agencies the flexibility to choose among various local supply and 
conservation strategies to help ensure that demands on MWD stay in balance with limited supplies. 

2.1.3 Local 
(a) LADWP’s 2015 UWMP 

In accordance with the California Urban Water Management Planning Act, LADWP adopted the 2015 
UWMP on April 27, 2016, which is intended to comply with the Urban Water Management Planning 
Act, builds upon the goals and progress made in the 2010 UWMP and serves as the City’s master 
plan for reliable water supply and resource management consistent with the City goals and 
objectives. The UWMP details LADWP’s efforts to promote the efficient use and management of its 
water resources. LADWP’s UWMP used a service area-wide methodology in developing its water 
demand projections. This methodology does not rely on individual development demands to 
determine area-wide growth. Rather, the projected growth in water use for the entire service area 
was considered in developing long-term water projections for the City to the year 2040. 

LADWP's 2015 UWMP outlines the City's long-term water resources management strategy. The 
2015 UWMP was approved by the LADWP Board of Water and Power Commissioners on June 7, 
2016. According to the reliability data in the City of Los Angeles UWMP 2015, the most recent plan 
available, LADWP has sufficient supply to meet a total water demand of 675,700 afy by the year 
2040. LADWP has programs to reduce the demand to 565,600 afy by 2040, a difference of 
110,100 afy. To meet the reduced target, LADWP will reduce water consumption through 
conservation, increased recycled water use (including both non-potable and indirect potable reuse), 
and reduced reliance on imported water. 



 
  

Regulatory Framework 
 

 
Maubert Project Wastewater and Water Utility 
Infrastructure Technical Report 2-5 May 2019 

ICF 00284.19 
 

(b) Sustainable City Plan 

The City released the first Sustainable City Plan in April 2015. The Sustainable City Plan includes a 
multi-faceted approach to developing a locally sustainable water supply to reduce reliance on 
imported water, reducing water use through conservation, and increasing local water supply and 
availability. The Sustainable City Plan incorporates water savings goals of reduction in per capita 
potable water by 20 percent by 2017, by 22.5 percent by 2025, and by 25 percent by 2035.1 The 
Plan also includes a reduction in imported water purchases from MWD by 50 percent of the total 
supply by 2035. 

(c) One Water LA 2040 Plan  

The One Water LA 2040 Plan (Plan) takes a holistic and collaborative approach to consider all of the 
City’s water resources from surface water, groundwater, potable water, wastewater, recycled water, 
dryweather runoff, and stormwater as "One Water." Also, the Plan identifies multi-departmental and 
multi-agency integration opportunities to manage water in a more efficient, cost effective, and 
sustainable manner. The Plan represents the City's continued and improved commitment to 
proactively manage all its water resources and implement innovative solutions, driven by the 
Sustainable City Plan. The Plan will help guide strategic decisions for integrated water projects, 
programs, and policies within the City. 

(d) Los Angeles Municipal Code 

The City has adopted several ordinances to reduce water consumption in the City. These include 
measures undertaken pursuant to the City’s green building efforts, encouragement of sustainable 
development and initiatives to address potential water shortages due to changing supply 
availability. The ordinances are discussed below.  

Ordinance No. 180,182: Water Efficiency Requirements Ordinance  

The Water Efficiency Requirements Ordinance, City Ordinance No. 180,822, effective December 1, 
2009, established water efficiency requirements for new development and renovation of existing 
buildings, mandating installation of high-efficiency plumbing fixtures in residential and commercial 
buildings.  

Ordinance Nos. 181,480, 182,849 and 184,248: Los Angeles Green Building Code   

The City’s Green Building Code, Ordinance No. 181,480, subsequently amended by Ordinance No. 
182,849, creates a set of development standards and guidelines to further energy efficiency and the 
reduction of greenhouse gas emissions. It builds upon and sets higher standards than those 
incorporated in the CALGreen Code. Amongst its provisions are efficiency standards regarding water 
consumption fixtures and appliances in new buildings. The Green Building Code is implemented 
through the building permit review process, during which projects are evaluated for compliance 
with the required water conservation features. 

Ordinance No. 170,978: Landscape Ordinance  

In 1996, Ordinance No. 170,978 amended Los Angeles Municipal Code Sections 12.40 through 12.43 
to establish consistent landscape requirements for new projects within the City. This ordinance 
requires numerous water conservation measures in landscape, installation, and maintenance 

                                                             
1  City of Los Angeles, Sustainable City Plan, page 20. 



 
  

Regulatory Framework 
 

 
Maubert Project Wastewater and Water Utility 
Infrastructure Technical Report 2-6 May 2019 

ICF 00284.19 
 

including but not limited to the use of drip irrigation and soak hoses in lieu of sprinklers to lower the 
amount of water lost to evaporation and overspray; setting automatic sprinkler systems to irrigate 
during the early morning or evening hours to minimize water loss due to evaporation; and watering 
less in the cooler months and during the rainy season. The ordinance also provides guidance 
intended to increase the “residence time of precipitation” within a given watershed.  

Ordinance Nos. 181,999 and 183,833: Low Impact Development 

In 2011, the City adopted the Citywide Low Impact Development (LID) Ordinance (LID Ordinance). 
LID is a stormwater management strategy with the goal of mitigating the impacts of increased runoff 
and stormwater pollution as close to its source as possible. Among other provisions regarding 
drainage, the LID Ordinance promotes the collection and use of on-site stormwater for irrigation of 
landscaping and recharge to the groundwater table where/if appropriate. A related ordinance, 
Ordinance No. 183,833, the Stormwater and Urban Runoff Pollution Control Ordinance, establishes 
City requirements to meet its obligation under its Municipal Separate Storm Sewer System (MS4) 
Permit. The ordinance further delineates implementation procedures for meeting the City’s LID 
requirements.  

Ordinance Nos. 166,080, 181,288, 183,608, and 184,250: Emergency Water Conservation Plan  

The City’s Emergency Water Conservation Plan was originally adopted in July of 1990 (Ordinance 
No. 166,080) and has been revised on numerous occasions since. This Ordinance mandates water 
conservation when available water supplies are reduced as the result of drought conditions, lowered 
groundwater levels, service disruptions, etc.  

In August 2009, and again in August 2010, the City updated the Emergency Water Conservation Plan 
Ordinance (No. 181,288) by clarifying prohibited uses of water, modifying certain water 
conservation requirements, and developing new phases of conservation depending on the severity 
of water shortages. In June 2015, the City amended Ordinance No. 181,288 with the new Ordinance 
No. 183608. Ordinance No. 183608 clarified prohibited uses and added an additional phase to allow 
for outdoor watering two days a week. In April 2016, the City once again amended Ordinance No. 
183,608 with Ordinance No. 184,250, which defined and added fines for unreasonable uses of water. 
The Ordinance is expected to improve the City’s ability to comply with current regulations and 
respond to the ongoing drought conditions.  

Service Advisory Request (SAR) and Fire Service Pressure Flow Report (FSPFR) Requirements 

LADWP requires new development projects that are installing new, dedicated fire service lines to 
have a capacity analysis conducted to determine whether there is sufficient capacity in the water 
infrastructure proposed to serve the project. The analysis includes the submission of requests for an 
approved SAR for domestic water service, and an approved FSPFR for fire flow, from LADWP. 
LADWP performs the analysis using their electronic water distribution system data. 



Regulatory Framework 

Maubert Project Wastewater and Water Utility 
Infrastructure Technical Report 2-7 May 2019 

ICF 00284.19 

2.2 Wastewater 
2.2.1 City of Los Angeles 

(a) Los Angeles Integrated Resources Plan

The City’s Integrated Resources Plan (IRP) is a series of reports that document collaborative, 
comprehensive Los Angeles Basin-wide water resources planning. Jointly developed by the City of 
Los Angeles Department of Public Works (LADPW), LA Sanitation and the Department of Water and 
Power (LADWP), the IRP acknowledges and addresses the interrelated management of wastewater, 
stormwater, and recycled water in the City and surrounding service areas.  The current IRP was 
adopted in November 2006 by the Los Angeles City Council and addresses facilities planning 
(including projected needs and planned improvements and upgrades), financial planning, and 
environmental documentation for wastewater conveyance systems, recycled water systems, and 
stormwater management programs through the year 2020. To plan for future wastewater 
management in particular, the IRP projects future wastewater generation based on population 
projections from the Southern California Association of Governments (SCAG).  

The also IRP included several proposals for improvements, additions, and expansions within the 
Hyperion Sanitary Sewer System service area to maintain adequate service and system capacity 
over time.  

(b) Water IRP 5-year Reviews

LADPW has been monitoring implementation of the IRP and updating its projections via the 
preparation Water IRP 5-Year Review Final Documents. The most recent 5-year review was 
completed in 2012. The 5-year review included updated projections of future Hyperion Sanitary 
Sewer System service area flow based on updated 2008 SCAG Data and information on Hyperion 
Sanitary Sewer System service area flows through 2012.  

The 5-Year Review reported on near-completion of one Go Project (Construction of a 60-million-
gallon wastewater storage at the DTWRP Reclamation Plant); moved some of the Go Projects to the 
Go If Triggered list to reflect their revised prioritization since 2006; and deferred two other Go 
Projects to beyond the IRP’s 2020 horizon date as the associated need is not anticipated. The 5-Year 
Review also deferred a Go To If Project beyond 2020 due to reduction in need. 

(c) One Water LA 2040 Plan

The One Water LA 2040 Plan (One Water LA Plan), builds upon build upon the success of the City's 
Water IRP, which projected needs and set forth improvements and upgrades to wastewater 
conveyance systems, recycled water systems, and runoff management programs through the year 
2020, and extends its planning horizon to 2040. The One Water LA Plan proposes a collaborative 
approach to managing the City's future water, wastewater treatment, and stormwater needs with 
the goal of yielding sustainable, long-term water supplies for Los Angeles to ensure greater 
resiliency to drought conditions and climate change. The One Water LA Plan is also intended as a 
step toward meeting the Mayor's Executive Directive to reduce the City's purchase of imported 
water by 50 percent by 2024.  



 
  

Regulatory Framework 
 

 
Maubert Project Wastewater and Water Utility 
Infrastructure Technical Report 2-8 May 2019 

ICF 00284.19 
 

(d) Sewer System Management Plan 

The State of California, via the State Water Quality Control Board’s May 2, 2006 Statewide General 
Waste Discharge Requirements (WDRs), requires a Sewer System Management Plan (SSMP) to be 
prepared for all publicly owned sanitary sewer systems. Accordingly, the City has prepared three 
SSMPs, one for each of the three separate sanitary sewer systems owned and operated by LA 
Sanitation: the Hyperion Sanitary Sewer System, which serves the Project Site; City of Los Angeles 
Regional Sanitary Sewer System; and the Terminal Island Water Reclamation Plant Sanitary Sewer 
System. The SMMPs address the proper management, operation, and maintenance of all parts of the 
systems. The SSMP establishes design and performance standards for the sewer system; provides 
procedures for evaluating the system and providing capacity assurance; and establishes a 
performance standard to identify sewers in need of replacement or relief.  

(e) Los Angeles Municipal Code 

(i) Los Angeles Green Building Code 

The City has been pursuing a number of green development initiatives intended to promote energy 
conservation and reductions in the amount of greenhouse gas emissions generated within the City. 
While these ordinances do not focus on the provision of sewer services, they do mandate the use of 
water conservation features in new developments. Through the use of less water by residents, 
residual wastewater is reduced, in turn reducing the demand for sewage conveyance and treatment.  

The Los Angeles Municipal Code (LAMC) Chapter IX, Article 9, the Los Angeles Green Building Code 
(LA Green Building Code, Ordinance No. 181480), was adopted in April 2008 and provides 
standards and a mechanism for evaluating projects for their water conservation features during site 
plan review. In 2010, 2014, and 2016, the LA Green Building Code was amended to incorporate 
various provisions of the California Green Building Standards (CALGreen) Code. The LA Green 
Building Code includes mandatory requirements and elective measures pertaining to wastewater 
for three categories of buildings, the first of which applies to this Project: (1) low-rise residential 
buildings; (2) non-residential and high-rise residential buildings; and (3) additions and alterations 
to residential and non-residential buildings. 

(ii) Water Efficiency Requirements Ordinance  

LAMC Chapter XII, Article 5, the Water Efficiency Requirements Ordinance (Ordinance No. 180822), 
effective December 1, 2009, requires the installation of efficient water fixtures, appliances, and 
cooling towers in new buildings and renovation of plumbing in existing buildings, to minimize the 
effect of water shortages for City customers and enhance water supply sustainability. 

(iii) Sewer Capacity Availability Review, LAMC Section 64.15 

The LAMC includes regulations that require the City to assure available sewer capacity for new 
projects and fees for improvements to the infrastructure system. LAMC Section 64.15 requires that 
the City perform a SCAR when an applicant seeks a sewer permit to connect a property to the City’s 
sewer system, proposes additional discharge through their existing public sewer connection, or 
proposes a future sewer connection or future development that is anticipated to generate 10,000 
gallons or more of sewage per day. A SCAR provides a preliminary assessment of the capacity of the 
existing municipal sewer system to safely convey a project’s newly generated wastewater to the 
appropriate sewage treatment plant. 



Regulatory Framework 

Maubert Project Wastewater and Water Utility 
Infrastructure Technical Report 2-9 May 2019 

ICF 00284.19 

(iv) Sewerage Facilities Charge, LAMC Sections 64.11.2 and 64.16.1

LAMC Sections 64.11.2 and 64.16.1 require the payment of fees for new connections to the City’s 
sewer system to assure the sufficiency of sewer infrastructure. New connections to the sewer 
system are assessed a Sewerage Facilities Charge. The rate structure for the Sewerage Facilities 
Charge is based upon wastewater flow strength as well as volume. The determination of wastewater 
flow strength for each applicable project is based on City guidelines for the average wastewater 
concentrations of two parameters, biological oxygen demand and suspended solids, for each type of 
land use. Sewerage Facilities Charge fees are deposited in the City’s Sewer Construction and 
Maintenance Fund for sewer and sewage-related purposes, including, but not limited to, industrial 
waste control and water reclamation purposes. 

(v) Bureau of Engineering Special Order No. SO 06-0691

The City establishes design criteria for sewer systems to assure that new infrastructure provides 
sewer capacity and operating characteristics to meet City standards (Bureau of Engineering Special 
Order No. SO 06-0691). Per the Special Order, lateral sewers, which are sewers 18 inches or less in 
diameter, must be designed for a planning period of 100 years. The Special Order also requires that 
sewers be designed so that the peak dry weather flow depth during their planning period does not 
exceed one-half of the pipe diameter (D) (i.e., depth-to-diameter ratio or d/D). 



Regulatory Framework 

Maubert Project Wastewater and Water Utility 
Infrastructure Technical Report 2-10 May 2019 

ICF 00284.19 

2.3 Stormwater 
2.3.1 State 
2.3.1.1 Porter-Cologne Water Quality Act (California Water Code) 

The Porter-Cologne Water Quality Control Act established the legal and regulatory framework for 
California’s water quality control.  The California Water Code authorizes the State Water Resources 
Control Board (SWRCB) to implement the provisions of the Clean Water Act, including the authority 
to regulate waste disposal and require cleanup of discharges of hazardous materials and other 
pollutants.   

Under the California Water Code, the State of California is divided into nine regional water quality 
control boards (RWQCBs), which govern the implementation and enforcement of the California 
Water Code and the Clean Water Act.  The Project Site is located within Region 4, also known as the 
Los Angeles Region, (LARWQCB).  The RWQCBs develop and enforce water quality objectives and 
implement plans that will best protect California’s waters, acknowledging areas of different climate, 
topography, geology, and hydrology.  Each RWQCB is required to formulate and adopt a Water 
Quality Control Plan or Basin Plan for its region.   

2.3.2 Regional 
2.3.2.1 County of Los Angeles 

(a) County of Los Angeles Hydrology Manual

Drainage and flood control in the City of Los Angeles (City) are subject to review and approval by the 
Department of Public Works, Bureau of Engineering (Bureau of Engineering).  Storm drains within 
the City are constructed by both the City and the Los Angeles County Flood Control District (County 
Flood Control).  The County Flood Control constructs and has jurisdiction over regional facilities 
such as major storm drains and open flood control channels, while the City constructs and is 
responsible for local interconnecting tributary drains.  

Per the City’s Special Order No. 007-1299, December 3, 1999, the City has adopted the Los Angeles 
County Department of Public Works’ Hydrology Manual as its basis of design for storm drainage 
facilities. The Department of Public Works’ Hydrology Manual requires that a storm drain 
conveyance system be designed for a 25-year storm event and that the combined capacity of a storm 
drain and street flow system accommodate flow from a 50-year storm event.  Areas with sump 
conditions are required to have a storm drain conveyance system capable of conveying flow from a 
50-year storm event.  The County also limits the allowable discharge into existing storm drain (MS4)
facilities based on the County’s MS4 Permit which is enforced on all new developments that
discharge directly into the County’s MS4 system.

Drainage and flood control structures and improvements within the City are subject to review and 
approval by the City’s Department of Public Works and Department of Building and Safety.  As 
required by the Department of Public Works, all public storm facilities must be designed in 
conformity with the standards set forth by Los Angeles County.  The Department of Public Works 
reviews and approves MS4 plans prior to construction.  Any proposed increases in discharge 
directly into County facilities, or proposed improvements of County-owned MS4 facilities, such as 



Regulatory Framework 

Maubert Project Wastewater and Water Utility 
Infrastructure Technical Report 2-11 May 2019 

ICF 00284.19 

catch basins and drainage lines, require approval from County Flood Control to ensure compliance 
with the County’s Municipal NPDES Permit requirements. 

(b) NPDES Permit Program

As indicated above, in California the NPDES stormwater permitting program is administered by the 
SWRCB through its nine RWQCBs. SWRCB Order No. 2009-0009-DWQ, the (General Permit), was 
adopted on September 2, 2009. This NPDES permit establishes a risk-based approach to stormwater 
control requirements for construction projects.   

(i) Construction: Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan

For all construction activities disturbing one acre of land or more, California mandates the 
development and implementation of Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plans (SWPPP). The SWPPP 
documents the selection and implementation of best management practices (BMPs).  The SWPPP 
also charges Owners with stormwater quality management responsibilities.  A construction site 
subject to the General Permit must prepare and implement a SWPPP that meets the requirements of 
the General Permit.  

The SWRCB adopted a General Permit for Stormwater Discharges from Construction Activities on 
September 2, 2009.   The Construction General Permit regulates construction activity including 
clearing, grading, and excavation of areas one acre or more in size and prohibits the discharge of 
materials other than stormwater, authorized non-stormwater discharges, and all discharges that 
contain a hazardous substance, unless a separate NPDES permit has been issued for those 
discharges.   

(ii) NPDES Permit for Dischargers of Groundwater from Construction and Project Dewatering

A NPDES Permit for dewatering discharges was adopted by the LARWQCB on June 6, 2013 (Order 
No. R4-2013-0095, General NPDES Permit No. CAG994004).  Similar to the Construction General 
Permit, to be authorized to discharge under this Permit; the developer must submit a NOI to 
discharge groundwater generated from dewatering operations during construction in accordance 
with the requirements of this Permit. General NPDES Permit No. CAG994004 expired July 6, 2018, 
however it shall continue in full force and effect until the Regional Water Board adopts a new order 

(iii) Operation: Los Angeles County Municipal Stormwater NPDES Program

The County of Los Angeles and the City are two of the Co-Permittees under the Los Angeles County 
MS4 Permit (Order No. R4-2012-0175, NPDES Permit No. CAS004001). The Los Angeles County MS4 
Permit has been determined by the State Water Resources Control Board to be consistent with the 
requirements of the Clean Water Act and the Porter-Cologne Act for discharges through the public 
storm drains in Los Angeles County to statutorily-defined waters of the United States (33 USC 
§1342(p); 33 CFR Part 328.11).  On September 8, 2016, the RWQCB, Los Angeles Region, amended
the Los Angeles County MS4 Permit to incorporate modifications consistent with the revised Ballona
Creek Watershed Trash Total Maximum Daily Load (TMDL) and the revised Los Angeles River
Watershed Trash TMDL, among other TMDLs incorporated into the Los Angeles County MS4Permit
and the Basin Plan for the Coastal Waters of Los Angeles and Ventura Counties.



Existing Conditions 

Maubert Project Wastewater and Water Utility 
Infrastructure Technical Report 3-12 May 2019 

ICF 00284.19 

Section 3 
Existing Conditions 

3.1 Domestic Water 
The existing water main lines near the Project Site are owned and maintained by the Los Angeles 
Department of Water & Power (LADWP). An existing water main line exists adjacent to the Project 
Site along Maubert Avenue and includes a 6-inch main line with a maximum pressure of 103 psi as 
of May 17, 2019, SAR Service Number 630979. One existing fire hydrant is located approximately 
200 ft southwest of the Project Site at the southeast corner of the Vermont and Maubert 
intersection. 

Water consumption estimates have been prepared based on 100 percent of LA Sanitation sewerage 
generation factors for residential use categories and are summarized in Table 3-1 below. 

Table 3-1. Estimated Existing Water Consumption 

Land Use Generation Rate Quantity Total Generation 

14 du 1,540 gpd 
Existing Uses 
Residential Apartments – One Bedroom 110 gpd/du 

Source: The average daily flow based on 100% of LA Sanitation sewerage generation factors 
Notes: 
gpd = gallons per day; du = dwelling unit; sf = square feet 

3.2 Sewer 
The existing public sanitary sewer main lines near the project are owned and maintained by the City 
of Los Angeles Sanitation Department. An existing main line exists along Maubert Avenue adjacent 
to the Project Site and includes an 8-inch vitrified clay pipe (VCP) running west towards North 
Vermont Avenue. 

Existing wastewater generation estimates have been prepared based on sewerage generation 
factors provided by LA Sanitation for residential use categories and are summarized in Table 3-2 
below. 



Existing Conditions 

Maubert Project Wastewater and Water Utility 
Infrastructure Technical Report 3-13 May 2019 

ICF 00284.19 

Table 3-2. Estimated Existing Water Consumption 

Land Use Sewage Generation Rate Quantity Total Generation 

14 du 1,540 gpd 
Existing Uses 
Residential Apartment – One Bedroom110 gpd/du  

Source: The average daily flow based on 100% of LA Sanitation sewerage generation factors 
Notes: 
gpd = gallons per day; du = dwelling unit; sf = square feet 

3.3 Stormdrain 
The existing public storm drain line near the Project is owned and maintained by the City of Los 
Angeles. An existing 45-inch main line exists within North Vermont Avenue. There are no existing 
inlets on-site, surface drainage sheet flows over public sidewalk to Maubert Avenue. Maubert 
Avenue drains west to a catch basin approximately 167 feet west of the Project Site.  

It appears that the majority of the existing site is impervious, and based on a 79% impervious area 
the 85th Percentile storm produces a mitigated volume of approximately 2,011 cubic feet.



Maubert Project Wastewater and Water Utility 
Infrastructure Technical Report 4-1 May 2019 

ICF 00284.19 

Section 4 
Significant Thresholds 

Appendix G of the State of California's California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) 2019 Guidelines 
(CEQA Guidelines) includes the following thresholds that address impacts with regard to water, 
wastewater and stormwater utilities.  These questions are as follows:  

Would the project: 

a. Require or result in the relocation or construction of new or expanded water, wastewater
treatment or storm water drainage, electric power, natural gas or telecommunication facilities,
the construction or relocation of which could cause significant environmental effects?

b. Have sufficient water supplies available to serve the project and reasonably foreseeable future
development during normal, dry, and multiple dry years?

c. Result in a determination by the wastewater treatment provider which serves or may serve the
project that it has adequate capacity to serve the project’s projected demand in addition to the
provider’s existing commitments?



Maubert Project Wastewater and Water Utility 
Infrastructure Technical Report 5-1 May 2019 

ICF 00284.19 

Section 5 
Impacts Analysis 

5.1 Water 
Would the project: 

a. Require or result in the relocation or construction of new or expanded water, or wastewater
treatment or storm water drainage the construction or relocation of which could cause
significant environmental effects?

5.1.1 Construction 
Water demand for construction of the Project would be required for dust control, cleaning of 
equipment, excavation/export, removal and re-compaction, etc. Based on a review of construction 
projects of similar size and duration, a conservative estimate of construction water use ranges from 
1,000 to 2,000 gallons per day (gpd). Considering temporary construction water use would be 
approximately equivalent to the existing water consumption at the Project Site (estimated to be 
approximately 1,540 gpd), it is anticipated that the existing water infrastructure would meet the 
limited and temporary water demand associated with construction of the Project. Impacts on the 
water infrastructure due to construction activity would therefore be less than significant. 

5.1.2 Operations 
As shown in Table 1-3, Estimated Water Generation, implementation of the Project would generate 
approximately 23,412 gallons per day (gpd). Netting out the estimated existing water generated on 
the Project Site, the Project would generate 21,872 gpd beyond existing conditions. 



 
  

Impacts Analysis 
 

 
Maubert Project Wastewater and Water Utility 
Infrastructure Technical Report 5-2 May 2019 

ICF 00284.19 
 

Table 5-1. Estimated Water Generation 

Land Use 
Wastewater 
Generation Rate Quantity Total Generation 

Existing Uses    
Residential Apartment – One Bedroom 110 gpd/du 14 du 1,540 gpd 
Total Existing    
New Uses (Project)    
Residential Apartment – One Bedroom 110 gpd/du 93 du 10,230 gpd 
Residential Apartment – Two Bedroom 150 gpd/du 53 du 7,950 gpd 
Residential Apartment – Three Bedroom 190 gpd/du 7 du 1,330 gpd 
  Total New 19,510 gpd 
Additional 20% (to account for outdoor water use) 23,412 gpd 

 
Subtracting Existing Uses (1,540 gpd)   Total Net 21,872 gpd  

 
Source: Sewer Capacity Availability Report (SCAR) processed by the City of Los Angeles Bureau of Engineering on 
04/16/2019 
Notes: 
gpd = gallons per day; du = dwelling unit; sf = square feet 

 

The water facilities required to serve the Project Site include the large water distribution system 
operated by the LADWP as well local infrastructure to meet the needs of the Project Site. According 
to the City of Los Angeles UWMP 2015, the most recent plan available, LADWP has sufficient supply 
to meet a total water demand of 675,700 afy by the year 2040. LADWP has programs to reduce the 
demand to 565,600 afy by 2040, a difference of 110,100 afy. As such, LADWP can provide the 
needed water from its existing system pursuant of the provisions in the City of Los Angeles Urban 
Water Management Plan (UWMP) 2015. Therefore, LADWP would not require added facilities to 
meet the demand from the Project. 

As regards to the local infrastructure, the Project consists of a residential development. Based on the 
Service Advisory Request (SAR), LADWP would provide the Project with domestic and fire water 
supplies, as provided by the public water main line located on Maubert Avenue. The LADWP’s SAR 
reports that the 6-inch main line in Maubert Avenue has a maximum pressure of 103 psi and a flow 
of up to 1,400 gpm can be delivered to the Project Site with a residential pressure of 56 pounds per 
square inch.   One existing fire hydrant is located approximately 200 ft southwest of the Project Site 
at the southeast corner of Vermont Avenue and Maubert Avenue intersection.  The size and location 
for any domestic water and fire water points of connection would be determined by the Plumbing 
engineer and Fire Sprinkler engineer, respectively, during design. Any additional fire hydrants and 
points of connection would be determined based on feedback from the City of Los Angeles Fire 
Department. LADWP would be coordinated with accordingly based on the final location both 
domestic and fire water points of connection. 

Based on the results provided by the LADWP within the SAR dated May 17, 2019 (Appendix A), the 
existing water main line would have sufficient capacity to serve the Project’s 24.49 afy demand 
(21,872 gpd). As shown by the SAR and through compliance with LAFD and LADWP requirements, 
the Project’s fire flow impacts to water infrastructure would be less than significant. Therefore, 
there would be adequate capacity available to accommodate the required fire flows and domestic 



 
  

Impacts Analysis 
 

 
Maubert Project Wastewater and Water Utility 
Infrastructure Technical Report 5-3 May 2019 

ICF 00284.19 
 

water demand generated by the Project and the Project would not require the relocation or 
construction of new or expanded water facilities.  Impacts would be less than significant and no 
mitigation measures are required. 

5.2 Wastewater 
5.2.1 Construction 

Construction of the Project would include all connections necessary to adequately link the Project to 
the existing City sewer system. The necessary improvements would be verified through the permit 
approval process of obtaining a sewer capacity and connection permit from the City.  

During construction, existing sewer laterals will be capped and no sewage will enter the public 
sewer system. Temporary facilities (such as portable toilet and hand wash areas) will be provided 
by the contractor at the Site. Sewage from these facilities will be collected and hauled offsite and not 
discharged into the public sewer system. Since sewer usage during construction will be less 
demanding than the sewer usage for both the existing condition and the proposed Project, impacts 
to the sewer infrastructure due to construction activity are considered less than significant. 
Additionally, construction is not anticipated to generate wastewater flows that would substantially 
or incrementally exceed the future scheduled collection of the HTP and would not require the 
relocation or construction of new waste water facilities.  As such, impacts would be less than 
significant and no mitigation measures are required. 

5.2.2 Operations 
As shown in Table 5-2 Estimated Wastewater Generation, implementation of the Project would 
generate approximately 19,510 gallons per day (gpd). Netting out the estimated existing wastewater 
generated on the Project Site, the Project would generate 17,970 gpd beyond existing conditions. 



 
  

Impacts Analysis 
 

 
Maubert Project Wastewater and Water Utility 
Infrastructure Technical Report 5-4 May 2019 

ICF 00284.19 
 

Table 5-2. Estimated Wastewater Generation 

Land Use 
Sewage 
Generation Rate Quantity Total Generation 

Existing Uses    
Residential Apartment – One Bedroom 110 gpd/du 14 du 1,540 gpd 
Total Existing   gpd 
New Uses (Project)    
Residential Apartment – One Bedroom 110 gpd/du 93 du 10,230 gpd 
Residential Apartment – Two Bedroom 150 gpd/du 53 du 7,950 gpd 
Residential Apartment – Three Bedroom 190 gpd/du 7 du 1,330 gpd 
  Total New 19,510 gpd 
Existing Uses – Project  Total Net 17,970 gpd 
Source: Sewer Capacity Availability Report (SCAR) processed by the City of Los Angeles Bureau of 
Engineering on 04/16/2019 
Notes: 
gpd = gallons per day; du = dwelling unit; sf = square feet 

Wastewater in the City is collected and conveyed by three separate sanitary sewer systems owned 
and operated by LA Sanitation. The largest of these, the Hyperion Sanitary Sewer System, 
encompasses the majority of the City and also accepts sewage from 29 other jurisdictions. The 
Hyperion Sanitary Sewer System is a network of approximately 6,117 miles of gravity-fed sewer 
laterals and mains, pressurized mains, pump stations, treatment plants, and outfalls in the Pacific 
Ocean.2  Wastewater generated within the Project Site, is conveyed through the Hyperion Sanitary 
Sewer System and treated at the Hyperion Water Reclamation Plan (HWRP). The The HWRP is the 
City’s largest wastewater treatment facility and provides preliminary, primary, and secondary 
treatment processes, and also treats flows bypassed from the DTWRP and Los Angeles-Glendale 
Water Reclamation Plant (LAGWRP).3 The Hyperion Sanitary Sewer System includes treatment 
plants, outfalls, and numerous sewer connections and major interceptors.  

Following the secondary treatment of wastewater, the majority of effluent from the HTP is 
discharged through an outfall pipe located 5 miles offshore in the Santa Monica Bay. Treated sludge 
is discharged through a separate outfall pipe located 7 miles offshore4 Effluent is required to meet 
the Los Angeles Regional Water Quality Control Board (LARWQCB) requirements for a recreational 
beneficial use, which imposes performance standards on water quality that are more stringent than 

                                                             
2 City of Los Angeles Department of Public Works, LA Sanitation, Sewer System Management Plan, Hyperion 

Sanitary Sewer System, February 2017, 
https://www.lacitysan.org/cs/groups/public/documents/document/y250/mdey/~edisp/cnt012545.pdf        

3 City of Los Angeles Department of Public Works, LA Sanitation, Integrated Resource Plan, Section 7 Existing 
Treatment Facilities https://www.lacitysan.org/cs/groups/public/documents/document/y250/
mdew/~edisp/cnt010375.pdf  

4 City of Los Angeles Department of Public Works, LA Sanitation, Hyperion Water Reclamation Plant: Background, 
https://www.lacitysan.org/san/faces/home/portal/s-lsh-wwd/s-lsh-wwd-cw/s-lsh-wwd-cw-p/s-lsh-wwd-cw-
p-hwrp;jsessionid=OC5mKkIrvgk47Jz3HOpAYV_OfDk5Gl_5gBLd4piCaPse1o7aFh2h!1291451969!-
507278767?_afrLoop=3349549090552117&_afrWindowMode=0&_afrWindowId=null&_adf.ctrl-
state=eh7redhg_1#!%40%40%3F_afrWindowId%3Dnull%26_afrLoop%3D334954909055
2117%26_afrWindowMode%3D0%26_adf.ctrl-state%3Deh7redhg_5 



 
  

Impacts Analysis 
 

 
Maubert Project Wastewater and Water Utility 
Infrastructure Technical Report 5-5 May 2019 

ICF 00284.19 
 

the standards required under the Clean Water Act permit administered under the system’s National 
Pollution Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) permit for the City of Los Angeles.  On average 275 
million gallons of wastewater enters the Hyperion Water Reclamation Plant on a dry weather day. 
Because the amount of wastewater entering HWRP can double on rainy days, the plant was designed 
to accommodate both dry and wet weather days with a maximum daily flow of 450 million gallons of 
water per day (MGD) and peak wet weather flow of 800 MGD.5 Accordingly, there is a residual dry 
weather day capacity of 175 mgd, or 39 percent of the total. 

Given the current remaining capacity of the HWRP, the HWRP would have ample capacity to treat 
the Project’s wastewater generation, at 0.02 mgd, which would account for a less than one percent 
increase in demand at the HWRP. As concluded in the SCAR (Appendix A) conclusions, and given 
existing and anticipated future capacity at the wastewater treatment facilities. Therefore, the Project 
would not require the relocation or construction of new or expanded wastewater facilities.  

5.2.3 Stormwater 
The existing site area consisting of three parcels (approximately 0.76 acres pre-dedication) 
generally slopes southwest towards North Vermont Avenue at a rate of about 3.2%. There are no on-
site inlets, surface drainage sheet flows over public sidewalk to Maubert Avenue.  

The stormwater management system within the City uses a system of vertical roof drains, 
underground reinforced concrete pipe, overland sheet flow, curb, gutters, catch basins, and 
driveways to convey stormwater runoff. The existing public system is owned and managed by the 
Los Angeles County Flood Control District (LACFCD). Infrastructure built by the City of Los Angeles 
is owned and managed by the City; similarly, infrastructure built by the County is owned and 
managed by the LACFCD.  

Historically, urban development and storm drain system design have consisted of streets, 
driveways, sidewalks, and structures constructed out of impervious materials that directly convey 
runoff to curb and gutter systems, the storm drain system, and downstream receiving waters. Until 
recently, conventional storm drainage and flood control systems have been designed to convey 
stormwater away from developed areas as quickly as possible without thoroughly addressing 
stormwater quality and/or groundwater discharge. 

5.2.3.1 Construction 
Construction activities would not increase the amount of runoff and exposed soils may retain some 
runoff.  Implementation of erosion and sediment control BMPs would prevent soil erosion and 
sedimentation from exposed soils. Project construction activities would be performed in accordance 
with Los Angeles County Low Impact Development Standards. Due to the nominal contribution of 
the Project’s construction to the overall Citywide wastewater flows, the Project would not require 
the construction of new off-site stormwater drainage facilities or expansion of existing facilities. 
Impacts would be less than significant.  

                                                             
5  https://www.lacitysan.org/san/faces/home/portal/s-lsh-wwd/s-lsh-wwd-cw/s-lsh-wwd-cw-p/s-lsh-wwd-cw-

p-hwrp?_afrLoop=5664321151955827&_afrWindowMode=0&_afrWindowId=null&_adf.ctrl-
state=15x7khuh65_12#!%40%40%3F_afrWindowId%3Dnull%26_afrLoop%3D5664321151955827%26_afrWi
ndowMode%3D0%26_adf.ctrl-state%3D15x7khuh65_16 



 
  

Impacts Analysis 
 

 
Maubert Project Wastewater and Water Utility 
Infrastructure Technical Report 5-6 May 2019 

ICF 00284.19 
 

5.2.3.2 Operation 
The Project would be designed to comply with the City of Los Angeles’s Low Impact Development 
(LID) design standard. To facilitate this, the proposed stormwater Best Management Practice (BMP) 
that is considered are bio-infiltration flow-through planters. The entirety of the building’s roof 
drains will be diverted to the bio-infiltration flow-through planters and the overflow discharge will 
be discharged to Maubert Avenue via a curb drain or parkway drain, similar to existing conditions.   

Post-dedication, the total site area is approximately 0.76 acres in size. Based on an approximate 
impervious area percentage of 99% the volume mitigated is 2,450 cf.  The proposed stormwater 
treatment system will be designed to both accommodate the required volume mitigated as well as 
limit the post-construction discharge to avoid on-site or off-site flooding and to not exceed the 
capacity of the existing adjacent public street and downstream stormwater facilities 

The use of rainwater harvesting and/or bio-infiltration flow-through planters would meet City of 
Los LID standards and would be in accordance with the City of Los Angles Development Best 
Management Practices Handbook, Part B Planning Activities6, which summarizes the City’s review 
and permitting process, identifies stormwater mitigation measures, and references source and 
treatment control BMP information. The final selection of any BMPs would be made through 
coordination with the City of Los Angeles. According, the Project would not require the construction 
of new off-site stormwater drainage facilities or expansion of existing facilities. Impacts would be 
less than significant.  

b. Have sufficient water supplies available to serve the project and reasonably foreseeable 
future development during normal, dry, and multiple dry years? 

As stated above, the Project would generate a net water demand of approximately 21,872 gpd, or 
24.49 acre-feet per year (AFY), without accounting for regulatory water conservation features 
beyond the reductions embedded in the wastewater generation rates used for calculating the 
demand.  The Project would be designed to meet Cal Green and Title 24 Building Standards Code 
(CALGreen Code). With implementation of additional water conservation measures per regulatory 
requirements, and the Project’s water conservation features, the Project’s actual water demand 
would be less than the amount stated above. Compliance with water conservation measures 
required by State and City green regulations would reduce this estimated projected water demand. 

According to the reliability data in the City of Los Angeles UWMP 2015, the most recent plan 
available, LADWP has sufficient supply to meet a total water demand of 675,700 afy by the year 
2040. LADWP has programs to reduce the demand to 565,600 afy by 2040, a difference of 
110,100 afy. To meet the reduced target, LADWP will reduce water consumption through 
conservation, increased recycled water use (including both non-potable and indirect potable reuse), 
and reduced reliance on imported water.7 

                                                             
6 City of Los Angeles Planning and Development Handbook for Low Impact Development. 

https://www.lastormwater.org/wp-content/files_mf/lidmanualfinal.pdf.. 
7. City of Los Angeles Department of Water & Power Urban Water Management Plan 2015, page ES-20. 

https://www.ladwp.com/ladwp/faces/wcnav_externalId/a-w-sos-
uwmp;jsessionid=5LbPb84T8L1NqjtC1gPPJ4zTdy8pH9v2jhSzXRdFNgq0yn2BlwRy!-
1475618025?_afrLoop=524836082942912&_afrWindowMode=0&_afrWindowId=null#%40%3F_afrWindowId
%3Dnull%26_afrLoop%3D524836082942912%26_afrWindowMode%3D0%26_adf.ctrl-state%3Dxwvvtybgj_4. 



 
  

Impacts Analysis 
 

 
Maubert Project Wastewater and Water Utility 
Infrastructure Technical Report 5-7 May 2019 

ICF 00284.19 
 

The Project would result in an estimated net water demand of approximately 24.49 afy when fully 
occupied. The Project’s increase in water demand would fall within the available and projected 
water supplies reported in the 2015 UWMP for the City for 2040 (675,700 afy) and would constitute 
less than 0.01 percent of the City’s projected 2040 water supply.  As there would be sufficient water 
supplies available to serve the Project, impacts regarding supply would be less than significant, and 
no mitigation measures are required. 

c. Result in a determination by the wastewater treatment provider which serves or may serve 
the project that it has adequate capacity to serve the project’s projected demand in addition 
to the provider’s existing commitments? 

Operation of the Project would result in a net wastewater generation of approximately 17,970 gpd. 
As discussed earlier, given the current capacity of the HTP, the HTP would have ample capacity to 
serve the Project’s wastewater generation, which would account for a less than one percent increase 
in demand at the HTP. The Project would have a less than significant impact with respect on 
wastewater treatment capacity and no mitigation measures are required. 

5.2.3.3 Cumulative Impacts 

Water  
All of the related projects would be subject to City review to assure that the existing public utility 
facilities would be adequate to meet the domestic and fire water demands of each project. 
Developers are required to improve facilities where appropriate and development cannot proceed 
without appropriate verification and approval by LADWP.   

LADWP, as a public water service provider, is required to prepare and periodically update an Urban 
Water Management Plan to plan and provide for water supplies to serve existing and projected 
demands. The 2015 UWMP prepared by LADWP accounts for existing development within the City, 
as well as projected growth through the year 2040.  

Additionally, under the provisions of Senate Bill 610, LADWP is required to prepare a 
comprehensive water supply assessment for every new development "project" (as defined by 
Section 1 0912 of the Water Code) within its service area that reaches certain thresholds. The types 
of projects that are subject to the requirements of Senate Bill 610 tend to be larger projects that may 
or may not have been included within the growth projections of the 2015 UWMP. The water supply 
assessment for projects would evaluate the quality and reliability of existing and projected water 
supplies, as well as alternative sources of water supply and measures to secure alternative sources if 
needed.  

Furthermore, through LADWP's 2015 UWMP process and the City's Securing L.A.'s Water Supply, 
the City will meet all new demand for water due to projected population growth to the year of 2040, 
through a combination of water conservation and water recycling. These plans outline the creation 
of sustainable sources of water for the City of Los Angeles to reduce dependence on imported 
supplies. LADWP is planning to achieve these goals by expanding its water conservation program. 
To increase recycled water use, LADWP is expanding the recycled water distribution system to 
provide water for irrigation, industrial use, and groundwater recharge.  

Compliance of the Project and future development projects with regulatory requirements that 
promote water conservation such as the Los Angeles Municipal Code, including the City's Green 



 
  

Impacts Analysis 
 

 
Maubert Project Wastewater and Water Utility 
Infrastructure Technical Report 5-8 May 2019 

ICF 00284.19 
 

Building Code, as well as AB 32, would also assist in assuring that adequate water supply is available 
on a cumulative basis.  The Project’s contribution to cumulative impacts on water supply would not 
be cumulatively considerable and cumulative impacts regarding water supply would be less than 
significant. 

Wastewater 
Development of the Project in combination with the related projects and other projects within the 
service area of the HTP would generate additional wastewater that would be treated at HTP. As 
discussed above, the HTP has an existing treatment capacity of 450 mgd and an average dry weather 
flow of approximately 362 mgd, leaving approximately 88 mgd of treatment capacity available.8,9 
The City has adopted an Integrated Resources Plan (IRP) that shows that the HTP will be able to 
accommodate growth within its service area to the year 2030. 

As discussed previously, related projects connecting to the same sewer system are required to 
obtain a sewer connection permit and submit a SCAR to LA Sanitation as part of the related project's 
development review. Impact determination will be provided following the completion of the SCAR 
analysis for each project. If system upgrades are required as a result of a given project's additional 
flow, arrangements would be made between the related project's applicant and LA Sanitation to 
construct the necessary improvements. 

The SCAR analysis (Appendix A) described above for the Project impacts is based on a methodology 
that takes into account, among other factors, research and tracing of sewer flow levels upstream and 
downstream of the Project’s point of connection, and research of the project location area for other 
recently approved SCARs to evaluate the cumulative impact of all known SCARs on the sewer 
system. Per the SCAR conclusions, and given existing and anticipated future capacity at the 
wastewater treatment facilities, Project wastewater generation impacts regarding wastewater 
facilities would be less than significant and its contribution to cumulative impacts would not be 
cumulatively considerable, and cumulative impacts related to wastewater would be less than 
significant.  

Stormwater 
The related projects would potentially increase the volume of stormwater runoff. Pursuant to the 
City’s LID Ordinance, however, related projects would be required to capture and manage the first 
three-quarters of an inch of runoff flow during storm events as defined in the City’s LID BMPs, 
through one or more of the City’s preferred LID improvements: on-site infiltration, capture and 
reuse, or biofiltration/biotreatment BMPs, to the maximum extent feasible. 

Further, the related projects would be subject to the NPDES permit requirements for both 
construction and operation. Each project greater than one-acre in size would be required to develop 
a SWPPP and would be evaluated individually to determine appropriate BMPs and treatment 

                                                             
8 The HTP is an end-of-the-line plant, subject to diurnal and seasonal flow variation. It was designed to provide 

full secondary treatment for a maximum-month flow of 450 mgd, which corresponds to an average daily waste 
flow of 413 mgd, and peak wastewater flow of 850 mgd. (Information regarding peak flow is included in the 
IRP, Facilities Plan, Volume 1, Wastewater Management, July 2004; page 7-3.) 

9 City of Los Angeles Bureau of Sanitation, Hyperion Water Reclamation Plant. Available at: 
https://www.lacitysan.org/san/faces/wcnav_externalId/s-lsh-wwd-cw-p-hwrp?_adf.ctrl-
state=modqzbl8f_4&_afrLoop=33199812189076655.  



 
  

Impacts Analysis 
 

 
Maubert Project Wastewater and Water Utility 
Infrastructure Technical Report 5-9 May 2019 

ICF 00284.19 
 

measures to avoid or minimize impacts to water quality. Smaller projects would be minor infill 
projects with drainage characteristics similar to existing conditions, with negligible impacts. In 
addition, the City of Los Angeles Department of Public Works reviews all construction projects on a 
case-by-case basis to ensure that sufficient local and regional drainage capacity is available. 

 
 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

APPENDIX A



Residual Flow/Pressure Table for water system street main
at this location

Press.
(psi)

Press.
(psi)

Flow
(gpm)

Press.
(psi)

Flow
(gpm)

Flow
(gpm)

0 6280 1200
250 6179 1235
365 6078 1270
455 5977 1305
530 5876 1335
600 5775 1370
660 5674 1400
720 73
775 72
825 71
875 70
920 69
965 68
1005 67
1045 66
1085 65
1125 64
1160 63

Meter Assembly
Capacities

Domestic Meters
=1 inch 56 gpm
=1-1/2 inch 96 gpm
=2 inch 160 gpm
=3 inch 220 gpm
=4 inch 400 gpm
=6 inch 700 gpm
=8 inch 1500 gpm
=10 inch 2500 gpm

Fire Service
=2 inch 250 gpm
=4 inch 600 gpm
=6 inch 1400 gpm
=8 inch 2500 gpm
=10 inch 5000 gpm

FM Services
=8 inch 2500 gpm
=10 inch 5000 gpm

For:

System maximum pressure should be used only for determining class of piping and fittings.

These values are subject to change due to changes in system facilities or demands.

This information will be sent to the Department of Building and Safety for plan checking.

Notes: Ok to sell combo with 6" DS

This SAR is valid for one year from 05-17-19. Once the SAR expires, the applicant needs to re-apply and pay applicable processing fee.

CENTRAL (213) 367-1216For additional information contact the Water Distribution Services Section 

Prepared by Water Service Map
148-198VIRGINIA WEI VIRGINIA WEI

Approved by

4649   MAUBERT AVE 

103 404

Approved Date:

psi based on street curb elevation of  feet above sea level at this location.

 off of the 6 INCH

The distance from the DWP street main to the property line is feet

6 inch main in MAUBERT AVE  on the NORTH side approximately

200 feet EAST  of EAST  of VERMONT AVE   The System maximum pressure is 

40

76646SAR NUMBER 630979SERVICE NUMBERFire Service Pressure Flow Report
5-17-2019

Los Angeles Department of Water and Power - Water System
City of Los Angeles

Proposed Service











 

Appendix D 

Tree Letter  



TRANSMITTED VIA EMAIL 

April 16, 2019 

Mr. Joe Pink 
Carmel Partners 
429 Santa Monica Blvd., Suite 700 
Santa Monica, CA 90401 

RRe: Maubert Apartments, Los Angeles, CA 
Protected Trees Relocation and Replacement 

Mr. Joe Pink, 

This letter is to confirm that we have reviewed the existing plant material at the above referenced project (APN: 5542-014-023, 026, 031) 
and have found that there are no Protected Trees - as defined by Section 12.21.A.12 of the Los Angeles Municipal Code - within the site 
or in the adjacent right-of-way. 

Kind regards, 

Ian Morris, ASLA 
Senior Principal, PLA #4988, California

04.16.2019



 

Appendix E 

Phase I Environmental Site Assessment  

  



 



 

 



 

 



 

•

•

•

•



 

•

 



 

 



 



 

 



 



 

•

•

•



 

2.4.1  Topography 



 

2.4.2 Hydrology 

2.4.3 Geology/Soils 

2.4.4 Flood Zone Information 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 

4.1.1 Los Angeles County Fire Department 

4.1.2 Los Angeles City Fire Department 

4.1.3 Air Pollution Control Agency 

4.1.4 Regional Water Quality Agency 



 

4.1.5 Department of Toxic Substances Control  

4.1.6 Building Department  

4.1.7 Planning Department  



 

4.1.8 Oil & Gas Exploration  

4.1.9 Assessor’s Office 

4.1.10 Los Angeles Sanitation District  



 

4.2.1 Regulatory Database Summary  



 

4.2.2 Subject Property Listings  

4.2.3 Adjacent Property Listings  

•

•

4.2.4 Sites of Concern Listings 

•

4.2.5 Orphan Listings 



 

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

5.1.1 Interview with Owner 



 

5.1.2 Interview with Report User  

5.1.3 Interview with Key Site Manager  

5.1.4 Interviews with Past Owners, Operators and Occupants 

5.1.5 Interview with Others  

5.2.1 Title Records, Environmental Liens, and AULs  

5.2.2 Specialized Knowledge  

5.2.3 Actual Knowledge of the User  

5.2.4 Valuation Reduction for Environmental Issues  



 

5.2.5 Commonly Known or Reasonably Ascertainable Information  

5.2.6 Previous Reports and Other Provided Documentation 



 

6.1.1 Solid Waste Disposal 

6.1.2 Sewage Discharge and Disposal 

6.1.3 Surface Water Drainage 



 

6.1.4 Source of Heating and Cooling 

6.1.5 Wells and Cisterns 

6.1.6 Wastewater 

6.1.7 Septic Systems 

6.1.8 Additional Site Observations 

6.2.1 Hazardous Substances and Petroleum Products Used or Stored at the Site 

6.2.2 Aboveground & Underground Hazardous Substance or Petroleum Product Storage 
Tanks (ASTs/USTs) 

6.2.3 Evidence of Releases 

6.2.4 Polychlorinated Biphenyls (PCBs) 

6.2.5 Strong, Pungent or Noxious Odors 

6.2.6 Pools of Liquid 



 

6.2.7 Drains, Sumps and Clarifiers 

6.2.8 Pits, Ponds and Lagoons 

6.2.9 Stressed Vegetation 

6.2.10 Additional Potential Environmental Hazards 

6.3.1 Asbestos-Containing Materials (ACMs) 

6.3.2 Lead-Based Paint (LBP) 



 

6.3.3 Radon 

6.3.4 Lead in Drinking Water 

6.3.5 Mold 



 

6.4.1 PCBs 



 

•

•

•

•



 

•



 



 



 

 



 
 

 

           



 
 

 

 

 
 
  

 



 
 

 

           



 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 



  

  

  



 

 

 

 







 

 



page

APPENDIX B: AERIAL PHOTOGRAPHS
Project No.

Key: Subject Property

Aerial Photograph Year: 1923

500 1000 2000



page

APPENDIX B: AERIAL PHOTOGRAPHS
Project No.

Key: Subject Property

Aerial Photograph Year: 1928

500 1000 2000



page

APPENDIX B: AERIAL PHOTOGRAPHS
Project No.

Key: Subject Property

Aerial Photograph Year: 1938

500 1000 2000



page

APPENDIX B: AERIAL PHOTOGRAPHS
Project No.

Key: Subject Property

Aerial Photograph Year: 1948

500 1000 2000



page

APPENDIX B: AERIAL PHOTOGRAPHS
Project No.

Key: Subject Property

Aerial Photograph Year: 1952

500 1000 2000



page

APPENDIX B: AERIAL PHOTOGRAPHS
Project No.

Key: Subject Property

Aerial Photograph Year: 1954

500 1000 2000



page

APPENDIX B: AERIAL PHOTOGRAPHS
Project No.

Key: Subject Property

Aerial Photograph Year: 1964

500 1000 2000



page

APPENDIX B: AERIAL PHOTOGRAPHS
Project No.

Key: Subject Property

Aerial Photograph Year: 1972

500 1000 2000



page

APPENDIX B: AERIAL PHOTOGRAPHS
Project No.

Key: Subject Property

Aerial Photograph Year: 1977

500 1000 2000



page

APPENDIX B: AERIAL PHOTOGRAPHS
Project No.

Key: Subject Property

Aerial Photograph Year: 1981

500 1000 2000



page

APPENDIX B: AERIAL PHOTOGRAPHS
Project No.

Key: Subject Property

Aerial Photograph Year: 1989

500 1000 2000



page

APPENDIX B: AERIAL PHOTOGRAPHS
Project No.

Key: Subject Property

Aerial Photograph Year: 1994

500 1000 2000



page

APPENDIX B: AERIAL PHOTOGRAPHS
Project No.

Key: Subject Property

Aerial Photograph Year: 2002

500 1000 2000



page

APPENDIX B: AERIAL PHOTOGRAPHS
Project No.

Key: Subject Property

Aerial Photograph Year: 2005

500 1000 2000



page

APPENDIX B: AERIAL PHOTOGRAPHS
Project No.

Key: Subject Property

Aerial Photograph Year: 2009

500 1000 2000



page

APPENDIX B: AERIAL PHOTOGRAPHS
Project No.

Key: Subject Property

Aerial Photograph Year: 2012

500 1000 2000



page

APPENDIX B: AERIAL PHOTOGRAPHS
Project No.

Key: Subject Property

Aerial Photograph Year: 2016

500 1000 2000



page

APPENDIX B: 
Project No.

Key: Subject Property

0 Feet 150 300 600 

Certified Sanborn® Map Year: 1919

Site Name:

5B
09

-4
C

1E
-9

26
1

Address:

City, ST, ZIP:

Client: Partner Engineering and Science, Inc.

EDR Inquiry: 5441284.3

Order Date: 10/05/2018

Certification #

Copyright 1919

Volume 10, Sheet 1070
Volume 10, Sheet 1069
Volume 10, Sheet 1068

{0}

18-227987.1



page

APPENDIX B: 
Project No.

Key: Subject Property

0 Feet 150 300 600 

Certified Sanborn® Map Year: 1950

Site Name:

5B
09

-4
C

1E
-9

26
1

Address:

City, ST, ZIP:

Client: Partner Engineering and Science, Inc.

EDR Inquiry: 5441284.3

Order Date: 10/05/2018

Certification #

Copyright 1950

Volume 10, Sheet 1070
Volume 10, Sheet 1069
Volume 10, Sheet 1068

{0}

18-227987.1



page

APPENDIX B: 
Project No.

Key: Subject Property

0 Feet 150 300 600 

Certified Sanborn® Map Year: 1955

Site Name:

5B
09

-4
C

1E
-9

26
1

Address:

City, ST, ZIP:

Client: Partner Engineering and Science, Inc.

EDR Inquiry: 5441284.3

Order Date: 10/05/2018

Certification #

Copyright 1955

Volume 9A, Sheet 948a
Volume 9A, Sheet 947a
Volume 9A, Sheet 946a
Volume 9A, Sheet 948a
Volume 9A, Sheet 947a
Volume 9A, Sheet 946a

{0}

18-227987.1



page

APPENDIX B: 
Project No.

Key: Subject Property

0 Feet 150 300 600 

Certified Sanborn® Map Year: 1957

Site Name:

5B
09

-4
C

1E
-9

26
1

Address:

City, ST, ZIP:

Client: Partner Engineering and Science, Inc.

EDR Inquiry: 5441284.3

Order Date: 10/05/2018

Certification #

Copyright 1957

Volume 9A, Sheet 948a
Volume 9A, Sheet 947a
Volume 9A, Sheet 946a

{0}

18-227987.1



page

APPENDIX B: 
Project No.

Key: Subject Property

0 Feet 150 300 600 

Certified Sanborn® Map Year: 1960

Site Name:

5B
09

-4
C

1E
-9

26
1

Address:

City, ST, ZIP:

Client: Partner Engineering and Science, Inc.

EDR Inquiry: 5441284.3

Order Date: 10/05/2018

Certification #

Copyright 1960

Volume 9A, Sheet 946a
Volume 9A, Sheet 947a
Volume 9A, Sheet 948a

{0}

18-227987.1



page

APPENDIX B: 
Project No.

Key: Subject Property

0 Feet 150 300 600 

Certified Sanborn® Map Year: 1961

Site Name:

5B
09

-4
C

1E
-9

26
1

Address:

City, ST, ZIP:

Client: Partner Engineering and Science, Inc.

EDR Inquiry: 5441284.3

Order Date: 10/05/2018

Certification #

Copyright 1961

Volume 9A, Sheet 948a
Volume 9A, Sheet 947a
Volume 9A, Sheet 946a

{0}

18-227987.1



page

APPENDIX B: 
Project No.

Key: Subject Property

0 Feet 150 300 600 

Certified Sanborn® Map Year: 1962

Site Name:

5B
09

-4
C

1E
-9

26
1

Address:

City, ST, ZIP:

Client: Partner Engineering and Science, Inc.

EDR Inquiry: 5441284.3

Order Date: 10/05/2018

Certification #

Copyright 1962

Volume 9A, Sheet 946a
Volume 9A, Sheet 947a
Volume 9A, Sheet 948a

{0}

18-227987.1



page

APPENDIX B: 
Project No.

Key: Subject Property

0 Feet 150 300 600 

Certified Sanborn® Map Year: 1966

Site Name:

5B
09

-4
C

1E
-9

26
1

Address:

City, ST, ZIP:

Client: Partner Engineering and Science, Inc.

EDR Inquiry: 5441284.3

Order Date: 10/05/2018

Certification #

Copyright 1966

Volume 9A, Sheet 948a
Volume 9A, Sheet 947a
Volume 9A, Sheet 946a

{0}

18-227987.1



page

APPENDIX B: 
Project No.

Key: Subject Property

0 Feet 150 300 600 

Certified Sanborn® Map Year: 1968

Site Name:

5B
09

-4
C

1E
-9

26
1

Address:

City, ST, ZIP:

Client: Partner Engineering and Science, Inc.

EDR Inquiry: 5441284.3

Order Date: 10/05/2018

Certification #

Copyright 1968

Volume 9A, Sheet 947a
Volume 9A, Sheet 946a
Volume 9A, Sheet 948a

{0}

18-227987.1



page

APPENDIX B: 
Project No.

Key: Subject Property

0 Feet 150 300 600 

Certified Sanborn® Map Year: 1969

Site Name:

5B
09

-4
C

1E
-9

26
1

Address:

City, ST, ZIP:

Client: Partner Engineering and Science, Inc.

EDR Inquiry: 5441284.3

Order Date: 10/05/2018

Certification #

Copyright 1969

Volume 9A, Sheet 946a
Volume 9A, Sheet 947a
Volume 9A, Sheet 948a

{0}

18-227987.1



page

APPENDIX B: 
Project No.

Key: Subject Property

0 Feet 150 300 600 

Certified Sanborn® Map Year: 1970

Site Name:

5B
09

-4
C

1E
-9

26
1

Address:

City, ST, ZIP:

Client: Partner Engineering and Science, Inc.

EDR Inquiry: 5441284.3

Order Date: 10/05/2018

Certification #

Copyright 1970

Volume 9A, Sheet 946a
Volume 9A, Sheet 947a
Volume 9A, Sheet 948a

{0}

18-227987.1



































































































































APPENDIX B: 
Project No.

Key: Subject Property

Topographic Map Year: 1894

TP, Los Angeles, 1894, 15-minute

0 Miles 0.25 0.5 1 1.5

{0}
18-227987.1



APPENDIX B: 
Project No.

Key: Subject Property

Topographic Map Year: 1896

TP, Santa Monica, 1896, 15-minute

0 Miles 0.25 0.5 1 1.5

{0}
18-227987.1



APPENDIX B: 
Project No.

Key: Subject Property

Topographic Map Year: 1898

TP, Santa Monica, 1898, 15-minute

0 Miles 0.25 0.5 1 1.5

{0}
18-227987.1



APPENDIX B: 
Project No.

Key: Subject Property

Topographic Map Year: 1900

TP, Los Angeles, 1900, 15-minute

0 Miles 0.25 0.5 1 1.5

{0}
18-227987.1



APPENDIX B: 
Project No.

Key: Subject Property

Topographic Map Year: 1902

TP, Santa Monica, 1902, 15-minute

0 Miles 0.25 0.5 1 1.5

{0}
18-227987.1



APPENDIX B: 
Project No.

Key: Subject Property

Topographic Map Year: 1920

TP, SANTA MONICA, 1920, 15-minute

0 Miles 0.25 0.5 1 1.5

{0}
18-227987.1



APPENDIX B: 
Project No.

Key: Subject Property

Topographic Map Year: 1921

TP, Santa Monica, 1921, 15-minute

0 Miles 0.25 0.5 1 1.5

{0}
18-227987.1



APPENDIX B: 
Project No.

Key: Subject Property

Topographic Map Year: 1928

TP, Los Angeles, 1928, 7.5-minute
NE, Glendale, 1928, 7.5-minute

0 Miles 0.25 0.5 1 1.5

{0}
18-227987.1



APPENDIX B: 
Project No.

Key: Subject Property

Topographic Map Year: 1953

TP, Hollywood, 1953, 7.5-minute

0 Miles 0.25 0.5 1 1.5

{0}
18-227987.1



APPENDIX B: 
Project No.

Key: Subject Property

Topographic Map Year: 1966

TP, Hollywood, 1966, 7.5-minute

0 Miles 0.25 0.5 1 1.5

{0}
18-227987.1



APPENDIX B: 
Project No.

Key: Subject Property

Topographic Map Year: 1972

TP, Hollywood, 1972, 7.5-minute

0 Miles 0.25 0.5 1 1.5

{0}
18-227987.1



APPENDIX B: 
Project No.

Key: Subject Property

Topographic Map Year: 1981

TP, Hollywood, 1981, 7.5-minute

0 Miles 0.25 0.5 1 1.5

{0}
18-227987.1



APPENDIX B: 
Project No.

Key: Subject Property

Topographic Map Year: 1991

TP, Hollywood, 1991, 7.5-minute

0 Miles 0.25 0.5 1 1.5



APPENDIX B: 
Project No.

Key: Subject Property

Topographic Map Year: 2012

TP, Hollywood, 2012, 7.5-minute

0 Miles 0.25 0.5 1 1.5





















































 

 



FORM-LBC-ASH

®kcehCoeG htiw tropeR  ™paM suidaR RDE ehT

6 Armstrong Road, 4th floor
Shelton, CT 06484
Toll Free: 800.352.0050
www.edrnet.com

4645 , 4637 and 4629 Maubert Avenue
4645 , 4637 and 4629 Maubert Avenue
LOS ANGELES, CA  90027

Inquiry Number: 5441284.2s
October 05, 2018



SECTION PAGE

Executive Summary ES1

Overview Map 2

Detail Map 3

Map Findings Summary 4

Map Findings 9

Orphan Summary 200

Government Records Searched/Data Currency Tracking GR-1

GEOCHECK ADDENDUM

Physical Setting Source Addendum A-1

Physical Setting Source Summary A-2

Physical Setting Source Map A-7

Physical Setting Source Map Findings A-8

Physical Setting Source Records Searched PSGR-1

TC5441284.2s   Page 1

Thank you for your business.
Please contact EDR at 1-800-352-0050

with any questions or comments.

Disclaimer - Copyright and Trademark Notice

This Report contains certain information obtained from a variety of public and other sources reasonably available to Environmental Data
Resources, Inc. It cannot be concluded from this Report that coverage information for the target and surrounding properties does not exist from
other sources. NO WARRANTY EXPRESSED OR IMPLIED, IS MADE WHATSOEVER IN CONNECTION WITH THIS REPORT. ENVIRONMENTAL
DATA RESOURCES, INC. SPECIFICALLY DISCLAIMS THE MAKING OF ANY SUCH WARRANTIES, INCLUDING WITHOUT LIMITATION,
MERCHANTABILITY OR FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR USE OR PURPOSE. ALL RISK IS ASSUMED BY THE USER. IN NO EVENT SHALL
ENVIRONMENTAL DATA RESOURCES, INC. BE LIABLE TO ANYONE, WHETHER ARISING OUT OF ERRORS OR OMISSIONS, NEGLIGENCE,
ACCIDENT OR ANY OTHER CAUSE, FOR ANY LOSS OF DAMAGE, INCLUDING, WITHOUT LIMITATION, SPECIAL, INCIDENTAL,
CONSEQUENTIAL, OR EXEMPLARY DAMAGES. ANY LIABILITY ON THE PART OF ENVIRONMENTAL DATA RESOURCES, INC. IS STRICTLY
LIMITED TO A REFUND OF THE AMOUNT PAID FOR THIS REPORT. Purchaser accepts this Report "AS IS". Any analyses, estimates, ratings,
environmental risk levels or risk codes provided in this Report are provided for illustrative purposes only, and are not intended to provide, nor
should they be interpreted as providing any facts regarding, or prediction or forecast of, any environmental risk for any property. Only a Phase I
Environmental Site Assessment performed by an environmental professional can provide information regarding the environmental risk for any
property. Additionally, the information provided in this Report is not to be construed as legal advice.

Copyright 2018 by Environmental Data Resources, Inc. All rights reserved. Reproduction in any media or format, in whole
or in part, of any report or map of Environmental Data Resources, Inc., or its affiliates, is prohibited without prior written permission.

EDR and its logos (including Sanborn and Sanborn Map) are trademarks of Environmental Data Resources, Inc. or its affiliates. All other
trademarks used herein are the property of their respective owners.

TABLE OF CONTENTS



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

TC5441284.2s  EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 1

A search of available environmental records was conducted by Environmental Data Resources, Inc (EDR).
The report was designed to assist parties seeking to meet the search requirements of EPA’s Standards
and Practices for All Appropriate Inquiries (40 CFR Part 312), the ASTM Standard Practice for
Environmental Site Assessments (E 1527-13), the ASTM Standard Practice for Environmental Site
Assessments for Forestland or Rural Property (E 2247-16), the ASTM Standard Practice for Limited
Environmental Due Diligence: Transaction Screen Process (E 1528-14) or custom requirements developed
for the evaluation of environmental risk associated with a parcel of real estate.

TARGET PROPERTY INFORMATION

ADDRESS

4645 , 4637 AND 4629 MAUBERT AVENUE
LOS ANGELES, CA 90027

COORDINATES

34.0994460 - 34˚ 5’ 58.00’’Latitude (North): 
118.2908950 - 118˚ 17’ 27.22’’Longitude (West): 
Zone 11Universal Tranverse Mercator: 
380921.3UTM X (Meters): 
3773739.8UTM Y (Meters): 
406 ft. above sea levelElevation:

USGS TOPOGRAPHIC MAP ASSOCIATED WITH TARGET PROPERTY

5630741 HOLLYWOOD, CATarget Property Map:
2012Version Date:

AERIAL PHOTOGRAPHY IN THIS REPORT

20140515Portions of Photo from:
USDASource:



5441284.2s   Page  2

F39 HOLLYWOOD MOVING CEN 4550 HOLLYWOOD BLVD CA HIST UST Lower 515, 0.098, ESE

F38 U-HAUL OF LOS ANGELE 4550 HOLLYWOOD BLVD CA SWEEPS UST, CA HIST UST, CA FID UST Lower 515, 0.098, ESE

C37 MINI MARKET/GAS STAT 1630 N VERMONT AVE CA SWEEPS UST, CA HIST UST, CA FID UST Higher 499, 0.095, NNW

C36 ARCO #5025 1630 VERMONT CA HIST CORTESE Higher 499, 0.095, NNW

C35 SHELL/TESORO (FORMER 1630 VERMONT AVE N CA LUST Higher 499, 0.095, NNW

C34 HOLLYWOOD SHELL 1630 N VERMONT AVE CA UST Higher 499, 0.095, NNW

C33 PRESTIGE STATIONS IN 1630 N VERMONT AVE RCRA NonGen / NLR, FINDS, ECHO Higher 499, 0.095, NNW

H32 RITE AID NO 5435 1637 N VERMONT AVE RCRA-CESQG Higher 493, 0.093, NNW

H31 RITE AID #5435 1637 N VERMONT AVE RCRA-LQG Higher 493, 0.093, NNW

G30 GOLDBAUM PINKUS 4546 S SUNSET BLVD EDR Hist Auto Lower 489, 0.093, SE

D29 RITE AID NO 5435 1533 N VERMONT AVE RCRA-SQG, FINDS, ECHO Higher 442, 0.084, West

E28 CHILDRENS HOSPITAL 4560 SUNSET BLVD W CA LUST Lower 440, 0.083, SSE

E27 CHILDRENS HOSPITAL 4560 SUNSET CA HIST CORTESE Lower 440, 0.083, SSE

C26 HOLLYWOOD CLEANERS 4730 HOLLYWOOD BLVD RCRA-SQG, FINDS, ECHO, CA HAZNET Higher 431, 0.082, NNW

A25 KAISER PERMANENTE RE 1515 N VERMONT LEVEL RCRA NonGen / NLR, FINDS, ECHO Lower 427, 0.081, SW

A24 KAISER PERMANENTE 1515 N. VERMONT AVEN RCRA-LQG Lower 427, 0.081, SW

A23 KAISER MEDICAL CENTE 1515 N VERMONT AVE CA SWEEPS UST, CA FID UST Lower 427, 0.081, SW

F22 ARK WING 4578 HOLLYWOOD BLVD EDR Hist Cleaner Higher 395, 0.075, East

F21 FINNERMAN SOL 4580 HOLLYWOOD BLVD EDR Hist Cleaner Higher 392, 0.074, East

E20 CHILDREN’S HOSPITAL 4650 SUNSET BOULEVAR RCRA-LQG, CA ENVIROSTOR, CA HIST UST, CA FID UST,... Lower 391, 0.074, South

E19 CHILDREN’S HOSPITAL 4650 W SUNSET BLVD CA UST, CA SWEEPS UST Lower 391, 0.074, South

C18 YITZHAK HACHAMOFF 1630 N VERMONT AVE CA HIST UST Higher 367, 0.070, NNW

C17 PETROL SIX LLC 1630 N VERMONT AVE EDR Hist Auto Higher 367, 0.070, NNW

A16 KAISER FOUNDATION HO 4730 BARNSDALL AVE CA UST Lower 360, 0.068, WSW

A15 KAISER FOUND HOSPITA 4730 BARNSDALE AVE CA SWEEPS UST, CA FID UST Lower 360, 0.068, WSW

D14 LAUR METALS CO 1601 N VERMONT AVE CA SWRCY Higher 314, 0.059, NW

B13 SANFORD EDW 4575 HOLLYWOOD BLVD EDR Hist Auto Higher 309, 0.059, ENE

A12 PRATTE GARLAND 4661 S SUNSET BLVD EDR Hist Auto Lower 306, 0.058, South

A11 CHILDREN’S HOSPITAL 4661 W SUNSET BLVD CA UST Lower 306, 0.058, South

C10 ANDERS H F 4662 HOLLYWOOD BLVD EDR Hist Cleaner Higher 292, 0.055, North

D9 TIME O MAX ONE HOUR 1553 N VERMONT AVE RCRA-SQG Higher 284, 0.054, WNW

D8 TIME O MAX ONE HOUR 1553 N VERMONT AVE RCRA-SQG, FINDS, ECHO Higher 284, 0.054, WNW

D7 SPARKLING CLEANERS 1553 N VERMONT AVE EDR Hist Cleaner Higher 284, 0.054, WNW

B6 HOLLYWOOD HYUNDAI MA 4601 HOLLYWOOD BLVD RCRA-SQG Higher 270, 0.051, ENE

B5 HOLLYWOOD HYUNDAI MA 4601 HOLLYWOOD BLVD CA SWEEPS UST, CA HIST UST, CA FID UST, RCRA... Higher 270, 0.051, ENE

B4 ALEX SATIN OLDS MAZD 4601 HOLLYWOOD BLVD CA HIST UST Higher 270, 0.051, ENE

C3 ANDERS H F 4660 HOLLYWOOD BLVD EDR Hist Cleaner Higher 268, 0.051, North

B2 MILLS J J 4627 HOLLYWOOD BLVD EDR Hist Auto Higher 249, 0.047, NE

A1 ABRAMSON MORRIS 1528 N VERMONT AVE EDR Hist Auto Lower 164, 0.031, SW

MAPPED SITES SUMMARY

Target Property Address:
4645 , 4637 AND 4629 MAUBERT AVENUE
LOS ANGELES, CA  90027

Click on Map ID to see full detail.

MAP RELATIVE DIST (ft. & mi.)
ID DATABASE ACRONYMS ELEVATION DIRECTIONSITE NAME ADDRESS



5441284.2s   Page  3

Q78 HOLLYMONT CLEANERS & 1759 N VERMONT AVE CA DRYCLEANERS, CA HAZNET Higher 1241, 0.235, NNW

Q77 HOLLYMONT CLEANER & 1759 N VERMONT AVE CA DRYCLEANERS Higher 1241, 0.235, NNW

Q76 HOLLYMONT CLEANERS & 1759 N VERMONT AVE CA DRYCLEANERS Higher 1241, 0.235, NNW

Q75 HOLLYMONT CLEANERS 1759 N VERMONT RCRA-SQG, FINDS, ECHO, CA DRYCLEANERS Higher 1241, 0.235, NNW

P74 BARNSDALL PARK 4800 HOLLYWOOD BLVD RCRA-SQG, FINDS, ECHO Higher 1205, 0.228, NW

73 DISTRIBUTING STATION 1675 HILLHURST AVE CA AST Higher 1136, 0.215, NE

O72 SUNSET 30 MINUTE PHO 4470 W SUNSET BLVD S RCRA-SQG, FINDS, ECHO Lower 1121, 0.212, ESE

O71 90703-CHEVRON STATIO 4480 W SUNSET BLVD CA SWEEPS UST, CA HIST UST, CA FID UST Lower 1118, 0.212, ESE

O70 90703 4480 W SUNSET BLVD CA HIST UST Lower 1118, 0.212, ESE

N69 QUEEN OF ANGELS HOLL 1300 N VERMONT AVE RCRA-LQG, CA LUST, FINDS, ECHO, CA HAZNET, CA... Lower 1111, 0.210, South

N68 HOLLYWOOD PRESBYTERI 1300 N VERMONT AVE CA SWEEPS UST, CA FID UST, CA EMI Lower 1111, 0.210, South

N67 HOLLYWOOD PRESBYTERI 1300 N VERMONT AVE CA UST Lower 1111, 0.210, South

M66 HOLLYWOOD CLEANERS 4730 HOLLYWOOD BLVD CA DRYCLEANERS Higher 951, 0.180, NW

M65 HOLLYWOOD CLEANERS 4730 HOLLYWOOD BLVD CA DRYCLEANERS Higher 951, 0.180, NW

K64 KAISER PERMANENTE 4760 W SUNSET BLVD CA UST, CA SWEEPS UST Lower 893, 0.169, SW

K63 KAISER FOUNDATION HO 4760 W SUNSET BLVD CA FID UST Lower 893, 0.169, SW

L62 LOS ANGELES FIRE STA 1601 N HILLHURST AVE CA SWEEPS UST, CA HIST UST, CA FID UST Higher 886, 0.168, ENE

L61 FIRE STATION 35 1601 HILLHURST AVE CA HIST UST Higher 886, 0.168, ENE

L60 LA FIRE STATION 35 1601 HILLHURST AVE RCRA-SQG, FINDS, ECHO, CA HIST CORTESE Higher 886, 0.168, ENE

L59 LOS ANGELES FIRE STA 1601 N HILLHURST ST CA SWEEPS UST Higher 886, 0.168, ENE

L58 LAFD - FIRE STATION 1601 N HILLHURST AVE CA UST Higher 886, 0.168, ENE

L57 LOS ANGELES FIRE STA 1601 HILLHURST AVE CA UST Higher 886, 0.168, ENE

L56 FIRE STATION #35 1601 HILLHURST AVE N CA LUST Higher 886, 0.168, ENE

L55 JIFFY LUBE #510 4500 CLAYTON RD CA FID UST Higher 828, 0.157, East

K54 TEXACO INC 4747 W SUNSET BLVD CA SWEEPS UST, CA FID UST Lower 718, 0.136, WSW

K53 KAISER FOUNDATION HE 4733 W SUNSET BLVD CA SWEEPS UST, CA FID UST Lower 716, 0.136, WSW

J52 HOLLYWOOD BODY AND F 1566 LYMAN PL RCRA-SQG, FINDS, ECHO Higher 694, 0.131, East

J51 MONACO MOTORS INC. 1566 LYMAN RD CA SWEEPS UST, CA FID UST Higher 694, 0.131, East

J50 HOLLYWOOD FORD 4531 HOLLYWOOD BLVD RCRA-SQG, CA SWEEPS UST, CA HIST UST, CA FID UST,... Lower 671, 0.127, East

I49 KOVALL C C 4720 S SUNSET BLVD EDR Hist Auto Lower 658, 0.125, SW

I48 KROLL IDA MRS 1428 N VERMONT AVE EDR Hist Cleaner Lower 652, 0.123, SSW

G47 CASAVIAN FRED 4532 S SUNSET BLVD EDR Hist Auto Lower 624, 0.118, SE

H46 ORANGE BEE JAY 1670 N VERMONT AVE EDR Hist Auto Higher 611, 0.116, NNW

H45 HOLLYMONT ENTERPRISE 1666 N VERMONT AVE EDR Hist Auto Higher 588, 0.111, NNW

H44 HOLLYMONT CAR WASH 1666 N VERMONT AVE CA HIST UST Higher 588, 0.111, NNW

H43 HOLLYWOOD ENTERPRISE 1666 N VERMONT AVE CA SWEEPS UST, CA FID UST Higher 588, 0.111, NNW

I42 MC CALL   PAYNE INC 4700 S SUNSET BLVD EDR Hist Auto Lower 552, 0.105, SW

G41 GOLDBAUM PINKUS 4540 S SUNSET BLVD EDR Hist Auto Lower 534, 0.101, SE

F40 BARTOO LILLIAN MRS 4548 HOLLYWOOD BLVD EDR Hist Cleaner Lower 525, 0.099, ESE

MAPPED SITES SUMMARY

Target Property Address:
4645 , 4637 AND 4629 MAUBERT AVENUE
LOS ANGELES, CA  90027

Click on Map ID to see full detail.

MAP RELATIVE DIST (ft. & mi.)
ID DATABASE ACRONYMS ELEVATION DIRECTIONSITE NAME ADDRESS



5441284.2s   Page  4

101 RAMONA PRIMARY SITE KINGSLEY DRIVE/ROMAI CA ENVIROSTOR, CA SCH Lower 5192, 0.983, SW

100 BELMONT/HOLLYWOOD NO LA MIRADA AVENUE/SER CA ENVIROSTOR, CA SCH Lower 4910, 0.930, WSW

99 RAMONA NEW PC AKA BO SANTA MONICA BOULEVA CA ENVIROSTOR, CA SCH Lower 4615, 0.874, SW

98 RAMONA PRIMARY SITE HOBART BOULEVARD/FOU CA ENVIROSTOR, CA SCH Lower 4134, 0.783, WSW

97 BELMONT/HOLLYWOOD NO WILLOWBROOK AVE/HOOV CA ENVIROSTOR, CA SCH Lower 4034, 0.764, SSE

96 THRIFTY #183 5025 SUNSET BLVD W CA LUST, CA HIST CORTESE Lower 2469, 0.468, West

95 HOLLYWOOD GAS (FORME 4977 HOLLYWOOD BLVD CA LUST, CA SWEEPS UST, CA HIST CORTESE Lower 2273, 0.430, WNW

94 MARSHALL NEW PRIMARY LEXINGTON AVE/WESTMO CA ENVIROSTOR, CA SCH Lower 2220, 0.420, SSE

T93 CHEVRON #9-0140 1869 HILLHURST AVE CA LUST, CA HIST UST Higher 2174, 0.412, NNE

T92 CHEVRON #9-0140 1869 HILLHURST AVE CA LUST Higher 2174, 0.412, NNE

91 SAV-MOR OIL CO. #343 4359 SUNSET BLVD CA LUST, CA HIST UST, CA HIST CORTESE Lower 2136, 0.405, ESE

S90 SHELL OIL CO (FORMER 4905 HOLLYWOOD BLVD CA LUST, CA HIST CORTESE Higher 1817, 0.344, WNW

S89 UNOCAL #3837 (FORMER 4900 HOLLYWOOD BLVD CA LUST Higher 1780, 0.337, WNW

S88 SERVICE STATION 3837 4900 W HOLLYWOOD BLV CA LUST, CA SWEEPS UST, CA HIST UST, CA FID UST,... Higher 1780, 0.337, WNW

S87 EDGEMONT HOSPITAL 4841 HOLLYWOOD CA LUST, CA HIST CORTESE Higher 1683, 0.319, WNW

S86 EDGEMONT HOSPITAL 4841 HOLLYWOOD BLVD CA LUST Higher 1683, 0.319, WNW

R85 PACIFIC BELL 1255 N VERMONT RCRA-SQG, CA LUST, CA UST, CA SWEEPS UST, CA HIST... Lower 1663, 0.315, SSW

R84 76 PRODUCTS STATION 1270 VERMONT AVE N CA LUST, CA HIST CORTESE Lower 1441, 0.273, South

P83 HOLLYWOOD CAR WASH 4810 HOLLYWOOD BLVD CA LUST, CA HIST UST, CA HIST CORTESE Higher 1389, 0.263, NW

P82 HOLLYWOOD CAR WASH 4810 HOLLYWOOD BLVD CA LUST, CA HIST UST Higher 1389, 0.263, NW

81 KAISER LAMC STAGE 2 4867 SUNSET BOULEVAR CA LUST, CA HIST CORTESE, CA NPDES, CA CIWQS Lower 1328, 0.252, WSW

P80 MTA - BARNSDALL PARK 4800 HOLLYWOOD CA CPS-SLIC Higher 1287, 0.244, NW

79 L A U S D LOS FELIZ 1740 N NEW HAMPSHIRE RCRA-SQG, FINDS, ECHO Higher 1265, 0.240, NNW

MAPPED SITES SUMMARY

Target Property Address:
4645 , 4637 AND 4629 MAUBERT AVENUE
LOS ANGELES, CA  90027

Click on Map ID to see full detail.

MAP RELATIVE DIST (ft. & mi.)
ID DATABASE ACRONYMS ELEVATION DIRECTIONSITE NAME ADDRESS



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

TC5441284.2s  EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 5

TARGET PROPERTY SEARCH RESULTS

The target property was not listed in any of the databases searched by EDR.

DATABASES WITH NO MAPPED SITES

No mapped sites were found in EDR’s search of available ("reasonably ascertainable ") government
records either on the target property or within the search radius around the target property for the
following databases:

STANDARD ENVIRONMENTAL RECORDS

Federal NPL site list

NPL National Priority List
Proposed NPL Proposed National Priority List Sites
NPL LIENS Federal Superfund Liens

Federal Delisted NPL site list

Delisted NPL National Priority List Deletions

Federal CERCLIS list

FEDERAL FACILITY Federal Facility Site Information listing
SEMS Superfund Enterprise Management System

Federal CERCLIS NFRAP site list

SEMS-ARCHIVE Superfund Enterprise Management System Archive

Federal RCRA CORRACTS facilities list

CORRACTS Corrective Action Report

Federal RCRA non-CORRACTS TSD facilities list

RCRA-TSDF RCRA - Treatment, Storage and Disposal

Federal institutional controls / engineering controls registries

LUCIS Land Use Control Information System
US ENG CONTROLS Engineering Controls Sites List
US INST CONTROL Sites with Institutional Controls

Federal ERNS list

ERNS Emergency Response Notification System

State- and tribal - equivalent NPL

CA RESPONSE State Response Sites



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

TC5441284.2s  EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 6

State and tribal landfill and/or solid waste disposal site lists

CA SWF/LF Solid Waste Information System

State and tribal leaking storage tank lists

INDIAN LUST Leaking Underground Storage Tanks on Indian Land

State and tribal registered storage tank lists

FEMA UST Underground Storage Tank Listing
INDIAN UST Underground Storage Tanks on Indian Land

State and tribal voluntary cleanup sites

CA VCP Voluntary Cleanup Program Properties
INDIAN VCP Voluntary Cleanup Priority Listing

State and tribal Brownfields sites

CA BROWNFIELDS Considered Brownfieds Sites Listing

ADDITIONAL ENVIRONMENTAL RECORDS

Local Brownfield lists

US BROWNFIELDS A Listing of Brownfields Sites

Local Lists of Landfill / Solid Waste Disposal Sites

CA WMUDS/SWAT Waste Management Unit Database
CA HAULERS Registered Waste Tire Haulers Listing
INDIAN ODI Report on the Status of Open Dumps on Indian Lands
ODI Open Dump Inventory
DEBRIS REGION 9 Torres Martinez Reservation Illegal Dump Site Locations
IHS OPEN DUMPS Open Dumps on Indian Land

Local Lists of Hazardous waste / Contaminated Sites

CA AOCONCERN San Gabriel Valley Areas of Concern
US HIST CDL Delisted National Clandestine Laboratory Register
CA HIST Cal-Sites Historical Calsites Database
CA CDL Clandestine Drug Labs
CA Toxic Pits Toxic Pits Cleanup Act Sites
US CDL National Clandestine Laboratory Register
CA CERS HAZ WASTE CERS HAZ WASTE

Local Lists of Registered Storage Tanks

CA CERS TANKS California Environmental Reporting System (CERS) Tanks

Local Land Records

CA LIENS Environmental Liens Listing



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

TC5441284.2s  EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 7

LIENS 2 CERCLA Lien Information
CA DEED Deed Restriction Listing

Records of Emergency Release Reports

HMIRS Hazardous Materials Information Reporting System
CA CHMIRS California Hazardous Material Incident Report System
CA LDS Land Disposal Sites Listing
CA MCS Military Cleanup Sites Listing
CA SPILLS 90 SPILLS 90 data from FirstSearch

Other Ascertainable Records

FUDS Formerly Used Defense Sites
DOD Department of Defense Sites
SCRD DRYCLEANERS State Coalition for Remediation of Drycleaners Listing
US FIN ASSUR Financial Assurance Information
EPA WATCH LIST EPA WATCH LIST
2020 COR ACTION 2020 Corrective Action Program List
TSCA Toxic Substances Control Act
TRIS Toxic Chemical Release Inventory System
SSTS Section 7 Tracking Systems
ROD Records Of Decision
RMP Risk Management Plans
RAATS RCRA Administrative Action Tracking System
PRP Potentially Responsible Parties
PADS PCB Activity Database System
ICIS Integrated Compliance Information System
FTTS FIFRA/ TSCA Tracking System - FIFRA (Federal Insecticide, Fungicide, & Rodenticide
                                                Act)/TSCA (Toxic Substances Control Act)
MLTS Material Licensing Tracking System
COAL ASH DOE Steam-Electric Plant Operation Data
COAL ASH EPA Coal Combustion Residues Surface Impoundments List
PCB TRANSFORMER PCB Transformer Registration Database
RADINFO Radiation Information Database
HIST FTTS FIFRA/TSCA Tracking System Administrative Case Listing
DOT OPS Incident and Accident Data
CONSENT Superfund (CERCLA) Consent Decrees
INDIAN RESERV Indian Reservations
FUSRAP Formerly Utilized Sites Remedial Action Program
UMTRA Uranium Mill Tailings Sites
LEAD SMELTERS Lead Smelter Sites
US AIRS Aerometric Information Retrieval System Facility Subsystem
US MINES Mines Master Index File
ABANDONED MINES Abandoned Mines
UXO Unexploded Ordnance Sites
DOCKET HWC Hazardous Waste Compliance Docket Listing
FUELS PROGRAM EPA Fuels Program Registered Listing
CA BOND EXP. PLAN Bond Expenditure Plan
CA Cortese "Cortese" Hazardous Waste & Substances Sites List
CA CUPA Listings CUPA Resources List
CA ENF Enforcement Action Listing
CA Financial Assurance Financial Assurance Information Listing
CA ICE ICE
CA LOS ANGELES CO. HMS HMS: Street Number List



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

TC5441284.2s  EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 8

CA HWP EnviroStor Permitted Facilities Listing
CA HWT Registered Hazardous Waste Transporter Database
CA MINES Mines Site Location Listing
CA MWMP Medical Waste Management Program Listing
CA PEST LIC Pesticide Regulation Licenses Listing
CA PROC Certified Processors Database
CA Notify 65 Proposition 65 Records
CA UIC UIC Listing
CA WASTEWATER PITS Oil Wastewater Pits Listing
CA WDS Waste Discharge System
CA WIP Well Investigation Program Case List
CA WELL STIM PROJ Well Stimulation Project (GEOTRACKER)
CA UIC GEO UIC GEO (GEOTRACKER)
CA SAMPLING POINT SAMPLING POINT (GEOTRACKER)
CA PROJECT PROJECT (GEOTRACKER)
CA PROD WATER PONDS PROD WATER PONDS (GEOTRACKER)
CA OTHER OIL GAS OTHER OIL & GAS (GEOTRACKER)
CA NON-CASE INFO NON-CASE INFO (GEOTRACKER)
CA CERS CERS
CA MILITARY PRIV SITES MILITARY PRIV SITES (GEOTRACKER)
CA WDR Waste Discharge Requirements Listing

EDR HIGH RISK HISTORICAL RECORDS

EDR Exclusive Records

EDR MGP EDR Proprietary Manufactured Gas Plants

EDR RECOVERED GOVERNMENT ARCHIVES

Exclusive Recovered Govt. Archives

CA RGA LF Recovered Government Archive Solid Waste Facilities List
CA RGA LUST Recovered Government Archive Leaking Underground Storage Tank

SURROUNDING SITES: SEARCH RESULTS

Surrounding sites were identified in the following databases.

Elevations have been determined from the USGS Digital Elevation Model and should be evaluated on
a relative (not an absolute) basis. Relative elevation information between sites of close proximity
should be field verified. Sites with an elevation equal to or higher than the target property have been
differentiated below from sites with an elevation lower than the target property.
Page numbers and map identification numbers refer to the EDR Radius Map report where detailed
data on individual sites can be reviewed.

Sites listed in bold italics are in multiple databases.

Unmappable (orphan) sites are not considered in the foregoing analysis.



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

TC5441284.2s  EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 9

STANDARD ENVIRONMENTAL RECORDS

Federal RCRA generators list

RCRA-LQG: RCRAInfo is EPA’s comprehensive information system, providing access to data supporting
the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act (RCRA) of 1976 and the Hazardous and Solid Waste Amendments (HSWA)
of 1984.  The database includes selective information on sites which generate, transport, store, treat and/or
dispose of hazardous waste as defined by the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act (RCRA).  Large quantity
generators (LQGs) generate over 1,000 kilograms (kg) of hazardous waste, or over 1 kg of acutely hazardous
waste per month.

     A review of the RCRA-LQG list, as provided by EDR, and dated 03/01/2018 has revealed that there are 4
     RCRA-LQG sites within approximately  0.25 miles of the target property.

PageMap IDDirection / Distance     Address     Equal/Higher Elevation     ____________________      ________  ___________________ _____ _____

     RITE AID #5435   1637 N VERMONT AVE NNW 0 - 1/8 (0.093 mi.) H31 63
EPA ID:: CAL000281021

PageMap IDDirection / Distance     Address     Lower Elevation     ____________________      ________  ___________________ _____ _____

     CHILDREN’S HOSPITAL   4650 SUNSET BOULEVAR S 0 - 1/8 (0.074 mi.) E20 22
EPA ID:: CAD981399900

     KAISER PERMANENTE   1515 N. VERMONT AVEN SW 0 - 1/8 (0.081 mi.) A24 51
EPA ID:: CAD981396658

     QUEEN OF ANGELS HOLL   1300 N VERMONT AVE S 1/8 - 1/4 (0.210 mi.) N69 112
EPA ID:: CAD983617663

RCRA-SQG: RCRAInfo is EPA’s comprehensive information system, providing access to data supporting
the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act (RCRA) of 1976 and the Hazardous and Solid Waste Amendments (HSWA)
of 1984.  The database includes selective information on sites which generate, transport, store, treat and/or
dispose of hazardous waste as defined by the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act (RCRA).  Small quantity
generators (SQGs) generate between 100 kg and 1,000 kg of hazardous waste per month.

     A review of the RCRA-SQG list, as provided by EDR, and dated 03/01/2018 has revealed that there are
     12 RCRA-SQG sites within approximately  0.25 miles of the target property.

PageMap IDDirection / Distance     Address     Equal/Higher Elevation     ____________________      ________  ___________________ _____ _____

     HOLLYWOOD HYUNDAI MA   4601 HOLLYWOOD BLVD ENE 0 - 1/8 (0.051 mi.) B6 13
EPA ID:: CAD982523508

     TIME O MAX ONE HOUR   1553 N VERMONT AVE WNW 0 - 1/8 (0.054 mi.) D8 14
EPA ID:: CAD982020414

     TIME O MAX ONE HOUR   1553 N VERMONT AVE WNW 0 - 1/8 (0.054 mi.) D9 16
EPA ID:: CAD981457674

     HOLLYWOOD CLEANERS   4730 HOLLYWOOD BLVD NNW 0 - 1/8 (0.082 mi.) C26 57
EPA ID:: CAD983647462

     RITE AID NO 5435   1533 N VERMONT AVE W 0 - 1/8 (0.084 mi.) D29 61
EPA ID:: CA0000228510

     HOLLYWOOD BODY AND F   1566 LYMAN PL E 1/8 - 1/4 (0.131 mi.) J52 96



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

TC5441284.2s  EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 10

EPA ID:: CAD983664616

     LA FIRE STATION 35   1601 HILLHURST AVE ENE 1/8 - 1/4 (0.168 mi.) L60 103
EPA ID:: CAD981962160

     BARNSDALL PARK   4800 HOLLYWOOD BLVD NW 1/8 - 1/4 (0.228 mi.) P74 123
EPA ID:: CAD981988033

     HOLLYMONT CLEANERS   1759 N VERMONT NNW 1/8 - 1/4 (0.235 mi.) Q75 125
EPA ID:: CAR000012062

     L A U S D LOS FELIZ   1740 N NEW HAMPSHIRE NNW 1/8 - 1/4 (0.240 mi.) 79 132
EPA ID:: CAD981625403

PageMap IDDirection / Distance     Address     Lower Elevation     ____________________      ________  ___________________ _____ _____

     HOLLYWOOD FORD   4531 HOLLYWOOD BLVD E 1/8 - 1/4 (0.127 mi.) J50 90
EPA ID:: CAD981378532

     SUNSET 30 MINUTE PHO   4470 W SUNSET BLVD S ESE 1/8 - 1/4 (0.212 mi.) O72 121
EPA ID:: CAD982444408

RCRA-CESQG: RCRAInfo is EPA’s comprehensive information system, providing access to data supporting
the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act (RCRA) of 1976 and the Hazardous and Solid Waste Amendments (HSWA)
of 1984.  The database includes selective information on sites which generate, transport, store, treat and/or
dispose of hazardous waste as defined by the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act (RCRA).  Conditionally
exempt small quantity generators (CESQGs) generate less than 100 kg of hazardous waste, or less than 1 kg of
acutely hazardous waste per month.

     A review of the RCRA-CESQG list, as provided by EDR, and dated 03/01/2018 has revealed that there is
     1 RCRA-CESQG site  within approximately  0.25 miles of the target property.

PageMap IDDirection / Distance     Address     Equal/Higher Elevation     ____________________      ________  ___________________ _____ _____

     RITE AID NO 5435   1637 N VERMONT AVE NNW 0 - 1/8 (0.093 mi.) H32 65
EPA ID:: CAR000249441

State- and tribal - equivalent CERCLIS

CA ENVIROSTOR: The Department of Toxic Substances Control’s (DTSC’s) Site Mitigation and Brownfields
Reuse Program’s (SMBRP’s) EnviroStor database identifes sites that have known contamination or sites for which
there may be reasons to investigate further.  The database includes the following site types: Federal
Superfund sites (National Priorities List (NPL)); State Response, including Military Facilities and State
Superfund; Voluntary Cleanup; and School sites.  EnviroStor provides similar information to the information
that was available in CalSites, and provides additional site information, including, but not limited to,
identification of formerly-contaminated properties that have been released for reuse, properties where
environmental deed restrictions have been recorded to prevent inappropriate land uses, and risk
characterization information that is used to assess potential impacts to public health and the environment at
contaminated sites.

     A review of the CA ENVIROSTOR list, as provided by EDR, and dated 07/30/2018 has revealed that there
     are 7 CA ENVIROSTOR sites within approximately 1 mile  of the target property.

PageMap IDDirection / Distance     Address     Lower Elevation     ____________________      ________  ___________________ _____ _____

     CHILDREN’S HOSPITAL   4650 SUNSET BOULEVAR S 0 - 1/8 (0.074 mi.) E20 22



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

TC5441284.2s  EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 11

Facility Id: 71002816
Status: Refer: Other Agency

     MARSHALL NEW PRIMARY   LEXINGTON AVE/WESTMO SSE 1/4 - 1/2 (0.420 mi.) 94 169
Facility Id: 19650016
Status: No Further Action

     BELMONT/HOLLYWOOD NO   WILLOWBROOK AVE/HOOV SSE 1/2 - 1 (0.764 mi.) 97 185
Facility Id: 19800042
Status: Inactive - Needs Evaluation

     RAMONA PRIMARY SITE   HOBART BOULEVARD/FOU WSW 1/2 - 1 (0.783 mi.) 98 188
Facility Id: 19820083
Status: Inactive - Withdrawn

     RAMONA NEW PC AKA BO   SANTA MONICA BOULEVA SW 1/2 - 1 (0.874 mi.) 99 190
Facility Id: 19790003
Status: No Further Action

     BELMONT/HOLLYWOOD NO   LA MIRADA AVENUE/SER WSW 1/2 - 1 (0.930 mi.) 100 194
Facility Id: 19880049
Status: Inactive - Needs Evaluation

     RAMONA PRIMARY SITE   KINGSLEY DRIVE/ROMAI SW 1/2 - 1 (0.983 mi.) 101 197
Facility Id: 19880045
Status: Inactive - Withdrawn

State and tribal leaking storage tank lists

CA LUST: Leaking Underground Storage Tank (LUST) Sites included in GeoTracker.  GeoTracker is the
Water Boards data management system for sites that impact, or have the potential to impact, water quality in
California, with emphasis on groundwater.

     A review of the CA LUST list, as provided by EDR, has revealed that there are 19 CA LUST sites within
     approximately  0.5 miles of the target property.

PageMap IDDirection / Distance     Address     Equal/Higher Elevation     ____________________      ________  ___________________ _____ _____

     SHELL/TESORO (FORMER   1630 VERMONT AVE N NNW 0 - 1/8 (0.095 mi.) C35 72
Database: LUST REG 4, Date of Government Version: 09/07/2004
Database: LUST, Date of Government Version: 06/11/2018
Status: Open - Verification Monitoring
Facility Id: 900270134
Status: Post remedial action monitoring
Global Id: T0603700743
Global ID: T0603700743

     FIRE STATION #35   1601 HILLHURST AVE N ENE 1/8 - 1/4 (0.168 mi.) L56 100
Database: LUST REG 4, Date of Government Version: 09/07/2004
Database: LUST, Date of Government Version: 06/11/2018
Status: Completed - Case Closed
Facility Id: 900270216
Status: Case Closed
Global Id: T0603700750
Global ID: T0603700750

     HOLLYWOOD CAR WASH   4810 HOLLYWOOD BLVD NW 1/4 - 1/2 (0.263 mi.) P82 140
Database: LUST REG 4, Date of Government Version: 09/07/2004



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

TC5441284.2s  EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 12

Facility Id: 900270052
Status: Case Closed
Global ID: T0603700736

     HOLLYWOOD CAR WASH   4810 HOLLYWOOD BLVD NW 1/4 - 1/2 (0.263 mi.) P83 141
Database: LUST, Date of Government Version: 06/11/2018
Status: Completed - Case Closed
Global Id: T0603700736

     EDGEMONT HOSPITAL   4841 HOLLYWOOD BLVD WNW 1/4 - 1/2 (0.319 mi.) S86 154
Database: LUST REG 4, Date of Government Version: 09/07/2004
Facility Id: 900270089
Status: Case Closed
Global ID: T0603700738

     EDGEMONT HOSPITAL   4841 HOLLYWOOD WNW 1/4 - 1/2 (0.319 mi.) S87 155
Database: LUST, Date of Government Version: 06/11/2018
Status: Completed - Case Closed
Global Id: T0603700738

     SERVICE STATION 3837   4900 W HOLLYWOOD BLV WNW 1/4 - 1/2 (0.337 mi.) S88 156
Database: LUST REG 4, Date of Government Version: 09/07/2004
Facility Id: 900270025
Status: Case Closed
Global ID: T0603700733

     UNOCAL #3837 (FORMER   4900 HOLLYWOOD BLVD WNW 1/4 - 1/2 (0.337 mi.) S89 159
Database: LUST, Date of Government Version: 06/11/2018
Status: Completed - Case Closed
Global Id: T0603700733

     SHELL OIL CO (FORMER   4905 HOLLYWOOD BLVD WNW 1/4 - 1/2 (0.344 mi.) S90 161
Database: LUST REG 4, Date of Government Version: 09/07/2004
Database: LUST, Date of Government Version: 06/11/2018
Status: Completed - Case Closed
Facility Id: 900270189
Status: Case Closed
Global Id: T0603700747
Global ID: T0603700747

     CHEVRON #9-0140   1869 HILLHURST AVE NNE 1/4 - 1/2 (0.412 mi.) T92 166
Database: LUST REG 4, Date of Government Version: 09/07/2004
Facility Id: 900270225
Status: Leak being confirmed
Global ID: T0603790020

     CHEVRON #9-0140   1869 HILLHURST AVE NNE 1/4 - 1/2 (0.412 mi.) T93 167
Database: LUST, Date of Government Version: 06/11/2018
Status: Completed - Case Closed
Global Id: T0603790020

PageMap IDDirection / Distance     Address     Lower Elevation     ____________________      ________  ___________________ _____ _____

     CHILDRENS HOSPITAL   4560 SUNSET BLVD W SSE 0 - 1/8 (0.083 mi.) E28 59
Database: LUST REG 4, Date of Government Version: 09/07/2004
Database: LUST, Date of Government Version: 06/11/2018
Status: Completed - Case Closed
Facility Id: 900270125
Status: Case Closed
Global Id: T0603700742



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

TC5441284.2s  EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 13

Global ID: T0603700742

     QUEEN OF ANGELS HOLL   1300 N VERMONT AVE S 1/8 - 1/4 (0.210 mi.) N69 112
Database: LUST, Date of Government Version: 06/11/2018
Status: Completed - Case Closed
Global Id: T0603769055

     KAISER LAMC STAGE 2   4867 SUNSET BOULEVAR WSW 1/4 - 1/2 (0.252 mi.) 81 135
Database: LUST REG 4, Date of Government Version: 09/07/2004
Database: LUST, Date of Government Version: 06/11/2018
Status: Completed - Case Closed
Facility Id: 900270034
Status: Case Closed
Global Id: T0603700734
Global ID: T0603700734

     76 PRODUCTS STATION   1270 VERMONT AVE N S 1/4 - 1/2 (0.273 mi.) R84 144
Database: LUST REG 4, Date of Government Version: 09/07/2004
Database: LUST, Date of Government Version: 06/11/2018
Status: Completed - Case Closed
Facility Id: 900290089
Status: Case Closed
Global Id: T0603700771
Global ID: T0603700771

     PACIFIC BELL   1255 N VERMONT SSW 1/4 - 1/2 (0.315 mi.) R85 146
Database: LUST REG 4, Date of Government Version: 09/07/2004
Database: LUST, Date of Government Version: 06/11/2018
Status: Completed - Case Closed
Facility Id: 900290152
Status: Case Closed
Global Id: T0603700778
Global ID: T0603700778

     SAV-MOR OIL CO. #343   4359 SUNSET BLVD ESE 1/4 - 1/2 (0.405 mi.) 91 163
Database: LUST REG 4, Date of Government Version: 09/07/2004
Database: LUST, Date of Government Version: 06/11/2018
Status: Completed - Case Closed
Facility Id: 900270043
Status: Case Closed
Global Id: T0603700735
Global ID: T0603700735

     HOLLYWOOD GAS (FORME   4977 HOLLYWOOD BLVD WNW 1/4 - 1/2 (0.430 mi.) 95 172
Database: LUST REG 4, Date of Government Version: 09/07/2004
Database: LUST, Date of Government Version: 06/11/2018
Status: Completed - Case Closed
Facility Id: 900270116
Status: Case Closed
Global Id: T0603700741
Global ID: T0603700741

     THRIFTY #183   5025 SUNSET BLVD W W 1/4 - 1/2 (0.468 mi.) 96 176
Database: LUST REG 4, Date of Government Version: 09/07/2004
Database: LUST, Date of Government Version: 06/11/2018
Status: Completed - Case Closed
Facility Id: 900270061
Status: Remediation Plan
Global Id: T0603700737
Global ID: T0603700737



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

TC5441284.2s  EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 14

CA CPS-SLIC: Cleanup Program Sites (CPS; also known as Site Cleanups [SC] and formerly known as Spills,
Leaks, Investigations, and Cleanups [SLIC] sites) included in GeoTracker.  GeoTracker is the Water Boards data
management system for sites that impact, or have the potential to impact, water quality in California, with
emphasis on groundwater.

     A review of the CA CPS-SLIC list, as provided by EDR, has revealed that there is 1 CA CPS-SLIC site 
     within approximately  0.5 miles of the target property.

PageMap IDDirection / Distance     Address     Equal/Higher Elevation     ____________________      ________  ___________________ _____ _____

     MTA - BARNSDALL PARK   4800 HOLLYWOOD NW 1/8 - 1/4 (0.244 mi.) P80 134
Database: SLIC REG 4, Date of Government Version: 11/17/2004
Database: CPS-SLIC, Date of Government Version: 06/11/2018
Facility Status: Completed - Case Closed
Facility Status: No further action required
Global Id: SL2049T1734

State and tribal registered storage tank lists

CA UST: The Underground Storage Tank database contains registered USTs. USTs are regulated under
Subtitle I of the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act (RCRA). The data come from the State Water Resources
Control Board’s Hazardous Substance Storage Container Database.

     A review of the CA UST list, as provided by EDR, has revealed that there are 8 CA UST sites within
     approximately  0.25 miles of the target property.

PageMap IDDirection / Distance     Address     Equal/Higher Elevation     ____________________      ________  ___________________ _____ _____

     HOLLYWOOD SHELL   1630 N VERMONT AVE NNW 0 - 1/8 (0.095 mi.) C34 71
Database: UST, Date of Government Version: 09/10/2018
Facility Id: 24988

     LOS ANGELES FIRE STA   1601 HILLHURST AVE ENE 1/8 - 1/4 (0.168 mi.) L57 102
Database: UST, Date of Government Version: 09/10/2018
Facility Id: 24977

     LAFD - FIRE STATION   1601 N HILLHURST AVE ENE 1/8 - 1/4 (0.168 mi.) L58 102
Database: UST, Date of Government Version: 09/10/2018
Facility Id: FA0003829

PageMap IDDirection / Distance     Address     Lower Elevation     ____________________      ________  ___________________ _____ _____

     CHILDREN’S HOSPITAL   4661 W SUNSET BLVD S 0 - 1/8 (0.058 mi.) A11 18
Database: UST, Date of Government Version: 09/10/2018
Facility Id: 035119

     KAISER FOUNDATION HO   4730 BARNSDALL AVE WSW 0 - 1/8 (0.068 mi.) A16 20
Database: UST, Date of Government Version: 09/10/2018
Facility Id: 25222

     CHILDREN’S HOSPITAL   4650 W SUNSET BLVD S 0 - 1/8 (0.074 mi.) E19 21
Database: UST, Date of Government Version: 09/10/2018
Facility Id: FA0002650
Facility Id: 25219

     KAISER PERMANENTE   4760 W SUNSET BLVD SW 1/8 - 1/4 (0.169 mi.) K64 107
Database: UST, Date of Government Version: 09/10/2018



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

TC5441284.2s  EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 15

Facility Id: FA-003-2259
Facility Id: 24064

     HOLLYWOOD PRESBYTERI   1300 N VERMONT AVE S 1/8 - 1/4 (0.210 mi.) N67 109
Database: UST, Date of Government Version: 09/10/2018
Facility Id: 24792
Facility Id: FA0031693

CA AST: A listing of aboveground storage tank petroleum storage tank locations.

     A review of the CA AST list, as provided by EDR, has revealed that there is 1 CA AST site  within
     approximately  0.25 miles of the target property.

PageMap IDDirection / Distance     Address     Equal/Higher Elevation     ____________________      ________  ___________________ _____ _____

     DISTRIBUTING STATION   1675 HILLHURST AVE NE 1/8 - 1/4 (0.215 mi.) 73 123
Database: AST, Date of Government Version: 07/06/2016

ADDITIONAL ENVIRONMENTAL RECORDS

Local Lists of Landfill / Solid Waste Disposal Sites

CA SWRCY: A listing of recycling facilities in California.

     A review of the CA SWRCY list, as provided by EDR, and dated 06/11/2018 has revealed that there is 1
     CA SWRCY site  within approximately  0.5 miles of the target property.

PageMap IDDirection / Distance     Address     Equal/Higher Elevation     ____________________      ________  ___________________ _____ _____

     LAUR METALS CO   1601 N VERMONT AVE NW 0 - 1/8 (0.059 mi.) D14 18
Cert Id: RC4139

Local Lists of Registered Storage Tanks

CA SWEEPS UST: Statewide Environmental Evaluation and Planning System.  This underground storage tank
listing was updated and maintained by a company contacted by the SWRCB in the early 1990’s.  The listing is no
longer updated or maintained.  The local agency is the contact for more information  on a site on the SWEEPS
list.

     A review of the CA SWEEPS UST list, as provided by EDR, and dated 06/01/1994 has revealed that there
     are 16 CA SWEEPS UST sites within approximately  0.25 miles of the target property.

PageMap IDDirection / Distance     Address     Equal/Higher Elevation     ____________________      ________  ___________________ _____ _____

     HOLLYWOOD HYUNDAI MA   4601 HOLLYWOOD BLVD ENE 0 - 1/8 (0.051 mi.) B5 10
Comp Number: 1719

     MINI MARKET/GAS STAT   1630 N VERMONT AVE NNW 0 - 1/8 (0.095 mi.) C37 81
Status: A
Tank Status: A



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

TC5441284.2s  EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 16

Comp Number: 1613

     HOLLYWOOD ENTERPRISE   1666 N VERMONT AVE NNW 0 - 1/8 (0.111 mi.) H43 86
Comp Number: 289

     MONACO MOTORS INC.   1566 LYMAN RD E 1/8 - 1/4 (0.131 mi.) J51 95
Comp Number: 7571

     LOS ANGELES FIRE STA   1601 N HILLHURST ST ENE 1/8 - 1/4 (0.168 mi.) L59 102
Status: A
Comp Number: 8266

     LOS ANGELES FIRE STA   1601 N HILLHURST AVE ENE 1/8 - 1/4 (0.168 mi.) L62 105
Comp Number: 2659

PageMap IDDirection / Distance     Address     Lower Elevation     ____________________      ________  ___________________ _____ _____

     KAISER FOUND HOSPITA   4730 BARNSDALE AVE WSW 0 - 1/8 (0.068 mi.) A15 19
Status: A
Comp Number: 7916

     CHILDREN’S HOSPITAL   4650 W SUNSET BLVD S 0 - 1/8 (0.074 mi.) E19 21
Status: A
Tank Status: A
Comp Number: 2166

     KAISER MEDICAL CENTE   1515 N VERMONT AVE SW 0 - 1/8 (0.081 mi.) A23 51
Comp Number: 6632

     U-HAUL OF LOS ANGELE   4550 HOLLYWOOD BLVD ESE 0 - 1/8 (0.098 mi.) F38 83
Status: A
Tank Status: A
Comp Number: 193

     HOLLYWOOD FORD   4531 HOLLYWOOD BLVD E 1/8 - 1/4 (0.127 mi.) J50 90
Comp Number: 425

     KAISER FOUNDATION HE   4733 W SUNSET BLVD WSW 1/8 - 1/4 (0.136 mi.) K53 97
Comp Number: 6069

     TEXACO INC   4747 W SUNSET BLVD WSW 1/8 - 1/4 (0.136 mi.) K54 98
Comp Number: 7081

     KAISER PERMANENTE   4760 W SUNSET BLVD SW 1/8 - 1/4 (0.169 mi.) K64 107
Status: A
Comp Number: 6089

     HOLLYWOOD PRESBYTERI   1300 N VERMONT AVE S 1/8 - 1/4 (0.210 mi.) N68 109
Status: A
Comp Number: 5142

     90703-CHEVRON STATIO   4480 W SUNSET BLVD ESE 1/8 - 1/4 (0.212 mi.) O71 119
Comp Number: 3471

CA HIST UST: Historical UST Registered Database.

     A review of the CA HIST UST list, as provided by EDR, and dated 10/15/1990 has revealed that there
     are 13 CA HIST UST sites within approximately  0.25 miles of the target property.

PageMap IDDirection / Distance     Address     Equal/Higher Elevation     ____________________      ________  ___________________ _____ _____

     ALEX SATIN OLDS MAZD   4601 HOLLYWOOD BLVD ENE 0 - 1/8 (0.051 mi.) B4 9



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

TC5441284.2s  EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 17

Facility Id: 00000020974

     HOLLYWOOD HYUNDAI MA   4601 HOLLYWOOD BLVD ENE 0 - 1/8 (0.051 mi.) B5 10
Facility Id: 00000029253

     YITZHAK HACHAMOFF   1630 N VERMONT AVE NNW 0 - 1/8 (0.070 mi.) C18 20
Facility Id: 00000026763

     MINI MARKET/GAS STAT   1630 N VERMONT AVE NNW 0 - 1/8 (0.095 mi.) C37 81
     HOLLYMONT CAR WASH   1666 N VERMONT AVE NNW 0 - 1/8 (0.111 mi.) H44 87

Facility Id: 00000003846

     FIRE STATION 35   1601 HILLHURST AVE ENE 1/8 - 1/4 (0.168 mi.) L61 105
Facility Id: 00000047491

     LOS ANGELES FIRE STA   1601 N HILLHURST AVE ENE 1/8 - 1/4 (0.168 mi.) L62 105

PageMap IDDirection / Distance     Address     Lower Elevation     ____________________      ________  ___________________ _____ _____

     CHILDREN’S HOSPITAL   4650 SUNSET BOULEVAR S 0 - 1/8 (0.074 mi.) E20 22
Facility Id: 00000041069
Facility Id: 00000068663

     U-HAUL OF LOS ANGELE   4550 HOLLYWOOD BLVD ESE 0 - 1/8 (0.098 mi.) F38 83
     HOLLYWOOD MOVING CEN   4550 HOLLYWOOD BLVD ESE 0 - 1/8 (0.098 mi.) F39 84

Facility Id: 00000003510

     HOLLYWOOD FORD   4531 HOLLYWOOD BLVD E 1/8 - 1/4 (0.127 mi.) J50 90
Facility Id: 00000004881

     90703   4480 W SUNSET BLVD ESE 1/8 - 1/4 (0.212 mi.) O70 118
Facility Id: 00000061882

     90703-CHEVRON STATIO   4480 W SUNSET BLVD ESE 1/8 - 1/4 (0.212 mi.) O71 119

CA FID UST: The Facility Inventory Database contains active and inactive underground storage tank
locations. The source is the State Water Resource Control Board.

     A review of the CA FID UST list, as provided by EDR, and dated 10/31/1994 has revealed that there are
     16 CA FID UST sites within approximately  0.25 miles of the target property.

PageMap IDDirection / Distance     Address     Equal/Higher Elevation     ____________________      ________  ___________________ _____ _____

     HOLLYWOOD HYUNDAI MA   4601 HOLLYWOOD BLVD ENE 0 - 1/8 (0.051 mi.) B5 10
Facility Id: 19011135
Status: I

     MINI MARKET/GAS STAT   1630 N VERMONT AVE NNW 0 - 1/8 (0.095 mi.) C37 81
Facility Id: 19009394
Status: A

     HOLLYWOOD ENTERPRISE   1666 N VERMONT AVE NNW 0 - 1/8 (0.111 mi.) H43 86
Facility Id: 19013476
Status: I

     MONACO MOTORS INC.   1566 LYMAN RD E 1/8 - 1/4 (0.131 mi.) J51 95
Facility Id: 19036188
Status: I

     JIFFY LUBE #510   4500 CLAYTON RD E 1/8 - 1/4 (0.157 mi.) L55 99
Facility Id: 19004515
Status: A
Status: I

     LOS ANGELES FIRE STA   1601 N HILLHURST AVE ENE 1/8 - 1/4 (0.168 mi.) L62 105



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

TC5441284.2s  EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 18

Facility Id: 19024388
Status: A

PageMap IDDirection / Distance     Address     Lower Elevation     ____________________      ________  ___________________ _____ _____

     KAISER FOUND HOSPITA   4730 BARNSDALE AVE WSW 0 - 1/8 (0.068 mi.) A15 19
Facility Id: 19054682
Status: I

     CHILDREN’S HOSPITAL   4650 SUNSET BOULEVAR S 0 - 1/8 (0.074 mi.) E20 22
Facility Id: 19000800
Status: A

     KAISER MEDICAL CENTE   1515 N VERMONT AVE SW 0 - 1/8 (0.081 mi.) A23 51
Facility Id: 19017705
Status: I

     U-HAUL OF LOS ANGELE   4550 HOLLYWOOD BLVD ESE 0 - 1/8 (0.098 mi.) F38 83
Facility Id: 19003999
Status: A

     HOLLYWOOD FORD   4531 HOLLYWOOD BLVD E 1/8 - 1/4 (0.127 mi.) J50 90
Facility Id: 19020005
Status: I

     KAISER FOUNDATION HE   4733 W SUNSET BLVD WSW 1/8 - 1/4 (0.136 mi.) K53 97
Facility Id: 19054480
Status: I

     TEXACO INC   4747 W SUNSET BLVD WSW 1/8 - 1/4 (0.136 mi.) K54 98
Facility Id: 19020449
Status: I

     KAISER FOUNDATION HO   4760 W SUNSET BLVD SW 1/8 - 1/4 (0.169 mi.) K63 107
Facility Id: 19014615
Status: A

     HOLLYWOOD PRESBYTERI   1300 N VERMONT AVE S 1/8 - 1/4 (0.210 mi.) N68 109
Facility Id: 19006380
Status: A

     90703-CHEVRON STATIO   4480 W SUNSET BLVD ESE 1/8 - 1/4 (0.212 mi.) O71 119
Facility Id: 19005665
Status: I

Other Ascertainable Records

RCRA NonGen / NLR: RCRAInfo is EPA’s comprehensive information system, providing access to data supporting
the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act (RCRA) of 1976 and the Hazardous and Solid Waste Amendments (HSWA)
of 1984.  The database includes selective information on sites which generate, transport, store, treat and/or
dispose of hazardous waste as defined by the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act (RCRA).  Non-Generators do
not presently generate hazardous waste.

     A review of the RCRA NonGen / NLR list, as provided by EDR, and dated 03/01/2018 has revealed that
     there are 3 RCRA NonGen / NLR sites within approximately  0.25 miles of the target property.

PageMap IDDirection / Distance     Address     Equal/Higher Elevation     ____________________      ________  ___________________ _____ _____

     HOLLYWOOD HYUNDAI MA   4601 HOLLYWOOD BLVD ENE 0 - 1/8 (0.051 mi.) B5 10



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

TC5441284.2s  EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 19

EPA ID:: CAD981440613

     PRESTIGE STATIONS IN   1630 N VERMONT AVE NNW 0 - 1/8 (0.095 mi.) C33 70
EPA ID:: CAR000100156

PageMap IDDirection / Distance     Address     Lower Elevation     ____________________      ________  ___________________ _____ _____

     KAISER PERMANENTE RE   1515 N VERMONT LEVEL SW 0 - 1/8 (0.081 mi.) A25 55
EPA ID:: CAD982025850

CA DRYCLEANERS: A list of drycleaner related facilities that have EPA ID numbers. These are facilities
with certain SIC codes: power laundries, family and commercial; garment pressing and cleaners’ agents; linen
supply; coin-operated laundries and cleaning; drycleaning plants except rugs; carpet and upholster cleaning;
industrial launderers; laundry and garment services.

     A review of the CA DRYCLEANERS list, as provided by EDR, has revealed that there are 6 CA DRYCLEANERS
     sites within approximately  0.25 miles of the target property.

PageMap IDDirection / Distance     Address     Equal/Higher Elevation     ____________________      ________  ___________________ _____ _____

     HOLLYWOOD CLEANERS   4730 HOLLYWOOD BLVD NW 1/8 - 1/4 (0.180 mi.) M65 108
Database: DRYCLEAN SOUTH COAST, Date of Government Version: 08/24/2018

     HOLLYWOOD CLEANERS   4730 HOLLYWOOD BLVD NW 1/8 - 1/4 (0.180 mi.) M66 108
Database: DRYCLEAN SOUTH COAST, Date of Government Version: 08/24/2018

     HOLLYMONT CLEANERS   1759 N VERMONT NNW 1/8 - 1/4 (0.235 mi.) Q75 125
Database: DRYCLEANERS, Date of Government Version: 05/31/2018
EPA Id: CAL000009684

     HOLLYMONT CLEANERS &   1759 N VERMONT AVE NNW 1/8 - 1/4 (0.235 mi.) Q76 127
Database: DRYCLEAN SOUTH COAST, Date of Government Version: 08/24/2018

     HOLLYMONT CLEANER &   1759 N VERMONT AVE NNW 1/8 - 1/4 (0.235 mi.) Q77 128
Database: DRYCLEAN SOUTH COAST, Date of Government Version: 08/24/2018

     HOLLYMONT CLEANERS &   1759 N VERMONT AVE NNW 1/8 - 1/4 (0.235 mi.) Q78 128
Database: DRYCLEANERS, Date of Government Version: 05/31/2018
Database: DRYCLEAN SOUTH COAST, Date of Government Version: 08/24/2018
EPA Id: CAL000394511

CA HIST CORTESE: The sites for the list are designated by the State Water Resource Control Board [LUST],
the Integrated Waste Board [SWF/LS], and the Department of Toxic Substances Control [CALSITES].    This
listing is no longer updated by the state agency.

     A review of the CA HIST CORTESE list, as provided by EDR, and dated 04/01/2001 has revealed that
     there are 13 CA HIST CORTESE sites within approximately  0.5 miles of the target property.

PageMap IDDirection / Distance     Address     Equal/Higher Elevation     ____________________      ________  ___________________ _____ _____

     ARCO #5025   1630 VERMONT NNW 0 - 1/8 (0.095 mi.) C36 81
Reg Id: 900270134

     LA FIRE STATION 35   1601 HILLHURST AVE ENE 1/8 - 1/4 (0.168 mi.) L60 103
Reg Id: 900270216

     HOLLYWOOD CAR WASH   4810 HOLLYWOOD BLVD NW 1/4 - 1/2 (0.263 mi.) P83 141
Reg Id: 900270052

     EDGEMONT HOSPITAL   4841 HOLLYWOOD WNW 1/4 - 1/2 (0.319 mi.) S87 155



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

TC5441284.2s  EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 20

Reg Id: 900270089

     SERVICE STATION 3837   4900 W HOLLYWOOD BLV WNW 1/4 - 1/2 (0.337 mi.) S88 156
Reg Id: 900270025

     SHELL OIL CO (FORMER   4905 HOLLYWOOD BLVD WNW 1/4 - 1/2 (0.344 mi.) S90 161
Reg Id: 900270189

PageMap IDDirection / Distance     Address     Lower Elevation     ____________________      ________  ___________________ _____ _____

     CHILDRENS HOSPITAL   4560 SUNSET SSE 0 - 1/8 (0.083 mi.) E27 59
Reg Id: 900270125

     KAISER LAMC STAGE 2   4867 SUNSET BOULEVAR WSW 1/4 - 1/2 (0.252 mi.) 81 135
Reg Id: 900270034

     76 PRODUCTS STATION   1270 VERMONT AVE N S 1/4 - 1/2 (0.273 mi.) R84 144
Reg Id: 900290089

     PACIFIC BELL   1255 N VERMONT SSW 1/4 - 1/2 (0.315 mi.) R85 146
Reg Id: 900290152

     SAV-MOR OIL CO. #343   4359 SUNSET BLVD ESE 1/4 - 1/2 (0.405 mi.) 91 163
Reg Id: 900270043

     HOLLYWOOD GAS (FORME   4977 HOLLYWOOD BLVD WNW 1/4 - 1/2 (0.430 mi.) 95 172
Reg Id: 900270116

     THRIFTY #183   5025 SUNSET BLVD W W 1/4 - 1/2 (0.468 mi.) 96 176
Reg Id: 900270061

NY MANIFEST: Manifest is a document that lists and tracks hazardous waste from the generator through
transporters to a TSD facility.

     A review of the NY MANIFEST list, as provided by EDR, and dated 07/01/2018 has revealed that there is
     1 NY MANIFEST site  within approximately  0.25 miles of the target property.

PageMap IDDirection / Distance     Address     Lower Elevation     ____________________      ________  ___________________ _____ _____

     CHILDREN’S HOSPITAL   4650 SUNSET BOULEVAR S 0 - 1/8 (0.074 mi.) E20 22
EPA ID: CAD981399900

WI MANIFEST: Hazardous waste manifest information.

     A review of the WI MANIFEST list, as provided by EDR, and dated 12/31/2017 has revealed that there is
     1 WI MANIFEST site  within approximately  0.25 miles of the target property.

PageMap IDDirection / Distance     Address     Lower Elevation     ____________________      ________  ___________________ _____ _____

     CHILDREN’S HOSPITAL   4650 SUNSET BOULEVAR S 0 - 1/8 (0.074 mi.) E20 22
ACT Status: A
FID: 0
EPA ID: CAD981399900



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

TC5441284.2s  EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 21

EDR HIGH RISK HISTORICAL RECORDS

EDR Exclusive Records

EDR Hist Auto: EDR has searched selected national collections of business directories and has collected
listings of potential gas station/filling station/service station sites that were available to EDR
researchers.  EDR’s review was limited to those categories of sources that might, in EDR’s opinion, include
gas station/filling station/service station establishments. The categories reviewed included, but were not
limited to gas, gas station, gasoline station, filling station, auto, automobile repair, auto service station,
service station, etc. This database falls within a category of information EDR classifies as "High Risk
Historical Records", or HRHR.  EDR’s HRHR effort presents unique and sometimes proprietary data about past
sites and operations that typically create environmental concerns, but may not show up in current government
records searches.

     A review of the EDR Hist Auto list, as provided by EDR, has revealed that there are 12 EDR Hist Auto
     sites within approximately  0.125 miles of the target property.

PageMap IDDirection / Distance     Address     Equal/Higher Elevation     ____________________      ________  ___________________ _____ _____

     MILLS J J   4627 HOLLYWOOD BLVD NE 0 - 1/8 (0.047 mi.) B2 9
     SANFORD EDW   4575 HOLLYWOOD BLVD ENE 0 - 1/8 (0.059 mi.) B13 18
     PETROL SIX LLC   1630 N VERMONT AVE NNW 0 - 1/8 (0.070 mi.) C17 20
     HOLLYMONT ENTERPRISE   1666 N VERMONT AVE NNW 0 - 1/8 (0.111 mi.) H45 88
     ORANGE BEE JAY   1670 N VERMONT AVE NNW 0 - 1/8 (0.116 mi.) H46 89

PageMap IDDirection / Distance     Address     Lower Elevation     ____________________      ________  ___________________ _____ _____

     ABRAMSON MORRIS   1528 N VERMONT AVE SW 0 - 1/8 (0.031 mi.) A1 9
     PRATTE GARLAND   4661 S SUNSET BLVD S 0 - 1/8 (0.058 mi.) A12 18
     GOLDBAUM PINKUS   4546 S SUNSET BLVD SE 0 - 1/8 (0.093 mi.) G30 63
     GOLDBAUM PINKUS   4540 S SUNSET BLVD SE 0 - 1/8 (0.101 mi.) G41 85
     MC CALL   PAYNE INC   4700 S SUNSET BLVD SW 0 - 1/8 (0.105 mi.) I42 85
     CASAVIAN FRED   4532 S SUNSET BLVD SE 0 - 1/8 (0.118 mi.) G47 89
     KOVALL C C   4720 S SUNSET BLVD SW 0 - 1/8 (0.125 mi.) I49 89

EDR Hist Cleaner: EDR has searched selected national collections of business directories and has collected
listings of potential dry cleaner sites that were available to EDR researchers. EDR’s review was limited to
those categories of sources that might, in EDR’s opinion, include dry cleaning establishments. The categories
reviewed included, but were not limited to dry cleaners, cleaners, laundry, laundromat, cleaning/laundry, wash
& dry etc.  This database falls within a category of information EDR classifies as "High Risk Historical
Records", or HRHR.  EDR’s HRHR effort presents unique and sometimes proprietary data about past sites and
operations that typically create environmental concerns, but may not show up in current government records
searches.

     A review of the EDR Hist Cleaner list, as provided by EDR, has revealed that there are 7 EDR Hist
     Cleaner sites within approximately  0.125 miles of the target property.

PageMap IDDirection / Distance     Address     Equal/Higher Elevation     ____________________      ________  ___________________ _____ _____

     ANDERS H F   4660 HOLLYWOOD BLVD N 0 - 1/8 (0.051 mi.) C3 9
     SPARKLING CLEANERS   1553 N VERMONT AVE WNW 0 - 1/8 (0.054 mi.) D7 14
     ANDERS H F   4662 HOLLYWOOD BLVD N 0 - 1/8 (0.055 mi.) C10 17
     FINNERMAN SOL   4580 HOLLYWOOD BLVD E 0 - 1/8 (0.074 mi.) F21 50
     ARK WING   4578 HOLLYWOOD BLVD E 0 - 1/8 (0.075 mi.) F22 50

PageMap IDDirection / Distance     Address     Lower Elevation     ____________________      ________  ___________________ _____ _____

     BARTOO LILLIAN MRS   4548 HOLLYWOOD BLVD ESE 0 - 1/8 (0.099 mi.) F40 85



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

TC5441284.2s  EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 22

PageMap IDDirection / Distance  Address     Lower Elevation     ____________________      ________  ___________________ _____ _____

     KROLL IDA MRS   1428 N VERMONT AVE SSW 0 - 1/8 (0.123 mi.) I48 89



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

TC5441284.2s  EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 23

Due to poor or inadequate address information, the following sites were not mapped. Count: 1 records. 

Site Name  Database(s)____________  ____________

SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA DISPOSAL  CA SWF/LF



EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.

9 2
0

8
8

0

8
4

0

8
0

5 6
0

7 6 0

6 00

5 6 0

5 6 0

6 0

6 005 6 0

7 2
0 7

2
0

5
2

0

8
0 6

6
8

0

6

5 6 0

5 60

5 2 0

5 2 04
40 4 8 0

6
4

0

6
0

0

4

8 0

4
4

0

5
6

0

5
6

0

5
2

0

5
2

0

4
8 0

4
8

0

6 4 0

6
4

0

6
4

0

6
4

0

4 00

6 0 0

6 0 0

6 0 0

6
0

0

5 6 0

5 6 0

560

5 6 0

5 2 0

5 2 0

5 2 0
5 2 0

5 2 0

4 8 0

4 8 0

4 8 0

7 2 06 8 0

6

5
6

0
5

2
0

4 8 0

480

4

8 0

4 8
0

3 2
0

3
2

0
4 4

0

4
4

0

4

0 0

4
0

0

4
0

0

440

4 4 0

4
4

0

4
4

0
4

4
0

4
4

0

4
4

0

4
4

0

4 0 0

4 0 0

4
0

0

4
0

0

4
0

0

3 6 0

3
6 0

3
6 0

3
6

0

3 6
0

3 2 0

3 2 0

320

3 2 0

3
2

0



EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.

480

44
0

400

440



MAP FINDINGS SUMMARY

Search
TargetDistance Total

Database Property(Miles) < 1/8 1/8 - 1/4 1/4 - 1/2 1/2 - 1 > 1 Plotted

STANDARD ENVIRONMENTAL RECORDS

Federal NPL site list

    0  NR     0      0      0    0 1.000NPL
    0  NR     0      0      0    0 1.000Proposed NPL
    0  NR   NR    NR    NR  NR   TPNPL LIENS

Federal Delisted NPL site list

    0  NR     0      0      0    0 1.000Delisted NPL

Federal CERCLIS list

    0  NR   NR      0      0    0 0.500FEDERAL FACILITY
    0  NR   NR      0      0    0 0.500SEMS

Federal CERCLIS NFRAP site list

    0  NR   NR      0      0    0 0.500SEMS-ARCHIVE

Federal RCRA CORRACTS facilities list

    0  NR     0      0      0    0 1.000CORRACTS

Federal RCRA non-CORRACTS TSD facilities list

    0  NR   NR      0      0    0 0.500RCRA-TSDF

Federal RCRA generators list

    4  NR   NR    NR      1    3 0.250RCRA-LQG
   12  NR   NR    NR      7    5 0.250RCRA-SQG
    1  NR   NR    NR      0    1 0.250RCRA-CESQG

Federal institutional controls /
engineering controls registries

    0  NR   NR      0      0    0 0.500LUCIS
    0  NR   NR      0      0    0 0.500US ENG CONTROLS
    0  NR   NR      0      0    0 0.500US INST CONTROL

Federal ERNS list

    0  NR   NR    NR    NR  NR   TPERNS

State- and tribal - equivalent NPL

    0  NR     0      0      0    0 1.000CA RESPONSE

State- and tribal - equivalent CERCLIS

    7  NR     5      1      0    1 1.000CA ENVIROSTOR

State and tribal landfill and/or
solid waste disposal site lists

    0  NR   NR      0      0    0 0.500CA SWF/LF

State and tribal leaking storage tank lists

   19  NR   NR     15      2    2 0.500CA LUST

TC5441284.2s   Page 4



MAP FINDINGS SUMMARY

Search
TargetDistance Total

Database Property(Miles) < 1/8 1/8 - 1/4 1/4 - 1/2 1/2 - 1 > 1 Plotted

    0  NR   NR      0      0    0 0.500INDIAN LUST
    1  NR   NR      0      1    0 0.500CA CPS-SLIC

State and tribal registered storage tank lists

    0  NR   NR    NR      0    0 0.250FEMA UST
    8  NR   NR    NR      4    4 0.250CA UST
    1  NR   NR    NR      1    0 0.250CA AST
    0  NR   NR    NR      0    0 0.250INDIAN UST

State and tribal voluntary cleanup sites

    0  NR   NR      0      0    0 0.500CA VCP
    0  NR   NR      0      0    0 0.500INDIAN VCP

State and tribal Brownfields sites

    0  NR   NR      0      0    0 0.500CA BROWNFIELDS

ADDITIONAL ENVIRONMENTAL RECORDS

Local Brownfield lists

    0  NR   NR      0      0    0 0.500US BROWNFIELDS

Local Lists of Landfill / Solid
Waste Disposal Sites

    0  NR   NR      0      0    0 0.500CA WMUDS/SWAT
    1  NR   NR      0      0    1 0.500CA SWRCY
    0  NR   NR    NR    NR  NR   TPCA HAULERS
    0  NR   NR      0      0    0 0.500INDIAN ODI
    0  NR   NR      0      0    0 0.500ODI
    0  NR   NR      0      0    0 0.500DEBRIS REGION 9
    0  NR   NR      0      0    0 0.500IHS OPEN DUMPS

Local Lists of Hazardous waste /
Contaminated Sites

    0  NR     0      0      0    0 1.000CA AOCONCERN
    0  NR   NR    NR    NR  NR   TPUS HIST CDL
    0  NR     0      0      0    0 1.000CA HIST Cal-Sites
    0  NR   NR    NR      0    0 0.250CA SCH
    0  NR   NR    NR    NR  NR   TPCA CDL
    0  NR     0      0      0    0 1.000CA Toxic Pits
    0  NR   NR    NR    NR  NR   TPUS CDL
    0  NR   NR    NR      0    0 0.250CA CERS HAZ WASTE

Local Lists of Registered Storage Tanks

   16  NR   NR    NR      9    7 0.250CA SWEEPS UST
   13  NR   NR    NR      5    8 0.250CA HIST UST
   16  NR   NR    NR      9    7 0.250CA FID UST
    0  NR   NR    NR      0    0 0.250CA CERS TANKS

Local Land Records

    0  NR   NR    NR    NR  NR   TPCA LIENS

TC5441284.2s   Page 5



MAP FINDINGS SUMMARY

Search
TargetDistance Total

Database Property(Miles) < 1/8 1/8 - 1/4 1/4 - 1/2 1/2 - 1 > 1 Plotted

    0  NR   NR    NR    NR  NR   TPLIENS 2
    0  NR   NR      0      0    0 0.500CA DEED

Records of Emergency Release Reports

    0  NR   NR    NR    NR  NR   TPHMIRS
    0  NR   NR    NR    NR  NR   TPCA CHMIRS
    0  NR   NR    NR    NR  NR   TPCA LDS
    0  NR   NR    NR    NR  NR   TPCA MCS
    0  NR   NR    NR    NR  NR   TPCA SPILLS 90

Other Ascertainable Records

    3  NR   NR    NR      0    3 0.250RCRA NonGen / NLR
    0  NR     0      0      0    0 1.000FUDS
    0  NR     0      0      0    0 1.000DOD
    0  NR   NR      0      0    0 0.500SCRD DRYCLEANERS
    0  NR   NR    NR    NR  NR   TPUS FIN ASSUR
    0  NR   NR    NR    NR  NR   TPEPA WATCH LIST
    0  NR   NR    NR      0    0 0.2502020 COR ACTION
    0  NR   NR    NR    NR  NR   TPTSCA
    0  NR   NR    NR    NR  NR   TPTRIS
    0  NR   NR    NR    NR  NR   TPSSTS
    0  NR     0      0      0    0 1.000ROD
    0  NR   NR    NR    NR  NR   TPRMP
    0  NR   NR    NR    NR  NR   TPRAATS
    0  NR   NR    NR    NR  NR   TPPRP
    0  NR   NR    NR    NR  NR   TPPADS
    0  NR   NR    NR    NR  NR   TPICIS
    0  NR   NR    NR    NR  NR   TPFTTS
    0  NR   NR    NR    NR  NR   TPMLTS
    0  NR   NR    NR    NR  NR   TPCOAL ASH DOE
    0  NR   NR      0      0    0 0.500COAL ASH EPA
    0  NR   NR    NR    NR  NR   TPPCB TRANSFORMER
    0  NR   NR    NR    NR  NR   TPRADINFO
    0  NR   NR    NR    NR  NR   TPHIST FTTS
    0  NR   NR    NR    NR  NR   TPDOT OPS
    0  NR     0      0      0    0 1.000CONSENT
    0  NR     0      0      0    0 1.000INDIAN RESERV
    0  NR     0      0      0    0 1.000FUSRAP
    0  NR   NR      0      0    0 0.500UMTRA
    0  NR   NR    NR    NR  NR   TPLEAD SMELTERS
    0  NR   NR    NR    NR  NR   TPUS AIRS
    0  NR   NR    NR      0    0 0.250US MINES
    0  NR   NR    NR      0    0 0.250ABANDONED MINES
    0  NR   NR    NR    NR  NR   TPFINDS
    0  NR     0      0      0    0 1.000UXO
    0  NR   NR    NR    NR  NR   TPDOCKET HWC
    0  NR   NR    NR    NR  NR   TPECHO
    0  NR   NR    NR      0    0 0.250FUELS PROGRAM
    0  NR     0      0      0    0 1.000CA BOND EXP. PLAN
    0  NR   NR      0      0    0 0.500CA Cortese
    0  NR   NR    NR      0    0 0.250CA CUPA Listings

TC5441284.2s   Page 6



MAP FINDINGS SUMMARY

Search
TargetDistance Total

Database Property(Miles) < 1/8 1/8 - 1/4 1/4 - 1/2 1/2 - 1 > 1 Plotted

    6  NR   NR    NR      6    0 0.250CA DRYCLEANERS
    0  NR   NR    NR    NR  NR   TPCA EMI
    0  NR   NR    NR    NR  NR   TPCA ENF
    0  NR   NR    NR    NR  NR   TPCA Financial Assurance
    0  NR   NR    NR    NR  NR   TPCA HAZNET
    0  NR   NR    NR    NR  NR   TPCA ICE
   13  NR   NR     10      1    2 0.500CA HIST CORTESE
    0  NR   NR    NR    NR  NR   TPCA LOS ANGELES CO. HMS
    0  NR     0      0      0    0 1.000CA HWP
    0  NR   NR    NR      0    0 0.250CA HWT
    1  NR   NR    NR      0    1 0.250NY MANIFEST
    1  NR   NR    NR      0    1 0.250WI MANIFEST
    0  NR   NR    NR      0    0 0.250CA MINES
    0  NR   NR    NR      0    0 0.250CA MWMP
    0  NR   NR    NR    NR  NR   TPCA NPDES
    0  NR   NR    NR    NR  NR   TPCA PEST LIC
    0  NR   NR      0      0    0 0.500CA PROC
    0  NR     0      0      0    0 1.000CA Notify 65
    0  NR   NR    NR    NR  NR   TPLA Co. Site Mitigation
    0  NR   NR    NR    NR  NR   TPCA UIC
    0  NR   NR      0      0    0 0.500CA WASTEWATER PITS
    0  NR   NR    NR    NR  NR   TPCA WDS
    0  NR   NR    NR      0    0 0.250CA WIP
    0  NR   NR    NR    NR  NR   TPCA CIWQS
    0  NR   NR    NR    NR  NR   TPCA WELL STIM PROJ
    0  NR   NR    NR    NR  NR   TPCA UIC GEO
    0  NR   NR    NR    NR  NR   TPCA SAMPLING POINT
    0  NR   NR    NR    NR  NR   TPCA PROJECT
    0  NR   NR    NR    NR  NR   TPCA PROD WATER PONDS
    0  NR   NR    NR    NR  NR   TPCA OTHER OIL GAS
    0  NR   NR    NR    NR  NR   TPCA NON-CASE INFO
    0  NR   NR    NR    NR  NR   TPCA CERS
    0  NR   NR    NR    NR  NR   TPCA MILITARY PRIV SITES
    0  NR   NR    NR    NR  NR   TPCA WDR

EDR HIGH RISK HISTORICAL RECORDS

EDR Exclusive Records

    0  NR     0      0      0    0 1.000EDR MGP
   12  NR   NR    NR    NR   12 0.125EDR Hist Auto
    7  NR   NR    NR    NR    7 0.125EDR Hist Cleaner

EDR RECOVERED GOVERNMENT ARCHIVES

Exclusive Recovered Govt. Archives

    0  NR   NR    NR    NR  NR   TPCA RGA LF
    0  NR   NR    NR    NR  NR   TPCA RGA LUST

  142    0    5   26   46   65    0- Totals --

TC5441284.2s   Page 7



MAP FINDINGS SUMMARY

Search
TargetDistance Total

Database Property(Miles) < 1/8 1/8 - 1/4 1/4 - 1/2 1/2 - 1 > 1 Plotted

NOTES:

   TP = Target Property

   NR = Not Requested at this Search Distance

   Sites may be listed in more than one database

TC5441284.2s   Page 8



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                            GASOLINE AND OIL SERVICE STATIONS1942     GEFFE MURRAY
                                                            AUTOMOBILE REPAIRING1942     CORKHILL J B
                                                            AUTOMOBILE REPAIRING1937     CORKILL J E
                                                            GASOLINE AND OIL SERVICE STATIONS1937     ABRAMSON MORRIS
                                                            GASOLINE AND OIL SERVICE STATIONS1933     ABRAMSON MORRIS
                                                            AUTOMOBILE REPAIRING1933     CORKHILL J E
                                                            GASOLINE AND OIL SERVICE STATION1929     MOLLEY N M
                                                            AUTOMOBILE REPAIRING1924     ATON LOSKAMP   UECKER
                                                            Type:Year:    Name:

EDR Hist Auto

164 ft. Site 1 of 8 in cluster A
0.031 mi.

Relative:
Lower

Actual:
399 ft.

< 1/8 LOS ANGELES, CA  
SW 1528 N VERMONT AVE    N/A
A1 EDR Hist AutoABRAMSON MORRIS 1009075824

                                                            GASOLINE AND OIL SERVICE STATIONS1942     MILLS J J
                                                            GASOLINE AND OIL SERVICE STATIONS1937     MILLS J J
                                                            GASOLINE AND OIL SERVICE STATIONS1933     MILLS J J
                                                            Type:Year:    Name:

EDR Hist Auto

249 ft. Site 1 of 5 in cluster B
0.047 mi.

Relative:
Higher

Actual:
415 ft.

< 1/8 LOS ANGELES, CA  
NE 4627 HOLLYWOOD BLVD    N/A
B2 EDR Hist AutoMILLS J J 1009080448

                                                            CLOTHES CLEANERS PRESSERS AND DYERS1924     ANDERS H F
                                                            Type:Year:    Name:

EDR Hist Cleaner

268 ft. Site 1 of 10 in cluster C
0.051 mi.

Relative:
Higher

Actual:
416 ft.

< 1/8 LOS ANGELES, CA  
North 4660 HOLLYWOOD BLVD    N/A
C3 EDR Hist CleanerANDERS H F 1009188745

                              2136667676Telephone:
                              JOHN LIMAContact Name:
                              NEW CAR DEALEROther Type:
                              OtherFacility Type:
                              00000020974Facility ID:
                              STATERegion:
                              http://geotracker.waterboards.ca.gov/ustpdfs/pdf/00026281.pdfURL:
                              00026281File Number:

HIST UST:

270 ft. Site 2 of 5 in cluster B
0.051 mi.

Relative:
Higher

Actual:
413 ft.

< 1/8 LOS ANGELES, CA  90027
ENE 4601 HOLLYWOOD BLVD    N/A
B4 CA HIST USTALEX SATIN OLDS MAZDA U001561176

TC5441284.2s   Page 9



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

Click here for Geo Tracker PDF:

                              NoneLeak Detection:
                              Not reportedContainer Construction Thickness:
                              WASTE OILType of Fuel:
                              WASTETank Used for:
                              00000300Tank Capacity:
                              Not reportedYear Installed:
                              2Container Num:
                              002Tank Num:

                              NoneLeak Detection:
                              Not reportedContainer Construction Thickness:
                              WASTE OILType of Fuel:
                              WASTETank Used for:
                              00000200Tank Capacity:
                              Not reportedYear Installed:
                              1Container Num:
                              001Tank Num:

                              0002Total Tanks:
                              LOS ANGELES, CA 90027Owner City,St,Zip:
                              4601 HOLLYWOOD BLVD.Owner Address:
                              ALEX SATIN OLDS MAZDAOwner Name:

ALEX SATIN OLDS MAZDA  (Continued) U001561176

                              SELLING CARS & SERVIOther Type:
                              OtherFacility Type:
                              00000029253Facility ID:
                              STATERegion:
                              http://geotracker.waterboards.ca.gov/ustpdfs/pdf/00026283.pdfURL:
                              00026283File Number:

HIST UST:

          1Number Of Tanks:
          REG UNLEADEDContent:
          PRODUCTSTG:
          M.V. FUELTank Use:
          Not reportedActive Date:
          3000Capacity:
          Not reportedTank Status:
          19-050-001719-000001SWRCB Tank Id:
          Not reportedOwner Tank Id:
          Not reportedCreated Date:
          Not reportedAction Date:
          Not reportedReferral Date:
          44-011939Board Of Equalization:
          Not reportedNumber:
          1719Comp Number:
          Not reportedStatus:

SWEEPS UST:

ECHO
270 ft. FINDSSite 3 of 5 in cluster B
0.051 mi. RCRA NonGen / NLR

Relative:
Higher

Actual:
413 ft.

< 1/8 CA FID USTLOS ANGELES, CA  90027
ENE CA HIST UST4601 HOLLYWOOD BLVD CAD981440613
B5 CA SWEEPS USTHOLLYWOOD HYUNDAI MAZDA 1000439022

TC5441284.2s   Page 10



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                    4601 HOLLYOOD BLVDOwner/operator address:
                    Y K MOTORS INCOwner/operator name:

Owner/Operator Summary:

                    Handler: Non-Generators do not presently generate hazardous wasteDescription:
                    Non-GeneratorClassification:
                    09EPA Region:
                    Not reportedContact email:
                    213-669-8000Contact telephone:
                    USContact country:
                    LOS ANGELES, CA 90027
                    4601 HOLLYWOOD BLVDContact address:
                    ROSS  HOSTETLERContact:
                    CAD981440613EPA ID:
                    LOS ANGELES, CA 90027
                    4601 HOLLYWOOD BLVDFacility address:
                    HOLLYWOOD HYUNDAI MAZDAFacility name:
                    04/15/1996Date form received by agency:

RCRA NonGen / NLR:

     InactiveStatus:
     Not reportedComments:
     Not reportedEPA ID:
     Not reportedNPDES Number:
     Not reportedDUNs Number:
     Not reportedContact Phone:
     Not reportedContact:
     LOS ANGELES 900270000Mailing City,St,Zip:
     Not reportedMailing Address 2:
     4333  WOODMAN AVEMailing Address:
     Not reportedMail To:
     2136667676Facility Phone:
     Not reportedSIC Code:
     Not reportedCortese Code:
     00029253Regulated ID:
     UTNKIRegulated By:
     19011135Facility ID:

CA FID UST:

Click here for Geo Tracker PDF:

                              Stock InventorLeak Detection:
                              Not reportedContainer Construction Thickness:
                              UNLEADEDType of Fuel:
                              PRODUCTTank Used for:
                              00003000Tank Capacity:
                              1978Year Installed:
                              1Container Num:
                              001Tank Num:

                              0001Total Tanks:
                              LOS ANGELES, CA 90027Owner City,St,Zip:
                              4601 HOLLYWOOD BLD.Owner Address:
                              ALEX SATIN OLDSMOBILE-MAZDAOwner Name:
                              6667676Telephone:
                              Not reportedContact Name:

HOLLYWOOD HYUNDAI MAZDA  (Continued) 1000439022

TC5441284.2s   Page 11



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

corrective action activities required under RCRA.
program staff to track the notification, permit, compliance, and
and treat, store, or dispose of hazardous waste. RCRAInfo allows RCRA
events and activities related to facilities that generate, transport,
Conservation and Recovery Act (RCRA) program through the tracking of
RCRAInfo is a national information system that supports the Resource
                    Environmental Interest/Information System

                    110002705957Registry ID:

FINDS:

                    No violations foundViolation Status:

                              NoUsed oil transporter:
                              NoUsed oil transfer facility:
                              NoUsed oil Specification marketer:
                              NoUsed oil fuel marketer to burner:
                              NoUser oil refiner:
                              NoUsed oil processor:
                              NoUsed oil fuel burner:
                              NoFurnace exemption:
                              NoOn-site burner exemption:
                              NoUnderground injection activity:
                              NoTreater, storer or disposer of HW:
                              NoTransporter of hazardous waste:
                              NoRecycler of hazardous waste:
                              NoMixed waste (haz. and radioactive):
                              NoU.S. importer of hazardous waste:

Handler Activities Summary:

                    Not reportedOwner/Op end date:
                    Not reportedOwner/Op start date:
                    OperatorOwner/Operator Type:
                    PrivateLegal status:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator extension:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator fax:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator email:
                    415-555-1212Owner/operator telephone:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator country:
                    NOT REQUIRED, ME 99999
                    NOT REQUIREDOwner/operator address:
                    NOT REQUIREDOwner/operator name:

                    Not reportedOwner/Op end date:
                    Not reportedOwner/Op start date:
                    OwnerOwner/Operator Type:
                    PrivateLegal status:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator extension:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator fax:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator email:
                    213-669-8000Owner/operator telephone:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator country:
                    LOS ANGELES, CA 90027

HOLLYWOOD HYUNDAI MAZDA  (Continued) 1000439022

TC5441284.2s   Page 12



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                   http://echo.epa.gov/detailed-facility-report?fid=110002705957DFR URL:
                                   110002705957Registry ID:
                                   1000439022Envid:

ECHO:

additional FINDS: detail in the EDR Site Report.
Click this hyperlink while viewing on your computer to access 

HOLLYWOOD HYUNDAI MAZDA  (Continued) 1000439022

                    Not reportedOwner/operator extension:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator fax:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator email:
                    213-669-8000Owner/operator telephone:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator country:
                    HOLLYWOOD, CA 90027
                    4601 HOLLYWOOD BLVDOwner/operator address:
                    YUN SUNG KIMOwner/operator name:

                    Not reportedOwner/Op end date:
                    Not reportedOwner/Op start date:
                    OperatorOwner/Operator Type:
                    PrivateLegal status:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator extension:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator fax:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator email:
                    415-555-1212Owner/operator telephone:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator country:
                    NOT REQUIRED, ME 99999
                    NOT REQUIREDOwner/operator address:
                    NOT REQUIREDOwner/operator name:

Owner/Operator Summary:

                    hazardous waste at any time
                    waste during any calendar month, and accumulates more than 1000 kg of
                    hazardous waste at any time; or generates 100 kg or less of hazardous
                    waste during any calendar month and accumulates less than 6000 kg of
                    Handler: generates more than 100 and less than 1000 kg of hazardousDescription:
                    Small Small Quantity GeneratorClassification:
                    09EPA Region:
                    Not reportedContact email:
                    213-669-8000Contact telephone:
                    USContact country:
                    HOLLYWOOD, CA 90027
                    4601 HOLLYWOOD BLVDContact address:
                    ROSS  HOSTETLERContact:
                    CAD982523508EPA ID:
                    HOLLYWOOD, CA 90027
                    4601 HOLLYWOOD BLVDFacility address:
                    HOLLYWOOD HYUNDAI MAZDAFacility name:
                    04/15/1996Date form received by agency:

RCRA-SQG:

270 ft. Site 4 of 5 in cluster B
0.051 mi.

Relative:
Higher

Actual:
413 ft.

< 1/8 HOLLYWOOD, CA  90027
ENE 4601 HOLLYWOOD BLVD CAD982523508
B6 RCRA-SQGHOLLYWOOD HYUNDAI MAZDA 1000327774

TC5441284.2s   Page 13



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                    No violations foundViolation Status:

                              NoUsed oil transporter:
                              NoUsed oil transfer facility:
                              NoUsed oil Specification marketer:
                              NoUsed oil fuel marketer to burner:
                              NoUser oil refiner:
                              NoUsed oil processor:
                              NoUsed oil fuel burner:
                              NoFurnace exemption:
                              NoOn-site burner exemption:
                              NoUnderground injection activity:
                              NoTreater, storer or disposer of HW:
                              NoTransporter of hazardous waste:
                              NoRecycler of hazardous waste:
                              NoMixed waste (haz. and radioactive):
                              NoU.S. importer of hazardous waste:

Handler Activities Summary:

                    Not reportedOwner/Op end date:
                    Not reportedOwner/Op start date:
                    OwnerOwner/Operator Type:
                    PrivateLegal status:

HOLLYWOOD HYUNDAI MAZDA  (Continued) 1000327774

                                                            Garment Pressing And Cleaners’ Agents1982     SPARKLING CLEANERS
                                                            Garment Pressing And Cleaners’ Agents1980     SPARKLING CLEANERS
                                                            Type:Year:    Name:

EDR Hist Cleaner

284 ft. Site 1 of 5 in cluster D
0.054 mi.

Relative:
Higher

Actual:
410 ft.

< 1/8 LOS ANGELES, CA  90027
WNW 1553 N VERMONT AVE    N/A
D7 EDR Hist CleanerSPARKLING CLEANERS 1018950982

                    09EPA Region:
                    Not reportedContact email:
                    213-661-8049Contact telephone:
                    USContact country:
                    LOS ANGELES, CA 90027
                    1553 N VERMONT AVEContact address:
                    ENVIRONMENTAL  MANAGERContact:
                    LOS ANGELES, CA 90027
                    N VERMONT AVEMailing address:
                    CAD982020414EPA ID:
                    LOS ANGELES, CA 90027
                    1553 N VERMONT AVEFacility address:
                    TIME O MAXFacility name:
                    08/03/1987Date form received by agency:

RCRA-SQG:

284 ft. Site 2 of 5 in cluster D
0.054 mi.

Relative:
Higher

Actual:
410 ft.

< 1/8 ECHOLOS ANGELES, CA  90027
WNW FINDS1553 N VERMONT AVE CAD982020414
D8 RCRA-SQGTIME O MAX ONE HOUR PHOTO 1000197783

TC5441284.2s   Page 14



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                    110002714091Registry ID:

FINDS:

                    No violations foundViolation Status:

                              NoUsed oil transporter:
                              NoUsed oil transfer facility:
                              NoUsed oil Specification marketer:
                              NoUsed oil fuel marketer to burner:
                              NoUser oil refiner:
                              NoUsed oil processor:
                              NoUsed oil fuel burner:
                              NoFurnace exemption:
                              NoOn-site burner exemption:
                              NoUnderground injection activity:
                              NoTreater, storer or disposer of HW:
                              NoTransporter of hazardous waste:
                              NoRecycler of hazardous waste:
                              NoMixed waste (haz. and radioactive):
                              NoU.S. importer of hazardous waste:

Handler Activities Summary:

                    Not reportedOwner/Op end date:
                    Not reportedOwner/Op start date:
                    OwnerOwner/Operator Type:
                    PrivateLegal status:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator extension:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator fax:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator email:
                    415-555-1212Owner/operator telephone:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator country:
                    NOT REQUIRED, ME 99999
                    NOT REQUIREDOwner/operator address:
                    SHIN UN SIKOwner/operator name:

                    Not reportedOwner/Op end date:
                    Not reportedOwner/Op start date:
                    OperatorOwner/Operator Type:
                    PrivateLegal status:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator extension:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator fax:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator email:
                    415-555-1212Owner/operator telephone:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator country:
                    NOT REQUIRED, ME 99999
                    NOT REQUIREDOwner/operator address:
                    NOT REQUIREDOwner/operator name:

Owner/Operator Summary:

                    hazardous waste at any time
                    waste during any calendar month, and accumulates more than 1000 kg of
                    hazardous waste at any time; or generates 100 kg or less of hazardous
                    waste during any calendar month and accumulates less than 6000 kg of
                    Handler: generates more than 100 and less than 1000 kg of hazardousDescription:
                    Small Small Quantity GeneratorClassification:

TIME O MAX ONE HOUR PHOTO  (Continued) 1000197783

TC5441284.2s   Page 15



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                   http://echo.epa.gov/detailed-facility-report?fid=110002714091DFR URL:
                                   110002714091Registry ID:
                                   1000197783Envid:

ECHO:

additional FINDS: detail in the EDR Site Report.
Click this hyperlink while viewing on your computer to access 

corrective action activities required under RCRA.
program staff to track the notification, permit, compliance, and
and treat, store, or dispose of hazardous waste. RCRAInfo allows RCRA
events and activities related to facilities that generate, transport,
Conservation and Recovery Act (RCRA) program through the tracking of
RCRAInfo is a national information system that supports the Resource

facilities.
generators, transporters, and treatment, storage, and disposal
provides California with information on hazardous waste shipments for
California Hazardous Waste Tracking System - Datamart (HWTS-DATAMART)
                    Environmental Interest/Information System

TIME O MAX ONE HOUR PHOTO  (Continued) 1000197783

                    Not reportedOwner/operator extension:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator fax:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator email:
                    415-555-1212Owner/operator telephone:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator country:
                    NOT REQUIRED, ME 99999
                    NOT REQUIREDOwner/operator address:
                    NOT REQUIREDOwner/operator name:

Owner/Operator Summary:

                    hazardous waste at any time
                    waste during any calendar month, and accumulates more than 1000 kg of
                    hazardous waste at any time; or generates 100 kg or less of hazardous
                    waste during any calendar month and accumulates less than 6000 kg of
                    Handler: generates more than 100 and less than 1000 kg of hazardousDescription:
                    Small Small Quantity GeneratorClassification:
                    09EPA Region:
                    Not reportedContact email:
                    213-661-8049Contact telephone:
                    USContact country:
                    LOS ANGELES, CA 90027
                    1553 N VERMONT AVEContact address:
                    ENVIRONMENTAL  MANAGERContact:
                    CAD981457674EPA ID:
                    LOS ANGELES, CA 90027
                    1553 N VERMONT AVEFacility address:
                    TIME O MAX ONE HOUR PHOTOFacility name:
                    04/02/1986Date form received by agency:

RCRA-SQG:

284 ft. Site 3 of 5 in cluster D
0.054 mi.

Relative:
Higher

Actual:
410 ft.

< 1/8 LOS ANGELES, CA  90027
WNW 1553 N VERMONT AVE CAD981457674
D9 RCRA-SQGTIME O MAX ONE HOUR PHOTO 1000197781

TC5441284.2s   Page 16



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                    No violations foundViolation Status:

                              NoUsed oil transporter:
                              NoUsed oil transfer facility:
                              NoUsed oil Specification marketer:
                              NoUsed oil fuel marketer to burner:
                              NoUser oil refiner:
                              NoUsed oil processor:
                              NoUsed oil fuel burner:
                              NoFurnace exemption:
                              NoOn-site burner exemption:
                              NoUnderground injection activity:
                              NoTreater, storer or disposer of HW:
                              NoTransporter of hazardous waste:
                              NoRecycler of hazardous waste:
                              NoMixed waste (haz. and radioactive):
                              NoU.S. importer of hazardous waste:

Handler Activities Summary:

                    Not reportedOwner/Op end date:
                    Not reportedOwner/Op start date:
                    OwnerOwner/Operator Type:
                    PrivateLegal status:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator extension:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator fax:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator email:
                    415-555-1212Owner/operator telephone:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator country:
                    NOT REQUIRED, ME 99999
                    NOT REQUIREDOwner/operator address:
                    SHIN EDOwner/operator name:

                    Not reportedOwner/Op end date:
                    Not reportedOwner/Op start date:
                    OperatorOwner/Operator Type:
                    PrivateLegal status:

TIME O MAX ONE HOUR PHOTO  (Continued) 1000197781

                                                            CLOTHES PRESSERS CLEANERS AND REPAIRERS1929     ANDERS H F
                                                            Type:Year:    Name:

EDR Hist Cleaner

292 ft. Site 2 of 10 in cluster C
0.055 mi.

Relative:
Higher

Actual:
416 ft.

< 1/8 LOS ANGELES, CA  
North 4662 HOLLYWOOD BLVD    N/A
C10 EDR Hist CleanerANDERS H F 1009189259

TC5441284.2s   Page 17



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                    -118.29138Longitude:
                    34.09835Latitude:
                    Los Angeles City Fire DepartmentPermitting Agency:
                    035119Facility ID:

UST:

306 ft. Site 2 of 8 in cluster A
0.058 mi.

Relative:
Lower

Actual:
396 ft.

< 1/8 LOS ANGELES, CA  90027
South 4661 W SUNSET BLVD    N/A
A11 CA USTCHILDREN’S HOSPITAL LOS ANGELES U004261336

                                                            GASOLINE AND OIL SERVICE STATIONS1942     PRATTE GARLAND
                                                            Type:Year:    Name:

EDR Hist Auto

306 ft. Site 3 of 8 in cluster A
0.058 mi.

Relative:
Lower

Actual:
396 ft.

< 1/8 LOS ANGELES, CA  
South 4661 S SUNSET BLVD    N/A
A12 EDR Hist AutoPRATTE GARLAND 1009083092

                                                            GASOLINE AND OIL SERVICE STATIONS1942     SANFORD EDW
                                                            GASOLINE AND OIL SERVICE STATIONS1937     WARREN J G
                                                            AUTOMOBILE REPAIRING AND SERVICE STATIONS1929     STNRM O J
                                                            Type:Year:    Name:

EDR Hist Auto

309 ft. Site 5 of 5 in cluster B
0.059 mi.

Relative:
Higher

Actual:
412 ft.

< 1/8 LOS ANGELES, CA  
ENE 4575 HOLLYWOOD BLVD    N/A
B13 EDR Hist AutoSANFORD EDW 1009081095

                              YGlass:
                              YAluminium:
                              05/20/1991Operation Begin Date:
                              NRural:
                              NGrand Father:
                              (213) 240-5054Phone Number:
                              joshlaor@hotmail.comEmail:
                              Not reportedWebsite:
                              90022Mailing Zip Code:
                              CAMailing State:
                              Los AngelesMailing City:
                              P O Box 226907Mailing Address:
                              RC4139Cert Id:
                              27334Reg Id:

SWRCY:

314 ft. Site 4 of 5 in cluster D
0.059 mi.

Relative:
Higher

Actual:
414 ft.

< 1/8 LOS ANGELES, CA  90028
NW 1601 N VERMONT AVE    N/A
D14 CA SWRCYLAUR METALS CO S107137230

TC5441284.2s   Page 18



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                              Laur Metals CoOrganization Name:
                              19291Organization ID:
                              10:00 am - 4:00 pmSunday Hours Of Operation:
                              10:00 am - 4:00 pmSaturday Hours Of Operation:
                              10:00 am - 4:00 pmFriday Hours Of Operation:
                              10:00 am - 4:00 pmThursday Hours Of Operation:
                              CLOSEDWednesday Hours Of Operation:
                              10:00 am - 4:00 pmTuesday Hours Of Operation:
                              10:00 am - 4:00 pmMonday Hours Of Operation:
                              N/AAgency:
                              YBimetal:
                              YPlastic:

LAUR METALS CO  (Continued) S107137230

     InactiveStatus:
     Not reportedComments:
     Not reportedEPA ID:
     Not reportedNPDES Number:
     Not reportedDUNs Number:
     Not reportedContact Phone:
     Not reportedContact:
     LOS ANGELES 900270000Mailing City,St,Zip:
     Not reportedMailing Address 2:
     UNKMailing Address:
     Not reportedMail To:
     2130000000Facility Phone:
     Not reportedSIC Code:
     Not reportedCortese Code:
     Not reportedRegulated ID:
     UTNKIRegulated By:
     19054682Facility ID:

CA FID UST:

          Not reportedNumber Of Tanks:
          Not reportedContent:
          Not reportedSTG:
          Not reportedTank Use:
          Not reportedActive Date:
          Not reportedCapacity:
          Not reportedTank Status:
          Not reportedSWRCB Tank Id:
          Not reportedOwner Tank Id:
          02-29-88Created Date:
          02-16-94Action Date:
          03-04-93Referral Date:
          Not reportedBoard Of Equalization:
          9Number:
          7916Comp Number:
          ActiveStatus:

SWEEPS UST:

360 ft. Site 4 of 8 in cluster A
0.068 mi.

Relative:
Lower

Actual:
401 ft.

< 1/8 LOS ANGELES, CA  90027
WSW CA FID UST4730 BARNSDALE AVE    N/A
A15 CA SWEEPS USTKAISER FOUND HOSPITALS S101586988

TC5441284.2s   Page 19



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                    -118.29218Longitude:
                    34.09908Latitude:
                    LOS ANGELES, CITY OFPermitting Agency:
                    25222Facility ID:

UST:

360 ft. Site 5 of 8 in cluster A
0.068 mi.

Relative:
Lower

Actual:
401 ft.

< 1/8 LOS ANGELES, CA  90027
WSW 4730 BARNSDALL AVE    N/A
A16 CA USTKAISER FOUNDATION HOSPITALS U003781502

                                                            Gasoline Service Stations, NEC2014     FRYS HOLLYWOOD SHELL
                                                            Gasoline Service Stations, NEC2013     FRYS HOLLYWOOD SHELL
                                                            Gasoline Service Stations2012     PETROL SIX LLC
                                                            Gasoline Service Stations, NEC2012     FRYS HOLLYWOOD SHELL
                                                            Gasoline Service Stations2011     PETROL SIX LLC
                                                            Gasoline Service Stations, NEC2011     FRYS HOLLYWOOD SHELL
                                                            Gasoline Service Stations, NEC2010     FRYS HOLLYWOOD SHELL
                                                            Gasoline Service Stations2009     PETROL SIX LLC
                                                            Gasoline Service Stations, NEC2009     FRYS HOLLYWOOD SHELL
                                                            Gasoline Service Stations2008     PETROL SIX LLC
                                                            Gasoline Service Stations2007     PETROL SIX LLC
                                                            Gasoline Service Stations2006     PETROL SIX LLC
                                                            Gasoline Service Stations2005     PETROL SIX LLC
                                                            Gasoline Service Stations2004     PETROL SIX LLC
                                                            Gasoline Service Stations2003     PETROL SIX
                                                            Type:Year:    Name:

EDR Hist Auto

367 ft. Site 3 of 10 in cluster C
0.070 mi.

Relative:
Higher

Actual:
418 ft.

< 1/8 LOS ANGELES, CA  90027
NNW 1630 N VERMONT AVE    N/A
C17 EDR Hist AutoPETROL SIX LLC 1020388934

                              001Tank Num:

                              0003Total Tanks:
                              LOS ANGELES, CA 90071Owner City,St,Zip:
                              515 SOUTH FLOWER STREETOwner Address:
                              ARCO PETROLEUM PRODUCTS CO.Owner Name:
                              0000000000Telephone:
                              Not reportedContact Name:
                              Not reportedOther Type:
                              Gas StationFacility Type:
                              00000026763Facility ID:
                              STATERegion:
                              Not reportedURL:
                              Not reportedFile Number:

HIST UST:

367 ft. Site 4 of 10 in cluster C
0.070 mi.

Relative:
Higher

Actual:
418 ft.

< 1/8 LOS ANGELES, CA  90028
NNW 1630 N VERMONT AVE    N/A
C18 CA HIST USTYITZHAK HACHAMOFF U001561242

TC5441284.2s   Page 20



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                              Stock Inventor, 10Leak Detection:
                              0000240Container Construction Thickness:
                              06Type of Fuel:
                              PRODUCTTank Used for:
                              00006000Tank Capacity:
                              1971Year Installed:
                              0000000003Container Num:
                              003Tank Num:

                              Stock Inventor, 10Leak Detection:
                              0000240Container Construction Thickness:
                              06Type of Fuel:
                              PRODUCTTank Used for:
                              00008000Tank Capacity:
                              1971Year Installed:
                              0000000002Container Num:
                              002Tank Num:

                              Stock Inventor, 10Leak Detection:
                              0000240Container Construction Thickness:
                              06Type of Fuel:
                              PRODUCTTank Used for:
                              00008000Tank Capacity:
                              1971Year Installed:
                              0000000001Container Num:

YITZHAK HACHAMOFF  (Continued) U001561242

          M.V. FUELTank Use:
          04-20-88Active Date:
          10000Capacity:
          ATank Status:
          19-050-002166-000001SWRCB Tank Id:
          Not reportedOwner Tank Id:
          02-29-88Created Date:
          04-11-94Action Date:
          01-23-93Referral Date:
          44-012153Board Of Equalization:
          9Number:
          2166Comp Number:
          ActiveStatus:

SWEEPS UST:

                    -118.2895805Longitude:
                    34.0992929Latitude:
                    LOS ANGELES, CITY OFPermitting Agency:
                    25219Facility ID:

                    -118.29061Longitude:
                    34.09811Latitude:
                    Los Angeles City Fire DepartmentPermitting Agency:
                    FA0002650Facility ID:

UST:

391 ft. Site 1 of 4 in cluster E
0.074 mi.

Relative:
Lower

Actual:
394 ft.

< 1/8 LOS ANGELES, CA  90027
South CA SWEEPS UST4650 W SUNSET BLVD    N/A
E19 CA USTCHILDREN’S HOSPITAL OF L.A. U003970947

TC5441284.2s   Page 21



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

          Not reportedNumber Of Tanks:
          DIESELContent:
          PSTG:
          M.V. FUELTank Use:
          04-20-88Active Date:
          48000Capacity:
          ATank Status:
          19-050-002166-000003SWRCB Tank Id:
          Not reportedOwner Tank Id:
          02-29-88Created Date:
          04-11-94Action Date:
          01-23-93Referral Date:
          44-012153Board Of Equalization:
          9Number:
          2166Comp Number:
          ActiveStatus:

          Not reportedNumber Of Tanks:
          DIESELContent:
          PSTG:
          M.V. FUELTank Use:
          04-20-88Active Date:
          1500Capacity:
          ATank Status:
          19-050-002166-000002SWRCB Tank Id:
          Not reportedOwner Tank Id:
          02-29-88Created Date:
          04-11-94Action Date:
          01-23-93Referral Date:
          44-012153Board Of Equalization:
          9Number:
          2166Comp Number:
          ActiveStatus:

          3Number Of Tanks:
          DIESELContent:
          PSTG:

CHILDREN’S HOSPITAL OF L.A.  (Continued) U003970947

                    SANTIAGO  CHAMBERSContact:
                    LOS ANGELES, CA 90027
                    SUNSET BLVDMailing address:
                    CAD981399900EPA ID:
                    LOS ANGELES, CA 90027
                    4650 SUNSET BLVDFacility address:
                    CHILDREN HOSPITAL OF LOS ANGELESFacility name:
                    07/14/2010Date form received by agency:

RCRA-LQG:

LA Co. Site Mitigation
NY MANIFEST
WI MANIFEST

CA EMI
ECHO

391 ft. FINDSSite 2 of 4 in cluster E
0.074 mi. CA FID UST

Relative:
Lower

Actual:
394 ft.

< 1/8 CA HIST USTLOS ANGELES, CA  90027
South CA ENVIROSTOR4650 SUNSET BOULEVARD CAD981399900
E20 RCRA-LQGCHILDREN’S HOSPITAL OF LOS ANGELES 1000278867

TC5441284.2s   Page 22



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                    OwnerOwner/Operator Type:
                    PrivateLegal status:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator extension:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator fax:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator email:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator telephone:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator country:
                    LOS ANGELES, CA 90027
                    SUNSET BLVDOwner/operator address:
                    CHILDREN HOSPITAL OF LOS ANGELESOwner/operator name:

                    Not reportedOwner/Op end date:
                    Not reportedOwner/Op start date:
                    OwnerOwner/Operator Type:
                    PrivateLegal status:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator extension:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator fax:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator email:
                    415-555-1212Owner/operator telephone:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator country:
                    NOT REQUIRED, ME 99999
                    NOT REQUIREDOwner/operator address:
                    CHILDREN’S HOSP OF LAOwner/operator name:

                    Not reportedOwner/Op end date:
                    05/01/1995Owner/Op start date:
                    OwnerOwner/Operator Type:
                    PrivateLegal status:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator extension:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator fax:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator email:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator telephone:
                    USOwner/operator country:
                    LOS ANGELES, CA 90027
                    4650 SUNSET BLVD. MAILSTOP #42Owner/operator address:
                    WALTER NOCEOwner/operator name:

Owner/Operator Summary:

                    100 kg of that material at any time
                    hazardous waste during any calendar month, and accumulates more than
                    from the cleanup of a spill, into or on any land or water, of acutely
                    of any residue or contaminated soil, waste or other debris resulting
                    kg of acutely hazardous waste at any time; or generates 100 kg or less
                    hazardous waste during any calendar month, and accumulates more than 1
                    waste during any calendar month; or generates 1 kg or less of acutely
                    cleanup of a spill, into or on any land or water, of acutely hazardous
                    residue or contaminated soil, waste or other debris resulting from the
                    during any calendar month; or generates more than 100 kg of any
                    calendar month; or generates more than 1 kg of acutely hazardous waste
                    Handler: generates 1,000 kg or more of hazardous waste during anyDescription:
                    Large Quantity GeneratorClassification:
                    09EPA Region:
                    SCHAMBERS@CHLA.USC.EDUContact email:
                    323-361-2372Contact telephone:
                    USContact country:
                    LOS ANGELES, CA 90027
                    SUNSET BLVDContact address:

CHILDREN’S HOSPITAL OF LOS ANGELES  (Continued) 1000278867

TC5441284.2s   Page 23



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                    Not reportedOwner/operator address:
                    CHILDREN HOSPITAL OF LOS ANGELESOwner/operator name:

                    Not reportedOwner/Op end date:
                    05/01/1995Owner/Op start date:
                    OwnerOwner/Operator Type:
                    PrivateLegal status:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator extension:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator fax:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator email:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator telephone:
                    USOwner/operator country:
                    Not reported
                    Not reportedOwner/operator address:
                    WALTER NOCEOwner/operator name:

                    Not reportedOwner/Op end date:
                    01/01/1929Owner/Op start date:
                    OperatorOwner/Operator Type:
                    PrivateLegal status:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator extension:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator fax:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator email:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator telephone:
                    USOwner/operator country:
                    Not reported
                    Not reportedOwner/operator address:
                    CHILDRENS HOSPITAL LOS ANGELESOwner/operator name:

                    Not reportedOwner/Op end date:
                    Not reportedOwner/Op start date:
                    OperatorOwner/Operator Type:
                    PrivateLegal status:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator extension:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator fax:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator email:
                    415-555-1212Owner/operator telephone:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator country:
                    NOT REQUIRED, ME 99999
                    NOT REQUIREDOwner/operator address:
                    NOT REQUIREDOwner/operator name:

                    Not reportedOwner/Op end date:
                    05/01/1995Owner/Op start date:
                    OperatorOwner/Operator Type:
                    PrivateLegal status:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator extension:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator fax:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator email:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator telephone:
                    USOwner/operator country:
                    Not reported
                    Not reportedOwner/operator address:
                    WALTER NOCEOwner/operator name:

                    Not reportedOwner/Op end date:
                    01/01/1901Owner/Op start date:

CHILDREN’S HOSPITAL OF LOS ANGELES  (Continued) 1000278867

TC5441284.2s   Page 24



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                    IGNITABLE HAZARDOUS WASTES ARE THOSE WASTES WHICH HAVE A FLASHPOINT OF.   Waste name:
                    D001.   Waste code:

                    Liquids with pH < 2.   Waste name:
                    791.   Waste code:

                    Liquids with mercury > 20 mg/l.   Waste name:
                    725.   Waste code:

                    Laboratory waste chemicals.   Waste name:
                    551.   Waste code:

                    Other organic solids.   Waste name:
                    352.   Waste code:

                    Off-specification, aged, or surplus organics.   Waste name:
                    331.   Waste code:

                    Pharmaceutical waste.   Waste name:
                    311.   Waste code:

                    Unspecified solvent mixture.   Waste name:
                    214.   Waste code:

                    Aqueous solution with 10% or more total organic residues.   Waste name:
                    133.   Waste code:

                    Alkaline solution without metals (pH > 12.5).   Waste name:
                    122.   Waste code:

                              NoUsed oil transporter:
                              NoUsed oil transfer facility:
                              NoUsed oil Specification marketer:
                              NoUsed oil fuel marketer to burner:
                              NoUser oil refiner:
                              NoUsed oil processor:
                              NoUsed oil fuel burner:
                              NoFurnace exemption:
                              NoOn-site burner exemption:
                              NoUnderground injection activity:
                              NoTreater, storer or disposer of HW:
                              NoTransporter of hazardous waste:
                              NoRecycler of hazardous waste:
                              YesMixed waste (haz. and radioactive):
                              NoU.S. importer of hazardous waste:

Handler Activities Summary:

                    Not reportedOwner/Op end date:
                    01/01/1901Owner/Op start date:
                    OperatorOwner/Operator Type:
                    PrivateLegal status:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator extension:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator fax:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator email:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator telephone:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator country:
                    CA 90027

CHILDREN’S HOSPITAL OF LOS ANGELES  (Continued) 1000278867

TC5441284.2s   Page 25



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                    ONE OR MORE OF THE ABOVE NON-HALOGENATED SOLVENTS OR THOSE SOLVENTS
                    CONTAINING, BEFORE USE, A TOTAL OF TEN PERCENT OR MORE (BY VOLUME) OF
                    2-ETHOXYETHANOL, AND 2-NITROPROPANE; ALL SPENT SOLVENT MIXTURES/BLENDS
                    KETONE, CARBON DISULFIDE, ISOBUTANOL, PYRIDINE, BENZENE,
                    THE FOLLOWING SPENT NON-HALOGENATED SOLVENTS: TOLUENE, METHYL ETHYL.   Waste name:
                    F005.   Waste code:

                    MIXTURES.
                    BOTTOMS FROM THE RECOVERY OF THESE SPENT SOLVENTS AND SPENT SOLVENT
                    MORE OF THOSE SOLVENTS LISTED IN F001, F002, F004, AND F005, AND STILL
                    SOLVENTS, AND, A TOTAL OF TEN PERCENT OR MORE (BY VOLUME) OF ONE OR
                    CONTAINING, BEFORE USE, ONE OR MORE OF THE ABOVE NON-HALOGENATED
                    NON-HALOGENATED SOLVENTS; AND ALL SPENT SOLVENT MIXTURES/BLENDS
                    MIXTURES/BLENDS CONTAINING, BEFORE USE, ONLY THE ABOVE SPENT
                    ALCOHOL, CYCLOHEXANONE, AND METHANOL; ALL SPENT SOLVENT
                    ACETATE, ETHYL BENZENE, ETHYL ETHER, METHYL ISOBUTYL KETONE, N-BUTYL
                    THE FOLLOWING SPENT NON-HALOGENATED SOLVENTS: XYLENE, ACETONE, ETHYL.   Waste name:
                    F003.   Waste code:

                    SPENT SOLVENT MIXTURES.
                    F005, AND STILL BOTTOMS FROM THE RECOVERY OF THESE SPENT SOLVENTS AND
                    OF THE ABOVE HALOGENATED SOLVENTS OR THOSE LISTED IN F001, F004, OR
                    BEFORE USE, A TOTAL OF TEN PERCENT OR MORE (BY VOLUME) OF ONE OR MORE
                    1,1,2-TRICHLOROETHANE; ALL SPENT SOLVENT MIXTURES/BLENDS CONTAINING,
                    ORTHO-DICHLOROBENZENE, TRICHLOROFLUOROMETHANE, AND
                    CHLOROBENZENE, 1,1,2-TRICHLORO-1,2,2-TRIFLUOROETHANE,
                    METHYLENE CHLORIDE, TRICHLOROETHYLENE, 1,1,1-TRICHLOROETHANE,
                    THE FOLLOWING SPENT HALOGENATED SOLVENTS: TETRACHLOROETHYLENE,.   Waste name:
                    F002.   Waste code:

                    NITROBENZENE.   Waste name:
                    D036.   Waste code:

                    CHLOROFORM.   Waste name:
                    D022.   Waste code:

                    MERCURY.   Waste name:
                    D009.   Waste code:

                    CHROMIUM.   Waste name:
                    D007.   Waste code:

                    DISPOSED, THE WASTE WOULD BE A CORROSIVE HAZARDOUS WASTE.
                    THESE CAUSTIC OR ACID SOLUTIONS BECOME CONTAMINATED AND MUST BE
                    USED BY MANY INDUSTRIES TO CLEAN METAL PARTS PRIOR TO PAINTING.  WHEN
                    OR DEGREASE PARTS. HYDROCHLORIC ACID, A SOLUTION WITH A LOW PH, IS
                    CAUSTIC SOLUTION WITH A HIGH PH, IS OFTEN USED BY INDUSTRIES TO CLEAN
                    CONSIDERED TO BE A CORROSIVE HAZARDOUS WASTE.  SODIUM HYDROXIDE, A
                    A WASTE WHICH HAS A PH OF LESS THAN 2 OR GREATER THAN 12.5 IS.   Waste name:
                    D002.   Waste code:

                    WHICH WOULD BE CONSIDERED AS IGNITABLE HAZARDOUS WASTE.
                    MATERIAL.  LACQUER THINNER IS AN EXAMPLE OF A COMMONLY USED SOLVENT
                    WHICH CAN BE OBTAINED FROM THE MANUFACTURER OR DISTRIBUTOR OF THE
                    FLASH POINT OF A WASTE IS TO REVIEW THE MATERIAL SAFETY DATA SHEET,
                    CLOSED CUP FLASH POINT TESTER.  ANOTHER METHOD OF DETERMINING THE
                    LESS THAN 140 DEGREES FAHRENHEIT AS DETERMINED BY A PENSKY-MARTENS

CHILDREN’S HOSPITAL OF LOS ANGELES  (Continued) 1000278867

TC5441284.2s   Page 26



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                    Photochemicals / photo processing waste.   Waste name:
                    541.   Waste code:

                    Other organic solids.   Waste name:
                    352.   Waste code:

                    Off-specification, aged, or surplus organics.   Waste name:
                    331.   Waste code:

                    Pharmaceutical waste.   Waste name:
                    311.   Waste code:

                    Waste oil and mixed oil.   Waste name:
                    221.   Waste code:

                    Unspecified solvent mixture.   Waste name:
                    214.   Waste code:

                    Other inorganic solid waste.   Waste name:
                    181.   Waste code:

                    Asbestos-containing waste.   Waste name:
                    151.   Waste code:

                    Aqueous solution with <10% total organic residues.   Waste name:
                    134.   Waste code:

                    Aqueous solution with 10% or more total organic residues.   Waste name:
                    133.   Waste code:

                    Large Quantity GeneratorClassification:
                    CHILDRENS HOSPITAL LOS ANGELESSite name:
                    02/27/2006Date form received by agency:

                    Small Quantity GeneratorClassification:
                    CHILDRENS HOSPITAL LOS ANGELESSite name:
                    02/27/2006Date form received by agency:

Historical Generators:

                    PHENOL.   Waste name:
                    U188.   Waste code:

                    BENZENE, NITRO-.   Waste name:
                    U169.   Waste code:

                    8BETA,8AALPHA,8BALPHA)]-
                    1,1A,2,8,8A,8B-HEXAHYDRO-8A-METHOXY-5-METHYL-, [1AS-(1AALPHA,
                    6-AMINO-8-[[(AMINOCARBONYL)OXY]METHYL]-
                    AZIRINO[2’,3’:3,4]PYRROLO[1,2-A]INDOLE-4,7-DIONE,.   Waste name:
                    U010.   Waste code:

                    ALLYL ALCOHOL.   Waste name:
                    P005.   Waste code:

                    THESE SPENT SOLVENTS AND SPENT SOLVENT MIXTURES.
                    LISTED IN F001, F002, OR F004; AND STILL BOTTOMS FROM THE RECOVERY OF

CHILDREN’S HOSPITAL OF LOS ANGELES  (Continued) 1000278867

TC5441284.2s   Page 27



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                    THE FOLLOWING SPENT HALOGENATED SOLVENTS: TETRACHLOROETHYLENE,.   Waste name:
                    F002.   Waste code:

                    CHLOROFORM.   Waste name:
                    D022.   Waste code:

                    BENZENE.   Waste name:
                    D018.   Waste code:

                    SILVER.   Waste name:
                    D011.   Waste code:

                    MERCURY.   Waste name:
                    D009.   Waste code:

                    LEAD.   Waste name:
                    D008.   Waste code:

                    CHROMIUM.   Waste name:
                    D007.   Waste code:

                    CADMIUM.   Waste name:
                    D006.   Waste code:

                    ARSENIC.   Waste name:
                    D004.   Waste code:

                    OF SUCH WASTE WOULD BY WASTE GUNPOWDER.
                    DETONATION OR EXPLOSION WHEN EXPOSED TO HEAT OR A FLAME.  ONE EXAMPLE
                    WHEN EXPOSED TO WATER OR CORROSIVE MATERIALS, OR IF IT IS CAPABLE OF
                    NORMALLY UNSTABLE, REACTS VIOLENTLY WITH WATER, GENERATES TOXIC GASES
                    A MATERIAL IS CONSIDERED TO BE A REACTIVE HAZARDOUS WASTE IF IT IS.   Waste name:
                    D003.   Waste code:

                    DISPOSED, THE WASTE WOULD BE A CORROSIVE HAZARDOUS WASTE.
                    THESE CAUSTIC OR ACID SOLUTIONS BECOME CONTAMINATED AND MUST BE
                    USED BY MANY INDUSTRIES TO CLEAN METAL PARTS PRIOR TO PAINTING.  WHEN
                    OR DEGREASE PARTS. HYDROCHLORIC ACID, A SOLUTION WITH A LOW PH, IS
                    CAUSTIC SOLUTION WITH A HIGH PH, IS OFTEN USED BY INDUSTRIES TO CLEAN
                    CONSIDERED TO BE A CORROSIVE HAZARDOUS WASTE.  SODIUM HYDROXIDE, A
                    A WASTE WHICH HAS A PH OF LESS THAN 2 OR GREATER THAN 12.5 IS.   Waste name:
                    D002.   Waste code:

                    WHICH WOULD BE CONSIDERED AS IGNITABLE HAZARDOUS WASTE.
                    MATERIAL.  LACQUER THINNER IS AN EXAMPLE OF A COMMONLY USED SOLVENT
                    WHICH CAN BE OBTAINED FROM THE MANUFACTURER OR DISTRIBUTOR OF THE
                    FLASH POINT OF A WASTE IS TO REVIEW THE MATERIAL SAFETY DATA SHEET,
                    CLOSED CUP FLASH POINT TESTER.  ANOTHER METHOD OF DETERMINING THE
                    LESS THAN 140 DEGREES FAHRENHEIT AS DETERMINED BY A PENSKY-MARTENS
                    IGNITABLE HAZARDOUS WASTES ARE THOSE WASTES WHICH HAVE A FLASHPOINT OF.   Waste name:
                    D001.   Waste code:

                    Liquids with pH < 2.   Waste name:
                    791.   Waste code:

                    Laboratory waste chemicals.   Waste name:
                    551.   Waste code:

CHILDREN’S HOSPITAL OF LOS ANGELES  (Continued) 1000278867

TC5441284.2s   Page 28



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                    Alkaline solution without metals (pH > 12.5).   Waste name:
                    122.   Waste code:

                    Large Quantity GeneratorClassification:
                    CHILDRENS HOSPITAL LOS ANGELESSite name:
                    03/20/2002Date form received by agency:

                    CYANOGEN BROMIDE (CN)BR.   Waste name:
                    U246.   Waste code:

                    PHENOL.   Waste name:
                    U188.   Waste code:

                    FORMIC ACID (C,T).   Waste name:
                    U123.   Waste code:

                    8BETA,8AALPHA,8BALPHA)]-
                    1,1A,2,8,8A,8B-HEXAHYDRO-8A-METHOXY-5-METHYL-, [1AS-(1AALPHA,
                    6-AMINO-8-[[(AMINOCARBONYL)OXY]METHYL]-
                    AZIRINO[2’,3’:3,4]PYRROLO[1,2-A]INDOLE-4,7-DIONE,.   Waste name:
                    U010.   Waste code:

                    ACRYLAMIDE.   Waste name:
                    U007.   Waste code:

                    SODIUM AZIDE.   Waste name:
                    P105.   Waste code:

                    THESE SPENT SOLVENTS AND SPENT SOLVENT MIXTURES.
                    LISTED IN F001, F002, OR F004; AND STILL BOTTOMS FROM THE RECOVERY OF
                    ONE OR MORE OF THE ABOVE NON-HALOGENATED SOLVENTS OR THOSE SOLVENTS
                    CONTAINING, BEFORE USE, A TOTAL OF TEN PERCENT OR MORE (BY VOLUME) OF
                    2-ETHOXYETHANOL, AND 2-NITROPROPANE; ALL SPENT SOLVENT MIXTURES/BLENDS
                    KETONE, CARBON DISULFIDE, ISOBUTANOL, PYRIDINE, BENZENE,
                    THE FOLLOWING SPENT NON-HALOGENATED SOLVENTS: TOLUENE, METHYL ETHYL.   Waste name:
                    F005.   Waste code:

                    MIXTURES.
                    BOTTOMS FROM THE RECOVERY OF THESE SPENT SOLVENTS AND SPENT SOLVENT
                    MORE OF THOSE SOLVENTS LISTED IN F001, F002, F004, AND F005, AND STILL
                    SOLVENTS, AND, A TOTAL OF TEN PERCENT OR MORE (BY VOLUME) OF ONE OR
                    CONTAINING, BEFORE USE, ONE OR MORE OF THE ABOVE NON-HALOGENATED
                    NON-HALOGENATED SOLVENTS; AND ALL SPENT SOLVENT MIXTURES/BLENDS
                    MIXTURES/BLENDS CONTAINING, BEFORE USE, ONLY THE ABOVE SPENT
                    ALCOHOL, CYCLOHEXANONE, AND METHANOL; ALL SPENT SOLVENT
                    ACETATE, ETHYL BENZENE, ETHYL ETHER, METHYL ISOBUTYL KETONE, N-BUTYL
                    THE FOLLOWING SPENT NON-HALOGENATED SOLVENTS: XYLENE, ACETONE, ETHYL.   Waste name:
                    F003.   Waste code:

                    SPENT SOLVENT MIXTURES.
                    F005, AND STILL BOTTOMS FROM THE RECOVERY OF THESE SPENT SOLVENTS AND
                    OF THE ABOVE HALOGENATED SOLVENTS OR THOSE LISTED IN F001, F004, OR
                    BEFORE USE, A TOTAL OF TEN PERCENT OR MORE (BY VOLUME) OF ONE OR MORE
                    1,1,2-TRICHLOROETHANE; ALL SPENT SOLVENT MIXTURES/BLENDS CONTAINING,
                    ORTHO-DICHLOROBENZENE, TRICHLOROFLUOROMETHANE, AND
                    CHLOROBENZENE, 1,1,2-TRICHLORO-1,2,2-TRIFLUOROETHANE,
                    METHYLENE CHLORIDE, TRICHLOROETHYLENE, 1,1,1-TRICHLOROETHANE,

CHILDREN’S HOSPITAL OF LOS ANGELES  (Continued) 1000278867

TC5441284.2s   Page 29



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                    DISPOSED, THE WASTE WOULD BE A CORROSIVE HAZARDOUS WASTE.
                    THESE CAUSTIC OR ACID SOLUTIONS BECOME CONTAMINATED AND MUST BE
                    USED BY MANY INDUSTRIES TO CLEAN METAL PARTS PRIOR TO PAINTING.  WHEN
                    OR DEGREASE PARTS. HYDROCHLORIC ACID, A SOLUTION WITH A LOW PH, IS
                    CAUSTIC SOLUTION WITH A HIGH PH, IS OFTEN USED BY INDUSTRIES TO CLEAN
                    CONSIDERED TO BE A CORROSIVE HAZARDOUS WASTE.  SODIUM HYDROXIDE, A
                    A WASTE WHICH HAS A PH OF LESS THAN 2 OR GREATER THAN 12.5 IS.   Waste name:
                    D002.   Waste code:

                    WHICH WOULD BE CONSIDERED AS IGNITABLE HAZARDOUS WASTE.
                    MATERIAL.  LACQUER THINNER IS AN EXAMPLE OF A COMMONLY USED SOLVENT
                    WHICH CAN BE OBTAINED FROM THE MANUFACTURER OR DISTRIBUTOR OF THE
                    FLASH POINT OF A WASTE IS TO REVIEW THE MATERIAL SAFETY DATA SHEET,
                    CLOSED CUP FLASH POINT TESTER.  ANOTHER METHOD OF DETERMINING THE
                    LESS THAN 140 DEGREES FAHRENHEIT AS DETERMINED BY A PENSKY-MARTENS
                    IGNITABLE HAZARDOUS WASTES ARE THOSE WASTES WHICH HAVE A FLASHPOINT OF.   Waste name:
                    D001.   Waste code:

                    Liquids with mercury > 20 mg/l.   Waste name:
                    725.   Waste code:

                    Laboratory waste chemicals.   Waste name:
                    551.   Waste code:

                    Photochemicals / photo processing waste.   Waste name:
                    541.   Waste code:

                    Empty containers less than 30 gallons.   Waste name:
                    513.   Waste code:

                    Other organic solids.   Waste name:
                    352.   Waste code:

                    Off-specification, aged, or surplus organics.   Waste name:
                    331.   Waste code:

                    Waste oil and mixed oil.   Waste name:
                    221.   Waste code:

                    Unspecified solvent mixture.   Waste name:
                    214.   Waste code:

                    Other inorganic solid waste.   Waste name:
                    181.   Waste code:

                    Metal sludge (see 121).   Waste name:
                    171.   Waste code:

                    Asbestos-containing waste.   Waste name:
                    151.   Waste code:

                    Aqueous solution with <10% total organic residues.   Waste name:
                    134.   Waste code:

                    Aqueous solution with 10% or more total organic residues.   Waste name:
                    133.   Waste code:

CHILDREN’S HOSPITAL OF LOS ANGELES  (Continued) 1000278867

TC5441284.2s   Page 30



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                    P009.   Waste code:

                    ACROLEIN.   Waste name:
                    P003.   Waste code:

                    THESE SPENT SOLVENTS AND SPENT SOLVENT MIXTURES.
                    LISTED IN F001, F002, OR F004; AND STILL BOTTOMS FROM THE RECOVERY OF
                    ONE OR MORE OF THE ABOVE NON-HALOGENATED SOLVENTS OR THOSE SOLVENTS
                    CONTAINING, BEFORE USE, A TOTAL OF TEN PERCENT OR MORE (BY VOLUME) OF
                    2-ETHOXYETHANOL, AND 2-NITROPROPANE; ALL SPENT SOLVENT MIXTURES/BLENDS
                    KETONE, CARBON DISULFIDE, ISOBUTANOL, PYRIDINE, BENZENE,
                    THE FOLLOWING SPENT NON-HALOGENATED SOLVENTS: TOLUENE, METHYL ETHYL.   Waste name:
                    F005.   Waste code:

                    MIXTURES.
                    BOTTOMS FROM THE RECOVERY OF THESE SPENT SOLVENTS AND SPENT SOLVENT
                    MORE OF THOSE SOLVENTS LISTED IN F001, F002, F004, AND F005, AND STILL
                    SOLVENTS, AND, A TOTAL OF TEN PERCENT OR MORE (BY VOLUME) OF ONE OR
                    CONTAINING, BEFORE USE, ONE OR MORE OF THE ABOVE NON-HALOGENATED
                    NON-HALOGENATED SOLVENTS; AND ALL SPENT SOLVENT MIXTURES/BLENDS
                    MIXTURES/BLENDS CONTAINING, BEFORE USE, ONLY THE ABOVE SPENT
                    ALCOHOL, CYCLOHEXANONE, AND METHANOL; ALL SPENT SOLVENT
                    ACETATE, ETHYL BENZENE, ETHYL ETHER, METHYL ISOBUTYL KETONE, N-BUTYL
                    THE FOLLOWING SPENT NON-HALOGENATED SOLVENTS: XYLENE, ACETONE, ETHYL.   Waste name:
                    F003.   Waste code:

                    SPENT SOLVENT MIXTURES.
                    F005, AND STILL BOTTOMS FROM THE RECOVERY OF THESE SPENT SOLVENTS AND
                    OF THE ABOVE HALOGENATED SOLVENTS OR THOSE LISTED IN F001, F004, OR
                    BEFORE USE, A TOTAL OF TEN PERCENT OR MORE (BY VOLUME) OF ONE OR MORE
                    1,1,2-TRICHLOROETHANE; ALL SPENT SOLVENT MIXTURES/BLENDS CONTAINING,
                    ORTHO-DICHLOROBENZENE, TRICHLOROFLUOROMETHANE, AND
                    CHLOROBENZENE, 1,1,2-TRICHLORO-1,2,2-TRIFLUOROETHANE,
                    METHYLENE CHLORIDE, TRICHLOROETHYLENE, 1,1,1-TRICHLOROETHANE,
                    THE FOLLOWING SPENT HALOGENATED SOLVENTS: TETRACHLOROETHYLENE,.   Waste name:
                    F002.   Waste code:

                    PYRIDINE.   Waste name:
                    D038.   Waste code:

                    CHLOROFORM.   Waste name:
                    D022.   Waste code:

                    SILVER.   Waste name:
                    D011.   Waste code:

                    MERCURY.   Waste name:
                    D009.   Waste code:

                    LEAD.   Waste name:
                    D008.   Waste code:

                    CHROMIUM.   Waste name:
                    D007.   Waste code:

                    BARIUM.   Waste name:
                    D005.   Waste code:

CHILDREN’S HOSPITAL OF LOS ANGELES  (Continued) 1000278867

TC5441284.2s   Page 31



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

            NONE SPECIFIEDAPN:
            -118.2904Longitude:
            34.09797Latitude:
            Not reportedFunding:
            NONE SPECIFIEDSite Mgmt Req:
            NORestricted Use:
            Not reportedSpecial Program:
            24Senate:
            43Assembly:
            Cleanup ChatsworthDivision Branch:
            Not reportedSupervisor:
            Not reportedProgram Manager:
            NONE SPECIFIEDLead Agency:
            NONE SPECIFIEDRegulatory Agencies:
            NONPL:
            Not reportedAcres:
            Tiered PermitSite Type Detailed:
            Tiered PermitSite Type:
            Not reportedSite Code:
            Not reportedStatus Date:
            Refer: Other AgencyStatus:
            71002816Facility ID:

ENVIROSTOR:

                    No violations foundViolation Status:

                    Small Quantity GeneratorClassification:
                    CHILDREN’S HOSP OF LOS ANGELESSite name:
                    04/25/1986Date form received by agency:

                    PHENOL.   Waste name:
                    U188.   Waste code:

                    METHANE, IODO-.   Waste name:
                    U138.   Waste code:

                    FORMIC ACID (C,T).   Waste name:
                    U123.   Waste code:

                    ETHANE, 1,1’-OXYBIS-(I).   Waste name:
                    U117.   Waste code:

                    CHLOROFORM.   Waste name:
                    U044.   Waste code:

                    POTASSIUM CYANIDE.   Waste name:
                    P098.   Waste code:

                    OSMIUM OXIDE OSO4, (T-4)-.   Waste name:
                    P087.   Waste code:

                    DIPHOSPHORAMIDE, OCTAMETHYL-.   Waste name:
                    P085.   Waste code:

                    CYANIDES (SOLUBLE CYANIDE SALTS), NOT OTHERWISE SPECIFIED.   Waste name:
                    P030.   Waste code:

                    AMMONIUM PICRATE (R).   Waste name:

CHILDREN’S HOSPITAL OF LOS ANGELES  (Continued) 1000278867

TC5441284.2s   Page 32



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                              2Type of Fuel:
                              Not reportedTank Used for:
                              00000405Tank Capacity:
                              1972Year Installed:
                              OPSBW-2Container Num:
                              001Tank Num:

                              NoneLeak Detection:
                              2Container Construction Thickness:
                              2Type of Fuel:
                              Not reportedTank Used for:
                              00000405Tank Capacity:
                              1972Year Installed:
                              OPSBW-2Container Num:
                              001Tank Num:

                              0006Total Tanks:
                              LOS ANGELES, CA 90027Owner City,St,Zip:
                              4650 SUNSET BOULEVARDOwner Address:
                              CHILDRENS’S HOSPITAL OF LOS ANOwner Name:
                              2136602450Telephone:
                              ROBERT HOLLOWELLContact Name:
                              HOSPITALOther Type:
                              OtherFacility Type:
                              00000068663Facility ID:
                              STATERegion:
                              http://geotracker.waterboards.ca.gov/ustpdfs/pdf/00026F30.pdfURL:
                              00026F30File Number:

HIST UST:

                    Not reportedSchedule Revised Date:
                    Not reportedSchedule Due Date:
                    Not reportedSchedule Document Type:
                    Not reportedSchedule Sub Area Name:
                    Not reportedSchedule Area Name:
                    Not reportedFuture Due Date:
                    Not reportedFuture Document Type:
                    Not reportedFuture Sub Area Name:
                    Not reportedFuture Area Name:

                    Not reportedComments:
                    Not reportedCompleted Date:
                    Not reportedCompleted Document Type:
                    Not reportedCompleted Sub Area Name:
                    Not reportedCompleted Area Name:

Completed Info:

                    Envirostor ID NumberAlias Type:
                    71002816Alias Name:
                    EPA (FRS #)Alias Type:
                    110002694148Alias Name:
                    EPA Identification NumberAlias Type:
                    CAD981399900Alias Name:
            NONE SPECIFIEDPotential Description:
            NONE SPECIFIEDConfirmed COC:
            NONE SPECIFIEDPotential COC:
            NONE SPECIFIEDPast Use:

CHILDREN’S HOSPITAL OF LOS ANGELES  (Continued) 1000278867

TC5441284.2s   Page 33



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                              NoneLeak Detection:
                              4Container Construction Thickness:
                              Not reportedType of Fuel:
                              WASTETank Used for:
                              00000320Tank Capacity:
                              1970Year Installed:
                              MCCB PS-2Container Num:
                              002Tank Num:

                              NoneLeak Detection:
                              4Container Construction Thickness:
                              Not reportedType of Fuel:
                              WASTETank Used for:
                              00000320Tank Capacity:
                              1970Year Installed:
                              MCCB PS-2Container Num:
                              002Tank Num:

                              Stock InventorLeak Detection:
                              10Container Construction Thickness:
                              DIESELType of Fuel:
                              PRODUCTTank Used for:
                              00001500Tank Capacity:
                              1972Year Installed:
                              # MCALISTEContainer Num:
                              002Tank Num:

                              Stock InventorLeak Detection:
                              10Container Construction Thickness:
                              DIESELType of Fuel:
                              PRODUCTTank Used for:
                              00001500Tank Capacity:
                              1972Year Installed:
                              # MCALISTEContainer Num:
                              002Tank Num:

                              Stock InventorLeak Detection:
                              10Container Construction Thickness:
                              DIESELType of Fuel:
                              PRODUCTTank Used for:
                              00010000Tank Capacity:
                              1964Year Installed:
                              #1 (UTILITContainer Num:
                              001Tank Num:

                              Stock InventorLeak Detection:
                              10Container Construction Thickness:
                              DIESELType of Fuel:
                              PRODUCTTank Used for:
                              00010000Tank Capacity:
                              1964Year Installed:
                              #1 (UTILITContainer Num:
                              001Tank Num:

                              NoneLeak Detection:
                              2Container Construction Thickness:

CHILDREN’S HOSPITAL OF LOS ANGELES  (Continued) 1000278867

TC5441284.2s   Page 34



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                              Not reportedYear Installed:
                              RCBT-1Container Num:
                              005Tank Num:

                              VisualLeak Detection:
                              8Container Construction Thickness:
                              Not reportedType of Fuel:
                              PRODUCTTank Used for:
                              00010538Tank Capacity:
                              1964Year Installed:
                              UTB-1Container Num:
                              004Tank Num:

                              VisualLeak Detection:
                              8Container Construction Thickness:
                              Not reportedType of Fuel:
                              PRODUCTTank Used for:
                              00010538Tank Capacity:
                              1964Year Installed:
                              UTB-1Container Num:
                              004Tank Num:

                              Not reportedLeak Detection:
                              6Container Construction Thickness:
                              Not reportedType of Fuel:
                              WASTETank Used for:
                              00000673Tank Capacity:
                              1972Year Installed:
                              OPSBE1Container Num:
                              003Tank Num:

                              Not reportedLeak Detection:
                              6Container Construction Thickness:
                              Not reportedType of Fuel:
                              WASTETank Used for:
                              00000673Tank Capacity:
                              1972Year Installed:
                              OPSBE1Container Num:
                              003Tank Num:

                              Stock InventorLeak Detection:
                              0.285Container Construction Thickness:
                              DIESELType of Fuel:
                              PRODUCTTank Used for:
                              00048000Tank Capacity:
                              1977Year Installed:
                              #3 D-3 UTIContainer Num:
                              003Tank Num:

                              Stock InventorLeak Detection:
                              0.285Container Construction Thickness:
                              DIESELType of Fuel:
                              PRODUCTTank Used for:
                              00048000Tank Capacity:
                              1977Year Installed:
                              #3 D-3 UTIContainer Num:
                              003Tank Num:

CHILDREN’S HOSPITAL OF LOS ANGELES  (Continued) 1000278867

TC5441284.2s   Page 35



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

FINDS:

     ActiveStatus:
     Not reportedComments:
     Not reportedEPA ID:
     Not reportedNPDES Number:
     Not reportedDUNs Number:
     Not reportedContact Phone:
     Not reportedContact:
     LOS ANGELES 900270000Mailing City,St,Zip:
     Not reportedMailing Address 2:
     4650 W SUNSET BLVDMailing Address:
     Not reportedMail To:
     2136692241Facility Phone:
     Not reportedSIC Code:
     Not reportedCortese Code:
     00041069Regulated ID:
     UTNKARegulated By:
     19000800Facility ID:

CA FID UST:

Click here for Geo Tracker PDF:

                              NoneLeak Detection:
                              6Container Construction Thickness:
                              06Type of Fuel:
                              WASTETank Used for:
                              00000383Tank Capacity:
                              1964Year Installed:
                              CLARIFIERContainer Num:
                              006Tank Num:

                              NoneLeak Detection:
                              6Container Construction Thickness:
                              06Type of Fuel:
                              WASTETank Used for:
                              00000383Tank Capacity:
                              1964Year Installed:
                              CLARIFIERContainer Num:
                              006Tank Num:

                              NoneLeak Detection:
                              6Container Construction Thickness:
                              06Type of Fuel:
                              WASTETank Used for:
                              00000598Tank Capacity:
                              Not reportedYear Installed:
                              RCBT-1Container Num:
                              005Tank Num:

                              NoneLeak Detection:
                              6Container Construction Thickness:
                              06Type of Fuel:
                              WASTETank Used for:
                              00000598Tank Capacity:

CHILDREN’S HOSPITAL OF LOS ANGELES  (Continued) 1000278867

TC5441284.2s   Page 36



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                              19County Code:
                                              1993Year:

                                              0Part. Matter 10 Micrometers and Smllr Tons/Yr:
                                              0Particulate Matter Tons/Yr:
                                              0SOX - Oxides of Sulphur Tons/Yr:
                                              6NOX - Oxides of Nitrogen Tons/Yr:
                                              2Carbon Monoxide Emissions Tons/Yr:
                                              3Reactive Organic Gases Tons/Yr:
                                              7Total Organic Hydrocarbon Gases Tons/Yr:
                                              Not reportedConsolidated Emission Reporting Rule:
                                              Not reportedCommunity Health Air Pollution Info System:
                                              SOUTH COAST AQMDAir District Name:
                                              8060SIC Code:
                                              SCAir District Name:
                                              18885Facility ID:
                                              SCAir Basin:
                                              19County Code:
                                              1990Year:

EMI:

                                   http://echo.epa.gov/detailed-facility-report?fid=110002694148DFR URL:
                                   110002694148Registry ID:
                                   1000278867Envid:

ECHO:

additional FINDS: detail in the EDR Site Report.
Click this hyperlink while viewing on your computer to access 

HAZARDOUS WASTE BIENNIAL REPORTER

STATE MASTER

corrective action activities required under RCRA.
program staff to track the notification, permit, compliance, and
and treat, store, or dispose of hazardous waste. RCRAInfo allows RCRA
events and activities related to facilities that generate, transport,
Conservation and Recovery Act (RCRA) program through the tracking of
RCRAInfo is a national information system that supports the Resource

HAZARDOUS AIR POLLUTANT MAJOR

facilities.
generators, transporters, and treatment, storage, and disposal
provides California with information on hazardous waste shipments for
California Hazardous Waste Tracking System - Datamart (HWTS-DATAMART)

and settlements.
regions and states with cooperative agreements, enforcement actions,
Toxic Substances Control Act (TSCA). The system tracks inspections in
Federal Insecticide, Fungicide, and Rodenticide Act (FIFRA) and the
NCDB (National Compliance Data Base) supports implementation of the
                    Environmental Interest/Information System

                    110002694148Registry ID:

CHILDREN’S HOSPITAL OF LOS ANGELES  (Continued) 1000278867

TC5441284.2s   Page 37



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                              Not reportedCommunity Health Air Pollution Info System:
                                              SOUTH COAST AQMDAir District Name:
                                              8062SIC Code:
                                              SCAir District Name:
                                              18885Facility ID:
                                              SCAir Basin:
                                              19County Code:
                                              1997Year:

                                              1Part. Matter 10 Micrometers and Smllr Tons/Yr:
                                              1Particulate Matter Tons/Yr:
                                              0SOX - Oxides of Sulphur Tons/Yr:
                                              10NOX - Oxides of Nitrogen Tons/Yr:
                                              3Carbon Monoxide Emissions Tons/Yr:
                                              1Reactive Organic Gases Tons/Yr:
                                              3Total Organic Hydrocarbon Gases Tons/Yr:
                                              Not reportedConsolidated Emission Reporting Rule:
                                              Not reportedCommunity Health Air Pollution Info System:
                                              SOUTH COAST AQMDAir District Name:
                                              8062SIC Code:
                                              SCAir District Name:
                                              18885Facility ID:
                                              SCAir Basin:
                                              19County Code:
                                              1996Year:

                                              1Part. Matter 10 Micrometers and Smllr Tons/Yr:
                                              1Particulate Matter Tons/Yr:
                                              0SOX - Oxides of Sulphur Tons/Yr:
                                              3NOX - Oxides of Nitrogen Tons/Yr:
                                              2Carbon Monoxide Emissions Tons/Yr:
                                              4Reactive Organic Gases Tons/Yr:
                                              5Total Organic Hydrocarbon Gases Tons/Yr:
                                              Not reportedConsolidated Emission Reporting Rule:
                                              Not reportedCommunity Health Air Pollution Info System:
                                              SOUTH COAST AQMDAir District Name:
                                              8062SIC Code:
                                              SCAir District Name:
                                              18885Facility ID:
                                              SCAir Basin:
                                              19County Code:
                                              1995Year:

                                              1Part. Matter 10 Micrometers and Smllr Tons/Yr:
                                              1Particulate Matter Tons/Yr:
                                              0SOX - Oxides of Sulphur Tons/Yr:
                                              3NOX - Oxides of Nitrogen Tons/Yr:
                                              2Carbon Monoxide Emissions Tons/Yr:
                                              4Reactive Organic Gases Tons/Yr:
                                              5Total Organic Hydrocarbon Gases Tons/Yr:
                                              Not reportedConsolidated Emission Reporting Rule:
                                              Not reportedCommunity Health Air Pollution Info System:
                                              SOUTH COAST AQMDAir District Name:
                                              8062SIC Code:
                                              SCAir District Name:
                                              18885Facility ID:
                                              SCAir Basin:

CHILDREN’S HOSPITAL OF LOS ANGELES  (Continued) 1000278867

TC5441284.2s   Page 38



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                              0SOX - Oxides of Sulphur Tons/Yr:
                                              9NOX - Oxides of Nitrogen Tons/Yr:
                                              2Carbon Monoxide Emissions Tons/Yr:
                                              4Reactive Organic Gases Tons/Yr:
                                              6Total Organic Hydrocarbon Gases Tons/Yr:
                                              Not reportedConsolidated Emission Reporting Rule:
                                              Not reportedCommunity Health Air Pollution Info System:
                                              SOUTH COAST AQMDAir District Name:
                                              8062SIC Code:
                                              SCAir District Name:
                                              18885Facility ID:
                                              SCAir Basin:
                                              19County Code:
                                              2000Year:

                                              1Part. Matter 10 Micrometers and Smllr Tons/Yr:
                                              1Particulate Matter Tons/Yr:
                                              0SOX - Oxides of Sulphur Tons/Yr:
                                              9NOX - Oxides of Nitrogen Tons/Yr:
                                              2Carbon Monoxide Emissions Tons/Yr:
                                              4Reactive Organic Gases Tons/Yr:
                                              6Total Organic Hydrocarbon Gases Tons/Yr:
                                              Not reportedConsolidated Emission Reporting Rule:
                                              Not reportedCommunity Health Air Pollution Info System:
                                              SOUTH COAST AQMDAir District Name:
                                              8062SIC Code:
                                              SCAir District Name:
                                              18885Facility ID:
                                              SCAir Basin:
                                              19County Code:
                                              1999Year:

                                              1Part. Matter 10 Micrometers and Smllr Tons/Yr:
                                              1Particulate Matter Tons/Yr:
                                              0SOX - Oxides of Sulphur Tons/Yr:
                                              9NOX - Oxides of Nitrogen Tons/Yr:
                                              2Carbon Monoxide Emissions Tons/Yr:
                                              4Reactive Organic Gases Tons/Yr:
                                              5Total Organic Hydrocarbon Gases Tons/Yr:
                                              Not reportedConsolidated Emission Reporting Rule:
                                              Not reportedCommunity Health Air Pollution Info System:
                                              SOUTH COAST AQMDAir District Name:
                                              8062SIC Code:
                                              SCAir District Name:
                                              18885Facility ID:
                                              SCAir Basin:
                                              19County Code:
                                              1998Year:

                                              1Part. Matter 10 Micrometers and Smllr Tons/Yr:
                                              1Particulate Matter Tons/Yr:
                                              0SOX - Oxides of Sulphur Tons/Yr:
                                              9NOX - Oxides of Nitrogen Tons/Yr:
                                              2Carbon Monoxide Emissions Tons/Yr:
                                              4Reactive Organic Gases Tons/Yr:
                                              6Total Organic Hydrocarbon Gases Tons/Yr:
                                              Not reportedConsolidated Emission Reporting Rule:

CHILDREN’S HOSPITAL OF LOS ANGELES  (Continued) 1000278867

TC5441284.2s   Page 39



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                              SCAir Basin:
                                              19County Code:
                                              2004Year:

                                              1Part. Matter 10 Micrometers and Smllr Tons/Yr:
                                              1Particulate Matter Tons/Yr:
                                              0SOX - Oxides of Sulphur Tons/Yr:
                                              3NOX - Oxides of Nitrogen Tons/Yr:
                                              5Carbon Monoxide Emissions Tons/Yr:
                                              4Reactive Organic Gases Tons/Yr:
                                              4Total Organic Hydrocarbon Gases Tons/Yr:
                                              Not reportedConsolidated Emission Reporting Rule:
                                              Not reportedCommunity Health Air Pollution Info System:
                                              SOUTH COAST AQMDAir District Name:
                                              8069SIC Code:
                                              SCAir District Name:
                                              18885Facility ID:
                                              SCAir Basin:
                                              19County Code:
                                              2003Year:

                                              1Part. Matter 10 Micrometers and Smllr Tons/Yr:
                                              1Particulate Matter Tons/Yr:
                                              0SOX - Oxides of Sulphur Tons/Yr:
                                              3NOX - Oxides of Nitrogen Tons/Yr:
                                              5Carbon Monoxide Emissions Tons/Yr:
                                              4Reactive Organic Gases Tons/Yr:
                                              4Total Organic Hydrocarbon Gases Tons/Yr:
                                              Not reportedConsolidated Emission Reporting Rule:
                                              Not reportedCommunity Health Air Pollution Info System:
                                              SOUTH COAST AQMDAir District Name:
                                              8069SIC Code:
                                              SCAir District Name:
                                              18885Facility ID:
                                              SCAir Basin:
                                              19County Code:
                                              2002Year:

                                              2Part. Matter 10 Micrometers and Smllr Tons/Yr:
                                              2Particulate Matter Tons/Yr:
                                              0SOX - Oxides of Sulphur Tons/Yr:
                                              22NOX - Oxides of Nitrogen Tons/Yr:
                                              11Carbon Monoxide Emissions Tons/Yr:
                                              2Reactive Organic Gases Tons/Yr:
                                              4Total Organic Hydrocarbon Gases Tons/Yr:
                                              Not reportedConsolidated Emission Reporting Rule:
                                              YCommunity Health Air Pollution Info System:
                                              SOUTH COAST AQMDAir District Name:
                                              8062SIC Code:
                                              SCAir District Name:
                                              18885Facility ID:
                                              SCAir Basin:
                                              19County Code:
                                              2001Year:

                                              1Part. Matter 10 Micrometers and Smllr Tons/Yr:
                                              1Particulate Matter Tons/Yr:

CHILDREN’S HOSPITAL OF LOS ANGELES  (Continued) 1000278867

TC5441284.2s   Page 40



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                              Not reportedConsolidated Emission Reporting Rule:
                                              Not reportedCommunity Health Air Pollution Info System:
                                              SOUTH COAST AQMDAir District Name:
                                              8069SIC Code:
                                              SCAir District Name:
                                              18885Facility ID:
                                              SCAir Basin:
                                              19County Code:
                                              2007Year:

                                              2.979Part. Matter 10 Micrometers and Smllr Tons/Yr:
                                              3.855Particulate Matter Tons/Yr:
                                              .083SOX - Oxides of Sulphur Tons/Yr:
                                              1.992NOX - Oxides of Nitrogen Tons/Yr:
                                              5.101Carbon Monoxide Emissions Tons/Yr:
                                              3.56Reactive Organic Gases Tons/Yr:
                                              4.443037070637737930Total Organic Hydrocarbon Gases Tons/Yr:
                                              Not reportedConsolidated Emission Reporting Rule:
                                              Not reportedCommunity Health Air Pollution Info System:
                                              SOUTH COAST AQMDAir District Name:
                                              8069SIC Code:
                                              SCAir District Name:
                                              18885Facility ID:
                                              SCAir Basin:
                                              19County Code:
                                              2006Year:

                                              1.0300016Part. Matter 10 Micrometers and Smllr Tons/Yr:
                                              1.0316Particulate Matter Tons/Yr:
                                              .09461SOX - Oxides of Sulphur Tons/Yr:
                                              2.078NOX - Oxides of Nitrogen Tons/Yr:
                                              5.65225Carbon Monoxide Emissions Tons/Yr:
                                              3.1489509055Reactive Organic Gases Tons/Yr:
                                              3.571785Total Organic Hydrocarbon Gases Tons/Yr:
                                              Not reportedConsolidated Emission Reporting Rule:
                                              Not reportedCommunity Health Air Pollution Info System:
                                              SOUTH COAST AQMDAir District Name:
                                              8069SIC Code:
                                              SCAir District Name:
                                              18885Facility ID:
                                              SCAir Basin:
                                              19County Code:
                                              2005Year:

                                              0.87Part. Matter 10 Micrometers and Smllr Tons/Yr:
                                              0.88016Particulate Matter Tons/Yr:
                                              0.09527SOX - Oxides of Sulphur Tons/Yr:
                                              2.8226NOX - Oxides of Nitrogen Tons/Yr:
                                              4.6034Carbon Monoxide Emissions Tons/Yr:
                                              3.7Reactive Organic Gases Tons/Yr:
                                              4.484985Total Organic Hydrocarbon Gases Tons/Yr:
                                              Not reportedConsolidated Emission Reporting Rule:
                                              YCommunity Health Air Pollution Info System:
                                              SOUTH COAST AQMDAir District Name:
                                              8069SIC Code:
                                              SCAir District Name:
                                              18885Facility ID:

CHILDREN’S HOSPITAL OF LOS ANGELES  (Continued) 1000278867

TC5441284.2s   Page 41



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                              1.03915Particulate Matter Tons/Yr:
                                              0.79522999999999999SOX - Oxides of Sulphur Tons/Yr:
                                              1.7939400000000001NOX - Oxides of Nitrogen Tons/Yr:
                                              5.7538099999999996Carbon Monoxide Emissions Tons/Yr:
                                              0.9556Reactive Organic Gases Tons/Yr:
                                              1.95662371107913Total Organic Hydrocarbon Gases Tons/Yr:
                                              Not reportedConsolidated Emission Reporting Rule:
                                              Not reportedCommunity Health Air Pollution Info System:
                                              SOUTH COAST AQMDAir District Name:
                                              8069SIC Code:
                                              SCAir District Name:
                                              18885Facility ID:
                                              SCAir Basin:
                                              19County Code:
                                              2010Year:

                                              0.78856000000000004Part. Matter 10 Micrometers and Smllr Tons/Yr:
                                              0.79000000000000004Particulate Matter Tons/Yr:
                                              5.9999999999999998E-2SOX - Oxides of Sulphur Tons/Yr:
                                              1.8400000000000001NOX - Oxides of Nitrogen Tons/Yr:
                                              4.3700000000000001Carbon Monoxide Emissions Tons/Yr:
                                              0.76344999999999996Reactive Organic Gases Tons/Yr:
                                              1.5071637311952999Total Organic Hydrocarbon Gases Tons/Yr:
                                              Not reportedConsolidated Emission Reporting Rule:
                                              Not reportedCommunity Health Air Pollution Info System:
                                              SOUTH COAST AQMDAir District Name:
                                              8069SIC Code:
                                              SCAir District Name:
                                              18885Facility ID:
                                              SCAir Basin:
                                              19County Code:
                                              2009Year:

                                              .81Part. Matter 10 Micrometers and Smllr Tons/Yr:
                                              .81Particulate Matter Tons/Yr:
                                              .06SOX - Oxides of Sulphur Tons/Yr:
                                              2.08NOX - Oxides of Nitrogen Tons/Yr:
                                              4.42Carbon Monoxide Emissions Tons/Yr:
                                              .78345Reactive Organic Gases Tons/Yr:
                                              1.529719858978989849Total Organic Hydrocarbon Gases Tons/Yr:
                                              Not reportedConsolidated Emission Reporting Rule:
                                              Not reportedCommunity Health Air Pollution Info System:
                                              SOUTH COAST AQMDAir District Name:
                                              8069SIC Code:
                                              SCAir District Name:
                                              18885Facility ID:
                                              SCAir Basin:
                                              19County Code:
                                              2008Year:

                                              2.979Part. Matter 10 Micrometers and Smllr Tons/Yr:
                                              3.855Particulate Matter Tons/Yr:
                                              .083SOX - Oxides of Sulphur Tons/Yr:
                                              1.992NOX - Oxides of Nitrogen Tons/Yr:
                                              5.101Carbon Monoxide Emissions Tons/Yr:
                                              3.56Reactive Organic Gases Tons/Yr:
                                              4.443037070637737930Total Organic Hydrocarbon Gases Tons/Yr:

CHILDREN’S HOSPITAL OF LOS ANGELES  (Continued) 1000278867

TC5441284.2s   Page 42



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                              18885Facility ID:
                                              SCAir Basin:
                                              19County Code:
                                              2014Year:

                                              1.21364592Part. Matter 10 Micrometers and Smllr Tons/Yr:
                                              1.21527Particulate Matter Tons/Yr:
                                              0.09102SOX - Oxides of Sulphur Tons/Yr:
                                              2.31242NOX - Oxides of Nitrogen Tons/Yr:
                                              6.68545Carbon Monoxide Emissions Tons/Yr:
                                              1.47705Reactive Organic Gases Tons/Yr:
                                              2.664611187Total Organic Hydrocarbon Gases Tons/Yr:
                                              Not reportedConsolidated Emission Reporting Rule:
                                              Not reportedCommunity Health Air Pollution Info System:
                                              SOUTH COAST AQMDAir District Name:
                                              8062SIC Code:
                                              SCAir District Name:
                                              18885Facility ID:
                                              SCAir Basin:
                                              19County Code:
                                              2013Year:

                                              1.28906704Part. Matter 10 Micrometers and Smllr Tons/Yr:
                                              1.29049Particulate Matter Tons/Yr:
                                              0.09757SOX - Oxides of Sulphur Tons/Yr:
                                              2.29461NOX - Oxides of Nitrogen Tons/Yr:
                                              7.13196Carbon Monoxide Emissions Tons/Yr:
                                              1.07552Reactive Organic Gases Tons/Yr:
                                              2.3179103981Total Organic Hydrocarbon Gases Tons/Yr:
                                              Not reportedConsolidated Emission Reporting Rule:
                                              Not reportedCommunity Health Air Pollution Info System:
                                              SOUTH COAST AQMDAir District Name:
                                              8069SIC Code:
                                              SCAir District Name:
                                              18885Facility ID:
                                              SCAir Basin:
                                              19County Code:
                                              2012Year:

                                              1.2604448Part. Matter 10 Micrometers and Smllr Tons/Yr:
                                              1.2635Particulate Matter Tons/Yr:
                                              0.92398SOX - Oxides of Sulphur Tons/Yr:
                                              3.13368NOX - Oxides of Nitrogen Tons/Yr:
                                              6.80264Carbon Monoxide Emissions Tons/Yr:
                                              1.2053Reactive Organic Gases Tons/Yr:
                                              2.3659471053Total Organic Hydrocarbon Gases Tons/Yr:
                                              Not reportedConsolidated Emission Reporting Rule:
                                              Not reportedCommunity Health Air Pollution Info System:
                                              SOUTH COAST AQMDAir District Name:
                                              8069SIC Code:
                                              SCAir District Name:
                                              18885Facility ID:
                                              SCAir Basin:
                                              19County Code:
                                              2011Year:

                                              1.0381047999999999Part. Matter 10 Micrometers and Smllr Tons/Yr:

CHILDREN’S HOSPITAL OF LOS ANGELES  (Continued) 1000278867

TC5441284.2s   Page 43



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                    03/05/2012TSD Copy Revd Date:
                    AZ0000337360TSD EPA ID:
                    02/01/2012TSD Date:
                    Not reportedGEN Copy Revd Date:
                    01/18/2012Gen Date:
                    CAD981399900Gen EPA ID:
                    TSDCOPYCopy Type:
                    001454923GBFManifest Doc Id:
                    2012Year:

Shipped:

                    Not reportedContact EMail Address:
                    Not reportedContact Telephone:
                    Not reportedContact City/State/Zip:
                    Not reportedContact Address:
                    Not reportedContact Name:
                    Not reportedContact Title:
                    HW Generator - LargeACT Name:
                    201ACT Code 1:
                    AACT Status:
                    201ACT Code:
                    Not reportedFID:
                    CAD981399900EPA ID:
                    2012Year:

WI MANIFEST:

                                              3.23912Part. Matter 10 Micrometers and Smllr Tons/Yr:
                                              4.04Particulate Matter Tons/Yr:
                                              0.09084SOX - Oxides of Sulphur Tons/Yr:
                                              3.34NOX - Oxides of Nitrogen Tons/Yr:
                                              14.56Carbon Monoxide Emissions Tons/Yr:
                                              1.030915Reactive Organic Gases Tons/Yr:
                                              2.2037163601Total Organic Hydrocarbon Gases Tons/Yr:
                                              Not reportedConsolidated Emission Reporting Rule:
                                              Not reportedCommunity Health Air Pollution Info System:
                                              SOUTH COAST AQMDAir District Name:
                                              8062SIC Code:
                                              SCAir District Name:
                                              18885Facility ID:
                                              SCAir Basin:
                                              19County Code:
                                              2016Year:

                                              1.07608072Part. Matter 10 Micrometers and Smllr Tons/Yr:
                                              1.09252Particulate Matter Tons/Yr:
                                              0.07676SOX - Oxides of Sulphur Tons/Yr:
                                              2.49414NOX - Oxides of Nitrogen Tons/Yr:
                                              10.92384Carbon Monoxide Emissions Tons/Yr:
                                              0.7874Reactive Organic Gases Tons/Yr:
                                              1.6907901828Total Organic Hydrocarbon Gases Tons/Yr:
                                              Not reportedConsolidated Emission Reporting Rule:
                                              Not reportedCommunity Health Air Pollution Info System:
                                              SOUTH COAST AQMDAir District Name:
                                              8062SIC Code:
                                              SCAir District Name:

CHILDREN’S HOSPITAL OF LOS ANGELES  (Continued) 1000278867

TC5441284.2s   Page 44



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                    07/21/2010Gen Date:
                    CAD981399900Gen EPA ID:
                    TSDCOPYCopy Type:
                    000435164GBFManifest Doc Id:
                    2010Year:

                    03/04/2010TSD Copy Revd Date:
                    WID988566543TSD EPA ID:
                    02/26/2010TSD Date:
                    Not reportedGEN Copy Revd Date:
                    02/03/2010Gen Date:
                    CAD981399900Gen EPA ID:
                    TSDCOPYCopy Type:
                    000429318GBFManifest Doc Id:
                    2010Year:

Shipped:

                    Not reportedContact EMail Address:
                    Not reportedContact Telephone:
                    Not reportedContact City/State/Zip:
                    Not reportedContact Address:
                    Not reportedContact Name:
                    Not reportedContact Title:
                    HW Generator - LargeACT Name:
                    201ACT Code 1:
                    AACT Status:
                    201ACT Code:
                    Not reportedFID:
                    CAD981399900EPA ID:
                    2010Year:

                    05/11/2011TSD Copy Revd Date:
                    WID988566543TSD EPA ID:
                    04/06/2011TSD Date:
                    Not reportedGEN Copy Revd Date:
                    03/09/2011Gen Date:
                    CAD981399900Gen EPA ID:
                    TSDCOPYCopy Type:
                    000435167GBFManifest Doc Id:
                    2011Year:

Shipped:

                    Not reportedContact EMail Address:
                    Not reportedContact Telephone:
                    Not reportedContact City/State/Zip:
                    Not reportedContact Address:
                    Not reportedContact Name:
                    Not reportedContact Title:
                    HW Generator - LargeACT Name:
                    201ACT Code 1:
                    AACT Status:
                    201ACT Code:
                    Not reportedFID:
                    CAD981399900EPA ID:
                    2011Year:

CHILDREN’S HOSPITAL OF LOS ANGELES  (Continued) 1000278867

TC5441284.2s   Page 45



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                    Not reportedGEN Copy Revd Date:
                    01/07/2009Gen Date:
                    CAD981399900Gen EPA ID:
                    TSDCOPYCopy Type:
                    000430504GBFManifest Doc Id:
                    2009Year:

                    08/26/2009TSD Copy Revd Date:
                    WID988566543TSD EPA ID:
                    06/25/2009TSD Date:
                    Not reportedGEN Copy Revd Date:
                    06/10/2009Gen Date:
                    CAD981399900Gen EPA ID:
                    TSDCOPYCopy Type:
                    000494939JJKManifest Doc Id:
                    2009Year:

Shipped:

                    Not reportedContact EMail Address:
                    Not reportedContact Telephone:
                    Not reportedContact City/State/Zip:
                    Not reportedContact Address:
                    Not reportedContact Name:
                    Not reportedContact Title:
                    HW Generator - LargeACT Name:
                    201ACT Code 1:
                    AACT Status:
                    201ACT Code:
                    Not reportedFID:
                    CAD981399900EPA ID:
                    2009Year:

                    12/07/2010TSD Copy Revd Date:
                    WID988566543TSD EPA ID:
                    11/08/2010TSD Date:
                    Not reportedGEN Copy Revd Date:
                    10/20/2010Gen Date:
                    CAD981399900Gen EPA ID:
                    TSDCOPYCopy Type:
                    000435166GBFManifest Doc Id:
                    2010Year:

                    05/04/2010TSD Copy Revd Date:
                    WID988566543TSD EPA ID:
                    04/22/2010TSD Date:
                    Not reportedGEN Copy Revd Date:
                    03/31/2010Gen Date:
                    CAD981399900Gen EPA ID:
                    TSDCOPYCopy Type:
                    000435165GBFManifest Doc Id:
                    2010Year:

                    09/08/2010TSD Copy Revd Date:
                    WID988566543TSD EPA ID:
                    08/11/2010TSD Date:
                    Not reportedGEN Copy Revd Date:

CHILDREN’S HOSPITAL OF LOS ANGELES  (Continued) 1000278867

TC5441284.2s   Page 46



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                    CAD981399900EPA ID:
                    2005Year:

                    Not reportedContact EMail Address:
                    0Contact Telephone:
                    0Contact City/State/Zip:
                    Not reportedContact Address:
                    Not reportedContact Name:
                    Not reportedContact Title:
                    HW Generator - LargeACT Name:
                    201ACT Code 1:
                    AACT Status:
                    201ACT Code:
                    0FID:
                    CAD981399900EPA ID:
                    2007Year:

                    Not reportedContact EMail Address:
                    Not reportedContact Telephone:
                    Not reportedContact City/State/Zip:
                    Not reportedContact Address:
                    Not reportedContact Name:
                    Not reportedContact Title:
                    HW Generator - LargeACT Name:
                    201ACT Code 1:
                    AACT Status:
                    201ACT Code:
                    Not reportedFID:
                    CAD981399900EPA ID:
                    2008Year:

                    10/13/2009TSD Copy Revd Date:
                    WID988566543TSD EPA ID:
                    08/24/2009TSD Date:
                    Not reportedGEN Copy Revd Date:
                    08/05/2009Gen Date:
                    CAD981399900Gen EPA ID:
                    TSDCOPYCopy Type:
                    000435163GBFManifest Doc Id:
                    2009Year:

                    08/12/2009TSD Copy Revd Date:
                    WID988566543TSD EPA ID:
                    06/11/2009TSD Date:
                    Not reportedGEN Copy Revd Date:
                    05/20/2009Gen Date:
                    CAD981399900Gen EPA ID:
                    TSDCOPYCopy Type:
                    000435022GBFManifest Doc Id:
                    2009Year:

                    07/15/2009TSD Copy Revd Date:
                    WID988566543TSD EPA ID:
                    01/29/2009TSD Date:

CHILDREN’S HOSPITAL OF LOS ANGELES  (Continued) 1000278867

TC5441284.2s   Page 47



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                         Not reportedTSDF ID 2:
                         NYD000632372TSDF ID 1:
                         Not reportedTrans2 EPA ID:
                         NYD980769947Trans1 EPA ID:
                         CAD981399900Generator EPA ID:
                         08/25/1987Part B Recv Date:
                         08/11/1987Part A Recv Date:
                         08/03/1987TSD Site Recv Date:
                         /  /Trans2 Recv Date:
                         07/23/1987Trans1 Recv Date:
                         07/23/1987Generator Ship Date:
                         Not reportedTrans2 State ID:
                         NY-X17593Trans1 State ID:
                         1987Year:
                         Not reportedseq:
                         KManifest Status:
                         NYA5460975Document ID:

NY MANIFEST:

                         2136692372Mailing Phone:
                         USAMailing Country:
                         Not reportedMailing Zip 4:
                         90054Mailing Zip:
                         CAMailing State:
                         LOS ANGELESMailing City:
                         Not reportedMailing Address 2:
                         PO BOX 54700-4650 SUNSET BLVDMailing Address 1:
                         ED GUYMailing Contact:
                         CHILDREN’S HOSPITALMailing Name:
                         CAD981399900EPAID:

NY MANIFEST:

                         Not reportedLocation Zip 4:
                         90054Location Zip:
                         CALocation State:
                         LOS ANGELESLocation City:
                         Not reportedTotal Tanks:
                         Not reportedLocation Address 2:
                         BPCode:
                         4650 SUNSET BLVDLocation Address 1:
                         Not reportedFacility Status:
                         CAD981399900EPA ID:
                         USACountry:

NY MANIFEST:

                    Not reportedContact EMail Address:
                    0Contact Telephone:
                    0Contact City/State/Zip:
                    Not reportedContact Address:
                    Not reportedContact Name:
                    Not reportedContact Title:
                    HW Generator - LargeACT Name:
                    201ACT Code 1:
                    AACT Status:
                    201ACT Code:
                    0FID:

CHILDREN’S HOSPITAL OF LOS ANGELES  (Continued) 1000278867

TC5441284.2s   Page 48



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                         100Specific Gravity:
                         T Chemical, physical, or biological treatment.Handling Method:
                         DM - Metal drums, barrelsContainer Type:
                         001Number of Containers:
                         P - PoundsUnits:
                         00020Quantity:
                         Not reportedWaste Code:
                         Not reportedWaste Code:
                         Not reportedWaste Code:
                         Not reportedWaste Code:
                         D002 - NON-LISTED CORROSIVE WASTESWaste Code:
                         100Specific Gravity:
                         T Chemical, physical, or biological treatment.Handling Method:
                         DM - Metal drums, barrelsContainer Type:
                         001Number of Containers:
                         P - PoundsUnits:
                         00020Quantity:
                         Not reportedWaste Code:
                         Not reportedWaste Code:
                         Not reportedWaste Code:
                         Not reportedWaste Code:
                         D001 - NON-LISTED IGNITABLE WASTESWaste Code:
                         100Specific Gravity:
                         T Chemical, physical, or biological treatment.Handling Method:
                         DM - Metal drums, barrelsContainer Type:
                         001Number of Containers:
                         P - PoundsUnits:
                         00020Quantity:
                         Not reportedWaste Code:
                         Not reportedWaste Code:
                         Not reportedWaste Code:
                         Not reportedWaste Code:
                         D003 - NON-LISTED REACTIVE WASTESWaste Code:
                         100Specific Gravity:
                         T Chemical, physical, or biological treatment.Handling Method:
                         DM - Metal drums, barrelsContainer Type:
                         001Number of Containers:
                         P - PoundsUnits:
                         00020Quantity:
                         Not reportedWaste Code:
                         Not reportedWaste Code:
                         Not reportedWaste Code:
                         Not reportedWaste Code:
                         Not reportedWaste Code:
                         D001 - NON-LISTED IGNITABLE WASTESWaste Code:
                         Not reportedMGMT Method Type Code:
                         Not reportedAlt Facility Sign Date:
                         Not reportedAlt Facility RCRA ID:
                         Not reportedManifest Ref Number:
                         Not reportedDiscr Full Reject Indicator:
                         Not reportedDiscr Partial Reject Indicator:
                         Not reportedDiscr Residue Indicator:
                         Not reportedDiscr Type Indicator:
                         Not reportedDiscr Quantity Indicator:
                         Not reportedExport Indicator:
                         Not reportedImport Indicator:
                         Not reportedManifest Tracking Number:

CHILDREN’S HOSPITAL OF LOS ANGELES  (Continued) 1000278867

TC5441284.2s   Page 49



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

05/01/1992Abated Date:
05/11/2004Entered Date:
Kim ClarkAssigned To:
YesAbated:
RO0010439Case ID:
CountyJurisdiction:
SD0010439Site ID:
Not reportedStatus:
FA0025823Facility ID:

LA Co. Site Mitigation:

-1 additional NY MANIFEST: record(s) in the EDR Site Report.
Click this hyperlink while viewing on your computer to access 

                         100Specific Gravity:
                         T Chemical, physical, or biological treatment.Handling Method:
                         DM - Metal drums, barrelsContainer Type:
                         001Number of Containers:
                         P - PoundsUnits:
                         00020Quantity:
                         D001 - NON-LISTED IGNITABLE WASTESWaste Code:
                         100Specific Gravity:
                         T Chemical, physical, or biological treatment.Handling Method:
                         DM - Metal drums, barrelsContainer Type:
                         001Number of Containers:
                         P - PoundsUnits:
                         00020Quantity:
                         D001 - NON-LISTED IGNITABLE WASTESWaste Code:

CHILDREN’S HOSPITAL OF LOS ANGELES  (Continued) 1000278867

                                                            CLOTHES PRESSERS AND CLEANERS1937     FINNERMAN SOL
                                                            Type:Year:    Name:

EDR Hist Cleaner

392 ft. Site 1 of 5 in cluster F
0.074 mi.

Relative:
Higher

Actual:
408 ft.

< 1/8 LOS ANGELES, CA  
East 4580 HOLLYWOOD BLVD    N/A
F21 EDR Hist CleanerFINNERMAN SOL 1009192556

                                                            LAUNDRIES ORIENTAL1942     ARK WING
                                                            Type:Year:    Name:

EDR Hist Cleaner

395 ft. Site 2 of 5 in cluster F
0.075 mi.

Relative:
Higher

Actual:
408 ft.

< 1/8 LOS ANGELES, CA  
East 4578 HOLLYWOOD BLVD    N/A
F22 EDR Hist CleanerARK WING 1009189665

TC5441284.2s   Page 50



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

     InactiveStatus:
     Not reportedComments:
     Not reportedEPA ID:
     Not reportedNPDES Number:
     Not reportedDUNs Number:
     Not reportedContact Phone:
     Not reportedContact:
     LOS ANGELES 900270000Mailing City,St,Zip:
     Not reportedMailing Address 2:
     1515 N VERMONT AVEMailing Address:
     Not reportedMail To:
     2130000000Facility Phone:
     Not reportedSIC Code:
     Not reportedCortese Code:
     Not reportedRegulated ID:
     UTNKIRegulated By:
     19017705Facility ID:

CA FID UST:

          0Number Of Tanks:
          Not reportedContent:
          Not reportedSTG:
          Not reportedTank Use:
          Not reportedActive Date:
          Not reportedCapacity:
          Not reportedTank Status:
          Not reportedSWRCB Tank Id:
          Not reportedOwner Tank Id:
          Not reportedCreated Date:
          Not reportedAction Date:
          Not reportedReferral Date:
          Not reportedBoard Of Equalization:
          Not reportedNumber:
          6632Comp Number:
          Not reportedStatus:

SWEEPS UST:

427 ft. Site 6 of 8 in cluster A
0.081 mi.

Relative:
Lower

Actual:
399 ft.

< 1/8 LOS ANGELES, CA  90027
SW CA FID UST1515 N VERMONT AVE    N/A
A23 CA SWEEPS USTKAISER MEDICAL CENTER S101584979

                    N. VERMONT AVENUEContact address:
                    JORGE L DIAZContact:
                    LOS ANGELES, CA 90027
                    SUNSET BLVD LEVEL 2 AREA 234Mailing address:
                    CAD981396658EPA ID:
                    LOS ANGELES, CA 90027
                    1515 N. VERMONT AVENUEFacility address:
                    KAISER PERMANENTEFacility name:
                    06/09/2016Date form received by agency:

RCRA-LQG:

427 ft. Site 7 of 8 in cluster A
0.081 mi.

Relative:
Lower

Actual:
399 ft.

< 1/8 LOS ANGELES, CA  90027
SW 1515 N. VERMONT AVENUE CAD981396658
A24 RCRA-LQGKAISER PERMANENTE 1019899295

TC5441284.2s   Page 51



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                              NoUsed oil fuel burner:
                              NoFurnace exemption:
                              NoOn-site burner exemption:
                              NoUnderground injection activity:
                              NoTreater, storer or disposer of HW:
                              NoTransporter of hazardous waste:
                              NoRecycler of hazardous waste:
                              NoMixed waste (haz. and radioactive):
                              NoU.S. importer of hazardous waste:

Handler Activities Summary:

                    Not reportedOwner/Op end date:
                    01/01/1961Owner/Op start date:
                    OwnerOwner/Operator Type:
                    PrivateLegal status:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator extension:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator fax:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator email:
                    323-783-6986Owner/operator telephone:
                    USOwner/operator country:
                    OAKLAND, CA 94612
                    KAISER PLAZAOwner/operator address:
                    KAISER FOUNDATION HOSPITALOwner/operator name:

                    Not reportedOwner/Op end date:
                    01/01/1961Owner/Op start date:
                    OperatorOwner/Operator Type:
                    PrivateLegal status:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator extension:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator fax:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator email:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator telephone:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator country:
                    Not reported
                    Not reportedOwner/operator address:
                    KAISER FOUNDATION HOSPITALOwner/operator name:

Owner/Operator Summary:

                    100 kg of that material at any time
                    hazardous waste during any calendar month, and accumulates more than
                    from the cleanup of a spill, into or on any land or water, of acutely
                    of any residue or contaminated soil, waste or other debris resulting
                    kg of acutely hazardous waste at any time; or generates 100 kg or less
                    hazardous waste during any calendar month, and accumulates more than 1
                    waste during any calendar month; or generates 1 kg or less of acutely
                    cleanup of a spill, into or on any land or water, of acutely hazardous
                    residue or contaminated soil, waste or other debris resulting from the
                    during any calendar month; or generates more than 100 kg of any
                    calendar month; or generates more than 1 kg of acutely hazardous waste
                    Handler: generates 1,000 kg or more of hazardous waste during anyDescription:
                    Large Quantity GeneratorClassification:
                    09EPA Region:
                    JORGE.L.DIAZ@KP.COMContact email:
                    323-783-6986Contact telephone:
                    USContact country:
                    LOS ANGELES, CA 90027

KAISER PERMANENTE  (Continued) 1019899295

TC5441284.2s   Page 52



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                    1,1A,2,8,8A,8B-HEXAHYDRO-8A-METHOXY-5-METHYL-, [1AS-(1AALPHA,
                    6-AMINO-8-[[(AMINOCARBONYL)OXY]METHYL]-
                    AZIRINO[2’,3’:3,4]PYRROLO[1,2-A]INDOLE-4,7-DIONE,.   Waste name:
                    U010.   Waste code:

                    ACETONE (I).   Waste name:
                    U002.   Waste code:

                    NITROGLYCERINE (R).   Waste name:
                    P081.   Waste code:

                    NICOTINE, & SALTS.   Waste name:
                    P075.   Waste code:

                    ARSENIC OXIDE AS2O3.   Waste name:
                    P012.   Waste code:

                    WHEN PRESENT AT CONCENTRATIONS GREATER THAN 0.3%
                    2H-1-BENZOPYRAN-2-ONE, 4-HYDROXY-3-(3-OXO-1-PHENYLBUTYL)-, & SALTS,.   Waste name:
                    P001.   Waste code:

                    MIXTURES.
                    BOTTOMS FROM THE RECOVERY OF THESE SPENT SOLVENTS AND SPENT SOLVENT
                    MORE OF THOSE SOLVENTS LISTED IN F001, F002, F004, AND F005, AND STILL
                    SOLVENTS, AND, A TOTAL OF TEN PERCENT OR MORE (BY VOLUME) OF ONE OR
                    CONTAINING, BEFORE USE, ONE OR MORE OF THE ABOVE NON-HALOGENATED
                    NON-HALOGENATED SOLVENTS; AND ALL SPENT SOLVENT MIXTURES/BLENDS
                    MIXTURES/BLENDS CONTAINING, BEFORE USE, ONLY THE ABOVE SPENT
                    ALCOHOL, CYCLOHEXANONE, AND METHANOL; ALL SPENT SOLVENT
                    ACETATE, ETHYL BENZENE, ETHYL ETHER, METHYL ISOBUTYL KETONE, N-BUTYL
                    THE FOLLOWING SPENT NON-HALOGENATED SOLVENTS: XYLENE, ACETONE, ETHYL.   Waste name:
                    F003.   Waste code:

                    ARSENIC.   Waste name:
                    D004.   Waste code:

                    WHICH WOULD BE CONSIDERED AS IGNITABLE HAZARDOUS WASTE.
                    MATERIAL.  LACQUER THINNER IS AN EXAMPLE OF A COMMONLY USED SOLVENT
                    WHICH CAN BE OBTAINED FROM THE MANUFACTURER OR DISTRIBUTOR OF THE
                    FLASH POINT OF A WASTE IS TO REVIEW THE MATERIAL SAFETY DATA SHEET,
                    CLOSED CUP FLASH POINT TESTER.  ANOTHER METHOD OF DETERMINING THE
                    LESS THAN 140 DEGREES FAHRENHEIT AS DETERMINED BY A PENSKY-MARTENS
                    IGNITABLE HAZARDOUS WASTES ARE THOSE WASTES WHICH HAVE A FLASHPOINT OF.   Waste name:
                    D001.   Waste code:

                    Unspecified organic liquid mixture.   Waste name:
                    343.   Waste code:

                    Pharmaceutical waste.   Waste name:
                    311.   Waste code:

                              NoUsed oil transporter:
                              NoUsed oil transfer facility:
                              NoUsed oil Specification marketer:
                              NoUsed oil fuel marketer to burner:
                              NoUser oil refiner:
                              NoUsed oil processor:

KAISER PERMANENTE  (Continued) 1019899295

TC5441284.2s   Page 53



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                    95Amount (Lbs):
                    ARSENIC OXIDE AS2O3Waste name:
                    P012Waste code:

                    51Amount (Lbs):
                    WHEN PRESENT AT CONCENTRATIONS GREATER THAN 0.3%
                    2H-1-BENZOPYRAN-2-ONE, 4-HYDROXY-3-(3-OXO-1-PHENYLBUTYL)-, & SALTS,Waste name:
                    P001Waste code:

                    80Amount (Lbs):
                    MIXTURES.
                    BOTTOMS FROM THE RECOVERY OF THESE SPENT SOLVENTS AND SPENT SOLVENT
                    MORE OF THOSE SOLVENTS LISTED IN F001, F002, F004, AND F005, AND STILL
                    SOLVENTS, AND, A TOTAL OF TEN PERCENT OR MORE (BY VOLUME) OF ONE OR
                    CONTAINING, BEFORE USE, ONE OR MORE OF THE ABOVE NON-HALOGENATED
                    NON-HALOGENATED SOLVENTS; AND ALL SPENT SOLVENT MIXTURES/BLENDS
                    MIXTURES/BLENDS CONTAINING, BEFORE USE, ONLY THE ABOVE SPENT
                    ALCOHOL, CYCLOHEXANONE, AND METHANOL; ALL SPENT SOLVENT
                    ACETATE, ETHYL BENZENE, ETHYL ETHER, METHYL ISOBUTYL KETONE, N-BUTYL
                    THE FOLLOWING SPENT NON-HALOGENATED SOLVENTS: XYLENE, ACETONE, ETHYLWaste name:
                    F003Waste code:

                    95Amount (Lbs):
                    ARSENICWaste name:
                    D004Waste code:

                    80Amount (Lbs):
                    WHICH WOULD BE CONSIDERED AS IGNITABLE HAZARDOUS WASTE.
                    MATERIAL.  LACQUER THINNER IS AN EXAMPLE OF A COMMONLY USED SOLVENT
                    WHICH CAN BE OBTAINED FROM THE MANUFACTURER OR DISTRIBUTOR OF THE
                    FLASH POINT OF A WASTE IS TO REVIEW THE MATERIAL SAFETY DATA SHEET,
                    CLOSED CUP FLASH POINT TESTER.  ANOTHER METHOD OF DETERMINING THE
                    LESS THAN 140 DEGREES FAHRENHEIT AS DETERMINED BY A PENSKY-MARTENS
                    IGNITABLE HAZARDOUS WASTES ARE THOSE WASTES WHICH HAVE A FLASHPOINT OFWaste name:
                    D001Waste code:

Annual Waste Handled:

Last Biennial Reporting Year: 2017

Biennial Reports:

                    MELPHALAN.   Waste name:
                    U150.   Waste code:

                    DAUNOMYCIN.   Waste name:
                    U059.   Waste code:

                    CYCLOPHOSPHAMIDE.   Waste name:
                    U058.   Waste code:

                    CHRYSENE.   Waste name:
                    U050.   Waste code:

                    BENZENEBUTANOIC ACID, 4-[BIS(2-CHLOROETHYL)AMINO]-.   Waste name:
                    U035.   Waste code:

                    8BETA,8AALPHA,8BALPHA)]-

KAISER PERMANENTE  (Continued) 1019899295

TC5441284.2s   Page 54



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                    No violations foundViolation Status:

                    1078.7Amount (Lbs):
                    MELPHALANWaste name:
                    U150Waste code:

                    1078.7Amount (Lbs):
                    DAUNOMYCINWaste name:
                    U059Waste code:

                    1078.7Amount (Lbs):
                    CYCLOPHOSPHAMIDEWaste name:
                    U058Waste code:

                    1129.7Amount (Lbs):
                    BENZENEBUTANOIC ACID, 4-[BIS(2-CHLOROETHYL)AMINO]-Waste name:
                    U035Waste code:

                    1129.7Amount (Lbs):
                    8BETA,8AALPHA,8BALPHA)]-
                    1,1A,2,8,8A,8B-HEXAHYDRO-8A-METHOXY-5-METHYL-, [1AS-(1AALPHA,
                    6-AMINO-8-[[(AMINOCARBONYL)OXY]METHYL]-
                    AZIRINO[2’,3’:3,4]PYRROLO[1,2-A]INDOLE-4,7-DIONE,Waste name:
                    U010Waste code:

                    51Amount (Lbs):
                    ACETONE (I)Waste name:
                    U002Waste code:

                    51Amount (Lbs):
                    NITROGLYCERINE (R)Waste name:
                    P081Waste code:

                    51Amount (Lbs):
                    NICOTINE, & SALTSWaste name:
                    P075Waste code:

KAISER PERMANENTE  (Continued) 1019899295

                    Handler: Non-Generators do not presently generate hazardous wasteDescription:
                    Non-GeneratorClassification:
                    09EPA Region:
                    Not reportedContact email:
                    323-783-3794Contact telephone:
                    USContact country:
                    LOS ANGELES, CA 90027
                    4715 SUNSET BLVDContact address:
                    MICHAEL L  URACContact:
                    CAD982025850EPA ID:
                    HOLLYWOOD, CA 90027
                    1515 N VERMONT LEVEL BFacility address:
                    KAISER PERMANENTE RESEARCH LABFacility name:
                    11/16/1998Date form received by agency:

RCRA NonGen / NLR:

427 ft. Site 8 of 8 in cluster A
0.081 mi.

Relative:
Lower

Actual:
399 ft.

< 1/8 ECHOHOLLYWOOD, CA  90027
SW FINDS1515 N VERMONT LEVEL B CAD982025850
A25 RCRA NonGen / NLRKAISER PERMANENTE RESEARCH LAB 1000380327

TC5441284.2s   Page 55



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

RCRAInfo is a national information system that supports the Resource

facilities.
generators, transporters, and treatment, storage, and disposal
provides California with information on hazardous waste shipments for
California Hazardous Waste Tracking System - Datamart (HWTS-DATAMART)
                    Environmental Interest/Information System

                    110002781008Registry ID:

FINDS:

                    No violations foundViolation Status:

                              NoUsed oil transporter:
                              NoUsed oil transfer facility:
                              NoUsed oil Specification marketer:
                              NoUsed oil fuel marketer to burner:
                              NoUser oil refiner:
                              NoUsed oil processor:
                              NoUsed oil fuel burner:
                              NoFurnace exemption:
                              NoOn-site burner exemption:
                              NoUnderground injection activity:
                              NoTreater, storer or disposer of HW:
                              NoTransporter of hazardous waste:
                              NoRecycler of hazardous waste:
                              NoMixed waste (haz. and radioactive):
                              NoU.S. importer of hazardous waste:

Handler Activities Summary:

                    Not reportedOwner/Op end date:
                    Not reportedOwner/Op start date:
                    OperatorOwner/Operator Type:
                    PrivateLegal status:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator extension:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator fax:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator email:
                    415-555-1212Owner/operator telephone:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator country:
                    NOT REQUIRED, ME 99999
                    NOT REQUIREDOwner/operator address:
                    NOT REQUIREDOwner/operator name:

                    Not reportedOwner/Op end date:
                    Not reportedOwner/Op start date:
                    OwnerOwner/Operator Type:
                    PrivateLegal status:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator extension:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator fax:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator email:
                    415-555-1212Owner/operator telephone:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator country:
                    NOT REQUIRED, ME 99999
                    NOT REQUIREDOwner/operator address:
                    KAISER PERMANENTE RESEARCH LABOwner/operator name:

Owner/Operator Summary:

KAISER PERMANENTE RESEARCH LAB  (Continued) 1000380327

TC5441284.2s   Page 56



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                   http://echo.epa.gov/detailed-facility-report?fid=110002781008DFR URL:
                                   110002781008Registry ID:
                                   1000380327Envid:

ECHO:

additional FINDS: detail in the EDR Site Report.
Click this hyperlink while viewing on your computer to access 

corrective action activities required under RCRA.
program staff to track the notification, permit, compliance, and
and treat, store, or dispose of hazardous waste. RCRAInfo allows RCRA
events and activities related to facilities that generate, transport,
Conservation and Recovery Act (RCRA) program through the tracking of

KAISER PERMANENTE RESEARCH LAB  (Continued) 1000380327

                    Not reportedOwner/Op end date:
                    Not reportedOwner/Op start date:
                    OwnerOwner/Operator Type:
                    PrivateLegal status:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator extension:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator fax:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator email:
                    213-663-0406Owner/operator telephone:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator country:
                    HOLLYWOOD, CA 90027
                    4730 HOLLYWOOD BLVDOwner/operator address:
                    JOON JA LEEOwner/operator name:

Owner/Operator Summary:

                    hazardous waste at any time
                    waste during any calendar month, and accumulates more than 1000 kg of
                    hazardous waste at any time; or generates 100 kg or less of hazardous
                    waste during any calendar month and accumulates less than 6000 kg of
                    Handler: generates more than 100 and less than 1000 kg of hazardousDescription:
                    Small Small Quantity GeneratorClassification:
                    09EPA Region:
                    Not reportedContact email:
                    213-663-0406Contact telephone:
                    USContact country:
                    HOLLYWOOD, CA 90027
                    4730 HOLLYWOOD BLVDContact address:
                    LEE  JOON JAContact:
                    HOLLYWOOD, CA 90027
                    HOLLYWOOD BLVDMailing address:
                    CAD983647462EPA ID:
                    HOLLYWOOD, CA 90027
                    4730 HOLLYWOOD BLVDFacility address:
                    HOLLYWOOD CLEANERSFacility name:
                    10/09/1992Date form received by agency:

RCRA-SQG:

431 ft. Site 5 of 10 in cluster C
0.082 mi. CA HAZNET

Relative:
Higher

Actual:
420 ft.

< 1/8 ECHOHOLLYWOOD, CA  90027
NNW FINDS4730 HOLLYWOOD BLVD CAD983647462
C26 RCRA-SQGHOLLYWOOD CLEANERS 1000818832

TC5441284.2s   Page 57



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

     .5840Tons:
     RecyclerDisposal Method:
     etc)
     Halogenated solvents (chloroforms, methyl chloride, perchloroethylene,Waste Category:
     Not reportedTSD County:
     CAD981397417TSD EPA ID:
     Not reportedGen County:
     HOLLYWOOD, CA 900270000Mailing City,St,Zip:
     4730 HOLLYWOOD BLVDMailing Address:
     Not reportedMailing Name:
     2136630406Telephone:
     JOON JA LEEContact:
     CAD983647462GEPAID:
     1996Year:
     1000818832envid:

HAZNET:

                                   http://echo.epa.gov/detailed-facility-report?fid=110002884022DFR URL:
                                   110002884022Registry ID:
                                   1000818832Envid:

ECHO:

additional FINDS: detail in the EDR Site Report.
Click this hyperlink while viewing on your computer to access 

corrective action activities required under RCRA.
program staff to track the notification, permit, compliance, and
and treat, store, or dispose of hazardous waste. RCRAInfo allows RCRA
events and activities related to facilities that generate, transport,
Conservation and Recovery Act (RCRA) program through the tracking of
RCRAInfo is a national information system that supports the Resource
                    Environmental Interest/Information System

                    110002884022Registry ID:

FINDS:

                    No violations foundViolation Status:

                              NoUsed oil transporter:
                              NoUsed oil transfer facility:
                              NoUsed oil Specification marketer:
                              NoUsed oil fuel marketer to burner:
                              NoUser oil refiner:
                              NoUsed oil processor:
                              NoUsed oil fuel burner:
                              NoFurnace exemption:
                              NoOn-site burner exemption:
                              NoUnderground injection activity:
                              NoTreater, storer or disposer of HW:
                              NoTransporter of hazardous waste:
                              NoRecycler of hazardous waste:
                              NoMixed waste (haz. and radioactive):
                              NoU.S. importer of hazardous waste:

Handler Activities Summary:

HOLLYWOOD CLEANERS  (Continued) 1000818832

TC5441284.2s   Page 58



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

     Los AngelesFacility County:
     Not reportedMethod Decode:
     Not reportedCat Decode:

HOLLYWOOD CLEANERS  (Continued) 1000818832

                    900270125Reg Id:
                    LTNKAReg By:
                    19Facility County Code:
                    CORTESERegion:

HIST CORTESE:

440 ft. Site 3 of 4 in cluster E
0.083 mi.

Relative:
Lower

Actual:
394 ft.

< 1/8 LOS ANGELES, CA  90027
SSE 4560 SUNSET    N/A
E27 CA HIST CORTESECHILDRENS HOSPITAL S105024696

                         yrong@waterboards.ca.govEmail:
                         Los AngelesCity:
                         320 W. 4TH ST., SUITE 200Address:
                         LOS ANGELES RWQCB (REGION 4)Organization Name:
                         YUE RONGContact Name:
                         Regional Board CaseworkerContact Type:
                         T0603700742Global Id:

                         Not reportedPhone Number:
                         eloy.luna@lacity.orgEmail:
                         LOS ANGELESCity:
                         200 North Main Street, Suite 1780Address:
                         LOS ANGELES, CITY OFOrganization Name:
                         ELOY LUNAContact Name:
                         Local Agency CaseworkerContact Type:
                         T0603700742Global Id:

LUST:

                              Not reportedSite History:
                              Other Solvent or Non-Petroleum HydrocarbonPotential Contaminants of Concern:
                              Aquifer used for drinking water supplyPotential Media Affect:
                              Not reportedLocal Case Number:
                              Not reportedFile Location:
                              LOS ANGELES, CITY OFLocal Agency:
                              900270125RB Case Number:
                              YRCase Worker:
                              07/26/1996Status Date:
                              Completed - Case ClosedStatus:
                              -118.2870618Longitude:
                              34.0981766Latitude:
                              T0603700742Global Id:
                              http://geotracker.waterboards.ca.gov/profile_report.asp?global_id=T0603700742Geo Track:
                              LUST Cleanup SiteCase Type:
                              LOS ANGELES RWQCB (REGION 4)Lead Agency:

LUST:

440 ft. Site 4 of 4 in cluster E
0.083 mi.

Relative:
Lower

Actual:
394 ft.

< 1/8 LOS FELIZ, CA  90027
SSE 4560 SUNSET BLVD W    N/A
E28 CA LUSTCHILDRENS HOSPITAL S101297269

TC5441284.2s   Page 59



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                    Not reportedPreliminary Site Assessment Workplan Submitted:
                                                    UNKSource of Cleanup Funding:
                                                    9900.440149421229885519832728Approx. Dist To Production Well (ft):
                Not reportedWell Name:
                FIRSTONE SCOUT RESRVTN (BOY SCOUT COUN)Water System:
                OLD#092292-06Operator:
                UNKLeak Source:
                UNKCause of Leak:
                Not reportedHow Leak Stopped:
                Not reportedHow Leak Discovered:
                                                    7/26/1996Date the Case was Closed:
                                                    8/22/1996Date Case Last Changed on Database:
                Not reportedDate Leak Stopped:
                Not reportedDate Confirmation Began:
                8/31/1992Date Leak Record Entered:
                                                    8/26/1992Date Leak First Reported:
                Not reportedDate Leak Discovered:
                Not reportedEnforcement Type:
                Not reportedCross Street:
                19050Local Agency:
                UNKStaff:
                W0603700547W Global ID:
                T0603700742Global ID:
                                                    Not reportedAbatement Method Used at the Site:
                GroundwaterCase Type:
                Not reportedLocal Case No:
                Not reportedSubstance Quantity:
                HydrocarbonsSubstance:
                Case ClosedStatus:
                900270125Facility Id:
                Los AngelesCounty:
                04Regional Board:
                4Region:

LUST REG 4:

                         07/26/1996Status Date:
                         Completed - Case ClosedStatus:
                         T0603700742Global Id:

                         05/26/1992Status Date:
                         Open - Site AssessmentStatus:
                         T0603700742Global Id:

                         05/26/1992Status Date:
                         Open - Case Begin DateStatus:
                         T0603700742Global Id:

LUST:

                         Leak ReportedAction:
                         08/26/1992Date:
                         OtherAction Type:
                         T0603700742Global Id:

LUST:

                         Not reportedPhone Number:

CHILDRENS HOSPITAL  (Continued) S101297269

TC5441284.2s   Page 60



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                08/22/96 WELL ABANDONMENT REPORTSummary:
                1900547-001GENAssigned Name:
                Not reportedSuspended:
                Not reportedCleanup Fund Id:
                Not reportedPriority:
                Not reportedBeneficial Use:
                PEJLocal Agency Staff:
                34.0981766 / -1Lat/Long:
                LUSTProgram:
                4560 SUNSET BLVD, LOS ANGELES  CA  90027RP Address:
                CHILDRENS HOSPITAL OF LAResponsible Party:
                Not reportedOwner Contact:
                Not reportedOrganization:
                Not reportedSoil Qualifier:
                Not reportedGW Qualifier:
                                                    Not reportedSignificant Interim Remedial Action Taken:
                                                    Not reportedHist Max MTBE Conc in Soil:
                                                    Not reportedHist Max MTBE Conc in Groundwater:
                                                    Not reportedHistorical Max MTBE Date:
                                                    Not reportedEnforcement Action Date:
                                                    Not reportedPost Remedial Action Monitoring Began:
                                                    Not reportedRemedial Action Underway:
                                                    Not reportedRemediation Plan Submitted:
                                                    5/26/1992Pollution Characterization Began:
                                                    Not reportedPreliminary Site Assessment Began:

CHILDRENS HOSPITAL  (Continued) S101297269

                    Not reportedOwner/operator country:
                    CAMP HILL, PA 17011
                    30 HUNTER LNOwner/operator address:
                    RITE AIDOwner/operator name:

Owner/Operator Summary:

                    hazardous waste at any time
                    waste during any calendar month, and accumulates more than 1000 kg of
                    hazardous waste at any time; or generates 100 kg or less of hazardous
                    waste during any calendar month and accumulates less than 6000 kg of
                    Handler: generates more than 100 and less than 1000 kg of hazardousDescription:
                    Small Small Quantity GeneratorClassification:
                    09EPA Region:
                    Not reportedContact email:
                    800-769-6248Contact telephone:
                    USContact country:
                    LOS ANGELES, CA 90027
                    1533 N VERMONT AVEContact address:
                    GAIL  RATAJCZAKContact:
                    CA0000228510EPA ID:
                    LOS ANGELES, CA 90027
                    1533 N VERMONT AVEFacility address:
                    RITE AID NO 5435Facility name:
                    07/25/1997Date form received by agency:

RCRA-SQG:

442 ft. Site 5 of 5 in cluster D
0.084 mi.

Relative:
Higher

Actual:
409 ft.

< 1/8 ECHOLOS ANGELES, CA  90027
West FINDS1533 N VERMONT AVE CA0000228510
D29 RCRA-SQGRITE AID NO 5435 1000904966

TC5441284.2s   Page 61



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                   http://echo.epa.gov/detailed-facility-report?fid=110002615714DFR URL:
                                   110002615714Registry ID:
                                   1000904966Envid:

ECHO:

additional FINDS: detail in the EDR Site Report.
Click this hyperlink while viewing on your computer to access 

corrective action activities required under RCRA.
program staff to track the notification, permit, compliance, and
and treat, store, or dispose of hazardous waste. RCRAInfo allows RCRA
events and activities related to facilities that generate, transport,
Conservation and Recovery Act (RCRA) program through the tracking of
RCRAInfo is a national information system that supports the Resource
                    Environmental Interest/Information System

                    110002615714Registry ID:

FINDS:

                    No violations foundViolation Status:

                              NoUsed oil transporter:
                              NoUsed oil transfer facility:
                              NoUsed oil Specification marketer:
                              NoUsed oil fuel marketer to burner:
                              NoUser oil refiner:
                              NoUsed oil processor:
                              NoUsed oil fuel burner:
                              NoFurnace exemption:
                              NoOn-site burner exemption:
                              NoUnderground injection activity:
                              NoTreater, storer or disposer of HW:
                              NoTransporter of hazardous waste:
                              NoRecycler of hazardous waste:
                              NoMixed waste (haz. and radioactive):
                              NoU.S. importer of hazardous waste:

Handler Activities Summary:

                    Not reportedOwner/Op end date:
                    Not reportedOwner/Op start date:
                    OwnerOwner/Operator Type:
                    PrivateLegal status:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator extension:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator fax:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator email:
                    717-761-2633Owner/operator telephone:

RITE AID NO 5435  (Continued) 1000904966

TC5441284.2s   Page 62



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                            GASOLINE AND OIL SERVICE STATIONS1942     GOLDBAUM PINKUS
                                                            Type:Year:    Name:

EDR Hist Auto

489 ft. Site 1 of 3 in cluster G
0.093 mi.

Relative:
Lower

Actual:
395 ft.

< 1/8 LOS ANGELES, CA  
SE 4546 S SUNSET BLVD    N/A
G30 EDR Hist AutoGOLDBAUM PINKUS 1009082582

                    Not reportedOwner/Op end date:
                    12/06/1998Owner/Op start date:
                    OperatorOwner/Operator Type:
                    PrivateLegal status:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator extension:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator fax:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator email:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator telephone:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator country:
                    CAMP HILL, CA 17011
                    HUNTER LNOwner/operator address:
                    RITE AID CORPORATIONOwner/operator name:

Owner/Operator Summary:

                    100 kg of that material at any time
                    hazardous waste during any calendar month, and accumulates more than
                    from the cleanup of a spill, into or on any land or water, of acutely
                    of any residue or contaminated soil, waste or other debris resulting
                    kg of acutely hazardous waste at any time; or generates 100 kg or less
                    hazardous waste during any calendar month, and accumulates more than 1
                    waste during any calendar month; or generates 1 kg or less of acutely
                    cleanup of a spill, into or on any land or water, of acutely hazardous
                    residue or contaminated soil, waste or other debris resulting from the
                    during any calendar month; or generates more than 100 kg of any
                    calendar month; or generates more than 1 kg of acutely hazardous waste
                    Handler: generates 1,000 kg or more of hazardous waste during anyDescription:
                    Large Quantity GeneratorClassification:
                    09EPA Region:
                    SSCAIATI@RITEAID.COMContact email:
                    717-730-8225Contact telephone:
                    Not reportedContact country:
                    CAMP HILL, CA 17011
                    HUNTER LNContact address:
                    STEPHANIE A CAIATIContact:
                    CAMP HILL, CA 17011
                    HUNTER LNMailing address:
                    CAL000281021EPA ID:
                    LOS ANGELES, CA 90027
                    1637 N VERMONT AVEFacility address:
                    RITE AID #5435Facility name:
                    03/01/2014Date form received by agency:

RCRA-LQG:

493 ft. Site 1 of 6 in cluster H
0.093 mi.

Relative:
Higher

Actual:
421 ft.

< 1/8 LOS ANGELES, CA  90027
NNW 1637 N VERMONT AVE CAL000281021
H31 RCRA-LQGRITE AID #5435 1016954146

TC5441284.2s   Page 63



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                    SELENIUM.   Waste name:
                    D010.   Waste code:

                    MERCURY.   Waste name:
                    D009.   Waste code:

                    CHROMIUM.   Waste name:
                    D007.   Waste code:

                    DISPOSED, THE WASTE WOULD BE A CORROSIVE HAZARDOUS WASTE.
                    THESE CAUSTIC OR ACID SOLUTIONS BECOME CONTAMINATED AND MUST BE
                    USED BY MANY INDUSTRIES TO CLEAN METAL PARTS PRIOR TO PAINTING.  WHEN
                    OR DEGREASE PARTS. HYDROCHLORIC ACID, A SOLUTION WITH A LOW PH, IS
                    CAUSTIC SOLUTION WITH A HIGH PH, IS OFTEN USED BY INDUSTRIES TO CLEAN
                    CONSIDERED TO BE A CORROSIVE HAZARDOUS WASTE.  SODIUM HYDROXIDE, A
                    A WASTE WHICH HAS A PH OF LESS THAN 2 OR GREATER THAN 12.5 IS.   Waste name:
                    D002.   Waste code:

                    WHICH WOULD BE CONSIDERED AS IGNITABLE HAZARDOUS WASTE.
                    MATERIAL.  LACQUER THINNER IS AN EXAMPLE OF A COMMONLY USED SOLVENT
                    WHICH CAN BE OBTAINED FROM THE MANUFACTURER OR DISTRIBUTOR OF THE
                    FLASH POINT OF A WASTE IS TO REVIEW THE MATERIAL SAFETY DATA SHEET,
                    CLOSED CUP FLASH POINT TESTER.  ANOTHER METHOD OF DETERMINING THE
                    LESS THAN 140 DEGREES FAHRENHEIT AS DETERMINED BY A PENSKY-MARTENS
                    IGNITABLE HAZARDOUS WASTES ARE THOSE WASTES WHICH HAVE A FLASHPOINT OF.   Waste name:
                    D001.   Waste code:

                              NoUsed oil transporter:
                              NoUsed oil transfer facility:
                              NoUsed oil Specification marketer:
                              NoUsed oil fuel marketer to burner:
                              NoUser oil refiner:
                              NoUsed oil processor:
                              NoUsed oil fuel burner:
                              NoFurnace exemption:
                              NoOn-site burner exemption:
                              NoUnderground injection activity:
                              NoTreater, storer or disposer of HW:
                              NoTransporter of hazardous waste:
                              NoRecycler of hazardous waste:
                              NoMixed waste (haz. and radioactive):
                              NoU.S. importer of hazardous waste:

Handler Activities Summary:

                    Not reportedOwner/Op end date:
                    12/06/1998Owner/Op start date:
                    OwnerOwner/Operator Type:
                    PrivateLegal status:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator extension:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator fax:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator email:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator telephone:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator country:
                    CAMP HILL, CA 17011
                    HUNTER LNOwner/operator address:
                    THRIFTY PAYLESSOwner/operator name:

RITE AID #5435  (Continued) 1016954146

TC5441284.2s   Page 64



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                    No violations foundViolation Status:

                    NICOTINE, & SALTS.   Waste name:
                    P075.   Waste code:

                    WHEN PRESENT AT CONCENTRATIONS GREATER THAN 0.3%
                    2H-1-BENZOPYRAN-2-ONE, 4-HYDROXY-3-(3-OXO-1-PHENYLBUTYL)-, & SALTS,.   Waste name:
                    P001.   Waste code:

                    CRESOL.   Waste name:
                    D026.   Waste code:

                    M-CRESOL.   Waste name:
                    D024.   Waste code:

                    SILVER.   Waste name:
                    D011.   Waste code:

RITE AID #5435  (Continued) 1016954146

                    Not reportedOwner/operator address:
                    THRIFTY PAYLESS INCOwner/operator name:

Owner/Operator Summary:

                    hazardous waste
                    the cleanup of a spill, into or on any land or water, of acutely
                    any residue or contaminated soil, waste or other debris resulting from
                    time: 1 kg or less of acutely hazardous waste; or 100 kg or less of
                    hazardous waste during any calendar month, and accumulates at any
                    from the cleanup of a spill, into or on any land or water, of acutely
                    of any residue or contaminated soil, waste or other debris resulting
                    land or water, of acutely hazardous waste; or generates 100 kg or less
                    other debris resulting from the cleanup of a spill, into or on any
                    waste; or 100 kg or less of any residue or contaminated soil, waste or
                    month, and accumulates at any time: 1 kg or less of acutely hazardous
                    or generates 1 kg or less of acutely hazardous waste per calendar
                    month, and accumulates 1000 kg or less of hazardous waste at any time;
                    Handler: generates 100 kg or less of hazardous waste per calendarDescription:
                    Conditionally Exempt Small Quantity GeneratorClassification:
                    09EPA Region:
                    EHS@RITEAID.COMContact email:
                    (717) 975-8643Contact telephone:
                    USContact country:
                    CAMP HILL, PA 17011
                    HUNTER LNContact address:
                    DAVID W CROZIERContact:
                    CAMP HILL, PA 17011
                    HUNTER LNMailing address:
                    CAR000249441EPA ID:
                    LOS ANGELES, CA 900275312
                    1637 N VERMONT AVEFacility address:
                    RITE AID NO 5435Facility name:
                    04/14/2017Date form received by agency:

RCRA-CESQG:

493 ft. Site 2 of 6 in cluster H
0.093 mi.

Relative:
Higher

Actual:
421 ft.

< 1/8 LOS ANGELES, CA  90027
NNW 1637 N VERMONT AVE CAR000249441
H32 RCRA-CESQGRITE AID NO 5435 1016955199

TC5441284.2s   Page 65



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                              NoUnderground injection activity:
                              NoTreater, storer or disposer of HW:
                              NoTransporter of hazardous waste:
                              NoRecycler of hazardous waste:
                              NoMixed waste (haz. and radioactive):
                              NoU.S. importer of hazardous waste:

Handler Activities Summary:

                    Not reportedOwner/Op end date:
                    12/06/1998Owner/Op start date:
                    OperatorOwner/Operator Type:
                    PrivateLegal status:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator extension:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator fax:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator email:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator telephone:
                    USOwner/operator country:
                    Not reported
                    Not reportedOwner/operator address:
                    THRIFTY PAYLESS INCOwner/operator name:

                    Not reportedOwner/Op end date:
                    02/03/1998Owner/Op start date:
                    OwnerOwner/Operator Type:
                    PrivateLegal status:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator extension:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator fax:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator email:
                    626-650-8880Owner/operator telephone:
                    USOwner/operator country:
                    GLENDORA, CA 91740
                    1118 E ROUTE 66Owner/operator address:
                    DMDE PROPERTIES LPOwner/operator name:

                    Not reportedOwner/Op end date:
                    02/03/1998Owner/Op start date:
                    OwnerOwner/Operator Type:
                    PrivateLegal status:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator extension:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator fax:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator email:
                    (626) 650-8880Owner/operator telephone:
                    USOwner/operator country:
                    GLENDORA, CA 91740
                    E ROUTE 66Owner/operator address:
                    DMDE PROPERTIES LPOwner/operator name:

                    Not reportedOwner/Op end date:
                    12/06/1998Owner/Op start date:
                    OperatorOwner/Operator Type:
                    PrivateLegal status:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator extension:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator fax:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator email:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator telephone:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator country:
                    Not reported

RITE AID NO 5435  (Continued) 1016955199

TC5441284.2s   Page 66



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                    LESS THAN 140 DEGREES FAHRENHEIT AS DETERMINED BY A PENSKY-MARTENS
                    IGNITABLE HAZARDOUS WASTES ARE THOSE WASTES WHICH HAVE A FLASHPOINT OF.   Waste name:
                    D001.   Waste code:

                    Liquids with pH < 2.   Waste name:
                    791.   Waste code:

                    Detergent and soap.   Waste name:
                    561.   Waste code:

                    Photochemicals / photo processing waste.   Waste name:
                    541.   Waste code:

                    Other organic solids.   Waste name:
                    352.   Waste code:

                    Unspecified organic liquid mixture.   Waste name:
                    343.   Waste code:

                    Off-specification, aged, or surplus organics.   Waste name:
                    331.   Waste code:

                    Pharmaceutical waste.   Waste name:
                    311.   Waste code:

                    Latex waste.   Waste name:
                    291.   Waste code:

                    Polychlorinated biphenyls and material containing PCB’s.   Waste name:
                    261.   Waste code:

                    Unspecified oil-containing waste.   Waste name:
                    223.   Waste code:

                    Unspecified solvent mixture.   Waste name:
                    214.   Waste code:

                    Off-specification, aged, or surplus inorganics.   Waste name:
                    141.   Waste code:

                    perchlorate, and sulfide anions)
                    bromate, chlorate, cyanide, fluoride, hypochlorite, nitrite,
                    Aqueous solution (2 < pH < 12.5) containing reactive anions (azide,.   Waste name:
                    131.   Waste code:

                    Alkaline solution without metals (pH > 12.5).   Waste name:
                    122.   Waste code:

                              NoUsed oil transporter:
                              NoUsed oil transfer facility:
                              NoUsed oil Specification marketer:
                              NoUsed oil fuel marketer to burner:
                              NoUser oil refiner:
                              NoUsed oil processor:
                              NoUsed oil fuel burner:
                              NoFurnace exemption:
                              NoOn-site burner exemption:

RITE AID NO 5435  (Continued) 1016955199

TC5441284.2s   Page 67



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                    bromate, chlorate, cyanide, fluoride, hypochlorite, nitrite,
                    Aqueous solution (2 < pH < 12.5) containing reactive anions (azide,.   Waste name:
                    131.   Waste code:

                    Large Quantity GeneratorClassification:
                    RITE AID NO 5435Site name:
                    08/05/2014Date form received by agency:

Historical Generators:

                    CARBARYL (OR) 1-NAPHTHALENOL, METHYLCARBAMATE.   Waste name:
                    U279.   Waste code:

                    PHENOL.   Waste name:
                    U188.   Waste code:

                    NAPHTHALENE.   Waste name:
                    U165.   Waste code:

                    NICOTINE, & SALTS.   Waste name:
                    P075.   Waste code:

                    WHEN PRESENT AT CONCENTRATIONS GREATER THAN 0.3%
                    2H-1-BENZOPYRAN-2-ONE, 4-HYDROXY-3-(3-OXO-1-PHENYLBUTYL)-, & SALTS,.   Waste name:
                    P001.   Waste code:

                    CRESOL.   Waste name:
                    D026.   Waste code:

                    M-CRESOL.   Waste name:
                    D024.   Waste code:

                    SILVER.   Waste name:
                    D011.   Waste code:

                    SELENIUM.   Waste name:
                    D010.   Waste code:

                    MERCURY.   Waste name:
                    D009.   Waste code:

                    CHROMIUM.   Waste name:
                    D007.   Waste code:

                    DISPOSED, THE WASTE WOULD BE A CORROSIVE HAZARDOUS WASTE.
                    THESE CAUSTIC OR ACID SOLUTIONS BECOME CONTAMINATED AND MUST BE
                    USED BY MANY INDUSTRIES TO CLEAN METAL PARTS PRIOR TO PAINTING.  WHEN
                    OR DEGREASE PARTS. HYDROCHLORIC ACID, A SOLUTION WITH A LOW PH, IS
                    CAUSTIC SOLUTION WITH A HIGH PH, IS OFTEN USED BY INDUSTRIES TO CLEAN
                    CONSIDERED TO BE A CORROSIVE HAZARDOUS WASTE.  SODIUM HYDROXIDE, A
                    A WASTE WHICH HAS A PH OF LESS THAN 2 OR GREATER THAN 12.5 IS.   Waste name:
                    D002.   Waste code:

                    WHICH WOULD BE CONSIDERED AS IGNITABLE HAZARDOUS WASTE.
                    MATERIAL.  LACQUER THINNER IS AN EXAMPLE OF A COMMONLY USED SOLVENT
                    WHICH CAN BE OBTAINED FROM THE MANUFACTURER OR DISTRIBUTOR OF THE
                    FLASH POINT OF A WASTE IS TO REVIEW THE MATERIAL SAFETY DATA SHEET,
                    CLOSED CUP FLASH POINT TESTER.  ANOTHER METHOD OF DETERMINING THE

RITE AID NO 5435  (Continued) 1016955199

TC5441284.2s   Page 68



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                    WHEN PRESENT AT CONCENTRATIONS GREATER THAN 0.3%
                    2H-1-BENZOPYRAN-2-ONE, 4-HYDROXY-3-(3-OXO-1-PHENYLBUTYL)-, & SALTS,.   Waste name:
                    P001.   Waste code:

                    CRESOL.   Waste name:
                    D026.   Waste code:

                    M-CRESOL.   Waste name:
                    D024.   Waste code:

                    SILVER.   Waste name:
                    D011.   Waste code:

                    SELENIUM.   Waste name:
                    D010.   Waste code:

                    MERCURY.   Waste name:
                    D009.   Waste code:

                    CHROMIUM.   Waste name:
                    D007.   Waste code:

                    DISPOSED, THE WASTE WOULD BE A CORROSIVE HAZARDOUS WASTE.
                    THESE CAUSTIC OR ACID SOLUTIONS BECOME CONTAMINATED AND MUST BE
                    USED BY MANY INDUSTRIES TO CLEAN METAL PARTS PRIOR TO PAINTING.  WHEN
                    OR DEGREASE PARTS. HYDROCHLORIC ACID, A SOLUTION WITH A LOW PH, IS
                    CAUSTIC SOLUTION WITH A HIGH PH, IS OFTEN USED BY INDUSTRIES TO CLEAN
                    CONSIDERED TO BE A CORROSIVE HAZARDOUS WASTE.  SODIUM HYDROXIDE, A
                    A WASTE WHICH HAS A PH OF LESS THAN 2 OR GREATER THAN 12.5 IS.   Waste name:
                    D002.   Waste code:

                    WHICH WOULD BE CONSIDERED AS IGNITABLE HAZARDOUS WASTE.
                    MATERIAL.  LACQUER THINNER IS AN EXAMPLE OF A COMMONLY USED SOLVENT
                    WHICH CAN BE OBTAINED FROM THE MANUFACTURER OR DISTRIBUTOR OF THE
                    FLASH POINT OF A WASTE IS TO REVIEW THE MATERIAL SAFETY DATA SHEET,
                    CLOSED CUP FLASH POINT TESTER.  ANOTHER METHOD OF DETERMINING THE
                    LESS THAN 140 DEGREES FAHRENHEIT AS DETERMINED BY A PENSKY-MARTENS
                    IGNITABLE HAZARDOUS WASTES ARE THOSE WASTES WHICH HAVE A FLASHPOINT OF.   Waste name:
                    D001.   Waste code:

                    Liquids with pH < 2.   Waste name:
                    791.   Waste code:

                    Pharmaceutical waste.   Waste name:
                    311.   Waste code:

                    Pesticides and other waste associated with pesticide production.   Waste name:
                    232.   Waste code:

                    Unspecified solvent mixture.   Waste name:
                    214.   Waste code:

                    Off-specification, aged, or surplus inorganics.   Waste name:
                    141.   Waste code:

                    perchlorate, and sulfide anions)

RITE AID NO 5435  (Continued) 1016955199

TC5441284.2s   Page 69



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                    No violations foundViolation Status:

                    NICOTINE, & SALTS.   Waste name:
                    P075.   Waste code:

RITE AID NO 5435  (Continued) 1016955199

                              NoUsed oil transfer facility:
                              NoUsed oil Specification marketer:
                              NoUsed oil fuel marketer to burner:
                              NoUser oil refiner:
                              NoUsed oil processor:
                              NoUsed oil fuel burner:
                              NoFurnace exemption:
                              NoOn-site burner exemption:
                              NoUnderground injection activity:
                              NoTreater, storer or disposer of HW:
                              NoTransporter of hazardous waste:
                              NoRecycler of hazardous waste:
                              NoMixed waste (haz. and radioactive):
                              NoU.S. importer of hazardous waste:

Handler Activities Summary:

                    Not reportedOwner/Op end date:
                    Not reportedOwner/Op start date:
                    OwnerOwner/Operator Type:
                    PrivateLegal status:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator extension:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator fax:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator email:
                    714-670-5402Owner/operator telephone:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator country:
                    ARTESIA, CA 90702
                    P O BOX 6038Owner/operator address:
                    ARCO PRODUCTS COOwner/operator name:

Owner/Operator Summary:

                    Handler: Non-Generators do not presently generate hazardous wasteDescription:
                    Non-GeneratorClassification:
                    09EPA Region:
                    Not reportedContact email:
                    949-450-1010Contact telephone:
                    USContact country:
                    LAKE FOREST, CA 92630-2797
                    25422 TRABUCO RD NO 105Contact address:
                    SHARON  ZUNIGAContact:
                    ARTESIA, CA 90702-6038
                    P O BOX 6038Mailing address:
                    CAR000100156EPA ID:
                    LOS ANGELES, CA 90027
                    1630 N VERMONT AVEFacility address:
                    PRESTIGE STATIONS INC NO 6261Facility name:
                    07/24/2002Date form received by agency:

RCRA NonGen / NLR:

499 ft. Site 6 of 10 in cluster C
0.095 mi.

Relative:
Higher

Actual:
419 ft.

< 1/8 ECHOLOS ANGELES, CA  90027
NNW FINDS1630 N VERMONT AVE CAR000100156
C33 RCRA NonGen / NLRPRESTIGE STATIONS INC NO 6261 1004677663

TC5441284.2s   Page 70



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                   http://echo.epa.gov/detailed-facility-report?fid=110012238578DFR URL:
                                   110012238578Registry ID:
                                   1004677663Envid:

ECHO:

additional FINDS: detail in the EDR Site Report.
Click this hyperlink while viewing on your computer to access 

corrective action activities required under RCRA.
program staff to track the notification, permit, compliance, and
and treat, store, or dispose of hazardous waste. RCRAInfo allows RCRA
events and activities related to facilities that generate, transport,
Conservation and Recovery Act (RCRA) program through the tracking of
RCRAInfo is a national information system that supports the Resource
                    Environmental Interest/Information System

                    110012238578Registry ID:

FINDS:

                    No violations foundViolation Status:

                    BENZENE.   Waste name:
                    D018.   Waste code:

                    Not Defined.   Waste name:
                    D000.   Waste code:

                              NoUsed oil transporter:

PRESTIGE STATIONS INC NO 6261  (Continued) 1004677663

                    -118.29172Longitude:
                    34.10085Latitude:
                    Los Angeles City Fire DepartmentPermitting Agency:
                    Not reportedFacility ID:

                    -118.2902095Longitude:
                    34.1019931Latitude:
                    LOS ANGELES, CITY OFPermitting Agency:
                    24988Facility ID:

UST:

499 ft. Site 7 of 10 in cluster C
0.095 mi.

Relative:
Higher

Actual:
419 ft.

< 1/8 LOS ANGELES, CA  90027
NNW 1630 N VERMONT AVE    N/A
C34 CA USTHOLLYWOOD SHELL U003937996

TC5441284.2s   Page 71



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                         Monitoring Report - Semi-AnnuallyAction:
                         01/15/2011Date:
                         RESPONSEAction Type:
                         T0603700743Global Id:

                         Soil and Water Investigation WorkplanAction:
                         06/27/2011Date:
                         RESPONSEAction Type:
                         T0603700743Global Id:

                         Staff LetterAction:
                         06/15/2009Date:
                         ENFORCEMENTAction Type:
                         T0603700743Global Id:

LUST:

                         Not reportedPhone Number:
                         eloy.luna@lacity.orgEmail:
                         LOS ANGELESCity:
                         200 North Main Street, Suite 1780Address:
                         LOS ANGELES, CITY OFOrganization Name:
                         ELOY LUNAContact Name:
                         Local Agency CaseworkerContact Type:
                         T0603700743Global Id:

                         Not reportedPhone Number:
                         dave.bjostad@waterboards.ca.govEmail:
                         Los AngelesCity:
                         320 W. 4th Street, Suite 200Address:
                         LOS ANGELES RWQCB (REGION 4)Organization Name:
                         DAVID M. BJOSTADContact Name:
                         Regional Board CaseworkerContact Type:
                         T0603700743Global Id:

LUST:

                              Not reportedSite History:
                              GasolinePotential Contaminants of Concern:
                              Aquifer used for drinking water supplyPotential Media Affect:
                              Not reportedLocal Case Number:
                              Regional BoardFile Location:
                              LOS ANGELES, CITY OFLocal Agency:
                              900270134RB Case Number:
                              DMBCase Worker:
                              06/14/2017Status Date:
                              Open - Verification MonitoringStatus:
                              -118.291615Longitude:
                              34.1009444Latitude:
                              T0603700743Global Id:
                              http://geotracker.waterboards.ca.gov/profile_report.asp?global_id=T0603700743Geo Track:
                              LUST Cleanup SiteCase Type:
                              LOS ANGELES RWQCB (REGION 4)Lead Agency:

LUST:

499 ft. Site 8 of 10 in cluster C
0.095 mi.

Relative:
Higher

Actual:
419 ft.

< 1/8 LOS FELIZ, CA  90027
NNW 1630 VERMONT AVE N    N/A
C35 CA LUSTSHELL/TESORO (FORMER ARCO #5025) S105051432

TC5441284.2s   Page 72



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                         RESPONSEAction Type:
                         T0603700743Global Id:

                         Monitoring Report - QuarterlyAction:
                         01/15/2006Date:
                         RESPONSEAction Type:
                         T0603700743Global Id:

                         Monitoring Report - QuarterlyAction:
                         10/15/2006Date:
                         RESPONSEAction Type:
                         T0603700743Global Id:

                         Monitoring Report - QuarterlyAction:
                         01/15/2007Date:
                         RESPONSEAction Type:
                         T0603700743Global Id:

                         Monitoring Report - QuarterlyAction:
                         07/15/2006Date:
                         RESPONSEAction Type:
                         T0603700743Global Id:

                         Monitoring Report - QuarterlyAction:
                         01/15/2005Date:
                         RESPONSEAction Type:
                         T0603700743Global Id:

                         Staff LetterAction:
                         06/27/2002Date:
                         ENFORCEMENTAction Type:
                         T0603700743Global Id:

                         Staff LetterAction:
                         07/02/2003Date:
                         ENFORCEMENTAction Type:
                         T0603700743Global Id:

                         Monitoring Report - QuarterlyAction:
                         07/15/2005Date:
                         RESPONSEAction Type:
                         T0603700743Global Id:

                         Health and Safety Code Section 25296.10(c)Action:
                         08/06/2014Date:
                         ENFORCEMENTAction Type:
                         T0603700743Global Id:

                         Monitoring Report - QuarterlyAction:
                         10/15/2004Date:
                         RESPONSEAction Type:
                         T0603700743Global Id:

                         Monitoring Report - QuarterlyAction:
                         04/15/2004Date:
                         RESPONSEAction Type:
                         T0603700743Global Id:

SHELL/TESORO (FORMER ARCO #5025)  (Continued) S105051432

TC5441284.2s   Page 73



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                         CAP/RAP - Feasibility Study ReportAction:
                         10/15/2003Date:
                         RESPONSEAction Type:
                         T0603700743Global Id:

                         Monitoring Report - QuarterlyAction:
                         04/15/2003Date:
                         RESPONSEAction Type:
                         T0603700743Global Id:

                         Monitoring Report - QuarterlyAction:
                         10/15/2008Date:
                         RESPONSEAction Type:
                         T0603700743Global Id:

                         Site Visit / Inspection / SamplingAction:
                         06/27/2014Date:
                         ENFORCEMENTAction Type:
                         T0603700743Global Id:

                         Health and Safety Code Section 25296.10(c)Action:
                         01/30/2015Date:
                         ENFORCEMENTAction Type:
                         T0603700743Global Id:

                         Staff LetterAction:
                         03/31/2000Date:
                         ENFORCEMENTAction Type:
                         T0603700743Global Id:

                         Other Report / DocumentAction:
                         01/15/2017Date:
                         RESPONSEAction Type:
                         T0603700743Global Id:

                         Monitoring Report - Semi-AnnuallyAction:
                         07/15/2010Date:
                         RESPONSEAction Type:
                         T0603700743Global Id:

                         Site Visit / Inspection / SamplingAction:
                         05/12/2016Date:
                         ENFORCEMENTAction Type:
                         T0603700743Global Id:

                         Monitoring Report - Semi-AnnuallyAction:
                         01/15/2013Date:
                         RESPONSEAction Type:
                         T0603700743Global Id:

                         Monitoring Report - Semi-AnnuallyAction:
                         04/15/2011Date:
                         RESPONSEAction Type:
                         T0603700743Global Id:

                         Monitoring Report - QuarterlyAction:
                         10/15/2003Date:

SHELL/TESORO (FORMER ARCO #5025)  (Continued) S105051432

TC5441284.2s   Page 74



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                         RESPONSEAction Type:
                         T0603700743Global Id:

                         Monitoring Report - Semi-AnnuallyAction:
                         07/15/2017Date:
                         RESPONSEAction Type:
                         T0603700743Global Id:

                         ExcavationAction:
                         07/01/1989Date:
                         REMEDIATIONAction Type:
                         T0603700743Global Id:

                         ExcavationAction:
                         01/04/2001Date:
                         REMEDIATIONAction Type:
                         T0603700743Global Id:

                         Free Product RemovalAction:
                         01/01/1990Date:
                         REMEDIATIONAction Type:
                         T0603700743Global Id:

                         Monitoring Report - QuarterlyAction:
                         04/15/2009Date:
                         RESPONSEAction Type:
                         T0603700743Global Id:

                         Monitoring Report - QuarterlyAction:
                         01/15/2008Date:
                         RESPONSEAction Type:
                         T0603700743Global Id:

                         Monitoring Report - QuarterlyAction:
                         01/15/2003Date:
                         RESPONSEAction Type:
                         T0603700743Global Id:

                         Monitoring Report - QuarterlyAction:
                         01/11/2018Date:
                         RESPONSEAction Type:
                         T0603700743Global Id:

                         Request for Closure - Regulator RespondedAction:
                         05/28/2014Date:
                         RESPONSEAction Type:
                         T0603700743Global Id:

                         Other Report / DocumentAction:
                         09/15/2014Date:
                         RESPONSEAction Type:
                         T0603700743Global Id:

                         Monitoring Report - QuarterlyAction:
                         07/15/2003Date:
                         RESPONSEAction Type:
                         T0603700743Global Id:

SHELL/TESORO (FORMER ARCO #5025)  (Continued) S105051432

TC5441284.2s   Page 75



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                         Monitoring Report - Semi-AnnuallyAction:
                         01/15/2012Date:
                         RESPONSEAction Type:
                         T0603700743Global Id:

                         Monitoring Report - Semi-AnnuallyAction:
                         07/15/2015Date:
                         RESPONSEAction Type:
                         T0603700743Global Id:

                         Monitoring Report - Semi-AnnuallyAction:
                         07/15/2009Date:
                         RESPONSEAction Type:
                         T0603700743Global Id:

                         Health and Safety Code Section 25296.10(c)Action:
                         09/13/2016Date:
                         ENFORCEMENTAction Type:
                         T0603700743Global Id:

                         Monitoring Report - QuarterlyAction:
                         01/15/2009Date:
                         RESPONSEAction Type:
                         T0603700743Global Id:

                         Monitoring Report - QuarterlyAction:
                         04/15/2005Date:
                         RESPONSEAction Type:
                         T0603700743Global Id:

                         Soil Vapor Extraction (SVE)Action:
                         03/14/2011Date:
                         REMEDIATIONAction Type:
                         T0603700743Global Id:

                         Soil Vapor Extraction (SVE)Action:
                         12/22/1999Date:
                         REMEDIATIONAction Type:
                         T0603700743Global Id:

                         Monitoring Report - Semi-AnnuallyAction:
                         01/15/2017Date:
                         RESPONSEAction Type:
                         T0603700743Global Id:

                         Monitoring Report - Semi-AnnuallyAction:
                         01/15/2016Date:
                         RESPONSEAction Type:
                         T0603700743Global Id:

                         Monitoring Report - Semi-AnnuallyAction:
                         01/15/2014Date:
                         RESPONSEAction Type:
                         T0603700743Global Id:

                         Monitoring Report - Semi-AnnuallyAction:
                         07/15/2013Date:

SHELL/TESORO (FORMER ARCO #5025)  (Continued) S105051432

TC5441284.2s   Page 76



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                         RESPONSEAction Type:
                         T0603700743Global Id:

                         Other Report / DocumentAction:
                         07/31/2002Date:
                         RESPONSEAction Type:
                         T0603700743Global Id:

                         Monitoring Report - QuarterlyAction:
                         07/15/2002Date:
                         RESPONSEAction Type:
                         T0603700743Global Id:

                         Monitoring Report - QuarterlyAction:
                         04/15/2002Date:
                         RESPONSEAction Type:
                         T0603700743Global Id:

                         Monitoring Report - QuarterlyAction:
                         10/15/2007Date:
                         RESPONSEAction Type:
                         T0603700743Global Id:

                         Monitoring Report - QuarterlyAction:
                         01/15/2004Date:
                         RESPONSEAction Type:
                         T0603700743Global Id:

                         Request for Closure - Regulator RespondedAction:
                         07/07/2016Date:
                         RESPONSEAction Type:
                         T0603700743Global Id:

                         Access AgreementAction:
                         11/10/2015Date:
                         ENFORCEMENTAction Type:
                         T0603700743Global Id:

                         Monitoring Report - QuarterlyAction:
                         07/15/2004Date:
                         RESPONSEAction Type:
                         T0603700743Global Id:

                         Well Installation Workplan - Regulator RespondedAction:
                         09/15/2014Date:
                         RESPONSEAction Type:
                         T0603700743Global Id:

                         Monitoring Report - Semi-AnnuallyAction:
                         07/15/2016Date:
                         RESPONSEAction Type:
                         T0603700743Global Id:

                         Clean Up Fund - 5-Year Review SummaryAction:
                         01/06/2017Date:
                         RESPONSEAction Type:
                         T0603700743Global Id:

SHELL/TESORO (FORMER ARCO #5025)  (Continued) S105051432

TC5441284.2s   Page 77



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                         Leak ReportedAction:
                         08/03/1989Date:
                         OtherAction Type:
                         T0603700743Global Id:

                         Monitoring Report - QuarterlyAction:
                         07/15/2008Date:
                         RESPONSEAction Type:
                         T0603700743Global Id:

                         Monitoring Report - Semi-AnnuallyAction:
                         01/15/2010Date:
                         RESPONSEAction Type:
                         T0603700743Global Id:

                         Interim Remedial Action PlanAction:
                         02/08/2010Date:
                         RESPONSEAction Type:
                         T0603700743Global Id:

                         Monitoring Report - QuarterlyAction:
                         04/15/2006Date:
                         RESPONSEAction Type:
                         T0603700743Global Id:

                         Staff LetterAction:
                         11/24/2004Date:
                         ENFORCEMENTAction Type:
                         T0603700743Global Id:

                         Monitoring Report - Semi-AnnuallyAction:
                         01/15/2018Date:
                         RESPONSEAction Type:
                         T0603700743Global Id:

                         Monitoring Report - Semi-AnnuallyAction:
                         07/15/2014Date:
                         RESPONSEAction Type:
                         T0603700743Global Id:

                         Monitoring Report - Semi-AnnuallyAction:
                         01/15/2015Date:
                         RESPONSEAction Type:
                         T0603700743Global Id:

                         Monitoring Report - Semi-AnnuallyAction:
                         07/15/2012Date:
                         RESPONSEAction Type:
                         T0603700743Global Id:

                         Monitoring Report - QuarterlyAction:
                         04/15/2008Date:
                         RESPONSEAction Type:
                         T0603700743Global Id:

                         Monitoring Report - QuarterlyAction:
                         10/15/2002Date:

SHELL/TESORO (FORMER ARCO #5025)  (Continued) S105051432

TC5441284.2s   Page 78



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                04Regional Board:
                4Region:

LUST REG 4:

                         06/14/2017Status Date:
                         Open - Verification MonitoringStatus:
                         T0603700743Global Id:

                         07/15/2016Status Date:
                         Open - Verification MonitoringStatus:
                         T0603700743Global Id:

                         03/14/2011Status Date:
                         Open - RemediationStatus:
                         T0603700743Global Id:

                         02/11/2009Status Date:
                         Open - Verification MonitoringStatus:
                         T0603700743Global Id:

                         12/22/1999Status Date:
                         Open - RemediationStatus:
                         T0603700743Global Id:

                         01/28/1998Status Date:
                         Open - Verification MonitoringStatus:
                         T0603700743Global Id:

                         05/27/1997Status Date:
                         Open - Site AssessmentStatus:
                         T0603700743Global Id:

                         12/31/1991Status Date:
                         Open - Site AssessmentStatus:
                         T0603700743Global Id:

                         08/03/1989Status Date:
                         Open - Case Begin DateStatus:
                         T0603700743Global Id:

LUST:

                         Monitoring Report - QuarterlyAction:
                         10/15/2005Date:
                         RESPONSEAction Type:
                         T0603700743Global Id:

                         Monitoring Report - QuarterlyAction:
                         07/15/2007Date:
                         RESPONSEAction Type:
                         T0603700743Global Id:

                         Monitoring Report - QuarterlyAction:
                         04/15/2007Date:
                         RESPONSEAction Type:
                         T0603700743Global Id:

SHELL/TESORO (FORMER ARCO #5025)  (Continued) S105051432

TC5441284.2s   Page 79



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                OFF-SITE ASSESSMENT UPDATE II; 9/25/00 3RD QTR GW MON RPT 2000;
                (FREE PRODUCT SITE);  5/8/00 OFF-SITE ASSESSMENT UPDATE;  8/15/00Summary:
                1900547-001GENAssigned Name:
                Not reportedSuspended:
                Not reportedCleanup Fund Id:
                Not reportedPriority:
                Not reportedBeneficial Use:
                PEJLocal Agency Staff:
                34.1009444 / -1Lat/Long:
                LUSTProgram:
                P.O. BOX 5077RP Address:
                RAYMOND VOSEResponsible Party:
                Not reportedOwner Contact:
                Not reportedOrganization:
                Not reportedSoil Qualifier:
                Not reportedGW Qualifier:
                                                    Not reportedSignificant Interim Remedial Action Taken:
                                                    Not reportedHist Max MTBE Conc in Soil:
                                                    300000Hist Max MTBE Conc in Groundwater:
                                                    1/1/1965Historical Max MTBE Date:
                                                    Not reportedEnforcement Action Date:
                                                    1/28/1998Post Remedial Action Monitoring Began:
                                                    Not reportedRemedial Action Underway:
                                                    Not reportedRemediation Plan Submitted:
                                                    5/27/1997Pollution Characterization Began:
                                                    12/31/1991Preliminary Site Assessment Began:
                                                    Not reportedPreliminary Site Assessment Workplan Submitted:
                                                    UNKSource of Cleanup Funding:
                                                    11560.822845350184096775920145Approx. Dist To Production Well (ft):
                Not reportedWell Name:
                FIRSTONE SCOUT RESRVTN (BOY SCOUT COUN)Water System:
                Not reportedOperator:
                UNKLeak Source:
                UNKCause of Leak:
                Not reportedHow Leak Stopped:
                Not reportedHow Leak Discovered:
                                                    Not reportedDate the Case was Closed:
                                                    7/15/2002Date Case Last Changed on Database:
                Not reportedDate Leak Stopped:
                Not reportedDate Confirmation Began:
                1/11/1991Date Leak Record Entered:
                                                    8/3/1989Date Leak First Reported:
                Not reportedDate Leak Discovered:
                SELEnforcement Type:
                Not reportedCross Street:
                19050Local Agency:
                TCSStaff:
                W0603700547W Global ID:
                T0603700743Global ID:
                                                    Not reportedAbatement Method Used at the Site:
                GroundwaterCase Type:
                Not reportedLocal Case No:
                Not reportedSubstance Quantity:
                GasolineSubstance:
                Post remedial action monitoringStatus:
                900270134Facility Id:
                Los AngelesCounty:

SHELL/TESORO (FORMER ARCO #5025)  (Continued) S105051432

TC5441284.2s   Page 80



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                1/18/01 4TH QTR GW MON RPT 2000; 2/6/01 GW MON WELL INSTALLATION RPT

SHELL/TESORO (FORMER ARCO #5025)  (Continued) S105051432

                    900270134Reg Id:
                    LTNKAReg By:
                    19Facility County Code:
                    CORTESERegion:

HIST CORTESE:

499 ft. Site 9 of 10 in cluster C
0.095 mi.

Relative:
Higher

Actual:
419 ft.

< 1/8 LOS ANGELES, CA  
NNW 1630 VERMONT    N/A
C36 CA HIST CORTESEARCO #5025 S101307374

          ActiveStatus:

          Not reportedNumber Of Tanks:
          REG UNLEADEDContent:
          PSTG:
          M.V. FUELTank Use:
          04-20-88Active Date:
          8000Capacity:
          ATank Status:
          19-050-001613-000002SWRCB Tank Id:
          Not reportedOwner Tank Id:
          02-29-88Created Date:
          03-17-94Action Date:
          08-24-92Referral Date:
          44-011882Board Of Equalization:
          1Number:
          1613Comp Number:
          ActiveStatus:

          3Number Of Tanks:
          REG UNLEADEDContent:
          PSTG:
          M.V. FUELTank Use:
          04-20-88Active Date:
          8000Capacity:
          ATank Status:
          19-050-001613-000001SWRCB Tank Id:
          Not reportedOwner Tank Id:
          02-29-88Created Date:
          03-17-94Action Date:
          08-24-92Referral Date:
          44-011882Board Of Equalization:
          1Number:
          1613Comp Number:
          ActiveStatus:

SWEEPS UST:

499 ft. Site 10 of 10 in cluster C
0.095 mi.

Relative:
Higher

Actual:
419 ft.

< 1/8 CA FID USTLOS ANGELES, CA  90028
NNW CA HIST UST1630 N VERMONT AVE    N/A
C37 CA SWEEPS USTMINI MARKET/GAS STATION S101584197

TC5441284.2s   Page 81



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

     Not reportedNPDES Number:
     Not reportedDUNs Number:
     Not reportedContact Phone:
     Not reportedContact:
     LOS ANGELES 900280000Mailing City,St,Zip:
     Not reportedMailing Address 2:
     17315  STUDEBAKER RDMailing Address:
     Not reportedMail To:
     2130000000Facility Phone:
     Not reportedSIC Code:
     Not reportedCortese Code:
     00026763Regulated ID:
     UTNKARegulated By:
     19009394Facility ID:

CA FID UST:

Click here for Geo Tracker PDF:

                              Not reportedLeak Detection:
                              Not reportedContainer Construction Thickness:
                              Not reportedType of Fuel:
                              Not reportedTank Used for:
                              Not reportedTank Capacity:
                              Not reportedYear Installed:
                              Not reportedContainer Num:
                              Not reportedTank Num:

                              Not reportedTotal Tanks:
                              Not reportedOwner City,St,Zip:
                              Not reportedOwner Address:
                              Not reportedOwner Name:
                              Not reportedTelephone:
                              Not reportedContact Name:
                              Not reportedOther Type:
                              Not reportedFacility Type:
                              Not reportedFacility ID:
                              Not reportedRegion:
                              http://geotracker.waterboards.ca.gov/ustpdfs/pdf/000264B3.pdfURL:
                              000264B3File Number:

HIST UST:

          Not reportedNumber Of Tanks:
          REG UNLEADEDContent:
          PSTG:
          M.V. FUELTank Use:
          04-20-88Active Date:
          6000Capacity:
          ATank Status:
          19-050-001613-000003SWRCB Tank Id:
          Not reportedOwner Tank Id:
          02-29-88Created Date:
          03-17-94Action Date:
          08-24-92Referral Date:
          44-011882Board Of Equalization:
          1Number:
          1613Comp Number:

MINI MARKET/GAS STATION  (Continued) S101584197

TC5441284.2s   Page 82



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

     ActiveStatus:
     Not reportedComments:
     Not reportedEPA ID:

MINI MARKET/GAS STATION  (Continued) S101584197

                              Not reportedOwner City,St,Zip:
                              Not reportedOwner Address:
                              Not reportedOwner Name:
                              Not reportedTelephone:
                              Not reportedContact Name:
                              Not reportedOther Type:
                              Not reportedFacility Type:
                              Not reportedFacility ID:
                              Not reportedRegion:
                              http://geotracker.waterboards.ca.gov/ustpdfs/pdf/00028E48.pdfURL:
                              00028E48File Number:

HIST UST:

          Not reportedNumber Of Tanks:
          WASTE OILContent:
          WSTG:
          OILTank Use:
          04-20-88Active Date:
          550Capacity:
          ATank Status:
          19-050-000193-000002SWRCB Tank Id:
          Not reportedOwner Tank Id:
          02-29-88Created Date:
          03-15-94Action Date:
          01-15-93Referral Date:
          44-011036Board Of Equalization:
          9Number:
          193Comp Number:
          ActiveStatus:

          2Number Of Tanks:
          REG UNLEADEDContent:
          PSTG:
          M.V. FUELTank Use:
          04-20-88Active Date:
          9950Capacity:
          ATank Status:
          19-050-000193-000001SWRCB Tank Id:
          Not reportedOwner Tank Id:
          02-29-88Created Date:
          03-15-94Action Date:
          01-15-93Referral Date:
          44-011036Board Of Equalization:
          9Number:
          193Comp Number:
          ActiveStatus:

SWEEPS UST:

515 ft. Site 3 of 5 in cluster F
0.098 mi.

Relative:
Lower

Actual:
405 ft.

< 1/8 CA FID USTHOLLYWOOD, CA  90027
ESE CA HIST UST4550 HOLLYWOOD BLVD    N/A
F38 CA SWEEPS USTU-HAUL OF LOS ANGELES/C S101583496

TC5441284.2s   Page 83



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

     ActiveStatus:
     Not reportedComments:
     Not reportedEPA ID:
     Not reportedNPDES Number:
     Not reportedDUNs Number:
     Not reportedContact Phone:
     Not reportedContact:
     HOLLYWOOD 900270000Mailing City,St,Zip:
     Not reportedMailing Address 2:
     657 S ATLANTICMailing Address:
     Not reportedMail To:
     2132689110Facility Phone:
     Not reportedSIC Code:
     Not reportedCortese Code:
     00003510Regulated ID:
     UTNKARegulated By:
     19003999Facility ID:

CA FID UST:

Click here for Geo Tracker PDF:

                              Not reportedLeak Detection:
                              Not reportedContainer Construction Thickness:
                              Not reportedType of Fuel:
                              Not reportedTank Used for:
                              Not reportedTank Capacity:
                              Not reportedYear Installed:
                              Not reportedContainer Num:
                              Not reportedTank Num:

                              Not reportedTotal Tanks:

U-HAUL OF LOS ANGELES/C  (Continued) S101583496

                              PRODUCTTank Used for:
                              00009950Tank Capacity:
                              1978Year Installed:
                              1Container Num:
                              001Tank Num:

                              0002Total Tanks:
                              EAST LOS ANGELES, CA 90022Owner City,St,Zip:
                              657 S. ATLANTICOwner Address:
                              U-HAUL COOwner Name:
                              2136643516Telephone:
                              Not reportedContact Name:
                              Not reportedOther Type:
                              OtherFacility Type:
                              00000003510Facility ID:
                              STATERegion:
                              Not reportedURL:
                              Not reportedFile Number:

HIST UST:

515 ft. Site 4 of 5 in cluster F
0.098 mi.

Relative:
Lower

Actual:
405 ft.

< 1/8 LOS ANGELES, CA  90027
ESE 4550 HOLLYWOOD BLVD    N/A
F39 CA HIST USTHOLLYWOOD MOVING CENTER U001561188

TC5441284.2s   Page 84



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                              Stock Inventor, NoneLeak Detection:
                              10Container Construction Thickness:
                              WASTE OILType of Fuel:
                              WASTETank Used for:
                              00000550Tank Capacity:
                              1978Year Installed:
                              2Container Num:
                              002Tank Num:

                              Stock Inventor, NoneLeak Detection:
                              1/4Container Construction Thickness:
                              REGULARType of Fuel:

HOLLYWOOD MOVING CENTER  (Continued) U001561188

                                                            CLOTHES PRESSERS AND CLEANERS1937     BARTOO LILLIAN MRS
                                                            Type:Year:    Name:

EDR Hist Cleaner

525 ft. Site 5 of 5 in cluster F
0.099 mi.

Relative:
Lower

Actual:
405 ft.

< 1/8 LOS ANGELES, CA  
ESE 4548 HOLLYWOOD BLVD    N/A
F40 EDR Hist CleanerBARTOO LILLIAN MRS 1009191958

                                                            GASOLINE AND OIL SERVICE STATIONS1937     GOLDBAUM PINKUS
                                                            Type:Year:    Name:

EDR Hist Auto

534 ft. Site 2 of 3 in cluster G
0.101 mi.

Relative:
Lower

Actual:
395 ft.

< 1/8 LOS ANGELES, CA  
SE 4540 S SUNSET BLVD    N/A
G41 EDR Hist AutoGOLDBAUM PINKUS 1009081526

                                                            AUTOMOBILE REPAIRING1924     MC CALL   PAYNE INC
                                                            Type:Year:    Name:

EDR Hist Auto

552 ft. Site 1 of 3 in cluster I
0.105 mi.

Relative:
Lower

Actual:
391 ft.

< 1/8 LOS ANGELES, CA  
SW 4700 S SUNSET BLVD    N/A
I42 EDR Hist AutoMC CALL   PAYNE INC 1009080907

TC5441284.2s   Page 85



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

          Not reportedStatus:

          Not reportedNumber Of Tanks:
          REG UNLEADEDContent:
          PRODUCTSTG:
          M.V. FUELTank Use:
          Not reportedActive Date:
          9000Capacity:
          Not reportedTank Status:
          19-050-000289-000003SWRCB Tank Id:
          Not reportedOwner Tank Id:
          Not reportedCreated Date:
          Not reportedAction Date:
          Not reportedReferral Date:
          44-011096Board Of Equalization:
          Not reportedNumber:
          289Comp Number:
          Not reportedStatus:

          Not reportedNumber Of Tanks:
          REG UNLEADEDContent:
          PRODUCTSTG:
          M.V. FUELTank Use:
          Not reportedActive Date:
          9000Capacity:
          Not reportedTank Status:
          19-050-000289-000002SWRCB Tank Id:
          Not reportedOwner Tank Id:
          Not reportedCreated Date:
          Not reportedAction Date:
          Not reportedReferral Date:
          44-011096Board Of Equalization:
          Not reportedNumber:
          289Comp Number:
          Not reportedStatus:

          4Number Of Tanks:
          REG UNLEADEDContent:
          PRODUCTSTG:
          M.V. FUELTank Use:
          Not reportedActive Date:
          9000Capacity:
          Not reportedTank Status:
          19-050-000289-000001SWRCB Tank Id:
          Not reportedOwner Tank Id:
          Not reportedCreated Date:
          Not reportedAction Date:
          Not reportedReferral Date:
          44-011096Board Of Equalization:
          Not reportedNumber:
          289Comp Number:
          Not reportedStatus:

SWEEPS UST:

588 ft. Site 3 of 6 in cluster H
0.111 mi.

Relative:
Higher

Actual:
420 ft.

< 1/8 LOS ANGELES, CA  90027
NNW CA FID UST1666 N VERMONT AVE    N/A
H43 CA SWEEPS USTHOLLYWOOD ENTERPRISE INC S101584618

TC5441284.2s   Page 86



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

     InactiveStatus:
     Not reportedComments:
     Not reportedEPA ID:
     Not reportedNPDES Number:
     Not reportedDUNs Number:
     Not reportedContact Phone:
     Not reportedContact:
     LOS ANGELES 900270000Mailing City,St,Zip:
     Not reportedMailing Address 2:
     1666 N VERMONT AVEMailing Address:
     Not reportedMail To:
     2136628123Facility Phone:
     Not reportedSIC Code:
     Not reportedCortese Code:
     00003846Regulated ID:
     UTNKIRegulated By:
     19013476Facility ID:

CA FID UST:

          Not reportedNumber Of Tanks:
          REG UNLEADEDContent:
          PRODUCTSTG:
          M.V. FUELTank Use:
          Not reportedActive Date:
          9000Capacity:
          Not reportedTank Status:
          19-050-000289-000004SWRCB Tank Id:
          Not reportedOwner Tank Id:
          Not reportedCreated Date:
          Not reportedAction Date:
          Not reportedReferral Date:
          44-011096Board Of Equalization:
          Not reportedNumber:
          289Comp Number:

HOLLYWOOD ENTERPRISE INC  (Continued) S101584618

                              1Container Num:
                              001Tank Num:

                              0004Total Tanks:
                              LOS ANGELES, CA 90027Owner City,St,Zip:
                              1666 N. VERMONT AVEOwner Address:
                              BENJAMIN BONG JO PARKOwner Name:
                              2136628123Telephone:
                              BENJAMIN BONG JO PARKContact Name:
                              CAR WASHOther Type:
                              Gas StationFacility Type:
                              00000003846Facility ID:
                              STATERegion:
                              http://geotracker.waterboards.ca.gov/ustpdfs/pdf/000266FB.pdfURL:
                              000266FBFile Number:

HIST UST:

588 ft. Site 4 of 6 in cluster H
0.111 mi.

Relative:
Higher

Actual:
420 ft.

< 1/8 LOS ANGELES, CA  90027
NNW 1666 N VERMONT AVE    N/A
H44 CA HIST USTHOLLYMONT CAR WASH U001561186

TC5441284.2s   Page 87



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

Click here for Geo Tracker PDF:

                              Stock InventorLeak Detection:
                              Not reportedContainer Construction Thickness:
                              REGULARType of Fuel:
                              PRODUCTTank Used for:
                              00009000Tank Capacity:
                              1966Year Installed:
                              4Container Num:
                              004Tank Num:

                              Stock InventorLeak Detection:
                              Not reportedContainer Construction Thickness:
                              PREMIUMType of Fuel:
                              PRODUCTTank Used for:
                              00009000Tank Capacity:
                              1966Year Installed:
                              3Container Num:
                              003Tank Num:

                              Stock InventorLeak Detection:
                              Not reportedContainer Construction Thickness:
                              UNLEADEDType of Fuel:
                              PRODUCTTank Used for:
                              00009000Tank Capacity:
                              1966Year Installed:
                              2Container Num:
                              002Tank Num:

                              Stock InventorLeak Detection:
                              Not reportedContainer Construction Thickness:
                              UNLEADEDType of Fuel:
                              PRODUCTTank Used for:
                              00009000Tank Capacity:
                              1966Year Installed:

HOLLYMONT CAR WASH  (Continued) U001561186

                                                            Carwashes1992     HOLLYMONT ENTERPRISES INC
                                                            Carwashes1991     HOLLYMONT ENTERPRISES INC
                                                            Carwashes1990     HOLLYMONT ENTERPRISES INC
                                                            Type:Year:    Name:

EDR Hist Auto

588 ft. Site 5 of 6 in cluster H
0.111 mi.

Relative:
Higher

Actual:
420 ft.

< 1/8 LOS ANGELES, CA  90027
NNW 1666 N VERMONT AVE    N/A
H45 EDR Hist AutoHOLLYMONT ENTERPRISES INC 1020370586

TC5441284.2s   Page 88



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                            Fast Food Restaurants And Stands1992     ORANGE BEE JAY
                                                            Fast Food Restaurants And Stands1991     ORANGE BEE JAY
                                                            Fast Food Restaurants And Stands1990     ORANGE BEE JAY
                                                            Type:Year:    Name:

EDR Hist Auto

611 ft. Site 6 of 6 in cluster H
0.116 mi.

Relative:
Higher

Actual:
421 ft.

< 1/8 LOS ANGELES, CA  90027
NNW 1670 N VERMONT AVE    N/A
H46 EDR Hist AutoORANGE BEE JAY 1020671044

                                                            AUTOMOBILE REPAIRING1933     CASAVIAN FRED
                                                            Type:Year:    Name:

EDR Hist Auto

624 ft. Site 3 of 3 in cluster G
0.118 mi.

Relative:
Lower

Actual:
395 ft.

< 1/8 LOS ANGELES, CA  
SE 4532 S SUNSET BLVD    N/A
G47 EDR Hist AutoCASAVIAN FRED 1009079490

                                                            CLOTHES PRESSERS AND CLEANERS1933     KROLL IDA MRS
                                                            CLOTHES PRESSERS CLEANERS AND REPAIRERS1929     KROLL REUBEN
                                                            Type:Year:    Name:

EDR Hist Cleaner

652 ft. Site 2 of 3 in cluster I
0.123 mi.

Relative:
Lower

Actual:
388 ft.

< 1/8 LOS ANGELES, CA  
SSW 1428 N VERMONT AVE    N/A
I48 EDR Hist CleanerKROLL IDA MRS 1009190352

                                                            AUTOMOBILE REPAIRING1942     DOWNEN P W
                                                            GASOLINE AND OIL SERVICE STATIONS1942     COULTER DOUGLES
                                                            GASOLINE AND OIL SERVICE STATIONS1937     KOVALL C C
                                                            AUTOMOBILE REPAIRING1937     DOWNEN P W
                                                            AUTOMOBILE REPAIRING1933     DOWNEN P W
                                                            GASOLINE AND OIL SERVICE STATION1929     MC CALL   PAYNE INC
                                                            AUTOMOBILE REPAIRING AND SERVICE STATIONS1929     BERG   DOWNEN
                                                            Type:Year:    Name:

EDR Hist Auto

658 ft. Site 3 of 3 in cluster I
0.125 mi.

Relative:
Lower

Actual:
393 ft.

< 1/8 LOS ANGELES, CA  
SW 4720 S SUNSET BLVD    N/A
I49 EDR Hist AutoKOVALL C C 1009080477

TC5441284.2s   Page 89



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

Handler Activities Summary:

                    Not reportedOwner/Op end date:
                    Not reportedOwner/Op start date:
                    OperatorOwner/Operator Type:
                    PrivateLegal status:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator extension:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator fax:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator email:
                    415-555-1212Owner/operator telephone:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator country:
                    NOT REQUIRED, ME 99999
                    NOT REQUIREDOwner/operator address:
                    NOT REQUIREDOwner/operator name:

                    Not reportedOwner/Op end date:
                    Not reportedOwner/Op start date:
                    OwnerOwner/Operator Type:
                    PrivateLegal status:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator extension:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator fax:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator email:
                    213-663-9999Owner/operator telephone:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator country:
                    HOLLYWOOD, CA 90027
                    4531 HOLLYWOOD BLVDOwner/operator address:
                    RICHARD KIMOwner/operator name:

Owner/Operator Summary:

                    hazardous waste at any time
                    waste during any calendar month, and accumulates more than 1000 kg of
                    hazardous waste at any time; or generates 100 kg or less of hazardous
                    waste during any calendar month and accumulates less than 6000 kg of
                    Handler: generates more than 100 and less than 1000 kg of hazardousDescription:
                    Small Small Quantity GeneratorClassification:
                    09EPA Region:
                    Not reportedContact email:
                    213-663-9999Contact telephone:
                    USContact country:
                    LOS ANGELES, CA 90027
                    4531 HOLLYWOOD BLVDContact address:
                    CLARENCE  YOSHIDAContact:
                    LOS ANGELES, CA 90027
                    HOLLYWOOD BLVDMailing address:
                    CAD981378532EPA ID:
                    LOS ANGELES, CA 90027
                    4531 HOLLYWOOD BLVDFacility address:
                    HOLLYWOOD FORDFacility name:
                    01/22/1993Date form received by agency:

RCRA-SQG:

CA HAZNET
ECHO

671 ft. FINDSSite 1 of 3 in cluster J
0.127 mi. CA FID UST

Relative:
Lower

Actual:
404 ft.

1/8-1/4 CA HIST USTLOS ANGELES, CA  90027
East CA SWEEPS UST4531 HOLLYWOOD BLVD CAD981378532
J50 RCRA-SQGHOLLYWOOD FORD 1000414477

TC5441284.2s   Page 90



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

          Not reportedReferral Date:
          44-011176Board Of Equalization:
          Not reportedNumber:
          425Comp Number:
          Not reportedStatus:

          Not reportedNumber Of Tanks:
          WASTE OILContent:
          WASTESTG:
          OILTank Use:
          Not reportedActive Date:
          Not reportedCapacity:
          Not reportedTank Status:
          19-050-000425-000002SWRCB Tank Id:
          Not reportedOwner Tank Id:
          Not reportedCreated Date:
          Not reportedAction Date:
          Not reportedReferral Date:
          44-011176Board Of Equalization:
          Not reportedNumber:
          425Comp Number:
          Not reportedStatus:

          3Number Of Tanks:
          WASTE OILContent:
          WASTESTG:
          OILTank Use:
          Not reportedActive Date:
          Not reportedCapacity:
          Not reportedTank Status:
          19-050-000425-000001SWRCB Tank Id:
          Not reportedOwner Tank Id:
          Not reportedCreated Date:
          Not reportedAction Date:
          Not reportedReferral Date:
          44-011176Board Of Equalization:
          Not reportedNumber:
          425Comp Number:
          Not reportedStatus:

SWEEPS UST:

                    No violations foundViolation Status:

                              NoUsed oil transporter:
                              NoUsed oil transfer facility:
                              NoUsed oil Specification marketer:
                              NoUsed oil fuel marketer to burner:
                              NoUser oil refiner:
                              NoUsed oil processor:
                              NoUsed oil fuel burner:
                              NoFurnace exemption:
                              NoOn-site burner exemption:
                              NoUnderground injection activity:
                              NoTreater, storer or disposer of HW:
                              NoTransporter of hazardous waste:
                              NoRecycler of hazardous waste:
                              NoMixed waste (haz. and radioactive):
                              NoU.S. importer of hazardous waste:

HOLLYWOOD FORD  (Continued) 1000414477

TC5441284.2s   Page 91



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

CA FID UST:

Click here for Geo Tracker PDF:

                              NoneLeak Detection:
                              Not reportedContainer Construction Thickness:
                              Not reportedType of Fuel:
                              Not reportedTank Used for:
                              00000000Tank Capacity:
                              Not reportedYear Installed:
                              3Container Num:
                              003Tank Num:

                              NoneLeak Detection:
                              Not reportedContainer Construction Thickness:
                              WASTE OILType of Fuel:
                              WASTETank Used for:
                              00000000Tank Capacity:
                              Not reportedYear Installed:
                              2Container Num:
                              002Tank Num:

                              NoneLeak Detection:
                              Not reportedContainer Construction Thickness:
                              WASTE OILType of Fuel:
                              WASTETank Used for:
                              00000000Tank Capacity:
                              Not reportedYear Installed:
                              1Container Num:
                              001Tank Num:

                              0003Total Tanks:
                              LOS ANGELES, CA 90027Owner City,St,Zip:
                              4531 HOLLYWOOD BLVD.Owner Address:
                              CASTLE FORD SALES, INC.Owner Name:
                              2136651131Telephone:
                              DEALERContact Name:
                              AUTO DEALERSHIPOther Type:
                              OtherFacility Type:
                              00000004881Facility ID:
                              STATERegion:
                              http://geotracker.waterboards.ca.gov/ustpdfs/pdf/00026A79.pdfURL:
                              00026A79File Number:

HIST UST:

          Not reportedNumber Of Tanks:
          UNKNOWNContent:
          PRODUCTSTG:
          CHEMICALTank Use:
          Not reportedActive Date:
          Not reportedCapacity:
          Not reportedTank Status:
          19-050-000425-000003SWRCB Tank Id:
          Not reportedOwner Tank Id:
          Not reportedCreated Date:
          Not reportedAction Date:

HOLLYWOOD FORD  (Continued) 1000414477

TC5441284.2s   Page 92



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

     Not reportedTSD County:
     CAT000613935TSD EPA ID:
     Not reportedGen County:
     LOS ANGELES, CA 900275405Mailing City,St,Zip:
     4531 HOLLYWOOD BLVDMailing Address:
     Not reportedMailing Name:
     8186339999Telephone:
     ANDY HONGContact:
     CAD981378532GEPAID:
     2008Year:
     1000414477envid:

HAZNET:

                                   http://echo.epa.gov/detailed-facility-report?fid=110002686665DFR URL:
                                   110002686665Registry ID:
                                   1000414477Envid:

ECHO:

additional FINDS: detail in the EDR Site Report.
Click this hyperlink while viewing on your computer to access 

corrective action activities required under RCRA.
program staff to track the notification, permit, compliance, and
and treat, store, or dispose of hazardous waste. RCRAInfo allows RCRA
events and activities related to facilities that generate, transport,
Conservation and Recovery Act (RCRA) program through the tracking of
RCRAInfo is a national information system that supports the Resource

facilities.
generators, transporters, and treatment, storage, and disposal
provides California with information on hazardous waste shipments for
California Hazardous Waste Tracking System - Datamart (HWTS-DATAMART)
                    Environmental Interest/Information System

                    110002686665Registry ID:

FINDS:

     InactiveStatus:
     Not reportedComments:
     Not reportedEPA ID:
     Not reportedNPDES Number:
     Not reportedDUNs Number:
     Not reportedContact Phone:
     Not reportedContact:
     LOS ANGELES 900270000Mailing City,St,Zip:
     Not reportedMailing Address 2:
     4531  HOLLYWOOD BLVDMailing Address:
     Not reportedMail To:
     2138721861Facility Phone:
     Not reportedSIC Code:
     Not reportedCortese Code:
     00004881Regulated ID:
     UTNKIRegulated By:
     19020005Facility ID:

HOLLYWOOD FORD  (Continued) 1000414477

TC5441284.2s   Page 93



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

     Hydrocarbon solvents (benzene, hexane, Stoddard, Etc.)Waste Category:
     Not reportedTSD County:
     CAT000613976TSD EPA ID:
     Not reportedGen County:
     LOS ANGELES, CA 900275405Mailing City,St,Zip:
     4531 HOLLYWOOD BLVDMailing Address:
     Not reportedMailing Name:
     8186339999Telephone:
     ANDY HONGContact:
     CAD981378532GEPAID:
     2008Year:
     1000414477envid:

     Los AngelesFacility County:
     Not reportedMethod Decode:
     Not reportedCat Decode:
     7.089Tons:
     Organics Recovery Ect
     Other Recovery Of Reclamation For Reuse Including Acid Regeneration,Disposal Method:
     Oil/water separation sludgeWaste Category:
     Not reportedTSD County:
     CAT080013352TSD EPA ID:
     Not reportedGen County:
     LOS ANGELES, CA 900275405Mailing City,St,Zip:
     4531 HOLLYWOOD BLVDMailing Address:
     Not reportedMailing Name:
     8186339999Telephone:
     ANDY HONGContact:
     CAD981378532GEPAID:
     2008Year:
     1000414477envid:

     Los AngelesFacility County:
     Not reportedMethod Decode:
     Not reportedCat Decode:
     0.1Tons:
     Fuel Blending Prior To Energy Recovery At Another SiteDisposal Method:
     Liquids with halogenated organic compounds >= 1,000 Mg./LWaste Category:
     Not reportedTSD County:
     TXD077603371TSD EPA ID:
     Not reportedGen County:
     LOS ANGELES, CA 900275405Mailing City,St,Zip:
     4531 HOLLYWOOD BLVDMailing Address:
     Not reportedMailing Name:
     8186339999Telephone:
     ANDY HONGContact:
     CAD981378532GEPAID:
     2008Year:
     1000414477envid:

     Los AngelesFacility County:
     Not reportedMethod Decode:
     Not reportedCat Decode:
     0.7476Tons:
     (H010-H129) Or (H131-H135)
     Storage, Bulking, And/Or Transfer Off Site--No Treatment/ReoveryDisposal Method:
     Aqueous solution with total organic residues less than 10 percentWaste Category:

HOLLYWOOD FORD  (Continued) 1000414477

TC5441284.2s   Page 94



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

55 additional CA_HAZNET: record(s) in the EDR Site Report.
Click this hyperlink while viewing on your computer to access 

     Los AngelesFacility County:
     Not reportedMethod Decode:
     Not reportedCat Decode:
     2.36Tons:
     (H010-H129) Or (H131-H135)
     Storage, Bulking, And/Or Transfer Off Site--No Treatment/ReoveryDisposal Method:
     Aqueous solution with total organic residues less than 10 percentWaste Category:
     Not reportedTSD County:
     CAT000613935TSD EPA ID:
     Not reportedGen County:
     LOS ANGELES, CA 900275405Mailing City,St,Zip:
     4531 HOLLYWOOD BLVDMailing Address:
     Not reportedMailing Name:
     8186339999Telephone:
     ANDY HONGContact:
     CAD981378532GEPAID:
     2007Year:
     1000414477envid:

     Los AngelesFacility County:
     Not reportedMethod Decode:
     Not reportedCat Decode:
     0.02085Tons:
     (H010-H129) Or (H131-H135)
     Storage, Bulking, And/Or Transfer Off Site--No Treatment/ReoveryDisposal Method:

HOLLYWOOD FORD  (Continued) 1000414477

     Not reportedRegulated ID:
     UTNKIRegulated By:
     19036188Facility ID:

CA FID UST:

          Not reportedNumber Of Tanks:
          Not reportedContent:
          Not reportedSTG:
          Not reportedTank Use:
          Not reportedActive Date:
          Not reportedCapacity:
          Not reportedTank Status:
          Not reportedSWRCB Tank Id:
          Not reportedOwner Tank Id:
          Not reportedCreated Date:
          Not reportedAction Date:
          Not reportedReferral Date:
          Not reportedBoard Of Equalization:
          Not reportedNumber:
          7571Comp Number:
          Not reportedStatus:

SWEEPS UST:

694 ft. Site 2 of 3 in cluster J
0.131 mi.

Relative:
Higher

Actual:
410 ft.

1/8-1/4 LOS ANGELES, CA  90027
East CA FID UST1566 LYMAN RD    N/A
J51 CA SWEEPS USTMONACO MOTORS INC. S101586010

TC5441284.2s   Page 95



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

     InactiveStatus:
     Not reportedComments:
     Not reportedEPA ID:
     Not reportedNPDES Number:
     Not reportedDUNs Number:
     Not reportedContact Phone:
     Not reportedContact:
     LOS ANGELES 900270000Mailing City,St,Zip:
     Not reportedMailing Address 2:
     1566  LYMAN RDMailing Address:
     Not reportedMail To:
     2138721681Facility Phone:
     Not reportedSIC Code:
     Not reportedCortese Code:

MONACO MOTORS INC.  (Continued) S101586010

                    Not reportedOwner/Op end date:
                    Not reportedOwner/Op start date:
                    OwnerOwner/Operator Type:
                    PrivateLegal status:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator extension:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator fax:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator email:
                    213-662-6226Owner/operator telephone:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator country:
                    HOLLYWOOD, CA 90027
                    1566 LYMAN PLOwner/operator address:
                    PHILLIP BURKEOwner/operator name:

Owner/Operator Summary:

                    hazardous waste at any time
                    waste during any calendar month, and accumulates more than 1000 kg of
                    hazardous waste at any time; or generates 100 kg or less of hazardous
                    waste during any calendar month and accumulates less than 6000 kg of
                    Handler: generates more than 100 and less than 1000 kg of hazardousDescription:
                    Small Small Quantity GeneratorClassification:
                    09EPA Region:
                    Not reportedContact email:
                    213-662-6226Contact telephone:
                    USContact country:
                    HOLLYWOOD, CA 90027
                    1566 LYMAN PLContact address:
                    PHILLIP  BURKEContact:
                    HOLLYWOOD, CA 90027
                    LYMAN PLMailing address:
                    CAD983664616EPA ID:
                    HOLLYWOOD, CA 90027
                    1566 LYMAN PLFacility address:
                    HOLLYWOOD BODY AND FENDER WORKSFacility name:
                    04/09/1993Date form received by agency:

RCRA-SQG:

694 ft. Site 3 of 3 in cluster J
0.131 mi.

Relative:
Higher

Actual:
410 ft.

1/8-1/4 ECHOHOLLYWOOD, CA  90027
East FINDS1566 LYMAN PL CAD983664616
J52 RCRA-SQGHOLLYWOOD BODY AND FENDER WORKS 1000820426

TC5441284.2s   Page 96



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                   http://echo.epa.gov/detailed-facility-report?fid=110002896572DFR URL:
                                   110002896572Registry ID:
                                   1000820426Envid:

ECHO:

additional FINDS: detail in the EDR Site Report.
Click this hyperlink while viewing on your computer to access 

corrective action activities required under RCRA.
program staff to track the notification, permit, compliance, and
and treat, store, or dispose of hazardous waste. RCRAInfo allows RCRA
events and activities related to facilities that generate, transport,
Conservation and Recovery Act (RCRA) program through the tracking of
RCRAInfo is a national information system that supports the Resource
                    Environmental Interest/Information System

                    110002896572Registry ID:

FINDS:

                    No violations foundViolation Status:

                              NoUsed oil transporter:
                              NoUsed oil transfer facility:
                              NoUsed oil Specification marketer:
                              NoUsed oil fuel marketer to burner:
                              NoUser oil refiner:
                              NoUsed oil processor:
                              NoUsed oil fuel burner:
                              NoFurnace exemption:
                              NoOn-site burner exemption:
                              NoUnderground injection activity:
                              NoTreater, storer or disposer of HW:
                              NoTransporter of hazardous waste:
                              NoRecycler of hazardous waste:
                              NoMixed waste (haz. and radioactive):
                              NoU.S. importer of hazardous waste:

Handler Activities Summary:

HOLLYWOOD BODY AND FENDER WORKS  (Continued) 1000820426

          Not reportedTank Status:
          Not reportedSWRCB Tank Id:
          Not reportedOwner Tank Id:
          Not reportedCreated Date:
          Not reportedAction Date:
          Not reportedReferral Date:
          Not reportedBoard Of Equalization:
          Not reportedNumber:
          6069Comp Number:
          Not reportedStatus:

SWEEPS UST:

716 ft. Site 1 of 4 in cluster K
0.136 mi.

Relative:
Lower

Actual:
395 ft.

1/8-1/4 LOS ANGELES, CA  90057
WSW CA FID UST4733 W SUNSET BLVD    N/A
K53 CA SWEEPS USTKAISER FOUNDATION HEALTH PLAN S101586801

TC5441284.2s   Page 97



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

     InactiveStatus:
     Not reportedComments:
     Not reportedEPA ID:
     Not reportedNPDES Number:
     Not reportedDUNs Number:
     Not reportedContact Phone:
     Not reportedContact:
     LOS ANGELES 900570000Mailing City,St,Zip:
     Not reportedMailing Address 2:
     4733 W SUNSET BLVDMailing Address:
     Not reportedMail To:
     2136678395Facility Phone:
     Not reportedSIC Code:
     Not reportedCortese Code:
     Not reportedRegulated ID:
     UTNKIRegulated By:
     19054480Facility ID:

CA FID UST:

          0Number Of Tanks:
          Not reportedContent:
          Not reportedSTG:
          Not reportedTank Use:
          Not reportedActive Date:
          Not reportedCapacity:

KAISER FOUNDATION HEALTH PLAN  (Continued) S101586801

     2130000000Facility Phone:
     Not reportedSIC Code:
     Not reportedCortese Code:
     Not reportedRegulated ID:
     UTNKIRegulated By:
     19020449Facility ID:

CA FID UST:

          0Number Of Tanks:
          Not reportedContent:
          Not reportedSTG:
          Not reportedTank Use:
          Not reportedActive Date:
          Not reportedCapacity:
          Not reportedTank Status:
          Not reportedSWRCB Tank Id:
          Not reportedOwner Tank Id:
          Not reportedCreated Date:
          Not reportedAction Date:
          Not reportedReferral Date:
          Not reportedBoard Of Equalization:
          Not reportedNumber:
          7081Comp Number:
          Not reportedStatus:

SWEEPS UST:

718 ft. Site 2 of 4 in cluster K
0.136 mi.

Relative:
Lower

Actual:
395 ft.

1/8-1/4 LOS ANGELES, CA  90027
WSW CA FID UST4747 W SUNSET BLVD    N/A
K54 CA SWEEPS USTTEXACO INC S101585152

TC5441284.2s   Page 98



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

     InactiveStatus:
     Not reportedComments:
     Not reportedEPA ID:
     Not reportedNPDES Number:
     Not reportedDUNs Number:
     Not reportedContact Phone:
     Not reportedContact:
     LOS ANGELES 900270000Mailing City,St,Zip:
     Not reportedMailing Address 2:
     4747 W SUNSET BLVDMailing Address:
     Not reportedMail To:

TEXACO INC  (Continued) S101585152

     InactiveStatus:
     Not reportedComments:
     Not reportedEPA ID:
     Not reportedNPDES Number:
     Not reportedDUNs Number:
     Not reportedContact Phone:
     Not reportedContact:
     COMMERCE 90040Mailing City,St,Zip:
     Not reportedMailing Address 2:
     7400 E SLAUSON AVEMailing Address:
     Not reportedMail To:
     2137285558Facility Phone:
     Not reportedSIC Code:
     Not reportedCortese Code:
     CAD982037Regulated ID:
     UTNKIRegulated By:
     19004515Facility ID:

     ActiveStatus:
     Not reportedComments:
     Not reportedEPA ID:
     Not reportedNPDES Number:
     Not reportedDUNs Number:
     Not reportedContact Phone:
     Not reportedContact:
     CONCORD 94521Mailing City,St,Zip:
     Not reportedMailing Address 2:
     2930  BOWERS AVEMailing Address:
     Not reportedMail To:
     4156825830Facility Phone:
     Not reportedSIC Code:
     Not reportedCortese Code:
     CAD982037Regulated ID:
     UTNKARegulated By:
     19004515Facility ID:

CA FID UST:

828 ft. Site 1 of 8 in cluster L
0.157 mi.

Relative:
Higher

Actual:
412 ft.

1/8-1/4 COMMERCE, CA  90040
East 4500 CLAYTON RD    N/A
L55 CA FID USTJIFFY LUBE #510 S106027474

TC5441284.2s   Page 99



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                         04/27/1998Status Date:
                         Completed - Case ClosedStatus:
                         T0603700750Global Id:

                         07/30/1997Status Date:
                         Open - Site AssessmentStatus:
                         T0603700750Global Id:

                         12/19/1995Status Date:
                         Open - Case Begin DateStatus:
                         T0603700750Global Id:

LUST:

                         Leak ReportedAction:
                         12/19/1995Date:
                         OtherAction Type:
                         T0603700750Global Id:

                         Leak DiscoveryAction:
                         12/19/1995Date:
                         OtherAction Type:
                         T0603700750Global Id:

LUST:

                         Not reportedPhone Number:
                         eloy.luna@lacity.orgEmail:
                         LOS ANGELESCity:
                         200 North Main Street, Suite 1780Address:
                         LOS ANGELES, CITY OFOrganization Name:
                         ELOY LUNAContact Name:
                         Local Agency CaseworkerContact Type:
                         T0603700750Global Id:

LUST:

                              Not reportedSite History:
                              DieselPotential Contaminants of Concern:
                              Aquifer used for drinking water supplyPotential Media Affect:
                              Not reportedLocal Case Number:
                              Not reportedFile Location:
                              LOS ANGELES, CITY OFLocal Agency:
                              900270216RB Case Number:
                              Not reportedCase Worker:
                              04/27/1998Status Date:
                              Completed - Case ClosedStatus:
                              -118.2874989Longitude:
                              34.0999915Latitude:
                              T0603700750Global Id:
                              http://geotracker.waterboards.ca.gov/profile_report.asp?global_id=T0603700750Geo Track:
                              LUST Cleanup SiteCase Type:
                              LOS ANGELES RWQCB (REGION 4)Lead Agency:

LUST:

886 ft. Site 2 of 8 in cluster L
0.168 mi.

Relative:
Higher

Actual:
413 ft.

1/8-1/4 LOS ANGELES, CA  90027
ENE 1601 HILLHURST AVE N    N/A
L56 CA LUSTFIRE STATION #35 S103281998

TC5441284.2s   Page 100



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                Not reportedSuspended:
                Not reportedCleanup Fund Id:
                Not reportedPriority:
                Not reportedBeneficial Use:
                PEJLocal Agency Staff:
                34.0999915 / -1Lat/Long:
                LUSTProgram:
                650 S. SPRING ST., SUITE #600, LOS ANGELES, CA 90014RP Address:
                CITY OF LA, BUREAU OF ENGINEERResponsible Party:
                Not reportedOwner Contact:
                Not reportedOrganization:
                <Soil Qualifier:
                Not reportedGW Qualifier:
                                                    Not reportedSignificant Interim Remedial Action Taken:
                                                    .5Hist Max MTBE Conc in Soil:
                                                    34.3Hist Max MTBE Conc in Groundwater:
                                                    1/1/1965Historical Max MTBE Date:
                                                    Not reportedEnforcement Action Date:
                                                    Not reportedPost Remedial Action Monitoring Began:
                                                    Not reportedRemedial Action Underway:
                                                    Not reportedRemediation Plan Submitted:
                                                    7/30/1997Pollution Characterization Began:
                                                    Not reportedPreliminary Site Assessment Began:
                                                    Not reportedPreliminary Site Assessment Workplan Submitted:
                                                    Not reportedSource of Cleanup Funding:
                                                    10499.369916342759510397204361Approx. Dist To Production Well (ft):
                Not reportedWell Name:
                FIRSTONE SCOUT RESRVTN (BOY SCOUT COUN)Water System:
                Not reportedOperator:
                Not reportedLeak Source:
                Not reportedCause of Leak:
                Not reportedHow Leak Stopped:
                Subsurface MonitoringHow Leak Discovered:
                                                    4/27/1998Date the Case was Closed:
                                                    6/10/1998Date Case Last Changed on Database:
                Not reportedDate Leak Stopped:
                Not reportedDate Confirmation Began:
                3/3/1998Date Leak Record Entered:
                                                    12/19/1995Date Leak First Reported:
                12/19/1995Date Leak Discovered:
                Not reportedEnforcement Type:
                Not reportedCross Street:
                19050Local Agency:
                MSHStaff:
                W0603700547W Global ID:
                T0603700750Global ID:
                                                    Excavate and DisposeAbatement Method Used at the Site:
                GroundwaterCase Type:
                Not reportedLocal Case No:
                Not reportedSubstance Quantity:
                DieselSubstance:
                Case ClosedStatus:
                900270216Facility Id:
                Los AngelesCounty:
                04Regional Board:
                4Region:

LUST REG 4:

FIRE STATION #35  (Continued) S103281998

TC5441284.2s   Page 101



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                WELL, VADOSE MON WELL & VAPOR MON PROBE RP
                QRTLY GW MON RPT OCT TO DEC 1997                   06/10/98 - GW MON
                REQUEST FOR CLOSURE                                         02/13/98Summary:
                1900547-001GENAssigned Name:

FIRE STATION #35  (Continued) S103281998

                    -118.286355Longitude:
                    34.1016137Latitude:
                    LOS ANGELES, CITY OFPermitting Agency:
                    24977Facility ID:

UST:

886 ft. Site 3 of 8 in cluster L
0.168 mi.

Relative:
Higher

Actual:
413 ft.

1/8-1/4 LOS ANGELES, CA  90027
ENE 1601 HILLHURST AVE    N/A
L57 CA USTLOS ANGELES FIRE STATION 35 U003781296

                    -118.28746Longitude:
                    34.10012Latitude:
                    Los Angeles City Fire DepartmentPermitting Agency:
                    FA0003829Facility ID:

UST:

886 ft. Site 4 of 8 in cluster L
0.168 mi.

Relative:
Higher

Actual:
413 ft.

1/8-1/4 LOS ANGELES, CA  90027
ENE 1601 N HILLHURST AVE    N/A
L58 CA USTLAFD - FIRE STATION 35 U004265872

          Not reportedNumber Of Tanks:
          Not reportedContent:
          Not reportedSTG:
          Not reportedTank Use:
          Not reportedActive Date:
          Not reportedCapacity:
          Not reportedTank Status:
          Not reportedSWRCB Tank Id:
          Not reportedOwner Tank Id:
          09-23-93Created Date:
          04-22-94Action Date:
          09-23-93Referral Date:
          Not reportedBoard Of Equalization:
          4Number:
          8266Comp Number:
          ActiveStatus:

SWEEPS UST:

886 ft. Site 5 of 8 in cluster L
0.168 mi.

Relative:
Higher

Actual:
413 ft.

1/8-1/4 LOS ANGELES, CA  90027
ENE 1601 N HILLHURST ST    N/A
L59 CA SWEEPS USTLOS ANGELES FIRE STATION 35 S106928821

TC5441284.2s   Page 102



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                              NoMixed waste (haz. and radioactive):
                              NoU.S. importer of hazardous waste:

Handler Activities Summary:

                    Not reportedOwner/Op end date:
                    Not reportedOwner/Op start date:
                    OwnerOwner/Operator Type:
                    MunicipalLegal status:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator extension:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator fax:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator email:
                    415-555-1212Owner/operator telephone:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator country:
                    NOT REQUIRED, ME 99999
                    NOT REQUIREDOwner/operator address:
                    CITY OF LAOwner/operator name:

                    Not reportedOwner/Op end date:
                    Not reportedOwner/Op start date:
                    OperatorOwner/Operator Type:
                    MunicipalLegal status:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator extension:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator fax:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator email:
                    415-555-1212Owner/operator telephone:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator country:
                    NOT REQUIRED, ME 99999
                    NOT REQUIREDOwner/operator address:
                    NOT REQUIREDOwner/operator name:

Owner/Operator Summary:

                    hazardous waste at any time
                    waste during any calendar month, and accumulates more than 1000 kg of
                    hazardous waste at any time; or generates 100 kg or less of hazardous
                    waste during any calendar month and accumulates less than 6000 kg of
                    Handler: generates more than 100 and less than 1000 kg of hazardousDescription:
                    Small Small Quantity GeneratorClassification:
                    09EPA Region:
                    Not reportedContact email:
                    213-485-7527Contact telephone:
                    USContact country:
                    LOS ANGELES, CA 90012
                    1601 HILLHURST AVEContact address:
                    ENVIRONMENTAL  MANAGERContact:
                    LOS ANGELES, CA 90012
                    200 N MAIN RM EIGHTH HUNDRED CMailing address:
                    CAD981962160EPA ID:
                    LOS ANGELES, CA 90012
                    1601 HILLHURST AVEFacility address:
                    LA FIRE STATION 35Facility name:
                    03/09/1987Date form received by agency:

RCRA-SQG:

886 ft. Site 6 of 8 in cluster L
0.168 mi. CA HIST CORTESE

Relative:
Higher

Actual:
413 ft.

1/8-1/4 ECHOLOS ANGELES, CA  90027
ENE FINDS1601 HILLHURST AVE CAD981962160
L60 RCRA-SQGLA FIRE STATION 35 1000229428

TC5441284.2s   Page 103



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                    900270216Reg Id:
                    LTNKAReg By:
                    19Facility County Code:
                    CORTESERegion:

HIST CORTESE:

                                   http://echo.epa.gov/detailed-facility-report?fid=110002756385DFR URL:
                                   110002756385Registry ID:
                                   1000229428Envid:

ECHO:

additional FINDS: detail in the EDR Site Report.
Click this hyperlink while viewing on your computer to access 

STATE MASTER

corrective action activities required under RCRA.
program staff to track the notification, permit, compliance, and
and treat, store, or dispose of hazardous waste. RCRAInfo allows RCRA
events and activities related to facilities that generate, transport,
Conservation and Recovery Act (RCRA) program through the tracking of
RCRAInfo is a national information system that supports the Resource

facilities.
generators, transporters, and treatment, storage, and disposal
provides California with information on hazardous waste shipments for
California Hazardous Waste Tracking System - Datamart (HWTS-DATAMART)
                    Environmental Interest/Information System

                    110002756385Registry ID:

FINDS:

                    No violations foundViolation Status:

                              NoUsed oil transporter:
                              NoUsed oil transfer facility:
                              NoUsed oil Specification marketer:
                              NoUsed oil fuel marketer to burner:
                              NoUser oil refiner:
                              NoUsed oil processor:
                              NoUsed oil fuel burner:
                              NoFurnace exemption:
                              NoOn-site burner exemption:
                              NoUnderground injection activity:
                              NoTreater, storer or disposer of HW:
                              NoTransporter of hazardous waste:
                              NoRecycler of hazardous waste:

LA FIRE STATION 35  (Continued) 1000229428

TC5441284.2s   Page 104



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                              Stock InventorLeak Detection:
                              Not reportedContainer Construction Thickness:
                              DIESELType of Fuel:
                              PRODUCTTank Used for:
                              00001000Tank Capacity:
                              Not reportedYear Installed:
                              F535-1Container Num:
                              001Tank Num:

                              0001Total Tanks:
                              LOS ANGELES, CA 90012Owner City,St,Zip:
                              200 N. MAIN ST.Owner Address:
                              CITY OF LOS ANGELESOwner Name:
                              2134856235Telephone:
                              Not reportedContact Name:
                              FIRE STATIONOther Type:
                              OtherFacility Type:
                              00000047491Facility ID:
                              STATERegion:
                              Not reportedURL:
                              Not reportedFile Number:

HIST UST:

886 ft. Site 7 of 8 in cluster L
0.168 mi.

Relative:
Higher

Actual:
413 ft.

1/8-1/4 LOS ANGELES, CA  90027
ENE 1601 HILLHURST AVE    N/A
L61 CA HIST USTFIRE STATION 35 U001561182

          Not reportedCreated Date:
          Not reportedAction Date:
          Not reportedReferral Date:
          Not reportedBoard Of Equalization:
          Not reportedNumber:
          2659Comp Number:
          Not reportedStatus:

          3Number Of Tanks:
          DIESELContent:
          PRODUCTSTG:
          M.V. FUELTank Use:
          Not reportedActive Date:
          1000Capacity:
          Not reportedTank Status:
          19-050-002659-000001SWRCB Tank Id:
          Not reportedOwner Tank Id:
          Not reportedCreated Date:
          Not reportedAction Date:
          Not reportedReferral Date:
          Not reportedBoard Of Equalization:
          Not reportedNumber:
          2659Comp Number:
          Not reportedStatus:

SWEEPS UST:

886 ft. Site 8 of 8 in cluster L
0.168 mi.

Relative:
Higher

Actual:
413 ft.

1/8-1/4 CA FID USTLOS ANGELES, CA  90027
ENE CA HIST UST1601 N HILLHURST AVE    N/A
L62 CA SWEEPS USTLOS ANGELES FIRE STATION 35 S101585495

TC5441284.2s   Page 105



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

     00047491Regulated ID:
     UTNKARegulated By:
     19024388Facility ID:

CA FID UST:

Click here for Geo Tracker PDF:

                              Not reportedLeak Detection:
                              Not reportedContainer Construction Thickness:
                              Not reportedType of Fuel:
                              Not reportedTank Used for:
                              Not reportedTank Capacity:
                              Not reportedYear Installed:
                              Not reportedContainer Num:
                              Not reportedTank Num:

                              Not reportedTotal Tanks:
                              Not reportedOwner City,St,Zip:
                              Not reportedOwner Address:
                              Not reportedOwner Name:
                              Not reportedTelephone:
                              Not reportedContact Name:
                              Not reportedOther Type:
                              Not reportedFacility Type:
                              Not reportedFacility ID:
                              Not reportedRegion:
                              http://geotracker.waterboards.ca.gov/ustpdfs/pdf/00027157.pdfURL:
                              00027157File Number:

HIST UST:

          Not reportedNumber Of Tanks:
          REG UNLEADEDContent:
          PRODUCTSTG:
          M.V. FUELTank Use:
          Not reportedActive Date:
          1000Capacity:
          Not reportedTank Status:
          19-050-002659-000003SWRCB Tank Id:
          Not reportedOwner Tank Id:
          Not reportedCreated Date:
          Not reportedAction Date:
          Not reportedReferral Date:
          Not reportedBoard Of Equalization:
          Not reportedNumber:
          2659Comp Number:
          Not reportedStatus:

          Not reportedNumber Of Tanks:
          REG UNLEADEDContent:
          PRODUCTSTG:
          M.V. FUELTank Use:
          Not reportedActive Date:
          1000Capacity:
          Not reportedTank Status:
          19-050-002659-000002SWRCB Tank Id:
          Not reportedOwner Tank Id:

LOS ANGELES FIRE STATION 35  (Continued) S101585495

TC5441284.2s   Page 106



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

     ActiveStatus:
     Not reportedComments:
     Not reportedEPA ID:
     Not reportedNPDES Number:
     Not reportedDUNs Number:
     Not reportedContact Phone:
     Not reportedContact:
     LOS ANGELES 900270000Mailing City,St,Zip:
     Not reportedMailing Address 2:
     200 N MAIN STREET-ROOMMailing Address:
     Not reportedMail To:
     2134856235Facility Phone:
     Not reportedSIC Code:
     Not reportedCortese Code:

LOS ANGELES FIRE STATION 35  (Continued) S101585495

     ActiveStatus:
     Not reportedComments:
     Not reportedEPA ID:
     Not reportedNPDES Number:
     Not reportedDUNs Number:
     Not reportedContact Phone:
     Not reportedContact:
     LOS ANGELES 900270000Mailing City,St,Zip:
     Not reportedMailing Address 2:
     4760 W SUNSET BLVDMailing Address:
     Not reportedMail To:
     2136674000Facility Phone:
     Not reportedSIC Code:
     Not reportedCortese Code:
     Not reportedRegulated ID:
     UTNKARegulated By:
     19014615Facility ID:

CA FID UST:

893 ft. Site 3 of 4 in cluster K
0.169 mi.

Relative:
Lower

Actual:
390 ft.

1/8-1/4 LOS ANGELES, CA  90027
SW 4760 W SUNSET BLVD    N/A
K63 CA FID USTKAISER FOUNDATION HOSPITALS IN S101584705

                    -118.29308Longitude:
                    34.09779Latitude:
                    Los Angeles City Fire DepartmentPermitting Agency:
                    FA-003-2259Facility ID:

                    -118.29338Longitude:
                    34.09813Latitude:
                    LOS ANGELES, CITY OFPermitting Agency:
                    24064Facility ID:

UST:

893 ft. Site 4 of 4 in cluster K
0.169 mi.

Relative:
Lower

Actual:
390 ft.

1/8-1/4 LOS ANGELES, CA  90027
SW CA SWEEPS UST4760 W SUNSET BLVD    N/A
K64 CA USTKAISER PERMANENTE U003780500

TC5441284.2s   Page 107



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

          Not reportedNumber Of Tanks:
          Not reportedContent:
          Not reportedSTG:
          Not reportedTank Use:
          Not reportedActive Date:
          Not reportedCapacity:
          Not reportedTank Status:
          Not reportedSWRCB Tank Id:
          Not reportedOwner Tank Id:
          02-29-88Created Date:
          03-18-94Action Date:
          09-21-93Referral Date:
          Not reportedBoard Of Equalization:
          1Number:
          6089Comp Number:
          ActiveStatus:

SWEEPS UST:

KAISER PERMANENTE  (Continued) U003780500

                                        3773.7900391UTM North:
                                        380.98999023UTM East:
                                        VAPOR RECOVERY UNIT COMPRESS & CONDENSECCAT Description:
                                        04CCAT Number:
                                        DRY CLEANING, DRY-TO-DRY NON-VENT, PERCBCAT Description:
                                        000601BCAT Number:
                                        INACTIVEPermit Status:
                                        213 6630406Representative Telephone:
                                        CHONG HWA KIMRepresentative Name:
                                        OStatus:
                                        F12257Permit Number:
                                        319744Application Number:
                                        109980Facility ID:

DRYCLEAN SOUTH COAST:

951 ft. Site 1 of 2 in cluster M
0.180 mi.

Relative:
Higher

Actual:
420 ft.

1/8-1/4 LOS ANGELES, CA  90027
NW 4730 HOLLYWOOD BLVD    N/A
M65 CA DRYCLEANERSHOLLYWOOD CLEANERS S121693819

                                        04CCAT Number:
                                        DRY CLEANING EQUIP PERCHLOROETHYLENEBCAT Description:
                                        000234BCAT Number:
                                        INACTIVEPermit Status:
                                        213 6630406Representative Telephone:
                                        JOONG JA LEERepresentative Name:
                                        SStatus:
                                        D50638Permit Number:
                                        264863Application Number:
                                        91045Facility ID:

DRYCLEAN SOUTH COAST:

951 ft. Site 2 of 2 in cluster M
0.180 mi.

Relative:
Higher

Actual:
420 ft.

1/8-1/4 LOS ANGELES, CA  90027
NW 4730 HOLLYWOOD BLVD    N/A
M66 CA DRYCLEANERSHOLLYWOOD CLEANERS S121700253

TC5441284.2s   Page 108



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                        0UTM North:
                                        0UTM East:
                                        VAPOR RECOVERY UNIT COMPRESS & CONDENSECCAT Description:

HOLLYWOOD CLEANERS  (Continued) S121700253

                    -118.2907Longitude:
                    34.09631Latitude:
                    Los Angeles City Fire DepartmentPermitting Agency:
                    FA0031693Facility ID:

                    -118.2899002Longitude:
                    34.0972621Latitude:
                    LOS ANGELES, CITY OFPermitting Agency:
                    24792Facility ID:

UST:

1111 ft. Site 1 of 3 in cluster N
0.210 mi.

Relative:
Lower

Actual:
375 ft.

1/8-1/4 LOS ANGELES, CA  90027
South 1300 N VERMONT AVE    N/A
N67 CA USTHOLLYWOOD PRESBYTERIAN MED. CENTER U003781150

     LOS ANGELES 900270000Mailing City,St,Zip:
     Not reportedMailing Address 2:
     1300 N VERMONT AVEMailing Address:
     Not reportedMail To:
     2136603530Facility Phone:
     Not reportedSIC Code:
     Not reportedCortese Code:
     Not reportedRegulated ID:
     UTNKARegulated By:
     19006380Facility ID:

CA FID UST:

          Not reportedNumber Of Tanks:
          Not reportedContent:
          Not reportedSTG:
          Not reportedTank Use:
          Not reportedActive Date:
          Not reportedCapacity:
          Not reportedTank Status:
          Not reportedSWRCB Tank Id:
          Not reportedOwner Tank Id:
          02-29-88Created Date:
          03-02-93Action Date:
          03-02-93Referral Date:
          Not reportedBoard Of Equalization:
          9Number:
          5142Comp Number:
          ActiveStatus:

SWEEPS UST:

1111 ft. Site 2 of 3 in cluster N
0.210 mi.

Relative:
Lower

Actual:
375 ft.

1/8-1/4 CA EMILOS ANGELES, CA  90027
South CA FID UST1300 N VERMONT AVE    N/A
N68 CA SWEEPS USTHOLLYWOOD PRESBYTERIAN HOSPITA S101583802

TC5441284.2s   Page 109



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                              0SOX - Oxides of Sulphur Tons/Yr:
                                              3NOX - Oxides of Nitrogen Tons/Yr:
                                              1Carbon Monoxide Emissions Tons/Yr:
                                              2Reactive Organic Gases Tons/Yr:
                                              4Total Organic Hydrocarbon Gases Tons/Yr:
                                              Not reportedConsolidated Emission Reporting Rule:
                                              Not reportedCommunity Health Air Pollution Info System:
                                              SOUTH COAST AQMDAir District Name:
                                              8062SIC Code:
                                              SCAir District Name:
                                              19839Facility ID:
                                              SCAir Basin:
                                              19County Code:
                                              1996Year:

                                              0Part. Matter 10 Micrometers and Smllr Tons/Yr:
                                              0Particulate Matter Tons/Yr:
                                              0SOX - Oxides of Sulphur Tons/Yr:
                                              4NOX - Oxides of Nitrogen Tons/Yr:
                                              1Carbon Monoxide Emissions Tons/Yr:
                                              2Reactive Organic Gases Tons/Yr:
                                              4Total Organic Hydrocarbon Gases Tons/Yr:
                                              Not reportedConsolidated Emission Reporting Rule:
                                              Not reportedCommunity Health Air Pollution Info System:
                                              SOUTH COAST AQMDAir District Name:
                                              8062SIC Code:
                                              SCAir District Name:
                                              19839Facility ID:
                                              SCAir Basin:
                                              19County Code:
                                              1995Year:

                                              0Part. Matter 10 Micrometers and Smllr Tons/Yr:
                                              0Particulate Matter Tons/Yr:
                                              0SOX - Oxides of Sulphur Tons/Yr:
                                              4NOX - Oxides of Nitrogen Tons/Yr:
                                              1Carbon Monoxide Emissions Tons/Yr:
                                              1Reactive Organic Gases Tons/Yr:
                                              3Total Organic Hydrocarbon Gases Tons/Yr:
                                              Not reportedConsolidated Emission Reporting Rule:
                                              Not reportedCommunity Health Air Pollution Info System:
                                              SOUTH COAST AQMDAir District Name:
                                              8062SIC Code:
                                              SCAir District Name:
                                              19839Facility ID:
                                              SCAir Basin:
                                              19County Code:
                                              1990Year:

EMI:

     ActiveStatus:
     Not reportedComments:
     Not reportedEPA ID:
     Not reportedNPDES Number:
     Not reportedDUNs Number:
     Not reportedContact Phone:
     Not reportedContact:

HOLLYWOOD PRESBYTERIAN HOSPITA  (Continued) S101583802

TC5441284.2s   Page 110



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                              SCAir Basin:
                                              19County Code:
                                              2000Year:

                                              0Part. Matter 10 Micrometers and Smllr Tons/Yr:
                                              0Particulate Matter Tons/Yr:
                                              0SOX - Oxides of Sulphur Tons/Yr:
                                              4NOX - Oxides of Nitrogen Tons/Yr:
                                              1Carbon Monoxide Emissions Tons/Yr:
                                              1Reactive Organic Gases Tons/Yr:
                                              2Total Organic Hydrocarbon Gases Tons/Yr:
                                              Not reportedConsolidated Emission Reporting Rule:
                                              Not reportedCommunity Health Air Pollution Info System:
                                              SOUTH COAST AQMDAir District Name:
                                              8062SIC Code:
                                              SCAir District Name:
                                              19839Facility ID:
                                              SCAir Basin:
                                              19County Code:
                                              1999Year:

                                              0Part. Matter 10 Micrometers and Smllr Tons/Yr:
                                              0Particulate Matter Tons/Yr:
                                              0SOX - Oxides of Sulphur Tons/Yr:
                                              4NOX - Oxides of Nitrogen Tons/Yr:
                                              1Carbon Monoxide Emissions Tons/Yr:
                                              1Reactive Organic Gases Tons/Yr:
                                              2Total Organic Hydrocarbon Gases Tons/Yr:
                                              Not reportedConsolidated Emission Reporting Rule:
                                              Not reportedCommunity Health Air Pollution Info System:
                                              SOUTH COAST AQMDAir District Name:
                                              8062SIC Code:
                                              SCAir District Name:
                                              19839Facility ID:
                                              SCAir Basin:
                                              19County Code:
                                              1998Year:

                                              0Part. Matter 10 Micrometers and Smllr Tons/Yr:
                                              0Particulate Matter Tons/Yr:
                                              0SOX - Oxides of Sulphur Tons/Yr:
                                              4NOX - Oxides of Nitrogen Tons/Yr:
                                              1Carbon Monoxide Emissions Tons/Yr:
                                              1Reactive Organic Gases Tons/Yr:
                                              2Total Organic Hydrocarbon Gases Tons/Yr:
                                              Not reportedConsolidated Emission Reporting Rule:
                                              Not reportedCommunity Health Air Pollution Info System:
                                              SOUTH COAST AQMDAir District Name:
                                              8062SIC Code:
                                              SCAir District Name:
                                              19839Facility ID:
                                              SCAir Basin:
                                              19County Code:
                                              1997Year:

                                              0Part. Matter 10 Micrometers and Smllr Tons/Yr:
                                              0Particulate Matter Tons/Yr:

HOLLYWOOD PRESBYTERIAN HOSPITA  (Continued) S101583802

TC5441284.2s   Page 111



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                              0Part. Matter 10 Micrometers and Smllr Tons/Yr:
                                              0Particulate Matter Tons/Yr:
                                              0SOX - Oxides of Sulphur Tons/Yr:
                                              4NOX - Oxides of Nitrogen Tons/Yr:
                                              1Carbon Monoxide Emissions Tons/Yr:
                                              1Reactive Organic Gases Tons/Yr:
                                              2Total Organic Hydrocarbon Gases Tons/Yr:
                                              Not reportedConsolidated Emission Reporting Rule:
                                              Not reportedCommunity Health Air Pollution Info System:
                                              SOUTH COAST AQMDAir District Name:
                                              8062SIC Code:
                                              SCAir District Name:
                                              19839Facility ID:
                                              SCAir Basin:
                                              19County Code:
                                              2001Year:

                                              0Part. Matter 10 Micrometers and Smllr Tons/Yr:
                                              0Particulate Matter Tons/Yr:
                                              0SOX - Oxides of Sulphur Tons/Yr:
                                              4NOX - Oxides of Nitrogen Tons/Yr:
                                              1Carbon Monoxide Emissions Tons/Yr:
                                              1Reactive Organic Gases Tons/Yr:
                                              2Total Organic Hydrocarbon Gases Tons/Yr:
                                              Not reportedConsolidated Emission Reporting Rule:
                                              Not reportedCommunity Health Air Pollution Info System:
                                              SOUTH COAST AQMDAir District Name:
                                              8062SIC Code:
                                              SCAir District Name:
                                              19839Facility ID:

HOLLYWOOD PRESBYTERIAN HOSPITA  (Continued) S101583802

                    cleanup of a spill, into or on any land or water, of acutely hazardous
                    residue or contaminated soil, waste or other debris resulting from the
                    during any calendar month; or generates more than 100 kg of any
                    calendar month; or generates more than 1 kg of acutely hazardous waste
                    Handler: generates 1,000 kg or more of hazardous waste during anyDescription:
                    Large Quantity GeneratorClassification:
                    09EPA Region:
                    MARK.KING@HPMEDCENTER.COMContact email:
                    6382Telephone ext.:
                    213-413-3000Contact telephone:
                    USContact country:
                    LOS ANGELES, CA 90027
                    1300 N VERMONT AVEContact address:
                    MARK  KINGContact:
                    CAD983617663EPA ID:
                    LOS ANGELES, CA 90027
                    1300 N VERMONT AVEFacility address:
                    HOLLYWOOD PRESBYTERIAN MEDICAL CENTERFacility name:
                    02/22/2006Date form received by agency:

RCRA-LQG:

CA CIWQS
1111 ft. CA HAZNETSite 3 of 3 in cluster N
0.210 mi. ECHO

Relative:
Lower

Actual:
375 ft.

1/8-1/4 FINDSLOS ANGELES, CA  90027
South CA LUST1300 N VERMONT AVE CAD983617663
N69 RCRA-LQGQUEEN OF ANGELS HOLLYWOOD PRES 1000597740

TC5441284.2s   Page 112



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                    YesGenerated waste on-site:
                    YesAccumulated waste on-site:
                    BatteriesWaste type:

Universal Waste Summary:

                              NoUsed oil transporter:
                              NoUsed oil transfer facility:
                              NoUsed oil Specification marketer:
                              NoUsed oil fuel marketer to burner:
                              NoUser oil refiner:
                              NoUsed oil processor:
                              NoUsed oil fuel burner:
                              NoFurnace exemption:
                              NoOn-site burner exemption:
                              NoUnderground injection activity:
                              NoTreater, storer or disposer of HW:
                              NoTransporter of hazardous waste:
                              NoRecycler of hazardous waste:
                              NoMixed waste (haz. and radioactive):
                              NoU.S. importer of hazardous waste:

Handler Activities Summary:

                    Not reportedOwner/Op end date:
                    11/11/2005Owner/Op start date:
                    OwnerOwner/Operator Type:
                    PrivateLegal status:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator extension:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator fax:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator email:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator telephone:
                    USOwner/operator country:
                    LOS ANGELES, CA 90027
                    1300 N VERMONT AVEOwner/operator address:
                    CHA HOLLYWOOD MEDICAL CENTER LPOwner/operator name:

                    Not reportedOwner/Op end date:
                    11/11/2005Owner/Op start date:
                    OperatorOwner/Operator Type:
                    PrivateLegal status:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator extension:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator fax:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator email:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator telephone:
                    USOwner/operator country:
                    Not reported
                    Not reportedOwner/operator address:
                    CHA HOLLYWOOD MEDICAL CENTER LPOwner/operator name:

Owner/Operator Summary:

                    100 kg of that material at any time
                    hazardous waste during any calendar month, and accumulates more than
                    from the cleanup of a spill, into or on any land or water, of acutely
                    of any residue or contaminated soil, waste or other debris resulting
                    kg of acutely hazardous waste at any time; or generates 100 kg or less
                    hazardous waste during any calendar month, and accumulates more than 1
                    waste during any calendar month; or generates 1 kg or less of acutely

QUEEN OF ANGELS HOLLYWOOD PRES  (Continued) 1000597740

TC5441284.2s   Page 113



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                         T0603769055Global Id:
LUST:

                         Not reportedPhone Number:
                         yrong@waterboards.ca.govEmail:
                         Los AngelesCity:
                         320 W. 4TH ST., SUITE 200Address:
                         LOS ANGELES RWQCB (REGION 4)Organization Name:
                         YUE RONGContact Name:
                         Regional Board CaseworkerContact Type:
                         T0603769055Global Id:

                         Not reportedPhone Number:
                         eloy.luna@lacity.orgEmail:
                         LOS ANGELESCity:
                         200 North Main Street, Suite 1780Address:
                         LOS ANGELES, CITY OFOrganization Name:
                         ELOY LUNAContact Name:
                         Local Agency CaseworkerContact Type:
                         T0603769055Global Id:

LUST:

                              Not reportedSite History:
                              DieselPotential Contaminants of Concern:
                              SoilPotential Media Affect:
                              XS0001682Local Case Number:
                              Not reportedFile Location:
                              LOS ANGELES, CITY OFLocal Agency:
                              Not reportedRB Case Number:
                              ELCase Worker:
                              05/07/2013Status Date:
                              Completed - Case ClosedStatus:
                              -118.291034Longitude:
                              34.096196Latitude:
                              T0603769055Global Id:
                              http://geotracker.waterboards.ca.gov/profile_report.asp?global_id=T0603769055Geo Track:
                              LUST Cleanup SiteCase Type:
                              LOS ANGELES, CITY OFLead Agency:

LUST:

                    No violations foundViolation Status:

                    Small Quantity GeneratorClassification:
                    QUEEN OF ANGELES HPMCSite name:
                    01/31/1992Date form received by agency:

Historical Generators:

                    SILVER.   Waste name:
                    D011.   Waste code:

                    YesGenerated waste on-site:
                    YesAccumulated waste on-site:
                    ThermostatsWaste type:

                    YesGenerated waste on-site:
                    YesAccumulated waste on-site:
                    LampsWaste type:

QUEEN OF ANGELS HOLLYWOOD PRES  (Continued) 1000597740

TC5441284.2s   Page 114



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                   http://echo.epa.gov/detailed-facility-report?fid=110002867979DFR URL:
                                   110002867979Registry ID:
                                   1000597740Envid:

ECHO:

additional FINDS: detail in the EDR Site Report.
Click this hyperlink while viewing on your computer to access 

corrective action activities required under RCRA.
program staff to track the notification, permit, compliance, and
and treat, store, or dispose of hazardous waste. RCRAInfo allows RCRA
events and activities related to facilities that generate, transport,
Conservation and Recovery Act (RCRA) program through the tracking of
RCRAInfo is a national information system that supports the Resource

facilities.
generators, transporters, and treatment, storage, and disposal
provides California with information on hazardous waste shipments for
California Hazardous Waste Tracking System - Datamart (HWTS-DATAMART)

AIR EMISSIONS CLASSIFICATION UNKNOWN
                    Environmental Interest/Information System

                    110002867979Registry ID:

FINDS:

                         05/07/2013Status Date:
                         Completed - Case ClosedStatus:
                         T0603769055Global Id:

                         11/07/2006Status Date:
                         Open - Site AssessmentStatus:
                         T0603769055Global Id:

                         07/31/1999Status Date:
                         Open - Case Begin DateStatus:
                         T0603769055Global Id:

LUST:

                         Leak DiscoveryAction:
                         07/31/1999Date:
                         OtherAction Type:
                         T0603769055Global Id:

                         Leak ReportedAction:
                         10/12/1999Date:
                         OtherAction Type:
                         T0603769055Global Id:

                         Closure/No Further Action LetterAction:
                         05/07/2013Date:
                         ENFORCEMENTAction Type:

QUEEN OF ANGELS HOLLYWOOD PRES  (Continued) 1000597740

TC5441284.2s   Page 115



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

     2016Year:
     1000597740envid:

     Los AngelesFacility County:
     Incineration--Thermal Destruction Other Than Use As A FuelMethod Decode:
     Laboratory waste chemicalsCat Decode:
     0.9395Tons:
     Incineration--Thermal Destruction Other Than Use As A FuelDisposal Method:
     Laboratory waste chemicalsWaste Category:
     99TSD County:
     UTD981552177TSD EPA ID:
     Los AngelesGen County:
     LOS ANGELES, CA 900270000Mailing City,St,Zip:
     1300 NORTH VERMONT AVENUEMailing Address:
     Not reportedMailing Name:
     3239134897Telephone:
     MARK FELTT, DIR OF ENGINEERINGContact:
     CAD983617663GEPAID:
     2016Year:
     1000597740envid:

     Los AngelesFacility County:
     Fuel Blending Prior To Energy Recovery At Another SiteMethod Decode:
     Laboratory waste chemicalsCat Decode:
     1.5185Tons:
     Fuel Blending Prior To Energy Recovery At Another SiteDisposal Method:
     Laboratory waste chemicalsWaste Category:
     Los AngelesTSD County:
     CAD008364432TSD EPA ID:
     Los AngelesGen County:
     LOS ANGELES, CA 900270000Mailing City,St,Zip:
     1300 NORTH VERMONT AVENUEMailing Address:
     Not reportedMailing Name:
     3239134897Telephone:
     MARK FELTT, DIR OF ENGINEERINGContact:
     CAD983617663GEPAID:
     2016Year:
     1000597740envid:

     Los AngelesFacility County:
     Not reportedMethod Decode:
     Laboratory waste chemicalsCat Decode:
     0.2175Tons:
     Not reportedDisposal Method:
     Laboratory waste chemicalsWaste Category:
     Los AngelesTSD County:
     CAD008364432TSD EPA ID:
     Los AngelesGen County:
     LOS ANGELES, CA 900270000Mailing City,St,Zip:
     1300 NORTH VERMONT AVENUEMailing Address:
     Not reportedMailing Name:
     3239134897Telephone:
     MARK FELTT, DIR OF ENGINEERINGContact:
     CAD983617663GEPAID:
     2016Year:
     1000597740envid:

HAZNET:

QUEEN OF ANGELS HOLLYWOOD PRES  (Continued) 1000597740

TC5441284.2s   Page 116



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                        Not reportedTermination Date:
                                        08/22/2018Effective Date:
                                        Not reportedAdoption Date:
                                        CAS000002NPDES Number:
                                        4 19C384370WDID:
                                        2009-0009-DWQOrder Number:
                                        Storm water constructionRegulatory Measure Type:
                                        ActiveRegulatory Measure Status:
                                        CONSTWProgram:
                                        4Region:
                                        Not reportedSIC/NAICS:
                                        Communication Line, Commercial
                                        Construction - Below Ground, Water/Sewer Line, Electrical,Place/Project Type:
                                        1300 N Vermont Ave, Los Angeles, CA 90027Agency Address:
                                        CHA Hollywood Medical CenterAgency:

CIWQS:

228 additional CA_HAZNET: record(s) in the EDR Site Report.
Click this hyperlink while viewing on your computer to access 

     Los AngelesFacility County:
     (H010-H129) Or (H131-H135)
     Storage, Bulking, And/Or Transfer Off Site--No Treatment/ReoveryMethod Decode:
     Pharmaceutical wasteCat Decode:
     0.0995Tons:
     (H010-H129) Or (H131-H135)
     Storage, Bulking, And/Or Transfer Off Site--No Treatment/ReoveryDisposal Method:
     Pharmaceutical wasteWaste Category:
     Los AngelesTSD County:
     CAD008364432TSD EPA ID:
     Los AngelesGen County:
     LOS ANGELES, CA 900270000Mailing City,St,Zip:
     1300 NORTH VERMONT AVENUEMailing Address:
     Not reportedMailing Name:
     3239134897Telephone:
     MARK FELTT, DIR OF ENGINEERINGContact:
     CAD983617663GEPAID:
     2016Year:
     1000597740envid:

     Los AngelesFacility County:
     (H010-H129) Or (H131-H135)
     Storage, Bulking, And/Or Transfer Off Site--No Treatment/ReoveryMethod Decode:
     Unspecified oil-containing wasteCat Decode:
     0.0445Tons:
     (H010-H129) Or (H131-H135)
     Storage, Bulking, And/Or Transfer Off Site--No Treatment/ReoveryDisposal Method:
     Unspecified oil-containing wasteWaste Category:
     Los AngelesTSD County:
     CAD008364432TSD EPA ID:
     Los AngelesGen County:
     LOS ANGELES, CA 900270000Mailing City,St,Zip:
     1300 NORTH VERMONT AVENUEMailing Address:
     Not reportedMailing Name:
     3239134897Telephone:
     MARK FELTT, DIR OF ENGINEERINGContact:
     CAD983617663GEPAID:

QUEEN OF ANGELS HOLLYWOOD PRES  (Continued) 1000597740

TC5441284.2s   Page 117



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                        -118.290611Longitude:
                                        34.096222Latitude:
                                        0Violations within 5 years:
                                        0Enforcement Actions within 5 years:
                                        Not reportedTTWQ:
                                        Not reportedComplexity:
                                        Not reportedMajor/Minor:
                                        Not reportedDesign Flow:
                                        Not reportedExpiration/Review Date:

QUEEN OF ANGELS HOLLYWOOD PRES  (Continued) 1000597740

                              004Tank Num:

                              Stock InventorLeak Detection:
                              0000250Container Construction Thickness:
                              Not reportedType of Fuel:
                              PRODUCTTank Used for:
                              00008000Tank Capacity:
                              1960Year Installed:
                              3Container Num:
                              003Tank Num:

                              Stock InventorLeak Detection:
                              0000250Container Construction Thickness:
                              Not reportedType of Fuel:
                              PRODUCTTank Used for:
                              00006000Tank Capacity:
                              1960Year Installed:
                              2Container Num:
                              002Tank Num:

                              Stock InventorLeak Detection:
                              0000170Container Construction Thickness:
                              Not reportedType of Fuel:
                              PRODUCTTank Used for:
                              00002000Tank Capacity:
                              1960Year Installed:
                              1Container Num:
                              001Tank Num:

                              0004Total Tanks:
                              SAN FRANCISCO, CA 94105Owner City,St,Zip:
                              575 MARKETOwner Address:
                              CHEVRON U.S.A. INC.Owner Name:
                              2136621119Telephone:
                              BAROUTGIAN, ROBERTContact Name:
                              Not reportedOther Type:
                              Gas StationFacility Type:
                              00000061882Facility ID:
                              STATERegion:
                              Not reportedURL:
                              Not reportedFile Number:

HIST UST:

1118 ft. Site 1 of 3 in cluster O
0.212 mi.

Relative:
Lower

Actual:
396 ft.

1/8-1/4 LOS ANGELES, CA  90027
ESE 4480 W SUNSET BLVD    N/A
O70 CA HIST UST90703 U001561174

TC5441284.2s   Page 118



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                              Stock InventorLeak Detection:
                              0000100Container Construction Thickness:
                              Not reportedType of Fuel:
                              WASTETank Used for:
                              00000550Tank Capacity:
                              1960Year Installed:
                              4Container Num:

90703  (Continued) U001561174

          19-050-003471-000003SWRCB Tank Id:
          Not reportedOwner Tank Id:
          Not reportedCreated Date:
          Not reportedAction Date:
          Not reportedReferral Date:
          44-013018Board Of Equalization:
          Not reportedNumber:
          3471Comp Number:
          Not reportedStatus:

          Not reportedNumber Of Tanks:
          UNKNOWNContent:
          PRODUCTSTG:
          CHEMICALTank Use:
          Not reportedActive Date:
          6000Capacity:
          Not reportedTank Status:
          19-050-003471-000002SWRCB Tank Id:
          Not reportedOwner Tank Id:
          Not reportedCreated Date:
          Not reportedAction Date:
          Not reportedReferral Date:
          44-013018Board Of Equalization:
          Not reportedNumber:
          3471Comp Number:
          Not reportedStatus:

          4Number Of Tanks:
          UNKNOWNContent:
          PRODUCTSTG:
          CHEMICALTank Use:
          Not reportedActive Date:
          2000Capacity:
          Not reportedTank Status:
          19-050-003471-000001SWRCB Tank Id:
          Not reportedOwner Tank Id:
          Not reportedCreated Date:
          Not reportedAction Date:
          Not reportedReferral Date:
          44-013018Board Of Equalization:
          Not reportedNumber:
          3471Comp Number:
          Not reportedStatus:

SWEEPS UST:

1118 ft. Site 2 of 3 in cluster O
0.212 mi.

Relative:
Lower

Actual:
396 ft.

1/8-1/4 CA FID USTLOS ANGELES, CA  90027
ESE CA HIST UST4480 W SUNSET BLVD    N/A
O71 CA SWEEPS UST90703-CHEVRON STATION S101583709

TC5441284.2s   Page 119



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

     Not reportedSIC Code:
     Not reportedCortese Code:
     00061882Regulated ID:
     UTNKIRegulated By:
     19005665Facility ID:

CA FID UST:

Click here for Geo Tracker PDF:

                              Not reportedLeak Detection:
                              Not reportedContainer Construction Thickness:
                              Not reportedType of Fuel:
                              Not reportedTank Used for:
                              Not reportedTank Capacity:
                              Not reportedYear Installed:
                              Not reportedContainer Num:
                              Not reportedTank Num:

                              Not reportedTotal Tanks:
                              Not reportedOwner City,St,Zip:
                              Not reportedOwner Address:
                              Not reportedOwner Name:
                              Not reportedTelephone:
                              Not reportedContact Name:
                              Not reportedOther Type:
                              Not reportedFacility Type:
                              Not reportedFacility ID:
                              Not reportedRegion:
                              http://geotracker.waterboards.ca.gov/ustpdfs/pdf/00026C03.pdfURL:
                              00026C03File Number:

HIST UST:

          Not reportedNumber Of Tanks:
          UNKNOWNContent:
          PRODUCTSTG:
          CHEMICALTank Use:
          Not reportedActive Date:
          550Capacity:
          Not reportedTank Status:
          19-050-003471-000004SWRCB Tank Id:
          Not reportedOwner Tank Id:
          Not reportedCreated Date:
          Not reportedAction Date:
          Not reportedReferral Date:
          44-013018Board Of Equalization:
          Not reportedNumber:
          3471Comp Number:
          Not reportedStatus:

          Not reportedNumber Of Tanks:
          UNKNOWNContent:
          PRODUCTSTG:
          CHEMICALTank Use:
          Not reportedActive Date:
          8000Capacity:
          Not reportedTank Status:

90703-CHEVRON STATION  (Continued) S101583709

TC5441284.2s   Page 120



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

     InactiveStatus:
     Not reportedComments:
     Not reportedEPA ID:
     Not reportedNPDES Number:
     Not reportedDUNs Number:
     Not reportedContact Phone:
     Not reportedContact:
     LOS ANGELES 900270000Mailing City,St,Zip:
     Not reportedMailing Address 2:
     575  MARKET STMailing Address:
     Not reportedMail To:
     2136621119Facility Phone:

90703-CHEVRON STATION  (Continued) S101583709

                    NOT REQUIREDOwner/operator address:
                    NOT REQUIREDOwner/operator name:

                    Not reportedOwner/Op end date:
                    Not reportedOwner/Op start date:
                    OwnerOwner/Operator Type:
                    PrivateLegal status:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator extension:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator fax:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator email:
                    415-555-1212Owner/operator telephone:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator country:
                    NOT REQUIRED, ME 99999
                    NOT REQUIREDOwner/operator address:
                    YOUNG W LEEOwner/operator name:

Owner/Operator Summary:

                    hazardous waste at any time
                    waste during any calendar month, and accumulates more than 1000 kg of
                    hazardous waste at any time; or generates 100 kg or less of hazardous
                    waste during any calendar month and accumulates less than 6000 kg of
                    Handler: generates more than 100 and less than 1000 kg of hazardousDescription:
                    Small Small Quantity GeneratorClassification:
                    09EPA Region:
                    Not reportedContact email:
                    213-660-1819Contact telephone:
                    USContact country:
                    LOS ANGELES, CA 90027
                    4470 W SUNSET BLVD STE 108Contact address:
                    ENVIRONMENTAL  MANAGERContact:
                    LOS ANGELES, CA 90027
                    W SUNSET BLVD STE 108Mailing address:
                    CAD982444408EPA ID:
                    LOS ANGELES, CA 90027
                    4470 W SUNSET BLVD STE 108Facility address:
                    SUNSET 30 MINUTE PHOTOFacility name:
                    11/27/1990Date form received by agency:

RCRA-SQG:

1121 ft. Site 3 of 3 in cluster O
0.212 mi.

Relative:
Lower

Actual:
394 ft.

1/8-1/4 ECHOLOS ANGELES, CA  90027
ESE FINDS4470 W SUNSET BLVD STE 108 CAD982444408
O72 RCRA-SQGSUNSET 30 MINUTE PHOTO 1000473036

TC5441284.2s   Page 121



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                   http://echo.epa.gov/detailed-facility-report?fid=110002814161DFR URL:
                                   110002814161Registry ID:
                                   1000473036Envid:

ECHO:

additional FINDS: detail in the EDR Site Report.
Click this hyperlink while viewing on your computer to access 

corrective action activities required under RCRA.
program staff to track the notification, permit, compliance, and
and treat, store, or dispose of hazardous waste. RCRAInfo allows RCRA
events and activities related to facilities that generate, transport,
Conservation and Recovery Act (RCRA) program through the tracking of
RCRAInfo is a national information system that supports the Resource
                    Environmental Interest/Information System

                    110002814161Registry ID:

FINDS:

                    No violations foundViolation Status:

                              NoUsed oil transporter:
                              NoUsed oil transfer facility:
                              NoUsed oil Specification marketer:
                              NoUsed oil fuel marketer to burner:
                              NoUser oil refiner:
                              NoUsed oil processor:
                              NoUsed oil fuel burner:
                              NoFurnace exemption:
                              NoOn-site burner exemption:
                              NoUnderground injection activity:
                              NoTreater, storer or disposer of HW:
                              NoTransporter of hazardous waste:
                              NoRecycler of hazardous waste:
                              NoMixed waste (haz. and radioactive):
                              NoU.S. importer of hazardous waste:

Handler Activities Summary:

                    Not reportedOwner/Op end date:
                    Not reportedOwner/Op start date:
                    OperatorOwner/Operator Type:
                    PrivateLegal status:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator extension:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator fax:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator email:
                    415-555-1212Owner/operator telephone:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator country:
                    NOT REQUIRED, ME 99999

SUNSET 30 MINUTE PHOTO  (Continued) 1000473036

TC5441284.2s   Page 122



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                              Not reportedEPAID:
                              United StatesProperty Owner Country:
                              90012Property Owner Zip Code:
                              CAProperty Owner Stat :
                              Los AngelesProperty Owner City:
                              111 North Hope Street, Room 1050Property Owner Mailing Address:
                              213-367-0403Property Owner Phone:
                              Los Angeles Department of Water and PowerProperty Owner Name:
                              United StatesOwner Country:
                              90012Owner Zip Code:
                              CAOwner State:
                              111 North Hope Street, Room 1050Owner Mail Address:
                              213-367-0403Owner Phone:
                              213-367-0403Operator Phone:
                              Los Angeles Department of Water and PowerOperator Name:
                              90012Mailing Address Zip Code:
                              CAMailing Address State:
                              Los AngelesMailing Address City:
                              111 North Hope Street, Room 1050Mailing Address:
                              Not reportedFax:
                              213-367-0403Phone:
                              Los Angeles Department of Water and PowerBusiness Name:
                              LACtFacility ID:
                              10030141CERSID:
                              Not reportedTotal Gallons:
                              Los Angeles Department of Water and PowerOwner:
                              Not reportedCertified Unified Program Agencies:

AST:

1136 ft.
0.215 mi.

Relative:
Higher

Actual:
426 ft.

1/8-1/4 LOS ANGELES, CA  90027
NE 1675 HILLHURST AVE    N/A
73 CA ASTDISTRIBUTING STATION 54 A100419472

                    hazardous waste at any time; or generates 100 kg or less of hazardous
                    waste during any calendar month and accumulates less than 6000 kg of
                    Handler: generates more than 100 and less than 1000 kg of hazardousDescription:
                    Small Small Quantity GeneratorClassification:
                    09EPA Region:
                    Not reportedContact email:
                    213-485-6178Contact telephone:
                    USContact country:
                    LOS ANGELES, CA 90012
                    200 N MAIN ST NO 709Contact address:
                    DAVID  ATTAWAYContact:
                    LOS ANGELES, CA 90012
                    200 N MAIN ST NO 709Mailing address:
                    CAD981988033EPA ID:
                    LOS ANGELES, CA 90012
                    4800 HOLLYWOOD BLVDFacility address:
                    BARNSDALL PARKFacility name:
                    11/13/2001Date form received by agency:

RCRA-SQG:

1205 ft. Site 1 of 4 in cluster P
0.228 mi.

Relative:
Higher

Actual:
419 ft.

1/8-1/4 ECHOLOS ANGELES, CA  90012
NW FINDS4800 HOLLYWOOD BLVD CAD981988033
P74 RCRA-SQGBARNSDALL PARK 1000243399

TC5441284.2s   Page 123



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                    WHICH WOULD BE CONSIDERED AS IGNITABLE HAZARDOUS WASTE.
                    MATERIAL.  LACQUER THINNER IS AN EXAMPLE OF A COMMONLY USED SOLVENT
                    WHICH CAN BE OBTAINED FROM THE MANUFACTURER OR DISTRIBUTOR OF THE
                    FLASH POINT OF A WASTE IS TO REVIEW THE MATERIAL SAFETY DATA SHEET,
                    CLOSED CUP FLASH POINT TESTER.  ANOTHER METHOD OF DETERMINING THE
                    LESS THAN 140 DEGREES FAHRENHEIT AS DETERMINED BY A PENSKY-MARTENS
                    IGNITABLE HAZARDOUS WASTES ARE THOSE WASTES WHICH HAVE A FLASHPOINT OF.   Waste name:
                    D001.   Waste code:

                              NoUsed oil transporter:
                              NoUsed oil transfer facility:
                              NoUsed oil Specification marketer:
                              NoUsed oil fuel marketer to burner:
                              NoUser oil refiner:
                              NoUsed oil processor:
                              NoUsed oil fuel burner:
                              NoFurnace exemption:
                              NoOn-site burner exemption:
                              NoUnderground injection activity:
                              NoTreater, storer or disposer of HW:
                              NoTransporter of hazardous waste:
                              NoRecycler of hazardous waste:
                              NoMixed waste (haz. and radioactive):
                              NoU.S. importer of hazardous waste:

Handler Activities Summary:

                    Not reportedOwner/Op end date:
                    Not reportedOwner/Op start date:
                    OperatorOwner/Operator Type:
                    MunicipalLegal status:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator extension:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator fax:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator email:
                    415-555-1212Owner/operator telephone:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator country:
                    NOT REQUIRED, ME 99999
                    NOT REQUIREDOwner/operator address:
                    NOT REQUIREDOwner/operator name:

                    Not reportedOwner/Op end date:
                    Not reportedOwner/Op start date:
                    OwnerOwner/Operator Type:
                    MunicipalLegal status:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator extension:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator fax:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator email:
                    213-473-6833Owner/operator telephone:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator country:
                    LOS ANGELES, CA 90012
                    200 N MAIN ST RM 1330 C H EOwner/operator address:
                    L A DEPT OF REC AND PARKSOwner/operator name:

Owner/Operator Summary:

                    hazardous waste at any time
                    waste during any calendar month, and accumulates more than 1000 kg of

BARNSDALL PARK  (Continued) 1000243399

TC5441284.2s   Page 124



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                   http://echo.epa.gov/detailed-facility-report?fid=110002767097DFR URL:
                                   110002767097Registry ID:
                                   1000243399Envid:

ECHO:

additional FINDS: detail in the EDR Site Report.
Click this hyperlink while viewing on your computer to access 

corrective action activities required under RCRA.
program staff to track the notification, permit, compliance, and
and treat, store, or dispose of hazardous waste. RCRAInfo allows RCRA
events and activities related to facilities that generate, transport,
Conservation and Recovery Act (RCRA) program through the tracking of
RCRAInfo is a national information system that supports the Resource
                    Environmental Interest/Information System

                    110002767097Registry ID:

FINDS:

                    No violations foundViolation Status:

                    LEAD.   Waste name:
                    D008.   Waste code:

                    ARSENIC.   Waste name:
                    D004.   Waste code:

                    OF SUCH WASTE WOULD BY WASTE GUNPOWDER.
                    DETONATION OR EXPLOSION WHEN EXPOSED TO HEAT OR A FLAME.  ONE EXAMPLE
                    WHEN EXPOSED TO WATER OR CORROSIVE MATERIALS, OR IF IT IS CAPABLE OF
                    NORMALLY UNSTABLE, REACTS VIOLENTLY WITH WATER, GENERATES TOXIC GASES
                    A MATERIAL IS CONSIDERED TO BE A REACTIVE HAZARDOUS WASTE IF IT IS.   Waste name:
                    D003.   Waste code:

                    DISPOSED, THE WASTE WOULD BE A CORROSIVE HAZARDOUS WASTE.
                    THESE CAUSTIC OR ACID SOLUTIONS BECOME CONTAMINATED AND MUST BE
                    USED BY MANY INDUSTRIES TO CLEAN METAL PARTS PRIOR TO PAINTING.  WHEN
                    OR DEGREASE PARTS. HYDROCHLORIC ACID, A SOLUTION WITH A LOW PH, IS
                    CAUSTIC SOLUTION WITH A HIGH PH, IS OFTEN USED BY INDUSTRIES TO CLEAN
                    CONSIDERED TO BE A CORROSIVE HAZARDOUS WASTE.  SODIUM HYDROXIDE, A
                    A WASTE WHICH HAS A PH OF LESS THAN 2 OR GREATER THAN 12.5 IS.   Waste name:
                    D002.   Waste code:

BARNSDALL PARK  (Continued) 1000243399

                    N VERMONTMailing address:
                    CAR000012062EPA ID:
                    LOS ANGELES, CA 90027
                    1759 N VERMONTFacility address:
                    HOLLYMONT CLEANERSFacility name:
                    05/06/1996Date form received by agency:

RCRA-SQG:

1241 ft. Site 1 of 4 in cluster Q
0.235 mi. CA DRYCLEANERS

Relative:
Higher

Actual:
437 ft.

1/8-1/4 ECHOLOS ANGELES, CA  90027
NNW FINDS1759 N VERMONT CAR000012062
Q75 RCRA-SQGHOLLYMONT CLEANERS 1001111668

TC5441284.2s   Page 125



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

and treat, store, or dispose of hazardous waste. RCRAInfo allows RCRA
events and activities related to facilities that generate, transport,
Conservation and Recovery Act (RCRA) program through the tracking of
RCRAInfo is a national information system that supports the Resource
                    Environmental Interest/Information System

                    110002911902Registry ID:

FINDS:

                    No violations foundViolation Status:

                              NoUsed oil transporter:
                              NoUsed oil transfer facility:
                              NoUsed oil Specification marketer:
                              NoUsed oil fuel marketer to burner:
                              NoUser oil refiner:
                              NoUsed oil processor:
                              NoUsed oil fuel burner:
                              NoFurnace exemption:
                              NoOn-site burner exemption:
                              NoUnderground injection activity:
                              NoTreater, storer or disposer of HW:
                              NoTransporter of hazardous waste:
                              NoRecycler of hazardous waste:
                              NoMixed waste (haz. and radioactive):
                              NoU.S. importer of hazardous waste:

Handler Activities Summary:

                    Not reportedOwner/Op end date:
                    Not reportedOwner/Op start date:
                    OwnerOwner/Operator Type:
                    PrivateLegal status:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator extension:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator fax:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator email:
                    213-664-8719Owner/operator telephone:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator country:
                    LOS ANGELES, CA 90027
                    1759 N VERMONTOwner/operator address:
                    KI HO JUNGOwner/operator name:

Owner/Operator Summary:

                    hazardous waste at any time
                    waste during any calendar month, and accumulates more than 1000 kg of
                    hazardous waste at any time; or generates 100 kg or less of hazardous
                    waste during any calendar month and accumulates less than 6000 kg of
                    Handler: generates more than 100 and less than 1000 kg of hazardousDescription:
                    Small Small Quantity GeneratorClassification:
                    09EPA Region:
                    Not reportedContact email:
                    213-664-8719Contact telephone:
                    USContact country:
                    LOS ANGELES, CA 90027
                    1759 N VERMONTContact address:
                    KI HO  JUNGContact:
                    LOS ANGELES, CA 90027

HOLLYMONT CLEANERS  (Continued) 1001111668

TC5441284.2s   Page 126



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                    3Region Code:
                    0000000000Owner Fax:
                    900274305Mailing Zip:
                    CAMailing State:
                    LOS ANGELESMailing City:
                    Not reportedMailing Address 2:
                    1759 N VERMONT AVEMailing Address 1:
                    Not reportedMailing Name:
                    3236648719Contact Telephone:
                    Not reportedContact Address 2:
                    1759 N VERMONT AVEContact Address:
                    KI HO JUNGContact Name:
                    3236648719Owner Telephone:
                    Not reportedOwner Address 2:
                    1759 N VERMONT AVEOwner Address:
                    KI HO JUNGOwner Name:
                    Not reportedFacility Addr2:
                    06/30/2014Inactive Date:
                    NoFacility Active:
                    11/14/1989Create Date:
                    Power Laundries, Family and CommercialSIC Description:
                    7211SIC Code:
                    Drycleaning and Laundry Services (except Coin-Operated)NAICS Description:
                    81232NAICS Code:
                    CAL000009684EPA Id:

DRYCLEANERS:

                                   http://echo.epa.gov/detailed-facility-report?fid=110002911902DFR URL:
                                   110002911902Registry ID:
                                   1001111668Envid:

ECHO:

additional FINDS: detail in the EDR Site Report.
Click this hyperlink while viewing on your computer to access 

STATE MASTER

corrective action activities required under RCRA.
program staff to track the notification, permit, compliance, and

HOLLYMONT CLEANERS  (Continued) 1001111668

                                        DRY CLEANING EQUIP PERCHLOROETHYLENEBCAT Description:
                                        000234BCAT Number:
                                        INACTIVEPermit Status:
                                        213 6648719Representative Telephone:
                                        SOO DUK OHRepresentative Name:
                                        OStatus:
                                        M36413Permit Number:
                                        119295Application Number:
                                        42910Facility ID:

DRYCLEAN SOUTH COAST:

1241 ft. Site 2 of 4 in cluster Q
0.235 mi.

Relative:
Higher

Actual:
437 ft.

1/8-1/4 LOS ANGELES, CA  90027
NNW 1759 N VERMONT AVE    N/A
Q76 CA DRYCLEANERSHOLLYMONT CLEANERS & LAUNDRY, SOO DUK OH S121697758

TC5441284.2s   Page 127



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                        0UTM North:
                                        0UTM East:
                                        Not reportedCCAT Description:
                                        Not reportedCCAT Number:

HOLLYMONT CLEANERS & LAUNDRY, SOO DUK OH  (Continued) S121697758

                                        0UTM North:
                                        0UTM East:
                                        Not reportedCCAT Description:
                                        Not reportedCCAT Number:
                                        DRY CLEANING EQUIP PERCHLOROETHYLENEBCAT Description:
                                        000234BCAT Number:
                                        INACTIVEPermit Status:
                                        213 6648719Representative Telephone:
                                        SUN JAI PARKRepresentative Name:
                                        OStatus:
                                        M32362Permit Number:
                                        107526Application Number:
                                        38230Facility ID:

DRYCLEAN SOUTH COAST:

1241 ft. Site 3 of 4 in cluster Q
0.235 mi.

Relative:
Higher

Actual:
437 ft.

1/8-1/4 LOS ANGELES, CA  90027
NNW 1759 N VERMONT AVE    N/A
Q77 CA DRYCLEANERSHOLLYMONT CLEANER & LAUNDRY S121697507

                    900270000Mailing Zip:
                    CAMailing State:
                    LOS ANGELESMailing City:
                    Not reportedMailing Address 2:
                    1759 N VERMONT AVEMailing Address 1:
                    Not reportedMailing Name:
                    8182396046Contact Telephone:
                    Not reportedContact Address 2:
                    1759 N VERMONT AVEContact Address:
                    LAURA SHINContact Name:
                    8182396033Owner Telephone:
                    Not reportedOwner Address 2:
                    1759 N VERMONT AVEOwner Address:
                    JULIE SHINOwner Name:
                    Not reportedFacility Addr2:
                    Not reportedInactive Date:
                    YesFacility Active:
                    02/27/2014Create Date:
                    Power Laundries, Family and CommercialSIC Description:
                    7211SIC Code:
                    Drycleaning and Laundry Services (except Coin-Operated)NAICS Description:
                    81232NAICS Code:
                    CAL000394511EPA Id:

DRYCLEANERS:

1241 ft. Site 4 of 4 in cluster Q
0.235 mi.

Relative:
Higher

Actual:
437 ft.

1/8-1/4 LOS ANGELES, CA  90027
NNW CA HAZNET1759 N VERMONT AVE    N/A
Q78 CA DRYCLEANERSHOLLYMONT CLEANERS & LAUNDRY S113024947

TC5441284.2s   Page 128



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                        Not reportedCCAT Description:
                                        Not reportedCCAT Number:
                                        DRY CLEANING,DRY-TO-DRY NV,W/ SIC,PERCBCAT Description:
                                        000603BCAT Number:
                                        INACTIVEPermit Status:
                                        213 6648719Representative Telephone:
                                        MARIANN M JUNGRepresentative Name:
                                        AStatus:
                                        F58527Permit Number:
                                        411510Application Number:
                                        109212Facility ID:

                                        3774.1000977UTM North:
                                        380.8999939UTM East:
                                        Not reportedCCAT Description:
                                        Not reportedCCAT Number:
                                        DRY CLEANING EQUIP PERCHLOROETHYLENEBCAT Description:
                                        000234BCAT Number:
                                        INACTIVEPermit Status:
                                        213 6648719Representative Telephone:
                                        YOUNG NAM KIMRepresentative Name:
                                        OStatus:
                                        M57621Permit Number:
                                        157040Application Number:
                                        57071Facility ID:

                                        3774.0800781UTM North:
                                        380.82699585UTM East:
                                        VAPOR RECOVERY UNIT COMPRESS & CONDENSECCAT Description:
                                        04CCAT Number:
                                        DRY CLEANING EQUIP PERCHLOROETHYLENEBCAT Description:
                                        000234BCAT Number:
                                        INACTIVEPermit Status:
                                        213 6648719Representative Telephone:
                                        MARIANN M JUNGRepresentative Name:
                                        AStatus:
                                        F00181Permit Number:
                                        316926Application Number:
                                        109212Facility ID:

                                        3774.1000977UTM North:
                                        380.8999939UTM East:
                                        VAPOR RECOVERY UNIT COMPRESS & CONDENSECCAT Description:
                                        04CCAT Number:
                                        DRY CLEANING EQUIP PERCHLOROETHYLENEBCAT Description:
                                        000234BCAT Number:
                                        INACT_NRPermit Status:
                                        213 6648719Representative Telephone:
                                        YOUNG NAM KIMRepresentative Name:
                                        OStatus:
                                        D16321Permit Number:
                                        207464Application Number:
                                        57071Facility ID:

DRYCLEAN SOUTH COAST:

                    3Region Code:
                    0000000000Owner Fax:

HOLLYMONT CLEANERS & LAUNDRY  (Continued) S113024947

TC5441284.2s   Page 129



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                        380.8999939UTM East:
                                        ADSORBER (DRY CLEANING) REGENERATIVECCAT Description:
                                        02CCAT Number:
                                        DRY CLEANING EQUIP PERCHLOROETHYLENEBCAT Description:
                                        000234BCAT Number:
                                        INACTIVEPermit Status:
                                        213 6648719Representative Telephone:
                                        YOUNG NAM KIMRepresentative Name:
                                        OStatus:
                                        M63170Permit Number:
                                        166596Application Number:
                                        57071Facility ID:

                                        0UTM North:
                                        0UTM East:
                                        Not reportedCCAT Description:
                                        Not reportedCCAT Number:
                                        DRY CLEANING EQUIP PERCHLOROETHYLENEBCAT Description:
                                        000234BCAT Number:
                                        INACTIVEPermit Status:
                                        Not reportedRepresentative Telephone:
                                        Not reportedRepresentative Name:
                                        OStatus:
                                        M18302Permit Number:
                                        C36209Application Number:
                                        2849Facility ID:

                                        3774.0800781UTM North:
                                        380.82699585UTM East:
                                        Not reportedCCAT Description:
                                        Not reportedCCAT Number:
                                        Dry Cleaning--HC Glycol EthersBCAT Description:
                                        000605BCAT Number:
                                        ACTIVEPermit Status:
                                        213 6648719Representative Telephone:
                                        MARIANN M JUNGRepresentative Name:
                                        AStatus:
                                        G30485Permit Number:
                                        561524Application Number:
                                        109212Facility ID:

                                        3774.0800781UTM North:
                                        380.82699585UTM East:
                                        Not reportedCCAT Description:
                                        Not reportedCCAT Number:
                                        DRY CLEANING,DRY-TO-DRY NV,W/ SIC,PERCBCAT Description:
                                        000603BCAT Number:
                                        INACTIVEPermit Status:
                                        213 6648719Representative Telephone:
                                        MARIANN M JUNGRepresentative Name:
                                        AStatus:
                                        F90966Permit Number:
                                        468090Application Number:
                                        109212Facility ID:

                                        3774.0800781UTM North:
                                        380.82699585UTM East:

HOLLYMONT CLEANERS & LAUNDRY  (Continued) S113024947

TC5441284.2s   Page 130



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

     Not reportedMethod Decode:
     Not reportedCat Decode:
     Not reportedTons:
     Not reportedDisposal Method:
     Aqueous solution with total organic residues less than 10 percentWaste Category:
     Not reportedTSD County:
     NVR000076158TSD EPA ID:
     Not reportedGen County:
     LOS ANGELES, CA 900274305Mailing City,St,Zip:
     1759 N VERMONT AVEMailing Address:
     Not reportedMailing Name:
     2136648719Telephone:
     KI HO JUNGContact:
     CAL000009684GEPAID:
     2006Year:
     S113024947envid:

     Los AngelesFacility County:
     Not reportedMethod Decode:
     Not reportedCat Decode:
     0.1251Tons:
     Solvents RecoveryDisposal Method:
     etc)
     Halogenated solvents (chloroforms, methyl chloride, perchloroethylene,Waste Category:
     Not reportedTSD County:
     NVR000076158TSD EPA ID:
     Not reportedGen County:
     LOS ANGELES, CA 900274305Mailing City,St,Zip:
     1759 N VERMONT AVEMailing Address:
     Not reportedMailing Name:
     2136648719Telephone:
     KI HO JUNGContact:
     CAL000009684GEPAID:
     2008Year:
     S113024947envid:

     Los AngelesFacility County:
     Not reportedMethod Decode:
     Not reportedCat Decode:
     0.1251Tons:
     Solvents RecoveryDisposal Method:
     etc)
     Halogenated solvents (chloroforms, methyl chloride, perchloroethylene,Waste Category:
     Not reportedTSD County:
     NVR000076158TSD EPA ID:
     Not reportedGen County:
     LOS ANGELES, CA 900274305Mailing City,St,Zip:
     1759 N VERMONT AVEMailing Address:
     Not reportedMailing Name:
     2136648719Telephone:
     KI HO JUNGContact:
     CAL000009684GEPAID:
     2008Year:
     S113024947envid:

HAZNET:

                                        3774.1000977UTM North:

HOLLYMONT CLEANERS & LAUNDRY  (Continued) S113024947

TC5441284.2s   Page 131



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

11 additional CA_HAZNET: record(s) in the EDR Site Report.
Click this hyperlink while viewing on your computer to access 

     Los AngelesFacility County:
     Not reportedMethod Decode:
     Not reportedCat Decode:
     0.12Tons:
     Not reportedDisposal Method:
     etc)
     Halogenated solvents (chloroforms, methyl chloride, perchloroethylene,Waste Category:
     Not reportedTSD County:
     NVR000076158TSD EPA ID:
     Not reportedGen County:
     LOS ANGELES, CA 900274305Mailing City,St,Zip:
     1759 N VERMONT AVEMailing Address:
     Not reportedMailing Name:
     2136648719Telephone:
     KI HO JUNGContact:
     CAL000009684GEPAID:
     2006Year:
     S113024947envid:

     Los AngelesFacility County:
     Not reportedMethod Decode:
     Not reportedCat Decode:
     0.12Tons:
     Not reportedDisposal Method:
     etc)
     Halogenated solvents (chloroforms, methyl chloride, perchloroethylene,Waste Category:
     Not reportedTSD County:
     NVR000076158TSD EPA ID:
     Not reportedGen County:
     LOS ANGELES, CA 900274305Mailing City,St,Zip:
     1759 N VERMONT AVEMailing Address:
     Not reportedMailing Name:
     2136648719Telephone:
     KI HO JUNGContact:
     CAL000009684GEPAID:
     2006Year:
     S113024947envid:

     Los AngelesFacility County:

HOLLYMONT CLEANERS & LAUNDRY  (Continued) S113024947

                    SOE  AUNGContact:
                    LOS ANGELES, CA 90015
                    1449 S SAN PEDRO STMailing address:
                    CAD981625403EPA ID:
                    LOS ANGELES, CA 90027
                    1740 N NEW HAMPSHIRE AVEFacility address:
                    L A U S D LOS FELIZ ELFacility name:
                    09/25/2002Date form received by agency:

RCRA-SQG:

1265 ft.
0.240 mi.

Relative:
Higher

Actual:
427 ft.

1/8-1/4 ECHOLOS ANGELES, CA  90027
NNW FINDS1740 N NEW HAMPSHIRE AVE CAD981625403
79 RCRA-SQGL A U S D LOS FELIZ EL 1000427624

TC5441284.2s   Page 132



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                              NoUsed oil transporter:
                              NoUsed oil transfer facility:
                              NoUsed oil Specification marketer:
                              NoUsed oil fuel marketer to burner:
                              NoUser oil refiner:
                              NoUsed oil processor:
                              NoUsed oil fuel burner:
                              NoFurnace exemption:
                              NoOn-site burner exemption:
                              NoUnderground injection activity:
                              NoTreater, storer or disposer of HW:
                              NoTransporter of hazardous waste:
                              NoRecycler of hazardous waste:
                              NoMixed waste (haz. and radioactive):
                              NoU.S. importer of hazardous waste:

Handler Activities Summary:

                    Not reportedOwner/Op end date:
                    Not reportedOwner/Op start date:
                    OperatorOwner/Operator Type:
                    DistrictLegal status:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator extension:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator fax:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator email:
                    415-555-1212Owner/operator telephone:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator country:
                    NOT REQUIRED, ME 99999
                    NOT REQUIREDOwner/operator address:
                    NOT REQUIREDOwner/operator name:

                    Not reportedOwner/Op end date:
                    Not reportedOwner/Op start date:
                    OwnerOwner/Operator Type:
                    DistrictLegal status:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator extension:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator fax:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator email:
                    213-743-5086Owner/operator telephone:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator country:
                    LOS ANGELES, CA 90015
                    1449 S SAN PEDRO STOwner/operator address:
                    L A UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICTOwner/operator name:

Owner/Operator Summary:

                    hazardous waste at any time
                    waste during any calendar month, and accumulates more than 1000 kg of
                    hazardous waste at any time; or generates 100 kg or less of hazardous
                    waste during any calendar month and accumulates less than 6000 kg of
                    Handler: generates more than 100 and less than 1000 kg of hazardousDescription:
                    Small Small Quantity GeneratorClassification:
                    09EPA Region:
                    Not reportedContact email:
                    213-743-5086Contact telephone:
                    USContact country:
                    LOS ANGELES, CA 90015
                    1449 S SAN PEDRO STContact address:

L A U S D LOS FELIZ EL  (Continued) 1000427624

TC5441284.2s   Page 133



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                   http://echo.epa.gov/detailed-facility-report?fid=110002728790DFR URL:
                                   110002728790Registry ID:
                                   1000427624Envid:

ECHO:

additional FINDS: detail in the EDR Site Report.
Click this hyperlink while viewing on your computer to access 

corrective action activities required under RCRA.
program staff to track the notification, permit, compliance, and
and treat, store, or dispose of hazardous waste. RCRAInfo allows RCRA
events and activities related to facilities that generate, transport,
Conservation and Recovery Act (RCRA) program through the tracking of
RCRAInfo is a national information system that supports the Resource

facilities.
generators, transporters, and treatment, storage, and disposal
provides California with information on hazardous waste shipments for
California Hazardous Waste Tracking System - Datamart (HWTS-DATAMART)
                    Environmental Interest/Information System

                    110002728790Registry ID:

FINDS:

                    No violations foundViolation Status:

                    Small Quantity GeneratorClassification:
                    L A U S D LOS FELIZ ELSite name:
                    09/25/2002Date form received by agency:

Historical Generators:

                    LEAD.   Waste name:
                    D008.   Waste code:

                    Not Defined.   Waste name:
                    D000.   Waste code:

L A U S D LOS FELIZ EL  (Continued) 1000427624

                              Not reportedLocal Agency:
                              Not reportedCase Worker:
                              Cleanup Program SiteCase Type:
                              -118.364669Longitude:
                              34.101876Latitude:
                              Not reportedLead Agency Case Number:
                              LOS ANGELES RWQCB (REGION 4)Lead Agency:
                              SL2049T1734Global Id:
                              09/26/2003Status Date:
                              Completed - Case ClosedFacility Status:
                              STATERegion:

CPS-SLIC:

1287 ft. Site 2 of 4 in cluster P
0.244 mi.

Relative:
Higher

Actual:
418 ft.

1/8-1/4 LOS ANGELES, CA  90027
NW 4800 HOLLYWOOD    N/A
P80 CA CPS-SLICMTA - BARNSDALL PARK S104404843

TC5441284.2s   Page 134



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

Jenny AuStaff:
TPHSubstance:
0913SLIC:
No further action requiredFacility Status:
4Region:

SLIC REG 4:

Click here to access the California GeoTracker records for this facility:

                              Not reportedSite History:
                              Not reportedPotential Contaminants of Concern:
                              Aquifer used for drinking water supplyPotential Media Affected:
                              Not reportedFile Location:
                              0913RB Case Number:

MTA - BARNSDALL PARK  (Continued) S104404843

                         Not reportedPhone Number:
                         yrong@waterboards.ca.govEmail:
                         Los AngelesCity:
                         320 W. 4TH ST., SUITE 200Address:
                         LOS ANGELES RWQCB (REGION 4)Organization Name:
                         YUE RONGContact Name:
                         Regional Board CaseworkerContact Type:
                         T0603700734Global Id:

                         Not reportedPhone Number:
                         eloy.luna@lacity.orgEmail:
                         LOS ANGELESCity:
                         200 North Main Street, Suite 1780Address:
                         LOS ANGELES, CITY OFOrganization Name:
                         ELOY LUNAContact Name:
                         Local Agency CaseworkerContact Type:
                         T0603700734Global Id:

LUST:

                              Not reportedSite History:
                              DieselPotential Contaminants of Concern:
                              Aquifer used for drinking water supplyPotential Media Affect:
                              Not reportedLocal Case Number:
                              Not reportedFile Location:
                              LOS ANGELES, CITY OFLocal Agency:
                              900270034RB Case Number:
                              YRCase Worker:
                              04/07/1997Status Date:
                              Completed - Case ClosedStatus:
                              -118.2954031Longitude:
                              34.0982135Latitude:
                              T0603700734Global Id:
                              http://geotracker.waterboards.ca.gov/profile_report.asp?global_id=T0603700734Geo Track:
                              LUST Cleanup SiteCase Type:
                              LOS ANGELES RWQCB (REGION 4)Lead Agency:

LUST:

1328 ft.
0.252 mi. CA CIWQS

Relative:
Lower

Actual:
383 ft.

1/4-1/2 CA NPDESLOS ANGELES, CA  90027
WSW CA HIST CORTESE4867 SUNSET BOULEVARD    N/A
81 CA LUSTKAISER LAMC STAGE 2 S104406288

TC5441284.2s   Page 135



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                    10657.520390791703178734923194Approx. Dist To Production Well (ft):
                Not reportedWell Name:
                Not reportedWater System:
                Not reportedOperator:
                Not reportedLeak Source:
                Not reportedCause of Leak:
                Not reportedHow Leak Stopped:
                Not reportedHow Leak Discovered:
                                                    4/7/1997Date the Case was Closed:
                                                    10/21/1993Date Case Last Changed on Database:
                Not reportedDate Leak Stopped:
                Not reportedDate Confirmation Began:
                Not reportedDate Leak Record Entered:
                                                    2/6/1989Date Leak First Reported:
                Not reportedDate Leak Discovered:
                Not reportedEnforcement Type:
                Not reportedCross Street:
                19050Local Agency:
                UNKStaff:
                Not reportedW Global ID:
                T0603700734Global ID:
                                                    Excavate and DisposeAbatement Method Used at the Site:
                GroundwaterCase Type:
                Not reportedLocal Case No:
                Not reportedSubstance Quantity:
                DieselSubstance:
                Case ClosedStatus:
                900270034Facility Id:
                Los AngelesCounty:
                04Regional Board:
                4Region:

LUST REG 4:

                         04/07/1997Status Date:
                         Completed - Case ClosedStatus:
                         T0603700734Global Id:

                         12/28/1993Status Date:
                         Open - Verification MonitoringStatus:
                         T0603700734Global Id:

                         03/20/1989Status Date:
                         Open - Site AssessmentStatus:
                         T0603700734Global Id:

                         02/06/1989Status Date:
                         Open - Case Begin DateStatus:
                         T0603700734Global Id:

LUST:

                         Leak ReportedAction:
                         02/06/1989Date:
                         OtherAction Type:
                         T0603700734Global Id:

LUST:

KAISER LAMC STAGE 2  (Continued) S104406288

TC5441284.2s   Page 136



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                        05/07/2014Status Date:
                                        TerminatedStatus:
                                        Not reportedDischarge Zip:
                                        Not reportedDischarge State:
                                        Not reportedDischarge City:
                                        Not reportedDischarge Name:
                                        Not reportedDischarge Address:
                                        Not reportedExpiration Date Of Regulatory Measure:
                                        Not reportedTermination Date Of Regulatory Measure:
                                        Not reportedEffective Date Of Regulatory Measure:
                                        Not reportedAdoption Date Of Regulatory Measure:
                                        Not reportedProgram Type:
                                        ConstructionRegulatory Measure Type:
                                        4 19C360088WDID:
                                        Not reportedOrder Number:
                                        Not reportedPlace ID:
                                        Not reportedRegulatory Measure ID:
                                        Not reportedAgency Number:
                                        Not reportedRegion:
                                        Not reportedNPDES Number:
                                        Not reportedFacility Status:

NPDES:

                    900270034Reg Id:
                    LTNKAReg By:
                    19Facility County Code:
                    CORTESERegion:

HIST CORTESE:

                02/20/91 - CASE ASSIGNED TO GNSummary:
                Not reportedAssigned Name:
                Not reportedSuspended:
                Not reportedCleanup Fund Id:
                Not reportedPriority:
                Not reportedBeneficial Use:
                PEJLocal Agency Staff:
                34.0982135 / -1Lat/Long:
                LUSTProgram:
                3355 E. 26TH ST., LOS ANGELES CA 90023RP Address:
                KAISER FOUNDATION HEALTH PLANResponsible Party:
                Not reportedOwner Contact:
                Not reportedOrganization:
                Not reportedSoil Qualifier:
                Not reportedGW Qualifier:
                                                    YesSignificant Interim Remedial Action Taken:
                                                    Not reportedHist Max MTBE Conc in Soil:
                                                    Not reportedHist Max MTBE Conc in Groundwater:
                                                    Not reportedHistorical Max MTBE Date:
                                                    Not reportedEnforcement Action Date:
                                                    12/28/1993Post Remedial Action Monitoring Began:
                                                    Not reportedRemedial Action Underway:
                                                    Not reportedRemediation Plan Submitted:
                                                    3/20/1989Pollution Characterization Began:
                                                    Not reportedPreliminary Site Assessment Began:
                                                    Not reportedPreliminary Site Assessment Workplan Submitted:
                                                    Not reportedSource of Cleanup Funding:

KAISER LAMC STAGE 2  (Continued) S104406288

TC5441284.2s   Page 137



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                        Not reportedEmergency Phone Ext:
                                        Not reportedEmergency Phone:
                                        NConstype Linear Utility Ind:
                                        SuperindendentDeveloper Contact Title:
                                        Rob PratherDeveloper Contact:
                                        92606Developer Zip:
                                        CaliforniaDeveloper State:
                                        IrvineDeveloper City:
                                        3 Corporate ParkDeveloper Address:
                                        Whiting TurnerDeveloper:
                                        Private BusinessOperator Type:
                                        ivan.caso@kp.orgOperator Contact Email:
                                        Not reportedOperator Contact Phone Ext:
                                        323-783-8011Operator Contact Phone:
                                        Senior Project ManagerOperator Contact Title:
                                        Ivan CasoOperator Contact:
                                        90027Operator Zip:
                                        CaliforniaOperator State:
                                        Los AngelesOperator City:
                                        4621 HollywoodOperator Address:
                                        Kaiser PermanenteOperator Name:
                                        ivan.caso@kp.orgContact Email:
                                        Not reportedContact Phone Ext:
                                        909-578-9060Contact Phone:
                                        Senior Project ManagerContact Title:
                                        Ivan CasoContact:
                                        AcresPlace Size Unit:
                                        10.8Place Size:
                                        05/07/2014Status Date:
                                        TerminatedStatus:
                                        12/21/2010Processed Date:
                                        12/13/2010Received Date:
                                        Not reportedDischarge Zip:
                                        Not reportedDischarge State:
                                        Not reportedDischarge City:
                                        Not reportedDischarge Address:
                                        Not reportedDischarge Name:
                                        02/17/2014Termination Date Of Regulatory Measure:
                                        Not reportedExpiration Date Of Regulatory Measure:
                                        Not reportedEffective Date Of Regulatory Measure:
                                        Not reportedAdoption Date Of Regulatory Measure:
                                        Not reportedProgram Type:
                                        4 19C360088WDID:
                                        Not reportedPlace ID:
                                        ConstructionRegulatory Measure Type:
                                        Not reportedOrder Number:
                                        410077Regulatory Measure ID:
                                        4Region:
                                        Not reportedAgency Number:
                                        Not reportedStatus:
                                        Not reportedNPDES Number:

NPDES as of 03/2018:

                                        90027Operator Zip:
                                        CaliforniaOperator State:
                                        Los AngelesOperator City:
                                        4621 HollywoodOperator Address:
                                        Kaiser PermanenteOperator Name:

KAISER LAMC STAGE 2  (Continued) S104406288

TC5441284.2s   Page 138



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                        -118.29541Longitude:
                                        34.09816Latitude:
                                        0Violations within 5 years:
                                        0Enforcement Actions within 5 years:
                                        Not reportedTTWQ:
                                        Not reportedComplexity:
                                        Not reportedMajor/Minor:
                                        Not reportedDesign Flow:
                                        Not reportedExpiration/Review Date:
                                        02/17/2014Termination Date:
                                        12/21/2010Effective Date:
                                        Not reportedAdoption Date:
                                        CAS000002NPDES Number:
                                        4 19C360088WDID:
                                        2009-0009-DWQOrder Number:
                                        Storm water constructionRegulatory Measure Type:
                                        TerminatedRegulatory Measure Status:
                                        CONSTWProgram:
                                        4Region:
                                        Not reportedSIC/NAICS:
                                        Construction - ReconstructionPlace/Project Type:
                                        4621 Hollywood, Los Angeles, CA 90027Agency Address:
                                        Kaiser PermanenteAgency:

CIWQS:

                                        Not reportedTertiary Sic:
                                        Not reportedSecondary Sic:
                                        Not reportedPrimary Sic:
                                        13-DEC-10Certification Date:
                                        Not reportedCertifier Title:
                                        Ivan CasoCertifier:
                                        Not reportedReceiving Water Name:
                                        NDir Discharge Uswater Ind:
                                        Not reportedConstype Water Sewer Ind:
                                        Not reportedConstype Utility Ind:
                                        Not reportedConstype Utility Description:
                                        Not reportedConstype Transport Ind:
                                        Not reportedConstype Residential Ind:
                                        YConstype Recons Ind:
                                        Not reportedConstype Other Ind:
                                        Not reportedConstype Other Description:
                                        Not reportedConstype Industrial Ind:
                                        Not reportedConstype Gas Line Ind:
                                        Not reportedConstype Electrical Line Ind:
                                        Not reportedConstype Commertial Ind:
                                        Not reportedConstype Comm Line Ind:
                                        Not reportedConstype Cable Line Ind:
                                        Not reportedConstype Below Ground Ind:
                                        Not reportedConstype Above Ground Ind:

KAISER LAMC STAGE 2  (Continued) S104406288

TC5441284.2s   Page 139



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                PEJLocal Agency Staff:
                34.1017093 / -1Lat/Long:
                LUSTProgram:
                2821 VIA SOLA BLVD, PALOS VERDES ESTATE, CA 90274RP Address:
                BLANK RPResponsible Party:
                Not reportedOwner Contact:
                Not reportedOrganization:
                Not reportedSoil Qualifier:
                Not reportedGW Qualifier:
                                                    Not reportedSignificant Interim Remedial Action Taken:
                                                    Not reportedHist Max MTBE Conc in Soil:
                                                    Not reportedHist Max MTBE Conc in Groundwater:
                                                    Not reportedHistorical Max MTBE Date:
                                                    Not reportedEnforcement Action Date:
                                                    Not reportedPost Remedial Action Monitoring Began:
                                                    Not reportedRemedial Action Underway:
                                                    Not reportedRemediation Plan Submitted:
                                                    Not reportedPollution Characterization Began:
                                                    1/23/1991Preliminary Site Assessment Began:
                                                    Not reportedPreliminary Site Assessment Workplan Submitted:
                                                    Not reportedSource of Cleanup Funding:
                                                    12393.139648753374679369746858Approx. Dist To Production Well (ft):
                Not reportedWell Name:
                FIRSTONE SCOUT RESRVTN (BOY SCOUT COUN)Water System:
                Not reportedOperator:
                Not reportedLeak Source:
                Not reportedCause of Leak:
                Not reportedHow Leak Stopped:
                Not reportedHow Leak Discovered:
                                                    1/22/1997Date the Case was Closed:
                                                    7/24/1997Date Case Last Changed on Database:
                Not reportedDate Leak Stopped:
                8/1/1990Date Confirmation Began:
                10/15/1990Date Leak Record Entered:
                                                    7/19/1990Date Leak First Reported:
                Not reportedDate Leak Discovered:
                Not reportedEnforcement Type:
                Not reportedCross Street:
                19050Local Agency:
                UNKStaff:
                W0603700547W Global ID:
                T0603700736Global ID:
                                                    Not reportedAbatement Method Used at the Site:
                GroundwaterCase Type:
                Not reportedLocal Case No:
                Not reportedSubstance Quantity:
                GasolineSubstance:
                Case ClosedStatus:
                900270052Facility Id:
                Los AngelesCounty:
                04Regional Board:
                4Region:

LUST REG 4:

1389 ft. Site 3 of 4 in cluster P
0.263 mi.

Relative:
Higher

Actual:
417 ft.

1/4-1/2 HOLLYWOOD, CA  90027
NW CA HIST UST4810 HOLLYWOOD BLVD    N/A
P82 CA LUSTHOLLYWOOD CAR WASH S104793639

TC5441284.2s   Page 140



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

Click here for Geo Tracker PDF:

                              Not reportedLeak Detection:
                              Not reportedContainer Construction Thickness:
                              Not reportedType of Fuel:
                              Not reportedTank Used for:
                              Not reportedTank Capacity:
                              Not reportedYear Installed:
                              Not reportedContainer Num:
                              Not reportedTank Num:

                              Not reportedTotal Tanks:
                              Not reportedOwner City,St,Zip:
                              Not reportedOwner Address:
                              Not reportedOwner Name:
                              Not reportedTelephone:
                              Not reportedContact Name:
                              Not reportedOther Type:
                              Not reportedFacility Type:
                              Not reportedFacility ID:
                              Not reportedRegion:
                              http://geotracker.waterboards.ca.gov/ustpdfs/pdf/0002652E.pdfURL:
                              0002652EFile Number:

HIST UST:

                07/24/97 - REC’D. LOC LETTERSummary:
                1900547-001GENAssigned Name:
                Not reportedSuspended:
                Not reportedCleanup Fund Id:
                Not reportedPriority:
                Not reportedBeneficial Use:

HOLLYWOOD CAR WASH  (Continued) S104793639

                         T0603700736Global Id:
LUST:

                              Not reportedSite History:
                              GasolinePotential Contaminants of Concern:
                              Aquifer used for drinking water supplyPotential Media Affect:
                              Not reportedLocal Case Number:
                              Not reportedFile Location:
                              LOS ANGELES, CITY OFLocal Agency:
                              900270052RB Case Number:
                              YRCase Worker:
                              01/22/1997Status Date:
                              Completed - Case ClosedStatus:
                              -118.2946761Longitude:
                              34.1017093Latitude:
                              T0603700736Global Id:
                              http://geotracker.waterboards.ca.gov/profile_report.asp?global_id=T0603700736Geo Track:
                              LUST Cleanup SiteCase Type:
                              LOS ANGELES RWQCB (REGION 4)Lead Agency:

LUST:

1389 ft. Site 4 of 4 in cluster P
0.263 mi.

Relative:
Higher

Actual:
417 ft.

1/4-1/2 CA HIST CORTESELOS ANGELES, CA  90027
NW CA HIST UST4810 HOLLYWOOD BLVD    N/A
P83 CA LUSTHOLLYWOOD CAR WASH U001561187

TC5441284.2s   Page 141



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                              001Tank Num:

                              0008Total Tanks:
                              HOLLYWOOD, CA 90027Owner City,St,Zip:
                              4810 HOLLYWOOD BLVD.Owner Address:
                              EVI ENTERPRISES CORPORATIONOwner Name:
                              2136642948Telephone:
                              EDWARD JIMENEZContact Name:
                              CAR WASHOther Type:
                              OtherFacility Type:
                              00000068373Facility ID:
                              STATERegion:
                              Not reportedURL:
                              Not reportedFile Number:

HIST UST:

                         01/22/1997Status Date:
                         Completed - Case ClosedStatus:
                         T0603700736Global Id:

                         01/23/1991Status Date:
                         Open - Site AssessmentStatus:
                         T0603700736Global Id:

                         08/01/1990Status Date:
                         Open - Site AssessmentStatus:
                         T0603700736Global Id:

                         07/19/1990Status Date:
                         Open - Case Begin DateStatus:
                         T0603700736Global Id:

LUST:

                         Leak ReportedAction:
                         07/19/1990Date:
                         OtherAction Type:
                         T0603700736Global Id:

LUST:

                         Not reportedPhone Number:
                         yrong@waterboards.ca.govEmail:
                         Los AngelesCity:
                         320 W. 4TH ST., SUITE 200Address:
                         LOS ANGELES RWQCB (REGION 4)Organization Name:
                         YUE RONGContact Name:
                         Regional Board CaseworkerContact Type:
                         T0603700736Global Id:

                         Not reportedPhone Number:
                         eloy.luna@lacity.orgEmail:
                         LOS ANGELESCity:
                         200 North Main Street, Suite 1780Address:
                         LOS ANGELES, CITY OFOrganization Name:
                         ELOY LUNAContact Name:
                         Local Agency CaseworkerContact Type:

HOLLYWOOD CAR WASH  (Continued) U001561187

TC5441284.2s   Page 142



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                              00010000Tank Capacity:
                              Not reportedYear Installed:
                              17Container Num:
                              007Tank Num:

                              Visual, Stock Inventor, 10Leak Detection:
                              Not reportedContainer Construction Thickness:
                              DIESELType of Fuel:
                              PRODUCTTank Used for:
                              00010000Tank Capacity:
                              Not reportedYear Installed:
                              UNKNOWNContainer Num:
                              006Tank Num:

                              Visual, Stock Inventor, 10Leak Detection:
                              Not reportedContainer Construction Thickness:
                              DIESELType of Fuel:
                              PRODUCTTank Used for:
                              00010000Tank Capacity:
                              Not reportedYear Installed:
                              15Container Num:
                              005Tank Num:

                              Visual, Stock Inventor, 10Leak Detection:
                              Not reportedContainer Construction Thickness:
                              DIESELType of Fuel:
                              PRODUCTTank Used for:
                              00010000Tank Capacity:
                              Not reportedYear Installed:
                              14Container Num:
                              004Tank Num:

                              Visual, Stock Inventor, 10Leak Detection:
                              Not reportedContainer Construction Thickness:
                              REGULARType of Fuel:
                              PRODUCTTank Used for:
                              00010000Tank Capacity:
                              Not reportedYear Installed:
                              12Container Num:
                              003Tank Num:

                              Visual, Stock Inventor, 10Leak Detection:
                              Not reportedContainer Construction Thickness:
                              UNLEADEDType of Fuel:
                              PRODUCTTank Used for:
                              00010000Tank Capacity:
                              Not reportedYear Installed:
                              11Container Num:
                              002Tank Num:

                              Visual, Stock Inventor, 10Leak Detection:
                              XContainer Construction Thickness:
                              3Type of Fuel:
                              WASTETank Used for:
                              00010000Tank Capacity:
                              Not reportedYear Installed:
                              13Container Num:

HOLLYWOOD CAR WASH  (Continued) U001561187

TC5441284.2s   Page 143



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                    900270052Reg Id:
                    LTNKAReg By:
                    19Facility County Code:
                    CORTESERegion:

HIST CORTESE:

                              Visual, Stock Inventor, 10Leak Detection:
                              Not reportedContainer Construction Thickness:
                              DIESELType of Fuel:
                              PRODUCTTank Used for:
                              00010000Tank Capacity:
                              Not reportedYear Installed:
                              18Container Num:
                              008Tank Num:

                              Visual, Stock Inventor, 10Leak Detection:
                              Not reportedContainer Construction Thickness:
                              DIESELType of Fuel:
                              PRODUCTTank Used for:

HOLLYWOOD CAR WASH  (Continued) U001561187

                         LOS ANGELES, CITY OFOrganization Name:
                         ELOY LUNAContact Name:
                         Local Agency CaseworkerContact Type:
                         T0603700771Global Id:

                         Not reportedPhone Number:
                         asiddiqui@waterboards.ca.govEmail:
                         LOS ANGELESCity:
                         320 W. 4TH ST., SUITE 200Address:
                         LOS ANGELES RWQCB (REGION 4)Organization Name:
                         ADNAN SIDDIQUIContact Name:
                         Regional Board CaseworkerContact Type:
                         T0603700771Global Id:

LUST:

                              Not reportedSite History:
                              GasolinePotential Contaminants of Concern:
                              Aquifer used for drinking water supplyPotential Media Affect:
                              Not reportedLocal Case Number:
                              Not reportedFile Location:
                              LOS ANGELES, CITY OFLocal Agency:
                              900290089RB Case Number:
                              ASCase Worker:
                              04/20/1998Status Date:
                              Completed - Case ClosedStatus:
                              -118.291418Longitude:
                              34.095232Latitude:
                              T0603700771Global Id:
                              http://geotracker.waterboards.ca.gov/profile_report.asp?global_id=T0603700771Geo Track:
                              LUST Cleanup SiteCase Type:
                              LOS ANGELES RWQCB (REGION 4)Lead Agency:

LUST:

1441 ft. Site 1 of 2 in cluster R
0.273 mi.

Relative:
Lower

Actual:
368 ft.

1/4-1/2 LOS ANGELES, CA  90029
South CA HIST CORTESE1270 VERMONT AVE N    N/A
R84 CA LUST76 PRODUCTS STATION #3647 S102590728

TC5441284.2s   Page 144



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                UNKCause of Leak:
                Not reportedHow Leak Stopped:
                Not reportedHow Leak Discovered:
                                                    4/20/1998Date the Case was Closed:
                                                    4/15/1999Date Case Last Changed on Database:
                Not reportedDate Leak Stopped:
                Not reportedDate Confirmation Began:
                12/31/1986Date Leak Record Entered:
                                                    8/15/1985Date Leak First Reported:
                Not reportedDate Leak Discovered:
                Not reportedEnforcement Type:
                FOUNTAIN AVECross Street:
                19050Local Agency:
                ASStaff:
                Not reportedW Global ID:
                T0603700771Global ID:
                                                    VEAbatement Method Used at the Site:
                GroundwaterCase Type:
                Not reportedLocal Case No:
                Not reportedSubstance Quantity:
                GasolineSubstance:
                Case ClosedStatus:
                900290089Facility Id:
                Los AngelesCounty:
                04Regional Board:
                4Region:

LUST REG 4:

                         04/20/1998Status Date:
                         Completed - Case ClosedStatus:
                         T0603700771Global Id:

                         12/28/1993Status Date:
                         Open - RemediationStatus:
                         T0603700771Global Id:

                         01/20/1989Status Date:
                         Open - Site AssessmentStatus:
                         T0603700771Global Id:

                         08/15/1985Status Date:
                         Open - Case Begin DateStatus:
                         T0603700771Global Id:

LUST:

                         Leak ReportedAction:
                         08/15/1985Date:
                         OtherAction Type:
                         T0603700771Global Id:

LUST:

                         Not reportedPhone Number:
                         eloy.luna@lacity.orgEmail:
                         LOS ANGELESCity:
                         200 North Main Street, Suite 1780Address:

76 PRODUCTS STATION #3647  (Continued) S102590728

TC5441284.2s   Page 145



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                    900290089Reg Id:
                    LTNKAReg By:
                    19Facility County Code:
                    CORTESERegion:

HIST CORTESE:

                LEVEL MON & GW
                FLUID LEVEL MON & GW                    09/30/98 3RD QTR 98 FLUID
                1ST QTR 98 FLUID LEVEL MON & GW                    06/30/98 2ND QTR 98
                12/31/97 4TH QTR 97 FLUID LEVEL MON & GW                    03/31/98Summary:
                Not reportedAssigned Name:
                Not reportedSuspended:
                Not reportedCleanup Fund Id:
                Not reportedPriority:
                Not reportedBeneficial Use:
                PEJLocal Agency Staff:
                34.0949057 / -1Lat/Long:
                LUSTProgram:
                P.O. BOX 25376, SANTA ANA, CA 92799-5376RP Address:
                TOSCO MARKETING COMPANYResponsible Party:
                Not reportedOwner Contact:
                Not reportedOrganization:
                Not reportedSoil Qualifier:
                Not reportedGW Qualifier:
                                                    YesSignificant Interim Remedial Action Taken:
                                                    Not reportedHist Max MTBE Conc in Soil:
                                                    810Hist Max MTBE Conc in Groundwater:
                                                    1/1/1965Historical Max MTBE Date:
                                                    Not reportedEnforcement Action Date:
                                                    Not reportedPost Remedial Action Monitoring Began:
                                                    12/28/1993Remedial Action Underway:
                                                    Not reportedRemediation Plan Submitted:
                                                    1/20/1989Pollution Characterization Began:
                                                    Not reportedPreliminary Site Assessment Began:
                                                    Not reportedPreliminary Site Assessment Workplan Submitted:
                                                    UNKSource of Cleanup Funding:
                                                    9950.650864122022252700224171Approx. Dist To Production Well (ft):
                Not reportedWell Name:
                Not reportedWater System:
                Not reportedOperator:
                UNKLeak Source:

76 PRODUCTS STATION #3647  (Continued) S102590728

                    1255 N VERMONTFacility address:
                    PACIFIC BELLFacility name:
                    09/01/1996Date form received by agency:

RCRA-SQG:

CA HIST CORTESE
CA HAZNET

ECHO
FINDS

CA FID UST
1663 ft. CA HIST USTSite 2 of 2 in cluster R
0.315 mi. CA SWEEPS UST

Relative:
Lower

Actual:
362 ft.

1/4-1/2 CA USTLOS ANGELES, CA  90029
SSW CA LUST1255 N VERMONT CAT080022668
R85 RCRA-SQGPACIFIC BELL 1000250325

TC5441284.2s   Page 146



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                              NoUsed oil processor:
                              NoUsed oil fuel burner:
                              NoFurnace exemption:
                              NoOn-site burner exemption:
                              NoUnderground injection activity:
                              NoTreater, storer or disposer of HW:
                              NoTransporter of hazardous waste:
                              NoRecycler of hazardous waste:
                              NoMixed waste (haz. and radioactive):
                              NoU.S. importer of hazardous waste:

Handler Activities Summary:

                    Not reportedOwner/Op end date:
                    Not reportedOwner/Op start date:
                    OperatorOwner/Operator Type:
                    PrivateLegal status:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator extension:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator fax:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator email:
                    415-555-1212Owner/operator telephone:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator country:
                    NOT REQUIRED, ME 99999
                    NOT REQUIREDOwner/operator address:
                    NOT REQUIREDOwner/operator name:

                    Not reportedOwner/Op end date:
                    Not reportedOwner/Op start date:
                    OwnerOwner/Operator Type:
                    PrivateLegal status:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator extension:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator fax:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator email:
                    415-555-1212Owner/operator telephone:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator country:
                    NOT REQUIRED, ME 99999
                    NOT REQUIREDOwner/operator address:
                    NOT REQUIREDOwner/operator name:

Owner/Operator Summary:

                    hazardous waste at any time
                    waste during any calendar month, and accumulates more than 1000 kg of
                    hazardous waste at any time; or generates 100 kg or less of hazardous
                    waste during any calendar month and accumulates less than 6000 kg of
                    Handler: generates more than 100 and less than 1000 kg of hazardousDescription:
                    Small Small Quantity GeneratorClassification:
                    09EPA Region:
                    Not reportedContact email:
                    Not reportedContact telephone:
                    USContact country:
                    Not reported
                    Not reportedContact address:
                    Not reportedContact:
                    PASADENA, CA 91103
                    170 N FAIR OAKS RM 104Mailing address:
                    CAT080022668EPA ID:
                    LOS ANGELES, CA 90029

PACIFIC BELL  (Continued) 1000250325

TC5441284.2s   Page 147



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                         T0603700778Global Id:

                         01/31/1989Status Date:
                         Open - Case Begin DateStatus:
                         T0603700778Global Id:

LUST:

                         Leak ReportedAction:
                         06/27/1990Date:
                         OtherAction Type:
                         T0603700778Global Id:

LUST:

                         Not reportedPhone Number:
                         eloy.luna@lacity.orgEmail:
                         LOS ANGELESCity:
                         200 North Main Street, Suite 1780Address:
                         LOS ANGELES, CITY OFOrganization Name:
                         ELOY LUNAContact Name:
                         Local Agency CaseworkerContact Type:
                         T0603700778Global Id:

LUST:

                              Not reportedSite History:
                              Other Solvent or Non-Petroleum HydrocarbonPotential Contaminants of Concern:
                              SoilPotential Media Affect:
                              Not reportedLocal Case Number:
                              Not reportedFile Location:
                              LOS ANGELES, CITY OFLocal Agency:
                              900290152RB Case Number:
                              Not reportedCase Worker:
                              07/27/1998Status Date:
                              Completed - Case ClosedStatus:
                              -118.291872Longitude:
                              34.0946547Latitude:
                              T0603700778Global Id:
                              http://geotracker.waterboards.ca.gov/profile_report.asp?global_id=T0603700778Geo Track:
                              LUST Cleanup SiteCase Type:
                              LOS ANGELES RWQCB (REGION 4)Lead Agency:

LUST:

                    No violations foundViolation Status:

                    Large Quantity GeneratorClassification:
                    PACIFIC BELLSite name:
                    01/19/1981Date form received by agency:

                    Large Quantity GeneratorClassification:
                    PACIFIC BELL-LOS ANGELESSite name:
                    04/09/1990Date form received by agency:

Historical Generators:

                              NoUsed oil transporter:
                              NoUsed oil transfer facility:
                              NoUsed oil Specification marketer:
                              NoUsed oil fuel marketer to burner:
                              NoUser oil refiner:

PACIFIC BELL  (Continued) 1000250325

TC5441284.2s   Page 148



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                PACIFIC BELL ENVIRONMENTALResponsible Party:
                Not reportedOwner Contact:
                Not reportedOrganization:
                Not reportedSoil Qualifier:
                Not reportedGW Qualifier:
                                                    Not reportedSignificant Interim Remedial Action Taken:
                                                    Not reportedHist Max MTBE Conc in Soil:
                                                    Not reportedHist Max MTBE Conc in Groundwater:
                                                    Not reportedHistorical Max MTBE Date:
                                                    Not reportedEnforcement Action Date:
                                                    Not reportedPost Remedial Action Monitoring Began:
                                                    Not reportedRemedial Action Underway:
                                                    Not reportedRemediation Plan Submitted:
                                                    Not reportedPollution Characterization Began:
                                                    Not reportedPreliminary Site Assessment Began:
                                                    1/31/1989Preliminary Site Assessment Workplan Submitted:
                                                    UNKSource of Cleanup Funding:
                                                    9833.646229888173832230742783Approx. Dist To Production Well (ft):
                Not reportedWell Name:
                Not reportedWater System:
                OLD CASE #082490-06Operator:
                UNKLeak Source:
                UNKCause of Leak:
                Not reportedHow Leak Stopped:
                Not reportedHow Leak Discovered:
                                                    7/27/1998Date the Case was Closed:
                                                    6/2/1998Date Case Last Changed on Database:
                Not reportedDate Leak Stopped:
                Not reportedDate Confirmation Began:
                8/25/1990Date Leak Record Entered:
                                                    6/27/1990Date Leak First Reported:
                Not reportedDate Leak Discovered:
                Not reportedEnforcement Type:
                SANTA MONICACross Street:
                19050Local Agency:
                MSHStaff:
                Not reportedW Global ID:
                T0603700778Global ID:
                                                    Not reportedAbatement Method Used at the Site:
                SoilCase Type:
                Not reportedLocal Case No:
                Not reportedSubstance Quantity:
                HydrocarbonsSubstance:
                Case ClosedStatus:
                900290152Facility Id:
                Los AngelesCounty:
                04Regional Board:
                4Region:

LUST REG 4:

                         07/27/1998Status Date:
                         Completed - Case ClosedStatus:
                         T0603700778Global Id:

                         01/31/1989Status Date:
                         Open - Site AssessmentStatus:

PACIFIC BELL  (Continued) 1000250325

TC5441284.2s   Page 149



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                              001Tank Num:

                              0001Total Tanks:
                              SAN FRANCISCO, CA 94107Owner City,St,Zip:
                              370 THIRD STREETOwner Address:
                              PACIFIC BELLOwner Name:
                              4155426758Telephone:
                              E.J. KOEHLERContact Name:
                              SIC 4800Other Type:
                              OtherFacility Type:
                              00000061254Facility ID:
                              STATERegion:
                              http://geotracker.waterboards.ca.gov/ustpdfs/pdf/00027B16.pdfURL:
                              00027B16File Number:

HIST UST:

          1Number Of Tanks:
          DIESELContent:
          PRODUCTSTG:
          M.V. FUELTank Use:
          Not reportedActive Date:
          10000Capacity:
          Not reportedTank Status:
          19-050-003390-000001SWRCB Tank Id:
          Not reportedOwner Tank Id:
          Not reportedCreated Date:
          Not reportedAction Date:
          Not reportedReferral Date:
          44-001027Board Of Equalization:
          Not reportedNumber:
          3390Comp Number:
          Not reportedStatus:

SWEEPS UST:

                    -118.29181Longitude:
                    34.09476Latitude:
                    Los Angeles City Fire DepartmentPermitting Agency:
                    FA0001779Facility ID:

                    -118.2905674Longitude:
                    34.096041Latitude:
                    LOS ANGELES, CITY OFPermitting Agency:
                    24785Facility ID:

UST:

                INFORMATION LETTER SENT & FOLLOW-UP.
                3/19/97 - INFORMATION LETTER SENT & FOLLOW-UP.              6/09/97 -Summary:
                Not reportedAssigned Name:
                Not reportedSuspended:
                Not reportedCleanup Fund Id:
                LOP/LOW - LOW POTENTIAL HEALTH/SAFTY/ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACTPriority:
                Not reportedBeneficial Use:
                PEJLocal Agency Staff:
                34.0946547 / -1Lat/Long:
                LUSTProgram:
                2600 CAMINO RAMON, RM 1N200, SAN RAMON, CA 94583RP Address:

PACIFIC BELL  (Continued) 1000250325

TC5441284.2s   Page 150



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                   http://echo.epa.gov/detailed-facility-report?fid=110002950842DFR URL:
                                   110002950842Registry ID:
                                   1000250325Envid:

ECHO:

additional FINDS: detail in the EDR Site Report.
Click this hyperlink while viewing on your computer to access 

STATE MASTER

corrective action activities required under RCRA.
program staff to track the notification, permit, compliance, and
and treat, store, or dispose of hazardous waste. RCRAInfo allows RCRA
events and activities related to facilities that generate, transport,
Conservation and Recovery Act (RCRA) program through the tracking of
RCRAInfo is a national information system that supports the Resource

facilities.
generators, transporters, and treatment, storage, and disposal
provides California with information on hazardous waste shipments for
California Hazardous Waste Tracking System - Datamart (HWTS-DATAMART)
                    Environmental Interest/Information System

                    110002950842Registry ID:

FINDS:

     InactiveStatus:
     Not reportedComments:
     Not reportedEPA ID:
     Not reportedNPDES Number:
     Not reportedDUNs Number:
     Not reportedContact Phone:
     Not reportedContact:
     LOS ANGELES 900290000Mailing City,St,Zip:
     Not reportedMailing Address 2:
     370    3RD STMailing Address:
     Not reportedMail To:
     8185784181Facility Phone:
     Not reportedSIC Code:
     Not reportedCortese Code:
     00061254Regulated ID:
     UTNKIRegulated By:
     19002681Facility ID:

CA FID UST:

Click here for Geo Tracker PDF:

                              NoneLeak Detection:
                              Not reportedContainer Construction Thickness:
                              DIESELType of Fuel:
                              PRODUCTTank Used for:
                              00010000Tank Capacity:
                              1974Year Installed:
                              1Container Num:

PACIFIC BELL  (Continued) 1000250325

TC5441284.2s   Page 151



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

     Liquids with pH <= 2Cat Decode:
     0.07506Tons:
     (H010-H129) Or (H131-H135)
     Storage, Bulking, And/Or Transfer Off Site--No Treatment/ReoveryDisposal Method:
     Liquids with pH <= 2Waste Category:
     Los AngelesTSD County:
     CAD044429835TSD EPA ID:
     Los AngelesGen County:
     BEDMINSTER, NJ 079212693Mailing City,St,Zip:
     1 AT&T WAY ROOM 1A111CMailing Address:
     Not reportedMailing Name:
     9252776725Telephone:
     SEAN MCFARLANEContact:
     CAT080022668GEPAID:
     2016Year:
     1000250325envid:

     Los AngelesFacility County:
     (H010-H129) Or (H131-H135)
     Storage, Bulking, And/Or Transfer Off Site--No Treatment/ReoveryMethod Decode:
     Liquids with pH <= 2Cat Decode:
     0.125Tons:
     (H010-H129) Or (H131-H135)
     Storage, Bulking, And/Or Transfer Off Site--No Treatment/ReoveryDisposal Method:
     Liquids with pH <= 2Waste Category:
     Los AngelesTSD County:
     CAD008302903TSD EPA ID:
     Los AngelesGen County:
     BEDMINSTER, NJ 079212693Mailing City,St,Zip:
     1 AT&T WAY ROOM 1A111CMailing Address:
     Not reportedMailing Name:
     9252776725Telephone:
     SEAN MCFARLANEContact:
     CAT080022668GEPAID:
     2016Year:
     1000250325envid:

     Los AngelesFacility County:
     (H010-H129) Or (H131-H135)
     Storage, Bulking, And/Or Transfer Off Site--No Treatment/ReoveryMethod Decode:
     Other inorganic solid wasteCat Decode:
     0.12Tons:
     (H010-H129) Or (H131-H135)
     Storage, Bulking, And/Or Transfer Off Site--No Treatment/ReoveryDisposal Method:
     Other inorganic solid wasteWaste Category:
     San BernardinoTSD County:
     CAD982444481TSD EPA ID:
     Los AngelesGen County:
     BEDMINSTER, NJ 079212693Mailing City,St,Zip:
     1 AT&T WAY ROOM 1A111CMailing Address:
     Not reportedMailing Name:
     9252776725Telephone:
     SEAN MCFARLANEContact:
     CAT080022668GEPAID:
     2016Year:
     1000250325envid:

HAZNET:

PACIFIC BELL  (Continued) 1000250325

TC5441284.2s   Page 152



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                    900290152Reg Id:
                    LTNKAReg By:
                    19Facility County Code:
                    CORTESERegion:

HIST CORTESE:

30 additional CA_HAZNET: record(s) in the EDR Site Report.
Click this hyperlink while viewing on your computer to access 

     Los AngelesFacility County:
     Not reportedMethod Decode:
     Not reportedCat Decode:
     0.209Tons:
     Organics Recovery Ect
     Other Recovery Of Reclamation For Reuse Including Acid Regeneration,Disposal Method:
     Waste oil and mixed oilWaste Category:
     Los AngelesTSD County:
     CAD099452708TSD EPA ID:
     Los AngelesGen County:
     SAN RAMON, CA 945830000Mailing City,St,Zip:
     P.O. BOX 5095, 4W200IMailing Address:
     Not reportedMailing Name:
     9252776725Telephone:
     SEAN MCFARLANEContact:
     CAT080022668GEPAID:
     2015Year:
     1000250325envid:

     Los AngelesFacility County:
     (H010-H129) Or (H131-H135)
     Storage, Bulking, And/Or Transfer Off Site--No Treatment/ReoveryMethod Decode:
     Other inorganic solid wasteCat Decode:
     0.0625Tons:
     (H010-H129) Or (H131-H135)
     Storage, Bulking, And/Or Transfer Off Site--No Treatment/ReoveryDisposal Method:
     Other inorganic solid wasteWaste Category:
     Los AngelesTSD County:
     CAD008302903TSD EPA ID:
     Los AngelesGen County:
     BEDMINSTER, NJ 079212693Mailing City,St,Zip:
     1 AT&T WAY ROOM 1A111CMailing Address:
     Not reportedMailing Name:
     9252776725Telephone:
     SEAN MCFARLANEContact:
     CAT080022668GEPAID:
     2016Year:
     1000250325envid:

     Los AngelesFacility County:
     (H010-H129) Or (H131-H135)
     Storage, Bulking, And/Or Transfer Off Site--No Treatment/ReoveryMethod Decode:

PACIFIC BELL  (Continued) 1000250325

TC5441284.2s   Page 153



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                PEJLocal Agency Staff:
                34.1019173 / -1Lat/Long:
                LUSTProgram:
                4841 HOLLYWOOD BLVD, LOS ANGELES  CA  90027RP Address:
                EDGEMONT HOSPITALResponsible Party:
                Not reportedOwner Contact:
                Not reportedOrganization:
                Not reportedSoil Qualifier:
                Not reportedGW Qualifier:
                                                    Not reportedSignificant Interim Remedial Action Taken:
                                                    Not reportedHist Max MTBE Conc in Soil:
                                                    Not reportedHist Max MTBE Conc in Groundwater:
                                                    Not reportedHistorical Max MTBE Date:
                                                    Not reportedEnforcement Action Date:
                                                    Not reportedPost Remedial Action Monitoring Began:
                                                    Not reportedRemedial Action Underway:
                                                    Not reportedRemediation Plan Submitted:
                                                    Not reportedPollution Characterization Began:
                                                    1/10/1995Preliminary Site Assessment Began:
                                                    11/15/1994Preliminary Site Assessment Workplan Submitted:
                                                    UNKSource of Cleanup Funding:
                                                    12551.738322364562467791417538Approx. Dist To Production Well (ft):
                Not reportedWell Name:
                FIRSTONE SCOUT RESRVTN (BOY SCOUT COUN)Water System:
                Not reportedOperator:
                UNKLeak Source:
                UNKCause of Leak:
                Not reportedHow Leak Stopped:
                Not reportedHow Leak Discovered:
                                                    7/30/1996Date the Case was Closed:
                                                    1/10/1995Date Case Last Changed on Database:
                Not reportedDate Leak Stopped:
                Not reportedDate Confirmation Began:
                3/15/1991Date Leak Record Entered:
                                                    3/21/1991Date Leak First Reported:
                5/26/1988Date Leak Discovered:
                Not reportedEnforcement Type:
                EDGEMONT AVECross Street:
                19050Local Agency:
                UNKStaff:
                W0603700547W Global ID:
                T0603700738Global ID:
                                                    Not reportedAbatement Method Used at the Site:
                GroundwaterCase Type:
                Not reportedLocal Case No:
                Not reportedSubstance Quantity:
                GasolineSubstance:
                Case ClosedStatus:
                900270089Facility Id:
                Los AngelesCounty:
                04Regional Board:
                4Region:

LUST REG 4:

1683 ft. Site 1 of 5 in cluster S
0.319 mi.

Relative:
Higher

Actual:
417 ft.

1/4-1/2 LOS FELIZ, CA  90027
WNW 4841 HOLLYWOOD BLVD    N/A
S86 CA LUSTEDGEMONT HOSPITAL S105051381

TC5441284.2s   Page 154



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                Not reportedSummary:
                1900547-001GENAssigned Name:
                Not reportedSuspended:
                Not reportedCleanup Fund Id:
                Not reportedPriority:
                Not reportedBeneficial Use:

EDGEMONT HOSPITAL  (Continued) S105051381

                         OtherAction Type:
                         T0603700738Global Id:

                         Leak DiscoveryAction:
                         05/26/1988Date:
                         OtherAction Type:
                         T0603700738Global Id:

LUST:

                         Not reportedPhone Number:
                         yrong@waterboards.ca.govEmail:
                         Los AngelesCity:
                         320 W. 4TH ST., SUITE 200Address:
                         LOS ANGELES RWQCB (REGION 4)Organization Name:
                         YUE RONGContact Name:
                         Regional Board CaseworkerContact Type:
                         T0603700738Global Id:

                         Not reportedPhone Number:
                         eloy.luna@lacity.orgEmail:
                         LOS ANGELESCity:
                         200 North Main Street, Suite 1780Address:
                         LOS ANGELES, CITY OFOrganization Name:
                         ELOY LUNAContact Name:
                         Local Agency CaseworkerContact Type:
                         T0603700738Global Id:

LUST:

                              Not reportedSite History:
                              GasolinePotential Contaminants of Concern:
                              Aquifer used for drinking water supplyPotential Media Affect:
                              Not reportedLocal Case Number:
                              Not reportedFile Location:
                              LOS ANGELES, CITY OFLocal Agency:
                              900270089RB Case Number:
                              YRCase Worker:
                              07/30/1996Status Date:
                              Completed - Case ClosedStatus:
                              -118.2951721Longitude:
                              34.1019173Latitude:
                              T0603700738Global Id:
                              http://geotracker.waterboards.ca.gov/profile_report.asp?global_id=T0603700738Geo Track:
                              LUST Cleanup SiteCase Type:
                              LOS ANGELES RWQCB (REGION 4)Lead Agency:

LUST:

1683 ft. Site 2 of 5 in cluster S
0.319 mi.

Relative:
Higher

Actual:
417 ft.

1/4-1/2 LOS ANGELES, CA  90027
WNW CA HIST CORTESE4841 HOLLYWOOD    N/A
S87 CA LUSTEDGEMONT HOSPITAL S100273140

TC5441284.2s   Page 155



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                    900270089Reg Id:
                    LTNKAReg By:
                    19Facility County Code:
                    CORTESERegion:

HIST CORTESE:

                         07/30/1996Status Date:
                         Completed - Case ClosedStatus:
                         T0603700738Global Id:

                         01/10/1995Status Date:
                         Open - Site AssessmentStatus:
                         T0603700738Global Id:

                         11/15/1994Status Date:
                         Open - Site AssessmentStatus:
                         T0603700738Global Id:

                         05/26/1988Status Date:
                         Open - Case Begin DateStatus:
                         T0603700738Global Id:

LUST:

                         Leak ReportedAction:
                         03/21/1991Date:

EDGEMONT HOSPITAL  (Continued) S100273140

                                                    9/8/1997Date the Case was Closed:
                                                    10/23/1997Date Case Last Changed on Database:
                Not reportedDate Leak Stopped:
                Not reportedDate Confirmation Began:
                10/13/1989Date Leak Record Entered:
                                                    8/1/1989Date Leak First Reported:
                Not reportedDate Leak Discovered:
                Not reportedEnforcement Type:
                EDGEMONT STCross Street:
                19050Local Agency:
                MSHStaff:
                W0603700547W Global ID:
                T0603700733Global ID:
                                                    Remove Free ProductAbatement Method Used at the Site:
                GroundwaterCase Type:
                Not reportedLocal Case No:
                Not reportedSubstance Quantity:
                GasolineSubstance:
                Case ClosedStatus:
                900270025Facility Id:
                Los AngelesCounty:
                04Regional Board:
                4Region:

LUST REG 4:

1780 ft. CA HIST CORTESESite 3 of 5 in cluster S
0.337 mi. CA FID UST

Relative:
Higher

Actual:
408 ft.

1/4-1/2 CA HIST USTLOS ANGELES, CA  90027
WNW CA SWEEPS UST4900 W HOLLYWOOD BLVD    N/A
S88 CA LUSTSERVICE STATION 3837 1000166588

TC5441284.2s   Page 156



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

          3Number Of Tanks:
          REG UNLEADEDContent:
          PRODUCTSTG:
          M.V. FUELTank Use:
          Not reportedActive Date:
          11763Capacity:
          Not reportedTank Status:
          19-050-001343-000001SWRCB Tank Id:
          Not reportedOwner Tank Id:
          Not reportedCreated Date:
          Not reportedAction Date:
          Not reportedReferral Date:
          44-000051Board Of Equalization:
          Not reportedNumber:
          1343Comp Number:
          Not reportedStatus:

SWEEPS UST:

                RPT
                1997 VE SYSTEM O&M RPT                   10/23/97 - WELL ABANDONMENT
                1ST QTR 1997 VE SYSTEM O&M RPT                   07/15/97 - 2ND QTR
                01/16/97 - 4TH QTR/VE SYSTEM O&M RPT                        03/06/97 -Summary:
                1900547-001GENAssigned Name:
                Not reportedSuspended:
                Not reportedCleanup Fund Id:
                Not reportedPriority:
                Not reportedBeneficial Use:
                PEJLocal Agency Staff:
                34.1016723 / -1Lat/Long:
                LUSTProgram:
                376 S. VALENCIA AVE., BREA, CA 92823RP Address:
                UNOCAL CORPORATIONResponsible Party:
                Not reportedOwner Contact:
                Not reportedOrganization:
                Not reportedSoil Qualifier:
                Not reportedGW Qualifier:
                                                    YesSignificant Interim Remedial Action Taken:
                                                    Not reportedHist Max MTBE Conc in Soil:
                                                    Not reportedHist Max MTBE Conc in Groundwater:
                                                    Not reportedHistorical Max MTBE Date:
                                                    Not reportedEnforcement Action Date:
                                                    1/24/1997Post Remedial Action Monitoring Began:
                                                    5/16/1994Remedial Action Underway:
                                                    11/2/1990Remediation Plan Submitted:
                                                    Not reportedPollution Characterization Began:
                                                    Not reportedPreliminary Site Assessment Began:
                                                    Not reportedPreliminary Site Assessment Workplan Submitted:
                                                    UNKSource of Cleanup Funding:
                                                    12704.259857396884094970944146Approx. Dist To Production Well (ft):
                Not reportedWell Name:
                FIRSTONE SCOUT RESRVTN (BOY SCOUT COUN)Water System:
                Not reportedOperator:
                UNKLeak Source:
                Not reportedCause of Leak:
                Not reportedHow Leak Stopped:
                Not reportedHow Leak Discovered:

SERVICE STATION 3837  (Continued) 1000166588

TC5441284.2s   Page 157



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                              Stock Inventor, Pressure Test, 10Leak Detection:
                              Not reportedContainer Construction Thickness:
                              UNLEADEDType of Fuel:
                              PRODUCTTank Used for:
                              00011763Tank Capacity:
                              1982Year Installed:
                              3837-1Container Num:
                              001Tank Num:

                              0003Total Tanks:
                              LOS ANGELES, CA 90010Owner City,St,Zip:
                              3701 WILSHIRE BLVD STE 830Owner Address:
                              UNION OIL COMPANY OF CALIFORNIOwner Name:
                              2136637230Telephone:
                              VAHE ARTIN BERBERIANContact Name:
                              Not reportedOther Type:
                              Gas StationFacility Type:
                              00000018969Facility ID:
                              STATERegion:
                              http://geotracker.waterboards.ca.gov/ustpdfs/pdf/000291EE.pdfURL:
                              000291EEFile Number:

HIST UST:

          Not reportedNumber Of Tanks:
          WASTE OILContent:
          WASTESTG:
          OILTank Use:
          Not reportedActive Date:
          280Capacity:
          Not reportedTank Status:
          19-050-001343-000003SWRCB Tank Id:
          Not reportedOwner Tank Id:
          Not reportedCreated Date:
          Not reportedAction Date:
          Not reportedReferral Date:
          44-000051Board Of Equalization:
          Not reportedNumber:
          1343Comp Number:
          Not reportedStatus:

          Not reportedNumber Of Tanks:
          REG UNLEADEDContent:
          PRODUCTSTG:
          M.V. FUELTank Use:
          Not reportedActive Date:
          11763Capacity:
          Not reportedTank Status:
          19-050-001343-000002SWRCB Tank Id:
          Not reportedOwner Tank Id:
          Not reportedCreated Date:
          Not reportedAction Date:
          Not reportedReferral Date:
          44-000051Board Of Equalization:
          Not reportedNumber:
          1343Comp Number:
          Not reportedStatus:

SERVICE STATION 3837  (Continued) 1000166588

TC5441284.2s   Page 158



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                    900270025Reg Id:
                    LTNKAReg By:
                    19Facility County Code:
                    CORTESERegion:

HIST CORTESE:

     InactiveStatus:
     Not reportedComments:
     Not reportedEPA ID:
     Not reportedNPDES Number:
     Not reportedDUNs Number:
     Not reportedContact Phone:
     Not reportedContact:
     LOS ANGELES 900270000Mailing City,St,Zip:
     Not reportedMailing Address 2:
     3701  WILSHIRE BLVD-SUITEMailing Address:
     Not reportedMail To:
     2136637230Facility Phone:
     Not reportedSIC Code:
     Not reportedCortese Code:
     00018969Regulated ID:
     UTNKIRegulated By:
     19002130Facility ID:

CA FID UST:

Click here for Geo Tracker PDF:

                              Stock Inventor, Pressure Test, 10Leak Detection:
                              Not reportedContainer Construction Thickness:
                              WASTE OILType of Fuel:
                              WASTETank Used for:
                              00000280Tank Capacity:
                              1954Year Installed:
                              3837-4Container Num:
                              003Tank Num:

                              Stock Inventor, Pressure Test, 10Leak Detection:
                              Not reportedContainer Construction Thickness:
                              PREMIUMType of Fuel:
                              PRODUCTTank Used for:
                              00011763Tank Capacity:
                              1982Year Installed:
                              383702Container Num:
                              002Tank Num:

SERVICE STATION 3837  (Continued) 1000166588

                              34.1016723Latitude:
                              T0603700733Global Id:
                              http://geotracker.waterboards.ca.gov/profile_report.asp?global_id=T0603700733Geo Track:
                              LUST Cleanup SiteCase Type:
                              LOS ANGELES RWQCB (REGION 4)Lead Agency:

LUST:

1780 ft. Site 4 of 5 in cluster S
0.337 mi.

Relative:
Higher

Actual:
408 ft.

1/4-1/2 LOS FELIZ, CA  90027
WNW 4900 HOLLYWOOD BLVD W    N/A
S89 CA LUSTUNOCAL #3837 (FORMER) S110654446

TC5441284.2s   Page 159



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                         09/08/1997Status Date:
                         Completed - Case ClosedStatus:
                         T0603700733Global Id:

                         01/24/1997Status Date:
                         Open - Verification MonitoringStatus:
                         T0603700733Global Id:

                         05/16/1994Status Date:
                         Open - RemediationStatus:
                         T0603700733Global Id:

                         11/02/1990Status Date:
                         Open - RemediationStatus:
                         T0603700733Global Id:

                         08/01/1989Status Date:
                         Open - Case Begin DateStatus:
                         T0603700733Global Id:

LUST:

                         Leak ReportedAction:
                         08/01/1989Date:
                         OtherAction Type:
                         T0603700733Global Id:

LUST:

                         Not reportedPhone Number:
                         eloy.luna@lacity.orgEmail:
                         LOS ANGELESCity:
                         200 North Main Street, Suite 1780Address:
                         LOS ANGELES, CITY OFOrganization Name:
                         ELOY LUNAContact Name:
                         Local Agency CaseworkerContact Type:
                         T0603700733Global Id:

LUST:

                              Not reportedSite History:
                              GasolinePotential Contaminants of Concern:
                              Aquifer used for drinking water supplyPotential Media Affect:
                              Not reportedLocal Case Number:
                              Not reportedFile Location:
                              LOS ANGELES, CITY OFLocal Agency:
                              900270025RB Case Number:
                              Not reportedCase Worker:
                              09/08/1997Status Date:
                              Completed - Case ClosedStatus:
                              -118.2961862Longitude:

UNOCAL #3837 (FORMER)  (Continued) S110654446

TC5441284.2s   Page 160



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                         T0603700747Global Id:

                         02/17/1997Status Date:
                         Open - Site AssessmentStatus:
                         T0603700747Global Id:

                         02/17/1997Status Date:
                         Open - Case Begin DateStatus:
                         T0603700747Global Id:

LUST:

                         Leak ReportedAction:
                         12/17/1997Date:
                         OtherAction Type:
                         T0603700747Global Id:

LUST:

                         Not reportedPhone Number:
                         yrong@waterboards.ca.govEmail:
                         Los AngelesCity:
                         320 W. 4TH ST., SUITE 200Address:
                         LOS ANGELES RWQCB (REGION 4)Organization Name:
                         YUE RONGContact Name:
                         Regional Board CaseworkerContact Type:
                         T0603700747Global Id:

                         Not reportedPhone Number:
                         eloy.luna@lacity.orgEmail:
                         LOS ANGELESCity:
                         200 North Main Street, Suite 1780Address:
                         LOS ANGELES, CITY OFOrganization Name:
                         ELOY LUNAContact Name:
                         Local Agency CaseworkerContact Type:
                         T0603700747Global Id:

LUST:

                              Not reportedSite History:
                              GasolinePotential Contaminants of Concern:
                              SoilPotential Media Affect:
                              Not reportedLocal Case Number:
                              Not reportedFile Location:
                              LOS ANGELES, CITY OFLocal Agency:
                              900270189RB Case Number:
                              ELCase Worker:
                              04/11/1997Status Date:
                              Completed - Case ClosedStatus:
                              -118.296372Longitude:
                              34.102094Latitude:
                              T0603700747Global Id:
                              http://geotracker.waterboards.ca.gov/profile_report.asp?global_id=T0603700747Geo Track:
                              LUST Cleanup SiteCase Type:
                              LOS ANGELES, CITY OFLead Agency:

LUST:

1817 ft. Site 5 of 5 in cluster S
0.344 mi.

Relative:
Higher

Actual:
411 ft.

1/4-1/2 LOS ANGELES, CA  90027
WNW CA HIST CORTESE4905 HOLLYWOOD BLVD    N/A
S90 CA LUSTSHELL OIL CO (FORMER) S102590752

TC5441284.2s   Page 161



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                PEJLocal Agency Staff:
                34.1018913 / -1Lat/Long:
                LUSTProgram:
                P.O. BOX 60249, LOS ANGELES, CA 90060RP Address:
                BANK OF AMERICA, NT & SAResponsible Party:
                Not reportedOwner Contact:
                Not reportedOrganization:
                Not reportedSoil Qualifier:
                Not reportedGW Qualifier:
                                                    Not reportedSignificant Interim Remedial Action Taken:
                                                    Not reportedHist Max MTBE Conc in Soil:
                                                    Not reportedHist Max MTBE Conc in Groundwater:
                                                    Not reportedHistorical Max MTBE Date:
                                                    Not reportedEnforcement Action Date:
                                                    Not reportedPost Remedial Action Monitoring Began:
                                                    Not reportedRemedial Action Underway:
                                                    Not reportedRemediation Plan Submitted:
                                                    Not reportedPollution Characterization Began:
                                                    2/17/1997Preliminary Site Assessment Began:
                                                    Not reportedPreliminary Site Assessment Workplan Submitted:
                                                    Not reportedSource of Cleanup Funding:
                                                    12780.078047870718262597905916Approx. Dist To Production Well (ft):
                Not reportedWell Name:
                FIRSTONE SCOUT RESRVTN (BOY SCOUT COUN)Water System:
                Not reportedOperator:
                Not reportedLeak Source:
                Not reportedCause of Leak:
                Not reportedHow Leak Stopped:
                Not reportedHow Leak Discovered:
                                                    4/11/1997Date the Case was Closed:
                                                    4/11/1997Date Case Last Changed on Database:
                Not reportedDate Leak Stopped:
                Not reportedDate Confirmation Began:
                7/2/1997Date Leak Record Entered:
                                                    12/17/1997Date Leak First Reported:
                Not reportedDate Leak Discovered:
                Not reportedEnforcement Type:
                KENMORE AVECross Street:
                19050Local Agency:
                UNKStaff:
                W0603700547W Global ID:
                T0603700747Global ID:
                                                    Not reportedAbatement Method Used at the Site:
                SoilCase Type:
                Not reportedLocal Case No:
                Not reportedSubstance Quantity:
                GasolineSubstance:
                Case ClosedStatus:
                900270189Facility Id:
                Los AngelesCounty:
                04Regional Board:
                4Region:

LUST REG 4:

                         04/11/1997Status Date:
                         Completed - Case ClosedStatus:

SHELL OIL CO (FORMER)  (Continued) S102590752

TC5441284.2s   Page 162



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                    900270189Reg Id:
                    LTNKAReg By:
                    19Facility County Code:
                    CORTESERegion:

HIST CORTESE:

                Not reportedSummary:
                1900547-001GENAssigned Name:
                Not reportedSuspended:
                Not reportedCleanup Fund Id:
                Not reportedPriority:
                Not reportedBeneficial Use:

SHELL OIL CO (FORMER)  (Continued) S102590752

LUST:

                         Not reportedPhone Number:
                         yrong@waterboards.ca.govEmail:
                         Los AngelesCity:
                         320 W. 4TH ST., SUITE 200Address:
                         LOS ANGELES RWQCB (REGION 4)Organization Name:
                         YUE RONGContact Name:
                         Regional Board CaseworkerContact Type:
                         T0603700735Global Id:

                         Not reportedPhone Number:
                         eloy.luna@lacity.orgEmail:
                         LOS ANGELESCity:
                         200 North Main Street, Suite 1780Address:
                         LOS ANGELES, CITY OFOrganization Name:
                         ELOY LUNAContact Name:
                         Local Agency CaseworkerContact Type:
                         T0603700735Global Id:

LUST:

                              Not reportedSite History:
                              GasolinePotential Contaminants of Concern:
                              Aquifer used for drinking water supplyPotential Media Affect:
                              Not reportedLocal Case Number:
                              Not reportedFile Location:
                              LOS ANGELES, CITY OFLocal Agency:
                              900270043RB Case Number:
                              YRCase Worker:
                              11/27/1996Status Date:
                              Completed - Case ClosedStatus:
                              -118.2840971Longitude:
                              34.0958391Latitude:
                              T0603700735Global Id:
                              http://geotracker.waterboards.ca.gov/profile_report.asp?global_id=T0603700735Geo Track:
                              LUST Cleanup SiteCase Type:
                              LOS ANGELES RWQCB (REGION 4)Lead Agency:

LUST:

2136 ft.
0.405 mi.

Relative:
Lower

Actual:
379 ft.

1/4-1/2 CA HIST CORTESELOS ANGELES, CA  90027
ESE CA HIST UST4359 SUNSET BLVD    N/A
91 CA LUSTSAV-MOR OIL CO. #343 S102436504

TC5441284.2s   Page 163



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                    Not reportedRemediation Plan Submitted:
                                                    Not reportedPollution Characterization Began:
                                                    7/22/1992Preliminary Site Assessment Began:
                                                    Not reportedPreliminary Site Assessment Workplan Submitted:
                                                    UNKSource of Cleanup Funding:
                                                    9420.675375668924799279474779Approx. Dist To Production Well (ft):
                Not reportedWell Name:
                FIRSTONE SCOUT RESRVTN (BOY SCOUT COUN)Water System:
                OLD CASE #072292-01Operator:
                UNKLeak Source:
                UNKCause of Leak:
                Not reportedHow Leak Stopped:
                Not reportedHow Leak Discovered:
                                                    11/27/1996Date the Case was Closed:
                                                    7/22/1992Date Case Last Changed on Database:
                Not reportedDate Leak Stopped:
                Not reportedDate Confirmation Began:
                7/11/1992Date Leak Record Entered:
                                                    7/17/1992Date Leak First Reported:
                Not reportedDate Leak Discovered:
                Not reportedEnforcement Type:
                FOUNTAIN AVE.Cross Street:
                19050Local Agency:
                UNKStaff:
                W0603700547W Global ID:
                T0603700735Global ID:
                                                    Excavate and DisposeAbatement Method Used at the Site:
                GroundwaterCase Type:
                Not reportedLocal Case No:
                Not reportedSubstance Quantity:
                GasolineSubstance:
                Case ClosedStatus:
                900270043Facility Id:
                Los AngelesCounty:
                04Regional Board:
                4Region:

LUST REG 4:

                         11/27/1996Status Date:
                         Completed - Case ClosedStatus:
                         T0603700735Global Id:

                         07/22/1992Status Date:
                         Open - Site AssessmentStatus:
                         T0603700735Global Id:

                         07/17/1992Status Date:
                         Open - Case Begin DateStatus:
                         T0603700735Global Id:

LUST:

                         Leak ReportedAction:
                         07/17/1992Date:
                         OtherAction Type:
                         T0603700735Global Id:

SAV-MOR OIL CO. #343  (Continued) S102436504

TC5441284.2s   Page 164



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                              Not reportedLeak Detection:
                              Not reportedContainer Construction Thickness:
                              Not reportedType of Fuel:
                              Not reportedTank Used for:
                              Not reportedTank Capacity:
                              Not reportedYear Installed:
                              Not reportedContainer Num:
                              Not reportedTank Num:

                              Not reportedLeak Detection:
                              Not reportedContainer Construction Thickness:
                              Not reportedType of Fuel:
                              Not reportedTank Used for:
                              Not reportedTank Capacity:
                              Not reportedYear Installed:
                              Not reportedContainer Num:
                              Not reportedTank Num:

                              Not reportedTotal Tanks:
                              Not reportedOwner City,St,Zip:
                              Not reportedOwner Address:
                              Not reportedOwner Name:
                              Not reportedTelephone:
                              Not reportedContact Name:
                              Not reportedOther Type:
                              Not reportedFacility Type:
                              Not reportedFacility ID:
                              Not reportedRegion:
                              http://geotracker.waterboards.ca.gov/ustpdfs/pdf/000281EF.pdfURL:
                              000281EFFile Number:

HIST UST:

                Not reportedSummary:
                1900547-001GENAssigned Name:
                Not reportedSuspended:
                Not reportedCleanup Fund Id:
                Not reportedPriority:
                Not reportedBeneficial Use:
                PEJLocal Agency Staff:
                34.0983366 / -1Lat/Long:
                LUSTProgram:
                5150 WILSHIRE BLVD., SUITE 100, LOS ANGELES, 90036-4302RP Address:
                SAV-MOR OIL CO.Responsible Party:
                Not reportedOwner Contact:
                Not reportedOrganization:
                Not reportedSoil Qualifier:
                Not reportedGW Qualifier:
                                                    YesSignificant Interim Remedial Action Taken:
                                                    Not reportedHist Max MTBE Conc in Soil:
                                                    Not reportedHist Max MTBE Conc in Groundwater:
                                                    Not reportedHistorical Max MTBE Date:
                                                    Not reportedEnforcement Action Date:
                                                    Not reportedPost Remedial Action Monitoring Began:
                                                    Not reportedRemedial Action Underway:

SAV-MOR OIL CO. #343  (Continued) S102436504

TC5441284.2s   Page 165



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                    900270043Reg Id:
                    LTNKAReg By:
                    19Facility County Code:
                    CORTESERegion:

HIST CORTESE:

Click here for Geo Tracker PDF:

SAV-MOR OIL CO. #343  (Continued) S102436504

                                                    Not reportedHist Max MTBE Conc in Soil:
                                                    Not reportedHist Max MTBE Conc in Groundwater:
                                                    Not reportedHistorical Max MTBE Date:
                                                    Not reportedEnforcement Action Date:
                                                    Not reportedPost Remedial Action Monitoring Began:
                                                    Not reportedRemedial Action Underway:
                                                    Not reportedRemediation Plan Submitted:
                                                    Not reportedPollution Characterization Began:
                                                    Not reportedPreliminary Site Assessment Began:
                                                    Not reportedPreliminary Site Assessment Workplan Submitted:
                                                    TankSource of Cleanup Funding:
                                                    11965.188039851037735717551351Approx. Dist To Production Well (ft):
                Not reportedWell Name:
                Not reportedWater System:
                TED BAYLESSOperator:
                TankLeak Source:
                Not reportedCause of Leak:
                Not reportedHow Leak Stopped:
                OMHow Leak Discovered:
                                                    Not reportedDate the Case was Closed:
                                                    1/25/2001Date Case Last Changed on Database:
                12/1/1989Date Leak Stopped:
                1/25/2001Date Confirmation Began:
                Not reportedDate Leak Record Entered:
                                                    1/25/2001Date Leak First Reported:
                1/16/2001Date Leak Discovered:
                Not reportedEnforcement Type:
                FRANKLIN AVECross Street:
                19050Local Agency:
                UNKStaff:
                Not reportedW Global ID:
                T0603790020Global ID:
                                                    Not reportedAbatement Method Used at the Site:
                SoilCase Type:
                Not reportedLocal Case No:
                Not reportedSubstance Quantity:
                Waste OilSubstance:
                Leak being confirmedStatus:
                900270225Facility Id:
                Los AngelesCounty:
                04Regional Board:
                4Region:

LUST REG 4:

2174 ft. Site 1 of 2 in cluster T
0.412 mi.

Relative:
Higher

Actual:
466 ft.

1/4-1/2 LOS ANGELES, CA  90027
NNE 1869 HILLHURST AVE    N/A
T92 CA LUSTCHEVRON #9-0140 S104891064

TC5441284.2s   Page 166



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                Not reportedSummary:
                Not reportedAssigned Name:
                Not reportedSuspended:
                Not reportedCleanup Fund Id:
                Not reportedPriority:
                Not reportedBeneficial Use:
                PEJLocal Agency Staff:
                34.104818 / -1Lat/Long:
                LUSTProgram:
                P.O. BOX 2292,  BREA, CA 92822-2292RP Address:
                CHEVRON PRODUCTS COResponsible Party:
                Not reportedOwner Contact:
                Not reportedOrganization:
                Not reportedSoil Qualifier:
                Not reportedGW Qualifier:
                                                    Not reportedSignificant Interim Remedial Action Taken:

CHEVRON #9-0140  (Continued) S104891064

                         yrong@waterboards.ca.govEmail:
                         Los AngelesCity:
                         320 W. 4TH ST., SUITE 200Address:
                         LOS ANGELES RWQCB (REGION 4)Organization Name:
                         YUE RONGContact Name:
                         Regional Board CaseworkerContact Type:
                         T0603790020Global Id:

                         Not reportedPhone Number:
                         eloy.luna@lacity.orgEmail:
                         LOS ANGELESCity:
                         200 North Main Street, Suite 1780Address:
                         LOS ANGELES, CITY OFOrganization Name:
                         ELOY LUNAContact Name:
                         Local Agency CaseworkerContact Type:
                         T0603790020Global Id:

LUST:

                              Not reportedSite History:
                              Waste Oil / Motor / Hydraulic / LubricatingPotential Contaminants of Concern:
                              SoilPotential Media Affect:
                              Not reportedLocal Case Number:
                              Not reportedFile Location:
                              LOS ANGELES, CITY OFLocal Agency:
                              900270225RB Case Number:
                              ELCase Worker:
                              02/27/2013Status Date:
                              Completed - Case ClosedStatus:
                              -118.287665Longitude:
                              34.104818Latitude:
                              T0603790020Global Id:
                              http://geotracker.waterboards.ca.gov/profile_report.asp?global_id=T0603790020Geo Track:
                              LUST Cleanup SiteCase Type:
                              LOS ANGELES, CITY OFLead Agency:

LUST:

2174 ft. Site 2 of 2 in cluster T
0.412 mi.

Relative:
Higher

Actual:
466 ft.

1/4-1/2 LOS ANGELES, CA  90027
NNE CA HIST UST1869 HILLHURST AVE    N/A
T93 CA LUSTCHEVRON #9-0140 U001561172

TC5441284.2s   Page 167



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                              001Tank Num:

                              0004Total Tanks:
                              SAN FRANCISCO, CA 94105Owner City,St,Zip:
                              575 MARKETOwner Address:
                              CHEVRON U.S.A. INC.Owner Name:
                              2136659837Telephone:
                              BAYLESS,TED EContact Name:
                              Not reportedOther Type:
                              Gas StationFacility Type:
                              00000061732Facility ID:
                              STATERegion:
                              http://geotracker.waterboards.ca.gov/ustpdfs/pdf/00026BA8.pdfURL:
                              00026BA8File Number:

HIST UST:

                         02/27/2013Status Date:
                         Completed - Case ClosedStatus:
                         T0603790020Global Id:

                         10/25/2004Status Date:
                         Open - Site AssessmentStatus:
                         T0603790020Global Id:

                         01/25/2001Status Date:
                         Open - Site AssessmentStatus:
                         T0603790020Global Id:

                         12/01/1989Status Date:
                         Open - Case Begin DateStatus:
                         T0603790020Global Id:

LUST:

                         Leak DiscoveryAction:
                         01/16/2001Date:
                         OtherAction Type:
                         T0603790020Global Id:

                         Leak StoppedAction:
                         12/01/1989Date:
                         OtherAction Type:
                         T0603790020Global Id:

                         Closure/No Further Action LetterAction:
                         01/21/2005Date:
                         ENFORCEMENTAction Type:
                         T0603790020Global Id:

                         Leak ReportedAction:
                         01/25/2001Date:
                         OtherAction Type:
                         T0603790020Global Id:

LUST:

                         Not reportedPhone Number:

CHEVRON #9-0140  (Continued) U001561172

TC5441284.2s   Page 168



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

Click here for Geo Tracker PDF:

                              Stock InventorLeak Detection:
                              0000130Container Construction Thickness:
                              Not reportedType of Fuel:
                              WASTETank Used for:
                              00001000Tank Capacity:
                              1967Year Installed:
                              4Container Num:
                              004Tank Num:

                              Stock InventorLeak Detection:
                              0000250Container Construction Thickness:
                              Not reportedType of Fuel:
                              PRODUCTTank Used for:
                              00005000Tank Capacity:
                              1967Year Installed:
                              3Container Num:
                              003Tank Num:

                              Stock InventorLeak Detection:
                              0000250Container Construction Thickness:
                              Not reportedType of Fuel:
                              PRODUCTTank Used for:
                              00010000Tank Capacity:
                              1967Year Installed:
                              2Container Num:
                              002Tank Num:

                              Stock InventorLeak Detection:
                              0000250Container Construction Thickness:
                              Not reportedType of Fuel:
                              PRODUCTTank Used for:
                              00010000Tank Capacity:
                              1967Year Installed:
                              1Container Num:

CHEVRON #9-0140  (Continued) U001561172

            53Assembly:
            Southern California Schools & Brownfields OutreachDivision Branch:
            Shahir HaddadSupervisor:
            Not reportedProgram Manager:
            SMBRPLead Agency:
            SMBRPRegulatory Agencies:
            NONPL:
            2.05Acres:
            SchoolSite Type Detailed:
            School InvestigationSite Type:
            304294Site Code:
            11/25/2002Status Date:
            No Further ActionStatus:
            19650016Facility ID:

ENVIROSTOR:

2220 ft.
0.420 mi.

Relative:
Lower

Actual:
342 ft.

1/4-1/2 LOS ANGELES, CA  90029
SSE CA SCHLEXINGTON AVE/WESTMORELAND AVE/LYMAN PLACE    N/A
94 CA ENVIROSTORMARSHALL NEW PRIMARY CENTER NO. 1 S112057176

TC5441284.2s   Page 169



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                    Not reportedFuture Due Date:
                    Not reportedFuture Document Type:
                    Not reportedFuture Sub Area Name:
                    Not reportedFuture Area Name:

                    Not reportedComments:
                    01/29/2003Completed Date:
                    Cost Recovery Closeout MemoCompleted Document Type:
                    Not reportedCompleted Sub Area Name:
                    PROJECT WIDECompleted Area Name:

                    Not reportedComments:
                    06/18/2001Completed Date:
                    Site Inspections/Visit (Non LUR)Completed Document Type:
                    Not reportedCompleted Sub Area Name:
                    PROJECT WIDECompleted Area Name:

                    Not reportedComments:
                    11/25/2002Completed Date:
                    Phase 1Completed Document Type:
                    Not reportedCompleted Sub Area Name:
                    PROJECT WIDECompleted Area Name:

                    Not reportedComments:
                    06/18/2001Completed Date:
                    Phase 1Completed Document Type:
                    Not reportedCompleted Sub Area Name:
                    PROJECT WIDECompleted Area Name:

                    Not reportedComments:
                    02/10/2000Completed Date:
                    Environmental Oversight AgreementCompleted Document Type:
                    Not reportedCompleted Sub Area Name:
                    PROJECT WIDECompleted Area Name:

Completed Info:

                    Envirostor ID NumberAlias Type:
                    19650016Alias Name:
                    Project Code (Site Code)Alias Type:
                    304294Alias Name:
                    Alternate NameAlias Type:
                    MARSHALL NEW PRIMARY CENTER #1Alias Name:
                    Alternate NameAlias Type:
                    LOS ANGELES UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICTAlias Name:
                    Alternate NameAlias Type:
                    LAUSD-MARSHAL NEW PC#1Alias Name:
            NMAPotential Description:
            NONE SPECIFIEDConfirmed COC:
            NONE SPECIFIED No Contaminants foundPotential COC:
            RESIDENTIAL AREAPast Use:
            NONE SPECIFIEDAPN:
            -118.2527Longitude:
            34.05227Latitude:
            School DistrictFunding:
            NONE SPECIFIEDSite Mgmt Req:
            NORestricted Use:
            Not reportedSpecial Program:
            30Senate:

MARSHALL NEW PRIMARY CENTER NO. 1  (Continued) S112057176

TC5441284.2s   Page 170



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                    06/18/2001Completed Date:
                    Phase 1Completed Document Type:
                    Not reportedCompleted Sub Area Name:
                    PROJECT WIDECompleted Area Name:

                    Not reportedComments:
                    02/10/2000Completed Date:
                    Environmental Oversight AgreementCompleted Document Type:
                    Not reportedCompleted Sub Area Name:
                    PROJECT WIDECompleted Area Name:

Completed Info:

                    Envirostor ID NumberAlias Type:
                    19650016Alias Name:
                    Project Code (Site Code)Alias Type:
                    304294Alias Name:
                    Alternate NameAlias Type:
                    MARSHALL NEW PRIMARY CENTER #1Alias Name:
                    Alternate NameAlias Type:
                    LOS ANGELES UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICTAlias Name:
                    Alternate NameAlias Type:
                    LAUSD-MARSHAL NEW PC#1Alias Name:
                    NMAPotential Description:
                    NONE SPECIFIEDConfirmed COC:
                    NONE SPECIFIED, No Contaminants foundPotential COC:
                    RESIDENTIAL AREAPast Use:
                    NONE SPECIFIEDAPN:
                    -118.2527Longitude:
                    34.05227Latitude:
                    School DistrictFunding:
                    NORestricted Use:
                    11/25/2002Status Date:
                    No Further ActionStatus:
                    Not reportedSpecial Program Status:
                    30Senate:
                    53Assembly:
                    304294Site Code:
                    Southern California Schools & Brownfields OutreachDivision Branch:
                    Shahir HaddadSupervisor:
                    Not reportedProject Manager:
                    DTSC - Site Cleanup ProgramLead Agency Description:
                    SMBRPLead Agency:
                    SMBRPCleanup Oversight Agencies:
                    NONational Priorities List:
                    2.05Acres:
                    NONE SPECIFIEDSite Mgmt. Req.:
                    SchoolSite Type Detail:
                    School InvestigationSite Type:
                    19650016Facility ID:

SCH:

                    Not reportedSchedule Revised Date:
                    Not reportedSchedule Due Date:
                    Not reportedSchedule Document Type:
                    Not reportedSchedule Sub Area Name:
                    Not reportedSchedule Area Name:

MARSHALL NEW PRIMARY CENTER NO. 1  (Continued) S112057176

TC5441284.2s   Page 171



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                    Not reportedSchedule Revised Date:
                    Not reportedSchedule Due Date:
                    Not reportedSchedule Document Type:
                    Not reportedSchedule Sub Area Name:
                    Not reportedSchedule Area Name:
                    Not reportedFuture Due Date:
                    Not reportedFuture Document Type:
                    Not reportedFuture Sub Area Name:
                    Not reportedFuture Area Name:

                    Not reportedComments:
                    01/29/2003Completed Date:
                    Cost Recovery Closeout MemoCompleted Document Type:
                    Not reportedCompleted Sub Area Name:
                    PROJECT WIDECompleted Area Name:

                    Not reportedComments:
                    06/18/2001Completed Date:
                    Site Inspections/Visit (Non LUR)Completed Document Type:
                    Not reportedCompleted Sub Area Name:
                    PROJECT WIDECompleted Area Name:

                    Not reportedComments:
                    11/25/2002Completed Date:
                    Phase 1Completed Document Type:
                    Not reportedCompleted Sub Area Name:
                    PROJECT WIDECompleted Area Name:

                    Not reportedComments:

MARSHALL NEW PRIMARY CENTER NO. 1  (Continued) S112057176

                         ELOY LUNAContact Name:
                         Local Agency CaseworkerContact Type:
                         T0603700741Global Id:

LUST:

                              Not reportedSite History:
                              GasolinePotential Contaminants of Concern:
                              Aquifer used for drinking water supplyPotential Media Affect:
                              Not reportedLocal Case Number:
                              Not reportedFile Location:
                              LOS ANGELES, CITY OFLocal Agency:
                              900270116RB Case Number:
                              YRCase Worker:
                              01/09/1997Status Date:
                              Completed - Case ClosedStatus:
                              -118.298013Longitude:
                              34.102007Latitude:
                              T0603700741Global Id:
                              http://geotracker.waterboards.ca.gov/profile_report.asp?global_id=T0603700741Geo Track:
                              LUST Cleanup SiteCase Type:
                              LOS ANGELES RWQCB (REGION 4)Lead Agency:

LUST:

2273 ft.
0.430 mi.

Relative:
Lower

Actual:
405 ft.

1/4-1/2 CA HIST CORTESELOS ANGELES, CA  90027
WNW CA SWEEPS UST4977 HOLLYWOOD BLVD    N/A
95 CA LUSTHOLLYWOOD GAS (FORMER) S102431444

TC5441284.2s   Page 172



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                Not reportedEnforcement Type:
                Not reportedCross Street:
                19050Local Agency:
                UNKStaff:
                Not reportedW Global ID:
                T0603700741Global ID:
                                                    Not reportedAbatement Method Used at the Site:
                GroundwaterCase Type:
                Not reportedLocal Case No:
                Not reportedSubstance Quantity:
                GasolineSubstance:
                Case ClosedStatus:
                900270116Facility Id:
                Los AngelesCounty:
                04Regional Board:
                4Region:

LUST REG 4:

                         01/09/1997Status Date:
                         Completed - Case ClosedStatus:
                         T0603700741Global Id:

                         11/14/1996Status Date:
                         Open - Verification MonitoringStatus:
                         T0603700741Global Id:

                         03/09/1994Status Date:
                         Open - Site AssessmentStatus:
                         T0603700741Global Id:

                         03/09/1994Status Date:
                         Open - Case Begin DateStatus:
                         T0603700741Global Id:

LUST:

                         Leak ReportedAction:
                         04/25/1994Date:
                         OtherAction Type:
                         T0603700741Global Id:

LUST:

                         Not reportedPhone Number:
                         yrong@waterboards.ca.govEmail:
                         Los AngelesCity:
                         320 W. 4TH ST., SUITE 200Address:
                         LOS ANGELES RWQCB (REGION 4)Organization Name:
                         YUE RONGContact Name:
                         Regional Board CaseworkerContact Type:
                         T0603700741Global Id:

                         Not reportedPhone Number:
                         eloy.luna@lacity.orgEmail:
                         LOS ANGELESCity:
                         200 North Main Street, Suite 1780Address:
                         LOS ANGELES, CITY OFOrganization Name:

HOLLYWOOD GAS (FORMER)  (Continued) S102431444

TC5441284.2s   Page 173



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

          M.V. FUELTank Use:
          Not reportedActive Date:
          Not reportedCapacity:
          Not reportedTank Status:
          19-050-001805-000001SWRCB Tank Id:
          Not reportedOwner Tank Id:
          Not reportedCreated Date:
          Not reportedAction Date:
          Not reportedReferral Date:
          44-011978Board Of Equalization:
          Not reportedNumber:
          1805Comp Number:
          Not reportedStatus:

SWEEPS UST:

                01/29/97 - WELL ABANDONMENTSummary:
                Not reportedAssigned Name:
                Not reportedSuspended:
                Not reportedCleanup Fund Id:
                Not reportedPriority:
                Not reportedBeneficial Use:
                PEJLocal Agency Staff:
                34.1018823 / -1Lat/Long:
                LUSTProgram:
                879 W MOUNTAIN ST, GLENDALE CA 91202RP Address:
                BLANK RPResponsible Party:
                Not reportedOwner Contact:
                Not reportedOrganization:
                Not reportedSoil Qualifier:
                Not reportedGW Qualifier:
                                                    Not reportedSignificant Interim Remedial Action Taken:
                                                    Not reportedHist Max MTBE Conc in Soil:
                                                    21Hist Max MTBE Conc in Groundwater:
                                                    1/1/1965Historical Max MTBE Date:
                                                    Not reportedEnforcement Action Date:
                                                    11/14/1996Post Remedial Action Monitoring Began:
                                                    Not reportedRemedial Action Underway:
                                                    Not reportedRemediation Plan Submitted:
                                                    3/9/1994Pollution Characterization Began:
                                                    Not reportedPreliminary Site Assessment Began:
                                                    Not reportedPreliminary Site Assessment Workplan Submitted:
                                                    UNKSource of Cleanup Funding:
                                                    11768.063847663478629674084422Approx. Dist To Production Well (ft):
                Not reportedWell Name:
                Not reportedWater System:
                OLD#121594-11Operator:
                UNKLeak Source:
                UNKCause of Leak:
                Not reportedHow Leak Stopped:
                Not reportedHow Leak Discovered:
                                                    1/9/1997Date the Case was Closed:
                                                    1/29/1997Date Case Last Changed on Database:
                Not reportedDate Leak Stopped:
                Not reportedDate Confirmation Began:
                9/23/1994Date Leak Record Entered:
                                                    4/25/1994Date Leak First Reported:
                Not reportedDate Leak Discovered:

HOLLYWOOD GAS (FORMER)  (Continued) S102431444

TC5441284.2s   Page 174



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                    CORTESERegion:
HIST CORTESE:

          Not reportedNumber Of Tanks:
          Not reportedContent:
          Not reportedSTG:
          Not reportedTank Use:
          Not reportedActive Date:
          Not reportedCapacity:
          Not reportedTank Status:
          Not reportedSWRCB Tank Id:
          Not reportedOwner Tank Id:
          02-29-88Created Date:
          04-25-94Action Date:
          01-22-93Referral Date:
          44-011978Board Of Equalization:
          9Number:
          1805Comp Number:
          ActiveStatus:

          Not reportedNumber Of Tanks:
          REG UNLEADEDContent:
          PRODUCTSTG:
          M.V. FUELTank Use:
          Not reportedActive Date:
          Not reportedCapacity:
          Not reportedTank Status:
          19-050-001805-000003SWRCB Tank Id:
          Not reportedOwner Tank Id:
          Not reportedCreated Date:
          Not reportedAction Date:
          Not reportedReferral Date:
          44-011978Board Of Equalization:
          Not reportedNumber:
          1805Comp Number:
          Not reportedStatus:

          Not reportedNumber Of Tanks:
          REG UNLEADEDContent:
          PRODUCTSTG:
          M.V. FUELTank Use:
          Not reportedActive Date:
          Not reportedCapacity:
          Not reportedTank Status:
          19-050-001805-000002SWRCB Tank Id:
          Not reportedOwner Tank Id:
          Not reportedCreated Date:
          Not reportedAction Date:
          Not reportedReferral Date:
          44-011978Board Of Equalization:
          Not reportedNumber:
          1805Comp Number:
          Not reportedStatus:

          3Number Of Tanks:
          REG UNLEADEDContent:
          PRODUCTSTG:

HOLLYWOOD GAS (FORMER)  (Continued) S102431444

TC5441284.2s   Page 175



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                    900270116Reg Id:
                    LTNKAReg By:
                    19Facility County Code:

HOLLYWOOD GAS (FORMER)  (Continued) S102431444

                         Staff LetterAction:
                         06/15/2009Date:
                         ENFORCEMENTAction Type:
                         T0603700737Global Id:

                         Staff LetterAction:
                         11/16/2011Date:
                         ENFORCEMENTAction Type:
                         T0603700737Global Id:

LUST:

                         2134826528Phone Number:
                         Not reportedEmail:
                         LOS ANGELESCity:
                         200 N. MAIN ST. RM. 970Address:
                         LOS ANGELES, CITY OFOrganization Name:
                         TBDContact Name:
                         Local Agency CaseworkerContact Type:
                         T0603700737Global Id:

                         Not reportedPhone Number:
                         cetyler@waterboards.ca.govEmail:
                         R4 UNKNOWNCity:
                         Not reportedAddress:
                         LOS ANGELES RWQCB (REGION 4)Organization Name:
                         CHANDRA TYLERContact Name:
                         Regional Board CaseworkerContact Type:
                         T0603700737Global Id:

LUST:

                              Not reportedSite History:
                              GasolinePotential Contaminants of Concern:
                              Aquifer used for drinking water supplyPotential Media Affect:
                              Not reportedLocal Case Number:
                              Regional BoardFile Location:
                              LOS ANGELES, CITY OFLocal Agency:
                              900270061RB Case Number:
                              CETCase Worker:
                              01/07/2013Status Date:
                              Completed - Case ClosedStatus:
                              -118.2988642Longitude:
                              34.0982094Latitude:
                              T0603700737Global Id:
                              http://geotracker.waterboards.ca.gov/profile_report.asp?global_id=T0603700737Geo Track:
                              LUST Cleanup SiteCase Type:
                              LOS ANGELES RWQCB (REGION 4)Lead Agency:

LUST:

2469 ft.
0.468 mi.

Relative:
Lower

Actual:
377 ft.

1/4-1/2 LOS FELIZ, CA  90027
West CA HIST CORTESE5025 SUNSET BLVD W    N/A
96 CA LUSTTHRIFTY #183 S103065994

TC5441284.2s   Page 176



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                         ENFORCEMENTAction Type:
                         T0603700737Global Id:

                         Monitoring Report - QuarterlyAction:
                         10/15/2006Date:
                         RESPONSEAction Type:
                         T0603700737Global Id:

                         Other Report / DocumentAction:
                         05/31/2009Date:
                         RESPONSEAction Type:
                         T0603700737Global Id:

                         Closure/No Further Action LetterAction:
                         01/07/2013Date:
                         ENFORCEMENTAction Type:
                         T0603700737Global Id:

                         Site Visit / Inspection / SamplingAction:
                         04/09/2002Date:
                         ENFORCEMENTAction Type:
                         T0603700737Global Id:

                         Staff LetterAction:
                         01/18/2002Date:
                         ENFORCEMENTAction Type:
                         T0603700737Global Id:

                         Monitoring Report - Semi-AnnuallyAction:
                         10/15/2010Date:
                         RESPONSEAction Type:
                         T0603700737Global Id:

                         Monitoring Report - QuarterlyAction:
                         04/15/2005Date:
                         RESPONSEAction Type:
                         T0603700737Global Id:

                         Monitoring Report - QuarterlyAction:
                         10/15/2003Date:
                         RESPONSEAction Type:
                         T0603700737Global Id:

                         Monitoring Report - QuarterlyAction:
                         10/15/2004Date:
                         RESPONSEAction Type:
                         T0603700737Global Id:

                         Monitoring Report - QuarterlyAction:
                         07/15/2003Date:
                         RESPONSEAction Type:
                         T0603700737Global Id:

                         Monitoring Report - QuarterlyAction:
                         04/15/2004Date:
                         RESPONSEAction Type:
                         T0603700737Global Id:

THRIFTY #183  (Continued) S103065994

TC5441284.2s   Page 177



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                         Monitoring Report - Semi-AnnuallyAction:
                         07/15/2009Date:
                         RESPONSEAction Type:
                         T0603700737Global Id:

                         Interim Remedial Action PlanAction:
                         05/11/2011Date:
                         RESPONSEAction Type:
                         T0603700737Global Id:

                         Staff LetterAction:
                         05/06/2004Date:
                         ENFORCEMENTAction Type:
                         T0603700737Global Id:

                         Monitoring Report - QuarterlyAction:
                         04/15/2007Date:
                         RESPONSEAction Type:
                         T0603700737Global Id:

                         Corrective Action Plan / Remedial Action PlanAction:
                         03/22/2010Date:
                         RESPONSEAction Type:
                         T0603700737Global Id:

                         Monitoring Report - Semi-AnnuallyAction:
                         07/15/2010Date:
                         RESPONSEAction Type:
                         T0603700737Global Id:

                         Monitoring Report - QuarterlyAction:
                         04/15/2009Date:
                         RESPONSEAction Type:
                         T0603700737Global Id:

                         Monitoring Report - QuarterlyAction:
                         04/15/2008Date:
                         RESPONSEAction Type:
                         T0603700737Global Id:

                         Notification - PreclosureAction:
                         11/01/2012Date:
                         ENFORCEMENTAction Type:
                         T0603700737Global Id:

                         Staff LetterAction:
                         01/09/2009Date:
                         ENFORCEMENTAction Type:
                         T0603700737Global Id:

                         Interim Remedial Action PlanAction:
                         10/15/2007Date:
                         RESPONSEAction Type:
                         T0603700737Global Id:

                         Staff LetterAction:
                         05/15/1998Date:

THRIFTY #183  (Continued) S103065994

TC5441284.2s   Page 178



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                         RESPONSEAction Type:
                         T0603700737Global Id:

                         In Situ Physical/Chemical Treatment (other than SVE)Action:
                         11/13/2007Date:
                         REMEDIATIONAction Type:
                         T0603700737Global Id:

                         Well Destruction ReportAction:
                         04/15/2013Date:
                         RESPONSEAction Type:
                         T0603700737Global Id:

                         Monitoring Report - Semi-AnnuallyAction:
                         07/15/2012Date:
                         RESPONSEAction Type:
                         T0603700737Global Id:

                         Other Report / DocumentAction:
                         01/15/2012Date:
                         RESPONSEAction Type:
                         T0603700737Global Id:

                         Monitoring Report - Semi-AnnuallyAction:
                         07/15/2011Date:
                         RESPONSEAction Type:
                         T0603700737Global Id:

                         Request for ClosureAction:
                         09/13/2011Date:
                         RESPONSEAction Type:
                         T0603700737Global Id:

                         In Situ Physical/Chemical Treatment (other than SVE)Action:
                         04/09/2002Date:
                         REMEDIATIONAction Type:
                         T0603700737Global Id:

                         Other (Use Description Field)Action:
                         08/06/2009Date:
                         REMEDIATIONAction Type:
                         T0603700737Global Id:

                         Ex Situ Physical/Chemical Treatment (other than P&T, SVE, or Excavation)Action:
                         11/13/2007Date:
                         REMEDIATIONAction Type:
                         T0603700737Global Id:

                         In Situ Physical/Chemical Treatment (other than SVE)Action:
                         04/09/2002Date:
                         REMEDIATIONAction Type:
                         T0603700737Global Id:

                         Monitoring Report - QuarterlyAction:
                         04/15/2003Date:
                         RESPONSEAction Type:
                         T0603700737Global Id:

THRIFTY #183  (Continued) S103065994

TC5441284.2s   Page 179



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                         Staff LetterAction:
                         06/15/2012Date:
                         ENFORCEMENTAction Type:
                         T0603700737Global Id:

                         Staff LetterAction:
                         05/24/2012Date:
                         ENFORCEMENTAction Type:
                         T0603700737Global Id:

                         Staff LetterAction:
                         12/05/2003Date:
                         ENFORCEMENTAction Type:
                         T0603700737Global Id:

                         Well Installation WorkplanAction:
                         07/15/2012Date:
                         RESPONSEAction Type:
                         T0603700737Global Id:

                         Monitoring Report - QuarterlyAction:
                         10/15/2005Date:
                         RESPONSEAction Type:
                         T0603700737Global Id:

                         Monitoring Report - QuarterlyAction:
                         01/15/2009Date:
                         RESPONSEAction Type:
                         T0603700737Global Id:

                         Monitoring Report - QuarterlyAction:
                         10/15/2008Date:
                         RESPONSEAction Type:
                         T0603700737Global Id:

                         Remedial Progress ReportAction:
                         04/15/2009Date:
                         RESPONSEAction Type:
                         T0603700737Global Id:

                         Monitoring Report - QuarterlyAction:
                         07/15/2008Date:
                         RESPONSEAction Type:
                         T0603700737Global Id:

                         Monitoring Report - QuarterlyAction:
                         10/15/2007Date:
                         RESPONSEAction Type:
                         T0603700737Global Id:

                         Interim Remedial Action ReportAction:
                         02/14/2008Date:
                         RESPONSEAction Type:
                         T0603700737Global Id:

                         Monitoring Report - QuarterlyAction:
                         01/15/2005Date:

THRIFTY #183  (Continued) S103065994

TC5441284.2s   Page 180



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                         REMEDIATIONAction Type:
                         T0603700737Global Id:

                         Other Report / DocumentAction:
                         12/23/2003Date:
                         RESPONSEAction Type:
                         T0603700737Global Id:

                         Monitoring Report - QuarterlyAction:
                         07/15/2004Date:
                         RESPONSEAction Type:
                         T0603700737Global Id:

                         Monitoring Report - QuarterlyAction:
                         01/15/2008Date:
                         RESPONSEAction Type:
                         T0603700737Global Id:

                         Monitoring Report - Semi-AnnuallyAction:
                         01/15/2011Date:
                         RESPONSEAction Type:
                         T0603700737Global Id:

                         Monitoring Report - QuarterlyAction:
                         10/15/2002Date:
                         RESPONSEAction Type:
                         T0603700737Global Id:

                         Monitoring Report - QuarterlyAction:
                         01/15/2007Date:
                         RESPONSEAction Type:
                         T0603700737Global Id:

                         Soil and Water Investigation ReportAction:
                         08/29/2012Date:
                         RESPONSEAction Type:
                         T0603700737Global Id:

                         Monitoring Report - QuarterlyAction:
                         01/15/2004Date:
                         RESPONSEAction Type:
                         T0603700737Global Id:

                         Interim Remedial Action PlanAction:
                         02/17/2004Date:
                         RESPONSEAction Type:
                         T0603700737Global Id:

                         Monitoring Report - QuarterlyAction:
                         01/15/2003Date:
                         RESPONSEAction Type:
                         T0603700737Global Id:

                         Monitoring Report - QuarterlyAction:
                         04/15/2003Date:
                         RESPONSEAction Type:
                         T0603700737Global Id:

THRIFTY #183  (Continued) S103065994

TC5441284.2s   Page 181



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                         Monitoring Report - QuarterlyAction:
                         04/15/2006Date:
                         RESPONSEAction Type:
                         T0603700737Global Id:

                         Interim Remedial Action PlanAction:
                         09/22/2008Date:
                         RESPONSEAction Type:
                         T0603700737Global Id:

                         Monitoring Report - QuarterlyAction:
                         07/15/2006Date:
                         RESPONSEAction Type:
                         T0603700737Global Id:

                         Interim Remedial Action PlanAction:
                         07/15/2003Date:
                         RESPONSEAction Type:
                         T0603700737Global Id:

                         Other Report / DocumentAction:
                         05/31/2002Date:
                         RESPONSEAction Type:
                         T0603700737Global Id:

                         Monitoring Report - QuarterlyAction:
                         04/15/2002Date:
                         RESPONSEAction Type:
                         T0603700737Global Id:

                         Monitoring Report - QuarterlyAction:
                         07/15/2002Date:
                         RESPONSEAction Type:
                         T0603700737Global Id:

                         Monitoring Report - QuarterlyAction:
                         07/15/2007Date:
                         RESPONSEAction Type:
                         T0603700737Global Id:

                         Staff LetterAction:
                         04/16/2009Date:
                         ENFORCEMENTAction Type:
                         T0603700737Global Id:

                         Staff LetterAction:
                         10/31/2007Date:
                         ENFORCEMENTAction Type:
                         T0603700737Global Id:

                         ExcavationAction:
                         01/18/2001Date:
                         REMEDIATIONAction Type:
                         T0603700737Global Id:

                         Soil Vapor Extraction (SVE)Action:
                         04/09/2002Date:

THRIFTY #183  (Continued) S103065994

TC5441284.2s   Page 182



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                4Region:
LUST REG 4:

                         01/07/2013Status Date:
                         Completed - Case ClosedStatus:
                         T0603700737Global Id:

                         10/13/2007Status Date:
                         Open - RemediationStatus:
                         T0603700737Global Id:

                         05/06/2004Status Date:
                         Open - RemediationStatus:
                         T0603700737Global Id:

                         12/05/2003Status Date:
                         Open - RemediationStatus:
                         T0603700737Global Id:

                         07/27/1998Status Date:
                         Open - Site AssessmentStatus:
                         T0603700737Global Id:

                         06/10/1992Status Date:
                         Open - Site AssessmentStatus:
                         T0603700737Global Id:

                         07/08/1991Status Date:
                         Open - Site AssessmentStatus:
                         T0603700737Global Id:

                         07/08/1991Status Date:
                         Open - Case Begin DateStatus:
                         T0603700737Global Id:

LUST:

                         Clean Up Fund - 5-Year Review SummaryAction:
                         05/22/2012Date:
                         RESPONSEAction Type:
                         T0603700737Global Id:

                         Monitoring Report - QuarterlyAction:
                         01/15/2006Date:
                         RESPONSEAction Type:
                         T0603700737Global Id:

                         Monitoring Report - QuarterlyAction:
                         07/15/2005Date:
                         RESPONSEAction Type:
                         T0603700737Global Id:

                         Leak ReportedAction:
                         07/08/1991Date:
                         OtherAction Type:
                         T0603700737Global Id:

THRIFTY #183  (Continued) S103065994

TC5441284.2s   Page 183



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                OFFSITE WELLS INSTALLED 7/19 - 7/20/2000.; 10/9/00 3RD QTR GW MON RPTSummary:
                Not reportedAssigned Name:
                Not reportedSuspended:
                Not reportedCleanup Fund Id:
                Not reportedPriority:
                Not reportedBeneficial Use:
                PEJLocal Agency Staff:
                34.0982094 / -1Lat/Long:
                LUSTProgram:
                P.O. BOX 2128RP Address:
                CHRIS PENAITESCUResponsible Party:
                Not reportedOwner Contact:
                Not reportedOrganization:
                Not reportedSoil Qualifier:
                Not reportedGW Qualifier:
                                                    Not reportedSignificant Interim Remedial Action Taken:
                                                    Not reportedHist Max MTBE Conc in Soil:
                                                    133000Hist Max MTBE Conc in Groundwater:
                                                    4/19/2000Historical Max MTBE Date:
                                                    5/15/1998Enforcement Action Date:
                                                    7/8/1991Post Remedial Action Monitoring Began:
                                                    Not reportedRemedial Action Underway:
                                                    12/5/2003Remediation Plan Submitted:
                                                    7/27/1998Pollution Characterization Began:
                                                    6/10/1992Preliminary Site Assessment Began:
                                                    7/8/1991Preliminary Site Assessment Workplan Submitted:
                                                    UNKSource of Cleanup Funding:
                                                    10395.428319701648802594913842Approx. Dist To Production Well (ft):
                Not reportedWell Name:
                Not reportedWater System:
                ALSO ADDRESS 5021 W SUNSETOperator:
                UNKLeak Source:
                UNKCause of Leak:
                Not reportedHow Leak Stopped:
                Not reportedHow Leak Discovered:
                                                    Not reportedDate the Case was Closed:
                                                    9/30/2002Date Case Last Changed on Database:
                Not reportedDate Leak Stopped:
                Not reportedDate Confirmation Began:
                6/10/1992Date Leak Record Entered:
                                                    7/8/1991Date Leak First Reported:
                Not reportedDate Leak Discovered:
                SELEnforcement Type:
                MARIPOSA AVECross Street:
                19050Local Agency:
                MSHStaff:
                Not reportedW Global ID:
                T0603700737Global ID:
                                                    Not reportedAbatement Method Used at the Site:
                GroundwaterCase Type:
                Not reportedLocal Case No:
                Not reportedSubstance Quantity:
                GasolineSubstance:
                Remediation PlanStatus:
                900270061Facility Id:
                Los AngelesCounty:
                04Regional Board:

THRIFTY #183  (Continued) S103065994

TC5441284.2s   Page 184



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                    900270061Reg Id:
                    LTNKAReg By:
                    19Facility County Code:
                    CORTESERegion:

HIST CORTESE:

                2000; 1/16/01 4TH QTR GW MON RPT 2000; 4/11/01 1ST QTR GW MON RPT 2001

THRIFTY #183  (Continued) S103065994

                    PROJECT WIDECompleted Area Name:
Completed Info:

                    Envirostor ID NumberAlias Type:
                    19800042Alias Name:
                    Project Code (Site Code)Alias Type:
                    304136Alias Name:
                    Project Code (Site Code)Alias Type:
                    304047Alias Name:
                    Alternate NameAlias Type:
                    LAUSD-BELMONT/HOLLYWOOD #4/VCAAlias Name:
                    Alternate NameAlias Type:
                    LAUSD-BELMONT/HOLLYWOOD #4/CDEAlias Name:
                    Alternate NameAlias Type:
                    LAUSDAlias Name:
                    Alternate NameAlias Type:
                    BELMONT/HOLLYWOOD #4Alias Name:
            NONE SPECIFIEDPotential Description:
            NONE SPECIFIEDConfirmed COC:
            NONE SPECIFIEDPotential COC:
            HOSPITALPast Use:
            NONE SPECIFIEDAPN:
            -118.2836Longitude:
            34.08965Latitude:
            School DistrictFunding:
            NONE SPECIFIEDSite Mgmt Req:
            NORestricted Use:
            Not reportedSpecial Program:
            24Senate:
            51Assembly:
            Southern California Schools & Brownfields OutreachDivision Branch:
            Shahir HaddadSupervisor:
            Not reportedProgram Manager:
            SMBRPLead Agency:
            SMBRPRegulatory Agencies:
            NONPL:
            1.6Acres:
            SchoolSite Type Detailed:
            School InvestigationSite Type:
            304136Site Code:
            08/20/2002Status Date:
            Inactive - Needs EvaluationStatus:
            19800042Facility ID:

ENVIROSTOR:

4034 ft.
0.764 mi.

Relative:
Lower

Actual:
375 ft.

1/2-1 LOS ANGELES, CA  90029
SSE CA SCHWILLOWBROOK AVE/HOOVER ST/SANTA MONICA BLVD    N/A
97 CA ENVIROSTORBELMONT/HOLLYWOOD NO. 4 S107735909

TC5441284.2s   Page 185



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                    -118.2836Longitude:
                    34.08965Latitude:
                    School DistrictFunding:
                    NORestricted Use:
                    08/20/2002Status Date:
                    Inactive - Needs EvaluationStatus:
                    Not reportedSpecial Program Status:
                    24Senate:
                    51Assembly:
                    304136Site Code:
                    Southern California Schools & Brownfields OutreachDivision Branch:
                    Shahir HaddadSupervisor:
                    Not reportedProject Manager:
                    DTSC - Site Cleanup ProgramLead Agency Description:
                    SMBRPLead Agency:
                    SMBRPCleanup Oversight Agencies:
                    NONational Priorities List:
                    1.6Acres:
                    NONE SPECIFIEDSite Mgmt. Req.:
                    SchoolSite Type Detail:
                    School InvestigationSite Type:
                    19800042Facility ID:

SCH:

                    Not reportedSchedule Revised Date:
                    Not reportedSchedule Due Date:
                    Not reportedSchedule Document Type:
                    Not reportedSchedule Sub Area Name:
                    Not reportedSchedule Area Name:
                    Not reportedFuture Due Date:
                    Not reportedFuture Document Type:
                    Not reportedFuture Sub Area Name:
                    Not reportedFuture Area Name:

                    Not reportedComments:
                    04/22/2003Completed Date:
                    Cost Recovery Closeout MemoCompleted Document Type:
                    Not reportedCompleted Sub Area Name:
                    PROJECT WIDECompleted Area Name:

                    Not reportedComments:
                    02/10/2000Completed Date:
                    Environmental Oversight AgreementCompleted Document Type:
                    Not reportedCompleted Sub Area Name:
                    PROJECT WIDECompleted Area Name:

                    Not reportedComments:
                    08/20/2002Completed Date:
                    Cost Recovery Closeout MemoCompleted Document Type:
                    Not reportedCompleted Sub Area Name:
                    PROJECT WIDECompleted Area Name:

                    Not reportedComments:
                    02/11/2000Completed Date:
                    Phase 1Completed Document Type:
                    Not reportedCompleted Sub Area Name:

BELMONT/HOLLYWOOD NO. 4  (Continued) S107735909

TC5441284.2s   Page 186



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                    Not reportedSchedule Revised Date:
                    Not reportedSchedule Due Date:
                    Not reportedSchedule Document Type:
                    Not reportedSchedule Sub Area Name:
                    Not reportedSchedule Area Name:
                    Not reportedFuture Due Date:
                    Not reportedFuture Document Type:
                    Not reportedFuture Sub Area Name:
                    Not reportedFuture Area Name:

                    Not reportedComments:
                    04/22/2003Completed Date:
                    Cost Recovery Closeout MemoCompleted Document Type:
                    Not reportedCompleted Sub Area Name:
                    PROJECT WIDECompleted Area Name:

                    Not reportedComments:
                    02/10/2000Completed Date:
                    Environmental Oversight AgreementCompleted Document Type:
                    Not reportedCompleted Sub Area Name:
                    PROJECT WIDECompleted Area Name:

                    Not reportedComments:
                    08/20/2002Completed Date:
                    Cost Recovery Closeout MemoCompleted Document Type:
                    Not reportedCompleted Sub Area Name:
                    PROJECT WIDECompleted Area Name:

                    Not reportedComments:
                    02/11/2000Completed Date:
                    Phase 1Completed Document Type:
                    Not reportedCompleted Sub Area Name:
                    PROJECT WIDECompleted Area Name:

Completed Info:

                    Envirostor ID NumberAlias Type:
                    19800042Alias Name:
                    Project Code (Site Code)Alias Type:
                    304136Alias Name:
                    Project Code (Site Code)Alias Type:
                    304047Alias Name:
                    Alternate NameAlias Type:
                    LAUSD-BELMONT/HOLLYWOOD #4/VCAAlias Name:
                    Alternate NameAlias Type:
                    LAUSD-BELMONT/HOLLYWOOD #4/CDEAlias Name:
                    Alternate NameAlias Type:
                    LAUSDAlias Name:
                    Alternate NameAlias Type:
                    BELMONT/HOLLYWOOD #4Alias Name:
                    NONE SPECIFIEDPotential Description:
                    NONE SPECIFIEDConfirmed COC:
                    NONE SPECIFIEDPotential COC:
                    HOSPITALPast Use:
                    NONE SPECIFIEDAPN:

BELMONT/HOLLYWOOD NO. 4  (Continued) S107735909

TC5441284.2s   Page 187



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                    Environmental Oversight AgreementCompleted Document Type:
                    Not reportedCompleted Sub Area Name:
                    PROJECT WIDECompleted Area Name:

                    Not reportedComments:
                    02/11/2000Completed Date:
                    Phase 1Completed Document Type:
                    Not reportedCompleted Sub Area Name:
                    PROJECT WIDECompleted Area Name:

Completed Info:

                    Envirostor ID NumberAlias Type:
                    19820083Alias Name:
                    Project Code (Site Code)Alias Type:
                    404039Alias Name:
                    Project Code (Site Code)Alias Type:
                    304098Alias Name:
                    Alternate NameAlias Type:
                    RAMONA PRIMARY SITE#1Alias Name:
                    Alternate NameAlias Type:
                    RAMONA PRIMARY SITE #1Alias Name:
                    Alternate NameAlias Type:
                    LAUSD-RAMONA PRIMARY SITE #1/CDEAlias Name:
                    Alternate NameAlias Type:
                    LAUSDAlias Name:
                    Alternate NameAlias Type:
                    LA USD-RAMONA PRIMARY SITE #1/VCAAlias Name:
            NONE SPECIFIEDPotential Description:
            NONE SPECIFIEDConfirmed COC:
            NONE SPECIFIEDPotential COC:
            * EDUCATIONAL SERVICESPast Use:
            NONE SPECIFIEDAPN:
            -118.3037Longitude:
            34.09500Latitude:
            School DistrictFunding:
            NONE SPECIFIEDSite Mgmt Req:
            NORestricted Use:
            Not reportedSpecial Program:
            24Senate:
            43Assembly:
            Southern California Schools & Brownfields OutreachDivision Branch:
            Mark MalinowskiSupervisor:
            Not reportedProgram Manager:
            SMBRPLead Agency:
            SMBRPRegulatory Agencies:
            NONPL:
            1.9Acres:
            SchoolSite Type Detailed:
            School InvestigationSite Type:
            404039Site Code:
            02/10/2000Status Date:
            Inactive - WithdrawnStatus:
            19820083Facility ID:

ENVIROSTOR:

4134 ft.
0.783 mi.

Relative:
Lower

Actual:
359 ft.

1/2-1 LOS ANGELES, CA  90029
WSW CA SCHHOBART BOULEVARD/FOUNTAIN AVENUE/HARVARD BLVD.    N/A
98 CA ENVIROSTORRAMONA PRIMARY SITE NO. 1 S107737125

TC5441284.2s   Page 188



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                    RAMONA PRIMARY SITE#1Alias Name:
                    Alternate NameAlias Type:
                    RAMONA PRIMARY SITE #1Alias Name:
                    Alternate NameAlias Type:
                    LAUSD-RAMONA PRIMARY SITE #1/CDEAlias Name:
                    Alternate NameAlias Type:
                    LAUSDAlias Name:
                    Alternate NameAlias Type:
                    LA USD-RAMONA PRIMARY SITE #1/VCAAlias Name:
                    NONE SPECIFIEDPotential Description:
                    NONE SPECIFIEDConfirmed COC:
                    NONE SPECIFIEDPotential COC:
                    * EDUCATIONAL SERVICESPast Use:
                    NONE SPECIFIEDAPN:
                    -118.3037Longitude:
                    34.09500Latitude:
                    School DistrictFunding:
                    NORestricted Use:
                    02/10/2000Status Date:
                    Inactive - WithdrawnStatus:
                    Not reportedSpecial Program Status:
                    24Senate:
                    43Assembly:
                    404039Site Code:
                    Southern California Schools & Brownfields OutreachDivision Branch:
                    Mark MalinowskiSupervisor:
                    Not reportedProject Manager:
                    DTSC - Site Cleanup ProgramLead Agency Description:
                    SMBRPLead Agency:
                    SMBRPCleanup Oversight Agencies:
                    NONational Priorities List:
                    1.9Acres:
                    NONE SPECIFIEDSite Mgmt. Req.:
                    SchoolSite Type Detail:
                    School InvestigationSite Type:
                    19820083Facility ID:

SCH:

                    Not reportedSchedule Revised Date:
                    Not reportedSchedule Due Date:
                    Not reportedSchedule Document Type:
                    Not reportedSchedule Sub Area Name:
                    Not reportedSchedule Area Name:
                    Not reportedFuture Due Date:
                    Not reportedFuture Document Type:
                    Not reportedFuture Sub Area Name:
                    Not reportedFuture Area Name:

                    Not reportedComments:
                    01/13/2015Completed Date:
                    Cost Recovery Closeout MemoCompleted Document Type:
                    Not reportedCompleted Sub Area Name:
                    PROJECT WIDECompleted Area Name:

                    Not reportedComments:
                    02/10/2000Completed Date:

RAMONA PRIMARY SITE NO. 1  (Continued) S107737125

TC5441284.2s   Page 189



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                    Not reportedSchedule Revised Date:
                    Not reportedSchedule Due Date:
                    Not reportedSchedule Document Type:
                    Not reportedSchedule Sub Area Name:
                    Not reportedSchedule Area Name:
                    Not reportedFuture Due Date:
                    Not reportedFuture Document Type:
                    Not reportedFuture Sub Area Name:
                    Not reportedFuture Area Name:

                    Not reportedComments:
                    01/13/2015Completed Date:
                    Cost Recovery Closeout MemoCompleted Document Type:
                    Not reportedCompleted Sub Area Name:
                    PROJECT WIDECompleted Area Name:

                    Not reportedComments:
                    02/10/2000Completed Date:
                    Environmental Oversight AgreementCompleted Document Type:
                    Not reportedCompleted Sub Area Name:
                    PROJECT WIDECompleted Area Name:

                    Not reportedComments:
                    02/11/2000Completed Date:
                    Phase 1Completed Document Type:
                    Not reportedCompleted Sub Area Name:
                    PROJECT WIDECompleted Area Name:

Completed Info:

                    Envirostor ID NumberAlias Type:
                    19820083Alias Name:
                    Project Code (Site Code)Alias Type:
                    404039Alias Name:
                    Project Code (Site Code)Alias Type:
                    304098Alias Name:
                    Alternate NameAlias Type:

RAMONA PRIMARY SITE NO. 1  (Continued) S107737125

            53Assembly:
            Southern California Schools & Brownfields OutreachDivision Branch:
            Javier HinojosaSupervisor:
            Not reportedProgram Manager:
            SMBRPLead Agency:
            SMBRPRegulatory Agencies:
            NONPL:
            3Acres:
            SchoolSite Type Detailed:
            School CleanupSite Type:
            304005Site Code:
            05/17/2002Status Date:
            No Further ActionStatus:
            19790003Facility ID:

ENVIROSTOR:

4615 ft.
0.874 mi.

Relative:
Lower

Actual:
332 ft.

1/2-1 LOS ANGELES, CA  90029
SW CA SCHSANTA MONICA BOULEVARD/KINGSLEY DRIVE    N/A
99 CA ENVIROSTORRAMONA NEW PC AKA BOWLING ALLEY S105628556

TC5441284.2s   Page 190



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                    Tech Memo - Lead Assessment ReportComments:
                    04/29/2003Completed Date:
                    Other ReportCompleted Document Type:
                    Not reportedCompleted Sub Area Name:
                    PROJECT WIDECompleted Area Name:

                    Initial Study Report OnlyComments:
                    08/09/2001Completed Date:
                    Other ReportCompleted Document Type:
                    Not reportedCompleted Sub Area Name:
                    PROJECT WIDECompleted Area Name:

                    Public participation.Comments:
                    08/22/2001Completed Date:
                    Community ProfileCompleted Document Type:
                    Not reportedCompleted Sub Area Name:
                    PROJECT WIDECompleted Area Name:

                    Not reportedComments:
                    10/18/2000Completed Date:
                    Preliminary Endangerment Assessment WorkplanCompleted Document Type:
                    Not reportedCompleted Sub Area Name:
                    PROJECT WIDECompleted Area Name:

                    Not reportedComments:
                    10/18/2001Completed Date:
                    Preliminary Endangerment Assessment ReportCompleted Document Type:
                    Not reportedCompleted Sub Area Name:
                    PROJECT WIDECompleted Area Name:

Completed Info:

                    Envirostor ID NumberAlias Type:
                    19790003Alias Name:
                    Project Code (Site Code)Alias Type:
                    304005Alias Name:
                    EPA (FRS #)Alias Type:
                    110033612776Alias Name:
                    Alternate NameAlias Type:
                    RAMONA PRIMARY CENTER AKA LAUSD BELMONTAlias Name:
                    Alternate NameAlias Type:
                    RAMONA NEW PC AKA BOWLING ALLEYAlias Name:
                    Alternate NameAlias Type:
                    LOS ANGELES UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICTAlias Name:
            SOILPotential Description:
            NONE SPECIFIEDConfirmed COC:
            Benzene
            1,3,5-Trimethylbenzene Chloromethane (methyl chloride Molybdenum
            Methylphenol 1,2,4-Trimethylbenzene Ethylbenzene Xylenes Toluene
            Cobalt Chloroform Dichlorodifluoromethane Tetrachloroethylene (PCE *Potential COC:
            RECREATION SERVICESPast Use:
            NONE SPECIFIEDAPN:
            -118.3032Longitude:
            34.09078Latitude:
            School DistrictFunding:
            NONE SPECIFIEDSite Mgmt Req:
            NORestricted Use:
            Not reportedSpecial Program:
            24Senate:

RAMONA NEW PC AKA BOWLING ALLEY  (Continued) S105628556

TC5441284.2s   Page 191



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                    RAMONA NEW PC AKA BOWLING ALLEYAlias Name:
                    Alternate NameAlias Type:
                    LOS ANGELES UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICTAlias Name:
                    SOILPotential Description:
                    NONE SPECIFIEDConfirmed COC:
                    (methyl chloride, Molybdenum, Benzene
                    Ethylbenzene, Xylenes, Toluene, 1,3,5-Trimethylbenzene, Chloromethane
                    Tetrachloroethylene (PCE, * Methylphenol, 1,2,4-Trimethylbenzene,
                    Cobalt, Cobalt, Chloroform, Dichlorodifluoromethane,Potential COC:
                    RECREATION SERVICESPast Use:
                    NONE SPECIFIEDAPN:
                    -118.3032Longitude:
                    34.09078Latitude:
                    School DistrictFunding:
                    NORestricted Use:
                    05/17/2002Status Date:
                    No Further ActionStatus:
                    Not reportedSpecial Program Status:
                    24Senate:
                    53Assembly:
                    304005Site Code:
                    Southern California Schools & Brownfields OutreachDivision Branch:
                    Javier HinojosaSupervisor:
                    Not reportedProject Manager:
                    DTSC - Site Cleanup ProgramLead Agency Description:
                    SMBRPLead Agency:
                    SMBRPCleanup Oversight Agencies:
                    NONational Priorities List:
                    3Acres:
                    NONE SPECIFIEDSite Mgmt. Req.:
                    SchoolSite Type Detail:
                    School CleanupSite Type:
                    19790003Facility ID:

SCH:

                    Not reportedSchedule Revised Date:
                    Not reportedSchedule Due Date:
                    Not reportedSchedule Document Type:
                    Not reportedSchedule Sub Area Name:
                    Not reportedSchedule Area Name:
                    Not reportedFuture Due Date:
                    Not reportedFuture Document Type:
                    Not reportedFuture Sub Area Name:
                    Not reportedFuture Area Name:

                    Not reportedComments:
                    05/17/2002Completed Date:
                    Cost Recovery Closeout MemoCompleted Document Type:
                    Not reportedCompleted Sub Area Name:
                    PROJECT WIDECompleted Area Name:

                    Not reportedComments:
                    02/10/2000Completed Date:
                    Environmental Oversight AgreementCompleted Document Type:
                    Not reportedCompleted Sub Area Name:
                    PROJECT WIDECompleted Area Name:

RAMONA NEW PC AKA BOWLING ALLEY  (Continued) S105628556

TC5441284.2s   Page 192



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                    Not reportedSchedule Area Name:
                    Not reportedFuture Due Date:
                    Not reportedFuture Document Type:
                    Not reportedFuture Sub Area Name:
                    Not reportedFuture Area Name:

                    Not reportedComments:
                    05/17/2002Completed Date:
                    Cost Recovery Closeout MemoCompleted Document Type:
                    Not reportedCompleted Sub Area Name:
                    PROJECT WIDECompleted Area Name:

                    Not reportedComments:
                    02/10/2000Completed Date:
                    Environmental Oversight AgreementCompleted Document Type:
                    Not reportedCompleted Sub Area Name:
                    PROJECT WIDECompleted Area Name:

                    Tech Memo - Lead Assessment ReportComments:
                    04/29/2003Completed Date:
                    Other ReportCompleted Document Type:
                    Not reportedCompleted Sub Area Name:
                    PROJECT WIDECompleted Area Name:

                    Initial Study Report OnlyComments:
                    08/09/2001Completed Date:
                    Other ReportCompleted Document Type:
                    Not reportedCompleted Sub Area Name:
                    PROJECT WIDECompleted Area Name:

                    Public participation.Comments:
                    08/22/2001Completed Date:
                    Community ProfileCompleted Document Type:
                    Not reportedCompleted Sub Area Name:
                    PROJECT WIDECompleted Area Name:

                    Not reportedComments:
                    10/18/2000Completed Date:
                    Preliminary Endangerment Assessment WorkplanCompleted Document Type:
                    Not reportedCompleted Sub Area Name:
                    PROJECT WIDECompleted Area Name:

                    Not reportedComments:
                    10/18/2001Completed Date:
                    Preliminary Endangerment Assessment ReportCompleted Document Type:
                    Not reportedCompleted Sub Area Name:
                    PROJECT WIDECompleted Area Name:

Completed Info:

                    Envirostor ID NumberAlias Type:
                    19790003Alias Name:
                    Project Code (Site Code)Alias Type:
                    304005Alias Name:
                    EPA (FRS #)Alias Type:
                    110033612776Alias Name:
                    Alternate NameAlias Type:
                    RAMONA PRIMARY CENTER AKA LAUSD BELMONTAlias Name:
                    Alternate NameAlias Type:

RAMONA NEW PC AKA BOWLING ALLEY  (Continued) S105628556

TC5441284.2s   Page 193



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                    Not reportedSchedule Revised Date:
                    Not reportedSchedule Due Date:
                    Not reportedSchedule Document Type:
                    Not reportedSchedule Sub Area Name:

RAMONA NEW PC AKA BOWLING ALLEY  (Continued) S105628556

                    08/20/2002Completed Date:
                    Cost Recovery Closeout MemoCompleted Document Type:
                    Not reportedCompleted Sub Area Name:
                    PROJECT WIDECompleted Area Name:

Completed Info:

                    Envirostor ID NumberAlias Type:
                    19880049Alias Name:
                    Project Code (Site Code)Alias Type:
                    304135Alias Name:
                    Project Code (Site Code)Alias Type:
                    304046Alias Name:
                    Alternate NameAlias Type:
                    LAUSD-BELMONT/HOLLYWOOD #3/VCAAlias Name:
                    Alternate NameAlias Type:
                    LAUSD-BELMONT/HOLLYWOOD #3/CDEAlias Name:
                    Alternate NameAlias Type:
                    LAUSDAlias Name:
                    Alternate NameAlias Type:
                    BELMONT/HOLLYWOOD #3Alias Name:
            NONE SPECIFIEDPotential Description:
            NONE SPECIFIEDConfirmed COC:
            NONE SPECIFIEDPotential COC:
            RESIDENTIAL AREAPast Use:
            NONE SPECIFIEDAPN:
            -118.3059Longitude:
            34.09385Latitude:
            School DistrictFunding:
            NONE SPECIFIEDSite Mgmt Req:
            NORestricted Use:
            Not reportedSpecial Program:
            24Senate:
            43Assembly:
            Southern California Schools & Brownfields OutreachDivision Branch:
            Shahir HaddadSupervisor:
            Not reportedProgram Manager:
            SMBRPLead Agency:
            SMBRPRegulatory Agencies:
            NONPL:
            1.3Acres:
            SchoolSite Type Detailed:
            School InvestigationSite Type:
            304135Site Code:
            02/11/2000Status Date:
            Inactive - Needs EvaluationStatus:
            19880049Facility ID:

ENVIROSTOR:

4910 ft.
0.930 mi.

Relative:
Lower

Actual:
349 ft.

1/2-1 LOS ANGELES, CA  90029
WSW CA SCHLA MIRADA AVENUE/SERRANO AVENUE    N/A
100 CA ENVIROSTORBELMONT/HOLLYWOOD NO. 3 S107735908

TC5441284.2s   Page 194



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                    NONE SPECIFIEDPotential COC:
                    RESIDENTIAL AREAPast Use:
                    NONE SPECIFIEDAPN:
                    -118.3059Longitude:
                    34.09385Latitude:
                    School DistrictFunding:
                    NORestricted Use:
                    02/11/2000Status Date:
                    Inactive - Needs EvaluationStatus:
                    Not reportedSpecial Program Status:
                    24Senate:
                    43Assembly:
                    304135Site Code:
                    Southern California Schools & Brownfields OutreachDivision Branch:
                    Shahir HaddadSupervisor:
                    Not reportedProject Manager:
                    DTSC - Site Cleanup ProgramLead Agency Description:
                    SMBRPLead Agency:
                    SMBRPCleanup Oversight Agencies:
                    NONational Priorities List:
                    1.3Acres:
                    NONE SPECIFIEDSite Mgmt. Req.:
                    SchoolSite Type Detail:
                    School InvestigationSite Type:
                    19880049Facility ID:

SCH:

                    Not reportedSchedule Revised Date:
                    Not reportedSchedule Due Date:
                    Not reportedSchedule Document Type:
                    Not reportedSchedule Sub Area Name:
                    Not reportedSchedule Area Name:
                    Not reportedFuture Due Date:
                    Not reportedFuture Document Type:
                    Not reportedFuture Sub Area Name:
                    Not reportedFuture Area Name:

                    Not reportedComments:
                    04/22/2003Completed Date:
                    Cost Recovery Closeout MemoCompleted Document Type:
                    Not reportedCompleted Sub Area Name:
                    PROJECT WIDECompleted Area Name:

                    Not reportedComments:
                    02/10/2000Completed Date:
                    Environmental Oversight AgreementCompleted Document Type:
                    Not reportedCompleted Sub Area Name:
                    PROJECT WIDECompleted Area Name:

                    Not reportedComments:
                    02/11/2000Completed Date:
                    Phase 1Completed Document Type:
                    Not reportedCompleted Sub Area Name:
                    PROJECT WIDECompleted Area Name:

                    Not reportedComments:

BELMONT/HOLLYWOOD NO. 3  (Continued) S107735908

TC5441284.2s   Page 195



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                    Not reportedSchedule Revised Date:
                    Not reportedSchedule Due Date:
                    Not reportedSchedule Document Type:
                    Not reportedSchedule Sub Area Name:
                    Not reportedSchedule Area Name:
                    Not reportedFuture Due Date:
                    Not reportedFuture Document Type:
                    Not reportedFuture Sub Area Name:
                    Not reportedFuture Area Name:

                    Not reportedComments:
                    04/22/2003Completed Date:
                    Cost Recovery Closeout MemoCompleted Document Type:
                    Not reportedCompleted Sub Area Name:
                    PROJECT WIDECompleted Area Name:

                    Not reportedComments:
                    02/10/2000Completed Date:
                    Environmental Oversight AgreementCompleted Document Type:
                    Not reportedCompleted Sub Area Name:
                    PROJECT WIDECompleted Area Name:

                    Not reportedComments:
                    02/11/2000Completed Date:
                    Phase 1Completed Document Type:
                    Not reportedCompleted Sub Area Name:
                    PROJECT WIDECompleted Area Name:

                    Not reportedComments:
                    08/20/2002Completed Date:
                    Cost Recovery Closeout MemoCompleted Document Type:
                    Not reportedCompleted Sub Area Name:
                    PROJECT WIDECompleted Area Name:

Completed Info:

                    Envirostor ID NumberAlias Type:
                    19880049Alias Name:
                    Project Code (Site Code)Alias Type:
                    304135Alias Name:
                    Project Code (Site Code)Alias Type:
                    304046Alias Name:
                    Alternate NameAlias Type:
                    LAUSD-BELMONT/HOLLYWOOD #3/VCAAlias Name:
                    Alternate NameAlias Type:
                    LAUSD-BELMONT/HOLLYWOOD #3/CDEAlias Name:
                    Alternate NameAlias Type:
                    LAUSDAlias Name:
                    Alternate NameAlias Type:
                    BELMONT/HOLLYWOOD #3Alias Name:
                    NONE SPECIFIEDPotential Description:
                    NONE SPECIFIEDConfirmed COC:

BELMONT/HOLLYWOOD NO. 3  (Continued) S107735908

TC5441284.2s   Page 196



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                    Not reportedComments:
                    02/10/2000Completed Date:
                    Environmental Oversight AgreementCompleted Document Type:
                    Not reportedCompleted Sub Area Name:
                    PROJECT WIDECompleted Area Name:

                    Not reportedComments:
                    02/11/2000Completed Date:
                    Phase 1Completed Document Type:
                    Not reportedCompleted Sub Area Name:
                    PROJECT WIDECompleted Area Name:

Completed Info:

                    Envirostor ID NumberAlias Type:
                    19880045Alias Name:
                    Project Code (Site Code)Alias Type:
                    404040Alias Name:
                    Project Code (Site Code)Alias Type:
                    304099Alias Name:
                    Alternate NameAlias Type:
                    RAMONA PRIMARY SITE #2Alias Name:
                    Alternate NameAlias Type:
                    LAUSD-RAMONA PRIMARY SITE #2/CDEAlias Name:
                    Alternate NameAlias Type:
                    LAUSDAlias Name:
                    Alternate NameAlias Type:
                    LA USD-RAMONA PRIMARY SITE #2/VCAAlias Name:
            NONE SPECIFIEDPotential Description:
            NONE SPECIFIEDConfirmed COC:
            NONE SPECIFIEDPotential COC:
            RESIDENTIAL AREAPast Use:
            NONE SPECIFIEDAPN:
            -118.3023Longitude:
            34.08844Latitude:
            School DistrictFunding:
            NONE SPECIFIEDSite Mgmt Req:
            NORestricted Use:
            Not reportedSpecial Program:
            24Senate:
            43Assembly:
            Southern California Schools & Brownfields OutreachDivision Branch:
            Mark MalinowskiSupervisor:
            Not reportedProgram Manager:
            SMBRPLead Agency:
            SMBRPRegulatory Agencies:
            NONPL:
            1.5Acres:
            SchoolSite Type Detailed:
            School InvestigationSite Type:
            404040Site Code:
            02/10/2000Status Date:
            Inactive - WithdrawnStatus:
            19880045Facility ID:

ENVIROSTOR:

5192 ft.
0.983 mi.

Relative:
Lower

Actual:
322 ft.

1/2-1 LOS ANGELES, CA  90029
SW CA SCHKINGSLEY DRIVE/ROMAINE AVENUE/ARDMORE AVE    N/A
101 CA ENVIROSTORRAMONA PRIMARY SITE NO. 2 S107737126

TC5441284.2s   Page 197



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                    Not reportedCompleted Sub Area Name:
                    PROJECT WIDECompleted Area Name:

Completed Info:

                    Envirostor ID NumberAlias Type:
                    19880045Alias Name:
                    Project Code (Site Code)Alias Type:
                    404040Alias Name:
                    Project Code (Site Code)Alias Type:
                    304099Alias Name:
                    Alternate NameAlias Type:
                    RAMONA PRIMARY SITE #2Alias Name:
                    Alternate NameAlias Type:
                    LAUSD-RAMONA PRIMARY SITE #2/CDEAlias Name:
                    Alternate NameAlias Type:
                    LAUSDAlias Name:
                    Alternate NameAlias Type:
                    LA USD-RAMONA PRIMARY SITE #2/VCAAlias Name:
                    NONE SPECIFIEDPotential Description:
                    NONE SPECIFIEDConfirmed COC:
                    NONE SPECIFIEDPotential COC:
                    RESIDENTIAL AREAPast Use:
                    NONE SPECIFIEDAPN:
                    -118.3023Longitude:
                    34.08844Latitude:
                    School DistrictFunding:
                    NORestricted Use:
                    02/10/2000Status Date:
                    Inactive - WithdrawnStatus:
                    Not reportedSpecial Program Status:
                    24Senate:
                    43Assembly:
                    404040Site Code:
                    Southern California Schools & Brownfields OutreachDivision Branch:
                    Mark MalinowskiSupervisor:
                    Not reportedProject Manager:
                    DTSC - Site Cleanup ProgramLead Agency Description:
                    SMBRPLead Agency:
                    SMBRPCleanup Oversight Agencies:
                    NONational Priorities List:
                    1.5Acres:
                    NONE SPECIFIEDSite Mgmt. Req.:
                    SchoolSite Type Detail:
                    School InvestigationSite Type:
                    19880045Facility ID:

SCH:

                    Not reportedSchedule Revised Date:
                    Not reportedSchedule Due Date:
                    Not reportedSchedule Document Type:
                    Not reportedSchedule Sub Area Name:
                    Not reportedSchedule Area Name:
                    Not reportedFuture Due Date:
                    Not reportedFuture Document Type:
                    Not reportedFuture Sub Area Name:
                    Not reportedFuture Area Name:

RAMONA PRIMARY SITE NO. 2  (Continued) S107737126

TC5441284.2s   Page 198



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                    Not reportedSchedule Revised Date:
                    Not reportedSchedule Due Date:
                    Not reportedSchedule Document Type:
                    Not reportedSchedule Sub Area Name:
                    Not reportedSchedule Area Name:
                    Not reportedFuture Due Date:
                    Not reportedFuture Document Type:
                    Not reportedFuture Sub Area Name:
                    Not reportedFuture Area Name:

                    Not reportedComments:
                    02/10/2000Completed Date:
                    Environmental Oversight AgreementCompleted Document Type:
                    Not reportedCompleted Sub Area Name:
                    PROJECT WIDECompleted Area Name:

                    Not reportedComments:
                    02/11/2000Completed Date:
                    Phase 1Completed Document Type:

RAMONA PRIMARY SITE NO. 2  (Continued) S107737126

TC5441284.2s   Page 199



O
R

P
H

A
N

 S
U

M
M

A
R

Y

C
ity

E
D

R
 ID

S
ite

 N
am

e
S

ite
 A

dd
re

ss
Z

ip
D

at
ab

as
e(

s)

C
ou

nt
: 1

 r
ec

or
ds

.

LO
S

 A
N

G
E

LE
S

   
   

   
S

10
94

22
33

8
S

O
U

T
H

E
R

N
 C

A
LI

F
O

R
N

IA
 D

IS
P

O
S

A
L

18
6T

H
 S

T
R

E
E

T
 A

N
D

 V
E

R
M

O
N

T
 A

V
E

N
U

   
  

C
A

 S
W

F
/L

F

T
C

54
41

28
4.

2s
   

P
ag

e 
20

0



To maintain currency of the following federal and state databases, EDR contacts the appropriate governmental agency
on a monthly or quarterly basis, as required.

Number of Days to Update: Provides confirmation that EDR is reporting records that have been updated within 90 days
from the date the government agency made the information available to the public.

STANDARD ENVIRONMENTAL RECORDS

Federal NPL site list

NPL:  National Priority List
National Priorities List (Superfund). The NPL is a subset of CERCLIS and identifies over 1,200 sites for priority
cleanup under the Superfund Program. NPL sites may encompass relatively large areas. As such, EDR provides polygon
coverage for over 1,000 NPL site boundaries produced by EPA’s Environmental Photographic Interpretation Center
(EPIC) and regional EPA offices.

Date of Government Version: 07/17/2018
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 08/09/2018
Date Made Active in Reports: 09/07/2018
Number of Days to Update: 29

Source:  EPA
Telephone:  N/A
Last EDR Contact: 10/04/2018
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 01/14/2019
Data Release Frequency: Quarterly

NPL Site Boundaries

Sources:

EPA’s Environmental Photographic Interpretation Center (EPIC)
Telephone: 202-564-7333

EPA Region 1 EPA Region 6
Telephone 617-918-1143 Telephone: 214-655-6659

EPA Region 3 EPA Region 7
Telephone 215-814-5418 Telephone: 913-551-7247

EPA Region 4 EPA Region 8
Telephone 404-562-8033 Telephone: 303-312-6774

EPA Region 5 EPA Region 9
Telephone 312-886-6686 Telephone: 415-947-4246

EPA Region 10
Telephone 206-553-8665

Proposed NPL:  Proposed National Priority List Sites
A site that has been proposed for listing on the National Priorities List through the issuance of a proposed rule
in the Federal Register. EPA then accepts public comments on the site, responds to the comments, and places on
the NPL those sites that continue to meet the requirements for listing.

Date of Government Version: 07/17/2018
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 08/09/2018
Date Made Active in Reports: 09/07/2018
Number of Days to Update: 29

Source:  EPA
Telephone:  N/A
Last EDR Contact: 10/04/2018
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 01/14/2019
Data Release Frequency: Quarterly

NPL LIENS:  Federal Superfund Liens
Federal Superfund Liens. Under the authority granted the USEPA by CERCLA of 1980, the USEPA has the authority
to file liens against real property in order to recover remedial action expenditures or when the property owner
received notification of potential liability. USEPA compiles a listing of filed notices of Superfund Liens.

TC5441284.2s     Page GR-1

GOVERNMENT RECORDS SEARCHED / DATA CURRENCY TRACKING



Date of Government Version: 10/15/1991
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 02/02/1994
Date Made Active in Reports: 03/30/1994
Number of Days to Update: 56

Source:  EPA
Telephone:  202-564-4267
Last EDR Contact: 08/15/2011
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 11/28/2011
Data Release Frequency: No Update Planned

Federal Delisted NPL site list

Delisted NPL:  National Priority List Deletions
The National Oil and Hazardous Substances Pollution Contingency Plan (NCP) establishes the criteria that the
EPA uses to delete sites from the NPL. In accordance with 40 CFR 300.425.(e), sites may be deleted from the
NPL where no further response is appropriate.

Date of Government Version: 07/17/2018
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 08/09/2018
Date Made Active in Reports: 09/07/2018
Number of Days to Update: 29

Source:  EPA
Telephone:  N/A
Last EDR Contact: 10/04/2018
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 01/14/2019
Data Release Frequency: Quarterly

Federal CERCLIS list

FEDERAL FACILITY:  Federal Facility Site Information listing
A listing of National Priority List (NPL) and Base Realignment and Closure (BRAC) sites found in the Comprehensive
Environmental Response, Compensation and Liability Information System (CERCLIS) Database where EPA Federal Facilities
Restoration and Reuse Office is involved in cleanup activities.

Date of Government Version: 11/07/2016
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 01/05/2017
Date Made Active in Reports: 04/07/2017
Number of Days to Update: 92

Source:  Environmental Protection Agency
Telephone:  703-603-8704
Last EDR Contact: 07/06/2018
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 10/15/2018
Data Release Frequency: Varies

SEMS:  Superfund Enterprise Management System
SEMS (Superfund Enterprise Management System) tracks hazardous waste sites, potentially hazardous waste sites,
and remedial activities performed in support of EPA’s Superfund Program across the United States. The list was
formerly know as CERCLIS, renamed to SEMS by the EPA in 2015. The list contains data on potentially hazardous
waste sites that have been reported to the USEPA by states, municipalities, private companies and private persons,
pursuant to Section 103 of the Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation, and Liability Act (CERCLA).
This dataset also contains sites which are either proposed to or on the National Priorities List (NPL) and the
sites which are in the screening and assessment phase for possible inclusion on the NPL.

Date of Government Version: 07/17/2018
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 08/09/2018
Date Made Active in Reports: 09/07/2018
Number of Days to Update: 29

Source:  EPA
Telephone:  800-424-9346
Last EDR Contact: 10/04/2018
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 10/29/2018
Data Release Frequency: Quarterly

Federal CERCLIS NFRAP site list

SEMS-ARCHIVE:  Superfund Enterprise Management System Archive

TC5441284.2s     Page GR-2

GOVERNMENT RECORDS SEARCHED / DATA CURRENCY TRACKING



SEMS-ARCHIVE (Superfund Enterprise Management System Archive) tracks sites that have no further interest under
the Federal Superfund Program based on available information. The list was formerly known as the CERCLIS-NFRAP,
renamed to SEMS ARCHIVE by the EPA in 2015. EPA may perform a minimal level of assessment work at a site while
it is archived if site conditions change and/or new information becomes available. Archived sites have been removed
and archived from the inventory of SEMS sites. Archived status indicates that, to the best of EPA’s knowledge,
assessment at a site has been completed and that EPA has determined no further steps will be taken to list the
site on the National Priorities List (NPL), unless information indicates this decision was not appropriate or
other considerations require a recommendation for listing at a later time. The decision does not necessarily mean
that there is no hazard associated with a given site; it only means that. based upon available information, the
location is not judged to be potential NPL site.

Date of Government Version: 07/17/2018
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 08/09/2018
Date Made Active in Reports: 09/07/2018
Number of Days to Update: 29

Source:  EPA
Telephone:  800-424-9346
Last EDR Contact: 10/04/2018
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 01/14/2019
Data Release Frequency: Quarterly

Federal RCRA CORRACTS facilities list

CORRACTS:  Corrective Action Report
CORRACTS identifies hazardous waste handlers with RCRA corrective action activity.

Date of Government Version: 03/01/2018
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 03/28/2018
Date Made Active in Reports: 06/22/2018
Number of Days to Update: 86

Source:  EPA
Telephone:  800-424-9346
Last EDR Contact: 09/19/2018
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 01/07/2019
Data Release Frequency: Quarterly

Federal RCRA non-CORRACTS TSD facilities list

RCRA-TSDF:  RCRA - Treatment, Storage and Disposal
RCRAInfo is EPA’s comprehensive information system, providing access to data supporting the Resource Conservation
and Recovery Act (RCRA) of 1976 and the Hazardous and Solid Waste Amendments (HSWA) of 1984. The database
includes selective information on sites which generate, transport, store, treat and/or dispose of hazardous waste
as defined by the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act (RCRA). Transporters are individuals or entities that
move hazardous waste from the generator offsite to a facility that can recycle, treat, store, or dispose of the
waste. TSDFs treat, store, or dispose of the waste.

Date of Government Version: 03/01/2018
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 03/28/2018
Date Made Active in Reports: 06/22/2018
Number of Days to Update: 86

Source:  Environmental Protection Agency
Telephone:  (415) 495-8895
Last EDR Contact: 09/19/2018
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 01/07/2019
Data Release Frequency: Quarterly

Federal RCRA generators list

RCRA-LQG:  RCRA - Large Quantity Generators
RCRAInfo is EPA’s comprehensive information system, providing access to data supporting the Resource Conservation
and Recovery Act (RCRA) of 1976 and the Hazardous and Solid Waste Amendments (HSWA) of 1984. The database
includes selective information on sites which generate, transport, store, treat and/or dispose of hazardous waste
as defined by the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act (RCRA). Large quantity generators (LQGs) generate
over 1,000 kilograms (kg) of hazardous waste, or over 1 kg of acutely hazardous waste per month.

Date of Government Version: 03/01/2018
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 03/28/2018
Date Made Active in Reports: 06/22/2018
Number of Days to Update: 86

Source:  Environmental Protection Agency
Telephone:  (415) 495-8895
Last EDR Contact: 09/19/2018
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 01/07/2019
Data Release Frequency: Quarterly

TC5441284.2s     Page GR-3

GOVERNMENT RECORDS SEARCHED / DATA CURRENCY TRACKING



RCRA-SQG:  RCRA - Small Quantity Generators
RCRAInfo is EPA’s comprehensive information system, providing access to data supporting the Resource Conservation
and Recovery Act (RCRA) of 1976 and the Hazardous and Solid Waste Amendments (HSWA) of 1984. The database
includes selective information on sites which generate, transport, store, treat and/or dispose of hazardous waste
as defined by the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act (RCRA). Small quantity generators (SQGs) generate
between 100 kg and 1,000 kg of hazardous waste per month.

Date of Government Version: 03/01/2018
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 03/28/2018
Date Made Active in Reports: 06/22/2018
Number of Days to Update: 86

Source:  Environmental Protection Agency
Telephone:  (415) 495-8895
Last EDR Contact: 09/19/2018
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 01/07/2019
Data Release Frequency: Quarterly

RCRA-CESQG:  RCRA - Conditionally Exempt Small Quantity Generators
RCRAInfo is EPA’s comprehensive information system, providing access to data supporting the Resource Conservation
and Recovery Act (RCRA) of 1976 and the Hazardous and Solid Waste Amendments (HSWA) of 1984. The database
includes selective information on sites which generate, transport, store, treat and/or dispose of hazardous waste
as defined by the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act (RCRA). Conditionally exempt small quantity generators
(CESQGs) generate less than 100 kg of hazardous waste, or less than 1 kg of acutely hazardous waste per month.

Date of Government Version: 03/01/2018
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 03/28/2018
Date Made Active in Reports: 06/22/2018
Number of Days to Update: 86

Source:  Environmental Protection Agency
Telephone:  (415) 495-8895
Last EDR Contact: 09/19/2018
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 01/07/2019
Data Release Frequency: Quarterly

Federal institutional controls / engineering controls registries

LUCIS:  Land Use Control Information System
LUCIS contains records of land use control information pertaining to the former Navy Base Realignment and Closure
properties.

Date of Government Version: 05/14/2018
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 05/18/2018
Date Made Active in Reports: 07/20/2018
Number of Days to Update: 63

Source:  Department of the Navy
Telephone:  843-820-7326
Last EDR Contact: 07/16/2018
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 11/26/2018
Data Release Frequency: Varies

US ENG CONTROLS:  Engineering Controls Sites List
A listing of sites with engineering controls in place. Engineering controls include various forms of caps, building
foundations, liners, and treatment methods to create pathway elimination for regulated substances to enter environmental
media or effect human health.

Date of Government Version: 07/31/2018
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 08/28/2018
Date Made Active in Reports: 09/14/2018
Number of Days to Update: 17

Source:  Environmental Protection Agency
Telephone:  703-603-0695
Last EDR Contact: 08/28/2018
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 12/10/2018
Data Release Frequency: Varies

US INST CONTROL:  Sites with Institutional Controls
A listing of sites with institutional controls in place. Institutional controls include administrative measures,
such as groundwater use restrictions, construction restrictions, property use restrictions, and post remediation
care requirements intended to prevent exposure to contaminants remaining on site. Deed restrictions are generally
required as part of the institutional controls.

Date of Government Version: 07/31/2018
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 08/28/2018
Date Made Active in Reports: 09/14/2018
Number of Days to Update: 17

Source:  Environmental Protection Agency
Telephone:  703-603-0695
Last EDR Contact: 08/28/2018
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 12/10/2018
Data Release Frequency: Varies

TC5441284.2s     Page GR-4

GOVERNMENT RECORDS SEARCHED / DATA CURRENCY TRACKING



Federal ERNS list

ERNS:  Emergency Response Notification System
Emergency Response Notification System. ERNS records and stores information on reported releases of oil and hazardous
substances.

Date of Government Version: 06/18/2018
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 06/27/2018
Date Made Active in Reports: 09/14/2018
Number of Days to Update: 79

Source:  National Response Center, United States Coast Guard
Telephone:  202-267-2180
Last EDR Contact: 09/25/2018
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 01/07/2019
Data Release Frequency: Quarterly

State- and tribal - equivalent NPL

RESPONSE:  State Response Sites
Identifies confirmed release sites where DTSC is involved in remediation, either in a lead or oversight capacity.
These confirmed release sites are generally high-priority and high potential risk.

Date of Government Version: 07/30/2018
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 07/31/2018
Date Made Active in Reports: 09/07/2018
Number of Days to Update: 38

Source:  Department of Toxic Substances Control
Telephone:  916-323-3400
Last EDR Contact: 07/31/2018
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 11/12/2018
Data Release Frequency: Quarterly

State- and tribal - equivalent CERCLIS

ENVIROSTOR:  EnviroStor Database
The Department of Toxic Substances Control’s (DTSC’s) Site Mitigation and Brownfields Reuse Program’s (SMBRP’s)
EnviroStor database identifes sites that have known contamination or sites for which there may be reasons to investigate
further. The database includes the following site types: Federal Superfund sites (National Priorities List (NPL));
State Response, including Military Facilities and State Superfund; Voluntary Cleanup; and School sites. EnviroStor
provides similar information to the information that was available in CalSites, and provides additional site information,
including, but not limited to, identification of formerly-contaminated properties that have been released for
reuse, properties where environmental deed restrictions have been recorded to prevent inappropriate land uses,
and risk characterization information that is used to assess potential impacts to public health and the environment
at contaminated sites.

Date of Government Version: 07/30/2018
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 07/31/2018
Date Made Active in Reports: 09/07/2018
Number of Days to Update: 38

Source:  Department of Toxic Substances Control
Telephone:  916-323-3400
Last EDR Contact: 07/31/2018
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 11/12/2018
Data Release Frequency: Quarterly

State and tribal landfill and/or solid waste disposal site lists

SWF/LF (SWIS):  Solid Waste Information System
Active, Closed and Inactive Landfills. SWF/LF records typically contain an inve ntory of solid waste disposal
facilities or landfills. These may be active or i nactive facilities or open dumps that failed to meet RCRA Section
4004 criteria for solid waste landfills or disposal sites.

Date of Government Version: 08/08/2018
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 08/10/2018
Date Made Active in Reports: 08/24/2018
Number of Days to Update: 14

Source:  Department of Resources Recycling and Recovery
Telephone:  916-341-6320
Last EDR Contact: 08/10/2018
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 11/26/2018
Data Release Frequency: Quarterly

State and tribal leaking storage tank lists

TC5441284.2s     Page GR-5

GOVERNMENT RECORDS SEARCHED / DATA CURRENCY TRACKING



LUST REG 1:  Active Toxic Site Investigation
Del Norte, Humboldt, Lake, Mendocino, Modoc, Siskiyou, Sonoma, Trinity counties. For more current information,
please refer to the State Water Resources Control Board’s LUST database.

Date of Government Version: 02/01/2001
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 02/28/2001
Date Made Active in Reports: 03/29/2001
Number of Days to Update: 29

Source:  California Regional Water Quality Control Board North Coast (1)
Telephone:  707-570-3769
Last EDR Contact: 08/01/2011
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 11/14/2011
Data Release Frequency: No Update Planned

LUST REG 7:  Leaking Underground Storage Tank Case Listing
Leaking Underground Storage Tank locations.  Imperial, Riverside, San Diego, Santa Barbara counties.

Date of Government Version: 02/26/2004
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 02/26/2004
Date Made Active in Reports: 03/24/2004
Number of Days to Update: 27

Source:  California Regional Water Quality Control Board Colorado River Basin Region (7)
Telephone:  760-776-8943
Last EDR Contact: 08/01/2011
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 11/14/2011
Data Release Frequency: No Update Planned

LUST REG 8:  Leaking Underground Storage Tanks
California Regional Water Quality Control Board Santa Ana Region (8). For more current information, please refer
to the State Water Resources Control Board’s LUST database.

Date of Government Version: 02/14/2005
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 02/15/2005
Date Made Active in Reports: 03/28/2005
Number of Days to Update: 41

Source:  California Regional Water Quality Control Board Santa Ana Region (8)
Telephone:  909-782-4496
Last EDR Contact: 08/15/2011
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 11/28/2011
Data Release Frequency: Varies

LUST REG 6V:  Leaking Underground Storage Tank Case Listing
Leaking Underground Storage Tank locations.  Inyo, Kern, Los Angeles, Mono, San Bernardino counties.

Date of Government Version: 06/07/2005
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 06/07/2005
Date Made Active in Reports: 06/29/2005
Number of Days to Update: 22

Source:  California Regional Water Quality Control Board Victorville Branch Office (6)
Telephone:  760-241-7365
Last EDR Contact: 09/12/2011
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 12/26/2011
Data Release Frequency: No Update Planned

LUST REG 6L:  Leaking Underground Storage Tank Case Listing
For more current information, please refer to the State Water Resources Control Board’s LUST database.

Date of Government Version: 09/09/2003
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 09/10/2003
Date Made Active in Reports: 10/07/2003
Number of Days to Update: 27

Source:  California Regional Water Quality Control Board Lahontan Region (6)
Telephone:  530-542-5572
Last EDR Contact: 09/12/2011
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 12/26/2011
Data Release Frequency: No Update Planned

LUST REG 5:  Leaking Underground Storage Tank Database
Leaking Underground Storage Tank locations. Alameda, Alpine, Amador, Butte, Colusa, Contra Costa, Calveras, El
Dorado, Fresno, Glenn, Kern, Kings, Lake, Lassen, Madera, Mariposa, Merced, Modoc, Napa, Nevada, Placer, Plumas,
Sacramento, San Joaquin, Shasta, Solano, Stanislaus, Sutter, Tehama, Tulare, Tuolumne, Yolo, Yuba counties.

Date of Government Version: 07/01/2008
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 07/22/2008
Date Made Active in Reports: 07/31/2008
Number of Days to Update: 9

Source:  California Regional Water Quality Control Board Central Valley Region (5)
Telephone:  916-464-4834
Last EDR Contact: 07/01/2011
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 10/17/2011
Data Release Frequency: No Update Planned

LUST:  Leaking Underground Fuel Tank Report (GEOTRACKER)
Leaking Underground Storage Tank (LUST) Sites included in GeoTracker. GeoTracker is the Water Boards data management
system for sites that impact, or have the potential to impact, water quality in California, with emphasis on groundwater.

TC5441284.2s     Page GR-6

GOVERNMENT RECORDS SEARCHED / DATA CURRENCY TRACKING



Date of Government Version: 06/11/2018
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 06/13/2018
Date Made Active in Reports: 07/17/2018
Number of Days to Update: 34

Source:  State Water Resources Control Board
Telephone:  see region list
Last EDR Contact: 09/12/2018
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 12/24/2018
Data Release Frequency: Quarterly

LUST REG 2:  Fuel Leak List
Leaking Underground Storage Tank locations. Alameda, Contra Costa, Marin, Napa, San Francisco, San Mateo, Santa
Clara, Solano, Sonoma counties.

Date of Government Version: 09/30/2004
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 10/20/2004
Date Made Active in Reports: 11/19/2004
Number of Days to Update: 30

Source:  California Regional Water Quality Control Board San Francisco Bay Region (2)
Telephone:  510-622-2433
Last EDR Contact: 09/19/2011
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 01/02/2012
Data Release Frequency: Quarterly

LUST REG 3:  Leaking Underground Storage Tank Database
Leaking Underground Storage Tank locations. Monterey, San Benito, San Luis Obispo, Santa Barbara, Santa Cruz counties.

Date of Government Version: 05/19/2003
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 05/19/2003
Date Made Active in Reports: 06/02/2003
Number of Days to Update: 14

Source:  California Regional Water Quality Control Board Central Coast Region (3)
Telephone:  805-542-4786
Last EDR Contact: 07/18/2011
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 10/31/2011
Data Release Frequency: No Update Planned

LUST REG 4:  Underground Storage Tank Leak List
Los Angeles, Ventura counties. For more current information, please refer to the State Water Resources Control
Board’s LUST database.

Date of Government Version: 09/07/2004
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 09/07/2004
Date Made Active in Reports: 10/12/2004
Number of Days to Update: 35

Source:  California Regional Water Quality Control Board Los Angeles Region (4)
Telephone:  213-576-6710
Last EDR Contact: 09/06/2011
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 12/19/2011
Data Release Frequency: No Update Planned

LUST REG 9:  Leaking Underground Storage Tank Report
Orange, Riverside, San Diego counties. For more current information, please refer to the State Water Resources
Control Board’s LUST database.

Date of Government Version: 03/01/2001
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 04/23/2001
Date Made Active in Reports: 05/21/2001
Number of Days to Update: 28

Source:  California Regional Water Quality Control Board San Diego Region (9)
Telephone:  858-637-5595
Last EDR Contact: 09/26/2011
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 01/09/2012
Data Release Frequency: No Update Planned

INDIAN LUST R10:  Leaking Underground Storage Tanks on Indian Land
LUSTs on Indian land in Alaska, Idaho, Oregon and Washington.

Date of Government Version: 04/12/2018
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 05/18/2018
Date Made Active in Reports: 07/20/2018
Number of Days to Update: 63

Source:  EPA Region 10
Telephone:  206-553-2857
Last EDR Contact: 07/27/2018
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 11/05/2018
Data Release Frequency: Varies

INDIAN LUST R9:  Leaking Underground Storage Tanks on Indian Land
LUSTs on Indian land in Arizona, California, New Mexico and Nevada

Date of Government Version: 04/10/2018
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 05/18/2018
Date Made Active in Reports: 07/20/2018
Number of Days to Update: 63

Source:  Environmental Protection Agency
Telephone:  415-972-3372
Last EDR Contact: 07/27/2018
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 11/05/2018
Data Release Frequency: Varies

TC5441284.2s     Page GR-7

GOVERNMENT RECORDS SEARCHED / DATA CURRENCY TRACKING



INDIAN LUST R8:  Leaking Underground Storage Tanks on Indian Land
LUSTs on Indian land in Colorado, Montana, North Dakota, South Dakota, Utah and Wyoming.

Date of Government Version: 04/25/2018
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 05/18/2018
Date Made Active in Reports: 07/20/2018
Number of Days to Update: 63

Source:  EPA Region 8
Telephone:  303-312-6271
Last EDR Contact: 07/27/2018
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 11/05/2018
Data Release Frequency: Varies

INDIAN LUST R7:  Leaking Underground Storage Tanks on Indian Land
LUSTs on Indian land in Iowa, Kansas, and Nebraska

Date of Government Version: 04/24/2018
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 05/18/2018
Date Made Active in Reports: 07/20/2018
Number of Days to Update: 63

Source:  EPA Region 7
Telephone:  913-551-7003
Last EDR Contact: 07/27/2018
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 11/05/2018
Data Release Frequency: Varies

INDIAN LUST R6:  Leaking Underground Storage Tanks on Indian Land
LUSTs on Indian land in New Mexico and Oklahoma.

Date of Government Version: 04/01/2018
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 05/18/2018
Date Made Active in Reports: 07/20/2018
Number of Days to Update: 63

Source:  EPA Region 6
Telephone:  214-665-6597
Last EDR Contact: 07/27/2018
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 11/05/2018
Data Release Frequency: Varies

INDIAN LUST R4:  Leaking Underground Storage Tanks on Indian Land
LUSTs on Indian land in Florida, Mississippi and North Carolina.

Date of Government Version: 05/08/2018
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 05/18/2018
Date Made Active in Reports: 07/20/2018
Number of Days to Update: 63

Source:  EPA Region 4
Telephone:  404-562-8677
Last EDR Contact: 07/27/2018
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 11/05/2018
Data Release Frequency: Varies

INDIAN LUST R1:  Leaking Underground Storage Tanks on Indian Land
A listing of leaking underground storage tank locations on Indian Land.

Date of Government Version: 04/13/2018
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 05/18/2018
Date Made Active in Reports: 07/20/2018
Number of Days to Update: 63

Source:  EPA Region 1
Telephone:  617-918-1313
Last EDR Contact: 07/27/2018
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 11/05/2018
Data Release Frequency: Varies

INDIAN LUST R5:  Leaking Underground Storage Tanks on Indian Land
Leaking underground storage tanks located on Indian Land in Michigan, Minnesota and Wisconsin.

Date of Government Version: 04/12/2018
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 05/18/2018
Date Made Active in Reports: 07/20/2018
Number of Days to Update: 63

Source:  EPA, Region 5
Telephone:  312-886-7439
Last EDR Contact: 07/27/2018
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 11/05/2018
Data Release Frequency: Varies

CPS-SLIC:  Statewide SLIC Cases (GEOTRACKER)
Cleanup Program Sites (CPS; also known as Site Cleanups [SC] and formerly known as Spills, Leaks, Investigations,
and Cleanups [SLIC] sites) included in GeoTracker. GeoTracker is the Water Boards data management system for
sites that impact, or have the potential to impact, water quality in California, with emphasis on groundwater.

Date of Government Version: 06/11/2018
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 06/13/2018
Date Made Active in Reports: 07/17/2018
Number of Days to Update: 34

Source:  State Water Resources Control Board
Telephone:  866-480-1028
Last EDR Contact: 12/12/2018
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 12/24/2018
Data Release Frequency: Varies

TC5441284.2s     Page GR-8

GOVERNMENT RECORDS SEARCHED / DATA CURRENCY TRACKING



SLIC REG 1:  Active Toxic Site Investigations
The SLIC (Spills, Leaks, Investigations and Cleanup) program is designed to protect and restore water quality
from spills, leaks, and similar discharges.

Date of Government Version: 04/03/2003
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 04/07/2003
Date Made Active in Reports: 04/25/2003
Number of Days to Update: 18

Source:  California Regional Water Quality Control Board, North Coast Region (1)
Telephone:  707-576-2220
Last EDR Contact: 08/01/2011
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 11/14/2011
Data Release Frequency: No Update Planned

SLIC REG 2:  Spills, Leaks, Investigation & Cleanup Cost Recovery Listing
The SLIC (Spills, Leaks, Investigations and Cleanup) program is designed to protect and restore water quality
from spills, leaks, and similar discharges.

Date of Government Version: 09/30/2004
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 10/20/2004
Date Made Active in Reports: 11/19/2004
Number of Days to Update: 30

Source:  Regional Water Quality Control Board San Francisco Bay Region (2)
Telephone:  510-286-0457
Last EDR Contact: 09/19/2011
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 01/02/2012
Data Release Frequency: Quarterly

SLIC REG 3:  Spills, Leaks, Investigation & Cleanup Cost Recovery Listing
The SLIC (Spills, Leaks, Investigations and Cleanup) program is designed to protect and restore water quality
from spills, leaks, and similar discharges.

Date of Government Version: 05/18/2006
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 05/18/2006
Date Made Active in Reports: 06/15/2006
Number of Days to Update: 28

Source:  California Regional Water Quality Control Board Central Coast Region (3)
Telephone:  805-549-3147
Last EDR Contact: 07/18/2011
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 10/31/2011
Data Release Frequency: Semi-Annually

SLIC REG 4:  Spills, Leaks, Investigation & Cleanup Cost Recovery Listing
The SLIC (Spills, Leaks, Investigations and Cleanup) program is designed to protect and restore water quality
from spills, leaks, and similar discharges.

Date of Government Version: 11/17/2004
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 11/18/2004
Date Made Active in Reports: 01/04/2005
Number of Days to Update: 47

Source:  Region Water Quality Control Board Los Angeles Region (4)
Telephone:  213-576-6600
Last EDR Contact: 07/01/2011
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 10/17/2011
Data Release Frequency: Varies

SLIC REG 5:  Spills, Leaks, Investigation & Cleanup Cost Recovery Listing
The SLIC (Spills, Leaks, Investigations and Cleanup) program is designed to protect and restore water quality
from spills, leaks, and similar discharges.

Date of Government Version: 04/01/2005
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 04/05/2005
Date Made Active in Reports: 04/21/2005
Number of Days to Update: 16

Source:  Regional Water Quality Control Board Central Valley Region (5)
Telephone:  916-464-3291
Last EDR Contact: 09/12/2011
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 12/26/2011
Data Release Frequency: Semi-Annually

SLIC REG 6V:  Spills, Leaks, Investigation & Cleanup Cost Recovery Listing
The SLIC (Spills, Leaks, Investigations and Cleanup) program is designed to protect and restore water quality
from spills, leaks, and similar discharges.

Date of Government Version: 05/24/2005
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 05/25/2005
Date Made Active in Reports: 06/16/2005
Number of Days to Update: 22

Source:  Regional Water Quality Control Board, Victorville Branch
Telephone:  619-241-6583
Last EDR Contact: 08/15/2011
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 11/28/2011
Data Release Frequency: Semi-Annually

TC5441284.2s     Page GR-9

GOVERNMENT RECORDS SEARCHED / DATA CURRENCY TRACKING



SLIC REG 6L:  SLIC Sites
The SLIC (Spills, Leaks, Investigations and Cleanup) program is designed to protect and restore water quality
from spills, leaks, and similar discharges.

Date of Government Version: 09/07/2004
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 09/07/2004
Date Made Active in Reports: 10/12/2004
Number of Days to Update: 35

Source:  California Regional Water Quality Control Board, Lahontan Region
Telephone:  530-542-5574
Last EDR Contact: 08/15/2011
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 11/28/2011
Data Release Frequency: No Update Planned

SLIC REG 7:  SLIC List
The SLIC (Spills, Leaks, Investigations and Cleanup) program is designed to protect and restore water quality
from spills, leaks, and similar discharges.

Date of Government Version: 11/24/2004
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 11/29/2004
Date Made Active in Reports: 01/04/2005
Number of Days to Update: 36

Source:  California Regional Quality Control Board, Colorado River Basin Region
Telephone:  760-346-7491
Last EDR Contact: 08/01/2011
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 11/14/2011
Data Release Frequency: No Update Planned

SLIC REG 8:  Spills, Leaks, Investigation & Cleanup Cost Recovery Listing
The SLIC (Spills, Leaks, Investigations and Cleanup) program is designed to protect and restore water quality
from spills, leaks, and similar discharges.

Date of Government Version: 04/03/2008
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 04/03/2008
Date Made Active in Reports: 04/14/2008
Number of Days to Update: 11

Source:  California Region Water Quality Control Board Santa Ana Region (8)
Telephone:  951-782-3298
Last EDR Contact: 09/12/2011
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 12/26/2011
Data Release Frequency: Semi-Annually

SLIC REG 9:  Spills, Leaks, Investigation & Cleanup Cost Recovery Listing
The SLIC (Spills, Leaks, Investigations and Cleanup) program is designed to protect and restore water quality
from spills, leaks, and similar discharges.

Date of Government Version: 09/10/2007
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 09/11/2007
Date Made Active in Reports: 09/28/2007
Number of Days to Update: 17

Source:  California Regional Water Quality Control Board San Diego Region (9)
Telephone:  858-467-2980
Last EDR Contact: 08/08/2011
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 11/21/2011
Data Release Frequency: Annually

State and tribal registered storage tank lists

FEMA UST:  Underground Storage Tank Listing
A listing of all FEMA owned underground storage tanks.

Date of Government Version: 05/15/2017
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 05/30/2017
Date Made Active in Reports: 10/13/2017
Number of Days to Update: 136

Source:  FEMA
Telephone:  202-646-5797
Last EDR Contact: 07/11/2018
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 10/22/2018
Data Release Frequency: Varies

UST:  Active UST Facilities
Active UST facilities gathered from the local regulatory agencies

Date of Government Version: 09/10/2018
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 09/12/2018
Date Made Active in Reports: 10/03/2018
Number of Days to Update: 21

Source:  SWRCB
Telephone:  916-341-5851
Last EDR Contact: 09/12/2018
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 12/24/2018
Data Release Frequency: Semi-Annually

TC5441284.2s     Page GR-10

GOVERNMENT RECORDS SEARCHED / DATA CURRENCY TRACKING



MILITARY UST SITES:  Military UST Sites (GEOTRACKER)
Military ust sites

Date of Government Version: 06/11/2018
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 06/13/2018
Date Made Active in Reports: 07/18/2018
Number of Days to Update: 35

Source:  State Water Resources Control Board
Telephone:  866-480-1028
Last EDR Contact: 12/12/2018
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 12/24/2018
Data Release Frequency: Varies

UST CLOSURE:  Proposed Closure of Underground Storage Tank (UST) Cases
UST cases that are being considered for closure by either the State Water Resources Control Board or the Executive
Director have been posted for a 60-day public comment period. UST Case Closures being proposed for consideration
by the State Water Resources Control Board. These are primarily UST cases that meet closure criteria under the
decisional framework in State Water Board Resolution No. 92-49 and other Board orders. UST Case Closures proposed
for consideration by the Executive Director pursuant to State Water Board Resolution No. 2012-0061. These are
cases that meet the criteria of the Low-Threat UST Case Closure Policy. UST Case Closure Review Denials and Approved
Orders.

Date of Government Version: 09/10/2018
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 09/12/2018
Date Made Active in Reports: 10/03/2018
Number of Days to Update: 21

Source:  State Water Resources Control Board
Telephone:  916-327-7844
Last EDR Contact: 09/12/2018
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 12/24/2018
Data Release Frequency: Varies

AST:  Aboveground Petroleum Storage Tank Facilities
A listing of aboveground storage tank petroleum storage tank locations.

Date of Government Version: 07/06/2016
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 07/12/2016
Date Made Active in Reports: 09/19/2016
Number of Days to Update: 69

Source:  California Environmental Protection Agency
Telephone:  916-327-5092
Last EDR Contact: 09/17/2018
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 12/31/2018
Data Release Frequency: Quarterly

INDIAN UST R10:  Underground Storage Tanks on Indian Land
The Indian Underground Storage Tank (UST) database provides information about underground storage tanks on Indian
land in EPA Region 10 (Alaska, Idaho, Oregon, Washington, and Tribal Nations).

Date of Government Version: 04/12/2018
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 05/18/2018
Date Made Active in Reports: 07/20/2018
Number of Days to Update: 63

Source:  EPA Region 10
Telephone:  206-553-2857
Last EDR Contact: 07/27/2018
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 11/05/2018
Data Release Frequency: Varies

INDIAN UST R9:  Underground Storage Tanks on Indian Land
The Indian Underground Storage Tank (UST) database provides information about underground storage tanks on Indian
land in EPA Region 9 (Arizona, California, Hawaii, Nevada, the Pacific Islands, and Tribal Nations).

Date of Government Version: 04/10/2018
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 05/18/2018
Date Made Active in Reports: 07/20/2018
Number of Days to Update: 63

Source:  EPA Region 9
Telephone:  415-972-3368
Last EDR Contact: 07/27/2018
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 11/05/2018
Data Release Frequency: Varies

INDIAN UST R8:  Underground Storage Tanks on Indian Land
The Indian Underground Storage Tank (UST) database provides information about underground storage tanks on Indian
land in EPA Region 8 (Colorado, Montana, North Dakota, South Dakota, Utah, Wyoming and 27 Tribal Nations).

Date of Government Version: 04/25/2018
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 05/18/2018
Date Made Active in Reports: 07/20/2018
Number of Days to Update: 63

Source:  EPA Region 8
Telephone:  303-312-6137
Last EDR Contact: 07/27/2018
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 11/05/2018
Data Release Frequency: Varies

TC5441284.2s     Page GR-11

GOVERNMENT RECORDS SEARCHED / DATA CURRENCY TRACKING



INDIAN UST R7:  Underground Storage Tanks on Indian Land
The Indian Underground Storage Tank (UST) database provides information about underground storage tanks on Indian
land in EPA Region 7 (Iowa, Kansas, Missouri, Nebraska, and 9 Tribal Nations).

Date of Government Version: 04/24/2018
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 05/18/2018
Date Made Active in Reports: 07/20/2018
Number of Days to Update: 63

Source:  EPA Region 7
Telephone:  913-551-7003
Last EDR Contact: 07/27/2018
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 11/05/2018
Data Release Frequency: Varies

INDIAN UST R6:  Underground Storage Tanks on Indian Land
The Indian Underground Storage Tank (UST) database provides information about underground storage tanks on Indian
land in EPA Region 6 (Louisiana, Arkansas, Oklahoma, New Mexico, Texas and 65 Tribes).

Date of Government Version: 04/01/2018
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 05/18/2018
Date Made Active in Reports: 07/20/2018
Number of Days to Update: 63

Source:  EPA Region 6
Telephone:  214-665-7591
Last EDR Contact: 07/27/2018
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 11/05/2018
Data Release Frequency: Varies

INDIAN UST R1:  Underground Storage Tanks on Indian Land
The Indian Underground Storage Tank (UST) database provides information about underground storage tanks on Indian
land in EPA Region 1 (Connecticut, Maine, Massachusetts, New Hampshire, Rhode Island, Vermont and ten Tribal
Nations).

Date of Government Version: 04/13/2018
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 05/18/2018
Date Made Active in Reports: 07/20/2018
Number of Days to Update: 63

Source:  EPA, Region 1
Telephone:  617-918-1313
Last EDR Contact: 07/27/2018
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 11/05/2018
Data Release Frequency: Varies

INDIAN UST R4:  Underground Storage Tanks on Indian Land
The Indian Underground Storage Tank (UST) database provides information about underground storage tanks on Indian
land in EPA Region 4 (Alabama, Florida, Georgia, Kentucky, Mississippi, North Carolina, South Carolina, Tennessee
and Tribal Nations)

Date of Government Version: 05/08/2018
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 05/18/2018
Date Made Active in Reports: 07/20/2018
Number of Days to Update: 63

Source:  EPA Region 4
Telephone:  404-562-9424
Last EDR Contact: 07/27/2018
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 11/05/2018
Data Release Frequency: Varies

INDIAN UST R5:  Underground Storage Tanks on Indian Land
The Indian Underground Storage Tank (UST) database provides information about underground storage tanks on Indian
land in EPA Region 5 (Michigan, Minnesota and Wisconsin and Tribal Nations).

Date of Government Version: 04/12/2018
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 05/18/2018
Date Made Active in Reports: 07/20/2018
Number of Days to Update: 63

Source:  EPA Region 5
Telephone:  312-886-6136
Last EDR Contact: 07/27/2018
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 11/05/2018
Data Release Frequency: Varies

State and tribal voluntary cleanup sites

INDIAN VCP R1:  Voluntary Cleanup Priority Listing
A listing of voluntary cleanup priority sites located on Indian Land located in Region 1.

Date of Government Version: 07/27/2015
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 09/29/2015
Date Made Active in Reports: 02/18/2016
Number of Days to Update: 142

Source:  EPA, Region 1
Telephone:  617-918-1102
Last EDR Contact: 09/24/2018
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 01/07/2019
Data Release Frequency: Varies

TC5441284.2s     Page GR-12

GOVERNMENT RECORDS SEARCHED / DATA CURRENCY TRACKING



VCP:  Voluntary Cleanup Program Properties
Contains low threat level properties with either confirmed or unconfirmed releases and the project proponents
have request that DTSC oversee investigation and/or cleanup activities and have agreed to provide coverage for
DTSC’s costs.

Date of Government Version: 07/30/2018
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 07/31/2018
Date Made Active in Reports: 09/07/2018
Number of Days to Update: 38

Source:  Department of Toxic Substances Control
Telephone:  916-323-3400
Last EDR Contact: 07/31/2018
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 11/12/2018
Data Release Frequency: Quarterly

INDIAN VCP R7:  Voluntary Cleanup Priority Lisitng
A listing of voluntary cleanup priority sites located on Indian Land located in Region 7.

Date of Government Version: 03/20/2008
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 04/22/2008
Date Made Active in Reports: 05/19/2008
Number of Days to Update: 27

Source:  EPA, Region 7
Telephone:  913-551-7365
Last EDR Contact: 04/20/2009
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 07/20/2009
Data Release Frequency: Varies

State and tribal Brownfields sites

BROWNFIELDS:  Considered Brownfieds Sites Listing
A listing of sites the SWRCB considers to be Brownfields since these are sites have come to them through the MOA
Process.

Date of Government Version: 06/25/2018
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 06/27/2018
Date Made Active in Reports: 08/06/2018
Number of Days to Update: 40

Source:  State Water Resources Control Board
Telephone:  916-323-7905
Last EDR Contact: 09/25/2018
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 01/07/2019
Data Release Frequency: Quarterly

ADDITIONAL ENVIRONMENTAL RECORDS

Local Brownfield lists

US BROWNFIELDS:  A Listing of Brownfields Sites
Brownfields are real property, the expansion, redevelopment, or reuse of which may be complicated by the presence
or potential presence of a hazardous substance, pollutant, or contaminant. Cleaning up and reinvesting in these
properties takes development pressures off of undeveloped, open land, and both improves and protects the environment.
Assessment, Cleanup and Redevelopment Exchange System (ACRES) stores information reported by EPA Brownfields
grant recipients on brownfields properties assessed or cleaned up with grant funding as well as information on
Targeted Brownfields Assessments performed by EPA Regions. A listing of ACRES Brownfield sites is obtained from
Cleanups in My Community. Cleanups in My Community provides information on Brownfields properties for which information
is reported back to EPA, as well as areas served by Brownfields grant programs.

Date of Government Version: 06/18/2018
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 06/20/2018
Date Made Active in Reports: 09/14/2018
Number of Days to Update: 86

Source:  Environmental Protection Agency
Telephone:  202-566-2777
Last EDR Contact: 09/18/2018
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 12/31/2018
Data Release Frequency: Semi-Annually

Local Lists of Landfill / Solid Waste Disposal Sites

WMUDS/SWAT:  Waste Management Unit Database
Waste Management Unit Database System. WMUDS is used by the State Water Resources Control Board staff and the
Regional Water Quality Control Boards for program tracking and inventory of waste management units. WMUDS is composed
of the following databases: Facility Information, Scheduled Inspections Information, Waste Management Unit Information,
SWAT Program Information, SWAT Report Summary Information, SWAT Report Summary Data, Chapter 15 (formerly Subchapter
15) Information, Chapter 15 Monitoring Parameters, TPCA Program Information, RCRA Program Information, Closure
Information, and Interested Parties Information.

TC5441284.2s     Page GR-13

GOVERNMENT RECORDS SEARCHED / DATA CURRENCY TRACKING



Date of Government Version: 04/01/2000
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 04/10/2000
Date Made Active in Reports: 05/10/2000
Number of Days to Update: 30

Source:  State Water Resources Control Board
Telephone:  916-227-4448
Last EDR Contact: 07/24/2018
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 11/12/2018
Data Release Frequency: No Update Planned

SWRCY:  Recycler Database
A listing of recycling facilities in California.

Date of Government Version: 06/11/2018
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 06/13/2018
Date Made Active in Reports: 08/06/2018
Number of Days to Update: 54

Source:  Department of Conservation
Telephone:  916-323-3836
Last EDR Contact: 09/12/2018
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 12/24/2018
Data Release Frequency: Quarterly

HAULERS:  Registered Waste Tire Haulers Listing
A listing of registered waste tire haulers.

Date of Government Version: 05/29/2018
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 05/30/2018
Date Made Active in Reports: 07/17/2018
Number of Days to Update: 48

Source:  Integrated Waste Management Board
Telephone:  916-341-6422
Last EDR Contact: 08/07/2018
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 11/26/2018
Data Release Frequency: Varies

INDIAN ODI:  Report on the Status of Open Dumps on Indian Lands
Location of open dumps on Indian land.

Date of Government Version: 12/31/1998
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 12/03/2007
Date Made Active in Reports: 01/24/2008
Number of Days to Update: 52

Source:  Environmental Protection Agency
Telephone:  703-308-8245
Last EDR Contact: 07/30/2018
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 11/12/2018
Data Release Frequency: Varies

DEBRIS REGION 9:  Torres Martinez Reservation Illegal Dump Site Locations
A listing of illegal dump sites location on the Torres Martinez Indian Reservation located in eastern Riverside
County and northern Imperial County, California.

Date of Government Version: 01/12/2009
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 05/07/2009
Date Made Active in Reports: 09/21/2009
Number of Days to Update: 137

Source:  EPA, Region 9
Telephone:  415-947-4219
Last EDR Contact: 07/17/2018
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 11/05/2018
Data Release Frequency: No Update Planned

ODI:  Open Dump Inventory
An open dump is defined as a disposal facility that does not comply with one or more of the Part 257 or Part 258
Subtitle D Criteria.

Date of Government Version: 06/30/1985
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 08/09/2004
Date Made Active in Reports: 09/17/2004
Number of Days to Update: 39

Source:  Environmental Protection Agency
Telephone:  800-424-9346
Last EDR Contact: 06/09/2004
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: N/A
Data Release Frequency: No Update Planned

IHS OPEN DUMPS:  Open Dumps on Indian Land
A listing of all open dumps located on Indian Land in the United States.

Date of Government Version: 04/01/2014
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 08/06/2014
Date Made Active in Reports: 01/29/2015
Number of Days to Update: 176

Source:  Department of Health & Human Serivces, Indian Health Service
Telephone:  301-443-1452
Last EDR Contact: 08/03/2018
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 11/12/2018
Data Release Frequency: Varies

TC5441284.2s     Page GR-14

GOVERNMENT RECORDS SEARCHED / DATA CURRENCY TRACKING



Local Lists of Hazardous waste / Contaminated Sites

US HIST CDL:  National Clandestine Laboratory Register
A listing of clandestine drug lab locations that have been removed from the DEAs National Clandestine Laboratory
Register.

Date of Government Version: 05/18/2018
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 06/20/2018
Date Made Active in Reports: 09/14/2018
Number of Days to Update: 86

Source:  Drug Enforcement Administration
Telephone:  202-307-1000
Last EDR Contact: 08/28/2018
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 12/10/2018
Data Release Frequency: No Update Planned

HIST CAL-SITES:  Calsites Database
The Calsites database contains potential or confirmed hazardous substance release properties. In 1996, California
EPA reevaluated and significantly reduced the number of sites in the Calsites database. No longer updated by the
state agency. It has been replaced by ENVIROSTOR.

Date of Government Version: 08/08/2005
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 08/03/2006
Date Made Active in Reports: 08/24/2006
Number of Days to Update: 21

Source:  Department of Toxic Substance Control
Telephone:  916-323-3400
Last EDR Contact: 02/23/2009
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 05/25/2009
Data Release Frequency: No Update Planned

SCH:  School Property Evaluation Program
This category contains proposed and existing school sites that are being evaluated by DTSC for possible hazardous
materials contamination. In some cases, these properties may be listed in the CalSites category depending on the
level of threat to public health and safety or the environment they pose.

Date of Government Version: 07/30/2018
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 07/31/2018
Date Made Active in Reports: 09/07/2018
Number of Days to Update: 38

Source:  Department of Toxic Substances Control
Telephone:  916-323-3400
Last EDR Contact: 07/31/2018
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 11/12/2018
Data Release Frequency: Quarterly

CDL:  Clandestine Drug Labs
A listing of drug lab locations. Listing of a location in this database does not indicate that any illegal drug
lab materials were or were not present there, and does not constitute a determination that the location either
requires or does not require additional cleanup work.

Date of Government Version: 12/31/2017
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 06/12/2018
Date Made Active in Reports: 08/06/2018
Number of Days to Update: 55

Source:  Department of Toxic Substances Control
Telephone:  916-255-6504
Last EDR Contact: 08/17/2018
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 10/22/2018
Data Release Frequency: Varies

TOXIC PITS:  Toxic Pits Cleanup Act Sites
Toxic PITS Cleanup Act Sites. TOXIC PITS identifies sites suspected of containing hazardous substances where cleanup
has not yet been completed.

Date of Government Version: 07/01/1995
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 08/30/1995
Date Made Active in Reports: 09/26/1995
Number of Days to Update: 27

Source:  State Water Resources Control Board
Telephone:  916-227-4364
Last EDR Contact: 01/26/2009
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 04/27/2009
Data Release Frequency: No Update Planned

US CDL:  Clandestine Drug Labs
A listing of clandestine drug lab locations. The U.S. Department of Justice ("the Department") provides this
web site as a public service. It contains addresses of some locations where law enforcement agencies reported
they found chemicals or other items that indicated the presence of either clandestine drug laboratories or dumpsites.
In most cases, the source of the entries is not the Department, and the Department has not verified the entry
and does not guarantee its accuracy. Members of the public must verify the accuracy of all entries by, for example,
contacting local law enforcement and local health departments.

TC5441284.2s     Page GR-15

GOVERNMENT RECORDS SEARCHED / DATA CURRENCY TRACKING



Date of Government Version: 05/18/2018
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 06/20/2018
Date Made Active in Reports: 09/14/2018
Number of Days to Update: 86

Source:  Drug Enforcement Administration
Telephone:  202-307-1000
Last EDR Contact: 08/28/2018
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 12/10/2018
Data Release Frequency: Quarterly

CERS HAZ WASTE:  CERS HAZ WASTE
List of sites in the California Environmental Protection Agency (CalEPA) Regulated Site Portal which fall under
the Hazardous Chemical Management, Hazardous Waste Onsite Treatment, Household Hazardous Waste Collection, Hazardous
Waste Generator, and RCRA LQ HW Generator programs.

Date of Government Version: 07/23/2018
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 07/25/2018
Date Made Active in Reports: 09/05/2018
Number of Days to Update: 42

Source:  CalEPA
Telephone:  916-323-2514
Last EDR Contact: 07/25/2018
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 11/05/2018
Data Release Frequency: Quarterly

Local Lists of Registered Storage Tanks

SWEEPS UST:  SWEEPS UST Listing
Statewide Environmental Evaluation and Planning System. This underground storage tank listing was updated and
maintained by a company contacted by the SWRCB in the early 1990’s. The listing is no longer updated or maintained.
The local agency is the contact for more information on a site on the SWEEPS list.

Date of Government Version: 06/01/1994
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 07/07/2005
Date Made Active in Reports: 08/11/2005
Number of Days to Update: 35

Source:  State Water Resources Control Board
Telephone:  N/A
Last EDR Contact: 06/03/2005
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: N/A
Data Release Frequency: No Update Planned

UST MENDOCINO:  Mendocino County UST Database
A listing of underground storage tank locations in Mendocino County.

Date of Government Version: 03/28/2018
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 05/25/2018
Date Made Active in Reports: 07/10/2018
Number of Days to Update: 46

Source:  Department of Public Health
Telephone:  707-463-4466
Last EDR Contact: 08/24/2018
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 12/10/2018
Data Release Frequency: Annually

HIST UST:  Hazardous Substance Storage Container Database
The Hazardous Substance Storage Container Database is a historical listing of UST sites. Refer to local/county
source for current data.

Date of Government Version: 10/15/1990
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 01/25/1991
Date Made Active in Reports: 02/12/1991
Number of Days to Update: 18

Source:  State Water Resources Control Board
Telephone:  916-341-5851
Last EDR Contact: 07/26/2001
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: N/A
Data Release Frequency: No Update Planned

SAN FRANCISCO AST:  Aboveground Storage Tank Site Listing
Aboveground storage tank sites

Date of Government Version: 04/19/2018
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 04/24/2018
Date Made Active in Reports: 05/04/2018
Number of Days to Update: 10

Source:  San Francisco County Department of Public Health
Telephone:  415-252-3896
Last EDR Contact: 08/01/2018
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 11/19/2018
Data Release Frequency: Varies

CA FID UST:  Facility Inventory Database
The Facility Inventory Database (FID) contains a historical listing of active and inactive underground storage
tank locations from the State Water Resource Control Board. Refer to local/county source for current data.

TC5441284.2s     Page GR-16

GOVERNMENT RECORDS SEARCHED / DATA CURRENCY TRACKING



Date of Government Version: 10/31/1994
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 09/05/1995
Date Made Active in Reports: 09/29/1995
Number of Days to Update: 24

Source:  California Environmental Protection Agency
Telephone:  916-341-5851
Last EDR Contact: 12/28/1998
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: N/A
Data Release Frequency: No Update Planned

CERS TANKS:  California Environmental Reporting System (CERS) Tanks
List of sites in the California Environmental Protection Agency (CalEPA) Regulated Site Portal which fall under
the Aboveground Petroleum Storage and Underground Storage Tank regulatory programs.

Date of Government Version: 07/23/2018
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 07/25/2018
Date Made Active in Reports: 09/05/2018
Number of Days to Update: 42

Source:  California Environmental Protection Agency
Telephone:  916-323-2514
Last EDR Contact: 07/25/2018
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 11/05/2018
Data Release Frequency: Quarterly

Local Land Records

LIENS:  Environmental Liens Listing
A listing of property locations with environmental liens for California where DTSC is a lien holder.

Date of Government Version: 08/29/2018
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 08/30/2018
Date Made Active in Reports: 10/01/2018
Number of Days to Update: 32

Source:  Department of Toxic Substances Control
Telephone:  916-323-3400
Last EDR Contact: 08/29/2018
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 12/17/2018
Data Release Frequency: Varies

LIENS 2:  CERCLA Lien Information
A Federal CERCLA (’Superfund’) lien can exist by operation of law at any site or property at which EPA has spent
Superfund monies. These monies are spent to investigate and address releases and threatened releases of contamination.
CERCLIS provides information as to the identity of these sites and properties.

Date of Government Version: 05/13/2018
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 05/30/2018
Date Made Active in Reports: 06/29/2018
Number of Days to Update: 30

Source:  Environmental Protection Agency
Telephone:  202-564-6023
Last EDR Contact: 10/04/2018
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 01/14/2019
Data Release Frequency: Semi-Annually

DEED:  Deed Restriction Listing
Site Mitigation and Brownfields Reuse Program Facility Sites with Deed Restrictions & Hazardous Waste Management
Program Facility Sites with Deed / Land Use Restriction. The DTSC Site Mitigation and Brownfields Reuse Program
(SMBRP) list includes sites cleaned up under the program’s oversight and generally does not include current
or former hazardous waste facilities that required a hazardous waste facility permit. The list represents deed
restrictions that are active. Some sites have multiple deed restrictions. The DTSC Hazardous Waste Management
Program (HWMP) has developed a list of current or former hazardous waste facilities that have a recorded land
use restriction at the local county recorder’s office. The land use restrictions on this list were required by
the DTSC HWMP as a result of the presence of hazardous substances that remain on site after the facility (or
part of the facility) has been closed or cleaned up. The types of land use restriction include deed notice, deed
restriction, or a land use restriction that binds current and future owners.

Date of Government Version: 09/04/2018
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 09/05/2018
Date Made Active in Reports: 10/02/2018
Number of Days to Update: 27

Source:  DTSC and SWRCB
Telephone:  916-323-3400
Last EDR Contact: 09/05/2018
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 12/17/2018
Data Release Frequency: Semi-Annually

Records of Emergency Release Reports

TC5441284.2s     Page GR-17

GOVERNMENT RECORDS SEARCHED / DATA CURRENCY TRACKING



HMIRS:  Hazardous Materials Information Reporting System
Hazardous Materials Incident Report System. HMIRS contains hazardous material spill incidents reported to DOT.

Date of Government Version: 03/26/2018
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 03/27/2018
Date Made Active in Reports: 06/08/2018
Number of Days to Update: 73

Source:  U.S. Department of Transportation
Telephone:  202-366-4555
Last EDR Contact: 09/25/2018
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 01/07/2019
Data Release Frequency: Quarterly

CHMIRS:  California Hazardous Material Incident Report System
California Hazardous Material Incident Reporting System. CHMIRS contains information on reported hazardous material
incidents (accidental releases or spills).

Date of Government Version: 04/06/2018
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 04/24/2018
Date Made Active in Reports: 06/14/2018
Number of Days to Update: 51

Source:  Office of Emergency Services
Telephone:  916-845-8400
Last EDR Contact: 07/27/2018
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 11/05/2018
Data Release Frequency: Semi-Annually

LDS:  Land Disposal Sites Listing (GEOTRACKER)
Land Disposal sites (Landfills) included in GeoTracker. GeoTracker is the Water Boards data management system
for sites that impact, or have the potential to impact, water quality in California, with emphasis on groundwater.

Date of Government Version: 06/11/2018
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 06/13/2018
Date Made Active in Reports: 07/17/2018
Number of Days to Update: 34

Source:  State Water Qualilty Control Board
Telephone:  866-480-1028
Last EDR Contact: 12/12/2018
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 12/24/2018
Data Release Frequency: Quarterly

MCS:  Military Cleanup Sites Listing (GEOTRACKER)
Military sites (consisting of: Military UST sites; Military Privatized sites; and Military Cleanup sites [formerly
known as DoD non UST]) included in GeoTracker. GeoTracker is the Water Boards data management system for sites
that impact, or have the potential to impact, water quality in California, with emphasis on groundwater.

Date of Government Version: 06/11/2018
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 06/13/2018
Date Made Active in Reports: 07/17/2018
Number of Days to Update: 34

Source:  State Water Resources Control Board
Telephone:  866-480-1028
Last EDR Contact: 12/12/2018
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 12/24/2018
Data Release Frequency: Quarterly

SPILLS 90:  SPILLS90 data from FirstSearch
Spills 90 includes those spill and release records available exclusively from FirstSearch databases. Typically,
they may include chemical, oil and/or hazardous substance spills recorded after 1990. Duplicate records that are
already included in EDR incident and release records are not included in Spills 90.

Date of Government Version: 06/06/2012
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 01/03/2013
Date Made Active in Reports: 02/22/2013
Number of Days to Update: 50

Source:  FirstSearch
Telephone:  N/A
Last EDR Contact: 01/03/2013
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: N/A
Data Release Frequency: No Update Planned

Other Ascertainable Records

RCRA NonGen / NLR:  RCRA - Non Generators / No Longer Regulated
RCRAInfo is EPA’s comprehensive information system, providing access to data supporting the Resource Conservation
and Recovery Act (RCRA) of 1976 and the Hazardous and Solid Waste Amendments (HSWA) of 1984. The database
includes selective information on sites which generate, transport, store, treat and/or dispose of hazardous waste
as defined by the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act (RCRA). Non-Generators do not presently generate hazardous
waste.

TC5441284.2s     Page GR-18

GOVERNMENT RECORDS SEARCHED / DATA CURRENCY TRACKING



Date of Government Version: 03/01/2018
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 03/28/2018
Date Made Active in Reports: 06/22/2018
Number of Days to Update: 86

Source:  Environmental Protection Agency
Telephone:  (415) 495-8895
Last EDR Contact: 09/19/2018
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 01/07/2019
Data Release Frequency: Quarterly

FUDS:  Formerly Used Defense Sites
The listing includes locations of Formerly Used Defense Sites properties where the US Army Corps of Engineers
is actively working or will take necessary cleanup actions.

Date of Government Version: 01/31/2015
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 07/08/2015
Date Made Active in Reports: 10/13/2015
Number of Days to Update: 97

Source:  U.S. Army Corps of Engineers
Telephone:  202-528-4285
Last EDR Contact: 08/24/2018
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 12/03/2018
Data Release Frequency: Varies

DOD:  Department of Defense Sites
This data set consists of federally owned or administered lands, administered by the Department of Defense, that
have any area equal to or greater than 640 acres of the United States, Puerto Rico, and the U.S. Virgin Islands.

Date of Government Version: 12/31/2005
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 11/10/2006
Date Made Active in Reports: 01/11/2007
Number of Days to Update: 62

Source:  USGS
Telephone:  888-275-8747
Last EDR Contact: 07/11/2018
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 10/22/2018
Data Release Frequency: Semi-Annually

FEDLAND:  Federal and Indian Lands
Federally and Indian administrated lands of the United States. Lands included are administrated by: Army Corps
of Engineers, Bureau of Reclamation, National Wild and Scenic River, National Wildlife Refuge, Public Domain Land,
Wilderness, Wilderness Study Area, Wildlife Management Area, Bureau of Indian Affairs, Bureau of Land Management,
Department of Justice, Forest Service, Fish and Wildlife Service, National Park Service.

Date of Government Version: 12/31/2005
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 02/06/2006
Date Made Active in Reports: 01/11/2007
Number of Days to Update: 339

Source:  U.S. Geological Survey
Telephone:  888-275-8747
Last EDR Contact: 07/13/2018
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 10/22/2018
Data Release Frequency: N/A

SCRD DRYCLEANERS:  State Coalition for Remediation of Drycleaners Listing
The State Coalition for Remediation of Drycleaners was established in 1998, with support from the U.S. EPA Office
of Superfund Remediation and Technology Innovation. It is comprised of representatives of states with established
drycleaner remediation programs. Currently the member states are Alabama, Connecticut, Florida, Illinois, Kansas,
Minnesota, Missouri, North Carolina, Oregon, South Carolina, Tennessee, Texas, and Wisconsin.

Date of Government Version: 01/01/2017
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 02/03/2017
Date Made Active in Reports: 04/07/2017
Number of Days to Update: 63

Source:  Environmental Protection Agency
Telephone:  615-532-8599
Last EDR Contact: 08/17/2018
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 11/26/2018
Data Release Frequency: Varies

US FIN ASSUR:  Financial Assurance Information
All owners and operators of facilities that treat, store, or dispose of hazardous waste are required to provide
proof that they will have sufficient funds to pay for the clean up, closure, and post-closure care of their facilities.

Date of Government Version: 03/01/2018
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 03/27/2018
Date Made Active in Reports: 06/22/2018
Number of Days to Update: 87

Source:  Environmental Protection Agency
Telephone:  202-566-1917
Last EDR Contact: 09/25/2018
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 01/07/2019
Data Release Frequency: Quarterly

TC5441284.2s     Page GR-19

GOVERNMENT RECORDS SEARCHED / DATA CURRENCY TRACKING



EPA WATCH LIST:  EPA WATCH LIST
EPA maintains a "Watch List" to facilitate dialogue between EPA, state and local environmental agencies on enforcement
matters relating to facilities with alleged violations identified as either significant or high priority. Being
on the Watch List does not mean that the facility has actually violated the law only that an investigation by
EPA or a state or local environmental agency has led those organizations to allege that an unproven violation
has in fact occurred. Being on the Watch List does not represent a higher level of concern regarding the alleged
violations that were detected, but instead indicates cases requiring additional dialogue between EPA, state and
local agencies - primarily because of the length of time the alleged violation has gone unaddressed or unresolved.

Date of Government Version: 08/30/2013
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 03/21/2014
Date Made Active in Reports: 06/17/2014
Number of Days to Update: 88

Source:  Environmental Protection Agency
Telephone:  617-520-3000
Last EDR Contact: 08/03/2018
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 11/19/2018
Data Release Frequency: Quarterly

2020 COR ACTION:  2020 Corrective Action Program List
The EPA has set ambitious goals for the RCRA Corrective Action program by creating the 2020 Corrective Action
Universe. This RCRA cleanup baseline includes facilities expected to need corrective action. The 2020 universe
contains a wide variety of sites. Some properties are heavily contaminated while others were contaminated but
have since been cleaned up. Still others have not been fully investigated yet, and may require little or no remediation.
Inclusion in the 2020 Universe does not necessarily imply failure on the part of a facility to meet its RCRA obligations.

Date of Government Version: 09/30/2017
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 05/08/2018
Date Made Active in Reports: 07/20/2018
Number of Days to Update: 73

Source:  Environmental Protection Agency
Telephone:  703-308-4044
Last EDR Contact: 08/10/2018
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 11/19/2018
Data Release Frequency: Varies

TSCA:  Toxic Substances Control Act
Toxic Substances Control Act. TSCA identifies manufacturers and importers of chemical substances included on the
TSCA Chemical Substance Inventory list. It includes data on the production volume of these substances by plant
site.

Date of Government Version: 12/31/2016
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 06/21/2017
Date Made Active in Reports: 01/05/2018
Number of Days to Update: 198

Source:  EPA
Telephone:  202-260-5521
Last EDR Contact: 09/21/2018
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 12/31/2018
Data Release Frequency: Every 4 Years

TRIS:  Toxic Chemical Release Inventory System
Toxic Release Inventory System. TRIS identifies facilities which release toxic chemicals to the air, water and
land in reportable quantities under SARA Title III Section 313.

Date of Government Version: 12/31/2016
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 01/10/2018
Date Made Active in Reports: 01/12/2018
Number of Days to Update: 2

Source:  EPA
Telephone:  202-566-0250
Last EDR Contact: 08/24/2018
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 12/03/2018
Data Release Frequency: Annually

SSTS:  Section 7 Tracking Systems
Section 7 of the Federal Insecticide, Fungicide and Rodenticide Act, as amended (92 Stat. 829) requires all
registered pesticide-producing establishments to submit a report to the Environmental Protection Agency by March
1st each year. Each establishment must report the types and amounts of pesticides, active ingredients and devices
being produced, and those having been produced and sold or distributed in the past year.

Date of Government Version: 12/31/2009
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 12/10/2010
Date Made Active in Reports: 02/25/2011
Number of Days to Update: 77

Source:  EPA
Telephone:  202-564-4203
Last EDR Contact: 07/27/2018
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 11/05/2018
Data Release Frequency: Annually

TC5441284.2s     Page GR-20

GOVERNMENT RECORDS SEARCHED / DATA CURRENCY TRACKING



ROD:  Records Of Decision
Record of Decision. ROD documents mandate a permanent remedy at an NPL (Superfund) site containing technical
and health information to aid in the cleanup.

Date of Government Version: 05/13/2018
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 05/30/2018
Date Made Active in Reports: 06/29/2018
Number of Days to Update: 30

Source:  EPA
Telephone:  703-416-0223
Last EDR Contact: 10/04/2018
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 12/17/2018
Data Release Frequency: Annually

RMP:  Risk Management Plans
When Congress passed the Clean Air Act Amendments of 1990, it required EPA to publish regulations and guidance
for chemical accident prevention at facilities using extremely hazardous substances. The Risk Management Program
Rule (RMP Rule) was written to implement Section 112(r) of these amendments. The rule, which built upon existing
industry codes and standards, requires companies of all sizes that use certain flammable and toxic substances
to develop a Risk Management Program, which includes a(n): Hazard assessment that details the potential effects
of an accidental release, an accident history of the last five years, and an evaluation of worst-case and alternative
accidental releases; Prevention program that includes safety precautions and maintenance, monitoring, and employee
training measures; and Emergency response program that spells out emergency health care, employee training measures
and procedures for informing the public and response agencies (e.g the fire department) should an accident occur.

Date of Government Version: 05/01/2018
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 05/17/2018
Date Made Active in Reports: 09/07/2018
Number of Days to Update: 113

Source:  Environmental Protection Agency
Telephone:  202-564-8600
Last EDR Contact: 07/20/2018
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 11/05/2018
Data Release Frequency: Varies

RAATS:  RCRA Administrative Action Tracking System
RCRA Administration Action Tracking System. RAATS contains records based on enforcement actions issued under RCRA
pertaining to major violators and includes administrative and civil actions brought by the EPA. For administration
actions after September 30, 1995, data entry in the RAATS database was discontinued. EPA will retain a copy of
the database for historical records. It was necessary to terminate RAATS because a decrease in agency resources
made it impossible to continue to update the information contained in the database.

Date of Government Version: 04/17/1995
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 07/03/1995
Date Made Active in Reports: 08/07/1995
Number of Days to Update: 35

Source:  EPA
Telephone:  202-564-4104
Last EDR Contact: 06/02/2008
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 09/01/2008
Data Release Frequency: No Update Planned

PRP:  Potentially Responsible Parties
A listing of verified Potentially Responsible Parties

Date of Government Version: 10/25/2013
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 10/17/2014
Date Made Active in Reports: 10/20/2014
Number of Days to Update: 3

Source:  EPA
Telephone:  202-564-6023
Last EDR Contact: 10/04/2018
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 11/19/2018
Data Release Frequency: Quarterly

PADS:  PCB Activity Database System
PCB Activity Database. PADS Identifies generators, transporters, commercial storers and/or brokers and disposers
of PCB’s who are required to notify the EPA of such activities.

Date of Government Version: 06/01/2017
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 06/09/2017
Date Made Active in Reports: 10/13/2017
Number of Days to Update: 126

Source:  EPA
Telephone:  202-566-0500
Last EDR Contact: 07/13/2018
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 10/22/2018
Data Release Frequency: Annually

TC5441284.2s     Page GR-21

GOVERNMENT RECORDS SEARCHED / DATA CURRENCY TRACKING



ICIS:  Integrated Compliance Information System
The Integrated Compliance Information System (ICIS) supports the information needs of the national enforcement
and compliance program as well as the unique needs of the National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES)
program.

Date of Government Version: 11/18/2016
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 11/23/2016
Date Made Active in Reports: 02/10/2017
Number of Days to Update: 79

Source:  Environmental Protection Agency
Telephone:  202-564-2501
Last EDR Contact: 07/09/2018
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 10/22/2018
Data Release Frequency: Quarterly

FTTS:  FIFRA/ TSCA Tracking System - FIFRA (Federal Insecticide, Fungicide, & Rodenticide Act)/TSCA (Toxic Substances Control Act)
FTTS tracks administrative cases and pesticide enforcement actions and compliance activities related to FIFRA,
TSCA and EPCRA (Emergency Planning and Community Right-to-Know Act). To maintain currency, EDR contacts the
Agency on a quarterly basis.

Date of Government Version: 04/09/2009
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 04/16/2009
Date Made Active in Reports: 05/11/2009
Number of Days to Update: 25

Source:  EPA/Office of Prevention, Pesticides and Toxic Substances
Telephone:  202-566-1667
Last EDR Contact: 08/18/2017
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 12/04/2017
Data Release Frequency: Quarterly

FTTS INSP:  FIFRA/ TSCA Tracking System - FIFRA (Federal Insecticide, Fungicide, & Rodenticide Act)/TSCA (Toxic Substances Control Act)
A listing of FIFRA/TSCA Tracking System (FTTS) inspections and enforcements.

Date of Government Version: 04/09/2009
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 04/16/2009
Date Made Active in Reports: 05/11/2009
Number of Days to Update: 25

Source:  EPA
Telephone:  202-566-1667
Last EDR Contact: 08/18/2017
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 12/04/2017
Data Release Frequency: Quarterly

MLTS:  Material Licensing Tracking System
MLTS is maintained by the Nuclear Regulatory Commission and contains a list of approximately 8,100 sites which
possess or use radioactive materials and which are subject to NRC licensing requirements. To maintain currency,
EDR contacts the Agency on a quarterly basis.

Date of Government Version: 08/30/2016
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 09/08/2016
Date Made Active in Reports: 10/21/2016
Number of Days to Update: 43

Source:  Nuclear Regulatory Commission
Telephone:  301-415-7169
Last EDR Contact: 09/28/2018
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 11/05/2018
Data Release Frequency: Quarterly

COAL ASH DOE:  Steam-Electric Plant Operation Data
A listing of power plants that store ash in surface ponds.

Date of Government Version: 12/31/2005
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 08/07/2009
Date Made Active in Reports: 10/22/2009
Number of Days to Update: 76

Source:  Department of Energy
Telephone:  202-586-8719
Last EDR Contact: 09/07/2018
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 12/17/2018
Data Release Frequency: Varies

COAL ASH EPA:  Coal Combustion Residues Surface Impoundments List
A listing of coal combustion residues surface impoundments with high hazard potential ratings.

Date of Government Version: 07/01/2014
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 09/10/2014
Date Made Active in Reports: 10/20/2014
Number of Days to Update: 40

Source:  Environmental Protection Agency
Telephone:  N/A
Last EDR Contact: 09/04/2018
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 12/17/2018
Data Release Frequency: Varies

TC5441284.2s     Page GR-22

GOVERNMENT RECORDS SEARCHED / DATA CURRENCY TRACKING



PCB TRANSFORMER:  PCB Transformer Registration Database
The database of PCB transformer registrations that includes all PCB registration submittals.

Date of Government Version: 05/24/2017
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 11/30/2017
Date Made Active in Reports: 12/15/2017
Number of Days to Update: 15

Source:  Environmental Protection Agency
Telephone:  202-566-0517
Last EDR Contact: 07/27/2018
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 11/05/2018
Data Release Frequency: Varies

RADINFO:  Radiation Information Database
The Radiation Information Database (RADINFO) contains information about facilities that are regulated by U.S.
Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) regulations for radiation and radioactivity.

Date of Government Version: 04/03/2018
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 04/05/2018
Date Made Active in Reports: 06/29/2018
Number of Days to Update: 85

Source:  Environmental Protection Agency
Telephone:  202-343-9775
Last EDR Contact: 10/03/2018
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 01/14/2019
Data Release Frequency: Quarterly

HIST FTTS:  FIFRA/TSCA Tracking System Administrative Case Listing
A complete administrative case listing from the FIFRA/TSCA Tracking System (FTTS) for all ten EPA regions. The
information was obtained from the National Compliance Database (NCDB). NCDB supports the implementation of FIFRA
(Federal Insecticide, Fungicide, and Rodenticide Act) and TSCA (Toxic Substances Control Act). Some EPA regions
are now closing out records. Because of that, and the fact that some EPA regions are not providing EPA Headquarters
with updated records, it was decided to create a HIST FTTS database. It included records that may not be included
in the newer FTTS database updates. This database is no longer updated.

Date of Government Version: 10/19/2006
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 03/01/2007
Date Made Active in Reports: 04/10/2007
Number of Days to Update: 40

Source:  Environmental Protection Agency
Telephone:  202-564-2501
Last EDR Contact: 12/17/2007
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 03/17/2008
Data Release Frequency: No Update Planned

HIST FTTS INSP:  FIFRA/TSCA Tracking System Inspection & Enforcement Case Listing
A complete inspection and enforcement case listing from the FIFRA/TSCA Tracking System (FTTS) for all ten EPA
regions. The information was obtained from the National Compliance Database (NCDB). NCDB supports the implementation
of FIFRA (Federal Insecticide, Fungicide, and Rodenticide Act) and TSCA (Toxic Substances Control Act). Some
EPA regions are now closing out records. Because of that, and the fact that some EPA regions are not providing
EPA Headquarters with updated records, it was decided to create a HIST FTTS database. It included records that
may not be included in the newer FTTS database updates. This database is no longer updated.

Date of Government Version: 10/19/2006
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 03/01/2007
Date Made Active in Reports: 04/10/2007
Number of Days to Update: 40

Source:  Environmental Protection Agency
Telephone:  202-564-2501
Last EDR Contact: 12/17/2008
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 03/17/2008
Data Release Frequency: No Update Planned

DOT OPS:  Incident and Accident Data
Department of Transporation, Office of Pipeline Safety Incident and Accident data.

Date of Government Version: 07/31/2012
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 08/07/2012
Date Made Active in Reports: 09/18/2012
Number of Days to Update: 42

Source:  Department of Transporation, Office of Pipeline Safety
Telephone:  202-366-4595
Last EDR Contact: 08/09/2018
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 11/12/2018
Data Release Frequency: Varies

CONSENT:  Superfund (CERCLA) Consent Decrees
Major legal settlements that establish responsibility and standards for cleanup at NPL (Superfund) sites. Released
periodically by United States District Courts after settlement by parties to litigation matters.

TC5441284.2s     Page GR-23

GOVERNMENT RECORDS SEARCHED / DATA CURRENCY TRACKING



Date of Government Version: 03/31/2018
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 04/16/2018
Date Made Active in Reports: 06/29/2018
Number of Days to Update: 74

Source:  Department of Justice, Consent Decree Library
Telephone:  Varies
Last EDR Contact: 10/01/2018
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 12/31/2018
Data Release Frequency: Varies

BRS:  Biennial Reporting System
The Biennial Reporting System is a national system administered by the EPA that collects data on the generation
and management of hazardous waste. BRS captures detailed data from two groups: Large Quantity Generators (LQG)
and Treatment, Storage, and Disposal Facilities.

Date of Government Version: 12/31/2015
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 02/22/2017
Date Made Active in Reports: 09/28/2017
Number of Days to Update: 218

Source:  EPA/NTIS
Telephone:  800-424-9346
Last EDR Contact: 08/24/2018
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 12/03/2018
Data Release Frequency: Biennially

INDIAN RESERV:  Indian Reservations
This map layer portrays Indian administered lands of the United States that have any area equal to or greater
than 640 acres.

Date of Government Version: 12/31/2014
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 07/14/2015
Date Made Active in Reports: 01/10/2017
Number of Days to Update: 546

Source:  USGS
Telephone:  202-208-3710
Last EDR Contact: 07/11/2018
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 10/22/2018
Data Release Frequency: Semi-Annually

FUSRAP:  Formerly Utilized Sites Remedial Action Program
DOE established the Formerly Utilized Sites Remedial Action Program (FUSRAP) in 1974 to remediate sites where
radioactive contamination remained from Manhattan Project and early U.S. Atomic Energy Commission (AEC) operations.

Date of Government Version: 08/08/2017
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 09/11/2018
Date Made Active in Reports: 09/14/2018
Number of Days to Update: 3

Source:  Department of Energy
Telephone:  202-586-3559
Last EDR Contact: 09/11/2018
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 11/19/2018
Data Release Frequency: Varies

UMTRA:  Uranium Mill Tailings Sites
Uranium ore was mined by private companies for federal government use in national defense programs. When the mills
shut down, large piles of the sand-like material (mill tailings) remain after uranium has been extracted from
the ore. Levels of human exposure to radioactive materials from the piles are low; however, in some cases tailings
were used as construction materials before the potential health hazards of the tailings were recognized.

Date of Government Version: 06/23/2017
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 10/11/2017
Date Made Active in Reports: 11/03/2017
Number of Days to Update: 23

Source:  Department of Energy
Telephone:  505-845-0011
Last EDR Contact: 08/20/2018
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 12/03/2018
Data Release Frequency: Varies

LEAD SMELTER 1:  Lead Smelter Sites
A listing of former lead smelter site locations.

Date of Government Version: 05/13/2018
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 05/30/2018
Date Made Active in Reports: 06/29/2018
Number of Days to Update: 30

Source:  Environmental Protection Agency
Telephone:  703-603-8787
Last EDR Contact: 10/04/2018
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 01/14/2019
Data Release Frequency: Varies

LEAD SMELTER 2:  Lead Smelter Sites
A list of several hundred sites in the U.S. where secondary lead smelting was done from 1931and 1964. These sites
may pose a threat to public health through ingestion or inhalation of contaminated soil or dust

TC5441284.2s     Page GR-24

GOVERNMENT RECORDS SEARCHED / DATA CURRENCY TRACKING



Date of Government Version: 04/05/2001
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 10/27/2010
Date Made Active in Reports: 12/02/2010
Number of Days to Update: 36

Source:  American Journal of Public Health
Telephone:  703-305-6451
Last EDR Contact: 12/02/2009
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: N/A
Data Release Frequency: No Update Planned

US AIRS (AFS):  Aerometric Information Retrieval System Facility Subsystem (AFS)
The database is a sub-system of Aerometric Information Retrieval System (AIRS). AFS contains compliance data
on air pollution point sources regulated by the U.S. EPA and/or state and local air regulatory agencies. This
information comes from source reports by various stationary sources of air pollution, such as electric power plants,
steel mills, factories, and universities, and provides information about the air pollutants they produce. Action,
air program, air program pollutant, and general level plant data. It is used to track emissions and compliance
data from industrial plants.

Date of Government Version: 10/12/2016
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 10/26/2016
Date Made Active in Reports: 02/03/2017
Number of Days to Update: 100

Source:  EPA
Telephone:  202-564-2496
Last EDR Contact: 09/26/2017
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 01/08/2018
Data Release Frequency: Annually

US AIRS MINOR:  Air Facility System Data
A listing of minor source facilities.

Date of Government Version: 10/12/2016
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 10/26/2016
Date Made Active in Reports: 02/03/2017
Number of Days to Update: 100

Source:  EPA
Telephone:  202-564-2496
Last EDR Contact: 09/26/2017
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 01/08/2018
Data Release Frequency: Annually

US MINES:  Mines Master Index File
Contains all mine identification numbers issued for mines active or opened since 1971. The data also includes
violation information.

Date of Government Version: 05/03/2018
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 05/31/2018
Date Made Active in Reports: 06/29/2018
Number of Days to Update: 29

Source:  Department of Labor, Mine Safety and Health Administration
Telephone:  303-231-5959
Last EDR Contact: 08/29/2018
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 12/10/2018
Data Release Frequency: Semi-Annually

US MINES 2:  Ferrous and Nonferrous Metal Mines Database Listing
This map layer includes ferrous (ferrous metal mines are facilities that extract ferrous metals, such as iron
ore or molybdenum) and nonferrous (Nonferrous metal mines are facilities that extract nonferrous metals, such
as gold, silver, copper, zinc, and lead) metal mines in the United States.

Date of Government Version: 12/05/2005
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 02/29/2008
Date Made Active in Reports: 04/18/2008
Number of Days to Update: 49

Source:  USGS
Telephone:  703-648-7709
Last EDR Contact: 08/31/2018
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 12/10/2018
Data Release Frequency: Varies

US MINES 3:  Active Mines & Mineral Plants Database Listing
Active Mines and Mineral Processing Plant operations for commodities monitored by the Minerals Information Team
of the USGS.

Date of Government Version: 04/14/2011
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 06/08/2011
Date Made Active in Reports: 09/13/2011
Number of Days to Update: 97

Source:  USGS
Telephone:  703-648-7709
Last EDR Contact: 08/31/2018
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 12/10/2018
Data Release Frequency: Varies

TC5441284.2s     Page GR-25

GOVERNMENT RECORDS SEARCHED / DATA CURRENCY TRACKING



ABANDONED MINES:  Abandoned Mines
An inventory of land and water impacted by past mining (primarily coal mining) is maintained by OSMRE to provide
information needed to implement the Surface Mining Control and Reclamation Act of 1977 (SMCRA). The inventory
contains information on the location, type, and extent of AML impacts, as well as, information on the cost associated
with the reclamation of those problems. The inventory is based upon field surveys by State, Tribal, and OSMRE
program officials. It is dynamic to the extent that it is modified as new problems are identified and existing
problems are reclaimed.

Date of Government Version: 09/10/2018
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 09/11/2018
Date Made Active in Reports: 09/14/2018
Number of Days to Update: 3

Source:  Department of Interior
Telephone:  202-208-2609
Last EDR Contact: 09/10/2018
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 12/24/2018
Data Release Frequency: Quarterly

FINDS:  Facility Index System/Facility Registry System
Facility Index System. FINDS contains both facility information and ’pointers’ to other sources that contain more
detail. EDR includes the following FINDS databases in this report: PCS (Permit Compliance System), AIRS (Aerometric
Information Retrieval System), DOCKET (Enforcement Docket used to manage and track information on civil judicial
enforcement cases for all environmental statutes), FURS (Federal Underground Injection Control), C-DOCKET (Criminal
Docket System used to track criminal enforcement actions for all environmental statutes), FFIS (Federal Facilities
Information System), STATE (State Environmental Laws and Statutes), and PADS (PCB Activity Data System).

Date of Government Version: 02/21/2018
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 02/23/2018
Date Made Active in Reports: 03/23/2018
Number of Days to Update: 28

Source:  EPA
Telephone:  (415) 947-8000
Last EDR Contact: 09/18/2018
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 12/17/2018
Data Release Frequency: Quarterly

DOCKET HWC:  Hazardous Waste Compliance Docket Listing
A complete list of the Federal Agency Hazardous Waste Compliance Docket Facilities.

Date of Government Version: 01/04/2018
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 01/19/2018
Date Made Active in Reports: 04/13/2018
Number of Days to Update: 84

Source:  Environmental Protection Agency
Telephone:  202-564-0527
Last EDR Contact: 08/31/2018
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 12/10/2018
Data Release Frequency: Varies

ECHO:  Enforcement & Compliance History Information
ECHO provides integrated compliance and enforcement information for about 800,000 regulated facilities nationwide.

Date of Government Version: 09/02/2018
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 09/05/2018
Date Made Active in Reports: 09/14/2018
Number of Days to Update: 9

Source:  Environmental Protection Agency
Telephone:  202-564-2280
Last EDR Contact: 09/05/2018
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 12/17/2018
Data Release Frequency: Quarterly

UXO:  Unexploded Ordnance Sites
A listing of unexploded ordnance site locations

Date of Government Version: 09/30/2017
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 06/19/2018
Date Made Active in Reports: 09/14/2018
Number of Days to Update: 87

Source:  Department of Defense
Telephone:  703-704-1564
Last EDR Contact: 07/13/2018
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 10/29/2018
Data Release Frequency: Varies

FUELS PROGRAM:  EPA Fuels Program Registered Listing
This listing includes facilities that are registered under the Part 80 (Code of Federal Regulations) EPA Fuels
Programs. All companies now are required to submit new and updated registrations.

TC5441284.2s     Page GR-26

GOVERNMENT RECORDS SEARCHED / DATA CURRENCY TRACKING



Date of Government Version: 05/21/2018
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 05/23/2018
Date Made Active in Reports: 09/07/2018
Number of Days to Update: 107

Source:  EPA
Telephone:  800-385-6164
Last EDR Contact: 08/22/2018
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 12/03/2018
Data Release Frequency: Quarterly

CA BOND EXP. PLAN:  Bond Expenditure Plan
Department of Health Services developed a site-specific expenditure plan as the basis for an appropriation of
Hazardous Substance Cleanup Bond Act funds. It is not updated.

Date of Government Version: 01/01/1989
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 07/27/1994
Date Made Active in Reports: 08/02/1994
Number of Days to Update: 6

Source:  Department of Health Services
Telephone:  916-255-2118
Last EDR Contact: 05/31/1994
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: N/A
Data Release Frequency: No Update Planned

CORTESE:  "Cortese" Hazardous Waste & Substances Sites List
The sites for the list are designated by the State Water Resource Control Board (LUST), the Integrated Waste
Board (SWF/LS), and the Department of Toxic Substances Control (Cal-Sites).

Date of Government Version: 06/25/2018
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 06/27/2018
Date Made Active in Reports: 08/06/2018
Number of Days to Update: 40

Source:  CAL EPA/Office of Emergency Information
Telephone:  916-323-3400
Last EDR Contact: 09/25/2018
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 01/07/2019
Data Release Frequency: Quarterly

CUPA SAN FRANCISCO CO:  CUPA Facility Listing
Cupa facilities

Date of Government Version: 09/11/2018
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 09/12/2018
Date Made Active in Reports: 09/19/2018
Number of Days to Update: 7

Source:  San Francisco County Department of Environmental Health
Telephone:  415-252-3896
Last EDR Contact: 08/01/2018
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 11/19/2018
Data Release Frequency: Varies

CUPA LIVERMORE-PLEASANTON:  CUPA Facility Listing
list of facilities associated with the various CUPA programs in Livermore-Pleasanton

Date of Government Version: 04/03/2018
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 05/07/2018
Date Made Active in Reports: 06/15/2018
Number of Days to Update: 39

Source:  Livermore-Pleasanton Fire Department
Telephone:  925-454-2361
Last EDR Contact: 08/24/2018
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 11/26/2018
Data Release Frequency: Varies

DRYCLEAN AVAQMD:  Antelope Valley Air Quality Management District Drycleaner Listing
A listing of dry cleaners in the Antelope Valley Air Quality Management District.

Date of Government Version: 06/25/2018
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 06/28/2018
Date Made Active in Reports: 08/06/2018
Number of Days to Update: 39

Source:  Antelope Valley Air Quality Management District
Telephone:  661-723-8070
Last EDR Contact: 10/01/2018
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 12/17/2018
Data Release Frequency: Varies

DRYCLEAN SOUTH COAST:  South Coast Air Quality Management District Drycleaner Listing
A listing of dry cleaners in the South Coast Air Quality Management District

Date of Government Version: 08/24/2018
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 08/30/2018
Date Made Active in Reports: 10/01/2018
Number of Days to Update: 32

Source:  South Coast Air Quality Management District
Telephone:  909-396-3211
Last EDR Contact: 08/22/2018
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 12/10/2018
Data Release Frequency: Varies

TC5441284.2s     Page GR-27

GOVERNMENT RECORDS SEARCHED / DATA CURRENCY TRACKING



DRYCLEANERS:  Cleaner Facilities
A list of drycleaner related facilities that have EPA ID numbers. These are facilities with certain SIC codes:
power laundries, family and commercial; garment pressing and cleaner’s agents; linen supply; coin-operated laundries
and cleaning; drycleaning plants, except rugs; carpet and upholster cleaning; industrial launderers; laundry and
garment services.

Date of Government Version: 05/31/2018
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 06/20/2018
Date Made Active in Reports: 08/06/2018
Number of Days to Update: 47

Source:  Department of Toxic Substance Control
Telephone:  916-327-4498
Last EDR Contact: 08/29/2018
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 12/17/2018
Data Release Frequency: Annually

EMI:  Emissions Inventory Data
Toxics and criteria pollutant emissions data collected by the ARB and local air pollution agencies.

Date of Government Version: 12/31/2017
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 06/20/2018
Date Made Active in Reports: 08/06/2018
Number of Days to Update: 47

Source:  California Air Resources Board
Telephone:  916-322-2990
Last EDR Contact: 09/21/2018
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 12/31/2018
Data Release Frequency: Varies

ENF:  Enforcement Action Listing
A listing of Water Board Enforcement Actions. Formal is everything except Oral/Verbal Communication, Notice of
Violation, Expedited Payment Letter, and Staff Enforcement Letter.

Date of Government Version: 08/01/2018
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 08/02/2018
Date Made Active in Reports: 09/07/2018
Number of Days to Update: 36

Source:  State Water Resoruces Control Board
Telephone:  916-445-9379
Last EDR Contact: 08/01/2018
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 11/05/2018
Data Release Frequency: Varies

Financial Assurance 1:  Financial Assurance Information Listing
Financial Assurance information

Date of Government Version: 07/17/2018
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 07/24/2018
Date Made Active in Reports: 09/10/2018
Number of Days to Update: 48

Source:  Department of Toxic Substances Control
Telephone:  916-255-3628
Last EDR Contact: 07/17/2018
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 11/05/2018
Data Release Frequency: Varies

Financial Assurance 2:  Financial Assurance Information Listing
A listing of financial assurance information for solid waste facilities. Financial assurance is intended to ensure
that resources are available to pay for the cost of closure, post-closure care, and corrective measures if the
owner or operator of a regulated facility is unable or unwilling to pay.

Date of Government Version: 08/14/2018
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 08/16/2018
Date Made Active in Reports: 09/10/2018
Number of Days to Update: 25

Source:  California Integrated Waste Management Board
Telephone:  916-341-6066
Last EDR Contact: 08/07/2018
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 11/26/2018
Data Release Frequency: Varies

HAZNET:  Facility and Manifest Data
Facility and Manifest Data. The data is extracted from the copies of hazardous waste manifests received each year
by the DTSC. The annual volume of manifests is typically 700,000 - 1,000,000 annually, representing approximately
350,000 - 500,000 shipments. Data are from the manifests submitted without correction, and therefore many contain
some invalid values for data elements such as generator ID, TSD ID, waste category, and disposal method. This
database begins with calendar year 1993.

Date of Government Version: 12/31/2016
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 07/12/2017
Date Made Active in Reports: 10/17/2017
Number of Days to Update: 97

Source:  California Environmental Protection Agency
Telephone:  916-255-1136
Last EDR Contact: 07/13/2018
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 10/22/2018
Data Release Frequency: Annually

TC5441284.2s     Page GR-28

GOVERNMENT RECORDS SEARCHED / DATA CURRENCY TRACKING



ICE:  ICE
Contains data pertaining to the Permitted Facilities with Inspections / Enforcements sites tracked in Envirostor.

Date of Government Version: 08/20/2018
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 08/21/2018
Date Made Active in Reports: 09/10/2018
Number of Days to Update: 20

Source:  Department of Toxic Subsances Control
Telephone:  877-786-9427
Last EDR Contact: 08/21/2018
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 12/03/2018
Data Release Frequency: Quarterly

HIST CORTESE:  Hazardous Waste & Substance Site List
The sites for the list are designated by the State Water Resource Control Board [LUST], the Integrated Waste Board
[SWF/LS], and the Department of Toxic Substances Control [CALSITES]. This listing is no longer updated by the
state agency.

Date of Government Version: 04/01/2001
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 01/22/2009
Date Made Active in Reports: 04/08/2009
Number of Days to Update: 76

Source:  Department of Toxic Substances Control
Telephone:  916-323-3400
Last EDR Contact: 01/22/2009
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: N/A
Data Release Frequency: No Update Planned

HWP:  EnviroStor Permitted Facilities Listing
Detailed information on permitted hazardous waste facilities and corrective action ("cleanups") tracked in EnviroStor.

Date of Government Version: 08/20/2018
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 08/21/2018
Date Made Active in Reports: 09/10/2018
Number of Days to Update: 20

Source:  Department of Toxic Substances Control
Telephone:  916-323-3400
Last EDR Contact: 08/21/2018
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 12/03/2018
Data Release Frequency: Quarterly

HWT:  Registered Hazardous Waste Transporter Database
A listing of hazardous waste transporters. In California, unless specifically exempted, it is unlawful for any
person to transport hazardous wastes unless the person holds a valid registration issued by DTSC. A hazardous
waste transporter registration is valid for one year and is assigned a unique registration number.

Date of Government Version: 07/09/2018
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 07/11/2018
Date Made Active in Reports: 08/24/2018
Number of Days to Update: 44

Source:  Department of Toxic Substances Control
Telephone:  916-440-7145
Last EDR Contact: 07/11/2018
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 10/22/2018
Data Release Frequency: Quarterly

MINES:  Mines Site Location Listing
A listing of mine site locations from the Office of Mine Reclamation.

Date of Government Version: 06/11/2018
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 06/13/2018
Date Made Active in Reports: 08/06/2018
Number of Days to Update: 54

Source:  Department of Conservation
Telephone:  916-322-1080
Last EDR Contact: 09/12/2018
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 12/24/2018
Data Release Frequency: Quarterly

MWMP:  Medical Waste Management Program Listing
The Medical Waste Management Program (MWMP) ensures the proper handling and disposal of medical waste by permitting
and inspecting medical waste Offsite Treatment Facilities (PDF) and Transfer Stations (PDF) throughout the
state. MWMP also oversees all Medical Waste Transporters.

Date of Government Version: 08/28/2018
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 09/05/2018
Date Made Active in Reports: 10/03/2018
Number of Days to Update: 28

Source:  Department of Public Health
Telephone:  916-558-1784
Last EDR Contact: 09/05/2018
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 12/17/2018
Data Release Frequency: Varies

TC5441284.2s     Page GR-29

GOVERNMENT RECORDS SEARCHED / DATA CURRENCY TRACKING



NPDES:  NPDES Permits Listing
A listing of NPDES permits, including stormwater.

Date of Government Version: 08/09/2018
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 08/10/2018
Date Made Active in Reports: 09/10/2018
Number of Days to Update: 31

Source:  State Water Resources Control Board
Telephone:  916-445-9379
Last EDR Contact: 08/10/2018
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 11/26/2018
Data Release Frequency: Quarterly

PEST LIC:  Pesticide Regulation Licenses Listing
A listing of licenses and certificates issued by the Department of Pesticide Regulation. The DPR issues licenses
and/or certificates to: Persons and businesses that apply or sell pesticides; Pest control dealers and brokers;
Persons who advise on agricultural pesticide applications.

Date of Government Version: 09/04/2018
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 09/05/2018
Date Made Active in Reports: 10/03/2018
Number of Days to Update: 28

Source:  Department of Pesticide Regulation
Telephone:  916-445-4038
Last EDR Contact: 09/05/2018
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 12/17/2018
Data Release Frequency: Quarterly

PROC:  Certified Processors Database
A listing of certified processors.

Date of Government Version: 06/11/2018
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 06/13/2018
Date Made Active in Reports: 08/06/2018
Number of Days to Update: 54

Source:  Department of Conservation
Telephone:  916-323-3836
Last EDR Contact: 09/12/2018
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 12/24/2018
Data Release Frequency: Quarterly

NOTIFY 65:  Proposition 65 Records
Listings of all Proposition 65 incidents reported to counties by the State Water Resources Control Board and the
Regional Water Quality Control Board. This database is no longer updated by the reporting agency.

Date of Government Version: 06/18/2018
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 06/20/2018
Date Made Active in Reports: 08/06/2018
Number of Days to Update: 47

Source:  State Water Resources Control Board
Telephone:  916-445-3846
Last EDR Contact: 09/17/2018
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 12/31/2018
Data Release Frequency: No Update Planned

UIC:  UIC Listing
A listing of wells identified as underground injection wells, in the California Oil and Gas Wells database.

Date of Government Version: 04/27/2018
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 06/13/2018
Date Made Active in Reports: 07/17/2018
Number of Days to Update: 34

Source:  Deaprtment of Conservation
Telephone:  916-445-2408
Last EDR Contact: 09/13/2018
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 12/24/2018
Data Release Frequency: Varies

WASTEWATER PITS:  Oil Wastewater Pits Listing
Water officials discovered that oil producers have been dumping chemical-laden wastewater into hundreds of unlined
pits that are operating without proper permits. Inspections completed by the Central Valley Regional Water Quality
Control Board revealed the existence of previously unidentified waste sites. The water boards review found that
more than one-third of the region’s active disposal pits are operating without permission.

Date of Government Version: 05/08/2018
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 07/11/2018
Date Made Active in Reports: 09/13/2018
Number of Days to Update: 64

Source:  RWQCB, Central Valley Region
Telephone:  559-445-5577
Last EDR Contact: 07/11/2018
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 10/22/2018
Data Release Frequency: Varies

TC5441284.2s     Page GR-30

GOVERNMENT RECORDS SEARCHED / DATA CURRENCY TRACKING



WDS:  Waste Discharge System
Sites which have been issued waste discharge requirements.

Date of Government Version: 06/19/2007
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 06/20/2007
Date Made Active in Reports: 06/29/2007
Number of Days to Update: 9

Source:  State Water Resources Control Board
Telephone:  916-341-5227
Last EDR Contact: 08/17/2018
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 12/03/2018
Data Release Frequency: Quarterly

WIP:  Well Investigation Program Case List
Well Investigation Program case in the San Gabriel and San Fernando Valley area.

Date of Government Version: 07/03/2009
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 07/21/2009
Date Made Active in Reports: 08/03/2009
Number of Days to Update: 13

Source:  Los Angeles Water Quality Control Board
Telephone:  213-576-6726
Last EDR Contact: 09/25/2018
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 01/07/2019
Data Release Frequency: Varies

WDR:  Waste Discharge Requirements Listing
In general, the Waste Discharge Requirements (WDRs) Program (sometimes also referred to as the "Non Chapter
15 (Non 15) Program") regulates point discharges that are exempt pursuant to Subsection 20090 of Title 27 and
not subject to the Federal Water Pollution Control Act. Exemptions from Title 27 may be granted for nine categories
of discharges (e.g., sewage, wastewater, etc.) that meet, and continue to meet, the preconditions listed for
each specific exemption. The scope of the WDRs Program also includes the discharge of wastes classified as inert,
pursuant to section 20230 of Title 27.

Date of Government Version: 06/11/2018
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 06/13/2018
Date Made Active in Reports: 09/14/2018
Number of Days to Update: 93

Source:  State Water Resources Control Board
Telephone:  916-341-5810
Last EDR Contact: 09/12/2018
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 12/24/2018
Data Release Frequency: Quarterly

WELL STIM PROJ:  Well Stimulation Project (GEOTRACKER)
Includes areas of groundwater monitoring plans, a depiction of the monitoring network, and the facilities, boundaries,
and subsurface characteristics of the oilfield and the features (oil and gas wells, produced water ponds, UIC
wells, water supply wells, etc?) being monitored

Date of Government Version: 06/11/2018
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 06/13/2018
Date Made Active in Reports: 07/18/2018
Number of Days to Update: 35

Source:  State Water Resources Control Board
Telephone:  866-480-1028
Last EDR Contact: 12/12/2018
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 12/24/2018
Data Release Frequency: Varies

PROD WATER PONDS:  Produced Water Ponds Sites (GEOTRACKER)
Produced water ponds sites

Date of Government Version: 06/11/2018
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 06/13/2018
Date Made Active in Reports: 07/18/2018
Number of Days to Update: 35

Source:  State Water Resources Control Board
Telephone:  866-480-1028
Last EDR Contact: 12/12/2018
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 12/24/2018
Data Release Frequency: Varies

UIC GEO:  Underground Injection Control Sites (GEOTRACKER)
Underground control injection sites

Date of Government Version: 06/11/2018
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 06/13/2018
Date Made Active in Reports: 07/18/2018
Number of Days to Update: 35

Source:  State Water Resource Control Board
Telephone:  866-480-1028
Last EDR Contact: 12/12/2018
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 12/24/2018
Data Release Frequency: Varies

TC5441284.2s     Page GR-31

GOVERNMENT RECORDS SEARCHED / DATA CURRENCY TRACKING



SAMPLING POINT:  Sampling Point ? Public Sites (GEOTRACKER)
Sampling point - public sites

Date of Government Version: 06/11/2018
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 06/13/2018
Date Made Active in Reports: 07/18/2018
Number of Days to Update: 35

Source:  State Water Resources Control Board
Telephone:  866-480-1028
Last EDR Contact: 12/12/2018
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 12/24/2018
Data Release Frequency: Varies

PROJECT:  Project Sites (GEOTRACKER)
Projects sites

Date of Government Version: 06/11/2018
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 06/13/2018
Date Made Active in Reports: 07/18/2018
Number of Days to Update: 35

Source:  State Water Resources Control Board
Telephone:  866-480-1028
Last EDR Contact: 12/12/2018
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 12/24/2018
Data Release Frequency: Varies

CERS:  CalEPA Regulated Site Portal Data
The CalEPA Regulated Site Portal database combines data about environmentally regulated sites and facilities in
California into a single database. It combines data from a variety of state and federal databases, and provides
an overview of regulated activities across the spectrum of environmental programs for any given location in California.
These activities include hazardous materials and waste, state and federal cleanups, impacted ground and surface
waters, and toxic materials

Date of Government Version: 07/23/2018
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 07/25/2018
Date Made Active in Reports: 09/05/2018
Number of Days to Update: 42

Source:  California Environmental Protection Agency
Telephone:  916-323-2514
Last EDR Contact: 07/25/2018
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 11/05/2018
Data Release Frequency: Varies

MILITARY PRIV SITES:  Military Privatized Sites (GEOTRACKER)
Military privatized sites

Date of Government Version: 06/11/2018
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 06/13/2018
Date Made Active in Reports: 07/18/2018
Number of Days to Update: 35

Source:  State Water Resources Control Board
Telephone:  866-480-1028
Last EDR Contact: 12/12/2018
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 12/24/2018
Data Release Frequency: Varies

OTHER OIL GAS:  Other Oil & Gas Projects Sites (GEOTRACKER)
Other Oil & Gas Projects sites

Date of Government Version: 06/11/2018
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 06/13/2018
Date Made Active in Reports: 07/18/2018
Number of Days to Update: 35

Source:  State Water Resources Control Board
Telephone:  866-480-1028
Last EDR Contact: 12/12/2018
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 12/24/2018
Data Release Frequency: Varies

NON-CASE INFO:  Non-Case Information Sites (GEOTRACKER)
Non-Case Information sites

Date of Government Version: 06/11/2018
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 06/13/2018
Date Made Active in Reports: 07/18/2018
Number of Days to Update: 35

Source:  State Water Resources Control Board
Telephone:  866-480-1028
Last EDR Contact: 12/12/2018
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 12/24/2018
Data Release Frequency: Varies

CIWQS:  California Integrated Water Quality System
The California Integrated Water Quality System (CIWQS) is a computer system used by the State and Regional Water
Quality Control Boards to track information about places of environmental interest, manage permits and other orders,
track inspections, and manage violations and enforcement activities.

TC5441284.2s     Page GR-32

GOVERNMENT RECORDS SEARCHED / DATA CURRENCY TRACKING



Date of Government Version: 09/04/2018
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 09/05/2018
Date Made Active in Reports: 10/02/2018
Number of Days to Update: 27

Source:  State Water Resources Control Board
Telephone:  866-794-4977
Last EDR Contact: 09/05/2018
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 12/17/2018
Data Release Frequency: Varies

EDR HIGH RISK HISTORICAL RECORDS

EDR Exclusive Records

EDR MGP:  EDR Proprietary Manufactured Gas Plants
The EDR Proprietary Manufactured Gas Plant Database includes records of coal gas plants (manufactured gas plants)
compiled by EDR’s researchers. Manufactured gas sites were used in the United States from the 1800’s to 1950’s
to produce a gas that could be distributed and used as fuel. These plants used whale oil, rosin, coal, or a mixture
of coal, oil, and water that also produced a significant amount of waste. Many of the byproducts of the gas production,
such as coal tar (oily waste containing volatile and non-volatile chemicals), sludges, oils and other compounds
are potentially hazardous to human health and the environment. The byproduct from this process was frequently
disposed of directly at the plant site and can remain or spread slowly, serving as a continuous source of soil
and groundwater contamination.

Date of Government Version: N/A
Date Data Arrived at EDR: N/A
Date Made Active in Reports: N/A
Number of Days to Update: N/A

Source:  EDR, Inc.
Telephone:  N/A
Last EDR Contact: N/A
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: N/A
Data Release Frequency: No Update Planned

EDR Hist Auto:  EDR Exclusive Historical Auto Stations
EDR has searched selected national collections of business directories and has collected listings of potential
gas station/filling station/service station sites that were available to EDR researchers. EDR’s review was limited
to those categories of sources that might, in EDR’s opinion, include gas station/filling station/service station
establishments. The categories reviewed included, but were not limited to gas, gas station, gasoline station,
filling station, auto, automobile repair, auto service station, service station, etc. This database falls within
a category of information EDR classifies as "High Risk Historical Records", or HRHR. EDR’s HRHR effort presents
unique and sometimes proprietary data about past sites and operations that typically create environmental concerns,
but may not show up in current government records searches.

Date of Government Version: N/A
Date Data Arrived at EDR: N/A
Date Made Active in Reports: N/A
Number of Days to Update: N/A

Source:  EDR, Inc.
Telephone:  N/A
Last EDR Contact: N/A
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: N/A
Data Release Frequency: Varies

EDR Hist Cleaner:  EDR Exclusive Historical Cleaners
EDR has searched selected national collections of business directories and has collected listings of potential
dry cleaner sites that were available to EDR researchers. EDR’s review was limited to those categories of sources
that might, in EDR’s opinion, include dry cleaning establishments. The categories reviewed included, but were
not limited to dry cleaners, cleaners, laundry, laundromat, cleaning/laundry, wash & dry etc. This database falls
within a category of information EDR classifies as "High Risk Historical Records", or HRHR. EDR’s HRHR effort
presents unique and sometimes proprietary data about past sites and operations that typically create environmental
concerns, but may not show up in current government records searches.

Date of Government Version: N/A
Date Data Arrived at EDR: N/A
Date Made Active in Reports: N/A
Number of Days to Update: N/A

Source:  EDR, Inc.
Telephone:  N/A
Last EDR Contact: N/A
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: N/A
Data Release Frequency: Varies

EDR RECOVERED GOVERNMENT ARCHIVES

Exclusive Recovered Govt. Archives

TC5441284.2s     Page GR-33

GOVERNMENT RECORDS SEARCHED / DATA CURRENCY TRACKING



RGA LF:  Recovered Government Archive Solid Waste Facilities List
The EDR Recovered Government Archive Landfill database provides a list of landfills derived from historical databases
and includes many records that no longer appear in current government lists. Compiled from Records formerly available
from the Department of Resources Recycling and Recovery in California.

Date of Government Version: N/A
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 07/01/2013
Date Made Active in Reports: 01/13/2014
Number of Days to Update: 196

Source:  Department of Resources Recycling and Recovery
Telephone:  N/A
Last EDR Contact: 06/01/2012
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: N/A
Data Release Frequency: Varies

RGA LUST:  Recovered Government Archive Leaking Underground Storage Tank
The EDR Recovered Government Archive Leaking Underground Storage Tank database provides a list of LUST incidents
derived from historical databases and includes many records that no longer appear in current government lists.
Compiled from Records formerly available from the State Water Resources Control Board in California.

Date of Government Version: N/A
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 07/01/2013
Date Made Active in Reports: 12/30/2013
Number of Days to Update: 182

Source:  State Water Resources Control Board
Telephone:  N/A
Last EDR Contact: 06/01/2012
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: N/A
Data Release Frequency: Varies

COUNTY RECORDS

ALAMEDA COUNTY:

CS ALAMEDA:  Contaminated Sites
A listing of contaminated sites overseen by the Toxic Release Program (oil and groundwater contamination from
chemical releases and spills) and the Leaking Underground Storage Tank Program (soil and ground water contamination
from leaking petroleum USTs).

Date of Government Version: 08/03/2018
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 08/06/2018
Date Made Active in Reports: 09/05/2018
Number of Days to Update: 30

Source:  Alameda County Environmental Health Services
Telephone:  510-567-6700
Last EDR Contact: 08/01/2018
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 10/22/2018
Data Release Frequency: Semi-Annually

UST ALAMEDA:  Underground Tanks
Underground storage tank sites located in Alameda county.

Date of Government Version: 07/06/2018
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 07/10/2018
Date Made Active in Reports: 09/11/2018
Number of Days to Update: 63

Source:  Alameda County Environmental Health Services
Telephone:  510-567-6700
Last EDR Contact: 07/05/2018
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 04/24/2047
Data Release Frequency: Semi-Annually

AMADOR COUNTY:

CUPA AMADOR:  CUPA Facility List
Cupa Facility List

Date of Government Version: 07/01/2018
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 07/24/2018
Date Made Active in Reports: 08/20/2018
Number of Days to Update: 27

Source:  Amador County Environmental Health
Telephone:  209-223-6439
Last EDR Contact: 08/29/2018
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 12/17/2018
Data Release Frequency: Varies

BUTTE COUNTY:

TC5441284.2s     Page GR-34

GOVERNMENT RECORDS SEARCHED / DATA CURRENCY TRACKING



CUPA BUTTE:  CUPA Facility Listing
Cupa facility list.

Date of Government Version: 04/21/2017
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 04/25/2017
Date Made Active in Reports: 08/09/2017
Number of Days to Update: 106

Source:  Public Health Department
Telephone:  530-538-7149
Last EDR Contact: 07/05/2018
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 10/22/2018
Data Release Frequency: No Update Planned

CALVERAS COUNTY:

CUPA CALVERAS:  CUPA Facility Listing
Cupa Facility Listing

Date of Government Version: 08/02/2018
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 08/06/2018
Date Made Active in Reports: 08/20/2018
Number of Days to Update: 14

Source:  Calveras County Environmental Health
Telephone:  209-754-6399
Last EDR Contact: 09/24/2018
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 01/07/2019
Data Release Frequency: Quarterly

COLUSA COUNTY:

CUPA COLUSA:  CUPA Facility List
Cupa facility list.

Date of Government Version: 05/23/2018
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 05/24/2018
Date Made Active in Reports: 07/13/2018
Number of Days to Update: 50

Source:  Health & Human Services
Telephone:  530-458-0396
Last EDR Contact: 08/17/2018
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 11/19/2018
Data Release Frequency: Semi-Annually

CONTRA COSTA COUNTY:

SL CONTRA COSTA:  Site List
List includes sites from the underground tank, hazardous waste generator and business plan/2185 programs.

Date of Government Version: 08/20/2018
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 08/21/2018
Date Made Active in Reports: 09/11/2018
Number of Days to Update: 21

Source:  Contra Costa Health Services Department
Telephone:  925-646-2286
Last EDR Contact: 07/30/2018
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 11/12/2018
Data Release Frequency: Semi-Annually

DEL NORTE COUNTY:

CUPA DEL NORTE:  CUPA Facility List
Cupa Facility list

Date of Government Version: 04/27/2018
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 05/02/2018
Date Made Active in Reports: 06/15/2018
Number of Days to Update: 44

Source:  Del Norte County Environmental Health Division
Telephone:  707-465-0426
Last EDR Contact: 07/24/2018
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 11/12/2018
Data Release Frequency: Varies

EL DORADO COUNTY:

TC5441284.2s     Page GR-35

GOVERNMENT RECORDS SEARCHED / DATA CURRENCY TRACKING



CUPA EL DORADO:  CUPA Facility List
CUPA facility list.

Date of Government Version: 09/04/2018
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 09/05/2018
Date Made Active in Reports: 09/18/2018
Number of Days to Update: 13

Source:  El Dorado County Environmental Management Department
Telephone:  530-621-6623
Last EDR Contact: 07/30/2018
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 11/12/2018
Data Release Frequency: Varies

FRESNO COUNTY:

CUPA FRESNO:  CUPA Resources List
Certified Unified Program Agency. CUPA’s are responsible for implementing a unified hazardous materials and hazardous
waste management regulatory program. The agency provides oversight of businesses that deal with hazardous materials,
operate underground storage tanks or aboveground storage tanks.

Date of Government Version: 07/11/2018
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 07/17/2018
Date Made Active in Reports: 08/30/2018
Number of Days to Update: 44

Source:  Dept. of Community Health
Telephone:  559-445-3271
Last EDR Contact: 10/01/2019
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 01/14/2019
Data Release Frequency: Semi-Annually

GLENN COUNTY:

CUPA GLENN:  CUPA Facility List
Cupa facility list

Date of Government Version: 01/22/2018
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 01/24/2018
Date Made Active in Reports: 03/14/2018
Number of Days to Update: 49

Source:  Glenn County Air Pollution Control District
Telephone:  830-934-6500
Last EDR Contact: 07/17/2018
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 11/05/2018
Data Release Frequency: Varies

HUMBOLDT COUNTY:

CUPA HUMBOLDT:  CUPA Facility List
CUPA facility list.

Date of Government Version: 07/11/2018
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 07/13/2018
Date Made Active in Reports: 08/22/2018
Number of Days to Update: 40

Source:  Humboldt County Environmental Health
Telephone:  N/A
Last EDR Contact: 08/20/2018
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 12/03/2018
Data Release Frequency: Semi-Annually

IMPERIAL COUNTY:

CUPA IMPERIAL:  CUPA Facility List
Cupa facility list.

Date of Government Version: 07/17/2018
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 07/24/2018
Date Made Active in Reports: 09/05/2018
Number of Days to Update: 43

Source:  San Diego Border Field Office
Telephone:  760-339-2777
Last EDR Contact: 07/17/2018
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 11/05/2018
Data Release Frequency: Varies

INYO COUNTY:

TC5441284.2s     Page GR-36

GOVERNMENT RECORDS SEARCHED / DATA CURRENCY TRACKING



CUPA INYO:  CUPA Facility List
Cupa facility list.

Date of Government Version: 04/02/2018
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 04/03/2018
Date Made Active in Reports: 06/14/2018
Number of Days to Update: 72

Source:  Inyo County Environmental Health Services
Telephone:  760-878-0238
Last EDR Contact: 10/01/2018
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 12/03/2018
Data Release Frequency: Varies

KERN COUNTY:

UST KERN:  Underground Storage Tank Sites & Tank Listing
Kern County Sites and Tanks Listing.

Date of Government Version: 07/20/2018
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 07/25/2018
Date Made Active in Reports: 09/12/2018
Number of Days to Update: 49

Source:  Kern County Environment Health Services Department
Telephone:  661-862-8700
Last EDR Contact: 07/20/2018
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 11/19/2018
Data Release Frequency: Quarterly

KINGS COUNTY:

CUPA KINGS:  CUPA Facility List
A listing of sites included in the county’s Certified Unified Program Agency database. California’s Secretary
for Environmental Protection established the unified hazardous materials and hazardous waste regulatory program
as required by chapter 6.11 of the California Health and Safety Code. The Unified Program consolidates the administration,
permits, inspections, and enforcement activities.

Date of Government Version: 08/23/2018
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 08/24/2018
Date Made Active in Reports: 09/18/2018
Number of Days to Update: 25

Source:  Kings County Department of Public Health
Telephone:  559-584-1411
Last EDR Contact: 08/17/2018
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 12/03/2018
Data Release Frequency: Varies

LAKE COUNTY:

CUPA LAKE:  CUPA Facility List
Cupa facility list

Date of Government Version: 08/08/2018
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 08/09/2018
Date Made Active in Reports: 08/22/2018
Number of Days to Update: 13

Source:  Lake County Environmental Health
Telephone:  707-263-1164
Last EDR Contact: 07/16/2018
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 10/29/2018
Data Release Frequency: Varies

LASSEN COUNTY:

CUPA LASSEN:  CUPA Facility List
Cupa facility list

Date of Government Version: 07/27/2018
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 08/06/2018
Date Made Active in Reports: 09/05/2018
Number of Days to Update: 30

Source:  Lassen County Environmental Health
Telephone:  530-251-8528
Last EDR Contact: 08/01/2018
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 11/05/2018
Data Release Frequency: Varies

LOS ANGELES COUNTY:

TC5441284.2s     Page GR-37

GOVERNMENT RECORDS SEARCHED / DATA CURRENCY TRACKING



AOCONCERN:  San Gabriel Valley Areas of Concern
San Gabriel Valley areas where VOC contamination is at or above the MCL as designated by region 9 EPA office.

Date of Government Version: 03/30/2009
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 03/31/2009
Date Made Active in Reports: 10/23/2009
Number of Days to Update: 206

Source:  EPA Region 9
Telephone:  415-972-3178
Last EDR Contact: 09/17/2018
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 12/31/2018
Data Release Frequency: No Update Planned

HMS LOS ANGELES:  HMS: Street Number List
Industrial Waste and Underground Storage Tank Sites.

Date of Government Version: 07/02/2018
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 07/13/2018
Date Made Active in Reports: 09/10/2018
Number of Days to Update: 59

Source:  Department of Public Works
Telephone:  626-458-3517
Last EDR Contact: 07/05/2018
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 10/22/2018
Data Release Frequency: Semi-Annually

LF LOS ANGELES:  List of Solid Waste Facilities
Solid Waste Facilities in Los Angeles County.

Date of Government Version: 07/16/2018
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 07/18/2018
Date Made Active in Reports: 08/24/2018
Number of Days to Update: 37

Source:  La County Department of Public Works
Telephone:  818-458-5185
Last EDR Contact: 07/18/2018
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 10/29/2018
Data Release Frequency: Varies

LF LOS ANGELES CITY:  City of Los Angeles Landfills
Landfills owned and maintained by the City of Los Angeles.

Date of Government Version: 01/01/2018
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 05/01/2018
Date Made Active in Reports: 05/14/2018
Number of Days to Update: 13

Source:  Engineering & Construction Division
Telephone:  213-473-7869
Last EDR Contact: 07/11/2018
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 10/29/2018
Data Release Frequency: Varies

SITE MIT LOS ANGELES:  Site Mitigation List
Industrial sites that have had some sort of spill or complaint.

Date of Government Version: 04/01/2018
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 04/17/2018
Date Made Active in Reports: 06/19/2018
Number of Days to Update: 63

Source:  Community Health Services
Telephone:  323-890-7806
Last EDR Contact: 07/20/2018
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 10/29/2018
Data Release Frequency: Annually

UST EL SEGUNDO:  City of El Segundo Underground Storage Tank
Underground storage tank sites located in El Segundo city.

Date of Government Version: 01/21/2017
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 04/19/2017
Date Made Active in Reports: 05/10/2017
Number of Days to Update: 21

Source:  City of El Segundo Fire Department
Telephone:  310-524-2236
Last EDR Contact: 07/11/2018
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 10/29/2018
Data Release Frequency: Semi-Annually

UST LONG BEACH:  City of Long Beach Underground Storage Tank
Underground storage tank sites located in the city of Long Beach.

Date of Government Version: 03/09/2017
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 03/10/2017
Date Made Active in Reports: 05/03/2017
Number of Days to Update: 54

Source:  City of Long Beach Fire Department
Telephone:  562-570-2563
Last EDR Contact: 07/17/2018
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 11/05/2018
Data Release Frequency: Annually

TC5441284.2s     Page GR-38

GOVERNMENT RECORDS SEARCHED / DATA CURRENCY TRACKING



UST TORRANCE:  City of Torrance Underground Storage Tank
Underground storage tank sites located in the city of Torrance.

Date of Government Version: 01/04/2018
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 01/05/2018
Date Made Active in Reports: 01/18/2018
Number of Days to Update: 13

Source:  City of Torrance Fire Department
Telephone:  310-618-2973
Last EDR Contact: 07/23/2018
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 10/22/2018
Data Release Frequency: Semi-Annually

MADERA COUNTY:

CUPA MADERA:  CUPA Facility List
A listing of sites included in the county’s Certified Unified Program Agency database. California’s Secretary
for Environmental Protection established the unified hazardous materials and hazardous waste regulatory program
as required by chapter 6.11 of the California Health and Safety Code. The Unified Program consolidates the administration,
permits, inspections, and enforcement activities.

Date of Government Version: 08/30/2018
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 09/04/2018
Date Made Active in Reports: 09/19/2018
Number of Days to Update: 15

Source:  Madera County Environmental Health
Telephone:  559-675-7823
Last EDR Contact: 08/17/2018
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 12/03/2018
Data Release Frequency: Varies

MARIN COUNTY:

UST MARIN:  Underground Storage Tank Sites
Currently permitted USTs in Marin County.

Date of Government Version: 07/11/2018
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 07/17/2018
Date Made Active in Reports: 09/12/2018
Number of Days to Update: 57

Source:  Public Works Department Waste Management
Telephone:  415-473-6647
Last EDR Contact: 10/01/2018
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 01/14/2019
Data Release Frequency: Semi-Annually

MERCED COUNTY:

CUPA MERCED:  CUPA Facility List
CUPA facility list.

Date of Government Version: 08/29/2018
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 08/31/2018
Date Made Active in Reports: 09/19/2018
Number of Days to Update: 19

Source:  Merced County Environmental Health
Telephone:  209-381-1094
Last EDR Contact: 08/29/2018
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 12/03/2018
Data Release Frequency: Varies

MONO COUNTY:

CUPA MONO:  CUPA Facility List
CUPA Facility List

Date of Government Version: 07/18/2018
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 09/04/2018
Date Made Active in Reports: 09/19/2018
Number of Days to Update: 15

Source:  Mono County Health Department
Telephone:  760-932-5580
Last EDR Contact: 08/24/2018
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 12/10/2018
Data Release Frequency: Varies

MONTEREY COUNTY:

TC5441284.2s     Page GR-39

GOVERNMENT RECORDS SEARCHED / DATA CURRENCY TRACKING



CUPA MONTEREY:  CUPA Facility Listing
CUPA Program listing from the Environmental Health Division.

Date of Government Version: 07/30/2018
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 08/02/2018
Date Made Active in Reports: 09/05/2018
Number of Days to Update: 34

Source:  Monterey County Health Department
Telephone:  831-796-1297
Last EDR Contact: 10/01/2018
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 01/14/2019
Data Release Frequency: Varies

NAPA COUNTY:

LUST NAPA:  Sites With Reported Contamination
A listing of leaking underground storage tank sites located in Napa county.

Date of Government Version: 01/09/2017
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 01/11/2017
Date Made Active in Reports: 03/02/2017
Number of Days to Update: 50

Source:  Napa County Department of Environmental Management
Telephone:  707-253-4269
Last EDR Contact: 08/24/2018
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 12/10/2018
Data Release Frequency: No Update Planned

UST NAPA:  Closed and Operating Underground Storage Tank Sites
Underground storage tank sites located in Napa county.

Date of Government Version: 08/27/2018
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 08/28/2018
Date Made Active in Reports: 10/03/2018
Number of Days to Update: 36

Source:  Napa County Department of Environmental Management
Telephone:  707-253-4269
Last EDR Contact: 08/24/2018
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 12/10/2018
Data Release Frequency: No Update Planned

NEVADA COUNTY:

CUPA NEVADA:  CUPA Facility List
CUPA facility list.

Date of Government Version: 07/31/2018
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 08/02/2018
Date Made Active in Reports: 09/05/2018
Number of Days to Update: 34

Source:  Community Development Agency
Telephone:  530-265-1467
Last EDR Contact: 07/24/2018
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 11/12/2018
Data Release Frequency: Varies

ORANGE COUNTY:

IND_SITE ORANGE:  List of Industrial Site Cleanups
Petroleum and non-petroleum spills.

Date of Government Version: 07/13/2018
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 08/08/2018
Date Made Active in Reports: 09/10/2018
Number of Days to Update: 33

Source:  Health Care Agency
Telephone:  714-834-3446
Last EDR Contact: 05/07/2018
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 11/19/2018
Data Release Frequency: Annually

LUST ORANGE:  List of Underground Storage Tank Cleanups
Orange County Underground Storage Tank Cleanups (LUST).

Date of Government Version: 07/13/2018
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 08/08/2018
Date Made Active in Reports: 09/10/2018
Number of Days to Update: 33

Source:  Health Care Agency
Telephone:  714-834-3446
Last EDR Contact: 08/03/2018
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 11/19/2018
Data Release Frequency: Quarterly

TC5441284.2s     Page GR-40

GOVERNMENT RECORDS SEARCHED / DATA CURRENCY TRACKING



UST ORANGE:  List of Underground Storage Tank Facilities
Orange County Underground Storage Tank Facilities (UST).

Date of Government Version: 07/13/2018
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 08/06/2018
Date Made Active in Reports: 09/12/2018
Number of Days to Update: 37

Source:  Health Care Agency
Telephone:  714-834-3446
Last EDR Contact: 08/06/2018
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 11/19/2018
Data Release Frequency: Quarterly

PLACER COUNTY:

MS PLACER:  Master List of Facilities
List includes aboveground tanks, underground tanks and cleanup sites.

Date of Government Version: 09/04/2018
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 09/06/2018
Date Made Active in Reports: 10/03/2018
Number of Days to Update: 27

Source:  Placer County Health and Human Services
Telephone:  530-745-2363
Last EDR Contact: 08/29/2018
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 12/17/2018
Data Release Frequency: Semi-Annually

PLUMAS COUNTY:

CUPA PLUMAS:  CUPA Facility List
Plumas County CUPA Program facilities.

Date of Government Version: 07/19/2018
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 07/25/2018
Date Made Active in Reports: 09/05/2018
Number of Days to Update: 42

Source:  Plumas County Environmental Health
Telephone:  530-283-6355
Last EDR Contact: 07/17/2018
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 11/05/2018
Data Release Frequency: Varies

RIVERSIDE COUNTY:

LUST RIVERSIDE:  Listing of Underground Tank Cleanup Sites
Riverside County Underground Storage Tank Cleanup Sites (LUST).

Date of Government Version: 07/09/2018
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 07/13/2018
Date Made Active in Reports: 08/24/2018
Number of Days to Update: 42

Source:  Department of Environmental Health
Telephone:  951-358-5055
Last EDR Contact: 09/17/2018
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 12/31/2018
Data Release Frequency: Quarterly

UST RIVERSIDE:  Underground Storage Tank Tank List
Underground storage tank sites located in Riverside county.

Date of Government Version: 07/09/2018
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 07/13/2018
Date Made Active in Reports: 09/12/2018
Number of Days to Update: 61

Source:  Department of Environmental Health
Telephone:  951-358-5055
Last EDR Contact: 09/17/2018
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 12/31/2018
Data Release Frequency: Quarterly

SACRAMENTO COUNTY:

CS SACRAMENTO:  Toxic Site Clean-Up List
List of sites where unauthorized releases of potentially hazardous materials have occurred. 

TC5441284.2s     Page GR-41

GOVERNMENT RECORDS SEARCHED / DATA CURRENCY TRACKING



Date of Government Version: 05/07/2018
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 07/03/2018
Date Made Active in Reports: 08/13/2018
Number of Days to Update: 41

Source:  Sacramento County Environmental Management
Telephone:  916-875-8406
Last EDR Contact: 10/02/2018
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 01/14/2019
Data Release Frequency: Quarterly

ML SACRAMENTO:  Master Hazardous Materials Facility List
Any business that has hazardous materials on site - hazardous material storage sites, underground storage tanks,
waste generators.

Date of Government Version: 05/14/2018
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 07/03/2018
Date Made Active in Reports: 08/13/2018
Number of Days to Update: 41

Source:  Sacramento County Environmental Management
Telephone:  916-875-8406
Last EDR Contact: 10/02/2018
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 01/14/2019
Data Release Frequency: Quarterly

SAN BENITO COUNTY:

CUPA SAN BENITO:  CUPA Facility List
Cupa facility list

Date of Government Version: 08/07/2018
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 08/09/2018
Date Made Active in Reports: 09/05/2018
Number of Days to Update: 27

Source:  San Benito County Environmental Health
Telephone:  N/A
Last EDR Contact: 08/01/2018
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 11/19/2018
Data Release Frequency: Varies

SAN BERNARDINO COUNTY:

PERMITS SAN BERNARDINO:  Hazardous Material Permits
This listing includes underground storage tanks, medical waste handlers/generators, hazardous materials handlers,
hazardous waste generators, and waste oil generators/handlers.

Date of Government Version: 07/27/2018
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 07/31/2018
Date Made Active in Reports: 09/10/2018
Number of Days to Update: 41

Source:  San Bernardino County Fire Department Hazardous Materials Division
Telephone:  909-387-3041
Last EDR Contact: 07/24/2018
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 11/19/2018
Data Release Frequency: Quarterly

SAN DIEGO COUNTY:

HMMD SAN DIEGO:  Hazardous Materials Management Division Database
The database includes: HE58 - This report contains the business name, site address, business phone number, establishment
’H’ permit number, type of permit, and the business status. HE17 - In addition to providing the same information
provided in the HE58 listing, HE17 provides inspection dates, violations received by the establishment, hazardous
waste generated, the quantity, method of storage, treatment/disposal of waste and the hauler, and information
on underground storage tanks. Unauthorized Release List - Includes a summary of environmental contamination cases
in San Diego County (underground tank cases, non-tank cases, groundwater contamination, and soil contamination
are included.)

Date of Government Version: 06/04/2018
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 06/06/2018
Date Made Active in Reports: 07/17/2018
Number of Days to Update: 41

Source:  Hazardous Materials Management Division
Telephone:  619-338-2268
Last EDR Contact: 09/06/2018
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 12/17/2018
Data Release Frequency: Quarterly

TC5441284.2s     Page GR-42

GOVERNMENT RECORDS SEARCHED / DATA CURRENCY TRACKING



LF SAN DIEGO:  Solid Waste Facilities
San Diego County Solid Waste Facilities.

Date of Government Version: 04/18/2018
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 04/24/2018
Date Made Active in Reports: 06/19/2018
Number of Days to Update: 56

Source:  Department of Health Services
Telephone:  619-338-2209
Last EDR Contact: 07/17/2018
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 11/05/2018
Data Release Frequency: Varies

SAN DIEGO CO LOP:  Local Oversight Program Listing
A listing of all LOP release sites that are or were under the County of San Diego’s jurisdiction. Included are
closed or transferred cases, open cases, and cases that did not have a case type indicated. The cases without
a case type are mostly complaints; however, some of them could be LOP cases.

Date of Government Version: 07/17/2018
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 07/24/2018
Date Made Active in Reports: 08/24/2018
Number of Days to Update: 31

Source:  Department of Environmental Health
Telephone:  858-505-6874
Last EDR Contact: 07/17/2018
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 11/05/2018
Data Release Frequency: Varies

SAN DIEGO CO. SAM:  Environmental Case Listing
The listing contains all underground tank release cases and projects pertaining to properties contaminated with
hazardous substances that are actively under review by the Site Assessment and Mitigation Program.

Date of Government Version: 03/23/2010
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 06/15/2010
Date Made Active in Reports: 07/09/2010
Number of Days to Update: 24

Source:  San Diego County Department of Environmental Health
Telephone:  619-338-2371
Last EDR Contact: 08/29/2018
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 12/17/2018
Data Release Frequency: No Update Planned

SAN FRANCISCO COUNTY:

LUST SAN FRANCISCO:  Local Oversite Facilities
A listing of leaking underground storage tank sites located in San Francisco county.

Date of Government Version: 09/19/2008
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 09/19/2008
Date Made Active in Reports: 09/29/2008
Number of Days to Update: 10

Source:  Department Of Public Health San Francisco County
Telephone:  415-252-3920
Last EDR Contact: 08/01/2018
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 11/19/2018
Data Release Frequency: Quarterly

UST SAN FRANCISCO:  Underground Storage Tank Information
Underground storage tank sites located in San Francisco county.

Date of Government Version: 09/17/2018
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 09/18/2018
Date Made Active in Reports: 10/03/2018
Number of Days to Update: 15

Source:  Department of Public Health
Telephone:  415-252-3920
Last EDR Contact: 08/01/2018
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 11/19/2018
Data Release Frequency: Quarterly

SAN JOAQUIN COUNTY:

UST SAN JOAQUIN:  San Joaquin Co. UST
A listing of underground storage tank locations in San Joaquin county.

Date of Government Version: 06/22/2018
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 06/26/2018
Date Made Active in Reports: 07/11/2018
Number of Days to Update: 15

Source:  Environmental Health Department
Telephone:  N/A
Last EDR Contact: 09/17/2018
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 12/31/2018
Data Release Frequency: Semi-Annually

SAN LUIS OBISPO COUNTY:

TC5441284.2s     Page GR-43

GOVERNMENT RECORDS SEARCHED / DATA CURRENCY TRACKING



CUPA SAN LUIS OBISPO:  CUPA Facility List
Cupa Facility List.

Date of Government Version: 08/20/2018
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 08/21/2018
Date Made Active in Reports: 09/07/2018
Number of Days to Update: 17

Source:  San Luis Obispo County Public Health Department
Telephone:  805-781-5596
Last EDR Contact: 08/17/2018
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 12/03/2018
Data Release Frequency: Varies

SAN MATEO COUNTY:

BI SAN MATEO:  Business Inventory
List includes Hazardous Materials Business Plan, hazardous waste generators, and underground storage tanks.

Date of Government Version: 06/12/2018
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 06/15/2018
Date Made Active in Reports: 08/06/2018
Number of Days to Update: 52

Source:  San Mateo County Environmental Health Services Division
Telephone:  650-363-1921
Last EDR Contact: 09/10/2018
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 12/24/2018
Data Release Frequency: Annually

LUST SAN MATEO:  Fuel Leak List
A listing of leaking underground storage tank sites located in San Mateo county.

Date of Government Version: 06/12/2018
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 06/15/2018
Date Made Active in Reports: 08/13/2018
Number of Days to Update: 59

Source:  San Mateo County Environmental Health Services Division
Telephone:  650-363-1921
Last EDR Contact: 09/10/2018
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 12/24/2018
Data Release Frequency: Semi-Annually

SANTA BARBARA COUNTY:

CUPA SANTA BARBARA:  CUPA Facility Listing
CUPA Program Listing from the Environmental Health Services division.

Date of Government Version: 09/08/2011
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 09/09/2011
Date Made Active in Reports: 10/07/2011
Number of Days to Update: 28

Source:  Santa Barbara County Public Health Department
Telephone:  805-686-8167
Last EDR Contact: 08/17/2018
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 12/03/2018
Data Release Frequency: Varies

SANTA CLARA COUNTY:

CUPA SANTA CLARA:  Cupa Facility List
Cupa facility list

Date of Government Version: 08/17/2018
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 08/22/2018
Date Made Active in Reports: 09/07/2018
Number of Days to Update: 16

Source:  Department of Environmental Health
Telephone:  408-918-1973
Last EDR Contact: 08/17/2018
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 12/03/2018
Data Release Frequency: Varies

HIST LUST SANTA CLARA:  HIST LUST - Fuel Leak Site Activity Report
A listing of open and closed leaking underground storage tanks. This listing is no longer updated by the county.
Leaking underground storage tanks are now handled by the Department of Environmental Health.

Date of Government Version: 03/29/2005
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 03/30/2005
Date Made Active in Reports: 04/21/2005
Number of Days to Update: 22

Source:  Santa Clara Valley Water District
Telephone:  408-265-2600
Last EDR Contact: 03/23/2009
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 06/22/2009
Data Release Frequency: No Update Planned

TC5441284.2s     Page GR-44

GOVERNMENT RECORDS SEARCHED / DATA CURRENCY TRACKING



LUST SANTA CLARA:  LOP Listing
A listing of leaking underground storage tanks located in Santa Clara county.

Date of Government Version: 03/03/2014
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 03/05/2014
Date Made Active in Reports: 03/18/2014
Number of Days to Update: 13

Source:  Department of Environmental Health
Telephone:  408-918-3417
Last EDR Contact: 08/24/2018
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 12/10/2018
Data Release Frequency: Annually

SAN JOSE HAZMAT:  Hazardous Material Facilities
Hazardous material facilities, including underground storage tank sites.

Date of Government Version: 08/01/2018
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 08/06/2018
Date Made Active in Reports: 09/11/2018
Number of Days to Update: 36

Source:  City of San Jose Fire Department
Telephone:  408-535-7694
Last EDR Contact: 08/01/2018
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 11/19/2018
Data Release Frequency: Annually

SANTA CRUZ COUNTY:

CUPA SANTA CRUZ:  CUPA Facility List
CUPA facility listing.

Date of Government Version: 01/21/2017
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 02/22/2017
Date Made Active in Reports: 05/23/2017
Number of Days to Update: 90

Source:  Santa Cruz County Environmental Health
Telephone:  831-464-2761
Last EDR Contact: 08/17/2018
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 12/03/2018
Data Release Frequency: Varies

SHASTA COUNTY:

CUPA SHASTA:  CUPA Facility List
Cupa Facility List.

Date of Government Version: 06/15/2017
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 06/19/2017
Date Made Active in Reports: 08/09/2017
Number of Days to Update: 51

Source:  Shasta County Department of Resource Management
Telephone:  530-225-5789
Last EDR Contact: 08/17/2018
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 12/03/2018
Data Release Frequency: Varies

SOLANO COUNTY:

LUST SOLANO:  Leaking Underground Storage Tanks
A listing of leaking underground storage tank sites located in Solano county.

Date of Government Version: 06/04/2018
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 06/08/2018
Date Made Active in Reports: 07/18/2018
Number of Days to Update: 40

Source:  Solano County Department of Environmental Management
Telephone:  707-784-6770
Last EDR Contact: 08/29/2018
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 12/17/2018
Data Release Frequency: Quarterly

UST SOLANO:  Underground Storage Tanks
Underground storage tank sites located in Solano county.

Date of Government Version: 06/04/2018
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 06/12/2018
Date Made Active in Reports: 07/12/2018
Number of Days to Update: 30

Source:  Solano County Department of Environmental Management
Telephone:  707-784-6770
Last EDR Contact: 08/29/2018
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 12/17/2018
Data Release Frequency: Quarterly

SONOMA COUNTY:

TC5441284.2s     Page GR-45

GOVERNMENT RECORDS SEARCHED / DATA CURRENCY TRACKING



CUPA SONOMA:  Cupa Facility List
Cupa Facility list

Date of Government Version: 06/19/2018
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 06/26/2018
Date Made Active in Reports: 07/17/2018
Number of Days to Update: 21

Source:  County of Sonoma Fire & Emergency Services Department
Telephone:  707-565-1174
Last EDR Contact: 09/24/2018
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 01/07/2019
Data Release Frequency: Varies

LUST SONOMA:  Leaking Underground Storage Tank Sites
A listing of leaking underground storage tank sites located in Sonoma county.

Date of Government Version: 07/03/2018
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 07/10/2018
Date Made Active in Reports: 08/24/2018
Number of Days to Update: 45

Source:  Department of Health Services
Telephone:  707-565-6565
Last EDR Contact: 09/24/2018
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 01/07/2019
Data Release Frequency: Quarterly

STANISLAUS COUNTY:

CUPA STANISLAUS:  CUPA Facility List
Cupa facility list

Date of Government Version: 08/14/2018
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 08/16/2018
Date Made Active in Reports: 08/24/2018
Number of Days to Update: 8

Source:  Stanislaus County Department of Ennvironmental Protection
Telephone:  209-525-6751
Last EDR Contact: 07/16/2018
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 10/29/2018
Data Release Frequency: Varies

SUTTER COUNTY:

UST SUTTER:  Underground Storage Tanks
Underground storage tank sites located in Sutter county.

Date of Government Version: 06/04/2018
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 06/08/2018
Date Made Active in Reports: 07/11/2018
Number of Days to Update: 33

Source:  Sutter County Department of Agriculture
Telephone:  530-822-7500
Last EDR Contact: 09/17/2018
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 12/17/2018
Data Release Frequency: Semi-Annually

TEHAMA COUNTY:

CUPA TEHAMA:  CUPA Facility List
Cupa facilities

Date of Government Version: 07/17/2018
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 08/02/2018
Date Made Active in Reports: 09/07/2018
Number of Days to Update: 36

Source:  Tehama County Department of Environmental Health
Telephone:  530-527-8020
Last EDR Contact: 08/01/2018
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 11/19/2018
Data Release Frequency: Varies

TRINITY COUNTY:

CUPA TRINITY:  CUPA Facility List
Cupa facility list

TC5441284.2s     Page GR-46

GOVERNMENT RECORDS SEARCHED / DATA CURRENCY TRACKING



Date of Government Version: 07/17/2018
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 07/24/2018
Date Made Active in Reports: 09/07/2018
Number of Days to Update: 45

Source:  Department of Toxic Substances Control
Telephone:  760-352-0381
Last EDR Contact: 07/17/2018
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 11/05/2018
Data Release Frequency: Varies

TULARE COUNTY:

CUPA TULARE:  CUPA Facility List
Cupa program facilities

Date of Government Version: 09/13/2018
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 09/14/2018
Date Made Active in Reports: 09/19/2018
Number of Days to Update: 5

Source:  Tulare County Environmental Health Services Division
Telephone:  559-624-7400
Last EDR Contact: 09/13/2018
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 11/19/2018
Data Release Frequency: Varies

TUOLUMNE COUNTY:

CUPA TUOLUMNE:  CUPA Facility List
Cupa facility list

Date of Government Version: 04/23/2018
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 04/25/2018
Date Made Active in Reports: 06/25/2018
Number of Days to Update: 61

Source:  Divison of Environmental Health
Telephone:  209-533-5633
Last EDR Contact: 07/17/2018
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 11/05/2018
Data Release Frequency: Varies

VENTURA COUNTY:

BWT VENTURA:  Business Plan, Hazardous Waste Producers, and Operating Underground Tanks
The BWT list indicates by site address whether the Environmental Health Division has Business Plan (B), Waste
Producer (W), and/or Underground Tank (T) information.

Date of Government Version: 07/02/2018
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 07/26/2018
Date Made Active in Reports: 09/05/2018
Number of Days to Update: 41

Source:  Ventura County Environmental Health Division
Telephone:  805-654-2813
Last EDR Contact: 07/23/2018
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 11/05/2018
Data Release Frequency: Quarterly

LF VENTURA:  Inventory of Illegal Abandoned and Inactive Sites
Ventura County Inventory of Closed, Illegal Abandoned, and Inactive Sites.

Date of Government Version: 12/01/2011
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 12/01/2011
Date Made Active in Reports: 01/19/2012
Number of Days to Update: 49

Source:  Environmental Health Division
Telephone:  805-654-2813
Last EDR Contact: 10/01/2018
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 01/14/2019
Data Release Frequency: Annually

LUST VENTURA:  Listing of Underground Tank Cleanup Sites
Ventura County Underground Storage Tank Cleanup Sites (LUST).

Date of Government Version: 05/29/2008
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 06/24/2008
Date Made Active in Reports: 07/31/2008
Number of Days to Update: 37

Source:  Environmental Health Division
Telephone:  805-654-2813
Last EDR Contact: 08/07/2018
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 11/26/2018
Data Release Frequency: Quarterly

TC5441284.2s     Page GR-47

GOVERNMENT RECORDS SEARCHED / DATA CURRENCY TRACKING



MED WASTE VENTURA:  Medical Waste Program List
To protect public health and safety and the environment from potential exposure to disease causing agents, the
Environmental Health Division Medical Waste Program regulates the generation, handling, storage, treatment and
disposal of medical waste throughout the County.

Date of Government Version: 07/02/2018
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 07/26/2018
Date Made Active in Reports: 08/24/2018
Number of Days to Update: 29

Source:  Ventura County Resource Management Agency
Telephone:  805-654-2813
Last EDR Contact: 07/23/2018
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 11/05/2018
Data Release Frequency: Quarterly

UST VENTURA:  Underground Tank Closed Sites List
Ventura County Operating Underground Storage Tank Sites (UST)/Underground Tank Closed Sites List.

Date of Government Version: 09/04/2018
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 09/12/2018
Date Made Active in Reports: 10/04/2018
Number of Days to Update: 22

Source:  Environmental Health Division
Telephone:  805-654-2813
Last EDR Contact: 09/12/2018
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 12/24/2018
Data Release Frequency: Quarterly

YOLO COUNTY:

UST YOLO:  Underground Storage Tank Comprehensive Facility Report
Underground storage tank sites located in Yolo county.

Date of Government Version: 06/20/2018
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 07/03/2018
Date Made Active in Reports: 07/12/2018
Number of Days to Update: 9

Source:  Yolo County Department of Health
Telephone:  530-666-8646
Last EDR Contact: 10/01/2018
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 01/14/2019
Data Release Frequency: Annually

YUBA COUNTY:

CUPA YUBA:  CUPA Facility List
CUPA facility listing for Yuba County.

Date of Government Version: 05/10/2018
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 05/15/2018
Date Made Active in Reports: 06/15/2018
Number of Days to Update: 31

Source:  Yuba County Environmental Health Department
Telephone:  530-749-7523
Last EDR Contact: 08/07/2018
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 11/12/2018
Data Release Frequency: Varies

OTHER DATABASE(S)

Depending on the geographic area covered by this report, the data provided in these specialty databases may or may not be
complete.  For example, the existence of wetlands information data in a specific report does not mean that all wetlands in the
area covered by the report are included.  Moreover, the absence of any reported wetlands information does not necessarily
mean that wetlands do not exist in the area covered by the report.

CT MANIFEST:  Hazardous Waste Manifest Data
Facility and manifest data. Manifest is a document that lists and tracks hazardous waste from the generator through
transporters to a tsd facility.

Date of Government Version: 08/10/2018
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 08/10/2018
Date Made Active in Reports: 09/10/2018
Number of Days to Update: 31

Source:  Department of Energy & Environmental Protection
Telephone:  860-424-3375
Last EDR Contact: 08/09/2018
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 11/26/2018
Data Release Frequency: No Update Planned

TC5441284.2s     Page GR-48

GOVERNMENT RECORDS SEARCHED / DATA CURRENCY TRACKING



NJ MANIFEST:  Manifest Information
Hazardous waste manifest information.

Date of Government Version: 12/31/2017
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 07/13/2018
Date Made Active in Reports: 08/01/2018
Number of Days to Update: 19

Source:  Department of Environmental Protection
Telephone:  N/A
Last EDR Contact: 07/13/2018
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 10/22/2018
Data Release Frequency: Annually

NY MANIFEST:  Facility and Manifest Data
Manifest is a document that lists and tracks hazardous waste from the generator through transporters to a TSD
facility.

Date of Government Version: 07/01/2018
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 08/01/2018
Date Made Active in Reports: 08/31/2018
Number of Days to Update: 30

Source:  Department of Environmental Conservation
Telephone:  518-402-8651
Last EDR Contact: 08/01/2018
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 11/12/2018
Data Release Frequency: Quarterly

PA MANIFEST:  Manifest Information
Hazardous waste manifest information.

Date of Government Version: 12/31/2016
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 07/25/2017
Date Made Active in Reports: 09/25/2017
Number of Days to Update: 62

Source:  Department of Environmental Protection
Telephone:  717-783-8990
Last EDR Contact: 07/12/2018
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 10/29/2018
Data Release Frequency: Annually

RI MANIFEST:  Manifest information
Hazardous waste manifest information

Date of Government Version: 12/31/2017
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 02/23/2018
Date Made Active in Reports: 04/09/2018
Number of Days to Update: 45

Source:  Department of Environmental Management
Telephone:  401-222-2797
Last EDR Contact: 08/21/2018
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 12/03/2018
Data Release Frequency: Annually

WI MANIFEST:  Manifest Information
Hazardous waste manifest information.

Date of Government Version: 12/31/2017
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 06/15/2018
Date Made Active in Reports: 07/09/2018
Number of Days to Update: 24

Source:  Department of Natural Resources
Telephone:  N/A
Last EDR Contact: 09/06/2018
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 12/24/2018
Data Release Frequency: Annually

Oil/Gas Pipelines
Source:  PennWell Corporation
Petroleum Bundle (Crude Oil, Refined Products, Petrochemicals, Gas Liquids (LPG/NGL), and Specialty
Gases (Miscellaneous)) N = Natural Gas Bundle (Natural Gas, Gas Liquids (LPG/NGL), and Specialty Gases
(Miscellaneous)). This map includes information copyrighted by PennWell Corporation. This information
is provided on a best effort basis and PennWell Corporation does not guarantee its accuracy nor warrant
its fitness for any particular purpose. Such information has been reprinted with the permission of PennWell.

Electric Power Transmission Line Data
Source:  PennWell Corporation
This map includes information copyrighted by PennWell Corporation. This information is provided on a best
effort basis and PennWell Corporation does not guarantee its accuracy nor warrant its fitness for any
particular purpose. Such information has been reprinted with the permission of PennWell.

Sensitive Receptors: There are individuals deemed sensitive receptors due to their fragile immune systems and special sensitivity
to environmental discharges.  These sensitive receptors typically include the elderly, the sick, and children.  While the location of all
sensitive receptors cannot be determined, EDR indicates those buildings and facilities - schools, daycares, hospitals, medical centers,
and nursing homes - where individuals who are sensitive receptors are likely to be located.

TC5441284.2s     Page GR-49

GOVERNMENT RECORDS SEARCHED / DATA CURRENCY TRACKING



AHA Hospitals:
Source: American Hospital Association, Inc.
Telephone: 312-280-5991
The database includes a listing of hospitals based on the American Hospital Association’s annual survey of hospitals.

Medical Centers: Provider of Services Listing
Source: Centers for Medicare & Medicaid Services
Telephone: 410-786-3000
A listing of hospitals with Medicare provider number, produced by Centers of Medicare & Medicaid Services,
a federal agency within the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services.

Nursing Homes
Source: National Institutes of Health
Telephone: 301-594-6248
Information on Medicare and Medicaid certified nursing homes in the United States.

Public Schools
Source: National Center for Education Statistics
Telephone: 202-502-7300
The National Center for Education Statistics’ primary database on elementary
and secondary public education in the United States.  It is a comprehensive, annual, national statistical
database of all public elementary and secondary schools and school districts, which contains data that are
comparable across all states.

Private Schools
Source: National Center for Education Statistics
Telephone: 202-502-7300
The National Center for Education Statistics’ primary database on private school locations in the United States. 

Daycare Centers: Licensed Facilities
Source: Department of Social Services
Telephone: 916-657-4041

Flood Zone Data: This data was obtained from the Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA). It depicts 100-year and
500-year flood zones as defined by FEMA. It includes the National Flood Hazard Layer (NFHL) which incorporates Flood
Insurance Rate Map (FIRM) data and Q3 data from FEMA in areas not covered by NFHL.

Source: FEMA
Telephone: 877-336-2627
Date of Government Version: 2003, 2015

NWI: National Wetlands Inventory.  This data, available in select counties across the country, was obtained by EDR
in 2002, 2005 and 2010 from the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service.

State Wetlands Data: Wetland Inventory
Source: Department of Fish and Wildlife
Telephone: 916-445-0411

Current USGS 7.5 Minute Topographic Map
Source: U.S. Geological Survey

STREET AND ADDRESS INFORMATION

© 2015 TomTom North America, Inc. All rights reserved.  This material is proprietary and the subject of copyright protection
and other intellectual property rights owned by or licensed to Tele Atlas North America, Inc.  The use of this material is subject
to the terms of a license agreement.  You will be held liable for any unauthorized copying or disclosure of this material.

TC5441284.2s     Page GR-50

GOVERNMENT RECORDS SEARCHED / DATA CURRENCY TRACKING



TC5441284.2s   Page A-1

geologic strata.
of the soil, and nearby wells.  Groundwater flow velocity is generally impacted by the nature of the
Groundwater flow direction may be impacted by surface topography, hydrology, hydrogeology, characteristics

  2.  Groundwater flow velocity.
  1.  Groundwater flow direction, and

Assessment of the impact of contaminant migration generally has two principle investigative components:

forming an opinion about the impact of potential contaminant migration.
EDR’s GeoCheck Physical Setting Source Addendum is provided to assist the environmental professional in

2012Version Date:
5630741 HOLLYWOOD, CATarget Property Map:

USGS TOPOGRAPHIC MAP

406 ft. above sea levelElevation:
3773739.8UTM Y (Meters): 
380921.3UTM X (Meters): 
Zone 11Universal Tranverse Mercator: 
118.290895 - 118˚ 17’ 27.22’’Longitude (West): 
34.099446 - 34˚ 5’ 58.01’’Latitude (North): 

TARGET PROPERTY COORDINATES

LOS ANGELES, CA 90027
4645 , 4637 AND 4629 MAUBERT AVENUE
4645 , 4637 AND 4629 MAUBERT AVENUE

TARGET PROPERTY ADDRESS

®GEOCHECK   - PHYSICAL SETTING SOURCE ADDENDUM®



TC5441284.2s   Page A-2

should be field verified.
on a relative (not an absolute) basis. Relative elevation information between sites of close proximity
Source: Topography has been determined from the USGS 7.5’ Digital Elevation Model and should be evaluated

SURROUNDING TOPOGRAPHY: ELEVATION PROFILES

E
le

va
tio

n 
(f

t)
E

le
va

tio
n 

(f
t)

TP

TP
0 1/2 1 Miles

Target Property Elevation: 406 ft.

North South

West East

295

297

310

327

339

351

365

375

394

406

420

439

451

465

481

511

548

586

634
372

377

380

381

383

385

391

440

421

406

408

408

402

384

366

465

551 491 409

General SSEGeneral Topographic Gradient:
TARGET PROPERTY TOPOGRAPHY

should contamination exist on the target property, what downgradient sites might be impacted.
assist the environmental professional in forming an opinion about the impact of nearby contaminated properties or,
Surface topography may be indicative of the direction of surficial groundwater flow.  This information can be used to
TOPOGRAPHIC INFORMATION

collected on nearby properties, and regional groundwater flow information (from deep aquifers).
sources of information, such as surface topographic information, hydrologic information, hydrogeologic data
using site-specific well data. If such data is not reasonably ascertainable, it may be necessary to rely on other
Groundwater flow direction for a particular site is best determined by a qualified environmental professional
GROUNDWATER FLOW DIRECTION INFORMATION

®GEOCHECK   - PHYSICAL SETTING SOURCE SUMMARY®



TC5441284.2s   Page A-3

For additional site information, refer to Physical Setting Source Map Findings.

SW1/2 - 1 Mile SE2G
S1/4 - 1/2 Mile WSW1G
SW1/2 - 1 Mile SE3
S1/4 - 1/2 Mile WSW2

GENERAL DIRECTIONLOCATION
GROUNDWATER FLOWFROM TPMAP ID

hydrogeologically, and the depth to water table.
authorities at select sites and has extracted the date of the report, groundwater flow direction as determined
flow at specific points. EDR has reviewed reports submitted by environmental professionals to regulatory
EDR has developed the AQUIFLOW Information System to provide data on the general direction of groundwater

AQUIFLOW®

 Search Radius: 1.000 Mile.

Not found     Status:
1.25 miles     Search Radius:

Site-Specific Hydrogeological Data*:

* ©1996 Site−specific hydrogeological data gathered by CERCLIS Alerts, Inc., Bainbridge Island, WA.  All rights reserved.  All of the information and opinions presented are those of the cited EPA report(s), which were completed under
a Comprehensive Environmental Response Compensation and Liability Information System (CERCLIS) investigation.

contamination exist on the target property, what downgradient sites might be impacted.
environmental professional in forming an opinion about the impact of nearby contaminated properties or, should
of groundwater flow direction in the immediate area.  Such hydrogeologic information can be used to assist the
Hydrogeologic information obtained by installation of wells on a specific site can often be an indicator
HYDROGEOLOGIC INFORMATION

YES - refer to the Overview Map and Detail MapHOLLYWOOD

NATIONAL WETLAND INVENTORY
NWI Electronic
Data CoverageNWI Quad at Target Property

Not Reported

Additional Panels in search area: FEMA Source Type

 FEMA FIRM Flood data06037C1610F  

Flood Plain Panel at Target Property FEMA Source Type

FEMA FLOOD ZONE

and bodies of water).
Refer to the Physical Setting Source Map following this summary for hydrologic information (major waterways

contamination exist on the target property, what downgradient sites might be impacted.
the environmental professional in forming an opinion about the impact of nearby contaminated properties or, should
Surface water can act as a hydrologic barrier to groundwater flow.  Such hydrologic information can be used to assist

HYDROLOGIC INFORMATION

®GEOCHECK   - PHYSICAL SETTING SOURCE SUMMARY®



TC5441284.2s   Page A-4

 
> 10 inchesDepth to Bedrock Max:

> 10 inchesDepth to Bedrock Min:

Not ReportedCorrosion Potential - Uncoated Steel:

Hydric Status: Soil does not meet the requirements for a hydric soil.

Not reportedSoil Drainage Class:

Not reportedHydrologic Group:

variableSoil Surface Texture:

URBAN LAND                    Soil Component Name:

The following information is based on Soil Conservation Service STATSGO data.
in a landscape. Soil maps for STATSGO are compiled by generalizing more detailed (SSURGO) soil survey maps.
for privately owned lands in the United States. A soil map in a soil survey is a representation of soil patterns
Survey (NCSS) and is responsible for collecting, storing, maintaining and distributing soil survey information
The U.S. Department of Agriculture’s (USDA) Soil Conservation Service (SCS) leads the National Cooperative Soil

DOMINANT SOIL COMPOSITION IN GENERAL AREA OF TARGET PROPERTY

Map, USGS Digital Data Series DDS - 11 (1994).
of the Conterminous U.S. at 1:2,500,000 Scale - a digital representation of the 1974 P.B. King and H.M. Beikman
Geologic Age and Rock Stratigraphic Unit Source: P.G. Schruben, R.E. Arndt and W.J. Bawiec, Geology

ROCK STRATIGRAPHIC UNIT GEOLOGIC AGE IDENTIFICATION

Stratified SequenceCategory:CenozoicEra:
TertiarySystem:
MioceneSeries:
TmCode:    (decoded above as Era, System & Series)

at which contaminant migration may be occurring.
Geologic information can be used by the environmental professional in forming an opinion about the relative speed
GEOLOGIC INFORMATION IN GENERAL AREA OF TARGET PROPERTY

move more quickly through sandy-gravelly types of soils than silty-clayey types of soils.
characteristics data collected on nearby properties and regional soil information. In general, contaminant plumes
to rely on other sources of information, including geologic age identification, rock stratigraphic unit and soil
using site specific geologic and soil strata data. If such data are not reasonably ascertainable, it may be necessary
Groundwater flow velocity information for a particular site is best determined by a qualified environmental professional
GROUNDWATER FLOW VELOCITY INFORMATION

®GEOCHECK   - PHYSICAL SETTING SOURCE SUMMARY®



TC5441284.2s   Page A-5

clay loam
silty clay loam
gravelly - fine sandy loam
sand
weathered bedrock
very fine sandy loam
stratified
very gravelly - sandy loam
sandy loam
gravelly - sandy loamDeeper Soil Types:

sand
silty clay
clay
sandy clay loam
sandy clay
gravelly - loam
fine sandy loamShallow Soil Types:

fine sandy loam
sand
gravelly - sand
fine sand
clay
silt loam
gravelly - sandy loam
sandy loamSurficial Soil Types:

fine sandy loam
sand
gravelly - sand
fine sand
clay
silt loam
gravelly - sandy loam
sandy loamSoil Surface Textures:

appear within the general area of target property.
Based on Soil Conservation Service STATSGO data, the following additional subordinant soil types may

OTHER SOIL TYPES IN AREA

Min:    0.00
Max:   0.00

Min:    0.00
Max:   0.00Not reportedNot reportedvariable 6 inches 0 inches 1

Soil Layer Information           

Boundary Classification

Permeability
Rate (in/hr)

Layer Upper Lower Soil Texture Class AASHTO Group Unified Soil Soil Reaction
(pH)

®GEOCHECK   - PHYSICAL SETTING SOURCE SUMMARY®



TC5441284.2s   Page A-6

No Wells Found

STATE DATABASE WELL INFORMATION

LOCATION
FROM TPWELL IDMAP ID

Note: PWS System location is not always the same as well location.

0 - 1/8 Mile WNWCA3900844   1

FEDERAL FRDS PUBLIC WATER SUPPLY SYSTEM INFORMATION

LOCATION
FROM TPWELL IDMAP ID

No Wells Found

FEDERAL USGS WELL INFORMATION

LOCATION
FROM TPWELL IDMAP ID

1.000State Database
Nearest PWS within 1 mileFederal FRDS PWS
1.000Federal USGS

WELL SEARCH DISTANCE INFORMATION

SEARCH DISTANCE (miles)DATABASE

opinion about the impact of contaminant migration on nearby drinking water wells.
professional in assessing sources that may impact ground water flow direction, and in forming an
EDR Local/Regional Water Agency records provide water well information to assist the environmental

LOCAL / REGIONAL WATER AGENCY RECORDS

®GEOCHECK   - PHYSICAL SETTING SOURCE SUMMARY®



EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.

800

1
2

0

1
0

8

9
20

1
0

1
0

00
9

60 8 808
8

0

9 2 0

4
0

0

8
8

0

8

8 4
0

8 4 0

8 4 0

8
4

0

8 4 0
8

4
0

8 0 0

8
0

0

8 0 0

8
0

0

8 0 0

0
0

8 0 0

5 60

7 6 0

7 6 0

7
6

0

7 6 0

7 6 0

7 6 0 7
6

0

7 6 0

6

0 0
8 0 0

5 6 0

5 60

7 6 0

7 6 0

600
5 2 0

5 60

7 2 0

7 2 0

7 2
0

7
2

0

7

2 0

7
2

0

7
2

0

720

4 8 0

5
20

6
8

0

6 8 0

6
8

0

6
8

0 6
8

0

6
8

0

6
8

0 6 8 0

5 60

5 60

5
20

5 2 04 8
0

6
00

6
4

0

6
0

0

4 80

4
4

0

5
6

0

5
60

4
0 0

5
2

0

5
2

0

4 4 0

4
8 0

4 80

6 4 0

6
4

0

6
4

0

6
4

0

6
4 0

6
4

0

4 00

6 0 0

6 0 0

6 0 0

6
0

0

6 0
0

6
0

0

5 6 0

5 6 0

560

5
6 0

5
6

0

5 2 0

5 2 0

5 2 0
5 2 0

5 2 0

4
8

0

4 8 0

4 8 0

4 8 0

4 8 0

600

7 2 06 8 0

6
4

0
6

4
0

6
0

0

6 0 0

5 6 0

5
6

0

5
6 0

5
6

0

5
2

0

5
20

5
2

0

5
2

0

4
8

0

4
8

0

4
8

0

4 8 0

4 8 0

4

8
0

5
2

0

4 8
0

3 2
0

3
2

0
4 4

0

4
4

0

4
0 0

4
0 0

4
0

0

3
2 0 2

8
0

4
0

0

320

4
8

0

4 4 0

4 4 0

4
4

0

4
4

0

4
4

0

4
4

0

4
4 0

4
4

0

4
4 0

4
4

4 0 0

4 0 0

4 0 0

4
0

0

4
0

0

4
0

0

4
0

0

4
0

0

3 6 0

3 6 0

3 6 0

3
6

0

3
6

0

3 6 0

3
6

0

3
6

0

3 2 0

3 2 0

320

3 2 0

3
2

0

3 2 0

3 2 0

2 8 0

CA



TC5441284.2s   Page A-8

          Not ReportedCmp edt:
          07/01/2001Cmp bdt:          Not ReportedState mcl:
          Not ReportedUnit of measure:          Not ReportedViolation measur:
          CCRRule name:          420Rule code:
          CCR Complete Failure to ReportViolation name:          71Violation code:
          Consumer Confidence RuleContamination Name:          7000Contamination code:
          2001Violation Year:          CAState:
          SOrig code:          0100003Violation id:

          1181730Longitude:          340600Latitude:

          UntreatedTreatment:          Under 101 PersonsPopulation served:

          95237System zip:
          CASystem state:          LOCKEFORDSystem city:
          17251 TRETHEWAYSystem address:          LEON SEGALSystem address:
          COUNTRY MANOR MOBILE HOME PARKSystem name:          00000075Retail population:
          Not ReportedDate system deactivated:          7706Date system activated:
          ActiveActivity status:          CA3900844PWS ID:

          Not ReportedContact telephone:
          2093683833Contact zip:          93Contact state:
          CAContact city:          SANTA BARBARAContact address:
          100 N HOPE AVESTE #1Contact address:          HARVEY SEGALContact:
          75Retail population served:          CPWS type code:
          COUNTRY MANOR MHPPWS name:          90027PWS zip:
          CAPWS state:          LOS ANGELESPWS city:
          Not ReportedPWS address:          LEON SEGALPWS name:
          System Owner/Responsible PartyPWS type:          CA3900844PWS ID:

          75Population:          Ground waterSource code:
          COUNTRY MANOR MOBILE HOME PARKOwner:          90027Zip:
          CAState:          LOS ANGELESCity:
          Not ReportedCare of:          Not ReportedAddress:
          COUNTRY MANOR MOBILE HOME PARKPWS name:          CA3900844PWS ID:

          TPFactypecode:
          activated carbon, granularTrtprocess:

          organics removalTrtobjective:          AFacactivitycode:
          Treatment_plantFactype:          AFTER FILTERFacname:
          6Facid:          CA3900844Pwsid:

          APwsactivitycode:
          93110Contactzip:          CAContactstate:
          SANTA BARBARAContactcity:          Not ReportedContactaddress2:
          100 N HOPE AVESTE #1Contactaddress1:          2093683833Contactphone:
          COUNTRY MANOR MHPContactorgname:          HARVEY SEGALContact:
          PrivateOwner:          CWSPwstype:
          GroundwaterPsource longname:          37Pwssvcconn:
          75Retpopsrvd:          ActiveStatus:
          06077Fipscounty:          Not ReportedZipserved:
          CAStateserved:          Not ReportedCityserved:
          COUNTRY MANOR MHPPwsname:          CA3900844Pwsid:
          CAState:          09Epa region:

1
WNW
0 - 1/8 Mile
Higher

CA3900844FRDS PWS

Map ID
Direction
Distance
Elevation EDR ID NumberDatabase

®GEOCHECK   - PHYSICAL SETTING SOURCE MAP FINDINGS®



TC5441284.2s   Page A-9

          51Violation Type:          COUNTRY MANOR MHPSystem Name:

          SOXEnforcement Action:          2000-04-04Enforcement Date:
          95V0001Violation ID:          2000-04-04Compliance End:
          1993-07-01Compliance Begin:          5000Contaminant:
          51Violation Type:          COUNTRY MANOR MHPSystem Name:

          SIEEnforcement Action:          1/14/2002 0:00:00Enforcement Date:
          0200004Violation ID:          12/31/2025 0:00:00Compliance End:
          4/1/2000 0:00:00Compliance Begin:          5000Contaminant:
          51Violation Type:          COUNTRY MANOR MHPSystem Name:

          SIEEnforcement Action:          01/14/02Enforcement Date:
          0200004Violation ID:          12/31/25Compliance End:
          04/01/00Compliance Begin:          5000Contaminant:
          51Violation Type:          COUNTRY MANOR MHPSystem Name:

          Not ReportedEnforcement Action:          4/12/2007 0:00:00Enforcement Date:
          0100003Violation ID:          12/31/2025 0:00:00Compliance End:
          7/1/2001 0:00:00Compliance Begin:          7000Contaminant:
          71Violation Type:          COUNTRY MANOR MHPSystem Name:

          10/17/2006 0:00:00Enforcement Action:          No Enf Action as ofEnforcement Date:
          0100003Violation ID:          12/31/2025 0:00:00Compliance End:
          7/1/2001 0:00:00Compliance Begin:          7000Contaminant:
          71Violation Type:          COUNTRY MANOR MHPSystem Name:

          04/04/2000Cmp edt:
          07/01/1993Cmp bdt:          0State mcl:
          Not ReportedUnit of measure:          0Violation measur:
          LCRRule name:          350Rule code:
          Initial Tap Sampling for Pb and CuViolation name:          51Violation code:
          Lead and Copper RuleContamination Name:          5000Contamination code:
          1993Violation Year:          CAState:
          FOrig code:          95V0001Violation id:

          Not ReportedCmp edt:
          07/01/2009Cmp bdt:          Not ReportedState mcl:
          Not ReportedUnit of measure:          Not ReportedViolation measur:
          CCRRule name:          420Rule code:
          CCR Complete Failure to ReportViolation name:          71Violation code:
          Consumer Confidence RuleContamination Name:          7000Contamination code:
          2009Violation Year:          CAState:
          SOrig code:          1000006Violation id:

          Not ReportedCmp edt:
          04/01/2000Cmp bdt:          Not ReportedState mcl:
          Not ReportedUnit of measure:          Not ReportedViolation measur:
          LCRRule name:          350Rule code:
          Initial Tap Sampling for Pb and CuViolation name:          51Violation code:
          Lead and Copper RuleContamination Name:          5000Contamination code:
          2000Violation Year:          CAState:
          SOrig code:          0200005Violation id:

          Not ReportedCmp edt:
          04/01/2000Cmp bdt:          Not ReportedState mcl:
          Not ReportedUnit of measure:          Not ReportedViolation measur:
          LCRRule name:          350Rule code:
          Initial Tap Sampling for Pb and CuViolation name:          51Violation code:
          Lead and Copper RuleContamination Name:          5000Contamination code:
          2000Violation Year:          CAState:
          SOrig code:          0200004Violation id:

®GEOCHECK   - PHYSICAL SETTING SOURCE MAP FINDINGS®



TC5441284.2s   Page A-10

          State Violation/Reminder NoticeEnforcement action:          1/14/2002 0:00:00Enforcement date:
          3/31/2002 0:00:00Compliance end date:          4/1/2000 0:00:00Compliance start date:
          Initial Tap Sampling for Pb and CuViolation type:          LEAD & COPPER RULEContaminant:
          0200005Violation ID:          CPWS type code:
          75Population served:          COUNTRY MANOR MHPPWS name:

          Not ReportedViolation measurement:
          7/8/2009 0:00:00Enforcement action:          No Enf Action as ofEnforcement date:
          12/31/2025 0:00:00Compliance end date:          7/1/2001 0:00:00Compliance start date:
          71Violation type:          7000Contaminant:
          0100003Violation ID:          CPWS type code:
          75Population served:          COUNTRY MANOR MHPPWS name:

          ResolvingEnforcement Category:          St Compliance achievedEnforcement Detail:
          04/04/2000Enforcement Action:          2000Enforcemnt FY:
          FOrig Code:          95V0001Violation ID:

          InformalEnforcement Category:
          St Violation/Reminder NoticeEnforcement Detail:

          07/01/2010Enforcement Action:          2010Enforcemnt FY:
          SOrig Code:          1000006Violation ID:

          InformalEnforcement Category:
          St Violation/Reminder NoticeEnforcement Detail:

          01/14/2002Enforcement Action:          2002Enforcemnt FY:
          SOrig Code:          0200005Violation ID:

          ResolvingEnforcement Category:          St Compliance achievedEnforcement Detail:
          03/31/2002Enforcement Action:          2002Enforcemnt FY:
          SOrig Code:          0200005Violation ID:

          ResolvingEnforcement Category:          St Compliance achievedEnforcement Detail:
          03/31/2002Enforcement Action:          2002Enforcemnt FY:
          SOrig Code:          0200004Violation ID:

          InformalEnforcement Category:
          St Violation/Reminder NoticeEnforcement Detail:

          01/14/2002Enforcement Action:          2002Enforcemnt FY:
          SOrig Code:          0200004Violation ID:

          ResolvingEnforcement Category:          St Compliance achievedEnforcement Detail:
          07/01/2001Enforcement Action:          2001Enforcemnt FY:
          SOrig Code:          0100003Violation ID:

          Not ReportedEnforcement Action:          Not ReportedEnforcement Date:
          95V0001Violation ID:          2015-12-31Compliance End:
          1993-07-01Compliance Begin:          5000Contaminant:
          51Violation Type:          COUNTRY MANOR MHPSystem Name:

          SOXEnforcement Action:          04/04/00Enforcement Date:
          95V0001Violation ID:          04/04/00Compliance End:
          07/01/93Compliance Begin:          5000Contaminant:
          51Violation Type:          COUNTRY MANOR MHPSystem Name:

          SOXEnforcement Action:          4/4/2000 0:00:00Enforcement Date:
          95V0001Violation ID:          4/4/2000 0:00:00Compliance End:
          7/1/1993 0:00:00Compliance Begin:          5000Contaminant:
          51Violation Type:          COUNTRY MANOR MHPSystem Name:

          SOXEnforcement Action:          2000-04-04Enforcement Date:
          95V0001Violation ID:          2000-04-04Compliance End:
          1993-07-01Compliance Begin:          5000Contaminant:

®GEOCHECK   - PHYSICAL SETTING SOURCE MAP FINDINGS®



TC5441284.2s   Page A-11

Date: 01/12/1998
Average Water Depth: 30
Deep Water Depth: Not Reported
Shallow Water Depth: Not Reported
Groundwater Flow: SW
Site ID: 9002901252G

SE
1/2 - 1 Mile
Lower

70473AQUIFLOW

Date: 06/28/1991
Average Water Depth: 18.6
Deep Water Depth: Not Reported
Shallow Water Depth: Not Reported
Groundwater Flow: S
Site ID: 9002700611G

WSW
1/4 - 1/2 Mile
Lower

70467AQUIFLOW

Date: 01/12/1998
Average Water Depth: 30
Deep Water Depth: Not Reported
Shallow Water Depth: Not Reported
Groundwater Flow: SW
Site ID: 9002901253

SE
1/2 - 1 Mile
Lower

70473AQUIFLOW

Date: 06/28/1991
Average Water Depth: 18.6
Deep Water Depth: Not Reported
Shallow Water Depth: Not Reported
Groundwater Flow: S
Site ID: 9002700612

WSW
1/4 - 1/2 Mile
Lower

70467AQUIFLOW

          0Violation measurement:
          State Compliance AchievedEnforcement action:          4/4/2000 0:00:00Enforcement date:
          4/4/2000 0:00:00Compliance end date:          7/1/1993 0:00:00Compliance start date:
          Initial Tap Sampling for Pb and CuViolation type:          LEAD & COPPER RULEContaminant:
          95V0001Violation ID:          CPWS type code:
          75Population served:          COUNTRY MANOR MHPPWS name:

          Not ReportedViolation measurement:
          State Compliance AchievedEnforcement action:          3/31/2002 0:00:00Enforcement date:
          3/31/2002 0:00:00Compliance end date:          4/1/2000 0:00:00Compliance start date:
          Initial Tap Sampling for Pb and CuViolation type:          LEAD & COPPER RULEContaminant:
          0200005Violation ID:          CPWS type code:
          75Population served:          COUNTRY MANOR MHPPWS name:

          Not ReportedViolation measurement:

®GEOCHECK   - PHYSICAL SETTING SOURCE MAP FINDINGS®



TC5441284.2s   Page A-12

0%0%100%0.933 pCi/LBasement
Not ReportedNot ReportedNot ReportedNot ReportedLiving Area - 2nd Floor
0%2%98%0.711 pCi/LLiving Area - 1st Floor

% >20 pCi/L% 4-20 pCi/L% <4 pCi/LAverage ActivityArea

Number of sites tested: 63

Federal Area Radon Information for LOS ANGELES COUNTY, CA

             : Zone 3 indoor average level < 2 pCi/L.
             : Zone 2 indoor average level >= 2 pCi/L and <= 4 pCi/L.
     Note: Zone 1 indoor average level > 4 pCi/L.

Federal EPA Radon Zone for LOS ANGELES County:  2 

95790027

______________________
> 4 pCi/LNum TestsZipcode

Radon Test Results                                                                                 

State Database: CA Radon                                                                           

AREA RADON INFORMATION

GEOCHECK   - PHYSICAL SETTING SOURCE MAP FINDINGS
RADON

®



TOPOGRAPHIC INFORMATION

USGS 7.5’ Digital Elevation Model (DEM)
Source: United States Geologic Survey
EDR acquired the USGS 7.5’ Digital Elevation Model in 2002 and updated it in 2006. The 7.5 minute DEM corresponds
to the USGS 1:24,000- and 1:25,000-scale topographic quadrangle maps. The DEM provides elevation data
with consistent elevation units and projection.

Current USGS 7.5 Minute Topographic Map
Source: U.S. Geological Survey

HYDROLOGIC INFORMATION

Flood Zone Data: This data was obtained from the Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA). It depicts 100-year and
500-year flood zones as defined by FEMA. It includes the National Flood Hazard Layer (NFHL) which incorporates Flood
Insurance Rate Map (FIRM) data and Q3 data from FEMA in areas not covered by NFHL.

Source: FEMA
Telephone: 877-336-2627
Date of Government Version: 2003, 2015

NWI: National Wetlands Inventory.  This data, available in select counties across the country, was obtained by EDR
in 2002, 2005 and 2010 from the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service.

State Wetlands Data: Wetland Inventory
Source: Department of Fish and Wildlife
Telephone: 916-445-0411

HYDROGEOLOGIC INFORMATION

AQUIFLOW       Information SystemR

Source:  EDR proprietary database of groundwater flow information
EDR has developed the AQUIFLOW Information System (AIS) to provide data on the general direction of groundwater

flow at specific points. EDR has reviewed reports submitted to regulatory authorities at select sites and has
extracted the date of the report, hydrogeologically determined groundwater flow direction and depth to water table
information.

GEOLOGIC INFORMATION

Geologic Age and Rock Stratigraphic Unit
Source: P.G. Schruben, R.E. Arndt and W.J. Bawiec, Geology of the Conterminous U.S. at 1:2,500,000 Scale - A digital
representation of the 1974 P.B. King and H.M. Beikman Map, USGS Digital Data Series DDS - 11 (1994).

STATSGO: State Soil Geographic Database
Source:  Department of Agriculture, Natural Resources Conservation Service (NRCS)
The U.S. Department of Agriculture’s (USDA) Natural Resources Conservation Service (NRCS) leads the national
Conservation Soil Survey (NCSS) and is responsible for collecting, storing, maintaining and distributing soil
survey information for privately owned lands in the United States. A soil map in a soil survey is a representation
of soil patterns in a landscape. Soil maps for STATSGO are compiled by generalizing more detailed (SSURGO)
soil survey maps.

SSURGO: Soil Survey Geographic Database
Source:  Department of Agriculture, Natural Resources Conservation Service (NRCS)
Telephone:  800-672-5559
SSURGO is the most detailed level of mapping done by the Natural Resources Conservation Service, mapping
scales generally range from 1:12,000 to 1:63,360. Field mapping methods using national standards are used to
construct the soil maps in the Soil Survey Geographic (SSURGO) database. SSURGO digitizing duplicates the
original soil survey maps. This level of mapping is designed for use by landowners, townships and county
natural resource planning and management.

TC5441284.2s     Page PSGR-1

PHYSICAL SETTING SOURCE RECORDS SEARCHED



LOCAL / REGIONAL WATER AGENCY RECORDS

FEDERAL WATER WELLS

PWS: Public Water Systems
Source:  EPA/Office of Drinking Water
Telephone:  202-564-3750
Public Water System data from the Federal Reporting Data System.  A PWS is any water system which provides water to at

least 25 people for at least 60 days annually.  PWSs provide water from wells, rivers and other sources.

PWS ENF: Public Water Systems Violation and Enforcement Data
Source:  EPA/Office of Drinking Water
Telephone:  202-564-3750
Violation and Enforcement data for Public Water Systems from the Safe Drinking Water Information System (SDWIS) after

August 1995.  Prior to August 1995, the data came from the Federal Reporting Data System (FRDS).

USGS Water Wells: USGS National Water Inventory System (NWIS)
This database contains descriptive information on sites where the USGS collects or has collected data on surface
water and/or groundwater. The groundwater data includes information on wells, springs, and other sources of groundwater.

STATE RECORDS

Water Well Database
Source:  Department of Water Resources
Telephone:  916-651-9648

California Drinking Water Quality Database
Source: Department of Public Health
Telephone:  916-324-2319
The database includes all drinking water compliance and special studies monitoring for the state of California

since 1984. It consists of over 3,200,000 individual analyses along with well and water system information.

OTHER STATE DATABASE INFORMATION

California Oil and Gas Well Locations
Source:  Department of Conservation
Telephone:  916-323-1779
Oil and Gas well locations in the state.

RADON

State Database: CA Radon
Source: Department of Health Services
Telephone: 916-324-2208
Radon Database for California

Area Radon Information
Source: USGS
Telephone:  703-356-4020
The National Radon Database has been developed by the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
(USEPA) and is a compilation of the EPA/State Residential Radon Survey and the National Residential Radon Survey.
The study covers the years 1986 - 1992. Where necessary data has been supplemented by information collected at
private sources such as universities and research institutions.

EPA Radon Zones
Source:  EPA
Telephone:  703-356-4020
Sections 307 & 309 of IRAA directed EPA to list and identify areas of U.S. with the potential for elevated indoor
radon levels.

TC5441284.2s     Page PSGR-2

PHYSICAL SETTING SOURCE RECORDS SEARCHED



OTHER

Airport Landing Facilities: Private and public use landing facilities
Source:  Federal Aviation Administration, 800-457-6656

Epicenters: World earthquake epicenters, Richter 5 or greater
Source:  Department of Commerce, National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration

California Earthquake Fault Lines: The fault lines displayed on EDR’s Topographic map are digitized quaternary fault lines,
prepared in 1975 by the United State Geological Survey.  Additional information (also from 1975) regarding activity at specific fault
lines comes from California’s Preliminary Fault Activity Map prepared by the California Division of Mines and Geology.

STREET AND ADDRESS INFORMATION

© 2015 TomTom North America, Inc. All rights reserved.  This material is proprietary and the subject of copyright protection
and other intellectual property rights owned by or licensed to Tele Atlas North America, Inc.  The use of this material is subject
to the terms of a license agreement.  You will be held liable for any unauthorized copying or disclosure of this material.

TC5441284.2s     Page PSGR-3

PHYSICAL SETTING SOURCE RECORDS SEARCHED



 

 



 

options for Partner’s clients.

 



 

 

 

diligence requirements of a varied number of reporting standards, including ASTM, EPA’s All Appropriate 
, and U.S. Small Business Administration’s (SBA) SOP 50 10.  She 

   
 
While in graduate school, Ms. Churchill’s Masters 

 

CUPAs to ensure compliance with State and Federal regulations.  Ms. Churchill’s responsibilities included 





 

Appendix F 

Historic Report 

  



 

 

 

4629, 4637, and 4645 ½ Maubert Avenue 
Los Angeles, California 

Historical Resource Evaluation Report 

 

 

 

 

 

Prepared by: 

 

March 2019 



 

 

Historical Resource Evaluation Report – 4629-4645 ½ Maubert Avenue, Los Angeles Table of Contents  

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY ............................................................................ 1 

1. INTRODUCTION .................................................................................. 1 
1.1 Purpose and Qualifications ................................................................................. 1 
1.2 Methodology ........................................................................................................ 2 

2. REGULATORY FRAMEWORK ............................................................... 4 
2.1 National Register of Historic Places ..................................................................... 4 
2.2 California Register of Historical Resources .......................................................... 5 
2.3 Los Angeles Cultural Heritage Ordinance ............................................................ 7 

3. ENVIRONMENTAL SETTING ................................................................. 8 
3.1 Brief History of Hollywood ................................................................................... 8 
3.2 Description and History of the Project Site .......................................................... 9 

4. EVALUATION OF ELIGIBILITY ........................................................... 28 
4.1 Historic Contexts .............................................................................................. 28 
4.2  National Register of Historic Places ................................................................... 37 
4.3  California Register of Historical Resources ........................................................ 43 
4.4 Los Angeles Cultural Heritage Ordinance .......................................................... 43 

5. CONCLUSIONS .................................................................................. 43 

6. SOURCES .......................................................................................... 45 
 
Appendix A – Résumé 
 
Appendix B – DPR Forms 
 
 
 



 

 

 
Historical Resource Evaluation Report – 4629-4645 ½ Maubert Avenue, Los Angeles Executive Summary 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

The purpose of this report was to determine if a proposed project (the Project) in the Hollywood 
Community Plan Area of the City of Los Angeles would impact any historical resources subject to 
the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA). The Project site is located at 4629-4645 ½ 
Maubert Avenue and includes three separate parcels containing five residential buildings and 
three garage structures constructed between 1920 and 1975 (the properties). 

The Project would involve the removal of all buildings on the properties and the construction of a 
residential development in their place. None of the properties on the Project site are currently 
listed under national, state, or local landmark or historic district programs. They were not identified 
in any historic resources surveys of the area, including SurveyLA, the citywide historic resources 
survey of Los Angeles. A records search prepared by the SCCIC did not indicate any prior 
evaluations of the properties. GPA Consulting (GPA) evaluated all buildings on the Project site a 
individual potential historical resources subject to CEQA.  The surrounding area was not examined 
as a potential historic district for the purposes of this report. It was not recorded as a potential 
historic district during SurveyLA. The area does not convey a sense of a discrete time and place, 
as development dates to multiple periods from the 1920s onwards.  

After careful inspection, investigation, and evaluation, GPA concluded that none of the buildings 
or properties appear to be eligible for listing in the National Register of Historic Places  or California 
Register of Historical Resources, or for designation as a Los Angeles Historic-Cultural Monument 
due to a lack of significance, architectural distinction, and, in the case of 4645 ½-4651 Maubert 
Avenue, a lack of integrity. Furthermore, the properties do not contribute to a potential historic 
district. Therefore, the properties are not historical resources as defined by CEQA. As such, the 
Project would have no impact on historical resources and no further study is recommended or 
required.  



 

 

Historical Resource Evaluation Report – 4629-4645 ½ Maubert Avenue, Los Angeles                                         1 

1. INTRODUCTION 

1.1 Purpose and Qualifications 

The purpose of this report is to analyze whether or not a proposed project (Project) would impact 
historical resources defined by the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA). The Project site is 
located at 4629-4645 ½ Maubert Avenue in the Hollywood Community Plan Area in the City of Los 
Angeles. It comprises three parcels (Assessor’s Parcel Numbers 5542-014-026, 5542-014-031, and 
5542-014-023) (see Table 1 and Figure 1). The proposed Project would involve the removal of all 
buildings on the Project site and the construction of a residential development in their place. 

Table 1: 4629-4645 ½ Maubert Avenue Project Site 

APN Address Description Built Date 

5542-014-026 4629-4635 Maubert 
Avenue 

Two-story, four-unit 
multi-family residence 1920 

One-story garage 1920 

One unit attached to 
rear of garage 1947 

5542-014-031 4637-4643 Maubert 
Avenue 

Two-story, four-unit 
multi-family residence 1920 

One-story garage 1920 

5542-014-023 4645 ½-4651 Maubert 
Avenue 

Two-story, four-unit 
multi-family residence 1920 

One-story garage 1920 

One-story, one unit 
building at rear 1975 

 



 

Historical Resource Evaluation Report – 4629-4645 ½ Maubert Avenue, Los Angeles                                         2

 
Figure 1: Location of the Project site, which is outlined in red (Base map: Google Maps). 

GPA Consulting (GPA) was retained to evaluate the properties comprising the Project site as 
potential historical resources in compliance with CEQA. Elysha Paluszek was responsible for the 
preparation of this report. She fulfills the qualifications for a historic preservation professional 
outlined in Title 36 of the Code of Federal Regulations, Part 61. Her résumé is included in Appendix 
A. 

1.2 Methodology 
In preparing this report, GPA performed the following tasks: 

1. Requested a records search from the South Central Coastal Information Center (SCCIC) 
to determine whether or not the subject properties are currently listed under national, 
state, or local landmark or historic district programs and whether or not any have been 
previously identified or evaluated as a potential historical resource. This involved a review 
of the California Historic Resources Inventory System (CHRIS), which includes data on 
properties listed and determined eligible for listing in the National Register of Historic Places, 
listed and determined eligible for listing in the California Register of Historical Resources, 
California Registered Historical Landmarks, Points of Historical Interest, as well as properties 
that have been evaluated in historic resources surveys and other planning activities. Per 
the records search results prepared by SCCIC on March 6, 2019, there were no prior 
evaluations of the property.  

2. Researched the properties to determine whether or not they were identified as significant 
through SurveyLA, the citywide historic resources survey. This research revealed that none 
of the properties were identified as a potential historical resource as part of these efforts.   



 

 

Historical Resource Evaluation Report – 4629-4645 ½ Maubert Avenue, Los Angeles                                         3 

3. Conducted a field inspection of the Project site to ascertain the general condition and 
physical integrity of the buildings thereon. Digital photographs of the exterior of all buildings 
on the Project site were taken during this field inspection.  

The surrounding area was not examined as a potential historic district for the purposes of 
this report. It was not recorded as a historic district during SurveyLA. The area does not 
convey a sense of a discrete time and place, as development dates to multiple periods 
from the 1920s onwards. Therefore, the subject properties were each evaluated as 
individual potential historical resources under national, state, and local criteria according 
to National Park Service, State Office of Historic Preservation, and Los Angeles Office of 
Historic Resources standards. 

4. Conducted research into the history of the properties. Much of the archival information 
utilized in this report was obtained from a Phase I Environmental Site Assessment (Phase I 
ESA) Report compiled by Partner Engineering and Science, Inc. in October 2018. Sources 
referenced included building permit records, city directories, historic aerial photographs, 
and Sanborn Fire Insurance maps. Additional sources consulted included the Los Angeles 
County Assessor Archives to establish the chain of ownership for the properties and the Los 
Angeles Times newspaper archives, available through the Los Angeles Public Library.  

5.  The "Instructions for Recording Historical Resources" prepared by the State Office of Historic 
Preservation, March 1999 recommends the evaluation of properties over 45 years of age 
as potential historical resources. One building on the property located at 4645 ½ Maubert 
Avenue was constructed in 1975 and is therefore 44 years of age at the time of this report. 
However, since it is almost 45 years of age it was included in this evaluation.  

6. Consulted the Context/Theme/Property Type (CTP) eligibility standards formulated for the 
Los Angeles Citywide Historic Context Statement to identify the appropriate CTPs under 
which to evaluate the properties.  

7. Reviewed and analyzed ordinances, statutes, regulations, bulletins, and technical 
materials relating to federal, state, and local historic preservation designations, and 
assessment processes and programs to evaluate the significance and integrity of the 
properties as potential historical resources.  



 

 

Historical Resource Evaluation Report – 4629-4645 ½ Maubert Avenue, Los Angeles                                         4 

2. REGULATORY FRAMEWORK 
Generally, a lead agency must consider a property a historical resource under CEQA if it is eligible 
for listing in the California Register of Historical Resources (California Register). The California 
Register is modeled after the National Register of Historic Places (National Register). Furthermore, 
a property is presumed to be historically significant if it is listed in a local register of historical 
resources or has been identified as historically significant in a historic resources survey (provided 
certain criteria and requirements are satisfied) unless a preponderance of evidence demonstrates 
that the property is not historically or culturally significant.1 The National Register, California 
Register, and local designation programs are discussed below. 

2.1 National Register of Historic Places 

The National Register is "an authoritative guide to be used by federal, state, and local 
governments, private groups, and citizens to identify the nation's cultural resources and to indicate 
what properties should be considered for protection from destruction or impairment."2 

Criteria  

To be eligible for listing in the National Register, a property must be at least 50 years of age (unless 
the property is of “exceptional importance”) and possess significance in American history and 
culture, architecture, or archaeology. A property of potential significance must meet one or more 
of the following four established criteria: 3 

A. Associated with events that have made a significant contribution to the broad patterns of 
our history; or 

B. Associated with the lives of persons significant in our past; or 

C. Embody the distinctive characteristics of a type, period, or method of construction or that 
represent the work of a master, or that possess high artistic values, or that represent a 
significant and distinguishable entity whose components may lack individual distinction; or 

D. Yield, or may be likely to yield, information important in prehistory or history. 

Context 

To be eligible for listing in the National Register, a property must be significant within a historic 
context. National Register Bulletin #15 states that the significance of a historic property can be 
judged only when it is evaluated within its historic context. Historic contexts are “those patterns, 
themes, or trends in history by which a specific...property or site is understood and its meaning...is 
made clear.”4 A property must represent an important aspect of the area’s history or prehistory 
and possess the requisite integrity to qualify for the National Register.  

 

                                                      

1 Public Resources Code §5024.1 and 14 California Code of Regulations §4850 & §15064.5(a)(2). 
2 Title 36 Code of Federal Regulations Part 60.2. 
3 Title 36 Code of Federal Regulations Part 60.4. 
4 National Register Bulletin #15: How to Apply the National Register Criteria for Evaluation (Washington D.C.: 

National Park Service, Department of the Interior, 1997), 7-8. 



 

 

Historical Resource Evaluation Report – 4629-4645 ½ Maubert Avenue, Los Angeles                                         5 

Integrity 

In addition to possessing significance within a historic context, to be eligible for listing in the 
National Register a property must have integrity. Integrity is defined in National Register Bulletin 
#15 as "the ability of a property to convey its significance.”5 Within the concept of integrity, the 
National Register recognizes the following seven aspects or qualities that in various combinations 
define integrity: feeling, association, workmanship, location, design, setting, and materials. 
Integrity is based on significance: why, where, and when a property is important. Thus, the 
significance of the property must be fully established before the integrity is analyzed.  

2.2 California Register of Historical Resources 

In 1992, Governor Wilson signed Assembly Bill 2881 into law establishing the California Register. The 
California Register is an authoritative guide used by state and local agencies, private groups, and 
citizens to identify historical resources and to indicate what properties are to be protected, to the 
extent prudent and feasible, from substantial adverse impacts.6 

The California Register consists of properties that are listed automatically as well as those that must 
be nominated through an application and public hearing process. The California Register 
automatically includes the following: 

 California properties listed in the National Register and those formally Determined Eligible 
for the National Register; 

 State Historical Landmarks from No. 0770 onward; and 

 Those California Points of Historical Interest that have been evaluated by the State Office 
of Historic Preservation (SOHP) and have been recommended to the State Historical 
Resources Commission for inclusion on the California Register.7 

Criteria and Integrity 

For those properties not automatically listed, the criteria for eligibility of listing in the California 
Register are based upon National Register criteria, but are identified as 1-4 instead of A-D. To be 
eligible for listing in the California Register, a property generally must be at least 50 years of age 
and must possess significance at the local, state, or national level, under one or more of the 
following four criteria: 

1. It is associated with events that have made a significant contribution to the broad patterns 
of local or regional history, or the cultural heritage of California or the United States; or 

2. It is associated with the lives of persons important to local, California, or national history; or 

3. It embodies the distinctive characteristics of a type, period, or method of construction or 
represents the work of a master, or possesses high artistic values; or 

                                                      

5 National Register Bulletin #15, 44-45. 
6 Public Resources Code §5024.1 (a). 
7 Public Resources Code §5024.1 (d). 



 

 

Historical Resource Evaluation Report – 4629-4645 ½ Maubert Avenue, Los Angeles                                         6 

4. It has yielded, or has the potential to yield, information important in the prehistory or history 
of the local area, California, or the nation. 

Properties eligible for listing in the California Register may include buildings, sites, structures, 
objects, and historic districts. A property less than 50 years of age may be eligible if it can be 
demonstrated that sufficient time has passed to understand its historical importance. While the 
enabling legislation for the California Register is less rigorous with regard to the issue of integrity, 
there is the expectation that properties reflect their appearance during their period of 
significance.8 

The California Register may also include properties identified during historic resource surveys. 
However, the survey must meet all of the following criteria:9  

1. The survey has been or will be included in the State Historic Resources Inventory; 

2. The survey and the survey documentation were prepared in accordance with office 
[SOHP] procedures and requirements; 

3. The resource is evaluated and determined by the office [SOHP] to have a significance 
rating of Category 1 to 5 on a DPR Form 523; and 

4. If the survey is five or more years old at the time of its nomination for inclusion in the 
California Register, the survey is updated to identify historical resources that have become 
eligible or ineligible due to changed circumstances or further documentation and those 
that have been demolished or altered in a manner that substantially diminishes the 
significance of the resource. 

SOHP Survey Methodology 

The evaluation instructions and classification system prescribed by the SOHP in its Instructions for 
Recording Historical Resources provide a Status Code for use in classifying potential historical 
resources. In 2003, the Status Codes were revised to address the California Register. These Status 
Codes are used statewide in the preparation of historical resource surveys and evaluation reports. 
The first code is a number that indicates the general category of evaluation. The second code is 
a letter that indicates whether the property is separately eligible (S), eligible as part of a district 
(D), or both (B). There is sometimes a third code that describes some of the circumstances or 
conditions of the evaluation. The general evaluation categories are as follows: 

1. Listed in the National Register or the California Register. 

2. Determined eligible for listing in the National Register or the California Register. 

3. Appears eligible for listing in the National Register or the California Register through survey 
evaluation. 

4. Appears eligible for listing in the National Register or the California Register through other 
evaluation. 

                                                      

8 Public Resources Code §4852. 
9 Public Resources Code §5024.1. 



 

 

Historical Resource Evaluation Report – 4629-4645 ½ Maubert Avenue, Los Angeles                                         7 

5. Recognized as historically significant by local government. 

6. Not eligible for listing or designation as specified. 

7. Not evaluated or needs re-evaluation.  

The specific Status Codes referred to in this report are as follows: 

6Z Found ineligible for National Register, California Register, or local designation through 
survey evaluation. 

2.3 Los Angeles Cultural Heritage Ordinance 

The Los Angeles City Council adopted the Cultural Heritage Ordinance10 in 1962 and amended it 
in 2018 (Ordinance No. 185472). The Ordinance created a Cultural Heritage Commission and 
criteria for designating Historic-Cultural Monuments (HCM). The Commission comprises five citizens, 
appointed by the Mayor, who have exhibited knowledge of Los Angeles history, culture, and 
architecture. The three criteria for HCM designation are stated below:  

1. The proposed HCM is identified with important events of national, state, or local history, or 
exemplifies significant contributions to the broad cultural, economic, or social history of the 
nation, state or community; or 

2. The proposed HCM is associated with the lives of historic personages important to national, 
state or local history; or 

3. The proposed HCM embodies the distinctive characteristics of a style, type, period, or 
method of construction; or represents a notable work of a master designer, builder, or 
architect whose individual genius influenced his or her age. 

Unlike the National and California Registers, the Ordinance makes no mention of concepts such 
as physical integrity or period of significance. Moreover, properties do not have to reach a 
minimum age requirement, such as 50 years, to be designated as HCMs. 

 
  

                                                      

10 Los Angeles Administrative Code §22.171 of Article 1, Chapter 9, Division 22. 



 

 

Historical Resource Evaluation Report – 4629-4645 ½ Maubert Avenue, Los Angeles                                         8 

3. ENVIRONMENTAL SETTING 

3.1 Brief History of Hollywood 
The area that became Hollywood was originally part of Rancho La Brea and Rancho Los Feliz. The 
two ranchos were developed beginning in the 1860s by several individuals including Cornelius 
Cole, John T. Gower, Griffith J. Griffith, and Harvey Wilcox, whose Hollywood Tract gave the city 
its name. The community, which was originally devoted to agriculture, began to develop quickly 
at the end of the twentieth century as increasing numbers of people moved to Southern 
California.  

The City of Hollywood incorporated in 1903, and commercial and institutional buildings were 
constructed to accompany the area’s newly-built residences. The city’s first schools were 
constructed in 1904, including Hollywood Union High School. The new city experienced 
exponential growth during the first decade of the twentieth century. Between 1903 and 1909, the 
population mushroomed from 700 to 4,000 people. The new city found it difficult to develop its 
infrastructure quickly enough to provide adequate city services to its residents, and in 1910, 
Hollywood was consolidated with the neighboring City of Los Angeles.11 

By 1915, Hollywood was in the midst of a real estate boom, driven both by its proximity to 
downtown Los Angeles and the burgeoning film and tourism industries. Development became 
denser as land values rose, and the large homes constructed at the end of the nineteenth century 
gave way to smaller single-family and multi-family residences. As the automobile became more 
widely available and affordable, residential development, previously concentrated along 
Prospect Avenue (now Hollywood Boulevard), spread to residential streets to the north and 
south.12 During the same period, Hollywood Boulevard transitioned from being a residential street 
to an important commercial thoroughfare in the community. High-rise commercial buildings, 
theaters, and hotels were constructed in the community’s commercial core during the period.  

Residential development in the 1910s was different in character from the earlier period. Instead of 
generously sized-parcels divided for mansions, most of the tracts for residential development 
during the first two decades of the twentieth century were subdivided as small parcels of land 
encompassing a few city blocks. Many of these tracts would remain largely undeveloped before 
1912.13 After the annexation of Hollywood in 1910 and boom in development caused by the film 
industry and general population growth, large tracts of middle-class homes and multi-family 
apartment houses were constructed on the vacant lots. These tracts were developed by 
individual builders with concentrations of Craftsman-style bungalows and Period Revival multi-
family buildings. 

The burgeoning movie industry contributed to the rapid growth of Hollywood in the 1920s. 
Hollywood was promoted as rivaling New York City’s Broadway, and Sunset and Hollywood 
Boulevards became lined with movie studios, movie theaters, and shopping centers during this 
period.14 By 1930, Hollywood was almost entirely built out, with few empty lots. The community had 
a population of 153,000 by this time, and it remained an attractive residential area for commuters 

                                                      

11 Summarized from Chattel Architecture, Planning & Preservation, Inc. “Historic Resources Survey: 
Hollywood Redevelopment Project Area,” February 2010, 16-18, 25. 

12 Chattel, 32. 
13 Chattel, 32.  
14 Chattel, 50-51.  



 

 

Historical Resource Evaluation Report – 4629-4645 ½ Maubert Avenue, Los Angeles                                         9 

to downtown Los Angeles.15 As the effects of the Great Depression were felt in Hollywood, 
however, residential construction slowed. Construction of multi-family residential buildings on a 
large scale did not pick again until the post-World War II period.16 Along Hollywood Boulevard and 
other commercial corridors, development slowed as well, driven in part by a lack of adequate 
parking. Although the film industry remained integral to Hollywood’s identity, in reality, film-making 
was expanding to other parts of the Los Angeles area such as Burbank. The area’s residential and 
commercial districts increasingly catered to the middle class as more affluent residents and tourists 
now went elsewhere for their shopping, dining, and entertaining. 17   

3.2 Description and History of the Project Site 

Project Vicinity 

The Project site occupies three parcels on the north side of Maubert Avenue between Hollywood 
Boulevard to the northeast, Vermont Avenue to the west, and Sunset Boulevard to the south. The 
development immediately surrounding the Project site is overwhelmingly commercial in nature, 
though it is characterized by a variety of land uses and property types. Large commercial corridors 
separate the Project site from other areas of residential development.  

Historic aerial photographs indicate that the area immediately surrounding the Project site (along 
Maubert Avenue on both the north and south side) was well-developed by 1923. This 
development was residential in nature and consisted of fourplexes similar in footprint to the 
buildings on the Project site at 4629-4635, 4637-4643, and 4645 ½-4651 Maubert Avenue. To the 
north directly across Hollywood Boulevard, the remains of orchards can be seen. Single-family 
residential development was located more distantly in all directions. In the 1950s, the medical 
campuses in the vicinity of Vermont and Sunset Avenues appear to have developed and soon 
after expanded. This development, including the Saban Research Institute, would eventually 
encompass parcels on Maubert Avenue. By the 1980s and 1990s, the parcels on the south side of 
the street were redeveloped for institutional and commercial uses.  

Building Descriptions and Ownership Histories 

The properties at 4629-4635, 4637-4643, and 4645 ½-4651 Maubert Avenue were all initially 
developed in 1920 as two-story multi-family residences (specifically fourplexes) with detached 
garages.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

                                                      

15 Chattel, 32.  
16 Chattel, 40.  
17 Chattel, 67.  



 

 

Historical Resource Evaluation Report – 4629-4645 ½ Maubert Avenue, Los Angeles                                         10 

4629-4635 Maubert Avenue (APN 5542-014-026) 

Description  

The multi-family residence (fourplex) located at 4629 Maubert Avenue was constructed in 1920. 
The detached garage, built the same year and located toward the rear of the property, has an 
attached single residential unit that was added in 1947. The unit attached to the garage was 
originally used for storage and was converted to residential use in 2002. The garage is currently 
used as an office. Posted address ranges for the property are 4629-4635 Maubert Avenue.  

The residence was constructed in the Mediterranean Revival style. It is two stories in height and U-
shaped in plan. The building is clad in lightly textured stucco and has a flat roof with raised 
parapet. The building has a shed roof parapet with clay tiles over the primary (south) elevation 
and first bays of the east and west elevations. A projecting boxed cornice is just below the shed 
roofline and features brackets carved with acanthus leaves. Along the remainder of the side 
elevations and the rear elevation, the raised flat parapet has clay tile coping. 

The primary elevation is accented by round pilasters with Ionic caps on either side. There are four 
entrances centered on the first floor. They are located atop a recessed stoop accessed by 
concrete steps and below a flat-roofed overhang supported by fluted pilasters with Ionic capitals. 
Each entrance consists of a multi-light, fully glazed wood door covered by a metal security screen. 
Windows on the primary elevation consist of aluminum sliding windows. Those on either side of the 
entrance porch feature rounded pediments inset with carved plaster floral relief. Windows on the 
secondary elevations include multi-light wood, double-hung wood, aluminum sliding, and single-
hung aluminum windows with simple wood frames. An exterior stairwell is located on the north 
elevation, within the lightwell. At the west side of the rear (north) elevation is a one-story addition. 
The addition has a flat roof, textured stucco cladding, and fixed vinyl windows.  

Alterations to the building include the replacement of original wood windows with aluminum 
windows. Security screens have been added over the entrance doors. The one-story rear addition 
was constructed at an unknown date prior to 1950.18  

The detached garage on the property is wood frame construction and clad with lightly textured 
stucco. It has a flat roof and three wood tilt-up doors on the south elevation. A single residential 
unit is attached to the north side of the garage. The posted address is 4635 Maubert Avenue. The 
unit was constructed in 1947 and was initially used as storage (it is now used as an office). It is one 
story in height, has a flat roof with exposed rafters, and is clad in textured stucco. It has an 
aluminum sliding window and single door covered by a security screen on the north elevation. 
The door is located beneath a shed roof overhang covered by corrugated metal. An addition on 
the east elevation is constructed of plywood and has a flat roof.  

 

                                                      

18 No building permit was found for the construction of the addition, but it appears on the 1950 Sanborn Fire 
Insurance map.  



 

 

Historical Resource Evaluation Report – 4629-4645 ½ Maubert Avenue, Los Angeles                                         11 

 
Figure 2: 4629-4635 Maubert Avenue, view looking northwest (GPA Consulting, 2019). 

 
Figure 3: 4629-4635 Maubert Avenue, main entrance and window detail (GPA Consulting, 2019). 



 

 

Historical Resource Evaluation Report – 4629-4645 ½ Maubert Avenue, Los Angeles                                         12 

 
Figure 4: 4629-4635 Maubert Avenue, east elevation, looking northwest (GPA Consulting, 2019). 

 
Figure 5: 4629-4635 Maubert Avenue, west elevation, looking northeast (GPA Consulting, 2019). 



 

 

Historical Resource Evaluation Report – 4629-4645 ½ Maubert Avenue, Los Angeles                                         13 

Figure 6: North and west elevations, looking 
southeast (GPA Consulting, 2019). 

 
Figure 7: North elevation, looking east (GPA 

Consulting, 2019). 

 
Figure 8: Detached garage, looking north (GPA Consulting, 2019). 



 

 

Historical Resource Evaluation Report – 4629-4645 ½ Maubert Avenue, Los Angeles                                         14 

Figure 9: Unit attached to garage (currently used 
as an office), north elevation, looking south (GPA 

Consulting, 2019). 

Figure 10: Unit attached to garage (currently used 
as an office), north elevation, looking southeast 

(GPA Consulting, 2019). 

Ownership and Tenant History 

According to Los Angeles County Assessor records, the residence and garage were constructed 
in 1920 by developers Wright and Hogan. In 1921, Josefino Denley purchased the property. Denley 
owned the property for one year before it was purchased by the Security Trust and Savings Bank. 
By 1924, Herbert S. Sykes owned the property. Beginning in 1924, the property’s ownership was 
divided between the east 65 feet and west 15 feet. It is shown as parcel 26 on the tract map in 
Figure 11. The split chain of ownership is outlined in Table 2 below. 

Table 2: Chain of Ownership, 4629-4635 Maubert Avenue 

Year East 65 feet of property West 15 feet of property  

1924 Arestes R. Jones Herbert S. Sykes 

1925 Brent A. McCullock Hulbert S. Sykes 

1926 Dean S. Bedillion Hulbert S. Sykes 

1927 None listed John Lazzarevich  

According to Assessor records, Albert B. Castig appears to have owned the property from 1923 
until 1944, though this contradicts other ownership information in the Assessor map books. By 1932, 
the property was split into three parcels (Parcels 42, 44, and 46). Olga Lazzarevich owned parcel 
42 from 1932 until 1961, and Nicholas Lazzarevich owned parcel 44 from 1932 to 1961. George 
Ansara owned parcel 46 from 1940 to 1961. Ansara lived on the property. 



 

 

Historical Resource Evaluation Report – 4629-4645 ½ Maubert Avenue, Los Angeles                                         15 

 
Figure 11: Tract map for Tract No. 2646 (Source: Los Angeles County Office of the Assessor) 

The building has housed numerous tenants since its construction. City directory research revealed 
the following tenants (Table 3):  

Table 3: Residents, 4629-4635 Maubert Avenue 

Year Name 

1924 Charles Toomey, salesman for the Burke Cigar Company (4629 Maubert 
Avenue); Jones cond. (?) (no first name listed) (4635 Maubert Avenue) 

1929 
Katherine and Juliette Amial, furniture finisher, and Bruce G. Coleman, actor 
(4629 Maubert Avenue); Sophia Harbitz, beauty operator (4633 Maubert 
Avenue); Orestes and Elizabeth Jones (4635 Maubert Avenue) 

1933 Peul Vauchelet, clerk (4629 Maubert Avenue); Bertha Beck (4633 Maubert 
Avenue); Orestes R and Elizabeth Jones (4635 Maubert Avenue) 



 

 

Historical Resource Evaluation Report – 4629-4645 ½ Maubert Avenue, Los Angeles                                         16 

Table 3: Residents, 4629-4635 Maubert Avenue 

Year Name 

1937 
Grace Abbot, widow, and Fannie Stinchfield (4629 Maubert Avenue); Peail 
Beck and Mabel Shott (4633 Maubert Avenue); Herman Jones, salesman, 
and Orestes Jones (4635 Maubert Avenue) 

1942 Pearl S. Boeck, widow (4633 Maubert Avenue); George N. and Syria Ansara, 
carpenter (4635 Maubert Avenue) 

1951 Daniel Swift (4631 Maubert Avenue); Pearl S. Boeck (4633 Maubert Avenue); 
George Ansara (4635 Maubert Avenue)  

1958 Daniel Swift (4631 Maubert Avenue); George Ansara (4635 Maubert Avenue) 

1976 Edward Gaberman (4631 Maubert Avenue); Clifford Quigley (4633 Maubert 
Avenue); Michael Lambert (4635 Maubert Avenue) 

1981 Edward Gaberman (4631 Maubert Avenue); Clifford Quigley (4633 Maubert 
Avenue) 

1986 Kevork Garoian (4629 Maubert Avenue); Edward Gaberman (4631 Maubert 
Avenue); Roberto Martinez (4633 Maubert Avenue) 

1990 Kevork Garoian (4629 Maubert Avenue); Edward Gaberman (4631 Maubert 
Avenue); Roberto Martinez (4633 Maubert Avenue) 

 



 

 

Historical Resource Evaluation Report – 4629-4645 ½ Maubert Avenue, Los Angeles                                         17 

4637-4643 Maubert Avenue (APN 5542-014-031) 

Description  

The property at 4637-4643 Maubert Avenue is occupied by a two-story multi-family residence 
(fourplex) and detached garage, both constructed in 1920. Posted address ranges for the 
property are 4637-4643 Maubert Avenue.  

The residence was constructed in the Mediterranean Revival style. It is two stories in height and U-
shaped in plan. The building is clad in lightly textured stucco and has a flat roof with raised 
parapet. The building has a shed roof parapet with clay tiles over the primary (south) elevation 
and first bays of the east and west elevations. A projecting boxed cornice is just below the shed 
roofline and features brackets carved with acanthus leaves. Along the remainder of the side 
elevations and the rear elevation, the raised flat parapet has clay tile coping. 

The primary elevation is accented by flat pilasters with Ionic capitals. At the center of the 
elevation’s first floor is a recessed stoop with concrete steps and a rounded arch overhang. Four 
individual unit entrances are located below the overhang. Each entrance consists of a multi-light 
wood fully glazed door with a metal security screen. To either side of the stoop are tripartite 
windows set in plaster surrounds. The narrow outer windows are one-over-one, double hung wood 
sash. The center window is one-over-one wood fixed. Other windows on the primary elevation 
include paired aluminum sliding windows and double-hung wood windows with plaster surrounds. 
On the building’s secondary elevations, windows consist of multi-light wood, double-hung wood 
sash, aluminum sliding, and fixed windows with simple wood frames. An exterior stairwell is located 
on the north elevation, within the lightwell.  

Alterations to the building include the replacement of original wood windows with aluminum 
windows, removal of decorative features above the first floor windows on the primary elevation 
(they appear to have had decorative pediments similar to that of the building at 4629 Maubert 
Avenue), removal of columns and alteration of the overhang around the main entrance, possible 
alteration of the pilasters on the south elevation (they may have been rounded like those on 4629 
Maubert Avenue), and addition of security screens over the entrance doors.  

A detached garage is located at the rear of the property. The garage for this property and the 
adjacent property at 4629 Maubert Avenue are connected as one long building that straddles 
the property line. The garage has a flat roof with flashing along the parapet, is clad in textured 
stucco, and has four metal tilt-up vehicular doors.   

 



 

 

Historical Resource Evaluation Report – 4629-4645 ½ Maubert Avenue, Los Angeles                                         18 

 
Figure 12: 4637-4643 Maubert Avenue, south and east elevations, looking northwest (GPA Consulting, 

2019). 

 
Figure 13: 4637-4643 Maubert Avenue, east elevation, looking northwest (GPA Consulting, 2019). 



 

 

Historical Resource Evaluation Report – 4629-4645 ½ Maubert Avenue, Los Angeles                                         19 

 
Figure 14: 4637-4643 Maubert Avenue, west elevation, looking northeast (GPA Consulting, 2019). 

 
Figure 15: 4637-4643 Maubert Avenue, north and east elevations, looking southwest (GPA Consulting, 

2019). 



 

 

Historical Resource Evaluation Report – 4629-4645 ½ Maubert Avenue, Los Angeles                                         20 

 
Figure 16: Detached garage, south elevation, looking northeast (GPA Consulting, 2019). 

Ownership and Tenant History 

The residence and garage were constructed in 1920 by developers Wright and Hogan. In 1921, 
Josefino Denley purchased the property. Denley owned the property for one year before it was 
purchased by the Security Trust and Savings Bank. In 1922, the property was split, and the 
ownership divided between the east 40 feet and west 35 feet. By 1931, ownership was 
consolidated again. It is shown as parcel 25 on the tract map in Figure 11 above. The split 
ownership is broken down in Table 4 below: 

Table 4: Chain of Ownership, 4637-4643 Maubert Avenue 

Year East 40 feet of property West 35 feet of property  

1922 None listed Gertrude M. Throop 

1924 Herbert S. Sykes Gertrude M. Throop 

1925 Hulbert S. Sykes Gertrude M. Throop 

1926 Hulbert S. Sykes Lynn C. Throop 

1927-1930 John Lazzarevich Lynn C. Throop 

1931-1954 Lynn C. Throop 



 

 

Historical Resource Evaluation Report – 4629-4645 ½ Maubert Avenue, Los Angeles                                         21 

1954-1961 Maude G. Throop 

1961 Morris A. and Mary R. Orbach 

The building has housed multiple tenants since its construction. The table below summarizes the 
residents who have lived in the building:  

Table 5: Residents, 4637-4643 Maubert Avenue 

Year Name 

1924 
Hohmann (4641 Maubert Avenue); Gwin Crabee, engineer, So Cal Gas Co. 
(4645 Maubert Avenue); Graces Gonzales (4643 Maubert Avenue) 

1929 
Carl R. and Esther Van Dignstree, station superintendant (4639 Maubert 
Avenue); John and Lydia Viebrock, pharmacist McColloch Drug (4641 
Maubert Avenue) 

1933 William and Elsie Saunders, salesman (4637 Maubert Avenue) 

1937 

Nicholas L. and Mary Lazarevich, Economy Plumbing Co. (4637 Maubert 
Avenue); Bertha MacKenzie, seamstress (4639 Maubert Avenue); Marion 
Lewis (4641 Maubert Avenue); George Adams Douglas (4643 Maubert 
Avenue)  

1942 
George and Rose Pacino, barber (4637 Maubert Avenue); Daniel B. and Ruth 
Swift, barber (4639 Maubert Avenue); Anna E. Olsen (4641 Maubert Avenue); 
Joseph and Helen Glassman (4643 Maubert Avenue)  

1951 
George Pacino (4637 Maubert Avenue); Ethel and Mary Ronnie (4639 
Maubert Avenue); Mrs. Virginia Ward (4641 Maubert Avenue); Glassman (no 
first name listed) (4643 Maubert Avenue) 

1958 George Pacino (4637 Maubert Avenue); Ethel and Mary Ronnie (4639 
Maubert Avenue) 

1976 Mrs. J Ali (4637 Maubert Avenue) 

1981 Mrs. J Ali (4637 Maubert Avenue) 

1986 Mrs. J Ali (4637 Maubert Avenue); Carmela Messineo (4643 Maubert Avenue) 

1990 Carmela Messineo (4643 Maubert Avenue) 

 

 

 



 

 

Historical Resource Evaluation Report – 4629-4645 ½ Maubert Avenue, Los Angeles                                         22 

4645 ½-4651 Maubert Avenue (APN 5542-014-023)  

Description 

The property at 4645 ½ Maubert Avenue is occupied by two-story multi-family residence (fourplex) 
and detached garage, both constructed in 1920. Posted address ranges for the property are 4645 
½-4651 Maubert Avenue.  

Though presumably designed in the Mediterranean Revival style like the adjacent buildings, the 
fourplex has been substantially altered and no longer reflects a particular architectural style. The 
building is two stories in height and U-shaped in plan. It is clad in vinyl vertical and horizontal siding 
and has a flat roof with raised parapet. The building has a shed roof parapet with clay tiles above 
the primary elevation and the first bays of the east and west elevations. A projecting boxed 
cornice is just below the shed roofline and features brackets carved with acanthus leaves. Along 
the remainder of the roofline, the raised flat parapet has metal flashing and no coping. 

There are four entrances in the center of the primary elevation. They are located within a recessed 
stoop accessed by concrete steps and below a flat roof overhang supported by decorative metal 
posts. Each entrance consists of a single door covered by security screens; three are multi-light 
wood doors and one consists of a wood paneled door.  

To either side of the entrance are tripartite windows set within plaster surrounds. The narrow outer 
windows are one-over-one, double hung wood sash. The center window is one-over-one wood 
fixed. At the second floor, paired vinyl sliding windows are set in plaster surrounds directly above 
the first-floor windows. Centered above the entrance on the second floor are smaller, vinyl 
windows with plaster surrounds. Windows on the secondary elevations include one-over-one, 
double-hung wood sash, and multi-light wood sash, as well as aluminum and vinyl fixed and sliding 
windows. A wooden stairwell provides access to the second story on the north side of the building, 
within the lightwell.  

Alterations to the building include the replacement of what was likely stucco cladding with vinyl 
siding, replacement of original wood windows with aluminum and vinyl windows, removal of 
decorative features and some wood windows frames, alterations to the entry stoop, replacement 
of one multi-light entrance door with a paneled door, and the addition of security screens over 
all of the entrance doors.  

There is a detached garage located to the north of the residence at the rear of the parcel. It is 
one story in height, clad in textured stucco and wood, and has a flat roof. It has three metal tilt-
up vehicular doors. It was once larger in size and connected to the garage for the property to the 
west, in a similar configuration as the garages for the properties at 4629 Maubert Avenue and 
4637 Maubert Avenue. The residence and garage to the west have been demolished.  

A one-story building is located at the rear of the property. Constructed in 1975, the building has a 
low-pitched hipped roof and is clad in textured stucco. The south elevation features two 
entrances with single doors. The west entrance, a door covered by a security screen, has a small 
concrete porch with an overhang supported by metal railing. The east entrance is suspended 
above grade and consists of a wood slab door. There is a pair of sliding glass doors on the east 
side of the south elevation. It is accessed via a concrete stoop and steps surrounded by metal 
railing. The sliding doors are covered by security bars. Windows on the building consist are sliding 
aluminum. A shed is located to the rear (north) of the building.  



 

 

Historical Resource Evaluation Report – 4629-4645 ½ Maubert Avenue, Los Angeles                                         23 

 
Figure 17: South and east elevations, looking northwest (GPA Consulting, 2019). 

 
Figure 18: East elevation, looking northwest (GPA Consulting, 2019). 



 

 

Historical Resource Evaluation Report – 4629-4645 ½ Maubert Avenue, Los Angeles                                         24 

 
Figure 19: South elevation, looking northeast (GPA Consulting, 2019). 

 
Figure 20: West elevation, looking northeast (GPA Consulting, 2019). 



 

 

Historical Resource Evaluation Report – 4629-4645 ½ Maubert Avenue, Los Angeles                                         25 

 
Figure 21: North elevation, looking southeast (GPA Consulting, 2019). 

 
Figure 22: Detached garage, looking southeast (GPA Consulting, 2019). 



 

 

Historical Resource Evaluation Report – 4629-4645 ½ Maubert Avenue, Los Angeles                                         26 

 
Figure 23: One-story detached residence, south elevation, looking northeast (GPA Consulting). 

Ownership and Tenant History 

The primary residence was constructed in 1920 by property developers Wright and Hogan. From 
1921 to 1924, Robert J. Trimble owned the property. In 1924, the property’s ownership was split in 
the same manner as the parcels for 4629-4635 and 4637-4643 Maubert Avenue.  

Table 6: Chain of Ownership, 4645 ½-4651 Maubert Avenue 

Year East 30 feet of property West 40 feet of property  

1921 Robert J. Trimble 

1922 Gertrude M. Throop Robert J. Trimble 

1923 Gertrude M. Throop Robert J. Trimble 

1924 Gertrude M. Throop Robert J. Trimble 

1925 Gertrude M. Throop Robert J. Trimble 

1926-1930 Lynn C. Throop Heirs of Robert J. Trimble 

According to Los Angeles County Assessor records, a portion of the property was owned by Pincus 
A. Kranz in 1924, though what portion is unclear. Kranz is listed as owner along with Trimble and 
Throop that year. Kranz also owned the adjacent parcel 23 to the west. By 1943, the entire property 



 

 

Historical Resource Evaluation Report – 4629-4645 ½ Maubert Avenue, Los Angeles                                         27 

was owned by Elon J. Clarke. Clarke owned the property until 1956 when the City National Bank 
of Beverly Hills purchased it. The bank owned the property until at least 1961. By 1976, Robert and 
Charlotte E. Davis owned the property. They lived on a different property at 1514 N. Vermont 
Avenue. City directory research revealed the following tenants (Table 7): 

Table 7: Residents, 4645 ½-4651 Maubert Avenue 

Year Name 

1924 

Gwin Crabee, engineer, So Cal Gas Co (4645 Maubert Avenue); Robert 
Guth, messenger (4647 Maubert Avenue); Lynn and Maud Throop, president 
of the Santa Clara Oil Development Company (4649 Maubert Avenue); 
Graham E. Chester, clerk(4651 Maubert Avenue) 

1929 

Frances Dunn, nurse, L. and Marian Freeman hascle [sic] salesman, Nellie 
Lamber, Sarah H. Macy nurse (4645 Maubert Avenue); Lynn and Maud 
Throop, president of the Santa Clara Oil Development Company (4649 
Maubert Avenue); Chester Graham, pharmacist Owl Drug Co (4651 Maubert 
Avenue) 

1933 
Clyde and Myrtle Lewis, electrician (4645 Maubert Avenue); Leona 
Grayson, stenographer (4647 Maubert Avenue); Grover Deitrich (4651 
Maubert Avenue) 

1937 

Mildred Lolar, waiter (4645 Maubert Avenue); Jane Hutchinson (4645 
Maubert Avenue); Lynn and Maud Throop president of the Santa Clara Oil 
Development Company (4649 Maubert Avenue); Meyer and Celia Brill, 
clothing rentals (4651 Maubert Avenue) 

1942 
Jacqueline Moffet, saleswoman (4645 Maubert Avenue), Orestes and 
Elizabeth Jones (4647 Maubert Avenue); Cabe Smith, restauranteur (4649 
Maubert Avenue); Donald Coontz, mechanic (4651 Maubert Avenue) 

1951 Maubrt Av, A. B. Snelson (4645 Maubert Avenue); Maubrt Av, Robert Haass 
(4651 Maubert Avenue) 

1958 None listed 

1976 Carmela Messineo (4647 Maubert Avenue) 

1981 Carmela Messineo (4647 Maubert Avenue) 

1986 None listed 

1990 Serkis Dovaltyan (4645 Maubert Avenue) 

 

 

  



 

 

Historical Resource Evaluation Report – 4629-4645 ½ Maubert Avenue, Los Angeles                                         28 

4. EVALUATION OF ELIGIBILITY  

4.1 Historic Contexts 

The significance of a property must be evaluated within its historic context(s). Historic contexts are 
those patterns or trends in history by which a specific property is understood. The contexts, themes, 
and sub-themes discussed below were drawn from the Los Angeles Citywide Historic Context 
Statement (LACHCS) and are relevant in evaluating the significance of the subject properties. The 
most relevant context/themes for the properties evaluated below were:  

 Residential Development and Suburbanization, 1880-1980 
o Multi-Family Residential Development, 1895-1970  

 Subtheme: Apartment Houses, 1895-1970  
 Mediterranean & Indigenous Revival Architecture, 1893-1948 

o Mediterranean Revival, 1918-1942.  

An overview of multi-family residential development in Los Angeles from the LACHCS is included 
for background to the subtheme for Apartment Houses. The theme for Developers and the 
Development Process, 1888-1975 was also consulted; however, property types associated with this 
context and theme include entire neighborhoods or subdivisions, rather than individual properties, 
since the latter would not likely convey a developer’s contributions to the residential development 
of Los Angeles in an adequate manner.  

Multi-Family Residential Development in Los Angeles, 1895-197019 

There is a perception that has long endured that Los Angeles is a “City of Homes” – that in Los 
Angeles apartment living was a temporary condition, and that the domestic ideal for every 
Angeleno was a detached single-family house. As noted by Robert Fogelson in his book, The 
Fragmented Metropolis, “Americans came to Los Angeles with a conception of the good 
community which was embodied in single-family houses, located on large lots, surrounded by 
landscaped lawns.”20 According to Todd Gish, this myth of Los Angeles as a city based on the 
single-family home was actively promoted by local boosters starting in the early 1900s, and has 
been perpetuated by historians, journalists, and policymakers since then.21 As Gish notes: 

For Los Angeles, single-family detached houses – small and affordable ones for 
workers, solid and commodious ones for the middle-class, and big, luxurious ones 
for moguls and magnates – constituted the central element of not only an idyllic 
setting but also an idealized lifestyle. (The private, landscaped lot amid more of the 
same is an all-important corollary.)22 

                                                      

19 The following is excerpted from Los Angeles Citywide Historic Context Statement, Context: Residential 
Development and Suburbanization, 1880-1980, Theme: Multi-Family Residential Development, 1895-1970, 
prepared for the Office of Historic Resources by Historic Resources Group, December 2018, 4-13. 
Footnotes from the original document are included.  

20 Robert M. Fogelson, The Fragmented Metropolis: Los Angeles 1850-1930 (Berkeley and Los Angeles: 
University of California Press, 1967), 144. 

21 Todd Douglas Gish, “Building Los Angeles: Urban Housing in the Suburban Metropolis, 1900-1936” (PhD 
diss., University of Southern California, 2007), 3. 

22 Gish, 3.  



 

 

Historical Resource Evaluation Report – 4629-4645 ½ Maubert Avenue, Los Angeles                                         29 

Within this construct, the apartment house and other forms of multi-family dwellings are often 
dismissed as insignificant factors in the overall development and evolution of Los Angeles’ urban 
landscape throughout the twentieth century. This perceived hierarchy of residential building types 
is reflected in much of the scholarship, in which the importance of multi-family housing to the 
development of Los Angeles is typically diminished, if not overlooked entirely. However, as Gish 
argues in his detailed examination of multi-family housing trends in early twentieth century Los 
Angeles, multifamily housing has been a critically important component of the city’s dwelling 
stock since the turn of the twentieth century: “Rental housing in multiple dwellings large and small 
was essential to urban growth and development – an integral component of the city’s larger 
landscape as well as its economic workings, political affairs, and social formation.”23 

The reasons for the proliferation of multi-family housing in early twentieth century Los Angeles are 
manifold. Primary among them was simple demand. Multi-family residences played a critical role 
in meeting the widespread need for housing created by the city’s exponential population growth 
during this time. In 1900, the city had barely a hundred thousand residents; by 1930 that number 
had exploded to over 1.2 million. In the 1920s alone, the city’s population doubled as Los Angeles 
went from the nation’s tenth largest city to the fifth largest.24 

For many Angelenos a multi-family dwelling was a more desirable living situation than a detached 
single-family house. Multi-family living was generally more affordable and located “further in” – 
close to urban amenities such as employment centers and shopping districts. By contrast, 
potential homeowners often had to be “courted and coaxed out to the urban edge, where they 
might or might not find paved streets or sewer connections, but where often-steep mortgage 
payments would be waiting regardless.”25 Unlike in other American cities, where apartment 
housing was associated with overcrowding and unhealthful living conditions for the urban poor, 
Los Angeles’ varied stock of rental units accommodated Angelenos with a wide range of 
economic means, from working-class fourplexes, to middle-class bungalow courts, to high-rent 
luxury apartment towers. …  

As the city’s population rose in the early twentieth century, and the demand for affordable rental 
units kept pace, there were plenty of entrepreneurs happy to add to the supply of multi-family 
housing. Development of multi-family dwellings provided investment opportunities up and down 
the socioeconomic scale, “from lower middle-class white and minority single-lot owners on up to 
real estate tycoons and everywhere in between.”26 Small-scale buildings were the earliest 
examples of this kind of income-producing residential development, due to the relative ease with 
which they could be constructed and with minimal up-front capital. Larger buildings did not 
appear in substantial numbers until the 1920s, when a combination of even more rapid population 
growth, a burgeoning tourism industry, and widespread availability of investment capital “drove 
an apartment construction boom in Los Angeles that dramatically altered parts of the city.”27 
Smaller buildings would then give way to larger apartment houses, towers, and ultimately 
expansive complexes which could offer a greater return on investment. 

                                                      

23 Gish, 1-2.  
24 Gish, 307.  
25 Gish, 35.  
26 Gish, 4.  
27 Gish, 99.  



 

 

Historical Resource Evaluation Report – 4629-4645 ½ Maubert Avenue, Los Angeles                                         30 

Los Angeles’ multi-family housing stock accommodated thousands of permanent residents as well 
as a large population of temporary residents in the form of tourists from all over the United States. 
In early twentieth-century Los Angeles, tourism was becoming a major economic force and a 
major factor in the city’s growth and expansion. According to author Carey McWilliams, seasonal 
tourism had a noticeable impact of the city’s multi-family housing stock:  

With winter tourists pouring into Southern California by the thousands – 60,000 in 
1901, 30,000 in 1902, 47,000 in 1903 – the construction industry began to boom. 
Blocks of four-family flats were built for the accommodation of winter tourists.28 

At a time when tourist travel was measured in months rather than days or weeks, visitors often 
sought a more private, domestic living arrangement during their stay, renting an apartment or 
courtyard bungalow, or even a single-family house rather than staying in a hotel. …  

One of the earliest mentions of multi-family housing in Los Angeles appears in a Los Angeles Times 
article on New Year’s Day of 1895, which remarked that “the rapid extension of the city… has led 
to a demand for flats … and this demand is rapidly being supplied.”29 By 1899, flats were numerous 
enough to be recognized as a separate residential classification by the City’s Building 
Department. By the 1910s, the term had become shorthand for the four-family flat (a.k.a. fourplex), 
symmetrical in plan and elevation, with a pair of units on each of two floors.30 Two-family dwellings 
– now called duplexes – also started to appear by 1900 and came in various configurations, 
including the “double bungalow” (a single-story structure with side-by-side units), the “double 
house” (a pair of adjoining two-story units), and the “two-flat” (a two-story building with a unit on 
each floor).31 …  

In response to the immense growth in population during the 1920s entrepreneurs erected new 
apartment houses at a staggering rate: the proportion of new construction that was devoted to 
multifamily dwellings advanced from just eight percent in 1920 to 53 percent in 1928.32 While still a 
small percentage of the overall residential building stock, multi-family housing was constituting an 
ever-larger proportion of the city’s total dwelling units. By the mid-1920s, nearly half of all of the 
city’s residential units were in multi-family buildings, including duplexes, four-flats, bungalow courts, 
and apartment buildings.33 …  

By the 1920s, all manner of multi-family housing types could be found in any part of the city that 
could support such density. Smaller-scale structures continued to proliferate, while new types were 
introduced, such as the two-story courtyard apartment. A natural successor to the bungalow 
court, the courtyard apartment retained the emphasis on shared open space and landscaping 
while accommodating a greater number of units and, as such, a better return on investment. 
However, unlike the bungalow court, which tended to be rather restrained in its styling, the 
courtyard apartment was often more expressive, referencing various exotic or romantic 

                                                      

28 Carey McWilliams, Southern California: An Island on the Land (Salt Lake City, UT: Peregrine Smith Press, 
1973), 130. 

29 Los Angeles Times, January 1, 1895, as quoted in Gish, “Building Los Angeles,” 109. 
30 Gish, “Building Los Angeles,” 91. 
31 Gish, 89. 
32 Fogelson, The Fragmented Metropolis, 151. 
33 Weekly Letter, Eberle and Riggleman Economic Service, November 30, 1925, as quoted in Gish, “Building 

Los Angeles,” 126. 



 

 

Historical Resource Evaluation Report – 4629-4645 ½ Maubert Avenue, Los Angeles                                         31 

architectural motifs, from Spanish hacienda to Tudor manor to French chateau. This set-design 
approach to residential design was surely encouraged by the city’s burgeoning movie industry.34 

The peak of Los Angeles’ multi-family housing development came in the mid- to late-1920s, as 
larger and taller apartment blocks and towers began appearing in more parts of the city. Rising 
property values, along with high property taxes, were powerful motivators for owners to develop 
their land more intensively than they might have a decade earlier. Other forces at work which led 
to this explosion of higher-density apartment houses in the 1920s included the availability of 
affordable financing, the low cost of building materials, and the expansive amount of land zoned 
to allow multi-unit dwellings.35 While the city’s 150-foot building height limit did not allow 
construction much above thirteen stories, these taller apartment buildings stood out as they were 
often constructed alongside low-scale stores, offices, and other smaller apartment buildings. 
However, in a few places – notably in Hollywood and along Wilshire Boulevard – apartment houses 
were intentionally concentrated, growing these areas’ residential densities exponentially.36 

Apartment Houses, 1895-197037 

The apartment house can best be defined in contrast to the bungalow court and other forms of 
courtyard housing that were being constructed in the early twentieth century. Unlike courtyard 
housing, the apartment house is designed to maximize lot coverage, with little or no lot area land 
dedicated to useable open space. And unlike courtyard housing, which is typically oriented onto 
a central common space, apartment houses are oriented toward the street, with architectural 
detailing concentrated on the street-facing elevation. Apartment houses vary widely in terms of 
density, from one-story duplexes to high-rise luxury apartment towers. They can accommodate a 
variety of architectural styles, and therefore often reflect the dominant residential styles of the 
period in which they were constructed. Due to their versatility, apartment houses were built 
throughout the twentieth century and in nearly every part of Los Angeles.  

One of the earliest and most modest types of apartment housing in Los Angeles was the duplex. 
There were several reasons that development of the duplex prevailed during the early days of 
multi-family development in the city. Chief among them was the fact that duplexes presented 
even the average homeowner with the opportunity to capitalize on the concurrent population 
and real estate booms. Composed of two separate dwelling units, the arrangement of the typical 
duplex allowed the homeowner to live in one unit while renting out the other, thus enabling the 
construction of both a residence and income property on a single lot. Duplexes were also 
appealing because their size and scale resembled that of the single-family homes with which they 
sometimes shared the block. Todd Gish explains the various iterations of the most common duplex 
plans: 

The “double bungalow” was a single-story structure divided down the middle, 
forming two units side-by-side. These buildings were often perfectly symmetrical in 

                                                      

34 Gish, “Building Los Angeles,” 102-103. 
35 Gish, 294, 297.  
36 Fogelson, The Fragmented Metropolis, 151; Gish, “Building Los Angeles,” 104.  
37 Excerpted from Los Angeles Citywide Historic Context Statement, Context: Residential Development and 

Suburbanization, 1880-1980, Theme: Multi-Family Residential Development, 1895-1970, Sub-theme: 
Apartment Houses, 1895-1970, prepared for the Office of Historic Resources by Historic Resources Group, 
December 2018, 24-31. Footnotes from the original document are included.  



 

 

Historical Resource Evaluation Report – 4629-4645 ½ Maubert Avenue, Los Angeles                                         32 

plan and front elevation. The “double house” was a two-story version of this, 
essentially a pair of adjoining row houses, with living rooms and kitchens below and 
bedrooms above. The “two-flat” was a two-story building with a unit on each 
floor—a double-decker, in other words. An architecturally elaborate form of the 
two-flat became popular in the 1920s and ‘30s, characterized by stylized accents 
such as wrought iron grilles, Spanish tile roofs, and ceramic tile panels. Most 
noticeable in this version was a prominent exterior stair ascending to the second-
floor unit’s entrance from a small patio outside the lower unit’s entry…38 

The similarity in scale and massing allowed duplexes to be designed in many of the same styles as 
were popular for single-family residences at the time, including the Craftsman style and various 
Period Revival styles. Gish notes that double bungalows appear to have been the most popular, 
likely due to their affordable single-story construction, and that the double-house or row-house 
pair was comparatively rare.39 Duplexes of all kinds, however, were built in large numbers for 
decades, and were classified as a distinct dwelling type by the Building Department well into the 
1920s.40 Part of what distinguished the development of the duplex was that it could be 
constructed anywhere, and individual examples were indeed built throughout the city. Today, 
examples of the dwelling type can be found citywide in areas of including Westlake, Wilshire, San 
Pedro, Echo Park, South and Southeast Los Angeles, and others.  

Apartment houses of all sizes grew in popularity as developers sought higher-density solutions to 
the population boom. Some were smaller, typically two stories in height, with three or four units.41 
The “four-flat” buildings more closely resembled their duplex cousins than their higher-density 
descendants. The typical four-flat, or fourplex, was symmetrical in plan and elevation and 
consisted of a pair of units on each of two floors.42 Perhaps its most notable feature was its 
clustering of the four separate entrance doors within a single, large front porch or entry portal—
creating the impression of a large single-family dwelling.43 As a result four-flats, like duplexes, could 
be integrated into existing single-family neighborhoods with greater success than larger buildings, 
which were more likely to be located in more urban areas. Like the duplex, they were designed 
in the prevailing architectural styles of the day.  

Larger apartment houses from this early period could range anywhere from two to six stories in 
height, with four or more units. Early examples constructed during the 1910s were mostly modest 
vernacular structures constructed of brick or wood frame, while into the 1920s they began to take 
on more decorative, even fanciful, stylistic elements. Their comparative affordability and the 
ability to pack as many units onto a lot as possible made the two-story apartment building a 
particularly attractive investment for both novice and seasoned developers.44 As many as a dozen 
or more two- and three-room units could be fit into this simple type, greatly increasing the potential 
rate of return relative to outlay for construction.45  

                                                      

38 Gish, 89. 
39 Gish, 89, 91. 
40 Gish, 89.  
41 The three-unit triplex is less common in Los Angeles than the duplex or fourplex. 
42 Gish, 91. 
43 Gish, 91.  
44 Gish, 102.  
45 Gish, 102.  



 

 

Historical Resource Evaluation Report – 4629-4645 ½ Maubert Avenue, Los Angeles                                         33 

By the 1920s, however, the influx of affluent middle-class residents demanded a more 
sophisticated approach. … Apartment house construction expanded following World War I as 
newcomers continued to stream into the city. The higher-density buildings, termed apartment 
towers, often eclipsed surrounding existing development due to their height, transforming the 
urban landscape. However, builders and developers were still restricted by the 150-foot height 
limit, which allowed for roughly thirteen stories in building height. The solution to the constraint was 
to build outward – often all the way to the lot line. Gish explains the impact of this move on the 
streetscape:  

In the years before setback regulations, some developers built to the front and side 
lot lines, maximizing lot coverage and, hence, rentable units. On the occasion that 
many neighboring builders chose to do this, the overall effect was of a continuous 
street wall fifty feet high or more. In dense concentrations…this kind of residential 
development worried planners, and led to a 1935 ordinance requiring yards on all 
sides of residential buildings.46 

Both apartment houses (two to six stories in height) as well as apartment towers (six stories or more) 
were constructed during this period. In terms of size, buildings of four to six stories in height 
prevailed, with over 400 such buildings constructed between 1921 and 1930; by comparison, thirty-
seven buildings of seven stories or more were constructed during the same period.47 In the 1920s, 
the Westlake area exemplified the trend in development of smaller apartment buildings of three 
to five stories; individual proprietors and investors constructed hundreds of these properties in the 
area during the 1920s and 1930s, many in the proximity of streetcar lines for easy access to 
Downtown.48 In some cases (such as on Rampart Boulevard and Union Avenue), an entire block 
of moderately-priced apartment buildings went up within the span of a year or two, instantly 
creating a dense multi-family community in an area originally subdivided for residences.49 Similar 
concentrations of apartment houses were constructed along major traffic corridors such as 
Wilshire Boulevard and Sixth Street, as well as throughout Hollywood and Hancock Park. Examples 
constructed in the 1920s and 1930s largely reflected the popular Period Revival styles of the time, 
such as Spanish Colonial Revival, Mediterranean Revival, and French Revival. Later examples were 
also constructed in Art Deco or Streamline Moderne styles. 

Although a few low-scale apartment buildings continued to be developed in the 1930s through 
the 1960s, the Great Depression and World War II dampened the construction of multi-family 
properties in the Central City.50 After World War II, public opinion and financing priorities led to the 
development of affordable single-family residences in suburbs to the north and west, and thus 
many would-be apartment dwellers moved out of the Central City.51 However, the postwar 
population boom motivated multi-family residential development in westerly neighborhoods 
including Westwood, Brentwood, Century City, and West Los Angeles. Apartment houses 
continued to be developed in residential neighborhoods in these areas from the 1950s to the 
1970s, while high-rise apartment towers were developed along major corridors such as Wilshire 

                                                      

46 Gish, 104.  
47 Gish, 285.  
48 LSA Associates, “Intensive Survey: Westlake Recovery Redevelopment Area,” 33. 
49 LSA Associates, “Intensive Survey: Westlake Recovery Redevelopment Area,” 33. 
50 LSA Associates, “Intensive Survey: Westlake Recovery Redevelopment Area,” 34. 
51 LSA Associates, “Intensive Survey: Westlake Recovery Redevelopment Area,” 34-35.  



 

 

Historical Resource Evaluation Report – 4629-4645 ½ Maubert Avenue, Los Angeles                                         34 

Boulevard. These towers echoed the lower-density apartment houses, frequently featuring a single 
common building entrance and street-facing orientation. However, they are differentiated by 
their height and vertical massing, as well as the exhibition of later architectural styles such as Mid-
Century and Corporate Modernism. 

While apartment towers are anything above six stories, later examples were substantially taller due 
to a relaxation of the City Zoning Ordinance in 1958, when a new Height District Map was adopted 
by the Los Angeles City Council. This wave of higher-density residential development in various 
parts of the city continues to this day. 

The eligibility standards and integrity considerations for Apartment Houses, 1895-1970 are listed in 
Table 8, below.  

Table 8: Apartment Houses, 1895-1970 

Context: Residential Development and Suburbanization, 1880-1980 

Theme: Multi-Family Residential Development, 1895-1970 

Sub-Theme: Apartment Houses, 1895-1970 

Property Type: Residential – Multi-family  

Property Sub-Type: Apartment House  

Eligibility Standards 
 Is two or more stories in height 
 Is an excellent example of the type   
 Was constructed during the period of significance   
 Was originally constructed as an apartment house  

Character-Defining/Associative Features 
 Retains most of the essential character-defining features from the period of significance 
 Designed to maximize lot coverage 
 Two or more stories; may be up to five or six stories  
 Typically three or more units (flats or apartments). Triplex examples occur but are not common 
 Generally rectangular in plan, often with one or more light wells 
 Oriented toward the street, with architectural detailing on the street-facing elevation 
 Early examples are often vernacular in design (wood or brick), and may not exhibit the features 

of a particular architectural style 
 May have a single common building entrance with unit entrances opening onto interior 

corridors, or multiple ground-floor entries 
 May have central landscaping or other feature, but it is not a focus of the design 
 May also be significant as a good to excellent example of an architectural style from its period 

and/or the work of a significant architect or builder 
 Associated architectural styles may include, and not be limited to: American Foursquare, 

Shingle, Craftsman, Art Deco, Spanish Colonial Revival, Mediterranean Revival, American 
Colonial Revival, Tudor Revival, French Revival, Classical Revival, Renaissance Revival, Mid-
Century Modern 

Integrity Considerations 
 Should retain integrity of Location, Design, Materials, and Feeling 



 

 

Historical Resource Evaluation Report – 4629-4645 ½ Maubert Avenue, Los Angeles                                         35 

 Some original materials may have been altered or removed 
 Replacement of some windows may be acceptable if the openings have not been changed or 

resized 
 Security bars may have been added 
 Parapets may have been removed to comply with seismic regulations 
 If it is a rare surviving example of its type, or is a rare example in the community in which it is 

located, a greater degree of alteration or fewer character-defining features may be 
acceptable. 

 Surrounding buildings and land uses may have changed 
 Where this property type is situated within a grouping of multi-family residences, it may also be 

significant as a contributor to a multi-family residential district. A grouping may be composed of 
a single property type or a variety of types. 

Mediterranean Revival, 1918-194252  

The Mediterranean Revival was common for residential and smaller institutional uses. It shared 
basic elements with the Spanish Colonial Revival, such as stuccoed walls and tiled roofs, but was 
generally less exuberant and more formal in its massing, and featured extended gardens rather 
than enclosed patios.53  

The popularity of the various Mediterranean Revival styles came from the similarity of Southern 
California’s climate to that of Spain and Italy, and from the Spanish and Mexican heritage 
remaining from the time before the American conquest in 1848. The fundamental elements of this 
heritage first appeared in the California missions, with their white-plastered walls, tiled roofs, and 
extended arcades.54  

Related to the Spanish Colonial Revival is the Mediterranean Revival, also popular between the 
two World Wars. Its origin is Italy, and while it shares many features with the Spanish Colonial, there 
are identifiable differences. The composition of the Mediterranean Revival is less picturesque, with 
uniformly horizontal roof lines and little emphasis on separate massing. Along with this comes 
increasing formality, approaching axial symmetry in many cases. Perhaps the most apparent 
difference is the roof. Both employ low pitches and clay tiles, but that of the Mediterranean Revival 
is typically hipped, while that of the Spanish Colonial Revival is gabled. 

Also different is the approach to landscaping, reflecting the difference between Spanish and 
Italian traditions. The Spanish Colonial Revival often turns inward, with the characteristic outdoor 
space being an enclosed courtyard or patio. The Mediterranean Revival, in contrast, makes use 
when possible of the formal garden that extends outward from the building. 

                                                      

52 The context information in this section was excerpted from the Los Angeles Citywide Historic Context 
Statement, Context: Architecture and Engineering, 1850-1980; Theme: Mediterranean & Indigenous 
Revival Architecture, 1893-1948, prepared by Daniel Prosser for the City of Los Angeles Office of Historic 
Resources, November 2018, 2, 4, and 44. Please note that the periods of significance found in the historic 
context and CTP tables differ. The period of significance in the historic context statement was utilized in 
the evaluations for this report, since it is the most up to date and reflects data collected in the field during 
SurveyLA.  

53 Prosser, 2.  
54 Prosser, 4.  



 

 

Historical Resource Evaluation Report – 4629-4645 ½ Maubert Avenue, Los Angeles                                         36 

Most resources mixed elements, as was admitted by architect Rexford Newcomb in his 1928 book 
Mediterranean Domestic Architecture in the United States. He noted that “Called upon to do 
‘Spanish’ work, many of our men versed in the Italian, unconsciously allowed the Italian to modify 
their less well understood Spanish forms so that something that was neither Spanish nor Italian 
resulted.”55 Nonetheless, an examination of predominantly Mediterranean Revival resources 
illustrates an overall difference that is primarily a feeling of quiet formality in contrast to picturesque 
exuberance. 

The eligibility standards and integrity considerations for Mediterranean Revival, 1918-1942 are 
below:  

Table 9: Mediterranean Revival, 1918-1942 

Context: Architecture and Engineering, 1850-1980 

Theme: Mediterranean & Indigenous Revival Architecture, 1887-1952 

Sub-Theme: Mediterranean Revival, 1918-1942 

Property Type: Residential 

Eligibility Standards 
 Exemplifies the character-defining features of the Mediterranean Revival style  
 Is an excellent example of its style and/or the work of a significant architect and/or builder  
 Was constructed during the period of significance  

Character-Defining/Associative Features 
 Retains most of the essential character-defining features of the style 
 Stucco exterior walls (rarely, brick or cast stone) 
 Low-pitched clay tile roof typically hipped 
 Relatively simple massing, with stress on the horizontal 
 Relatively formal composition, approaching symmetry in parts or in whole 
 Arched openings, including arched focal windows 
 Clay tile roof and roof trim 
 Limited use of applied decoration 
 Landscaping of formal gardens extending away from building 

Integrity Considerations 
 Should retain integrity of Design, Materials, Workmanship, and Feeling 
 Stucco repair or replacement must duplicate the original in texture and appearance 
 Roof replacement should duplicate original in materials, color, texture, dimension, and 

installation pattern 
 New additions should be appropriately scaled and located so as to not overwhelm the original 

design and massing 
 Limited window replacement may be acceptable 
 Security bars may have been added 

                                                      

55 Rexford Newcomb, Mediterranean Domestic Architecture in the United States (New York: Acanthus Press, 
1999), 3. 



 

 

Historical Resource Evaluation Report – 4629-4645 ½ Maubert Avenue, Los Angeles                                         37 

 Evolution of plant materials is expected, but significant designed landscapes should be retained 
 Setting may have changed (surrounding buildings and land uses) 
 Original use may have changed 

 

4.2  National Register of Historic Places 

The three properties on the Project site were evaluated for eligibility for listing in the National 
Register. The contexts considered in this evaluation were Residential Development and 
Suburbanization, Multi-Family Residential Development, 1895-1970 (Subtheme: Apartment Houses, 
1895-1970) and Mediterranean Revival architecture. Since they were all evaluated under the 
same historic contexts, their evaluations are combined below except where distinction between 
the properties (namely under Criterion B and their assessment of integrity) makes differentiation 
necessary.  

Criterion A  

To be eligible for listing in the National Register under Criterion A, a property must have a direct 
association with events that have made a significant contribution to the broad patterns of our 
history. The context and theme considered in this evaluation is Residential Development and 
Suburbanization, Multi-Family Residential Development, 1895-1970. The applicable sub-theme is 
Apartment Houses, 1895-1970. This context is applicable to both Criteria A and C and was utilized 
for both evaluations in this report.  

According to the LACHCS, properties significant under the Apartment Houses theme may 
“represent an important building type that proliferated throughout the city during most of the 
twentieth century and reflect trends in urban planning to accommodate a wide range of full and 
part time residents as well as tourists and other visitors.”56 The context statement notes that 
apartment houses are one of the most common multi-family residential property types in Los 
Angeles. By the 1920s, when the properties on the Project site were built, apartment houses were 
being constructed to accommodate the influx of tourists and residents and were an increasingly 
ubiquitous element of the built environment. The properties at 4629-4635, 4637-4643, and 4645 ½-
4651 Maubert Avenue do not appear to be associated in a significant manner with apartment 
house and multi-family residential development of Los Angeles during the 1920s. While the 
properties reflect a general development trend, they do not represent the residential 
development of the city more than the numerous other multi-family residential buildings 
constructed during the same period. In evaluating a property’s significance under Criterion A, one 
must consider the larger events or trends with which it is associated. National Register Bulletin #15 
points out that “Mere association with historic events or trends is not enough, in and of itself, to 
qualify under Criterion A: the property’s specific association must be considered important as 
well.”57 Although the properties on the Project site meet the eligibility standards and possess many 

                                                      

56 Los Angeles Citywide Historic Context Statement, Context: Residential Development and 
Suburbanization, 1880-1980, Theme: Multi-Family Residential Development, 1895-1970, Sub-theme: 
Apartment Houses, 1895-1970, prepared for the Office of Historic Resources by Historic Resources Group, 
December 2018, 32.  

57 “National Register Bulletin 15: How to Apply the National Register Criteria for Evaluation,” National Park 
Service, Cultural Resources, eds. Patrick Andrus and Rebecca Shrimpton,  
accessed July 2018, https://www.nps.gov/nr/publications/bulletins/nrb15/. 



 

 

Historical Resource Evaluation Report – 4629-4645 ½ Maubert Avenue, Los Angeles                                         38 

of the associative features outlined in the LACHCS, they do not have a significant association with 
the multi-family residential development of Los Angeles or the proliferation of the apartment house 
across the city. The properties do not appear to be significant under Criterion A for their 
association with this context.  

The building to the rear of 4645 ½-4651 Maubert Avenue was constructed in 1975 as infill 
construction in an area that was already largely built out. It does not appear to have any 
significant association with the residential development of Hollywood or Los Angeles in general.   

The 1920s buildings on the Project site were constructed by developers Wright and Hogan (they 
are listed as the owner, architect, and contractor on the original building permits). The company 
of Wright and Hogan, Inc. were property developers in the 1920s. Relatively little information was 
found about the company. What is known from articles in the Los Angeles Times and Southwest 
Building and Contractor is that they were sub-dividers and developers in Los Angeles in the 1920s. 
They are also listed as builders and sales agents for the Community Building Corporation, about 
which minimal information was found. City directory listings indicate that Ben O.L. Wright was the 
president of Wright and Hogan, Inc., real estate sub-dividers and builders, and Dennis B. Hogan 
was a member of Wright and Hogan. Orin L. Wright was secretary for the company. In the late 
1920s, the company developed a cooperative poultry project near Artesia, cut into one-acre 
tracts from an existing ranch property. By that time Ben Wright was the manager of the California 
Capon Poultry Ranch in Artesia.58 There is no indication that the company of Wright and Hogan 
could be considered significant builders or developers, and the buildings at 4629-4635, 4637-4643, 
and 4645 ½-4651 Maubert Avenue do not appear to be significant under Criterion A for their 
association with the company.   

Criterion B 
 
To be eligible for listing in the National Register under Criterion B, a property must be associated 
with the lives of persons significant in our past. Research was conducted on the owners and 
residents of each property on the Project site. A summary of information found and conclusion of 
significance under Criterion B for each property is below.  

4629-4635 Maubert Avenue 

Research uncovered no information about Josephino Denley, who owned the property in 1921.  

Herbert S. Sykes, who owned the property in 1924, was found listed in the federal census. He was 
born in Colorado in 1890. By 1930, he lived on Encanto Drive in Los Angeles and was married to 
Octavia S. Sykes. He worked as a manager of a citrus packing house. According to a mention in 
the Los Angeles Times, he appears to have been the manager for the San Fernando Heights 
Lemon Company.  

Hulbert S. Sykes, who appears to be a different individual from Herbert S. Skyes, owned the 
property from 1925 to 1926. Sykes was in the real estate business, based upon the 1920 and 1921 
city directories. He was born in Wisconsin in 1872 and married to Rubie (or Ruby) B. Sykes, 
according to the 1930 and 1940 censuses.  

                                                      

58 D.H. Clymer, “Artesia Group Goes into Poultry Raising,” Los Angeles Times, August 26, 1928, K14.  



 

 

Historical Resource Evaluation Report – 4629-4645 ½ Maubert Avenue, Los Angeles                                         39 

Arestes R. Jones (also spelled Orestes), who owned the east portion of the property from in 1924, 
was born in Kentucky in 1879 and was married to Elizabeth Jones. He worked as a railroad 
conductor.  

No information was found about a Brent A. McCullock, who owned the property in 1925.  

Assessor records appear to indicate that Albert B. Castig (spelled Casteig in the federal census) 
owned the property from 1923 to 1944, though this contradicts other information found in the map 
books. Castig lived on Hollywood Boulevard in 1930 and was married to Anna Casteig. He was 
born in 1889 and worked as a cutlery cutter.  

Dean S. Bedillion, who owned the property in 1926, was an auctioneer and worked in real estate.  

Nicholas and Olga Lazzarevich who owned the property from 1932 to 1961, were siblings. Nicholas 
was born in 1886 in California. He is listed as a plumber on the 1920 federal census. By 1937, 
Nicholas and his brother John (who owned portions of 4929-4635 and 4637-4643 Maubert Avenue 
in 1927) worked for the Economy Plumbing Company. Nicholas lived at 4637 Maubert Avenue.  
Olga was born in 1888 in California. By 1940, she was working as a chocolate dipper in a candy 
store. In 1937, she lived at 4648 ½ Hollywood Boulevard. John Lazzarevich was born in 1898 and is 
listed on the 1940 census as a plumbing contractor. He was married to Catherine, had two 
children, and lived on Woodman Avenue in Hollywood.  

George Ansara, who owned the property from 1940 to 1961 and resided there, was born in 1895 
in Massachusetts. In 1940, he is listed as living at West 22nd Street; the city directory indicates he 
lived at the subject property by 1942. He is listed as a retail proprietor on the 1940 federal census. 
He was married to Cyria (or Syria) and had two children. He is also listed at times as a carpenter 
in city directories. He passed away in 1967.  

Research was conducted into an individual named Bruce G. Coleman, listed as an actor in the 
city directories. Coleman lived at the property in 1929. He had moved to a different address by 
1930 and was born in 1911. No information was found about Coleman in the California Index or 
the Los Angeles Times.  

Though the property has been associated with many individuals since it was constructed, no 
information was found to suggest that these individuals would be considered persons significant 
in our past. Based on the research conducted into the individuals above, the property does not 
appear to be associated with the lives of persons significant in our past and does not appear to 
be significant under Criterion B.  

4637-4643 Maubert Avenue  

Josephino Denley, Herbert S. Sykes, and John Lazzarevich all owned portions of the property as 
well as the adjacent property at 4629-4635 Maubert Avenue. These individuals are discussed 
above under the summary for 4629-4635 Maubert Avenue.   

Lynn C. Throop, who owned the property from 1926 to 1954, was born in Michigan and worked as 
an oil driller. He was born in 1881 and was married to Gertrude M. Throop, who was born in 1894 in 
Kentucky or Missouri (sources vary). By 1924, Lynn is listed as the president of the Santa Clara Oil 
Development Company, but minimal information was found about him. The Throops lived at 4649 
Maubert Avenue. Minimal information was found about Maude G. Throop, though it is known she 
lived at 4649 Maubert Avenue in 1932, according to city directories. The Throops that owned the 



 

 

Historical Resource Evaluation Report – 4629-4645 ½ Maubert Avenue, Los Angeles                                         40 

subject property do not appear to have any relation or ties to the California Institute of Technology 
(originally founded as Throop University by Amos G. Throop) in Pasadena.  

Morris A. Orbach, who owned the property beginning in 1961 was born in 1908 and passed away 
in 1983. He was married to Mary R. Orbach and they had two children in 1940. He worked as a 
driver for a dry cleaning business.  

There is no evidence that any of these individuals could be considered significant in our past. The 
property does not appear to be significant under Criterion B.  

4645 ½-4651 Maubert Avenue 

Lynn C. and Gertrude M. Throop, who owned a portion of the property from 1922 to 1930, are 
discussed above under the summary for 4637-4643 Maubert Avenue.  

Robert J. Trimble, who owned a portion of the property from 1912 to 1924, was born in 1868 and 
passed away in 1924. No additional information about him was found.  

Pincus A. Kranz, who owned a portion of the property in 1924, was born in 1867 in Austria and was 
married to Fannie Krantz. He worked in real estate.  

Elon J. Clarke, who owned the property from at least 1943 to 1956, was born in Kansas in 1875 or 
1880. Research revealed minimal information about Clarke.  

There is no evidence that any of the residents listed as living at the property would be considered 
persons significant in our past. For these reasons, the property does not appear to be associated 
with the lives of significant individuals and does not appear to be significant under Criterion B. 

Criterion C 

To be eligible for listing under Criterion C, a property must embody the distinctive characteristics 
of a type, period, or method of construction, represent the work of a master, possess high artistic 
values, or represent a significant and distinguishable entity whose components may lack 
individual distinction.  

The buildings located at 4629-4635, 4637-4643, and 4645 ½-4651 Maubert Avenue were evaluated 
as examples of their property type (apartment house). As indicated in the historic context above, 
the apartment house was a property type constructed throughout Los Angeles in the 1910s and 
1920s to meet the housing needs of a rapidly growing city. Although the buildings on the Project 
site display many of the eligibility standards and character-defining features listed in the LACHCS 
(see Table 8 above), many of the character-defining features are rather general in nature and 
encompass most examples of the property type. The buildings on the Project site display many of 
the character-defining features of the type, but they nonetheless remain typical examples of 
apartment houses constructed during the 1920s in Hollywood. Numerous examples of the 
apartment house property type were recorded by SurveyLA in the Hollywood CPA and other CPAs 
in the city. The buildings on the Project site were not identified by SurveyLA as significant examples 
of their property type. They are merely representative examples of a very common property type 
and do not stand out as embodying the characteristics of their property type more than the many 
other apartment houses found in Los Angeles.  

The buildings were also evaluated as examples of the Mediterranean Revival style. Although both 
4629-4635 and 4637-4643 Maubert Avenue were constructed during the period of significance for 



 

 

Historical Resource Evaluation Report – 4629-4645 ½ Maubert Avenue, Los Angeles                                         41 

the style, they are not excellent examples. They possess some of the character-defining features 
of the style, such as stucco walls, clay tile roofs, simple massing, and limited applied decoration, 
but not in a manner that elevates them above the many other examples of the style found in the 
city. It cannot be said that they exemplify the style, but rather possess minimal elements of 
Mediterranean Revival architecture applied to an apartment house. The Mediterranean Revival 
style was commonly applied to residential architecture, and it was a popular stylistic choice for 
fourplexes in the 1920s. The buildings on the Project site are representative, but not excellent or 
distinctive examples of their type and style.  They are constructed of materials commonly used 
during the 1920s. The buildings do not appear to be significant for embodying the distinctive 
characteristics of a type, period, or method of construction. 

The building at 4645 ½-4651 Maubert Avenue has been significantly altered (see integrity 
discussion below), and it no longer displays the character-defining features of the Mediterranean 
Revival style in any way. Due to its alterations, it no longer accurately reflects the period in which 
it was constructed. The building to the rear of 4645 ½-4651 Maubert Avenue does not display the 
character-defining features of a particular style. It is a vernacular single-family residential unit. It is 
constructed of typical materials, and in no way does it embody the distinctive characteristics of 
a type, period, or method of construction. None of the buildings on the Project site appear to be 
significant under this aspect of Criterion C.  

Developers Wright and Hogan are listed as the architect and contractor on the original building 
permits for all three buildings. However, the company of Wright and Hogan were property 
developers in the 1920s, not architects or contractors in the more typical sense of the word. The 
contributions of Wright and Hogan are discussed above under Criterion A. No other architect is 
listed, and there is no evidence that the buildings at 4629-4635, 4637-4643, and 4645 ½-4651 
Maubert Avenue would be considered significant under this aspect of Criterion C as the work of 
a master.  

The buildings were evaluated for their potential to possess high artistic value. High artistic value 
typically refers to “an aesthetic ideal,” such as stained glass or sculpture. National Register Bulletin 
#15 states that “a property is eligible for its high artistic values if it so fully articulates a particular 
concept of design that it expresses an aesthetic ideal. This is not the case for the buildings at 4629-
4635, 4637-4643, and 4645 ½-4651 Maubert Avenue. They do not articulate a particular, unique 
concept of design that would lead them to express an aesthetic ideal or high artistic value.  

The last aspect of Criterion C, representing a significant and distinguishable entity whose 
components lack individual distinction, refers to historic districts. The area surrounding the Project 
site does not appear to be a potential historic district. Though developed in approximately the 
same period, the 1920s, the area has since been substantially redeveloped over the course of the 
late twentieth and early twenty-first centuries. It is no longer visually cohesive or evocative of a 
particular period of time. The properties on the Project site were therefore each evaluated 
individually, and this aspect of Criterion C does not apply.  

For all the reasons outlined above, the buildings on the Project site do not appear to be significant 
under Criterion C. 

Criterion D 

To be eligible for listing under Criterion D, a property’s physical material must have yielded or may 
be likely to yield, information important to history or prehistory. 



 

 

Historical Resource Evaluation Report – 4629-4645 ½ Maubert Avenue, Los Angeles                                         42 

This criterion generally applies to archaeological resources but may apply to a built resource in 
instances where a resource may contain important information about such topics as construction 
techniques or human activity. In any case, the resource must be the principal source of 
information. This is unlikely to be true for the properties comprising the Project site. Therefore, none 
appear to be significant under Criterion D. 

Integrity 

To be eligible for listing in the National Register, properties must retain their physical integrity from 
the period in which they gained significance. In the case of architecturally significant properties, 
the period of significance is normally the date of construction. For historically significant properties, 
the period of significance is usually measured by the length of the associations. As the properties 
comprising the Project site do not appear to be significant under any of the National Register 
criteria, they have no period of significance. Nevertheless, the properties were analyzed against 
the seven aspects of integrity: location, design, setting, materials, workmanship, feeling, and 
association. While some factors of integrity are more important than others depending on the 
property, a majority of the seven recognized factors should be retained. Since the integrity of the 
buildings on the Project site varies, they are each discussed separately below.  

4629-4635 Maubert Avenue 

The property at 4629-4635 Maubert Avenue retains integrity of location, as the buildings have not 
been moved. The residence has seen some alterations, most notably the replacement of the 
majority of its windows, replacement of roof material over the porch, and the addition of security 
screens over the unit entrances on the primary elevation. The latter is a common alteration and 
does not impact the overall design in a significant manner. The replacement of windows, 
especially with a visually incompatible aluminum sliding window, is a more notable alteration. This 
has impacted the building’s overall integrity of design, though it has not resulted in a complete 
loss of this aspect of integrity. The property no longer retains integrity of setting, as the surrounding 
setting has changed substantially since the residence and garage were constructed in 1920. Most 
notably, the opposite block is now institutional in use when it was originally residential.  

The alterations to the residence have impacted its integrity of materials and workmanship, though 
overall this aspect of integrity is retained. It retains integrity of feeling since in general, it continues 
to visually express the period of time in which it was constructed. The property was not found to 
be significant under Criteria A or B. Since integrity of association is defined as “the direct link 
between an important event or person and a historic property,” and no important events or 
persons were found to be associated with the property, integrity of association does not apply.  

4637-4643 Maubert Avenue 

The property located at 4637-4643 Maubert Avenue retains integrity of location, as the buildings 
have not been moved. The residence has seen rather extensive alterations, including the 
replacement of windows, alteration to the entrance porch and overhang, likely removal of 
decorative features, and likely alteration of the rounded pilasters on the primary elevation (they 
are now flat). It therefore no longer retains integrity of design. The property no longer retains 
integrity of setting, as the surrounding setting has changed substantially since the residence and 
garage were constructed in 1920. Most notably, the opposite block is now institutional in use when 
it was originally residential.  



 

 

Historical Resource Evaluation Report – 4629-4645 ½ Maubert Avenue, Los Angeles                                         43 

The alterations to the residence have impacted its integrity of materials and workmanship, though 
overall this aspect of integrity is retained. The building retains integrity of feeling since overall it 
continues to visually express the period of time in which it was constructed. The property was not 
found to be significant under Criteria A or B. Since integrity of association is defined as “the direct 
link between an important event or person and a historic property,” and no important events or 
persons were found to be associated with the property, integrity of association does not apply.  

4645 ½-4651 Maubert Avenue 

The property at 4645 ½-4651 Maubert Avenue retains integrity of location, as the buildings have 
not been moved. The residence has been extensively altered, including the removal of pilasters 
and likely removal of decorative features above the first story windows, replacement of cladding 
and windows, and alteration to the porch. Very few of the building’s original stylistic features 
remain. The building, therefore, does not retain integrity of design. The property no longer retains 
integrity of setting, as the surrounding setting has changed substantially since the residence and 
garage were constructed in 1920. Most notably, the opposite block is now institutional in use when 
it was originally residential.  

The extensive alterations have resulted in a loss of integrity of materials, workmanship, and feeling, 
as the residence no longer reflects its 1920 date of construction. The property was not found to be 
significant under Criteria A or B. Since integrity of association is defined as “the direct link between 
an important event or person and a historic property,” and no important events or persons were 
found to be associated with the property, integrity of association does not apply.  

Conclusion 

There is no evidence that the properties at 4629-4635, 4637-4643, and 4645 ½-4651 Maubert 
Avenue possess historical or architectural significance. The properties located at 4629-4635 and 
4637-4643 Maubert Avenue retain the majority of their applicable aspects of integrity, while 4645 
½-4651 Maubert Avenue no longer retains integrity due to extensive alterations. According to the 
analysis enumerated above, none of the properties comprising the Project site appear to be 
eligible for the National Register under any criteria.  

4.3  California Register of Historical Resources 
The California Register criteria for eligibility mirror those of the National Register. Therefore, the 
properties appear to be ineligible for listing on the California Register for the same reasons outlined 
above. 

4.4 Los Angeles Cultural Heritage Ordinance 
Likewise, because the City of Los Angeles criteria were modeled on the National and California 
Registers criteria, the properties appear to be ineligible for designation as an HCM for the same 
reasons outlined above.   

5. CONCLUSIONS 
The properties located at 4629-4635, 4637-4643, and 4645 ½-4651 Maubert Avenue are not 
currently designated under national, state, or local landmark programs. Furthermore, they were 
not identified in SurveyLA. A records search prepared by the SCCIC did not reveal any prior 



 

 

Historical Resource Evaluation Report – 4629-4645 ½ Maubert Avenue, Los Angeles                                         44 

evaluations of the properties. The properties were evaluated as potential historical resources as 
part of the environmental review of a proposed Project on the site in compliance with CEQA.  

GPA concludes that none of the properties appear to be eligible for listing in the National and 
California Registers, or for designation as an HCM due to a lack of significance and, in the case 
of 4645 ½-4651 Maubert Avenue, a lack of integrity. Additionally, they do not appear to contribute 
to a potential historic district. The recommended Status Code for the properties on the Project site 
is 6Z, ineligible for designation at the national, state, and local levels through survey evaluation. 
Therefore, the properties are not historical resources subject to CEQA. As the Project would have 
no impact on historical resources, no further study is recommended or required.  



 

 

Historical Resource Evaluation Report – 4629-4645 ½ Maubert Avenue, Los Angeles                                         45 

6. SOURCES  
California Code of Regulations, California Office of Administrative Law, State of California 

Government. 

Chattel Architecture, Planning & Preservation, Inc. “Historic Resources Survey: Hollywood 
Redevelopment Project Area,” February 2010.  

City of Los Angeles Department of Building and Safety. Building Permits. Various Dates.  

Clymer, D.H. “Artesia Group Goes into Poultry Raising,” Los Angeles Times, August 26, 1928, K14. 

Code of Federal Regulations, Title 36: Parks, Forests, and Public Property. Office of the Federal 
Register, National Archives and Records Administration, United States Government. 

Fogelson, Robert M. The Fragmented Metropolis: Los Angeles 1850-1930. Berkeley: University of 
California Press, 1967.  

Gish, Todd Douglas. “Building Los Angeles: Urban Housing in the Suburban Metropolis, 1900-1936.” 
PhD diss., University of Southern California, 2007. 

Historic Resources Group. Los Angeles Citywide Historic Context Statement, Context: Residential 
Development and Suburbanization, 1880-1980, Theme: Multi-Family Residential 
Development, 1895-1970, December 2018.  

Los Angeles Times. Various dates.  

McWilliams, Carey. Southern California: An Island on the Land. Salt Lake City, UT: Peregrine Smith 
Press, 1973. 

“National Register Bulletin 15: How to Apply the National Register Criteria for Evaluation.” 
National Park Service, Cultural Resources. Edited by Patrick Andrus and Rebecca 
Shrimpton. Accessed July 2018. https://www.nps.gov/nr/publications/bulletins/nrb15/.  

“National Register Bulletin 16: How to Complete the National Register Registration Form.” 
National Park Service, Cultural Resources. Linda McClelland, Carol D. Shull, James 
Charleton, et al. Accessed June 2018. 
https://www.nps.gov/nr/publications/bulletins/nrb16a/. 

Newcomb, Rexford. Mediterranean Domestic Architecture in the United States. New York: 
Acanthus Press, 1999.  

Prosser, Daniel. Los Angeles Citywide Historic Context Statement, Context: Architecture and 
Engineering, 1850-1980; Theme: Mediterranean & Indigenous Revival Architecture, 1893-
1948, November 2018. 

 

 

 



 

 

Historical Resource Evaluation Report – 4629-45 Maubert Avenue, Los Angeles                                Appendix A 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Appendix A – Résumé 



 

Historical Resource Evaluation Report – 4629-45 Maubert Avenue, Los Angeles                                Appendix A

ELYSHA PALUSZEK is an Associate Architectural Historian at GPA. She has 
been involved in the field of historic preservation since 2009. Elysha 
graduated from the University of Southern California with a Master of 
Historic Preservation. She has since worked in non-profit and private 
historic preservation consulting in California. Elysha joined GPA in 
2010 and her experience has included the preparation of 
environmental compliance documents in accordance with the 
California Environmental Quality Act and Section 106 of the National 
Historic Preservation Act; Historic Structure Reports; Historic American 
Buildings Survey/Historic American Engineering Record recordation; 

large-scale historic resources surveys; National Register of Historic Places nominations; local 
landmark nominations; and evaluations of eligibility for a wide variety of projects and property 
types throughout California. She has also completed numerous context statements on a wide 
array of property types and historic themes.  

Educational Background:  
 Master of Historic Preservation, University 
of Southern California, 2010 

 B.A., History, College of William and Mary, 
2008  

Professional Experience:   
 GPA Consulting, Associate Architectural 
Historian, 2018-Present 

 SWCA, Architectural Historian, 2018 
 GPA Consulting, Architectural Historian II, 
2010-2015 

 City of Los Angeles Office of Historic 
Resources, Intern, 2010-2011 

 Los Angeles Conservancy, Graduate 
Intern, 2010  

 Pasadena Heritage, Graduate Intern, 
2009-2010  

 National Trust for Historic Preservation, 
Intern, 2009  

Qualifications:  
 Meets the Secretary of the Interior’s 
Professional Qualifications Standards for 
history and architectural history pursuant 
to the Code of Federal Regulations, 36 
CFR Part 61, Appendix A.  

Professional Activities:  
 Los Angeles County Historical Landmarks 
and Records Commission, 2013-2017 

Selected Projects: 
 World Trade Center, Los Angeles, CEQA 
Historical Resource Evaluation Report, 2018 

 Mira Loma Detention Center Women’s 
Facility, Los Angeles County, CEQA 
Historical Resource Technical Report, 2016 

 City Market of Los Angeles, CEQA Historical 
Resource Technical Report, 2015 

 1111 N. Los Robles Avenue, Pasadena, 
National Register Nomination, 2013 

 1121 N. Los Robles Avenue, Pasadena, 
National Register Nomination, 2013 

 Old Vallejo City Hall, National Register 
Nomination, 2013 

 Old Vallejo Masonic Temple, National 
Register Nomination, 2013 

 Hotel Rosslyn Annex, Los Angeles, National 
Register Nomination, 2013 

 Willys Knight Building, Los Angeles, CEQA 
Historical Resource Technical Report, 2013 

 500 Broadway, Santa Monica, CEQA 
Historical Resource Evaluation Report, 2013 

 Claremont Graduate University Master 
Plan, CEQA Historical Resource Technical 
Report, 2013 

 Bel Air/Beverly Crest Historic Resource 
Survey, SurveyLA, 2012-2013 

 1335 East Grand Avenue, Pomona, CEQA 
Historical Resource Technical Report, 2011 

 1717 Gramercy Place, Hollywood, CEQA 
Historical Resource Evaluation Report, 2011 

 Jack's Restaurant, Whittier, CEQA Historical 
Resource Evaluation Report, 2011



 

 

Historical Resource Evaluation Report – 4629-45 Maubert Avenue, Los Angeles                                 Appendix B 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Appendix B – DPR Forms 

 



 
State of California--- The Resources Agency Primary #    
DEPARTMENT OF PARKS AND RECREATION HRI   
PRIMARY RECORD Trinomial # 

  
  NRHP Status Code 6Z  
 Other Listings   

 Review Code  Reviewer  Date   
       

Page 1 of 8    
 

DPR 523A (1/95)      *Required Information 
 

 *Resource Name or # (Assigned by recorder)  4629-4635 Maubert Avenue  
P1. Other Identifier:  None 
*P2. Location:   Not for Publication  Unrestricted *a. County Los Angeles 
and (P2c, P2e, and P2b or P2d. Attach a Location Map as necessary.) 
*b. USGS 7.5' Quad        Date       T       ;R      ;       ¼of       ¼ of Sec      ;       B.M. 
c. Address  4629-4635 Maubert Avenue City Los Angeles Zip 90027 
d. UTM: (Give more than one for large and/or linear resources) Zone       ;       mE/       mN 
e. Other Locational Data: (e.g., parcel #, directions to resource, elevation, etc., as appropriate)        
APN 5542-014-026 
*P3a. Description: (Describe resource and its major elements. Include design, materials, condition, alterations, size, setting, and boundaries) 
 
The multi-family residence (fourplex) located at 4629 Maubert Avenue was constructed in 1920. The detached garage, built the same 
year and located toward the rear of the property, has an attached single residential unit that was added in 1947. The unit attached to the 
garage was originally used for storage and was converted to residential use in 2002. The garage is currently used as an office. Posted 
address ranges for the property are 4629-4635 Maubert Avenue.  
 
The residence was constructed in the Mediterranean Revival style. It is two stories in height and U-shaped in plan. The building is clad 
in lightly textured stucco and has a flat roof with raised parapet. The building has a shed roof parapet with clay tiles over the primary 
(south) elevation and first bays of the east and west elevations. A projecting boxed cornice is just below the shed roofline and features 
brackets carved with acanthus leaves. Along the remainder of the side elevations and the rear elevation, the raised flat parapet has clay 
tile coping. (See continuation sheet.)  
 

(continued page 3) 
*P3b. Resource Attributes: (List attributes and codes) HP3. Multiple family property 
*P4. Resources Present:  Building Structure Object Site District Element of District Other (Isolates, etc.): 
*P5a. Photograph or Drawing (Photograph required for buildings, structures or objects)  P5b. Description of Photo: (view, 

 

 date, accession #) South and east 
 elevations, looking northwest (January 
 2019) 
 *P6. Date Constructed/Age and  
 Sources:  Historic 
 Prehistoric  Both 
 1920; Source: LA County Assessor 
       
 *P7. Owner and Address: 
 MAUBERT LA VI LLC 
 2029 CENTURY PARK E 21ST FL 
 LOS ANGELES CA 90067 
 *P8. Recorded by: Name, 
 affiliation, and address)       
 Elysha Paluszek 
 GPA Consulting 
 617 S. Olive Street Suite 910 
 Los Angeles, CA 90014 
 *P9. Date Recorded: 02/28/2019 
 *P10. Survey Type: (Describe) 
  Intensive 
  Reconnaissance 
       

*P11. Report Citation: (Cite survey report and other sources, or enter "none.")       
GPA Consulting, “4629, 4637, and 4645 ½ Maubert Avenue, Los Angeles, CA Historical Resource Evaluation Report,” March 2019. 
*Attachments:   Location Map  Sketch Map  Continuation Sheet  Building, Structure & Object Record 

Archaeological Record  District Record Linear Feature Record  Milling Station Record Rock Art Record 
Artifact Record Photographic Record  Other (List)       



 
State of California--- The Resources Agency Primary #    
DEPARTMENT OF PARKS AND RECREATION HRI   
BUILDING, STRUCTURE AND OBJECT RECORD  

Page 2 of 8 *NRHP Status Code 6Z  
 

DPR 523B (1/95)      *Required Information 
 

B1. Historic Name: None 
B2. Common Name: None 
B3. Original Use: Multi-family residential B4. Present Use: Multi-family residential 
*B5. Architectural Style Mediterranean Revival 
*B6. Construction History: (Construction date, alterations, and date of alterations) 

Built, 1920;  
*B7. Moved? No Yes Unknown Date:       Original Location:       
*B8. Related Features: Detached garage 

      
B9a. Architect:        b.  Builder: Wright and Hogan 
*B10.  Significance: Theme Multi-family Residential Development, LA Area Local (Los Angeles) 

Period of Significance: N/A Property Type: Residential Applicable Criteria: N/A 
(Discuss importance in terms of historical or architectural context as defined by theme, period, and geographic scope. Also address integrity.) 
 

The property was evaluated for eligibility for listing in the National Register. The contexts considered in this evaluation were Residential 
Development and Suburbanization, Multi-Family Residential Development, 1895-1970 (Subtheme: Apartment Houses, 1895-1970) and 
Mediterranean Revival architecture. 
 
Criterion A  
 
To be eligible for listing in the National Register under Criterion A, a property must have a direct association with events that have made 
a significant contribution to the broad patterns of our history. The context and theme considered in this evaluation is Residential 
Development and Suburbanization, Multi-Family Residential Development, 1895-1970. The applicable sub-theme is Apartment Houses, 
1895-1970. This context is applicable to both Criteria A and C and was utilized for both evaluations in this report.  
 
According to the LACHCS, properties significant under the Apartment Houses theme may “represent an important building type that 
proliferated throughout the city during most of the twentieth century and reflect trends in urban planning to accommodate a wide range 
of full and part time residents as well as tourists and other visitors” (Historic Resources Group, 32).  
 
The context statement notes that apartment houses are one of the most common multi-family residential property types in Los Angeles. 
By the 1920s, when the property was built, apartment houses were being constructed to accommodate the influx of tourists and residents 
and were an increasingly ubiquitous element of the built environment. The property at 4629-4635 Maubert Avenue does not appear to be 
associated in a significant manner with apartment house and multi-family residential development of Los Angeles during the 1920s. 
While the property reflects a general development trend, it does not represent the residential development of the city more than the 
numerous other multi-family residential buildings constructed during the same period. In evaluating a property’s significance under 
Criterion A, one must consider the larger events or trends with which it is associated. National Register Bulletin #15 points out that 
“Mere association with historic events or trends is not enough, in and of itself, to qualify under Criterion A: the property’s specific 
association must be considered important as well.” (Andrus and Shrimpton).  

(continued page 3) 
B11. Additional Resource Attributes: (List attributes and codes)       
*B12. References: See continuation sheet for full list of references.   

 

 (Sketch Map with north arrow required.) 
 

 

 
B13. Remarks:        
        
*B14. Evaluator: Elysha Paluszek  
 GPA Consulting  
 617 South Olive Street Suite 910  
 Los Angeles, CA 90014  
   
*Date of Evaluation: 02/28/2019  
   

(This space reserved for official comments.)  
       

 
 
 
  
 

 



 
State of California--- The Resources Agency Primary #    
DEPARTMENT OF PARKS AND RECREATION HRI   
CONTINUATION SHEET  

Page 3 of 8 
 

DPR 523L (1/95)      *Required Information 
 

 *Resource Name or # (Assigned by recorder) 4629-4635 Maubert Avenue 
Recorded By: Elysha Paluszek, GPA Consulting Date: 02/28/19  Continuation  Update 
 
P3a. Description (cont.) 
 
The primary elevation is accented by round pilasters with Ionic caps on either side. There are four entrances centered on the first floor. 
They are located atop a recessed stoop accessed by concrete steps and below a flat-roofed overhang supported by fluted pilasters with 
Ionic capitals. Each entrance consists of a multi-light, fully glazed wood door covered by a metal security screen. Windows on the 
primary elevation consist of aluminum sliding windows. Those on either side of the entrance porch feature rounded pediments inset with 
carved plaster floral relief. Windows on the secondary elevations include multi-light wood, double-hung wood, aluminum sliding, and 
single-hung aluminum windows with simple wood frames. An exterior stairwell is located on the north elevation, within the lightwell. At 
the west side of the rear (north) elevation is a one-story addition. The addition has a flat roof, textured stucco cladding, and fixed vinyl 
windows.  
 
Alterations to the building include the replacement of original wood windows with aluminum windows. Security screens have been 
added over the entrance doors. The one-story rear addition was constructed at an unknown date prior to 1950. No building permit was 
found for the construction of the addition, but it appears on the 1950 Sanborn Fire Insurance map. 
 
The detached garage on the property is wood frame construction and clad with lightly textured stucco. It has a flat roof and three wood 
tilt-up doors on the south elevation. A single residential unit is attached to the north side of the garage. The posted address is 4635 
Maubert Avenue. The unit was constructed in 1947 and was initially used as storage (it is now used as an office). It is one story in height, 
has a flat roof with exposed rafters, and is clad in textured stucco. It has an aluminum sliding window and single door covered by a 
security screen on the north elevation. The door is located beneath a shed roof overhang covered by corrugated metal. An addition on the 
east elevation is constructed of plywood and has a flat roof.  
 
B10. Significance (cont.) 
 
Although the property meets the eligibility standards and possesses many of the associative features outlined in the LACHCS, it does not 
have a significant association with the multi-family residential development of Los Angeles or the proliferation of the apartment house 
across the city. The property does not appear to be significant under Criterion A for its association with this context.  
 
The building was constructed by developers Wright and Hogan (they are listed as the owner, architect, and contractor on the original 
building permit). The company of Wright and Hogan, Inc. were property developers in the 1920s. Relatively little information was found 
about the company. What is known from articles in the Los Angeles Times and Southwest Building and Contractor is that they were sub-
dividers and developers in Los Angeles in the 1920s. They are also listed as builders and sales agents for the Community Building 
Corporation, about which minimal information was found. City directory listings indicate that Ben O.L. Wright was the president of 
Wright and Hogan, Inc., real estate sub-dividers and builders, and Dennis B. Hogan was a member of Wright and Hogan. Orin L. Wright 
was secretary for the company. In the late 1920s, the company developed a cooperative poultry project near Artesia, cut into one-acre 
tracts from an existing ranch property. By that time Ben Wright was the manager of the California Capon Poultry Ranch in Artesia 
(Clymer, K14).  
 
There is no indication that the company of Wright and Hogan could be considered significant builders or developers, and the building at 
4629-4635 Maubert Avenue does not appear to be significant under Criterion A for its association with the company.   
 
Criterion B 
 
To be eligible for listing in the National Register under Criterion B, a property must be associated with the lives of persons significant in 
our past. Research was conducted into the owners and tenants of the property.  
 
Research uncovered no information about Josephino Denley, who owned the property in 1921.  
 
Herbert S. Sykes, who owned the property in 1924, was found listed in the federal census. He was born in Colorado in 1890. By 1930, he 
lived on Encanto Drive in Los Angeles and was married to Octavia S. Sykes. He worked as a manager of a citrus packing house. 
According to a mention in the Los Angeles Times, he appears to have been the manager for the San Fernando Heights Lemon Company.  
 
Hulbert S. Sykes, who appears to be a different individual from Herbert S. Skyes, owned the property from 1925 to 1926. Sykes was in 
the real estate business, based upon the 1920 and 1921 city directories. He was born in Wisconsin in 1872 and married to Rubie (or 
Ruby) B. Sykes, according to the 1930 and 1940 censuses.  
 



 
State of California--- The Resources Agency Primary #    
DEPARTMENT OF PARKS AND RECREATION HRI   
CONTINUATION SHEET  

Page 4 of 8 
 

DPR 523L (1/95)      *Required Information 
 

Arestes R. Jones (also spelled Orestes), who owned the east portion of the property from in 1924, was born in Kentucky in 1879 and was 
married to Elizabeth Jones. He worked as a railroad conductor.  
 
No information was found about a Brent A. McCullock, who owned the property in 1925.  
Assessor records appear to indicate that Albert B. Castig (spelled Casteig in the federal census) owned the property from 1923 to 1944, 
though this contradicts other information found in the map books. Castig lived on Hollywood Boulevard in 1930 and was married to 
Anna Casteig. He was born in 1889 and worked as a cutlery cutter.  
 
Dean S. Bedillion, who owned the property in 1926, was an auctioneer and worked in real estate.  
 
Nicholas and Olga Lazzarevich who owned the property from 1932 to 1961, were siblings. Nicholas was born in 1886 in California. He 
is listed as a plumber on the 1920 federal census. By 1937, Nicholas and his brother John (who owned portions of 4929-4635 and 4637-
4643 Maubert Avenue in 1927) worked for the Economy Plumbing Company. Nicholas lived at 4637 Maubert Avenue.  Olga was born 
in 1888 in California. By 1940, she was working as a chocolate dipper in a candy store. In 1937, she lived at 4648 ½ Hollywood 
Boulevard. John Lazzarevich was born in 1898 and is listed on the 1940 census as a plumbing contractor. He was married to Catherine, 
had two children, and lived on Woodman Avenue in Hollywood.  
 
George Ansara, who owned the property from 1940 to 1961 and resided there, was born in 1895 in Massachusetts. In 1940, he is listed as 
living at West 22nd Street; the city directory indicates he lived at the subject property by 1942. He is listed as a retail proprietor on the 
1940 federal census. He was married to Cyria (or Syria) and had two children. He is also listed at times as a carpenter in city directories. 
He passed away in 1967.  
 
Research was conducted into an individual named Bruce G. Coleman, listed as an actor in the city directories. Coleman lived at the 
property in 1929. He had moved to a different address by 1930 and was born in 1911. No information was found about Coleman in the 
California Index or the Los Angeles Times.  
 
Though the property has been associated with many individuals since it was constructed, no information was found to suggest that these 
individuals would be considered persons significant in our past. Based on the research conducted into the individuals above, the property 
does not appear to be associated with the lives of persons significant in our past and does not appear to be significant under Criterion B.  
 
Criterion C 

To be eligible for listing under Criterion C, a property must embody the distinctive characteristics of a type, period, or method of 
construction, represent the work of a master, possess high artistic values, or represent a significant and distinguishable entity whose 
components may lack individual distinction.  
 
The building located at 4629-4635 Maubert Avenue was evaluated as an example of its property type (apartment house). As indicated in 
the historic context above, the apartment house was a property type constructed throughout Los Angeles in the 1910s and 1920s to meet 
the housing needs of a rapidly growing city. Although the building displays many of the eligibility standards and character-defining 
features listed in the Los Angeles Citywide Historic Context Statement, many of the character-defining features are rather general in 
nature and encompass most examples of the property type. The building at 4629-4635 Maubert Avenue displays many of the character-
defining features of the type, but it nonetheless remains a typical example of an apartment house constructed during the 1920s in 
Hollywood. Numerous examples of the apartment house property type were recorded by SurveyLA in the Hollywood CPA and other 
CPAs in the city. The building was not identified by SurveyLA as a significant example of its property type. It is merely a representative 
example of a very common property type and does not stand out as embodying the characteristics of its property type more than the many 
other apartment houses found in Los Angeles.  

The building was also evaluated as an example of the Mediterranean Revival style. Although it was constructed during the period of 
significance for the style, it is not an excellent example. It possesses some of the character-defining features of the style, such as stucco 
walls, clay tile roofs, simple massing, and limited applied decoration, but not in a manner that elevates it above the many other examples 
of the style found in the city. It cannot be said that it exemplifies the style, but rather possesses minimal elements of Mediterranean 
Revival architecture applied to an apartment house. The Mediterranean Revival style was commonly applied to residential architecture, 
and it was a popular stylistic choice for fourplexes in the 1920s. The building is a representative, but not excellent or distinctive example 
of its type and style. It is constructed of materials commonly used during the 1920s. The building does not appear to be significant for 
embodying the distinctive characteristics of a type, period, or method of construction. The building does not appear to be significant 
under this aspect of Criterion C.  

Developers Wright and Hogan are listed as the architect and contractor on the original building permit. However, the company of Wright 
and Hogan were property developers in the 1920s, not architects or contractors in the more typical sense of the word. The contributions 



 
State of California--- The Resources Agency Primary #    
DEPARTMENT OF PARKS AND RECREATION HRI   
CONTINUATION SHEET  

Page 5 of 8 
 

DPR 523L (1/95)      *Required Information 
 

of Wright and Hogan are discussed above under Criterion A. No other architect is listed, and there is no evidence that the building at 
4629-4635 Maubert Avenue would be considered significant under this aspect of Criterion C as the work of a master.  

The building was evaluated for its potential to possess high artistic value. High artistic value typically refers to “an aesthetic ideal,” such 
as stained glass or sculpture. National Register Bulletin #15 states that “a property is eligible for its high artistic values if it so fully 
articulates a particular concept of design that it expresses an aesthetic ideal. This is not the case for the building at 4629-4635 Maubert 
Avenue. It does not articulate a particular, unique concept of design that would lead it to express an aesthetic ideal or high artistic value.  
 
The last aspect of Criterion C, representing a significant and distinguishable entity whose components lack individual distinction, refers 
to historic districts. The surrounding area = does not appear to be a potential historic district. Though developed in approximately the 
same period, the 1920s, the area has since been substantially redeveloped over the course of the late twentieth and early twenty-first 
centuries. It is no longer visually cohesive or evocative of a particular period of time. The property as therefore evaluated individually, 
and this aspect of Criterion C does not apply.  
 
For all the reasons outlined above, the building does not appear to be significant under Criterion C. 
 
Criterion D 
 
To be eligible for listing under Criterion D, a property’s physical material must have yielded or may be likely to yield, information 
important to history or prehistory. 
 
This criterion generally applies to archaeological resources but may apply to a built resource in instances where a resource may contain 
important information about such topics as construction techniques or human activity. In any case, the resource must be the principal 
source of information. This is unlikely to be true for the property discussed in this evaluation. Therefore, it does not appear to be 
significant under Criterion D. 
 
Integrity 
 
To be eligible for listing in the National Register, properties must retain their physical integrity from the period in which they gained 
significance. In the case of architecturally significant properties, the period of significance is normally the date of construction. For 
historically significant properties, the period of significance is usually measured by the length of the associations. As the property does 
not appear to be significant under any of the National Register criteria, it has no period of significance. Nevertheless, it was analyzed 
against the seven aspects of integrity: location, design, setting, materials, workmanship, feeling, and association. While some factors of 
integrity are more important than others depending on the property, a majority of the seven recognized factors should be retained. 

The property at 4629-4635 Maubert Avenue retains integrity of location, as the building has not been moved. The residence has seen 
some alterations, most notably the replacement of the majority of its windows, replacement of roof material over the porch, and the 
addition of security screens over the unit entrances on the primary elevation. The latter is a common alteration and does not impact the 
overall design in a significant manner. The replacement of windows, especially with a visually incompatible aluminum sliding window, 
is a more notable alteration. This has impacted the building’s overall integrity of design, though it has not resulted in a complete loss of 
this aspect of integrity. The property no longer retains integrity of setting, as the surrounding setting has changed substantially since the 
residence and garage were constructed in 1920. Most notably, the opposite block is now institutional in use when it was originally 
residential.  

The alterations to the residence have impacted its integrity of materials and workmanship, though overall this aspect of integrity is 
retained. It retains integrity of feeling since in general, it continues to visually express the period of time in which it was constructed. The 
property was not found to be significant under Criteria A or B. Since integrity of association is defined as “the direct link between an 
important event or person and a historic property,” and no important events or persons were found to be associated with the property, 
integrity of association does not apply.  

Conclusion  

Though the property at 4629-4635 Maubert Avenue retains the majority of its applicable aspects of integrity, there is no evidence that it 
possesses historical or architectural significance. According to the analysis enumerated above, the property does not appear to be eligible 
for the National Register under any criteria.  

California Register of Historical Resources  
 
The California Register criteria for eligibility mirror those of the National Register. Therefore, the property appears to be ineligible for 
listing on the California Register for the same reasons outlined above. 
 



 
State of California--- The Resources Agency Primary #    
DEPARTMENT OF PARKS AND RECREATION HRI   
CONTINUATION SHEET  

Page 6 of 8 
 

DPR 523L (1/95)      *Required Information 
 

Los Angeles Cultural Heritage Ordinance  
 
Likewise, because the City of Los Angeles criteria were modeled on the National and California Registers criteria, the property appears 
to be ineligible for designation as an HCM for the same reasons outlined above.   
 
 
 
 
 



 
State of California--- The Resources Agency Primary #    
DEPARTMENT OF PARKS AND RECREATION HRI   
CONTINUATION SHEET  

Page 7 of 8 
 

DPR 523L (1/95)      *Required Information 
 

 *Resource Name or # (Assigned by recorder) 4629-4635 Maubert Avenue 
Recorded By: Elysha Paluszek, GPA Consulting Date: 02/28/19  Continuation  Update 
 

 

 

 
Image 1: South elevation, looking northeast (GPA Consulting, 2019).  Image 2: East elevation, looking northwest (GPA Consulting, 2019). 
   

 

 

 
Image 3: West elevation, looking northeast (GPA Consulting, 2019).  Image 4: North and west elevations, looking southeast (GPA Consulting, 

2019).  
   

 

 

 
Image 5: Detached garage, south elevation, looking northeast (GPA 
Consulting, 2019). 

 Image 6: Unit attached to garage (currently used as an office), north 
elevation, looking south  (GPA Consulting, 2019). 

 



 
State of California--- The Resources Agency Primary #    
DEPARTMENT OF PARKS AND RECREATION HRI   

LOCATION MAP Trinomial   
 

Page 8 of 8 
 

 

DPR 523J (1/95)      *Required Information 
 

 *Resource Name or # (Assigned by recorder) 4629-4635 Maubert Avenue 
*Map Name: Hollywood, CA *Scale: 1: 24,000 *Date of Map: 2018 
 

 
 



 
State of California--- The Resources Agency Primary #    
DEPARTMENT OF PARKS AND RECREATION HRI   
PRIMARY RECORD Trinomial # 

  
  NRHP Status Code 6Z  
 Other Listings   

 Review Code  Reviewer  Date   
       

Page 1 of 7    
 

DPR 523A (1/95)      *Required Information 
 

 *Resource Name or # (Assigned by recorder)  4637-4643 Maubert Avenue  
P1. Other Identifier:  None 
*P2. Location:   Not for Publication  Unrestricted *a. County Los Angeles 
and (P2c, P2e, and P2b or P2d. Attach a Location Map as necessary.) 
*b. USGS 7.5' Quad        Date       T       ;R      ;       ¼of       ¼ of Sec      ;       B.M. 
c. Address  4637-4643 Maubert Avenue City Los Angeles Zip 90027 
d. UTM: (Give more than one for large and/or linear resources) Zone       ;       mE/       mN 
e. Other Locational Data: (e.g., parcel #, directions to resource, elevation, etc., as appropriate)        
APN 5542-014-031 
*P3a. Description: (Describe resource and its major elements. Include design, materials, condition, alterations, size, setting, and boundaries) 
 
The property at 4637-4643 Maubert Avenue is occupied by a two-story multi-family residence (fourplex) and detached garage, both 
constructed in 1920. Posted address ranges for the property are 4637-4643 Maubert Avenue.  
 
The residence was constructed in the Mediterranean Revival style. It is two stories in height and U-shaped in plan. The building is clad 
in lightly textured stucco and has a flat roof with raised parapet. The building has a shed roof parapet with clay tiles over the primary 
(south) elevation and first bays of the east and west elevations. A projecting boxed cornice is just below the shed roofline and features 
brackets carved with acanthus leaves. Along the remainder of the side elevations and the rear elevation, the raised flat parapet has clay 
tile coping. 
 
The primary elevation is accented by flat pilasters with Ionic capitals. At the center of the elevation’s first floor is a recessed stoop 
with concrete steps and a rounded arch overhang. Four individual unit entrances are located below the overhang. Each entrance 
consists of a multi-light wood fully glazed door with a metal security screen. To either side of the stoop are tripartite windows set in 
plaster surrounds. The narrow outer windows are one-over-one, double hung wood sash. The center window is one-over-one wood 
fixed. Other windows on the primary elevation include paired aluminum sliding windows and double-hung wood windows with 
plaster surrounds. On the building’s secondary elevations, windows consist of multi-light wood, double-hung wood sash, aluminum 
sliding, and fixed windows with simple wood frames. An exterior stairwell is located on the north elevation, within the lightwell.  

(continued page 3) 
*P3b. Resource Attributes: (List attributes and codes) HP3. Multiple family property 
*P4. Resources Present:  Building Structure Object Site District Element of District Other (Isolates, etc.): 
*P5a. Photograph or Drawing (Photograph required for buildings, structures or objects)  P5b. Description of Photo: (view, 

 

 date, accession #)       
       
       
 *P6. Date Constructed/Age and  
 Sources:  Historic 
 Prehistoric  Both 
 1920; Source: LA County Assessor 
       
 *P7. Owner and Address: 
 MAUBERT LA VI LLC 
 2029 CENTURY PARK E 21ST FL 
 LOS ANGELES CA 90067 
 *P8. Recorded by: Name, 
 affiliation, and address)       
 Elysha Paluszek 
 GPA Consulting 
 617 S. Olive Street Suite 910 
 Los Angeles, CA 90014 
 *P9. Date Recorded: 02/28/2019 
 *P10. Survey Type: (Describe) 
  Intensive 
  Reconnaissance 
       

*P11. Report Citation: (Cite survey report and other sources, or enter "none.")       
GPA Consulting, “4629, 4637, and 4645 ½ Maubert Avenue, Los Angeles, CA Historical Resource Evaluation Report,” March 2019 
*Attachments:   Location Map  Sketch Map  Continuation Sheet  Building, Structure & Object Record 

Archaeological Record  District Record Linear Feature Record  Milling Station Record Rock Art Record 
Artifact Record Photographic Record  Other (List)       



 
State of California--- The Resources Agency Primary #    
DEPARTMENT OF PARKS AND RECREATION HRI   
BUILDING, STRUCTURE AND OBJECT RECORD  

Page 2 of 7 *NRHP Status Code 6Z  
 

DPR 523B (1/95)      *Required Information 
 

B1. Historic Name: None 
B2. Common Name: None 
B3. Original Use: Multi-family residential B4. Present Use: Multi-family residential 
*B5. Architectural Style Mediterranean Revival 
*B6. Construction History: (Construction date, alterations, and date of alterations) 

Built, 1920;  
*B7. Moved? No Yes Unknown Date:       Original Location:       
*B8. Related Features: Detached garage 

      
B9a. Architect:        b.  Builder: Wright and Hogan 
*B10.  Significance: Theme Multi-family Residential Development, LA Area Local (Los Angeles) 

Period of Significance: N/A Property Type: Residential Applicable Criteria: N/A 
(Discuss importance in terms of historical or architectural context as defined by theme, period, and geographic scope. Also address integrity.) 
 

The property was evaluated for eligibility for listing in the National Register. The contexts considered in this evaluation were Residential 
Development and Suburbanization, Multi-Family Residential Development, 1895-1970 (Subtheme: Apartment Houses, 1895-1970) and 
Mediterranean Revival architecture. 
 
Criterion A  
 
To be eligible for listing in the National Register under Criterion A, a property must have a direct association with events that have made 
a significant contribution to the broad patterns of our history. The context and theme considered in this evaluation is Residential 
Development and Suburbanization, Multi-Family Residential Development, 1895-1970. The applicable sub-theme is Apartment Houses, 
1895-1970. This context is applicable to both Criteria A and C and was utilized for both evaluations in this report.  
 
According to the LACHCS, properties significant under the Apartment Houses theme may “represent an important building type that 
proliferated throughout the city during most of the twentieth century and reflect trends in urban planning to accommodate a wide range 
of full and part time residents as well as tourists and other visitors” (Historic Resources Group, 32).  
 
The context statement notes that apartment houses are one of the most common multi-family residential property types in Los Angeles. 
By the 1920s, when the property was built, apartment houses were being constructed to accommodate the influx of tourists and residents 
and were an increasingly ubiquitous element of the built environment. The property at 4629-4635 Maubert Avenue does not appear to be 
associated in a significant manner with apartment house and multi-family residential development of Los Angeles during the 1920s. 
While the property reflects a general development trend, it does not represent the residential development of the city more than the 
numerous other multi-family residential buildings constructed during the same period. In evaluating a property’s significance under 
Criterion A, one must consider the larger events or trends with which it is associated. National Register Bulletin #15 points out that 
“Mere association with historic events or trends is not enough, in and of itself, to qualify under Criterion A: the property’s specific 
association must be considered important as well.” (Andrus and Shrimpton). 

(continued page 3) 
B11. Additional Resource Attributes: (List attributes and codes)       
*B12. References: See continuation sheet for full list of references.   

 

 (Sketch Map with north arrow required.) 
 

 

 
B13. Remarks:        
        
*B14. Evaluator: Elysha Paluszek  
 GPA Consulting  
 617 South Olive Street Suite 910  
 Los Angeles, CA 90014  
   
*Date of Evaluation: 02/28/2019  
   

(This space reserved for official comments.)  
       

 
 
 
  
 

 



 
State of California--- The Resources Agency Primary #    
DEPARTMENT OF PARKS AND RECREATION HRI   
CONTINUATION SHEET  

Page 3 of 7 
 

DPR 523L (1/95)      *Required Information 
 

 *Resource Name or # (Assigned by recorder) 4637-4643 Maubert Avenue 
Recorded By: Elysha Paluszek, GPA Consulting Date: 02/28/19  Continuation  Update 
 
P3a. Description (cont.) 
 
Alterations to the building include the replacement of original wood windows with aluminum windows, removal of decorative features 
above the first floor windows on the primary elevation (they appear to have had decorative pediments similar to that of the building at 
4629 Maubert Avenue), removal of columns and alteration of the overhang around the main entrance, possible alteration of the pilasters 
on the south elevation (they may have been rounded like those on 4629 Maubert Avenue), and addition of security screens over the 
entrance doors.  
 
A detached garage is located at the rear of the property. The garage for this property and the adjacent property at 4629 Maubert Avenue 
are connected as one long building that straddles the property line. The garage has a flat roof with flashing along the parapet, is clad in 
textured stucco, and has four metal tilt-up vehicular doors.   
 
B10. Significance (cont.) 
 
Although the property meets the eligibility standards and possesses many of the associative features outlined in the LACHCS, it does not 
have a significant association with the multi-family residential development of Los Angeles or the proliferation of the apartment house 
across the city. The property does not appear to be significant under Criterion A for its association with this context.  
 
The building was constructed by developers Wright and Hogan (they are listed as the owner, architect, and contractor on the original 
building permit). The company of Wright and Hogan, Inc. were property developers in the 1920s. Relatively little information was found 
about the company. What is known from articles in the Los Angeles Times and Southwest Building and Contractor is that they were sub-
dividers and developers in Los Angeles in the 1920s. They are also listed as builders and sales agents for the Community Building 
Corporation, about which minimal information was found. City directory listings indicate that Ben O.L. Wright was the president of 
Wright and Hogan, Inc., real estate sub-dividers and builders, and Dennis B. Hogan was a member of Wright and Hogan. Orin L. Wright 
was secretary for the company. In the late 1920s, the company developed a cooperative poultry project near Artesia, cut into one-acre 
tracts from an existing ranch property. By that time Ben Wright was the manager of the California Capon Poultry Ranch in Artesia 
(Clymer, K14).  
 
There is no indication that the company of Wright and Hogan could be considered significant builders or developers, and the building at 
4637-4643 Maubert Avenue does not appear to be significant under Criterion A for its association with the company.   
 
Criterion B 
 
To be eligible for listing in the National Register under Criterion B, a property must be associated with the lives of persons significant in 
our past. Research was conducted into the owners and tenants of the property.  
 
Research uncovered no information about Josephino Denley, who owned the property in 1921.  
 
Herbert S. Sykes, who owned the property in 1924, was found listed in the federal census. He was born in Colorado in 1890. By 1930, he 
lived on Encanto Drive in Los Angeles and was married to Octavia S. Sykes. He worked as a manager of a citrus packing house. 
According to a mention in the Los Angeles Times, he appears to have been the manager for the San Fernando Heights Lemon Company.  
John Lazzarevich was born in 1898 and is listed on the 1940 census as a plumbing contractor. He was married to Catherine, had two 
children, and lived on Woodman Avenue in Hollywood.  
 
Lynn C. Throop, who owned the property from 1926 to 1954, was born in Michigan and worked as an oil driller. He was born in 1881 
and was married to Gertrude M. Throop, who was born in 1894 in Kentucky or Missouri (sources vary). By 1924, Lynn is listed as the 
president of the Santa Clara Oil Development Company, but minimal information was found about him. The Throops lived at 4649 
Maubert Avenue. Minimal information was found about Maude G. Throop, though it is known she lived at 4649 Maubert Avenue in 
1932, according to city directories. The Throops that owned the subject property do not appear to have any relation or ties to the 
California Institute of Technology (originally founded as Throop University by Amos G. Throop) in Pasadena.  
 
Morris A. Orbach, who owned the property beginning in 1961 was born in 1908 and passed away in 1983. He was married to Mary R. 
Orbach and they had two children in 1940. He worked as a driver for a dry cleaning business.  
 
There is no evidence that any of these individuals could be considered significant in our past. The property does not appear to be 
significant under Criterion B.  



 
State of California--- The Resources Agency Primary #    
DEPARTMENT OF PARKS AND RECREATION HRI   
CONTINUATION SHEET  

Page 4 of 7 
 

DPR 523L (1/95)      *Required Information 
 

 
Criterion C 

To be eligible for listing under Criterion C, a property must embody the distinctive characteristics of a type, period, or method of 
construction, represent the work of a master, possess high artistic values, or represent a significant and distinguishable entity whose 
components may lack individual distinction.  
The building located at 4637-4643 Maubert Avenue was evaluated as an example of its property type (apartment house). As indicated 
in the historic context above, the apartment house was a property type constructed throughout Los Angeles in the 1910s and 1920s to 
meet the housing needs of a rapidly growing city. Although the building displays many of the eligibility standards and character-defining 
features listed in the Los Angeles Citywide Historic Context Statement, many of the character-defining features are rather general in 
nature and encompass most examples of the property type. The building at 4637-4643 Maubert Avenue displays many of the character-
defining features of the type, but it nonetheless remains a typical example of an apartment house constructed during the 1920s in 
Hollywood. Numerous examples of the apartment house property type were recorded by SurveyLA in the Hollywood CPA and other 
CPAs in the city. The building was not identified by SurveyLA as a significant example of its property type. It is merely a representative 
example of a very common property type and does not stand out as embodying the characteristics of its property type more than the many 
other apartment houses found in Los Angeles.  

The building was also evaluated as an example of the Mediterranean Revival style. Although it was constructed during the period of 
significance for the style, it is not an excellent example. It possesses some of the character-defining features of the style, such as stucco 
walls, clay tile roofs, simple massing, and limited applied decoration, but not in a manner that elevates it above the many other examples 
of the style found in the city. It cannot be said that it exemplifies the style, but rather possesses minimal elements of Mediterranean 
Revival architecture applied to an apartment house. The Mediterranean Revival style was commonly applied to residential architecture, 
and it was a popular stylistic choice for fourplexes in the 1920s. The building is a representative, but not excellent or distinctive example 
of its type and style. It is constructed of materials commonly used during the 1920s. The building does not appear to be significant for 
embodying the distinctive characteristics of a type, period, or method of construction. The building does not appear to be significant 
under this aspect of Criterion C.  

Developers Wright and Hogan are listed as the architect and contractor on the original building permit. However, the company of Wright 
and Hogan were property developers in the 1920s, not architects or contractors in the more typical sense of the word. The contributions 
of Wright and Hogan are discussed above under Criterion A. No other architect is listed, and there is no evidence that the building at 
4637-4643 Maubert Avenue would be considered significant under this aspect of Criterion C as the work of a master.  

The building was evaluated for its potential to possess high artistic value. High artistic value typically refers to “an aesthetic ideal,” such 
as stained glass or sculpture. National Register Bulletin #15 states that “a property is eligible for its high artistic values if it so fully 
articulates a particular concept of design that it expresses an aesthetic ideal. This is not the case for the building at 4629-4635 Maubert 
Avenue. It does not articulate a particular, unique concept of design that would lead it to express an aesthetic ideal or high artistic value.  
 
The last aspect of Criterion C, representing a significant and distinguishable entity whose components lack individual distinction, refers 
to historic districts. The surrounding area does not appear to be a potential historic district. Though developed in approximately the same 
period, the 1920s, the area has since been substantially redeveloped over the course of the late twentieth and early twenty-first centuries. 
It is no longer visually cohesive or evocative of a particular period of time. The property as therefore evaluated individually, and this 
aspect of Criterion C does not apply.  
 
For all the reasons outlined above, the building does not appear to be significant under Criterion C.  
 
Criterion D 
 
To be eligible for listing under Criterion D, a property’s physical material must have yielded or may be likely to yield, information 
important to history or prehistory. 
 
This criterion generally applies to archaeological resources but may apply to a built resource in instances where a resource may contain 
important information about such topics as construction techniques or human activity. In any case, the resource must be the principal 
source of information. This is unlikely to be true for the property discussed in this evaluation. Therefore, it does not appear to be 
significant under Criterion D. 
 
Integrity 
 
To be eligible for listing in the National Register, properties must retain their physical integrity from the period in which they gained 
significance. In the case of architecturally significant properties, the period of significance is normally the date of construction. For 
historically significant properties, the period of significance is usually measured by the length of the associations. As the property does 



 
State of California--- The Resources Agency Primary #    
DEPARTMENT OF PARKS AND RECREATION HRI   
CONTINUATION SHEET  

Page 5 of 7 
 

DPR 523L (1/95)      *Required Information 
 

not appear to be significant under any of the National Register criteria, it has no period of significance. Nevertheless, it was analyzed 
against the seven aspects of integrity: location, design, setting, materials, workmanship, feeling, and association. While some factors of 
integrity are more important than others depending on the property, a majority of the seven recognized factors should be retained. 

The property located at 4637-4643 Maubert Avenue retains integrity of location, as the buildings have not been moved. The residence 
has seen rather extensive alterations, including the replacement of windows, alteration to the entrance porch and overhang, likely removal 
of decorative features, and likely alteration of the rounded pilasters on the primary elevation (they are now flat). It therefore no longer 
retains integrity of design. The property no longer retains integrity of setting, as the surrounding setting has changed substantially since 
the residence and garage were constructed in 1920. Most notably, the opposite block is now institutional in use when it was originally 
residential.  

The alterations to the residence have impacted its integrity of materials and workmanship, though overall this aspect of integrity is 
retained. The building retains integrity of feeling since overall it continues to visually express the period of time in which it was 
constructed. The property was not found to be significant under Criteria A or B. Since integrity of association is defined as “the direct 
link between an important event or person and a historic property,” and no important events or persons were found to be associated with 
the property, integrity of association does not apply.  

Conclusion  

Though the property at 4637-4643 Maubert Avenue retains the majority of its applicable aspects of integrity, there is no evidence that 
it possesses historical or architectural significance. According to the analysis enumerated above, the property does not appear to be 
eligible for the National Register under any criteria.  

California Register of Historical Resources  
 
The California Register criteria for eligibility mirror those of the National Register. Therefore, the property appears to be ineligible for 
listing on the California Register for the same reasons outlined above. 
 
Los Angeles Cultural Heritage Ordinance  
 
Likewise, because the City of Los Angeles criteria were modeled on the National and California Registers criteria, the property appears 
to be ineligible for designation as an HCM for the same reasons outlined above.   
 
 
 
 



 
State of California--- The Resources Agency Primary #    
DEPARTMENT OF PARKS AND RECREATION HRI   
CONTINUATION SHEET  

Page 6 of 7 
 

DPR 523L (1/95)      *Required Information 
 

 *Resource Name or # (Assigned by recorder) 4637-4643 Maubert Avenue 
Recorded By: Elysha Paluszek, GPA Consulting Date: 02/28/19  Continuation  Update 
 

 

 

 
Image 1: East elevation, looking northwest (GPA Consulting, 2019).  Image 2: South and west elevations, looking northeast (GPA Consulting, 

2019). 
   

 

 

 

Image 3: West elevation, looking northeast (GPA Consulting, 2019).  Image North elevation, looking southeast (GPA Consulting, 2019). 
   

 

 

 
Image North elevation, looking southwest (GPA Consulting, 2019).  Image Detached garage, south elevation, looking northeast (GPA Consulting, 

2019). 
 



 
State of California--- The Resources Agency Primary #    
DEPARTMENT OF PARKS AND RECREATION HRI   

LOCATION MAP Trinomial   
 

Page 7 of 7 
 

 

DPR 523J (1/95)      *Required Information 
 

 *Resource Name or # (Assigned by recorder) 4637-4643 Maubert Avenue 
*Map Name: Hollywood, CA *Scale: 1: 24,000 *Date of Map: 2018 
 

 
 



 
State of California--- The Resources Agency Primary #    
DEPARTMENT OF PARKS AND RECREATION HRI   
PRIMARY RECORD Trinomial # 

  
  NRHP Status Code 6Z  
 Other Listings   

 Review Code  Reviewer  Date   
       

Page 1 of 7    
 

DPR 523A (1/95)      *Required Information 
 

 *Resource Name or # (Assigned by recorder)  4645 ½-4651 Maubert Avenue  
P1. Other Identifier:  None 
*P2. Location:   Not for Publication  Unrestricted *a. County Los Angeles 
and (P2c, P2e, and P2b or P2d. Attach a Location Map as necessary.) 
*b. USGS 7.5' Quad        Date       T       ;R      ;       ¼of       ¼ of Sec      ;       B.M. 
c. Address  4629-4635 Maubert Avenue City Los Angeles Zip 90027 
d. UTM: (Give more than one for large and/or linear resources) Zone       ;       mE/       mN 
e. Other Locational Data: (e.g., parcel #, directions to resource, elevation, etc., as appropriate)        
APN 5542-014-023 
*P3a. Description: (Describe resource and its major elements. Include design, materials, condition, alterations, size, setting, and boundaries) 
 
The property at 4645 ½ Maubert Avenue is occupied by two-story multi-family residence (fourplex) and detached garage, both 
constructed in 1920. Posted address ranges for the property are 4645 ½-4651 Maubert Avenue.  
 
Though presumably designed in the Mediterranean Revival style like the adjacent buildings, the fourplex has been substantially 
altered and no longer reflects a particular architectural style. The building is two stories in height and U-shaped in plan. It is clad in 
vinyl vertical and horizontal siding and has a flat roof with raised parapet. The building has a shed roof parapet with clay tiles above 
the primary elevation and the first bays of the east and west elevations. A projecting boxed cornice is just below the shed roofline and 
features brackets carved with acanthus leaves. Along the remainder of the roofline, the raised flat parapet has metal flashing and no 
coping. 
 
There are four entrances in the center of the primary elevation. They are located within a recessed stoop accessed by concrete steps 
and below a flat roof overhang supported by decorative metal posts. Each entrance consists of a single door covered by security 
screens; three are multi-light wood doors and one consists of a wood paneled door.  
 

(continued page 3) 
*P3b. Resource Attributes: (List attributes and codes) HP3. Multiple family property 
*P4. Resources Present:  Building Structure Object Site District Element of District Other (Isolates, etc.): 
*P5a. Photograph or Drawing (Photograph required for buildings, structures or objects)  P5b. Description of Photo: (view, 

 

 date, accession #) South and east 
 elevations, looking northwest (photo 
 Taken February 2019) 
 *P6. Date Constructed/Age and  
 Sources:  Historic 
 Prehistoric  Both 
 1920; Source: LA County Assessor 
       
 *P7. Owner and Address: 
 MAUBERT LA VI LLC 
 2029 CENTURY PARK E 21ST FL 
 LOS ANGELES CA 90067 
 *P8. Recorded by: Name, 
 affiliation, and address)       
 Elysha Paluszek 
 GPA Consulting 
 617 S. Olive Street Suite 910 
 Los Angeles, CA 90014 
 *P9. Date Recorded: 02/28/2019 
 *P10. Survey Type: (Describe) 
  Intensive 
  Reconnaissance 
       

*P11. Report Citation: (Cite survey report and other sources, or enter "none.")       
GPA Consulting, “4629, 4637, and 4645 ½ Maubert Avenue, Los Angeles, CA Historical Resource Evaluation Report,” March 2019 
*Attachments:   Location Map  Sketch Map  Continuation Sheet  Building, Structure & Object Record 

Archaeological Record  District Record Linear Feature Record  Milling Station Record Rock Art Record 
Artifact Record Photographic Record  Other (List)       



 
State of California--- The Resources Agency Primary #    
DEPARTMENT OF PARKS AND RECREATION HRI   
BUILDING, STRUCTURE AND OBJECT RECORD  

Page 2 of 7 *NRHP Status Code 6Z  
 

DPR 523B (1/95)      *Required Information 
 

B1. Historic Name: None 
B2. Common Name: None 
B3. Original Use: Multi-family residential B4. Present Use: Multi-family residential 
*B5. Architectural Style Mediterranean Revival 
*B6. Construction History: (Construction date, alterations, and date of alterations) 

Built, 1920;  
*B7. Moved? No Yes Unknown Date:       Original Location:       
*B8. Related Features: Detached garage 

      
B9a. Architect:        b.  Builder: Wright and Hogan 
*B10.  Significance: Theme Multi-family Residential Development, LA Area Local (Los Angeles) 

Period of Significance: N/A Property Type: Residential Applicable Criteria: N/A 
(Discuss importance in terms of historical or architectural context as defined by theme, period, and geographic scope. Also address integrity.) 
 

The property was evaluated for eligibility for listing in the National Register. The contexts considered in this evaluation were Residential 
Development and Suburbanization, Multi-Family Residential Development, 1895-1970 (Subtheme: Apartment Houses, 1895-1970) and 
Mediterranean Revival architecture. 
 
Criterion A  
 
To be eligible for listing in the National Register under Criterion A, a property must have a direct association with events that have made 
a significant contribution to the broad patterns of our history. The context and theme considered in this evaluation is Residential 
Development and Suburbanization, Multi-Family Residential Development, 1895-1970. The applicable sub-theme is Apartment Houses, 
1895-1970. This context is applicable to both Criteria A and C and was utilized for both evaluations in this report.  
 
According to the LACHCS, properties significant under the Apartment Houses theme may “represent an important building type that 
proliferated throughout the city during most of the twentieth century and reflect trends in urban planning to accommodate a wide range 
of full and part time residents as well as tourists and other visitors” (Historic Resources Group, 32).  
 
The context statement notes that apartment houses are one of the most common multi-family residential property types in Los Angeles. 
By the 1920s, when the property was built, apartment houses were being constructed to accommodate the influx of tourists and residents 
and were an increasingly ubiquitous element of the built environment. The property at 4629-4635 Maubert Avenue does not appear to be 
associated in a significant manner with apartment house and multi-family residential development of Los Angeles during the 1920s. 
While the property reflects a general development trend, it does not represent the residential development of the city more than the 
numerous other multi-family residential buildings constructed during the same period. In evaluating a property’s significance under 
Criterion A, one must consider the larger events or trends with which it is associated. National Register Bulletin #15 points out that 
“Mere association with historic events or trends is not enough, in and of itself, to qualify under Criterion A: the property’s specific 
association must be considered important as well.” (Andrus and Shrimpton).  

(continued page 3) 
B11. Additional Resource Attributes: (List attributes and codes)       
*B12. References: See continuation sheet for full list of references.   

 

 (Sketch Map with north arrow required.) 
 

 

 
B13. Remarks:        
        
*B14. Evaluator: Elysha Paluszek  
 GPA Consulting  
 617 South Olive Street Suite 910  
 Los Angeles, CA 90014  
   
*Date of Evaluation: 02/28/2019  
   

(This space reserved for official comments.)  
       

 
 
 
  
 

 



 
State of California--- The Resources Agency Primary #    
DEPARTMENT OF PARKS AND RECREATION HRI   
CONTINUATION SHEET  

Page 3 of 7 
 

DPR 523L (1/95)      *Required Information 
 

 *Resource Name or # (Assigned by recorder) 4645 ½-4651 Maubert Avenue 
Recorded By: Elysha Paluszek, GPA Consulting Date: 02/28/19  Continuation  Update 
 
P3a. Description (cont.) 
 
To either side of the entrance are tripartite windows set within plaster surrounds. The narrow outer windows are one-over-one, double 
hung wood sash. The center window is one-over-one wood fixed. At the second floor, paired vinyl sliding windows are set in plaster 
surrounds directly above the first-floor windows. Centered above the entrance on the second floor are smaller, vinyl windows with 
plaster surrounds. Windows on the secondary elevations include one-over-one, double-hung wood sash, and multi-light wood sash, as 
well as aluminum and vinyl fixed and sliding windows. A wooden stairwell provides access to the second story on the north side of the 
building, within the lightwell.  
 
Alterations to the building include the replacement of what was likely stucco cladding with vinyl siding, replacement of original wood 
windows with aluminum and vinyl windows, removal of decorative features and some wood windows frames, alterations to the entry 
stoop, replacement of one multi-light entrance door with a paneled door, and the addition of security screens over all of the entrance 
doors.  
 
There is a detached garage located to the north of the residence at the rear of the parcel. It is one story in height, clad in textured stucco 
and wood, and has a flat roof. It has three metal tilt-up vehicular doors. It was once larger in size and connected to the garage for the 
property to the west, in a similar configuration as the garages for the properties at 4629 Maubert Avenue and 4637 Maubert Avenue. The 
residence and garage to the west have been demolished.  
 
A one-story building is located at the rear of the property. Constructed in 1975, the building has a low-pitched hipped roof and is clad in 
textured stucco. The south elevation features two entrances with single doors. The west entrance, a door covered by a security screen, has 
a small concrete porch with an overhang supported by metal railing. The east entrance is suspended above grade and consists of a wood 
slab door. There is a pair of sliding glass doors on the east side of the south elevation. It is accessed via a concrete stoop and steps 
surrounded by metal railing. The sliding doors are covered by security bars. Windows on the building consist are sliding aluminum. A 
shed is located to the rear (north) of the building.  
 
B10. Significance (cont.) 
 
Although the property meets the eligibility standards and possesses many of the associative features outlined in the LACHCS, it does not 
have a significant association with the multi-family residential development of Los Angeles or the proliferation of the apartment house 
across the city. The property does not appear to be significant under Criterion A for its association with this context.  
 
The building to the rear of 4645 ½-4651 Maubert Avenue was constructed in 1975 as infill construction in an area that was already 
largely built out. It does not appear to have any significant association with the residential development of Hollywood or Los Angeles in 
general.   
 
The building was constructed by developers Wright and Hogan (they are listed as the owner, architect, and contractor on the original 
building permit). The company of Wright and Hogan, Inc. were property developers in the 1920s. Relatively little information was found 
about the company. What is known from articles in the Los Angeles Times and Southwest Building and Contractor is that they were sub-
dividers and developers in Los Angeles in the 1920s. They are also listed as builders and sales agents for the Community Building 
Corporation, about which minimal information was found. City directory listings indicate that Ben O.L. Wright was the president of 
Wright and Hogan, Inc., real estate sub-dividers and builders, and Dennis B. Hogan was a member of Wright and Hogan. Orin L. Wright 
was secretary for the company. In the late 1920s, the company developed a cooperative poultry project near Artesia, cut into one-acre 
tracts from an existing ranch property. By that time Ben Wright was the manager of the California Capon Poultry Ranch in Artesia 
(Clymer, K14).  
 
There is no indication that the company of Wright and Hogan could be considered significant builders or developers, and the building at 
4645 ½-4651 Maubert Avenue does not appear to be significant under Criterion A for its association with the company.    
 
Criterion B 
 
To be eligible for listing in the National Register under Criterion B, a property must be associated with the lives of persons significant in 
our past. Research was conducted into the owners and tenants of the property.  
 
 



 
State of California--- The Resources Agency Primary #    
DEPARTMENT OF PARKS AND RECREATION HRI   
CONTINUATION SHEET  

Page 4 of 7 
 

DPR 523L (1/95)      *Required Information 
 

Lynn C. and Gertrude M. Throop owned a portion of the property from 1922 to 1930. Lynn C. Throop was born in Michigan and worked 
as an oil driller. He was born in 1881 and was married to Gertrude M. Throop, who was born in 1894 in Kentucky or Missouri (sources 
vary). By 1924, Lynn is listed as the president of the Santa Clara Oil Development Company, but minimal information was found about 
him. The Throops lived at 4649 Maubert Avenue. Minimal information was found about Maude G. Throop, though it is known she lived 
at 4649 Maubert Avenue in 1932, according to city directories. The Throops that owned the subject property do not appear to have any 
relation or ties to the California Institute of Technology (originally founded as Throop University by Amos G. Throop) in Pasadena.  
 
Robert J. Trimble, who owned a portion of the property from 1912 to 1924, was born in 1868 and passed away in 1924. No additional 
information about him was found.  
 
Pincus A. Kranz, who owned a portion of the property in 1924, was born in 1867 in Austria and was married to Fannie Krantz. He 
worked in real estate.  
 
Elon J. Clarke, who owned the property from at least 1943 to 1956, was born in Kansas in 1875 or 1880. Research revealed minimal 
information about Clarke.  
 
There is no evidence that any of the residents listed as living at the property would be considered persons significant in our past. For 
these reasons, the property does not appear to be associated with the lives of significant individuals and does not appear to be significant 
under Criterion B. 
 
Criterion C 

To be eligible for listing under Criterion C, a property must embody the distinctive characteristics of a type, period, or method of 
construction, represent the work of a master, possess high artistic values, or represent a significant and distinguishable entity whose 
components may lack individual distinction.  
 
The building located at 4645 ½-4651 Maubert Avenue was evaluated as an example of its property type (apartment house). As indicated 
in the historic context above, the apartment house was a property type constructed throughout Los Angeles in the 1910s and 1920s to 
meet the housing needs of a rapidly growing city. Although the building displays many of the eligibility standards and character-defining 
features listed in the Los Angeles Citywide Historic Context Statement, many of the character-defining features are rather general in 
nature and encompass most examples of the property type. The building at 4645 ½-4651 Maubert Avenue displays some of the character-
defining features of the type, but it nonetheless remains a typical example of an apartment house constructed during the 1920s in 
Hollywood. Numerous examples of the apartment house property type were recorded by SurveyLA in the Hollywood CPA and other 
CPAs in the city. The building was not identified by SurveyLA as a significant example of its property type. It is merely a representative 
example of a very common property type and does not stand out as embodying the characteristics of its property type more than the many 
other apartment houses found in Los Angeles.  

The building was also evaluated as an example of the Mediterranean Revival style. The building at 4645 ½-4651 Maubert Avenue has 
been significantly altered (see integrity discussion below), and it no longer displays the character-defining features of the Mediterranean 
Revival style in any way. Due to its alterations, it no longer accurately reflects the period in which it was constructed. The building to the 
rear of 4645 ½-4651 Maubert Avenue does not display the character-defining features of a particular style. It is a vernacular single-
family residential unit. It is constructed of typical materials, and in no way does it embody the distinctive characteristics of a type, period, 
or method of construction. None of the buildings on the property appear to be significant under this aspect of Criterion C.  

Developers Wright and Hogan are listed as the architect and contractor on the original building permit. However, the company of Wright 
and Hogan were property developers in the 1920s, not architects or contractors in the more typical sense of the word. The contributions 
of Wright and Hogan are discussed above under Criterion A. No other architect is listed, and there is no evidence that the building at 
4645 ½-4651 Maubert Avenue would be considered significant under this aspect of Criterion C as the work of a master.  

The building was evaluated for its potential to possess high artistic value. High artistic value typically refers to “an aesthetic ideal,” such 
as stained glass or sculpture. National Register Bulletin #15 states that “a property is eligible for its high artistic values if it so fully 
articulates a particular concept of design that it expresses an aesthetic ideal. This is not the case for the building at 4645 ½-4651 Maubert 
Avenue. It does not articulate a particular, unique concept of design that would lead it to express an aesthetic ideal or high artistic value.  
 
The last aspect of Criterion C, representing a significant and distinguishable entity whose components lack individual distinction, refers 
to historic districts. The surrounding area does not appear to be a potential historic district. Though developed in approximately the same 
period, the 1920s, the area has since been substantially redeveloped over the course of the late twentieth and early twenty-first centuries. 
It is no longer visually cohesive or evocative of a particular period of time. The property as therefore evaluated individually, and this 
aspect of Criterion C does not apply.  
 



 
State of California--- The Resources Agency Primary #    
DEPARTMENT OF PARKS AND RECREATION HRI   
CONTINUATION SHEET  

Page 5 of 7 
 

DPR 523L (1/95)      *Required Information 
 

For all the reasons outlined above, the building does not appear to be significant under Criterion C.  
 
Criterion D 
 
To be eligible for listing under Criterion D, a property’s physical material must have yielded or may be likely to yield, information 
important to history or prehistory. 
 
This criterion generally applies to archaeological resources but may apply to a built resource in instances where a resource may contain 
important information about such topics as construction techniques or human activity. In any case, the resource must be the principal 
source of information. This is unlikely to be true for the property discussed in this evaluation. Therefore, it does not appear to be 
significant under Criterion D. 
 
Integrity 
 
To be eligible for listing in the National Register, properties must retain their physical integrity from the period in which they gained 
significance. In the case of architecturally significant properties, the period of significance is normally the date of construction. For 
historically significant properties, the period of significance is usually measured by the length of the associations. As the property does 
not appear to be significant under any of the National Register criteria, it has no period of significance. Nevertheless, it was analyzed 
against the seven aspects of integrity: location, design, setting, materials, workmanship, feeling, and association. While some factors of 
integrity are more important than others depending on the property, a majority of the seven recognized factors should be retained. 

The property at 4645 ½-4651 Maubert Avenue retains integrity of location, as the building has not been moved. The residence has been 
extensively altered, including the removal of pilasters and likely removal of decorative features above the first story windows, 
replacement of cladding and windows, and alteration to the porch. Very few of the building’s original stylistic features remain. The 
building, therefore, does not retain integrity of design. The property no longer retains integrity of setting, as the surrounding setting has 
changed substantially since the residence and garage were constructed in 1920. Most notably, the opposite block is now institutional in 
use when it was originally residential.  

The extensive alterations have resulted in a loss of integrity of materials, workmanship, and feeling, as the residence no longer reflects its 
1920 date of construction. The property was not found to be significant under Criteria A or B. Since integrity of association is defined as 
“the direct link between an important event or person and a historic property,” and no important events or persons were found to be 
associated with the property, integrity of association does not apply.  
 
Conclusion 
 
There is no evidence that the property at 4645 ½-4651 Maubert Avenue possesses historical or architectural significance. Furthermore, it 
no longer retains integrity due to extensive alterations. According to the analysis enumerated above, the property does not appear to be 
eligible for the National Register under any criteria.  

California Register of Historical Resources  
 
The California Register criteria for eligibility mirror those of the National Register. Therefore, the property appears to be ineligible for 
listing on the California Register for the same reasons outlined above. 
 
Los Angeles Cultural Heritage Ordinance  
 
Likewise, because the City of Los Angeles criteria were modeled on the National and California Registers criteria, the property appears 
to be ineligible for designation as an HCM for the same reasons outlined above.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
State of California--- The Resources Agency Primary #    
DEPARTMENT OF PARKS AND RECREATION HRI   
CONTINUATION SHEET  

Page 6 of 7 
 

DPR 523L (1/95)      *Required Information 
 

 *Resource Name or # (Assigned by recorder) 4645 ½-4651 Maubert Avenue 
Recorded By: Elysha Paluszek, GPA Consulting Date: 02/28/19  Continuation  Update 
 

 

 

 
Image 1: East elevation, looking northwest (GPA Consulting, 2019)  Image 2: South elevation, looking northeast (GPA Consulting, 2019) 
   

 

 

 
Image 3: West elevation, looking northeast (GPA Consulting, 2019)  Image 4: North elevation, looking southeast (GPA Consulting, 2019) 
   

 

 

 
Image 5: North elevation, detached garage, looking southeast (GPA 
Consulting, 2019) 

 Image 6: Detached residence, south and west elevations, looking northeast 
(GPA Consulting, 2019) 

 



 
State of California--- The Resources Agency Primary #    
DEPARTMENT OF PARKS AND RECREATION HRI   

LOCATION MAP Trinomial   
 

Page 7 of 7 
 

 

DPR 523J (1/95)      *Required Information 
 

 *Resource Name or # (Assigned by recorder) 4645 ½-4651 Maubert Avenue 
*Map Name: Hollywood, CA *Scale: 1: 24,000 *Date of Map: 2018 
 

 
 



 

Appendix G 

Geotechnical Report  



GeoPentech

101 Academy Drive, Suite 100, Irvine, California 92617
Phone  (714) 796-9100   Fax  (714) 796-9191   Web Site: www.geopentech.com

February 26, 2019
Project No. 18066A

Mr. Andrew Settle
Carmel Partners
429 Santa Monica Boulevard, Suite 700
Santa Monica, CA 90401

SUBJECT: PRELIMINARY GEOTECHNICAL EVALUATION REPORT 
4629, 4637, AND 4645 ½ MAUBERT AVE,
LOS ANGELES, CALIFORNIA

Dear Mr. Settle:

GeoPentech is pleased to present this preliminary geotechnical evaluation report for the proposed 8-story 
mixed-use project at 4629, 4637, and 4645 ½ Maubert Ave. in Los Angeles, California.  The site location is
shown in Figure 1. This work is performed in accordance with our proposal dated October 1, 2018 and your 
subsequent authorization. Our evaluations are based on our understanding of the project, the results from our 
field exploration, and our experience with similar projects in the Los Angeles area.

BACKGROUND AND PROJECT DESCRIPTION

Based on your description of the project by phone and email on September 25, 2018, and follow-up discussions 
on October 1, 2018, we understand that the development will include an eight (8) story residential mid-rise 
with 5 residential levels over 3 podium levels. In addition, there will be one to two (1-2) subterranean basement 
levels. The approximate outline of the project site is shown on Figure 2. Currently, no layout or structural 
loading information is available for the proposed structures.

EXISTING SITE CONDITIONS

The project site is located on Maubert Ave. in Los Angeles, California at three contiguous addresses, 4629, 
4637, and 4645 ½. The approximate extents of the project site are shown on Figure 2. The site is bounded on 
the south by Maubert Avenue, on the north by an alleyway, and on the remaining two sides by adjacent
properties, including two bank parking lots to the west and a residential building to the east.  The northeast 
side of the site is currently an asphalt-paved parking lot, the south side is currently occupied by three two-story
residential buildings, and the west side is occupied by a one-story residential building. We understand that 
these buildings would be demolished prior to construction of the proposed structure. The existing ground 
surface slopes slightly from approximately elevation 411 feet (NAVD88) on the north side to about 407 feet
(NAVD88) on the south side.

GEOLOGIC CONDITIONS

Geologic Setting

Regionally, the site is in the northern end of the Peninsular Ranges physiographic province near the southern 
boundary of the Transverse Ranges physiographic province. Northwest trending mountains and faults 
characterize the Peninsular Ranges, while east-west trending mountains and faults characterize the Transverse 
Ranges. Figure 3a shows a geologic map of the site area, compiled by the California Geological Survey (CGS, 



Mr. Andrew Settle
Preliminary Geotechnical Evaluation Report
4629, 4637, and 4645 ½, Maubert Ave, Los Angeles, CA
February 26, 2019

2

2012), and Figure 3b shows the map legend with the geologic unit descriptions. As indicated on Figure 3a, the 
site is situated about 1 mile west of the Elysian Hills and Silver Lake Reservoir, at the northern edge of the 
Los Angeles Basin. The site is located on old alluvial fan deposits (Qof) of Late to Middle Pleistocene-age.  
The underlying sediments are generally composed of clays, silts, sands, and gravels associated with fluvial and 
distal alluvial fan depositional environments.  The closest watercourse to the site is the Los Angeles River 
which is channelized in this area and runs to the northeast of Silver Lake through the Elysian Hills.

Faults

The project site is located within a seismically active region of southern California. Recent examples of the 
seismic activity in the region include the 1987 Whittier Narrows earthquake and the 1994 Northridge 
earthquake. Figures 4a shows the site location relative to mapped active faults in the region identified by the 
USGS (2010), as well as recorded seismicity in the region. The closest active faults that have ruptured the 
ground surface in Late Quaternary time are the Hollywood Fault, which is located approximately 0.8 kilometers 
north of the site, and the Raymond Fault, which is located approximately 2.6 kilometers northeast of the site. 
Other significant faults in the area that have a potential to generate strong ground motions at the site, include
the Santa Monica Fault located about 12 kilometers to the west, the Newport-Inglewood Fault also located 
about 12 kilometers to the west, the Anacapa Dume Fault located about 19 kilometers to the southwest, the 
Whittier Fault located about 24 kilometers to the southeast, the Palos Verdes Fault located about 24 kilometers 
to the southwest at its closest mapped point, and the San Andreas Fault about 51 km to the northeast. Note 
that other quaternary-active faults are also mapped in the region that have the potential to generate strong 
ground motions at the site.

In addition to the active source faults that have ruptured the ground surface, potentially active blind thrust 
faults are also believed to exist at depth in the region of the site (See Figure 4b), including the Upper Elysian 
Park Thrust (Oskin et al., 2000) and the Puente Hills Blind Thrusts (Shaw and Shearer, 1999). These blind 
thrust faults do not explicitly rupture the surface by definition but are inferred to exist at depth based on indirect 
information, such as seismicity, folded stratigraphy, and geodetic modeling of regional InSAR and GPS data 
sets. Recognition of the existence of blind thrust faults in the region was largely triggered by the occurrence 
of the 1987 Whittier Narrows earthquake and reinforced by the 1994 Northridge earthquake, both of which 
occurred on blind thrust faults.

Site Geology and Subsurface Conditions

Two borings (designated B-1 and B-2) were drilled by GeoPentech on the site to evaluate the soil and 
groundwater conditions. Laboratory tests were performed on selected samples from these borings to evaluate 
the index and engineering properties of the encountered material. The locations of the borings are shown on 
Figure 2, while the boring logs and laboratory results are shown in Appendices A and B, respectively.

Borings B-1 and B-2 were advanced to depths of 51.5 feet and 71 feet below the ground surface, respectively.
Both borings were drilled using an 8-inch diameter hollow stem auger drill. The work was performed under 
the supervision of a geotechnical engineer or geologist who monitored the drilling operations and prepared a 
field record of soils observed and drilling conditions encountered. The drilling was subcontracted to Martini 
Drilling, who provided all drilling equipment, crew, and supplies. Details of the current explorations and the 
logs of the borings are presented in Appendix A.

Laboratory tests were performed on selected samples obtained from the borings to aid in the classifications of 
the soils and to evaluate the pertinent engineering properties of the soils. The tests performed included: 
moisture content and dry density, Atterberg limits, sieve analysis, passing no. 200 sieve, direct shear,
consolidation, and corrosivity.

The geotechnical testing was conducted at the laboratory facilities of Leighton in Irvine, California. The tests 
were performed in general accordance with applicable procedures of the American Society for Testing and 
Materials (ASTM), and the State of California Department of Transportation, Standard Test Methods (DOT 



Mr. Andrew Settle
Preliminary Geotechnical Evaluation Report
4629, 4637, and 4645 ½, Maubert Ave, Los Angeles, CA
February 26, 2019

3

CA). The results of the laboratory tests are summarized in Table B-1, on the boring logs in Appendix A, and 
on laboratory test sheets presented in Appendix B.

Based on the published geologic maps and the field investigation boring data, the geologic units underlying 
the site were interpreted to be artificial fill soils, underlain by Quaternary-age alluvial fan deposits (alluvium), 
in turn underlain by Fernando Formation bedrock.

Figures 5a and 5b show geologic Sections A-A’ and B-B’, respectively. The locations of the geologic cross 
sections are shown on Figure 2. These sections include a summary of boring information for borings B-1 and 
B-2, the approximate outline of existing buildings at the site, the approximate location of the site limits, and 
our geologic interpretation.  Descriptions of the geologic units are discussed below.  

Artificial Fill: Fill soils, were encountered at a depth of approximately 7 and 3feet within
Borings B-1 and B-2, respectively.

Quaternary Alluvium: Underlying the fill, the alluvium typically consists of dense to very 
dense silty sand and very stiff to hard clay.

Fernando Formation: Underlying the alluvium, Fernando formation claystone and siltstone was 
encountered.  The bedrock was encountered at approximate elevation of 380 ft (NAVD88) 
(depth of 30 feet) in Boring B-1 and elevation of 390 ft (NAVD88) (depth of 20 feet) in boring 
B-2.

Groundwater was encountered in B-2 at a depth of about 52.3 feet during the drilling and rose to a depth of 
about 47.1 feet the following day. According to the seismic hazard zone report for the Hollywood Quadrangle
(CGS 1998), historically highest groundwater in the vicinity of the site may be around 20 to 40 feet below the 
ground surface, as shown on Figure 6. Note that groundwater levels can fluctuate over time depending on 
seasonal rainfall and other influences. Also note that groundwater can become temporarily perched at higher 
elevations depending on the local subsurface conditions, and particularly near the elevation of the soil-bedrock 
interface.

EVALUATION OF GEOLOGIC AND SEISMIC HAZARDS

An evaluation of the potential impacts on the site from potential geologic and seismic hazards is presented 
below.

Fault Surface Rupture

The closest established AP Zones are along the Hollywood Fault about 1.0 km to the north, based on a review 
of the Safety Element of the Los Angeles City General Plan (1996) and Alquist-Priolo Special Studies Zone 
for the Hollywood and Los Angeles Quadrangles (CGS, 2014, 1977). No known active faults cross or project 
toward the site, nor is the site located in a currently established Alquist-Priolo (AP) Special Study Zone of 
Required Fault Investigation (see Figures 7a and 7b). Therefore, the potential for fault surface rupture at the 
site is considered low.

The site is located on the hanging wall of the Puente Hills Fault (LA) blind thrust seismic source and is located 
to the west of several others including the Puente Hills Fault, Compton Fault, and Elysian Park Fault blind 
thrust seismic sources. Although these blind thrusts do not represent discrete surface rupture hazards to the 
site, they are sources of potential seismic shaking and possibly distributed coseismic ground deformation.



Mr. Andrew Settle
Preliminary Geotechnical Evaluation Report
4629, 4637, and 4645 ½, Maubert Ave, Los Angeles, CA
February 26, 2019

4

Seismic Shaking

The site is subject to strong shaking during a major earthquake on nearby faults.  Therefore, the design of the 
structure should include seismic design provisions as per existing building code requirements. The design 
seismic design values would be provided after the necessary field exploration is completed for the design and
construction of the buildings.

Liquefaction Potential

Liquefaction potential is greatest where the groundwater level is shallow, and submerged, loose, fine sands 
occur within a depth of about 50 feet or less below the ground surface. Liquefaction potential decreases as clay 
and gravel content increase. Also, higher ground accelerations and shaking durations during earthquakes 
increase the liquefaction potential.

According to the Safety Element of the Los Angeles City General Plan (1996), and the CGS Seismic Hazard 
Zones Map of the Hollywood and Los Angeles Quadrangle (2014, 1999), the site is not located within an area 
of required liquefaction investigation (see Figures 8a and 8b). This classification is consistent with the 
observations in the borings drilled at the site, which indicate that the soils at the site are mostly alluvial sandy 
silt and silty sand material underlain by shallow bedrock encountered at about 20-30 feet below the ground 
surface composed of predominantly weak silty claystone. Groundwater was encountered at a depth of about 
47 feet below ground surface within boring B-2. No groundwater was encountered within the fill or alluvium.

Based on the available boring information, the expected removal of at least the upper 10 feet of material at the 
site for one to two subterranean levels, and consistent with the designation of the site as a location not within 
a zone of required investigation for liquefaction hazard, the potential for liquefaction hazard at the site is
considered low.

Seismically-Induced Settlement

Seismically-induced settlement is often caused when unsaturated loose to medium-dense granular soils are 
densified during ground shaking. Based on the available boring information, the potential for seismically 
induced settlement at the site is considered low.

Subsidence

Ground surface subsidence generally results from the extraction of fluids or gas from the subsurface that can 
result in a gradual lowering of the overlying ground surface. Subsidence can also occur when subsurface peat 
deposits oxidize and undergo volume loss. As there are no known ongoing extractions of oil or water that 
would lead to subsidence at the site, and the subsurface soils are not known to contain significant quantities of 
peat, the potential for subsidence at the site is considered low.

Flooding

According to the FEMA flood insurance map for the area (FEMA 2008), the site is not located within a defined 
floodplain or floodway boundary (see Figure 9). As such, flooding is not considered a hazard at the site.

Seiches and Inundation (Water Storage Facilities)

This potential hazard is associated with seiches (water waves created when a body of water is shaken that have 
the potential to overtop a water storage facility) and inundation due to water storage facility failure. The site is 
not located adjacent to a body of water and is not located in a potential inundation area according to the Safety 
Element of the Los Angeles City General Plan (1996).  Therefore, the hazard associated with seiches and 
inundation is considered small at the project site.

Landslide

The potential for landsliding is highest in areas of moderate to steep terrain that are underlain by unfavorably 
oriented geologic layering or discontinuities. The site is located on relatively flat terrain, the underlying 



Mr. Andrew Settle
Preliminary Geotechnical Evaluation Report
4629, 4637, and 4645 ½, Maubert Ave, Los Angeles, CA
February 26, 2019

5

sedimentary units are relatively flat lying, and no landslides are mapped in the vicinity of the site (CDMG, 
1998). In addition, the site is not in a designated earthquake-induced landslide hazard zone (CGS, 2013). 
Therefore, a potential for landslide is considered negligible.

Tsunami

A tsunami is a sea wave generated by a large submarine landslide or an earthquake-related ground deformation 
beneath the ocean. Historic tsunamis have been observed to produce a run-up on shore of several tens of feet 
in extreme cases. The California Emergency Management Agency (CEMA) has issued tsunami inundation 
maps for most of the potentially affected coastal areas of California.  Note that CEMA describes the inundation 
line on their maps as representing “the maximum considered tsunami runup from a number of extreme, yet 
realistic, tsunami sources”.

The project site is located outside of any mapped area for Tsunami Inundation issued by CEMA and as such 
no potential damage from a tsunami at the site is considered.

Volcanic Eruption

Potential hazards from volcanic eruptions include both lava flows and ash falls from relatively nearby 
volcanoes. No active volcanic sources are present in the Los Angeles basin. Therefore, the potential for damage 
at the site due to volcanic eruption is considered to be negligible.

Erosion

The majority of the ground surface at the site is relatively level and is or will be covered with building, asphalt 
or concrete pavements. As such, erosion is not considered a hazard at the site.

Methane

The site is not located within a methane or methane-buffer zone (see Figure 10) as defined by the City of Los 
Angeles (2004).

PRELIMINARY CONCLUSIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS

Based on our review of the documents provided to us and our understanding of the subsurface conditions, the 
proposed project is feasible from a geotechnical standpoint provided that specific measures are taken to address 
the potential hazards listed above. Further recommendations for project planning purposes are provided below.

Seismic Design

The site is subject to strong shaking during a major earthquake on nearby faults.  Therefore, the design of the 
structure should include seismic design provisions as per existing building code requirements.  We anticipate 
that because the proposed residential building will be 8-stories tall, it will not be subject to additional peer 
review imposed by LADBS.  

Foundations

Depending on the structural loads and final building configuration footings or mat foundations could be used 
to support the proposed 8-story building. Piles/drilled piers can also be used to support heavier loads, or transfer 
building loads to deeper geologic unit.

Excavations

Based on the understanding that the proposed development will extend one to two subterranean levels below 
grade (i.e. 1-2 basement levels), we anticipate most undocumented fill at the site would likely be removed as 
part of the site preparation before building.  In the event that subterranean levels are not ultimately included in 



Mr. Andrew Settle
Preliminary Geotechnical Evaluation Report
4629, 4637, and 4645 ½, Maubert Ave, Los Angeles, CA
February 26, 2019

6

the development, these soils would need to be removed (i.e. overexcavation). Fill thickness at the site based 
on the two borings completed (B-1 and B-2) are approximately 3 to 7 feet deep. However, as is common on 
sites throughout Los Angeles, localized areas of debris, abandoned utilities and previously demolished 
basements/foundations, undocumented fill, or other subsurface anomalies may exist at the site.  These materials 
should be removed prior to foundation construction as part of the subgrade preparation.

Groundwater encountered during drilling were relatively deep (about 50 feet bgs) and it is considered unlikely 
that the groundwater level would extend into the proposed excavation levels of about 15 to 30 feet below 
existing grade.  However, note that groundwater levels can fluctuate seasonally and perched water could also 
be encountered, particularly near the level of interface between soil and bedrock.  Perched water could likely 
be removed with sumps and pumps during excavation.

Shoring

Based on the understanding that one to two subterranean levels will be constructed, excavations may extend 
about 15 to 30 feet below existing grade.  If excavations extended to levels where slopes of steeper than 1:1 or 
vertical cuts higher than 4 feet were needed, temporary shoring would be required.

Provided that shoring extends no more than about 20 feet high, the shoring elements may consist of cantilever 
soldier pile walls with lagging.  Cantilever walls greater than about 20 feet high should generally be avoided 
to minimize deflections and potential damage to adjacent buildings or infrastructure.

For excavations deeper than about 20 feet, internal bracing or soil anchors (i.e. tiebacks) could be used.  Further 
details of the proposed development would be needed to provide more specific recommendations in this regard.

Stormwater Infiltration

Based on our understanding of the subsurface conditions, and the historic highest water levels reported in the 
vicinity of the site by CGS, we consider the site an unlikely candidate for successful stormwater infiltration 
using dry-wells. LADBS requires infiltration wells be located at least 10 feet above the highest historic 
groundwater level and 10 feet away from foundations.  During our field investigation, Fernando Formation 
bedrock was encountered within about 20 to 30 feet of the ground surface and achieving adequate infiltration 
rates within this geologic unit is considered unlikely.  We encountered only limited amounts of sand that were 
discontinuous within the soils above the bedrock, and these units were understood to be within the 10 foot limit 
established by LADBS from the potential proposed foundation levels.  Accordingly, we did not perform any 
percolation testing during our field investigation.  Given our understanding that the proposed development 
would extend across the entire site, this would likely preclude use of dry wells or infiltration beds on the site.  

Future Work

Should the project proceed, a limited confirmatory field exploration program will be required for final design
of the structure. The field exploration should include drilling of additional borings to supplement the existing 
subsurface information at the site, with the goal of providing information near the south end of the site which 
we were not able to access during this phase of investigation and confirming our findings in borings B-1 and 
B-2. In addition, further laboratory testing including index testing, shear strength, expansion index, 
consolidation and others should be completed. This work will provide further information regarding seismic 
design and provide additional data for final design recommendations which will depend on the selected 
development approach (i.e. number of basement levels and shallow vs deep foundations). We anticipate one 
to two additional borings would be sufficient to cover the needed information.

Once structural plans are available, we can provide preliminary recommendations regarding foundations, 
shoring, and other items to allow your design team to further develop their concepts.





Mr. Andrew Settle
Preliminary Geotechnical Evaluation Report
4629, 4637, and 4645 ½, Maubert Ave, Los Angeles, CA
February 26, 2019

8

References:

American Society of Civil Engineers (ASCE) (2010). Minimum Design Loads for Buildings and Other 
Structures. ASCE Standard ASCE/SEI 7-10. American Society of Civil Engineers.

California Building Standards Code (CBC) (2016). California Code of Regulations. California Building 
Standards Commission Based on the 2015 International Building Code, Sacramento, CA.

California Geological Survey (CGS), 2014, Earthquake Zones of Required Investigation, Hollywood 
Quadrangle, released November 6, 2014 (Earthquake Fault Zones), and March 25, 1999 (Seismic Hazard 
Zones), scale 1:24,000.

California Geologic Survey (2012), compiled by Bedrossian, T.L., and Roffers, P.D., Geologic Compilations 
of Quaternary Surficial Deposits in Southern California, Los Angeles 30' x 60' Quadrangle (Revised):CGS 
Special Report 217, Plate 9, scale 1:100,000.

California Division of Mines and Geology (CDMG). 1998. Seismic Hazard Report for the Hollywood 7.5-
Minute Quadrangle, Los Angeles County, California: Seismic Hazard Zone Report 026.

City of Los Angeles. 2004.  Methane and Methane Buffer Zones. Map prepared by GIS Mapping, Bureau of 
Engineering, Department of Public Works, dated March 3, 2004.

Department of City Planning Los Angeles, California, 1996, "Safety Element of the Los Angeles City General 
Plan," adopted by the City Council on November 26, 1996.

FEMA (2008), Federal Emergency Management Agency, Flood Insurance Rate Maps, Panel 06037C1610F.

Hauksson, E., Yang, W., and Shearer, P.M., 2012, Waveform Relocated Earthquake Catalog for Southern 
California (1981 to June 2011): Bulletin of the Seismological Society of America, vol. 102, no. 5, p. 2239-
2244.

Los Angeles Tall Buildings Structural Design Council, 2017, An Alternative Procedure for Seismic Analysis 
and Design of Tall Buildings Located in the Los Angeles Region, A Consensus Document, 2017
Edition.

Los Angeles County Department of Public Works. A Manual for the Standard Urban Storm Water Mitigation 
Plan (SUSMP). September 2002.

Oskin, M., Sieh, K., Rockwell, T., and others, 2000, Active parasitic folds on the Elysian Park anticline, Los 
Angeles, California: Implications for seismic hazard in central Los Angeles: Geological Society of 
America Bulletin, v. 112, p. 693-707.

Shaw, J.H., and Shearer, P.M., 1999. An Elusive Blind-Thrust Fault Beneath Metropolitan Los Angeles: 
Science, vol. 283, p. 1516-1518.

Southern California Earthquake Center (SCEC) (2014). Significant Earthquakes and Faults: Historical 
Earthquakes & Significant Faults in Southern CA, available at 
[http://www.data.scec.org/significant/index.html] accessed August 2014.

United States Geological Survey (USGS), 2018, Hollywood Quadrangle, California [Map]. 1:24,000. 7.5 
Minute Series.



Mr. Andrew Settle
Preliminary Geotechnical Evaluation Report
4629, 4637, and 4645 ½, Maubert Ave, Los Angeles, CA
February 26, 2019

9

United States Geological Survey (USGS), 2010, Quaternary fault and fold database for the United States, 
updated November 2010, available at [http//earthquakes.usgs.gov/regional/qfaults/].

Working Group on California Earthquake Probabilities (WGCEP) (2013). Uniform California earthquake 
rupture forecast, Version 3 (UCERF3) – The time-independent model: U.S. Geological Survey Open-File 
Report 2013-1165, 97 pp., California Geological Survey Special Report 228, and Southern California 
Earthquake Center Publication 1792, available at [http://pubs.usgs.gov/of/2013/1165/].





G e o P e n t e c h

Project: Maubert Ave DevelopmentDate: NOV 2018 Project No.: 18066A Figure: 1

SITE LOCATION

2 Miles0

1" = 2 Miles
APPROXIMATE SCALE

4629, 4637, and 4645 1/2 Maubert Ave
Los Angeles, California 90027

(34.099430° N, -118.290698° E)



G
 e

 o
 P

 e
 n

 t 
e 

c 
h

Pr
oj

ec
t: 

M
au

be
rt 

Av
e 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t
D

at
e:

 N
O

V 
20

18
Pr

oj
ec

t N
o.

: 1
80

66
A

Fi
gu

re
: 2

SI
TE

 P
LA

N

Le
ge

nd

Bo
rin

g 
Lo

ca
tio

ns

Ap
pr

ox
. S

ite
 L

im
its

C
ro

ss
 S

ec
tio

ns

B
-1

(5
1.

5'
)

B
-2

(7
1'

)

M
au

be
rt

 A
ve

nu
e

N Vermont Avenue

Holl
yw

oo
d B

ou
lev

ar
d

A A
'

B
'

B



R
EG

IO
N

AL
 G

SI
TE

 

ian
, T

.L.
, a

nd
 R

off
er

s, 
P.

D.
, 

cia
l D

ep
os

its
 in

 S
ou

the
rn

 
le 

(R
ev

ise
d)

:C
GS

 S
pe

cia
l 

Sa
n 

Ra
fa

el
 H

ill
s



21
7, 

Pl
ate

s 9
, s

ca
le 

1:1
00

,00
0.







C
R

40
60

80
10

0
12

0
14

0
16

0
18

0
20

0
22

0
D

is
ta

nc
e 

(ft
)

TD
=7

1 
ft

TD
=5

1.
5 

ft

 (M
L)

14
 (M

L)

74
 (M

L)

21
 (M

L)

41
 (S

M
)

16
 (C

L)

37
 (C

L-
M

L)

16
 (C

L)

39
 (C

L)

18
 (C

L-
M

L)

51
 (C

L-
M

L)

 (M
L)

35
 (S

M
)

50
/4

" (
SM

)

38
 (C

L)

40
 (C

L-
M

L)

17
 (C

L-
M

L)

37
 (C

L-
M

L)

11
 (C

L-
M

L)

42
 (C

L-
M

L)

19
 (C

L-
M

L)

50
/2

" (
C

L-
M

L)

31
 (C

L-
M

L)

50
/6

" (
C

L-
M

L)

53
 (C

L-
M

L)

50
/5

" (
C

L-
M

L)

B
lo

w
co

un
t a

nd
 U

SC
S 

C
la

ss
ifi

ca
tio

n 
(T

yp
.)

Sa
m

pl
e 

C
ol

or
 In

di
ca

te
s 

Sa
m

pl
e 

Ty
pe

: 
M

od
. C

al
 S

am
pl

es
 in

G
re

en
SP

T 
Sa

m
pl

es
 Y

el
lo

w
Tu

be
 S

am
pl

es
 B

la
ck

Boring B-1
(Proj. ~10' from

Boring B-2
(Proj. ~10' from

g
g

?

?

?

[B
ed

ro
ck

]

[A
llu

vi
um

]

[F
ill]

ov
er

ed
 to

 ~
47

 ft
 b

gs
 o

n 
10

/1
8/

18
.

nc
ou

nt
er

ed
 a

t ~
52

 ft
 b

gs
 o

n 
10

/1
7/

18
.



C
R

0
40

60
80

10
0

12
0

14
0

16
0

D
is

ta
nc

e 
(ft

)

TD
=7

1 
ft

TD
=5

1.
5 

ft

 (M
L)

14
 (M

L)

74
 (M

L)

21
 (M

L)

41
 (S

M
)

16
 (C

L)

37
 (C

L-
M

L)

16
 (C

L)

39
 (C

L)

18
 (C

L-
M

L)

51
 (C

L-
M

L)

 (M
L)

35
 (S

M
)

50
/4

" (
SM

)

38
 (C

L)

40
 (C

L-
M

L)

17
 (C

L-
M

L)

37
 (C

L-
M

L)

11
 (C

L-
M

L)

42
 (C

L-
M

L)

19
 (C

L-
M

L)

50
/2

" (
C

L-
M

L)

31
 (C

L-
M

L)

50
/6

" (
C

L-
M

L)

53
 (C

L-
M

L)

50
/5

" (
C

L-
M

L)

B
lo

w
co

un
t a

nd
 U

SC
S 

C
la

ss
ifi

ca
tio

n 
(T

yp
.)

Sa
m

pl
e 

C
ol

or
 In

di
ca

te
s 

Sa
m

pl
e 

Ty
pe

: 
M

od
. C

al
 S

am
pl

es
 in

G
re

en
SP

T 
Sa

m
pl

es
 Y

el
lo

w
Tu

be
 S

am
pl

es
 B

la
ck

Boring B-1
(Proj. ~10' from

Boring B-2
(Proj. ~10' from

Ex
is

tin
g 

B
ui

ld
in

g

?

?
?

?

[A
llu

vi
um

]

[B
ed

ro
ck

]

[F
ill]

G
ro

un
dw

at
er

 le
ve

l r
ec

ov
er

ed
 to

 ~
47

 ft
 b

gs
 o

n 
10

/1
8/

18
.

G
ro

un
dw

at
er

 in
iti

al
ly

 e
nc

ou
nt

er
ed

 a
t ~

52
 ft

 b
gs

 o
n 

10
/1

7/
18

.



G
 e

 o
 P

 e
 n

 t 
e 

c 
h

Pr
oj

ec
t: 

M
AU

BE
R

T 
AV

E 
D

EV
EL

O
PM

EN
T

D
at

e:
 N

O
V 

20
18

Pr
oj

ec
t N

o.
: 1

80
66

A
Fi

gu
re

 6
H

IS
TO

R
IC

A
LL

Y 
H

IG
H

ES
T 

G
R

O
U

N
D

 W
A

TE
R

 C
O

N
TO

U
R

S 
A

N
D

 B
O

R
EH

O
LE

 L
O

G
 D

A
TA

 L
O

C
A

TI
O

N
S

A
pp

ro
xi

m
at

e 
Sc

al
e

0m
i

0.
5m

i
1.

0m
i

Si
te

 L
oc

at
io

n

LE
G

EN
D

M
ap

 S
ou

rc
e:

 
Se

is
m

ic
 H

az
ar

d 
Zo

ne
 R

ep
or

t f
or

 H
ol

ly
w

oo
d 

7.
5-

M
in

ut
e 

Q
ua

dr
an

gl
e 

(C
G

S,
 1

99
8)















Appendix A 
Maubert Ave Development 

 

GeoPentech

APPENDIX A 

FIELD EXPLORATION



Appendix A 
Maubert Ave Development 

 

GeoPentech Page A-1

A.1 FIELD EXPLORATIONS 
The field exploration was performed over the course of two days on October 17-18, 2018.  The 
explorations consisted of advancing two borings to depths of 51.5’ and 71’ below the ground surface.  
The approximate locations of the borings are indicated on Figure 2 in the main report.  All borings 
were drilled using 8-inch diameter hollow stem auger drilling equipment. The work was performed 
under the supervision of an engineer or a geologist who monitored the drilling operations and 
prepared a field record of soils observed and drilling conditions. The drilling was subcontracted to 
Martini Drilling, who provided all drilling equipment, crew, and supplies. 

During drilling, soil samples were obtained at approximate intervals ranging between 2.5 and 5-foot 
using either a Standard Penetration Test (SPT) sampler or a Modified California (CA) sampler.  SPT and 
CA samples were taken by driving a sampler approximately 18 inches into the soil at the bottom of 
the boring using a 140-pound hammer falling approximately 30 inches. The truck mounted CME-75 
Diesel HT rig used by Martini Drilling utilized an automatic-trip hammer. 

The SPT sampler cutting shoe and barrel have nominal inside diameters of 1.375 and 1.50 inches, 
respectively, and a nominal outside diameter of 2.00 inches.  The barrel had no space for internal 
liners which were not used.  The SPT samples were placed in plastic bags, labeled, and sealed. The CA 
sampler cutting shoe and barrel have nominal inside diameters of 2.38 and 2.50 inches, respectively, 
and a nominal outside diameter of 3 inches. Nominal 6-inch long, 2.4-inch diameter brass tubes or 
alternatively assemblies of 1-inch long, 2.4-inch diameter brass rings combined to fill the sampler 
were used to line the barrel. Plastic end caps were placed on the CA tubes to help preserve the 
moisture content of the samples. Bulk soil samples were also obtained at certain depths in selected 
boreholes. Upon completion of drilling, logging, and sampling, all borings were backfilled with cuttings 
and patched at the surface with asphalt.  

After recovering the sample, the engineer or geologist noted the depth interval, recorded a 
description of the recovered material onto a field log, and sealed and labeled the sample for transport 
to the laboratory. The soil descriptions noted on the field logs were visually classified in accordance 
with the Unified Soil Classification System.  The results of the borehole drilling and logging effort are 
provided on the borehole logs, Figures A-2 through A-6, and on a key to the logs of boreholes, Figure 
A-1. 

 

 















Appendix B 
Maubert Ave Development 

GeoPentech

APPENDIX B 

LABORATORY TESTING



Appendix B 
Maubert Ave Development 

GeoPentech Page C-1

B.1 LABORATORY TESTING 
The laboratory testing program performed by GeoPentech for the proposed project site included the 
following tests: moisture content, dry density, sieve analysis, wash analysis, direct shear, compaction, 
and corrosion. The geotechnical testing was conducted at the laboratory facilities of Leighton in Irvine, 
California. The tests were performed in general accordance with applicable procedures of ASTM and 
the State of California Department of Transportation, Standard Test Methods (DOT CA). The results 
of the laboratory testing, are included in this Appendix and are summarized in Table B-1 and on the 
boring logs in Appendix A. GeoPentech has reviewed the results of the laboratory testing and finds 
them acceptable. Brief descriptions of each test are presented in the following sections. 

B.1.1    Moisture Content and Dry Density 

For selected Modified California samples, the dry unit weight (in units of pounds-per-cubic-foot) and 
field moisture content (%) were measured in general accordance with ASTM D2937 and ASTM D2216, 
respectively, or with ASTM D7263. 

B.1.2    Sieve Analysis and Wash Analysis 

For selected samples, the particle-size distribution was determined by sieve analysis in general 
accordance with ASTM D6913. Sieve sizes ranged from ¾ in to 75 μm (No. 200).  

For other selected samples, the percentage of fines (material passing the No. 200 sieve) was measured 
by wash analysis in accordance with ASTM D1140. 

B.1.3    Atterberg Limits 

The Atterberg limits test is a classification test that is performed on cohesive soils (i.e., silty and clayey 
soils) to measure the soil plastic limit (PL) and liquid limit (LL), from which the plasticity index (PI) is 
calculated. The measured values can be plotted on a plasticity chart, which is used as an aid in 
classifying the soil material and behavior. These tests were performed in accordance with ASTM 
D4318. The plasticity index values of the samples tested are shown on the boring logs (Appendix B), 
and the results of the Atterberg limits tests are shown in Figures C-3 and C-4 at the end of this 
appendix. 

B.1.4    Direct Shear 

Direct shear tests were performed on selected Modified California samples in accordance with ASTM 
D3080 to measure peak and ultimate strength parameters. Shear stress and sample deformation were 
monitored throughout the tests.  

B.1.5    Consolidation 



Appendix B 
Maubert Ave Development 

GeoPentech Page C-2

Tests for one-dimensional consolidation properties of soils using incremental loading were performed 
on relatively undisturbed soil samples according to ASTM D2435. The test determines the magnitude 
and rate of consolidation of soil when it is restrained laterally and drained axially while subjected to 
incrementally applied controlled-stress loading. The test results provide clayey soil settlement 
parameters under different loading conditions. 

B.1.6    Corrosion Tests 

Soil samples were tested for electrical resistivity, pH, sulfate content, and chloride content.  These 
tests were performed in general accordance with DOT CA test methods 643 (electrical resistivity and 
pH), 417 (sulfate content), and 422 (chloride content). The test results were used to evaluate the 
corrosivity potential of the soil on underground improvements associated with the proposed 
structure.  

 



A
pp

en
di

x 
B

M
au

be
rt 

A
ve

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t



B-
1

B-
1

B-
1

B-
2

B-
2

B-
2

B-
2

B-
2

3
7

11
3

5
9

13
15

10
.0

30
.0

50
.0

10
.0

20
.0

40
.0

60
.0

70
.0

Ri
ng

Ri
ng

Ri
ng

Ri
ng

Ri
ng

Ri
ng

Ri
ng

Ri
ng

>
4.

50
>

4.
50

4.
50

/>
4.

50
>

4.
50

>
4.

50
>

4.
50

>
4.

50
>

4.
50

10
45

.4
0

10
84

.6
0

88
4.

63
12

83
.1

0
87

6.
52

10
86

.7
0

92
6.

87
10

09
.1

0

19
5.

31
22

4.
70

21
1.

43
27

3.
06

18
7.

25
23

2.
76

19
5.

31
22

7.
55

5.
00

6.
00

5.
00

6.
00

5.
00

6.
00

5.
00

5.
00

2.
41

5
2.

41
5

2.
41

5
2.

41
5

2.
41

5
2.

41
5

2.
41

5
2.

41
5

46
9.

88
22

0.
59

28
6.

52
21

9.
45

23
6.

60
18

1.
30

27
6.

99
21

4.
14

43
8.

99
18

6.
44

21
5.

03
20

6.
82

18
5.

24
14

4.
45

22
0.

83
18

7.
77

14
4.

70
66

.0
9

39
.1

9
57

.3
0

39
.3

1
37

.9
2

38
.4

6
54

.3
2

Co
nt

ai
ne

r N
o.

14
1.

4
11

9.
2

11
2.

0
14

0.
0

11
4.

6
11

8.
4

12
1.

7
13

0.
0

10
.5

28
.4

40
.7

8.
4

35
.2

34
.6

30
.8

19
.8

12
8.

0
92

.8
79

.6
12

9.
1

84
.8

87
.9

93
.0

10
8.

5

89
.3

93
.9

98
.2

74
.6

96
.2

10
1.

9
10

2.
4

96
.5

Pr
oj

ec
t N

am
e:

Pr
oj

ec
t N

o.
:

Te
st

ed
 B

y:
G.

 B
at

ha
la

Da
te

:
10

/2
9/

18

M
oi

st
ur

e 
Co

nt
en

t  
   

  (
%

)

D
ry

 D
en

si
ty

   
   

   
   

   
 (

pc
f)

W
et

.  
W

t. 
of

 S
oi

l +
 C

on
t. 

   
(g

)

Dr
y 

 W
t. 

of
 S

oi
l +

 C
on

t. 
   

  (
g)

W
ei

gh
t o

f C
on

ta
in

er
   

   
   

  (
g)

Da
rk

 y
el

lo
w

ish
 

br
ow

n 
cla

ye
y 

sa
nd

 (S
C)

Li
gh

t o
liv

e 
br

ow
n 

fa
t 

cla
ys

to
ne

 
(C

H)

Pa
le

 o
liv

e 
br

ow
n 

el
as

tic
 

sil
t (

M
H)

Li
gh

t o
liv

e 
br

ow
n 

el
as

tic
 

sil
t (

M
H)

Ol
iv

e 
br

ow
n 

cla
ye

y 
sa

nd
st

on
e 

(S
C)

Ol
iv

e 
br

ow
n 

fa
t c

la
y 

(C
H)

M
O

IS
TU

R
E 

&
 D

EN
SI

TY
 o

f S
O

IL
S 

   
  

AS
TM

 D
 2

21
6 

&
AS

TM
 D

 2
93

7

M
au

be
rt 

Av
en

ue
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t

18
06

6A

D
eg

re
e 

of
 S

at
ur

at
io

n 
(%

)

W
ei

gh
t o

f R
in

gs
 / 

Tu
be

   
   

(g
)

Av
er

ag
e 

Le
ng

th
   

   
   

   
   

 (i
n.

)

Av
er

ag
e 

Di
am

et
er

   
   

   
   

 (i
n.

)

W
et

 D
en

si
ty

Bo
rin

g 
No

.

Sa
m

pl
e 

No
.

De
pt

h 
(ft

.)

W
ei

gh
t S

oi
l +

 R
in

gs
 / 

Tu
be

 (g
)

Sa
m

pl
e 

Ty
pe

So
il 

Id
en

tif
ica

tio
n

Po
ck

et
 P

en
et

ro
m

et
er

 (t
on

s/
ft2 )

Ol
iv

e 
gr

ay
 

el
as

tic
 s

ilt
 

(M
H)

Da
rk

 o
liv

e 
gr

ay
 s

ilt
y 

cla
ys

to
ne

   
  

(C
L-

M
L)

M
&D

 B
-1

, B
-2



Project Name: Maubert Avenue Development Tested By:   G. Bathala
Project No.: 18066A Date:            10/30/18

Checked By: J. Ward
Date:            11/01/18

Boring No. B-2
Sample No. B-1
Depth (ft) 0-5
Sample Type Bulk
Sample Description

Wt. wet soil + container (g) 1006.60
Wt. dry soil + container (g) 958.20
Weight of container (g) 191.15

Moisture Content (%) 6.3

Boring No.
Sample No.
Depth (ft)
Sample Type
Sample Description

Wt. wet soil + container (g)
Wt. dry soil + container (g)
Weight of container (g)

Moisture Content (%)

MOISTURE CONTENT
ASTM D 2216

Dark yellowish 
brown silty, 

clay sand (SC-
SM), few 

asphalt noted



      PARTICLE-SIZE  ANALYSIS OF SOILS
                       ASTM D 422

Project Name: Tested By: G. Bathala Date: 10/25/18
Project No.: Data Input By: J. Ward Date: 11/01/18
Boring No.:

Sample No.: Depth (feet):     30.0

% Gravel 0 Soil Type
% Sand 5
% Fines 95

2.70 0.00 117.29
0.99 0.00 116.68 156.93

566.80 1.00 66.88 154.37
136.67 0.00 1.22
430.13 2.56

3" 0.00 100.0 0.00 100.0 100.0
1½" 0.00 100.0 0.00 100.0 100.0
3/4" 0.00 100.0 0.18 99.6 99.6
3/8" 0.00 100.0 0.50 98.9 98.9
No. 4 0.00 100.0 0.93 98.0 98.0
No. 10 0.00 100.0 2.31 94.9 94.9

Pan

 Hydrometer Wt. of Air-Dry Soil (g) 46.08             Wt. of Dry Soil (g) 45.52
Deflocculant  125 cc of 4% Solution

26-Oct-18 9:00 0
9:02 2 21.9 44.0 79.5 0.0283
9:05 5 21.9 38.5 67.6 0.0188
9:15 15 21.8 32.0 53.4 0.0114
9:30 30 21.7 28.5 45.8 0.0083
10:00 60 21.7 25.5 39.2 0.0060
11:00 120 21.6 23.0 33.8 0.0043
13:10 250 21.5 20.0 27.2 0.0030

27-Oct-18 9:00 1440 21.1 16.0 18.5 0.0013

After
Hydrometer & 
Wet Sieve ret. 
in #200 Sieve

7.5
7.5

Pan

No. 30
No. 50
No. 100

  Wt. of Dry Soil     (g)

7.5
7.5

Moisture Content 
of Total Air-Dry 

Soil

Moisture Content 
of Air-Dry Soil 
Passing #10

No. 10

Date Time
Water

Temperature  
(°C)

No. 16

CH

 Specific Gravity  (Assumed)

7.5

 Sieve after Hydrometer & Wet Sieve  Coarse Sieve

7.5
7.5
7.5

Elapsed Time  
(min)

Cumulative Wt. 
Of Dry Soil 

Retained (g)

7.5

Composite 
Correction       

152H

% PassingU.S. Sieve U.S. Sieve Size

Actual 
Hydrometer 
Readings

Cumulative Wt. 
Of Dry Soil 

Retained (g)

 Wt. of Container   Moisture Content (%)

No. 200

 Dry Wt. of Soil     (g)

% Total Sample  
(%)

Soil Particle 
Diameter      

(mm)

% Total Sample% Passing

 Correction for Specific Gravity

 Wt.of Air-Dry Soil + Cont. (g)

  Wt.of Air-Dry Soil + Cont.(g)

  Dry Wt. of Soil + Cont.   (g)

  Wt. of Container No.___ (g)

Soil Identification:

Maubert Avenue Development
18066A
B-1
7

Light olive brown fat claystone (CH)

SA & Hyd B-1, 7 @ 30



95

7

No
v-

18

De
pt

h 
(fe

et
):

   
30

.0
So

il 
Ty

pe
 :

Pr
oj

ec
t N

am
e:

0
:

5
:

 P
AR

TI
CL

E 
- 

SI
ZE

 
D

IS
TR

IB
U

TI
O

N
AS

TM
 D

 4
22

G
R

:S
A:

FI
 : 

(%
)

So
il 

Id
en

tif
ica

tio
n:

Li
gh

t o
liv

e 
br

ow
n 

fa
t c

la
ys

to
ne

 (C
H)

18
06

6A
Bo

rin
g 

No
.:

CH
Pr

oj
ec

t N
o.

:
B-

1
Sa

m
pl

e 
No

.:
M

au
be

rt 
Av

en
ue

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t

SA
ND

SI
LT

   
  F

IN
E

HY
DR

OM
ET

ER
   

   
 3

.0
"  

   
 1

 1
/2

"  
   

 3
/4

"  
   

   
 3

/8
"  

   
   

#
4 

   
   

   
#

8 
   

   
  #

16
   

   
  #

30
   

   
  #

50
   

   
  #

10
0 

   
  #

20
0

U.
S.

 S
TA

ND
AR

D 
SI

EV
E 

OP
EN

IN
G

U.
S.

 S
TA

ND
AR

D 
SI

EV
E 

NU
M

BE
R

GR
AV

EL
FI

NE
S

FI
NE

CL
AY

  C
OA

RS
E

 C
RS

E
M

ED
IU

M

010203040506070809010
0

0.
00

1
0.

01
0

0.
10

0
1.

00
0

10
.0

00
10

0.
00

0

PERCENT FINER BY WEIGHT

PA
R

TI
C

LE
 -

SI
ZE

 (m
m

)

"

S
A

 &
 H

yd
 B

-1
, 7

 @
 3

0



Project Name: Tested By: G. Bathala Date: 10/30/18
Project No.: 18066A Checked By: J. Ward Date: 11/01/18
Boring No.: B-1 Depth (feet): 20.0
Sample No.: 5
Soil Identification: Dark yellowish brown clayey sand (SC)

YK 0.0
701.5 0.0
251.4 1.0
450.1 0.0

YK
556.2
251.4
304.8

(in.) (mm.)

1 1/2" 37.5
1" 25.0

3/4" 19.0
1/2" 12.5
3/8" 9.5
#4 4.75
#8 2.36
#16 1.18
#30 0.600
#50 0.300
#100 0.150
#200 0.075

GRAVEL: 0 %
SAND: 67 %
FINES: 33 %
GROUP SYMBOL: SC

Remarks:

100.0
99.8

72.9
91.936.3

57.4191.7
122.2

32.8
265.7 41.0
302.3

48.3

PAN

232.7

U. S. Sieve Size Percent Passing  (%)

Wt. of Air-Dry Soil + Cont.  (g)

After Wet Sieve Wt. of Dry Soil + Container (g) 
Wt. of Container                 (g) 
Dry Wt. of Soil Retained on # 200 Sieve  (g)

Wt. of Dry Soil + Cont.       (g)

Container No.

Cu = D60/D10 =
Cc = (D30)²/(D60*D10) =

0.0
0.9

Wt. of Container            (g)

Moisture Content of Total Air - Dry Soil

Wt. of Container No._____  (g) 
Wt. of Air-Dried Soil + Cont.(g)

Dry Wt. of Soil              (g)

Cumulative Weight                
Dry Soil Retained (g)

Moisture Content (%)

PARTICLE-SIZE DISTRIBUTION (GRADATION)

ASTM D 6913

Container No.:

Maubert Avenue Development

of SOILS USING SIEVE ANALYSIS



U.
S.

 S
TA

ND
AR

D 
SI

EV
E 

OP
EN

IN
G

U.
S.

 S
TA

ND
AR

D 
SI

EV
E 

NU
M

BE
R

GR
AV

EL
FI

NE
S

FI
NE

CL
AY

  C
OA

RS
E

CO
AR

SE
M

ED
IU

M

18
06

6A

SA
ND

SI
LT

   
  F

IN
E

HY
DR

OM
ET

ER
   

  3
.0

"  
   

 1
 1

/2
"  

   
  3

/4
"  

   
   

3/
8"

   
   

  #
4 

   
   

   
 #

8 
   

   
  #

16
   

   
  #

30
   

   
  #

50
   

   
  #

10
0 

   
   

#
20

0

M
au

be
rt 

Av
en

ue
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t

Pr
oj

ec
t N

o.
:

B-
1

Sa
m

pl
e 

No
.:

 P
AR

TI
CL

E 
- 

SI
ZE

 
D

IS
TR

IB
U

TI
O

N
AS

TM
 D

 6
91

3

So
il 

Id
en

tif
ica

tio
n:

Da
rk

 y
el

lo
w

ish
 b

ro
w

n 
cla

ye
y 

sa
nd

 (S
C)

SC

G
R

:S
A:

FI
 : 

(%
)

Bo
rin

g 
No

.:

De
pt

h 
(fe

et
):

20
.0

So
il 

Ty
pe

 :

Pr
oj

ec
t N

am
e:

0
:

67
:

33

5

No
v-

18

010203040506070809010
0

0.
00

1
0.

01
0

0.
10

0
1.

00
0

10
.0

00
10

0.
00

0

PERCENT FINER BY WEIGHT

PA
R

TI
C

LE
 -

SI
ZE

 (m
m

)

"

S
A

 B
-1

, 5
 @

 2
0



Project Name: Tested By: G. Bathala Date: 10/30/18
Project No.: 18066A Checked By: J. Ward Date: 11/01/18
Boring No.: B-2 Depth (feet): 0-5
Sample No.: B-1
Soil Identification: Dark yellowish brown silty clayey sand (SC-SM), few asphalt noted

Whole Sample Sample Passing 
#4 Whole Sample Sample

passing #4

N/A C-1 Wt. of Air-Dry Soil + Cont.(g) 0.0 0.0
8025.4 687.9 Wt. of Dry Soil + Cont.     (g) 0.0 0.0

0.0 166.3 Wt. of Container No._____(g) 1.0 1.0
8025.4 521.6 Moisture Content (%) 0.0 0.0

C-1
459.3
166.3
293.0

(mm.)

1 1/2"
1"

3/4"
1/2"
3/8"
#4
#8
#16
#30
#50
#100
#200

GRAVEL: 0 %
SAND: 56 %
FINES: 44 %
GROUP SYMBOL: SC-SM

Remarks:

Wt. of Container                 (g) 

61.7

Cu = D60/D10 =
Cc = (D30)²/(D60*D10) =

PARTICLE-SIZE DISTRIBUTION (GRADATION)

ASTM D 6913

Container No.:

Maubert Avenue Development

Moisture ContentsCalculation of Dry Weights

of SOILS USING SIEVE ANALYSIS

95.7

44.3

100.0

52.4

85.3
72.9

99.9
99.99.5

37.5

Wt. of Dry Soil + Container (g) 

99.7

Cumulative Weight of Dry Soil Retained (g)U. S. Sieve Size

Wt. Air-Dried Soil + Cont.(g)

Sample Passing #4

Passing #4 Material After Wet Sieve

Wt. of Container            (g)

Container No.

Dry Wt. of Soil              (g)

19.0

Whole Sample

140.2

Percent Passing
(%)

Dry Wt. of Soil Retained on # 200 Sieve  (g)

198.7

0.0

75.1

22.3

0.300

21.0

0.075

10.0

289.9
PAN

4.75
2.36
1.18
0.600

25.0

247.3

12.5 8.1

0.150



U.
S.

 S
TA

ND
AR

D 
SI

EV
E 

OP
EN

IN
G

U.
S.

 S
TA

ND
AR

D 
SI

EV
E 

NU
M

BE
R

GR
AV

EL
FI

NE
S

FI
NE

CL
AY

  C
OA

RS
E

CO
AR

SE
M

ED
IU

M

18
06

6A

SA
ND

SI
LT

   
  F

IN
E

HY
DR

OM
ET

ER
   

   
 3

.0
"  

   
 1

 1
/2

"  
   

 3
/4

"  
   

   
 3

/8
"  

   
   

#
4 

   
   

   
#

8 
   

   
  #

16
   

   
  #

30
   

   
  #

50
   

   
 #

10
0 

   
   

#
20

0

M
au

be
rt 

Av
en

ue
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t

Pr
oj

ec
t N

o.
:

B-
2

Sa
m

pl
e 

No
.:

 P
AR

TI
CL

E 
- 

SI
ZE

 
D

IS
TR

IB
U

TI
O

N
AS

TM
 D

 6
91

3

So
il 

Id
en

tif
ica

tio
n:

Da
rk

 y
el

lo
w

ish
 b

ro
w

n 
sil

ty
 c

la
ye

y 
sa

nd
 (S

C-
SM

), 
fe

w
 a

sp
ha

lt 
no

te
d

SC
-S

M

G
R

:S
A:

FI
 : 

(%
)

Bo
rin

g 
No

.:

De
pt

h 
(fe

et
):

0-
5

So
il 

Ty
pe

 :

Pr
oj

ec
t N

am
e:

0
:

56
:

44

B-
1

No
v-

18

010203040506070809010
0

0.
00

1
0.

01
0

0.
10

0
1.

00
0

10
.0

00
10

0.
00

0

PERCENT FINER BY WEIGHT

PA
R

TI
C

LE
 -

SI
ZE

 (m
m

)

"

S
A

 B
-2

, B
-1

 @
 0

-5



B-
1

B-
1

B-
2

1
3

2b
2.

5
10

.0
5.

0
Tu

be
Ri

ng
SP

T

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

1.
00

1.
00

1.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

38
5.

37
43

9.
00

40
7.

83
76

.8
7

14
4.

70
13

7.
47

30
8.

50
29

4.
30

27
0.

36

B
B

B
26

9.
01

32
0.

49
31

4.
77

76
.8

7
14

4.
70

13
7.

47
19

2.
14

17
5.

79
17

7.
30

37
.7

40
.3

34
.4

62
.3

59
.7

65
.6

Pr
oj

ec
t N

am
e:

M
au

be
rt 

Av
en

ue
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t

Pr
oj

ec
t N

o.
:

18
06

6A

Te
st

ed
 B

y:
G.

 B
at

ha
la

Da
te

:
10

/3
0/

18

M
oi

st
ur

e 
Co

rr
ec

tio
n

Dr
y 

W
ei

gh
t o

f S
am

pl
e 

+
 C

on
t. 

 (g
)

W
ei

gh
t o

f C
on

ta
in

er
   

   
 (g

)

Co
nt

ai
ne

r N
o.

:

W
et

 W
ei

gh
t o

f S
oi

l +
 C

on
ta

in
er

 (g
)

Sa
m

pl
e 

D
ry

 W
ei

gh
t D

et
er

m
in

at
io

n

Da
rk

 y
el

lo
w

ish
 

br
ow

n 
cla

ye
y 

sa
nd

 (S
C)

W
ei

gh
t o

f C
on

ta
in

er
   

   
   

(g
)

M
oi

st
ur

e 
Co

nt
en

t (
%

)

So
il 

Id
en

tif
ica

tio
n

Dr
y 

W
ei

gh
t o

f S
oi

l +
 C

on
ta

in
er

  (
g)

 P
ER

CE
N

T 
PA

SS
IN

G
   

   
   

   
   

  
N

o.
 2

00
 S

IE
VE

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
AS

TM
 D

 1
14

0

W
ei

gh
t o

f S
am

pl
e 

+
 C

on
ta

in
er

  (
g)

M
et

ho
d 

 (A
 o

r B
)

W
ei

gh
t o

f C
on

ta
in

er
   

   
   

(g
)

W
ei

gh
t o

f D
ry

 S
am

pl
e 

 (g
)

%
 P

as
si

ng
 N

o.
 2

00
 S

ie
ve

%
 R

et
ai

ne
d 

N
o.

 2
00

 S
ie

ve

Af
te

r 
W

as
h

Dr
y 

W
ei

gh
t o

f S
am

pl
e 

   
(g

)  
 

Da
rk

 y
el

lo
w

ish
 

br
ow

n 
cla

ye
y 

sa
nd

 (S
C)

Li
gh

t 
ye

llo
w

ish
br

ow
n 

cla
ye

y 
sa

nd
 (S

C)

Bo
rin

g 
No

.
Sa

m
pl

e 
No

.
De

pt
h 

(ft
.)

Sa
m

pl
e 

Ty
pe

Pa
ss

in
g 

#2
00

 B
-1

, B
-2



Project Name: Tested By: R. Manning Date: 10/30/18
Project No. : Input By: G. Bathala Date: 11/01/18
Boring No.: Checked By: J. Ward
Sample No.: Depth (ft.)
Soil Identification:

1 2 1 2 3 4
35 25 18

18.17 18.16 24.09 24.21 25.87
16.63 16.74 20.26 20.25 21.22
11.28 11.75 13.57 13.58 13.73
28.79 28.46 57.25 59.37 62.08

60
29
31
CH

PI at "A" - Line  =  0.73(LL-20)  29.2
One - Point Liquid Limit Calculation

LL =Wn(N/25)

PROCEDURES USED

  Wet Preparation
   Multipoint  - Wet

X   Dry Preparation
   Multipoint  - Dry 

X    Procedure A
   Multipoint  Test

   Procedure B
   One-point  Test

Plasticity Index
Classification

Number of Blows        [N]
Wet Wt. of Soil + Cont. (g)

           LIQUID LIMIT      PLASTIC LIMIT

Dry Wt. of Soil + Cont. (g)
Wt. of Container         (g)
Moisture Content (%) [Wn]

Light olive brown fat claystone (CH)

TEST
NO.

Liquid Limit
Plastic Limit

ATTERBERG LIMITS
 ASTM D 4318

Maubert Avenue Development
18066A
B-1
7 30.0

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

0 10 20 30 40 50 60 70 80 90 100

Pl
as

tic
ity

 In
de

x 
(P

I)

Liquid Limit (LL)

0.121

CL or OL

ML or OL
MH or OH

For classification of fine-
grained soils and fine-
grained fraction of coarse-
grained soils

"A" Line

7
4

CH or OH

CL- ML

56

57

58

59

60

61

62

63

10 100

M
oi

st
ur

e 
C

on
te

nt
 (%

)

Number of Blows

20            25         30                 40            50          60       70     80     90       



Project Name: Tested By: R. Manning Date: 10/30/18
Project No. : Input By: G. Bathala Date: 11/01/18
Boring No.: Checked By: J. Ward
Sample No.: Depth (ft.)
Soil Identification:

1 2 1 2 3 4
35 25 15

18.74 19.14 25.01 23.55 24.40
16.59 16.93 20.68 19.73 20.16
11.05 11.23 13.62 13.70 13.78
38.81 38.77 61.33 63.35 66.46

63
39
24
MH

PI at "A" - Line  =  0.73(LL-20)  31.39
One - Point Liquid Limit Calculation

LL =Wn(N/25)

PROCEDURES USED

  Wet Preparation
   Multipoint  - Wet

X   Dry Preparation
   Multipoint  - Dry 

X    Procedure A
   Multipoint  Test

   Procedure B
   One-point  Test

Plasticity Index
Classification

Number of Blows        [N]
Wet Wt. of Soil + Cont. (g)

           LIQUID LIMIT      PLASTIC LIMIT

Dry Wt. of Soil + Cont. (g)
Wt. of Container         (g)
Moisture Content (%) [Wn]

Olive gray elastic silt (MH)

TEST
NO.

Liquid Limit
Plastic Limit

ATTERBERG LIMITS
 ASTM D 4318

Maubert Avenue Development
18066A
B-1
11 50.0

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

0 10 20 30 40 50 60 70 80 90 100

Pl
as

tic
ity

 In
de

x 
(P

I)

Liquid Limit (LL)

0.121

CL or OL

ML or OL
MH or OH

For classification of fine-
grained soils and fine-
grained fraction of coarse-
grained soils

"A" Line

7
4

CH or OH

CL- ML

60

61

62

63

64

65

66

67

68

10 100

M
oi

st
ur

e 
C

on
te

nt
 (%

)

Number of Blows

20            25         30                 40            50          60       70     80     90       



Project Name: Tested By: R. Manning Date: 10/31/18
Project No. : Input By: G. Bathala Date: 11/01/18
Boring No.: Checked By: J. Ward
Sample No.: Depth (ft.)
Soil Identification:

1 2 1 2 3 4
35 26 17

17.85 18.55 23.94 24.78 25.65
16.17 16.80 19.90 20.39 20.79
11.23 11.71 13.58 13.70 13.64
34.01 34.38 63.92 65.62 67.97

66
34
32
MH

PI at "A" - Line  =  0.73(LL-20)  33.58
One - Point Liquid Limit Calculation

LL =Wn(N/25)

PROCEDURES USED

  Wet Preparation
   Multipoint  - Wet

X   Dry Preparation
   Multipoint  - Dry 

X    Procedure A
   Multipoint  Test

   Procedure B
   One-point  Test

ATTERBERG LIMITS
 ASTM D 4318

Maubert Avenue Development
18066A
B-2
5 20.0

Dry Wt. of Soil + Cont. (g)
Wt. of Container         (g)
Moisture Content (%) [Wn]

Pale olive brown elastic silt (MH)

TEST
NO.

Liquid Limit
Plastic Limit
Plasticity Index
Classification

Number of Blows        [N]
Wet Wt. of Soil + Cont. (g)

           LIQUID LIMIT      PLASTIC LIMIT

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

0 10 20 30 40 50 60 70 80 90 100

Pl
as

tic
ity

 In
de

x 
(P

I)

Liquid Limit (LL)

0.121

CL or OL

ML or OL
MH or OH

For classification of fine-
grained soils and fine-
grained fraction of coarse-
grained soils

"A" Line

7
4

CH or OH

CL- ML

63

64

65

66

67

68

69

10 100

M
oi

st
ur

e 
C

on
te

nt
 (%

)

Number of Blows

20            25         30                 40            50          60       70     80     90       



Project Name: Tested By: R. Manning Date: 10/31/18
Project No. : Input By: G. Bathala Date: 11/01/18
Boring No.: Checked By: J. Ward
Sample No.: Depth (ft.)
Soil Identification:

1 2 1 2 3 4
35 28 20

18.66 18.34 24.31 25.04 25.77
17.21 16.88 20.71 20.94 21.26
11.75 11.30 13.81 13.62 13.63
26.56 26.16 52.17 56.01 59.11

57
26
31
CH

PI at "A" - Line  =  0.73(LL-20)  27.01
One - Point Liquid Limit Calculation

LL =Wn(N/25)

PROCEDURES USED

  Wet Preparation
   Multipoint  - Wet

X   Dry Preparation
   Multipoint  - Dry 

X    Procedure A
   Multipoint  Test

   Procedure B
   One-point  Test

ATTERBERG LIMITS
 ASTM D 4318

Maubert Avenue Development
18066A
B-2
13 60.0

Dry Wt. of Soil + Cont. (g)
Wt. of Container         (g)
Moisture Content (%) [Wn]

Olive brown fat clay (CH)

TEST
NO.

Liquid Limit
Plastic Limit
Plasticity Index
Classification

Number of Blows        [N]
Wet Wt. of Soil + Cont. (g)

           LIQUID LIMIT      PLASTIC LIMIT

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

0 10 20 30 40 50 60 70 80 90 100

Pl
as

tic
ity

 In
de

x 
(P

I)

Liquid Limit (LL)

0.121

CL or OL

ML or OL
MH or OH

For classification of fine-
grained soils and fine-
grained fraction of coarse-
grained soils

"A" Line

7
4

CH or OH

CL- ML

51

52

53

54

55

56

57

58

59

60

10 100

M
oi

st
ur

e 
C

on
te

nt
 (%

)

Number of Blows

20            25         30                 40            50          60       70     80     90       



Project Name: Maubert Avenue Development Tested By: G. Bathala Date: 10/23/18
Project No.: 18066A Checked By: J. Ward Date: 11/01/18
Boring No.: Sample Type: Ring
Sample No.: Depth (ft.): 30.0
Soil Identification:

2.415 2.415 2.415
1.000 1.000 1.000
173.71 176.98 181.20
36.68 37.09 37.78

Before Shearing
220.59 220.59 220.59
186.44 186.44 186.44
66.09 66.09 66.09
0.1900 0.0000 0.2894
0.2040 -0.0222 0.3093

After Shearing
196.81 194.62 180.78
159.78 158.00 147.51
60.07 54.32 38.08
2.70 2.70 2.70
62.43 62.43 62.43Water Density(pcf):

Specific Gravity (Assumed):
Weight of Container(gm):
Weight of Dry Sample+Cont.(gm):

Weight of Ring(gm):

Weight of Container(gm):
Weight of Dry Sample+Cont.(gm):
Weight of Wet Sample+Cont.(gm):

Weight of Wet Sample+Cont.(gm):

Vertical Rdg.(in): Final
Vertical Rdg.(in): Initial

DIRECT  SHEAR  TEST
Consolidated Drained - ASTM D 3080

Sample Thickness(in.):
Weight of Sample + ring(gm):

7
B-1

Light olive brown fat claystone (CH)

Sample Diameter(in):

DS B-1, 7 @ 30



Normal Stress (kip/ft²)
Peak Shear Stress  (kip/ft²)
Shear Stress @ End of Test (ksf)
Deformation Rate  (in./min.)

Initial Sample Height (in.)
Diameter (in.)
Initial Moisture Content (%)
Dry Density (pcf)
Saturation (%)
Soil Height Before Shearing (in.)
Final Moisture Content (%)

92.9

1.000
2.415
28.38

Boring No.
Sample No.
Depth (ft)

B-1
7
30

89.1
0.9778
35.3

Soil Identification: 28.38
90.6

28.38
88.8

3.530
0.0017

11.400
8.039
5.024
0.0017

3.800
3.210
1.952
0.0017

1.000
2.415

1.000
2.415

7.600
5.002

85.2
0.9860
37.1

Maubert Avenue DevelopmentDIRECT SHEAR TEST RESULTS
Consolidated Drained - ASTM D 3080

94.1
0.9801
30.4

10-18

Project No.: 18066A

Sample Type:

Ring

Light olive brown fat 
claystone (CH)

0.00

2.00

4.00

6.00

8.00

10.00

0 0.1 0.2 0.3

Sh
ea

r S
tre

ss
 (k

sf
)

Horizontal Deformation (in.)

0.00

2.00

4.00

6.00

8.00

10.00

0.00 2.00 4.00 6.00 8.00 10.00 12.00 14.00 16.00 18.00 20.00

Sh
ea

r S
tre

ss
 (k

sf
)

Normal Stress (ksf)

DS B-1, 7 @ 30



Project Name: Tested By:G. Bathala Date: 10/23/18
Project No.: Checked By: J. Ward Date: 11/01/18
Boring No.: Depth (ft.):
Sample No.: Sample Type: Ring
Soil Identification:

2.415
1.000
180.17
36.65
0.9952

220.59
186.44
66.09
28.4
93.0
91

0.2492

238.74
202.85
57.72
33.08
90.7
100

0.2424
2.79
62.43

0.10 0.2487 0.9995 0.00 0.05 0.872 0.05
0.10 0.2636 1.0144 0.00 -1.44 0.900 -1.44
0.25 0.2634 1.0142 0.07 -1.41 0.901 -1.48
0.50 0.2614 1.0122 0.13 -1.22 0.899 -1.35
1.00 0.2564 1.0072 0.21 -0.71 0.891 -0.92
2.00 0.2482 0.9990 0.31 0.10 0.877 -0.21
4.00 0.2381 0.9889 0.43 1.12 0.861 0.68
8.00 0.2253 0.9761 0.60 2.39 0.840 1.79
16.00 0.2082 0.9590 0.86 4.10 0.813 3.24
4.00 0.2203 0.9711 0.53 2.90 0.829 2.37
1.00 0.2341 0.9849 0.36 1.51 0.852 1.15
0.25 0.2424 0.9932 0.20 0.68 0.864 0.48

Maubert Avenue Development

ONE-DIMENSIONAL CONSOLIDATION
PROPERTIES of SOILS

ASTM D 2435

Light olive brown fat claystone (CH)

30.0
7

18066A
B-1

 Weight of Container (g)
 Final Moisture Content (%) 

 Water Density (pcf)

 Final  Dry Density (pcf)
 Final Saturation (%)
 Final Vertical Reading (in.)
 Specific Gravity (assumed)

 Initial Moisture Content (%)
 Initial Dry Density (pcf)
 Initial Saturation (%)
 Initial Vertical Reading (in.)

 Wt.of Wet Sample+Cont. (g)
 Wt. of Dry Sample+Cont. (g)

 Sample Diameter (in.)
 Sample Thickness (in.)
 Wt. of Sample + Ring (g)
 Weight of Ring (g)

After Test

 Height after consol. (in.)

 Wt.Wet Sample+Cont. (g)
 Wt.of Dry Sample+Cont. (g)
 Weight of Container (g)

Before Test

Corrected 
Deforma-
tion (%)

Time Readings 

Date Time Elapsed  
Time (min)

Square Root 
of Time

Dial Rdgs. 
(in.)

Pressure   
(p)       

(ksf)

Final 
Reading

(in.)

Apparent 
Thickness  

(in.)

Load 
Compliance 

(%)

Deformation 
% of 

Sample 
Thickness

Void      
Ratio

0.800

0.810

0.820

0.830

0.840

0.850

0.860

0.870

0.880

0.890

0.900

0.910

0.10 1.00 10.00 100.

Vo
id

 R
at

io

Pressure, p (ksf)

Inundate with  
Tap water



Initial Final Initial Final Initial Final Initial Final

Boring
No.

Sample
No.

Depth
(ft.)

Moisture 
Content (%) 

ONE-DIMENSIONAL CONSOLIDATION  
PROPERTIES of SOILS                     

ASTM D 2435      

33.1 90.7B-1 7 28.4

Soil Identification: Light olive brown fat claystone (CH)

Project No.:

Maubert Avenue Development

11-18

18066A

Time Readings 

0.864 91 10093.0

Degree of 
Saturation (%)Dry Density (pcf)

0.873

Void Ratio

30.0

0.0000

0.1000

0.2000

0.3000

0.4000

0.5000

0.6000

0.7000

0.8000

0.9000

1.0000

0.1 1.0

D
ef

or
m

at
io

n 
D

ia
l R

ea
di

ng
 (i

n.
)

Log of Time (min.)

-2.00

-1.00

0.00

1.00

2.00

3.00

4.00
0.10 1.00 10.00 100.00

D
ef

or
m

at
io

n 
(%

)

Pressure, p (ksf)

0.0000

0.2000

0.4000

0.6000

0.8000

1.0000

1.2000

0.0 10.0

Square Root of Time (min.1/2)

Inundate with  
Tap water



Project Name: Maubert Avenue Development Tested By : G. Berdy Date: 10/29/18

Project No. : 18066A Data Input By: J. Ward Date: 11/01/18

Boring No. B-2

Sample No. B-1

Sample Depth (ft) 0-5

224.27

220.23

60.24

2.53

100.37

151

20

860

7:45/8:30

45

24.4995

24.4961

0.0034

139.91

144

ml of Extract For Titration      (B) 15

ml of AgNO3 Soln. Used in Titration (C) 0.4

PPM of Chloride (C -0.2) * 100 * 30 / B 40

PPM of Chloride, Dry Wt. Basis 41

6.61

21.3

TESTS for SULFATE CONTENT
CHLORIDE CONTENT and pH of SOILS

SULFATE CONTENT, DOT California Test 417, Part II

Soil Identification:

Temperature  °C

pH Value

pH TEST, DOT California Test  643

Dark yellowish 
brown SC-SM

Wt. of Crucible + Residue (g)

Dry Weight of Soil + Container (g)

Weight of Container (g)

Duration of Combustion (min)

Moisture Content (%)

Beaker No.

Crucible No.

Furnace Temperature (°C)

Time In / Time Out

Weight of Soaked Soil (g)

PPM of Sulfate                 (A) x 41150

Wet Weight of Soil + Container (g)

Wt. of  Residue (g)                     (A)

CHLORIDE CONTENT, DOT California Test 422

Wt. of Crucible (g)

PPM of Sulfate, Dry Weight Basis



Project Name: Tested By : Date:
Project No. : Data Input By: J. Ward Date:
Boring No.: Depth (ft.) :
Sample No. :
Soil Identification:*
*California Test 643 requires soil specimens to consist only of portions of samples passing through the No. 8 US Standard Sieve before resistivity 
testing.  Therefore, this test method may not be representative for coarser materials. 

Wt. of Container     (g)26.16 5400

2.53
224.27

Moisture Content (%)  (MCi)
Wet Wt. of Soil + Cont. (g)

Specimen
No.

1
2

Water
Added (ml)

(Wa)

30

Adjusted
Moisture
Content

(MC) Dry Wt. of Soil + Cont. (g)
5400

1.000

Chloride Content
(ohm-cm)

Moisture Content Sulfate Content

5

Min. Resistivity

DOT CA Test 643DOT CA Test 417 Part II DOT CA Test 422

(%) (ppm) (ppm)

DOT CA Test 643

4

40
50 130.153 500041.91

4800

4790 35.0 144 41 6.61 21.3

SOIL RESISTIVITY TEST
DOT CA TEST 643

Temp. (°C)pH
Soil pH

4800
5000

220.23
60.24

MC =(((1+Mci/100)x(Wa/Wt+1))-1)x100

Maubert Avenue Development 10/30/18
11/01/18

0-5
18066A
B-2

G. Berdy

B-1

Container No.
Initial Soil Wt. (g)   (Wt)
Box Constant

Dark yellowish brown SC-SM

Resistance
Reading
(ohm)

34.04

Soil
Resistivity
(ohm-cm)

4700

4800

4900

5000

5100

5200

5300

5400

5500

25.0 30.0 35.0 40.0 45.0

So
il 

R
es

is
tiv

ity
 (o

hm
-c

m
)

Moisture Content (%)



 

Appendix H 

Energy and Water Efficiency Compliance Report  



1373 Forest Park Circle, Suite 203 US-EcoLogic, Inc. 911 Maryland Drive 
Lafayette, CO 80021 www.usecologic.com Irving, TX 75061 
(972) 579-2073 (972) 579-2009 
Western Division General Office

To:  City of Los Angeles Department of City Planning 

From:  US-EcoLogic, Inc. 

Date:  June 07 2019 

Subject: CEQA Exemption (a)(8) Energy and Water Efficiency Compliance for 4649 Maubert 

I. Executive Summary 

The purpose of this analysis is to describe how the project to be built at 4649 Maubert (known 
as this point forward as “the Project”) will meet the Public Resources Code, Division 13, Chapter 
4.2 Environmental Quality, Section 21155.1 – Implementation of the Sustainable Communities 
Strategy CEQA Exemption for transit priority project subsection (a)(8) requirement for energy 
and water efficiency. 

Public Resource Code – Division 13. Environmental Quality – 
Chapter 4.2 Implementation of the Sustainable Communities Strategy –  
Section 21155.1 Subsection (a)(8) requires: 

The buildings in the transit priority project are 15 percent more energy efficient than 
required by Chapter 6 of Title 24 of the California Code of Regulations and the buildings and 
landscaping are designed to achieve 25 percent less water usage than the average 
household use in the region. 

The Project is a high-rise residential development integrated into a singular building in the City 
of Los Angeles. It consists of 153 residential dwelling units encompassing 125,480sf with 
18,156sf of non-residential area (5,013sf of amenity spaces, 2,046sf of leasing/lobby spaces and 
11,097sf of circulation) and vehicular parking included in the first two levels with bicycle storage 
on the second level; all integrated into one building. The lot area is 33,054sf (0.76ac) 

The Project will comply with both energy and water usage requirements, as follows: 

Energy Use:      A minimum of at least 15% less than allowed by Title 24, Part 6 2016. 
Water Use:       A minimum of at least 25% below the average household use of the region 

The energy and water efficiency strategies for compliance are documents separately below. 



1373 Forest Park Circle, Suite 203 US-EcoLogic, Inc. 911 Maryland Drive 
Lafayette, CO 80021 www.usecologic.com Irving, TX 75061 
(972) 579-2073 (972) 579-2009 
Western Division General Office

II. Energy Efficiency 

1. Regulatory Framework 

The Public Resources Code (PRC) Division 13, Chapter 4.2 Environmental Quality, Section 
21155.1 – Implementation of the Sustainable Communities Strategy Section 21155.5 (a)(8) 
requires that a Sustainable Communities Strategy Project be as least 15 percent more 
efficient than the baseline required by the California Energy Code Title 24, Part 6. 

Title 24 of the California Code of Regulations, also known as the California Building 
Standards Code or just “Title 24”, contains the regulations that govern the construction of 
buildings in the state of California. Part 6 of Title 24 of the California Code of Regulations 
provides the requirements to comply with California Energy Code. 

Title 24, Part 6 provides two paths for code compliance: 

1. Prescriptive Method: Projects must implement individual requirements as 
presented in Title 24, Part 6. Compliance requires verifying that each singular 
aspect meets the minimum or does not exceed the maximum level as 
prescribed by Title 24, Part 6.  

2. Performance Method: Projects must use energy modeling software approved by 
the California Energy Commission to demonstrate that said project meets the 
required level of energy performance by analyzing energy trade-offs. The energy 
consumption of the entire building is calculated at once and this calculation is 
utilized to find the most cost-effective method of satisfying Title 24, Part 6. 

The performance method will be utilized to allow the City of Los Angeles’ Department of 
Building and Safety to confirm compliance with the PRC subsection (a)(8) which requires 15 
percent more efficient than the Title 24, Part 6. 

The following sections provide greater detail into the energy modeling process, the 
necessary design measures and the resulting building’s energy performance 

2. Energy Modeling Process 

Preliminary whole building energy modeling will be conducted to determine the anticipated 
energy performance as per Title 24, Part 6 (If unable to achieve at least 15 percent above 
Title 24, Part 6 then the building will be modeled separately for residential and non-
residential spaces, respectively). Energy modeling will be done utilizing software approved 
by the California Energy Commission. A proposed design/building will be generated and 
compared to baseline design/building as set forth in the 2016 version of Title 24, Part 6.  



1373 Forest Park Circle, Suite 203 US-EcoLogic, Inc. 911 Maryland Drive 
Lafayette, CO 80021 www.usecologic.com Irving, TX 75061 
(972) 579-2073 (972) 579-2009 
Western Division General Office

Baseline Design

The software program will automatically generate a baseline design that is compliant to the 
specified version of Title 24, Part 6; in this case 2016. The following parameters are included 
in the baseline design/building: 

Same physical shape and size as proposed design/building 
Same occupancy schedules and zoning as the proposed design/building 
Prescriptive assembly and glazing values based on climate zone; U-factors and solar 
heat gain coefficients (SHGC) 
Prescriptive lighting allowance based on occupancy or task 
Mandatory ventilation rates by occupancy 
Appropriate mechanical systems 
Appropriate mechanical system sizing for heating and cooling loads 

The results are measured as Time Dependent Valuation (TDV) Energy, which accounts for 
the energy used at the building site, the energy consumed during the energy production and 
the delivery of energy to the site. The TDV Energy is calculated by multiplying the site energy 
use for each energy type by the applicable TDV multiplier. The TDV multipliers vary for each 
hour of the year and by energy type, climate zone and the type of building. 

3. Energy Model Input 

The following features of the Project are considered for the energy model: 

Site and Climate 

       The project is located at 4649 MaubertAvenue in Los Angeles, California 

Longitude 118.3° W 
Latitude 34.1° N 
Climate Zone CA 9 

Weather File USA_CA_Burbank-Glendale-LOS-ANGELES-
DOWNTOWN_722874_CZ2010.epw 

Summer Design DB/WB 99° / 69° F (0.1%) 
Winter Median of Extremes 38° F 

Architecture and Form

The building is will consist of a podium design, with the first three levels being concrete and 
steel framing, and the upper five levels to be wood framed residential. The window system 



1373 Forest Park Circle, Suite 203 US-EcoLogic, Inc. 911 Maryland Drive 
Lafayette, CO 80021 www.usecologic.com Irving, TX 75061 
(972) 579-2073 (972) 579-2009 
Western Division General Office

will be a thermally broken glazed system. Vehicular and bicycle parking is included on the 
first two levels. The building is entirely above grade with no subsurface structure. The first 
two levels consist of leasing and amenity spaces with some circulation totaling 
approximately 4,463sf at the first level and 6,461sf for the second level. The third floor, 
which is the start of residential levels, is approximately 22,254sf while levels 4 to 7 are 
approximately 22,287sf each; and lastly the 8th floor is approximately 21,311sf. 

Opaque Assemblies

The opaque assemblies consist of the roof, wall and floor assemblies that enclose the 
conditioned spaces in the Project, protecting it external environment. The Title 24 
prescriptive thermal envelope performance requirements are the design baseline values. 
The assemblies to be used in the energy simulation model of the proposed design are 
described in the table below:  

7 Roof 
2x10 Wood Framed 
U-0.036 (R-30) 

6 Levels 4-8 Exterior Walls 
2x6 Wood Framed 
U-0.069 (R-21) 

5 Level 4-8 Residential Windows 
U-Factor: 0.32 
SHGC: 0.25 
Visible transmittance: 0.3 

4 Level 3 Concrete Floor 
14" Concrete Post-Tensioned Slab 
U-0.269 

3 Levels 1-3 Exterior Walls  
5.5" Metal Framed 
U-0.151 (R-21) 

2 Level 1 & 2 Storefront Glazing 
U-Factor: 0.30 
SHGC: 0.26 
Visible transmittance: 0.5 

1 Level 1 & 2 Unconditioned Parking Garage  
12" Concrete Walls 



1373 Forest Park Circle, Suite 203 US-EcoLogic, Inc. 911 Maryland Drive 
Lafayette, CO 80021 www.usecologic.com Irving, TX 75061 
(972) 579-2073 (972) 579-2009 
Western Division General Office

Characteristics of the HVAC and DHW Systems 

To comply with the Title 24 standard, the proposed design’s total Time Dependent Valuation 
(TDV) energy usage shall be equal or less that the Title 24’s baseline design total TDV energy 
usage. The energy model will reflect the TDV energy and end uses for the following 
categories: 

Heating – Annual TDV energy used for space heating. 
Cooling – Annual TDV energy used for space cooling. 
Lighting – Annual TDV energy used in process lighting input within the program 
Receptacle – Annual TDV energy used to meet receptacle (ie. Equipment) load.  

This value is fixed for compliance by occupancy. 
Fans – Annual TDV energy used for fans moving air that has been conditioned. 
Pumps – Annual TDV energy used for pumps for hot water. 
Process – Annual TDV energy used in process loads input within the program. 
Service Water Heating (DHW) – Annual TDV energy used for domestic (service) 

 hot water. 

4. Energy Efficiency Measures 

The following performance features will help improve the proposed design’s energy 
efficiency: 

Building Envelope

High-performance insulation – The Project will look to utilize high density fiberglass 
batt insulation to help reduce heating and cooling loads while helping cut down on 
the sound transmission on the exterior. We plan to look at options to allow for 
trade-offs with these assemblies to prevent the need for continuous insulation if 
possible. 
High-performance window systems – The Project will utilize a thermally broken, 
double glazed window system with low-emissivity coatings (ie. LoE). These coatings 
provide reduced cooling demands in the summer and heating demands in the 
winter. 

Lighting

High-efficacy, LED lamps utilized for amenities, offices, garage and other common 
areas – The Project plans to use high-efficacy LED fixtures. These high-efficacy 
fixtures provide higher lumen (light) output per watt (electric) input than other 
lamps like incandescent or fluorescent. 
Daylighting controls for amenities, offices and other common area lighting 
adjacent to windows – The Project will utilize daylighting controls at spaces 



1373 Forest Park Circle, Suite 203 US-EcoLogic, Inc. 911 Maryland Drive 
Lafayette, CO 80021 www.usecologic.com Irving, TX 75061 
(972) 579-2073 (972) 579-2009 
Western Division General Office

adjacent to windows. Daylight harvest controls are controls that sense the amount of 
natural light entering a space and automatically dims the lights. This provide energy 
savings while maintaining acceptable lighting levels. 
Occupancy controls with dimming for amenity, leasing/lobby and other common 
spaces – Occupancy controls sense when spaces have been vacant for a set period and 
automatically turn off lighting, saving energy as compared to leasing them on 
full time. Occupancy controls will be provided in the garage and all corridors, stairwells 
and bathrooms.  
Dimming controls for all lighting in offices, community rooms and common areas – The 
Project will provide dimming controls in the aforementioned areas to meet the multi-
level lighting requirements. All lighting to be controlled by a dimming or stepping 
system capable of automatically reducing the total building lighting power by 15% 

HVAC  

High-efficiency split system air-source heat pumps ranging for 15.25 to 16 SEER and 
8.5 to 9 HSPF for heating, ventilation and air-conditioning (HVAC) – Air-source heat 
pumps use two coils, one indoor and one outdoor that allow the reversal of refrigerant 
flow depending on the cycle. In heating mode, the heat is pull out of the air outside and 
transferred to the interior coil to be blown over by the fan blower to heat the unit; in 
cooling mode, the heat is pulled out of the indoor air as it passes over the coil and 
transferred to the outdoor coil to dissipate.  SEER is the ratio of BTUs per hour of heat 
removed per watt-hour of electricity used at a given operating point. Similar to SEER, 
HSPF is the ratio of BTUs delivered to a space per watt-hour of electricity it uses at a 
given operating point. The Project plans to utilize these equipment selections as they 
are above the Title 24 baseline values for SEER of 14 and HSPF of 8.2. This equipment 
will provide the same amount of heating and cooling as calculated but more efficiently 
thereby reducing the electricity needs. 

Domestic Water Heating 

Centralized hot water system – Large centralized hot water systems use more efficient 
equipment than individual water heating systems within the dwelling units. The Project 
plans to utilize 2 gas fire boilers that each carry a 97% thermal efficiency as compared to 
the standard 82% efficient centralized water heating system. The water heating system 
will have a recirculation controls to keep the water in the lines hot, reducing hot water 
wait time and water waste. This type of centralized hot water system makes it easier to 
incorporate renewable energy systems like solar hot water as well. 
High-efficiency water fixtures – The City of Los Angeles’ Green Building Code already 
specifies fixture flow rates more stringent that the standard Title 24, Part 11 CALGreen 
code which will inherently allow the Project to use less hot water. This factors into the 



1373 Forest Park Circle, Suite 203 US-EcoLogic, Inc. 911 Maryland Drive 
Lafayette, CO 80021 www.usecologic.com Irving, TX 75061 
(972) 579-2073 (972) 579-2009 
Western Division General Office

overall reduced energy consumption as well. Table 1 below compares the maximum 
allowable flow rates between the two green codes.

Table 1. Maximum Allowable Flow Rates 2017 Los Angeles Green Building Code vs Title 24, Part 11 – 
CALGreen 2016 

Fixture Type 
Maximum Allowable Flowrates per 

2017 Los Angeles 
Green Building Code 

Title 24, Part 11  
CALGreen 2016 

Showerheads 1.8 gpm @ 80 psi 2.0 gpm @ 80 psi 
Lav Faucet, Residential 1.2 gpm @ 60 psi 1.2 gpm @ 60 psi 
Lav Faucet, Non-Residential 0.4 gpm @ 60 psi 0.5 gpm @ 60 psi 
Kitchen Faucets 1.5 gpm @ 60 psi 1.8 gpm @ 60 psi 
Metering Faucets 0.2 gallons per cycle 0.25 gallons per cycle 
Water Closets 

1.28 gallons per flush 1.28 gallons per flush Gravity Tank 
Flushometer Tank 
Flushometer Valve 

Urinals 0.125 gallons per flush 0.125 gallons per flush 
Clothes Washers ENERGYSTAR Rated ENERGYSTAR Rated 
Dishwashers ENERGYSTAR Rated ENERGYSTAR Rated 



1373 Forest Park Circle, Suite 203 US-EcoLogic, Inc. 911 Maryland Drive 
Lafayette, CO 80021 www.usecologic.com Irving, TX 75061 
(972) 579-2073 (972) 579-2009 
Western Division General Office

Table 2 below gives detailed information of what is estimated for the proposed Project design as 
compared to the baseline design values. These values factor into the energy model to provide 
comparative TDV energy values. 

2016 Code - Title 24, Part 6 
Program Participation Climate Zone: CA 9 
Location: Los Angeles, California 

Building Envelope Title 24 - 2016 Baseline Proposed Design 

  Glazing Percentage 
  (Residential Level 3-8) 40% 30-35% 

  Glazing Percentage 
  (Non-Res Levels 1-2) 40% <20% 

Fenestration NFRC Values. 
(U-Factor/SHGC/VT) 

Title 24 - 2016 Baseline Proposed Design

  Windows (Levels 3-8) 0.30 / 0.23 / 0.5 0.32 / 0.25 / 0.3 
  Windows (Levels 1 & 2) 0.30 / 0.25 / 0.4 0.30 / 0.26 / 0.5 
Insulation Values Title 24 - 2016 Baseline Proposed Design 
  Exterior walls - Level 4-8 U-0.110 R-21 (U-0.069) 
  Exterior walls - Level 3 & 4 U-0.151 R-21 (U-0.151) 
  Exterior walls - Level 1 -3 U-0.151 R-21 (U-0.151) 
  Roof - Wood Framed 2x10 U-0.075 R-30 (U-0.036) 
HVAC Efficiencies Title 24 - 2016 Baseline Proposed Design 
  SEER 14 SEER 15.25-16 SEER 
  HSPF 8.2 HSPF 8.5-9 HSPF 
  Duct Insulation R-4.2 R-8 / R-6 
  Ventilation Fan (ASHRAE 62.2) Yes Yes 
Domestic Hot Water Heating Title 24 - 2016 Baseline Proposed Design 
  Fuel Type Natural Gas Natural Gas 
  Input Rating (btu/hour) 1,000,000 / each - 
  Tank Size  1,160 gal - 
  Type Central Water Heater Central Water Heater 
  Efficiency 82% 97% 



1373 Forest Park Circle, Suite 203 US-EcoLogic, Inc. 911 Maryland Drive 
Lafayette, CO 80021 www.usecologic.com Irving, TX 75061 
(972) 579-2073 (972) 579-2009 
Western Division General Office

5. Energy Model Target 

Based on the values in the energy model, the Energy Use Intensity (EUI) of the proposed 
deign is calculated and compared to the baseline in Table 3 below. The results show that the 
Project has a targeted savings of at least 15% savings over the Title 24 baseline when 
comparing it to the Project’s EUI TDV. 

The performance estimates are intended to be used for relative comparisons between the 
proposed design and the Title 24 baseline model. There are many different energy efficiency 
options that can achieve the required 15% savings as required by the Public Resources Code, 
Section 21155.1 (a)(8). 

Table 3. Energy Use Intensity (EUI) for Each Model by End-Use 

Energy End-Use Notes Proposed 
(TDV)* 

Baseline
(TDV)* 

Margin
(TDV)* 

  Space Heating 2 0.64 0.85 0.21 
  Space Cooling 2 24.83 23.39 -1.44 
  Indoor Fans 2 4.71 14.51 9.80 
  Heat Rejection - 1.47 1.40 -0.07 
  Pumps & Misc. 2 3.18 2.24 -0.94 
  Domestic Hot Water 3 5.88 7.28 1.40 
  Interior Lighting 1 7.92 9.52 1.60 
  Receptacle - 9.1 9.1 0 
  Total 68.31 81.06 10.56 
  Savings 4 15.46% 

Notes: 
1. Corresponds to “lighting” energy category in T24 Energy Efficiency Measures Section 
2. Corresponds to “building envelope” and “HVAC system” energy categories 
3. Corresponds to “domestic water heating” energy category 
4. Percent savings determined by dividing total Margin by total baseline energy 

*  These values are preliminary and will be updated as more details are finalized for the project.   



1373 Forest Park Circle, Suite 203 US-EcoLogic, Inc. 911 Maryland Drive 
Lafayette, CO 80021 www.usecologic.com Irving, TX 75061 
(972) 579-2073 (972) 579-2009 
Western Division General Office

III. Water Efficiency 

1. Regulatory Framework

The Public Resources Code (PRC) Division 13, Chapter 4.2 Environmental Quality, Section 
21155.1 – Implementation of the Sustainable Communities Strategy Section 21155.5 (a)(8) 
requires that each Sustainable Communities Strategy Project achieve a 25 percent water use 
reduction as compared to the average household usage in the region. 

The Project will be required to comply with the City of Los Angeles’ Landscape Ordinance No. 
170,978 and No. 180,822; which imposes numerous water conservation measures. It will also 
comply with the 2017 Los Angeles Green Building Standards Code which contains more stringent 
standards for water use efficiency than the Title 24, Part 11 – 2016 California Green Building 
Standards Code. Table 1 in the previous section displays the comparison of maximum allowable 
fixture flow rates between the two building codes. 

According to the Metropolitan Water District’s Water Tomorrow Annual Report to the California 
State Legislature, Covering Fiscal Year 2017/2018 (Page 17), the average regional Gallons per 
Capita Per Day Usage is 135 gallons. 
(http://www.mwdh2o.com/PDF_About_Your_Water/3.1_1.2_Regional_Progress_Report.pdf) 
[Accessed 05/14/2019] 

The Los Angeles average household size is 2.9 as per the SCAG Profile of the City of Los Angeles – 
Local Profiles Report 2019 (Page 3). Therefore, the average Los Angeles residence water use per 
day is 391.5 gallons (135 gallons x 2.9 people). 

2. Water Efficient Features of the Project 

The following are some of the water efficient features of the project as based off the applicable 
California Green Building Standards Code and the City of los Angeles’ Building Code 
Requirements: 

High-efficiency toilets with a flush volume of 1.28 gallons of water per flush or less 
Showerheads with a flowrate of 1.8 gallons per minute or less 
Residential lavatory faucets with a flow rate of 1.5 gallons per minute or less 
Amenity/Commercial space lavatory faucets with a flow rate of 0.5 gallons per minute 
or less. 
Kitchen faucets with a flow rate of 1.5 gallons per minute or less (Residential/Amenity) 
High-efficiency clothes washers that are ENERGYSTAR rated 
High-efficiency dishwashers that are ENERGYSTAR rated 
High-efficiency urinals with 0.125 gallons of water per flush or less 
High-efficiency domestic hot water heating system with 97% Boilers 
Water-saving pool filter 
Pool recirculating filtration equipment 
Pool splash troughs around perimeter that drain back into the pool 



1373 Forest Park Circle, Suite 203 US-EcoLogic, Inc. 911 Maryland Drive 
Lafayette, CO 80021 www.usecologic.com Irving, TX 75061 
(972) 579-2073 (972) 579-2009 
Western Division General Office

Meter on the pool make-up line leak detection system for swimming pools and spas 
Drip/Subsurface Irrigation (No aerosol spray) 
Proper hydro-zoning (grouping of plantings with similar watering needs) 
Zoned irrigation 
Drought Tolerant Plants 
Stormwater to be captured in underground cistern to be reused for irrigation 
Future alternative waste piping for clothes washers, bathtubs, showers and 
bathroom/restroom sinks grey water diversion to cistern for reuse in irrigation 

3. Water Use Calculation

The following table shows the estimated water usage of the Project taking into account detailed 
project information including quantity, type of fixtures, occupant use, irrigation demand and 
water usage in amenity and common spaces. 

Residential water use is based on the calculation that 153 dwelling units would result in an 
estimated 373 occupants, resulting in a rate of 2.9 occupants per dwelling unit per the SCAG 
Profile of the City of Los Angeles – Local Profiles Report 2019. The amenity and common areas 
are based fixture and occupant count as per Sec. 422, Chapter 4 of the California Plumbing 
Code. The irrigation demand was calculated by the landscape architect per California Water 
Efficient Landscape Ordinance. The water use calculations of the pool and water features were 
estimates will be verified by a pool consultant once on-board. 

Table 4. Title 24, Part 11 CALGreen Whole Building Water Use Calculation 

RESIDENTIAL WATER USE 

  Fixture Type Flow Rate1

(gpm/gpf) 

Duration
 (min or 

# of 
flush) 

Daily 
Uses2 Occupants3 Proposed  

Gallons per Day 

  Showerheads 1.5 x 8 x 1 x 373 =            4,476.00  
  Lavatory faucets 1.0 x 0.25 x 3 x 373 =                279.75  
  Kitchen faucets 1.5 x 4 x 1 x 373 =            2,238.00  
  Water Closets  1.28 x 1 x 3 x 373 =            1,432.32  
  Clothes Washer(gal/person-day)4 5.08 x 373 =            1,894.84  
  Dishwasher (gal/person-day)5 0.38 x 373 =                141.74  
  Residential Total          10,462.65  



1373 Forest Park Circle, Suite 203 US-EcoLogic, Inc. 911 Maryland Drive 
Lafayette, CO 80021 www.usecologic.com Irving, TX 75061 
(972) 579-2073 (972) 579-2009 
Western Division General Office

LEASING / LOBBY / AMENITY WATER USE 

  Fixture Type Flow Rate1

(gpm/gpf) 

Duration
 (min or 

# of 
flush) 

Daily 
Uses2 Occupants3 Proposed  

Gallons per Day 

  Lavatory faucets 0.5 x 0.25 x 3 x 188 =                  70.50  
  Water Closets  0.80 x 1 x 3 x 188 =                451.20  
  Showerheads 0 x 5 x 1 x 0 =                         -    
  Leasing / Lobby / Amenity Total                521.70  

IRRIGATION / POOL / GARAGE WATER USE 

Location Proposed 
Gallons per Day 

  Pool7,7a                445.00 
  Irrigation8                317.00 
  Parking Structure9 51,978 sq. ft.            1,039.56 
  Irrigation / Pool / Garage Water Use 1801.56
  Proposed Design - Total Building Water Usage (GPD)          12,785.91 
  Baseline - Total Building Water Baseline (GPD)          15,052.18 

PERCENT REDUCTION FROM BASELINE –
  TOTAL BUILDING WATER BASELINE (GPD) 15% 

  Proposed Design - Water Use / Household (GPD)10                  83.57 
  Baseline - Water Use / Household (GPD)11                391.50 
  PERCENT REDUCTION FROM BASELINE - WATER USE / HOUSEHOLD (GPD) 79% 

 Notes: 
1. Flow rates are the maximum allowed under the City of Los Angeles Green Building Code (Form 

GRN17). 
2. Daily uses per CALGreen Building Standards Code, Chapter 8 – Compliance Forms, Worksheets and 

Reference Material. 
3. For residential water use occupancy based on 153 dwelling units x 2.9 occupants per household. For 

the amenity/common spaces, occupancy is based of load factors per CPC Section 422.0, Table A. 
4. Clothes washers in each unit. Los Angeles Green Building Code requires ENERGYSTAR rated unit. 

Typical ENERGYSTAR unit = 3.2 IWF (Integrated Water Factor) = 5.08 gallons per person per day. 
5. Dishwashers assumed in each unit. Los Angeles Green Building Code Requires ENERGTSTAR rated 

units. Typical ENERGYSTAR unit = 3.5 GPC 9Gallons Per Cycle) = 0.38 gallons per person per day. 
6. Pool surface estimated to be approx. 953.48SF. Approx. ¾” water loss per day (splash and 

evaporation), or 446 gallons to be made up per day. 
a. Based on draining half the pool every five years. Pool capacity is estimated to be around 

26,816 gallons. (26,816 gallons / 0.5) / 5 year = 2,682 gallons per year or about 7 gallons a 
day. 

7. Irrigation usage will be based on the Maximum Applied Water Allowance from the California Water 
Model Efficiency Landscape Ordinance. 62,883 gallons per year (317.22 gallons per day in June.) 

8. Based on the City of Los Angeles Department of Public Works – Bureau of Sanitation Sewer 
Generation Rates (0.02 gallons per sq. ft.) 



1373 Forest Park Circle, Suite 203 US-EcoLogic, Inc. 911 Maryland Drive 
Lafayette, CO 80021 www.usecologic.com Irving, TX 75061 
(972) 579-2073 (972) 579-2009 
Western Division General Office

9. Based on the Project’s estimated water usage per day of 12,137.8 gallons, with 153 dwelling units; a 
household yields a water usage of 79.33 gallons per day (12,137.8 gallons / . 

10. Based on the regional average for Los Angeles residence water demand per day of 391.5 gallons (135 
gallons x 2.9 people). The Project has 153 residential dwelling units. 

4. Water Usage

It is estimated that the Project will use on average 12,786 gallons per day of water. With 153 
residential dwelling units, the household water usage is approximately 83.57 gallons per day, as 
compared to the baseline calculation of 391.5 gallons per day. 

In conclusion, the Project is designed to achieve at least 79 percent less water usage than the 
average household in the region. 

These calculations are used to show a relative comparison between the Project and the regional 
average household water use. There are a range of water efficiency measures that will attribute 
to the required reduction. The final combination of water efficient features is best selected 
during the final design stages of the Project, when other options are also up for consideration 
that may not be available early on. 



 

Appendix I 

Air Quality Technical Report  



  Air Quality Technical Report 

4649 Maubert Avenue Project  City of Los Angeles 
DKA Planning  May 2019 

Page 1

Air Quality Technical Report 

1. Introduction  
This analysis addresses the air emissions generated by construction and operation of the 
Project. The analysis also evaluates the consistency of the Project with the air quality policies 
set forth within the South Coast Air Quality Management District’s (SCQMD) Air Quality 
Management Plan (AQMP) and the City of Los Angeles (City) General Plan. The analysis of 
Project-generated air emissions focuses on whether the Project would cause an exceedance of 
an ambient air quality standard or SCAQMD significance threshold. Calculation worksheets, 
assumptions, and model outputs used in the analysis are attached to this technical report. 

2. Environmental Setting 
a) Regulatory Framework 

(1) Federal 

(a) Clean Air Act 

The Federal Clean Air Act (CAA) was first enacted in 1955 and has been amended numerous 
times in subsequent years, with the most recent amendments in 1990. At the federal level, the 
United States Environmental Protection Agency (USEPA) is responsible for implementation of 
some portions of the CAA (e.g., certain mobile source and other requirements). Other portions 
of the CAA (e.g., stationary source requirements) are implemented by state and local agencies. 
In California, the CCAA is administered by the California Air Resources Board (CARB) at the 
state level and by the air quality management districts and air pollution control districts at the 
regional and local levels.  

The 1990 amendments to the CAA identify specific emission reduction goals for areas not 
meeting the National Ambient Air Quality Standard (NAAQS). These amendments require both 
a demonstration of reasonable further progress toward attainment and incorporation of 
additional sanctions for failure to attain or to meet interim milestones. The sections of the CAA 
which are most applicable to the Project include Title I (Nonattainment Provisions) and Title II 
(Mobile Source Provisions).  

NAAQS have been established for seven major air pollutants: CO (carbon monoxide), NO2 

(nitrogen dioxide), O3 (ozone), PM2.5 (particulate matter, 2.5 microns), PM10 (particulate matter, 
10 microns), SO2 (sulfur dioxide), and Pb (lead). 

The CAA requires USEPA to designate areas as attainment, nonattainment, or maintenance 
(previously nonattainment and currently attainment) for each criteria pollutant based on whether 



  Air Quality Technical Report 

4649 Maubert Avenue Project  City of Los Angeles 
DKA Planning  May 2019 

Page 2

the NAAQS have been achieved. Title I provisions are implemented for the purpose of attaining 
NAAQS. The federal standards are summarized in Table 1. USEPA has classified the Los 
Angeles County portion of the South Coast Air Basin (Basin) as a nonattainment area for O3, 
PM2.5, and Pb. 

Table 1  
State and National Ambient Air Quality Standards and Attainment Status for LA County 

Pollutant Averaging Period 
California Federal 

Standards Attainment Status Standards Attainment Status 

Ozone (O3) 
1-hour 0.09 ppm (180 

µg/m3) Non-attainment -- -- 

8-hour 0.070 ppm (137 
µg/m3) N/A1 0.070 ppm (137 

µg/m3) Non-attainment 

 

Respirable Particulate 
Matter (PM10) 

24-hour 50 µg/m3 Non-attainment 150 µg/m3 Maintenance 
Annual Arithmetic 

Mean 20 µg/m3 Non-attainment -- -- 

 

Fine Particulate Matter 
(PM2.5) 

24-hour -- -- 35 µg/m3 Non-attainment 
Annual Arithmetic 

Mean 12 µg/m3 Non-attainment 12 µg/m3 Non-attainment 

 

Carbon Monoxide (CO) 

1-hour 20 ppm 
(23 mg/m3) Attainment 35 ppm 

(40 mg/m3) Maintenance 

8-hour 9.0 ppm 
(10 mg/m3) Attainment 9 ppm 

(10 mg/m3) Maintenance 

 

Nitrogen Dioxide (NO2) 

1-hour 0.18 ppm 
(338 µg/m3) Attainment 100 ppb 

(188 µg/m3) Maintenance  

Annual Arithmetic 
Mean 

0.030 ppm 
(57 µg/m3) Attainment 53 ppb 

(100 µg/m3) Maintenance 

 

Sulfur Dioxide (SO2) 

1-hour 0.25 ppm 
(655 µg/m3) Attainment 75 ppb 

(196 µg/m3) Attainment 

24-hour 0.04 ppm 
(105 µg/m3) Attainment -- -- 

 

Lead (Pb) 30-day average 1.5 µg/m3 Attainment -- -- 
Calendar Quarter -- -- 0.15 µg/m3 Non-attainment 

 

Visibility Reducing 
Particles 8-hour 

Extinction of 
0.07 per 
kilometer 

N/A No Federal Standards 

 

Sulfates 24-hour 25 µg/m3 Attainment No Federal Standards 

 
Hydrogen Sulfide 

(H2S) 1-hour 0.03 ppm 
(42 µg/m3) Unclassified No Federal Standards 

 

Vinyl Chloride 24-hour 0.01 ppm 
(26 µg/m3) N/A No Federal Standards 

1N/A = not available 
Source: CARB, Ambient Air Quality Standards, and attainment status, 2018 (www.arb.ca.gov/desig/adm/adm.htm). 
 

CAA Title II pertains to mobile sources, such as cars, trucks, buses, and planes. Reformulated 
gasoline and automobile pollution control devices are examples of the mechanisms the USEPA 



  Air Quality Technical Report 

4649 Maubert Avenue Project  City of Los Angeles 
DKA Planning  May 2019 

Page 3

uses to regulate mobile air emission sources. The provisions of Title II have resulted in tailpipe 
emission standards for vehicles, which have been strengthened in recent years to improve air 
quality. For example, the standards for NOX emissions have been lowered substantially and the 
specification requirements for cleaner burning gasoline are more stringent. 

The USEPA regulates emission sources that are under the exclusive authority of the federal 
government, such as aircraft, ships, and certain types of locomotives. USEPA has jurisdiction 
over emission sources outside state waters (e.g., beyond the outer continental shelf) and 
establishes various emission standards, including those for vehicles sold in states other than 
California. Automobiles sold in California must meet stricter emission standards established by 
CARB. USEPA adopted multiple tiers of emission standards to reduce emissions from non-road 
diesel engines (e.g., diesel-powered construction equipment) by integrating engine and fuel 
controls as a system to gain the greatest emission reductions. The first federal standards (Tier 
1) for new non-road (or off-road) diesel engines were adopted in 1994 for engines over 50 
horsepower, to be phased-in from 1996 to 2000. On August 27, 1998, USEPA introduced Tier 1 
standards for equipment under 37 kW (50 horsepower) and increasingly more stringent Tier 2 
and Tier 3 standards for all equipment with phase-in schedules from 2000 to 2008. The Tier 1 
through 3 standards were met through advanced engine design, with no or only limited use of 
exhaust gas after-treatment (oxidation catalysts). Tier 3 standards for NOX and hydrocarbon are 
similar in stringency to the 2004 standards for highway engines. However, Tier 3 standards for 
particulate matter were never adopted. On May 11, 2004, USEPA signed the final rule 
introducing Tier 4 emission standards, which were phased-in between 2008 and 2015. The Tier 
4 standards require that emissions of particulate matter and NOX be further reduced by about 90 
percent. Such emission reductions are achieved through the use of control technologies—
including advanced exhaust gas after-treatment. 

(2) State 

(a) California Clean Air Act 

In addition to being subject to the requirements of CAA, air quality in California is also governed 
by more stringent regulations under the California Clean Air Act (CCAA). In California, CCAA is 
administered by CARB at the state level and by the air quality management districts and air 
pollution control districts at the regional and local levels. CARB, which became part of the 
California Environmental Protection Agency in 1991, is responsible for meeting the state 
requirements of the CAA, administering the CCAA, and establishing the California Ambient Air 
Quality Standards (CAAQS). The CCAA, as amended in 1992, requires all air districts in the 
State to endeavor to achieve and maintain the CAAQS. CAAQS are generally more stringent 
than the corresponding federal standards and incorporate additional standards for sulfates, 
hydrogen sulfide, vinyl chloride, and visibility-reducing particles.  

CARB regulates mobile air pollution sources, such as motor vehicles. CARB is responsible for 
setting emission standards for vehicles sold in California and for other emission sources, such 
as consumer products and certain off-road equipment. CARB established passenger vehicle 
fuel specifications in March 1996. CARB oversees the functions of local air pollution control 



  Air Quality Technical Report 

4649 Maubert Avenue Project  City of Los Angeles 
DKA Planning  May 2019 

Page 4

districts and air quality management districts, which, in turn, administer air quality activities at 
the regional and county levels. The State standards are summarized in Table 1. 

The CCAA requires CARB to designate areas within California as either attainment or 
nonattainment for each criteria pollutant based on whether the CAAQS thresholds have been 
achieved. Under the CCAA, areas are designated as nonattainment for a pollutant if air quality 
data shows that a state standard for the pollutant was violated at least once during the previous 
three calendar years. Exceedances that are affected by highly irregular or infrequent events are 
not considered violations of a state standard and are not used as a basis for designating areas 
as nonattainment. Under the CCAA, the non-desert Los Angeles County portion of the Basin is 
designated as a nonattainment area for O3, PM10, and PM2.5.  

(b) Toxic Air Contaminant Identification and Control Act 

The public’s exposure to toxic air contaminants (TACs) is a significant public health issue in 
California. CARB’s statewide comprehensive air toxics program was established in the early 
1980s. The Toxic Air Contaminant Identification and Control Act created California's program to 
reduce exposure to air toxics. Under the Toxic Air Contaminant Identification and Control Act, 
CARB is required to use certain criteria in the prioritization for the identification and control of air 
toxics. In selecting substances for review, CARB must consider criteria relating to "the risk of 
harm to public health, amount or potential amount of emissions, manner of, and exposure to, 
usage of the substance in California, persistence in the atmosphere, and ambient 
concentrations in the community" [Health and Safety Code Section 39666(f)].  

The Toxic Air Contaminant Identification and Control Act also requires CARB to use available 
information gathered from the Air Toxics "Hot Spots" Information and Assessment Act program 
to include in the prioritization of compounds. CARB identified particulate emissions from diesel-
fueled engines (diesel PM) TACs in August 1998. Following the identification process, CARB 
was required by law to determine if there is a need for further control, which led to the risk 
management phase of the program. For the risk management phase, CARB formed the Diesel 
Advisory Committee to assist in the development of a risk management guidance document and 
a risk reduction plan. With the assistance of the Diesel Advisory Committee and its 
subcommittees, CARB developed the Risk Reduction Plan to Reduce Particulate Matter 
Emissions from Diesel-Fueled Engines and Vehicles and the Risk Management Guidance for 
the Permitting of New Stationary Diesel-Fueled Engines. The Board approved these documents 
on September 28, 2000, paving the way for the next step in the regulatory process: the control 
measure phase. During the control measure phase, specific Statewide regulations designed to 
further reduce diesel PM emissions from diesel-fueled engines and vehicles have and continue 
to be evaluated and developed. The goal of each regulation is to make diesel engines as clean 
as possible by establishing state-of-the-art technology requirements or emission standards to 
reduce diesel PM emissions. Breathing H2S at levels above the state standard could result in 
exposure to a disagreeable rotten eggs odor. The State does not regulate other odors.  

(c) California Air Toxics Program 



  Air Quality Technical Report 

4649 Maubert Avenue Project  City of Los Angeles 
DKA Planning  May 2019 

Page 5

The California Air Toxics Program was established in 1983, when the California Legislature 
adopted Assembly Bill (AB) 1807 to establish a two-step process of risk identification and risk 
management to address potential health effects from exposure to toxic substances in the air.1 In 
the risk identification step, CARB and the Office of Environmental Health Hazard Assessment 
(OEHHA) determine if a substance should be formally identified, or “listed,” as a TAC in 
California. Since inception of the program, a number of such substances have been listed, 
including benzene, chloroform, formaldehyde, and particulate emissions from diesel-fueled 
engines, among others.2 In 1993, the California Legislature amended the program to identify the 
189 federal hazardous air pollutants as TACs. 

In the risk management step, CARB reviews emission sources of an identified TAC to determine 
whether regulatory action is needed to reduce risk. Based on results of that review, CARB has 
promulgated a number of airborne toxic control measures (ATCMs), both for mobile and 
stationary sources. In 2004, CARB adopted an ATCM to limit heavy-duty diesel motor vehicle 
idling in order to reduce public exposure to diesel PM and other TACs. The measure applies to 
diesel-fueled commercial vehicles with gross vehicle weight ratings greater than 10,000 pounds 
that are licensed to operate on highways, regardless of where they are registered. This measure 
does not allow diesel-fueled commercial vehicles to idle for more than 5 minutes at any given 
time. 

In addition to limiting exhaust from idling trucks, CARB adopted regulations on July 26, 2007 for 
off-road diesel construction equipment such as bulldozers, loaders, backhoes, and forklifts, as 
well as many other self-propelled off-road diesel vehicles to reduce emissions by installation of 
diesel particulate filters and encouraging the replacement of older, dirtier engines with newer 
emission-controlled models. Implementation is staggered based on fleet size, with the largest 
operators having begun compliance in 2014.3 

(d) Assembly Bill 2588 Air Toxics “Hot Spots” Program 

The AB 1807 program is supplemented by the AB 2588 Air Toxics “Hot Spots” program, which 
was established by the California Legislature in 1987. Under this program, facilities are required 
to report their air toxics emissions, assess health risks, and notify nearby residents and workers 
of significant risks if present. In 1992, the AB 2588 program was amended by Senate Bill 
(SB) 1731 to require facilities that pose a significant health risk to the community to reduce their 
risk through implementation of a risk management plan. 

(e) Air Quality and Land Use Handbook: A Community Health 
Perspective 

                                                
1 CARB, California Air Toxics Program, www.arb.ca.gov/toxics/toxics.htm, last reviewed by CARB 

September 24, 2015. 
2 CARB, Toxic Air Contaminant Identification List, www.arb.ca.gov/toxics/id/taclist.htm, last reviewed by 

CARB July 18, 2011. 
3 CARB, In-Use Off-Road Diesel-Fueled Fleets Regulation, 

www.arb.ca.gov/msprog/ordiesel/ordiesel.htm, last reviewed by CARB July 28, 2016. 



  Air Quality Technical Report 

4649 Maubert Avenue Project  City of Los Angeles 
DKA Planning  May 2019 

Page 6

The Air Quality and Land Use Handbook: A Community Health Perspective provides important 
air quality information about certain types of facilities (e.g., freeways, refineries, rail yards, ports) 
that should be considered when siting sensitive land uses such as residences.4 CARB provides 
recommended site distances from certain types of facilities when considering siting new 
sensitive land uses. The recommendations are advisory and should not be interpreted as 
defined “buffer zones.” If a project is within the siting distance, CARB recommends further 
analysis. Where possible, CARB recommends a minimum separation between new sensitive 
land uses and existing sources.  

(f) Air Quality and Land Use Handbook  

CARB published the Air Quality and Land Use Handbook (CARB Handbook) on April 28, 2005 
to serve as a general guide for considering health effects associated with siting sensitive 
receptors proximate to sources of TAC emissions. The recommendations are voluntary and do 
not constitute a requirement or mandate for either land use agencies or local air districts. The 
goal of the guidance document is to protect sensitive receptors, such as children, the elderly, 
acutely ill, and chronically ill persons, from exposure to TAC emissions. Some examples of 
CARB’s siting recommendations include the following: (1) avoid siting sensitive receptors within 
500 feet of a freeway, urban road with 100,000 vehicles per day, or rural roads with 50,000 
vehicles per day; (2) avoid siting sensitive receptors within 1,000 feet of a distribution center 
(that accommodates more than 100 trucks per day, more than 40 trucks with operating transport 
refrigeration units per day, or where transport refrigeration unit operations exceed 300 hours per 
week); and (3) avoid siting sensitive receptors within 300 feet of any dry cleaning operation 
using perchloroethylene and within 500 feet of operations with two or more machines. 

(g) California Code of Regulations 

The California Code of Regulations (CCR) is the official compilation and publication of 
regulations adopted, amended or repealed by the state agencies pursuant to the Administrative 
Procedure Act. The CCR includes regulations that pertain to air quality emissions. Specifically, 
Section 2485 in CCR Title 13 states that the idling of all diesel-fueled commercial vehicles 
(weighing over 10,000 pounds) used during construction shall be limited to five minutes at any 
location. In addition, Section 93115 in CCR Title 17 states that operation of any stationary, 
diesel-fueled, compression-ignition engines shall meet specified fuel and fuel additive 
requirements and emission standards. 

(3) Regional 

(a) South Coast Air Quality Management District 

The South Coast Air Quality Management District (SCAQMD) was created in 1977 to coordinate 
air quality planning efforts throughout Southern California. SCAQMD is the agency principally 

                                                
4 CARB, Air Quality and Land Use Handbook, a Community Health Perspective, April 2005. 



  Air Quality Technical Report 

4649 Maubert Avenue Project  City of Los Angeles 
DKA Planning  May 2019 

Page 7

responsible for comprehensive air pollution control in the region. Specifically, SCAQMD is 
responsible for monitoring air quality, as well as planning, implementing, and enforcing 
programs designed to attain and maintain the CAAQS and NAAQS in the district. SCAQMD has 
jurisdiction over an area of 10,743 square miles consisting of Orange County; the non-desert 
portions of Los Angeles, Riverside, and San Bernardino counties; and the Riverside County 
portion of the Salton Sea Air Basin and Mojave Desert Air Basin. The Basin portion of 
SCAQMD’s jurisdiction covers an area of 6,745 square miles. The Basin includes all of Orange 
County and the non-desert portions of Los Angeles (including the Project Area), Riverside, and 
San Bernardino counties. The Basin is bounded by the Pacific Ocean to the west; the San 
Gabriel, San Bernardino and San Jacinto Mountains to the north and east; and the San Diego 
County line to the south. 

Programs that were developed by SCAQMD to attain and maintain the CAAQS and NAAQS 
include air quality rules and regulations that regulate stationary sources, area sources, point 
sources, and certain mobile source emissions. SCAQMD is also responsible for establishing 
stationary source permitting requirements and for ensuring that new, modified, or relocated 
stationary sources do not create net emission increases. All projects in the SCAQMD jurisdiction 
are subject to SCAQMD rules and regulations, including, but not limited to the following:  

• Rule 401 Visible Emissions – This rule prohibits an air discharge that results in a plume that 
is as dark or darker than what is designated as No. 1 Ringelmann Chart by the United 
States Bureau of Mines for an aggregate of three minutes in any one hour.  

• Rule 402 Nuisance – This rule prohibits the discharge of “such quantities of air contaminants 
or other material which cause injury, detriment, nuisance, or annoyance to any considerable 
number of people or the public, or which endanger the comfort, repose, health or safety of 
any such persons or the public, or which cause, or have a natural tendency to cause, injury 
or damage to business or property.” 

• Rule 403 Fugitive Dust – This rule requires that future projects reduce the amount of 
particulate matter entrained in the ambient air as a result of fugitive dust sources by 
requiring actions to prevent, reduce, or mitigate fugitive dust emissions from any active 
operation, open storage pile, or disturbed surface area. 

(b) Air Quality Management Plan  

The 2016 Air Quality Management Plan (AQMP) was adopted in April 2017 and represents the 
most updated regional blueprint for achieving federal air quality standards. The 2016 AQMP 
adapts previously conducted regional air quality analyses to account for the recent unexpected 
drought conditions, and presents a revised approach to demonstrated attainment of the 2006 
24-hour PM2.5 NAAQS for the Basin. Additionally, the 2016 AQMP relied upon a comprehensive 
analysis of emissions, meteorology, atmospheric chemistry, regional growth projections, and the 
impact of existing control measures to evaluate strategies for reducing NOX emissions 
sufficiently to meet the upcoming ozone deadline standards.  

(c) Multiple Air Toxics Exposure Study IV 



  Air Quality Technical Report 

4649 Maubert Avenue Project  City of Los Angeles 
DKA Planning  May 2019 

Page 8

To date, the most comprehensive study on air toxics in the Basin is the Multiple Air Toxics 
Exposure Study IV (MATES-IV). The monitoring program measured more than 30 air pollutants, 
including both gases and particulates. The monitoring study was accompanied by a computer 
modeling study in which the SCAQMD estimated the risk of cancer from breathing toxic air 
pollution throughout the region based on emissions and weather data. MATES-IV found that the 
cancer risk in the region from carcinogenic air pollutants ranges from about 320 to 480 in a 
million, though OEHHA methodologies place average basinwide risk at 897 in a million. About 
90 percent of the risk is attributed to emissions associated with mobile sources, with the 
remainder attributed to toxics emitted from stationary sources, which include large industrial 
operations, such as refineries and metal processing facilities, as well as smaller businesses 
such as gas stations and chrome plating. The results indicate that diesel PM is the major 
contributor to air toxics risk, accounting on average for about 68 percent of total risk.  

(d) Southern California Association of Governments 

SCAG is the regional planning agency for Los Angeles, Orange, Ventura, Riverside, San 
Bernardino, and Imperial Counties, and addresses regional issues relating to transportation, the 
economy, community development and the environment. SCAG coordinates with various air 
quality and transportation stakeholders in Southern California to ensure compliance with the 
federal and state air quality requirements, including the Transportation Conformity Rule and 
other applicable federal, state, and air district laws and regulations. As the federally designated 
Metropolitan Planning Organization (MPO) for the six-county Southern California region, SCAG 
is required by law to ensure that transportation activities “conform” to, and are supportive of, the 
goals of regional and state air quality plans to attain the NAAQS. In addition, SCAG is a co-
producer, with the SCAQMD, of the transportation strategy and transportation control measure 
sections of the AQMP for the Air Basin.  

SCAG adopted the 2016–2040 Regional Transportation Plan/Sustainable Communities Strategy 
on April 7, 2016.5,6 The 2016–2040 RTP/SCS reaffirms the land use policies that were 
incorporated into SCAG’s prior 2012–2035 RTP/SCS. These foundational policies, which guided 
the development of the plan’s land use strategies, include the following: 

• Identify regional strategic areas for infill and investment; 

• Structure the plan on a three-tiered system of centers development;7 

• Develop “Complete Communities”; 

                                                
5  SCAG, Final 2016–2040 RTP/SCS. 
6  CARB, Executive Order G-16-066, SCAG 2016 SCS ARB Acceptance of GHG Quantification 

Determination, June 2016. 
7 Complete language: “Identify strategic centers based on a three-tiered system of existing, planned 

and potential relative to transportation infrastructure. This strategy more effectively integrates land 
use planning and transportation investment.” A more detailed description of these strategies and 
policies can be found on pp. 90–92 of the SCAG 2008 Regional Transportation Plan, adopted in May 
2008. 



  Air Quality Technical Report 

4649 Maubert Avenue Project  City of Los Angeles 
DKA Planning  May 2019 

Page 9

• Develop nodes on a corridor; 

• Plan for additional housing and jobs near transit; 

• Plan for changing demand in types of housing; 

• Continue to protect stable, existing single-family areas; 

• Ensure adequate access to open space and preservation of habitat; and 

• Incorporate local input and feedback on future growth. 

The 2016–2040 RTP/SCS recognizes that transportation investments and future land use 
patterns are inextricably linked, and continued recognition of this close relationship will help the 
region make choices that sustain existing resources and expand efficiency, mobility, and 
accessibility for people across the region. In particular, the 2016–2040 RTP/SCS draws a closer 
connection between where people live and work, and it offers a blueprint for how Southern 
California can grow more sustainably. The 2016–2040 RTP/SCS also includes strategies 
focused on compact infill development and economic growth by building the infrastructure the 
region needs to promote the smooth flow of goods and easier access to jobs, services, 
educational facilities, healthcare and more. 

The 2016–2040 RTP/SCS states that the SCAG region was home to about 18.3 million people 

in 2012 and included approximately 5.9 million homes and 7.4 million jobs.
8
 By 2040, the 

integrated growth forecast projects these figures will increase by 3.8 million people, with nearly 
1.5 million more homes and 2.4 million more jobs. High Quality Transit Areas (HQTAs) will 
account for 3 percent of regional total land but are projected to accommodate 46 percent and 55 

percent of future household and employment growth respectively between 2012 and 2040.
9
 The 

2016–2040 RTP/SCS overall land use pattern reinforces the trend of focusing new housing and 
employment in the region’s HQTAs. HQTAs are a cornerstone of land use planning best 
practice in the SCAG region because they concentrate roadway repair investments, leverage 
transit and active transportation investments, reduce regional life cycle infrastructure costs, 
improve accessibility, create local jobs, and have the potential to improve public health and 
housing affordability. As discussed further below, the Project Site is located within an HQTA. 

(4) Local 

(a) City of Los Angeles General Plan Air Quality Element 

                                                
8  The SCAG 2016–2040 RTP/SCS is based on year 2012 demographic data with growth forecasts developed for 

2020, 2035, and 2040. 
9 Defined by the 2016–2040 RTP/SCS as generally walkable transit villages or corridors located within 0.5 mile of a 

well-serviced transit stop or a transit corridor with 15-minute or less service frequency during peak commute 
hours. 



  Air Quality Technical Report 

4649 Maubert Avenue Project  City of Los Angeles 
DKA Planning  May 2019 

Page 10

The Air Quality Element of the City’s General Plan was adopted on November 24, 1992, and 
sets forth the goals, objectives, and policies, which guide the City in the implementation of its air 
quality improvement programs and strategies. The Air Quality Element acknowledges the 
interrelationships among transportation and land use planning in meeting the City’s mobility and 
air quality goals. 

The Air Quality Element includes six key goals: 

Goal 1: Good air quality in an environment of continued population growth and healthy 
economic structure. 

Goal 2: Less reliance on single-occupant vehicles with fewer commute and non-work 
trips. 

Goal 3: Efficient management of transportation facilities and system infrastructure using 
cost-effective system management and innovative demand management 
techniques. 

Goal 4: Minimize impacts of existing land use patterns and future land use development 
on air quality by addressing the relationship between land use, transportation, 
and air quality. 

Goal 5: Energy efficiency through land use and transportation planning, the use of 
renewable resources and less-polluting fuels and the implementation of 
conservation measures including passive measures such as site orientation and 
tree planting. 

Goal 6: Citizen awareness of the linkages between personal behavior and air pollution 
and participation in efforts to reduce air pollution. 

(b) Clean Up Green Up Ordinance  

The City of Los Angeles adopted a Clean Up Green Up Ordinance (Ordinance Number 
184,245) on April 13, 2016, which among other provisions, includes provisions related to 
ventilation system filter efficiency in mechanically ventilated buildings. This ordinance added 
Sections 95.314.3 and 99.04.504.6 to the Los Angeles Municipal Code (LAMC) and amended 
Section 99.05.504.5.3 to implement building standards and requirements to address cumulative 
health impacts resulting from incompatible land use patterns. 

(c) California Environmental Quality Act 

In accordance with CEQA requirements, the City assesses the air quality impacts of new 
development projects, requires mitigation of potentially significant air quality impacts by 
conditioning discretionary permits, and monitors and enforces implementation of such 
mitigation. The City uses the SCAQMD’s CEQA Air Quality Handbook and SCAQMD’s 
supplemental online guidance/information for the environmental review of plans and 
development proposals within its jurisdiction. 



  Air Quality Technical Report 

4649 Maubert Avenue Project  City of Los Angeles 
DKA Planning  May 2019 

Page 11

(d) Land Use Compatibility 

In November 2012, the Los Angeles City Planning Commission (CPC) issued an advisory notice 
(Zoning Information 2427) regarding the siting of sensitive land uses within 1,000 feet of 
freeways. The CPC deemed 1,000 feet to be a conservative distance to evaluate projects that 
house populations considered to be more at-risk from the negative effects of air pollution 
caused by freeway proximity. The CPC advised that applicants of projects requiring 
discretionary approval, located within 1,000 feet of a freeway and contemplating residential units 
and other sensitive uses (e.g., hospitals, schools, retirement homes, etc.) perform a Health Risk 
Assessment (HRA).  The Project Site is more than 1.05 miles (over 5,500 feet) northeast of the 
Hollywood Freeway (US-101). 

On April 12, 2018, the City updated its guidance on siting land uses near freeways, resulting in 
an updated Advisory Notice effective September 17, 2018 requiring all proposed projects within 
1,000 feet of a freeway adhere to the Citywide Design Guidelines, including those that address 
freeway proximity.  It also recommended that projects consider avoiding location of sensitive 
uses like schools, day care facilities, and senior care centers in such projects, locate open 
space areas as far from the freeway, locate non-habitable uses (e.g., parking structures) 
nearest the freeway, and screen project sites with substantial vegetation and/or a wall barrier.  
Requirements for preparing HRAs were removed. 

b) Existing Conditions 

(1) Pollutants and Effects 

(a) State and Federal Criteria Pollutants 

Air quality is defined by ambient air concentrations of seven specific pollutants identified by the 
USEPA to be of concern with respect to health and welfare of the general public. These specific 
pollutants, known as “criteria air pollutants,” are defined as pollutants for which the federal and 
State governments have established ambient air quality standards, or criteria, for outdoor 
concentrations to protect public health. Criteria air pollutants include carbon monoxide (CO), 
ground-level ozone (O3), nitrogen oxides (NOX), sulfur oxides (SOX), particulate matter ten 
microns or less in diameter (PM10), particulate matter 2.5 microns or less in diameter (PM2.5), 
and lead (Pb). The following descriptions of each criteria air pollutant and their health effects are 
based on information provided by the SCAQMD.10 

Carbon Monoxide (CO). CO is primarily emitted from combustion processes and motor 
vehicles due to incomplete combustion of fuel. Elevated concentrations of CO weaken the 
heart’s contractions and lower the amount of oxygen carried by the blood. It is especially 
dangerous for people with chronic heart disease. Inhalation of CO can cause nausea, dizziness, 
and headaches at moderate concentrations and can be fatal at high concentrations. 

                                                
10  SCAQMD, Final Program Environmental Impact Report for the 2012 AQMP, December 7, 2012. 



  Air Quality Technical Report 

4649 Maubert Avenue Project  City of Los Angeles 
DKA Planning  May 2019 

Page 12

Ozone (O3). O3 is a gas that is formed when volatile organic compounds (VOCs) and nitrogen 
oxides (NOX)—both byproducts of internal combustion engine exhaust—undergo slow 
photochemical reactions in the presence of sunlight. O3 concentrations are generally highest 
during the summer months when direct sunlight, light wind, and warm temperature conditions 
are favorable. An elevated level of O3 irritates the lungs and breathing passages, causing 
coughing and pain in the chest and throat, thereby increasing susceptibility to respiratory 
infections and reducing the ability to exercise. Effects are more severe in people with asthma 
and other respiratory ailments. Long-term exposure may lead to scarring of lung tissue and may 
lower lung efficiency. 

Nitrogen Dioxide (NO2). NO2 is a byproduct of fuel combustion and major sources include 
power plants, large industrial facilities, and motor vehicles. The principal form of nitrogen oxide 
produced by combustion is nitric oxide (NO), which reacts quickly to form NO2, creating the 
mixture of NO and NO2 commonly called NOX. NO2 absorbs blue light and results in a brownish-
red cast to the atmosphere and reduced visibility. NO2 also contributes to the formation of PM10. 
Nitrogen oxides irritate the nose and throat, and increase one’s susceptibility to respiratory 
infections, especially in people with asthma. The principal concern of NOX is as a precursor to 
the formation of ozone. 

Sulfur Dioxide (SO2). Sulfur oxides (SOX) are compounds of sulfur and oxygen molecules. SO2 
is the pre- dominant form found in the lower atmosphere and is a product of burning sulfur or 
burning materials that contain sulfur. Major sources of SO2 include power plants, large industrial 
facilities, diesel vehicles, and oil-burning residential heaters. Emissions of sulfur dioxide 
aggravate lung diseases, especially bronchitis. It also constricts the breathing passages, 
especially in asthmatics and people involved in moderate to heavy exercise. SO2 potentially 
causes wheezing, shortness of breath, and coughing. High levels of particulates appear to 
worsen the effect of sulfur dioxide, and long-term exposures to both pollutants leads to higher 
rates of respiratory illness. 

Particulate Matter (PM10 and PM2.5). The human body naturally prevents the entry of larger 
particles into the body. However, small particles, with an aerodynamic diameter equal to or less 
than 10 microns (PM10), and even smaller particles with an aerodynamic diameter equal to or 
less than 2.5 microns (PM2.5), can enter the body and become trapped in the nose, throat, and 
upper respiratory tract. These small particulates can potentially aggravate existing heart and 
lung diseases, change the body’s defenses against inhaled materials, and damage lung tissue. 
The elderly, children, and those with chronic lung or heart disease are most sensitive to PM10 
and PM2.5. Lung impairment can persist for two to three weeks after exposure to high levels of 
particulate matter. Some types of particulates can become toxic after inhalation due to the 
presence of certain chemicals and their reaction with internal body fluids. 

Lead (Pb). Lead is emitted from industrial facilities and from the sanding or removal of old lead-
based paint. Smelting or processing the metal is the primary source of lead emissions, which is 
primarily a regional pollutant. Lead affects the brain and other parts of the body’s nervous 



  Air Quality Technical Report 

4649 Maubert Avenue Project  City of Los Angeles 
DKA Planning  May 2019 

Page 13

system. Exposure to lead in very young children impairs the development of the nervous 
system, kidneys, and blood forming processes in the body. 

(b) State-only Criteria Pollutants 

Visibility-Reducing Particles. Deterioration of visibility is one of the most obvious 
manifestations of air pollution and plays a major role in the public’s perception of air quality. 
Visibility reduction from air pollution is often due to the presence of sulfur and NOX, as well as 
PM. 

Sulfates (SO4
2-). Sulfates are the fully oxidized ionic form of sulfur. Sulfates occur in 

combination with metal and/or hydrogen ions. In California, emissions of sulfur compounds 
occur primarily from the combustion of petroleum-derived fuels (e.g., gasoline and diesel fuel) 
that contain sulfur. This sulfur is oxidized during the combustion process and subsequently 
converted to sulfate compounds in the atmosphere. Effects of sulfate exposure at levels above 
the standard include a decrease in ventilatory function, aggravation of asthmatic symptoms, and 
an increased risk of cardio-pulmonary disease. Sulfates are particularly effective in degrading 
visibility, and, due to fact that they are usually acidic, can harm ecosystems and damage 
materials and property. 

Hydrogen Sulfide (H2S). H2S is a colorless gas with the odor of rotten eggs. It is formed during 
bacterial decomposition of sulfur-containing organic substances. Also, it can be present in 
sewer gas and some natural gas and can be emitted as the result of geothermal energy 
exploitation. Breathing H2S at levels above the state standard could result in exposure to a very 
disagreeable odor. 

Vinyl Chloride. Vinyl chloride is a colorless, flammable gas at ambient temperature and 
pressure. It is also highly toxic and is classified as a known carcinogen by the American 
Conference of Governmental Industrial Hygienists and the International Agency for Research on 
Cancer. At room temperature, vinyl chloride is a gas with a sickly-sweet odor that is easily 
condensed. However, it is stored at cooler temperatures as a liquid. Due to the hazardous 
nature of vinyl chloride to human health, there are no end products that use vinyl chloride in its 
monomer form. Vinyl chloride is a chemical intermediate, not a final product. It is an important 
industrial chemical chiefly used to produce polyvinyl chloride (PVC). The process involves vinyl 
chloride liquid fed to polymerization reactors where it is converted from a monomer to a polymer 
PVC. The final product of the polymerization process is PVC in either a flake or pellet form. 
Billions of pounds of PVC are sold on the global market each year. From its flake or pellet form, 
PVC is sold to companies that heat and mold the PVC into end products such as PVC pipe and 
bottles. Vinyl chloride emissions are historically associated primarily with landfills. 

(2) Toxic Air Contaminants  

TACs refer to a diverse group of “non-criteria” air pollutants that can affect human health but 
have not had ambient air quality standards established for them. This is not because they are 
fundamentally different from the pollutants discussed above but because their effects tend to be 



  Air Quality Technical Report 

4649 Maubert Avenue Project  City of Los Angeles 
DKA Planning  May 2019 

Page 14

local rather than regional. TACs are classified as carcinogenic and noncarcinogenic, where 
carcinogenic TACs can cause cancer and noncarcinogenic TAC can cause acute and chronic 
impacts to different target organ systems (e.g., eyes, respiratory, reproductive, developmental, 
nervous, and cardiovascular). 

CARB and OEHHA determine if a substance should be formally identified, or “listed,” as a TAC 
in California. A complete list of these substances is maintained on CARB’s website.11 

Diesel particulate matter (DPM), which is emitted in the exhaust from diesel engines, was listed 
by the state as a TAC in 1998. DPM has historically been used as a surrogate measure of 
exposure for all diesel exhaust emissions. DPM consists of fine particles (fine particles have a 
diameter less than 2.5 micrometer (μm)), including a subgroup of ultrafine particles (ultrafine 
particles have a diameter less than 0.1 μm). Collectively, these particles have a large surface 
area which makes them an excellent medium for absorbing organics. The visible emissions in 
diesel exhaust include carbon particles or “soot.” Diesel exhaust also contains a variety of 
harmful gases and cancer-causing substances. 

Exposure to DPM may be a health hazard, particularly to children whose lungs are still 
developing and the elderly who may have other serious health problems. DPM levels and 
resultant potential health effects may be higher in close proximity to heavily traveled roadways 
with substantial truck traffic or near industrial facilities. According to CARB, DPM exposure may 
lead to the following adverse health effects: (1) aggravated asthma; (2) chronic bronchitis; (3) 
increased respiratory and cardiovascular hospitalizations; (4) decreased lung function in 
children; (5) lung cancer; and (6) premature deaths for people with heart or lung disease.12,13 

(3) Volatile Organic Compounds 

VOCs are typically formed from combustion of fuels and/or released through evaporation of 
organic liquids. Some VOCs are also classified by the state as toxic air contaminants. While 
there are no specific VOC ambient air quality standards, VOC is a prime component (along with 
NOX) of the photochemical processes by which such criteria pollutants as ozone, nitrogen 
dioxide, and certain fine particles are formed. They are, thus, regulated as “precursors” to the 
formation of those criteria pollutants. 

(4) Project Site 

The Project Site is located within the South Coast Air Basin (the Basin); named so because of 
its geographical formation is that of a basin, with the surrounding mountains trapping the air and 
its pollutants in the valleys or basins below. The 6,745-square-mile Basin includes all of Orange 
                                                
11 CARB, Toxic Air Contaminant Identification List, www.arb.ca.gov/toxics/id/taclist.htm, last reviewed by 

CARB July 18, 2011. 
12 CARB, Overview: Diesel Exhaust and Health, www.arb.ca.gov/research/diesel/diesel-health.htm, last 

reviewed by CARB April 12, 2016. 
13 CARB, Fact Sheet: Diesel Particulate Matter Health Risk Assessment Study for the West Oakland 

Community: Preliminary Summary of Results, March 2008. 



  Air Quality Technical Report 

4649 Maubert Avenue Project  City of Los Angeles 
DKA Planning  May 2019 

Page 15

County and the non-desert portions of Los Angeles, Riverside, and San Bernardino Counties. It 
is bounded by the Pacific Ocean to the west; the San Gabriel, San Bernardino and San Jacinto 
Mountains to the north and east; and the San Diego County line to the south. Ambient pollution 
concentrations recorded in Los Angeles County portion of the Basin are among the highest in 
the four counties comprising the Basin. USEPA has classified Los Angeles County as 
nonattainment areas for O3, PM10, PM2.5, and lead. This classification denotes that the Basin 
does not meet the NAAQS for these pollutants. In addition, under the CCAA, the Los Angeles 
County portion of the Basin is designated as a nonattainment area for O3, PM10, and PM2.5. The 
air quality within the Basin is primarily influenced by a wide range of emissions sources, such as 
dense population centers, heavy vehicular traffic, industry, and meteorology. 

Air pollutant emissions are generated in the local vicinity by stationary and area-wide sources, 
such as commercial activity, space and water heating, landscaping maintenance, consumer 
products, and mobile sources primarily consisting of automobile traffic.  

(a) Air Pollution Climatology14 

The topography and climate of Southern California combine to make the Basin an area of high 
air pollution potential. During the summer months, a warm air mass frequently descends over 
the cool, moist marine layer produced by the interaction between the ocean’s surface and the 
lowest layer of the atmosphere. The warm upper layer forms a cap over the cooler surface layer 
which inhibits the pollutants from dispersing upward. Light winds during the summer further limit 
ventilation. Additionally, abundant sunlight triggers photochemical reactions which produce O3 

and the majority of particulate matter. 

(b) Air Monitoring Data 

The SCAQMD monitors air quality conditions at 38 source receptor areas (SRA) throughout the 
Basin. The Project Site is located in SCAQMD’s Central Los Angeles receptor area. Historical 
data from the area was used to characterize existing conditions in the vicinity of the Project 
area. Table 2 shows pollutant levels, State and federal standards, and the number of 
exceedances recorded in the area from 2015 through 2017. The one-hour State standard and 8-
hour federal standard for O3 was exceeded ten times and 18 times, respectively, during this 
three-year period, the daily State standard for PM10 was exceeded 85 times while the daily 
federal standard for PM2.5 was exceeded 14 times. CO and NO2 levels did not exceed the 
CAAQS from 2015 to 2017 for 1-hour (and 8-hour for CO). 

Table 2 
Ambient Air Quality Data 

Pollutants and State and Federal Standards 

Maximum Concentrations and Frequencies 
of Exceedance Standards 

2015 2016 2017 
Ozone (O3) 
Maximum 1-hour Concentration (ppm) 0.104 0.103 0.116 
Days > 0.09 ppm (State 1-hour standard) 2 2 6 

                                                
14  AQMD, Final Program Environmental Impact Report for the 2012 AQMP, December 7, 2012. 



  Air Quality Technical Report 

4649 Maubert Avenue Project  City of Los Angeles 
DKA Planning  May 2019 

Page 16

Days > 0.070 ppm (Federal 8-hour standard) 0 4 14 
Carbon Monoxide (CO2) 
Maximum 1-hour Concentration (ppm) 3.2 1.9 1.9 
Days > 20 ppm (State 1-hour standard) 0 0 0 
Maximum 8-hour Concentration (ppm) 1.8 1.4 1.6 
Days > 9.0 ppm (State 8-hour standard) 0 0 0 
Nitrogen Dioxide (NO2) 
Maximum 1-hour Concentration (ppm) 0.0791 0.0647 0.0806 
Days > 0.18 ppm (State 1-hour standard) 0 0 0 
PM10 
Maximum 24-hour Concentration (µg/m3) 88 67 96 
Days > 50 µg/m3 (State 24-hour standard) 26 18 41 
PM2.5 
Maximum 24-hour Concentration (µg/m3) 56.4 44.4 49.2 
Days > 35 µg/m3 (Federal 24-hour standard) 7 2 5 

Sulfur Dioxide (SO2) 
Maximum 24-hour Concentration (ppb) 12.6 13.4 5.7 
Days > 0.04 ppm (State 24-hour standard) 0 0 0 
 ppm = parts by volume per million of air. 
µg/m3 = micrograms per cubic meter. 
N/A = not available at this monitoring station. 
Source: SCAQMD annual monitoring data (http://www.aqmd.gov/home/air-quality/air-quality-data-studies/historical-data-by-year) 
accessed March 7, 2019. 

 

(c) Existing Health Risk in the Surrounding Area  

Based on the MATES-IV model, the calculated cancer risk in the Project area is approximately 
1,338 in a million.15 The cancer risk in this area is predominately related to nearby sources of 
diesel particulate (e.g., major arterials, Hollywood Freeway). In general, the risk at the Project 
Site is higher than other urbanized areas in Los Angeles.  

The Office of Environmental Health Hazard Assessment, on behalf of CalEPA, provides a 
screening tool called CalEnviroScreen that can be used to help identify California communities 
disproportionately burdened by multiple sources of pollution. According to CalEnviroScreen, the 
Project site is located in the 75-80th percentile, which means the Project site is worse than 
average in comparison to other communities within California.16 

(d) Sensitive Receptors 

Some land uses are considered more sensitive to changes in air quality than others, depending 
on the population groups and the activities involved. CARB has identified the following groups 
                                                
15  SCAQMD, Multiple Air Toxics Exposure Study in the South Coast Air Basin (MATES-IV), MATES IV 

Interactive Carcinogenicity Map, 2015, www3.aqmd.gov/webappl/OI.Web/OI.aspx?jurisdictionID=
AQMD.gov&shareID=73f55d6b-82cc-4c41-b779-4c48c9a8b15b , accessed March 7, 2019. 

16 Office of Environmental Health Hazard Assessment, CalEnviroScreen 3.0 MAP, https://oehha.ca.gov/
calenviroscreen/report/calenviroscreen-30, accessed March 7, 2019. 



  Air Quality Technical Report 

4649 Maubert Avenue Project  City of Los Angeles 
DKA Planning  May 2019 

Page 17

who are most likely to be affected by air pollution: children less than 14 years of age, the elderly 
over 65 years of age, athletes, and people with cardiovascular and chronic respiratory diseases. 
According to the SCAQMD, sensitive receptors include residences, schools, playgrounds, child 
care centers, athletic facilities, long-term health care facilities, rehabilitation centers, 
convalescent centers, and retirement homes. 

Sensitive receptors within 1,000 feet of the Project Site include but are not limited to the 
following: 

• Multi-family residences, 4621-4627 Maubert Avenue; approximately 10 feet east of the 
Project Site. 

• Children’s Hospital Los Angeles, The Saban Research Institute, 4641 Sunset Boulevard; 
approximately 110 feet south of the Project Site. 

• Multi-family residences, 4648 Hollywood Boulevard; approximately 150 feet north of the 
Project Site. 

• Kaiser Permanente, 1515 North Vermont Avenue; approximately 360 feet southwest of 
the Project Site. 

 
(e) Existing Project Site Emissions 

The Project Site includes several multi-family buildings that house 14 dwelling units with surface 
level garage structures towards the rear of each lot.  Table 3 summarizes the criteria pollutant 
emissions from these residences. 

Table 3 
Existing Daily Operations Emissions 

Emissions Source 
Daily Emissions (Pounds Per Day) 

VOC NOX CO SOX PM10 PM2.5 
Area Sources 4 <1 8 <1 1 1 

Energy Sources <1 <1 <1 <1 <1 <1 
Mobile Sources <1 1 2 <1 1 <1 

Net Regional Total 4 1 11 <1 2 1 
Source: DKA Planning, 2019 based on CalEEMod 2016.3.2 model runs. LST analyses based 
on 1-acre site with 25-meter distances to receptors in Central LA source receptor area. 

 

3. Project Impacts 
a) Methodology 

The air quality analysis conducted for the Project is consistent with the methods described in the 
SCAQMD CEQA Air Quality Handbook (1993 edition), as well as the updates to the CEQA Air 
Quality Handbook, as provided on the SCAQMD website. The SCAQMD recommends the use 
of the California Emissions Estimator Model (CalEEMod, version 2016.3.2) as a tool for 
quantifying emissions of air pollutants that will be generated by constructing and operating 
development projects. The analyses focus on the potential change in air quality conditions due 
to Project implementation. Air pollutant emissions would result from both construction and 



  Air Quality Technical Report 

4649 Maubert Avenue Project  City of Los Angeles 
DKA Planning  May 2019 

Page 18

operation of the Project. Specific methodologies used to evaluate these emissions are 
discussed below.  

(1) Construction 

Sources of air pollutant emissions associated with construction activities include heavy-duty off-
road diesel equipment and vehicular traffic to and from the Project construction site. Project-
specific information was provided describing the schedule of construction activities and the 
equipment inventory required from the Applicant. Details pertaining to the schedule and 
equipment can be found in the attached modeling sheets. The CalEEMod model provides 
default values for daily equipment usage rates and worker trip lengths, as well as emission 
factors for heavy-duty equipment, passenger vehicles, and haul trucks that have been derived 
by the CARB. Maximum daily emissions were quantified for each construction activity based on 
the number of equipment and daily hours of use, in addition to vehicle trips to and from the 
Project Site.  

The SCAQMD recommends that air pollutant emissions be assessed for both regional scale and 
localized impacts. The regional emissions analysis includes both on-site and off-site sources of 
emissions, while the localized emissions analysis focuses only on sources of emissions that 
would be located on the Project Site. 

Localized impacts were analyzed in accordance with the SCAQMD Localized Significance 

Threshold (LST) methodology.
17

 The localized effects from on-site portion of daily emissions 
were evaluated at sensitive receptor locations potentially impacted by the Project according to 
the SCAQMD’s localized significance thresholds (LST) methodology, which uses on-site mass 
emission look-up tables and Project-specific modeling, where appropriate.18 SCAQMD provides 
LSTs applicable to the following criteria pollutants: NOX, CO, PM10, and PM2.5. SCAQMD does 
not provide an LST for SO2 since land use development projects typically result in negligible 
construction and long-term operation emissions of this pollutant. Since VOCs are not a criteria 
pollutant, there is no ambient standard or SCAQMD LST for VOCs. Due to the role VOCs play 
in O3 formation, it is classified as a precursor pollutant, and only a regional emissions threshold 
has been established.  

LSTs represent the maximum emissions from a project that are not expected to cause or 
contribute to an exceedance of the most stringent applicable federal or state ambient air quality 
standard and are developed based on the ambient concentrations of that pollutant for each 
source receptor area and distance to the nearest sensitive receptor. The mass rate look-up 
tables were developed for each source receptor area and can be used to determine whether or 
not a project may generate significant adverse localized air quality impacts. SCAQMD provides 
LST mass rate look-up tables for projects with active construction areas that are less than or 
equal to five acres. If the project exceeds the LST look-up values, then the SCAQMD 
                                                
17 SCAQMD, Final Localized Significance Methodology, revised July 2008. 
18  SCAQMD, LST Methodology Appendix C-Mass Rate LST Look-Up Table, October 2009. 



  Air Quality Technical Report 

4649 Maubert Avenue Project  City of Los Angeles 
DKA Planning  May 2019 

Page 19

recommends that project-specific air quality modeling must be performed. Please refer to 
Threshold b below, for the analysis of localized impacts from on-site construction activities. In 
accordance with SCAQMD guidance, maximum daily emissions of NOX, CO, PM10, and PM2.5 

from on-site sources during each construction activity were compared to LST values for a one-

acre site having sensitive receptors within 25 meters (82 feet).
19  

The Basin is divided into 38 SRAs, each with its own set of maximum allowable LST values for 
on-site emissions sources during construction and operations based on locally monitored air 
quality. Maximum on-site emissions resulting from construction activities were quantified and 
assessed against the applicable LST values.  

The significance criteria and analysis methodologies in the SCAQMD's CEQA Air Quality 
Handbook were used in evaluating impacts in the context of the CEQA significance criteria 
listed below. The SCAQMD LSTs for NO2, CO, and PM10 were initially published in June 2003 

and revised in July 2008.
20 The LSTs for PM2.5 were established in October 2006.

21 Updated 

LSTs were published on the SCAQMD website on October 21, 2009.
22 Table 4 presents the 

significance criteria for both construction and operational emissions. 

Table 4 
SCAQMD Construction Emissions Thresholds 

Criteria Pollutant Construction Emissions  
Operation Emissions  Regional Localized /a/ 

Volatile Organic Compounds (VOC) 75 -- 55 
Nitrogen Oxides (NOX) 100 74 55 
Carbon Monoxide (CO) 550 680 550 
Sulfur Oxides (SOX) 150 -- 150 
Respirable Particulates (PM10) 150 5 150 
Fine Particulates (PM2.5) 55 3 55 
In pounds per day 
/a/ Localized significance thresholds assumed a 1-acre and 25-meter (82-foot) receptor distance, which are the 
smallest Project Site and shortest distance used for analysis in the LST guidance document. The SCAQMD has not 
developed LST values for VOC or SOX. 
Source: SCAQMD 
 

(2) Operations 

                                                
19  SCAQMD, Fact Sheet for Applying CalEEMod to Localized Significance Thresholds, 2008. 
20  SCAQMD, Fact Sheet for Applying CalEEMod to Localized Significance Thresholds, 2008. 
21  SCAQMD, Final – Methodology to Calculate Particulate Matter (PM) 2.5 and PM 2.5 Significance 

Thresholds, October 2006. 
22  SCAQMD, Final Localized Significance Threshold Methodology Appendix C – Mass Rate LST Look-

Up Tables, October 21, 2009. 



  Air Quality Technical Report 

4649 Maubert Avenue Project  City of Los Angeles 
DKA Planning  May 2019 

Page 20

CalEEMod also generates estimates of daily and annual emissions of air pollutants resulting 
from future operation of a project. Operational emissions of air pollutants are produced by 
mobile sources (vehicular travel) and stationary sources (utilities demand). The Project Site is 
serviced by the Los Angeles Department of Water and Power (LADWP), for which CalEEMod 
has derived default emissions factors for electricity and natural gas usage that are applied to the 
size and land use type of the Project in question. CalEEMod also generates estimated 
operational emissions associated water use, wastewater generation, and solid waste disposal.  
 
Similar to construction, SCAQMD’s CalEEMod software was used for the evaluation of Project 
emissions during operation. CalEEMod was used to calculate on-road fugitive dust, architectural 
coatings, landscape equipment, energy use, mobile source, and stationary source emissions. 
To determine if a significant air quality impact would occur, the net increase in regional and local 
operational emissions generated by the Project was compared against the SCAQMD’s 
significance thresholds.23 Details describing the operational emissions of the Project can be 
found in the attached modeling sheets. 

(3) Toxic Air Contaminants Impacts (Construction and 
Operations) 

Potential TAC impacts are evaluated by conducting a qualitative analysis consistent with the 
CARB Handbook followed by a more detailed analysis (i.e., dispersion modeling), as necessary. 
The qualitative analysis consists of reviewing the Project to identify any new or modified TAC 
emissions sources. If the qualitative evaluation does not rule out significant impacts from a new 
source, or modification of an existing TAC emissions source, a more detailed analysis is 
conducted.  

b) Thresholds of Significance 

(1) State CEQA Guidelines Appendix G  

Would the Project:  

a) Conflict with or obstruct implementation of the applicable air quality plan; 

b) Result in a cumulatively considerable net increase of any criteria pollutant for 
which the project region is non-attainment under an applicable federal or State 
ambient air quality standard; 

c) Expose sensitive receptors to substantial pollutant concentrations; or 

                                                
23  SCAQMD, SCAQMD Air Quality Significance Thresholds, revised March 2015. SCAQMD based these 

thresholds, in part on the federal Clean Air Act and, to enable defining “significant” for CEQA 
purposes, defined the setting as the South Coast Air Basin. (See SCAQMD, CEQA Air Quality 
Handbook, April 1993, pp. 6-1-6-2.). 



  Air Quality Technical Report 

4649 Maubert Avenue Project  City of Los Angeles 
DKA Planning  May 2019 

Page 21

d) Result in other emissions (such as those leading to odors) adversely affecting a 
substantial number of people. 

(2) 2006 L.A. CEQA Thresholds Guide and SCAQMD 
Thresholds 

For this analysis the Appendix G Thresholds are relied upon. The analysis utilizes factors and 
considerations identified in the 2006 L.A. CEQA Thresholds Guide (Thresholds Guide) and 
SCAQMD Thresholds, as appropriate, to assist in answering the Appendix G Threshold 
questions. 

(a) Construction 

The Thresholds Guide states that the determination of significance shall be made on a case-by-
case basis, considering the following criteria to evaluate construction-related air emissions: 

(i) Combustion Emissions from Construction Equipment 

• Type, number of pieces and usage for each type of construction equipment; 

• Estimated fuel usage and type of fuel (diesel, natural gas) for each type of 
equipment; and 

• Emission factors for each type of equipment. 

(ii) Fugitive Dust—Grading, Excavation and Hauling 

• Amount of soil to be disturbed on-site or moved off-site; 

• Emission factors for disturbed soil; 

• Duration of grading, excavation and hauling activities; 

• Type and number of pieces of equipment to be used; and 

• Projected haul route. 

(iii) Fugitive Dust—Heavy-Duty Equipment Travel on 
Unpaved Road 

• Length and type of road; 

• Type, number of pieces, weight and usage of equipment; and 

• Type of soil. 

(iv) Other Mobile Source Emissions 



  Air Quality Technical Report 

4649 Maubert Avenue Project  City of Los Angeles 
DKA Planning  May 2019 

Page 22

• Number and average length of construction worker trips to Project Site, per day; and 

• Duration of construction activities. 

In addition, the following criteria set forth in the SCAQMD’s CEQA Air Quality Handbook serve 
as quantitative air quality standards to be used to evaluate project impacts under the Appendix 
G Thresholds. Under these thresholds, a significant threshold would occur when:24 

• Regional emissions from both direct and indirect sources would exceed any of the 
following SCAQMD prescribed threshold levels: (1) 100 pounds per day for NOX; (2) 75 
pounds a day for VOC; (3) 150 pounds per day for PM10 or SOX; (4) 55 pounds per day 
for PM2.5; and (5) 550 pounds per day for CO. 

• Maximum on-site daily localized emissions exceed the LST, resulting in predicted 
ambient concentrations in the vicinity of the Project Site greater than the most stringent 
ambient air quality standards for CO (20 ppm [23,000 μg/m3] over a 1-hour period or 9.0 
ppm [10,350 μg/m3] averaged over an 8-hour period) and NO2 (0.18 ppm [339 μg/m3] 
over a 1-hour period, 0.1 ppm [188 μg/m3] over a three-year average of the 98th 
percentile of the daily maximum 1-hour average, or 0.03 ppm [57 μg/m3] averaged over 
an annual period). 

• Maximum on-site localized PM10 or PM2.5 emissions during construction exceed the 
applicable LSTs, resulting in predicted ambient concentrations in the vicinity of the 
Project Site to exceed the incremental 24-hour threshold of 10.4 μg/m3 or 1.0 μg/m3 
PM10 averaged over an annual period. 

(b) Operation 

The Thresholds Guide bases the determination of significance of operational air quality impacts 
on criteria set forth in the SCAQMD’s CEQA Air Quality Handbook.25 However, as discussed 
above, the City has chosen to use Appendix G as the thresholds of significance for this analysis. 
Accordingly, the following serve as quantitative air quality standards to be used to evaluate 
project impacts under the Appendix G thresholds. Under these thresholds, a significant 
threshold would occur when: 

• Operational emissions exceed 10 tons per year of volatile organic gases or any of the 

following SCAQMD prescribed threshold levels: (1) 55 pounds a day for VOC;
26 (2) 55 

                                                
24 SCAQMD, SCAQMD Air Quality Significance Thresholds, revised March 2015. 
25 SCAQMD, SCAQMD Air Quality Significance Thresholds, revised March 2015. 
26  For purposes of this analysis, emissions of VOC and reactive organic compounds (ROG) are used 

interchangeably since ROG represents approximately 99.9 percent of VOC emissions. 



  Air Quality Technical Report 

4649 Maubert Avenue Project  City of Los Angeles 
DKA Planning  May 2019 

Page 23

pounds per day for NOX; (3) 550 pounds per day for CO; (4) 150 pounds per day for 

SOX; (5) 150 pounds per day for PM10; and (6) 55 pounds per day for PM2.5.
27,28

 

• Maximum on-site daily localized emissions exceed the LST, resulting in predicted 
ambient concentrations in the vicinity of the Project Site greater than the most stringent 
ambient air quality standards for CO (20 parts per million (ppm) over a 1-hour period or 
9.0 ppm averaged over an 8-hour period) and NO2 (0.18 ppm over a 1-hour period, 0.1 
ppm over a 3-year average of the 98th percentile of the daily maximum 1-hour average, 

or 0.03 ppm averaged over an annual period).
29

 

• Maximum on-site localized operational PM10 and PM2.5 emissions exceed the 
incremental 24-hour threshold of 2.5 μg/m3 or 1.0 μg/m3 PM10 averaged over an annual 

period.
30

 

• The Project causes or contributes to an exceedance of the California 1-hour or 8-hour 
CO standards of 20 or 9.0 ppm, respectively; or 

• The Project creates an odor nuisance pursuant to SCAQMD Rule 402. 

(c) Toxic Air Contaminants 

The Thresholds Guide states that the determination of significance shall be made on a case-by-
case basis, considering the following criteria to evaluate TACs: 

• Would the project use, store, or process carcinogenic or non-carcinogenic toxic air 
contaminants which could result in airborne emissions? 

In assessing impacts related to TACs in this section, the City will use Appendix G as the 
thresholds of significance. The criteria identified above from the Thresholds Guide will be used 
where applicable and relevant to assist in analyzing the Appendix G thresholds. In addition, the 
following criteria set forth in the SCAQMD’s CEQA Air Quality Handbook serve as quantitative 
air quality standards to be used to evaluate project impacts under Appendix G thresholds. 

Under these thresholds, a significant threshold would occur when:
31

 

• The Project results in the exposure of sensitive receptors to carcinogenic or toxic air 
contaminants that exceed the maximum incremental cancer risk of 10 in one million 

                                                
27 City of Los Angeles, L.A. CEQA Thresholds Guide, 2006, p. B.2-5. 
28  SCAQMD Air Quality Significance Thresholds, www.aqmd.gov/docs/default-source/ceqa/handbook/

scaqmd-air-quality-significance-thresholds.pdf, last updated March 2015.  
29 SCAQMD, Final Localized Significance Threshold Methodology, revised July 2008. 
30 SCAQMD, Final—Methodology to Calculate Particulate Matter (PM) 2.5 and PM2.5 Significance 

Thresholds, October 2006. 
31 SCAQMD, CEQA Air Quality Handbook, April 1993, Chapter 6 (Determining the Air Quality 

Significance of a Project) and Chapter 10 (Assessing Toxic Air Pollutants). 



  Air Quality Technical Report 

4649 Maubert Avenue Project  City of Los Angeles 
DKA Planning  May 2019 

Page 24

or an acute or chronic hazard index of 1.0.
32

 For projects with a maximum 
incremental cancer risk between 1 in one million and 10 in one million, a project 
would result in a significant impact if the cancer burden exceeds 0.5 excess cancer 
cases. 

(d) Consistency with Applicable Air Quality Plans 

CEQA Guidelines Section 15125 requires an analysis of project consistency with applicable 
governmental plans and policies. This analysis is conducted to assess potential project impacts 
against Threshold (a) from the Appendix G thresholds. In accordance with the SCAQMD’s 
CEQA Air Quality Handbook, the following criteria shall be used to evaluate a project’s 
consistency with SCAQMD and SCAG regional plans and policies, including the AQMP, 
consistent with the Appendix G thresholds:33 

• Will the Project result in any of the following: 

– An increase in the frequency or severity of existing air quality violations; 

– Cause or contribute to new air quality violations; or 

– Delay timely attainment of air quality standards or the interim emission reductions 
specified in the AQMP? 

• Will the Project exceed the assumptions utilized in preparing the AQMP? 

– Is the Project consistent with the population and employment growth projections 
upon which AQMP forecasted emission levels are based; 

– Does the Project include air quality mitigation measures; or 

– To what extent is Project development consistent with the AQMP land use 
policies? 

The Project’s impacts with respect to these criteria are discussed to assess the consistency with 
the SCAQMD’s AQMP and SCAG regional plans and policies. In addition, the Project’s 
consistency with the City of Los Angeles General Plan Air Quality Element is discussed. 

c) Project Design Features 
The Project would comply with the 2017 Los Angeles Green Building Code (LAGBC),34 which 
builds upon and sets higher standards than those in the 2016 California Green Building 

                                                
32 Hazard index is the ratio of a toxic air contaminant’s concentration divided by its Reference 

Concentration, or safe exposure level. If the hazard index exceeds one, people are exposed to levels 
of TACs that may pose noncancer health risks. 

33 SCAQMD, CEQA Air Quality Handbook, April 1993, p. 12-3. 
34  LA Department of Building and Safety: http://ladbs.org/forms-publications/forms/green-building 



  Air Quality Technical Report 

4649 Maubert Avenue Project  City of Los Angeles 
DKA Planning  May 2019 

Page 25

Standards Code (CalGreen, effective January 1, 2017).35  

Further energy efficiency and sustainability features would include native plants and 
drip/subsurface irrigation systems, individual metering or sub metering for water use, and leak 
detection systems. 

The Project’s infill location would promote the concentration of development in an urban location 
with extensive infrastructure and access to public transit facilities. The Project’s proximity to 
public transportation would reduce vehicle miles traveled for residents and visitors, including 
Metro bus service on Vermont Avenue (Routes 204, 754), Sunset Boulevard (Routes 2, 175, 
302), Hollywood Boulevard (Routes 180, 181, 206, 217), Metro Rail service at the 
Vermont/Sunset Station one block southwest of the Project Site, as well as LADOT DASH Los 
Feliz, Hollywood, and Observatory shuttle routes on Sunset Boulevard.  

d) Analysis of Project Impacts 
Threshold a) Would the project conflict with or obstruct implementation of the 

applicable air quality plan? 

(1) SCAQMD CEQA Air Quality Handbook Policy Analysis 
and SCAG 2016-2040 RTP/SCS Consistency 

The following analysis addresses the Project’s consistency with applicable SCAQMD and SCAG 
policies, including the SCAQMD’s 2016 AQMP and growth projections within the SCAG 2016–
2040 RTP/SCS. In accordance with the procedures established in the SCAQMD’s CEQA Air 
Quality Handbook, the following criteria are required to be addressed in order to determine the 
Project’s consistency with applicable SCAQMD and SCAG policies: 

• Would the project result in any of the following: 

– An increase in the frequency or severity of existing air quality violations; or 

– Cause or contribute to new air quality violations; or 

– Delay timely attainment of air quality standards or the interim emission reductions 
specified in the AQMP. 

• Would the project exceed the assumptions utilized in preparing the AQMP? 

– Is the Project consistent with the population and employment growth projections 
upon which AQMP forecasted emission levels are based; 

– Does the Project include air quality mitigation measures; or 

– To what extent is Project development consistent with the AQMP land use 
policies? 

                                                
35  California Building Codes: http://www.bsc.ca.gov/Codes.aspx 



  Air Quality Technical Report 

4649 Maubert Avenue Project  City of Los Angeles 
DKA Planning  May 2019 

Page 26

With respect to the first criterion, as discussed below, localized concentrations of NO2 as NOX, 
CO, PM10, and PM2.5 have been analyzed for the Project. SO2 emissions would be negligible 
during construction and long-term operations, and, therefore, would not have the potential to 
cause or affect a violation of the SO2 ambient air quality standard. Since VOCs are not a criteria 
pollutant, there is no ambient standard or localized threshold for VOCs. Due to the role VOCs 
play in O3 formation, it is classified as a precursor pollutant, and only a regional emissions 
threshold has been established. 

Particulate matter is the primary pollutant of concern during construction activities, and, 
therefore, the Project’s PM10 and PM2.5 emissions during construction were analyzed in order to: 
(1) ascertain potential effects on localized concentrations; and (2) determine if there is a 
potential for such emissions to cause or affect a violation of the ambient air quality standards for 
PM10 and PM2.5. As demonstrated in the analysis below (see Table 7 later in this section), the 
increases in PM10 and PM2.5 emissions during construction would not exceed the SCAQMD-
recommended significance thresholds at sensitive receptors in proximity to the Project Site. 

Additionally, the Project’s maximum potential NOX and CO daily emissions during construction 
were analyzed to ascertain potential effects on localized concentrations and to determine if 
there is a potential for such emissions to cause or affect a violation of an applicable ambient air 
quality standard. As shown in Table 7, NOX and CO would not exceed the SCAQMD-
recommended localized significance thresholds. Therefore, Project construction would not result 
in a significant impact with regard to localized air quality. 

Because the Project would not introduce any substantial stationary sources of emissions, CO is 
the preferred benchmark pollutant for assessing local area air quality impacts from post-
construction motor vehicle operations.36 As indicated under Threshold (c), no intersections 
would require a CO hotspot analysis, and impacts would be less than significant. Therefore, the 
Project would not increase the frequency or severity of an existing CO violation or cause or 
contribute to new CO violations. 

As discussed below, an analysis of potential localized operational impacts from on-site activities 
was conducted. As demonstrated in the analysis below (see Table 8 later in this section), 
localized NO2 as NOX, CO, PM10, and PM2.5 operational impacts would be less than significant. 
Therefore, the Project would not increase the frequency or severity of an existing violation or 
cause or contribute to new violations for these pollutants. As the Project would not exceed any 
of the state and federal standards, the Project would also not delay timely attainment of air 
quality standards or interim emission reductions specified in the AQMP. 

With respect to the determination of consistency with AQMP growth assumptions, the 
projections in the AQMP for achieving air quality goals are based on assumptions in SCAG’s 
2016–2040 RTP/SCS regarding population, housing, and growth trends. Determining whether 

                                                
36 SCAQMD, CEQA Air Quality Handbook, Chapter 12, Assessing Consistency with Applicable 

Regional Plans, 1993. 



  Air Quality Technical Report 

4649 Maubert Avenue Project  City of Los Angeles 
DKA Planning  May 2019 

Page 27

or not a project exceeds the assumptions reflected in the AQMP involves the evaluation of three 
criteria: (1) consistency with applicable population, housing, and employment growth 
projections; (2) project mitigation measures; and (3) appropriate incorporation of AQMP land 
use planning strategies. The following discussion provides an analysis with respect to each of 
these three criteria. 

• Is the project consistent with the population, housing, and employment growth 
projections upon which AQMP forecasted emission levels are based? 

A project is consistent with the AQMP, in part, if it is consistent with the population, housing, and 
employment assumptions that were used in the development of the AQMP. In the case of the 
2016 AQMP, two sources of data form the basis for the projections of air pollutant emissions: 
the City of Los Angeles General Plan and SCAG’s RTP.  The General Plan serves as a 
comprehensive, long-term plan for future development of the City. 

The 2016–2040 RTP/SCS provides socioeconomic forecast projections of regional population 
growth. The population, housing, and employment forecasts, which are adopted by SCAG’s 
Regional Council, are based on local plans and policies applicable to the specific area; these 
are used by SCAG in all phases of implementation and review. According to the California 
Department of Finance, the population for the City of Los Angeles in 2017 was approximately 
4,041,707 persons. In 2040, the City of Los Angeles is anticipated to have a population of 
approximately 4,609,400 persons. 

Based on a household size factor of 2.43 persons per household in the City in 2017, the Project 
is estimated to generate a residential population of 372 persons at full buildout, which would 
represent approximately 0.06 percent of the population growth forecasted by SCAG in the City 
of Los Angeles between 2017 and 2040.  

Because the Project’s resulting residential growth would fall well within the growth forecasts for 
the City and similar projections form the basis of the 2016 AQMP, it can be concluded that the 
Project would be consistent with the projections in the AQMP. 

• Does the project implement feasible air quality mitigation measures? 

As discussed below under Thresholds (b), (c), and (d), the Project would not result in any 
significant air quality impacts and therefore would not require mitigation. In addition, the Project 
would comply with all applicable regulatory standards as required by SCAQMD. Furthermore, 
with compliance with the regulatory requirements identified above, no significant air quality 
impacts would occur. As such, the proposed Project meets this AQMP consistency criterion.  

• To what extent is project development consistent with the land use policies set forth 
in the AQMP? 



  Air Quality Technical Report 

4649 Maubert Avenue Project  City of Los Angeles 
DKA Planning  May 2019 

Page 28

With regard to land use developments such as the Project, the AQMP’s air quality policies focus 
on the reduction of vehicle trips and vehicle miles traveled (VMT).  The Project would serve to 
implement a number of land use policies of the City of Los Angeles, SCAQMD, and SCAG. 

The Project would be designed and constructed to support and promote environmental 
sustainability. The Project represents an infill development within an existing urbanized area 
that would intensify new residential uses within an HQTA.  “Green” principles are incorporated 
throughout the Project to comply with the City of Los Angeles Green Building Code and the 
California Green Building Standards Code (CALGreen) through energy conservation, water 
conservation, and waste reduction features.  

The air quality plan applicable to the Project area is the 2016 AQMP. The 2016 AQMP is the 
SCAQMD plan for improving regional air quality in the Basin. The 2016 AQMP is the current 
management plan for continued progression toward clean air and compliance with State and 
federal requirements. It includes a comprehensive strategy aimed at controlling pollution from all 
sources, including stationary sources, on- and off-road mobile sources and area sources. The 
2016 AQMP also incorporates current scientific information and meteorological air quality 
models. It also updates the federally approved 8-hour O3 control plan with new commitments for 
short-term NOX and VOC reductions.  

The 2016 AQMP includes short-term control measures related to facility modernization, energy 
efficiency, good management practices, market incentives, and emissions growth management.  

As demonstrated in the following analyses, the Project would not result in significant regional 
emissions. The 2016 AQMP adapts previously conducted regional air quality analyses to 
account for the recent unexpected drought conditions, and presents a revised approach to 
demonstrated attainment of the 2006 24-hour PM2.5 NAAQS for the Basin. Directly applicable to 
the Project, the 2016 AQMP proposes robust NOX reductions from commercial cooking and 
residential and commercial appliances, as well as commercial space heating. The Project would 
be required to comply with all new and existing regulatory measures set forth by the SCAQMD. 
Implementation of the Project would not interfere with air pollution control measures listed in the 
2016 AQMP.  

The Project Site is classified as “Community Commercial” in the General Plan Framework and 
the Community Plan, a zoning classification that conditionally allows residential uses. As such, 
the RTP/SCS’ assumptions about growth in the City accommodate housing, population, and job 
growth on this site. As a result, the Project would be consistent with the growth assumptions in 
the City’s General Plan. Because the AQMP accommodates growth forecasts from local 
General Plans, the emissions associated with this Project are accounted for and mitigated in the 
region’s air quality attainment plans. The air quality impacts of development on the Project Site 
are accommodated in the region’s emissions inventory for the 2016 RTP/SCS and 2016 AQMP. 
Therefore, the Project would result in less-than significant impacts related to consistency 
with the AQMP. 



  Air Quality Technical Report 

4649 Maubert Avenue Project  City of Los Angeles 
DKA Planning  May 2019 

Page 29

(2) City of Los Angeles Policies 

The Project would offer convenient access to public transit and opportunities for walking and 
biking, thereby facilitating a reduction in VMT, in addition to bicycle parking. In addition, the 
Project would be consistent with the existing land use pattern in the vicinity that concentrates 
urban density along major arterials and near transit options. The Project also includes primary 
entrances for pedestrians and bicyclists that would be safe, easily accessible, and a short 
distance from local bus service on Sunset Boulevard, Hollywood Boulevard, and Vermont 
Avenue as well as access to the Metro Rail system at the Vermont/Sunset station one block 
away. 

The Project would be consistent with applicable policies of the Air Quality Element. The Project 
would implement sustainability features that would reduce vehicular trips, reduce VMT, and 
encourage use of alternative modes of transportation.  

The City’s General Plan Air Quality Element identifies 30 policies with specific strategies for 
advancing the City’s clean air goals. As illustrated in Table 5, the Project is consistent with the 
applicable policies in the Air Quality Element. Therefore, the Project would result in less-
than significant impacts related to consistency with the Air Quality Element. 

Table 5 
Project Consistency With City Of Los Angeles General Plan Air Quality Element 

Strategy Project Consistency 

Policy 1.3.1. Minimize particulate emissions from 
construction sites. 

Consistent. The Project would minimize particulate 
emissions during construction through best practices 
and/or SCAQMD rules. 

Policy 1.3.2. Minimize particulate emissions from 
unpaved roads and parking lots associated with 
vehicular traffic. 

Consistent. The Project would minimize particulate 
emissions from unpaved facilities through best 
practices and/or SCAQMD rules. 

Policy 2.1.1. Utilize compressed work weeks and 
flextime, telecommuting, carpooling, vanpooling, 
public transit, and improve walking/bicycling related 
facilities in order to reduce vehicle trips and/or VMT 
as an employer and encourage the private sector to 
do the same to reduce work trips and traffic 
congestion. 

Consistent. The Project would be located near in the 
urbanized Little Armenia neighborhood of Los Angeles, 
an area with significant infrastructure to provide 
alternative transportation modes, including proximity to 
Metro bus routes, the Metro Rail system at the 
Vermont/Sunset station, and LADOT DASH shuttles. 

Policy 2.1.2. Facilitate and encourage the use of 
telecommunications (i.e., telecommuting) in both the 
public and private sectors, in order to reduce work 
trips. 

Not Applicable. The Project is a residential 
development that would not have employers that could 
implement telecommuting programs. 

Policy 2.2.1. Discourage single-occupant vehicle use 
through a variety of measures such as market 
incentive strategies, mode-shift incentives, trip 
reduction plans and ridesharing subsidies. 

Not Applicable. The Project is a residential 
development that would not have employers that could 
implement trip reduction programs. 

Policy 2.2.2. Encourage multi-occupant vehicle travel 
and discourage single-occupant vehicle travel by 
instituting parking management practices. 

Not Applicable. The Project is a residential 
development that would not have employers that could 
implement parking management programs. 

Policy 2.2.3. Minimize the use of single-occupant 
vehicles associated with special events or in areas 

Not Applicable. The Project would not include 
facilities for special events. 



  Air Quality Technical Report 

4649 Maubert Avenue Project  City of Los Angeles 
DKA Planning  May 2019 

Page 30

Table 5 
Project Consistency With City Of Los Angeles General Plan Air Quality Element 

Strategy Project Consistency 
and times of high levels of pedestrian activities. 
Policy 3.2.1. Manage traffic congestion during peak 
hours. 

Consistent. The Project would minimize traffic impacts 
at the 10 study intersections. 

Policy 4.1.1. Coordinate with all appropriate regional 
agencies on the implementation of strategies for the 
integration of land use, transportation, and air quality 
policies. 

Consistent. The Project is being entitled through the 
City of Los Angeles, which coordinates with SCAG, 
Metro, and other regional agencies on the coordination 
of land use, air quality, and transportation policies. 

Policy 4.1.2. Ensure that project level review and 
approval of land use development remains at the 
local level. 

Consistent. The Project would be entitled and 
environmentally cleared at the local level. 

Policy 4.2.1. Revise the City’s General 
Plan/Community Plans to achieve a more compact, 
efficient urban form and to promote more transit-
oriented development and mixed-use development. 

Not Applicable. This policy calls for City updates to its 
General Plan. 

Policy 4.2.2. Improve accessibility for the City’s 
residents to places of employment, shopping centers 
and other establishments. 

Consistent. The Project would be infill development 
that would provide residents with proximate access to 
jobs, shopping, and other uses. 

Policy 4.2.3. Ensure that new development is 
compatible with pedestrians, bicycles, transit, and 
alternative fuel vehicles. 

Consistent. The Project would be located in an urban 
area with significant infrastructure to facilitate 
alternative transportation modes, including close 
proximity to bus routes operating by Metro and the 
Metro Rail system at the Vermont/Sunset station. The 
inclusion of short- and long-term bicycle parking 
spaces will support this policy. 

Policy 4.2.4. Require that air quality impacts be a 
consideration in the review and approval of all 
discretionary projects. 

Consistent. The Project’s air quality impacts are 
analyzed in this document. 

Policy 4.2.5. Emphasize trip reduction, alternative 
transit and congestion management measures for 
discretionary projects. 

Consistent. The Project would be located in an urban 
area with significant infrastructure to facilities 
alternative transportation modes, including close 
proximity to Metro bus routes, the Metro Rail system at 
the Vermont/Sunset station, and LADOT DASH 
shuttles. 

Policy 4.3.1. Revise the City’s General 
Plan/Community Plans to ensure that new or 
relocated sensitive receptors are located to minimize 
significant health risks posed by air pollution sources. 

Not Applicable. This policy calls for City updates to its 
General Plan. 

Policy 4.3.2. Revise the City’s General 
Plan/Community Plans to ensure that new or 
relocated major air pollution sources are located to 
minimize significant health risks to sensitive 
receptors. 

Not Applicable. This policy calls for City updates to its 
General Plan. 

Policy 5.1.1. Make improvements in Harbor and 
airport operations and facilities in order to reduce air 
emissions. 

Not Applicable. This policy calls for cleaner 
operations of the City’s water port and airport facilities. 

Policy 5.1.2. Effect a reduction in energy 
consumption and shift to non-polluting sources of 
energy in its buildings and operations. 

Not Applicable. This policy calls for cleaner 
operations of the City’s buildings and operations. 

Policy 5.1.3. Have the Department of Water and 
Power make improvements at its in-basin power 
plants in order to reduce air emissions. 

Not Applicable. This policy calls for cleaner 
operations of the City’s Water and Power energy 
plants. 



  Air Quality Technical Report 

4649 Maubert Avenue Project  City of Los Angeles 
DKA Planning  May 2019 

Page 31

Table 5 
Project Consistency With City Of Los Angeles General Plan Air Quality Element 

Strategy Project Consistency 
Policy 5.1.4. Reduce energy consumption and 
associated air emissions by encouraging waste 
reduction and recycling. 

Consistent. The Proposed Project would be 
consistent with this policy by complying with Title 24, 
CALGreen, and other requirements to reduce solid 
waste and energy consumption. 

Policy 5.2.1. Reduce emissions from its own vehicles 
by continuing scheduled maintenance, inspection and 
vehicle replacement programs; by adhering to the 
State of California’s emissions testing and monitoring 
programs; by using alternative fuel vehicles wherever 
feasible, in accordance with regulatory agencies and 
City Council policies. 

Not Applicable. This policy calls for the City to 
gradually reduce the fleet emissions inventory from its 
vehicles through use of alternative fuels, improved 
maintenance practices, and related operational 
improvements. 

Policy 5.3.1. Support the development and use of 
equipment powered by electric of low-emitting fuels. 

Consistent. The Project would be designed to meet 
the applicable requirements of the States Green 
Building Standards Code and the City of Los Angeles’ 
Green Building Code. 

Policy 6.1.1. Raise awareness through public-
information and education programs of the actions 
that individuals can take to reduce air emissions. 

Not Applicable. This policy calls for the City to 
promote clean air awareness through its public 
awareness programs. 

Source: DKA Planning, 2019. 
 

Threshold b) Would the project result in a cumulatively considerable net 
increase of any criteria pollutant for which the project region is 
non-attainment under an applicable federal or State ambient air 
quality standard? 

(1) Construction 
Construction-related emissions were estimated using the South Coast Air Quality Management 
District’s (SCAQMD’s) CalEEMod 2016.3.2 model using assumptions from the Project’s 
developer, including the Project’s construction schedule of approximately 26 months. Table 6 
summarizes the potential construction schedule that was modeled for air quality impacts. 

Table 6 
Potential Construction Schedule 

Phase Duration Notes 
Demolition Month 1  
Site Preparation Month 2 (two weeks)  

Grading Months 2-3 (four 
weeks) 

6,689 cubic yards of material exported 20 
miles 

Building Construction Months 3-19  
Architectural Coatings Months 16-19  
Source: DKA Planning, 2019 

 
The Project would be required to comply with the following regulations, as applicable:  



  Air Quality Technical Report 

4649 Maubert Avenue Project  City of Los Angeles 
DKA Planning  May 2019 

Page 32

• SCAQMD Rule 403, would reduce the amount of particulate matter entrained in ambient air 
as a result of anthropogenic fugitive dust sources by requiring actions to prevent, reduce or 
mitigate fugitive dust emissions. 

• SCAQMD Rule 1113, which limits the VOC content of architectural coatings.  

• SCAQMD Rule 402, which states that a person shall not discharge from any source 
whatsoever such quantities of air contaminants or other materials which cause injury, 
detriment, nuisance, or annoyance to any considerable number of persons or to the public, 
or which endanger the comfort, repose, health, or safety of any such persons or the public, 
or which cause, or have a natural tendency to cause, injury or damage to business or 
property. 

(a) Regional Emissions 

Construction activity has the potential to create air quality impacts through the use of heavy-duty 
construction equipment and through vehicle trips generated by construction workers traveling to 
and from the Project Site. Fugitive dust emissions would primarily result from grading activities. 
NOX emissions would primarily result from the use of construction equipment and truck trips. 
During the building finishing phase, paving and the application of architectural coatings (e.g., 
paints) would potentially release VOCs (regulated by SCAQMD Rule 1113). The assessment of 
construction air quality impacts considers each of these potential sources. Construction 
emissions can vary substantially from day to day, depending on the level of activity, the specific 
type of operation and, for dust, the prevailing weather conditions. 

As stated above, it is mandatory for all construction projects in the Basin to comply with 
SCAQMD Rule 403 for Fugitive Dust. Rule 403 control requirements include measures to 
prevent the generation of visible dust plumes. Measures include, but are not limited to, applying 
water and/or soil binders to uncovered areas, reestablishing ground cover as quickly as 
possible, utilizing a wheel washing system or other control measures to remove bulk material 
from tires and vehicle undercarriages before vehicles exit the Project Site, and maintaining 
effective cover over exposed areas. Compliance with Rule 403 would reduce regional PM2.5 and 
PM10 emissions associated with construction activities by approximately 61 percent.  

This analysis also assumes a single-trip haul distance of up to 20 miles to a landfill. However, 
closer locations may be determined feasible, which would result in lower emissions for the 
Project.  

As shown in Table 7, the construction of the Project will produce VOC, NOX, CO, SOX, PM10 and 
PM2.5 emissions that do not exceed the SCAQMD’s regional thresholds. As a result, 
construction of the Project would not contribute substantially to an existing violation of air quality 
standards for regional pollutants (e.g., ozone). This impact is considered less than 
significant. 



  Air Quality Technical Report 

4649 Maubert Avenue Project  City of Los Angeles 
DKA Planning  May 2019 

Page 33

Table 7 
Estimated Daily Construction Daily Emissions - Unmitigated 

Construction Phase Year 
Daily Emissions (Pounds Per Day) 

VOC NOX CO SOX PM10 PM2.5 
2019 2 14 14 <1 2 1 
2020 10 12 16 <1 2 1 
2021 10 11 15 <1 2 1 

 
Maximum Regional Total 10 14 16 <1 2 1 

Regional Threshold 75 100 550 150 150 55 
Exceed Threshold? No No No No No No 

 
Maximum Localized Total 9 22 9 <1 1 1 

Localized Threshold -- 74 680 -- 2 1 
Exceed Threshold? N/A No No N/A No No 

Assumes implementation of SCAQMD Rule 403 (Fugitive Dust Emissions) 
Source: DKA Planning, 2019 based on CalEEMod 2016.3.2 model runs. LST analyses based 
on 1-acre site with 25-meter distances to receptors in Central LA source receptor area. 

 

(b) Localized Emissions 

In addition to maximum daily regional emissions, maximum localized (onsite) emissions were 
quantified for each construction activity. The localized construction air quality analysis was 
conducted using the methodology promulgated by the SCAQMD. Look-up tables provided by 
the SCAQMD were used to determine localized construction emissions thresholds for the 
Project.37 LSTs represent the maximum emissions from a project that are not expected to cause 
or contribute to an exceedance of the most stringent applicable federal or state ambient air 
quality standard and are based on the most recent background ambient air quality monitoring 
data (2015–2017) for the Project area. 

Maximum on-site daily construction emissions for NOX, CO, PM10, and PM2.5 were calculated 
using CalEEMod and compared to the applicable SCAQMD LSTs for the Central LA SRA based 
on construction site acreage that is less than or equal to one acre. Potential impacts were 
evaluated at the closest off-site sensitive receptor, which are apartments at 4621-4627 Maubert 
Avenue, about ten feet east of the Proposed Project. The closest receptor distance on the 
SCAQMD mass rate LST look-up tables is 25 meters. 

As shown in Table 7, above, the Project would produce emissions that do not exceed the 
SCAQMD’s recommended localized standards of significance for NO2 and CO during the 
construction phase. Similarly, construction activities would not produce PM10 and PM2.5 
emissions that exceed localized thresholds recommended by the SCAQMD.   

These estimates assume the use of Best Available Control Measures (BACM) that address 
fugitive dust emissions of PM10 and PM2.5 through SCAQMD Rule 403. This would include 
watering portions of the site that are disturbed during grading activities and minimizing tracking 

                                                
37  SCAQMD, LST Methodology Appendix C-Mass Rate LST Look-up Table, revised October 2009. 



  Air Quality Technical Report 

4649 Maubert Avenue Project  City of Los Angeles 
DKA Planning  May 2019 

Page 34

of dirt onto local streets. Therefore, construction impacts on localized air quality are 
considered less than significant. 

A cumulatively considerable net increase would occur if the project’s construction impacts 
substantially contribute to air quality violations when considering other projects that may 
undertake construction activities at the same time.  

Construction of the Project would not contribute significantly to cumulative emissions of any 
non-attainment regional pollutants. For regional ozone precursors, the Project would not exceed 
SCAQMD mass emission thresholds for ozone precursors during construction. Similarly, 
regional emissions of PM10 and PM2.5 would not exceed mass thresholds established by the 
SCAQMD. Therefore, construction emissions impact on regional criteria pollutant 
emissions would be considered less than significant. 

When considering local impacts, cumulative construction emissions are considered when 
projects are within close proximity of each other that could result in larger impacts on local 
sensitive receptors. Construction of the Project itself would not produce cumulative considerable 
emissions of localized nonattainment pollutants PM10 and PM2.5, as the anticipated emissions 
would not exceed LST thresholds set by the SCAQMD. Therefore, construction emissions 
impact on localized criteria pollutant emissions would be considered less than 
significant. 

If any related project were to undertake construction concurrently with the Project, localized CO, 
PM2.5, PM10, and NO2 concentrations would be further increased. However, the application of 
LST thresholds to this project would help ensure that it does not produce localized hotspots of 
CO, PM2.5, PM10, and NO2. This and any related projects that would exceed LST thresholds 
(after mitigation) could perform dispersion modeling to confirm whether health-based air quality 
standards would be violated. The SCAQMD’s LST thresholds recognize the influence of a 
receptor’s proximity, setting mass emissions thresholds for PM10 and PM2.5 that generally 
double with every doubling of distance. 

There is an existing regional cumulative impact associated with O3, NO2, PM10, and PM2.5 

because the Basin is designated as a State and/or federal nonattainment air basin for these 
pollutants. However, an individual Project can emit these pollutants without significantly 
contributing to this cumulative impact depending on the magnitude of emissions. As discussed 
above, construction and operational emissions Project would not exceed any applicable 
SCAQMD thresholds of significance.  

With respect to the Project’s construction-related air quality emissions and cumulative Air Basin-
wide conditions, the SCAQMD has developed strategies (e.g., SCAQMD Rule 403) to reduce 
criteria pollutant emissions outlined in the AQMP pursuant to Federal CAA mandates. As stated 
above, the Project would comply with applicable regulatory requirements, including the 
SCAQMD Rule 403 requirements. Per SCAQMD rules and mandates as well as the CEQA 
requirement that significant impacts be mitigated to the extent feasible, all construction projects 



  Air Quality Technical Report 

4649 Maubert Avenue Project  City of Los Angeles 
DKA Planning  May 2019 

Page 35

Air Basin-wide would comply with these same regulatory requirements and would implement all 
feasible mitigation measures when significant impacts are identified. 

According to the SCAQMD, individual projects that exceed the SCAQMD’s recommended daily 
thresholds for project-specific impacts would cause a cumulatively considerable increase in 
emissions for those pollutants for which the Air Basin is in non-attainment. As shown in Table 7, 
Project construction daily emissions would not exceed any of the SCAQMD’s regional or 
localized thresholds. Therefore, the Project’s contribution to cumulative construction-
related regional or localized emissions would not be cumulatively considerable and, 
thus, would be less than significant.  

(2) Operation 

Operational emissions of criteria pollutants would come from area sources and mobile sources. 
Area sources include natural gas for space heating and water heating, gasoline-powered 
landscaping and maintenance equipment, consumer products such as household cleaners, and 
architectural coatings for routine maintenance.  

The Project will also produce long-term air quality impacts to the region primarily from motor 
vehicles that access the Project site. The Project could add up to 620 net vehicle trips on a peak 
weekday at the start of operations in 2021.38 The air quality analysis conservatively accounts for 
all daily trips as new emissions. CalEEMod program generates estimates of emissions from 
energy use based on the land use type and size. 

As shown in Table 8, the Project would not exceed the SCAQMD’s regional or localized 
significance thresholds. The Project operational impacts on long-term air pollution would be 
considered less than significant. Therefore, the operational impacts of the Project on 
regional and localized air quality are considered less than significant. 

Table 8 
Estimated Daily Operations Emissions - Unmitigated 

Emissions Source 
Daily Emissions (Pounds Per Day) 

VOC NOX CO SOX PM10 PM2.5 
Area Sources 3 <1 13 <1 1 1 

Energy Sources <1 <1 <1 <1 <1 <1 
Mobile Sources 1 6 19 <1 5 1 

Gross Regional Total 4 7 30 <1 5 2 
Existing Emissions -4 -1 -11 -<1 -2 -1 
Net Regional Total <1 6 21 <1 3 1 

Regional Significance Threshold 55 55 550 150 150 55 
Exceed Threshold? No No No No No No 

 
Net Localized Total <1 4 13 <1 <1 <1 

Localized Significance Threshold N/A 74 680 N/A 2 1 
Exceed Threshold? No No No No No No 

                                                
38  Gibson Transportation Consulting, Inc.  Transportation Impact Study for the Maubert Residential 

Project.  May 2019. 



  Air Quality Technical Report 

4649 Maubert Avenue Project  City of Los Angeles 
DKA Planning  May 2019 

Page 36

Table 8 
Estimated Daily Operations Emissions - Unmitigated 

Source: DKA Planning, 2019 based on CalEEMod 2016.3.2 model runs. LST analyses based 
on 1-acre site with 25-meter distances to receptors in Central LA source receptor area. 

 

As for cumulative operational impacts, the proposed land use will not produce cumulatively 
considerable emissions of nonattainment pollutants at the regional or local level. The Project 
would not include major sources of combustion or fugitive dust. As a result, its localized 
emissions of PM10 and PM2.5 would be minimal. Likewise, existing land uses in the area include 
land uses that do not produce substantial emissions of localized nonattainment pollutants. As 
shown in Table 8, Project operation daily emissions would not exceed any of the SCAQMD’s 
regional or localized thresholds. Because the Project’s air quality impacts would not exceed the 
SCAQMD’s operational thresholds of significance. Therefore, the Project’s contribution to 
cumulative operation-related regional or localized emissions would not be cumulatively 
considerable and, thus, would be less than significant. 

Threshold c) Would the project expose sensitive receptors to substantial 
pollutant concentrations?   

There are several existing sensitive receptors within 500 feet of the Project Site, including but 
not limited to: 

• Multi-family residences, 4621-4627 Maubert Avenue; approximately 10 feet east of the 
Project Site. 

• Children’s Hospital Los Angeles, The Saban Research Institute, 4641 Sunset Boulevard; 
approximately 110 feet south of the Project Site. 

• Multi-family residences, 4648 Hollywood Boulevard; approximately 150 feet north of the 
Project Site. 

• Kaiser Permanente, 1515 North Vermont Avenue; approximately 360 feet southwest of 
the Project Site. 

 

(1) Construction 
Construction of the Project could expose sensitive receptors to substantial pollutant concentrations if 
maximum daily emissions of regulated pollutants generated by sources located on and/or near the 
Project site exceeded the applicable LST values presented in Table 4, or if construction activities 
generated significant emissions of TACs that could result in carcinogenic risks or non-carcinogenic 
hazards exceeding the SCAQMD Air Quality Significance Thresholds of 10 excess cancers per 
million or non-carcinogenic Hazard Index greater than 1.0, respectively. As discussed above, the 
LST values were derived by the SCAQMD for the criteria pollutants NOX, CO, PM10, and PM2.5 to 
prevent the occurrence of concentrations exceeding the air quality standards at sensitive 
receptor locations based on proximity and construction site size.  

As shown in Table 7, during construction of the Project, maximum daily localized unmitigated 
emissions of NO2, CO, PM10, and PM2.5 from sources on the Project site would remain below 



  Air Quality Technical Report 

4649 Maubert Avenue Project  City of Los Angeles 
DKA Planning  May 2019 

Page 37

each of the respective LST values. Unmitigated maximum daily localized emissions would not 
exceed any of the localized standards for receptors that are generally within 25 meters of the 
Proposed Project’s construction activities. Therefore, based on SCAQMD guidance, localized 
emissions of criteria pollutants would not have the potential to expose sensitive receptors to 
substantial concentrations that would present a public health concern.  

The primary TAC that would be generated by construction activities is diesel PM, which would be 
released from the exhaust stacks of construction equipment. The construction emissions modeling 
conservatively assumed that all equipment present on the Project Site would be operating 
simultaneously and continuously throughout most of the day, while in all likelihood this would rarely 
be the case. Average daily emissions of diesel PM would be less than one pound per day 
throughout the course of Project construction. Therefore, the magnitude of daily diesel PM 
emissions, would not be sufficient to result in substantial pollutant concentrations at off-site 
residential locations nearby.  

Furthermore, according to SCAQMD methodology, health risks from carcinogenic air toxics are 
usually described in terms of individual cancer risk. “Individual Cancer Risk” is the likelihood that a 
person exposed to concentrations of TACs over a 30-year period will contract cancer based on the 
use of standard risk-assessment methodology. The entire duration of construction activities 
associated with implementation of the Project is anticipated to be approximately 26 months, and the 
magnitude of daily diesel PM emissions will vary over this time period. No residual emissions and 
corresponding individual cancer risk are anticipated after construction. Because there is such a 
short-term exposure period, construction TAC emissions would result in a less-than significant 
impact. Therefore, construction of the Project would not expose sensitive receptors to 
substantial diesel PM concentrations, and this impact would be less than significant.  

(2) Operation 

The Project Site would be developed with land uses that are not typically associated with TAC 
emissions. Typical sources of acutely and chronically hazardous TACs include industrial 
manufacturing processes (e.g., chrome plating, electrical manufacturing, petroleum refinery). 
The Project would not include these types of potential industrial manufacturing process sources. 
It is expected that quantities of hazardous TACs generated on-site (e.g., cleaning solvents, 
paints, landscape pesticides, etc.) for the types of proposed land uses would be below 
thresholds warranting further study under California Accidental Release Program.  

When considering potential air quality impacts under CEQA, consideration is given to the 
location of sensitive receptors within close proximity of land uses that emit TACs. CARB has 
published and adopted the Air Quality and Land Use Handbook: A Community Health 
Perspective, which provides recommendations regarding the siting of new sensitive land uses 
near potential sources of air toxic emissions (e.g., freeways, distribution centers, rail yards, 

ports, refineries, chrome plating facilities, dry cleaners, and gasoline dispensing facilities).
39  

                                                
39 CARB, Air Quality and Land Use Handbook, a Community Health Perspective, April 2005. 



  Air Quality Technical Report 

4649 Maubert Avenue Project  City of Los Angeles 
DKA Planning  May 2019 

Page 38

The SCAQMD adopted similar recommendations in its Guidance Document for Addressing Air 

Quality Issues in General Plans and Local Planning.
40

 Together, the CARB and SCAQMD 
guidelines recommend siting distances for both the development of sensitive land uses in 
proximity to TAC sources and the addition of new TAC sources in proximity to existing sensitive 
land uses. 

The primary sources of potential air toxics associated with Project operations include DPM from 
delivery trucks (e.g., truck traffic on local streets and idling on adjacent streets) and to a lesser 
extent, facility operations (e.g., natural gas fired boilers). However, these activities, and the land 
uses associated with the Project, are not considered land uses that generate substantial TAC 
emissions. It should be noted that the SCAQMD recommends that health risk assessments 
(HRAs) be conducted for substantial individual sources of DPM (e.g., truck stops and 
warehouse distribution facilities that generate more than 100 trucks per day or more than 40 
trucks with operating transport refrigeration units) and has provided guidance for analyzing 

mobile source diesel emissions.
41 Based on this guidance, the Project would not include these 

types of land uses and is not considered to be a substantial source of DPM warranting a refined 
HRA since daily truck trips to the Project Site would not exceed 100 trucks per day or more than 
40 trucks with operating transport refrigeration units. In addition, the CARB-mandated ATCM 
limits diesel-fueled commercial vehicles (delivery trucks) to idle for no more than 5 minutes at 
any given time, which would further limit diesel particulate emissions. 

As the Project would not contain substantial TAC sources and is consistent with the CARB and 
SCAQMD guidelines, the Project would not result in the exposure of off-site sensitive receptors 
to carcinogenic or toxic air contaminants that exceed the maximum incremental cancer risk of 
10 in one million or an acute or chronic hazard index of 1.0, and potential TAC impacts would be 
less than significant. 

The Project would generate long-term emissions on-site from area and energy sources that 
would generate negligible pollutant concentrations of CO, NO2, PM2.5, or PM10 at nearby 
sensitive receptors. While long-term operations of the Project would generate traffic that 
produces off-site emissions, these would not result in exceedances of CO air quality standards 
at roadways in the area due to three key factors. First, CO hotspots are extremely rare and only 
occur in the presence of unusual atmospheric conditions and extremely cold conditions, neither 
of which applies to this Project area. Second, auto-related emissions of CO continue to decline 
because of advances in fuel combustion technology in the vehicle fleet. Finally, the Project 
would not contribute to the levels of congestion that would be needed to produce the amount of 
emissions needed to trigger a potential CO hotspot.42 

                                                
40 SCAQMD, Guidance Document for Addressing Air Quality Issues in General Plans and Local 

Planning, May 6, 2005. 
41 SCAQMD, Health Risk Assessment Guidance for Analyzing Cancer Risks from Mobile Source Diesel 

Idling Emissions for CEQA Air Quality Analysis, 2002. 
42  Caltrans, Transportation Project-Level Carbon Monoxide Protocol, updated October 13, 2010. 



  Air Quality Technical Report 

4649 Maubert Avenue Project  City of Los Angeles 
DKA Planning  May 2019 

Page 39

Finally, the Project would not result in any substantial emissions of TACs during the construction 
or operations phase. During the construction phase, the primary air quality impacts would be 
associated with the combustion of diesel fuels, which produce exhaust-related particulate matter 
that is considered a toxic air contaminant by CARB based on chronic exposure to these 
emissions.43 However, construction activities would not produce chronic, long-term exposure to 
diesel particulate matter. During long-term project operations, the Project does not include 
typical sources of acutely and chronically hazardous TACs such as industrial manufacturing 
processes and automotive repair facilities. As a result, the Project would not create substantial 
concentrations of TACs.  

In addition, the SCAQMD recommends that health risk assessments be conducted for 
substantial sources of diesel particulate emissions (e.g., truck stops and warehouse distribution 
facilities) and has provided guidance for analyzing mobile source diesel emissions.44 The 
Project would not generate a substantial number of truck trips. Based on the limited activity of 
TAC sources, the Project would not warrant the need for a health risk assessment associated 
with on-site activities. Therefore, Project impacts would be less than significant. 

Threshold e) Would the project result in other emissions (such as those leading 
to odors) adversely affecting a substantial number of people? 

The Project Site would not create objectionable odor impacts, as it does not include land uses 
typically associated with odors (e.g., rendering plants, manufacturing facilities, truck distribution 
centers). Thus, the Project would have a less than significant impact with respect to Threshold 
e). No further analysis is required. 

e) Cumulative Impacts 
SCAQMD recommends that any construction-related emissions and operational emissions from 
individual development projects that exceed the project-specific mass daily emissions 
thresholds identified above also be considered cumulatively considerable.45 Individual projects 
that generate emissions not in excess of SCAQMD’s significance thresholds would not 
contribute considerably to any potential cumulative impact. SCAQMD neither recommends 
quantified analyses of the emissions generated by a set of cumulative development projects nor 
provides thresholds of significance to be used to assess the impacts associated with these 
emissions.  

(1) AQMP Consistency 

                                                
43  California Office of Environmental Health Hazard Assessment. Health Effects of Diesel Exhaust. www. 

http://oehha.ca.gov/public_info/facts/dieselfacts.html  
44 SCAQMD, Health Risk Assessment Guidance for Analyzing Cancer Risks from Mobile Source Diesel 

Emissions, December 2002. 
45 White Paper on Regulatory Options for Addressing Cumulative Impacts from Air Pollution Emissions, 

SCAQMD Board Meeting, September 5, 2003, Agenda No. 29, Appendix D, p. D-3. 



  Air Quality Technical Report 

4649 Maubert Avenue Project  City of Los Angeles 
DKA Planning  May 2019 

Page 40

Cumulative development is not expected to result in a significant impact in terms of conflicting 
with, or obstructing implementation of the 2016 AQMP. As discussed previously, growth 
considered to be consistent with the AQMP would not interfere with attainment because this 
growth is included in the projections utilized in the formulation of the AQMP. Consequently, as 
long as growth in the Basin is within the projections for growth identified in the 2016 RTP/SCS, 
implementation of the AQMP will not be obstructed by such growth. In addition, as discussed 
previously, the population growth resulting from the Project would be consistent with the growth 
projections of the AQMP. Each related project would implement feasible air quality mitigation 
measures to reduce the criteria air pollutants, if required due to any significant emissions 
impacts. In addition, each related project would be evaluated for its consistency with the land 
use policies set forth in the AQMP. Therefore, the Project’s contribution to the cumulative 
impact would not be cumulatively considerable and, therefore, would be less than 
significant. 

(2) Construction 

As discussed above, the Project’s construction-related air quality emissions and cumulative 
impacts would be less than significant. The Project would comply with regulatory requirements, 
including the SCAQMD Rule 403 requirements listed above. Based on SCAQMD guidance, 
individual construction projects that exceed the SCAQMD’s recommended daily thresholds for 
project-specific impacts would cause a cumulatively considerable increase in emissions for 
those pollutants for which the Air Basin is in non-attainment. As shown above, construction-
related daily emissions at the Project Site would not exceed any of the SCAQMD’s regional or 
localized significance thresholds. Therefore, the Project’s contribution to cumulative air 
quality impacts due to localized emissions would not be cumulatively considerable and, 
therefore, would be less than significant. 

Similar to the Project, the greatest potential for TAC emissions at each related project would 
generally involve diesel particulate emissions associated with heavy equipment operations 
during grading and excavation activities. According to SCAQMD methodology, health effects 
from carcinogenic air toxics are usually described in terms of individual cancer risk. “Individual 
Cancer Risk” is the likelihood that a person exposed to concentrations of TACs over a 30-year 
period will contract cancer, based on the use of standard risk-assessment methodology. 
Construction activities are temporary and short-term events, thus construction activities at each 
related project would not result in a long-term substantial source of TAC emissions. Additionally, 
the SCAQMD CEQA guidance does not require a health risk assessment for short-term 
construction emissions. It is therefore not meaningful to evaluate long-term cancer impacts from 
construction activities, which occur over relatively short durations. As such, given the short-
term nature of these activities, cumulative toxic emission impacts during construction 
would be less than significant. 

(3) Operation 



  Air Quality Technical Report 

4649 Maubert Avenue Project  City of Los Angeles 
DKA Planning  May 2019 

Page 41

As discussed above, the Project’s operational air quality emissions and cumulative impacts 
would be less than significant. According to the SCAQMD, if an individual project results in air 
emissions of criteria pollutants that exceed the SCAQMD’s recommended daily thresholds for 
project-specific impacts, then the project would also result in a cumulatively considerable net 
increase of these criteria pollutants. As operational emissions would not exceed any of the 
SCAQMD’s regional or localized significance thresholds, the emissions of non-attainment 
pollutants and precursors generated by Project operations would not be cumulatively 
considerable. 

With respect to TAC emissions, neither the Project nor any of the related projects (which are 
largely residential, retail/commercial, and office in nature), would represent a substantial source 
of TAC emissions, which are typically associated with large-scale industrial, manufacturing, and 
transportation hub facilities. The Project and related projects would be consistent with the 
recommended screening level siting distances for TAC sources, as set forth in CARB’s Land 
Use Guidelines, and the Project and related projects would not result in a cumulative impact 
requiring further evaluation. However, the related projects could generate minimal TAC 
emissions related to the use of consumer products and landscape maintenance activities, 
among other things. Pursuant to AB 1807, which directs the CARB to identify substances as 
TACs and adopt airborne toxic control measures to control such substances, the SCAQMD has 
adopted numerous rules (primarily in Regulation XIV) that specifically address TAC emissions. 
These SCAQMD rules have resulted in and will continue to result in substantial Basin-wide TAC 
emissions reductions. As such, cumulative TAC emissions during long-term operations would 
be less than significant. Therefore, the Project would not result in any substantial sources 
of TACs that have been identified by the CARB’s Land Use Guidelines, and thus, would 
not contribute to a cumulative impact. 

f) Regulatory Compliance Measures 
RCM-AIR-1 The project shall comply with applicable SCAQMD rules and regulations during 

construction activities and long-term operation of the project, including but not 
limited to: 

o Rule 401 Visible Emissions  

o Rule 402 Nuisance 

o Rule 403 Fugitive Dust  

g) Mitigation Measures 
The Project would not result in any significant air quality impacts and no mitigation measures 
are required. 



  Air Quality Technical Report 

4649 Maubert Avenue Project  City of Los Angeles 
DKA Planning  May 2019 

Page 42

h) Level of Significance After Mitigation 
Project impacts related to air quality would be less than significant.  

Cumulative impacts related to air quality would be less than significant. 

 











































































































































































































 

Appendix J 

Noise Technical Report 



   Noise Technical Report 

4649 Maubert Avenue Project  City of Los Angeles 
DKA Planning  May 2019 

Page 1

Noise Technical Report 

1. Introduction  
This analysis evaluates noise and vibration impacts that would be generated by construction 
and operation of the Project. The analysis compares these impacts to applicable regulations 
and thresholds of significance. Noise measurement technical reports, calculation worksheets, 
and a map of noise receptors and measurement locations are attached to this technical report.  

2. Environmental Setting 
a) Fundamentals of Noise and Vibration 

(1) Introduction to Noise 

(a) Characteristics of Sound 

Sound can be described in terms of its loudness (amplitude) and frequency (pitch). The 
standard unit of measurement for sound is the decibel (i.e., dB). Because the human ear is not 
equally sensitive to sound at all frequencies, the A-weighted scale (dBA) is used to reflect the 
normal hearing sensitivity range. On this scale, the range of human hearing extends from 3 to 
140 dBA. Table 1 provides examples of A-weighted noise levels from common sources. 

Table 1 
A-Weighted Decibel Scale 

Typical A-Weighted Sound Levels Sound Level (dBA Leq) 
Near Jet Engine 130 
Rock and Roll Band 110 
Jet flyover at 1,000 feet 100 
Power Motor 90 
Food Blender 80 
Living Room Music 70 
Human Voice at 3 feet 60 
Residential Air Conditioner at 50 feet 50 
Bird Calls 40 
Quiet Living Room 30 
Average Whisper 20 
Rustling Leaves 10 
Source: Cowan, James P., Handbook of Environmental Acoustics, 1993.  
These noise levels are approximations intended for general reference and informational use. They do not meet the 
standard required for detailed noise analysis, but are provided for the reader to gain a rudimentary concept of 
various noise levels.  

(b) Noise Definitions 

This noise analysis discusses sound levels in terms of equivalent noise level (Leq), maximum 
noise level (Lmax) and the Community Noise Equivalent Level (CNEL).  



   Noise Technical Report 

4649 Maubert Avenue Project  City of Los Angeles 
DKA Planning  May 2019 

Page 2

Equivalent Noise Level (Leq): Leq represents the average noise level on an energy basis for a 
specific time period. Average noise level is based on the energy content (acoustic energy) of 
sound. For example, the Leq for one hour is the energy average noise level during that hour. Leq 
can be thought of as a continuous noise level of a certain period equivalent in energy content to 
a fluctuating noise level of that same period. Leq is expressed in units of dBA. 

Maximum Noise Level (Lmax): Lmax represents the maximum instantaneous noise level measured 
during a given time period. 

Community Noise Equivalent Level (CNEL): CNEL is an adjusted noise measurement scale of 
average sound level during a 24-hour period. Due to increased noise sensitivities during 
evening and night hours, human reaction to sound between 7:00 P.M. and 10:00 P.M. is as if it 
were actually 5 dBA higher than had it occurred between 7:00 A.M. and 7:00 P.M. From 10:00 
P.M. to 7:00 A.M., humans perceive sound as if it were 10 dBA higher. To account for these 
sensitivities, CNEL figures are obtained by adding an additional 5 dBA to evening noise levels 
between 7:00 P.M. and 10:00 P.M. and 10 dBA to nighttime noise levels between 10:00 P.M. 
and 7:00 A.M. Because of this, 24-hour CNEL figures are always higher than their 
corresponding actual 24-hour averages.  

(c) Effects of Noise 

The degree to which noise can impact an environment ranges from levels that interfere with 
speech and sleep to levels that can cause adverse health effects. Most human response to 
noise is subjective. Factors that influence individual responses include the intensity, frequency, 
and pattern of noise; the amount of background noise present; and the nature of work or human 
activity exposed to intruding noise.  

According to the National Institute of Health (NIH), extended or repeated exposure to sounds at 
or above 85 dB can cause hearing loss. Sounds of 75 dBA or less, even after continuous 
exposure, are unlikely to cause hearing loss.1 The World Health Organization (WHO) reports 
that adults should not be exposed to sudden “impulse” noise events of 140 dB or greater. For 
children, this limit is 120 dB.2  

Exposure to elevated nighttime noise levels can disrupt sleep, leading to increased levels of 
fatigue and decreased work or school performance. For the preservation of healthy sleeping 
environments, the WHO recommends that continuous interior noise levels not exceed 30 dBA, 
Leq and that individual noise events of 45 dBA or higher be limited.3 Assuming a conservative 
exterior to interior sound reduction of 15 dBA, continuous exterior noise levels should therefore 
not exceed 45 dBA Leq. Individual exterior events of 60 dBA or higher should also be limited. 

Some epidemiological studies have shown a weak association between long-term exposure to 
noise levels of 65 to 70 dBA, Leq and cardiovascular effects, including ischaemic heart disease 
and hypertension. However, at this time, the relationship is largely inconclusive. 
                                                
1  National Institute of Health, National Institute on Deafness and Other Communication, www.nidcd.nih.gov/health/noise-induced-

hearing-loss. 
2  World Health Organization, Guidelines for Community Noise, 1999. 
3  Ibid. 



   Noise Technical Report 

4649 Maubert Avenue Project  City of Los Angeles 
DKA Planning  May 2019 

Page 3

People with normal hearing sensitivity can recognize small perceptible changes in sound levels 
of approximately 3 dBA. Changes of at least 5 dBA can be readily noticeable and may cause 
community reactions. Sound level increases of 10 dBA or greater are perceived as a doubling in 
loudness and can provoke a community response.4 However, few people are highly annoyed by 
noise levels below 55 dBA Leq.5 

(d) Noise Attenuation 

Noise levels decrease as the distance from noise sources to receivers increases. For each 
doubling of distance, noise from stationary sources, commonly referred to as “point sources,” 
can decrease by approximately 6 dBA over hard surfaces (e.g., reflective surfaces such as 
parking lots) and 7.5 dBA over soft surfaces (e.g., absorptive surfaces such as soft dirt and 
grass). For example, if a point source produces a noise level of 89 dBA at a reference distance 
of 50 feet and over an asphalt surface, its noise level would be approximately 83 dBA at a 
distance of 100 feet, 77 dBA at 200 feet, etc. Noises generated by mobile “line” sources such as 
roadways decrease by approximately 3 dBA over hard surfaces and 4.5 dBA over soft surfaces 
for each doubling of distance. 

Noise is most audible when traveling by direct line of sight, an unobstructed visual path between 
noise source and receptor. Barriers that break line of sight between sources and receivers, such 
as walls and buildings, can greatly reduce source noise levels by allowing noise to reach 
receivers by diffraction only. As a result, sound barriers can reduce source noise levels by up to 
20 dBA, though it is generally infeasible for temporary barriers to reduce noise levels by more 
than 15 dBA.6  The effectiveness of barriers can be greatly reduced when they are not high or 
long enough to completely break line of sight from sources to receivers. 

It should be noted that because decibels are logarithmic units, they cannot be simply added or 
subtracted. For example, two cars each producing 60 dBA of noise would not produce a 
combined 120 dBA. 

(2) Introduction to Vibration 

(a) Characteristics of Vibration 

Vibration is an oscillatory motion through a solid medium in which the motion’s amplitude can be 
described in terms of displacement, velocity, and acceleration. Unlike noise, vibration is not a 
common environmental problem, as it is unusual for vibration from vehicle sources to be 
perceptible. Common sources of vibration include trains, construction activities, and certain 
industrial operations. 

   (b) Effects of Vibration 

                                                
4  Federal Transit Administration, Transit Noise and Vibration Impact Assessment, 2006.  
5  World Health Organization, Guidelines for Community Noise, 1999. 
6  California Department of Transportation, Technical Noise Supplement to the Traffic Noise Analysis Protocol, September 2013.  



   Noise Technical Report 

4649 Maubert Avenue Project  City of Los Angeles 
DKA Planning  May 2019 

Page 4

High levels of vibration may cause physical personal injury or damage to buildings. However, 
vibration levels rarely affect human health. Instead, most people consider vibration to be an 
annoyance that may affect concentration or disturb sleep. In addition, high levels of vibration 
may damage fragile buildings or interfere with equipment that is highly sensitive to vibration 
(e.g., electron microscopes).  

Unlike noise, groundborne vibration is not an environmental issue that most people experience 
every day. Background vibration levels in residential areas are usually well below the threshold 
of perception for humans, approximately 0.01 inch per second.7 Perceptible indoor vibrations 
are most often caused by sources within buildings themselves, such as slamming doors or 
heavy footsteps. Common outdoor sources of groundborne vibration include construction 
equipment, trains, and traffic on rough or unpaved roads. Traffic vibration from smooth and well-
maintained roads is typically not perceptible.  

(c) Vibration Definitions 

This analysis discusses vibration in terms of Peak Particle Velocity (PPV).  PPV is commonly 
used to describe and quantify vibration impacts to buildings and other structures. PPV levels 
represent the maximum instantaneous peak of a vibration signal and are usually measured in 
inches per second.8 

b) Regulatory Framework 

(1) Noise 

(a) Federal 

Currently, no federal noise standards regulate environmental noise associated with short-term 
construction activities or long-term operations of development projects. As such, temporary and 
long-term noise impacts produced by the Project would be largely regulated or evaluated by 
State and City of Los Angeles standards designed to protect public well-being and health.  

(b) State 

2017 General Plan Guidelines 

The State’s 2017 General Plan Guidelines establish county and city standards for acceptable 
exterior noise levels based on land use. These standards are incorporated into land use 
planning processes to prevent or reduce noise and land use incompatibilities. Table 2 illustrates 
State compatibility considerations between various land uses and exterior noise levels. 

Table 2 
State of California Noise/Land Use Compatibility Matrix 

Land Use Compatibility Community Noise Exposure (dBA, CNEL) 

                                                
7  Ibid. 
8 Federal Transit Administration (FTA), Transit Noise and Vibration Impact Assessment, 2006.  



   Noise Technical Report 

4649 Maubert Avenue Project  City of Los Angeles 
DKA Planning  May 2019 

Page 5

< 55 60 65 70 75 80 > 

Residential – Low Density Single-Family, Duplex Mobile Homes 

NA       
 CA     
    NU    
    CU 

Residential – Multi-Family 

NA      
  CA     
    NU    
    CU 

Transient Lodging – Motels, Hotels 

NA      
  CA     
    NU   
      CU 

Schools, Libraries, Churches, Hospitals, Nursing Homes 

NA     
  CA     
    NU   
      CU 

Auditoriums, Concert Halls, Amphitheaters 

        
CA   

   CU 
        

Sports Arenas, Outdoor Spectator Sports 

        
CA  

    CU 
        

Playgrounds, Neighborhood Parks 

NA     
   NU   
     CU 
        

Golf Courses, Riding Stables, Water Recreation, Cemeteries 

NA    
   NU  
       CU 
        

Office Buildings, Business Commercial and Professional 

NA     
   CA   
     NU 
        

Industrial, Manufacturing, Utilities, Agriculture 

NA    
   CA  
     NU 
        

NA = Normally Acceptable - Specified land use is satisfactory, based upon the assumption that any buildings involved are of normal 
conventional construction without any special noise insulation requirements. 
CA = Conditionally Acceptable - New construction or development should be undertaken only after a detailed analysis of the noise 
reduction requirements is made and needed noise insulation features included in the design. Conventional construction, but with closed 
windows and fresh air supply system or air conditioning will normally suffice. 
NU = Normally Unacceptable - New construction or development should generally be discouraged. If new construction or development 
does proceed, a detailed analysis of the noise reduction requirements must be made and needed noise insulation features included in 
the design. 
CU = Clearly Unacceptable - New construction or development should generally not be undertaken. 
Source: California Office of Planning and Research, General Plan Guidelines - Noise Element Guidelines (Appendix D), Figure 2, 2017. 

 

 

(c) City of Los Angeles 

General Plan Noise Element 

The City of Los Angeles General Plan includes a Noise Element that includes policies and 
standards in order to guide the control of noise to protect residents, workers, and visitors. Its 



   Noise Technical Report 

4649 Maubert Avenue Project  City of Los Angeles 
DKA Planning  May 2019 

Page 6

primary goal is to regulate long-term noise impacts to preserve acceptable noise environments 
for all types of land uses. However, the Noise Element contains no quantitative or other 
thresholds of significance for evaluating a project’s noise or vibration impacts. Instead, it adopts 
the State’s guidance on noise and land use compatibility, shown in Table 2 above, “to help 
guide determination of appropriate land use and mitigation measures vis-à-vis existing or 
anticipated ambient noise levels.” 

Los Angeles Municipal Code 

The City of Los Angeles Municipal Code (the “LAMC”) contains a number of regulations that 
would apply to the Project’s temporary construction activities and long-term operations.  

Section 41.40(a) would prohibit Project construction activities from occurring between the hours 
of 9:00 P.M. and 7:00 A.M., Monday through Friday. Subdivision (c) would further prohibit such 
activities from occurring before 8:00 A.M. or after 6:00 P.M. on any Saturday, or on any Sunday 
or national holiday. 

SEC.41.40. NOISE DUE TO CONSTRUCTION, EXCAVATION WORK—WHEN 
PROHIBITED. 

(a) No person shall, between the hours of 9:00 P.M. and 7:00 A.M. of the following 
day, perform any construction or repair work of any kind upon, or any excavating for, any 
building or structure, where any of the foregoing entails the use of any power drive drill, 
riveting machine excavator or any other machine, tool, device or equipment which 
makes loud noises to the disturbance of persons occupying sleeping quarters in any 
dwelling hotel or apartment or other place of residence. In addition, the operation, repair 
or servicing of construction equipment and the job-site delivering of construction 
materials in such areas shall be prohibited during the hours herein specified. Any person 
who knowingly and willfully violates the foregoing provision shall be deemed guilty of a 
misdemeanor punishable as elsewhere provided in this Code. 

(c) No person, other than an individual homeowner engaged in the repair or 
construction of his single-family dwelling shall perform any construction or repair work of 
any kind upon, or any earth grading for, any building or structure located on land 
developed with residential buildings under the provisions of Chapter I of this Code, or 
perform such work within 500 feet of land so occupied, before 8:00 A.M. or after 6:00 
P.M. on any Saturday or national holiday nor at any time on any Sunday. In addition, the 
operation, repair, or servicing of construction equipment and the job-site delivering of 
construction materials in such areas shall be prohibited on Saturdays and on Sundays 
during the hours herein specific  

Section 112.05 of the LAMC establishes noise limits for powered equipment and hand tools 
operated within 500 feet of residential zones. Of particular importance to construction activities 
is subdivision (a), which institutes a maximum noise limit of 75 dBA for the types of construction 
vehicles and equipment that would likely be used for the Project’s construction. However, the 
LAMC notes that these limitations would not necessarily apply if it can be proven that the 



   Noise Technical Report 

4649 Maubert Avenue Project  City of Los Angeles 
DKA Planning  May 2019 

Page 7

Project’s compliance would be technically infeasible despite the use of noise-reducing means or 
methods.  

SEC. 112.05. MAXIMUM NOISE LEVEL OF POWERED EQUIPMENT OR POWERED 
HAND TOOLS 

Between the hours of 7:00 A.M. and 10:00 P.M., in any residential zone of the City or 
within 500 feet thereof, no person shall operate or cause to be operated any powered 
equipment or powered hand tool that produces a maximum noise level exceeding the 
following noise limits at a distance of 50 feet therefrom: 

(a) 75 dBA for construction, industrial, and agricultural machinery including crawler-
tractors, dozers, rotary drills and augers, loaders, power shovels, cranes, derricks, motor 
graders, paving machines, off-highway trucks, ditchers, trenchers, compactors, scrapers, 
wagons, pavement breakers, compressors and pneumatic or other powered equipment; 

(b) 75 dBA for powered equipment of 20 HP or less intended for infrequent use in 
residential areas, including chain saws, log chippers and powered hand tools; 

(c) 65 dBA for powered equipment intended for repetitive use in residential areas, 
including lawn mowers, backpack blowers, small lawn and garden tools and riding 
tractors. 

Said noise limitations shall not apply where compliance therewith is technically 
infeasible. The burden of proving that compliance is technically infeasible shall be upon 
the person or persons charged with a violation of this section. Technical infeasibility shall 
mean that said noise limitations cannot be complied with despite the use of mufflers, 
shields, sound barriers and/or other noise reduction device or techniques during the 
operation of the equipment. 

Section 112.01 of the LAMC would prohibit any amplified noises, especially those from outdoor 
sources (e.g., outdoor speakers, stereo systems) from exceeding the ambient noise levels of 
adjacent properties by more than 5 dBA. Any amplified noises would also be prohibited from 
being audible at any distance greater than 150 feet from the Project’s property line, as the 
Project is located within 500 feet of residential zones. 

SEC.112.01. RADIOS, TELEVISION SETS, AND SIMILAR DEVICES 

(a) It shall be unlawful for any person within any zone of the City to use or operate 
any radio, musical instrument, phonograph, television receiver, or other machine or 
device for the producing, reproducing or amplification of the human voice, music, or any 
other sound, in such a manner, as to disturb the peace, quiet, and comfort of neighbor 
occupants or any reasonable person residing or working in the area. 

(b) Any noise level caused by such use or operation which is audible to the human 
ear at a distance in excess of 150 feet from the property line of the noise source, within 



   Noise Technical Report 

4649 Maubert Avenue Project  City of Los Angeles 
DKA Planning  May 2019 

Page 8

any residential zone of the City or within 500 feet thereof, shall be a violation of the 
provisions of this section. 

(c) Any noise level caused by such use or operation which exceeds the ambient 
noise level on the premises of any other occupied property, or if a condominium, 
apartment house, duplex, or attached business, within any adjoining unit, by more than 
five (5) decibels shall be a violation of the provisions of this section. 

Section 112.02(a) would prevent Project heating, ventilation, and air conditioning (HVAC) 
systems and other mechanical equipment from elevating ambient noise levels at neighboring 
residences by more than 5 dBA. 

SEC.112.02. AIR CONDITIONING, REFRIGERATION, HEATING, PLUMBING, 
FILTERING EQUIPMENT 

(a) It shall be unlawful for any person, within any zone of the city, to operate any air 
conditioning, refrigeration or heating equipment for any residence or other structure 
or to operate any pumping, filtering or heating equipment for any pool or reservoir in 
such manner as to create any noise which would cause the noise level on the 
premises of any other occupied property  to exceed the ambient noise level by 
more than five decibels.  

 (2) Vibration 

For the evaluation of construction-related vibration impacts, Federal Transit Administration 
(FTA) guidelines and recommendations are used given the absence of applicable federal, 
County, and City standards specific to temporary construction activities.  

 (a) Federal 

Federal Transit Administration (FTA) 

Though not regulatory in nature, the FTA has established vibration impact criteria for buildings 
and other structures, as potential building and structural damages are the generally the 
foremost concern when evaluating the impacts of construction-related vibrations. Table 3 
summarizes the FTA’s vibration guidelines for building and structural damage.  

Table 3 
FTA Construction Vibration Damage Criteria 

Building Category PPV (in/sec) 

I. Reinforced concrete, steel or timber (no plaster) 0.5 

II. Engineered concrete and masonry (no plaster) 0.3 

III. Non-engineered timber and masonry buildings 0.2 

IV. Buildings extremely susceptible to vibration damage 0.12 
Source: Federal Transit Administration, Transit Noise and Vibration Impact Assessment Manual, 2018.  



   Noise Technical Report 

4649 Maubert Avenue Project  City of Los Angeles 
DKA Planning  May 2019 

Page 9

 

(b) State 

There are no State standards that directly regulate groundborne vibration related to the 
construction or operation of the Project. 

   (c) City of Los Angeles 

There are no City standards that directly regulate groundborne vibration related to the 
construction or operation of the Project. 

c) Existing Conditions 

(1) Noise-Sensitive Receptors 

Land uses sensitive to noise may include residences, transient lodgings, schools, libraries, 
churches, hospitals, nursing homes, auditoriums, concert halls, amphitheaters, playgrounds, 
and parks.  Sensitive receptors within 1,000 feet of the Project Site include but are not limited to 
the following: 

• Multi-family residences, 4621-4627 Maubert Avenue; approximately 10 feet east of the 
Project Site. 

• Silverlake Conservatory of Music, 4652 Hollywood Boulevard; approximately 90 feet 
northwest of the Project Site. 

• Children’s Hospital Los Angeles, The Saban Research Institute, 4641 Sunset Boulevard; 
approximately 110 feet south of the Project Site. 

• Multi-family residences, 4648 Hollywood Boulevard; approximately 150 feet north of the 
Project Site. 

• Children’s Hospital Los Angeles, 4650 Sunset Boulevard; approximately 430 feet south 
of the Project Site. 

 
(2) Existing Ambient Noise Levels 

In February 2019, DKA Planning took short-term noise measurements near the Project site to 
determine the ambient noise conditions of the neighborhood. As shown in Table 4, noise levels 
along roadways near the Project Site are generally consistent with their traffic volumes. 

 
Table 4 

Existing Noise Levels 
Noise Monitoring Locations Sound Levels (dBA, Leq) 

4621-4627 Maubert Avenue 58.0 

Children’s Hospital Los Angeles-The Saban Institute 65.3 

Silverlake Conservatory of Music* 55.3 



   Noise Technical Report 

4649 Maubert Avenue Project  City of Los Angeles 
DKA Planning  May 2019 

Page 10

Children’s Hospital Los Angeles (4650 Sunset) 67.4 

* Measured at rear of property facing the Project Site across an alley 
Source: DKA Planning, 2019 

 

(3) Existing Groundborne Vibration Levels 

No sources of groundborne vibration were perceptible at any noise measurement locations on 
Sunset Boulevard, Vermont Avenue or any collector roads during the course of the field noise 
study. As such, groundborne vibration levels surrounding the Project site are generally 
imperceptible, suggesting that groundborne vibration levels are typically below the 0.01 inches 
per second threshold of perception for humans.  



   Noise Technical Report 

4649 Maubert Avenue Project  City of Los Angeles 
DKA Planning  May 2019 

Page 11

3. Project Impacts 
a) Methodology 

(1) On-Site Construction Activities 

The Project’s construction noise impact associated with its on-site construction activities was 
determined by identifying the maximum Lmax source noise levels of the Project’s potential 
construction equipment at a reference distance of 50 feet and comparing them to the 75 dBA at 
50 feet standard set by Section 112.05 of the LAMC, as the Project is located within 500 feet of 
residential zones. Noise levels were then conservatively adjusted to account for any standard, 
industry-wide “best practice” noise management techniques or features that would be adopted 
by the Project’s construction. 

Incremental noise increases at nearby sensitive receptors were estimated using logarithmic 
methodologies that consider reference equipment noise levels, noise management techniques, 
distance to receptors, and any attenuating features.  The distance from construction equipment 
noise sources (e.g., engines and tailpipes) assume that vehicles would not be capable of 
operating directly where the Project’s property line abuts adjacent structures. These vehicles 
would retain some setback to preserve maneuverability, in addition to operating at reduced 
power and intensity to maintain precision at these locations.  Reference equipment noise levels 
were obtained from the Federal Highway Administration’s Roadway Construction Noise Model, 
version 1.1 (FHWA RCNM 1.1).  

(2) Off-Site Construction Activities – Haul Trucks 

The Project’s off-site construction noise impact from haul trucks was analyzed by considering 
the Project’s estimated haul truck usage with existing traffic and roadway noise levels along the 
Project’s anticipated haul route.  

(3) On-Site Operational Noise Sources 

The Project’s potential to result in significant noise impacts from on-site operational noise 
sources was evaluated by identifying sources of on-site noise sources and considering the 
impact that they could produce given the nature of the source (i.e., loudness and whether noise 
would be produced during daytime or more-sensitive nighttime hours), distances to nearby 
sensitive receptors, surrounding ambient noise levels, the presence of similar noise sources in 
the vicinity, and maximum allowable noise levels permitted by the LAMC.   

(4) Off-Site Operational Noise Sources 

The Project’s off-site noise impact from Project-related traffic was evaluated based on projected 
traffic volumes without and with traffic generated by the Proposed Project.  Based on guidance 
from the City’s L.A. CEQA Thresholds Guide, any doubling of traffic on local roadways could 



   Noise Technical Report 

4649 Maubert Avenue Project  City of Los Angeles 
DKA Planning  May 2019 

Page 12

increase ambient noise levels by 3 dBA.  As such, this analysis addresses whether traffic 
generated by the Proposed Project could double volumes on local raodways.  Any significant 
increases in traffic volume that could result in audible or significant increases in ambient noise 
at local sensitive receptors are identified. 

(5) Construction Vibration Sources 

The Project’s potential to generate damaging levels of groundborne vibration was analyzed by 
identifying construction vibration sources and estimating the maximum vibration levels that they 
could produce at nearby buildings, all based on principles and guidelines recommended by the 
FTA in its 2006 Transit Noise and Vibration Impact Assessment manual. Vibration levels were 
then compared with the manual’s suggested damage criteria for various types of building 
categories.  

(6) Operational Vibration Sources 

The Project’s long-term potential to generate damaging levels of groundborne vibration was 
analyzed by identifying any operational vibration sources and determining whether they would 
generate any potential to trigger significant impacts based on principles and guidelines 
recommended by the FTA in its 2006 Transit Noise and Vibration Impact Assessment manual.  

b) Thresholds of Significance 

(1) State CEQA Guidelines Appendix G  

In accordance with Appendix G of the CEQA Guidelines, a project would have a significant 
impact related to noise if the Project would result in: 

a) Generation of a substantial temporary or permanent increase in ambient 
noise levels in the vicinity of the project in excess of standards established 
in the local general plan or noise ordinance, or applicable standards of 
other agencies;  

b) Generation of excessive groundborne vibration or groundborne noise 
levels; 

c) For a project located within the vicinity of a private airstrip or an airport 
land use plan or, where such a plan has not been adopted, within two miles 
of a public airport or public use airstrip, would the project expose people 
residing or working in the project area to excessive noise levels. 

(2) On-Site Construction Noise Threshold 



   Noise Technical Report 

4649 Maubert Avenue Project  City of Los Angeles 
DKA Planning  May 2019 

Page 13

Based on guidelines from the City of Los Angeles City Department of Planning, the on-site 
construction noise impact would be considered significant if: 

• Construction noise would exceed the 75 dBA at 50 feet maximum noise level limit for 
powered equipment established by Section 112.05 of the LAMC. This regulation applies 
to the on-site operations of powered construction equipment and not to road-legal trucks 
operating on public rights-of-way; 
 

• Construction activities lasting more than one day would exceed existing ambient exterior 
sound levels by 10 dBA (hourly Leq) or more at a noise-sensitive use; 

• Construction activities lasting more than 10 days in a three-month period would exceed 
existing ambient exterior noise levels by 5 dBA (hourly Leq) or more at a noise-sensitive 
use; or 

• Construction activities of any duration would exceed the ambient noise level by 5 dBA 
(hourly Leq) at a noise-sensitive use between the hours of 9:00 P.M. and 7:00 A.M. 
Monday through Friday, before 8:00 A.M. or after 6:00 P.M. on Saturday, or at any time 
on Sunday. 

(3) Groundborne Vibration Thresholds 

There are no adopted City standards or other applicable regulations that would govern the 
Project’s vibration impacts. In assessing impacts related to noise and vibration in this section, 
the City will use Appendix G as the thresholds of significance. The criteria identified by the FTA 
in its 2006 Transit Noise and Vibration Impact Assessment manual will be used where 
applicable and relevant to assist in analyzing the Appendix G thresholds (see Table 3). 

(4) Operational Noise Thresholds 

In addition to applicable City standards and guidelines that would regulate or otherwise 
moderate the Project’s operational noise impacts, the following criteria are adopted to assess 
the impact of the Project’s operational noise sources: 

• Project operations would cause ambient noise levels at off-site locations to increase by 3 
dBA CNEL or more to or within “normally unacceptable” or “clearly unacceptable” 
noise/land use compatibility categories, as defined by the State’s 2017 General Plan 
Guidelines (see Table 2). 

• Project operations would cause any 5 dBA or greater noise increase.9 

                                                
9  As a 3 dBA increase represents a slightly noticeable change in noise level, this threshold considers any increase in ambient 

noise levels to or within a land use’s “normally unacceptable” or “clearly unacceptable” noise/land use compatibility categories to 
be significant so long as the noise level increase can be considered barely perceptible. In instances where the noise level 
increase would not necessarily result in “normally unacceptable” or “clearly unacceptable” noise/land use compatibility, a readily 



   Noise Technical Report 

4649 Maubert Avenue Project  City of Los Angeles 
DKA Planning  May 2019 

Page 14

c) Analysis of Project Impacts 
Threshold a) Would the project result in exposure of persons to or generation of 

noise levels in excess of standards established in the local general 
plan or noise ordinance, or applicable standards of other 
agencies? 

(1) On-Site Construction Activities 

Proposed construction would generate noise during demolition, site preparation, grading, 
building construction, and application of architectural coatings. During all construction phases, 
noise-generating activities could occur at the Project site between the hours of 7:00 A.M. and 
9:00 P.M. Monday through Friday, in accordance with Section 41.40(a) of the LAMC. On 
Saturdays, construction would be permitted to occur between 8:00 A.M. and 6:00 P.M. The 
Project would require heavy equipment such as excavators, loaders, and other earthmoving 
vehicles. Smaller equipment such as forklifts, generators, and various powered hand tools 
would also be utilized. Off-site secondary noises would be generated by construction worker 
vehicles, vendor deliveries, and haul trucks.  

Regulatory compliance with LAMC Section 112.05 would ultimately limit any noise levels from 
powered construction equipment to 75 dBA or below at 50 feet, as the Project site is located 
within 500 feet of residential zones. Standard, industry-wide “best practices” for construction in 
urban or otherwise noise-sensitive areas would ensure that the Project’s construction noise 
does not exceed this noise limit. “Best practices” utilized by the Project would include erecting 
temporary noise barriers around the Project’s perimeter, using mufflers to dampen noise from 
internal combustion engines, and warming-up or staging equipment away from sensitive 
receptors. As discussed earlier, the City of Los Angeles Department of Planning recommends 
that LAMC Section 112.05 be used as a threshold of significance for construction noise. 
Therefore, because the Project would comply fully with LAMC Section 112.05, its construction 
noise impact would subsequently be considered less than significant.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

                                                                                                                                                       
noticeable 5 dBA increase is still considered to be significant. Increases less than 3 dBA are unlikely to result in noticeably 
louder ambient noise conditions and would therefore be considered less than significant. 



   Noise Technical Report 

4649 Maubert Avenue Project  City of Los Angeles 
DKA Planning  May 2019 

Page 15

Table 5 
Maximum Construction Noise Levels 

Noise Source 
Noise Level (dBA, Lmax)1 

Significant? 
Reference With Best Practices 

Backhoe 77.6 67.6 No 

Dozer 81.7 71.7 No 

Excavator 80.7 70.7 No 

Front End Loader 79.1 69.1 No 

Gradall 83.4 73.4 No 

Grader 85.0 75.0 No 
1 Noise levels derived from the Federal Highway Administration’s Roadway Construction Noise 
Model, version 1.1 (FHWA RCNM 1.1).  

 

Estimated Project construction noise levels were modeled using the noise reference levels of 
both an excavator and loader working in tandem to represent the most conservative-scenario 
noise source during the construction phase. As shown on Table 6, this equipment used in 
tandem can produce average weighted peak noise levels of 74.9 dBA at a reference distance of 
50 feet. The noise levels of other construction equipment and vehicles would not be as loud or 
as extensive over the duration of the Project’s construction phase. Thus, noise levels of all other 
construction equipment and phases would not exceed the impacts analyzed here. As shown on 
Table 6, ambient noise levels during Project construction would increase up to 4.3 dBA Leq at 
nearby sensitive receptors.  These increases would not exceed the City’s 5 dBA threshold in its 
L.A. CEQA Thresholds Guide.  Therefore, no significant Project impacts related to on-site 
construction noise would occur. 

Table 6 
Estimated Construction Noise Levels 

Receptor Location 

Maximum 
Construction 

Noise 
(dBA at 50 feet)* 

Existing 
Ambient 

(dBA, Leq) 

New 
Ambient 

(dBA, Leq) 
Increase 

4621-4627 Maubert Avenue 60.3 58.0 62.3 4.3 
Children’s Hospital Los 
Angeles-The Saban Institute 54.3 65.3 65.6 0.3 

Silverlake Conservatory of 
Music* 56.0 55.3 58.7 3.4 

Children’s Hospital Los Angeles 
(4650 Sunset) 42.5 67.4 67.4 0.0 

Source: DKA Planning, 2019. 
 

(2) Off-Site Construction Activities – Haul Trucks 

With regard to off-site construction-related noise impacts, Section 112.05 of the LAMC does not 
regulate noise levels from road legal trucks, such as delivery vehicles, concrete mixing trucks, 



   Noise Technical Report 

4649 Maubert Avenue Project  City of Los Angeles 
DKA Planning  May 2019 

Page 16

pumping trucks, and haul trucks. However, the operation of these vehicles would still comply 
with the construction restrictions set forth by Section 41.40 of the LAMC. The Project is 
expected to require about 370 haul trips to export soils to an off-site landfill approximately 20 
miles away. Haul trucks would use major arterials like Vermont Avenue or other major roads to 
access the US-101 Hollywood Freeway or other freeways. Haul trucks would generate 
occasional noise events at receptors during passbys, but such intermittent noise events would 
have a limited effect on surrounding average ambient noise levels. As a result, the Project’s off-
site construction noise impact from haul trucks would be considered less than significant.  

(3) On-Site Operational Noise Sources 

During operations, the Project would produce noise from both on- and off-site sources. As 
discussed below, the Project would not result in an exposure of persons to or a generation of 
noise levels in excess of standards established in the local general plan or noise ordinance, or 
applicable standards of other agencies. The Project would also not increase surrounding noise 
levels by more than 3 dBA CNEL, the minimum threshold of significance adopted by this 
analysis.  As a result, the Project’s on-site operational noise impacts would be considered less 
than significant. 

Mechanical Equipment. Regulatory compliance with LAMC Section 112.02 would ensure that 
noises from sources such as heating, air conditioning, and ventilation systems not increase 
ambient noise levels at neighboring occupied properties by more than 5 dBA. Given this 
regulation, the relatively quiet operation of modern rooftop-mounted HVAC systems, and 
distances to receptors, it is unlikely that noise from the Project’s HVAC systems would be 
audible at off-site locations. Nearly all of the Project’s surrounding commercial and residential 
land uses contain similar rooftop-mounted HVAC units. The Project’s HVAC systems would be 
consistent with its surroundings and would not alter the environmental profile of the 
neighborhood by any substantial degree.  

Auto-Related Activities. The Project would include 101 parking spaces in both ground-level and 
one level of subterranean parking. The Project is forecast to the Project is forecast to generate 
an estimated 707 new daily trips.  When considering the existing 87 daily trips to and from the 
current residences on-site, the Project would generate a net of about 620 daily trips, which 
could translate to an hourly average of 44 peak hour trips, based on the Institute of Traffic 
Engineers’ ITE Trip Generation Manual.  Based on FTA equations for the projection of parking 
garage noise levels, the parking garage would be predicted to generate an hourly Leq noise level 
of 40 dBA at the nearest receptor, the apartment buildings on Maubert Avenue east of the 
Project Site.10  Based on the ambient noise level of 55.3 dBA Leq in the rear alley, the garage 
would increase ambient noise levels by less than 1 dBA Leq and would not be audible.  As such, 
the Project’s parking garage would have no noticeable effect on the surrounding noise 
environment. 

                                                
10  Federal Transit Administration, Transit Noise and Vibration Impact Assessment Manual, September 2018 



   Noise Technical Report 

4649 Maubert Avenue Project  City of Los Angeles 
DKA Planning  May 2019 

Page 17

Because traffic access to the property would shift from Maubert Avenue to the rear alley, there 
would be a net benefit to sensitive uses along Maubert Avenue that would see fewer vehicles 
generating roadway noise. 

Residential Uses. Noise associated with residential uses would be contained internally within 
the Project. Normal and reasonable use of the Project’s open space areas would not be 
expected to generate a substantial amount of noise. Noise from speech and conversation 
generally does not exceed approximately 65 dBA at a reference distance of one meter. These 
noises attenuate rapidly and would not be capable of elevating surrounding ambient noise levels 
by more than a nominal degree.  

The impact of on-site operational noise sources would be considered less than significant. 

(4) Off-Site Operational Noise Sources 

The majority of the Project’s operational noise impacts would be from off-site mobile sources 
associated with its net new daily vehicle trips. On a typical weekday, the Project is forecast to 
generate an estimated 620 net new daily trips, which could translate to about 42 A.M. peak hour 
trips and 50 P.M. peak hour trips, based on the Institute of Traffic Engineers’ ITE Trip 
Generation Manual.  The City’s L.A. CEQA Guidelines finds that a doubling of traffic volumes 
(i.e., 100 percent increase) is needed to increase ambient noise levels near roadways by 3 dBA 
or more. 

During a peak hour, up to 50 vehicle trips would be distributed onto or from Vermont Avenue via 
the rear alley, which accesses the parking garage.  This major arterial carries several hundred 
vehicle trips during the peak hours, the project’s incremental traffic would produce far less than 
a doubling of traffic volumes and a negligible increase in ambient noise.  Likewise, any traffic 
exiting onto Rodney Drive would not double traffic volumes on this one-block segment of this 
connector which accesses both Hollywood and Sunset Boulevard.  As such, the Project’s 
incremental traffic would not double existing traffic volumes.  The Project’s traffic impact on 
other streets would be less, as project-related traffic would dissipate onto the network of streets 
in the area.  As such, Project-related traffic would generate far less than a doubling of traffic on 
key roadway segments near the Project Site and result in an inaudible increase in traffic-related 
noise on local streets. Twenty-four-hour CNEL impacts would similarly be negligible, far below 
the minimum 3 dBA noise increase threshold. Therefore, the Project’s operational impact on off-
site ambient noise levels as a result of its net traffic generation would be considered less than 
significant. 

As such, the Project’s contribution to permanent cumulative off-site ambient noise level 
increases would be negligible.  As a result, the Project’s cumulative operational noise impact 
would be considered less than significant. 

Threshold b) Generation of excessive groundborne vibration or groundborne 
noise levels? 



   Noise Technical Report 

4649 Maubert Avenue Project  City of Los Angeles 
DKA Planning  May 2019 

Page 18

(1) Building Damage Vibration Impact – On-Site Sources 
As discussed earlier, construction of the Project may require large steel-tracked earthmoving 
equipment such as excavators. Though these vehicles may be capable of generating maximum 
vibration levels of 0.089 inches per second PPV at a reference distance of 25 feet, it is 
important to note that these vehicles would not be capable of operating directly where the 
Project’s property line abuts adjacent structures. These vehicles would retain some setback to 
preserve maneuverability, in addition to operating at reduced power and intensity to maintain 
precision at these locations. 

As a result, vibration levels of 0.089 inches per second PPV, representative of maximum, peak 
operations, would not be generated at the property lines of the Project. Smaller, more 
maneuverable and precise equipment and techniques capable of fine grading within 15 feet of 
property lines would only generate maximum vibration levels of 0.003 inches per second PPV. 
Table 7 shows the Project’s estimated construction vibration impacts at the nearest off-site 
structures. No building would experience potentially damaging levels of groundborne vibration 
as a result of the Project’s construction activities, and more distance structures would 
experience lesser impacts. Therefore, the Project’s vibration impacts as generated by on-site 
construction activities would be considered less than significant. 

Table 7 
Building Damage Vibration Levels – On-Site Sources 

Building Distance 
(feet) Condition1 

Significance 
Criteria 
(in/sec)1 

Estimated 
Maximum 
Vibration 
Velocity 

(in/sec PPV) 

Significant 
Impact? 

Large Dozer-Type Equipment 
732/746 Normandie 

Avenue 15 
II. Engineered 
concrete and 

masonry (no plaster) 
0.3 0.191 No 

Silverlake 
Conservatory of 

Music 
25 

II. Engineered 
concrete and 

masonry (no plaster) 
0.3 0.089 No 

Children’s Hospital 
Los Angeles, The 
Saban Research 

Institute 

110 
I. Reinforced 

concrete, steel or 
timber (no plaster) 

0.5 0.010 No 

Small Dozer-Type Equipment 

732/746 Normandie 
Avenue 15 

II. Engineered 
concrete and 

masonry (no plaster) 
0.3 0.034 No 

Silverlake 
Conservatory of 

Music 
25 

II. Engineered 
concrete and 

masonry (no plaster) 
0.3 0.003 No 



   Noise Technical Report 

4649 Maubert Avenue Project  City of Los Angeles 
DKA Planning  May 2019 

Page 19

Children’s Hospital 
Los Angeles, The 
Saban Research 

Institute 

110 
I. Reinforced 

concrete, steel or 
timber (no plaster) 

0.5 0.000 No 

1Structural condition and significance criteria based on FTA guidelines issued in the 2018 FTA Transit 
Noise and Vibration Impact Assessment manual. 
 
Source: DKA Planning, 2019 

 

(2) Building Damage Vibration Impact – Off-Site Sources 

As discussed earlier, construction of the Project would generate trips from large trucks including 
haul trucks, concrete mixing trucks, concrete pumping trucks, and vendor delivery trucks. 
However, road vehicles are typically not capable of generating perceptible groundborne 
vibrations, let alone vibrations that would be considered potentially damaging for roadside 
buildings and structures. The Project’s potential to damage roadside buildings and structures as 
the result of groundborne vibrations generated by its truck trips would be considered less than 
significant. 

(2) Operational Vibration Sources 
During Project operations, there would be no significant stationary sources of groundborne 
vibration, such as heavy equipment or industrial operations. Significant sources of operational 
vibration are generally limited to heavy equipment or industrial operations. The Project proposes 
153 multi-family residences, which would generate operational vibration of any note. The Project 
would be accessed mostly by passenger vehicles that would not be capable of generating 
substantial groundborne vibrations.  

The Project’s long-term vibration impact from operational sources (primarily passenger vehicles) 
would be nominal and less than significant.  

Threshold c) For a project located within the vicinity of a private airstrip or an 
airport land use plan or, where such a plan has not been adopted, 
within two miles of a public airport or public use airstrip, would the 
project expose people residing or working in the project area to 
excessive noise levels? 

The Project site is not located within the vicinity of a private airstrip or an airport land use plan, 
nor is it located within two miles of a public airport or public use airstrip. As a result, this criterion 
is not applicable to this Project, which would have no impact on people residing or working in 
the Project area.  

d) Regulatory Compliance Measures 



   Noise Technical Report 

4649 Maubert Avenue Project  City of Los Angeles 
DKA Planning  May 2019 

Page 20

RCM-NOI-1 The project shall comply with City of Los Angeles Municipal Code section 
112.05(a), which institutes a maximum noise limit of 75 dBA at 50 feet of 
distance.  

RCM-NOI-2 The project shall prohibit Project construction activities between the hours of 9:00 
P.M. and 7:00 A.M., Monday through Friday and before 8:00 A.M. or after 6:00 
P.M. on any Saturday, or on any Sunday or national holiday, pursuant to City of 
Los Angeles Municipal Code section 41.40(a). 

RCM-NOI-3 The project shall prohibit any amplified noises, especially those from outdoor 
sources from exceeding the ambient noise levels of adjacent properties by more 
than 5 dBA, pursuant to City of Los Angeles Municipal Code section 112.01.  Any 
amplified noises would also be prohibited from being audible at any distance 
greater than 150 feet from the Project’s property line, as the Project is located 
within 500 feet of residential zones,  

RCM-NOI-4 The project shall prevent Project HVAC systems and other mechanical 
equipment from elevating ambient noise levels at neighboring residences by 
more than 5 dBA, pursuant to City of Los Angeles Municipal Code section 
112.02(a).  

e) Mitigation Measures 
The Project would not result in any significant noise or vibration impacts and no mitigation 
measures are required. 

f) Level of Significance After Mitigation 
Project impacts related to noise would be less than significant.  

Cumulative impacts related to noise would be less than significant. 

 





Summary
File Name on Meter s005.ses
Serial Number BIJ050019
Model SOUNDPRO SE/DL
Firmware Version R.13H
User DKA
Location #1
Job Description MAUBERT
Note

Measurement
Start 2019-02-06  11:33:00
Stop 2019-02-06  11:48:00
Duration 00:15:00.0
Run Time 00:15:00.0
Overall Settings
RMS Weight A Weighting
Detector Slow
Results
LAeq 58.0 dB
LZpeak (max) 100.2 dB
LASmax 77.9 dB
LASmin 54.9 dB

Summary
File Name on Meter s006.ses
Serial Number BIJ050019
Model SOUNDPRO SE/DL
Firmware Version R.13H
User DKA
Location #2
Job Description MAUBERT
Note

Measurement
Start 2019-02-06  11:51:00
Stop 2019-02-06  12:06:00
Duration 00:15:00.0
Run Time 00:15:00.0
Overall Settings
RMS Weight A Weighting
Detector Slow
Results
LAeq 65.3 dB
LZpeak (max) 94.6 dB
LASmax 81.8 dB
LASmin 56.2 dB

Noise from Sunset, noise from a generator/motor at the 
hospital, light auto traffic, light pedestrian traffic, car beeps

Heavy pedestrian and auto traffic on Vermont, sirens on 
sunset



Summary
File Name on Meter s007.ses
Serial Number BIJ050019
Model SOUNDPRO SE/DL
Firmware Version R.13H
User DKA
Location #3
Job Description MAUBERT
Note

Measurement
Start 2019-02-06  12:17:00
Stop 2019-02-06  12:32:02
Duration 00:15:02.0
Run Time 00:15:02.0
Overall Settings
RMS Weight A Weighting
Detector Slow
Results
LAeq 55.3 dB
LZpeak (max) 90.2 dB
LASmax 66.8 dB
LASmin 49.4 dB

Summary
File Name on Meter s008.ses
Serial Number BIJ050019
Model SOUNDPRO SE/DL
Firmware Version R.13H
User DKA
Location #4
Job Description MAUBERT
Note

Measurement
Start 2019-02-06  13:31:00
Stop 2019-02-06  13:46:00
Duration 00:15:00.0
Run Time 00:15:00.0
Overall Settings
RMS Weight A Weighting
Detector Slow
Results
LAeq 67.4 dB
LZpeak (max) 103.0 dB
LASmax 77.4 dB
LASmin 60.0 dB

Very light traffic, some hammering

Heavy auto and pedestrian traffic, bus stop nearby, Metro 
stop across the street

















 
DIRECTOR’S DETERMINATION 

TRANSIT ORIENTED COMMUNITIES AFFORDABLE HOUSING INCENTIVE PROGRAM 
VERMONT/WESTERN SNAP 

PROJECT PERMIT COMPLIANCE REVIEW 
SITE PLAN REVIEW  

 
August 5, 2020 
 
Applicant/Owner 
Maubert LA VI, LLC (Attn: Will 

Cipes) 
429 Santa Monica Blvd, Unit 

700 
Santa Monica, CA 90401 
 
Representative 
Heather Waldstein 
Rosenheim & Associates 
21600 Oxnard St, Unit 630 
Woodland Hills, CA 91367 
 
 

 Case No. DIR-2019-3760-TOC-
SPP-SPR 

 Related Case: 
CEQA: 

VTT-82654 
ENV-2019-3761-SCPE 

 Specific Plan Subarea: C – Community Center 
 Location: 4629-4651 West Maubert 

Avenue 
 Council District: 13 – O’Farrell  
 Neighborhood Council: East Hollywood 
 Community Plan Area: Hollywood 
 Land Use Designation: Community Commercial 
 Zone: R4-1 
 Legal Description: Lots 24 (Arb 2), 25 (Arb 

1 & 2), 26 (Arb 1 & 2), 
Tract TR 2464 

   
 Last Day to File an Appeal: August 20, 2020   

 
DETERMINATION  
 
Pursuant to the Los Angeles Municipal Code (LAMC) Section 12.22 A.31, as the designee of the 
Director of Planning, I hereby: 
 

Found that at its January 14, 2020 hearing, Council File No. 19-1389, that the City 
Council, based on the whole of the administrative record, determined in their independent 
judgement that the Project is statutorily exempt from CEQA as a Sustainable Communities 
Project (“SCP”) pursuant to PRC 21155.1; 
 
Approve with Conditions a 80 percent increase in density, 45 percent increase in Floor 
Area Ratio (FAR), and no residential parking spaces, consistent with the provisions of the 
Transit Oriented Communities (TOC) Affordable Housing Incentive Program for a 
qualifying Tier 4 project totaling 153 dwelling units, reserving 17 units for Extremely Low 
Income Household occupancy for a period of 55 years, with the following one (1) 
Additional Incentive and the dismissal of one (1) Additional Incentive:  

 

DEPARTMENT OF 
CITY PLANNING 

 

COMMISSION OFFICE 
(213) 978-1300 

 
CITY PLANNING COMMISSION 

 
SAMANTHA MILLMAN 

PRESIDENT 
 

VAHID KHORSAND 
VICE-PRESIDENT 

 
DAVID H. J. AMBROZ 

CAROLINE CHOE 
HELEN LEUNG 
KAREN MACK 

MARC MITCHELL 
VERONICA PADILLA-CAMPOS 

DANA M. PERLMAN 

 CCity of Los Angeles  
CCALIFORNIA 

 

 
 

ERIC GARCETTI 
MAYOR 

 

 EXECUTIVE OFFICES 
200 N. SPRING STREET, ROOM 525 
LOS ANGELES, CA  90012-4801 

(213) 978-1271 
 

VINCENT P. BERTONI, AICP 
DIRECTOR 

 
KEVIN J. KELLER, AICP 

EXECUTIVE OFFICER 
 

SHANA M.M. BONSTIN 
DEPUTY DIRECTOR 

 
TRICIA KEANE 
DEPUTY DIRECTOR 

 
ARTHI L. VARMA, AICP 

DEPUTY DIRECTOR 
 

LISA M. WEBBER, AICP 
DEPUTY DIRECTOR 

 



  
DIR-2019-3760-TOC-SPP-SPR Page 2 of 35 

a. Open Space. A 25 percent reduction to permit a minimum 12,769 square feet of 
overall usable open space in lieu of the minimum 17,025 square feet otherwise 
required;  
 

b. Height. Dismiss a request for an Additional Incentive for a height increase of 33 
additional feet within the Tier 4; and 

 
Pursuant to LAMC Section 11.5.7 C and the Vermont/Western Station Neighborhood Area 
(SNAP) Specific Plan Ordinance No. 184,888, I have reviewed the proposed project and as the 
designee of the Director of Planning, I hereby: 
 

Approve with Conditions a Project Permit Compliance Review for the demolition of 
three (3) existing multi-family buildings and accessory buildings; and the construction, 
use and maintenance of an eight-story apartment building, with two (2) levels of above 
grade parking and 143,785 square feet of floor area consisting of 153 dwelling units, 
within Subarea C (Community Center) of the Vermont/Western Station Neighborhood 
Area Plan (SNAP) Specific Plan; and  

 
Pursuant to the LAMC Section 16.05, as the designee of the Director of Planning, I hereby: 

 
Approve a Site Plan Review for a 100 percent residential development project that 
creates 153 dwelling units. 

 
The project approval is based upon the attached Findings, and subject to the attached Conditions 
of Approval:  



  
DIR-2019-3760-TOC-SPP-SPR Page 3 of 35 

CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 
 
TOC Affordable Housing Incentive Program Conditions 
 
1. Residential Density. The project shall be limited to a maximum density of 153 residential 

dwelling units, including On-Site Restricted Affordable Units. 
 
2. On-Site Restricted Affordable Units. Seventeen (17) units shall be designated for 

Extremely Low Income Households, as defined by the Los Angeles Housing and Community 
Investment Department (HCIDLA) and California Government Code Section 65915(c)(2).  

 
3. Changes in On-Site Restricted Units. Deviations that increase the number of restricted 

affordable units or that change the composition of units or change parking numbers shall be 
consistent with LAMC Section 12.22 A.31. 

 
4. Housing Requirements. Prior to issuance of a building permit, the owner shall execute a 

covenant to the satisfaction of the Los Angeles Housing and Community Investment 
Department (HCIDLA) to make 17 units available to Extremely Low Income Households for 
sale or rental as determined to be affordable to such households by HCIDLA for a period of 
55 years. In the event the applicant reduces the proposed density of the project, the number 
of required set-aside affordable units may be adjusted, consistent with LAMC Section 12.22 
A.31, to the satisfaction of HCIDLA, and in consideration of the project’s AB 2556 
Determination. Enforcement of the terms of said covenant shall be the responsibility of 
HCIDLA. The applicant will present a copy of the recorded covenant to the Department of 
City Planning for inclusion in this file. The project shall comply with the Guidelines for the 
Affordable Housing Incentives Program adopted by the City Planning Commission and with 
any monitoring requirements established by the HCIDLA. Refer to the Transit Oriented 
Communities (TOC) Affordable Housing Incentive Program Background and Housing 
Replacement (AB 2556 Determination) sections of this determination. 
 

5. Rent Stabilization Ordinance (RSO). Prior to the issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy, 
the owner shall obtain approval from the Los Angeles Housing and Community Investment 
Department (HCIDLA) regarding replacement of affordable units, provision of RSO Units, 
and qualification for the Exemption from the Rent Stabilization Ordinance with Replacement 
Affordable Units in compliance with Ordinance No. 184,873. In order for all the new units to 
be exempt from the Rent Stabilization Ordinance, the applicant will need to either replace 
all withdrawn RSO units with affordable units on a one-for-one basis or provide at least 20% 
of the total number of newly constructed rental units as affordable, whichever results in the 
greater number. The executed and recorded covenant and agreement submitted and 
approved by HCIDLA shall be provided. 

 
6. Floor Area Ratio (FAR). The maximum FAR shall be limited to 4.35:1, or 143,785 square 

feet. 
 

7. Automobile Parking. Automobile parking shall be provided consistent with LAMC Section 
12.22 A.31, which permits no residential parking for a project located in Tier 4 TOC 
Affordable Housing Incentive Area and no more than 257 residential parking spaces and 77 
guest parking spaces per the SNAP.  

 
a. The number of guest parking spaces allowed on the project site are restricted to a 

maximum of 77 parking spaces. 
 
8. Open Space. The project shall provide a minimum of 12,769 square feet of usable open 

space pursuant to the TOC Affordable Housing Incentive Program, of which 3,192 square 



  
DIR-2019-3760-TOC-SPP-SPR Page 4 of 35 

feet must be located at grade level or first habitable room level. The common open space 
shall be open to the sky, must be at least 600 square feet in size, and have a minimum 
dimension of 20 feet when measured perpendicular from any point on each of the 
boundaries of the open space area. Balconies shall have a minimum dimension of six feet. 
Common open space areas or balconies not meeting the minimum dimension requirements 
when measured perpendicular from any point on each of the boundaries of the open space 
area cannot be counted towards the square-footage allocated towards meeting the overall 
usable open space requirement. 

 
SNAP Conditions  
 
9. Site Development. Except as modified herein, the project shall be in substantial 

conformance with the plans and materials submitted by the applicant, stamped “Exhibit A,” 
and attached to the subject case file. No change to the plans will be made without prior 
review by the Department of City Planning, Central Project Planning Division, and written 
approval by the Director of Planning. Each change shall be identified and justified in writing. 
Minor deviations may be allowed in order to comply with the provisions of the Municipal 
Code, the project conditions, or the project permit authorization. 

 
10. Parks First. Prior to the issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy, the applicant shall complete 

the following: 
 

a. Make a payment to the Department of Recreation and Parks (RAP) for the required 
Park Fee pursuant to LAMC Section 17.12. Contact RAP staff by email at 
rap.parkfees@lacity.org, by phone at (213) 202-2682 or in person at the public 
counter at 221 N. Figueroa St., Suite 400 (4th Floor), Los Angeles, CA 90012 to 
arrange for payment.  

 
b. Make a payment of $597,700 to the Parks First Trust Fund for the net increase of 

139 residential dwelling units. The calculation of a Parks First Trust Fund Fee to 
be paid pursuant to the Vermont/Western SNAP shall be off-set by the Park Fee 
paid pursuant to LAMC Section 17.12 as a result of the project.  

 
c. The applicant shall provide proof of payment for the Park Fee to the Department 

of City Planning (DCP), Central Project Planning Division staff to determine the 
resulting amount of Parks First Trust Fund Fee to be paid. DCP staff shall sign off 
on the Certificate of Occupancy in the event there are no resulting Parks First Trust 
Fund Fee to be paid.  

 
d. In the event there are remaining Parks First Trust Fund Fee to be paid, the 

applicant shall make a payment to the Office of the City Administrative Officer 
(CAO), Parks First Trust Fund. Contact Jennifer Shimatsu of the CAO directly at 
(213) 978-7628 or Jennifer.Shimatsu@lacity.org to arrange for payment. The 
applicant shall submit proof of payment for the Parks First Trust Fund Fee to DCP 
staff, who will then sign off on the Certificate of Occupancy.  

 
e. All residential units in a project containing units set aside as affordable for Very 

Low or Low Income Households that are subsidized with public funds and/or 
Federal or State Tax Credits with affordability covenants of at least 30 years are 
exempt from the Parks First Trust Fund.   

 
11. Use. The proposed residential use shall be permitted on the subject property. 

 



  
DIR-2019-3760-TOC-SPP-SPR Page 5 of 35 

12. Height. The project shall comply with the underlying zone height provisions of the R4-1 
Zone.  

 
13. Bicycle Parking. The project shall provide a minimum of 77 bicycle parking spaces on site, 

as shown in Exhibit “A.”  
 

14. Setback. No front, side or rear yard setbacks shall be required. 
 

15. Streetscape Elements. 
 

a. Street Trees. Street trees must be installed and maintained prior to issuance of the 
building permit or suitably guaranteed through a bond and all improvements must be 
completed prior to the issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy. 

 
i. Five (5), 36-inch box shade trees shall be provided in the public right-of-way 

along Maubert Avenue, subject to the Bureau of Street Services, Urban Forestry 
Division requirements.  

 
ii. A tree well cover shall be provided for each new and existing tree in the 

public right-of-way adjacent to the subject property to the satisfaction of the 
Bureau of Street Services. 
 

iii. The applicant shall be responsible for new street tree planting and pay fees for 
clerical, inspection, and maintenance per the Los Angeles Municipal Code 
Section 62.176 for each tree. 
 

iv. An automatic irrigation system shall be provided. 
 
Note: Contact the Urban Forestry Division, Subdivision staff, at (213) 847-3088 
for site inspection prior to any street tree work. 

 
b. Bike Racks. Three (3) simple black painted bike racks shall be provided in the public 

right-of-way along Maubert Avenue. Bike racks shall be installed three feet from the 
curb edge or per the City of Los Angeles Department of Transportation requirements.   

 
16. Utilities. All new utility lines which directly service the lot or lots shall be installed 

underground. If underground service is not currently available, then provisions shall be 
made by the applicant for future underground service. 

 
17. Transparent Elements. Transparent building elements as windows and doors shall occupy 

at least 50% of the exterior surface of the ground floor facades of the front and side 
elevations. 

 
a. At least 840 square feet of the ground floor façade shall be constructed with 

transparent building materials along Maubert Avenue, consistent with Exhibit A, 
Sheet 16.  

 
18. Surface Mechanical Equipment. All surface or ground-mounted mechanical equipment, 

including transformers, terminal boxes, pull boxes, air conditioner condensers, gas meters 
and electric meter cabinets, shall be screened from public view and treated to match the 
materials and colors of the building which they serve. 

 
19. Rooftop Appurtenances. All rooftop equipment and building appurtenances shall be 

screened from any street, public right-of-way, or adjacent property with enclosures or 



  
DIR-2019-3760-TOC-SPP-SPR Page 6 of 35 

parapet walls constructed of materials complimentary to the materials and design of the 
main structure. 

 
20. Trash, Service Equipment and Satellite Dishes. Trash, service equipment and satellite 

dishes, including transformer areas, shall be located away from streets and enclosed or 
screened by landscaping, fencing or other architectural means. The trash area shall be 
enclosed by a minimum six-foot high decorative masonry wall. Each trash enclosure shall 
have a separate area for recyclables. Any transformer area within the front yard shall be 
enclosed or screened. 

 
21. Design of Entrance. The applicant shall submit detailed elevations of the ground floor 

illustrating that all pedestrian entrances, including entries to commercial and retail stores, 
residential lobby area, and the pedestrian throughways, are accented with architectural 
elements such as columns, overhanging roofs, or awnings. The location of Entrances shall 
be in the center of the façade or symmetrically spaced if there are more than one. 

 
22. Landscape Plan. The applicant shall submit a final landscape plan prepared by a licensed 

landscape architect showing enhanced paving such as stamped concrete, permeable paved 
surfaces, tile and/or brick within paved areas in front, side and rear yards. All open areas 
not used for buildings, driveways, parking, recreational facilities, or pedestrian amenities 
shall be landscaped. 

 
23. Irrigation Plan. A final irrigation plan shall be prepared and included.  

 
24. On-Site Lighting.  The applicant shall install on-site lighting along all vehicular and 

pedestrian access ways. Installed lighting shall provide ¾-foot-candle of flood lighting 
intensity as measured from the ground. Lighting must also be shielded from projecting light 
higher than 15 feet above ground level and away from adjacent property windows. The 
maximum height of any installed lighting fixture shall not exceed 14 feet in height. 
 

25. Security Devices.  If at any time during the life of the project the property owner wishes to 
install security devices such as window grilles and/or gates, such security devices shall be 
designed so as to be fully concealed from public view.  The applicant shall be required to 
acquire approval from the Department of City Planning, Central Project Planning Division 
for the installation of any security devices on the exterior or the structure through a building 
permit clearance sign off. 
 

26. Hours of Operation.  All parking lot cleaning activities and other similar maintenance 
activities shall take place between the hours of 7:00 a.m. to 8:00 p.m., Monday through 
Friday and 10:00 a.m. to 4:00 p.m. on Saturday and Sunday. 

 
27. Noise.  Any dwelling unit exterior wall including windows and doors having a line of sight to 

a public street or alley shall be constructed to provide a Sound Transmission Class of 50 or 
greater, as defined in the Uniform Building Code Standard No. 35-1, 1979 edition, or latest 
edition.   
 

28. Future Signage. All future signs shall be reviewed by Project Planning staff for compliance 
with the Vermont/Western Station Neighborhood Area Plan (SNAP) Specific Plan and 
Design Guidelines. Filing for a Project Permit shall not be necessary unless a Project Permit 
Adjustment, Exception, or Amendment is required. Any pole, roof or off-site sign, any sign 
containing flashing, mechanical or strobe lights are prohibited. Canned/Cabinet signs should 
not be used. 

 
  



  
DIR-2019-3760-TOC-SPP-SPR Page 7 of 35 

Administrative Conditions  
 
29. Final Plans. Prior to the issuance of any building permits for the project by the Department 

of Building and Safety, the applicant shall submit all final construction plans that are awaiting 
issuance of a building permit by the Department of Building and Safety for final review and 
approval by the Department of City Planning. All plans that are awaiting issuance of a 
building permit by the Department of Building and Safety shall be stamped by Department 
of City Planning staff “Plans Approved”. A copy of the Plans Approved, supplied by the 
applicant, shall be retained in the subject case file.  
 

30. Notations on Plans. Plans submitted to the Department of Building and Safety, for the 
purpose of processing a building permit application shall include all of the Conditions of 
Approval herein attached as a cover sheet, and shall include any modifications or notations 
required herein. 
 

31. Approval, Verification and Submittals. Copies of any approvals, guarantees or 
verification of consultations, review of approval, plans, etc., as may be required by the 
subject conditions, shall be provided to the Department of City Planning prior to clearance 
of any building permits, for placement in the subject file.  

 
32. Code Compliance. Use, area, height, and yard regulations of the zone classification of the 

subject property shall be complied with, except where granted conditions differ herein.  
 

33. Department of Building and Safety. The granting of this determination by the Director of 
Planning does not in any way indicate full compliance with applicable provisions of the Los 
Angeles Municipal Code Chapter IX (Building Code). Any corrections and/or modifications 
to plans made subsequent to this determination by a Department of Building and Safety 
Plan Check Engineer that affect any part of the exterior design or appearance of the project 
as approved by the Director, and which are deemed necessary by the Department of 
Building and Safety for Building Code compliance, shall require a referral of the revised 
plans back to the Department of City Planning for additional review and sign-off prior to the 
issuance of any permit in connection with those plans. 

 
34. Enforcement. Compliance with these conditions and the intent of these conditions shall be 

to the satisfaction of the Department of City Planning. 
 
35. Expiration. In the event that this grant is not utilized within three years of its effective date 

(the day following the last day that an appeal may be filed), the grant shall be considered 
null and void. Issuance of a building permit, and the initiation of, and diligent continuation 
of, construction activity shall constitute utilization for the purposes of this grant. 

 
36. Recording Covenant. Prior to the issuance of any permits relative to this matter, a covenant 

acknowledging and agreeing to comply with all the terms and conditions established herein 
shall be recorded in the County Recorder's Office. The agreement (standard master 
covenant and agreement form CP 6770) shall run with the land and shall be binding on any 
subsequent owners, heirs or assigns. The agreement with the conditions attached must be 
submitted to the Development Services Center for approval before being recorded. After 
recordation, a certified copy bearing the Recorder's number and date shall be provided to 
the Development Services Center at the time of Condition Clearance for attachment to the 
subject case file. 

 
37. Indemnification and Reimbursement of Litigation Costs. The applicant shall do all of the 

following: 
 



  
DIR-2019-3760-TOC-SPP-SPR Page 8 of 35 

(i) Defend, indemnify and hold harmless the City from any and all actions against the City 
relating to or arising out of, in whole or in part, the City’s processing and approval of 
this entitlement, including but not limited to, an action to attack, challenge, set aside, 
void, or otherwise modify or annul the approval of the entitlement, the environmental 
review of the entitlement, or the approval of subsequent permit decisions, or to claim 
personal property damage, including from inverse condemnation or any other 
constitutional claim. 

 
(ii) Reimburse the City for any and all costs incurred in defense of an action related to or 

arising out of, in whole or in part, the City’s processing and approval of the entitlement, 
including but not limited to payment of all court costs and attorney’s fees, costs of any 
judgments or awards against the City (including an award of attorney’s fees), 
damages, and/or settlement costs. 

 
(iii) Submit an initial deposit for the City’s litigation costs to the City within 10 days’ notice 

of the City tendering defense to the applicant and requesting a deposit. The initial 
deposit shall be in an amount set by the City Attorney’s Office, in its sole discretion, 
based on the nature and scope of action, but in no event shall the initial deposit be 
less than $50,000. The City’s failure to notice or collect the deposit does not relieve 
the applicant from responsibility to reimburse the City pursuant to the requirement in 
paragraph (ii). 

 
(iv) Submit supplemental deposits upon notice by the City. Supplemental deposits may be 

required in an increased amount from the initial deposit if found necessary by the City 
to protect the City’s interests. The City’s failure to notice or collect the deposit does 
not relieve the applicant from responsibility to reimburse the City pursuant to the 
requirement in paragraph (ii).  

 
(v) If the City determines it necessary to protect the City’s interest, execute an indemnity 

and reimbursement agreement with the City under terms consistent with the 
requirements of this condition. 

 
The City shall notify the applicant within a reasonable period of time of its receipt of any 
action and the City shall cooperate in the defense. If the City fails to notify the applicant of 
any claim, action, or proceeding in a reasonable time, or if the City fails to reasonably 
cooperate in the defense, the applicant shall not thereafter be responsible to defend, 
indemnify or hold harmless the City.  

 
The City shall have the sole right to choose its counsel, including the City Attorney’s office 
or outside counsel. At its sole discretion, the City may participate at its own expense in 
the defense of any action, but such participation shall not relieve the applicant of any 
obligation imposed by this condition. In the event the applicant fails to comply with this 
condition, in whole or in part, the City may withdraw its defense of the action, void its 
approval of the entitlement, or take any other action. The City retains the  
right to make all decisions with respect to its representations in any legal proceeding, 
including its inherent right to abandon or settle litigation. 

 
 For purposes of this condition, the following definitions apply: 
   

“City” shall be defined to include the City, its agents, officers, boards, commissions, 
committees, employees, and volunteers. 
 
“Action” shall be defined to include suits, proceedings (including those held under 
alternative dispute resolution procedures), claims, or lawsuits. Actions includes 



  
DIR-2019-3760-TOC-SPP-SPR Page 9 of 35 

actions, as defined herein, alleging failure to comply with any federal, state or local 
law. 

 
Nothing in the definitions included in this paragraph are intended to limit the rights of the 
City or the obligations of the applicant otherwise created by this condition. 



  
DIR-2019-3760-TOC-SPP-SPR Page 10 of 35 

PROJECT BACKGROUND 
 
The subject site is comprised of five (5) contiguous parcels with 165 feet of frontage along the 
northerly side of Maubert Avenue between Vermont Avenue and Rodney Drive. The subject lot is 
33,053 square feet in size, or 33,720.5 square feet (33,053 square feet plus 667.5 square feet 
with half of the alley). The project site is located within the Hollywood Community Plan and 
Subarea C (Community Center) of the Vermont/Western Station Neighborhood Area Plan (SNAP) 
Specific Plan. The site is zoned R4-1, designated for Community Commercial land uses and is 
currently improved with three (3) multi-family buildings and accessory buildings with X dwelling 
units, constructed in 1920, 1947 and 1975, respectively. All structures on-site will be demolished. 
According to the City’s database, ZIMAS, all five (5) lots are subject to the Rent Stabilization 
Ordinance (RSO). 
 
The applicant requests a Project Permit Compliance to permit for the demolition of three (3) 
existing multi-family buildings and accessory buildings; and the construction, use and 
maintenance of an eight-story apartment building, with two (2) levels of above grade parking, 
143,785 square feet of floor area, 153 dwelling units, and measuring 92 feet, 6 ½ inches in height. 
The project consists of 12,993 square feet of open space and 84 residential parking spaces, with 
no guest parking spaces. 
 
The applicant is seeking a discretionary approval of the TOC Housing Incentive Program with the 
following incentives for a Tier 4 project: 
 

Base Incentives: 
1. 80 percent increase in density,  
2. 45 percent increase in Floor Area Ratio (FAR); and 
3. No residential parking  

 
Additional Incentives: 

1. 25 percent reduction in the overall usable open space requirement. 
 
The surrounding area is generally characterized by medium density residential and commercial 
uses. Parcels to the east and north are zoned R4-1 and C2-1, respectively, located within Subarea 
C of the SNAP, and developed with multi-family residential buildings and commercial uses. The 
parcels to the west are zoned R4-1 and C2-CSA1, located within Subarea C of the SNAP, and 
developed with multi-family residential buildings and a bank. The parcels to the south are zoned 
R4-2 and C2-CSA1, located within Subarea C of the SNAP, and developed with Children’s 
Hospital Los Angeles. 
 
On December 5, 2019, the proposed project was reviewed during the Urban Design Studio’s 
(UDS) Project Review meeting. Project Review’s function is to provide input directly to the 
design/development team at meetings. The Studio’s feedback focuses on ways a project can be 
improved to comply more fully with the Studio’s three (3) design approaches which are: 1) 
Pedestrian First Design, 2) 360 Degree Design, and 3) Climate Adaptive Design. At this meeting, 
UDS had comments relating to landscaping (tree sizes, irrigation, vine pockets), vehicle access 
and parking (EV stalls, curb cut width), future solar readiness, bike parking, and building design 
(façade breaks, natural lighting). Based on these comments, the project team updated their plans 
in order to address all comments to the extent feasible. The roof plan was updated to indicate 
space for future solar panels , landscape plans were updated to include tree information and 
irrigation plans, EV parking stalls were identified and bike parking was rearranged to update the 
path of travel, and reveals were added along the façade to further articulate the building. In terms 
of natural lighting being added to the stairwells, the project team identified that because the 
stairwells have a two (2)-hour fire rating, adding windows would be cost prohibitive, thus, were 
not revised. 



  
DIR-2019-3760-TOC-SPP-SPR Page 11 of 35 

 
 
TRANSIT ORIENTED COMMUNITIES AFFORDABLE HOUSING INCENTIVE PROGRAM 
BACKGROUND 
 
Measure JJJ was adopted by the Los Angeles City Council on December 13, 2016. Section 6 of 
the Measure instructed the Department of City Planning to create the Transit Oriented 
Communities (TOC) Affordable Housing Incentive Program, a transit-based affordable housing 
incentive program. The measure required that the Department adopt a set of TOC Guidelines, 
which establish incentives for residential or mixed-use projects located within ½ mile of a major 
transit stop. Major transit stops are defined under existing State law. 
 
The TOC Guidelines, adopted September 22, 2017, establish a tier-based system with varying 
development bonuses and incentives based on a project’s distance from different types of transit. 
The largest bonuses are reserved for those areas in the closest proximity to significant rail stops 
or the intersection of major bus rapid transit lines. Required affordability levels are increased 
incrementally in each higher tier. The incentives provided in the TOC Guidelines describe the 
range of bonuses from particular zoning standards that applicants may select. 
 
The project site is located within 310 feet from the Vermont/Sunset Metro Red Line Station and 
Metro Rapid Bus 754, which qualifies the site as Tier 4 of the Transit Oriented Communities (TOC) 
Affordable Housing Incentive Program (TOC Guidelines) according to the TOC Referral Form 
dated April 24, 2019.  
 
Pursuant to the TOC Guidelines, the project is eligible for Base Incentives and up to three (3) 
Additional Incentives for setting aside 11 percent of the total 153 units and 11 percent of the base 
85 units for Extremely Low Income Households. Base Incentives include: (1) an increase of the 
maximum allowable number of dwelling units permitted by 80 percent, (2) an increase of the 
maximum allowable FAR by 45 percent; and (3) a zero residential automobile parking 
requirement. The applicant requests one (1) Additional Incentives as follows: a 25 percent 
reduction to permit a minimum 12,769 square feet of overall usable open space in lieu of the 
minimum 17,025 square feet otherwise required. 
 
The application included a request for an additional overall height incentive to allow a height 
increase of up to 33 feet within Tier 4. However, this height incentive is not necessary for the 
proposed project. Subarea C of the SNAP is silent on 100 percent residential buildings regarding 
height, therefore, the height is taken from the underlying zone of R4-1, which has no height limit. 
As such, the original height incentive that was requested has been dismissed. 
 
The project site is zoned R4-1, which allows R4 density. This complies with Subarea C Section 
9.A of the SNAP which states that only R4 density is allowed regardless of the underlying zone, 
and thus, limits residential density of the subject property to a maximum of one dwelling unit for 
each 400 square feet of lot area. The R4 density allows a maximum base density of 85 units on 
a 33,720.5 square feet (33,053 square feet and 667.5 square feet with half of the alley) lot. The 
project is permitted an 80 percent increase in density, which allows a maximum of 153 units. The 
project proposes a total of 153 units, which is within the maximum density permitted.  
 
The TOC Guidelines allow a 45 percent increase in the maximum 3:1 FAR permitted for a 100% 
residential development per the SNAP Subarea C, thereby allowing a maximum 4.35:1 FAR. The 
project will consist of 143,785 square feet of floor area, which results in a maximum 4.35:1 FAR.  
 
Per the TOC Guidelines, a project containing 153 dwelling units within Tier 4 has no residential 
parking space requirements. The project proposes 84 residential parking spaces, with no guest 



  
DIR-2019-3760-TOC-SPP-SPR Page 12 of 35 

parking spaces, which is within the TOC minimum requirement and SNAP maximum requirement, 
thereby satisfying this requirement.  
 
HOUSING REPLACEMENT (AB 2556 DETERMINATION) 
 
On September 27, 2014, Governor Jerry Brown signed Assembly Bill (AB) 2222, as amended by 
AB 2556 on August 19, 2016, to amend sections of California’s Density Bonus Law (Government 
Code Section 65915). AB 2556 requires applicants of Density Bonus projects filed as of January 
1, 2015 to demonstrate compliance with the housing replacement provisions which require 
replacement of rental dwelling units that either exist at the time of application of a Density Bonus 
project, or have been vacated or demolished in the five-year period preceding the application of 
the project. This applies to all pre-existing units that have been subject to a recorded covenant, 
ordinance, or law that restricts rents to levels affordable to persons and families of lower or very 
low income; subject to any other form of rent or price control; or occupied by Low or Very Low 
Income Households.  
 
Pursuant to the Determination made by the Los Angeles Housing and Community Investment 
Department (HCIDLA) dated May 2, 2019, 10 units are subject to replacement under AB 2556. 
Pursuant to the HUD Comprehensive Housing Affordability Strategy (CHAS), 10 units must be 
equivalent type, with four (4) units restricted to Extremely Low Income Households, three (3) units 
restricted to Very Low Income household, and three (3) units restricted to Low Income household. 
In addition, there was a total of four (4) units presumed to have been occupied by an above-lower 
income person or household. These four (4) units must be replaced in compliance with the City’s 
Rent Stabilization Ordinance. The proposed project is reserving 17 units for Extremely Low 
Income household. Refer to the TOC Affordable Housing Incentive Program Background section 
of this determination for additional information. 
 
TRANSIT ORIENTED COMMUNITIES AFFORDABLE HOUSING INCENTIVE PROGRAM 
ELIGIBILITY REQUIREMENTS 
 
To be an eligible Transit Oriented Communities (TOC) Housing Development, a project must meet 
the Eligibility criteria set forth in Section IV of the TOC Affordable Housing Incentive Program 
Guidelines (TOC Guidelines). A Housing Development located within a TOC Affordable Housing 
Incentive Area shall be eligible for TOC Incentives if it meets all of the following requirements, 
which it does:  
 

1. On-Site Restricted Affordable Units. In each Tier, a Housing Development shall provide 
On-Site Restricted Affordable Units at a rate of at least the minimum percentages 
described below. The minimum number of On-Site Restricted Affordable Units shall be 
calculated based upon the total number of units in the final project. 

a. Tier 1 - 8% of the total number of dwelling units shall be affordable to Extremely 
Low Income (ELI) Households, 11% of the total number of dwelling units shall be 
affordable to Very Low (VL) Income Households, or 20% of the total number of 
dwelling units shall be affordable to Lower Income Households.  

b. Tier 2 - 9% ELI, 12% VL or 21% Lower.  
c. Tier 3 - 10% ELI, 14% VL or 23% Lower.  
d. Tier 4 - 11% ELI, 15% VL or 25% Lower. 

 
The project site is located within a Tier 4 TOC Affordable Housing Incentive Area 
according to the TOC Referral Form dated April 24, 2019. As part of the proposed 
development, the project is required to reserve at least 11 percent, or 17 units, of the total 
153 units for Extremely Low Income Households. The project proposes 17 units restricted 
to Extremely Low Income Households. As such, the project meets the eligibility 
requirement for On-Site Restricted Affordable Units.  



  
DIR-2019-3760-TOC-SPP-SPR Page 13 of 35 

 
2. Major Transit Stop. A Housing Development shall be located on a lot, any portion of 

which must be located within 2,640 feet of a Major Transit Stop, as defined in Section II 
and according to the procedures in Section III.2 of the TOC Guidelines. 
 
A Major Transit Stop is a site containing a retail station or the intersection of two or more 
bus routes with a service interval of 15 minutes or less during the morning and afternoon 
peak commute periods. The project site is located approximately 310 feet from the 
Vermont/Sunset Metro Red Line Station and Metro Rapid Bus 754. As such, the project 
meets the eligibility requirement for proximity to a Major Transit Stop.  
 

3. Housing Replacement. A Housing Development must meet any applicable housing 
replacement requirements of California Government Code Section 65915(c)(3), as verified 
by the Department of Housing and Community Investment (HCIDLA) prior to the issuance 
of any building permit. Replacement housing units required per this section may also count 
towards other On-Site Restricted Affordable Units requirements. 
 
Pursuant to the Determination made by the Los Angeles Housing and Community 
Investment Department (HCIDLA) dated May 2, 2019, 10 units are subject to replacement 
under AB 2556. Pursuant to the HUD Comprehensive Housing Affordability Strategy 
(CHAS), 10 units must be equivalent type, with four (4) units restricted to Extremely Low 
Income Households, three (3) units restricted to Very Low Income household, and three 
(3) units restricted to Low Income household. In addition, there was a total of four (4) units 
presumed to have been occupied by an above-lower income person or household. These 
four (4) units must be replaced in compliance with the City’s Rent Stabilization Ordinance. 
The proposed project is reserving 17 units for Extremely Low Income household. As such, 
the project meets the eligibility requirement for providing replacement housing consistent 
with California Government Code Section 65915(c)(3). 
 

4. Other Density or Development Bonus Provisions. A Housing Development shall not 
seek and receive a density or development bonus under the provisions of California 
Government Code Section 65915 (State Density Bonus law) or any other State or local 
program that provides development bonuses. This includes any development bonus or 
other incentive granting additional residential units or floor area provided through a 
General Plan Amendment, Zone Change, Height District Change, or any affordable 
housing development bonus in a Transit Neighborhood Plan, Community Plan 
Implementation Overlay (CPIO), Specific Plan, or overlay district. 
 
The project is not seeking any additional density or development bonuses under the 
provisions of the State Density Bonus Law or any other State or local program that 
provides development bonuses, including, but not limited to a General Plan Amendment, 
Zone Change, Height District Change, or any affordable housing development bonus in a 
Transit Neighborhood Plan, CPIO, Specific Plan, or overlay district. As such, the project 
meets this eligibility requirement.  
 

5. Base Incentives and Additional Incentives. All Eligible Housing Developments are 
eligible to receive the Base Incentives listed in Section VI of the TOC Guidelines. Up to 
three Additional Incentives listed in Section VII of the TOC Guidelines may be granted 
based upon the affordability requirements described below. For the purposes of this 
section below, “base units” refers to the maximum allowable density allowed by the zoning, 
prior to any density increase provided through these Guidelines. The affordable housing 
units required per this section may also count towards the On-Site Restricted Affordable 
Units requirement in the Eligibility Requirement No. 1 above (except Moderate Income 
units). 



  
DIR-2019-3760-TOC-SPP-SPR Page 14 of 35 

 
a. One Additional Incentive may be granted for projects that include at least 4% of 

the base units for Extremely Low Income Households, at least 5% of the base units 
for Very Low Income Households, at least 10% of the base units for Lower Income 
Households, or at least 10% of the base units for persons and families of Moderate 
Income in a common interest development.  
 

b. Two Additional Incentives may be granted for projects that include at least 7% of 
the base units for Extremely Low Income Households, at least 10% of the base 
units for Very Low Income Households, at least 20% of the base units for Lower 
Income Households, or at least 20% of the base units for persons and families of 
Moderate Income in a common interest development.  

 
c. Three Additional Incentives may be granted for projects that include at least 11% 

of the base units for Extremely Low Income Households, at least 15% of the base 
units for Very Low Income Households, at least 30% of the base units for Lower 
Income Households, or at least 30% of the base units for persons and families of 
Moderate Income in a common interest development. 
 

The project is seeking one (1) Additional Incentives as follows: a 25 percent reduction to 
permit a minimum 12,769 square feet of overall usable open space in lieu of the minimum 
17,025 square feet otherwise required. The project would be required to set aside 11 
percent, or 10 units, of the base 85 units for Extremely Low Income Households. The 
applicant is proposing to set aside an overall 17 units for Extremely Low Income 
households. As such, the project meets the eligibility requirement for Base and Additional 
Incentives.  

 
6. Projects Adhering to Labor Standards. Projects that adhere to the labor standards 

required in LAMC 11.5.11 may be granted two Additional Incentives from the menu in 
Section VII of these Guidelines (for a total of up to five Additional Incentives). 
 
The project is not seeking two (2) Additional Incentives beyond the three (3) permitted in 
exchange for reserving at least 11 percent of the base 85 units for Extremely Low Income 
Households. As such, the project need not adhere to the labor standards required in LAMC 
Section 11.5.11 and this eligibility requirement does not apply.  
 

7. Multiple Lots. A building that crosses one or more lots may request the TOC Incentives 
that correspond to the lot with the highest Tier permitted by Section III above. 
 
The project site consists of five (5) contiguous lots, which are all located within a Tier 4 
TOC Affordable Housing Incentive Area according to the TOC Referral Form dated April 
24, 2019. As such, this eligibility requirement does not apply.  
 

8. Request for a Lower Tier. Even though an applicant may be eligible for a certain Tier, 
they may choose to select a Lower Tier by providing the percentage of On-Site Restricted 
Affordable Housing units required for any Lower Tier and be limited to the Incentives 
available for the Lower Tier. 
 
The applicant has not selected a lower Tier and is not providing the percentage of On-Site 
Restricted Affordable Housing units required for any Lower Tier. As such, this eligibility 
requirement does not apply.  
 

9. 100% Affordable Housing Projects. Buildings that are Eligible Housing Developments 
that consist of 100% On-Site Restricted Affordable units, exclusive of a building manager’s 



  
DIR-2019-3760-TOC-SPP-SPR Page 15 of 35 

unit or units shall, for purposes of these Guidelines, be eligible for one increase in Tier 
than otherwise would be provided. 
 
The project does not consist of 100% On-Site Restricted Affordable units. As such, this 
eligibility requirement does not apply.  

 
TRANSIT ORIENTED COMMUNITIES AFFORDABLE HOUSING INCENTIVE PROGRAM / 
AFFORDABLE HOUSING INCENTIVES COMPLIANCE FINDINGS 
 
Pursuant to Section 12.22 A.31(e) of the LAMC, the Director shall review a Transit Oriented 
Communities (TOC) Affordable Housing Incentive Program project application in accordance with 
the procedures outlined in LAMC Section 12.22 A.25(g). 
 
1. Pursuant to Section 12.22 A.25(g) of the LAMC, the Director shall approve a density 

bonus and requested incentives unless the Director finds that:  
a. The incentives are not required to provide for affordable housing costs as 

defined in California Health and Safety Code Section 50052.5 or Section 50053 
for rents for the affordable units. 
The record does not contain substantial evidence that would allow the Director to make 
a finding that the requested incentives are not necessary to provide for affordable 
housing costs per State Law. The California Health & Safety Code Sections 50052.5 
and 50053 define formulas for calculating affordable housing costs for Very Low, Low, 
and Moderate Income Households. Section 50052.5 addresses owner-occupied 
housing and Section 50053 addresses rental households. Affordable housing costs 
are a calculation of residential rent or ownership pricing not to exceed 25 percent gross 
income based on area median income thresholds dependent on affordability levels. 

 
The list of incentives in the TOC Guidelines were pre-evaluated at the time the TOC 
Affordable Housing Incentive Program Ordinance was adopted to include types of 
relief that minimize restrictions on the size of the project. As such, the Director will 
always arrive at the conclusion that the on-menu incentives are required to provide for 
affordable housing costs because the incentives by their nature increase the scale of 
the project. The following incentive allows the developer to reduce open space 
requirements per the SNAP so that affordable housing units reserved for Extremely 
Low Income Households can be constructed and the overall space dedicated to 
residential uses is increased. An additional incentive request for height has been 
dismissed as further discussed in Finding No. 2.c. These incentives support the 
applicant’s decision to reserve 17 units for Extremely Low Income Households. 

 
Open Space: The applicant requests a 25 percent reduction of the required open 
space to permit a minimum 12,769 square feet of overall usable open space in lieu of 
the minimum 17,025 square feet otherwise required. The requested open space 
incentive is expressed in the Menu of Incentives in the TOC Guidelines, which permit 
exceptions to zoning requirements that result in building design or construction 
efficiencies that facilitate affordable housing costs. The requested incentive allows the 
inclusion of affordable housing, while still providing usable open space as intended by 
the Code.  

 
b. The Incentive will not have a specific adverse impact upon public health and 

safety or the physical environment, or on any real property that is listed in the 
California Register of Historical Resources and for which there are no feasible 
method to satisfactorily mitigate or avoid the specific adverse Impact without 
rendering the development unaffordable to Very Low, Low and Moderate Income 



  
DIR-2019-3760-TOC-SPP-SPR Page 16 of 35 

Households. Inconsistency with the zoning ordinance or the general plan land 
use designation shall not constitute a specific, adverse impact upon the public 
health or safety.  
There is no substantial evidence in the record that the proposed incentives will have a 
specific adverse impact. A "specific adverse impact" is defined as, "a significant, 
quantifiable, direct and unavoidable impact, based on objective, identified written 
public health or safety standards, policies, or conditions as they existed on the date 
the application was deemed complete" (LAMC Section 12.22.A.25(b)). As required by 
Section 12.22 A.25 (e)(2), the project meets the eligibility criterion that is required for 
density bonus projects. The project also does not involve a contributing structure in a 
designated Historic Preservation Overlay Zone or on the City of Los Angeles list of 
Historical-Cultural Monuments.  Therefore, there is no substantial evidence that the 
proposed incentives will have a specific adverse impact on public health and safety. 

 
VERMONT/WESTERN SNAP FINDINGS 
 
2. The project substantially complies with the applicable regulations, findings, 

standards, and provisions of the specific plan. 
 

A. Parks First. Section 6.F of the Vermont/Western Specific Plan requires the applicant to 
pay a Parks First Trust Fund of $4,300 for each new residential unit, prior to the issuance 
of a Certificate of Occupancy. The project proposes the demolition of three (3) existing 
multi-family buildings consisting of 14 units and accessory buildings and the 
construction, use and maintenance of a 153-unit residential building, resulting in a net 
increase of 139 residential units. The project is therefore required to pay a total of 
$597,700 into the Parks First Trust Fund. The calculation of a Parks First Trust Fund fee 
to be paid or actual park space to be provided pursuant to the Parks First Ordinance shall 
be off-set by the amount of any fee pursuant to LAMC Section 17.12 or dwelling unit 
construction tax pursuant to LAMC Section 21.10.1, et seq. This requirement is reflected 
in the Condition of Approval. As conditioned, the project complies with Section 6.F of the 
Specific Plan. 
 

B. Use. Section 9.A of the Vermont/Western Specific Plan states that residential uses 
permitted in the R4 Zone by LAMC Section 12.11 and commercial uses permitted in 
the C4 Commercial Zone by LAMC Section 12.16 shall be permitted by-right on any 
lot located within Subarea C of the Specific Plan area. The subject site is 33,053 
square feet in size, or 33,720.5 square feet (33,053 sf + 667.5 square feet with half of 
the alley), allowing a maximum of 85 base dwelling units per the underlying zone. 
However, the applicant is seeking an 80 percent increase in the maximum allowable 
density permitted in the SNAP to allow 153 dwelling units in lieu of the otherwise 
permitted 85 dwelling units, in exchange for setting aside 11 percent, or 17 units, of 
the total 153 units for Extremely Low Income households per the TOC Affordable 
Housing Incentive Program. The project has been conditioned to record a covenant 
with the Los Angeles Housing and Community Investment Department (HCIDLA) to 
make 17 units available to Extremely Low Income Households to ensure the applicant 
sets aside the required number of units for affordable housing to be eligible for an 80 
percent increase from the total density permitted by the SNAP. No commercial uses are 
proposed. Therefore, as conditioned and in conjunction with the TOC Affordable Housing 
Incentive Program, the project complies with Section 9.A of the Specific Plan. 

 
C. Height and Floor Area. Section 9.B of the Vermont/Western Specific Plan requires 

that mixed-use projects shall not exceed a maximum building height of 75 feet and 
100 percent commercial projects shall not exceed a maximum building height of 35 
feet; except that roofs and roof structures for the purposes specified in Section 12.21.1 



  
DIR-2019-3760-TOC-SPP-SPR Page 17 of 35 

B.3 of the Code, may be erected up to 10 feet above the height limit established in this 
section, if those structures and features are setback a minimum of 10 feet from the 
roof perimeter and are screened from view at street level by a parapet or a sloping 
roof. However, since the SNAP is silent on Height for 100 percent residential buildings 
within this Subarea, the Height is taken from the underlying zone of R4-1, which has 
no height limit. The application included a request for an additional overall height 
incentive to allow a height increase of up to 33 feet within Tier 4. However, this height 
incentive that was requested has been dismissed as it is not necessary. The project 
proposes the demolition of multi-family buildings, and the construction, use and 
maintenance of an eight-story, 153-unit residential building with a maximum height of 
92 feet, 6 ½ inches when measured from grade to the highest point of the parapet wall. 

 
Section 9.B. of the Vermont/Western Specific Plan limits the maximum FAR to 3:1 for 
the residential portion of the proposed building and 1.5:1 for the commercial section. 
Since the SNAP is silent on 100 percent residential buildings within this Subarea, the 
Height is taken from the underlying zone of R4-1, which has an FAR limit of 3:1. 
However, the applicant is seeking a 45 percent FAR increase to 4.35:1 in exchange 
for setting aside 11 percent, or 17 units, of the total 153 units for Extremely Low Income 
Households. The applicant is proposing to set aside an overall 17 units for Extremely 
Low Income households. 
 

FAR Increase 
 Limit With TOC Tier 4 Proposed 

SNAP FAR 
100% Residential 3:1 3:1 + 45% = 

4.35:1 
3:1 + 45% = 

4.35:1 
 

The project site contains 33,053 square feet, or 33,720.5 square feet (33,053 sf + 
667.5 square feet with half of the alley) of lot area and the proposed building contains 
a combined floor area of 143,785 square feet, resulting in a FAR of 4.35:1 FAR which 
is within the maximum allowable 4.35:1 FAR per the TOC incentive. Therefore, as 
conditioned and in conjunction with the TOC Affordable Housing Incentive Program, the 
project complies with Section 9.B of the Specific Plan. 

 
D. Transitional Height. Section 9.C of the Vermont/Western Specific Plan states that 

portions of buildings on a lot located within Subarea C adjoining or abutting a lot within 
Subarea A shall not exceed 25 feet in height, 33 feet in height, and 61 feet in height 
when located within 0-49 feet, 50-99 feet, and 100-200 feet respectively. The project 
site does not abut any properties located within Subarea A. Therefore, Section 9.C. of 
the Specific Plan does not apply. 

 
E. Usable Open Space. Section 9.D of the Vermont/Western Specific Plan states that 

residential projects with two or more dwelling units must provide specified amounts of 
common and private open space pursuant to the standards set forth in LAMC 12.21 
G.2 of the Code. The Specific Plan further stipulates that up to 75 percent of the total 
open space may be located above the grade level or first habitable room level of the 
project, and that roof decks may be used in their entirety as common or private open 
space, excluding that portion of the roof within 20 feet of the roof perimeter. Units 
containing less than three (3) habitable rooms require 100 square feet of open space 
per unit. Units containing three (3) habitable rooms require 125 square feet of open 
space per unit. Units containing more than three (3) habitable rooms require 175 
square feet of open space per unit. The Vermont/Western SNAP sets forth the 
minimum usable open space requirement, as shown in the table below: 

  



  
DIR-2019-3760-TOC-SPP-SPR Page 18 of 35 

 
SNAP Minimum Usable Open Space 

 Units Sq. Ft. 
Required 

Usable Open 
Space (sq. ft.) 

Dwelling Units with 
Less than 3 Habitable Rooms 98 100 9,800 

Dwelling Units with 
3 Habitable Rooms 48 125 6,000 

Dwelling Units with 
More than 3 Habitable Rooms 7 175 1,225 

Total Minimum Usable Open Space 17,025 
25% located at grade or first habitable room level 4,256.25 

 
However, the applicant is seeking a 25 decrease in the minimum open space 
requirement in the SNAP in exchange for setting aside 11 percent, or 10 units, of the 
base 85 units for Extremely Low Income Households. The applicant is proposing to 
set aside an overall 17 units for Extremely Low Income households. 
 

Open Space reduction 
 Required With TOC Tier 4 Proposed 

Total 17,025 17,025 – 25% = 
12,769 12,993 

25% located at grade or first habitable room level 3,192.25 
 

The project is therefore required to provide a total of 12,769 square feet of open space, 
of which 3,192.25 square feet must be located at grade level or first habitable room 
level. Therefore, as conditioned and in conjunction with the TOC Affordable Housing 
Incentive Program, the project complies with Section 9.D of the Specific Plan. 
 

F. Project Parking Requirements. Section 9.E of the Vermont/Western Specific Plan 
sets forth a minimum and maximum parking standard for residential projects, as shown 
in the tables below:  
 

SNAP Minimum Parking Spaces 

 Parking Space Per 
Square Feet / Unit Units Parking Spaces 

Dwelling Units with 
Less than 3 Habitable Rooms 1 0 0 

Dwelling Units with 
3 Habitable Rooms 1 98 98 

Dwelling Units with 
More than 3 Habitable Rooms 1.5 55 82 

Total Residential Required Spaces 180 
Guest .25 153 38 

Total Minimum Required Spaces (inclusive of guest parking) 218 
  



  
DIR-2019-3760-TOC-SPP-SPR Page 19 of 35 

 
SNAP Maximum Parking Spaces 

 Parking Space Per 
Square Feet / Unit Units Parking Spaces 

Dwelling Units with 
Less than 3 Habitable Rooms 1 0 0 

Dwelling Units with 
3 Habitable Rooms 1.5 98 147 

Dwelling Units with 
More than 3 Habitable Rooms 2 55 110 

Total Residential Allowable Spaces 257 
Guest .50 153 76 

Total Maximum Allowable Spaces (inclusive of guest parking) 333 
 
However, the applicant proposes to utilize the Automobile Parking Incentive under the 
TOC Housing Incentive Program, which allows zero (0) residential parking spaces in 
Tier 4 of TOC, in exchange for setting aside the required percentage of affordable 
units. The TOC Automobile Parking Incentive replaces the minimum parking 
requirement in the SNAP; however, the project is still subject to the maximum parking 
requirement per the SNAP. The SNAP limits the maximum number of automobile 
parking spaces to 333, inclusive of guest parking spaces. The project will provide 84 
residential parking spaces without any guest parking spaces as permitted by TOC, 
which is within the minimum and maximum requirements. Therefore, as conditioned 
and in conjunction with the reduced residential parking spaces per TOC, the project 
complies with Section 9.E of the Specific Plan.  
 
Bicycles. Section 9.E.2 of the Vermont/Western Specific Plan requires any residential 
project with two (2) or more dwelling units to provide one-half (0.5) bicycle parking 
space per residential unit. The proposed development consists of 153 residential units, 
thus, requiring 77 bicycle parking spaces. The applicant proposes 28 long-term bicycle 
parking spaces in a bicycle parking room located at the First Floor Level and 49 long-
term bicycle parking spaces in a bicycle parking room located at the Second Floor 
Level. 
 
Commercial Parking.  Section 9.E.3 of the Vermont/Western Specific Plan requires 
two (2) parking spaces per 1,000 square feet of commercial floor area, which must be 
shared with any guest parking spaces being proposed. The project consists of a 100 
percent residential building. As such, this standard does not apply. 

 
Therefore, the project complies with Sections 9.E.1, 9.E.2, and 9.E.3 of the Specific 
Plan.  

 
G. Conversion Requirements. Section 9.F of the Vermont/Western Specific Plan sets 

forth requirements pertaining to the conversion of existing structures to residential 
condominium uses. The project proposes the demolition of three (3) existing multi-
family buildings and accessory buildings, and the construction, use and maintenance 
of a 153 unit residential building. The project does not include the conversion of 
existing commercial structures to residential condos. Therefore, Section 9.F of the 
Specific Plan does not apply. 
 

H. Pedestrian Throughways. Section 9.G states that applicants shall provide one public 
pedestrian walkway, throughway, or path for every 250 feet of street frontage for the 
project. The pedestrian throughway shall be accessible to the public and have a 



  
DIR-2019-3760-TOC-SPP-SPR Page 20 of 35 

minimum vertical clearance of 12 feet and a minimum horizontal clearance of ten-feet. 
The proposed building will occupy 165 feet of frontage along the northerly side of 
Maubert Avenue. Therefore, Section 9.G of the Specific Plan does not apply.  
 

I. Yards. Section 9.H of the Vermont/Western Specific Plan specifies that no front, side 
or rear yard setbacks shall be required for the development of any project within 
Subarea C. The project proposes no yard setbacks. Therefore, the new development 
complies with Section 9.H of the Specific Plan.  

 
J. Development Standards. Section 9.I of the Vermont/Western Specific Plan requires 

that all projects with new development and extensive remodeling be in substantial 
conformance with the following Development Standards and Design Guidelines. The 
proposed project conforms to Development Standards and Design Guidelines as 
discussed in Findings below. 
 

Development Standards 
 

(1). Landscape Plan. The Development Standard for Subarea C requires that all open 
areas not used for buildings, driveways, parking, recreational facilities, or pedestrian 
amenities shall be landscaped by lawns and other ground coverings, allowing for 
convenient outdoor activity. All landscaped areas shall be landscaped in accordance 
with a landscape plan prepared by a licensed landscape architect, licensed architect, 
or licensed landscape contractor. The landscape plan in Exhibit “A” shows that 
adequate landscaping will be provided throughout the project site. The project will 
provide six (6) street trees within the public right-of-way. The 3rd and 8th Floor will be 
landscaped with shrubbery, ground cover, and trees. The applicant has been 
conditioned to submit a final landscape plan prepared by a licensed landscape 
architect and a final irrigation plan. Therefore, as conditioned, the project complies with 
this Development Standard. 
 

(2). Usable Open Space. This Development Standard requires that common usable open 
space must have a dimension of 20 feet when measured perpendicular from any point 
on each of the boundaries of the open space area and a minimum common open 
space area of 400 square feet for projects with less than 10 dwelling units and 600 
square feet for projects with 10 dwelling units or more. Balconies shall have a minimum 
dimension of six feet. Common open space areas or balconies not meeting the 
minimum dimension requirements when measured perpendicular from any point on 
each of the boundaries of the open space area cannot be counted towards the square-
footage allocated towards meeting the overall usable open space requirement. The 
Development Standard further stipulates that private usable open space, such as 
balconies with a minimum dimension of six feet, may reduce the required usable open 
space directly commensurating with the amount of private open space provided. The 
applicant proposes multiple common open space areas throughout the building as 
seen in Exhibit A, Sheet 7, in forms of decks, courtyards, balconies, and recreation 
rooms for a total area of 6,642 square feet common open space and 6,351 square feet 
of private open space areas throughout the building. Therefore, the project complies 
with this Development Standard.  
 

(3). Streetscape Elements. The Development Standards require that any project along 
Vermont Avenue, Virgil Avenue, or Hollywood Boulevard between the Hollywood 
Freeway and Western Avenue, or referred to in the Barnsdall Park Master Plan, or 
projects along major and secondary highways, to conform to the standards and design 
intentions for improvement of the public right-of-way. The project site is located along 



  
DIR-2019-3760-TOC-SPP-SPR Page 21 of 35 

Maubert Avenue, which is considered a Local Street - Standard, therefore, only some 
of the following Development Standards apply. 
 

a) Street Trees. The Development Standards require that one 36-inch box 
shade tree be planted and maintained in the sidewalk for every 30 feet of 
street frontage. The project site has 165 feet of frontage along Maubert 
Avenue, thus requiring five (5) street trees along Maubert. The project 
proposes six (6) shade canopy street trees within the 165 feet of street 
frontage along Maubert Avenue. Therefore, as conditioned, the project 
complies with this Development Standard. 

 
b) Tree Well Covers. The Development Standards require that a tree well cover 

be provided for each new and existing street tree in the project area. The 
project proposes six (6) new street trees in the public right-of-way which 
includes a tree well cover. Therefore, as conditioned, the project complies 
with this Development Standard. 

 
c) Bike Racks. The Development Standards require one bike rack for every 50 

feet of street frontage. The project site has 165 feet of frontage along Maubert 
Avenue, thus, requiring three (3) bike racks along the public right-of-way. The 
project proposes two (2) bike racks and must provide one additional bike 
rack. Therefore, as conditioned, the project complies with this Development 
Standard. 
 

d) Trash Receptacles. The Development Standards require one trash 
receptacle be provided in the public right-of-way for every 100 feet of lot 
frontage along a Major or Secondary Highway. The project site has 165 feet 
of frontage along Maubert Avenue, which is not designated as a major or 
secondary street. As such, this Development Standard does not apply. 
However, as seen in Exhibit A, Sheet 21, the applicant team is proposing one 
(1) trash receptacle along the public right-of-way.  

 
e) Public Benches. The Development Standards require that one public bench 

be provided in the public right-of-way for every 250 feet of lot frontage on a 
Major or Secondary Highway. The project site has 165 feet of frontage along 
Maubert Avenue, which is not designated as a major or secondary street. As 
such, this Development Standard does not apply. However, as seen in 
Exhibit A, Sheet 21, the applicant team is proposing two (2) bench seating 
located along the public right-of-way of the project site. 

 
(4). Pedestrian/Vehicular Circulation. The Development Standards require that all 

projects be oriented to a main commercial street and shall avoid pedestrian/vehicular 
conflicts by adhering to standards related to parking lot location, curb cuts, pedestrian 
entrances, pedestrian walkways and speed bumps. The subject property is oriented 
towards Maubert Avenue, which is considered the main commercial street. Therefore, 
the following Development Standards apply. 

 
a) Parking Lot Location. The Development Standards require that surface 

parking lots be placed at the rear of structures. The project does not propose 
a surface parking lot, but rather vehicle parking within two (2) levels of above 
grade parking which is enclosed. Therefore, this Development Standard 
does not apply.  
 



  
DIR-2019-3760-TOC-SPP-SPR Page 22 of 35 

b) Waiver. The Director of Planning may authorize a waiver from the 
requirement to provide parking in the rear of the lot for mid-block lots that do 
not have through access to an alley or public street at the rear. The project 
lot does have access to an alley at the rear and is used as another parking 
entry. Therefore, this Development Standard does not apply. 

 
c) Curb Cuts. The Development Standards allow one curb cut that is 20 feet in 

width for every 150 feet of street frontage when a project takes its access 
from a Major or Secondary Highway, unless otherwise required by the 
Departments of Public Works, Transportation or Building and Safety. The 
project proposes vehicle ingress and egress from an approximate 33-foot 
curb cut along Maubert Avenue, however, Maubert Avenue is identified as a 
Local Street - Standard. As such, this Development Standard does not apply. 
 

d) Pedestrian Entrance. The Development Standards require that all buildings 
that front on a public street shall provide a pedestrian entrance at the front of 
the building. As shown on “Exhibit A” the project proposes a pedestrian 
entrance at the center of the street frontage, along Maubert Avenue. 
Therefore, the project complies with this Development Standard. 
 

e) Design of Entrances. The Development Standards require that entrances 
be located in the center of the façade or symmetrically spaced if there are 
more than one and be accented by architectural elements such as columns, 
overhanging roofs or awnings. The residential lobby and fitness room along 
Maubert Avenue are evenly spaced on the façade. Therefore, as proposed, 
the project complies with this Development Standard. 

 
f) Inner Block Pedestrian Walkway. The Development Standards require that 

applicants provide a pedestrian walkway, throughway or path for every 250 
feet of street frontage for a project. The pedestrian path or throughway shall 
be provided from the rear property line or from the parking lot or public alley 
or street if located to the rear of the project, to the front property line. The 
pedestrian walkway shall be accessible to the public and have a minimum 
vertical clearance of 12 feet, and a minimum horizontal clearance of 10 feet. 
The street frontage for the proposed project is 165 feet along Maubert 
Avenue. Therefore, this Development Standard does not apply. 

 
g) Speed Bumps. The Development Standards require speed bumps be 

provided at a distance of no more than 20 feet apart when a pedestrian 
walkway and driveway share the same path for more than 50 lineal feet. The 
proposed project does not contain a pedestrian walkway and driveway that 
share the same path for more than 50 lineal feet. Therefore, this 
Development Standard does not apply.  

 
(5). Utilities. The Development Standards require that when new utility service is installed 

in conjunction with new development or extensive remodeling, all proposed utilities on 
the project site shall be placed underground. The project does not propose any 
installation of new utility service at this time. However, in the event new utility lines are 
to be installed on the site, the Conditions of Approval require all new utility lines which 
directly service the lot or lots shall be installed underground. If underground service is 
not currently available, then provisions shall be made for future underground service. 
Therefore, as conditioned, the project complies with this Development Standard. 
 



  
DIR-2019-3760-TOC-SPP-SPR Page 23 of 35 

(6). Building Design. The purpose of the following provisions is to ensure that a project 
avoids large blank expenses of building walls, is designed in harmony with the 
surrounding neighborhood, and contributes to a lively pedestrian friendly atmosphere. 
Accordingly, the following standards shall be met: 
 

a) Stepbacks. The Development Standards require that 1) no portion of any 
structure exceed more than 30 feet in height within 15 feet of the front 
property line, and 2) that all buildings with a property line fronting on a Major 
Highway, including Hollywood Boulevard, Sunset Boulevard, Santa Monica 
Boulevard, and Vermont Avenue, shall set the second floor back from the 
first floor frontage at least 10 feet. The proposed building has a front property 
line along Maubert Avenue, which is classified as a Local Street - Standard. 
As such, the proposed project is only subject to the first stepback 
requirement. As seen in Exhibit A, Sheet 11, the project provides a 15-foot 
stepback prior to the 30-foot maximum height restriction along the front 
property line. Therefore, the project complies with this Development 
Standard.  
 

b) Transparent Building Elements. The Development Standards require that 
transparent building elements such as windows and doors occupy at least 50 
percent of the ground floor facades on the front and side elevations and 20 
percent of the surface area of the rear elevation of the ground floor portion 
which has surface parking in the rear of the structure. Moreover, a “side 
elevation ground floor façade” has been interpreted by Staff to only mean 
those facades which face a street or alley and not facades along interior lot 
lines that face other buildings. The subject site currently has a south elevation 
that faces Maubert Avenue. The remaining north, east, and west facades are 
along interior lot lines that face other buildings or alley. Per Exhibit A, Sheet 
16, the project has a ground floor elevation area of 1,674 square feet, thus, 
requiring a minimum transparency of 837 square feet along Maubert Avenue. 
The project proposes 840 square feet of transparent building elements along 
Maubert Avenue, which is more than the minimum required. Therefore, as 
conditioned, the project complies with this Development Standard.  

 
c) Façade Relief. The Development Standards require that exterior walls 

provide a break in plane for every 20 feet horizontally and every 30 feet 
vertically. As seen in “Exhibit A” the project proposes horizontal and vertical 
plane breaks through the use of the façade incrementally stepped away from 
the street, projecting balconies, change in material, and lineal orientation of 
the façade construction. Therefore, the project complies with this 
Development Standard. 

 
d) Building Materials. The Development Standards require that building 

facades be comprised of at least two types of complimentary building 
materials. The project proposes the use of metal, vinyl, plaster, and glass on 
all elevations of the structure. Therefore, the project complies with this 
Development Standard. 

 
e) Surface Mechanical Equipment. The Development Standards require that 

all surface or ground mounted mechanical equipment be screened from 
public view and treated to match the materials and colors of the building 
which they serve. The plans indicate a transformer located at the northeast 
corner of the first level parking area. The transformer will be screened from 
view. In the event surface mechanical equipment is constructed in the future, 



  
DIR-2019-3760-TOC-SPP-SPR Page 24 of 35 

the Conditions of Approval require surface mechanical equipment to match 
the colors and materials of the building which they serve. Therefore, as 
conditioned, the project complies with this Development Standard. 

 
f) Roof Lines. The Development Standards require that all rooflines in excess 

of 40 feet are broken up through the use of gables, dormers, plant-ons, 
cutouts, or other appropriate means. As seen in Exhibit A, Sheets 14-17, all 
roof lines are broken up to not exceed a horizontal roof line of 40 feet or 
greater. Therefore, the project complies with this Development Standard. 
 

(7). Rooftop Appurtenances. The Development Standards require that all rooftop 
equipment and building appurtenances shall be screened from public view or 
architecturally integrated into the design of the building. In the event that rooftop 
mechanical equipment is constructed, a Condition of Approval has been included 
requiring said equipment and ducts be screened from view from any street, public 
right-of-way or adjacent property and the screening shall be solid and match the 
exterior materials, design and color of the building. Therefore, as conditioned, the 
project complies with this Development Standard. 
 

(8). Trash and Recycling Areas. The Development Standards require that trash storage 
bins be located within a gated, covered enclosure constructed of identical building 
materials, be a minimum of six feet high, and have a separate area for recyclables. 
The proposed project provides a minimum six-foot trash and recycle enclosure located 
within the first parking level. Therefore, the project complies with this Development 
Standard. 
 

(9). Pavement. The Development Standards require that paved areas not used as parking 
and driveway areas consist of enhanced paving materials such as stamped concrete, 
permeable paved surfaces, tile, and/or brick pavers. The project is built up to the 
property lines and does not have paved areas not used as driveway areas. Therefore, 
this Development Standard does not apply. 
 

(10). Freestanding Walls. The Development Standards require that all freestanding walls 
contain an architectural element at intervals of no more than 20 feet and be set back 
from the property line adjacent to a public street. The project does not propose any 
freestanding walls. Therefore, Development Standard does not apply. 

 
(11). Parking Structures – Required Commercial Frontage. The Development 

Standards require that all of the building frontage along major or secondary highways, 
for a parking structure shall be for commercial, community facilities, or other non-
residential uses to a minimum depth of 25 feet. This Development Standard applies to 
standalone parking structures, which the project does not propose. Therefore, this 
Development Standard does not apply. 

 
(12). Parking Structures – Façade Treatments. The Development Standards require 

parking structures be designed to match the style, materials and colors of the main 
building. This Development Standard applies to standalone parking structures, which 
the project does not propose. Therefore, this Development Standard does not apply. 

 
(13). Parking Structures Across from Residential Uses. The Development Standards 

require parking structures abutting or directly across an alley or public street from any 
residential use or zone conform to standards regarding the façade facing the 
residential use or zone. This Development Standard applies to standalone parking 



  
DIR-2019-3760-TOC-SPP-SPR Page 25 of 35 

structures, which the project does not propose. Therefore, this Development Standard 
does not apply. 

 
(14). Surface Parking Lots. The Development Standards require at least 10 percent of the 

surface parking lot to be landscaped with: one (1) 24-inch box shade tree for every 
four parking spaces, spaced evenly to create an orchard-like effect; a landscaped 
buffer around the property line; and a three and a half foot solid decorative masonry 
wall behind a three-foot landscaped buffer. The trees shall be located so that an 
overhead canopy effect is anticipated to cover at least 50 percent of the parking area 
after 10 years of growth. The project does not propose a surface parking lot. The 
parking for the project is located within two (2) levels of above grade parking which is 
enclosed. Therefore, this Development Standard does not apply. 

 
(15). Surface Parking Abutting Residential. The Development Standards require surface 

parking abutting or directly across an alley or public street from any residential use or 
zone conform to standards regarding a decorative wall and landscaping buffer. The 
project does not propose a surface parking lot. The parking for the project is located 
within two (2) levels of above grade parking which is enclosed. Therefore, this 
Development Standard does not apply. 

 
(16). On-Site Lighting. The Development Standards require that the project include on-site 

lighting along all vehicular and pedestrian access ways. The Development Standards 
specify that the acceptable level of lighting intensity is ¾ foot-candle of flood lighting 
measured from the ground, a maximum mounting height of light sources shall be 14 
feet, and “white” color corrected lamp color shall be used for ground level illumination. 
A Condition of Approval has been included to ensure that any lighting shall meet the 
on-site lighting standards mentioned above. Therefore, as conditioned, the project 
complies with this Development Standard. 

 
(17). Security Devices. The Development Standards require security devices to be 

screened from public view. The proposed project does not contain any type of security 
devices at this time. In the event that additional security devices are installed in the 
future, a Condition of Approval has been included requiring all proposed devices to be 
integrated into the design of the building, concealed and retractable. Therefore, the 
project complies with this Development Standard. 

 
(18). Privacy. The Development Standards require that buildings be arranged to avoid 

windows facing windows across property lines, or the private open space of other 
residential units. The applicant has provided elevations, which depict the windows of 
the existing adjacent structures to the east superimposed onto the proposed project. 
The elevations show that none of the windows of adjacent residential properties will 
be marginally effected by the new construction. Therefore, the project complies with 
this Development Standard.  

 
(19). Hours of Operation. The Development Standards require that parking lot cleaning 

and sweeping, trash collection and deliveries be limited between 7:00 a.m. - 8:00 p.m. 
Monday through Friday, and 10:00 a.m. - 4:00 p.m. on Saturdays and Sundays. The 
applicant has been required in the Conditions of Approval to comply with this 
Development Standard. Therefore, as conditioned, the project complies with this 
Development Standard. 

 
(20). Noise Control. The Development Standards require that any dwelling unit exterior 

wall including windows and doors having a line of sight to a public street or alley be 
constructed to provide a Sound Transmission Class of 50 or greater, as defined in the 



  
DIR-2019-3760-TOC-SPP-SPR Page 26 of 35 

Uniform Building Code Standard No. 35-1, 1979 edition, or latest edition. The 
proposed building has multiple windows in the front façade with a line of sight directly 
to Maubert Avenue. A Condition of Approval has been included requiring any dwelling 
unit exterior wall including windows and doors having a line of sight to a public street 
or alley to be constructed to provide a Sound Transmission Class of 50 or greater, as 
defined in the Uniform Building Code Standard No. 35-1, 1979 edition, or latest edition. 
Therefore, as conditioned, the project complies with this Development Standard. 

 
(21). Required Ground Floor Uses. The Development Standards states that 100 percent 

of street level uses within Subarea C must be commercial uses up to a depth of 25 
feet. However, this Development Standard has been interpreted by Staff to only apply 
to Mixed-Use projects, not 100 percent residential projects. The applicant proposes a 
100 percent residential building. Therefore, this Development Standard does not 
apply. 

 
Design Guidelines 
 
(22). Urban Form. The Design Guidelines encourage transforming commercial streets 

away from a highway oriented, suburban format into a distinctly urban, pedestrian 
oriented and enlivened atmosphere by providing outdoor seating areas, informal 
gathering of chairs, and mid-block pedestrian walkways. The Guidelines also indicate 
that streets should begin to function for the surrounding community like an outdoor 
public living room and that transparency should exist between what is happening on 
the street and on the ground floor level of the buildings. The project is designed to 
enhance the pedestrian experience along Maubert Avenue by providing 50 percent 
transparency increasing visibility into the ground floor from the street. The project will 
also include bike racks, shade trees, and trash receptacles on the public right-of-way. 
Therefore, as proposed, the project complies with this Design Guideline. 
 

(23). Building Form. The Design Guidelines encourage every building to have a clearly 
defined ground plane, roof expression and middle or shaft that relates the two. The 
ground plane of the project is defined by facades that consist of aluminum, glass, and 
textured metal panel. The upper floors are defined by balconies and various planes 
that consist of different material, windows, building cantilever, and building fur-out. The 
roof plane provides cutouts and adds articulation to the building. Therefore, as 
proposed, the project complies with this Design Guideline. 

 
(24). Architectural Features. The Design Guidelines encourage courtyards, balconies, 

arbors, roof gardens, water features, and trellises. Appropriate visual references to 
historic building forms – especially Mediterranean traditions – are encouraged in new 
construction. The proposed project provides private balconies and contains an open 
courtyard on the third floor level. Furthermore, the street-facing elevation employs a 
variety of building materials and articulation by way of recessed balconies, changes in 
building plane, building materials, and transparency. Therefore, the project complies 
with this Design Guideline. 

 
(25). Building Color. The Design Guidelines encourage buildings be painted three colors: 

a dominant color, a subordinate color and a “grace note” color. The proposed project 
includes multiple colors such as beige as its dominant color, light brown as its 
subordinate façade color, and black as its grace note. Therefore, the project complies 
with this Design Guideline. 

 
(26). Signs. The Design Guidelines provide extensive guidance related to the placement, 

type, and style of signage to be used for projects. The Guidelines identify appropriate 



  
DIR-2019-3760-TOC-SPP-SPR Page 27 of 35 

signs for the Specific Plan area to include: wall signs, small projecting hanging signs, 
awnings or canopy signs, small directory signs, and window signs. Any pole, roof or 
off-site sign, any sign containing flashing, mechanical or strobe lights are prohibited. 
The applicant does not propose signs as part of this application. However, all future 
signs shall be reviewed by Project Planning staff for compliance with the 
Vermont/Western SNAP and Design Guidelines. Filing for a Project Permit shall not 
be necessary unless a Project Permit Adjustment, Exception, or Amendment is 
required. Therefore, as conditioned, the project complies with this Development 
Standard. 

 
(27). Plant Materials on Facades. The Design Guidelines encourage facade plant 

materials in addition to permanent landscaping. Plants can be arranged in planters, 
containers, hanging baskets, flower boxes, etc. The applicant does not propose any 
plant materials on facades. Therefore, this Design Guideline does not apply. 

 
3. The project incorporates mitigation measures, monitoring measures when 

necessary, or alternatives identified in the environmental review, which would 
mitigate the negative environmental effects of the project, to the extent physically 
feasible. 
 
At its meeting on January 14, 2020, the City Council determined that the project, Council 
File No. 19-1389, is exempt from CEQA pursuant to PRC 21155.1 as a Transit Priority 
Project and Sustainable Communities Project. The project is not anticipated to have a 
negative effect on the environment and no mitigation measures are required to be 
incorporated. Pursuant to Senate Bill (SB) 375 and Public Resources Code (PRC) Section 
21155.1, a project that qualifies as a Transit Priority Project and is declared by a legislative 
body to be a Sustainable Communities Project is statutorily exempt from the California 
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA). These SB 375 clearances are intended to meet the 
goals of the Sustainable Communities Strategy to encourage higher density, infill 
development located near transit. In order to qualify as a Transit Priority Project, the project 
must be consistent with general land use policies of an adopted Sustainable Communities 
Strategy per PRC Section 21155(a) and meet the criteria in PRC Section 21155(b) related 
to minimum density, residential uses, and distance from a major transit stop or high-quality 
transit corridor.  
 
In order to qualify as a Sustainable Communities Project, the project must meet all 
environmental criteria in PRC Section 21155.1(a), all land use criteria in PRC Section 
21155.1(b), and one public benefit criteria in PRC Section 21155.1(c). A public hearing must 
be held by City Council prior to declaring a project to be a Sustainable Communities Project 
and the City Council is required to find the necessary criteria are met in Subsections (a), (b) 
and (c) of PRC Section 21155.1. Unlike other CEQA clearances, the SCP Exemption must 
be approved by the City Council, even if the initial decisionmaker or appellate body is a 
lower decision-making body or officer. A public hearing was held before the Planning and 
Land Use Management Committee (PLUM) on November 26, 2019. The City Council 
adopted PLUM’s recommendation to find that the project was a Transit Priority Project and 
that it qualified for a SCP Exemption at its meeting on January 24, 2020.   

 
SITE PLAN REVIEW FINDINGS 

 
4. The project is in substantial conformance with the purposes, intent and provisions of 

the General Plan, applicable community plan, and any applicable specific plan. 
 

The General Plan sets forth goals, objectives, and programs that serve as the foundation 
for all land use decisions. The City of Los Angeles’ General Plan consists of the Framework 



  
DIR-2019-3760-TOC-SPP-SPR Page 28 of 35 

Element, seven State-mandated Elements including Land Use, Mobility, Housing, 
Conservation, Noise, Safety, and Open Space, and optional Elements including Air Quality, 
Service Systems and Plan for a Healthy Los Angeles. The Land Use Element is comprised 
of 35 community plans that establish parameters for land use decisions within those 
communities of the City.  
 

The proposed project meets the following objectives and policies contained in the 
Framework Element, Chapter 3 – Land Use: 
 
Distribution of Land 
Objective 3.1 Accommodate a diversity of uses that support the needs of the City’s existing 
and future residents, businesses, and visitors. 
 
Objective 3.4 Encourage new multi-family residential, retail commercial, and office 
development in the City’s neighborhood districts, community, regional, and downtown 
centers as well as along primary transit corridors/boulevards, while at the same time 
conserving existing neighborhoods and related districts. 
 
Multi-Family Residential 
GOAL 3C Multi-family neighborhoods that enhance the quality of life for the City's existing 
and future residents. 

 
Objective 3.7 Provide for the stability and enhancement of multi-family residential 
neighborhoods and allow for growth in areas where there is sufficient public infrastructure 
and services and the residents' quality of life can be maintained or improved. 
 
Community Centers 
GOAL 3 Pedestrian-oriented, high activity, multi- and mixed-use centers that support and 
provide identity for Los Angeles’ communities.  

 
Policy 3.9.7 Provide for the development of public streetscape improvements, where 
appropriate. 
 
Figure 3-1 Metro Long Range Land Use Diagram of the Framework Element indicates that 
the project site is located within a Community Center, which is described as a focal point  
for surrounding residential neighborhoods and containing a diversity of uses such as small 
offices and cultural and entertainment facilities, in addition to neighborhood oriented 
services. Generally, community centers range from FAR of 1.5:1 to 3:1. Physically, the scale 
and density of community centers would be greater than the neighborhood districts, 
generally with building heights ranging from two to six stories depending on the character of 
the surrounding area.  
 
The project proposes a 100 percent development that will provide 153 dwelling units with a 
total residential floor area of 143,785 square feet. The residential project will provide a use 
that is compatible with the surrounding residential neighborhoods and commercial corridors. 
Furthermore, the proposed project meets the type of ideal use envisioned for a Community 
Center. As a 100 percent residential development, the project reverts to the underlying zone 
for maximum height allowed and FAR. The project is limited to an FAR of 3:1 with no height 
limit. However, the applicant is seeking a FAR increase to 4.35:1 in exchange for setting 
aside 11 percent, or 17 units, of the total 153 units for Extremely Low Income Households, 
consistent with the TOC Guidelines. The applicant is proposing to set aside an overall 17 
units for Extremely Low Income households. 
 



  
DIR-2019-3760-TOC-SPP-SPR Page 29 of 35 

The proposed FAR for the residential development is 4.35:1. The building height is 92 feet, 
6 ½ inches for an eight-story project, with two (2) levels of above grade parking. As such, in 
conjunction with the TOC Affordable Housing Incentive Program the project is consistent with 
the physical scale and density, as well as ideal uses that are envisioned in a Community 
Center of the Framework Element.  
 
Land Use Element – Hollywood Community Plan 
The project site is located within the boundaries of the Hollywood Community Plan, which 
was adopted by the Los Angeles City Council on December 13, 1988. The proposed mixed-
use development advances the following objectives and policies contained in the 
Community Plan:  
 
Objective 1 To further the development of Hollywood as a major center of population, 
employment, retail services, and entertainment […]. 
 
Standards and Criteria New apartments should be soundproofed and should be provided 
with adequate usable open space at a minimum ratio of 100 square feet per dwelling unit 
excluding parking areas, driveways and the required front yard setback. 
 
Standards and Criteria The intensity of residential land use in this Plan and the density of 
the population which can be accommodated thereon, shall be limited in accordance with the 
following criteria: The adequacy of the existing and assured circulation and public 
transportation systems within the area […]. 
 
The project proposes a 100% residential development in an area that is close to a major 
transit station (Metro Vermont/Sunset Station) and various bus routes, connecting the 
project site to other regional and local destinations as well as employment centers and retail 
services. The project will contribute to the Hollywood area as a medium- to high-density 
residential development that provides housing. Furthermore, the project has been 
conditioned to provide a Sound Transmission Class of 50 or greater, as defined in the 
Uniform Building Code Standard No. 35-1, 1979 edition, or latest edition, for any dwelling 
units with their exterior wall having a line of sight to a public street or alley. This will meet 
the Standards and Criteria of the Hollywood Community Plan to soundproof new 
apartments. In addition, the project provides adequate usable open space by providing a 
total of 12,993 square feet of open space, made up of a courtyard, recreational room, and 
private balconies. 

 
Vermont/Western Station Neighborhood Plan Area (SNAP) 
The Vermont/Western SNAP was adopted by the Los Angeles City Council and became 
effective on March 1, 2001. The proposed project meets the following purposes of the SNAP 
as outlined in Section 2 of the Specific Plan: 
 
C. Establish a clean, safe, comfortable and pedestrian oriented community environment for 

residents to shop in and use the public community services in the neighborhood. 
 
E. Guide all development, including use, location, height and density, to assure 

compatibility of uses and to provide for the consideration of transportation and public 
facilities, aesthetics, landscaping, open space and the economic and social well-being 
of area residents. 

 
H. Promote increased flexibility in the regulation of the height and bulk of buildings as well 

as the design of sites and public streets in order to ensure a well-planned combination 
of commercial and residential uses with adequate open space. 

 



  
DIR-2019-3760-TOC-SPP-SPR Page 30 of 35 

R. Facilitate the provision of studio and one bedroom apartments for adult students and 
senior citizens located near colleges, subway stations and along commercial corridors. 

 
As demonstrated in Finding Number 2, the project is in substantial conformance with the 
Specific Plan regulations as well as the Development Standards and Design Guidelines 
required to achieve a pedestrian-oriented design. The project provides attractively 
landscaped areas with street and canopy trees, shrubs, and ground covers, in addition to 
bike racks and trash receptacles. Furthermore, the ground floor façades are designed with 
highly transparent materials, which further contribute to a pedestrian-friendly environment 
around the project site. The proposed height and density of the residential development 
comply with the underlying zone and Specific Plan in conjunction with the TOC Affordable 
Housing Incentive Program. The project also proposes a wide range of open space areas 
and amenities, including exterior open spaces and courtyard areas and a recreation room, 
which would contribute to the social well-being of its residents. Façade relief and articulation 
are achieved through the use of various materials including plaster, vinyl, metal, and 
cement. Lastly, the project proposes a unit mix that consists of one- to three-bedrooms, 
within close proximity to the Metro’s Vermont/Sunset Station and bus stations along major 
commercial corridors.  
 
Mobility Element 
The Mobility Element was adopted by the Los Angeles City Council on January 20, 2016. 
The proposed development supports the following policies of the Mobility Plan. 
 
Policy 2.3 Recognize walking as a component of every trip, and ensure high-quality 
pedestrian access in all site planning and public right-of-way modifications to provide a safe 
and comfortable walking environment. 
 
Policy 3.3 Promote equitable land use decisions that result in fewer vehicle trips by 
providing greater proximity and access to jobs, destinations, and other neighborhood 
services. 
 
Policy 3.4 Provide all residents, workers and visitors with affordable, efficient, convenient, 
and attractive transit services. 
 
Policy 3.8 Provide bicyclists with convenient, secure and well-maintained bicycle parking 
facilities. 

 
The proposed project contains the qualities of a transit-oriented development that complies 
with the policies stated above. The project site is located within 310 feet of the 
Vermont/Sunset Station. This station serves the Metro Red Line, which runs between North 
Hollywood and Union Station and connects to the Orange Line in North Hollywood to the 
Purple Line in Koreatown and the Blue Line in Downtown Los Angeles. The line also 
connects to the Metro Gold Line and the Metrolink commuter rail lines at Union Station. The 
project site is also located in close proximity to various public transit routes, including but 
not limited to Metro Local Line 2, 175 and 217 which provides access to Downtown Los 
Angeles, Westwood, and Silverlake; Metro Local Lines 754 and 204, providing access to 
Hollywood, Westlake, Koreatown, and Athens. The project proposes the construction of a 
medium- to high-density residential development containing 153 dwelling units. The Mobility 
Plan encourages the development of residential units near transit stops to provide greater 
access to employment centers, neighborhood services, as well as other regional and local 
destinations. The public right-of-way around the site will incorporate landscaping as well as 
street furniture to provide a more interesting and walkable environment, and the project will 
provide a safe and secure bicycle parking storage area within the building.  
 



  
DIR-2019-3760-TOC-SPP-SPR Page 31 of 35 

Housing Element 
The City’s Housing Element for 2013-2021 was adopted by City Council on December 3, 
2013.  The project is consistent with the following objectives, policies and programs: 
 
GOAL 1 Housing Production and Preservation 
 
Objective 1.1 Produce an adequate supply of rental and ownership housing in order to meet 
current and projected needs. 

 
GOAL 2 Safe, Livable, and Sustainable Neighborhoods 
 
Objective 2.4 Promote livable neighborhoods with a mix of housing types, quality design 
and a scale and character that respects unique residential neighborhoods in the City.  

 
These goals, objectives and policies are to ensure that growth is directed toward centers 
and transit. Strategically directing long-range growth is consistent with the approach 
established by the Framework Element of the General Plan. The use of various Subareas, 
allowing for different densities within the SNAP, ensure that existing neighborhood character 
is preserved and that the appropriate amount of density is placed in a location that has been 
deemed to be desirable and consistent with the various planning policies. The additional 
153 dwelling units will not be change the neighborhood character and are within the allowed 
400 square feet per dwelling unit per the underlying R4 Zone, in conjunction with the 
provisions of TOC, and the SNAP permits under Subarea C, which are consistent.  
 
Plan for a Healthy Los Angeles Element  
 
The Plan for a Healthy Los Angeles lays the foundation to create healthier communities for 
all Angelenos, and provides high-level policy vision, along with measurable objectives and 
implementation programs, to elevate health as a priority for the City's future growth and 
development. On May 23, 2018, the City Planning Commission imposed several Conditions 
of Approval, which implements the following program of the Plan for a Health Los Angeles 
Element.  
 
Program 1 Energy efficiencies, weatherization, proper positioning of trees to shade 
buildings, alternative energy and solar generation systems, explore the feasibility of building 
designs that incorporate facile systems to charge electric vehicles, and use of rainwater, 
storm water, greywater and recycled water.  
 
The proposed development will be designed as to incorporate as much weatherization of 
the proposed building as possible. The building will implement elements throughout the 
interior to reduce energy consumption and optimize energy efficiency. As such, the 
proposed project is in conformance with the Plan for a Healthy Los Angeles Element. 

 
5. The project consists of an arrangement of buildings and structures (including height, 

bulk and setbacks), off-street parking facilities, loading areas, lighting, landscaping, 
trash collection, and other such pertinent improvements, that is or will be compatible 
with existing and future development on adjacent properties and neighboring 
properties. 

 
Development of the project site into a residential building would be consistent and 
compatible with existing and future development on neighboring and other properties within 
close proximity, which is generally developed with commercial and residential uses. 
Furthermore, the project provides architectural features that vary and articulate the building 
façade and incorporates a variety of colors and materials. The project also employs a variety 



  
DIR-2019-3760-TOC-SPP-SPR Page 32 of 35 

of architectural elements such as projecting balconies, changes in building plane, and 
vertical and horizontal bands. 
 

Building Arrangement (Height, Bulk, and Setbacks) 
The subject site is located within Subarea C of the Vermont/Western SNAP, which contains 
provisions for building height, FAR, and setbacks. Per Section 3 of the SNAP, the Specific 
Plan prevails and supersedes the applicable provisions of the Municipal Code, wherever the 
Specific Plan contains provisions on development.  
 
The surrounding area is generally characterized by medium density residential and 
commercial uses. Parcels to the east and north are zoned R4-1 and C2-1, respectively, 
located within Subarea C of the SNAP, and developed with multi-family residential 
developments and commercial uses. The parcels to the west are zoned R4-1 and C2-CAS1, 
located within Subarea C of the SNAP, and developed with multi-family residential buildings 
and a bank. The parcels to the south are zoned R4-2 and C2-CSA1, located within Subarea 
C of the SNAP, and developed with Children’s Hospital Los Angeles. 

 
The project proposes a maximum of 92 feet, 6 ½ inches in building height when measure 
from grade to the highest point of the parapet and consist of 143,785 square feet of floor 
area. The surrounding buildings are developed to a lower density ranging up to 4 units 
compared to the proposed development containing 153 dwelling units. Although the 
proposed 92-foot tall residential building with two levels of above grade parking is not 
currently consistent with the height of some of the existing surrounding residential or 
commercial developments that range in height from one to four stories, the project will be 
consistent with any future development that will have a height limit of 75 feet for mixed-use 
projects or no height limit for a 100 percent residential project, no setback requirements, 
and allow for a similar bulk in conjunction with the TOC Affordable Housing Incentive 
Program.  
 
The building has one stepback along Maubert Avenue that helps redistribute the height and 
massing of the building. This will allow for a better pedestrian experience along Maubert 
Avenue by not having a structure reach the proposed 92-foot height along the front property 
line along the entirety of the 165 feet of street frontage. Furthermore, the surrounding 
residential properties are located within Subarea C, and designated for similar land uses. 
Future developments in the area are subject to the same height, bulk and density 
requirements of the Vermont/Western SNAP and land use designation. Therefore, the 
proposed development will be compatible with future developments in the area.  
 
The SNAP does not require front, side, and rear yards for projects that are located in 
Subarea C. In addition to meeting the height and FAR per the underlying zone, and setback 
requirements per the Specific Plan, the project proposes various articulation and 
architectural elements that reduce the effect of a large-scale development in the 
neighborhood. The ground plane of the project is defined by facades that consist of glass. 
The upper floors are defined by balconies and various planes that consist of plaster, vinyl 
windows, and metal. The roof plane varies with cutouts and adds articulation to the building. 
The changes in the plane as well as materials also further articulates the building and 
increases the visual interest from public streets. Furthermore, balconies and fenestration 
that orient toward the streets contribute to public safety by maintaining the “eyes on the 
street” concept within their design. The proposed development will not degrade the existing 
visual character of the site and its surroundings. 
 
Off-Street Parking Facilities and Loading Areas 
The proposed project is a 100 percent residential building containing 153 dwelling units with 
parking for the project located within a two-level above grade parking garage. The parking 



  
DIR-2019-3760-TOC-SPP-SPR Page 33 of 35 

will be accessible by an ingress and egress driveway located on Maubert Avenue and the 
rear alley. The project proposes 84 residential parking spaces for residential units and no 
guest parking. The project will also provide 77 bicycle parking spaces on-site and two (2) 
bike racks along the public right-of-way.  
 
Lighting 
The plans for this project do not specify lighting details at this time. However, the 
Development Standards specify that the acceptable level of lighting intensity is ¾ foot-
candle of flood lighting measured from the ground, a maximum mounting height of light 
sources shall be 14 feet, and “white” color corrected lamp color shall be used for ground 
level illumination. As such, the project has been conditioned to comply with the lighting 
regulations of the Specific Plan.  
 
Landscaping 
The landscape plan in Exhibit “A” shows that adequate landscaping will be provided 
throughout the project site. The public right away will be landscaped with street trees. The 
3rd floor level contains a courtyard and private balconies with landscaping. The proposed 
plant palette shows that the landscaping will include trees such as Evergreen shade trees 
and flowering shade trees, along with ground cover. The applicant is also required to submit 
a final landscape plan prepared by a licensed landscape architect showing a combination 
of shrubs, trees, clinging vines, ground cover, lawns, planter boxes, flower and/or fountains 
incorporated into all landscaped areas on the project site as well as a final irrigation plan.  
 
Trash Collection 
The Vermont/Western SNAP Development Standards specify requirements for the location 
and design of trash storage and recycling areas. The project proposes an enclosed trash 
and recycling area within the parking garage on the ground floor. The trash collection will 
be provided via Maubert Avenue. 
 

6. Any residential project provides recreational and service amenities to improve 
habitability for its residents and minimize impacts on neighboring properties. 

 
The project will provide a total of 12,993 square feet of open space, including a 3,450 square 
feet of courtyard at the 3rd floor level, 1,495 feet of recreation room, and 6,351 square feet 
of balconies. As shown in the open space diagram in Exhibit “A,” all common open space 
areas, including the courtyard and amenity/recreational rooms will be conditioned to 
maintain a minimum dimension of 20 feet when measured perpendicular from any point on 
each of the boundaries of the open space area, and all balconies will have a minimum 
dimension of six (6) feet. Common open space areas not meeting the minimum dimension 
of 20 feet when measured perpendicular from any point on each of the boundaries of the 
open space area cannot be counted towards the overall usable open space requirement. 
Therefore, the open space on-site provides appropriate amenities and recreational facilities 
for the project’s residents and are expected to minimize impacts on neighboring properties.  

 
  



  
DIR-2019-3760-TOC-SPP-SPR Page 34 of 35 

OBSERVANCE OF CONDITIONS - TIME LIMIT - LAPSE OF PRIVILEGES 
 
All terms and conditions of the Director’s Determination shall be fulfilled before the use may be 
established. The instant authorization is further conditioned upon the privileges being utilized 
within three years after the effective date of this determination and, if such privileges are not 
utilized, building permits are not issued, or substantial physical construction work is not begun 
within said time and carried on diligently so that building permits do not lapse, the authorization 
shall terminate and become void. 
 
TRANSFERABILITY 
 
This determination runs with the land. In the event the property is to be sold, leased, rented or 
occupied by any person or corporation other than yourself, it is incumbent that you advise them 
regarding the conditions of this grant. If any portion of this approval is utilized, then all other 
conditions and requirements set forth herein become immediately operative and must be strictly 
observed. 
 
VIOLATIONS OF THESE CONDITIONS, A MISDEMEANOR 
 
Section 11.00 of the LAMC states in part (m): “It shall be unlawful for any person to violate any 
provision or fail to comply with any of the requirements of this Code. Any person violating any of 
the provisions or failing to comply with any of the mandatory requirements of this Code shall be 
guilty of a misdemeanor unless that violation or failure is declared in that section to be an 
infraction. An infraction shall be tried and be punishable as provided in Section 19.6 of the Penal 
Code and the provisions of this section. Any violation of this Code that is designated as a 
misdemeanor may be charged by the City Attorney as either a misdemeanor or an infraction. 
 
Every violation of this determination is punishable as a misdemeanor unless provision is otherwise 
made, and shall be punishable by a fine of not more than $1,000 or by imprisonment in the County 
Jail for a period of not more than six months, or by both a fine and imprisonment.” 
 
APPEAL PERIOD - EFFECTIVE DATE 
 
The applicant's attention is called to the fact that this grant is not a permit or license and that any 
permits and licenses required by law must be obtained from the proper public agency. 
Furthermore, if any condition of this grant is violated or not complied with, then the applicant or his 
successor in interest may be prosecuted for violating these conditions the same as for any violation 
of the requirements contained in the Municipal Code, or the approval may be revoked. 
 
The Determination in this matter will become effective and final fifteen (15) days after the 
date of mailing of the Notice of Director’s Determination unless an appeal there from is filed 
with the City Planning Department. It is strongly advised that appeals be filed early during the appeal 
period and in person so that imperfections/incompleteness may be corrected before the appeal 
period expires. Any appeal must be filed on the prescribed forms, accompanied by the required fee, 
a copy of this Determination, and received and receipted at a public office of the Department of City 
Planning on or before the above date or the appeal will not be accepted. Forms are available on-
line at http://planning.lacity.org. 
 
Planning Department public offices are located at: 
 
Figueroa Plaza 
201 North Figueroa Street 
  4th Floor 
Los Angeles, CA 90012 
(213) 482-7077 

Marvin Braude San Fernando 
  Valley Constituent Service Center  
6262 Van Nuys Boulevard, Room 251 
Van Nuys, CA 91401 
(818) 374-5050 

West Los Angeles 
1828 Sawtelle Boulevard 
  2nd Floor 
Los Angeles, CA 90025 
(310) 231-2901 



 
DIR-2019-3760-TOC-SPP-SPR Page 35 of 35 

Verification of condition compliance with building plans and/or building permit applications are done 
at the Development Services Center of the Department of City Planning at either Figueroa Plaza in 
Downtown Los Angeles, the Marvin Braude Building in the Valley, or West LA office. In order to 
assure that you receive service with a minimum amount of waiting, Applicants are encouraged to 
schedule an appointment with the Development Services Center either through the Department of 
City Planning website at http://planning.lacity.org, or by calling (213) 482-7077, (818) 374-5050, or 
(310) 231-2901. The applicant is further advised to notify any consultant representing you of this 
requirement as well. 

The time in which a party may seek judicial review of this determination is governed by California 
Code of Civil Procedures Section 1094.6. Under that provision, a petitioner may seek judicial review 
of any decision of the City pursuant to California Code of Civil Procedure Section 1094.5, only if the 
petition for writ of mandate pursuant to that section is filed no later than the 90th day following the 
date on which the City's decision becomes final. 
 
 
VINCENT P. BERTONI, AICP 
Director of Planning 

Approved by:  Reviewed by: 
 

 
  

Jane Choi, AICP, Principal City Planner  May Sirinopwongsagon, City Planner 
  
  

Prepared by:  
 

 
Jason Hernández, City Planning Associate 
jason.hernandez@lacity.org 

 ndedededededededededededeez, City Plann
dededededdededez@lacity org

ongsagon, Citye Choi, AICP, Prin












































